Agenda
For enquiries on this agenda, please contact:
James Geach 020 8547 5062
email: james.geach@kingston.gov.uk
Published on 6 October 2016

Growth Committee
Date:

Thursday 13 October 2016

Time:

7:30 pm

Place:

Guildhall, Kingston upon Thames

Members of the Committee
Councillor David Cunningham (Chair), Councillor Andrea Craig (Vice Chair),
Councillor Bill Brisbane, Councillor Kevin Davis, Councillor Sheila Griffin, Councillor
Raju Pandya, Councillor Priyen Patel, Councillor Cathy Roberts, Councillor Malcolm
Self, Councillor Ken Smith, Councillor Thay Thayalan, Councillor Jon Tolley and
Councillor Gaj Wallooppillai
Co-opted Members
Jane Marwood (Anglican Diocese of Southwark)

Everyone is welcome to attend the meeting
This agenda is available to view on: www.kingston.gov.uk
You can also access this agenda through the Modern.gov app or by scanning the QR
code with your smartphone.

2

AGENDA
1.



Questions and public participation
a 30 minute question and answer session at the start of the meeting – advance notice of questions is encouraged
contributions during the debate on items at the discretion of the Chair

2.

Apologies for absence and attendance of substitute Members

3.

Minutes
To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 9 June 2016.

4.

Declarations of interest
Members are asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests and any other
non-pecuniary interests (personal interests) relevant to items on this agenda.

5.

Kingston Indoor Sports & Leisure Facilities Strategy
Appendix A
To approve the Kingston Indoor Sports and Leisure Facilities Strategy (2016-2028).

6.

Kingston Opportunity Area - Direction of Travel
Appendix B
To adopt the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames.
To note that the Direction of Travel responds to the consultation process and
provides a clear direction and joint statement of intent between the Council and the
Greater London Authority.

7.

North Kingston Development Brief
Appendix C
To adopt the North Kingston Development Brief, which sets out a planning
framework to guide redevelopment in North Kingston. To note the Brief responds to
the consultation process and provides a clear set of principles and land uses, in
order to help shape future development proposals.

8.

Creative Kingston Group - CIC Proposal
Appendix D
To consider the establishment of Creative Kingston as a cultural Community
Interest Company (CIC) with a view to enabling its ambition to develop Kingston’s
profile as a creative place to do business.

9.

10.

Proposals for Right to Buy Receipts - Reference from the
Appendix E
Adults and Children's Committee
To delegate authority to the Head of Housing to acquire properties on the open
market to be included in the HRA Stock, as recommended by the Adults and
Children’s Committee and Housing Sub-Committee.
HRA Sites Affordable Housing Development Feasibility Study Appendix F
Reference from the Housing Sub-Committee
To report the recommendation of the Housing Sub-Committee in relation to the
findings of the HRA Sites Affordable Housing Development Feasibility Study and to
seek approval to enter into discussions with Registered Providers and private
developers to dispose of the sites in the study and, if successful, to dispose of the
sites to enable the development of homes on the sites.

3

11.

Investigating a leasing model for housing property
Appendix G
development (for vacant high value local authority housing) Reference from the Housing Sub-Committee
To recommend the Committee requests a report investigating the viability of a
leasing model for Housing property development arising from the requirements of
the Housing and Planning Act 2016.

12.

Disposal of Long Lease of St Mary's Centre, Chessington
Appendix H
To approve the disposal of the site known as the St Mary's Centre, Chessington, to
the YMCA by way of a long lease, subject to the YMCA obtaining any necessary
planning consents and resolving any relevant land issues.

13.

Urgent items authorised by the Chair
To consider any items which, in the view of the Chair, should be dealt with as a
matter of urgency because of special circumstances in accordance with S100B(4)
of the Local Government Act 1972.

14.

Exclusion of press & public
The following resolution is included if any exempt matter is to be considered at the
meeting for which the Committee wish to resolve to exclude the press and public:
To exclude the public from the meeting under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local
Government Act 1972 on the grounds that it is likely that exempt information, as
defined in paragraph *….of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Act, would be disclosed
and the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in
disclosing the information.
(*relevant regulatory paragraph to be indicated)

4

Welcome to this meeting.
The following information explains the way some things are done at the meeting and some of the
procedures.
Information about the Committee
The Committee is made up of your local elected Councillors. As one of five strategic committees
of the Council, it helps to set the overall direction of the Council.
Public participation during the meeting
Do you want to ask a question?
There is a Question Time of up to 30 minutes from 7.30pm – 8pm. Questions may be
submitted in writing before the meeting or handed in at the start of the meeting on the green
forms provided. (There are some green slips on the chairs and there are more copies.)
Please fill in the relevant part and hand this in to the Committee Officer at the top table.
Where a full reply cannot be given at the meeting, a written reply will be sent to the
questioner, members of the Committee and the local press. The Chair may disallow any
question which, in his/her opinion, is scurrilous, capricious, irrelevant or otherwise
objectionable.
Running order
Are you here for a particular item? Items may be taken in a different order depending on the
interests of the members of the public present at the meeting. Please fill out a green form at
the start of the meeting and hand this to the Committee Officer if you would like to request
that a particular item is heard earlier in the meeting.
Taking part in the meeting
During the course of the meeting, the Chair, at his/her discretion, may allow contributions, on
items listed on the agenda. To attract the Chair’s attention, please raise your hand.
Speaking at meetings
Speaking at a meeting can be a daunting prospect and every effort is made to make this as
easy as possible. Speech friendly arrangements will take account of people who may have a
speech impairment, e.g. they may have a stammer. If you have any individual requirements
or feel that standing or addressing the meeting may present a difficulty, please let us know
beforehand. Arrangements will be made to help you as far as reasonably possible.

5

More meeting information
Accessibility






All meetings have access for people who may have mobility difficulties. If there are stairs, a
lift or stairlift is available. Disabled parking spaces are available on site.
Toilet facilities will be easily accessible from the meeting room.
For people who are deaf or have hearing impairments, there is an induction loop (depending
on the building, this may only be available in the first 2 or 3 rows).

A large print copy of the agenda can be requested in advance.

Emergency evacuation arrangements
If the fire alarm sounds, please leave the building by the nearest exit. If you require assistance,
please remain seated and an Officer will assist you from the building.
Recording of the meeting
This meeting will be audio recorded and the recording will be available on the web site
(www.kingston.gov.uk) with the agenda and minutes.
Filming
Residents and journalists/media wishing to film meetings are permitted to do so but are asked to
give advance notice of this and respect any concerns expressed by people on being filmed.
Interests
Councillors must say if they have an interest in any of the items on the agenda. Interests may be
personal or pecuniary. Depending on the interests declared, it might be necessary for the
Councillor to leave the meeting. The detail on interests is in Part 5A of the Constitution Members’ Code of Conduct.
Call In
Most of the decisions made at the Committee, except on decisions on planning applications/
planning enforcement/tree preservation orders and any licensing applications, can be called in for
review by 100 people who live, work or study in the Borough. The call in period is 5 days after the
minutes have been published (the deadline for the call in of any of these decisions will be set out
in the Minutes). Decisions are not, therefore, acted upon until it is clear that they are not going to
be called in.
The call in means the decision will be reviewed by a full meeting of the Council. The Council at
this meeting cannot change the original decision, it may decide that no further action is necessary,
in which case the decision will be implemented or will refer the issue back to the Committee with
its views and a request that the decision is reconsidered taking account of these views.
Minutes
The minutes briefly summarise the item and record the decision. They do not record who said
what during the debate.

Growth Committee

A1

Appendix A

13 October 2016
Kingston Indoor Sports & Leisure Facilities Strategy
Report by the Interim Head of Culture

Purpose
To approve the Kingston Indoor Sports and Leisure Facilities Strategy (2016-2028).
Recommendations of the Portfolio Holder for Growth and Identity
To resolve that the Kingston Indoor Sports and Leisure Facilities Strategy (2016-2028)
(attached as Annex 1) is adopted.

Key Points
A.

Kingston has an aspiration, and need, to consider its facilities planning, particularly
in the context of the fact it has an ageing stock of leisure facilities.
B.
This strategy was written by specialist sport and leisure consultancy, Knight,
Kavanagh & Page (KKP). Both the Assessment Report and the Strategy have been
prepared in accordance with the guidance from Sport England contained in the
document ‘Assessing Needs and Opportunities Guide for Indoor and Outdoor
Sports Facilities (ANOG), December 2014. This recommended approach helps LAs
and other potential users to understand the current and future facility needs in an
area and the adequacy of provision to meet these needs. This will take account of
the range of providers; the importance of education, private and voluntary sector
provision and, under the duty to co-operate, cross boundary supply and demand
issues
C.
The strategy is not based upon detailed technical assessments of the buildings,
plant etc, nor does it address other wider issues such as parking needs or travel
plans to each of the centres . This detail will be considered elsewhere in the
development process as we take forward the recommendations.
D.
The Strategy provides clear direction to all partners so that together, we can plan
and develop the more modern, efficient and sustainable range of community based
sport and leisure facilities that Kingston requires.
E.
This is necessary to ensure that residents have the opportunity to be physically
active and healthier, and where appropriate develop their sporting ambitions within
their local community.
Context
1.

The key drivers for having an Indoor Sports and Leisure Facilities Strategy are:
The fabric and plant at Kingfisher Leisure Centre and the Malden Centre are
showing their age, and both facilities are considered to be coming to the end of
their lifespan.

2.

A2
The layouts of Tolworth Recreation Centre and Kingfisher Leisure Centre do not
tend to support ease of use nor economies of scale.

3.

The ancillary facilities at Kingsmeadow Athletics and Fitness Centre are not
commensurate with the quality of the athletics track facilities.

4.

The Council has an ambition to grow its cultural infrastructure as an integral part
of its proposed developments.

5.

The rising age profile of the population are likely to lead to increased demand for
facilities during the daytime (when much of the education stock is inaccessible to
the public).

6.

We need to review how we intend to offer leisure facilities in the future, the
communities we serve and our links with the wider health and wellbeing, obesity
and social care agendas, taking into account the increasing financial restraints
we face and the health challenges posed by an ageing population.

7.

Offering facilities and programmes of activity which contribute to; reducing health
inequalities across the Borough for all ages, local economic development,
supporting and promoting active lifestyles and increasing participation in sport
and physical activity to allow residents to live longer, healthier, happier lives.

8.

To have a robust evidence base upon which to be able to apply for external
funding such as Sport England’s Strategic Capital Programme which
complement wider development plans .

Proposal and Options
9.

Replace Kingfisher Leisure Centre with a strategically significant community
sport and wellbeing hub. This will encompass a modern fit for purpose
community flagship leisure facility in the heart of Kingston, and integrate a range
of community services in one place.

10.

Aligned to the anticipated housing growth in New Malden, and the requirement
for new facilities (due to the dated Malden Centre), develop plans for a
community sport and wellbeing hub which enhances current levels of facilities
and co-locates a range of services (taking account of any new school build in the
area, as necessary and the ambitions outlined in the Cocks Crescent
Supplementary Planning Document)

11.

Investigate the potential of a new strategic community sports hub, incorporating
both wet and dry-side facilities, which will serve residents in the South of the
Borough that will integrate a range of community services in one place.

12.

Replace ancillary facilities at Kingsmeadow Athletics and Fitness Centre, to
ensure that it supports the wider health and wellbeing agenda, as well as
competitive athletes who use the facility. Consider co-location of other activities
which will lead to increased footfall and help its sustainability

13.

A3
As part of the investment in major leisure facilities, consider the potential to
combine/include a combat sports/martial arts facility due to the high participation
rates in several such sports in the Borough.

14.

To work with Education to ensure that any improvements to sports facilities in
schools are accompanied by the establishment of meaningful community use
agreements.

15.

To work with selected schools to increase their availability for community use.

16.

Use the development of (new) facilities as a catalyst for requiring the Council’s
leisure management contractor to adopt a wider focus on health inequalities.

Consultations
17.

The recommendations for the strategy have been developed via the combination
of information gathered during consultation, site visits and analysis which
culminated in the production of an assessment report, as well as key drivers
identified for the strategy

Timescale
18.

This strategy sets out an ambition to deliver the recommendations in the next
twelve years from 2016 - 2028

Resource Implications
19.

The preparation and production of the indoor sports and leisure facilities strategy
has been undertaken within existing budgets.

20.

The Strategy promotes attracting external funding through partnerships locally,
regionally and nationally.

21.

There will be financial implications when considering the recommendations,
colleagues in finance are aware of this strategy and were consulted as part of the
process.

Legal Implications

22.

There will be legal implications when considering the recommendations to build
new facilities, and in particular renegotiating the current leisure contract we have
with Place for People Leisure, that is due to expire in 2021.

23.

Colleagues in Legal will be contacted and involved in the implementation of the
recommendations.

Risk Assessment
24.

The impact of the ambitions set out in the Cocks Crescent Supplementary
Planning Document needs to be taken into consideration, in relation to the
recommendation relating to the Malden Centre.

Equalities Impact Assessment

25.

A4

A full EQIA has been completed.

Road Network Implications
26.

There will be road network implications that will need to be addressed when
considering the recommendations to build new facilities.

Environmental Implications
27.

There will be environmental implications that will need to be addressed when
considering the recommendations to build new facilities.

Background papers held by author - Sue Gregory-Johnson, Sports & Leisure
Commissioning Manager, Kingston Sports & Leisure sue.johnson@kingston.gov.uk 020
8547 5212
.
o None other than those referred to in this report
OR
o

List of reports/documents

A5
Annex 1

ROYAL BOROUGH OF KINGSTON UPON THAMES
INDOOR SPORTS AND LEISURE FACILITY STRATEGY
DRAFT REPORT
AUGUST 2016

1

A6
Annex 1
CONTENTS
Page

INTRODUCTION
RESEARCH FINDINGS
MODERN LEISURE CENTRE DEVELOPMENT
STRATEGY VISION AND RECOMMENDATIONS
PRIORITIES AND ACTION PLAN

INTRODUCTION
This is the Indoor Sport and Leisure Facility Strategy for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon
Thames (RBKT) for the year period 2016 – 2028. The recommendations contained herein
are drawn from the Assessment Report which was researched and prepared between April
2016 – July 2016 by specialist sport and leisure consultancy, Knight Kavanagh and Page
(KKP). Both the Assessment Report and the Strategy have been prepared in accordance
with the guidance from Sport England contained in the document ‘Assessing Needs and
Opportunities Guide for Indoor and Outdoor Sports Facilities (ANOG), December 2014.
RBKT has an aspiration, and need, to consider its facilities planning particularly in the
context of the fact that it has an ageing stock of leisure facilities (particularly the two public
swimming pool sites). This accompanies demand factors including future population growth,
a changing borough demographic profile and the continuation of reductions in the levels of
grant to local authorities from Central Government.
The focus of this Strategy is to provide clear direction to all partners so that together they
can plan and develop the more modern, efficient and sustainable range of community based
sport and leisure facilities that RBKT requires. This is necessary to ensure that residents
have the opportunity to be physically active and healthier and where appropriate develop
their sporting ambitions within their local community.
Strategic context and summary
As the commissioning body for the Strategy, RBKT has identified a number of priorities
which align to its Community Plan (the Kingston Plan). Its vision is that the Borough will
continue to be one of the very best places in which to live and work: It identifies Kingston to
be a location where people are happy, healthy and enjoy a good quality of life, in a safe and
tolerant environment, where business is prosperous, and where everyone in its community
can contribute to success and reach their own full potential.

2

A7
Annex 1
The key strategic themes with regard to sport and leisure in Kingston, emanating from the
main strategies and local context, are considered to be:
●
●
●
●

Creating a genuinely attractive place that people enjoy visiting and using.
Creating a cohesive new environment with outstanding urban design.
Working with partners to ensure that facilities and infrastructure are provided to
support sustainable communities in Kingston.
Offering facilities and programmes of activity which contribute to:
- Reducing health inequalities across the Borough for people of all ages.
- Education and skills development of the local population
- Local economic development
- Working in partnership with other agencies to tackle health issues.
- Supporting and promoting active lifestyles and increasing participation in sport and
physical activity to allow residents to live longer, healthier, happier lives.

The core message running through local strategic documentation is the importance of sport
and physical activity to the wider economy, standard of living and its general cross cutting
benefit. Key strategic outcomes are that:
●
●

●

Opportunities are made available to/for all residents of Kingston to take part in
physical activity to contribute positively to their health and wellbeing.
RBKT continues to work with partners, including Kingston Community Sport and
Physical Activity Network (CSPAN), Sport Kingston and London Sport, to ensure that
facilities and infrastructure are provided to support sustainable communities in the
Borough.
Facilities and programmes of activity will continue to contribute to reducing health
inequalities across the Borough for all age groups especially via partnership work
with Public Health and the operators of the leisure facilities.

Increases in sport and physical activity (and, therefore, positive contribution to the health and
wellbeing agenda) will only be achieved via targeting increasingly scarce resources. It is,
thus, essential that indoor sports halls, swimming pools and health and fitness venues are
accessible, affodable and available to the community and that the ‘offer’ is developed based
on the needs of local communities.
There is a requirement for sport to have a strong voice from the voluntary sector in Kingston.
If this is to be via CSPAN it will need to reach out to other groups including, for example,
Sport Kingston, facility providers e.g. the University, College and schools and those services
aimed at getting the inactive more active to ensure a coordinated approach (and voice)
across the Borough.
Partners
This is a plan for the Borough. Whilst RBKT is the key driver, it is expected that plans and
actions emanating from it will be delivered via partnership with and between other key
stakeholders and be predicated upon them accepting and taking responsibility for different
aspects of its implementation. The partnership approach to Strategy delivery is necessary to
make best use of the assets and resources available to drive the development of sport and
physical activity in Kingston. This Strategy has involved, and taken account of, consultation
with a range of agencies and, as the implementation phase commences, will require further
input from, for example, Places for People Leisure, specific national governing bodies of
3

A8
Annex 1
sport (NGBs), the Health & Wellbeing Board (HWBB), CSPAN, local clubs, London Sport,
Sport Kingston, Sport England, businesses, other leisure centres including the YMCA and
RBKT schools.

About the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
RBKT is located in south west London, on the banks of the River Thames, it is the oldest of
the four royal boroughs in England. The town of Kingston itself is 12 miles from central
London (a 25-minute train ride from Waterloo). The Authority is well served by public
transport, close to Heathrow Airport and easily accessed from the London orbital motorway,
the M25. It is the seventh smallest borough in London (14 square miles - 37 square
kilometres in size).
RBKT has a total population of 169,958 (2014 MYE) comprising c.82,960 males and
c.85,943 females. All adjoining districts also have an appreciable scale of population. The
structure is similar to that of the rest of England; the main differences being that there is a
slightly higher proportion of 20-24 year olds (RBKT = 8.0%, London = 6.8%) and lower
proportions locally of 25-34 year olds (RBKT= 16.3%, London = 19.8%). Ethnic composition
also differs from that of the national average with 73.2% White (nationally 87.2%), 11.3%
Asian (nationally 7.8%) and Other 7.8% (2.1% nationally).
Figure 1: Main towns, road routes and population density of RBKT

4

A9
Annex 1

According to the London Poverty Profile, 3.2% of the population fall within the most deprived
30% nationally. Conversely, 58.1% are within the 30% least deprived groups. It has a
below-average proportion of residents who work in low-paid jobs. At 4.8%, unemployment is
below both national and the averages, whilst earnings are 24.5% above national and 11.5%
above regional averages. It has the fourth lowest unemployment rate in the capital and has
fallen in recent years (by 1.1% between 2009-2014).
Health problems appear to be less widespread among Kingston’s communities relative to
1
national averages. The IoD points towards lower health deprivation with 1.1% falling in the
most deprived (three worst) cohorts based on health measures (national equivalent: 30%).
Similar to the overall measure of deprivation, 86.6% of the population is in the best three
cohorts for health.
Adult obesity (16.6%) is substantially below the national (24.0%) and regional (20.2%)
average as is the childhood obesity rate. Child rates increase significantly between
Reception and Year 6, by which time around three in 10 children (29.9%) are either
overweight or obese.
The cost of avoidable ill health to the NHS in Kingston (due to physical inactivity) is
estimated to be £2.5m; this is 22.9% and 21.1% below the respective national and regional
averages (per 100,000). Whereas, The economic value/benefit of sports participation has
been calculated by Sport England’s Area Profiles to be £70.3m.
The projected increase in the general age of the population and in the size of the population
in Kingston will place increasing pressure on a range of services. This will be exacerbated in
areas where housebuilding will be significant. It is important to ensure that the population
which is currently active remains so, and that the inactive become active (with a view to
sustaining and improving the general health of the local populace).

RESEARCH FINDINGS
The research for this Strategic Plan was undertaken between April- June 2016 by specialist
sport and leisure consultancy, Knight Kavanagh and Page Ltd (KKP). The research included
the following key activities:
❏ Assessment of the quality, distribution and programming of facilities in the area.
❏ Consultation with facility owners and operators to identify needs and opportunities.
❏ Consultation with National Governing Bodies (NGBs), key stakeholders and clubs to
determine the levels of demand for facilities in the area.
❏ Assessment of the strategic drivers and context for RBKT and its residents.
❏ Assessment of need and opportunity for new, refurbished and enhanced provision
across the area.
Therefore, the commentary on RBKT’s sports facility infrastructure and the Strategy to
improve on the current position is informed by a clear understanding of the community sport
and physical activity sector and knowledge of innovative solutions to meeting the needs of
communities.
1

Index of Deprivation 2015 (Department for Communities & Local Government)

5

A10
Annex 1

Key findings
Strategic decision making and long term investment in indoor facilities for sport and leisure
through RBKT has been limited for a number of years. The result is dated and ageing stock
of public facilities that residents accept and ‘make do’ with or opt out of to make use of
private facilities, which are, in varying degrees, available in the Borough. As an area with,
generally, few areas of higher deprivation (both IMD and health related) participation rates
among residents are higher than the national average, health indicators are good with, as
noted earlier, unemployment lower than that found in other London boroughs.
RBKT recognises the importance of its leisure facility stock to health and well-being and
future planning needs. There is a productive relationship between RBKT and Places for
People Leisure, the leisure operator for its four venues (Kingfisher Leisure Centre,
Kingsmeadow Athletics and Fitness Centre, Tolworth Recreation Centre and the Malden
Centre). Places for People Leisure operates a range of programmes across the facilities, on
behalf of RBKT including Cardio Rehab and Singing for the Brain. GP Referral, Child
Obesity and Weight Management programmes are provided by Public Health and hosted at
Places for People Leisure sites.
There are seven sports halls and two swimming pools in the Borough with evident
community access. This is supplemented by opportunities in gymnastics, table tennis and a
range of combat sports (karate, taekwondo and judo etc.).The two main accessible
swimming facilities are Kingfisher Leisure Centre and the Malden Centre but both will face
increasing challenges to deliver a service to modern standards. They are popular and well
used by both the public and a range of aquatic sports clubs.
All sports venues are located in areas of higher population density. In addition, nearly three
quarters of the resident population have access to a car, which is higher than the London
average, suggesting a relatively mobile community. Most residents living in areas of higher
deprivation are within 20 minute walk time of a community accessible sports hall and
swimming pool. However, RBKT has insufficient facilities (both sports halls and swimming
pools) to meet current demand. The scale of the deficit in provision is likely to increase as
the size of the population grows in the Borough and surrounding areas.
The Authority owns the four facilities operated by Places for People Leisure (under a contract
which runs until 2021 with an optional five year extension if required) as well as managing
and operating Chessington Sports Centre.
Key conclusions appertaining to these facilities are that:
❏ The fabric and plant at the Kingfisher Leisure Centre and the Malden Centre are
showing their age and both facilities are considered to be coming to the end of their
lifespan.
❏ The layouts of Tolworth Recreation Centre and Kingfisher Leisure Centre do not tend to
support ease of use nor economies of scale.
❏ The ancillary facilities at Kingsmeadow are not commensurate with the quality of the
athletic track facilities.
❏ The rising age profile of the population and projected increases in population per se are
likely to lead to increased demand for facilities during the daytime (when much of the
education stock is inaccessible to the public).
6

A11
Annex 1

This is an opportune time for RBKT to review how it intends to offer facilities in the future, the
communities it wishes to serve and its links with the wider health and wellbeing, obesity and
social care agendas. Its plans must, of course, take account of the increasing financial
constraints within which it has to work and take particular note of the health challenges faced
by an ageing population.
The time is, therefore, right to consider how to replace the leisure stock and in so doing, to
increase the volume and flexibility of water and sports hall space to cater for current and
anticipated shortfalls across the Borough, ensuring that leisure facilities play their role in
reducing health inequalities by being accessible to all.
Emerging opportunities
New housing development: The GLA estimates that housing is expected to increase by over
6,000 dwellings to 69,900 by 2021, with current household sizes likely to remain at 2.5
persons per household by 2026. The Local Development Framework (LDF) identifies
specific details on new developments including addresses, capacity, expected completion
dates and site types. Currently, over 2,500 houses are expected to be built by 2023. Another
1,300 potential housing sites have also been identified in the Borough within a similar time
frame
Housing delivery in the Authority is reliant on the redevelopment of a small number of large
scale sites in Kingston. Delay on any of these sites can significantly affect housing targets.
Future housing supply is also reliant on a small number of key sites. It is expected that there
will be a peak in house building in 2015/16 and 2018/19 due to anticipated completions of
these housing developments.
New schools: Alongside the additional housing and population growth comes the
requirement to deliver new schools especially secondary schools. Numbers of additional
pupils are increasing year on year for all age groups in Kingston, which has been recognised
with the opening of Kingston Academy. It uses the YMCA Hawker Centre for its sport and
recreation needs, which can impact negatively on wider community use.
By 2020, there will be a requirement to build another secondary school in the Borough,
although a location for it has not yet been decided/agreed upon. The opportunity exists,
however, to design new schools in such a way so as to ensure that community use is easily
delivered or alternatively to expand the offering and develop community sport and leisure
facilities alongside school sports facilities. The potential development of a new school in the
Borough in 2020 offers such an opportunity.
MODERN LEISURE CENTRE DEVELOPMENT
To provide RBKT with a reference point in respect of what other local authorities are
developing in relation to their sports facilities networks, it is accurate to state that the majority
are developing fewer, better quality facilities and are giving greater importance to the
location and travel connections to facilities. Furthermore, many are looking to enhance their
offer by developing a more ‘commercial’ range of facilities alongside a wider range of health
and wellbeing service providers.
Recent developments of new community leisure facilities throughout the UK have followed
three key themes within their design and offering, namely:
7

A12
Annex 1

Core facilities which meet local need and demand for sport and physical activity and enable
the operator to deliver a cost effective service with minimal subsidy.
❏ Additional activity areas which provide a financial return by addressing a gap in the
market or enhancing the core offer.
❏ Co-location with other service providers which enhances working relationships across
‘civic’ partners and improves service delivery to the community.
The following table identifies the types of facilities and activity areas included within each
and the wider benefits that this delivers for the community.
Table 1: Modern leisure facility considerations
Core facilities
6 lane 25 metre pool
Teaching pool)
Sports hall (size based upon
demand and programming)
80 - 150 station fitness suite
Large group fitness studio
Small group fitness studio
Catering hub

Additional activity areas
Floodlit 3G pitch
5-a-side pitches.
Soft play
Spa facilities
Youth play (e.g. clip n’
climb, interactive activity
zones.
High ropes

Benefits

Benefits

Enables operators to provide
services at minimal subsidy by:
Maximising income from
health and fitness.
Maximising income from
learn to swim.
Offering a range of
community based activities.

Enables operators to
maximise income to
underpin the cost of the
operation by:
Taking a more
commercial approach to
programming activity
areas.
Capturing data on users
(e.g. parents) and using
this as a way of cross
selling core services
(e.g. learn to swim).
Providing a return on
investment.

Enables operators to contribute
to the wider physical activity and
wellbeing agenda by:
Offering health based
programmes within fitness
suites & swimming pools
Being a meeting point and
social venue for outdoor
physical activities.

Co-located services
Part of a school campus
Library
Health centre / GP surgery
Pharmacy/Health
improvement services
Police station/office
Council contact point
Meeting rooms
Neighbourhood managers
Cultural spaces
Adult education
Benefits
Creation of community hubs
enabling operators to link with
other services to contribute to
wider physical activity and
wellbeing agendas:
Offering a wider range of
services under one roof.
Reaching residents who
would not otherwise enter
a sports facility.
Offering programmes and
interventions for specific
client groups with health
and other partners.
Cross marketing and
sharing of information to
address local needs.

8

A13
Annex 1
Where facilities are developed as part of a wider school campus, consideration needs to be
given to the layout, access arrangements and overall management of the site for the benefit
of the school and community. The layout model below identifies the potential considerations
within a co-located community hub on a school site. The main ethos for this model is that
alongside the core requirements for a school, the community hub can be expanded or
contracted to meet the needs of the local community and partners.
Therefore, not all hubs will be the same, but the access arrangements for the school and
community need to be set out and agreed prior to development. As such, serious
consideration needs to be given to the potential to develop such a model in RBKT and
maximise investment in community infrastructure as a result of housing growth.
Figure 4: Co-located hub site model

The key features of the above model are as follows:
❏ School access is designed in such a way that it addresses safeguarding issues and
facilitates community use of facilities when they are not required by the school, thus
maximising community use and minimising the revenue burden.
❏ The activity areas are designed and operated as community facilities, with the new
secondary school and local primary schools priority booking access as required.
❏ The building can operate as a stand-alone community health and wellbeing centre, with
the school elements incorporated within this to facilitate community access at evenings
and weekends.
❏ The Library, meeting rooms and health facility will be operated by their specific service
areas; but it would be expected that joint working would be implemented to offer
combined services and interventions as appropriate (e.g. targeted health promotion
activities, etc.).
❏ In general, these types of facilities are located on or adjacent to arterial routes with good
public transport access, significant visibility and presence within the area and seek to
maximise the to and from work/education market.
❏ The above layout can be adapted to exclude schools and be developed as multi use,
co-located sports hubs.
9

A14
Annex 1
Funding to implement the strategy
The Strategy has not addressed in detail how proposals and recommendations will be
funded. It is anticipated that there will be no single funding source; rather a mix of sources
and solutions will be required to deliver the vision and ambitions of the strategy. These
solutions will include:
❏ Further development and implementation of the RBKT developer contributions process
associated with planned housing development.
❏ Use of capital receipts from land disposal, where applicable.
❏ Asset rationalisation and use of revenue saving and/or future liabilities to pay back
borrowing aligned to capital investment in other sites.
❏ Prudential borrowing where an ‘invest to save’ justification can be made, particularly for
longer-term proposals which may be considered in light of the Council’s future borrowing
strategy.
❏ External funding sources aligned to specific facilities and/or sports (e.g. Sport England
funding, other charitable grant awards and funding streams).
❏ 3rd party borrowing where a suitable, robust business case exists (although this is
normally more expensive than prudential borrowing).
In general, the majority of new leisure centre developments have been undertaken on the
basis of rationalising one or two existing facilities and developing a new larger, better quality
facility which is more economical to operate. Furthermore, the new facility mix enables the
operator to deliver revenue efficiencies (i.e. operate the facility at zero subsidy or better)
enabling savings (and in some instances surpluses) which are often used to fund part or all
of the capital repayment. A similar approach is undertaken for the refurbishment of existing
facilities where increased income offsets the annualised cost of the refurbishment.
It is likely that a combination of the above approaches will be developed for the range of
projects identified in RBKT. This will require a robust approach to business planning to
ensure that all investment is financially sound.
STRATEGY VISION AND RECOMMENDATIONS
This is RBKT’s vision for sport and leisure provision in the area that builds on the
conclusions identified in the Indoor Sport and Leisure Facilities Assessment Report. This
Strategy sets the vision and objectives for RBKT’s physical infrastructure for the period 2016
to 2026. It considers all of the area’s community sport and leisure assets required to ensure
that the Borough has a ‘fit for purpose’ network of facilities to enable residents to be as
physically active as possible.
It does not solely focus on the condition, replacement and refurbishment of various leisure
assets in the area; it also considers how these should be put to the best use in order to
ensure that they contribute fully to the five goals identified within RBKTs Healthy Weight and
Physical Activity Strategy (2013-2016) which incorporates clear objectives to reduce the
prevalence of obesity in adults and children by targeting high-risk groups and people
experiencing inequalities in health. The current objectives for Kingston are to:

❏ Improve and enhance surveillance of healthy weight and physical activity levels.
❏ Improve and develop partnerships.
10

A15
Annex 1
❏ Improve communications.
❏ Promoting a healthier weight across the life course.
❏ Reaching a healthier weight across the life course.
RBKT’s vision is:
To work with partners to create high quality, sustainable leisure and sports
facilities which meet community need, increase participation, help tackle health
issues and provide accessible, inclusive activities for Borough residents as part of
an active lifestyle.”
The strategic recommendations have been set out to deliver the above vision over the period
2016 – 2026 and to provide definitive strategic direction for RBKT, partners and its
stakeholders which are involved in the provision of facilities and opportunities for residents to
pursue sport and recreation as a means to engage in physical activity. They are as follows:
To develop a fit for purpose network of better quality (indoor and outdoor) facilities in
strategic locations in order to meet the sport and physical activity needs of existing
communities and new residents to the Borough; maximising:
❏ Potential sports facility development opportunities through close collaboration with
partners and stakeholders and investment in new stock.
❏ The opportunity to develop sport and physical activity facilities aligned to emerging
emphasis on getting the inactive active and retaining those who already participate.
❏ The opportunities presented to engage with other services and where possible create
multi agency hubs through the co-location of services
❏ To work with colleagues in Education to ensure that any new schools or
improvements to sports facilities in existing schools are accompanied by a
community use agreement.
❏ To work with selected schools to increase their availability for community use.
❏ To use the development of new facilities as a catalyst for requiring the Council’s
leisure management contractor to adopt a wider focus on health inequalities.
Strategic recommendation 1: To develop a fit for purpose network of better quality
(indoor and outdoor) facilities in strategic locations in order to meet the sport and
physical activity needs of existing communities and new residents to the Borough;
maximising:
Options to develop sport/physical activity facilities which are directly aligned to
partner agencies’ ambitions to improve health and wellbeing across the Borough.
Opportunities to engage with other services and where possible create multi agency
hubs via the proactive and planned co-location of services.
RBKT’s existing sports facilities are beyond their anticipated life expectancy and need to be
replaced. The area also needs an expanded network of facilities to meet existing community
need and that of what is a substantially growing population.
This strategy seeks to build on the Council’s strategic drivers and take advantage of
opportunities available. A key driver is RBKT’s stated ambition to continue to be one of the
very best places in which to live and work for all members of the community. The network of
community sport and physical activity facilities makes a substantial contribution to the
11

A16
Annex 1
perception and the actuality of quality of life of residents and the attractiveness of RBKT to
both current and potential residents plus employers.
A number of emerging factors will drive the development and potential improvement of sport
and physical activity infrastructure in the RBKT area. These include housing growth, the
building of new schools and the desire to integrate health and wellbeing services. However,
these developments, alongside the need to replace existing leisure facilities will not,
necessarily, be synchronised (i.e. funding available and constructed at the same time).
It must, therefore, align with other plans and options so as to ensure that the development of
a borough-wide ‘specification’ and site specific master planning can be coordinated and
undertaken (where appropriate) to ensure that co-location works. Developing master-plans
for co-located sites that, from the outset, take account of all the likely uses, will mean that
appropriate combinations and juxtapositions of facilities and activity areas can be agreed
and clarity achieved around the potential phasing of developments.
Strategically located facilities can lead to improved access for more of the population. Figure
2 identifies that 57.9% of Kingston’s population presently resides within a one mile radial
catchment (20 minute walk time) of the community sports hubs identified overleaf, Just over
half of the total of 3.3% of the Borough’s residents in its most deprived communities (using
the 30% percentile) also live within this catchment.
The visual presentation of the strategic community sports and physical activity indoor facility
network is detailed in Figure 2 followed by a description of the key infrastructure projects
required to deliver a network of facilities which is fit for the future :

12

A17
Annex 1
Figure 2: Sports facility strategy vision – key sites

Replace Kingfisher Leisure Centre with a strategically significant community sport
and wellbeing hub. This will encompass a modern fit for purpose community
flagship leisure facility in the heart of Kingston and integrate a range of
community services in one place.
Kingfisher Leisure Centre is the main swimming facility serving the main town of Kingston
upon Thames. It also offers health and fitness provision. It is now beyond its anticipated life
expectancy and should be replaced with a modern fit for purpose facility.
This is an opportunity to develop a larger scale, strategically significant sport and leisure
facility to serve the needs of the Kingston community and to consider the wider health and
wellbeing opportunities it can offer via the co-location of a range of services.

13

A18
Annex 1
Its aquatic activities should include both swimming and diving and a new venue in this
location should also incorporate a range of ‘dryside’ facilities (sports hall, health and fitness,
studios etc.) and be able to accommodate the full range of activities from introductory and
regular physical activity (getting and keeping the inactive, active) to provision
accommodating events, competition and talent development.
The key challenge in Kingston is finding a suitable venue for the new facility while, if at all
possible, keeping the current one open during the period in which it is being built. The aim is
to provide a modern fit for purpose environmentally and economically viable leisure centre,
with integrated services providing both economies of scale and cross fertilisation of activities.
Ideally this facility should include something approximating to the following mix of facilities:
❏ 8 lane 25-metre swimming pool with sufficient viewing capacity for local galas.
❏ Teaching pool (with a moveable floor – potentially allowing it to double up as a diving
pool)
❏ Fitness suite (say 120-150 stations).
❏ Dedicated spin studio.
❏ Group fitness studios (say 4).
❏ Double court (8 badminton court) sized sports hall.
❏ Wet, dry and dedicated fitness changing rooms.
❏ Cafeteria.
❏ Range of office space and meeting rooms (determined by the number of services on
offer e.g. GP referral, physiotherapy, community liaison, Police etc).
❏ Walking, running and cycling routes emanating from the centre; with appropriate cycle
parking provision.
The focus of this facility will be on both sport and the wider development of physical activity
opportunity aligned to specific health improvement targets and initiatives within the area. It
will enable partners to develop specific interventions for targeted groups and enable
improved links and transition between health, community and sports programmes. It will
allow for events on both wet and dryside to help raise the profile of sport within the local and
wider community and serve the needs of local sports people and clubs.
Aligned to the anticipated housing growth in New Malden and the requirement for
new facilities (due to the dated Malden Centre), develop plans for a community
sport and wellbeing hub which enhances current levels of facilities and co-locates
a range of services (taking account of any new school build in the area, as
necessary).
The Council has collaborated with local, businesses, residents and community groups to
develop a new vision for the Cocks Crescent area in New Malden. The Draft Supplementary
Planning Document will provide guidance for the redevelopment of the site which will serve
the needs of the local population and the wider borough. The development will include high
quality new affordable homes which will support the provision of comunity facilities including a new leisure centre and improvements to the public realm to meet local and wider
borough needs.
This provides an opportunity to build on the locally determined requirement for a community
sports hub by enhancing the offer and enabling a higher quality and better specified venue
offering broad-ranging access to the full range of local people both now and as the new
housing is developed. This will need to meet the Borough’s requirement to develop better
14

A19
Annex 1
quality access to sports hall and swimming facilities, leading to an improved swimming offer,
indoor sports hall provision whilst also supporting the process of tackling its aims in respect
of getting the sedentary active.
We would recommend that this venue should include the following combination of health and
community physical activity facilities:
6 lane 25-metre swimming pool
Teaching pool (moveable floor – to enable water based exercise classes etc).
Fitness suite (say 100-120 stations).
Group fitness studios (say 2).
4-6 badminton court sports hall.
Wet and dry changing rooms.
Cafeteria.
Range of office space and meeting rooms (determined by the number of services on
offer e.g. GP referral, physiotherapy, community liaison, Police etc).
❏ Walking, running and cycling routes to and from the centre.
❏
❏
❏
❏
❏
❏
❏
❏

If the location is appropriate, consideration should also be given to the inclusion of other
community services, such as a library within this new development.
Investigate the potential to create a new strategic community sports hub
incorporating both wet and dryside facilities to service residents in the South of
the Borough integrating a range of community services in one place.
Chessington and residents in the South of the Borough have, to date, not had easy access
to water space and there is limited accessibility to indoor sports hall space with Tolworth
Recreation Centre (which is in below average condition) and the Kings Centre (which offers
very limited community access particularly at weekends). There is likely to be increased
housing development in the area which will add further to pressure on local facilities.
This would be an opportune time to develop a strategically important sports facility to serve
the needs of this community (and new residents). The Council should, thus, commit to
investigating the opportunity to create a new facility on an appropriate site (taking account of
the requirement of the Council to build another school in the Borough if appropriate, by
2020).
Ideally the start point for a facility feasibility assessment should encompass consideration of
the need for and viability of the following mix of health and physical activity facilities:
6 lane 25-metre swimming pool
Teaching pool
100 station fitness suite.
2 x group fitness studios.
4-6 court sports hall.
Changing rooms.
Integrated healthy living centre.
Cafeteria.
Range of office space and meeting rooms (determined by the number of services on
offer e.g. GP referral, physiotherapy, community liaison, Police etc).
❏ Walking, running and cycling routes to and from the centre.
❏
❏
❏
❏
❏
❏
❏
❏
❏

15

A20
Annex 1

If the location is appropriate, consideration should also be given to the inclusion of other
community services, such as a library within this new development.
In line with the above and in parallel with its development, the Council should consider the
facility requirements in the area, including the future of Tolworth Recreation Centre
Replace the ancillary facilities at Kingsmeadow Fitness and Athletics Track to
ensure that it supports the wider health and wellbeing agenda as well as
supporting competitive athletes who use the facility. Consider co-location of other
activities which will lead to increased footfall and help its sustainability.
Kingsmeadow Fitness and Athletics centre is the key athletics facility in the Borough serving
a much wider population. The track is fit for purpose and has a relevant maintenance
programme in place. However, the ancillary facilities are outdated and in need of significant
investment. There is a strong disabled athlete programme/club whose needs should be
considered within any facility upgrade. This venue has the potential to contribute positively to
the health and wellbeing agenda whilst supporting competitive athletes to become the best
they can be (including disabled athletes).
The key challenge/opportunity in relation to Kingsmeadow is the juxtaposition of AFC
Wimbledon and car parking sports facilities and the management of the overall site for the
benefit of local residents. Ideally this facility should include the following mix of sport and
physical activity facilities:
❏ 80-100 station fitness suite including strength and conditioning equipment available for
competitive (both disabled and non-disabled) athletes.
❏ 2 x group fitness studios
❏ Office space and meeting rooms (determined by the number of services on offer e.g. GP
referral, physiotherapy, community liaison, Police etc).
❏ Kitchen/cafeteria (potentially events based)
❏ 2 x meeting rooms (club room and classroom facilities for coach development etc)
❏ Maintained athletics track
❏ Changing facilities
❏ In particular walking and running (but also cycling) routes to and from the centre.
Any investment in major leisure facilities should consider the potential to combine
or include a combat sports/martial arts facility due to the high participation rates
in a number of these sports across the Borough.
The Strategy identified a range of different combat sports and martial arts groups operating
throughout the Borough and producing top quality athletes within their particular specialisms,
as well as offering participation opportunity for young people in particular. The key challenge
for clubs is the volume and length of time available with regard to space to which they can
access; this is reportedly limiting growth across this aspect of provision.
Within the above context there is a need for the Council to consider how it could work with
the different NGBs and local clubs to identify facilities where a combat sports hub could be
permanently set out, thus enabling clubs to meet unmet demand and grow the volume and
range of opportunity across the various sports and disciplines.
16

A21
Annex 1
There may be an opportunity to consider the development of a permanent facility aligned to
one of the new facilities in the Borough. This will, however, require input from key partners
including, as noted above, the relevant NGBs and local clubs. It would be worth mapping the
range of venues presently used for combat sports/martial arts in the Borough and possibly
discussing the provenance of clubs’ existing membership bases. This could form part of an
assessment to determine where a new facility might be best located in the most accessible
location possible aligned to other new developments being considered/taking place.
Strategic recommendation 2: To work with Education to ensure that any new
developments or improvements to school sports/physical activity facilities in
existing schools are accompanied by a meaningful community use agreement.
Kingston Academy is the newest School to open in the Borough (2015) and will be
increasing its intake year on year until 2020. At present, it does not have sufficient on-site
sport facility capacity so it makes use of the YMCA (Hawker site) for its sporting needs
(provision at the YMCA includes a health and fitness suite and two studios). There is a
requirement to build one more senior school in the Borough by 2020 although the location
for this has not yet been confirmed.
Other schools in the Borough offer significant community use but this needs to be put on a
more formal setting. This should take the form of a uniform community use agreement (with
minor variations by institution), ensuring that school sports facility availability is consistent,
more or less guaranteed and less susceptible to short term variations with regard to the
needs of the school or the personal perspective of head teacher or school governors as they
change.
There is, thus, a need for Leisure and Education to work in partnership to get as many
schools as possible to sign up to a community use agreement and work with them to achieve
maximum possible availability and use (accompanied by an appropriate financial return).
These arrangements should encompass the new school when it is built. Both Kingston
College and University offer a range of programmes and activities and should be
encouraged to be part of the wider offer moving forward.
Two existing school sports halls are considered to be below average quality so they require
some investment in refurbishment to ensure that they meet both educational and community
requirements. Investment in the facilities at these schools to improve the quality of their
sports facilities should be accompanied by them signing up to a community use agreement.
In order to do this the Council should consider allowing the use of planning gain funding to
invest in improvements to school sports facilities in return for guaranteed and appropriate
community access.
Where the Council has a clear requirement to develop new schools as a result of population
growth there will be a need to build in cast iron community use agreements to ensure that
these assets are available beyond the school day to meet the needs of local communities.
Strategic recommendation 3: To work with selected schools to increase their
availability for community use.
Aligned to strategic objective 3, colleagues in Leisure and Education should continue to work
in partnership to maintain (and in a limited number of cases) increase the availability and use

17

A22
Annex 1
of key schools identified as not providing as much community access to their sports facilities
as could potentially be made available.
The key institution identified in this context is Richard Challoner School, where there is
potential to provide additional community use availability (in what is deemed a good quality
facility).
Strategic recommendation 4: Use the development of (new) facilities as a catalyst to
encourage/require the Council’s leisure management contractor to adopt a wider
focus on health inequalities
The development of new venues in Kingston, either replacements or additional facilities,
presents the opportunity for RBKT to review its current leisure management contract with
Places for People Leisure. The relationship is presently strong and positive and the contract
is due for renewal in 2021 with both sides keen to develop the relationship further in the
interim.
Local government has changed dramatically over the past ten years with significant cuts in
public service funding and the expansion of responsibility to deliver health and wellbeing
services for communities. There is a need for leisure centres to be more than just places
where those residents with a propensity to participate in physical activity can do so. The
identified vision for the community sport and physical activity infrastructure is that facilities
will be part of strategic hub sites, co-located with other complementary service providers.
Places for People Leisure thus needs to develop new ways of working which help to deliver
on the wider health, wellbeing (including the provision of healthy food at leisure facilities)
and physical activity objectives of the Council and its partners.
There will be a need for Places for People Leisure to continue to develop wider relationships
and networks beyond its facilities in order to fully engage with the appropriate partners and
communities. This will also require it and the Council to develop a business model which
recognises that high income generating activity should cross subsidise other physical activity
introductory and ongoing interventions with the inactive or economically challenged groups
which enable the Council and its partners to address health inequalities.
As part of the development of new facilities the Council should develop new contract terms
for its leisure operator, introducing a range of sports development and physical activity
objectives alongside a range of appropriate fiscal and generic usage based performance
measures which reflect its wider health and wellbeing aspirations.

18

Annex 2

PRIORITIES AND ACTION PLAN
The following action plan provides an overview of the priorities in RBKT and a framework for officers and members to work with in order to
deliver a network of indoor sports facilities that contribute to meeting the wider needs of Borough residents:
Priority
1

Recommendation
Strategic recommendation 1:
Replace Kingfisher Leisure Centre with a
strategically significant community sport
and wellbeing hub - a modern fit for
purpose community flagship leisure
facility in the heart of Kingston which
integrates a range of community services
in one place.

Action
RBKT Council to agree on the need to replace Kingfisher
Leisure Centre.
Commission a feasibility to understand the potential
development of Kingfisher Leisure Centre as the
Council’s main strategic sport and wellbeing hub.
Agree with partners and stakeholders how the Kingfisher
Leisure Centre replacement can be delivered and
determine key partners in its development.
Determine whether the current setting is preferable or
another possible location is preferable for an integrated
healthy living centre.

Strategic recommendation

1:
Aligned to the anticipated housing growth
in New Malden and the requirement for
new facilities (due to the dated Malden
Centre), develop plans for a community
sport and wellbeing hub which enhances
current levels of facilities and co-locates
a range of services (taking account of
any new school build in the area, as
necessary).

Commission a feasibility study to gauge potential
community sports hub requirements in the Cocks
Crescent area - to complement wider Borough needs.
Agree with partners and stakeholders how the
development of this centre can be delivered.
Determine the preferred location of the site and whether
what can be co-located with it which will be
complementary.
Agree the implementation timeline for the new facility and
the impact on a potential rationalisation timeline for the
Malden Centre.
(Planning and Education) determine the need and
timeline for additional schools in the Borough.
Consider location of new and existing school provision in
the context of the potential location of a strategic sport
and wellbeing hub.

Timescale

RBKT Council
CSPAN
Sports Clubs
ASA
Health partners
Business
Planning and
Design
Consultants

Short
medium

RBKT Council
CSPAN
Sports Clubs
ASA
Health partners
Business
Planning and
Design
Consultants

Short
medium

A23

2

Responsibility

Annex 2

3

Strategic recommendation 1:
Investigate the potential of a new
strategic community sports hub
incorporating both wet and dryside
facilities which will service residents in
the South of the Borough which will
integrate a range of community services
in one place.

RBKT to agree on the need for a community sports hub
incorporating wet/dry facilities in the south of the borough
Commission a feasibility study to assess the potential for
development of a community sports hub and wellbeing
centre in this area which complements other facilities in
RBKT.
Agree with partners/stakeholders how this development
can be delivered and determine key partners for this.

RBKT Council
CSPAN
ASA
Health partners
Business
Planning and
Design
Consultanst

Short
medium

RBKT Council
England Athletics
CSPAN
Clubs
EFDS and other
disability groups.
Business
Planning and
Design
Consultants
RBKT Council
CSPAN
Clubs
Business
Planning and
Design
consultants
RBKT Council

Short
medium

Determine a preferable location for such a facility.

4

6

RBKT Council to agree on the need for a community
sports hub at Kingsmeadow Athletics Centre.

Strategic recommendation 1:
As part of investment in major leisure
facilities consider potential to combine/
include a combat sports/martial arts
facility due to the high participation rates
in several such sports in the Borough.

RBKT Council to agree on the need for a combat
sports/martial arts hub in the Borough.

Strategic recommendation 2:
To work with Education to ensure that
any improvements to sports facilities in
schools, Kingston College and/or
Kingston University are accompanied by
the establishment of meaningful
community use agreements.

Develop regular liaison meetings with Property and
Education to identify potential improvements to school
sports facility stock.
Develop liaison meetings with Kingston College and
Kingston University to consider wider use of facilities
where possible

Commission a feasibility to understand and determine
the most appropriate facilities and partners necessary to
ensure the site achieves its sporting and physical activity
objectives as well as being commercially viable.
Take account of upcoming ideas and recommendations
in the England Athletics National Facilities Strategy

Determine the best location for achieving the goal of
increased participation and developing talent.

A24

5

Strategic recommendation 1:
Replace ancillary facilities at
Kingsmeadow Fitness and Athletics track
to ensure that it supports the wider
health and wellbeing agenda as well as
competitive athletes who use the facility.
Consider co-location of other activities
which will lead to increased footfall and
help its sustainability.

Medium

ShortMedium

Annex 2

Identify improvements to school facilities which support
community use as a justified recipient of planning gain
funding.
Align the requirement to establish a community use
agreement to any investment in school sports facilities.

7

Strategic recommendation 3:
To work with selected schools to
increase their availability for community
use.

8

Strategic recommendation 4:
Use the development of (new) facilities
as a catalyst for requiring the Council’s
leisure management contractor to adopt
a wider focus on health inequalities

Liaise with Richard Challoner School to determine
whether there is scope to increase the availability of its
facilities for community use for sport and physical
activity.

RBKT
London Sport

ShortMedium

RBKT Council
Places for People
Leisure

Medium long

Seek to align key sports clubs to specific schools
Liaise with Places for People Leisure and determine the
lease arrangements on existing facilities in light of the
proposals contained within this Strategy.
Agree wider health and wellbeing objectives for Places
for PeopleLeisure in line with the development of new
facilities.

Determine the level of investment in physical activity
interventions in line with the improved revenue position
for the operation of the facilities.

A25

Agree a new management contract and fee basis for the
operation of new facilities as they come on line (it is
expected that this will engender a move from a zero
subsidy position to one where the contractor pays the
Council to operate the facilities).

A26

Annex 3

THE ROYAL BOROUGH OF KINGSTON UPON THAMES
INDOOR AND BUILT FACILITIES NEEDS ASSESSMENT
REPORT: JULY 2016

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

1

A27

Annex 3
CONTENTS
SECTION 1: INTRODUCTION
SECTION 2: BACKGROUND
SECTION 3: INDOOR SPORTS FACILITIES ASSESSMENT APPROACH
SECTION 4: SPORTS HALLS
4.1 Supply
4.3 Demand
4.4 Supply and demand analysis
4.5 Sport England’s Facilities Calculator (SFC)
4.5 Summary of key facts and issues
PART 5: SWIMMING POOLS
5.1 Supply
5.1 Sport England Facilities Planning Model (FPM)
5.3 Demand
5.4 Supply and demand analysis
5.5 Sport England’s Facilities Calculator (SFC)
5.6 Summary of key facts
SECTION 6: HEALTH AND FITNESS SUITES
6.1: Supply
6.2: Demand
6.3: Supply and demand analysis
6.4 Summary of key facts and issues
SECTION 7: MEMBERSHIP ANALYSIS
PART 8: INDOOR BOWLS
8.1 Introduction
8.2 Supply
8.3 Demand
7.4 Summary of key facts and issues
PART 9: ATHLETICS
9.1 Introduction
9.2: Supply

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

2

A28

Annex 3
9.3 Demand
9.4 Summary
PART 9: OTHER SPORTS
9.1 Martial arts
9.2 Table tennis
9.3 Summary
SECTION 10 SWOT ANALYSIS
10.1 Strengths
10.2: Weaknesses
10.3 Opportunities
10.4: Threats
10.5: Summary and strategic recommendations
APPENDIX 1: RBKT profile

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

3

A29

Annex 3
SECTION 1: INTRODUCTION
1.1 Introduction
Knight, Kavanagh & Page Ltd (KKP) was appointed by The Royal Borough of Kingston
upon Thames (RBKT) to undertake an assessment of formal indoor sports facility needs
in the Borough to assist it to strategically plan for the future. This report provides a
detailed assessment of current provision of indoor and built sports facilities, identifying
needs and gaps in provision.
1.2 Background
Located in south west London, on the banks of the River Thames, Kingston is the oldest
of the four royal boroughs in England. The town of Kingston itself is 12 miles from central
London (a 25-minute train ride from Waterloo). The Borough is well served by public
transport, close to Heathrow Airport and easily accessed from the London orbital
motorway, the M25. It is the seventh smallest borough in London (14 square miles - 37
square kilometres in size) and has a population of approximately 170,000 (2014 Mid-year
estimate).
According to the London Poverty Profile, the Borough is in the ‘top half’ of boroughs and
has a below-average rate of residents who work in low-paid jobs. Unemployment stands at
4.8%; the fourth lowest rate in the capital. This has fallen considerably (by 1.1% between
2009-11 and 2012-14).
In 2011, the proportion of residents in White British ethnic groups was around 63%, higher
than the London average of 45% but lower than the England average of 80% with 10% of
its residents identify as ‘White Other, and 8% as Asian Other. It has a slightly higher
proportion (8%) of younger people (20-24 year olds) than London (6.8%) but lower
proportions of 25-34 year olds (Kingston upon Thames: 16.3%, London: 19.8%).
As seen in Figure 1.1 overleaf the Authority borders Richmond upon Thames, Sutton,
Merton, Epsom and Ewell, Mole Valley, and Elmbridge. The Borough is dissected by a
number of main roads including A3, A243 and A2403 amongst others.
Figure .1.1: Kingston upon Thames with main roads and main towns

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

4

A30

Annex 3

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

5

A31

Annex 3

1.3 Scope of the project
The report provides detail as to what exists in the Borough, its condition, location,
availability and overall quality. It considers the demand for facilities based on population
distribution, planned growth and taking into consideration health and economic
deprivation. The facilities / sports covered include: sports halls, swimming pools, health
and fitness, indoor bowls and other specialist sports. In delivering this report KKP has:
❏ Individually audited identified, sports halls (conventional i.e. 3+ court halls as per
Sport England definitions) swimming pools (minimum length 20m), health and fitness
facilities (including, within reason, dance studios) and squash courts (public, private
and voluntary sector owned/managed).
❏ Analysed the supply and demand of facilities to identify gaps in provision and
opportunities for improved provision.
❏ Sought to ensure that delivery of leisure facilities is undertaken with full reference to
the corporate strategies of the Council and other relevant strategic influences.
❏ Identified areas of good practice, gaps in provision and opportunities for improved
service in order to drive up participation levels.
This factual report provides a quantitative and qualitative audit based assessment of the
facilities identified above. It provides a robust, up-to-date assessment of need for sports
halls, health and fitness and specialist facilities and examines opportunities for new,
enhanced and rationalised provision. Specific deficiencies and surpluses are identified to
inform the provision required. The specific objectives of this audit and assessment are to:
❏ Identify local needs and quantify levels of demand
❏ Audit existing facility provision.
The specific tasks addressed within the study include:
A review of relevant Council strategies, plans, reports, corporate objectives.
A review of the local, regional and national strategic context.
Analysis of the demographics of the local population.
Consideration of potential participation rates and modelling of likely demand.
Audit of indoor facilities provided by public, private, voluntary and education sectors.
Supply and demand analysis.
Analysis of the balance between supply of and demand for sports facilities and
identification of potential under and over-provision.
❏ Identification of key issues to address in the future provision of indoor sports facilities.
❏
❏
❏
❏
❏
❏
❏

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

6

A32

Annex 3
1.3 Report structure
The Royal Town Planning Institute (RTPI) in a new report entitled ‘Strategic Planning:
Effective Co-operation for Planning Across Boundaries (2015)’ puts the case for strategic
planning based on six general principles:
❏ Have focus
❏ Be genuinely strategic
❏ Be spatial

❏ Be collaborative
❏ Have strong leadership and
❏ Be accountable to local electorates.

In the preparation of this report, KKP has paid due regard to these strategic principles and
it is, as a consequence, structured as follows:
Section 2 - a review of background policy documentation at national, regional and local
levels and a profile of the population and socio-demographic characteristics of the
Borough.
Section 3 - description of methodology employed to review indoor provision.
Section 4 - review of sports hall provision.
Section 5 - review of swimming pool provision.
Section 6 - review of health and fitness provision.
Section 7:- reviews of membership data
Section 8- review of athletics provision
Section 9: review of indoor bowls
Section 10- review of significant other sports.
Section 11 - identification of strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and threats, followed
by strategic recommendations.

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

7

A33

Annex 3
SECTION 2: BACKGROUND
2.1 National context
Sport England aims to ensure positive planning for sport, enabling the right facilities to be
provided in the right places, based on up to date assessment of need for all levels of sport
and all sectors of the community. This draft assessment report has been produced for
RBKT applying the principles and tools identified in the Sport England Guide ‘Assessing
Needs and Opportunities for Indoor and Outdoor Sports Facilities’ (ANOG).
Figure 2.1: ANOG model

Sporting Future: A new strategy for an active nation
A new Government strategy for sport was released in December 2015. This strategy
confirms the recognition and understanding that sport makes a positive difference through
broader means and that it will help the sector to deliver five simple but fundamental
outcomes: physical health, mental health, individual development, social and community
development and economic development. In order to measure its success in producing
outputs which accord with these aims it has also adopted a series of 23 performance
indicators under nine key headings, as follows:
❏
❏
❏
❏
❏

More people taking part in sport and physical activity.
More people volunteering in sport.
More people experiencing live sport.
Maximising international sporting success.
Maximising domestic sporting success.

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

8

A34

Annex 3
❏
❏
❏
❏

Maximising domestic sporting success.
A more productive sport sector.
A more financially and organisationally sustainable sport sector.
A more responsible sport sector.

(See Appendix 2 for summary outputs and key indicators)
Sport England has since produced its new strategy ‘Towards an Active Nation’.

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

9

A35

Annex 3
Sport England: Towards an Active Nation
Figure 2.2 Sport England Strategy 2016-2021

Sport England has identified that it will invest in:
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Tackling inactivity
Children and young people
Volunteering – a dual benefit
Taking sport and activity into the mass market
Supporting sport’s core market
Local delivery
Facilities

These seven investment programmes will be underpinned by a new Workforce Strategy
and a new Coaching Plan.
National Planning Policy Framework 2012
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) sets out planning policies for England.
It details how changes are expected to be applied to the planning system. It also provides

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

10

A36

Annex 3
a framework for local people and their councils to produce distinct local and
neighbourhood plans, reflecting the needs and priorities of local communities. It states
that the purpose of the planning system is to contribute to the achievement of sustainable
development. It identifies the need to focus on three themes of economic, social and
environmental sustainable development.

A presumption in favour of sustainable development is a key aspect for any plan-making
and decision-taking processes. In relation to plan-making the NPPF sets out that local
plans should meet objectively assessed needs. It is clear about the sport’s role delivering
sustainable communities through promoting health and well-being. Sport England,
working within the provisions of the NPPF, wishes to see local planning policy protect,
enhance and provide for sports facilities based on robust and up-to-date assessments of
need, as well as helping to realise the wider benefits that participation in sport can bring.
The ‘promoting healthy communities’ theme identifies that planning policies should be
based on robust, up-to-date assessments of need for open space, sports and recreation
facilities and opportunities for new provision. Specific needs and quantitative and
qualitative deficiencies and surpluses in local areas should also be identified. This
information should be used to inform what provision is required in an area.
Economic value of sport to the nation
Sport, leisure, recreation and culture are all important economic drivers. In 2010, sport
and sport-related activity contributed £20.3 billion to the English economy; 1.9% of the
England total. The contribution to employment is even greater with sport and sport-related
activity estimated to support over 400,000 full-time equivalent jobs, 2.3% of all jobs in
England.
Volunteering in sport, and the health benefits derived, also have an impact on the
economy. The estimated economic value of sport-related volunteering is £2.7 billion. The
annual value of health benefits from people taking part in sport is estimated at £11.2
billion.
Benefits of sport include the well-being/happiness of individuals taking part, improved
health and education, reduced youth crime, environmental benefits, regeneration and
community development, and to the individual and wider society through volunteering.
Consumption of sport benefits include the well-being/ happiness of spectators, and the
national pride/feel good factor derived from sporting success/ achievement.
Participation in sport can contribute to reductions in crime and anti-social behaviour,
particularly among young people. It can also have a net impact on the environment;
where, for example, more people are encouraged to walk and cycle, emissions and

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

11

A37

Annex 3
congestion can reduce. In summary, sport provides a range of economic and health
benefits to London. RBKT and its local resident population and helps to provide jobs and
opportunities to spectate and participate in physical activity.

Public Health England: Everybody Active, Everyday
In October 2014 Public Health England (PHE) produced its plan to tackle low activity
levels across the country. Along with making the case for physical activity, this identifies
four areas where measures need to be taken at a national and local level:
❏ Active society: creating a social movement, shifting social norms so that physical
activity becomes a routine part of daily life.
❏ Moving professionals: activating networks of expertise. Making every contact with the
health sector count to push the ‘active’ message and to deliver the message through
other sectors including education, sports and leisure, transport and planning.
❏ Active environments: creating the right spaces. Making available and accessible
appropriate environments that encourage people to be active every day.
❏ Moving at scale: scaling up interventions that make us active. Maximising existing
assets that enable communities to be active.
Investment in school sport
The Government 2013 Primary PE and Sport Premium fund of £150 million per annum
provided two years of investment in school sport. Supported by the Government’s
Education, Health and DCMS departments, funds went directly into the hands of primary
school head teachers for them to spend on sport. Its four objectives were to:
❏ Improve the quality of existing PE teaching through continuing professional learning in
PE for generalists, so that all primary pupils improve their health, skills and physical
literacy and have a broader exposure to a range of sports.
❏ Increase participation levels in competitive sports and healthy activity of pupils and
maintain these into adolescence
❏ Increase the quality of initial teacher training in PE and sport, and to promote PE
specialisation in primary level workforce.
❏ Ensure that schools understand and value the benefits of high quality PE and sport,
including its use as a tool for whole school improvement.
In 2015-16 schools with 16 or fewer eligible pupils receive £500 per pupil while those with
17 or more receive £8,000 plus a payment of £5 per head. Research into Primary Sport
Premium Fund spending has highlighted the need for clearer guidance to schools on how
best to use this resource and the importance of good specialist PE knowledge for
teachers of the subject. While this may cease in its present form it appears likely that the

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

12

A38

Annex 3
allocation of funds generated via the proposed ‘Sugar Tax’ will continue to fund school
sport at some level moving forward.
Priority School Building Programme (PSBP)
This is a centrally managed programme set up to address the needs of the schools most
in need of urgent repair. Through it, 261 schools will be re-built between 2014 and 2017.
Summary of national context
Engaging all residents in physical activity is a high priority as is getting the inactive, active.
It is acknowledged that regular sport and recreational activity plays a key role in
facilitating improved health and wellbeing. Ensuring an adequate supply of suitable
facilities to meet local need is a requirement of the planning system, in line with national
policy recommendations.
2.2 Local context
Kingston Plan – Vision for 2020:
The Kingston Plan Vision is for the Borough to continue to be one of the very best places
in which to live and work: It identifies Kingston to be a place where people are happy,
healthy and enjoy a good quality of life, in a safe and tolerant environment, where
business is prosperous, and where everyone in its community can contribute to success
and reach their own full potential.’
Theme
A Sustainable Kingston:
protecting and enhancing
the environment for us and
for future generations

Objectives
Tackle climate change, reduce its Ecological Footprint and
‘reduce, reuse and recycle’
Ensure the sustainable development of the Borough and the
promotion of sustainable transport
Protect and improve the quality of the local environment

Prosperous and Inclusive:
sharing prosperity and
opportunity

Sustain and share economic prosperity

Safe, Healthy and Strong:
preventing problems and
promoting responsibility
and independence

Make communities safer

Raise educational standards and close gaps in attainment
Increase supply of housing and its affordability
Improve overall health and reduce health inequalities
Support people to be independent
Encourage people to take an active part in the social and cultural
life of the community

Planning policy in RBKT

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

13

A39

Annex 3
RBKT manages the growth and development of the Borough through a set of planning
policy documents known as the 'Local Development Framework' (LDF). The LDF is made
up of:
● The core Strategy
● Kingston Town Centre AAP
● Supplementary Planning Documents
The Core Strategy (adopted 2012): this shapes future development and improvement and
sets the overall planning framework for the Borough. The Core Strategy needs to balance
environmental issues with economic and social needs and ensure that development is
sustainable and does not cause irreversible harm to important resources and features. It
sets a clear vision, closely aligned with the Kingston Plan (2008-2020) (the Borough's
Sustainable Community Strategy), as to how the Borough should look and function and
how development needs will be met up to 2027.
The Kingston Core Strategy has 24 strategic objectives aligned under three Kingston Plan
themes. These objectives provide the spatial expression of the Kingston Plan objectives
and provide the framework for the development of the spatial strategy and policy
guidance. Specifically, Themes 20 and 21 indicate:
Theme 20: Facilitate improvements to community, the voluntary sector and faith facilities
by working in partnership to monitor needs and developing policies and mechanisms to
support future provision at neighbourhood level. Provision of such facilities will be
encouraged in the most accessible locations- Kingston Town Centre, the three town
centres , and where appropriate through co-location.
Theme 21: Promote a wide range of actions and measures to diversify and improve
cultural, leisure and are creation facilities by working with partners to identify suitable
facilities and locate development where they are accessible particularly Kingston Town
Centre, New Malden, Surbiton and TOlworth District Centres.
Kingston Town Centre Area Action Plan(AAP): This is RBKT’s framework for future
developments in the town centre up to 2020, including shops, housing, transport, jobs
and public spaces. It identifies key areas for new development and facilities and key
areas for conservation and enhancement. It also highlights environment and transport
improvements, to protect the town centre from inappropriate development and to preserve
its character, historic environment and riverside. Through the area action plan it will
ensure that Kingston Town Centre:
●
●
●

Remains a thriving metropolitan centre serving the needs of its catchment.
Provides a sustainable and enhanced range of town centre services and facilities.
Is a high quality environment, accessible to everyone.

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

14

A40

Annex 3
●

Provides a good quality of life, work and leisure for residents, workers, students
and visitors.

Supplementary Planning Documents: These give more detail to the policies in the
Development Plan documents.
Kingston Council has collaborated with local residents and community groups to develop
a new vision for Cocks Crescent development in Malden. The Draft SPD proposes mixed
use developments. It will help deliver high quality new and affordable homes, supported
by upgraded community facilities including a new or refurbished leisure centre, as well as
improvements to or expansion of the public realm and the Blagdon Road Open Space.

Improving Community Health and Well-being
The Core Strategy refers to Health and wellbeing in Policy CS13 as follows:
The Council and its local strategic health partners will seek to maximise the opportunities
to improve public health outcomes through recreation and exercise and to facilitate the
reorganisation, improvement and potential co-location of healthcare facilities and to
ensure that they are in sustainable, accessible locations. Through Development
Management Policy (DM21 Health Impacts) the Council will:
❏ Resist the loss of existing healthcare facilities in accordance with Policy DM24
Protection and Provision of Community Facilities
❏ Resist concentrations of hot food take-always close to schools
❏ Require Health Impact Assessments (HIAs) for all major developments
❏ Support proposals that promote health, safety and active living for all age groups,
particularly in areas of health inequality
❏ Normally support proposals for new healthcare facilities where:
❖ They will be located in an area of need and/or under-provision, they serve the
needs of the local community and the accommodation to be provided is suitable
for the needs of all its users, including carers and those with physical disabilities
and other health impairment.
❖ Adequate public transport is available from all parts of the catchment area and
the facilities are well connected to footpath and cycle routes.
❖ They will not adversely affect (or exacerbate existing adverse) traffic or
environmental conditions or the amenities of residents in the area.
❖ They are co-located alongside other community facilities, including shops,
schools, leisure facilities etc. and/or provide an element of flexible
accommodation that can be adapted and/or used to meet the wider needs of the
community they serve

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

15

A41

Annex 3

Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2012
The Health and Wellbeing Board (HWBB) Strategy, 2012, has four key themes:
1.
2.
3.
4.

Mental health.
Older people and people with long term conditions.
Addressing the needs of socially excluded and disadvantaged communities.
Children and Young People.

There are a number of underpinning principles that are adhered to in all the key theme
areas and will, in addition, guide all the actions of the HWBB, which include:
❏ Taking a preventive approach.
❏ Utilising the Marmot principle of proportionate universalism in all key theme areas.
This means that actions to address needs must be proportionate to the degree of
disadvantage, and hence applied in some degree to all people, rather than applied
solely to the most disadvantaged.
❏ Ensuring that people in need receive early intervention which will assist in avoiding
deterioration in their condition.
❏ Interventions provided in Kingston need to be the right response at the right time,
delivered by the right person who has the appropriate skills.
❏ Acknowledging and supporting the vital role that carers play.
❏ Ensuring appropriate involvement of the voluntary and community sectors by
providing a level playing field for procuring services.
❏ Dealing with urgent local issues (the ticking time bombs), but also not neglecting
those which are ticking to a longer timescale but will have a massive impact if not
ameliorated.
❏ Promoting financial capability, self-management, personalisation and choice (as long
as the latter does not result in worse outcomes or is unaffordable).
❏ Ensuring that all local services work in a seamless way for the benefit of the local
population.
❏ Delivering simple access to accessible services and clear service information and
health education so that how to maintain health or deal with illness is clear to the
local population, service users, carers and all local care providers
Healthy Weight and Physical Activity Strategy (2013-2016)
RBKT has also produced a healthy weight and physical activity strategy. Its objectives are
to:

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

16

A42

Annex 3
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Improve and enhance surveillance of healthy weight and physical activity levels in
Kingston
Improve and develop partnerships
Improve communications
Promoting a healthier weight across the life course (key recommendations for the
prevention of obesity)
Reaching a healthier weight across the life course
Increase participation in physical activity and sport
Invest in people and places to promote healthy lifestyles.

Further detail can be found in Appendix 1.
London Sport
London Sport was set up in early 2014, by merging the five county sports partnerships
(CSPs) known as the London Pro-Actives, into one organisation. The new, bigger
organisation has been set up to fulfil the purpose of helping physical activity and sport
work better in London.

Its vision is “To make London the most physically active sporting city in the world”
Its target is to get 1,000,000 Londoners more active by 2020.
Its mission is to help inspire more Londoners to be physically active
It has five strategic objectives to achieve the vision for London which are to:
1. Make it easier for Londoners to find the right activity for them, remain in it, and
achieve their potential.
2. Get more resources by making best use of current investment and securing more.
3. Support grassroots organisations by making structures simpler and more effective.
4. Create a bigger, better workforce to support activity.
5. Harness the power of elite sport to create sustained grassroots activity and inspire
the next generation of talent.
The network to enable this to happen is a complex structure of anyone and everyone that
influences Londoners to be active, including schools, national governing bodies of sport,
leisure centres, coaches, clubs and many more organisations. London Sport is the body
that is meant to pull the network together. The remit of London Sport is, therefore, more
strategic than operational.
Sport Kingston

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

17

A43

Annex 3
Sport Kingston (formerly Kingston Sports Council) is a constituted voluntary organisation
consisting of members from local sports clubs. Members are elected on an annual basis.
It holds quarterly meetings.
Its Mission Statement is to be the” voice of sport in Kingston” and is responsible for:
●
●
●
●
●
●

Promoting sport in Kingston by interacting with Kingston’s providers, supporting
and advising every club in the borough and creating a networking platform.
Supporting the Kingston Squad in the London Youth Games
Providing a direct link to Kingston Council
Advising on sports projects and bids as requested by Kingston Council and
Kingston’s CSPAN
Organising events and workshops to promote and support Kingston’s Clubs i.e.
Club Night.
Adopting an open door policy to local clubs who have any concerns or issues that
we can help them with.

Sport Kingston has had some success in networking and offering advice to clubs facing
specific challenges. Its membership has declined in recent years but stabilised at
approximately 20 clubs for the past three years. It has recently changed its policy on
charging member organisations (due to increasingly squeezed Council budgets) and has
seen membership decline, further, to seven, although Sport Kingston expects this to rise
during the coming year.
Summary of local context
The core message running through local strategies is the requirement to ensure that:
❏
❏

❏

Opportunities are made available to/for all residents of Kingston to take part in
physical activity to contribute positively to their health and wellbeing.
RBKT continues to work with partners, including Sport Kingston and London Sport,
to ensure that facilities and infrastructure are provided to support sustainable
communities in the Borough.
Facilities and programmes of activity will continue to contribute to reducing health
inequalities across the Borough for all age groups especially via partnership work
with Public Health and the operators of the leisure facilities.

Increases in sport and physical activity (and, therefore, positive contribution to the health
and wellbeing agenda) will only be achieved via targeting increasingly scarce resources.
It is, thus, essential that indoor sports halls, swimming pools and health and fitness
venues are accessible and available to the community and that the ‘offer’ is developed
based on the needs of local communities. There is a requirement for sport and groups

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

18

A44

Annex 3
which offer physical activity to have a strong voice from the voluntary sector in Kingston.
The Kingston Community Sport and physical activity network (CSPAN) has the
opportunity to strategically plan for a collaborative approach to delivering sport and
physical activity across the Borough. There will be a need to develop a physical activity
strategy which the CSPAN can use to apply for funding. Representatives will need to
reach out to other groups including, for example, facility providers e.g. University, College
and schools and those services aimed at getting the inactive more active to ensure a
coordinated approach (and voice) across the Borough
2.3 Demographic profile
The following is a brief summary, based on KKP’s area profile for the Borough (see
Appendix 1 for full detail). It is drawn from data taken from nationally recognised sources
such as the Office for National Statistics (ONS), NOMIS, Sport England and Experian. .
Population: RBKT has a total population of 169,958 (2014 MYE) comprising c.82,960
males and c.85,943 females.  All the adjoining districts have an appreciable scale of
population
The structure of the population is similar to that of the rest of England; the main
differences being that there is a:
Slightly higher proportion of 20-24 year olds (RBKT = 8.0%, London = 6.8%).
Lower proportions locally of 25-34 year olds (RBKT= 16.3%, London = 19.8%).
Ethnic composition as identified in Table 2.3 indicates a local population which includes
73.2% White (nationally 87.2%), 11.3% Asian (nationally 7.8%) and Other 7.8% (2.1%
nationally).
Table 2.3: Ethnic composition – Kingston and United Kingdom (GLA 2014)
Ethnicity

Kingston-upon-Thames

United Kingdom

White

122,000

73.2%

55,448,200

87.2%

Mixed

6,100

3.7%

944,100

1.5%

Asian

18,800

11.3%

4,003,400

6.3%

Black

6,700

4.0%

1,851,200

2.9%

Other

13,100

7.8%

1,366,500

2.1%

Total

166,700

100.0%

63,613,400

100.0%

Deprivation and ill health

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

19

A45

Annex 3
Deprivation: 3.2% of the population fall within the most deprived 30% nationally.
Conversely, however, 58.1% are within the 30% least deprived groups.
Health problems - appear to be less widespread throughout Kingston’s communities,
1
when compared to national averages. The IoD points towards lower health
deprivation with 1.1% falling in the most deprived (three worst) cohorts based on
health measures when a national equivalent would be 30%. Similar to the overall
measure of deprivation, 86.6% of the population is in the best three cohorts for health.
Adult obesity (16.6%) is below the national (24.0%) and regional (20.2%) average.
Child obesity rates (15.9%) are also below the national (19.1%) and regional (22.6%)
rates.
Child rates increase significantly between reception and Year 6, by which time around
3 in 10 children (29.9%) are either overweight or obese.
Avoidable ill health cost to the NHS in Kingston (due to physical inactivity) is
estimated to be £2.5m; this is 22.9% and 21.1% below the respective national and
regional averages (per 100,000).
The economic value/benefit of sports participation (as opposed to the avoidable ill
health cost of inactivity) has been calculated by SE to be £70.3m.
Table 2.5: IMD cohorts – Kingston-upon-Thames
IMD cumulative
norm
Most
deprive
d

Least
deprive
d

1

Multiple deprivation
Populatio
n in band

Percent of
population

Health deprivation
Populatio
n in band

Percent of
population

10.0

0

0.0%

0.0%

0

0.0%

0.0%

20.0

1,880

1.1%

1.1%

0

0.0%

0.0%

30.0

3,425

2.1%

3.2%

1,827

1.1%

1.1%

40.0

7,004

4.3%

7.5%

5,165

3.2%

4.3%

50.0

5,504

3.4%

10.9%

3,623

2.2%

6.5%

60.0

24,245

14.8%

25.7%

6,006

3.7%

10.1%

70.0

26,599

16.2%

41.9%

5,352

3.3%

13.4%

80.0

33,016

20.1%

62.0%

16,774

10.2%

23.6%

90.0

35,821

21.9%

83.9%

43,294

26.4%

50.1%

26,412

16.1%

100.0%

81,865

49.9%

100.0%

100.0

Index of Deprivation 2015 (Department for Communities & Local Government)

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

20

A46

Annex 3
Figure 2.4: Index of multiple deprivation

Figure 2.5: IMD Health domain

General socio-economic characteristics
Economic activity and earnings (Source = NOMIS):
Unemployment is below both the national rate and the regional average.
Earnings are 24.5% above national and 11.5% above regional averages.
The following household income data is ONS based and also reflects housing costs:
2

Total income - as an average across each of Kingston’s 20 MSOAs , household
income ranges from £771 to £1,283. No MSOAs are in the lowest six income bands
nationally and 17 are in the best two groups.
Income after housing costs - the upper and lower figures fall to £495 and £754
respectively. There are now 13 MSOAs in the best group.
Economic impact and value – sport plays a significant role in the economy both
nationally and locally; whether it is via participation, purchasing of sportswear and
sports equipment, gambling, volunteering or attending events. SE’s economic impact
model shows an overall impact of £70.3m (£51.5m participation, £18.8m
non-participation related) in Kingston.
2

Medium (sized) super output areas

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

21

A47

Annex 3
Active People Survey (APS)
Active People is the largest survey of sport and active recreation in Europe and is in its
3
ninth year (APS9 October 2014 – 2015). It collects data on the type, duration, frequency
and intensity of adult participation by type of sport, recreation and cultural activity. It also
covers volunteering, club membership, tuition as an instructor or coach, participation in
competitive sport and overall satisfaction with local sports provision.
Key findings for RBKT include:
Participation: four in 10 (40.9%) adults participated in at least 1 x 30 minutes moderate
intensity sport per week. This was above both the national (35.8%) and regional
averages (38.0%) and also above all but two of its ‘nearest neighbours’ which ranged
from 36.4% to 50.9%.
Sports club membership: under three in 10 (28.2%) are members of a sports club, based
on the four weeks prior to the APS. This is above both the national average (21.8%) and
the regional rate (22.5%); it is also above all but two of its ‘nearest neighbours’.
Sports tuition: over one in six (17.2%) received sports tuition during the 12 months prior to
the AP survey. This was above the regional and national averages. It is, however, below
all but one of its ‘nearest neighbours’.
Competitive sport: over one fifth (22.3%) have taken part in competitive sport in the 12
months prior to the APS. This was above the regional and national averages. It is also
above all but one of its ‘nearest neighbours’
Details of the above can be found in Appendix 1:
Sporting segmentation (Data source: Market segmentation, Sport England)
Sport England has classified the adult population via a series of 19 market segments
which provide an insight into the sporting behaviours of individuals throughout the
country. The profiles cover a wide range of characteristics, from gender and age to the
sports that people take part in, other interests, the newspapers that they read etc. The
segmentation profile for Kingston indicates ‘Settling Down Males‘ to be the largest
segment of the adult population at 14.9% (18,854) compared to a national average 8.8%.
Knowing which segments are most dominant in the local population is important as it can
help direct provision and programming.
3

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

22

A48

Annex 3
The following data indicates that Tim, Ben and Chloe are the three dominant groups,
representing 35.5% (44,882) of the adult population, compared to 18.5% nationally.
Table 2.6: Sport England market segmentation – Three main groups in Kingston
Segment, description and its top three sports nationally
Settling Down Males
Tim
Sporty male professionals (aged 26-45), buying a house and settling
down with partner.
Keep fit/gym
Cycling (21%)
Swimming (15%)
(20%)
Competitive Male Urbanites
Ben
Male (aged 18-25) recent graduates, with a ‘work-hard, play-hard’
attitude. Most sporty of 19 segments.
Keep fit/gym
Football (33%)
Cycling (18%)
(24%)
Fitness Class Friends
Chloe
Young (aged 18-25) image-conscious females keeping fit and trim.
Keep fit/gym (28%)

Swimming (24%)

Athletics (14%)

18,854
14.93%
9.53$

Kingston upon
Thames
London

8.83%

England

13,233
10.48%
6.62%

Kingston upon
Thames
London

4.94%

England

12,795
10.13%
6.59%
4.71%

Kingston upon
Thames
London
England

Whilst the needs of smaller segments should not be ignored, it is important for Kingston to
understand which sports are enjoyed by the largest proportion(s) of the population.
Segmentation also enables partners to make tailored interventions, communicate
effectively with target market(s) and better understand participation in the context of life
stage and lifecycles.
The most popular sports
APS and SE segmentation also makes it possible to identify the top five sports within
Kingston. As with many other areas, swimming and gym sessions are among the most
popular activities and are known to cut across age groups and gender. Over one in seven
adults in the Borough go swimming at least once a month (on average), which is greater
than the national average of one in eleven.
Table 2.7: Most popular sports in Kingston (Source: SE Area Profiles)

Sport

Swimming

Kingston-upon-T
hames
No.
(000s)
17.2

Rate
13.0
%

London

England

No.
(000s)

Rate

No.
(000s)

Rate

666.2

9.9%

4,077.4

9.4%

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

23

A49

Annex 3
Gym Session

17.0

12.7
%

898.6

13.3%

4,786.4

11.0%

Athletics

14.2

10.7
%

609.3

9.0%

3,295.2

7.6%

Cycling

13.4

10.0
%

467.3

6.9%

3,789.0

8.7%

6.5

4.9%

349.2

5.2%

1,945.2

4.5$

Fitness Class

The next most popular activity is gym sessions; which is again higher than the national
average. In fact, the next three most popular sports (athletics, cycling and attending
fitness classes) all indicate higher levels of activity in Kingston than the national average,
although gym sessions and attending fitness classes appear to be slightly lower than
London rates. In general, this data suggests that sports participation is generally good in
Kingston.
Mosaic (Data source: 2014 Mosaic analysis, Experian)
Mosaic 2014 is a similar consumer segmentation product and classifies all 25.2 million
households into 15 groups, 66 household types and 238 segments. This data can be
used to paint a picture of UK consumers in terms of their social-demographics, lifestyles,
culture and behaviour and tends to be used to draw out population characteristics for the
backdrop to library usage and other non-sporting activities. Table 2.8 shows the top five
mosaic classifications in Kingston upon Thames compared to the country as a whole.
The dominance of these five segments can be seen inasmuch as they represent over
85% of the population compared to a national equivalent rate of around a third (34.5%).
Mosaic (2015) segmentation data indicates that over three quarters (78.0%) of Kingston’s
population fall into only four Experian ‘groups’, compared to one quarter (25.6%)
nationally (for the same groups):
❏ The ‘Domestic Success’ group (30.3%) is five times the national rate (6.1%) – it is
described as; high-earning families who live affluent lifestyles in upmarket homes
situated in sought after residential neighbourhoods.
❏ City Prosperity (19.7%) - work in high status positions. Commanding substantial
salaries they are able to afford expensive urban homes). This is over five times the
national rate.
❏ Urban Cohesion (settled extended families and older people who live in multicultural
city suburbs) at 14.6% this is nearly twice the national rate.
❏ Rental Hubs (predominantly young, single people in their 20s and 30s who live in
urban locations) at 13.4% this is also above the national rate of 8.4%.

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

24

A50

Annex 3
Table 2.8: Mosaic – main population segments in Kingston
Kingston-upon-Thames

Mosaic group description

National %

#

%

1 – Domestic Success

49,512

30.3%

6.1%

2 – City Prosperity

32,280

19.7%

3.5%

3 – Urban Cohesion

23,922

14.6%

7.6%

4 – Rental Hubs

21,955

13.4%

8.4%

5 – Prestige Positions

13,665

8.3%

8.9%

Further detail can be found in Appendix 1.
Population projections
At strategic and operational levels plans to increase levels of physical activity cannot be
set in stone; they need to be flexible and respond to predictable changes in age structure,
gender and ethnic composition. The projected population changes, as indicated by the
GLA, are as follows:
From 2014 to 2027 there is a projected increase of 18,373 (10.9%), which includes an:
Increase of 2,720 (8.5%) 0-15 year olds;
Increase of 4,719 (21.6%) 65+ year olds.
From 2014 – 2041 the population is projected to increase by 32,704 (19.4%) between,
including a 57.6% rise in the numbers aged 65+ to become approximately one in six of
the population.
Table 2:8 Kingston-upon-Thames - GLA projected population (2014 to 2041)

Age
(years)

Number

Age structure %

Change 2014 – 2041

0-15

2014
32,014

2027
34,734

2041
34,675

2014
19.0%

2027
18.5%

2041
17.2%

2014
100.0%

2027
108.5%

2041
108.3%

16-24

22,985

23,810

25,386

13.6%

12.7%

12.6%

100.0%

103.6%

110.4%

25-34

27,305

27,464

29,587

16.2%

14.7%

14.7%

100.0%

100.6%

108.4%

35-44

26,650

28,738

27,872

15.8%

15.3%

13.8%

100.0%

107.8%

104.6%

45-54

22,274

25,600

27,154

13.2%

13.7%

13.5%

100.0%

114.9%

121.9%

55-64

15,816

20,353

22,488

9.4%

10.9%

11.2%

100.0%

128.7%

142.2%

65+

21,859

26,578

34,445

12.9%

14.2%

17.1%

100.0%

121.6%

157.6%

Total

168,903

187,276

201,607

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

100.0%

110.9%

119.4%

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

25

A51

Annex 3

Figure 2.6: Projected population change (2014 -2041)

Population and housing projections
The 2011 Census recorded 63,639 households in the Borough. The GLA estimates that
this is expected to increase to 69,900 by 2021, with current household sizes likely to
remain at 2.5 persons per household by 2026.
Local Development Framework (LDF)
The Council’s Authority Monitoring Report (2015) sets out expected housing delivery over
the next 15 years. Currently, over 2,500 houses are expected to be built by 2023. Another
1,300 potential housing sites have also been identified in the Borough within a similar time
frame (details of the sites that comprise inform the Housing Trajectory can be found in
Appendix 3)

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

26

A52

Annex 3
Housing delivery in the Borough is reliant on the redevelopment of a small number of
large scale sites in Kingston. Delay on any of these sites can significantly affect housing
targets. The future supply of housing is also reliant on a small number of key sites. It is
expected that there will be a peak in housing completions in 2015/16 and 2018/19 due to
anticipated completions of these housing developments.
Projection implications
The projected increase in the general age of the population and in the size of the
population in Kingston will place increasing pressure on a range of services. This will be
exacerbated in areas where house building will be significant. The importance of ensuring
that the population which is currently active remains so and that the inactive become
active (with a view to sustaining and improving the general health of the local population)
will become increasingly relevant. It will, therefore, be incumbent on operational staff at
local sports facilities ensure that facility programming and access to facilities at the right
times is considered as part of the Borough’s sport and physical activity offer. It will also
be necessary to consider whether the existing sporting infrastructure can support and
increased demand in specific areas on completion of some of the larger housing
developments.

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

27

A53

Annex 3
SECTION 3: INDOOR SPORTS FACILITIES ASSESSMENT APPROACH
3.1 Methodology
The assessment of provision is based on the Sport England Assessing Needs and
Opportunities Guide (ANOG) for Indoor and Outdoor Sports Facilities
Figure 3.1: Recommended approach

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

28

A54

Annex 3
This provides a recommended approach to undertaking a robust assessment of need for
indoor and outdoor sports facilities. It has primarily been produced to help (local
authorities) meet the requirements of the Government’s NPPF, which states that:
‘Access to high quality open spaces and opportunities for sport and recreation can make
an important contribution to the health and well-being of communities. Planning policies
should be based on robust and up-to-date assessments of the needs for open space,
sports and recreation facilities and opportunities for new provision. The assessments
should identify specific needs and quantitative or qualitative deficits or surpluses of open
space, sports and recreational facilities in the local area. Information gained from the
assessments should be used to determine what open space, sports and recreational
provision is required.’ (NPPF, Paragraph 73)
The assessment of provision is presented by analysis of the quality, quantity, accessibility
and availability for the identified facility types (e.g. sports halls and swimming pools).
Each facility is considered on a ‘like for like’ basis within its own facility type, so as to
enable it to be assessed for adequacy.
Demand background, data and consultation is variable, depending upon the level of
consultation garnered. In some instances, national data is available whilst in others, it has
been possible to drill down and get some very detailed local information. This is evident
within the demand section.
The report considers the distribution of and interrelationship between facility types in the
borough and provide a clear indication of areas of high demand. It will identify where
there is potential to provide improved and/or additional facilities to meet this demand and
to, where appropriate, protect or rationalise the current stock.

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

29

A55

Annex 3
SECTION 4: SPORTS HALLS
Indoor multi-purpose sports halls are one of the prime sports facilities for community sport
as they provide venues suitable to allow a range of sport and recreational activities to be
played. The standard methodology for measuring sports halls is the number of badminton
courts contained within the floor area.
Sports halls are generally considered to be of greatest value if they are of at least 3+
badminton court size with sufficient height to allow games such as badminton to be
played. It should be noted, however, that a 4-court sports hall provides greater flexibility
as it can accommodate major indoor team sports such as football (5-a-side and training),
basketball and netball. It also has sufficient length to accommodate indoor cricket nets
and indoor athletics as such offering greater sports development flexibility than its 3-court
counterpart.
Larger halls, for example those with six or eight courts, can accommodate higher level
training and/or competition as well as meeting day to day needs. They may also provide
the option for more than one pitch/court which increases flexibility for both training and
competition and, for example, enable the hosting of indoor central venue leagues for
sports such as netball. This assessment considers all facilities in Kingston upon Thames
that comprise 3+ badminton courts in line with Sport England’s ANOG. Halls that function
as specialist venues, such as dance studios are excluded.
4.1 Supply
Quantity
Active Place identifies 40 sports halls across Kingston upon Thames which have a total of
77 badminton courts. As Figure 4.1 illustrates, there is a good spread of sports halls
throughout the Borough with the more densely populated areas well serviced. Over two
thirds (67.5%) of sports hall space in the Borough comprises one and two court halls.
While often appropriate for mat sports or exercise to music and similar provision, this is
inevitably limited in terms of the range and scale of recreational and sporting activity it can
accommodate.

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

30

A56

Annex 3
Figure 4.1: All sports halls in Kingston upon Thames (Active Places data)

Table 4.1: All identified sports halls within Kingston upon Thames (Active Places data)
Map
ID
5

Site
Canbury School

13

Chessington Sports
Centre
Coombe Boys School

14

Coombe Girls' School

9

0

Map
ID
46

4

48

4

49

4

50

Cts

Site
Marymount International School
New Malden Tennis / Squash &
Badminton Club
Richard Challoner School
Sir Francis Barker Recreation
Ground

Cts
4
1
4
0

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

31

A57

Annex 3
14

Coombe Girls' School

1

51

Southborough High School

1

20

Dysart School

0

51

Southborough High School

1

30

Kings Centre

6

53

St Georges Church Hall

0

1

54

St James Church Hall

0

1

55

St Philip's School

0

2

55

St Philip's School

4

1

56

Surbiton High School

1

4

68

The United Reformed Church

0

The United Reformed Church

0

32
34
40
42
56

King's Oak Primary
School
Kingston Methodist
Church
Malden Centre
Malden Manor Primary
School
Surbiton High School

58

Surbiton Town Sports
Club

0

68

59

Territorial Army Hall

3

69

6

69

1

70

Tiffin School Sports Centre

6

1

72

Tolworth Junior School

2

4

73

Tolworth Recreation Centre

6

The Venner Youth & Community
Centre
The Venner Youth & Community
Centre

0

65

The Arena Health and
Fitness
The Graham Spicer
Institute
The Hollyfield School &
Sixth Form Centre
The Holy Cross School

67

The Tiffin Girls' School

1

73

Tolworth Recreation Centre

2

67

The Tiffin Girls' School

1

73

Tolworth Recreation Centre

0

60
62
64

0

The audit differs from the FPM in that the sports halls of St Philips School (55),
Marymount International School (46) and the Territorial Army hall (59) were also
identified. None of these three facilities offer community use, but exist nonetheless. In
addition, no four court sports hall was found at Surbiton High School (which is identified in
Active Places data).
Community access and use
Table 4.2 and Figure 4.2 overleaf, identifies the 12 sports halls on 12 sites which have 3+
badminton courts. These have a total of 55 badminton courts. The audit and quality
assessments, in line with ANOG methodology, considered these sports halls.
Table 4.2: Sports halls – 3 court plus, community use only, by condition (13 in total)
Map
ID

Site

Courts

Community use

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

32

A58

Annex 3
9

Chessington Sports Centre

4

Yes

13

Coombe Boys School

4

Yes

14

Coombe Girls' School

4

Yes

30

Kings Centre

6

Yes

46

Marymount International School

4

No

49

Richard Challoner School

4

Yes

55

St Philip's School (Special School)

4

No

59

Territorial Army Hall

3

No

60

The Arena Health and Fitness

6

No

65

The Holy Cross School

4

No

70

Tiffin School Sports Centre

6

Yes

73

Tolworth Recreation Centre

6

Yes

Total

55

*This table identifies all known spaces prior to their exclusion once the ANOG methodology is applied
where only 3 court spaces and above are considered.).

Figure 4.2: Sports halls (3+ courts) in Kingston with community access

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

33

A59

Annex 3
It should be noted that The Arena Health and Fitness Centre and Holy Cross School have
not supplied any data and have not allowed the sites to be assessed. Whilst their
websites indicate community use, the audit was unable to confirm that any.
Consequently, They are identified as having minimal community use andhave also been
discounted from the analysis. This leaves seven accessible sports halls in the Borough
with a total of 34 badminton courts.

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

34

A60

Annex 3
Quality of facilities
All available sites were subjected to a non-technical assessment to ascertain quality of
facilities. The results are as follows:
Figure 4.3: Sports halls in Kingston by condition– Quality/condition –

Table 4.2: Sports halls – 3 court plus, community use only, by condition (7 in total)
Map
ID

Site

9

Chessington Sports Centre

Cts

Comm.
Use

4

Yes

Condition
Hall
Above average

Changing
Below average

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

35

A61

Annex 3
13

Coombe Boys School

4

Yes

Below average

Below average

14

Coombe Girls' School

4

Yes

Above average

Above average

30

Kings Centre

6

Yes

Above average

No changing

49

Richard Challoner School

4

Yes

Good

Above average

70

Tiffin School Sports Centre

6

Yes

Not assessed

Not assessed

73

Tolworth Recreation Centre

6

Yes

Below average

Below average

The spread of facilities available for community use is fairly wide. There appears to be a
lack of facilities in the centre and west of the Borough, where Figure 4.3 indicates a
higher density of population, compared with, for example the South and North East of the
Borough.
One facility, Tiffin Sports Centre, was unavailable for a site assessment. Richard
Challoner School is the only sports hall to be described as good; three are considered
above average and two are considered below average (Coombe Boys School and
Tolworth Recreation Centre). The Kings Centre is considered to be above average but
has no changing facilities. This facility converts to a church at weekends so is only
available for a limited amount of community use during the week.
Figure 4.4: Sports halls (3+ courts) with community use by condition IMD 2015 one mile
radial catchment

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

36

A62

Annex 3
Table 4.3: IMD 2015 (GLA) populations: Kingston 3+ court community use sports halls
with 20 minute walk catchments
Indices of
Multiple
Deprivatio
n 2015
10% bands

Kingston-upon-Thames

Sports halls (3+ courts with community use)

Populatio
n in band
(mid-2012)

%
Populatio
n in Band

Persons
inside
catchmen
t

%
Populatio
n inside

Persons
outside
catchmen
t

%
Populatio
n outside

00 - 10%

0

0.0%

0

0.0%

0

0.0%

10 - 20%

1,880

1.1%

1,880

1.1%

0

0.0%

20 - 30%

3,425

2.1%

1,830

1.1%

1,595

1.0%

30 - 40%

7,004

4.3%

5,317

3.2%

1,687

1.0%

40 - 50%

5,504

3.4%

4,412

2.7%

1,092

0.7%

50 - 60%

24,245

14.8%

20,971

12.8%

3,274

2.0%

60 - 70%

26,599

16.2%

24,903

15.2%

1,696

1.0%

70 - 80%

33,016

20.1%

25,540

15.6%

7,476

4.6%

80 - 90%

35,821

21.9%

26,840

16.4%

8,981

5.5%

90 - 100%

26,412

16.1%

23,051

14.1%

3,361

2.1%

Total

163,906

100.0%

134,744

82.2%

29,162

17.8%

Figure 4.4 and Table 4.3 indicate that 3.3% (which equates to c. 5,000) of the population
live in the more deprived areas (using 30% percentile) of RBKT compared to a national
figure of 30%. Further, c.1,600 people in this percentile live over one mile away from a
sports hall. The data further indicates that nearly one fifth (82.2%) of the population lives
within 20 minute walk time (radial catchment) of a sports hall. It should be noted that all
the population of RBKT lives within a 10 minute drive time of a sports hall.
4.2 Facilities planning model
Sport England’s Facilities Planning Model (FPM) 2016 indicates that:
❏ There are considered to be 11 sports halls in the Borough across nine sites.
❏ The number of sports hall sites in the Borough is significantly less than the average
number of sites for a London borough (13-14 sites). This is considered important from
an access perspective, especially for those residents without access to a car.
❏ The age of the halls differs with four sites built since the year 2000 (Coombe Girl’s
School, Richard Challoner School, Arena Health and Fitness and The Holy Cross
School) and three sites built in the 1990s (Chessington Sports Centre, Kings Centre
and Tiffin School Sports Centre). The remaining two sites were built in the 1970s
(Coombe Boys School and Tolworth Recreation Centre).

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

37

A63

Annex 3
❏ The only site with a large sports hall that is run by the Council, via its leisure operator,
is Tolworth Recreation Centre. This site is nearly 40 years old which is likely to reduce
its attractiveness and could impact on the likelihood of residents using it.
❏ Tolworth Recreation Centre is the only site in the Borough (which meets the FPM size
requirements and is available to the public) that has activity halls alongside a main
sports hall. This enables this site to offer a broader range of ‘sports hall’ offers
compared to the other sites within Kingston upon Thames.
❏ The weekly peak period for use of a sports hall equates to 40.5 hours. None of the 11
sports halls in the Borough are considered to be open for the full peak period. This
limits the available capacity in the Borough and is an important factor when the scale
of unmet demand caused by insufficient capacity is considered.
❏ Of the 11 sports halls, four are considered to be open for 38 hours during the peak
period (the four are the sports hall at Chessington Sports Centre, plus the two activity
halls and the main hall at Tolworth Recreation Centre). Two of the sites (Kings Centre
and The Holy Cross School) are considered to be open to the public for less than 16
hours during the weekly peak period, thereby significantly reducing the potential
capacity available at the site. The restricted access to some of the sports halls is due
to them being located at educational sites.
❏ The supply of hall space in the Borough equates to 31 courts at peak times, which is
significantly below the average supply of hall space for a London borough (53 courts).
The amount of hall space per 10,000 residents in RBKT is c. 2.72 courts. The average
for London is c. 2.85 courts.
The Council is responsible for only one of the nine sports hall sites in the Borough
means that they do not have control of the programming of sports hall across the
Borough.
Availability
Management
The audit identifies that the management of facilities varies with Places for People
managing only one centre (Tolworth Recreation Centre) on behalf of the Council. Other
sites are managed/operated by individual schools, whilst Chessington Sports Centre is
managed by RBKT itself; the Kings Centre is owned and operated by the Church.
Availability is, therefore, restricted by other demands on the facilities, be they education,
or in the case of Kings, worship. The level of influence that the Council has or can have
on facilities is, severely restricted. Table 4.3 indicates community use in facilities and the
main sports played within the different venues.

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

38

A64

Annex 3

Table 4.3: Community use of sports halls in Kingston upon Thames
Availability

Over 40
hours per
week

Between 30
and 40 hours
per week
49 hours
Mon-Fri only
(less than c
16 hours
peak time)
20 hours
Mon-Fr

Site

Courts

Main sports played

4

Basketball (Kingston Wildcats Basketball),
Badminton (8-10.30pm) Surrey Badminton
Association
Badminton (2 courts) football (80%). Some
events e.g. boxing
Indoor cricket, badminton, netball

6

Badminton, basketball, indoor cricket nets

4

Badminton, disabled football, fencing
–surface good but hall below average

Kings Centre

6

Multi-sport venue. Basketball, badminton,
short mat bowls, over 55’s recreation

Richard Challoner
School

4

Badminton, basketball, futsal, karate, indoor
cricket

Chessington Sports
Centre
Tolworth Recreation
Centre
Coombe Girls' School
Tiffin School Sports
Centre
Coombe Boys School
(Refurb 2015)

4
6

Table 4.3 indicates that a variety of sports are played across the Borough with no
particular sport dominating per se. Tolworth Recreation Centre does have a high
incidence of indoor football compared to other sites and much of its bookings are via block
bookings leaving limited time available for pay and play opportunities. Apart from the
Kings Centre which has a pay and play ethos for its youth centre, most of the other
venues use block bookings as the main method of hiring.
Accessibility is also influenced by facilities which are within easy reach of the Borough.
Figure 4.5 and Table 4.4 indicate the different sports halls (3+courts) which are described
as community accessible in RBKT. A number of these are considered to be within a 20
minute walking catchment of the Borough.

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

39

A65

Annex 3

Figure 4.5: 3+ Court Sports Halls within 1 mile with 20 minute walk on PD 2014 (GLA)

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

40

A66

Annex 3

Table 4.4: Court Sports Halls within 1 mile with 20 minute walk on PD 2014 (GLA)

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

41

A67

Annex 3
Map ID

Site Name

R1

Grey Court School

R2

Teddington Sports Centre

R3

The German School

W1

Roehampton Sport and Fitness Centre

M1

Raynes Park Leisure

S1

Cheam Common Junior School

EE1

Epsom & Ewell High School

E1

Hinchley Wood School

There are eight sports halls within one mile radius of the local authority boundary, some
of which are accessible using the 20 minute walk time radial catchment. Consultation with
Grey Court School, in particular, indicated that it is developing a relationship with Khalsa
Karate with a view to investing in and building a new facility at the School. Many of the
School’s pupils are resident in Kingston. Facility hirers at Grey Court School include
Kingston Grammar School (which does not have its own indoor sports hall).
Future supply and potential developments
Kingston University has submitted plans for an indoor sports hall to be built at its Kingston
Hill campus. The application is for an indoor sports hall with the dimensions 34m x 28m.
The planning application is due for review in July 2016 by the Council. Programmes
geared to delivering governing-body-compliant community participation through to club
competition need a hall 34.5 x 20m or larger.
The University indicates indoor space is a key challenge, as it cannot offer anything
currently. It currently hires indoor sports facilities (mainly at Kingston College and Tiffin
Boys School) which costs approximately £60,000 per annum. The new facility is likely to
accommodate university demand only but has the potential to free up the facilities at
Kingston College and Tiffin Boys School for wider community use. The University is keen
to work with a range of governing bodies and the Council to ensure that the community is
not excluded from the facility but is keen to stress that demand from students is likely to
be very high leading to limited time for community based programmes.
Surbiton High School has had plans to build a sports hall turned down. It is particularly
keen to work with any partners to develop such a facility that could be used both for
educational purposes and community use.

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

42

A68

Annex 3
Summary of supply
Sports halls are situated close to or in the main population areas of the Borough, with the
exception of the Centre and West of the Borough which are devoid of accessible sports
halls. KKP’s audit identifies a total of 40 sports halls with at least one badminton court; of
these 12 have three courts or more. Of the 12 identified with 3+ courts, seven have some
level of community use (two sites, declined to be assessed including Holy Cross and
Arena Health and Fitness). One of the sites is an MOD site and has no community
access.
The management of the sites is disparate with People for Places only managing one of
the centres on behalf of the Council. Although this is a six court hall, it is an older building
(over 40 years old). Only Chessington Sport Centre offers a significant amount of
community use, with all of the others constrained by other activities on site (mainly
educational needs but also including the Kings Centre, which is unavailable at weekends
due to church commitments).
The Centre and West of the Borough are not served by an accessible sports halls. Other
more densely populated areas are generally serviced by some indoor sports hall
provision. The whole Borough is within 20 minutes’ drive time of an indoor sports hall,
although travel time in Kingston is a lot slower than elsewhere in the country. All of the
Borough is within 10 minutes’ drive time of a sports centre. Only one site is considered to
have a good sports hall (Richard Challoner School) although this is not reflected in
feedback from local badminton clubs. Tolworth Recreation Centre faces increasing
maintenance costs primarily due to its age.
No particular sport appears to dominate programming (although badminton is considered
a key sport in the area and Tolworth Recreation Centre has a significant indoor football
programme).
4.3 Demand
APS 9 suggests that 15.5 million people did some kind of sport once a week, every week.
Although it indicated falls in levels of swimming participation it is still the most popular
activity with 2.5 million participants per week. Athletics (although relatively broadly
defined) attracts 2.2 million) and cycling; 2.1 million. Football participants number 1.9
million and golf’ 0.73 million. Sports in which (according to APS) participation is currently
on the rise include running, tennis and basketball. APS consistently demonstrates that
adults from higher socio-economic groups are more likely to take part in sport than the
converse. Appendix 1 contains Sport England Active People Survey and Market
Segmentation data for RBKT. As shown, the top sports are cycling, athletics and
swimming, suggesting that any numeric reduction or increase in this age group will not
have a significant impact on sports hall participation.

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

43

A69

Annex 3

Table 4.7: Most popular sports in Royal Borough of Kingston (Source: APS9)

Sport

Kingston-upon-Thame
s

London

England

No. (000s)

Rate

No. (000s)

Rate

No. (000s)

Rate

Swimming

17.2

13.0%

666.2

9.9%

4,077.4

9.4%

Gym Session

17.0

12.7%

898.6

13.3
%

4,786.4

11.0
%

Athletics

14.2

10.7%

609.3

9.0%

3,295.2

7.6%

Cycling

13.4

10.0%

467.3

6.9%

3,789.0

8.7%

6.5

4.9%

349.2

5.2%

1,945.2

4.5%

Fitness Class

Data from APS 9 – available through Active People Interactive

Future demand
As touched upon earlier, it is projected that the overall number of people in RBKT will
increase by 18,373 (10.9%) from 2014 to 2027, which includes an:
Increase of 2,720 (8.5%) 0-15 year olds;
Increase of 4,719 (21.6%) 65+ year olds.
From 2014 – 2041 the population is projected to increase by 32,704 (19.4%), including a
57.6% rise in the numbers aged 65+ to become approximately one in six of the
population.
This will result in different programming requirements in sports halls and increased
demand for use at different times (most notably during the day time).
Facilities Planning Model
Sport England’s FPM is based on the calculated demand as outlined below; data is once
again taken from the 2016 National Run of the Sport England FPM Kingston upon
Thames Profile Report. In the context of demand:
The percentage of residents without access to a car is 23.7%. This is almost half the
average figure for London (40%). This means that the majority of the residents have
more choice in terms of how far they are likely to travel to a sports hall and which
sports hall to try to access.
Satisfied Demand

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

44

A70

Annex 3
The FPM estimates that 91% of the Borough’s residents who wish to use a sports
hall are able to do so. This figure is significantly higher than the average for the
London boroughs (83%).
Unsurprisingly the model estimates that the vast majority of this demand that is met is
achieved by residents travelling to a sports hall by car (c. 75%).
In terms of where residents go to have their sports hall needs met the model
estimates that just less than half (47%) go outside the Borough.
This is likely to be due to the limited number of hall sites in the Borough, the relatively
old age of some of the sports halls and that many residents (due to the high car
ownership) are able to travel to facilities in neighbouring authorities.
Unmet Demand
The model estimates that 9% of demand from RBKT’s residents cannot be met either
inside or outside the Borough. The scale of this unmet demand equates to less than
five courts. Across the whole Borough this is considered to be a relatively small
figure.
The main reason for unmet demand being created is split 60:40 with 60% of the
unmet demand being caused by residents living outside the catchment area of a
sports hall (overwhelmingly due to their inability to access a car) and 40% due to
insufficient capacity.
The model considers there to be unmet demand throughout the Borough. Whilst
there are not significant differences between different parts of the Borough the area
with the highest unmet demand in RBKT can be found in the North East of the
Borough.
Used Capacity
The sports halls in RBKT are considered to be full at peak times with 100% of
available capacity being used.
In terms of who uses the sports halls in the Borough, the model estimates that nearly
two thirds (63.5%) of the visits to the sports halls comes from the Borough’s
residents.
The percentage of used capacity of the sports halls in the Borough is slightly higher
than the average for London (100% compared to 96%).
NGB consultation
Badminton
The National Facilities Strategy (2012-2016) vision is ‘that everyone in England should
have access to a badminton court that enables them to play at the right level - for them’.
APS data indicates that Badminton participation (once a week participation: 1x30 minutes
for ages16+) has fallen by c. 10% to 490,200 nationally in the last two years. Badminton
England works within a framework to try and increase participation which includes:

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

45

A71

Annex 3
Play Badminton: working with leisure operators to increase casual badminton
participation, increase court usage and increase income. Supported by BE staff and
national marketing and encompasses several ways to play using an audit process
to identify appropriate sites and operators to work with across the regions
No Strings Badminton: social pay and play weekly sessions - ideal for casual
players of all abilities (ages 16+), led by a friendly, welcoming session co-ordinator.
Essentials: beginners coaching courses. Learn all the badminton basics at a
relaxed pace with beginners coaching sessions over 6-8 weeks, led by BE qualified
coaches.
Battle Badminton: casual competition leaderboards; find new players (ages 18+)
to play socially in matches where you pick the venue, set the rules and record your
results online to earn points and rise the ranks in local and national leaderboards.
SmashUp! badminton for young people. Court time for 12-16 year olds where they
can get involved with fun, big hitting badminton challenges with music and mates.
No facility funding (up to March 2017) has been committed to sites in Kingston from the
current Whole Sport Plan. Badminton England is about to enter into the process of
planning for the next funding period, based on Sport England’s new strategy and is
unaware as to what funding (2017-2021) will be available during this period for facility
development.
In terms of revenue funding this is available either through Badminton England or local
partners such (e.g. London Sport) to support increased activity in junior participation (e.g.
Satellite Club programme / Sportivate).
BE identifies that club members in Kingston are having issues with accessing facilities.
This is not to say that the area does not match the trend across the country where courts
are difficult to hire at peak times, but it has not been raised that this is particularly
preventing activity from taking place and impacting negatively on people playing
badminton.
A key site identified by the NGB for its delivery of badminton is Tolworth Leisure Centre.
This Centre is signed up to the Play Badminton Framework and has recently shown a
good desire to provide more opportunities to the local community. The following six clubs
exist in the Borough although none of them are affiliated to BE.
Kingston & New Malden Badminton Club
Coombe Junior Badminton Club
Emmanual Church Badminton Club
Ravenscar Badminton Club
New Malden Ladies Badminton Club
New Malden Tennis Squash & Badminton Club

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

46

A72

Annex 3
Kingston is seen as an area of potential growth due to the current level of activity taking
place. BE has supported clubs within the following schools in the Borough:
St Philips School
Holy Cross Girls School
The Hollyfield School
Coombe Girls School
Kingston College
Tiffin Girls School
As a result there will be continually growing levels of participation within these schools
and the aim is for a number of these to transition into local community exit routes. This
could result in more junior badminton clubs being set up or further demand within the
clubs already established, which would result in greater demand for indoor space and
courts.
Similarly the work with the identified Play Badminton sites will include working with these
sites to increase activity within their facilities – again impacting on the demand for courts.
Consultation with local badminton clubs indicates the following:
Table 4.8: Badminton access in schools across RBKT
Facility
Coombe Girls:School

Coombe Boys School
Richard Challoner:

Tiffin Boys School
Tolworth Recreation
Centre:
Kingston Arena:

Kingston University and
Kingston College:

Comment
Has less availability than in the past. There needs to be a caretaker
on site but it has been known to be more flexible with someone
opening and closing the facility at weekend. Prices are lower than
normal the School closes when there is a school function, exams and
school holidays.
Has a new floor which has proven to be too slippery to play on, so no
badminton is played there now.
Prices rose by 25% a few years ago, so it is a lot more expensive
than most. Still some availability due to the cost. White walls difficult
to see the shuttle.
Has some available courts, though not popular being in central
Kingston (access more difficult)
Never an option, badminton players don’t like the floor, the lights and
the dance music on the other courts.
Not used these facilities for a long time now. Parking a major problem
NCP sometimes closes early at weekends. Location is not
considered very safe.
Not open to the public

The trends in badminton are seeing an ongoing increase in junior participation and adult
recreational participation and Kingston activity would mirror this trend. Further support will

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

47

A73

Annex 3
be provided to clubs and formal settings to increase participation in these areas as well as
adult participation in more formal settings such as community centres and village halls.
Basketball
The main priorities for Basketball England (BE) are identified as to:
Create and maintain a culture of frequent, consistent and continued participation.
Provide a clearly defined talent development pathway from the grassroots through
to world class performance.
It understands the sport’s dependence upon the availability of affordable indoor facilities
and equipment. For it to maintain and grow participation, formal and informal, it needs
ongoing development of a comprehensive network of indoor facilities. It is, therefore,
working alongside partners to create affordable, accessible and suitable indoor facilities to
meet the demand for court-time to play and to practice, thereby increasing participation
and improving performance. Accessing indoor basketball courts remains one of the
biggest challenges in BE’s efforts to develop the sport at all levels.
Affiliated clubs are important in delivering regular participation opportunity and play a part
in both participation and talent programmes. Accordingly, increased club access to indoor
basketball facilities (with multiple courts) will be required to deliver its planned outcomes
for participation via programmes including, satellite clubs, Premier league 4 Sport and
Talent Development.
Access to secondary school indoor basketball facilities is of prime importance as BE
seeks to take advantage of Sport England’s commitment to open up school facilities for
local community use. The recent State of the Nation Report on sports halls from Sport
England showed that 76% are located on educational sites. As well as improving access
to existing indoor sports facilities BE is continuing to develop capital projects, building
facilities with multiple basketball courts for use by clubs to boost participation and drive
talent outcomes.
Consultation with Kingston Wildcats Basketball Club indicates a membership of c.125
having dropped from a c.170 approximately three years ago. It runs seven teams ranging
from the under 10’s through to adult male team. Consultation suggests that the main
reason for the decline in numbers is due to the rising cost of fees. Its main facility is
Chessington Sports Centre. It operates in a number of schools to try and encourage more
youngsters to join the club (it received funding from Active London to undertake this
coaching). Coaching is offered to a high standard with a level 3 head coach available.
The Club describes its relationship with Chessington Sports Centre as good and it plays it
national league matches at the venue. Its key challenge is to drive up participation and it

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

48

A74

Annex 3
suggests that it is unable to do this as well as it needs a more central location. Also, it is
difficult to hire sports hall space from schools. The Club suggests that people are willing
to travel if the quality of the facility and coaching is good.
Gymnastics
British Gymnastics (BG) main priorities (for the period 2013-2017) are to:
Increase the number of dedicated facilities and improve existing facilities.
Increase access to spaces in non-dedicated venues.
There is, however, no geographic focus to the British Gymnastics Whole Sport Plan or
Facility Strategy. It is based on need, suitability and partners’ ability to support a project to
successful completion. There is a large demand for more gymnastics opportunities and
many clubs report large waiting lists. The Sports & Recreation Alliance 2013 Sports Club
Survey showed most Gymnastics Clubs have a waiting list of up to 100, with many clubs
anecdotally reporting waiting lists into several hundreds.
A key part of BG’s strategy to increase participation is to support clubs moving into their
own dedicated facility, offering more time and space for classes. There is a definite trend
for gymnastics clubs to move into their own dedicated facilities with approximately 40
moving into their own spaces last year; BG expects this trend to continue and an
increased amount of clubs move their activities to dedicated spaces/facilities
The NGB indicates limited provision of access to facilities within the RBKT with all clubs
having waiting lists restricting access to gymnastic activities due to the lack of time within
both dedicated and non-dedicated facilities.
There are two British Gymnastics affiliated dedicated facilities in the RBKT area,
Richmond Gymnastics Association and Tolworth Gymnastics Club. BG is currently
continuing to aid Richmond Gymnastics Association through looking at a new site for
them to grow and expand within, or extending their current venue as a second option.
Club

Number of participants

Kingston Trampoline Club, (Kingston On Thames)

333

Surbiton Gymnastics Club (Kingston on Thames)

59

Sponte Sua Gym (Surbiton)

481

Richmond Gymnastics Association

2032

Avondale Gymnastics Club (Teddington)

444

Malden Centre (Malden)

Leisure Centre Partner Scheme.

Tolworth Gymnastics Club (Tolworth)

1820

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

49

A75

Annex 3
BG has developed a new range of products and programmes and offers assistance to
support local delivery. This is proving successful in the growth of membership and
retention of members across the country.
Participation in gymnastics is, reportedly, increasing rapidly. Growth of British Gymnastics
membership has been higher than 12% each year since 2012 and 14% in the year
2014-2015. There has been a notable increase in the number of teenagers and adults
(11-25 year olds) taking part in gymnastics regularly which, of course, places further strain
on many of the gymnastics venues currently available.
Potential demand for different sports based on market segmentation is set out below.
Table 4.9: Market segmentation and likely target audiences in Kingston upon Thames
Badminton
2.7% (3,393) of people currently play badminton and a further 2.2% (2,736) indicate that they
would like to, giving an overall total of 4.9% (6,129)
4.5% of Ben’s play badminton, which is the largest proportion of any group playing badminton,
closely followed by the Tim segment at 4.0%
The groups with the largest of the local population group playing badminton are the Tim’s
(17.5%) and Ben’s (14.2%).
The groups with the most people who would like to play are Tim (17.5%) and Chloe (11.9%).
The main group to target, for additional players due to size and interest is, therefore Tim

Basketball
0.8% (989) of people currently play basketball and a further 0.5% (633) indicate that they would
like to, giving an overall total of 1.3% (1,622)
3.4% of Ben’s play basketball, which is the largest proportion of any group playing badminton,
closely followed by the Jamie segment at 2.7%
The groups with the largest of the local population group playing basketball are the Ben’s
(45.1%) and Tim’s (15.1%).
The groups with the most people who would like to play are Ben (37.3%) and Jamie (16.7%).
The main group to target, for additional players due to size and interest is, therefore Ben

Gymnastics and Trampolining
0.3% (331) of people currently take part in gymnastics and trampolining and a further 0.2%
(227) indicate that they would like to, giving an overall total of 0.5% (558)
0.6% of Chloe’s do gymnastics and trampolining, which is the largest proportion of any group
taking part in gymnastics and trampolining, closely followed by the Leanne segment at 0.4%

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

50

A76

Annex 3
The groups with the largest of the local population group taking part are the Chloe’s (24.8%)
and Ben’s (15.7%).
The groups with the most people who would like to play are Chloe (34.8%) and Leanne
(10.1%).
The main group to target, for additional players due to size and interest is, therefore Chloe

Netball
0.6% (716) of people currently play netball and a further 0.5% (612) indicate that they would
like to, giving an overall total of 1.1% (1,328)
2.2% of Leanne’s play netball, which is the largest proportion of any group playing badminton,
closely followed by the Chloe segment at 1.9%
The groups with the largest of the local population group playing netball are the Chloe’s
(34.1%) and Alison’s (21.0%).
The groups with the most people who would like to play are Chloe (37.6%) and Alison (17.5%).
The main group to target, for additional players due to size and interest is, therefore Chloe

Table Tennis
0.5% (623) of people currently play table tennis and a further 0.2% (243) indicate that they
would like to, giving an overall total of 0.7% (866)
0.7% of Philip’s play table tennis, which is the largest proportion of any group playing table
tennis, closely followed by the Ben segment at 0.7%
The groups with the largest of the local population group playing table tennis are the Tim’s
(21.0%) and Ben’s (15.1%).
The groups with the most people who would like to play are Tim (23.5%) and Roger & Joy
(12.4%).
The main group to target, for additional players due to size and interest is, therefore Tim

Squash and Racketball
1.5% (1,933) of people currently play squash and racketball and a further 0.9% (1,118) indicate
that they would like to, giving an overall total of 2.4% (3,052)
3.9% of Ben’s play squash and racketball, which is the largest proportion of any group playing
squash and racketball, closely followed by the Tim segment at 3.4%
The groups with the largest of the local population group playing squash and racketball are the
Tim’s (33.0%) and Ben’s (27.0%).
The groups with the most people who would like to play are Tim (29.6%) and Ben (15.7%).
The main group to target, for additional players due to size and interest is, therefore Tim

Summary of demand
Borough participation rates are above regional and national averages. There is identified
latent demand from people who would like to participate in sports hall sports including

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

51

A77

Annex 3
basketball and badminton. Consultation indicates a thriving basketball club, several
badminton and gymnastics clubs who have the potential for growth and who have
restricted access to facilities
4.4 Supply and demand analysis
Sport England’s FPM indicates that:
Whilst more than 90% of Kingston upon Thames residents who wish to use a sports hall
are able to do so, this figure could increase further if all of the sports halls in the Borough
were available to use for the full peak period. The key challenge on sports hall provision
for the Council focuses on the need to work with a variety of stakeholders who own/
manage facilities as all but one of the sports hall sites are outside of the Council’s control.
In terms of the Council’s one site, the age and condition of the facility is likely to be a
challenge in the near future if it is not already.
4.5 Sport England’s Facilities Calculator (SFC)
This assists local planning authorities to quantify additional demand for community sports
facilities generated by new growth populations, development and regeneration areas. It
can be used to estimate facility needs for whole area (Borough) populations, there are
dangers in how figures are subsequently used. It should not be used for strategic gap
analysis as it has no spatial dimension and it is important to note that it does not take
account of:
❏
❏
❏
❏
❏

Facility location compared to demand.
Capacity and availability of facilities – opening hours.
Cross boundary movement of demand.
Travel networks and topography.
Attractiveness of facilities.

Table 4.10: Sports Facilities Calculator applied to ONS population increases in RBKT:

GLA data projection

Population 2014
(mid-year
estimate)
168,903

Population
estimate 2027

Population
estimate 2041

187,276

201,607

Population increase

-

18,273

14,331

Facilities to meet additional
demand

-

5.38 courts

4.19 courts

These calculations assume that the current sports hall stock remains accessible for
community use and the quality remains the same. It appears that the projected increase

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

52

A78

Annex 3
in population will add to the demand for sports hall space in RBKT. The facilities
calculator indicates that up to 2027 there will be a requirement for an additional 5.38
courts. Between 2027 and 2041 there will be a further requirement for 4.19 courts.

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

53

A79

Annex 3
Conclusion
Sports hall provision in Kingston upon Thames is of a reasonable quality and generally fit
for purpose. It has one venue (Tolworth Recreation Centre) which is managed by Places
for People Leisure on behalf of the Council. It is full to capacity at peak period (with mainly
football and badminton activity). Chessington Sports Centre is the other facility offering
significant community use. Other sports halls are hindered in their ability to provide
community access as they are situated mainly on education sites with one being dual use
with a church (thereby restricting community use at weekends). Quality varies but only
one school facility is considered to be good, the remaining facilities are either above
(three) or below (two) average.
Tolworth Recreation Centre, built over 40 years ago has sufficient parking and is situated
next to a school. Although People for Places has invested in the site, there is still a need
for increased investment over the coming years to ensure that it remains fit for purpose
and continues to attract current volumes.
Participation rates in Kingston upon Thames are above regional and national levels, with
an identified latent demand in a range of sports hall sports (based upon interrogation of
Sport England Market Segmentation data). Consultation with a range of NGBs indicates a
level of dissatisfaction with the level of supply of sports hall space with all of them wanting
like to increase participation further in their sports by expanding the number of sessions to
attract participants. It is considered unlikely that increases in facility time within schools
will improve again limiting opportunity for participation and performance across a range of
sports.
The disparate nature of management of the indoor sports halls suggests that coordination
of programming and pricing across the Borough may be difficult to achieve, unless
significant resource is given to enabling this. RBKT may wish to consider the viability of
the Tolworh Recreation Centre and the likely increasing investment it will require to
remain fit for purpose for an increasing and ageing population.
Three six court halls are identified in the Borough with only two of them being available for
community use. Given the demand for increased sports hall space RBKT needs to
consider whether the Borough will benefit from a larger sports hall of (say) eight
badminton courts as it may be able to draw in other sports and events into the Borough as
well as leading to increased participation.

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

54

A80

Annex 3
4.5 Summary of key facts and issues
❏ The FPM indicates 11 3+ court sized halls available for community use on nine sites.
❏ The audit identifies 12 halls of which seven halls have community use. The discrepancy with
the FPM is considered to be the fact Surbiton High School does not have a four court hall
whilst the audit identified that Arena Health and Fitness and Holy Cross do not allow for
community use.

❏ Sports hall quality is variable (with only Richard Challoner School identified as good),
reflecting the age of many venues. Stock is however, mostly fit for purpose.

❏ Tolworth Recreation Centre is considered to be below average and is the only sports hall
managed on behalf of RBKT by Places for People. It offers mainly badminton and indoor
football as part of its programme of activities.

❏ Four fifths (81.2%) of the population resides within a 20 minute walk time of a sports hall.
❏ Nearly one quarter (23.7%) of RBKT residents do not have access to a car (which is lower
than the London average of 40%) but still suggests that many people in the Borough are not
mobile.

❏ The Centre and West of the Borough are not well serviced by sports hall facilities.
❏ RBKT does not have an 8-court hall; this may limit its capacity to accommodate certain
sports hall sports or the levels of competition which can be held in the Borough.

❏ The variable management of the different sports halls suggests that coordination by RBKT
(via Places for People), which operates Tolworth Recreation Centre will be difficult.

❏ There is limited opportunity to extend the volume of community use in any of the facilities.
❏ Market segmentation data and consultation with sports clubs identifies latent demand for
sports hall based activity.

❏ Sport England’s FPM indicates some level of justification for increasing provision of publicly
available sports hall space in RBKT – current facilities are forecast to be extremely well used
limiting opportunity to increase usage to meet demand from a growing population.

❏ There are a range of sports including gymnastics and martial arts which use up smaller halls
and spaces in the Borough. Consultation indicates that there is demand for more of these
spaces.

❏ Due to the variety of management operators (many in the education sector) there is
considered to be a level of fragmentation in the level of coordination of community use of
sports halls in the Borough.

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

55

A81

Annex 3
PART 5: SWIMMING POOLS
A swimming pool can be defined as an “enclosed area of water, specifically maintained
for all forms of water based sport and recreation”. It includes indoor and outdoor pools,
freeform leisure pools and specific diving tanks used for general swimming, teaching,
training and diving. Many small pools are used solely for recreational swimming and will
not necessarily need to strictly follow the NGB recommendations. It is, however, generally
recommended that standard dimensions are used to allow appropriate levels of
competition and training and to help meet safety standards. Relatively few pools need to
be designed to full competition standards or include spectator facilities.
Training for competition, low-level synchronised swimming, and water polo can all take
place in a 25 m pool. With modest spectator seating, pools can also accommodate
competitive events in these activities. Diving from boards, advanced synchronised
swimming and more advanced sub-aqua training require deeper water. These can all be
accommodated in one pool tank, which ideally should be in addition to the main pool.
The NGB responsible for administering diving, swimming, synchronised swimming and
water polo in England is the Amateur Swimming Association (ASA).
5.1 Supply
This assessment is concerned with larger pools available for community use (no
restrictions to accessing the pool as a result of membership criteria). As such, pools that
are shorter than 20 metres in length and/or located at private member clubs offer limited
value in relation to community use and delivery of outcomes related to health and
deprivation and are excluded from the assessment.
5.1 Sport England Facilities Planning Model (FPM)
The FPM for RBKT was undertaken using 2016 National Facilities Audit data. The
analysis provides a useful starting point in identifying the issues and challenges for
Borough swimming provision.
Supply
❏ There are considered to be seven swimming pools in the Borough across four sites.
The four sites that meet the FPM criteria are: David Lloyd Club (Kingston), Kingfisher
Leisure Centre, Malden Centre and Virgin Active Club.
❏ The number of swimming pool sites available in the Borough equates to half of the
average available across the London boroughs. This is considered important from an
access perspective, especially for those residents without access to a car.

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

56

A82

Annex 3
❏ The age of the pools differs considerably with both of the commercial pools built in
2002, compared to the public pools which were built in the mid to late 1980s. This
infers that no new public swimming pool has been built in the Borough for nearly 30
years. The age of the public pools is considered to impact on the attractiveness of the
facilities and could impact on the likelihood of residents using them.
❏ Both of the public pool sites have a main pool and a learner pool which enables a
range of offers to be delivered at those sites.
❏ The supply of water space in the borough equates to 1,231 square metres of water at
peak times – this is significantly below the average supply of water space for a
London borough.
❏ The amount of water space per 1,000 residents is circa 7.4 square metres. The
average for London is circa 10.9 square metres.
The audit identified eight pools at five sites (the additional pool can be found at Coombe
Hill Junior School), which is one more than the FPM. However, the audit concurs that
there are only four swimming pools sites which meet the criteria for ANOG purposes. All
swimming pools within the Borough are identified in Table 5.1 and Figure 5.1 below.
Quantity
Figure 5.1: All identified swimming pools in Royal Borough of Kingston

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

57

A83

Annex 3

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

58

A84

Annex 3
Table 5.1: All swimming pools and sites in Kingston upon Thames
Facility name

Pool size

Lanes

Built

15m x 6m

0

2007

Coombe Hill Junior School

20m x 8m

0

1971

David Lloyd Club (Kingston)

20m x 13m

5

2002

Fitness4less (New Malden)

15m x 10m

0

2000

Kingfisher Leisure Centre (Kingston)

25m x 13m

6

1984

Kingfisher Leisure Centre (Kingston)

8m x 8m

0

1984

Knollmead Primary Academy

15m x 6m

0

1950

Malden Centre

25m x 13m

6

1987

Malden Centre

7m x 5m

0

1987

The River Club

18m x 8m

4

2003

Virgin Active Club (Kingston Richmond Rd)

25m x 10m

4

2002

Virgin Active Club (Kingston Richmond Rd)

4m x 4m

0

2002

Chessington World Of Adventures Leisure Club

** have had refurbishment
Kingfisher Leisure Centre and the Malden Centre are the only pools considered to be
accessible for community use. Whilst serving some sections of the community Virgin
Active and David Lloyd facilities restrict access to the general public by monthly
membership fees, so community use availability is limited. Quality of the pools
considered are identified in Figure 5.3. Figure 5.3 also indicates the lack of accessible
pool space from the centre of the Borough and to the South.
Table 5.3: Swimming pools in RBKT (4+ lane x min 20m)
Map ID

Site

Lane
s

Length

Community Use
No

18

David Lloyd Club (Kingston)

5

20

75

Virgin Active Club (Kingston Richmond Rd)

4

25

No

29

Kingfisher Leisure Centre (Kingston)

6

25

Yes

40

Malden Centre

6

25

Yes

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

59

A85

Annex 3
Figure 5.2: Swimming pools in RBKT (4+ lane x min 20m)

Quality
As part of the assessment, KKP visited main swimming pools and completed
non-technical visual assessments. It is necessary to include an assessment of changing
provision as this can also play a significant role in influencing and attracting users
(especially the elderly, women and some BME communities). The quality ratings of the
two venues which allow for community use are shown in Table 5.3 and Figure 5.3

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

60

A86

Annex 3

Table 5.3: Kingston Swimming Pools (20m+ 4 Lanes+) with community use by condition
Map
ID

Site

Lane
s

Comm.
Use

29

Kingfisher Leisure Centre

6

Yes

40

Malden Centre

6

Yes

Condition
Pool
Below
average
Above
average

Changing
Below average
Below average

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

61

A87

Annex 3
Figure 5.3: Kingston Swimming Pools (20m+ 4 Lanes+) with community use by condition

Accessibility
Swimming pool accessibility is influenced by both physical (i.e. built environment) and
human (i.e. management of entry to facilities) elements.
Management accessibility
Kingfisher Leisure Centre and the Malden Centre are managed by Places for People
Leisure on behalf of RBKT. The operator has a good relationship with Council officers
and has heavily invested in the swimming pools and changing facilities over the past few

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

62

A88

Annex 3
years. This does not hide the fact that both pools are ageing and are coming towards the
end of their economic life cycle. The leisure pool layout at Kingfisher Leisure Centre
inhibits certain swimming activities and the pool operator describes the programme as
complex and complicated with a mixture of block bookings and pay and play opportunity.
Alteration of the pool programme (to, for example, try and drive up increases in
participation or significantly extend swimming lesson time) is not really an option due to
pressure from local user groups.
Operational accessibility
The quality assessment identifies that Kingfisher Leisure Centre has below average pool
area and changing rooms. New Malden is considered to have an above average pool but
changing facilities below average; this is mainly attributed to the age of the facility.
(Kingfisher Leisure Centre was built in 1984 with the Malden Centre in 1987).
Consultation with Centre staff confirmed their agreement with this assessment.
As with indoor facilities appropriate walk and drive-time accessibility standards are
applied to swimming facilities to determine deficiencies in provision. The normal
acceptable standard is a 20 minute walk time (1 mile radial catchment) for an urban area.
This enables analysis of the adequacy of coverage and helps to identify areas currently
not serviced by existing provision
Figure 5.4 and Table 5.4 indicates the one mile radial catchment area which highlights
the fact that less than half (44.7%) of the Borough population lives within a one mile
catchment of accessible swimming pools.
A small proportion of RBKT’s resident population (c1.1%) in the South of the Borough are
not within a 10 minute drive time of the community accessible swimming pools as can be
seen in Figure 5.4 and Table 5.4.
Table 5.4: Kingston Swimming Pools (20m+ 4 Lanes+) with 20 minute walk catchments
set against IMD (GLA) populations
Indices of
Multiple
Deprivation
2015
10% bands
00 - 10%

Kingston-upon-Thame
s
Populatio
%
n in band
Populatio
(mid-2012
n in Band
)
0
0.0%

Swimming pools (20m+, 4 Lanes+ with
community use)
Persons
Persons
%
%
inside
outside
Populatio
Populatio
catchmen
catchme
n inside
n outside
t
nt
0
0.0%
0
0.0%

10 - 20%

1,880

1.1%

1,880

1.1%

0

0.0%

20 - 30%

3,425

2.1%

1,355

0.8%

2,070

1.3%

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

63

A89

Annex 3
30 - 40%

7,004

4.3%

4,937

3.0%

2,067

1.3%

40 - 50%

5,504

3.4%

289

0.2%

5,215

3.2%

50 - 60%

24,245

14.8%

11,283

6.9%

12,962

7.9%

60 - 70%

26,599

16.2%

16,194

9.9%

10,405

6.3%

70 - 80%

33,016

20.1%

9,632

5.9%

23,384

14.3%

80 - 90%

35,821

21.9%

16,682

10.2%

19,139

11.7%

90 - 100%

26,412

16.1%

10,964

6.7%

15,448

9.4%

163,906

100.0%

73,216

44.7%

90,690

55.3%

Total

Data from Table 5.4 also indicates 1.9% out of a total of 3.3% of the population, who live
in the most deprived areas (using 30% percentile) are within one mile of a swimming pool
indicating that 1.4% of this group are not (figures are rounded up and down so are not
exact).
Figure 5.4 Community accessible pools - 20 minute walk time

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

64

A90

Annex 3

Figure 5.5: Community accessible pools - 20 minute walk and 10 minute drive time

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

65

A91

Annex 3

Figure 5.6 and Table 5.5, overleaf, indicate 19 swimming pools within a two mile
boundary of RBKT. The use of swimming pools is dependent upon a whole range of
factors with drive time being a significant one. Driving times in Kingston are particularly
slow, so Figure 5.6 gives an overview of pools within a two mile boundary (all residents
are within 20 minute drive time of swimming pools in RBKT, which is the model used
when considering access in more rural areas). The FPM identifies that nearly one quarter
of the population (23.7%) does not have access to a car so the lack of mobility may affect
their ability to access swimming pools both in and outside of the Borough. London
boroughs, in particular, have lower access to cars, which is reflected in the better public
transport.

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

66

A92

Annex 3
Figure 5.6 Swimming pools within 2 miles of Kingston boundary (GLA)

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

67

A93

Annex 3

Table 5.5 Swimming pools within 2 miles of Kingston boundary (GLA)
Site Name

R1

Teddington Pools & Fitness Centre

Lanes /
Length
6 / 25

R2

The German School

4 / 25

Richmond upon Thames

R3

The Mall School

4 / 20

Richmond upon Thames

W1

Bank of England Sports Centre

4 / 20

Wandsworth

W2

Roehampton Club

4 / 25

Wandsworth

M1

David Lloyd Club (Raynes Park)

4 / 25

Merton

M2

Morden Park Pools

6 / 33.3

Merton

M3

The King's Club

4 / 30

Merton

M4

Wimbledon College

4 / 25

Merton

M5

Wimbledon High School

5 / 25

Merton

S1

Cheam Leisure Centre

6 / 30

Sutton

EE1

David Lloyd Club (Cheam)

6 / 25

Epsom and Ewell

EE1

David Lloyd Club (Cheam)

5 / 20

Epsom and Ewell

EE2

David Lloyd Club (Epsom)

5 / 25

Epsom and Ewell

EE3

Rainbow Leisure Centre

6 / 25

Epsom and Ewell

EE4

The Royal Automobile Club - Cedars Sports

4 / 30

Epsom and Ewell

MV1

Downsend School

5 / 25

Mole Valley

E1

Colets Health & Fitness Club

5 / 25

Elmbridge

E2

Danes Hill School

4 / 25

Elmbridge

Map ID

Local Authority
Richmond upon Thames

5.3 Demand
FPM Analysis of demand for swimming pools
❏ The population of the Borough is c. 172,500. This is lower than the London average
which is closer to 265,000. This impacts on the scale of demand in RBKT.
❏ The percentage of residents without access to a car is 23.7%. This is almost half the
average figure for London (40%). This means that the majority of RBKT residents
have more choice in terms of how far they are likely to travel to a swimming pool and
which swimming pool to try to access.
Satisfied Demand

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

68

A94

Annex 3
❏ The FPM estimates that 95.3% of the Borough’s residents who wish to swim are able
to do so. This figure is higher than the average for the London boroughs (93.2%).
❏ Unsurprisingly the model estimates that the vast majority of this demand that is met is
achieved by residents travelling to a swimming pool by car (c. 74%).
❏ In terms of where residents go to have their swimming needs met the model
estimates that more than half (53.3%) go outside the Borough. This is likely to be due
to the limited number of pool sites within, the relatively old age of the public pool stock
and that many residents (due to the high car ownership compared to other London
boroughs) are able to travel to facilities in neighbouring authorities.
Unmet Demand
❏ The model estimates that 4.7% of demand from the Borough’s residents cannot be
met either inside or outside the Borough. The scale of this unmet demand equates to
less than 100 m2 of water space. Across the whole Borough this is considered to be a
relatively small figure.
❏ The main reason for unmet demand being created is overwhelmingly (98.7%) due to
catchment issues rather than capacity ones. The key reason for residents being
outside the catchment of a swimming pool is that they do not have access to a car
(90% of the 98.7%). The small number of swimming pool sites in the Borough
contributes to the number of RBKT’s residents who live outside the catchment area of
a pool.
❏ The model considers there to be unmet demand throughout the Borough. Whilst there
are not significant differences between different parts of the Borough the area with the
highest unmet demand in RBKT is found around Tolworth.
Used Capacity
❏ The swimming pools in Kingston upon Thames are considered to be busy at peak
times with 77% of available capacity being used. In terms of the individual pool sites,
three of the four pool sites in the Borough are considered to be at over 80% of
capacity at peak times. The one exception is the Virgin Active Club which is still
considered relatively busy at 59% of capacity being used at peak times.
❏ In terms of who uses the swimming pools in the Borough, the model estimates that
nearly two thirds (62.6%) of the visits to swimming pools comes from RBKT’s
residents.
❏ The percentage of used capacity of the swimming pools in the Borough is slightly
higher than the average for London (76.9% compared to 75.9%).
NGB key issues
Consultation with the Amateur Swimming Association (ASA) confirms that the headline
objectives of ‘More people learning to swim, more people swimming regularly, more

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

69

A95

Annex 3
medals on the world stage,’ which are contained within the ASA Strategic Plan – 2013-17
remain. The NGB is currently developing a facilities strategy.
It considers all usable swimming pools to be important for the sport and this is no different
in Kingston upon Thames. Local authority pools are of particular importance to the ASA
given their ability to support its key objectives of increasing participation and also the
talent base (club usage). It should be noted that there is no capital funding available from
the ASA, however, by working closely with Sport England the NGB aims to target funding
on projects that will have the greatest impact on increasing participation and benefit the
sport and its clubs.
The ASA quotes Sport England’s FPM in stating that the model indicates that there is a
599m² deficit in the Borough, which equates to an additional 25m x 8-lane pool plus a
learner pool. Further, the two local authority owned pools in the Borough were built in
1984 and 1987 respectively, meaning that a refurbishment or replacement strategy needs
to be considered.
Consultation with the ASA’s Regional Facilities Team indicates that it is keen to see
Kingston address its deficit of water space and achieve a balanced community based
aquatic offer. There is no current requirement for a 50m competition pool in the Borough,
and this would be unlikely to attract support from potential funders, however a case
(based on need) could be made for a 50m community pool, but this is unlikely to address
the geographical spread/need of the Borough.
In terms of “need” there is very much a demand in London for diving training facilities, not
so much obviously for regional/national competition (which are covered by Crystal Palace
and London Aquatics Centre) but rather good quality training venues. Morden Park is the
closest facility with boards but it only has a 5m static plus two springboards. The ASA
confirms that any diving facility proposed in Kingston should be described as a
“feeder”/development club with reference to the diving element. Any programme within
the facility would be looking to develop athletes within the immediate area to a high
standard (definitely regional and potentially national level), however, there is no
requirement for either competition or 10m high board which are covered by the London
Aquatic Centre and Crystal Palace.
The ASA identifies that the most notable swimming club in the Borough is Kingston
Royals, which is identified as a Swim 21 Competition Club. The Club appears to be
financially viable it has policies on workforce development, uses mainly paid coaches and
has a turnover of c. £250,000 per annum. The ASA, in liaison with the Club indicates that
there is insufficient club time available and that an increase in water space will permit the
Club to grow and increase participation.

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

70

A96

Annex 3
Consultation with Kingston Royals confirms that it requires more water space. The Club
offers a full programme of activities from learn to swim through to masters. It has grown
from c.250 two years ago to a membership of 500-600 currently. There is also a waiting
list of c.300. The ratio of girls to boys is 3:1. Due to the reported lack of space, the Club
indicates that it offers more early morning swims than any of its neighbouring clubs. The
Club, however, loses many of its better swimmers to rivals in other local authorities due to
the limited time it has available in the pools in Kingston. Further, the Club is restricted in
developing its swimmers fully as it is unable to teach racing dives at Kingfisher Pool.
Finally the Club is unable to host galas due to the inadequate facilities, preferring to take
part in galas organised in, for example, Walton on Thames.
In addition to Kingston Royals, other aquatic activities include Kingston Ladies Synchro,
men’s water polo, two triathlon clubs, disability swimming club and two Scuba diving
clubs.
Table 5.6: Kingston aquatic clubs programme of activities
Sport
Synchronised swimming

Club
Kingston Ladies
Synchronised swimming

Water Polo

Kingston Royals Water
Polo
Kingfisher Triathalon Club

Triathlon
Triathlon Club

Straggtri (Stragglers
Running Club)

Swimming

Spartan Disability
Swimming
Aquanaut Scuba and
Snorkeling Centre
Kingston & Elmbridge
Diving Club

Scuba
Diving
Snorkeling
Scuba Diving

&

Club Information
49 swimmers aged 7yrs – 30yr
Sessions take place at New Malden and
Lady Helenor Holls School
Train at Malden Centre
Swim at Kingfisher centre twice per
week,
Straggtri Tri club is developed within the
existing Stragglers running club. It trains
at Kingfisher Leisure Centre but travels
to Shepperton (open water) outside of
the Borough in the summer months.
Trains at Malden Centre one session per
week.
Train at Malden Centre twice per week
Book instruction lessons at the Malden
Centre

Kingston Royals Swimming Club is keen to indicate that needs more water space per se
but also at times when it suits swimmers. It is unable to host galas due to the inadequacy
of facilities and would be keen to do so in the future, if the opportunity arises.
Participation as measured by the Active People Survey, suggests that swimming has
been in decline nationally over the past 12 months. Consultation with pool operators,
however, shows that swimming pool throughput is growing especially with regard to, for

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

71

A97

Annex 3
example, children’s swimming lessons. This detail is not considered by the APS survey
process. Table 5.7 identifies audiences which are likely to take up swimming if quality and
quantity of appropriate facilities are available.
Table 5.7: Market segmentation for swimming and likely target audiences in RBKT
Swimming
15.9% (20,115) of people currently go swimming and a further 14.4% (18,119) indicate that
they would like to, giving an overall total of 30.3% (38,235)
25.3% of Alison’s go swimming, which is the largest proportion of any group that go
swimming, closely followed by the Chloe segment at 24.1%
The groups with the largest of the local population group going swimming are the Chloe’s
(15.3%) and Tim’s (14.5%).
The groups with the most people who would like to swim are Chloe (14.0%) and Alison
(13.0%).
The main group to target, for additional swimming due to size and interest is, therefore Chloe

Swimming lessons
The information within this section has been supplied by Places for People Leisure and is
based on active membership within the past three months. Swimming lessons are
reportedly popular within the programming of the centre. It should be noted that the
Kingston Royals Swimming Club also provide opportunities for learn to swim (which is not
recorded below).
Figure 5.5: Kingfisher Leisure Centre swimming lessons over the last 3 month

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

72

A98

Annex 3
Table 5.5: Age and gender of swimming lessons at Kingfisher Leisure Centre
Age Group

Female

Male

Total

0-15

510

99.6%

563

96.4%

1,073

97.9%

16-24

1

0.2%

2

0.3%

3

0.3%

25-34

0

0.0%

4

0.7%

4

0.4%

35-44

1

0.2%

6

1.0%

7

0.6%

45-54

0

0.0%

3

0.5%

3

0.3%

55+

Total

0

0.0%

6

1.0%

6

0.5%

512

100.0%

584

100.0%

1,096

100.0%

Figure 5.5 indicates that the vast majority of people attending swimming lessons are
resident in the Borough with the most populated areas providing higher numbers of
swimmers.
Table 5.5 also indicates slightly more boys than girls are in the Learn to Swim programme
(53.3%:46.7%) and that the adult learn to swim market appears a very small
(approximately 2%) part of the overall swimming development.
Figure 5.6: Kingfisher Leisure Centre – Swimming lessons IMD 2015

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

73

A99

Annex 3
The data also indicates that just over three fifths (61.8%) of swimming lesson attendees
live within one mile of Kingfisher Leisure Centre, with over nine in ten (92.7%) living in the
Borough.
Figures 5.6 and 5.7, overleaf, indicate that the percentage of swimming lesson
participants (who are resident in the most deprived areas of the Borough) is
commensurate with the percentage of population. Likewise, there is a higher number of
people taking part from areas of least deprivation, which is not unsurprising given that
there are more people identified as living in these areas.

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

74

A100

Annex 3
Figure 5.7: Kingfisher Leisure Centre – Swimming lessons IMD 2015

5.4 Supply and demand analysis
Sport England’s FPM indicates that:
Whilst most residents of Kingston upon Thames who wish to swim are able to do so,
compared to the London average, a significant proportion of them are reliant on
accessing provision in surrounding authorities. This is likely to be due to the age,
condition and number of public swimming pools in the Borough. The key challenge for the
Borough in the near future is considered to be maintaining the attractiveness of the public
swimming pools given that both pools are c. 30 years old.
5.5 Sport England’s Facilities Calculator (SFC)
This was created to assist local planning authorities to quantify how much additional
demand for the key community sports facilities, is generated by populations of new
growth, development and regeneration areas. While it can be used to estimate facility
needs for whole area populations it should not be used for strategic gap analysis as it has
no spatial dimension. The SFC does not take account of:
❏ Facility location compared to demand.

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

75

A101

Annex 3
❏
❏
❏
❏

Capacity and availability of facilities – opening hours.
Cross boundary movement of demand.
Travel networks and topography.
Attractiveness of facilities.

Table 5.6: SFC applied to (ONS estimated) population increase in RBKT up to 2041

GLA data projection
Population increase
Estimated additional lane
requirement

Population 2014
(mid-year
estimate)
168,903

Population
estimate 2027

Population
estimate 2041

187,276

201,607

-

18,273

14,331

-

3.84 lanes
0.97 pools

3 lanes
0.74 pools

These calculations assume that the current swimming stock remains accessible for
community use and the quality remains the same. It appears that the projected increase
population will add to the demand for pool space in RBKT.
5.6 Summary of key facts
In summary, the above consultation and analysis would indicate that RBKT is in the
following position with regards to its swimming pool provision:
❏ This assessment identifies two community accessible swimming sites, which differs from Sport
England’s FPM as this identifies that Virgin Active and David Lloyd pools are accessible.

❏ It is recognised that these sites may serve some sections of the community but their restricted
access due to cost and/or membership fees does not make them community accessible for the
purposes of this study.

❏ The FPM identifies that the supply of water space at peak times, in the Borough, is significantly
below the average supply of water space for a London borough.

❏ The amount of water space per 1,000 residents is c. 7.4m2 . The average for London is c. 10.9
m2

❏ The assessment and consultation based analysis also suggests a need for more community
accessible water space due to current population activity levels. This demand on water space is
likely to increase as the Borough population increases.

❏ The two main facilities; Kingfisher Leisure Centre and the Malden Centre both have teaching
pool with Kingfisher also having leisure water. They both face capacity issues when all sectors of
the community compete for water space at peak demand times.

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

76

A102

Annex 3
❏ Kingfisher Leisure Centre and Kingston Royals Swimming Club both offer swimming lessons
and some water classes, but extension of this is limited due to current demands from a whole
range of groups and clubs.

❏ Catchment analysis indicates that under half of RBKT’s population (44.7%) resides within one
mile of an accessible swimming pool. The percentage of residents without access to a car is
reportedly 23.7% of the population. It is unclear where the overlap occurs but quite clearly some
residents of RBKT do not have access to a swimming pool.

❏ There is a range of swimming pools within 2 miles of the local authority boundary. Their
accessibility is not known but it is highly likely that many residents with access to a car will use
these facilities due to the high levels of use at peak times of the pools in RBKT.

❏ Kingston Royal Swimming Club is a thriving club with ambitions to improve. It relies on many
volunteers and regularly produces good quality swimmers. It loses several good swimmers every
year, mainly due to the swimming timetable it can offer (a lot of early mornings and later
evenings).

❏ The Club has a waiting list of over 300 swimmers but is unable to grow any more at its current
facilities.

❏ There is a good range of other aquatic sports offered in the Borough including sub aqua,
synchronised swimming, water polo, triathlon and disability swimming. Neither of the pools offer
diving due to the lack of facilities (this approximates to the equivalent of an 8 lane 25m pool and
learner pool).

❏

The ASA identifies a need for diving facilities in the area and is particularly keen to work with
RBKT should it wish to pursue diving as an aquatic option.

❏ Anticipated growth in the local population will increase the pressure on current swimming
provision. Should the population rise in line with GLA projections the level of under-provision will
rise by c. four lanes by 2027 and a further three lanes by 2041.

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

77

A103

Annex 3
SECTION 6: HEALTH AND FITNESS SUITES
Health and fitness facilities are normally defined and assessed using a base scale of a
minimum of 20 stations. A station is a piece of static fitness equipment and larger health
and fitness centres with more stations are generally able to make a more attractive offer
to both members and casual users. They can provide a valuable way to assist people of
all ages, ethnicities and abilities to introduce physical exercise into their daily lives with
the obvious concomitant benefits to health, fitness and wellbeing.
The current state of the UK fitness industry is complex with a variety of providers including
the private sector (ranging from low cost operators to the high end market), trusts, schools
and local authority operators. Within the UK private fitness market has continued to grow
steadily over the last 12 months with an estimated increase of 6% in the number of
members. Further, all parts of the country have seen an increase in the number of clubs,
members and total market value but only four regions have seen an increase in average
membership fees over the last 12 months.
According to State of the UK Fitness Industry Report (2015) there are 319 low cost clubs
within the private sector in England. This represents a 24% (62 clubs) increase over the
last 12 months. Their membership has passed the one million mark for the first time (41%
increase) and the total market value has increased by 43% to under just £300 million. The
low cost sector continues to be the fastest growing segment of the private health and
fitness market.
There are now 25 private low cost chains across the UK with Pure Gym the market
leaders for the third year in a row with 92 clubs, having opened 27 in the last 12 months.
Due to commercial sensitivities private and commercial health and fitness suites are not
usually assessed. It is generally acknowledged that they provide good or above average
quality facilities.
6.1: Supply
Quantity
Research undertaken for the assessment report identifies 18 health and fitness suites in
Kingston with 20 stations or more. This equates to 1,139 fitness stations.
Figure 6.1 overleaf illustrates that health and fitness facilities are to be found mainly in the
North West and East of the Borough (servicing main population areas) with Chessington
Sports and Tolworth Recreation centres offering the most southerly options in the
Borough.

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

78

A104

Annex 3
It should be noted that fitness facilities containing fewer than 20 stations can be available
to the public and may accommodate some localised demand. For the purpose of this
report, however, they are discounted because of their scale.

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

79

A105

Annex 3
Figure 6.1: All health and fitness stations in Kingston (20+ Stations)

Table 6.1: All health and fitness stations in Kingston (20+ Stations)
Map
ID

Site

Stations

Community Use

9

Chessington Sports Centre

30

Yes

18

David Lloyd Club (Kingston)

140

No

22

Fitness4Less (New Malden)

73

Yes

23

Fulham Football Club Training Ground

30

No

29

Kingfisher Leisure Centre (Kingston)

75

Yes

33

Kingsmeadow Fitness & Athletic Centre

25

Yes

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

80

A106

Annex 3
40

Malden Centre

60

Yes

47

More Energy Fitness Centre

65

Yes

48

New Malden Tennis/Squash & Badminton Club

29

No

49

Richard Challoner School

25

Yes

57

Surbiton Racket & Fitness Club

41

No

60

The Arena Health And Fitness

56

No

63

The Gym (London Kingston)

144

Yes

66

The River Club

104

No

73

Tolworth Recreation Centre

65

Yes

75

Virgin Active Club (Kingston Richmond Rd)

100

No

76

YMCA (Hawker Centre)

36

Yes

77

YMCA (London South West)

41

Yes

Total

1,139

Quality
Site assessments
Kingston has 11 health and fitness suites identified as being available to the community
offering 634 stations. Access was gained to eight in order to undertake non-technical
quality assessments. No facilities were rated as poor although Kingsmeadow Fitness and
Athletics, Kingfisher Leisure and the Malden Centre were all identified as below average.
Table 6.2: Community accessible health and fitness suites (c.20+ stations) in Kingston
with a quality rating
Map ID

Site

Stations

Condition

9

Chessington Sports Centre

30

Above average

22

Fitness4Less (New Malden)

73

Not assessed

29

Kingfisher Leisure Centre (Kingston)

75

Below average

33

Kingsmeadow Fitness & Athletic Centre

25

Below average

40

Malden Centre

60

Below average

47

More Energy Fitness Centre

65

Not assessed

49

Richard Challoner School

25

Above average

63

The Gym (London Kingston)

144

Not assessed

73

Tolworth Recreation Centre

65

Above average

76

YMCA (Hawker Centre)

36

Above average

77

YMCA (London South West)

41

Above average

Total

639

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

81

A107

Annex 3
Table 6.3 Quality rating of health and fitness suites in Kingston upon Thames
Quality rating of assessed health and fitness suites
Good
0

Above
average
5

Below
average
3

Poor

Not assessed

0

3

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

82

A108

Annex 3
Accessibility and availability
The Sport England classification of access type defines registered membership use
facilities as being publicly accessible. For health and fitness suites, this generally means a
monthly membership fee which can vary considerably.
A number of sites restrict access to staff and students only, such as Kingston College and
Fulham Football Training Ground. Other facilities, such as New Malden Tennis/Squash &
Badminton Club and Surbiton Racket & Fitness Club do not have a contract obligation to,
for example, offer exercise referral nor do they actively target hard to reach groups in the
Borough. It is acknowledged that even some of the memberships which are considered
expensive offer access to different market segments, suggesting that the may ease
pressure on the more accessible facilities.
Figure 6.2: Community accessible health and fitness suites with 20 minute walk time
radial catchment

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

83

A109

Annex 3
All residents are within a 10 minute drive time of health and fitness facilities in Kingston.
Further, there are 38 more health and fitness facilities within a 2 mile drive of the local
authority border. Further details can be found in Appendix 3.
6.2: Demand
Health and fitness via exercising in a gym or class environment is a highly popular form of
exercise in Kingston upon Thames, appealing to men and women across a range of age
groups. Sport England APS 9 identifies 12.7% of people currently participating in gym and
4.7% in keep fit classes in Kingston upon Thames. This is in line with UK penetration
rates of 12% (used in the model below).
To identify the adequacy of provision quantity a demand calculation based upon the
assumption that ‘UK penetration rates’ will increase slightly in the future is applied.
Population increases are also factored in to enable a calculation of whether current supply
will meet future demand.
Table 6.4: UK penetration rates for health and fitness suites in Kingston upon Thames
(GLA data)
Current
(2014)
168,903

Future (2027)

Future (2041)

187,276

201,607

12%

13%

14%

Number of potential members

20,270

24,345

28,225

Number of visits per week (1.75/member)

35,469

42,605

49,395

% of visits in peak time

65

65

65

No. of visits in peak time (equated to no. of
stations required i.e. no. of visits/39
weeks*65%)

591

710

823

Adult population
UK penetration rate

The model identifies 1.75 visits per week by members and 65% usage during 39 weeks of the year. (All figures rounded
up/down)

According to UK penetration rates there is a current need for 591 stations across Kingston
upon Thames. This is expected to grow to 710 by 2027 and to 823 by 2041. It is also
necessary to factor in comfort and accessibility at peak periods, in particular. The
requirement, therefore could be up to double the numbers found in the model.
When comparing the number of community accessible stations currently available (634)
the market appears to have capacity to service the adult population given the model
predicts a requirement for 591 stations. As mentioned above, this demand can be double

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

84

A110

Annex 3
that of the model used, which again is predicted to be catered for when considering all
fitness stations in the Borough (1,139).
It is not uncommon for the private sector to identify niche markets and fill them with a
range of health and fitness stations which can appear to look as though the market is
congested. The key issue is that while some of these may be budget operators it does not
necessarily make them accessible to harder to reach groups and people from areas of
(relative) disadvantage (as cost is only one factor which may hinder usage).

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

85

A111

Annex 3
6.3: Supply and demand analysis
Health and fitness facilities are seen as an important facet of leisure provision and have
been a very successful addition to sports centres over the past three decades. Income
derived from them helps to offset the cost/underpin the viability of other aspects of leisure
provision, especially swimming.
Kingston upon Thames has a total of 1,139 fitness stations across 18 sites, of which 639
are considered to be housed at facilities accessible to the whole community. The
challenge remains as to whether these facilities will provide opportunity for those in the
most disadvantaged areas and contribute to improving health and well-being across the
Borough
6.4 Summary of key facts and issues
❏ There are 18 health and fitness suites identified in Kingston upon Thames which have 20 or
more stations.

❏ The choice is good ranging from commercial operators covering the full range of spa, health
and beauty to low cost operators such as the two YMCA sites located in the Borough.

❏ Three are not available for community use, two are part of a wider health spa experience.
❏ According to Sport England’s definition 11 venues are, thus, accessible to the wider public
providing 639 stations.

❏ The more densely populated areas of Kingston upon Thames Heath appear to be well catered
for.

❏ Leaving aside the commercial facilities, three of the sites are considered below average with
five identified as above average. Places for People operate the three facilities considered
below average.

❏ The disparate nature of management of health and fitness facilities makes it difficult to
coordinate the sport and physical activity offer they make. It is nonetheless important that the
local authority continues to ensure that its own venues (and preferably some of the commercial
offer) is accessible to relatively disadvantaged and the more inactive/sedentary groups in the
Borough.

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

86

A112

Annex 3
SECTION 7: MEMBERSHIP ANALYSIS
In order to determine the reach and significance of specific facilities we have been
provided with access to the raw data on users at Kingfisher Leisure Centre. This data
enables us to identify the home location of all registered users over a three month period.
This usage not only includes health and fitness members, but also other activities within
the Leisure Centre but excludes swimming lessons and junior usage at the facility. It
includes all users that have activated their membership card over the analysis period.
Leisure Centre’s membership data
Figure 7.1: Kingfisher Leisure Centre – Live members on population density MYE 2014

Table 7.1: Kingfisher Leisure Centre- Live membership data
Age
Group

Female

Male

Total

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

87

A113

Annex 3
0-15

26

2.5%

33

3.5%

59

3.0%

16-24

319

30.8%

239

25.3%

558

28.2%

25-34

251

24.2%

257

27.2%

508

25.6%

35-44

218

21.0%

189

20.0%

407

20.5%

45-54

140

13.5%

143

15.1%

283

14.3%

55+

82

7.9%

84

8.9%

166

8.4%

1,036

100.0%

945

100.0%

1,981

100.0%

Total

The data indicates that there are slightly more female (52.2%) than male members
(47.8%). The age groups with the highest memberships are 16-24 years for females and
25-34 year olds for males. There is a significant fall in membership in the older age
groups with c. 8% of membership being made up of over 55’s, which currently makes up
22% (37,675) of the population. This is a challenging statistic given the projected
increase in this age group.
The data also indicates that nearly three fifths (58.6%) of members live within 1 mile of
Kingfisher Leisure Centre, whilst four in five (82.6%) are resident within the Borough.
Figure 7.2: Kingfisher Leisure Centre membership set against IMD data

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

88

A114

Annex 3
Table 7.2: Kingfisher Leisure Centre membership set against IMD
Indices of
Multiple
Deprivation 2015
10% bands
00 - 10%

Kingston upon Thames

Live members

Population in band
(mid-2012)

% Population in
band

Count

% of
members

0

0.0%

0

0.0%

10 - 20%

1,880

1.1%

31

1.9%

20 - 30%

3,425

2.1%

33

2.0%

30 - 40%

7,004

4.3%

201

12.3%

40 - 50%

5,504

3.4%

6

0.4%

50 - 60%

24,245

14.8%

322

19.7%

60 - 70%

26,599

16.2%

449

27.4%

70 - 80%

33,016

20.1%

120

7.3%

80 - 90%

35,821

21.9%

314

19.2%

90 - 100%

26,412

16.1%

162

9.9%

Total

163,906

100.0%

1,638

100.0%

This data indicates high levels of membership amongst residents who live in the more
affluent (least deprived) areas of RBKT. It should be noted that only 64 people (3.9%) of
the total members are residents in areas of higher deprivation (using the lowest 30%
percentile). This is out of a total of 5,305, who are living in these areas. Whilst this does
not differ significantly from the percentage of the population (3.3%) within this
demographic, evidence suggests that targeted work on hard to reach groups can have
significant health benefits.

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

89

A115

Annex 3

Summary of membership data
The above data indicates that Kingfisher Leisure Centre attracts the majority of its
members from within the Borough, thereby impacting positively on the health and
well-being of residents. The number of residents who are considered to live in areas of
higher disadvantage are, however, small, which may well reduce the potential of the
facilities to drive the health and well-being agenda further. There is also a significant fall
off of users as they get older. Given the projected increases in the age of the population,
this is an area which needs further investigation.

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

90

A116

Annex 3
PART 8: INDOOR BOWLS
8.1 Introduction
The three forms of bowls that can be played indoors that require a different venue are flat
green, crown green and carpet mat (short and long mat)
Indoor flat green bowls requires a standard bowling green; a flat area 34-40 metres long
divided into playing areas called rinks. The number of these varies, depending on the
width of the green.
Crown green bowls requires a standard crown green, artificial grass (carpeted) area of
approximately 38m square which is crowned i.e. higher in the centre than round the
perimeter. Indoor crown greens are relatively rare – substantially less common than those
provided for flat green bowls.
Carpet mat bowls is played on a rectangular carpet (45 x 6 feet) that is rolled out. It can
be accommodated in any indoor space large enough to accommodate the mats which
come in different lengths. Carpet mat bowls tends to be played at a recreational level
whereas indoor flat and crown green bowls tend to be more competitive and organised
around inter-club competitions and leagues.
An indoor bowling centre typically comprises a single flat green with a number of rinks
and ancillary accommodation such as changing rooms, lounge/bar, viewing area, kitchen,
office/meeting rooms and stores plus designated car parking. The size of ancillary
accommodation varies according to the number of rinks available.
A successful indoor bowls centre requires a combination of the right location, design, and
4
nancial and general management. Sport England guidelines on catchment for indoor
bowls centres are set out to be interpreted in the light of local circumstances:
Assume the majority of users will live locally and not travel more than 20 minutes.
Assume 90% of users will travel by car, with the remainder by foot.
As a guide, demand is calculated as one rink per 14,000-17,000 of total population.
A six-rink green, therefore, is required for a population of 85,000-100,000. This will
be dependent upon the population prole of the area.
❏ The number of rinks required can be related to the estimated number of members,
assume 80-100 members per rink.
❏
❏
❏
❏

The English Bowls Association (EIBA) is the NGB for bowls. Its stated objectives are:

4

Sport England Design Guidance Note Indoor Bowls 2005

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

91

A117

Annex 3
❏ A growth in participation across the adult population in local communities. Targeted
work to increase female participation.
❏ A growth in participation in the 14-25 age range, plus working with primary schools
(Year 3 & 4 – age 7 to 9).
❏ The provision of an excellent sporting experience for new and existing participants.
❏ A growth in indoor bowls participation by people who have disabilities.

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

92

A118

Annex 3
8.2 Supply
Quantity and accessibility
There is one indoor flat green bowling facility in RBKT, located in Chessington plus five
further facilities within 10 minute drive time of the local authority boundary. All Borough
residents thus reside within 20 minute drive time of an indoor bowls facility.
Figure 8.1: Indoor bowls facitlities within 20 minutes drive time of RBKT

Table 8.2: Indoor Bowls within 10-15 Minutes of Kingston
Map
Ref

Site Name

Rinks

Authority

Drive Time

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

93

A119

Annex 3
6

Kingston upon Thames

C1

King George Field Indoor Bowls
Club
Old Coulsdon Bowls Club Ltd

3

Croydon

15-20 mins

C2

Croydon Bowling Club Ltd

6

Croydon

15-20 mins

E1

Elmbridge Xcel Leisure Complex

4

Elmbridge

10-15 mins

EE1

Rainbow Leisure Centre

1

Epsom and Ewell

G1

Wey Valley Indoor Bowls Club

6

Guildford

10-15 mins

H1

Hounslow Indoor Bowls Club

4

Hounslow

15-20 mins

L1

Brixton Recreation Centre

6

Lambeth

15-20 mins

M1

Leatherhead Leisure Centre

4

Mole Valley

0-10 mins

R1

Egham Indoor Bowls Club

6

Runnymede

15-20 mins

RB1

Donyngs Indoor Bowls Club

6

Reigate & Banstead

15-20 mins

RT1

Richmond Indoor Bowls Club

6

LB Richmond

0-10 mins

RT2

Cambridge Park Indoor Bowls
Club
Sutton Indoor Bowls Club

4

LB Richmond

0-10 mins

6

Sutton

0-10 mins

1

S1

0-10 mins

8.3 Demand
There is a national and regional decline in demand for bowls as reflected in Figure 8.2.
APS data is not available on a county basis due to the low numbers involved. The data
does, however, help to identify trends in London in comparison to the rest of the country.
Figure 8.2:

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

94

A120

Annex 3

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

95

A121

Annex 3
Table 8.2: APS Comparison of national and regional bowls participation
Area
London
England

APS1
0.5%
1.0%

APS2
0.4%
1.1%

APS3
0.5%
1.0%

APS4
0.4%
0.9%

APS5
0.3%
0.7%

APS6
0.3%
0.7%

APS7
0.3%
0.8%

APS8
0.3%
0.7%

APS9
0.3%
0.6%

Club information
King George Field Indoor Bowls Club offers playing, social and corporate membership
with Men's, Ladies and mixed matches, also leagues, competitions and casual play. The
indoor winter season runs from September to April and facilities are in place for members
to continue to play during the summer months.
Club membership for the 2015/16 season stands at 388 (282 men, 106 ladies & 6 junior
members) plus 41 Social Members. Members can participate in events which range from
friendly and competitive inter-club matches, internal leagues, mixed ballots, to National
competitions. Members may also book rinks for casual play or practice. The facility is
open from 8.30am to 10.00am for the cost of £1.50.
Coaching is available for beginners and inexperienced bowlers at agreed times, by
arrangement.
7.4 Summary of key facts and issues
Despite the increased proportion of older people in the population bowls is experiencing a
national decline in popularity.
It is still a particularly popular sport amongst older people. The older population (65+years) is
expected to increase substantially in Kingston upon Thames up until 2041 thus reinforcing
demand.
King George Field Indoor Bowls Club is thriving although it has capacity for more members.
There are five more indoor bowls facilities within 10 minutes’ drive of the local authority
boundary.
There is a need to continue to market the club in a positive manner to attract new members.
There does not appear to be any unmet demand for indoor bowling in the area.

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

96

A122

Annex 3
PART 9: ATHLETICS
9.1 Introduction
As the NGB for the sport, UK Athletics is responsible for developing and implementing the
rules and regulations athletics, including everything from anti-doping, health and safety,
facilities and welfare, to training and education for coaches and officials and permitting
and licensing. Locally London is governed through England Athletics via a team
consisting of an area manager and coach/club support officers. Clubs compete in leagues
and travel to various venues across the region and country to perform.
9.2: Supply
Kingsmeadow Athletics Centre is the only athletics track in RBKT. It is located in Kingston
itself and is operated by Places for People Leisure on behalf of the local authority. All
bookings for the facilities are managed through the operator which has a pay and play
approach to management. It is an eight lane all-weather floodlit track which is well
maintained. There is an ongoing maintenance programme which will see the track closed
for several months later in 2016.
Figure 9.1: Athletics tracks within 20 minutes’ drive time of Kingsmeadow Athletics Centre

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

97

A123

Annex 3
Table 9.1: Athletics tracks within 20 minutes’ drive time of Kingsmeadow Athletics Centre
Map
Ref
1

Site Name

C1

Woodcote High School

8

Croydon

E1

6

Elmbridge

0-10 Mins

E2

St Andrew's Church of England Primary
School
Stompond Lane Track

6

Elmbridge

10-15 Mins

E3

ACS Cobham International School

6

Elmbridge

0-10 Mins

EE1

Harrier Centre and Athletics Track

6

Epsom and Ewell

0-10 Mins

G1

The Raleigh School

4

Guildford

10-15 Mins

G2

Guildford Spectrum

8

Guildford

10-15 Mins

HF1

Linford Christie Outdoor Sports Centre

8

15-20 Mins

H1

Osterley Sports and Athletics Centre

6

Hammersmith &
Fulham
Hounslow

L1

Black Prince Community Hub

6

Lambeth

15-20 Mins

M1

Wimbledon Park Athletics Track & Gym

6

Merton

10-15 Mins

RB1

Battlebridge Recreation Ground

6

Reigate & Banstead

15-20 Mins

RT1

Barn Elms Playing Fields

6

LB Richmond

0-10 Mins

RT2

St Marys University College

6

LB Richmond

0-10 Mins

R1

St Georges College

8

Runnymede

10-15 Mins

R2

Pyrcroft Grange Primary School

4

Runnymede

15-20 Mins

S1

David Weir Leisure Centre

8

Sutton

10-15 Mins

WA1

Tooting Bec Athletics Track & Gym

8

Wandsworth

10-15 Mins

WA2

Battersea Park Millennium Arena

8

Wandsworth

10-15 Mins

WO
1

Woking Athletics Club (Sheerwater
Track)

6

Woking

15-20 Mins

Kingsmeadow Fitness & Athletic Centre

Lane
s
8

Authority

Drive Time

RBKT
15-20 Mins

10-15 Mins

Figure 9.1 also identifies athletics tracks within 10, 15 and 20 minutes’ drive time of
RBKT, which indicates seven tracks with 10 minutes, six within 15 minutes and a further
six within 20 minutes’ drive time of the local authority boundary. Notionally, Sport England
identifies a drive time of up to 30 minutes is normal for specialist facilities, however, drive
times in London and surrounding area tend to take longer, hence the detail in Figure 9.1.
The adjoining indoor facility was built in 1990; it has poor changing facilities, a health and
fitness suite (which is making best use of the area) and a large café/meeting area. There
are a number of other rooms which are used to store equipment as well as being used as
small meeting areas. The large parking areas outside of the facility is shared with AFC
Wimbledon. It is reported that AFC Wimbledon is selling its facility to Chelsea FC which
will result in it being used for its academy and women’s teams.

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

98

A124

Annex 3
9.3 Demand
Club consultation
Face to face consultation with Kingston Athletics Club and Polytechnic Harriers (KACPH)
(as the largest club based at Kingsmeadow Fitness and Athletics Centre) identifies that it
has an extensive programme and is busy all year round. The Club has over 400
members which has an even ratio of men to women. Membership has, reportedly,
doubled from c.200 in the past three years.
The track is used for a range of activities and events including, for example, Surrey
League meetings, Surrey District County Championships and Open meeting, Surrey
Schools County Championships and up to 50 other athletic events organised more locally
per annum.
KACPH provided postcodes of current club members (2016). These are mapped in Figure
9.2 below.
Figure 9.2: Athletics Tracks within 20 minutes’ drive time with KACPH club members

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

99

A125

Annex 3
The data indicates 438 members, 19 of which have invalid postcodes. The data indicates
that two fifths of membership (41.8%) live within RBKT whilst nearly three fifths (58.2%)
travel into the Borough to use the facility. Figure 9.2 clearly indicates that many members
travel past other existing facilities to train at Kingsmeadow.
It is noted that members of KACPH put forward a proposal to develop the site, including a
large indoor sports hall (to be utilised primarily for indoor athletics) in 2012. This involved
a range of other national governing bodies of sport including fencing, archery, volleyball,
handball and a range of disability sports including wheelchair basketball and rugby,
cricket 4all, adapted cycling and football for mental health. The proposal was unable to
gain sufficient funding to proceed and it is unknown if planning permission was granted.
Consultation with the Club identifies a number of challenges faced including:
❏ Occasional conflict between club members and pay and play members due to lack of
exclusive use of the facility by club members.
❏ The health and fitness suite does not cater for elite or disabled athletes as the
equipment is too generic. This has led to the Club investing in its own free weights,
which is housed in an area which it considers to be too small.
❏ An aspiration to have an indoor facility, which will support elite athletes but also drive
up participation.
❏ The facility is not considered to be accessible for disabled athletes and those athletes
from different faith groups, who require, for example, different changing and shower
areas.
❏ The lack of its own exclusive space (club room) or meeting/learning space.
❏ Weak communication between the Club and Places for People Leisure
The Club summarises the above in indicating that Kingsmeadow Athletics Centre is not
Club friendly.
9.4 Summary
The above consultation and analysis indicate that RBKT is in the following position
Athletics summary
There is one athletics track in RBKT. It is an all-weather synthetic surface and is assessed as
good quality which is generally well maintained
The Council owns and manages the athletics track, via the Leisure Operator Places for People
Leisure.
The track is well used throughout the year bringing in over 50 events per annum, ranging from
schools to county to league events.
The quality of the indoor facility is not commensurate with the quality of the track.

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

100

A126

Annex 3
There appear to be ongoing communication problems between the incumbent athletics club
and the leisure operators.
Membership at the Athletics Club has increased over the past three years with members
travelling large distances to use the facility.
The facility will need a good level of maintenance to ensure that it remains fit for purpose.
Further investigation will be required to understand how the site can be developed to help drive
increases in participation across a range of sports.

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

101

A127

Annex 3
PART 9: OTHER SPORTS
9.1 Martial arts
There are a range of martial arts offered throughout the Borough. These tend to take
place in small halls which are shared with a range of other activities and are not
necessarily fit for purpose. Several clubs have been consulted including:
Next Steps Taekwondo Club: this is typical of that found in Kingston. It offers training
and classes for between 70-100 students. Sessions are offered for beginners,
intermediate and advanced.
Tora Kai Judo Club: this is similar in that it hires a range of facilities across and
outside of the Borough, has over 1,000 students and is constrained in its
development by the facilities it uses.
Khalsa Karate Club: This uses the Hawker YMCA centre, has over 300 students and
offers over five styles of martial arts. It is keen to expand and increase participation
but, again, is constrained by facilities.
9.2 Table tennis
Graham Spicer Table Tennis Club is based in the Graham Spicer Institute, New Malden,
serving Surrey, London and Middlesex areas. It is a Table Tennis England (TTE) Premier
Excellence level table tennis club with Sport England Clubmark accreditation. It has c 110
members with approximately 20 juniors and a ratio of 7:1 men to women. The Club hosts
12 adult and two veteran teams, it is considered a successful and stable club. In addition,
to league matches the venue also hosts county events.
The Graham Spicer Institute is a purpose built table tennis facility. It is used six nights a
week for club training and league matches. The facility is also available throughout the
day for pay and play activities. It is considered a good quality with appropriate changing
facilities. Its major challenge is that it is located on the first floor and is therefore not DDA
compliant. The Club hires the facility from the Graham Spicer Institute and does not
consider security of tenure to be a challenge.
The key challenge facing any small club is ensuring that the facility remains affordable,
accessible and that the club continues to produce volunteers and coaches to continue to
be successful in the future.
9.3 Summary
The Borough of Kingston is well serviced with a range of sports appealing to different age
groups and backgrounds. There is the ability to develop through to national level in a
number of sports but many clubs, particularly martial arts and combat sports are unable to

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

102

A128

Annex 3
grow due to the paucity of appropriate facilities and the ability to attract and retain
volunteers.

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

103

A129

Annex 3
SECTION 10 SWOT ANALYSIS
The following SWOT analysis identifies key issues for discussion;
10.1 Strengths
❏ RBKT recognises the importance of its leisure facility stock to health and well-being and
❏
❏
❏
❏
❏
❏
❏
❏
❏
❏
❏
❏
❏
❏
❏

future planning needs.
There is a productive relationship between RBKT and Places for People, its leisure operator
of four venues.
Places for People operates a range of programmes across the Borough including GP
Referral, Cardio Rehab, Singing for the Brain, Child Obesity and Weight Management
programmes and Fit as a Fiddle, for example.
There are seven sports halls and two swimming pools in the Borough with clear community
access. This is supplemented by opportunities in gymnastics and martial arts (karate,
taekwondo and judo etc.).
The two main accessible swimming facilities are Kingfisher Leisure Centre and the Malden
Centre. They are popular and well used by both the public and a range of aquatic sports.
The Swimming Club hires many early morning slots and is a key user of the facilities.
There are seven community accessible sports halls in the Borough, two of which are six court
halls, which can cater for a variety of activity programmes and different sports.
All the sports venues are located in areas of higher population density.
Nearly three quarters of the resident population have access to a car, which is higher than
the London average, suggesting that residents are relatively mobile.
Very few residents live in areas of higher deprivation. Of the ones that do many are within 20
minute walk time of a community accessible sports hall and swimming pool.
A good range of health and fitness facilities is available in the Borough (from locations
offering 20 to 170 stations) with offers across a range of price levels.
The athletics track is an asset, which draws in athletes from a wide area. There is a strong
club on site.
Programming across the sports halls appears to offer a good breadth of sports/activities with
the programme not dominated by indoor football (with the exception of Tolworth Recreation
Centre)
There is a thriving badminton community which Badminton England believes has the
potential to grow.
There is a wide range of volunteers supporting sport across the Borough. Further, Sport
Kingston is an organised body is prepared to work with and on behalf of sport within the
Borough.
In addition to the indoor bowls facility in the Borough, which is in good condition and is
popular, there are five indoor bowls facilities within a 10 minute drive time of the Borough
boundary.

10.2: Weaknesses

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

104

A130

Annex 3
❏

RBKT does not have sufficient facilities (both sports halls and swimming pools) to meet
current demand.

❏ Places for People Leisure only manages one sports hall within the Borough, which limits its
potential to coordinate and drive sports development initiatives across the Borough.

❏ There are seven community accessible sports halls in the Borough, some of which have
reduced community hours available during peak times, mainly due to educational demands.
There is very little scope to extend hours in these indoor facilities.

❏ Consultation with NGBs and local clubs indicates significantly more demand for more time
❏
❏
❏
❏
❏
❏
❏
❏
❏

and space in the sports halls than currently exists. There is little scope to extend programmes
of activity.
The fabric and plant at Kingfisher Leisure Centre and the Malden Centre are showing their
age and the facilities are considered to be coming to the end of their lifespan.
The layouts of Tolworth Recreation Centre and Kingfisher Leisure Centre do not tend to
support ease of use nor economies of scale.
The rising age profile of the population is likely to lead to increased demand for facilities
during the daytime (when much of the education stock is out of action for the public).
The programming of swimming pools and sports halls in the Borough does not appear to be
‘joined up’ i.e. programmes of use between facilities exist in isolation and are not
complementary across the different operators.
Community use of school facilities varies markedly. Some offer no access with others only
offering facilities to the community during term time (and not during exams). Even if resource
were in place to promote this concept – it may be ‘a tough ask’.
There does not appear to be any significant community use agreements in place at education
sites.
The FPM indicates undersupply (albeit small) of sports halls and swimming space. This will
get more significant as housing and population increases.
The fragmented nature of management arrangements at sports halls means that no single
organisation takes a lead on activity programming or access and operators appear to work
within their own ‘silo’ without overall leadership and direction.
There is a reliance on facilities in other boroughs because of the limited facilities in RBKT.

10.3 Opportunities
❏ This is an opportune time for RBKT to review how it intends to offer facilities in the future, the

❏

communities it wishes to serve and its links with the wider health and wellbeing, obesity and
social care agendas. This must, of course, take account of the increasing financial constraints
within which it has to work. This is specifically relevant given the health challenges faced by
an ageing population.
Future RBK planning policies will be developed to support sport and leisure facility provision
in line with the needs set out in this assessment and the strategy. This will include policies
within the new Local Plan and area based Supplementary Planning Documents.

❏ RBKT in partnership with Places for People Leisure plus health and wellbeing groups has an
opportunity to continue to take a strategic lead and ensure that key decision makers are
brought into the strategic process moving forward.

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

105

A131

Annex 3
❏ The current contract with Places for People Leisure ends in 2021. This gives RBKT time to

❏

❏

❏
❏
❏
❏

❏

fundamentally review how it operates, what it requires from the Contract and how it might
build on its current strengths and improve its operation in the future, specifically by building
facilities which are more efficient to operate.
The time is right to consider how to replace the Kingfisher Leisure Centre and Malden Centre
and in so doing, to increase the volume and flexibility of water space to cater for current and
anticipated shortfalls across the Borough, ensuring harder to reach group also have access
to water.
The opportunity to develop diving as an aquatic sport in the Borough will help address the
ASA identified need for such activity.
Consideration needs to be given to joining up leisure activities with a range of other,
potentially complementary facilities, to ensure economies of scale and cross selling of
support services.
Any investment in major leisure facilities should consider whether there is potential to
combine/include a martial arts/combat sports and/or gymnastics facility due to the high
participation rates in a number of sports across the Borough.
Places for People Leisure should further utilise its expertise to help increase participation in a
range of sports and advocate and co-ordinate activity across the Borough on behalf of RBKT.
RBKT needs to support and develop Sport Kingston to help coordinate sporting activity
across the Borough. Sport Kingston, should continue working with NGBs and voluntary clubs
as well as drawing in education, the University, Kingston College and Public Health, to help
drive increases in participation and help draw in external funding.
Investment in facilities for the specialist combat sports would appear to be likely to enable the
clubs involved to further increase in their particular sports.

10.4: Threats
❏ All four leisure facilities operated by Places for People Leisure will need a significant level of

❏
❏
❏

❏

investment in the near future if they are to remain fit for purpose for 21st Century Kingston.
The level of investment may become untenable as the facilities which are already tired
become more inefficient in their running costs.
The projected increase in number of older people, allied to the increases in the population will
place an increasing strain on the current stock of facilities at specific times - at a time when
there is a need for increasing Council efficiencies and cuts.
The community sport and physical activity offer across the Borough could fragment further
due to the increasing independence of schools (via academies and free schools) and further
private investment in profit making activities (e.g. gyms).
The lack of joined up programming and sports development service, across the Borough,
may lead to duplication of activity and/or gaps in provision of a full sport and leisure offer (this
will require the Public estate to lead the way in developing more cooperation across all
providers, where feasible).
Coordination of investment is required, through either CIL or s.106 to ensure piecemeal
development of facilities does not occur.

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

106

A132

Annex 3
❏ Housing development in RBKT is dependent on a number of larger sites. If for any reason
these are delayed, it may impact negatively on developer contributions to new facilities and
therefore, reduce the capacity of the Council to offer fit for purpose facilities.

10.5: Summary and strategic recommendations
The information below is a very brief summary of the key findings, which is followed by a
number of initial strategic recommendations.
Management of sports halls is diverse with schools, Places for People Leosure and a
Church responsible for different facilities. Community use is variable with Tolworth and
Chessington (both 6-court halls) offering extensive community use. Other sites,
particularly some of the school sites offer less.
There is currently unmet demand for swimming, badminton and a range of other indoor
sports across the Borough. All indicate that they would prefer more time to develop their
sport. Anticipated change in the age profile of the population suggests that facility
programmes and opening times will need to ensure that older people are fully included.
This is difficult given current occupancy levels in some centres and reliance on school
sports facilities to meet the overall demand in the Borough.
RBKT’s relationship with Places for People Leisure is mature and there is a confidence
that both will undertake their functions appropriately. The Contract runs until 2021. The
opportunity exists to consider investing in new leisure stock (particularly water) with a
view to providing facilities which are fit for the 21st Century. Not only is there a
requirement for increased water space but consideration will need to be made as to
where and in what format the water space is offered. It will also be necessary to
undertake a feasibility to understand which other facilities will complement the water offer.
In particular, thought should be given to what the water space will primarily be used for.
This is normally a mixture of:
Learn to swim programmes
Club swimmers
Swimming for fitness
Getting and keeping people active
Women only swimming
Adult only swimming
Children’s fun activities
Cultural specific activities
Other aquatic clubs.

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

107

A133

Annex 3
Consideration then needs to be considered as to the location of any new development
based on a range of factors including population density and attracting harder to reach
groups etc (taking account of RBKT’s ‘Marmot’ principle of proportionate universalism).
Given the different demands placed on water space, consideration should be given to
ensuring as much flexibility as possible (e.g. use of moveable floor). It should also take
account of complementary activities and services (from both a physical activity and
financial perspective) to ensure sustainability and economies of scale from the outset.
The audit highlights the absence of complementary programming and pricing at facilities
in the Borough. It is acknowledged that coordination (even if short term in nature) takes
time and effort and will need to be undertaken by a lead organisation (probably RBKT
itself).
Gymnastics, judo and other martial arts are popular and offer participation through to
performance opportunity in the Borough. Support from Sport Kingston and clarification of
specific needs should help to drive up participation further, leading to demand for a
specific combat sports venue (either separately or as part of a larger development).
The Athletics track is a key facility within the Borough, but investment is required to
ancillary facilities.
Kingston has a thriving indoor bowls facility despite the current regional and national
trends. There are a further five facilities within 20 minutes’ drive-time of the Borough but
this does not take away the importance of the current facility.
Key strategic recommendations therefore include to:
❏ Increase the number of sport and physical activity facilities, including swimming pools
and sports halls, to meet both current and future demands in line with the identified
housing and population growth and the increased ‘grey market’ in the area.
❏ Gradually replace all of the Council’s core leisure facilities taking account of the need
to increase the size and scale of swimming provision and sports hall space.
❏ Ensure that all school sports facilities are made available for community use (through
community use agreements) and that an agreed minimum level of availability is
agreed. This will require the Council to negotiate with some schools to substantially
increase their availability.
❏ Coordinate community access to, and the programming and pricing of, facilities
(including schools) across the Borough within the public estate.
❏ Ensure that new swimming pools are complemented with high quality health and
fitness provision. Not only is ‘working out’ and fitness classes popular, but
membership revenue plays an important role in income generation, which in turn can
make a positive contribution to the business model, potentially eliminating the need

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

108

A134

Annex 3

❏

❏

❏

❏

❏

❏

for revenue subsidy. Consider which other complementary services can be hosted
within any new build (e.g. library, health facility, etc).
Support other developments (via planning, developer contributions and officer
expertise) which may assist in increasing sport and physical activity within the wider
borough community (e.g., martial arts judo and gymnastics).
Ensure that RBKT owned facilities make a progressively greater (and measured)
contribution to reducing health inequalities and are fully accessible from all the
Borough’s communities through targeted initiatives, facilities, programming and
training.
Assist and broker partnerships between schools and stakeholder clubs/groups to
explore the benefits of engaging with 'key-holder groups' as part of a process of
minimising staffing costs associated with increasing access to and limiting the
operation of, use of school sports facilities. It should be noted that this is not a short
term measure but one that needs to take account of competing interests.
Develop Sport Kingston’s remit to take ownership and become more of a strategic
force within the Borough increasing the number and type of organisations which are
affiliated to it, thereby increasing and developing more sport and physical activity
Improve the breadth, depth and quality of performance management data collected
(and shared) and the associated analysis of facility usage to inform future marketing,
promotion, programming and pricing etc.
There is a need to identify ongoing investment to maintain and protect existing sports
facilities and to undertake key elements of refurbishment

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

109

A135

Annex 3
APPENDIX 1: RBKT PROFILE
The following overview briefly summarises key facts about Kingston’s population. Data is
taken from nationally recognised sources such as the Office for National Statistics, GLA,
NOMIS, Sport England and Experian. Wherever possible it represents the most up to
date information available at the time of the report’s preparation. New data is, however,
published regularly, often at different intervals. The data is supported by graphs and
maps.
Population and distribution
5

The total population of the borough is 168,903 . As shown in Figure 1 the population is
densest towards the centre and the north the Authority.
Figure 1: Population density (2014 MYE): Kingston and surrounding districts

5

Source: GLA 2014 Mid Year Estimate

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

110

A136

Annex 3

All the adjoining districts have an appreciable scale of population which also runs up to
the Kingston boundary.

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

111

A137

Annex 3
Age structure and ethnicity
There is relatively little difference in the age structure of Kingston’s population from that of
the region, the main differences being:
Slightly higher proportions of people aged
20-24 (Kingston = 9.0%, London = 7.1%)
Lower proportions of people aged 25-34
(Kingston = 16.2%, London = 19.9%).
Ethnic composition – 73.2% White, 11.3%
Asian and 7.8% Other compared to 87.2%,
6.3% and 2.1% nationally.

Figure 2: Comparative age/gender
pyramid for Kingston and London
Table 1: Ethnic composition – Kingston and United Kingdom (GLA 2014)
Ethnicity

Kingston-upon-Thames

White

122,000

United Kingdom

73.2%

55,448,200

87.2%

Mixed

6,100

3.7%

944,100

1.5%

Asian

18,800

11.3%

4,003,400

6.3%

Black

6,700

4.0%

1,851,200

2.9%

Other

13,100

7.8%

1,366,500

2.1%

Total

166,700

100.0%

63,613,400

100.0%

Projected population
It is anticipated that projected changes in population from 2014 to 2027 – will see an
increase of 18,373 (10.9%) including an increase of 2,720 (8.5%) 0-15 year olds; and an
increase of 4,719 (21.6%) 65+ year olds. From 2014 to  2041 – will see an increase of
32,704 (19.4%) between 2014 and 2041, including a 57.6% rise in the numbers aged 65+
to become around over one in six of the population.
Table 2: Kingston-upon-Thames - GLA projected population (2014 to 2041)
Age
(years
)

Number
2014

Age structure %
2027

2041

2014

2027

Change 2014 – 2041
2041

2014

2027

2041

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

112

A138

Annex 3
0-15
16-24
25-34
35-44
45-54
55-64
65+

Total

32,014

34,734

34,675

19.0%

18.5%

17.2%

22,985

23,810

25,386

13.6%

12.7%

12.6%

27,305

27,464

29,587

16.2%

14.7%

14.7%

26,650

28,738

27,872

15.8%

15.3%

13.8%

22,274

25,600

27,154

13.2%

13.7%

13.5%

15,816

20,353

22,488

9.4%

10.9%

11.2%

21,859

26,578

34,445

12.9%

14.2%

17.1%

168,90
3

187,27
6

201,60
7

100.0
%

100.0
%

100.0
%

100.0
%
100.0
%
100.0
%
100.0
%
100.0
%
100.0
%
100.0
%
100.0
%

108.5
%
103.6
%
100.6
%
107.8
%
114.9
%
128.7
%
121.6
%
110.9
%

108.3
%
110.4
%
108.4
%
104.6
%
121.9
%
142.2
%
157.6
%
119.4
%

Figure 3: Projected population change (2014 -2041)

Deprivation and ill health

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

113

A139

Annex 3
Deprivation – 3.2% of the population fall within the most deprived 30% nationally.
Conversely, however, 58.1% are within the three least deprived groups (nationally this
is 30%).
Health problems - appear to be less widespread throughout Kingston’s communities,
when compared to national averages.
6
The IoD  points towards lower health
deprivation with 1.1% falling in the
most deprived (three worst) cohorts
based on health measures when a
national equivalent would be 30%.
Similar to the overall measure of
deprivation, 86.6% of the population is
in the best three cohorts for health.
The lower incidence of health
deprivation is most easily seen by
comparing the lighter areas in figures 5
and 6.
Adult obesity (16.6%) is below the
national (24.0%) and regional (20.2%)
average.
Child obesity rates (15.9%) are also
below the national (19.1%) and regional (22.6%) rates. Figure 4: Adult and child
obesity rates (2015)
Child rates also increase significantly between reception and Year 6, by which time
around 3 in 10 children (29.9%) are either overweight or obese.
Avoidable ill health cost to the NHS in Kingston (due to physical inactivity) is
estimated to be £2.5m; this is 22.9% and 21.1% below the respective national and
regional averages (per 100,000).
The economic value/benefit of sports participation (as opposed to the avoidable ill
health cost of inactivity) has been calculated by SE to be £70.3m.
Table 3: IMD cohorts – Kingston-upon-Thames
IMD cumulative
norm
Most
deprive
d

6

Multiple deprivation
Populatio
n in band

Percent of
population

Health deprivation
Populatio
n in band

Percent of
population

10.0

0

0.0%

0.0%

0

0.0%

0.0%

20.0

1,880

1.1%

1.1%

0

0.0%

0.0%

30.0

3,425

2.1%

3.2%

1,827

1.1%

1.1%

40.0

7,004

4.3%

7.5%

5,165

3.2%

4.3%

Index of Deprivation 2015 (Department for Communities & Local Government)

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

114

A140

Annex 3

Least
deprive
d

50.0

5,504

3.4%

10.9%

3,623

2.2%

6.5%

60.0

24,245

14.8%

25.7%

6,006

3.7%

10.1%

70.0

26,599

16.2%

41.9%

5,352

3.3%

13.4%

80.0

33,016

20.1%

62.0%

16,774

10.2%

23.6%

90.0

35,821

21.9%

83.9%

43,294

26.4%

50.1%

26,412

16.1%

100.0%

81,865

49.9%

100.0%

100.0

Figure 5: Index of multiple deprivation

Figure 6: IMD Health domain

General socio economic characteristics
Mosaic (2015) segmentation data indicates that over three quarters (78.0%) of Kingston’s
population fall into only four Experian ‘groups’, compared to 34.6% nationally (for the
same groups):
❏ The ‘Domestic Success’ group (30.3%) is 4.9 times the national rate (6.1%) – it is
described as; high-earning families who live affluent lifestyles in upmarket homes
situated in sought after residential neighbourhoods.
❏ The other three are named as:
City Prosperity (work in high status positions. Commanding substantial salaries
they are able to afford expensive urban homes) at 19.7% this is 5.6 times the
national rate.

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

115

A141

Annex 3
Urban Cohesion (settled extended families and older people who live in
multicultural city suburbs) at 14.6% this is 1.9 times the national rate.
Rental Hubs (predominantly young, single people in their 20s and 30s who live in
urban locations) at 13.4% this is 1.6 times the national rate.
Table 4: Mosaic – main population segments in Kingston
Kingston-upon-Thames

Mosaic group description

National %

#

%

1 – Domestic Success

49,512

30.3%

6.1%

2 – City Prosperity

32,280

19.7%

3.5%

3 – Urban Cohesion

23,922

14.6%

7.6%

4 – Rental Hubs

21,955

13.4%

8.4%

5 – Prestige Positions

13,665

8.3%

8.9%

Economic activity and earnings (Source = NOMIS):
Unemployment is below both the national rate and the regional average.
Earnings are 24.5% above national and 11.5% above regional averages.
Table 5: Unemployment and income

Unemployment
Income (median)

Kingston-upon-Thame
s
5.0%

London

England

6.1%

5.2%

£36,499

£32,297

£27,539

The following household income data is ONS based and also reflects housing costs:
7

Total income - as an average across each of Kingston’s 20 MSOAs , household
income ranges from £771 to £1,283. No MSOAs are in the lowest six income
bands nationally and 17 are in the best two groups.
Income after housing costs - the upper and lower figures fall to £495 and £754
respectively. There are now 13 MSOAs in the best group.
Economic impact and value – sport plays a significant role in the economy both
nationally and locally; whether it is via participation, purchasing of sportswear and
sports equipment, gambling, volunteering or attending events. SE’s economic
impact model shows an overall impact of £70.3m (£51.5m participation, £18.8m
non-participation related).
7

Medium (sized) super output areas

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

116

A142

Annex 3
Table 6: Economic value of sport (Nov 2015) – Comparative overview
Measure

England

Kingston-upon-Thames

Participation impacts
Sports & fitness memberships

£4,646.4m

22.8%

£25.4m

36.1%

Education and training

£4,630.3m

22.7%

£15.4m

21.9%

Sports equipment

£1,267.2m

6.2%

£5.8m

8.3%

Sports participation

£1,267.2m

6.2%

£4.5m

6.4%

£84.5m

0.4%

£0.4m

0.6%

£11,895.6m

58.3%

£51.5m

73.3%

TV and satellite broadcasting*

£4,646.4m

22.8%

£1.5m

2.1%

Sports equipment

£1,584.0m

7.7%

£7.2m

10.2%

Spectator sports

£1,161.6m

5.7%

£6.4m

9.1%

Sportswear

£422.4m

2.1%

£1.9m

2.7%

Sports related gaming/betting

£690.0m

3.4%

£1.8m

2.6%

£8,504.4m

41.7%

£18.8m

26.7%

£20,399.9m

100.0%

£70.3m

100.0%

Sportswear

Sub-total
Non participation impacts

Sub-total
Overall total

Note: Totals in local authority based figures may differ slightly due to rounding
* This relates GVA to employment connected to broadcasting as opposed to subscriptions by area.

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

117

A143

Annex 3
Figure 7: Economic impact of sport – Kingston-upon-Thames (Source: Sport England
2015)

Active People Survey
Active People is the largest survey of sport and active recreation in Europe and is in its
ninth year (APS9 October 2014 – 2015). It collects data on the type, duration, frequency
and intensity of adult participation by type of sport, recreation and cultural activity. The
survey also covers volunteering, club membership, tuition as an instructor or coach,
participation in competitive sport and overall satisfaction with local sports provision.
Table 7 shows key indicators from APS 9 for Kingston and compares these to the
corresponding rates for London, England and statistical ‘nearest neighbours’ (based on
socio-economic indicators such as unemployment rates, tax base per head of population,
council tax bands and mortality ratios). Key findings include:
Participation – over four in ten (40.9%) of adults participated in at least 1 x 30 minutes
moderate intensity sport per week. This was above the national (35.8%) and above

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

118

A144

Annex 3
regional averages (38.0%) and also above all but two of its ‘nearest neighbours’ which
ranged from 36.4% to 50.9%.
Sports club membership - under three in ten (28.2%) are members of a sports club,
based on the four weeks prior to the AP survey. This is above both the national
average (21.8%) and the regional rate (22.5%); it is also below all but two of its
‘nearest neighbours’.
Sports tuition - over one in six (17.2%) received sports tuition during the 12 months
prior to the AP survey. This was just above the regional (17.1%) and above national
(15.6%) averages. It is below all but one of its ‘nearest neighbours’.
Competitive sport – over one in five (22.3%) have taken part in organised competitive
sport during the 12 months prior to the AP survey. This is above both the national
(13.3%) and regional (12.6%) averages. It is above all but one of its ‘nearest
neighbours’.
Table 7: Active People Survey for all adults – Kingston-upon-Thames and nearest
neighbours
Nearest neighbours
KPI

National
%

London
%

Kingston
%

Merton
%

Sutton
%

Harrow
%

Richmon
d
%

1x30 Indicator - Participation in 30 minutes moderate intensity sport per week.
2014/1
35.8%
38.0%
40.9%
44.2%
37.3%
5
KPI 2 - At least 1 hour per week volunteering to support sport.*
2014/1
12.7%
10.7%
*
5
KPI 3 - Club membership in the last 4 weeks.

*

2014/1
21.8%
22.5%
28.2%
29.7%
5
KPI 4 - Received tuition / coaching in last 12 months.

36.4%

50.9%

*

*

*

20.7%

24.0%

33.6%

13.4%

24.0%

11.7%

24.6%

2014/1
15.6%
17.1%
17.2%
18.6%
20.6%
5
KPI 5 - Taken part in organised competitive sport in last 12 months.
2014/1
5

13.3%

12.6%

22.3%

18.8%

11.7%

* Data unavailable, the question was not asked, or the sample size was insufficient.
# Nearest neighbours data shown in table 4 is based on CIPFA Nearest Neighbours
2014/15.

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

119

A145

Annex 3
Sporting segmentation (Data source: Market segmentation, Sport England)
Sport England has classified the adult population via a series of 19 market segments
which provide an insight into the sporting behaviours of individuals throughout the
country. The profiles cover a wide range of characteristics, from gender and age to the
sports that people take part in, other interests, the newspapers that they read etc. The
segmentation profile for Kingston indicates ‘Settling Down Males‘ to be the largest
segment of the adult population at 14.9% (18,854) compared to a national average 8.8%.
Knowing which segments are most dominant in the local population is important as it can
help direct provision and programming.
The following data indicates that Tim, Ben and Chloe are the three dominant groups,
representing 35.5% (44,882) of the adult population, compared to 18.5% nationally.
Table 8: Sport England market segmentation – Three main groups in Kingston
Segment, description and its top three sports nationally
Settling Down Males
Tim
Sporty male professionals (aged 26-45), buying a house and settling
down with partner.
Keep fit/gym
Cycling (21%)
Swimming (15%)
(20%)
Competitive Male Urbanites
Ben
Male (aged 18-25) recent graduates, with a ‘work-hard, play-hard’
attitude. Most sporty of 19 segments.
Keep fit/gym
Football (33%)
Cycling (18%)
(24%)
Fitness Class Friends
Chloe
Young (aged 18-25) image-conscious females keeping fit and trim.
Keep fit/gym (28%)

Swimming (24%)

Athletics (14%)

18,854
14.93%
9.53$

Kingston upon
Thames
London

8.83%

England

13,233
10.48%
6.62%

Kingston upon
Thames
London

4.94%

England

12,795
10.13%
6.59%
4.71%

Kingston upon
Thames
London
England

Whilst the needs of smaller segments should not be ignored, it is important for Kingston to
understand which sports are enjoyed by the largest proportion(s) of the population.
Segmentation also enables partners to make tailored interventions, communicate
effectively with target market(s) and better understand participation in the context of life
stage and lifecycles.
The most popular sports
The Active People survey and SE segmentation also makes it possible to identify the top
five sports within Kingston. As with many other areas, swimming and gym sessions are
among the most popular activities and are known to cut across age groups and gender;

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

120

A146

Annex 3
over one in eight adults in the borough go swimming at least once a month (on average).
The next most popular activity is gym sessions; which 12.7% of adults do on a relatively
regular basis.

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

121

A147

Annex 3
Table 9: Most popular sports in Kingston (Source: SE Area Profiles)
Kingston-upon-Thame
s
No. (000s)
Rate

Sport

London

England

No. (000s)

Rate

No. (000s)

Rate

Swimming

17.2

13.0%

666.2

9.9%

4,077.4

9.4%

Gym Session

17.0

12.7%

898.6

4,786.4

Athletics

14.2

10.7%

609.3

13.3
%
9.0%

3,295.2

11.0
%
7.6%

Cycling

13.4

10.0%

467.3

6.9%

3,789.0

8.7%

6.5

4.9%

349.2

5.2%

1,945.2

4.5$

Fitness Class

Active Places (Data source: Active Places Power, Sport England)
The Active Places database contains information on c.60,000 facilities; the artificial grass
pitches, sports halls and swimming pools in Kingston are listed and mapped below.
Table 10: Active places and facilities
Site Ref

Site name

Facilities

1

Chessington Sports Centre

Hall

AGP

2

Chessington World Of Adventures Leisure Club

3

Coombe Boys School

Hall

4

Coombe Girls' School

Hall

5

Coombe Hill Junior School

Pool

6

David Lloyd Club (Kingston)

Pool

7

Fitness4Les ( Malden)

Pool

8

Fulham Football Club Training Ground

AGP

9

Goals Soccer Centre (Tolworth)

AGP

10

Kingfisher Leisure Centre (Kingston)

11

Kings Centre

Hall

12

King's Oak Primary School

Hall

13

Kingsmeadow Fitness & Athletic Centre

14

Kingston Methodist Church

15

Knollmead Primary Academy

16

Malden Centre

Hall

17

Malden Manor Primary School

Hall

Pool

Pool

AGP
Hall
Pool
Pool

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

122

A148

Annex 3
18

Malden Parochial C of E Primary School

Hall

19

Marymount International School

Hall

20

New Malden Tennis / Squash & Badminton Club

Hall

21

Richard Challoner School

Hall

22

Sir Francis Barker Recreation Ground

Hall

23

Southborough High School

Hall

24

St Georges Church Hall

Hall

25

St James Church Hall

Hall

26

St Philip's School

Hall

27

St. Andrews & St. Marks Primary

Hall

28

Surbiton High School

Hall

29

Surbiton Town Sports Club

Hall

30

Territorial Army Hall

Hall

31

The Arena Health and Fitness

Hall

32

The Graham Spicer Institute

Hall

33

The Hollyfield School and Sixth Form Centre

Hall

34

The Holy Cross School

Hall

35

The River Club

36

The Tiffin Girls' School

Hall

37

The United Reformed Church

Hall

38

Tiffin School Sports Centre

Hall

39

Tolworth Junior School

Hall

40

Tolworth Recreation Centre

Hall

41

Virgin Active Club (Kingston Richmond Rd)

AGP

Pool
A
A
A
Pool

Figure 8: Active Places in Kingston-upon-Thames

Many of the
artificial grass
pitches
(AGP), sports
halls and
swimming
pools shown
are either
small and/or

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

123

A149

Annex 3
not available for community access.

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

124

A150

Annex 3
APPENDIX 2: Healthy Weight and Physical Activity Strategy (2013-2016)
RBKT has also produced a healthy weight and physical activity strategy which is
summarised in Table 2.2
Table 2.2: Health objectives with identified
Recommendation

Objective

Improve and enhance surveillance of healthy weight and physical activity levels in Kingston
Continue to collect childhood measurements as part of National Child Measurement
Programme (NCMP).

Improve the number of patients measured and the reporting of BMI measuring for adults
(QOF).
Improve and report on BMI measuring for women at the first contact and/or antenatal booking
appointment.
Develop mechanisms to record physical activity and sport participation, measure impact and
celebrate success.
Develop mechanisms to assess accessibility of public and green spaces for family and
community interaction, physical activity opportunities and sustainable food growing
opportunities (linking with current RBKT strategies).
Audit current working practices of local health and non-health professionals for the purposes
of information sharing and improving knowledge and awareness of local support and services
available to children and adults in Kingston.
Improve and develop partnerships
Set up a Kingston Maternal Obesity Action group.
Work with partners to consolidate and expand the offer for physical activity and sport in
Kingston.
Improve communications
Improve awareness of physical activity, sport and weight management programmes,
campaigns and services across Kingston.
Improve marketing and communication methods to help achieve an uptake in participation.
Develop a locally targeted campaign in line with national initiatives to raise public awareness
of the health risks associated with excess weight and inactivity.
Promoting a healthier weight across the life course (key recommendations for the prevention of
obesity)
Explore Healthier Catering schemes in Kingston businesses including reviewing vending
provision and encouraging healthier options.
Encourage schools to implement the ‘Food for Life Catering Mark award criteria’ (Soil
Association).
Raise awareness amongst food businesses of energy values in food and how to
label/advertise appropriately.

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

125

A151

Annex 3
Ensure new developments and regeneration projects consider ensuring the environment is
conducive to cooking and eating healthily at home.
Promote healthy eating and active play for children 0-5 in Children Centres and child-care
settings.
Continue the promotion and maintenance of breastfeeding and weaning support for new
parents.
All early years (including nurseries) providers to have a healthy food policy and encourage
active play. School age
All schools and colleges to have a food policy.
All schools to provide healthy meals and snack options.
Encourage children at risk of overweight/obesity to become more active.
Increase cooking classes and skills in schools. 4.12 Increase cooking classes and skills for
hard to reach and vulnerable young people (aged 16-25). 4.13 Promote and support healthy
eating in the community.
Reaching a healthier weight across the life course
Set up targeted community weight management programmes for women of child bearing age
16-44 years (pre-conception).
Pilot a post-natal community weight management programme.
Establish and implement an integrated approach to the management of childhood obesity.
Increase dietetic capacity in the management of child obesity.
Continue to run community child weight management programmes. Young People
Establish a weight management service for 16-18 year olds.
Establish and implement an integrated approach to the management of adult obesity. H&WB
Board
Increase accessibility and availability to free community weight management programmes in
Kingston.
Pilot ‘Weigh-2-Go’ in hard to reach and vulnerable groups (including men, people with
physical and/ or learning disabilities, and people with a mental health condition).
Increase dietetic capacity in the management of adult obesity.
Support work to establish a tier 3 MDT specialist weight management service for Kingston
CCG.
Increase participation in physical activity and sport
Work with partners to increase opportunities that attract groups who traditionally participate
less in physical activity and sport.
Strengthen links between partners to reduce ‘drop out’ from physical activity and sport at
certain life stages.
Create opportunities to enable more children and young people to take part in physical activity
and sport.
Increase the number of people moving from no activity to some activity.
Utilise legacy opportunities of the 2012 Olympic & Paralympic Games to inspire participation.
Invest in people and places to promote healthy lifestyles.

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

126

A152

Annex 3
Work with partners to increase accessibility to public and private facilities to meet the needs
of local people. P&C Board
Identify external funding opportunities for capital and revenue projects. P&C Board
Increase provision and promote clearer pathways to provide improved volunteering
opportunities. H&WB Board P&C Board
Increase knowledge and awareness of the roles of both health and non-health professionals
to ensure clear care pathways and knowledge of appropriate links whilst avoiding
duplications.

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

127

A153

Annex 3
APPENDIX 2: RBK HOUSING PROJECTIONS
These tables show expected housing delivery across the borough for the next 15 years.
(Source: RBK Authority Monitoring report (2015)
Opportunity Sites:
LDF
Delivery
Plan
Relevance
01

Address

Capacit
y

Expected
Completio
n

50

2022/23

413

2020/21

319

2019/20

39

2021/22

LDF Allocation (P4)

Clarence Street North

Site Type
LDF Allocation (P1)

04

Eden Quarter South of Clarence
St
Eden Quarter East of Eden St and
Ashdown Road
St James

05

Cattle Market

15

2019/2020

LDF Allocation (P5)

06

Kingfisher Area

15

2020/21

LDF Allocation (P6)

61-71 Richmond Road

78

2018/19

160

2018/19

300

2021/22

LDF Allocation (part of p19) Pre
applications underway
Partially Council owned site- Former
UDP allocation
Former UDP allocation
LDF Delivery Plan site

02
03

10/11

16

Cocks Crescent (not Brycbox
House)
Surbiton Station Car Park

17

Tolworth Tower

400

2018/19

18

Former Government offices, Hook
Rise South

13

2020/21

19

43 Richmond Road

106

2017/18

22

Tolworth Girls School Playing
Fields

300

2019/20

TOTAL

2521

15

LDF Allocation (P2)
LDF Allocation (P3)

Former UDP allocation
LDF Allocation (P20) –
Pre-application discussions
underway
LDF Delivery Site Plan site –
Planning application
submitted(14/10306/OUT)

Other potential Housing Sites:
Ref
HT01

Site Address

Capacity

Expected
Completion

110

2018/19

5-29 Coombe Road, New Malden

Site Type
Pre-application discussion
underway

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

128

A154

Annex 3
HT02

Shell Garage, 71-73 Coombe
Road, New Malden

20

2017/18

Pre-application discussion
underway

HT03

Piper Hall/Tadlow, Piper Road

50

2019/20

Council- owned site

HT04

Oakhill Health Centre, Oakhill Road

50

2018/19

HT05

Charles Sumner House, Hobill Walk

15

2019/20

LDF Delivery Plan Site (P2)
Planning application submitted
(15/16883/FUL)
Council- owned site

HT06

Tolworth Hospital, Red Lion Road

70

2023/24

LDF Delivery Plan Site (P2)

HT07

Unigate Milk Depot, Lower Marsh
Lane/ Villiers Avenue

49

2018/2019

HT08

Kaleidoscope, Cromwell Road

50

2022/23

LDF Delivery Plan Site (P2)
Planning permission granted
(15/16840/FUL)
LDF Delivery Plan Site (P2)

HT09

Hobkirk House, Blagdon Road

58

2023/24

Council- owned site

HT10

Land at Cumberland House

20

2023/24

Council- owned site

HT11

Land at Sheephouse Way

78

2026/27

Council- owned site

HT12

Land at Rear of Dollary Court,
Kingston Road

6

2016/17

HT13

St Georges Court, New Malden

20

2018/19

HT14
HT15
HT16
HT17
HT18

2017/18

Pre-application discussion
underway
Pre-application discussion
underway
Planning application submitted
(15/14657/FUL)

2017/18

Planning application submitted
(15/14657/FUL)

2018/19

Planning application submitted
(15/14657/FUL)

93

New Malden House, Blagdon Road

78

Hotel Antoinette, Beaufort Road

32

Petrol Filling Station, Brighton Road

192

Newent House, Browns Road

2019/20
145

156-161 London Road

2019/20

TOTAL

Pre-application discussion
underway
Pre-application discussion
underway

1,136

Non-conventional Housing sites:
Relevance

Address

Capacity

Expected
Completion

14/16810/FUL

174 Ewell Road

-16

2015/16

Site Type
Under construction (also involves the
net gain of 8 conventional residential
units)

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

129

A155

Annex 3
11/12492/FUL

Kingston Plaza (180 -190
London Road/ 8-11
Station Road)

13/12690/OU
T
14/13010/FUL

Kingsgate Business
Centre
64-80 Cambridge Road

13/12754/FUL

2-4 Old London Road

138

2016/17

210

2016/17

300

2017/18

LDF Delivery Plan Site – Under
construction (8 additional units to
original planning permission granted
under 15/12294/FUL)
LDF Allocation (Part of P19) -Planning
permission granted
Planning permission granted

60

2017/18

Planning permission granted

11

2017/18

89

2017/18

Planning permission granted
Planning permission granted
LDF Allocation (Part of P19) Planning
permission granted
(13/12690/OUT)

15/12344/FUL

Former 36-38, Beaufort
Road
73-77 Penrhyn Road

14/14459/FUL

171-173 Kingston Road

310

2018/19

11

Kingsgate Car Park and
Richmond Road

100

2019/20

13

Hogsmill Valley

300

2019/20

LDF Delivery Plan

08

Kingston Station

200

2024/25

LDF Allocation

TOTAL

1,702

13/12967/FUL

Planning permission granted

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

130

A156

Annex 3
GLA population estimates
The charts below show the estimated population of Kingston upon Thames for 0-19 year
olds, 20-64 and 65 years and over in 2015, and the projected population in 2025 and
2035. Population projections are provided by the Greater London Authority (GLA) and
incorporate development data from the 2013 Strategic Housing Land Availability
Assessment (SHLAA) database to determine populations for 2012 onwards.

Kingsto
n upon
Thames

GLA
populatio
n
projectio
n (SHLAA
Long
Term)
aged 0-19
(2015)

GLA
populatio
n
projectio
n (SHLAA
Long
Term)
aged 0-19
(2025)

GLA
populatio
n
projectio
n (SHLAA
Long
Term)
aged 0-19
(2035)

39,800

43,100

41,800

GLA
populatio
n
projectio
n (SHLAA
Long
Term)
aged
20-64
(2015)

GLA
populatio
n
projectio
n (SHLAA
Long
Term)
aged
20-64
(2025)

GLA
populatio
n
projectio
n (SHLAA
Long
Term)
aged
20-64
(2035)

107,000

113,600

115,300

GLA
populatio
n
projectio
n (SHLAA
Long
Term)
aged 65+
(2015)

GLA
populatio
n
projectio
n (SHLAA
Long
Term)
aged 65+
(2025)

GLA
populatio
n
projectio
n (SHLAA
Long
Term)
aged 65+
(2035)

21,900

24,600

29,100

Health and Social Care
Male life expectancy at birth (Years)
Female life expectancy at birth (Years)
(2011-2013)
(2011-2013)
Kingston upon
Thames
London
England

81

84

79
78

83
82

The table to the left shows the at birth l ife expectancy in Kingston, London and England
for male and females (2011-2013 data). Both men and women live longer than the
London and England averages.
A large amount of data and analysis on health in Kingston can be found on the J oint
Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) pages of this site.
For the year 2013-14, 1,058 adults aged 18-64 and 1,306 aged 65+ used community
based social care services and 61% of users and carers received self directed support.
Kingston admitted 94 adults aged 65+ into permanent care: 36 into residential and 58 into
nursing care. There were also seven permanent admissions in the 18-64 age group: 5
residential and 2 nursing.
In 2013-14 Kingston had an average of 6.2 delayed transfers of care per 100,000.

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

131

A157

Annex 3

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

132

A158

Annex 3
APPENDIX 3: HEALTH AND FITNESS FACILITIES WITHIN 2 MILES OF KINGSTON
LOCAL AUTHORITY BORDER

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

133

A159

Annex 3
Map
ID
R1
R2
R3
R4
R5
R6
R7
R8
R9
R10
W1
W2
W3
W4
W5
W6
M1
M2
M3
M4
M5
M6
M7
M8
S1
S2
S3
EE1
EE2
EE3
EE4
EE5
EE6
M1
E1
E2
E3
E4

Site Name
Anytime Fitness (Twickenham)
Cedars Health & Leisure Club
Curves For Women (Twickenham)
Fitness First Health Club (London Teddington)
Lensbury At Teddington Lock
Nuffield Health (Twickenham)
Richmond Hill Health Club
Richmond Upon Thames College
St Marys University College
Teddington Pools & Fitness Centre
Bank Of England Sports Centre
National Tennis Centre
Roehampton Club
Roehampton Sport And Fitness Centre
Roehampton University
The Bader Gymnasium
All England Lawn Tennis And Croquet Club
David Lloyd Club (Raynes Park)
Morden Park Pools
Nuffield Health (Wimbledon)
The King's Club
The Wimbledon Club
Virgin Active Club (Wimbledon Worple Road)
Wimbledon Racquets Fitness Club
Cheam Leisure Centre
Glenthorne High School
The Sports Village
David Lloyd Club (Cheam)
David Lloyd Club (Epsom)
Pure Gym (Epsom)
Rainbow Leisure Centre
Sports Direct Fitness (Epsom)
The Royal Automobile Club - Cedars Sports
Curves For Women (Leatherhead)
Colets Health & Fitness Club
Hinchley Wood School
Nuffield Health (Surbiton)
Pavilion Sports & Fitness Club

Station
s
30
45
20
77
82
90
68
20
33
46
40
30
50
34
50
24
20
120
36
75
25
28
90
20
63
21
80
135
90
60
200
49
30
20
67
25
80
70

Local Authority
Richmond upon Thames
Richmond upon Thames
Richmond upon Thames
Richmond upon Thames
Richmond upon Thames
Richmond upon Thames
Richmond upon Thames
Richmond upon Thames
Richmond upon Thames
Richmond upon Thames
Wandsworth
Wandsworth
Wandsworth
Wandsworth
Wandsworth
Wandsworth
Merton
Merton
Merton
Merton
Merton
Merton
Merton
Merton
Sutton
Sutton
Sutton
Epsom and Ewell
Epsom and Ewell
Epsom and Ewell
Epsom and Ewell
Epsom and Ewell
Epsom and Ewell
Mole Valley
Elmbridge
Elmbridge
Elmbridge
Elmbridge

Quality, Integrity, Professionalism
1-2 Frecheville Court off Knowsley Street Bury BL9 0UF

T 0161 764 7040 F 0161 764 7490 E mail@kkp.co.uk www.kkp.co.uk

134

Growth Committee

B1

Appendix B

13 October 2016
Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
Report by the Director of Place
Purpose
To adopt the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames. To
note that the Direction of Travel responds to the consultation process and provides a
clear direction and joint statement of intent between the Council and the Greater London
Authority.
Recommendations of the Portfolio Holder for Regeneration
To resolve that 1.
2.

3.

the Committee notes the consultation responses and the consequential
modifications made.
prior to adoption, the Head of Planning and Regeneration, in consultation with the
Portfolio Holder for Regeneration, be given delegated authority to make factual
amendments to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon
Thames.
the Committee agrees to formally adopt the Direction of Travel for the Royal
Borough of Kingston upon Thames subject to the Mayor of London also adopting
it, as set out in Annex 1 (circulated separately).

Key Points
A.
This report seeks the formal adoption of the Direction of Travel for the Royal
Borough of Kingston upon Thames (Annex 1).
B.
The Direction of Travel will also be taken to the Mayor of London on 17 October
2016 to gain formal approval to adopt alongside the Borough.
C.
Once adopted by the Council, the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough upon
Thames will play a key role in the early production of the Local Plan.
D.
Once adopted by the Greater London Authority, it will provide supplementary
planning advice to the London Plan policies by supporting the selective
redevelopment of areas within the borough to provide new homes, jobs and
investment.
E.
The Direction of Travel Consultation Draft was published for consultation from 24th
June 2016 to 29th August 2016 for a period of eight weeks.
F.
The Council engaged in a comprehensive engagement process during this period
which followed best practice. Importantly, it reflected the requirements of the
Council’s draft revised Statement of Community Involvement.
G.
Minor amendments have been made to the document in response to the public
consultation (Annex 1). A highlighted version of amendments to the Brief can be
viewed in Annex 4. A Consultation Statement setting out the Council’s full approach
to consultation, and an analysis of the responses received is attached as Annex 2.
Context
1.
This Direction of Travel has been jointly prepared by the Council’s Strategic
Planning team and officers from the Greater London Authority (GLA) and Transport
for London (TfL). It seeks to take forward activity on the new Local Plan, the
emerging Kingston Opportunity Area as well as the areas of opportunity which have

B2
arisen as part of the potential future delivery of Crossrail 2. The Direction of Travel
therefore reflects the culmination of ideas on all of these projects to date.
2.

Once adopted by the GLA, the Direction of Travel will provide supplementary
planning advice to the current London Plan policies by supporting the selective
redevelopment of areas within the borough to provide new homes, jobs and
investment. It will also be used to inform the designation of the Kingston
Opportunity Area in the draft London Plan, which is expected later in 2017.

3.

As the Direction of Travel has been jointly produced, it will be taken by colleagues
at the GLA to the Mayor of London for adoption on 17 October 2016.

4.

For further detail and background on the Direction of Travel, please refer to the
June Growth Committee Report (9 June 2016) (Background Report).

Consultation
5.
The Direction of Travel Consultation Draft was published for consultation from 24th
June 2016 to 29th August 2016 for a period of eight weeks.
6.

The Council consulted the ‘specific’ consultation bodies identified in the planning
regulations as well as other ‘general consultees’. Approximately 2000 stakeholders
registered on the Strategic Planning consultation database were also consulted by
letter and email.

7.

A press release publicising the consultation was sent to the local press and
published on the Council’s website. The document was made available on the
Council’s website, at reception in the Council offices, at the seven libraries and at all
GP surgeries across the borough. Audio summaries of the document were prepared
and uploaded to CDs for the benefit of the visually-impaired.

8.

The Council undertook a comprehensive programme of eight engagement and drop
in events throughout summer 2016, all of which were advertised through the
Council’s website, social media and the distribution of consultation posters and
leaflets across the borough.

9.

Presentations and meetings were also offered to local groups and the
Neighbourhood Conversation events.

10.

During the public consultation, the Leader of the Council ran a series of Kingston
Conversation events which focussed on Growth and the Direction of Travel. Officers
assisted Communications colleagues throughout these events and attended as
experts in the room to talk about growth and transport plans for the borough.

11.

The public consultation followed best practice whilst being tailored for the specific
requirements of the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon
Thames. Importantly, it reflected the requirements of the Council’s emerging revised
Statement of Community Involvement.

12.

A total of 219 responses were received; 172 consultees responded via the online
portal and a further 47 emailed responses were received from both local residents,
businesses and statutory consultees. A total number of 1,518 comments were
received. All responses were compiled and analysed by the Strategic Planning
team.

B3
13.

A Consultation Statement has been produced which sets out in detail who was
consulted, when and where during the public consultation (Annex 2). The Statement
also sets out a summary of the responses received and, where appropriate,
amendments have been made to the document in response to the consultation.

Consultation Responses
14.
The Council’s Strategic Business team prepared a quantitative analysis of the
online responses received for the document. This is appended to the Consultation
Statement (Annex 2).
15.

The quantitative analysis showed that 87% of all online responses received were
from residents. For the most part, agreement with the statements and questions
used in the analysis far outweighed disagreement.

16.

Generally responses were supportive of protecting heritage and the character of the
borough, as well as the green and open space, and the desire to limit the impact of
pollution. Transport and congestion was an issue as expected, particularly in the
south of the borough.

17.

The concept of development was supported, although many commented that
developers need to have more consideration for affordable housing and a greater
sensitivity in their developments for what keeps the borough unique.

18.

All consultation comments and Council responses are set out in full in Annex 3.

Main Observations and Changes
19.
There were a range of issues raised through the consultation which mainly related
to the proposed growth ambitions. Most concerns related to the scale of growth and
density that is projected and the detrimental impact that could be caused to the
borough’s character and heritage, traffic congestion and local services such as the
increased pressures on healthcare facilities and schools.
20.

Affordable housing was recognised as a key issue that the Direction of Travel didn’t
address as part of meeting the needs of the growing population.

21.

The protection of the Green Belt and Metropolitan Open Land was raised,
particularly in relation to the Hogsmill, Tolworth and Chessington. It is important to
recognise that the Council will review all of our open spaces as a key part of our
evidence base through the Local Plan.

22.

A range of other matters were raised that related directly to the formation of the
Local Plan. These have been acknowledged and noted and will be carried forward
into the Issues and Options stage of preparing the Local Plan.

Document Changes
23.
A number of changes have been made to the Direction of Travel that recognise
both consultation responses and some general updates that were required. A
highlighted version of amendments to the Brief can be viewed in Annex 4. All
changes have now been incorporated and key ones are set out below:
● General formatting and updates includes including making maps and keys
clearer, checking the positioning of layers - i.e. the railway stations, and
updating population statistics.

B4
● Adding Hogsmill as a notable key place to the Kingston places map
● Expanding on the section regarding the Outer London Commission to
emphasise that “these is no one size fits all solution for town centre renewal,
so any intensification of development would take account of the particular
needs and characteristics of a town centre.
● Adding in a sentence about affordable housing, acknowledging its
importance in relation to the needs of the rapidly rising population.
● Including Eden Walk as part of the ‘Story So Far’ as it has recently gained
planning permission within Kingston town centre
● Adding in a number of Environment Agency schemes to the Infrastructure
Improvements map
Sub area maps
● An additional bullet point has been added in each sub area to emphasise
that any growth must be balanced with the unique heritage and character of
the borough
● Kingston - inclusion of a bullet point regarding the potential for enhancing
and improving higher educational facilities.
● Berrylands and Hogsmill - additional bullet point to emphasise that the
Hogsmill valley and its ecology will continue to be protected
Next Steps
24.

All work will commence once the recommendations within the report have been
agreed by the Committee, the decision published and the call in period successfully
completed. Following this, final proof reading and any minor amendments identified
by this Committee; the Direction of Travel Document will be taken forward and
prepared for publication and formal adoption.

25.

When published an adoption statement, consultation statement and a copy of the
final document will be made available on the Council’s website.

26.

Once adopted by both the Council and the GLA, the Direction of Travel for the
Royal Borough upon Thames will be published. This is anticipated to be in early
November 2016. After which time the Direction of Travel will play a key role in the
production of the Local Plan.

Resource Implications
27.
The production of the Direction of Travel is jointly funded by the Strategic Planning
team and the GLA through departmental budgets. It is proposed that there will be a
print run for the final adopted Direction of Travel. Copies will be available to
purchase by the public and third parties with a reasonable charge applied to cover
printing costs. Digital copies will be available for download from the Council’s
website free of charge.
28.

The cost associated with the public consultation forms part of the committed budget
of the Strategic Planning team.

Legal Implications
29.
Legal advice will be secured when necessary on an ongoing basis as part of the
process of developing and formulating the documentation associated with the new
Local Plan and the emerging Opportunity Area.

30.

B5
There is a close relationship and there will be numerous interdependencies
between this document and the new Local Plan, its activities and the emerging
Kingston Opportunity Area. This will also require on-going legal oversight and the
provision of advice as the project progresses to mitigate potential duplication and
conflict.

Risk Assessment
31.
A range of risks can be identified. Those known and of significance at this stage
relate to issues discussed above including how the Direction of Travel and the local
Plan integrate (or conflict) with one another (project resources, relationship/
interdependency to the new London Plan, emerging Local Plan and
community/stakeholder ambition/engagement). Mitigation of these risks is linked to
extensive engagement with local communities and stakeholders, ongoing
discussions with GLA and TfL, legal support, and the production of project
management documentation.
Equalities Impact Assessment
32.
This is not required at this stage. A full assessment will be produced as matters
progress with the production of the new Local Plan.
Road Network Implications
33.
None.
Environmental Implications
34.
None.
Held by author - Hannah Harris
Author of report - Hannah Harris, Lead Officer for Strategic Policy
Hannah.Harris@kingston.gov.uk, ext 5376.
List of reports and supporting information
● Annex 1 - Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
● Annex 2 - Direction of Travel - Consultation Statement
● Annex 3 - Direction of Travel - Responses from the Public Consultation
● Annex 4 - Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames Tracked Changes
List of Background reports/document
● Growth Committee, 9th June 2016, Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of
Kingston upon Thames
● Growth Committee, 17th March 2016, Local Development Scheme: Revised
● Infrastructure, Planning and Contracts Committee, 25th June 2015, The Need for a
New Borough-wide Local Plan and new Local Development Scheme
● Infrastructure, Projects and Contracts Committee, 24th March 2015, The Kingston
Opportunity Area
● Place and Sustainability Committee, 27th March 2014, Consultation on the Further
Alterations to the London Plan

B6

CITY
IN
THE
WEST

direction of travel for
the royal borough of

Kingston
UPON THAMES
OCTOBER 2016

B7

The Royal Borough of Kingston
upon Thames is embarking on a
new borough wide Local Plan and is
working together with the Mayor of
London and Transport for London
on an emerging opportunity area for
Kingston.
This document sets out areas of
opportunity to help realise the
potential of the borough and emerging
possibilities associated with Crossrail
2 to provide new homes, jobs and
investment in the borough.
ii

B8

iii

FOREWORD

B9

Sadiq Khan
Mayor of London
As the new Mayor of London, I want the
support of all Londoners, in order to deliver
my manifesto commitment, partnership
being the foundation for the effective
delivery of housing and infrastructure
that can sustain our city’s growth. I am
therefore delighted to endorse this joint
direction of travel document in my first
weeks as Mayor with Cllr Kevin Davis, the
Leader of Kingston Council.
The pressures on our city are
considerable. In order to meet these aims
we need to deliver growth that is truly
sustainable, that protects the best of
what we have, and improves that which
makes little contribution to the quality of
our lives. By making effective use of all of
our resources, including the land we own
I am confident we will be able to build the
homes we need and importantly deliver
homes that are genuinely affordable to all
Londoners.

iv

TfL’s planned investment in Crossrail 2 will
provide one of the major drivers of growth
throughout London in the coming years.
Kingston is the borough which will benefit
from the highest number of Crossrail 2
stations. In order to make the most of this
opportunity it is important that we have
a plan that clearly sets out how those
benefits will be achieved. As Mayor I want
to ensure that the people of Kingston have
a part in shaping that plan and in securing
the benefits of growth.
This Direction of Travel document is the
start of that journey. I look forward to
working with Kingston Council to secure
the homes and jobs Londoners need so
that we can all share in the continued
economic success of our city.

FOREWORD

B10

Kevin Davis
Leader of Kingston Council
The Royal Borough of Kingston upon
Thames is embracing an exciting future.
We plan to make the most of new
opportunities available to the borough
and respond positively to our growing
population.

We need to deliver long-term strategic
improvements and help secure major
infrastructure projects like Crossrail
2, because only then can we provide
opportunities for our children and future
generations.

New opportunities need to be considered
in the context of the borough and its
residents. This is why the Direction of
Travel document presents an opportunity
to engage with our residents to help shape
the future direction of the borough.

Collaboration with the Greater London
Authority, our neighbouring authorities
and strategic partners will help us achieve
our ambitions for the future of Kingston
and secure the best opportunities for the
residents of today and tomorrow. The
borough is recognised as a key place
where investment can happen, but it needs
to be supported by policies that will sit in
the Mayor’s emerging London Plan and
our own developing Local Plan. All of us
working together can provide the homes
and jobs future generations need.

Growth must happen in the right way, in
the right places. As one of three Royal
London Boroughs, we are rightly proud
of our identity and our heritage. We must
all strive to protect our unique character
whilst meeting the growing needs of our
borough.
Growth can help secure our future.
Developing and enhancing our
infrastructure, building new homes and
providing new jobs, will help the borough
remain a destination of choice. But all
of this can only be provided by working
collaboratively with residents, the Mayor
of London, developers and investors.

This document is owned by all of us and
provides new opportunities to engage with
our residents, our new Mayor of London
and potential partners. I encourage you
to explore our ideas in this Direction of
Travel and share our enthusiasm for the
borough’s future.

v

B11
status of this document
This Direction of Travel for the Royal
Borough of Kingston upon Thames
provides supplementary planning advice
to the London Plan policies to support the
development and intensification1 of areas
within the borough to provide new homes,
jobs and investment.
This document forms part of the work
undertaken by the Mayor and Kingston
Council in identifying and assessing
opportunities for growth in the borough for
the new Local Plan and Opportunity Area
Planning Framework.
Policy 2.6 of the London Plan sets the
Mayor’s vision and strategy for outer
London, committing to “work to realise
the potential of outer London, recognising
the building upon its diversity and varied
strengths by providing locally sensitive
approaches through LDFs and other
development frameworks to enhance and
promote its distinct existing and emerging
strategic and local economic opportunities
and transport requirements”.
Kingston Town Centre is identified in
paragraph A1.4 of the London Plan as an
emerging opportunity area. It states “The
Mayor is working with boroughs and other
partners to identify, assess and realise
the potential for new Opportunity and
Intensification Areas in terms of Policy 2.13
including……the Royal Borough of Kingston
Upon Thames (Kingston Town Centre)”.
Growth in the borough is not however
dependent upon the designation of an
opportunity area. The London Plan (Policy
2.15) seeks to direct development and
1 Intensification is defined as “sustainably increasing density
whilst optimising the development potential of lots of land.”

vi

intensification, including residential to
London’s network of town centres and
other areas of good public transport
accessibility. Policy 2.7 expands upon
this and seeks to work with boroughs to
identify and bring forward capacity in and
around town centres with good public
transport accessibility to accommodate
leisure, retail and civic needs and
especially higher density housing.
Policy 6.4 of the London Plan states
that the Mayor will work with strategic
partners to improve the public transport
system in London, including cross London
and orbital rail links to support future
development and regeneration priority
areas, and increase public transport
capacity by developing Crossrail 2.
Policy 2.16 of the London Plan states
the Mayor will work with boroughs
and other partners to develop and
implement planning frameworks and/or
other appropriate spatial planning and
investment tools that can effect positive
change to realise the potential of strategic
outer London development centres.
The Council has embarked on a new
Local Plan for the borough with an Issues
and Options consultation expected in
November 2016.
Until the new Local Plan is adopted, the
2012 Core Strategy, the 2008 Kingston
Town Centre Area Action Plan and 2012
South London Waste Plan together
with the 2015 London Plan will remain
the statutory development plan for the
borough.

B12
Approach to development
proposals
This Direction of Travel document is a joint
statement of intent by the Royal Borough
of Kingston upon Thames and the Mayor
of London. It clarifies the strategic policy
basis for this work and its alignment with
the London Plan as well as Kingston’s
growth agenda. It seeks to capture,
build-upon and steer aspirations held by
developers and investors both now and
long term.
The purpose of this document is to set
out at an early stage, in the process of
preparing the new Borough Local Plan, the
broad context in which the growth agenda
needs to be planned and delivered. It also
begins the process of engaging with a
wide range of residents, stakeholders,
interest groups and developers on the
future Direction of Travel.
It is intended that the document will:
• Inform developers and landowners
on the broad long term strategy for
future development.
• Encourage engagement at an early
stage with both the Council and the
Mayor of London regarding emerging
development proposals,
• Encourage engagement at an early
stage with the development of a
growth agenda,

• Provide part of the framework of the
Duty to Co-operate between the
Council, the Mayor of London and
adjoining authorities in accordance
with national policy.
To support the growth agenda, the
Royal Borough of Kingston has agreed
a Development Delivery Protocol with
the Greater London Authority to ensure
high quality development is delivered
that supports the shared aspirations for
the borough. Therefore it is essential
that all relevant organisations in the
statutory planning process participate at
the earliest possible stage to maximise
opportunities coming forward and realise
development potential.
London is experiencing tremendous
growth which needs to be accommodated
in a way which benefits existing
communities. The scale of change is
apparent if the growth in homes in 2004 is
compared to that identified in the current
London Plan, from 140,000 to 210,000.
To accommodate this growth in homes,
jobs, schools, health and other social
infrastructure will need to be provided.
To ensure this is done in an effective way
that protects and enhances the places
that people value and cherish, we need to
develop a clear plan.

vii

B13

viii

contents

B14

Foreword from the Mayor of London
Foreword from the Leader of Kingston
Status of this document
Approach to development proposals
Contents
City in the West
City in the West Wider Context
Current planning designations
Kingston places
Growth
Story so far
Infrastructure improvements
Emerging Areas of Opportunity
Kingston town centre
Norbiton, London Road and Cambridge Road Estate
Berrylands and Hogsmill Valley
New Malden
Tolworth
Chessington
Rest of borough
Next steps

Page iv
Page v
Page vi
Page vii
Page ix
Page 10
Page 12
Page 14
Page 16
Page 18
Page 20
Page 22
Page 24
Page 26
Page 28
Page 30
Page 32
Page 34
Page 36
Page 38
Page 40

ix

TOWARDS

277,000 JOBS
2004:
�INC. HAYES, FELTHAM,
BEDFONT LAKES�
5,800 HOMES
35,000 JOBS

2016:
6,500 HOMES
12,000 JOBS

LR

A
ON

TI
NA

SOUTHERN
RAIL ACCESS

HOU

SR

AIL

THE GOLDEN
MILE

2016:
1,580 HOMES
18,000 JOBS

AIL

2016:
3,500 HO
2,000 JO

SE

WHITE CITY
2016:
6,000 HOMES
10,000 JOBS
2004:
1,200 HOMES
11,000 JOBS

DISTRICT LINE

LINE

HAMME

EARLS
WEST

HOUNSLOW

PICCADILLY LINE

2004:
930 HOMES
5,500 JOBS

OS
CR

EALING

SKY

HEATHROW

RN P
OW
ER

KENSA
CANAL

ND

NOR
THE

RG
RO
U

2 TO

N O
VE

2016:
6,000 HOMES
3,000 JOBS

2004:
WILLESDEN
JUNCTION
500 HOMES
13,600 JOBS

DO

EED

GREAT
WESTERN
RAILWAY

HEATHROW
WESTERN
ACCESS

NE

152,000 HOMES

LI

150,000 JOBS

N

28,000 HOMES

E

GREENFORD

WEST DRAYTON

2016:
25,500 HOMES
65,000 JOBS

2004:
400 HOMES
5,000 JOBS

H SP

2016:
2,500 HOMES

OLD OAK &
PARK ROYAL

2016:
11,500 HOMES
11,000 JOBS

POTENTIAL
GROWTH

HAYES

2004:
2,000 HOMES
500 JOBS

O
ND

WEMBLEY

SOUTHALL

READING, SWINDON
AND BRISTOL

2016:
12,500 HOMES
2,000 JOBS

N
LI

LO

2016:
2,800 HOMES
3,000 JOBS

HIG

TOWARDS

COLINDALE
BURNT OAK

N
AI
M

T
ES

HARROW &
WEALDSTONE

W

(2004 LONDON PLAN)

WATFORD,
NORTHAMPTON

T
AS
CO

2004
ESTIMATES

T
ES

POTENTIAL GROWTH
152,000 HOMES
277,000 JOBS
365,000 PEOPLE

W

2004 LONDON PLAN ESTIMATES
28,000 HOMES
150,000 JOBS
67,000 PEOPLE

LUTON &
BEDFORD

TOWARDS

LO
N

CITY IN THE WEST

B15

2016:
7,500 H
9,500 J
RICHMOND

FELTHAM

2016:
3,500 HOMES

FULWELL

WIMBLED

� SOUTH WIMBL
COLLIERS WOO

2016:
1,300 HOM
500 JOBS

KINGSTON

2016:
3,750 HOMES 2
13,000 JOBS 3

SHEPPERTON

NORBITON

BERRYLANDS

SURBITON

This infographic’s potential growth figures are
from the GLA document ‘City in the West’ which
brings all the development opportunities and
infrastructure improvements in west London
together in one document.
2 Developed from Kingston’s current planning projects and development plans
3 Minor Alterations to the London Plan 2016

10

C R O S S R A I L

NEW
MALDEN

MOTS
PARK

D E L T A
TOLWORTH

CHESSINGTON

TOWARDS

EPSOM

CRICKLEWOOD
BRENT CROSS

B16

2016:
10,000 HOMES
20,000 JOBS
2004:
5,000 HOMES
5,000 JOBS

TOTTENHAM
COURT ROAD
ES
AM
TH

2016:
500 HOMES
5,000 JOBS

NK
LI

2004:
200 HOMES
2,000 JOBS

AL
LSIDE

OMES
OBS

www.london.gov.uk/cityintheeast

2016:
1,900 HOMES
25,000 JOBS

EUSTON

2016:
3,800 HOMES
14,100 JOBS

2004:
4,250 HOMES
34,600 JOBS

2004:
200 HOMES
4,000 JOBS

WEST
HAMPSTEAD

CITY IN THE EAST

KINGS CROSS
ST PANCRAS

2016:
800 HOMES
100 JOBS

CENTRAL

LONDON

BLACKFRIARS

PADDINGTON
VICTORIA

WATERLOO

2016:
1,000 HOMES
4,000 JOBS
2004:
200 HOMES
2,000 JOBS

2004:
500 HOMES
15,000 JOBS

CLAPHAM
JUNCTION

O
CR

L

AI

M

SPUR

ED

TR
TRAMLINK EXTENSION

MORDEN

BL

ON

AM

�C

LI

NK

RO
YD

ON

MITCHAM
JUNCTION

CARSHALTON

SUTTON

2016:
5,500 HOMES

STREATHAM

CROYDON

BR
OW

HACKBRIDGE

N

O

TI
SA

I

RO

ET

IM

LIN

EE

NEW CROSS

XT
.

LEWISHAM

2004:
1,500 HOMES
7,600 JOBS

2

LEDON�
OD �

W

LO
O

2016:
20,000 HOMES
25,000 JOBS

DON

MORDEN
ROAD
RAYNES
PARK

ER

N

2016:
7,300 HOMES
7,500 JOBS

LONDON CANCER HUB

PENGE

BE

BECKENHAM

BROMLEY

ELMERS
END

ARENA

LT

TOWARDS

AMPERE
WAY

HAYES

SANDILANDS

SEVENOAKS

WADDON
WALLINGTON

CARSHALTON
BEECHES

CATFORD

BAK
POT ERLOO
ENT
L
IAL INE
EXT
.

R
SS

OLD KENT ROAD

VAUXHALL
NINE ELMS
BATTERSEA

BALHAM

MES

BA
K

NLE

S COURT &
T KENSINGTON

HOMES
JOBS

ELEPHANT & CASTLE

THAMESLINK

ERSMITH

2016:
2,500 HOMES
15,000 JOBS

OVE
RGR
OUN
D

2016:
1,000 HOMES
5,000 JOBS

HIGH SPEED 1
TO EUROPE

LLOYD
PARK
TOWARDS

GATWICK

ADDINGTON
VILLAGE
NEW
ADDINGTON

11

Harrow
Weald
Area: 1

City in the West Wider context
B17

HARROW

HILLINGDON

TOWARDS

OXFORD

HA

M4

0

BUCKINGHAMSHIRE

Hig

hS

J16

M2

5

METR
TOW

pee

d2

UXBRIDGE

A40

METROPOLITAN
TOWN CENTRE

Southall
Area: 87 ha

SLOUGH
Crossrail

Crossrail

TOWARDS

READING

M4

EA

1

J15
Heathrow
Area: 738 ha

H

HEATHROW
AIRPORT

WINDSOR AND
MAIDENHEAD

M
T

16

HOUNSLOW

STAINES
UPON
THAMES

A3

KIN

MET
TO

J12

M3
TOWARDS

BASINGSTOKE

SURREY

A

WOKING

TOWN CENTRE

J10

Opportunity Areas
Green Belt within GLA boundary

12

Green Belt outside GLA boundary

TOWARDS

GUILDFORD

LEATHE

TOWN

TOWARDS

w&
dstone
176 ha

M1

Colindale
Old Oak
Area: 261 ha

LUTON
AIRPORT

REDBRID

LB
BRENT
Old Oak &
Park Royal
Area: 238 ha

ISLINGTON

CAMDEN

Kensal
Canalside
Area: 20 ha

STRATFORD
METROPOLITAN
TOWN CENTRE

HACKNEY

Kings Cross
St Pancras
Area: 53 ha

Euston
Area: 85 ha

TOWER
HAMLETS

Paddington
Area: 38 ha

ALING
EALING

METROPOLITAN
TOWN CENTRE

A4

White City
Area: 107 ha

A4
FLYUNDER

K&C

Earls Court
Area: 37 ha

HOUNSLOW

Waterloo
Area: 78 ha

A13

Old Kent
Road
Area: 113 ha
Elephant
& Castle
Area: 87 ha

Victoria
Area: 51 ha

Bak

H&F

METROPOLITAN
TOWN CENTRE

NEWHAM

CITY &
WEST END

WESTMINSTER

SHEPHERDS
BUSH

ILFO

METROPO
TOWN CE

Crossrail 2

Wembley
Area: 238 ha

WALTHAM
FOREST

LB HARINGEY

Cricklewood
Brent Cross
Area: 323 ha

1
A4

ROPOLITAN
WN CENTRE

CANARY
WHARF

CENTRAL ACTIVITIES ZO
MAJOR TOWN CENTR

erlo

oL

ine

Ext
.

Lewisham

GREEN

SOUTHWARK
RICHMOND
UPON THAMES

WANDSWORTH

Vauxhall
Nine Elms
Battersea
Area: 227 ha

WIMBLEDON

LAMBETH

MAJOR
TOWN CENTRE

LEWISHAM
BROMLEY
METROPOLITAN
TOWN CENTRE

NGSTON

TROPOLITAN
OWN CENTRE

il 2

ra
ss

o
Cr

Beckenham
Junction

MERTON
CROYDON

Bromley
Area: 69 ha

METROPOLITAN
TOWN CENTRE

SUTTON

TOLWORTH
DECK

40

A2

METROPOLITAN
TOWN CENTRE

Hayes

A232
Croydon
Area: 193 ha

KINGSTON
UPON
THAMES

CROYDON

BROMLEY

A23

SUTTON

ERHEAD

N CENTRE

METROPOLITAN
TOWN CENTRE

BARNET

ARROW

A3

WOOD
GREEN

B18

TOWARDS

GATWICK
AIRPORT

0

2.5

5 kms

13

Twickenham

B19

CURRENT PLANNING DESIGNATIONS
Strawberry
Hill
Fulwell
Golf Club

Fulwell
Richmond
Park

Teddington

Hampton
Wick
Bushy
Park

Coombe
Wood
Golf Club

Kingston

Coombe Hill
Golf Club

Norbiton

Raynes
Park

)DLUƮHOG
Rec Ground
Kingston
Cemetery

Hampton
Court

Wimbledon
Common

London Borough
of Richmond
upon Thames

New
Malden

Kingsmeadow

Hogsmill Sewage
Treatment Works

Motspur
Park

Berrylands
Hogsmiill Public
Open Space

Surbiton
Fishponds
Open Space

Thames
Ditton

Elmbridge
Borough

Green Lane
Rec Ground

London Borou
of Merton

King Charles
Rec Ground

Malden
Manor

Worcester
Park

Kingston Uni
Sports Ground

Tolworth

Tolworth
Rec Ground

King George’s
Field

London Boroug
of Sutton

Epsom & Ewell
Borough

Chessington
North

Stoneleigh

&KXUFKƮHOGV
Rec Ground

Sir Francis
Baker Rec
Ground

Chessington
South

Epsom
Common

Mole Valley
District

14

Ewell West

Horton
Country Park

Chessington
World of
Adventures

Epsom

Reigate &
Banstead bor

B20

London Borough

London Borough
of Wandsworth

The Royal Borough of Kingston upon
of Lambeth
Thames has a number of wide ranging
planning designations. Kingston Town
Centre is one of the 13 Metropolitan
Centres across London and is the
borough’s main commercial centre.
It is a sub-regional shopping centre
and is a significant cultural and leisure
destination.

Wimbledon

The borough has a rich heritage and
contains 27 Conservation Areas which
contribute towards its distinctive
character.
There are two Strategic Industrial
Locations (SIL) located in the south
of the borough and seven Locally
Significant Industrial Sites (LSIS)
dispersed across the borough. These
provide a range of business premises
and employment opportunities.

ugh

Over a third of the borough is open
London
space with large areas designated
as Borough
of
Croydon
Green Belt and Metropolitan Open Land.
This is further supplemented by the
presence of a large number of Sites of
Importance for Nature Conservation and
one Site of Special Scientific Interest.

gh

&
rough

Existing planning designations
Metropolitan Town Centre
District Centre
Conservation Area
Employment Land (SIL/LSIS)
Green Belt
Metropolitan Open Land
Site of Importance for Nature Conservation
RB Kingston boundary

North

0

12 mins

24 mins

36 mins

1km

2km

3km

15

Twickenham

Kingston places

B21

Strawberry
Hill
Fulwell
Golf Club

Fulwell
Richmond
Park

Teddington

River
Thames
Hampton
Wick
Bushy
Park

Rose Theatre
Hampton
Court

Coronation
Stone

Thames
Ditton

Market
Place

All Saints
Church
Kingston

Coombe
Wood
Golf Club

Coombe Hill
Golf Club

Kingston University
Campus

Norbiton

Raynes
Park

)DLUƮHOG
Rec Ground
Kingston
Cemetery

London Borough
of Richmond
upon Thames

New
Malden

Kingsmeadow

Hogsmill Sewage
Treatment Works

Motspur
Park

Berrylands
Hogsmiill Public
Open Space

Surbiton

Clarence
Street

Wimbledon
Common

Fishponds
Open Space

Elmbridge
Borough

Green Lane
Rec Ground

London Borou
of Merton

King Charles
Rec Ground

Malden
Manor

Worcester
Park

Kingston Uni
Sports Ground

Tolworth

Tolworth
Rec Ground

King George’s
Field

Surbiton Station

London Boroug
of Sutton

Epsom & Ewell
Borough

Chessington
North

Stoneleigh

&KXUFKƮHOGV
Rec Ground

Hogsmill
Valley

Sir Francis
Baker Rec
Ground

Chessington
South

St Mary’s Church

Epsom
Common

Bunker Hill

16

Ewell West

Horton
Country Park

Chessington
World of
Adventures

Mole Valley
District

Chessington
World of Adventures

Epsom

Monks Cottage

Reigate &
Banstead bor

B22

This map illustrates some of the assets,
of Lambeth
key strengths and characteristics which
make the borough a great place to live,
work and visit. It highlights some of the
borough’s valued features such as its
proud heritage, destination for shopping
and leisure, suburban residential
character as well as its riverside setting
and numerous open spaces.

Kingston Gate,
Richmond Park

Wimbledon

Understanding the role and function
of these assets, key strengths and
characteristics will help identify both
the areas for opportunity and those
areas which require protection and/
or enhancement in the borough. There
are other developments within the
borough which could benefit from
redevelopment.

Park Works
St Agatha’s
Church

Cambridge
Road Estate

ugh

High quality design is, and will continue
to be a key priority for the Council.
London Borough
of Croydon

New Malden
High Street

gh

&
rough

London Borough

London Borough
of Wandsworth

Plough Green

St John the
Baptist Church

Tolworth
Tower

Tolworth Court
Sports Ground
North

0

12 mins

24 mins

36 mins

1km

2km

3km

17

growth

London is a vibrant
and prosperous
world city that
is predicted to
continue to grow.
By 2036 London’s
population is
predicted to
rise to 10.22
million people4
and employment
projections are
expected to rise by
1 million5.

4 London Datastore, 2015 Round Population Projections
5 London Datastore, 2016 GLA Employment Projections

18

B23

In order to ensure this growth does not
have a negative effect on the success
of London as a city and on its existing
communities it is imperative that this
growth is planned for and supported by the
necessary infrastructure.
The Outer London Commission (OLC)
in its report on Town Centres states
“London’s town centres have real potential
from intensification through housing
led, higher density mixed use renewal
and development. Not only will this
intensification help to provide a valuable
source of new housing but will result in
more people being in and around town
centres, increasing footfall and supporting
a greater range of activities which will
ultimately strengthen the vitality and
viability of the centre”.
It is noted that the OLC report also states,
“there is no one size fits all solution for
town centre renewal redevelopments.
So any intensification would have to
take account of the particular needs and
characteristics of the individual town
centre such as heritage and cultural
assets, as well as local character.
The OLC growth option scenario indicates
that Outer London has more potential
than Inner London to accommodate
London’s housing needs. This is due
to the large number of centres and
district centres. Importantly, the OLC
has made recommendations in respect
of maximising density and the role of
new transport infrastructure, including
Crossrail 2, in unlocking new development
opportunities. It also recommends a review
of the Green Belt land.

B24

Kingston is growing
and its population
is predicted to
increase from
173,000 to 200,000
people in 20366 .
Current trend
would project
an employment
increase of 1,000
jobs by 20367.

Since the adoption of the Core Strategy
and Kingston Town Centre Area Action
Plan much has changed. In particular
the 2015 London Plan has increased the
borough’s housing target to 6,434 new
homes over the next 10 years. A new
borough Local Plan is required to show
how it will deliver the growth needs of a
rapidly rising population, including new
affordable homes for all, a diverse range of
employment opportunities and expanded
leisure and community facilities. The new
Local Plan will take a proactive approach
to delivering growth by identifying where
and how the needs of growth will be
achieved. There will be many constraints
on growth and the Local Plan will need to
consider how to best ensure the borough’s
distinctive character is maintained and
the necessary supporting infrastructure is
provided.
The securing of opportunity area status
for Kingston will make a key contribution
to the new borough-wide Local Plan. It
will help facilitate sustainable growth and
increase access to funding opportunities.
Kingston’s current infrastructure requires
investment and significant improvements
if it is to continue to be a destination of
choice. The potential arrival of Crossrail
2, a major piece of new transport
infrastructure, provides an unrivalled
opportunity for the borough and has the
ability to support the growing demands of
the borough’s population by creating new
homes and jobs.

6 London Datastore, 2015 Round Population Projections
7 London Datastore, 2016 GLA Employment Projections

19

Story so far

B25

The borough has already seen several
large scale applications come forward.
The Go Cycle Programme is about
keeping Kingston moving sustainably for
a prosperous future. The Council received
over £30million of funding from the Mayor
of London and TfL to deliver improvements
to cycling facilities and road safety, while at
the same time enhancing Kingston’s public
spaces.

The Old Post Office, Kingston Town Centre
319 new homes, 224 new jobs

Eden Walk, Kingston Town Centre
380 new homes, 600 new jobs
20

Go Cycle Programme 2014-2018
Cycle improvement scheme

B26

Cromwell Road Bus Station, Kingston
Comprehensive redevelopment serving 23
routes and 11,000 passengers

Gas Holder site, Kingston
328 new homes, 15 new jobs

Kingston Heights and Kingston Riverside
347 new homes, 75 new jobs, new hotel with 146 bedrooms

Kingston Community School,
Coombe Road New primary school,
sports hall, 19 new homes

Tolworth Tower, Tolworth
200 new homes, 330 new jobs

21

Twickenham

B27
iNFRASTRUCTURE iMPROVEMENTs
Strawberry
Hill

Kingston station extension

Fulwell
Golf Club

Fulwell

Richmond
Park

Teddington

Hampton
Wick
Bushy
Park

Wood Street
enhancements

Coombe
Wood
Golf Club

Kingston

Thames
Ditton

Raynes
Park

Kingston
flood
Rec Ground
alleviation scheme
)DLUƮHOG

London Borough
of Richmond
upon Thames

Hogsmiill Public
Open Space

Chessington
North

&KXUFKƮHOGV
Rec Ground

Chessington
South

22

Epsom & Ewell
Borough
Tolworth
Park

Proposed
Crossrail 2
stations

Stoneleigh

Ewell West

Horton
Country Park

Chessington World
of Adventures
Potential extension
and new station

Mole Valley
District

London Boroug
of Sutton

Tolworth

Tolworth
Rec Ground

Epsom
Common

Worcester
Park

Kingston Uni
Sports Ground

Tolworth Deck

London Borou
of Merton

Flood attenuation
measures
Malden
Manor

King George’s
Field

Hook/Chessington
relief road

Green Lane
Rec Ground

King Charles
Rec Ground

Tolworth A3
junction improvements

Chessington
World of
Adventures

Motspur
Park

Berrylands

Fishponds
Open Space

Sir Francis
Baker Rec
Ground

New
Malden

Kingsmeadow

Hogsmill Sewage
Treatment Works

Surbiton

River Thames
Scheme

Elmbridge
Borough

Coombe Hill
Golf Club

Norbiton

Kingston
Cemetery

Hampton
Court

Wimbledon
Common

Epsom

Reigate &
Banstead bor

ugh

gh

&
rough

B28

Borough
In the short to mediumLondon
term, there
are
of Wandsworth
a number of committed and proposed
borough infrastructure improvements.
The Council’s preferred highway scheme
for Kingston Town Centre proposes
to remove traffic from Wood Street
and Clarence Street and convert the
Wimbledon remainder of the gyratory system to
a two way road. This, along with the
potential relocation and extension of the
station closer to the river, would result
in much improved connections between
the station and the town centre. It would
also free up land adjacent to the station
for redevelopment.

The Council is working with the
Environment Agency on developing
options for flood attenuation in the
New Malden and Hook areas, in order
to reduce the impact of flooding on
local communities and businesses. The
Environment Agency are also working
on a River Thames Scheme to address
fluvial flooding with all local authorities
between Berkshire and Surrey.
The proposed Tolworth A3 junction
improvements and associated decking
will provide a major opportunity to
improve the environment and unlock
development opportunities, as well
as bringing forward much needed
road improvements in particular
enhancements to road safety. The
potential delivery of Tolworth Park
would increase leisure opportunities
by providing improved access to
open space as well as supporting the
enhancement of biodiversity.
The concept of a Hook/Chessington
relief road is being explored with
neighbouring planning authorities and
key partners and could support new
development, infrastructure and reduce
congestion within local communities.
North

0

12 mins

24 mins

36 mins

1km

2km

3km

London Borough

A new station serving Chessington
of Lambeth
World of Adventures would improve the
connectivity of this inaccessible area by
providing alternative means of transport
for visitors and workers. It would
support further investment and facilitate
additional homes in the area.
Crossrail 2 is a proposed new rail service
serving London and the wider south east
by connecting the Surrey National Rail
networks via new tunnels in Wimbledon
with London stations. As well as cutting
journey times and adding capacity to
the regional network, it will support
200,000 new homes and 200,000 new
jobs across London and the south east.
It is anticipated that Crossrail 2 will be
operational by 2033.

All of the borough’s train stations are
proposed stops on the Crossrail 2 route
and will be converted into Crossrail
2 stations. All stations served will
London Borough
see an increase in their service level,
of Croydon
providing additional capacity that will
relieve crowding and congestion on the
network.
The National Infrastructure Commission
reported overwhelming support for
Crossrail 2 and specified Kingston
and Tolworth town centres as major
opportunities for significant new housing
development. Crossrail 2 will contribute
a minimum of 200,000 additional homes
over and above the 60,000 that would
be developed in areas linked to the line
without the scheme. There is a need
to maximise economic development
benefits around transport schemes to
make a successful case for investment.
The development of the new London
Plan, Kingston OAPF and Local Plan
and will enable the borough to influence
and steer the scale and location of
opportunity within the borough.

23

Twickenham

B29
Emerging Areas of Opportunity
Strawberry
Hill
Fulwell
Golf Club

Fulwell
Richmond
Park

Teddington

Hampton
Wick
Bushy
Park

Kingston
Town Centre
Hampton
Court

London Borough
of Richmond
upon Thames

Coombe
Wood
Golf Club

Kingston

Wimbledon
Common

Coombe Hill
Golf Club

Norbiton,
London Road and
Cambridge Estate

Norbiton

Raynes
Park

)DLUƮHOG
Rec Ground
Kingston
Cemetery

New
Malden

Kingsmeadow

Hogsmill Sewage

Treatment Works
Berrylands and
y
Valle
Hogsmill

New Malden
Motspur
Park

Berrylands
Hogsmiill Public
Open Space

Surbiton
Fishponds
Open Space

Thames
Ditton

Elmbridge
Borough

Green Lane
Rec Ground

London Borou
of Merton

King Charles
Rec Ground

Malden
Manor

Worcester
Park

Kingston Uni
Sports Ground

Tolworth

Tolworth
Rec Ground

King George’s
Field

Chessington
North

London Boroug
of Sutton

Epsom & Ewell
Borough

Tolworth

Stoneleigh

&KXUFKƮHOGV
Rec Ground

Chessington

Sir Francis
Baker Rec
Ground

Chessington
South

Epsom
Common

Mole Valley
District

24

Ewell West

Horton
Country Park

Chessington
World of
Adventures

Epsom

Reigate &
Banstead bor

ugh

gh

&
rough

B30

London
Borough
The borough’s population
is forecast
of Wandsworth
to rise by 52,000 people between 2011
and 20508. For Kingston to be able to
continue to provide and encourage
residents with opportunities to live and
work locally careful consideration needs
to be given as to where this growth
Wimbledon should be accommodated.

In order to protect and enhance the
borough’s heritage assets, key views,
riverside setting and wider residential
character, growth will need to be
focused in selective areas.
The borough’s projected population
growth will take place over a number
of years, additional housing provision
and jobs need to be planned in stages.
These stages will reflect both projected
growth and, critically the timing of new
infrastructure provision.
As explained earlier the London Plan
seeks to locate new homes and jobs
in town centres and around existing
transport nodes. Many of Kingston’s
centres are already served by public
transport and would therefore represent
opportunities for enhanced growth in
homes and jobs even without the added
opportunity of Crossrail. The potential
delivery of Crossrail 2 therefore provides
an important catalyst for supporting
further growth and intensifying transport
hubs.

RB Kingston boundary

0

The accompanying plan shows
indicative hatching of the potential areas
of opportunity and where development
sites may be identified which will be
further defined in the preparation of
the Local Plan. These will provide an
indicative amount of development
and will be required to deliver their
infrastructure needs.
Those areas identified in the following
pages have scope for more significant
change.
Kingston Town Centre, the Cambridge
London Borough
Road Estate, New Malden and Tolworth
have been identified as areas of of Croydon
immediate opportunity for growth.
The Hogsmill Valley is likely to provide
opportunities for growth in the medium
term dependant on the requirements
of the Council’s waste facilities and
Thames Water.
Chessington has been identified as a
potential long term area of opportunity
linked to the arrival of Crossrail 2 in
2030.
Whilst growth in these immediate
areas is not dependent on Crossrail 2,
development proposals in these areas
should plan for its arrival.

Areas of opportunity

North

London Borough

The borough’s strategic open spaces
of Lambeth
are important and valued assets. Further
potential opportunities for growth relate
to a comprehensive review and will
be addressed as part of the statutory
planning process for the new Local Plan
for Kingston. This will be completed by
Spring 2017.

12 mins

24 mins

36 mins

1km

2km

3km

8 London Datastore, 2015 Round Population Projections

25

B31
kingston town centre
Canbury
Gardens

Riverside North
Conservation Area

Elm Road
Playground

Hampton
Wick

Canbury Park
LSIS

Kingston

Royal Borough
of Richmond
upon Thames

Kingston
Metropolitan
Town Centre

Bushy
Park

All Saints
Church
Grounds

Memorial
Gardens

Kingston Old Town
Conservation Area

Kingfisher
Open
Space

River Thames

Fairfield Road
Recreation Ground

Fairfield/Knights Park
Conservation Area

Hampton
Court Park

26

Hogsmill River

Riverside South
Conservation
Area

Grove Crescent
Conservation Area

B32

Selective redevelopment in this part of the borough could Liverpool
result Road
in:Area
Conservation
• Increased transport accessibility to central London, further enhanced through
Crossrail 2

Coombe
Wood
Golf
Course

• A new train station with over site development
• Significant delivery of new

Park Road
Conservation
homes, Area
including

affordable housing andKingston
jobs
Hospital

• A new office and mixed use quarter around the Station
• Provision of creative and small-scale workspaces
• Continuing protection of Kingston’s historic environment (Listed Buildings,
Buildings of Townscape Merit and Conservation Areas)
Norbiton

• An expanded retail, leisure and cultural offer and strengthening of the
Metropolitan Town Centre
• A new transportation interchange (rail and bus)
• Better connectivity for pedestrians and cyclists
London Road

• Improved
LSIS access to the riverside
• Enhanced and improved higher educational facilities
We recognise that new growth must be balanced with the unique heritage and
character of the borough

Existing planning designations
Metropolitan Town Centre
Conservation Area
Employment Land (SIL/LSIS)
Metropolitan Open Land

Kingston
Cemetery
SINC

Site of Importance for
Nature Conservation (SINC)
RB Kingston boundary

Fairfield
Trade Park/
Kingsmill Business Park/
Villiers Road Waste Transfer
Facillity LSIS

North

0

12 mins

24 mins

36 mins

1km

2km

3km

27

Canbury
Park

B33
Norbiton, london road
& cambridge ROAD estate

Canbury Park
LSIS

Kingston
Hospital

Park Road
Conservation
Area

Norbiton
Kingston
Town
Centre

London Road
LSIS

Fairfield Road
Recreation Ground

Fairfield/Knights Park
Conservation Area

Cambridge Road/
Hampden Road
LSIS

Kingston
Cemetery
SINC

Grove Crescent
Conservation Area

Athelstan
Recreation
Ground

Fairfield Trade Park/
Kingsmill Business Park/
Villiers Road Waste Transfer
Facillity LSIS

Kingsmeadow
Athletics Ground

Hogsmill River

Hogsmill Valley
Sewage Works and the
Hogsmill River
SINC

28

Hogsmill Sewage
Treatment Works

Surbiton
Cemetery

estate

Coombe Wood
Golf Course

B34
Coombe House
Conservation Area

Selective redevelopment in this part of the borough could result in:

• Improved access at Norbiton Station with further improvements delivered
through Crossrail 2
• Increased residential development around Norbiton Station
• Helping meet the Council’s growth agenda and housing focus for the Cambridge
Road Housing Zone
• Providing new, mixed tenure homes on the Cambridge Road Estate
• Residential-led mixed-use development on and around London Road
• Creation
Kenley
Road

of new and diversified employment opportunities

• Supporting new infrastructure including school places, open space and transport
improvements
• Better access for pedestrians and cyclists to the Hogsmill Valley

Barton Green
Recreation
Ground

We recognise that new growth must be balanced with the unique heritage and
character of the borough
Dickerage
Recreation
Ground

The
Green

The Grove
Conservation
Area

Existing planning designations
Metropolitan Town Centre
Conservation Area

Kingston Road
Recreation Ground

Employment Land (SIL/LSIS)
Metropolitan Open Land
Site of Importance for
Nature Conservation (SINC)

St John’s
Industrial Area
LSIS

Hogsmill
Valley Sewage
Works and the
Hogsmill River SINC

Hogsmill River

North

0

12 mins

24 mins

36 mins

1km

2km

3km

29

B35
berrylands and hogsmill
valley
Fairfield Road
Recreation Ground

Fairfield/Knights Park
Conservation Area

Cambridge Road/
Hampden Road
LSIS

Kingston
Cemetery
SINC

Kingsmeadow
Athletics Ground

Hogsmill River

Fairfield Trade Park/
Kingsmill Business Park/
Villiers Road Waste Transfer
Facillity LSIS

Hogsmill Sewage
Treatment Works

Surbiton
Cemetery

Berrylands

30

B36

Selective redevelopment in this part of the borough could result in:
• Substantial delivery of new homes including family housing and student
accommodation
• Improved transport connectivity and an upgraded station, further enhanced by
Crossrail 2
• New connections through the Hogsmill Valley to Berrylands Station
• Better access to open space with a new Hogsmill riverside walk
• Consolidation of the Hogsmill Sewage Treatment Works
• Reducing the effects of odour from the sewage works on the local community
• Delivery of Hogsmill flood attenuation scheme to protect homes and businesses
from flooding
Kingston Road
Recreation Ground

• Continued protections of Hogsmill Valley and its ecology
John’s must be balanced with the unique heritage and
We recognise that new St
growth
Industrial Area
character of the borough
LSIS

Hogsmill Valley
Sewage Works and
the Hogsmill Rver
SINC

Existing planning designations
Strategic site allocation

Rose Walk
SINC

Conservation Area

Green Lane
Recreation
Ground

Employment Land (SIL/LSIS)
Metropolitan Open Land

Elmbridge
Open Space
SINC

Raeburn
Open
Space
SINC

Site of Importance for
Nature Conservation (SINC)
Hogsmill River

King’s College London
Sports Ground

North

0

12 mins

24 mins

36 mins

1km

2km

3km

31

NEW MALDEN

Barton
Green
Rec Ground

B37

The
Green

Christchurch
School
Playing Fields

Malden Golf Course
and Thames Water
Pipe Track
SINC

The Groves
Conservation Area

New
Malden
St John’s
Industrial Area
LSIS

New Malden
District
Centre

Presburg Road
Conservation
Area

Kings College
London Sports
Ground

32

B38

Malden Golf Course and

Thames Water redevelopment
Pipe Track
Selective
in this part of the borough could result in:
SINC

• Enhanced train station and improved frequency of service as a result of
Crossrail 2
• Redevelopment of Cocks Crescent to support a new community hub with
Beverley
enabling residential and commercial
development
Brook
SINC

• Increased commercial and residential development around New Malden Station
Beverley Park

• Potential over station development
• Sustaining and increasing the number of local jobs
• Supporting a thriving and attractive New Malden High Street
• Improved connectivity from the station to Kingston Hill Campus
• Better access to neighbourhood’s key services as a result of improved pedestrian
and cycle networks
We recognise that new growth must be balanced with the unique heritage and
character of the borough
Blagdon
Road
Open
Space

Existing planning designations
District Centre
Conservation Area

k
roo

Employment Land (SIL/LSIS)
Metropolitan Open Land

ve
Be

yB
rle

Cromwell Avenue
Open Space

London Borough
of Merton

Site of Importance for
Nature Conservation (SINC)
RB Kingston boundary

University of London
Athletic Ground

North

0

12 mins

24 mins

36 mins

1km

2km

3km

33

Christ Church
Conservation Area

Oakhill
Conservation
Area

tolworth

B39

Conservation Area

Fish Ponds
SINC

Southborough
Conservation
Area

Edith Gardens
SINC

Fishponds Park
Conservation Area

Alexandra
Park

King Charles
Recreation
Ground

Tolworth
District
Centre

Tolworth
Red Lion
Road LSIS

Strategic Rail
Freight Site

Tolworth
Girls’ School

Tolworth Court Farm Fields
and Medieval Moated Manor
SINC

Chessington
Industrial Area
SIL

Causeway
Copse
SINC

Bo
n

te
ga
es

Mount Road
Open Space
SINC

34

Chessington North

r
ve
Ri

Hogsmill
Valley
SINC

B40
Manor
Park

Hogsmill
Valley SINC

Selective redevelopment in this part of the borough could result in:

Manor
Park SINC

• Improved frequency of service and accessibility as result of Crossrail 2
Hogsmill

• An River
upgraded
station
Park

Old Malden
Pond
SINC

• Provision of over station development
• An increase in new homes

Plough Pond
and Green

Old Malden B
Conservation Area

Old Malden A

Area
• Sustaining an enhanced retail centre Conservation
and retention
of a significant retailer

• An improved A3 junction at Tolworth Roundabout with better air and noise quality
• Reducing the severance of A3 as a
across the A3

The Leyfield (or
Old Malden
barrier
to movement
Common)
SINC

by providing connections

• Modern industrial units on Chessington Industrial Estate and enhanced leisure/
sports opportunities in the area
• Facilitating the delivery of Tolworth Park
Riverhill
House
recognise SINC
that new

We
of the borough

g
Ho

i ll
sm

e
Riv

growth must be balanced with the unique heritage and character

r

Epsom & Ewell
Borough

Existing planning designations
District Centre
Conservation Area
Employment Land (SIL/LSIS)
Green Belt
Metropolitan Open Land

River
Hogsmill

Site of Importance for
Nature Conservation (SINC)
RB Kingston boundary

North

24 mins
0

1km

2km

60 mins
3km

4km

3km

35

chessington

B41

Chessington
North

Churchfields
Recreation
Ground

The Meadowlands
Orchid Reserve
SINC

Chessington
South

Chessington
Golf Centre

Barwell
Business
Park
SIL

Bonesgate
Stream
SINC
Green Lane
SINC
Chessington
World of
Adventures

36

B42

Selective redevelopment in this part of the borough could result in:
Chessington
North Parade

• New residential development as a result of Crossrail 2
• Enhancements to Chessington South and Chessington North stations
• Potential new station serving Chessington World of Adventures
• Supporting long term ambitions of Chessington World of Adventures
• Intensification of Barwell Business Park
Castle

• Supporting a new district centre andHillsustaining improved local shopping facilities
SINC

• Delivery of Hook/Chessington relief road and associated environmental
enhancement

Epsom & Ewell
Borough

• Improved bus service provision

• Enhanced network of walking and cycling greenways to wider countryside
We recognise that new growth must be balanced with the unique heritage and character
of the borough
Bonesgate
Open Space
SINC

S
te
ga
s
e

Horton Country Park

am
tre

Bo
n

n

Tolworth Court Farm Fields
and Medieval Moated Manor
SINC

Existing planning designations
Employment Land (SIL/LSIS)
Green Belt
Metropolitan Open Land
Site of Importance for
Nature Conservation (SINC)
RB Kingston boundary

North

0

12 mins

24 mins

36 mins

1km

2km

3km

37

Rest of borough

38

B43

B44

For the rest of the borough the following approach will apply:
• Protecting the borough’s distinctive historic environment and established
suburban areas from inappropriate development
• Timely delivery of social infrastructure (GP’s, schools and community facilities)
• Coordination with key partners and stakeholders
• Utilising innovative and wider funding streams to facilitate development
• Maximising development opportunities for selective growth in areas of
opportunity
• Working with developers to safeguard and build in station infrastructure and
where appropriate provide over station development

39

NEXT STEPS

B45

• Carry out an Issues and Options consultation for the new Royal Borough of
Kingston Local Plan in Spring 2017 and continue to work on the Opportunity Area
Planning Framework
• Continuing work on a borough transport assessment to ensure we have adequate
infrastructure to support growth
• Continuing to work on options for accommodating Crossrail 2 stations within the
borough and the implications for growth in the borough
• Continuing to develop the wider evidence base for the Council’s forthcoming
Local Plan
• Carry out a Development Infrastructure Funding Study to identify the appropriate
levels of contribution developers will be expected to make towards the delivery of
transport and social infrastructure.

40

B46

41

B47

42

B48

43

CITY
IN
THE
WEST
B49

Director of Place
Roy Thompson
slt.executivesupport@kingston.gov.uk
020 8547 5320

Assistant Director - Planning
Stewart Murray
stewart.murray@london.gov.uk
020 7983 4271

Head of Planning and Regeneration
Viv Evans
viv.evans@kingston.gov.uk
020 8547 5933

Senior Manager
Colin Wilson
colin.wilson@london.gov.uk
020 7983 4783

Lead Officer - Strategic Planning
Hannah Harris
hannah.harris@kingston.gov.uk
020 8547 5376

Lead Officer
Kim Tagliarini
kim.tagliarini@london.gov.uk
0207 983 6589

Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

Well! These are tales of mystery!
And many a darkly woven lie
With men will easy credence gain;
Wile truth, calm truth, may speak in vain,
For eloquence, whose honey’d sway
Our mortal wits obey,
Can honour give to actions ill,
And faith to deeds incredible;
And bitter blame, and praises high,
Fall truest from posterity.
Translations of Pindar: The First Olympic Ode.
470 BC

Greater London Authority

Guildhall 2, Kingston upon Thames
London KT1 1EU
020 8547 5002

City Hall, The Queens Walk
London SE1 2AA
020 7983 4000

www.kingston.gov.uk

www.london.gov.uk

B50

Statement of Consultation
Direction of Travel
October 2016

B51

Introduction
This Consultation Statement sets out the approach and results of consultation undertaken by the Royal
Borough of Kingston on the Direction of Travel.
The Direction of Travel is a joint statement of intent by the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames and
the Mayor of London. It clarifies the strategic policy basis for this work and its alignment with the London
Plan as well as Kingston’s growth agenda. It seeks to capture, build-upon and steer aspirations held by
developers and investors both now and long term.
This report summarises and sets out the feedback received during the consultation process. These
comments helped to shape the amendments made to the final draft of the Brief

Consultation Process
The Direction of Travel Consultation Draft was published for consultation from 24th June 2016 to 29th
August 2016 for a period of eight weeks. During this time the document was available to download from
the Council's website. All those on the Strategic Planning database, which includes more than 2,000
consultees, were informed of the consultation by letter or email advising on details of the online survey and
upcoming events.
The following categories of consultee were consulted (a complete list of consultees can be found in
Appendix 1 of this report):
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Statutory consultees
Business community
Community support groups
Disability groups
Education organisations
Environment groups
Ethnic groups
Health organisations
Heritage protection groups
Local residents and interested parties
Infrastructure providers
Leisure groups
Older people groups
Planning Interest groups, e.g. planning consultants
Political groups
Religious groups
Residents Associations
Transport organisations
● Utilities organisations
● Voluntary groups
● Young people
The Council also undertook several other methods of communication in order to ensure that notification of
the consultation reached as many people in the borough as possible. Details of these methods are set out
below:
●

Printed copies were made available for public viewing in all seven public libraries, as well as the
Council’s Information and Advice Centre and at all the drop-in consultation events.
1

B52
●

Leaflets and posters were distributed across the borough detailing the consultation timings and how
to respond.

●

A press release was worked up with colleagues in the Comms team and sent to the press and
published on the Council’s website

●

The Council undertook a comprehensive online communications strategy via several social media
outlets.

●

Working closely with the ‘Visual Impaired Parliament’ Group, the Council prepared audio summaries
of the document uploaded to CD’s in order to maximise consultation accessibility for the
visually-impaired.

These methods of communication are summarised in the table below:
Method of Consultation

Direction of Travel

Consultation Letters

1,321 (date 24 June)

Consultation Emails

Approx. 900 (date 24 June)

Press Release

Yes (24 June)

Copies sent to Libraries

8 (24 June)

Audio Summary CDs

Yes (10 copies)

Leaflets/Posters

Yes

2

B53

Formal public consultation events
The council undertook a comprehensive programme of engagement events throughout Summer 2016 - all
of which were advertised through distribution of consultation posters across the borough. These events
include:
Date

Event

Council Attendees

Estimated
number of
attendees

Saturday 9th July

New Malden Fortnight - Craft
New Malden (9am-5pm)

4 officers

200

Thursday July
21st

Fife Road
(4pm-8pm)

3 officers

20-30

Saturday 6 August

New Malden Farmer's Market
(10am-1pm)

2 officers

50-80

Thursday 11
August

Kingston Market
(12pm-4pm)

4 officers

10

Saturday 13
August

South of Borough - Hook
Centre (9am-1pm)

2 officers

3

Saturday 20
August

Surbiton Farmers’ Market
Maple Road, (9am-1pm)

3 officers

50-80

Tuesday 23
August

South of Borough - Hook
Centre (2pm-6pm)

2 officers

10-20

Thursday 25
August

Kingston Night Market
(4pm-8pm)

3 officers

20-30

3

B54

Additional consultation events and meetings
In addition to the above events, the Council also committed to other face-to-face events and meetings with
various stakeholders and community groups throughout this duration. Those concerning the Direction of
Travel are listed below:
Date

Event / Meeting

Document of
discussion

Council
Attendees

Thursday 23 June

NLA Professional Launch Event
with the GLA and Kingston
Futures: South West London:
Crossrail 2 Corridor

Direction of Travel

3 officers

Thursday 7 July

Maldens & Coombe
Neighbourhood Committee

Direction of Travel

2 officers

Tuesday 19th July

Kingston Conversations: Growth
& regeneration/ future of the
borough themes

Direction of Travel

3 officers

Wednesday July
20th

Kingston Conversations: Growth
and regeneration/ future of the
borough themes

Direction of Travel

3 officers

Saturday July 23rd

Join the Kingston Conversation,
about Growth & Regeneration

Direction of Travel

1 officer

All documents

3 officers

Glenmore House, Surbiton, 11am
Thursday 28 July

Business Breakfast - New Malden
Forum (8am-9am)

Online Survey
Through the above methods of consultations, all stakeholders invited to respond to the Direction of Travel
via an online survey. Survey questions were developed with Comms Team before being uploaded onto
‘Objective’ - the online portal. The full list of survey questions are set out in Appendix 2 of this report.
In total, the council received 219 consultation responses.
●
●

172 online respondents, the majority of which were from local residents.
Note that a further 47 emailed responses were received from both local residents and statutory
consultees.

The Council’s Strategic Business Team have undertaken a comprehensive data analysis and report for all
online responses. The key findings of this analysis are set out in Appendix 4 of this report.

4

B55

Summary of the Main Issues
All of the online and written responses have been read and analysed. Below is a summary of the key
themes and concerns that have been raised by those who responded to the consultation. Full comments
and responses are set out in a separate table (Annex 3 - Responses to the Direction of Travel
Consultation). A quantitative analysis of all online survey results is also available within Appendix 4 of this
report.
Planned growth and density
As one of the key issues raised, there was widespread concern over the scale of growth and density as
indicated in the Direction of Travel, and the potential detrimental impact that this could have on Kingston’s
character and heritage, traffic congestion and local services due to overcrowding. This concern was often
associated to Kingston's potential designation as a London Plan Opportunity Area.
Traffic and congestion
Overall, transport issues featured heavily in the consultation responses with concerns that new growth
would have a significant impact on already high levels of traffic and congestion across the borough. This
was frequently associated with concerns of increasing air and noise pollution. Better public transport links
were generally supported, but new road building had both its supporters and detractors.
Cycling
There was divided opinion over cycling. Many respondents expressed strong support for recent and future
investment in new cycling infrastructure, although there was also concern that new cycle paths would be
detrimental to other road users, including cars and pedestrians.
Green spaces and ecology
There was very strong support for the protection of strategic green infrastructure such as Green Belt and
Metropolitan Open Land. Many of these comments also focused on the protection of the Hogsmill Valley
and its ecology.
Character and heritage
There was strong support to protect heritage and the character of district areas within the borough.
Supporting infrastructure
Many responses were concerned that new development and increasing population would exacerbate
existing community services such as schools and healthcare - and that there was a lack of detail in the
Direction of Travel in relation to this issue.
Document Vision
The Direction of Travel document and the consultation itself does come in for some criticism, with some
argument that the document was too vague and that more detail is required to make comment.
Affordable housing
Whilst in the majority of cases there was an acceptance for the need for new housing, the affordability of
new housing was a key issue for many respondents, with a view that the definition of affordable housing
was no longer affordable for local people.
Crossrail 2
Despite overall support for Crossrail 2 and other transport infrastructure investment, there were also
concerns that there was too much emphasis on arrival of Crossrail 2 given the uncertainty of its delivery.

5

B56
Below is a summary of the key issues raised in each area section of the Direction of Travel:
Kingston town centre
Comments for Kingston town centre primarily focused on the impact of growth and development on the
unique character and heritage of the town centre. The redevelopment of Kingston Station and bus
interchange received a divided response. Whilst many were in favour of its development, respondents were
also sceptical of its relevance and benefits. There were also strong calls to fully understand the future role
of Kingston’s retail and employment landscape in order to safeguard the vitality and vibrancy of the town
centre.
Norbiton, London Road and Cambridge Road Estate
It was widely viewed that the Norbiton area was unable to accommodate new growth. Regarding the
London Road, issues of traffic and congestion were raised as well as the need to protect the character of
this area. Regarding the Cambridge Road Estate, concerns related to the proposed density and form of the
development, impact to local services, the level of proposed affordable housing and whether this would be
affordable for local people, as well as the well-being of existing estate residents.
Berrylands and Hogsmill Valley
The key issue for this area focused on the protection and enhancement of Hogsmill Valley as a key
ecological resource, particularly regarding new access proposals in the area. There was also widespread
concern regarding the loss of Metropolitan Open Land as a result of new growth, as well as issues of odour
from the sewage works.
New Malden
The New Malden Centre featured heavily in responses. There was widespread support for its retention and
very strong support for its refurbishment/redevelopment. More generally, respondents were concerned over
building heights and density, impact to local character, local traffic and parking issues, and community
services such as school places and healthcare. There was strong support for the improvement to the High
Street.
Tolworth
Traffic and congestion, and its impact on air quality and noise pollution, was the key issue raised for
Tolworth. There was a feeling that proposed infrastructure projects, such as the Tolworth A3 junction
improvements and the A3 decking, would exacerbate the issue. There was also strong support to protect
Tolworth Court Farm.
Chessington
Concerns focused on the loss of Green Belt land and increasing congestion issues in the area. The
proposed Chessington/Hook Relief Road received divided opinion as to its effectiveness in easing
congestion.
Rest of the borough
In regards to the rest of the borough, it was frequently questioned why Surbiton and Malden Manor had
been omitted as ‘Areas of Opportunity’.

6

B57

Conclusion
The Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames has been updated and amended to
address the outcomes of the consultation. Once adopted, the document will signal the beginning Local Plan
process, as well as providing supplementary planning advice to the London Plan policies by supporting the
selective redevelopment of areas within the borough to provide new homes, jobs and investment.
Fundamentally, the structure and overall content of this document has remained largely the same.
Nevertheless, consultation responses received have led to amendments being required.
Details of agreed changes are provided within Appendix 3 of this report.
In summary, amendments include:
Text updates
● Updating information and facts where necessary.
● Providing further detail and clarification where appropriate. This includes further recognition of key
issues relating to growth, including heritage and character, employment opportunities, affordable
housing, and community/leisure facilities.
Graphic updates
● Clearer labelling and colouring on maps.
● Addressing graphical errors.
● Expanding on and updating maps such as ‘Kingston’s Places’, ‘Story So Far’, and ‘Infrastructure
Improvements’.

7

B58

Appendix 1 - Consultees
Statutory Consultees
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

British Gas
Coal Authority
Elmbridge Borough Council
Environment Agency
Epsom and Ewell Borough Council
Historic England
Highways England
Homes and Communities Agency
Kingston Clinical Commissioning Group
London Borough of Merton
London Borough of Richmond
London Borough of Sutton
London Borough of Wandsworth

●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Mayor of London / Greater London Authority
Mobile Operators Association
Mole Valley District Council
National Grid
Natural England
Network Rail
Powergen
Scotia Gas Networks
Surrey County Council
Thames Water
The Planning Inspectorate
Transco
Transport for London

●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Kingston Innovation Centre
Kingston Jobcentre
Kingston Market Traders Association
Kingston Plaza LLP
Kingston Tour Guides
Kingstonfirst
Lakeside Estates Ltd
LIDL UK
Lloyds TSB
London and Provincial Accommodation Limited
Longford Securities and Equities Limited
Malden Golf Club
Marks & Spencer
McDonalds
Music Services
Nova Distribution
O'Neils (Mitchell and Butlers)
Oceana
Old London Road Traders Association
Osiers Court Properties Ltd
Palmers Solicitors
Parrs Boat Hire
Pearson Maddin Solicitors
Prim Vintage Fashion
Radio Jackie
Riverside Vegetaria Ltd
Roofwise Ltd
Royal Mail
Sainsbury's Supermarkets
Simone Kay Stained Glass
SNP Associates
Spires Sports Ltd
Spiritbond Kingston Road Ltd
Spiritbond Student Housing Ltd
Spuds
SRIL Penrhyn Road Limited
The Hippodrome Nightclub
The Rose Theatre

Businesses
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Adams and Adams Ltd
Adrienne Hill Ltd
AK II Property Investments Limited
Alderwick James and Co
Allen Pyke Associates
Aquilon Global Invest Ltd
Arrow Plastics Ltd
Aviva
Barton Willmore
Barwell Court Farm Management Co. Ltd
Bell Cornwell Partnership
Bentall Centre Management
Bentalls
BMR
Boots
British Home Stores
British Land
Canadian Portland
Carluccios
Carter & Carter
Carter Bells LLP
CBI (London Region)
Chelsea Building Society
Cherwell (3-5 Penrhyn Road) Ltd
Chris Thomas Ltd.
Diocesan Board of Finance
DTA Computer Systems
Ease & Co
Edward Jones Ltd
Egmont UK
Enstar Capital
Federation of Small Businesses
Four Communications Group PLC
Fusion Arts
Gerald Cullfiord Ltd
Goldcrest Land
Hammersons
Hermes Hotel

8

B59

●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Howdens Joinery Co.
Insight Services
Jackson-Scott Associates LTD
John Lewis
John Sharkey and Co.
Jones Lang LaSalle
Kidd Adam Ltd
Kingston Informer

●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Tony Miller Systems Ltd
TP Bennett Architects
Turk Launches Ltd
University Superannuation Scheme (USS)
Watkins Jones and Son Ltd
West & Partners
Wilkinson Stores

●
●
●
●

Kaleidoscope
Kingston Citizens Advice Bureau
Freepost Equality Advisory Support Service
Kingston Carers Network

●

People with Learning Disabilities Partnership
Board
Positive Action for Multiple Sclerosis
R.O.Y.A.D
Scope (N E Surrey) Geneva Road
Talking Newspaper
Team for Disabled Children
The Fircroft Trust

Community Support Groups
●
●
●
●

Kingston Citizens Advice
London Forum of Amenity and Civic Societies
Royal British Legion Institute
Kingston Advocacy Group

Disability Groups
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Anchor Trust
Crescent Resource Centre
Disability Equality Group
HFT
Home Farm Trust
Kingston Association for the Blind
Parkinson's UK

●
●
●
●
●
●

Education
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Alexandra Infant School
Bedelsford School
Buckland Infant and Nursery
Burlington Junior School
Chessington Community College
Christ Church Infants' School
Christ Church Junior School
Christ Church New Malden C of E Primary
Christ Church Primary School
Coombe Boys School
Coombe Girls School
Coombe Hill Infant and Junior School
Corpus Christi Primary School
Dysart School
Ellingham Primary School
Euphrates Education Foundation (Arabic School)
Fern Hill Primary School
Green Lane School
Hindi Bal Bhawan
Holy Cross Preparatory School
King Athelstan Primary School
Kingston College
Kingston Grammar School
Kingston Gurjarati School
Kingston Tamil School
Kingston University
Knollmead Primary School
Latchmere Junior School
Learn English at home
Lovelace Primary School
Malden Manor Primary

●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Malden Parochial Primary School
Maple Infants School
Nathaniel Lichfield & Partners
Our Lady Immaculate Primary School
Princes Trust- Merton College
Richard Challoner School
Robin Hood Primary School
Roehampton University
Shrewsbury House School
Southborough School
St Agatha's Catholic Primary School
St Andrews and St Marks C of E Junior School
St Joseph's RC Primary School
St Luke’s Primary School
St Philip's School
St. Andrews & St. Marks C of E Junior School
St. Johns C of E Primary School
St. Mary’s Primary School
St. Matthew’s Primary School
St. Paul's C of E Junior School
St. Paul's C of E Primary School
The Hollyfield School and Centre for Continuing
Education
The Holy Cross School
The Mount Primary School
Tiffin Boys School
Tiffin Girls School
Tiffin School
Tolworth Girls School
Tolworth Infants and Nursery School
Tolworth School

9

B60

Environment
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

BRE Group
British Geological Survey
CPRE
CPRE (London)
CPRE (Surrey)
Department for Environment, Food and Rural
Affairs
Environment Agency
Greater London Playing Fields Association
Hurley Palmer Flatt
LA21 Forum
London Parks and Gardens Trust
Protect Our Green Spaces

●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

RenewableUK
River Thames Society
RSPB
Rural Pride Limited
Save the World Club
Surbiton & District Bird Watching Society
Surbiton and District Bird Watching Society
Surrey Wildlife trust
Thames Landscape Strategy
The Royal Parks
The Woodland Trust
Viridor Waste Management Ltd

Irish Traveller Movement in Britain
Kingston Asian Arts Forum
Kingston Chinese Association
Kingston Muslim Women’s Association
Kingston Racial Equality Council
Kingston Ulster Society

●
●
●
●
●
●

Kingston, Richmond and Surrey African Positive
Outlook
London Gypsy and Traveller Unit
Milaap Centre
Refugee action Kingston
Sarvoday Hindu Association
The Gypsy Council

ACSA (Addiction Support and Care)
Canbury Medical Centre
Health and Safety Executive
HUDU
Kingston & District Welcare Association
Kingston Hospital Trust

●
●
●
●
●

Magic Roundabout
Mental Health Partnership Board
NHS Kingston
NHS London Healthy Urban Development Unit
Public Health Directorate

●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Kingston Town Neighbourhood CAAC
Kingston upon Thames Archaeological Society
Malden & Coombe CAAC
MLA London
Museum of London Archaeology Department
Surbiton CAAC
Surbiton Conservation Area Advisory Committee

●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Moat Housing Society
Molior London
New Era Housing Association
North British Housing Association
Paragon Community Housing Group
PML Building Services Limited
Raglan Housing Assoc
Rosemary Simmonds Memorial Housing Assoc.
Shepherds Bush Housing Association
SPH Housing
St George West London
Teachers Housing Association
Terry Hill Design and build
Thames Valley Housing Association

Ethnic Groups
●
●
●
●
●
●

Health
●
●
●
●
●
●

Heritage
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Conservation Area Advisory Committee
Coombe Wood Conservation Area
Friends of Kingston Museum & Heritage Service
Garden History Society
Historic England
Historic Royal Palaces
Kingston Society

Housing
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

A2 Housing Group
Ability Housing Association
Affinity Sutton
Appleby Properties Limited
Bridger Bell
Broomleigh Housing Association
Fairview New Homes Ltd
Family Housing Association
Gleeson
Hanover Housing Assoc.
Hestia Housing (Kingston Womens Centre)
Home Group
Horizon Housing Group
Inquilab Housing Association

10

B61

●
●
●
●

Clerical Medical
Kingston Churches Housing Association
Kingston upon Thames United Charities
Millat Asian Housing Association

●
●
●
●

Threshold Housing and Support
Town and Country Housing Group
Wandle Housing Association
YMCA

EE
EMF Enquires
Environment Agency
London Fire and Emergency Planning Authority
London Fire Brigade

●
●
●
●
●

Metropolitan Police
Metropolitan Police Authority
Thames Water
Three
UK Power Networks

AFC Wimbledon
Campaign for Real Ale
CAMRA - Kingston & Leatherhead Branch
Chessington Young Mums Group
Kingston Arts Council
Kingston Centre for Independent Living
Kingston Debating Society
Kingston Museum
Kingston Theatre
Kingston Tour Guides
Leatherhead Golf Club Ltd
Lexum Leisure (McCluskeys)
Malden Camera Club
Malden Wanderers Cricket Club

●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Minima Yacht Club
Natural History Museum
New Malden Tennis, Squash and Badminton
Club
Places for People
PRO-ACTIVE South London
River Thames Boat Project
Rotunda
Saheli (Asian Womens Group)
Scout Association
Surbiton Croquet Club
Thames Sailing Club
The Lawn Tennis Association
The Theatres Trust

●
●

Older Peoples Partnership Board
Staywell

●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Indigo Planning Ltd
Jones Lang LaSalle
Kennet Properties Ltd.
King Sturge LLP
Kingston University Students Union
Knight Frank LLP
Lancashire Digital Technology Centre
Levvel Ltd
Lidl - Tolworth
Linden Homes South East
London Assembly
Longmoore Regeneration Limited
Malcolm Scott Consultants Ltd
Marcus Beale Architects
Metropolis Planning and Design
Mineral Products Association
Montagu Evans LLP
Morley Fund Management
Nathaniel Lichfield & Partners

Individuals
●

Approximately 1,350 local residents on the
Consultation Database

Infrastructure Providers
●
●
●
●
●

Leisure
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Older People
●
●

Age UK Richmond upon Thames
Kingston Pensioners Forum

Planning Interest
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Arnold Gilpin Associates ltd
Assent Environmental Planning
Austin Mackie Associates Ltd
Barton Willmore
Bell Fischer Landscape Architects
Bonsor Penningtons
Boyer Planning
Boyer Planning London
Broadway Malyan
Canadian and Portland Estates Ltd.
Capitalise Assets LLP
Cattaneo Commercial
CBRE
CgMs Consulting
Chase & Partners
Chessington Nurseries
Cluttons LLP
Coal Pension Properties
Colliers CRE

11

B62

●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Crest Nicholson
Cunnane Town Planning LLP
Cushman and Wakefield
Dalton Warner Davis LLP
David Lock Associates Ltd
Davis Planning
DE Headquarters
Defence Estates Property Team
Deloitte Real Estate
Deloittes
Denton Wilde Sapte
Design Council
Designature
Development Planning Partnership
DevPlan
dp9
DPDS Consulting Group
Drivas Jonas Deloitte
DTZ
Eden Walk Shopping Centre General Partner
Limited
Elborough
Entec, Environmental and Engineering
Consultancy
ESA Planning Ltd.
Evans Roden Myzen
Farrer & Co
Firstplan
Fusion Online
Fusion Online Ltd
GL Hearn
Hammerson plc
Harper Planning
Heaton Planning Ltd
Hemingford Properties
Her Majesty's Court Service
HTA Design LLP
Iceni Projects Ltd

●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

NHP Leisure Development Ltd
Paul Dickinson and Associates
PB
Peacock and Smith Ltd
PlanInfo
Planning Mineral Products Association Ltd.
Planning Potential
Planware Ltd
PPML Consulting Ltd
Premier Inn Tolworth
Quadrant Town Planning Ltd
Quod Planning
Rapleys LLP
Reside Developments Ltd
Robin Bretherick Associates
RPS Planning
Savills Commercial Ltd
SLR
Smith Jenkins
Spiritbond
SSA Planning Limited
St George West London Ltd
St James Group Ltd
Tetlow King Planning
TfL Planning
The Crown Estate
The JTS Partnership Ltd
The Planning Bureau Limited
The Theatres Trust
Thomas Eggar LLP
TPAC Ltd.
Turley Associates
Universities Superannuation Scheme Ltd.
Waind Gohil Architects
Walker Morris
Warner Estates
White and Sons Planning Consultants

●
●

Kingston Borough Liberal Democrats
All Councillors at RBK

●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Kingston Baha’is
Kingston Chinese Association
Kingston Liberal Synagogue
Kingston Muslim Association
Kingston Quakers
Kingston, Surbiton and District Synagogue
New Malden Methodist Church
St Catherine of Siena RC Church
Surbiton Community Church
The Korean Church
United Reformed Church

Political
●
●

Kingston and Surbiton Conservatives
Kingston and Surbiton Constituency Labour Party

Religious Groups
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

African Families Support Services
Ahmadiya Muslim Association Surbiton
All Saints Church
Anglican Diocese of Southwark
Church Commissioners
Churches Together in Malden
Everyday Church Kingston
First Church of Scientist
Institute of Tamil Culture
Islamic Resource Centre
Kingston and Surbiton District Synagogue

Residents Associations

12

B63

●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

1-14 Marlborough Gardens Residents
Association
Agar House Residents Association
Alexandra Neighbours Association
Alpha Road Estate Residents Association
Alpha Road Residents' Association
Ancaster Crescent Residents' Association
Ash Tree Close Residents Association
Avenue Road Residents Association
Avenue Road Residents Association (ARRA)
Barnsbury Crescent Residents Association
Beauclere House Surbiton Management Ltd
Blenheim Gardens Residents Association
Blenheim Gardens Residents Association
(BGRA)
BRaG Residents Association
Brockley Court (Surbiton) Residents Association
Ltd
Brook Road Residents Association
Cambridge Gardens Residents Association (TA)
Cambridge Road Community Association
Cambridge Road Estate Residents Association
Cambridge Road Estates Community Group
Canbury Court Residents Association
CARA
Chantry Area RA
Charter Quay Residents Association
Chessington Court Residents Association
Chessington District Residents Association
Chessington Hall Residents Association.
Chessington R.A
Claremont House
Clarence Street/ London House ltd Residents
Association
Coombe House Estates Residents Association
Coombe Park Residents Association
Coombe Ridings Residents Association
Coombe Roads Association
Coombe Wood Conservation Area
Crofts Residents Association
Cumberland House Residents Association
Dengrove Residents Association
Dysart Avenue Residents Association
Eaton Drive Householders Association
Elgar Avenue Residents Association
Ellerton and Bond Road Residents' Association
Fairfield South (Kingston) Management
Company Limited
Fassett Road Residents Association
Federation of Kingston Residents
Federation of RBK Residents Associations
Gateways Residents Association
Glenbuck Studios Residents Association
Gloucester Court Residents Association
Groves Association
Hatfield House Residents Association Ltd
Hawks Road Residents Association
Herne Road Residents Association
Hightrees Residents Association
Hillside Court Residents Association
Hogsmill Valley Residents Association

●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Kingsnympton Park Estate Residents Association
Kingston Society
Kingston Vale Residents Association
Knights Park Residents Association
Korean Residents' Society
Lancaster Close Residents Association
Lower Kings Road Residents
Maeldune Residents Association
Malden & Coombe Residents Association
Malden Manor Residents Association
Malden Rushett Residents Association
Maple Road Residents Association
Marlowe House Residents Association
McDonald House Residents Association
Melbourne Court (Surbiton) Residents
Association
Melford Close Residents Association
Mill Street Residents Association
Motspur Park Residents Association
New Malden (Beverley Ward) Resident's
Association
Newborough Green Residents' Association
Norbiton Village Residents' Association
North Kingston Forum
OADRA
Old Kingston Road Residents Association
One Norbiton
Palmerston Court (Surbiton) No 2 Residents
Association Limited
Penners Gardens Residents Association
Pennington Lodge Residents Association
Queens Road Residents Association
Ravensview Court Residents Association
River Court Residents Association
Rivermead (Surbiton) Residents Association Ltd
Riverside Residents Association
Royal Quarter Residents Association
SCARA
Scarriff Court Residents Association
School Lane Residents Association
Shane Court Resident Association
South Hogsmill Valley Residents Association
Southborough Residents Association
Southwood Drive Residents' Association
Spring Grove Residents Association
St Mathews Residents Association
Sunray and Egmont Residents Association
(SERA)
Surbiton Central Area Residents Association
Surbiton Court Residents Association Limited
(Flats 1-69)
Surbiton Road Residents Association
The Alexandra Neighbours Association
The Grange Residents Association
Tithe Barn Close Residents Association
Tolworth South Residents Association
Tudor Residents (Kingston) Ltd
Victoria Avenue Residents Association
Victoria, Albert & Church Road Residents
Association
Wessex Close Home Owners Association

13

B64

●
●
●

Homington Court Residents Association
Hook Rise South Residents Association
Horsley Square Residents Co Ltd

●
●
●

Westergate House Residents Association
Windsor Court Residents Association
Wolverton Ave Residents Association

●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

London Cyclists
London General Transport Services Ltd
London United Busway Ltd
Richmond and Kingston Accessible Transport
Road Haulage Association
South London Partnership
South West Trains
Sustrans
Transport for London - London Buses

●
●

London Fire Brigade
Police and Community Working Group

●

The London Community Foundation

●

Youth Advisory Council

Transport Providers
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Civil Aviation Authority
Department of Transport Rail Group
Freight Transport Association- London and South
East Region
Greater London Motorcycle Action Group
H R Richmond Ltd
Kingston Area Travellers Association
Kingston Cycling Campaign
Living Streets
London Buses

Utilities Groups
●
●

Health and Safety Executive
London Ambulance Service

Voluntary Groups
●

Kingston Voluntary Action

Young People
●

Parents Forum

Submitted representations
The list below represents the consultees who submitted representations in response to the formal
consultation for for the Direction of Travel for Kingston upon Thames.
Statutory Consultees
1. NHS Kingston CCG
2. Kingston University
3. Highways England
4. Surrey County Council
5. Natural England
6. Historic England
7. Thames Water
8. Environment Agency
9. Kingston Hospital NHS Foundation Trust
10. TfL
11. Kingston CCG and NHS England.
Businesses and Landowners
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.

Merton College and the Crown Estate
Aviva Investors
Nathaniel Lichfield and Partners (On behalf of Merlin Attractions Operations Limited)
GL Hearn (On behalf of Meyer Homes)
John Lewis
Berkeley Group (St George West London Ltd)
Eden Walk Shopping Centre Limited Partnership
14

B65
8. CgMs (On behalf of Kames Capital)
9. Deloitte LLP (On behalf of Fenwick Limited)
Residential Associations and other groups
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

Chessington District Residents’ Association
New Malden Residents’ Association
South of the Borough Liberal Democrats
Surbiton Liberal Democrats
North Kingston Liberal Democrats
HM Specialist Inspector of Health and Safety (Risk Assessment)

Local Residents - Emailed representations
In addition to the 172 consultees who responded to the online survey, a further 20 local residents emailed
their representations to the local plan inbox.

15

B66

Appendix 2 – Online Survey
Question 1 - Do you agree with the proposed areas for selective growth in the Direction of Travel?
Question 1a
● Question 1a - Increased transport accessibility to central London, further enhanced through
Crossrail 2
●

Question 1a - A new train station with over site development

●

Question 1a - Significant delivery of new homes including affordable housing and jobs

●

Question 1a - A new office and mixed use quarter around the Station

●

Question 1a - Provision of creative and small-scale workspaces

●

Question 1a - Continuing protection of Kingston’s historic environment (Listed Buildings, Buildings of
Townscape Merit and Conservation Areas)

●

Question 1a - An expanded retail offer and strengthening of the Metropolitan Town Cent

●

Question 1a - A new transportation interchange (rail and bus)

●

Question 1a - Better connectivity for pedestrians and cyclists

●

Question 1a - Improved access to the riverside

●

Question 1a comments - Do you have any comments?

Question 1b
● Question 1b - Improved access at Norbiton Station with further improvements delivered through
Crossrail 2
●

Question 1b - Increased residential development around Norbiton Station

●

Question 1b - Helping meet the Council’s growth agenda and housing focus for the Cambridge
Road Housing Zone

●

Question 1b - Providing new, mixed tenure homes on the Cambridge Road Estate

●

Question 1b - Residential-led mixed-use development on and around London Road

●

Question 1b - Creation of new and diversified employment opportunities

●

Question 1b - Supporting new infrastructure including school places, open space and transport
improvements

●

Question 1b - Better access for pedestrians and cyclists to the Hogsmill Valley

●

Question 1b comments - Do you have any comments?

Question 1c
●

Question 1c - Substantial delivery of new homes including family housing

●

Question 1c - Improved transport connectivity and an upgraded station, further enhanced by
Crossrail 2

●

Question 1c - New connections through the Hogsmill Valley to Berrylands Station

●

Question 1c - Better access to open space with a new Hogsmill riverside walk

●

Question 1c - Consolidation of the Hogsmill Sewage Treatment Works
16

B67
●

Question 1c - Reducing the effects of odour from the sewage works on the local community

●

Question 1c - Delivery of Hogsmill flood attenuation scheme to protect homes and businesses from
flooding

●

Question 1c comments - Do you have any comments?

Question 1d
●

Question 1d - Enhanced train station and improved frequency of service as a result of Crossrail 2

●

Question 1d - Redevelopment of Cocks Crescent to support a new community hub with enabling
residential and commercial development

●

Question 1d - Increased commercial and residential development around New Malden Station

●

Question 1d - Potential over station development

●

Question 1d - Sustaining and increasing the number of local jobs

●

Question 1d - Supporting a thriving and attractive New Malden High Street

●

Question 1d - Improved connectivity from the station to Kingston Hill Campus

●

Question 1d - Better access to neighbourhood’s key services as a result of improved pedestrian and
cycle networks

●

Question 1d comments - Do you have any comments?

Question 1e
●

Question 1e - Improved frequency of service and accessibility as result of Crossrail 2

●

Question 1e - An upgraded station

●

Question 1e - Provision of over station development

●

Question 1e - An increase in new homes

●

Question 1e - Sustaining an enhanced retail centre and retention of a significant retailer

●

Question 1e - An improved A3 junction at Tolworth Roundabout with better air and noise quality

●

Question 1e - Reducing the severance of A3 as a barrier to movement by providing connections
across the A3

●

Question 1e - Modern industrial units on Chessington Industrial Estate

●

Question 1e - Facilitating the delivery of Tolworth Park

●

Question 1e comments - Do you have any comments?

Question 1f
●

Question 1f - New residential development as a result of Crossrail 2

●

Question 1f - Enhancements to Chessington South and Chessington North stations

●

Question 1f - Potential new station serving Chessington World of Adventures

●

Question 1f - Supporting long term ambitions of Chessington World of Adventures

●

Question 1f - Intensification of Barwell Business Park

●

Question 1f - Supporting a new district centre and sustaining improved local shopping facilities

●

Question 1f - Delivery of Hook/Chessington relief road and associated environmental enhancement
17

B68
●

Question 1f - Improved bus service provision

●

Question 1f - Enhanced network of walking and cycling greenways to wider countryside

●

Question 1f comments - Do you have any comments?

Question 1g
●

Question 1g - Protecting the borough’s distinctive historic environment and established suburban
areas from inappropriate development

●

Question 1g - Timely delivery of social infrastructure (GP’s, schools and community facilities)

●

Question 1g - Coordination with key partners and stakeholders

●

Question 1g - Utilising innovative and wider funding streams to facilitate development

●

Questions 1g - Maximising development opportunities for selective growth in areas of opportunity

●

Question 1g - Working with developers to safeguard and build in station infrastructure and where
appropriate provide over station development

●

Question 1g comments - Do you have any comments?

Question 2 - Are there other areas in the borough we should identify for selective growth?
Question 3 - Are there other areas in the borough we should be seeking to protect and enhance?
Question 4 - What key infrastructure do you think the borough needs to support its growing
population?
Question 5 - Any other comments?

18

B69

Appendix 3 – Amendments to the Direction of Travel in
response to consultation
The table below sets out all amendments to the Direction of Travel in response to comments from officers
and consultation.
Page

Item/map/paragraph

iv and v

Detail

Action

Check that both the Mayor and
Leader are happy with the
current forewords.

Check with the Leader and
the Mayor of London if
updates are required

v

Paragraph 3

Update text to read: ‘as one of
three Royal London Boroughs’.

Text update

vi

Footer

Include definition for
‘Intensification’

Add footer to read:
Intensification definition
“sustainability increasing
density whilst optimising
the development potential
of plots”

10

Table at the top of the
page

Check that figures still tally.

Update figures/graph if
required. GLA to check
figures

10

Pink text at the foot of
the page

Update to include justification of
where the homes and jobs
figure has come from for
Kingston.

Add in a sentence

10

Kingston ‘Homes and
Jobs’ figures

Check that figures are updated

GLA to update figures if
required

14, 16,
22, 24

Map

Positioning of all stations,
particularly New Malden and
Chessington North, are incorrect

Check positioning of all
stations and amend on
maps

14, 16,
22, 24

Map

MOL boundary incorrect in
some places (plot in bottom-left
corner) of Hogsmill

Check all boundaries
including MOL

15, 23, 25

Key

Key is not clear

Add a background to the
key (like sub area maps) to
ensure clear

15

Key

Check colours of key to colours
on maps. Currently the Green
Belt and MOL do not match the
colours on the map

Ensure the colours of the
key match the map. If it
means changing the key to
darker tones, then please
do so. They now match on
the subarea maps, so
unsure why these are
unclear.
19

B70

16

Kingston Places

Create new ‘place’ for Hogsmill
Valley

Create new place for
Hogsmill Valley

16

Kingston Places

Identify two other Kingston
University campus’ - Knights
Park and Penrhyn Road

Update map to include
lines to all three Kingston
University sites

17

End of text

Add sentence at the end: ‘High
quality design is, and will
continue to be a key priority for
the Council’.

Add text

18-19

Pink text - population
stats

Update the population estimates

Update the population
estimates to reflect GLA
latest projections

18-19

Footnote

Source the population estimates

Add footnotes to both
pages sourcing population
estimates

18

End of text

Add sentence at the end: ‘Note
that the OLC Report also states,
“there is no one size fits all
solution for town centre
renewal? Redevelopment, so
any intensification would have
to take account of the particular
needs and characteristics of the
individual town centre such as
heritage and cultural assets, as
well as local character”.

Add text

19

Paragraph 1

Add text after ‘rapidly rising
population’: ‘including new
affordable homes, a diverse
range of employment
opportunities, and expanded
leisure and community facilities’.

Add text

20-21

Story so far

Include Eden Walk.

Include photo and text on
eden Walk. Photo has
been provided.

20-21

Story so far

Text under images.

Remove the word
‘consented’. This implies
that all schemes are
consented with legal
agreements signed.

22

Map

Yellow text unclear

Change the colour of
‘Wood Street
enhancements’ and
‘Tolworth Deck’ as the
yellow text is unclear. This
will also require a change
20

B71

of colour to the polygons.
22

Map

Add new infrastructure
improvement project

Add Kingston Flood
Alleviation Scheme

22

Map

Add new infrastructure
improvement project

Add River Thames
Scheme

23

Paragraph 1

After ‘relocation’, add: ‘and
extension’.

Add text

23

Paragraph 2

Add sentence at the end of the
paragraph: ‘The Environment
Agency are also working on a
River Thames Scheme to
address Fluvial Flooding with all
local authorities between
Berkshire and Surrey’.

Add sentence

23

Paragraph 5

Update Crossrail 2 operation
date to 2033.

Update year

23

End of text

Add sentence at end of text:
‘There is a need to maximise
economic development benefits
around transport schemes to
make a successful case for
investment’.

Add sentence

24

Map

Change the name of Norbiton,
London Road and Cambridge
Estate

Add the word ‘Road’ in to
text to read ‘Norbiton,
London Road and
Cambridge R
 oad Estate’

24

Map

Labels unclear: ‘Kingston Uni
Sports Ground’, ‘King Georges
Field’ - as well as all other
recreation grounds

Update labels to be more
clear

25

Key

Add background

Add background to map
key to make more clear

25

First paragraph

55,000 population figure

Figure comes from London
Infrastructure Plan. Ensure
that all population figures
are consistent throughout
the plan, ensuring they
match text on pages 18-19.

25

First paragraph

Add a comma into the text

Provide and encourage
residents with opportunities
to live and work locally,
careful consideration

25

Paragraph 7

Add sentence to the end of the
paragraph: ‘This will be

Add sentence

21

B72

completed in Spring 2017’.
25

Paragraph 8

Replace ‘quantum’ with
‘amount’.

Replace word

25

Paragraph 8

Replace ‘transformational’ with
‘significant’.

Replace word

26, 27,
28, 29,
30, 31,
32, 33,
34, 35

Map

Capitalise ‘Conservation Area’

Update labels

26, 28, 30
32 36

Map

Ensure the station symbols are
in the correct locations

Update labels

26

Map

Check map scale. If maps are
not consistent across all
sub-areas, consider zooming
out to include all the Town
Centre boundary and Kingston
University.

Consider rescaling map,
only if all maps are not
consistent in scale

27, 29,
31, 33,
35, 37

End of text

Add sentence after the bullet
points: ‘We recognise that new
growth must be balanced with
the unique heritage and
character of the Borough’.

Add sentence

27

Bullet point 3

Add two commas into the text:
Significant delivery of new
homes, including affordable
housing, and jobs

Add commas

27

Bullet point 7

Add ‘leisure and cultural’ after
the word ‘retail’

Add text

27

End of text

Add bullet point at the end:
‘Enhanced and improved higher
educational facilities’.

Add bullet point

28

Title

Add Road into the title:
Norbiton, London Road &
Cambridge R
 oad Estate

Add text

27, 29,
31, 33,
35, 37

Key

Add ‘(SINC)’ acronym after Site
of Importance for Nature
Conservation

Add acronym

27, 29, 31

Key

Missing item in key

Add Hogsmill River to the
key

30

Map

MOL boundary incorrect section in the bottom-left corner

Check MOL boundary and
update
22

B73

of the MOL should not be
included.
31

Bullet point 1

Add ‘and student
accommodation’’ at the end of
sentence

Add text

31

End of text

Add bullet point at the end:
‘Continued protection of
Hogsmill Valley and its ecology’

Add bullet point

34

Label

Spelling error: ‘Tolworth District
Centre’

Update label

35

Last bullet point

Add onto last bullet point: ‘and
enhanced leisure/sports
facilities’

Add text

40

Bullet point 1

Update date to: ‘Spring 2017’

Update date

43

Add RBK Translation
Page

Add the RBK Translation page
into the document

Add page

Back
cover

Footer of the page

Website link doesn’t work:
http://www.london.gov.uk/Kingst
onDOT

GLA to either amend to
work or remove.

Back
cover

Viv Evans tel number
incorrect

Change from
020 8547 5399 to 020 8547
5933

Amend text

23

B74

Appendix 4 – Quantitative Analysis of Survey Results
The Council’s Strategic Business Team carried out a comprehensive data analysis for all responses
received via the online portal. Note that this considers the online survey responses only, accounting for 172
of all 219 responses received.
The key findings of this analysis are set out below.
Profile of respondents
The survey asked a number of standard demographic questions. This is for equalities monitoring and to
check how representative the respondent profile is when compared with that of the borough as a whole.
Due to the small number of respondents to the survey analysis by sub-group is not feasible.
Respondents were asked in what capacity they were answering the questionnaire. The vast majority (88%)
are local residents.

Areas where the survey profile differs significantly to the borough population are summarised below:
●
●
●

●
●

Females make up a smaller proportion of those answering the survey.
The survey is under-represented by young adults (aged up to 24), and overrepresented by those
aged 45 to 74.
Among ethnic groups, White British respondents make up a bigger proportion of respondents than
the borough profile. Responses from other ethnic groups make up a significantly smaller proportion
compared with the borough as a whole.
There is a comparatively higher proportion of respondents with no religion in the survey.
Across many of these facets significant proportions of respondents indicate a preference ‘not to say’
which can distort the findings for other groups

Kingston town centre

B75
The chart below places the statements in descending order based on the level of agreement. For all of the
statements the level of agreement outweighs disagreement. There are also some statements further down
the chart where the proportion selecting ‘neither’ is high.
Agreement is highest for protecting the historic environment in Kingston town centre (95%). Indeed within
the whole consultation this is the statement with the highest level of agreement from respondents. It is also
marked out by a very high level of strong agreement (77%).
In contrast expanding the retail offer and strengthening of the metropolitan town centre receives a much
lower level of agreement (45%). Accessibility and transport links are the other themes that receive strong
support.

(N.B. Total number of respondents are listed down the right hand side)
Norbiton, London Road and Cambridge Road Estate

B76
Supporting new infrastructure receives the highest level of agreement (82%), followed by employment
opportunities – the area includes some of the most deprived parts of the borough. These rate more highly
than developments in relation to housing where although agreement is higher than disagreement (except
for the final statement concerning residential development around Norbiton station) there is a substantial
amount of neutral opinion and ‘don’t know’.
It is interesting to note the degree of strong support for access to Hogsmill Valley amongst the other
statements.

(N.B. Total number of respondents are listed down the right hand side)

Berrylands and Hogsmill Valley
Addressing the issue of odour from the sewage treatment works and delivering the flood attenuation
scheme receive the highest levels of agreement from respondents.

B77

The delivery of new homes is a comparatively lower priority, supported by just under half of respondents.
Disagreement (21%) is noticeably higher than that seen for other statements.

(N.B. Total number of respondents are listed down the right hand side)

27

B78
New Malden
The main focus appears to be the local economy where agreement is highest for ‘supporting a thriving and
attractive New Malden High Street’ and ‘sustaining and increasing the number of local jobs’. This is
followed by accessibility. In contrast the statements relating to development receive lower levels of
agreement, and where around one in five respondents actively disagree. There are also relatively high
levels of people stating ‘neither’ or ‘don’t know’ to the latter statements shown in the chart.

(N.B. Total number of respondents are listed down the right hand side)

28

B79
Tolworth
Improving the A3 junction at Tolworth roundabout receives the most agreement (81%), followed by an
upgraded Tolworth station (79%).
Similar to other areas in the consultation, support for over station development receives low levels of
support compared with other statements.

(N.B. Total number of respondents are listed down the right hand side)

29

B80
Chessington
The highest rated statements relate to transport infrastructure, with nearly three-quarters of respondents
agreeing to an enhanced network or walking and cycling greenways to the wider countryside, and to
improved bus service provision.

(N.B. Total number of respondents are listed down the right hand side)

30

B81
Rest of the borough
Similar to the views concerning Kingston, protecting the borough’s historic environment and established
suburban areas from inappropriate development is a high priority for respondents. 94% agree with the
statement. This is followed by timely delivery of social infrastructure (93%).
In contrast, maximising development opportunities for selective growth in areas of opportunity receives
comparatively lower levels of agreement (46%).

(N.B. Total number of respondents are listed down the right hand side)

31

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

Annex 3 – Responses to the Direction of Travel Consultation
The tables below set out all responses received to the public consultation for the Direction of Travel and the Council’s response.
Table of Contents
Emailed responses to the consultation
Statutory Consultees
Businesses and Landowners
Residential Associations and other groups
Local Residents
Online questionnaire responses to the consultation

B82

Question 1 - Do you agree with the proposed areas for selective growth in the Direction of Travel?
Question 1(a) - Kingston Town Centre
Question 1(b) - Norbiton, London Road & Cambridge Road Estate
Question 1(c) - Berrylands and Hogsmill Valley
Question 1(d) - New Malden
Question 1(e) - Tolworth
Question 1(f) - Chessington
Question 1(g) - Rest of the borough
Question 2 - Are there other areas in the borough we should identify for selective growth?
Question 3 - Are there other areas in the borough we should be seeking to protect and enhance?
Question 4 - What key infrastructure do you think the borough needs to support its growing population?
Question 5 - Any other comments?

1

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

Emailed responses to the consultation
Statutory Consultees
ID
1

Respondent
NHS Kingston
CCG response
(Tonia
Michaelides Chief Officer)
Received:
04/08/16

1

Received:
04/08/16
1

NHS Kingston
CCG response
(Tonia
Michaelides Chief Officer)
Received:
04/08/16

RBK Response

I would like to begin by saying that the CCG embraces the ambition expressed in the
Comments and support for the
Direction of Travel document. The growth agenda as described presents a huge
document noted.
opportunity to develop health and care services in Kingston fit for the 21st Century. As you
are aware the Council and CCG are jointly sponsoring an ambitious programme to integrate
health and social care services in Kingston. We must ensure that the plans as outlined in
the Direction of Travel document fully address the requirements of delivering this new way
of working.
Having reviewed the document there are several specific points that I believe need to be
considered as the development proposals are taken forward

Document
Update
No change.

Involvement of partners in planning decisions
Currently the CCG is approached on a fairly ad-hoc basis as to whether there are any
health needs within a given planning proposal. These requests are often made without
important information for us to respond appropriately. I believe it would be useful to set up a
multi-agency forum where information on upcoming planning applications could be shared.
The forum would also be a place where partners could horizon scan and join up separate
planning applications to make a comprehensive case to develop local services in a
particular geographical area.

Comments noted. The Council
No change.
welcomes any suggestions for closer
working with the CCG and will
consider the possibility of setting up
a working forum.

Workforce
Any growth in population will mean an increase in demand for health and care services.
Whilst our vision for full integration of health and care services will go some way to meeting
this increase it is inevitable that more people delivering services will be required. It is
important that we develop our workforce strategies with the assumptions made about
projected population growth embedded from the start. It is not enough to include just the
projected numbers but also the profile of the population as the demographics of the
proposed population growth will determine the type of health and care services that needed
in the future.
It is of course not enough to plan for the workforce required we also need to secure the
right skill mix to deliver the services required. We know that we need to develop our
workforce and move away from traditional roles. We also know that access to affordable
housing is a significant issue for people when deciding where to work.
Organisations coming together to meet the challenge presented in the Direction of Travel
document gives us an opportunity to put in place new training programmes to develop the
workforce required going forward and to tackle the issue of affordable housing collectively.

Comments noted. The Council
recognise that key to facilitating and
managing new growth is to ensure
new investment and improvement in
supporting infrastructure, including
healthcare infrastructure. We also
recognise that this investment must
be planned strategically through the
new Local Plan.

B83

NHS Kingston
CCG response
(Tonia
Michaelides Chief Officer)

Comment

No change.

2

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
1

NHS Kingston
CCG response
(Tonia
Michaelides Chief Officer)
Received:
04/08/16

2

Kingston
University
Received:
18/08/16

Estates
The need to maximise the potential of public estate is a key component to the successful
delivery of the growth agenda in Kingston. A single, multi-agency estates strategy for
Kingston will achieve this. The estates strategy will help us to identify sites that could be
used to provide crucial services to local communities. It will also identify that estate which is
surplus to requirements and support the case for retaining any receipts from the sale of
such sites to reinvest in local services.

Comments on regeneration noted.
The Council has commenced a
review of its estates through its
regeneration programme, which will
help meet the need for additional
homes to be provided. The Council
also acknowledges that its existing
housing stock needs improving.

No change.

Kingston University
Comments noted on the important
No change.
Kingston University has an important role within the Royal Borough of Kingston upon
role of Kingston University within the
Thames, both through the provision of high quality teaching for its students and through its Borough.
role as a major employer within the Borough, generating £221.1 million for the local
economy last year. In 2014/15, Kingston University employed approximately 1,800 people
across four campuses and sustained 3,800 local jobs within the Royal Borough of Kingston
and 7,900 jobs across London.
Kingston University’s graduates have consistently produced more new business start-ups
than any other UK university, supporting 2,800 new jobs in the UK in 2014/15. There are
approximately 18,000 students studying at Kingston University.

B84

The University also manages three residential sites within RBK (Clayhill, Seething Wells
and Middle Mill) as well as providing residential accommodation at the Kingston Hill
campus. It provides 2,365 rooms of managed student accommodation and leases
additional rooms from a third party provider on an annual basis.
The University also plays an important role in the community and supports cultural activities
such as those at the Rose Theatre, Stanley Picker Gallery and Dorich House Museum.
In June this year, the University engaged in consultation with Members of RBK and the
local community regarding its Estate Vision, which aims to create new high quality buildings
that will provide a better teaching and learning experience as well as additional residential
accommodation on its own land. The aims of the Estate Vision are supported by Kingston
Borough’s Core Strategy (April 2012), which identifies that the Council will work in
partnership with the University to enhance its facilities and their role in the local economy
We set out below our detailed comments on each section of the draft document in a format
that also responds to the Council’s online questionnaire.
2

Kingston
University

Draft Direction of Travel Document
1. Comments noted. The Council
Page 16, Kingston
1. Kingston University welcomes the Council’s recognition that the University’s Kingston Hill recognises that all of the University's Places
campus is one of the Borough’s assets and key strengths (page 16 and 17) and also
assets contribute towards its
Map update: All

3

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
Received:
18/08/16

welcomes the inclusion of the Town House as a large-scale development that is coming
forward in the Borough (page 21). However it is considered that the Knights Park and
Penrhyn Road campuses (or the University generally) should also be identified as an asset
to the Borough.
2. Kingston University not only brings students to the Borough through its provision of high
quality education but it also has many graduates staying in the borough following
graduation, resulting in wider economic and social benefits.

2

Kingston
University
Received:
18/08/16

2. Comments noted.
1. Comments noted. An additional
reference to enhanced leisure/sports
facilities in Tolworth has been
included in the revised document.

Pages 35; Last
bullet point.
Original text:
Facilitating the
delivery of Tolworth
2. The relocation of Kingston Station Park.
is in the early stages of investigation Update: Facilitating
the delivery of
and will require testing and liaison
Tolworth Park and
with a number of key partners. The
text has been updated to reference enhanced
leisure/sports
the station extension as well as
facilities.
relocation.
Page 23; Paragraph
1
Original text: ‘This,
along with the
potential relocation
of the station closer
to the river’
Update: ‘This, along
with the potential
relocation and
extension of the
station closer to the
river’

2. Reference is also made in the draft consultation document to all of the Borough’s train
stations being identified on the Crossrail 2 route which will increase the service level.
Kingston University supports the provision of Crossrail 2 within the Borough. The
enhancement of public transport aligns with the goals and vision of Kingston University to
reduce reliance on the motor car and increase travel by public transport for its staff and
employees. As a general query, we note that the infrastructure improvements plan identifies
that Kingston Station may be extended, but the accompanying text refers to the potential
relocation of the station closer to the river, with no reference to an extension. Please can
this be clarified to avoid any confusion?

2

Kingston
University
Received:
18/08/16

Emerging Areas of Opportunity
1. The draft document should recognise the importance of higher education in the Borough
and the University's need to enhance and expand its facilities. The provision of high quality
educational and residential facilities is important to ensure that the University continues to
attract higher education students to the borough to study and in order to ensure that the
associated economic benefits are retained and extended.

three Kingston
University
Campuses sites
identified - Knights
Park and Penrhyn
Road

1. Comments noted. Text will be
amended in the revised document to
further recognise the importance of
higher education in the Borough and
the University's need to enhance and
expand its facilities.

Page 27, End of text
Update: Added
bullet point at the
end: ‘Enhanced and
improved higher
educational

4

B85

Infrastructure Improvements
1. The consultation document identifies that the potential delivery of Tolworth Park would
increase leisure opportunities by providing improved access to open space as well as
supporting the enhancement of biodiversity. Kingston University considers that there are
additional opportunities to enhance leisure opportunities in the Tolworth area through a joint
venture between Kingston University and the Council for the provision of a multi-use,
community leisure centre at the University’s Tolworth Sports Ground, which would be
available to the University as well as to the local community. This would be particularly
important given the likely increase in the residential population in the Tolworth area since
we note that there is a lack of indoor sports facilities within the Borough. The University
therefore consider that the Direction of Travel Document should make reference to
investigating opportunities for additional indoor sports facilities in the Tolworth area and in
particular, at the University’s Tolworth Sports Ground as part of a wider review of MOL
boundaries.

reputation. The map on page 16/17
has been updated in the revised
document to include reference to
Knights Park and Penrhyn Road
campuses.

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

2

Kingston
University

facilities’.
2. Educational facilities are also
considered to fall under infrastructure
therefore there is a recognition that is
an element that will be considered
for requiring investment and
significant improvements.

3. The provision of managed student accommodation on the University’s own land is an
important part of the plan for additional affordable residential accommodation. It reduces
rental costs, and allows the University to promote communal living and improved interaction
between students. This leads to a significantly improved student experience. Whilst it is
noted that there are a number of student accommodation developments within Kingston
Town Centre these are often double the cost of the University’s managed accommodation.
The University is therefore reviewing its estate (in particular, Kingston Hill and Seething
Wells) to identify suitable locations for additional student residential accommodation. We
consider that the need for new managed student accommodation, particularly within the
University’s estate should be acknowledged and supported in principle.

3. The Council also acknowledges a
need for managed student
accommodation within the Borough,
in particular with nomination rights
for Kingston University. Where
appropriate, the Council will support
the delivery of additional managed
student accommodation.

Question 1 - Do you agree with the proposed areas for selective growth in the
Direction of Travel?

All comments and support noted.

Page 26; Map
Update: Map scale
1. Regarding Kingston Town Centre, amended across all
sub-areas to include
1. Kingston Town Centre
proposed additional text and reKingston University generally supports the selective growth in the Direction of Travel for
scaling of map will be considered for entire Town Centre
boundary and
Kingston Town Centre. In particular it supports the provision of enhanced rail and bus
the revised document.
Kingston University.
facilities and Crossrail 2. However it is considered that the following bullet point should also
GLA to check map
be added to the Council’s list of selective redevelopment in Kingston Town centre:
2. Comments noted regarding
scales.
“Enhanced and improved Higher Education facilities for Kingston University.
Norbiton, London Road and
In addition, the map on page 26 should be rescaled or repositioned in order to show the
Cambridge Estate.
entire town centre boundary, including Kingston University’s Penrhyn Road campus.
Pages 35; Last
bullet point.
3. Regarding Berrylands and
Original text:
2. Norbiton, London Road and Cambridge Estate
Hogsmill Valley, thank you for
Facilitating the
Kingston University supports improved access at Norbiton Station with further
pointing this error. The map will be
delivery of Tolworth
improvements delivered through Crossrail 2.
amended accordingly.
Park.
Update: Facilitating
3. Berrylands and Hogsmill Valley
4. Comments noted regarding New
the delivery of
The need for the provision of 2,500 student residential units for Kingston University has
Malden.
Tolworth Park and
been identified in the Kingston Borough’s Core Strategy (April 2012), this included an
enhanced
allocation of a strategic site for 300 additional student residential units within the Hogsmill
5. Regarding Tolworth, as mentioned leisure/sports
Valley, adjoining the existing Clayhill Campus. However, due to odour concerns and other
above an addition reference to
facilities.
matters, proposals for student accommodation at this site have not progressed.
enhanced leisure/sport facilities in
this area has been included in the
The selective growth in the Direction of Travel for Berrylands and Hogsmill Valley identifies revised document.

5

B86

Received:
18/08/16

2. As outlined above, there is a potential opportunity to identify Kingston University’s Sports
Ground for an indoor community and University sports centre and we request that the
Tolworth Sports Ground is included within the Tolworth Area of Opportunity, alongside
supporting text identifying that the Council and Kingston University will work together to
consider opportunities for the provision of a sports centre at the Tolworth Sports Ground
site.

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
that the Council will promote selective redevelopment that could reduce the effects of odour
from the sewage works on the local community. Kingston University is supportive of this
aim and requests that the potential for provision of additional student residential
accommodation on the land to the east of Clayhill is included in the redevelopment list at
page 31. We note that the Direction of Travel document incorrectly includes the land to the
east of Clayhill as MOL land. The Council’s proposals map identifies that the site is not
MOL and we request that the plan at page 30.31 is
amended accordingly.
4. New Malden
Kingston University supports improved connectivity from New Malden Station to Kingston
University’s Kingston Hill campus.

6. Comment noted. We consider
Kingston University to be a key
partner and stakeholder in any future
growth strategy for the Borough,
therefore this text will not change.
Note that further reference to all
three of Kingston University's
campuses are included within the
revised document.

5. Tolworth
Kingston University supports the proposals to upgrade Tolworth Station. As part of the
wider MOL boundary review during the preparation of the new Local Plan, we consider that
the selective redevelopment in Tolworth should include the provision of a new leisure
centre at Kingston University’s Tolworth Sports Ground via a joint venture between the
Council and Kingston University. An additional bullet point should be added to the list,
stating: “Potential new leisure centre at Kingston University’s Tolworth Sports Ground”.

2

Kingston
University
Received:
18/08/16

2

Kingston
University
Received:
18/08/16

B87

6. Rest of the Borough
We consider that an additional bullet point should be added to the list, stating that:
“Working in partnership with Kingston University to support its need for additional and
enhanced educational and student residential facilities, including Kingston University’s
Penrhyn Road, Kingston Hill and Knights Park campuses.”
Question 3 - Are there other areas in the borough we should be seeking to protect
and enhance?
Kingston University's long term ambition for the regeneration and intensification of its three
academic campuses within Kingston; Penrhyn Road, Knights Park and Kingston Hill should
be recognised in the draft document. Emerging local policies should support the sensitive
redevelopment, expansion and refurbishment of all three Kingston University campuses to
support Kingston University’s need for high quality teaching facilities and student
accommodation managed by the University.

Comments noted. Any ambition to
improve the University facilities will
fall under the wider consideration of
improving infrastructure. Comments
on local policy should be submitted
as part of the Issues and Options
consultation of the new Borough wide Local Plan.

No change.

Question 4 - What key infrastructure do you think the borough needs to support its
growing population?
Kingston University supports access improvements delivered through Crossrail 2 to
Kingston, Norbiton, Berrylands, Surbiton and Tolworth stations. In addition to transport
infrastructure, it will also be important to provide and proactively plan for Kingston’s social
infrastructure (schools, universities, hospitals etc.) as well as its green infrastructure
(access to open space and biodiversity) to support its growing population. As detailed

Comments and support noted.

No change.

6

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
above, there may be an opportunity for a new community leisure centre at KU’s Sports
Ground linking this facility to the Council’s proposed new Tolworth Park.
3

Highways
Thank you for your letter dated June 24 2016 inviting Highways England to comment on the
England
Consultation on the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston Upon Thames.
(Andree Gregory) Highways England has been appointed by the Secretary of State for Transport as strategic
highway company under the provisions of the Infrastructure Act 2015 and is the highway
authority, traffic authority and street authority for the strategic road network (SRN). The
Received:
SRN is a critical national asset and as such Highways England works to ensure that it
24/08/16
operates and is managed in the public interest, both in respect of current activities and
needs as well as in providing effective stewardship of its long-term operation and integrity.

Comments on the potential impact
No change.
on the Strategic Road network noted.
The Council welcomes the
opportunity for engagement with
Highways England as part of the
Local Plan process to consider any
potential impacts of future
development.

Highways England will be concerned with proposals that have the potential to impact on the
safe and efficient operation of the SRN, in this case this relates to the M25 junctions 9-10
and the A3 between the M25 J10 and the A309. Although not within the Borough, it should
be noted that these sections are currently operating at a high level of stress and any
additional traffic would add to the existing congestion.

4

Surrey County
Council
Received:
25/08/16

B88

We do not have any particular comments in relation to the Consultation on the Direction of
Travel at the present time other than to state the need to have a full assessment of Local
Plan development impacts on the SRN in due course when you consider the cumulative
traffic implications of any preferred mix of housing and employment. This will need to
examine junction and main carriageway impacts. We would be happy to meet when
convenient to discuss the assessment requirements further.
Surrey County Council Response to the Consultation on the Royal Borough of
Kingston on Direction of Travel
Thank you for consulting Surrey County Council on the Direction of Travel for the Royal
Borough of Kingston upon Thames.

Comments noted. The Council will
No change.
work closely with Surrey County
Council to consider all potential
options of a new relief road. The
Council welcomes any opportunity to
discuss strategic cross boundary
We have responded to your previous Local Plan consultations with comments relating to
cross-boundary issues of strategic importance. Similarly, the focus of our current concern is matters, including education, as part
of the Duty to Cooperate.
on the potential for the proposed strategy for growth to impact on Surrey’s infrastructure,
particularly where there might be added pressure on Sury’s highway network.
The consultation document makes reference to Chessington as a potential long term area
of opportunity linked to Crossrail 2 and the need to plan for its arrival. As a bordering
authority we would expect to be involved in any future joint discussions with other relevant
organisations such as TFL and the Mayor on taking this forward. There is also reference to
proposed infrastructure improvements including the “concept of a Hook/Chessington relief
road.” It states that this is being explored with neighbouring authorities. We are aware of
past officer level engagement between our authorities regarding cross boundary highway
and transport matters, but this has been very much on an informal ad hoc basis and we are

7

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
unclear about any outcomes resulting from our previous joint discussions. Clearly such
proposals have the potential to significantly impact on Sury and we would therefore
welcome more details and discussion with regard to this scheme.
The Duty to Cooperate requirements set out in the National Planning Policy Framework
(NPPF) para 181, specifically refers to the need for evidence of engagement on cross
boundary impacts. It would therefore seem appropriate at this stage for you to liaise with us
on establishing formal processes to achieve clearer outcomes in seeking to resolve these
matters. We would further welcome the opportunity to similarly discuss education provision
with you.
5

Natural England
Received:
25/08/16

1. Do you agree with the proposed areas for selected growth in the Direction of
Travel?
Based on the information currently available we are not aware that the proposed areas for
growth are located in close proximity to any nationally or internationally designated sites.
Nonetheless the potential for indirect impacts on such sites, for example through air or
water related impacts or the effects of increased recreational pressure, will need to be
carefully considered and appropriate mitigation identified to address any adverse impacts.

5

Natural England
Received:
25/08/16

5

Natural England
Received:
25/08/16

B89

Natural England’s advice is that options should be tested through an evidence based
assessment to ensure the selection of areas capable of delivering sustainable
development. Environmentally sensitive locations, including those in close proximity to
designated sites and high quality green infrastructure should only be taken forward if
supporting evidence to demonstrate that adverse impacts can be appropriately mitigated,
having regard to the ecological mitigation hierarchy.

Comments and suggestions noted.
No change.
The preparation of a new Borough wide Local Plan will involve the
testing of the wider environmental
impact of different options and all key
stages through the statutory
Sustainability Appraisal and Strategic
Environmental Assessment
processes.

2. Are there other areas in the borough we should identify for selective growth?
Please refer to our comments above. The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
advocates targeting development on land of least environmental value including previously
developed land, where this is not of high ecological value or where such impacts can be
appropriately mitigated.

Comments and suggestions on
No change.
areas for selective growth noted. The
Council recognises that new growth
must be balanced with the
consideration of the borough's key
assets, which includes greens
spaces and ecological areas.

3. Are there other areas in the borough we should be seeking to protect and
enhance?

Comments and suggestions on
biodiversity noted.

No change.

Biodiversity
Natural England welcomes recognition of the presence and importance of significant areas
of open space and large number of Sites of Importance for Nature Conservation and one
Site of Special Scientific Interest. In accordance with the requirements of the NPPF, all
development should seek to protect and enhance biodiversity and green infrastructure,
including designated sites, where possible.

8

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

The Plan should set out a strategic approach, planning positively for the creation,
protection, enhancement and management of networks of biodiversity. There should be
consideration of geodiversity conservation in terms of any geological sites and features in
the wider environment.
A strategic approach for networks of biodiversity should support a similar approach for
green infrastructure (outlined below). New development should incorporate opportunities to
enhance biodiversity, wherever possible.
5

Natural England
Received:
25/08/16

Green infrastructure
Comments and suggestions on
Natural England recommends a strategic approach to Green Infrastructure to ensure that
green infrastructure noted.
existing areas are protected and opportunities for enhancement and connectivity are
maximised. We trust that a Green Infrastructure Strategy for the Borough will set out
objectives and targets to address areas of deficit and mitigate the direct and indirect
impacts of Local Plan development. This will help to quantify GI requirements and levels of
developer contributions through Planning Obligations and/or Community Infrastructure Levy
(CIL).

No change.

5

Natural England
Received:
25/08/16

Priority habitats, ecological networks and priority and/or protected species
Comments and suggestions on
The Local Plan should be underpinned by up to date environmental evidence, this should
habitats noted.
include an assessment of existing and potential components of ecological networks working
with Local Nature Partnerships, as recommended by paragraph 165 of the NPPF to inform
the Sustainability Appraisal, the development constraints of particular sites, to ensure that
land of least environmental value is chosen for development, and to ensure the mitigation
hierarchy is followed.

B90

Such an approach will be important in establishing objectives and targets for developers to
contribute to when mitigating the effects of development and/or meeting NPPF
requirements.
No change.

Priority habitats and species are those listed under Section 41 of the Natural Environment
and Rural Communities Act, 2006 and UK Biodiversity Action Plan (UK BAP). Further
information is available here: Habitats and species of principal importance in England.
Local Biodiversity Action Plans (LBAPs) identify the local action needed to deliver UK
targets for habitats and species. They also identify targets for other habitats and species of
local importance and can provide a useful blueprint for biodiversity enhancement in any
particular area.
Protected species are those species protected under domestic or European law. Further
information can be found here Standing advice for protected species. Sites containing
watercourses, old buildings, significant hedgerows and substantial trees are possible

9

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
habitats for protected species.
Ecological networks are coherent systems of natural habitats organised across whole
landscapes so as to maintain ecological functions. A key principle is to maintain
connectivity - to enable free movement and dispersal of wildlife e.g. badger routes, river
corridors for the migration of fish and staging posts for migratory birds.
The Borough of Kingston contains irreplaceable habitats, such as ancient woodland and
veteran trees. The Local Plan should include appropriate policies to ensure their protection.
Natural England and the Forestry Commission have produced standing advice on ancient
woodland and veteran trees which you may find helpful.
5

Natural England
Received:
25/08/16

Access and Rights of Way
Comments and suggestions on
Natural England advises that the Plan should include policies to ensure protection and
access noted.
enhancement of public rights of way and National Trails, as outlined in paragraph 75 of the
NPPF.

No change.

B91

Recognition should be given to the value of rights of way and access to the natural
environment in relation to health and wellbeing and links to the wider green infrastructure
network. The plan should seek to link existing rights of way where possible, and provides
for new access opportunities. The plan should avoid building on open space of public value
as outlined in paragraph 74 of the NPPF.
The plan should make provision for appropriate quantity and quality of green space to meet
identified local needs as outlined in paragraph 73 of the NPPF. Natural England’s work on
Accessible Natural Greenspace Standard (ANGSt) may be of use in assessing current level
of
accessible natural greenspace and planning improved provision.
5

Natural England
Received:
25/08/16

Soils
Comments and suggestions on soil
The Local Plan should give appropriate weight to the roles performed by the area’s soils.
noted.
These should be valued as a finite multi-functional resource which underpins our wellbeing
and prosperity.

No change.

Decisions about development should take full account of the impact on soils, their intrinsic
character and the sustainability of the many ecosystem services they deliver.
The plan should safeguard the long term capability of best and most versatile agricultural
land (Grades 1, 2 and 3a in the Agricultural Land Classification) as a resource for the future
in line with National Planning Policy Framework paragraph 112 to safeguard ‘best and most
versatile’ agricultural land.
5

Natural England

Tranquillity

Comments and suggestions on

No change.

10

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

Received:
25/08/16

The Local Plan should identify relevant areas of tranquillity and provide appropriate policy
protection to such areas as identified in paragraph 123 of the NPPF.

tranquility noted.

Tranquillity is an important landscape attribute in certain areas e.g. within National
Parks/AONBs, particularly where this is identified as a special quality. The CPRE have
mapped areas of tranquillity which are available here and are a helpful source of evidence
for the Local Plan and SEA/SA.
5

Natural England
Received:
25/08/16

4. What key infrastructure do you think the borough needs to support its growing
Comments on green infrastructure
population?
and biodiversity noted.
Proposed housing growth in the borough and adjacent areas is likely to put significant
additional pressure on green infrastructure and biodiversity. The effects of increased
recreational pressure will need to be carefully assessed and suitable mitigation identified to
address direct and indirect impacts. A number of nationally and internationally designated
sites are located within close proximity to the Borough boundary including Richmond Park
Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI), Special Area of Conservation (SAC) and National
Nature Reserve (NNR|), Wimbledon Common SSSI, SAC and Epsom and Ashtead
Common SSSI, NNR. Some of these are already under significant pressure from visitors
and this is likely to be increased as a result of future housing allocations. Appropriate
mitigation to address adverse impacts will need to be identified.

No change.

5

Natural England
Received:
25/08/16

5. Any other comments?
The Local Plan should seek to address the full range of environmental issues in
accordance with the NPPF, including protection and enhancement of the natural
environment, including designated sites, biodiversity and geodiversity, local landscape,
green infrastructure, Best and Most Versatile (BMV) land, public access and climate
change and adaptation. The indirect and cross-boundary effects of development on the
natural environment including air and water mediated effects and increased recreational
pressure should be assessed in detail. Consideration will need to be given to the
cumulative and in-combination effects of development across the borough and with those of
adjacent districts.

B92

Evidence that water resources and sewerage infrastructure are sufficient to support growth
without having an adverse impact on the natural environment, including water-dependent
designated sites, will need to be provided. Natural England fully supports proposals to
encourage sustainable travel such as improvements to public transport and enhancement
of cycling and walking routes. This can bring multiple benefits for people and wildlife
including an enhanced natural environment, enjoyment of the countryside, improved health
and wellbeing and contribution to climate change.
Comments and suggestions on other No change.
matters noted. The Council look
forward to engaging with Natural
England further as part of the Duty to
Cooperate for the preparation of the
new Local Plan.

We recommend reference to Natural England’s SSSI Impact Risk Zones (available on
Magic and as a downloadable dataset) to inform the Local Plan SA/HRA and planning
application process. Natural England advises that all relevant Sites of Special Scientific

11

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
Interest (SSSIs), European sites (Special Areas of Conservation and Special Protected
Areas) and Ramsar sites1 should be included on the Proposals Map for the area so they
can be clearly identified in the context of proposed development allocations and policies for
development.
Detailed consideration of the effects of cross-boundary issues such as transport, waterrelated impacts and air quality on the natural environment will also be important. Natural
England’s National Character Area (NCA) Profiles can be found through this link. These
provide a useful basis for helping you to determine the scope of the Local Plan (at least
insofar as it deals with the natural environment), both in terms of issues that you are able to
address unilaterally and those where cross-boundary working is likely to be essential,
efficient and effective.
5

Natural England
Received:
25/08/16

Air pollution
We would expect the plan to address the impacts of air quality on the natural environment.
In particular, it should address the traffic impacts associated with new development,
particularly where this impacts on European sites and SSSIs. The environmental
assessment of the plan (SA and HRA) should also consider any detrimental impacts on the
natural environment, and suggest appropriate avoidance or mitigation measures where
applicable.

Comments and suggestions on other No change.
matters noted. The Council look
forward to engaging with Natural
England further as part of the Duty to
Cooperate for the preparation of the
new Local Plan.

B93

Natural England advises that one of the main issues which should be considered in the
plan and the SA/HRA are proposals which are likely to generate additional nitrogen
emissions as a result of increased traffic generation, which can be damaging to the natural
environment.
The effects on local roads in the vicinity of any proposed development on nearby
designated nature conservation sites (including increased traffic, construction of new roads,
and upgrading of existing roads), and the impacts on vulnerable sites from air quality
effects on the wider road network in the area (a greater distance away from the
development) can be assessed using traffic projections and the 200m distance criterion
followed by local Air Quality modelling where required. We consider that the designated
sites at risk from local impacts are those within 200m of a road with increased traffic, which
feature habitats that are vulnerable to nitrogen deposition/acidification. APIS provides a
searchable database and information on pollutants and their impacts on habitats and
species.
5

Natural England
Received:
25/08/16

Water Quality and Resources and Flood Risk Management
Natural England expects the Plan to consider the strategic impacts on water quality and
resources as outlined in paragraph 156 of the NPPF. We would also expect the plan to
address flood risk management in line with the paragraphs 100-104 of the NPPF.

Comments and suggestions on other No change.
matters noted. The Council look
forward to engaging with Natural
England further as part of the Duty to
Cooperate for the preparation of the
The Local Plan should be based on an up to date evidence base on the water environment new Local Plan.

12

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
and as such the relevant River Basin Management Plans should inform the development
proposed in the Local Plan. These Plans (available here) implement the EU Water
Framework Directive and outline the main issues for the water environment and the actions
needed to tackle them. Local Planning Authorities must in exercising their functions, have
regard to these plans.
The Local Plan should contain policies which protect habitats from water related impacts
and where appropriate seek enhancement. Priority for enhancements should be focussed
on N2K sites, SSSIs and local sites which contribute to a wider ecological network.
Plans should positively contribute to reducing flood risk by working with natural processes
and where possible use Green Infrastructure policies and the provision of SUDs to achieve
this.
5

Natural England
Received:
25/08/16

Climate change adaptation
The Local Plan should consider climate change adaption and recognise the role of the
natural environment to deliver measures to reduce the effects of climate change, for
example tree planting to moderate heat island effects. In addition factors which may lead to
exacerbate climate change (through more greenhouse gases) should be avoided (e.g.
pollution, habitat fragmentation, loss of biodiversity) and the natural environment’s
resilience to change should be protected. Green

Comments and suggestions on other No change.
matters noted. The Council look
forward to engaging with Natural
England further as part of the Duty to
Cooperate for the preparation of the
new Local Plan.

B94

Infrastructure and resilient ecological networks play an important role in aiding climate
change adaptation.
6

Historic England
Received:
25/08/16

Consultation on Direction of travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames Comments noted.
Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the Direction of Travel (DoT) document for
the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames and Greater London Authority. Historic
England is the Government’s advisor on all matters relating to the historic environment and
a statutory consultee on development plan policy documents as well as on a broad range of
applications affecting the historic environment.

No change.

Accordingly, we have reviewed this consultation in the context of the National Planning
Policy Framework (NPPF) and its requirement that for development to be sustainable it
must seek economic, social and environmental gains jointly and simultaneously (para 8).
This includes the protection and enhancement of the historic environment, in order that it
can be enjoyed for its contribution to the quality of life of this and future generations.
We welcome the Mayor of London’s aspiration to ‘protect the best of what we have’ through
this document, as well as the Leader of Council’s acknowledgment of Kingston’s heritage
and its local character. As the NPPF states, heritage assets are an irreplaceable resource
and, as such, local planning authorities should conserve them in a manner appropriate to

13

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
their significance (para 126). We hope the following comments and responses to the
questions in the consultation will help you develop your positive strategy for the
conservation and enjoyment of the historic environment, as part of the growth agenda for
the borough.
In addition to answering the consultation questions we identify the following issues which
should, in our view, be addressed:
6

Historic England
Received:
25/08/16

6

Historic England
Received:
25/08/16

Historic England
Received:
25/08/16

6

Historic England
Received:
25/08/16

Comment on the City in the West
noted. This will be relayed to the
GLA as the City in West document
was produced by them.

Numbers: The housing figures in the DoT (p.10) for Kingston are not consistent with the
Comment on housing figures noted.
figures contained in the City in the West document published (without consultation) on the These figures will be verified in the
GLA’s website. Furthermore the figure is 20% greater than the figure for the borough
revised document.
contained in the FALP, and four times that contained in the Core Strategy and K+20 Area
Action plan when student housing is included as homes.
How has this figure been derived, are the time horizons for the figures comparable and how
have they been tested?

No change.

Page 10; City in the
West diagram
Update: Graph and
figures to reflect
latest.

Status of the document: We are unclear what weight the two planning authorities are giving
to this document. Is this a precursor to an SPG – akin to an OAPF – or is it an issues and
options paper for the Kingston Local Plan? In either case, in our view a full SA/SEA will
need to be undertaken as the DoT appears to address spatial options and potentially
establish new local plan policy. As a statutory consultee on SA/SEA we look forward to
engaging with you in this process.

Comment on status of the document No change.
noted. It is a non-statutory document
that provides the Council's
'Statement of Intent' at the earliest
stage of the process in preparing the
new Borough-wide Local Plan and
an OAPF. It is not an Issues and
Options consultation - this will
happen at a latter time.

Testing of development capacity: At this juncture there is a lack of information on how the
development capacity of different locations will be tested. This is necessary to inform the
allocation of numbers for housing and jobs to ensure that development is truly sustainable,
and damage to the historic environment avoided (NPPF paras 8 and 152). It is essential
that there is detailed background evidence testing the impacts on the historic environment.
This will help ensure that the delivery of significant growth – potentially through an
Opportunity Area designation – achieves net gains in terms of economic, social and
environmental considerations (para 152 NPPF). The Eden Quarter Masterplan would have
benefitted from such analysis and has, in our view, led to potentially unnecessary harm to
heritage assets within Kingston town centre.

Comments noted. Any testing of
No change.
capacity and potential impacts on the
historic environment will take place
as part of the SEA requirements at
each key stage of the Local Plan
preparation.

B95

6

Kingston is not currently designated an Opportunity Area, despite the City in the West
document suggesting otherwise. At the examination of the Further Alterations to the
London Plan (FALP) the Planning Inspector (paras 86 and 87) noted that the scale of
change that Opportunity Area status usually envisages, merited consultation and that this
will provide communities an opportunity to influence how the area will be developed. How
will consultation on Opportunity Area status be conducted, and will this question be
addressed as a separate exercise?

14

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
6

Historic England
Received:
25/08/16

Do you agree with the proposed areas for selective growth in the Direction of Travel?
1. The areas for selective growth are poorly defined in this document. This is both spatially,
due to the lack of clear boundaries on the maps, and because there is no clear definition of
what ‘selective growth’ means in the DoT.

Pages 27, 29, 31,
33, 35, 37; End of
Text
Sentence added
after bullet points:
‘We recognise that
new growth must be
balanced with the
unique heritage and
character of the
Borough’.

B96

1. Comments noted. In relation to the
first point, the areas of opportunity
identified are indicative only. The
term 'selective growth' is considered
appropriate as no specific growth
2. Considering the Emerging Areas of Opportunity on p.24, it is clear that there are potential targets have been set for the areas
of opportunity.
contradictions between growth areas and the conservation of Kingston’s most sensitive
heritage assets. Where such conflicts are likely to be raise issues – particularly in Kingston
town centre and other conservation areas – it is important that these are identified at the
2. In the relation to the second point,
earliest stage and that a robust examination of the options for growth is carried out. Once
Kingston is earmarked for significant
the necessary evidence regarding the sensitivity and capacity of sites in different areas of
growth in new homes and jobs over
the borough is available– including an assessment of the impacts on the historic
the coming years. However, we
environment – this will assist the assessment through the SA/SEA process of which areas recognise that the Local Plan must
should be focused on and what quantum of growth would be appropriate.
balance the need for growth with the
conservation of character in our built
environment and heritage assets.
3. We are concerned to note that the DoT seems to suggest that heritage protection may
Therefore, to mitigate against
be optional: “selective redevelopment in this part of the borough could result in ...
continuing protection of Kingston’s historic environment”, notably for Kingston Town Centre, negative impacts on our historic
which has the highest concentration of designated and undesignated heritage assets in the urban environment will require
improvements to heritage
borough (p.27). Avoiding harm to the historic environment and positively pursuing
management. This will involve
improvements that better reveal heritage significance are key tenants of sustainable
gaining a comprehensive
development (NPPF paras 9, 126 and 152).
understanding of the value of our
heritage, identifying mechanisms for
their protection, and establishing and
integrating management plans into
the overall planning framework.
3. In relation to the third point, a
reference will be added to each subarea of the revised document
recognising the importance of
protecting and enhancing heritage
and character.

6

Historic England
Received:
25/08/16

2. Are there other areas in the borough we should identify for selective growth?
Comments noted.
Kingston carried out a Borough Characterisation study in 2011, which assesses in great
detail the character and quality of different parts of the borough. This should help guide
both where new development is concentrated, and the forms and scale of development that
is likely to complement and enhance existing local, positive characteristics. Such an
approach would be entirely in accordance with London Plan Policy 7.4. The recommended
evaluation of sensitivity referred to above should help inform whether there is a need to
accommodate growth in a less concentrated manner.

No change.

15

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
6

Historic England
Received:
25/08/16

3. Are there other areas in the borough we should be seeking to protect and
Comments noted.
enhance?
As well as the historic town centre in Kingston, we would encourage you to consider how
you could enhance the value of later built heritage, such as the Victorian phases of growth
associated with the development of the railway and the suburbs. For example, Surbiton has
some fine examples of early suburban development, but appears to be largely avoided by
the proposals in this document. New Malden also has some attractive early twentieth
century buildings and could be made into a really special high street with a distinctive
identity if these are identified and enhanced, and the diverse local community is celebrated.

No change.

Many parts of Kingston are open and green, an important characteristic of outer London. It
is important to understand the suburban nature, and the importance of large green spaces
within that, before these are designated for housing development. Nevertheless, we note
there appear to be large amounts of MOL currently containing industrial or semi-industrial
uses (such as sewage works), which could potentially be enhanced by new development, if
higher quality public open spaces are created as a result.
6

Historic England
Received:
25/08/16

Comments noted. As noted above, a
reference will be added to each subarea of the revised document
recognising the importance of
protecting and enhancing heritage
and character.

Pages 27, 29, 31,
33, 35, 37; End of
Text
Sentence added
after bullet points:
‘We recognise that
new growth must be
balanced with the
unique heritage and
character of the
Borough’.

1. All comments noted. For p.17,
amendments to include the Arcadian
Landscape will be considered,
although the places identified are
indented to be indicative only and not
exhaustive. At this stage the
Emerging Area of Opportunity

Page 18; Last
paragraph

In addition to Kingston Town Centre there are other elements of the borough’s heritage that
could be better recognised and celebrated. By fostering a strong sense of local identity,
which relates to the existing communities and environment, the Council can facilitate the
introduction of new homes and workplaces. This is because residents will consider change
in their areas more positively if they are confident that the important buildings and
distinctive areas will be retained, and that schemes will enhance their environment and
amenities further.
6

Historic England
Received:
25/08/16

5. Any other comments.
1. P.17 Kingston Places – It is surprising that there is no reference to the Borough
Character Study 2011 while the choice of places seems to include both good examples and
those in need of redevelopment, without qualification. We are pleased that reference is
made to Richmond Gate. However, we would also encourage you to recognise the
Arcadian Landscape that is strategically important to the character of south-west London on
your maps. This is evident at Hampton Court Home Park, Bushy Park as well as Richmond

Update: Sentence
added - ‘Note that
the OLC Report also
states, “there is no

16

B97

4. What key infrastructure do you think the borough needs to support its growing
population?
Heritage should be seen as part of the environmental infrastructure that gives a place
character and identity. This is because it enables and encourages people to live and enjoy
an area, as well as visit and spend money in it. Kingston has some very clearly defined
heritage assets, notably in Kingston town centre which the Council has acknowledged (in
the case of the Eden Walk redevelopment) are likely to be harmed if approved development
takes place. New local plan policies or SPDs should include a positive strategy for
Kingston’s historic environment. More detail on this is contained in paragraph 126 of the
NPPF.

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
one size fits all
solution for town
centre renewal?
2. On page 18, Para 4.21 of the OLC Redevelopment, so
2. P.18 Growth – We would encourage you to also note noted that the Outer London
Report (7th) has been included in the any intensification
would have to take
Commission (7th report) said (para 4.21): “There is no one size fits all solution for town
revised document.
account of the
centre renewal/redevelopment so any intensification would have to take account of the
particular needs and
particular needs and characteristics of the individual town centre such as heritage and
3. Comment noted regarding views
characteristics of the
cultural assets, as well as local character.” This is key to ensuring that you achieve good
within the historic setting.
individual town
growth that optimises opportunities and respects Kingston’s sense of place.
centre such as
4. Comment noted regarding
heritage and cultural
3. P.25 There is a reference to key views, which we note have yet to be properly identified. historically sensitive areas. Further
assets, as well as
Historic England is happy to support this work to ensure that there is a robust framework for reference has been made to the
local character”.
managing development impacts on views, notably where they are part of the setting of
revised document.
historic landmarks.
Page 25, Paragraph
Comment also noted regarding the
8
4. Pp. 24-5 As noted above the Emerging Areas of Opportunity include the most historically reference to ‘transformational
Update: Replace
sensitive areas of the borough. While this is not a reason not to promote growth within
change’. This reference has been
‘transformational’
them, it requires additional care and attention. Historic England has compiled a report on
updated to read ‘significant’.
with ‘significant’.
those parts of Kingston Town Centre not covered by the Old Town Conservation Area
which should help with your background evidence base. We note that the introduction of
5. Regarding archaeology, the
more than 5,000 jobs and/or 2,500 homes, i.e. sufficient to merit an opportunity area
Council recognises the significance
designation may not be achievable in Kingston Town Centre – depending on where the
of its rich archaeological heritage.
boundaries are drawn – without causing major harm to the historic environment. Therefore
The current planning designations
we recommend that the reference to ‘transformational change’ should be qualified,
map is intended to highlight some of
especially in relation to Kingston Town Centre which should be enhanced rather than
the key characteristics of the
transformed.
Borough and is not intended to be
exhaustive. A review of existing
5. Archaeology - The document should make reference to archaeology within the current
archaeological evidence is being
planning designations section. Kingston has a rich archaeological and architectural
reviewed as part of the preparation
heritage. The borough’s Archaeological Priority Areas (APA) have not been reviewed for
for a new Local Plan.
many years and need to be updated. Since 2011 GLAAS has, with the Mayor’s support,
prepared new guidelines on the definition and description of APAs to ensure that they
comply with the NPPF, support delivery of the Borough’s Local Plan and are up to date and
consistent across London. Importantly the new APAs will include statements of significance
and are assigned to tiers to indicate different levels of sensitivity – this makes them much
more useful in the early assessment of development risk, including those areas designated
as “Identified Growth Areas”. A prioritised borough-by borough programme of updating is
underway. Kingston upon Thames is due for its full review in 2017.
Park and is an important feature which should help shape future growth. The references to
Tolworth Tower and the Cambridge Road estate are confusing in terms of the purpose of
the diagram.

extends beyond the Kingston Town
Centre boundary.

17

B98

Archaeology is a material consideration for future development within an APA and any

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
planning applications should be supported by an Archaeological Desk Based Assessment.
Where major harm is possible an archaeological field evaluation should be carried out in
support of the application. Further details of the archaeological implications of the Emerging
Areas of Opportunity are included in appendix 1.
6

Historic England
Received:
25/08/16

Conclusion
We note that the Council are using this consultation as part of the duty to cooperate and
therefore look forward to holding further discussions with you in the coming months about
these comments. We are keen to explore how we can support you in developing your
policies to optimise growth within the borough as well as your evidence base to underpin
the positive strategy for the historic environment in the new Local Plan and any other
associated planning documents

Comments noted. The Council
welcomes the opportunity for further
engagement as part of the Duty to
Cooperate.

No change.

Thank you for allowing Thames Water Utilities Ltd (Thames Water) to comment upon the
Comments noted and responded to
above. As you will be aware, Thames Water are the statutory water supply and sewerage
as part of the Duty to Cooperate
undertaker for the Borough and are hence a “specific consultation body” in accordance with Scoping Statement.
the Town &amp; Country Planning (Local Planning) Regulations 2012.

No change.

Finally, it must be noted that this advice is based on the information that has been provided
to us and does not affect our obligation to advise on, and potentially object to any specific
development proposal which may subsequently arise from this document, and which may
have adverse effects on the environment.
7

Thames Water
Received:
26/08/16

B99

We have the following comments on the Local Plan consultation:
Infrastructure – Water Supply and Sewerage/Waste Water Treatment
A key sustainability objective for the preparation of the new Local Plan should be for new
development to be co-ordinated with the infrastructure it demands and to take into account
the capacity of existing infrastructure. Paragraph 156 of the National Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF) states:“Local planning authorities should set out strategic policies for
the area in the Local Plan. This should include strategic policies to deliver:……the provision
of infrastructure for water supply and wastewater….”
Paragraph 162 of the NPPF relates to infrastructure and states: “Local planning authorities
should work with other authorities to: assess the quality and capacity of infrastructure for
water supply and wastewater and its treatment…..take account of the need for strategic
infrastructure including nationally significant infrastructure within their areas.”
The web based National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) includes a section on ‘water
supply, wastewater and water quality’ and sets out that Local Plans should be the focus for
ensuring that investment plans of water and sewerage/wastewater companies align with
development needs. The introduction to this section also sets out that “Adequate water and

18

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
wastewater infrastructure is needed to support sustainable development” (Paragraph: 001,
Reference ID: 34-001- 20140306).
Policy 5.14 of The London Plan, March 2015 is directly relevant as it relates to Water
Quality and Wastewater Infrastructure and Policy 5.15 relates to Water Use and Supplies.
Thames Water therefore support Policy IMP2 Sewerage and Water Infrastructure of the
adopted Core Strategy and Policy DM1 in relation to water efficiency and consider that
these should be carried forward in the new borough wide Local Plan.
In this respect we support the recognition on page 9 of the Duty to Co-Operate Scoping
consultation document that the : “Provision of Infrastructure for ......Water Supply and
Waste Water” is a key issue. We also welcome that we are specifically identified in the
table of
‘Strategic Matters with Duty to Cooperate Organisations’ on page 26.
In relation to water efficiency, the Environment Agency has designated the Thames Water
region to be “seriously water stressed” which reflects the extent to which available water
resources are used. Future pressures on water resources will continue to increase and key
factors are population growth and climate change.

B100

Water conservation and climate change is a vitally important issue to the water industry.
Not only is it expected to have an impact on the availability of raw water for treatment but
also the demand from customers for potable (drinking) water. Thames Water support the
mains water consumption target of 110 litres per head per day as set out in the NPPG
(Paragraph: 015 Reference ID: 56-015- 20150327) and consider that this should be
covered in Policy.
However, managing demand alone will not be sufficient to meet increasing demand and
Thames Water adopt the Government’s twin-track approach of managing demand for water
and, where necessary, developing new sources, as reflected in the latest Thames Water
Water Resource Management Plan.
7

Thames Water
Received:
26/08/16

Sustainable Drainage
Limiting the opportunity for surface water entering the foul and combined sewer networks is
of critical importance to Thames Water. Thames Water have advocated an approach to
SuDS that limits as far as possible the volume of and rate at which surface water enters the
public sewer system. By doing this, SuDS have the potential to play an important role in
helping to ensure the sewerage network has the capacity to cater for population growth and
the effects of climate change.

Comments noted. The Council
No change.
welcomes the opportunity to discuss
any capacity matters and phasing of
development as part of the Duty to
Cooperate.

19

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
SuDS not only help to mitigate flooding, they can also help to:
● improve water quality
● provide opportunities for water efficiency
● provide enhanced landscape and visual features
● support wildlife
● and provide amenity and recreational benefits.
In relation to flood zone 1, Thames Water support the requirement that ‘A Drainage
Statement is required for sites all major developments’.
7

Thames Water
Received:
26/08/16

Areas of Opportunity
Specific Water Supply and Sewerage/Wastewater Infrastructure Comments:
Waste Water treatment:
As a cumulative effect the 6,500 dwellings would reduce capacity headroom at Hogsmill
Sewage Treatment Works (STW). However, the STW is currently being upgraded and we
do have capacity for these developments, but it will be important to know the phasing of this
development to inform our growth forecasts.

Comments noted. The Council
No change.
welcomes the opportunity to discuss
any capacity matters and phasing of
development as part of the Duty to
Cooperate.

B101

Waste Water network:
Until details of location, scale and phasing are available we are unable to give detailed
responses indicating what if any upgrades will be required. Developers should therefore be
required to ensure capacity exists via drainage strategies in line with Policy IMP2 of the
core Strategy and be encouraged to liaise with Thames Water at the earliest opportunity.
Proposed schemes/ works:
We are working with consultants acting on behalf of the Borough who are undertaking flood
risk studies. Any schemes will depend on the outcomes of those studies.
Clean Water:
The Kingston area is primarily served by the Surbiton zone. Chessington and a small area
of Kingston is served by Hampton zone.
There are trunk mains serving Tolworth and the London area underneath the A3. Any
redevelopment of the A3 should take into account that these mains must be protected from
damage as a result of construction works.
With regards to Crossrail 2, significant development is expected in the Chessington South
area. Furthermore developments in the Hogsmill Valley/Berrylands area are expected.
There are no current hydraulic models for Chessington or Surbiton zone and impact studies
are required for these areas prior to development.

20

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
7

Thames Water
Received:
26/08/16

Berrylands and Hogsmill Valley Opportunity Area
Thames Water will continue to work with the Council to review the opportunities for this
area which includes Hogsmill STW.

Comments noted. The Council
No change.
welcomes the opportunity to discuss
opportunities that existing in the
Hogsmill STW.

Where development is being proposed within 800m of a STW, such as Hogsmill STW, the
developer or local authority should liaise with Thames Water to consider whether an odour
impact assessment is required as part of the promotion of the site and potential planning
application submission. The odour impact assessment would determine whether the
proposed development would result in adverse amenity impact for new occupiers, as those
new occupiers would be located in closer proximity to a sewage treatment works.
Where development is being proposed within 15m of a pumping station, the developer or
local authority should liaise with Thames Water to consider whether an odour and / or noise
and / or vibration impact assessment is required as part of the promotion of the site and
potential planning application submission. Any impact assessment would determine
whether the proposed development would result in adverse amenity impact for new
occupiers, as those new occupiers would be located in closer proximity to a pumping
station.

B102

Where any such odour study in relation to development near a sewage treatment works or
pumping station identifies there is an odour impact for proposed development and no
improvements are programmed by the water company, then the developer needs to contact
the water company to agree what improvements are required and how they will be
delivered prior to any occupation of the development.
Thames Water also look forward to continuing to work with the Council to review the
opportunities for consolidation and development on land currently associated with Hogsmill
STW. In particular, we have promoted three areas which have been put forward to the GLA
Call
for Sites as identified on the enclosed plans.
The 3 sites put forward are land associated with Hogsmill Sewage Treatment Works.
However, Thames Water is carrying out a review of its landholdings to establish whether
the operational/technical constraints can be overcome to enable the site to be released for
redevelopment. Thames Water would be pleased to discuss the potential for making the
site available further with the Borough and the GLA.
8

Environment
Agency
Received:
26/08/16

Flood risk management and climate change
1. Ensuring new development is directed to the lowest flood risk area wherever possible.
Site layout and building design should be informed by the latest flood maps and climate
change allowances. We recommend adding the flood zone 2 and 3 map onto the current
planning designations map on page 14 to illustrate the levels of flood risk across the

1. Comments noted. Regarding the
infrastructure improvements section,
the referenced infrastructure projects
will be considered for inclusion in the
revised document.

Page 22; Map
Update: Kingston
Flood Alleviation
Scheme included as
an infrastructure

21

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
borough. New infrastructure such as railway stations and bridges should be designed to be
resilient to extreme weather events and remain operational during a flood event.
2. Note that the Council do not
consider the Surbiton Stream
We recommend assessing the flood risk management investment requirements to
Assessment to be strategic enough
accompany as part of the evidence base studies. It should evaluate the current risk both
for the Direction of Travel, however
fluvial and surface water sources across the borough. The plan should also explore the
recognise the importance of this
opportunity for future flood risk management investment that would link with development
work.
proposals and plan how, through the planning process, significant enhancements could be
delivered.

project.
Page 22; Map
Update: River
Thames Scheme
included as an
infrastructure
project.
Page 23; Additional
sentence after
second paragraph:
“The Environment
Agency are also
working on a River
Thames Scheme to
address fluvial
flooding with all local
authorities between
Berkshire and
Surrey.”

Flood risk remains a key issue across the borough. This includes both fluvial and surface
water flooding. Undertaking improvements and reducing both cause and effect of flooding
needs to be integral to any development opportunity for socio-economic and environmental
reasons.
2. We support the reference within the Infrastructure improvements section to flood risk
schemes at Hook and New Malden. This should be expanded to also include the Kingston
Flood Alleviation Scheme and Surbiton Stream assessment. Both these are Environment
Agency projects that aim to reduce flood risk in Kingston and Surbiton.

B103

Reference should also be made to River Thames Scheme to manage flood risk and added
to the infrastructure improvements map on page 22 and 23.
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/river-thames-scheme
Flood risk schemes offer an excellent opportunity to incorporate sustainable development
and integrate with wider infrastructure improvements and biodiversity enhancement. All
development opportunities close to the River Thames, Hogsmill River and Surbiton Stream
must consider flood risk and opportunities to reduce this threat and the potential to enhance
or restore the river channel and natural floodplain. The existing level of flood risk in
Kingston Town Centre and other parts of the Borough may constrain certain
development without significant mitigation.
NPPF Paragraph 100 states
Local Plans should be supported by Strategic Flood Risk Assessment and develop policies
to manage flood risk from all sources, taking account of advice from the Environment
Agency and other relevant flood risk management bodies
8

Environment
Agency
Received:

Integrated water management approach
Developing your new local plan and working with the Greater London Authority on the
opportunity area planning framework will allow for studies to be completed to assess the
environmental infrastructure needs such as water resources and flood risk management
projects. We recommend an integrated water management approach to the planning and

Comments noted.

No change

22

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
26/08/16

delivery of water supplies, wastewater treatment, sustainable surface and storm water
drainage across all the London’s Opportunity Areas. Realisation of the planned growth and
regeneration, will require both area-wide and site-specific measures to deliver cost and
carbon effective solutions.
Please see this example from Old Oak Common and Royal Park opportunity area
https://www.london.gov.uk/sites/default/files/iwms_new_cover_low_res.pdf

8

Environment
Agency
Received:
26/08/16

Protecting and enhancing river corridors and green infrastructure network
Comments noted. Hogsmill Valley
The River Thames, Hogsmill River and the tributaries should be protected and enhanced as has been added as a ‘place’ in the
part of the growth plans. Semi-natural habitat adjacent to the river should be protected,
revised document.
established and positively managed. New development must restore adequate habitat
buffers to the river. This is to protect wildlife dependent on the river corridor. All
development opportunities close to the River Thames and the Hogsmill must consider the
potential to enhance or restore the river channel to conserve important river habitat.

Page 16, Map
Update: New ‘place’
added for ‘Hogsmill
Valley’

We recommend adding the Hogsmill river to the Kingston Places map on page 16 to
maximise opportunities to protect and enhance the river corridors for people and wildlife.

B104

Kingston’s Green Infrastructure network provides ecosystems services. Its contribution to
the well-being and resilience of the borough’s communities and nature should feature
heavily.
The document indicates growth ambitions which will increase urban density and ‘grey’
infrastructure. This provides an opportunity for the borough to take advantage of the
planned growth, especially in the proposed Opportunity Area, to enhance the natural
environment, integrating it with new development and infrastructure to improve resilience to
the effects of climate change, and helping to optimise the efficient use and reuse of
previously developed land.
We suggest a review of the borough’s existing network of green spaces to assess its extent
and functionality. This would enable the existing GI network, and sites of importance for
nature conservation (SINCs) across the borough to be protected and enhanced, and
identify opportunities for working with developers and stakeholders to provide new GI, and
secure improved connections.
8

Environment
Agency
Received:
26/08/16

Land decontamination
Given the scale of regeneration planned on brownfield land in the prospective OA’s, we
consider that the Council would want the DOT to address the impacts of past and future
land uses, ensuring that these do not affect the health of people and the environment. Land
contamination and remediation is the subject of planning and other regulatory regimes.
Perhaps the DoT at a broad level might set out for developers and landowners that a key to

Comments noted. Further details in No change.
respect of brownfield land will be
considered as part of the preparation
of the new Local Plan.

23

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
the successful development of brownfield land is early and continual engagement between
them, the Council and regulators.
9

Kingston Hospital Thank you for sending the consultation documents outlining your Direction of Travel plans
NHS Foundation for the borough to Kingston Hospital NHS Foundation Trust.
Trust (Catherine
Bottrill)
With the projected local population rise and planned housing and infrastructure
developments, it is important to consider how the borough will support and develop a wide
Received:
range of health care provision and also support the care professionals who deliver this
26/08/16
care. This needs to include places to live, to study and to work for this vital group of care
professionals.
In addition there is also an opportunity to leverage investment in the borough to develop
Kingston Hospital. The hospital site in Norbiton is a key community asset and investment
will be needed to meet the increase in demand created by a growing population.
It is an exciting time to be part of the community here in Kingston and we welcome the
opportunity to be part of this process to plan for the future of the borough. If you need
anything further at this stage please do let me know.

10

TfL

Comments noted. The Council
welcomes the opportunity for
continued engagement with TfL
throughout the Local Plan process.

No change.

B105

Received:
31/08/16

TfL comments on Direction of Travel
TfL welcomes the opportunity to have been involved in preparation of the Kingston
Direction of Travel document, and we support the aims of identifying development and
growth and regeneration opportunities around station zones and along transport corridors in
Kingston. In particular the intention to recognise the role of Crossrail 2 and other transport
infrastructure projects in changing the way in which growth opportunities, both housing and
employment, are considered within the emerging London Plan, Mayor’s Transport Strategy
and forthcoming review of the Kingston Local Plan. TfL is working collaboratively with the
council to bring forward a number of schemes and initiatives to help support the borough
aspirations.

Comment noted. The Council
No change.
welcomes the opportunity for
continued engagement with the
Kingston Hospital NHS Foundation
Trust as part of the Local Plan
process. We recognise that key to
facilitating and managing new growth
is to ensure new investment and
improvement in supporting
infrastructure, including healthcare
infrastructure. We also recognise
that this investment must be planned
strategically through the new Local
Plan.

It will be important moving forward to ensure that the document identifies a closer link
between the levels of development and the infrastructure projects, and to what extent
development will be limited by the availability of infrastructure. To this end it will be
important that the document fully recognises the benefits of transport schemes in delivering
the growth, and how this relates to infrastructure funding. TfL suggests the document could
be improved by presenting a range of options both with and without major infrastructure
projects, which could be presented using triggers for or phases of development.
10

TfL
Received:
31/08/16

City in the West
The infographic provided on page 10/11 is taken from the overarching City in the West
document, which states ‘Potential Growth - 210,000 Homes, 300,000 Jobs and 600,000
People’. Given the potential for greater amounts of growth linked to transport investment

Comment noted regarding the City in Page 10; City in the
the West diagram. This request will West diagram
be raised with the GLA as authors of
the diagram.
Update: Graph and

24

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
TfL requests that these are referred to as minimum targets which may be increased as
further work is undertaken.
10

TfL
Received:
31/08/16

10

TfL
Received:
31/08/16

figures amended to
reflect latest

Growth
As the Direction of Travel is developed into an Issues and Options document, there would
be significant merit in strengthening the link between transport investment, transport
corridors and station zones with growth and regeneration. The recommendations of the
National Infrastructure Commission and Crossrail 2 Growth Commission provide helpful
context to building the case for new homes and jobs linked to transport infrastructure.

Comment noted.

No change.

Infrastructure Improvements and specific projects
The Infrastructure improvements for the borough are set out on pages 22 and 23 and whilst
the projects are recognised as beneficial for the borough, they would benefit from being
more closely aligned with the growth opportunities.

Comment noted regarding the need
to expand on the 'Infrastructure
Improvements and specific projects’
section.

Page 23; End of
text.

It is recommended that this section is made more explicit about the need to maximise
development and other economic benefits around transport schemes to make a successful
case for investment. Whilst the unlocking of development is identified, the document could
more clearly define how or where the growth attributed to individual schemes may occur in
particular areas. It is also important that the supporting transport and community
infrastructure is recognised as being as important as the primary transport scheme, as this
will be required to enable the development itself.
TfL is in the process of testing a number of options for housing and employment growth to
understand its effects on the transport network. This will be reporting early in 2017.
10

Tolworth
Comment noted.
It is appreciated that improvements are needed at the A3 Tolworth Roundabout and
approaches to help deliver current planned and future growth whilst minimising congestion
and improving the quality of the environment. GLA, TfL and the council are working towards
an Area Action Plan which will consider development opportunities and provision of new
infrastructure in the area. TfL is still undertaking modelling and testing of options and this
will feed into the wider strategy. The options would also aim to provide benefits for
pedestrians, cyclists and buses. The council is advised to take this work into account when
making any planning decisions in the Tolworth area.

No change

No change

Received:
31/08/16

Chessington
Comment noted.
Whilst a new Station at Chessington World of Adventures is an option, it is not something
that is currently being promoted by TfL/CR2. If new stations or infrastructure are to be
proposed or delivered they must be funded by developers or landowners and would only be
viable if it delivered a significant amount of homes and met the operational requirements of
the scheme. Any plans to provide growth in Chessington would need to be supported by an
appropriate level of transport infrastructure, and funded by development.

TfL

Hook/ Chessington Relief Road

No change

TfL
Received:
31/08/16

10

10

TfL

Comment noted.

25

B106

Sentence added at
the end of text:
‘There is a need to
maximise economic
development
benefits around
transport schemes
to make a
successful case for
investment’.

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

Received:
31/08/16
10

TfL
Received:
31/08/16

TfL looks forward to working with the council and Highways Agency to discuss further the
benefits of such a proposal, in terms of congestion relief, traffic reassignment and impact
on other transport modes, in particular the bus network.
Crossrail 2
It should be noted that Crossrail 2 is now working to an opening date of 2033 and the text
should be updated to reflect this. TfL advises Kingston to take this opportunity to lobby the
government/ DfT and TfL/CR2 to ensure that the transport infrastructure provision is
sufficient to meet the boroughs/ GLA growth aspirations. Major infrastructure investment
can be pivotal in unlocking development and creating homes and places for current and
future Kingston residents.

Comment noted and text amended.

Page 23; Paragraph
5
Original: It is
anticipated that
Crossrail 2 will be
operational by 2030.
Update: It is
anticipated that
Crossrail 2 will be
operational by 2033.

10

TfL
Received:
31/08/16

TfL
Received:
31/08/16

No change

Next Steps
Comment noted.
What happens next is critical to the success of the document and it would be helpful to map
out the steps that may be taken in preparing the new Kingston Local Plan and how this
aligns with the direction of travel of the new London Plan. Of equal significance will be the
supporting Development Infrastructure Funding Study, which TfL will need to be closely
involved in due to the importance of transport. In relation to development opportunities
linked to transport investment, key opportunities and considerations could be:

No change

B107

10

Emerging Areas of Opportunity
Comment noted.
As previously mentioned above the emerging areas of opportunity identified on pages 24
and 25 should would benefit from being presented as options, with phases of delivery
linked to infrastructure provision. This section of the document should consider the
difference between what is committed or planned within current policy against the potential
additional development that may come forward as a direct result of transport infrastructure.

The identification of key transport corridors and how development can be optimised within
these.
The development of alternative growth scenarios to show the benefit of transport
investment but also reflect early stage of development of a number of the major transport
schemes and provide greater certainty as the plan is prepared.
Ensuring that the positive impact and significant opportunities from transport schemes are
reflected within policy frameworks currently in development by the strategic authorities such
as the Tolworth AAP.
Summary
Intentionally the document remains at a high level, but in order to successfully make the

26

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
case for transport investment, the next stage of developing the plan would benefit from
providing more detail which shows a clearer intent on responding positively to transport
investment. TfL look forward to working with both the GLA and the Borough in doing this.
13

Kingston CCG
and NHS
England.
Received:
25/08/16

Local Plan Direction of Travel Consultation
1. We acknowledge that the Direction of Travel consultation document represents the first
stage of consultation on a new plan which will be shaped by the opportunities associated
with the development of Crossrail 2.
2. The only reference to health is on page vii with regard to the need to provide health
infrastructure to accommodate the housing growth. Page 39 makes reference to the timely
provision of social infrastructure including GPs in the context of development opportunities
outside of the Areas of Opportunity. The plan should mention that additional healthcare
infrastructure may be needed in the Areas of Opportunities of Kingston Town Centre,
Norbiton, New Malden and Tolworth. The plan should also seek to ensure that new
development is planned and designed in a manner that will encourage healthy lifestyles
and help prevent ill health.

1. All comments noted. The Council No change.
recognise that key to facilitating and
managing new growth in Kingston is
to ensure new investment and
improvement in supporting
infrastructure, including healthcare
facilities.

B108

2. Further detail regarding health
infrastructure will be considered and
developed further at a later stage of
the local plan process. We welcome
the opportunity to engage with
Kingston CCG throughout the Local
The London Plan has increased the borough’s housing target to 6,434 new homes over the Plan preparation and in major
next 10 years. It is unclear whether the new Local Plan will plan for a higher level of growth planning proposals
exceeding the London Plan target prior to the arrival of Crossrail 2 in 2033. The Mayor of
London’s ‘City in the West’ publication indicates the potential for 6,000 new homes in
Kingston Town Centre alone.
We acknowledge that this is the first stage of consultation on the new Local Plan. We would
welcome the opportunity to be actively engaged in the Local Plan preparation, in major
planning proposals and the Council’s regeneration programmes, particularly Kingston
Futures and the Cambridge Road Estate plans, in accordance with the Duty to Cooperate
and Statement of Community Involvement documents. With regard to the latter, the list of
Specific Consultation bodies and Duty to Cooperate should include NHS Kingston Clinical
Commissioning Group rather than ‘Primary Care Support’.
The emerging evidence base on infrastructure needs should reflect the CCG’s Local
Estates Strategy, Primary Care Strategy and Kingston Coordinated Care Programme. It
should also be noted that both Kingston Hospital and Tolworth Hospital are located in
Areas of Opportunities and the NHS Trusts have plans to modernise their hospital estate.

27

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

Businesses and Landowners
ID
12

Respondent
Merton College
and the Crown
Estate
Received:
25/08/16

Comment

Document
Update

Comments and support noted. The No change.
Council welcomes the opportunity for
continued engagement with Merton
College and the Crown Estate
throughout the Local Plan process.

B109

1. Do you agree with the proposed areas for selective growth in the Direction for
Travel?
Merton College and The Crown Estate agree with the identification of land to the south of
Chessington as an area of opportunity where growth should take place. It is recognised that
the greater part of the land within the area of opportunity is Green Belt and any alteration of
the Green Belt boundary will need to be justified on the basis of ‘exceptional circumstances,
through the preparation or review of the Local Plan’ as stated in
NPPF, paragraph 83. It is appropriate therefore for the Directions document to raise this
matter at what is the commencement of the Local Plan review. If the proposal is to be
progressed then an ‘exceptional circumstances’ case will need to be established and set
out in the new Local Plan. It is too early at this stage to comprehensively state what this
case will comprise, but it is likely to include the need for additional land to be allocated in
the district to meet the housing, employment and other needs of the community as well as
to acknowledge the substantial change in circumstances that will arise with the delivery of
Crossrail 2. The case should also consider the wider context, and involve adjoining local
authorities, to demonstrate that the overall function of the Green Belt in this location is not
significantly compromised by any boundary changes.

RBK Response

We agree with the Directions document where it states on page 25 that growth in this area
‘is not dependent on Crossrail 2’. There is the potential for an extension of the existing builtup area to be delivered at Chessington in the vicinity of the train station at Chessington
South. Indeed, even without Crossrail 2, the existing railway line could be extended further
south to ensure train services are accessible to a new community in this location. As well
as the transport benefits, this location also has the advantage of proximity to significant
local job opportunities, including at the Barwell Business Park and Chessington World of
Adventure, facilitating the collocation of jobs and homes. In addition, from the studies that
Merton College and The Crown Estate have undertaken to date there are no over-riding
environmental or technical constraints to new development in this location. On this basis,
the delivery of a new mixed-use community in the vicinity of Chessington South is in itself a
highly sustainable solution to the meeting the development requirements of the district.
Although Chessington as a location already has strong sustainability credentials, the case
for new development here becomes even more compelling on the basis of the enhanced
level of rail services that will be delivered by Crossrail 2. This has been confirmed in the

28

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
recently published report by the Crossrail 2 Growth Commission, which on page 51
identifies the potential for strategic-scale development at Chessington South associated
with a Crossrail 2 terminus in this location:
‘The Growth Commission believes that options to deliver greater growth along this part of
the Crossrail 2 route should be investigated as part of a more comprehensive review of the
Green Belt in the next London Plan and the revision of the Kingston Local Plan. This growth
could help meet sub-regional housing needs. The scale of growth could be consistent with
garden city principles as advocated by the NPPF, and deliver other infrastructure to help
mitigate constraints elsewhere (for example the provision of new highway infrastructure
between the M25 and A3).’

12

Merton College
and the Crown
Estate

2. Are there other areas in the borough we should identify for selective growth?
Merton College and The Crown Estate do not wish to comment on any other areas of
selective growth.

Comment noted.

No change.

3. Are there other areas in the borough that we should be seeking to protect and
enhance?
Merton College and The Crown Estate do not wish to comment on this question.

Comment noted.

No change.

4. What key infrastructure do you think the borough needs to support its growing
population?
We have already referred above to the delivery of Crossrail 2, which represents a major
opportunity to deliver transformative change across the borough with the potential for 9 rail
stations to benefit from improved service levels within the authority area. In addition, we

Comment and support noted.

No change.

B110

There appears to be clear alignment between the area of opportunity as identified in the
Directions document and the area of strategic potential identified by the Crossrail 2 Growth
Commission. Whilst the general location is consistent, the overall scale of the opportunity
has yet to be defined and should be explored as part of the London Plan and Local Plan
review processes. At this stage therefore Merton College and The Crown Estate make the
comment that the extent of the area of opportunity should not be predetermined, for
example as shown on page 25 of the Directions document, but should be prescribed only
once further more detailed analysis of the extent of the potential for development in this
location has been undertaken. Merton College and The Crown Estate would welcome the
opportunity to participate, and indeed to contribute to this analysis, and in so doing work
alongside the Council and other relevant agencies/authorities.

Received:
25/08/16
12

Merton College
and the Crown
Estate
Received:
25/08/16

12

Merton College
and the Crown
Estate
Received:

29

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
25/08/16

note from the Directions document (pages 22-23) that the concept of a Hook/Chessington
relief road is being explored by the Council in partnership with neighbouring authorities and
key agencies and that this might include a link to the A3. The indicative alignment for these
improvements shown on page 22 partly occupies land which is owned by Merton College
and The Crown Estate. Such infrastructure investment has the potential to improve both
local highway capacity and the operation of the strategic highway network and in that
context is to be welcomed.
Merton College and The Crown Estate are of the view that any such improvements to the
local and strategic highway network need to be considered alongside proposals for new
development in the general location to ensure both are delivered on an integrated basis
and in a way that the benefits that can be achieved from such a comprehensive proposal
are maximised.

13

Aviva Investors
Received:
22/08/16

Aviva in Kingston
Comments and support noted.
Aviva is a longstanding stakeholder and investor in Kingston – it’s the owner and operator
of the Bentall Centre and its associated multi-storey car parks. Aviva also owns the Seven
Kings car park and a collection of smaller properties in retail use along Clarence Street and
Church Street.

No change.

B111

The Bentall Centre is a very important provider of goods and services to the residents of
the Borough and further afield. It supports over 2100 jobs and is very important generator of
wealth in the local economy. In order to maintain and enhance its existing role in the future
Aviva must continue to invest in the shopping centre so that it remains competitive in the
face of threats from internet shopping and other town centres, such as Croydon and
Westfield London, where major investment is planned.
Planning policy is very important to Aviva as it can provide greater certainty in the planning
and implementation of future investment. Aviva, therefore, strongly supports the preparation
of this document and is very much encouraged by the joint working with the new Mayor of
London and the Greater London Authority (‘GLA’). Aviva wishes to work closely with the
Council and the GLA in working up the detailed policy and in doing so share information
about its planned investment programme so that policy can be formulated in light of that.
13

Aviva Investors
Received:
22/08/16

Draft Direction of Travel Document
Aviva welcomes the Council’s recognition that a new Local Plan is required to show how it
will deliver the growth needs of a rapidly rising population. This Direction of Travel
document, being the first stage in this process, sets out the broad context in which the
growth agenda needs to be planned and delivered. For investors like Aviva it provides a
very helpful strategic context within which the more detailed policy will come forward in the
future.

Comments and support noted. The No change.
Council will continue to work with the
Mayor of London to confirm
Opportunity Area status in the next
iteration of the London Plan.

Aviva also welcomes the acknowledgment that the new Local Plan will take a proactive

30

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
approach to delivering growth by identifying where and how the needs of growth will be
achieved, and encourage early engagement. As stated above Aviva wishes to enter into
early engagement as a key stakeholder who can directly assist in the achievement of the
Council’s objectives.
Aviva agrees that the securing of opportunity area status for Kingston will make a key
contribution to the new Local Plan by helping to facilitate sustainable growth and increase
access to funding opportunities. Aviva also considers this status is vitally important to help
ensure that the town centre continues to be a vital and viable focal point for the Kingston
community and able to serve the needs of a growing and more discerning population.
Without such status Kingston may not be able to facilitate sustainable growth or compete
effectively with other large centres which currently enjoy this status, and all the benefits it
affords.
13

Aviva Investors
Received:
22/08/16

Aviva Investors
Received:
22/08/16

Comments noted. The Council
No change.
recognises the key role that the
Bentall Centre plays for retail in the
Town Centre. Unfortunately there is
limited space to add more assets,
however, the more general image of
Clarence Street is intended to
include all retail along it, including
the Bentall Centre.

Growth
Aviva supports the need to ensure growth is planned for and supported by the necessary
infrastructure and welcome the pro-active approach being adopted in this regard.

Comments noted.

B112

13

Kingston Places
Aviva welcome the map on pages 16-17 which illustrates some of the assets, key strengths
and characteristics of the borough. Whilst the key assets illustrated on this map may not be
an exhaustive list, Aviva considers that the Bentall Centre should be viewed in the same
light, such is its importance to the town centre, the borough as a whole, and the wider
catchment area it serves.

No change.

The anticipated growth in population and jobs will create pressures on existing
infrastructure and possibly on Green Belt land. Aviva supports the findings of the Outer
London Commission regarding the potential of town centres, like Kingston, arising from
intensification through housing led higher density mixed use renewal and development.
Aviva also welcomes the recognition that such an approach will result in more activity and
strengthen the viability and vitality of the town centre.
Aviva can play a significant part in this growth agenda. By expanding and improving the
existing offer in the Bentall Centre it can help provide for the needs of a growing population,
alongside other investment proposed in the town centre which is noted in the document.
Also, the Bentall Centre car park site is allocated in the existing Area Action Plan for
comprehensive development and this can play a part in the type of intensification proposed
by the Commission and, in doing so, potentially help ease pressure for development of
other, more sensitive, parts of the Borough.

31

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
13

Aviva Investors
Received:
22/08/16

Infrastructure Improvements
Aviva is generally supportive of the proposed infrastructure improvements as they have the
potential to enhance the connectivity of the town centre with the remainder of the borough
and London as a whole and facilitate the growth which is anticipated. Crossrail 2 provides a
one-off opportunity to provide a step-change in public transport accessibility in the town
centre (and other places in the borough) with consequent opportunities for significant new
housing development.

Comments and support noted. The No change.
Council intend to engage with all key
stakeholders, including landowners,
for any proposals relating to
significant changes to road and rail
infrastructure.

With respect to the infrastructure proposed in the town centre Aviva requests early dialogue
with the Council regarding the ‘preferred highway scheme’ relating to Wood Street and
Clarence Street and the relocation of the rail station closer to the river, in order that any
potential issues relating to accessing and egressing the Bentall Centre and its car parks
can be carefully considered. These car parks are important to the viability and vitality of the
town centre as a whole.
We have previously submitted representations on behalf of Aviva to the Go Cycle Kingston Station Area consultation. Aviva is supportive of the Go Cycle scheme as a whole
on the basis that it will help to improve the pedestrian and cycle environment in Kingston
town centre. Aviva would like to engage with the Council at the detailed design stage to
ensure that the proposals integrate successfully with their existing assets and look forward
to working with the Council in due course in this regard.
Aviva Investors
Received:
22/08/16

Emerging Areas of Opportunity and Kingston Town Centre
Aviva supports the identification of the areas of opportunity, in particular the one which
embraces Kingston town centre, and the rationale outlined for doing so.

Comments and support noted.
Reference to ‘leisure and cultural
uses’ added to page 27 of the
revised document.

We note what selective redevelopment in Kingston Town Centre might comprise. In
particular Aviva supports the proposals for an expanded retail offer and strengthening of the
Metropolitan Town Centre, although we would request specific recognition is made of other
uses, such as leisure and food and beverage. We consider these are vitally important to the
future of Kingston and other centres in the borough. Aviva also strongly supports the
significant delivery of new homes and jobs and considers it has an important part to play in
assisting the delivery of these objectives.

14

Nathaniel
Lichfield and
Partners (On
behalf of Merlin

Page 27, Bullet point
7
Original text: ‘An
expanded retail offer
and strengthening of
the Metropolitan
Town Centre’
Update: ‘An
expanded retail,
leisure and cultural
offer and
strengthening of the
Metropolitan Town
Centre’

1. Broad support for the Borough's growth aspirations.

1. Comments and support noted.

2. Opportunity Area: it is requested that the entirety of the Resort is included within the

2. Regarding the Opportunity Area,

No change.

32

B113

13

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
Attractions
Operations
Limited)

identified area of opportunity on page 25 to ensure the Resort continues to attract visitors
and spending to the area and continues to create a range of new jobs across different skill
levels for local people.

Received:
24/08/16

3. Green Belt Review: The Council's intention to undertake a green belt review should be
confirmed in the DoT document.
4. Short, medium & long term planning: keen to ensure that the document is not only
concerned with the long term support of Chessington as a growth area, but also the short
and medium plans for development of CWoAR that could come forward in the intervening
period prior to Crossrail in 2030.
5. Infrastructure Improvements: Merlin has a positive attitude towards the transport
schemes proposed that will benefit the wider area but these do not provide a level of detail
required as there are many detailed aspects that need to be resolved. These include:

the Council recognises the key role
that Chessington World of
Adventures Resort plays in the local
economy and attracting visitors to
the Borough. The shaded areas in
the map on page 24 are only
indicative of the broad location of
areas of opportunity and are not
exhaustive. The inclusion of most of
the Resort within the shaded area
demonstrates that the Council the
Resort is a key part of any future
changes in Chessington.

B114

3. Regarding the Green Belt Review.
The consideration of a review of
green and open spaces will form part
1) Hook/Chessington Relief Road: Merlin support the principle of the proposed link
of the preparation of the new
road. However the current proposals would dissect an area of Sixty Acre Wood which Borough-wide London Plan, for
Merlin has recently invested significant funds into develop this area into CWoAR's
which the first key statutory
latest 'Go Ape' high ropes attraction. Additionally, part of the current proposals for the consultation will be the Issues and
link road runs through CWoAR's southern car parks which have been fundamental to Options stage, therefore there is no
the successful operation of the Resort. Merlin's emerging Lon0 Term Plan intends to need to confirm this in the Direction
identify these car parks as a key area of investment for improvement of these car
of Travel document.
parks to ensure they remain fundamental to the operation of the Resort in the future
(supported by consultation with the public in April 2016). Merlin is therefore keen to
4. The document does include short
work with RBK to explore other options for the location of the relief road.
and medium term plans for
development as part of the overall
2) Crossrail 2, Chessington South Station improvements welcomed.
consideration of shaping growth in
the Borough.
3) Potential new station serving CWoAR: The document should be updated to
recognise that a new station would also benefit the local area as well as CWoAR. The 5. Regarding infrastructure
opportunity to lengthen the Crossrail 2 Southwest Branch to serve the potential new improvements, the Council are keen
railway station should also be explored as part of the proposals. Merlin would
to work with Merlin to explore all
welcome the opportunity to discuss the DoT proposals in greater detail with RBK, TfL options for the location of a potential
and the GLA to assist the development of the growth strategy.
new relief road. The wider benefits of
a new potential station are
recognised. Network Rail are
responsible for upgrades to station
infrastructure, but the Council
welcomes suggestions that will
benefit rail capacity.

33

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
15

15

GL Hearn (On
behalf of Meyer
Homes)

GL Hearn, on behalf of Meyer Homes Ltd, is delighted to submit these Representations to
you in respect of the borough wide aspirations for growth, but more superficially towards
the direction of travel for Tolworth.

Received:
25/08/16

In summary, the representations make the following observations:
1. Meyer Homes support the broad direction of travel and the future growth aspirations
within Kingston
2. Meyer Homes agree that growth needs to be managed effectively and that coordination
and transparency between all key parties is crucial in making the initiative a success
3. Meyer Homes agree that the growth should be directed to the most sustainable locations
within and around the town centres as these are most capable of accommodating
significant change
4. Meyer Homes support the growth and wider improvement aspirations for Tolworth and as
a key stakeholder welcomes the opportunities that Crossrail 2 will undoubtedly bring
5. Meyer Homes support the belief that Tolworth is capable as being identified as one of the
areas of immediate opportunity for growth

GL Hearn (On
behalf of Meyer
Homes)

Context
It is understood that the purpose of the document is to not only clarify and align local and
strategic policies, but to also allow for developers, residents, interest groups and
stakeholders to build upon and steer the growth aspirations within the Borough.

No change.

Comments noted.

No change.

Anticipated Council Tax Receipts
Comments noted.
Based on the current distribution of properties by Council Tax Band in the Tolworth area we
have sought to anticipate Council Tax receipts for the proposed development. As shown in

No change.

B115

Received:
25/08/16

Comments and support noted.

The Council make it explicitly clear within their adopted development plan that major
housing development should be directed towards the four District/Town Centres within the
Borough. Such locations are considered to be the most sustainable, and offer the best
access to homes, schools, jobs and social infrastructure. This message is supported within
the Direction of Travel Document. The Meyer Homes site in Tolworth (which has been
subject to a recent planning application) lies immediately adjacent to the District Centre and
the Tolworth Railway Station – a proposed Crossrail 2 station. Accordingly, Meyer Homes
are considered to be a key stakeholder within the Borough and will play a crucial part in
meeting the growth aspirations for Tolworth.
In essence, Meyer Homes own, and want to deliver housing on the single largest brownfield
site within Tolworth capable of delivering significant housing numbers (and choice) to
satisfy need. The benefits of bringing forward this site for housing have long been identified
within the Council’s current Tolworth Regeneration Strategy (2010) and will be captured
within the emerging Tolworth Action Plan. Meyer Homes are also able to demonstrate that
the development, if granted planning permission, will bring with it the following financial and
social benefits to the area:

15

GL Hearn (On
behalf of Meyer
Homes)

34

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
the figure below the vast majority of properties in the area fall into Band D and E.
Received:
25/08/16

15

GL Hearn (On
behalf of Meyer
Homes)
Received:
25/08/16

15

Meyer Homes
Received:
25/08/16

Based on the development of 612 private dwellings and the current costs in Kingston upon
Thames (2015-2016) the development would contribute an additional £1,156,389 to the
Council and the Greater London Authority.
Anticipated New Homes Bonus
Comments noted.
The New Homes Bonus Calculator which also draws on the Council Tax split on a Borough
Basis calculates a total bonus (over the next six years) of £6,260,973. This includes a
premium of £350 per affordable housing unit. For this we have assumed 14% of the total
dwelling stock in the development to be affordable in line with the agreed viability position.

No change.

Number of local jobs created during construction
Comments noted.
Based on a total development cost of £150m and a construction phase lasting 6.5 years we
can calculate the number of jobs created through the development of the scheme.

No change.

In 2013 the Construction of Buildings sector in Kingston upon Thames was worth
£59,900,000 while employing 1,000 people. This equates to a GVA per employee of
£59,900 for that sector.

B116

Assuming that each construction employee contributes £59,900 to the value of the
development then it would support the employment of 2504 employees if built in a single
year. However the construction is phased over 6.5 years therefore it would require only 385
FTE construction workers to build the development over the planned construction phase.
In 2011 36.1% of jobs in the Borough were taken up by local residents. Assuming this trend
continues then the construction phase would directly employ 139 Kingston upon Thames
residents.
15

GL Hearn (On
behalf of Meyer
Homes)
Received:
25/08/16

15

GL Hearn (On
behalf of Meyer
Homes)
Received:
25/08/16

GP requirement
Comments noted.
NHS England have a Principles of Best Practice Guidance document which suggests that a
primary care facility of 384m2 could serve a patient list size of approximately 5,000.
Therefore, using the NHS methodology the facility will be able to accommodate the new
population (calculated as circa 2,317 people) and have additional provision to serve the
local community.

No change.

Local spend into local businesses
Comments noted.
Assuming each delivered dwelling is comprised of a single household then we can estimate
what the likely spend for the additional population. This assumes that the expenditure of the
new households will be similar to those already living in the Tolworth area.

No change.

Experian Data (2014) shows that for the Tolworth area average Household expenditure on

35

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
Comparison goods is £9,850 per annum and on convenience good it is £5,508. Assuming
all additional households spend this same amount then the retail expenditure impact of the
scheme would be almost £9.4million.
There are currently 11,500 retail jobs in Kinston supporting a sector worth £306,400,000.
This equates to £26,600 per job. Therefore the anticipated expenditure would support 353
jobs.
Some of this expenditure would leak outside the Borough but it could realistically 36.1% of
the jobs could be for local residents based on current commuting patterns. This would
equate to some 127 local jobs.
The calculation is slightly more complex than this as there would also be displacement of
current jobs as well as additional jobs through the supply chain.
It is for the above reasons why it is important for Meyer Homes to make their early
representations to this emerging document as the benefits of delivering their site will play a
crucial part in meeting the growth aspirations for Tolworth.
15

Received:
25/08/16

Borough-wide Housing Delivery
The introduction of Crossrail 2 within the Borough (and specifically within Tolworth) will
improve frequency of service and accessibility from the station which in turn will enhance
the vitality and viability of the District Centre. The area will become more accessible and will
strengthen both the desire and need for additional homes.
London Plan Policy 3.3 with regard to increasing housing supply states that the Mayor will
seek to ensure the housing need identified is met particularly through provision consistent
with at least an annual average of 42,000 net additional homes across London which will
enhance the environment, improve housing choice and affordability and provide better
quality accommodation for Londoners.

Comments noted. It should be noted No change.
that the Council's most recent fiveyear housing land supply has been
published in the 2014/15 AMR,
which includes the new housing
target of 643 units p.a. set by the
2015 London Plan. Although it
recognised that this has reduced its
capacity to deliver housing, the
Council is still 24% above the fiveyear housing requirement.

B117

GL Hearn (On
behalf of Meyer
Homes)

Table 3.1 of the London Plan sets a ten year housing requirement of 6,434 between 2015 –
2025 for Kingston. This equates to an annual monitoring target of 643 which is almost
double the previous rate of 375 dwellings per year.
The most recent five year housing supply published in the 2014 Annual Monitoring Report
(AMR) demonstrates that housing capacity is 37% above the five year housing supply
requirement. However, the Borough’s increased annual housing target of 643 units per
annum set in the Further Alterations to the London Plan (adopted March 2015) could
reduce this capacity due to increased need to deliver more housing. The Borough’s annual
housing target could increase further still, depending on whether the SHMA that is currently

36

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
being prepared identifies a greater need for housing than that set in the London Plan.
Core Strategy Policy CS10 (Housing Delivery) states that the Council will take full
advantage of opportunities to deliver new housing. Policy CS10 continues and states that
new housing should be delivered in the most sustainable locations, and with the associated
infrastructure necessary to support it.
In considering the above housing position it is clear that the current (and emerging)
planning policy context supports a direction of travel for growth as there is a clear need to
provide new homes within the most sustainable of locations and within the outer London
Boroughs. Clearly, the housing numbers cannot be delivered without improvements to both
social and service infrastructure and therefore schemes such as the Meyer Homes site and
the introduction of Crossrail 2 will be the catalysts of change needed to ensure the future
sustainability of Kingston and its opportunity areas.
15

GL Hearn (On
behalf of Meyer
Homes)
Received:
25/08/16

John Lewis
Received:
24/08/16

No change.

Do you agree with the proposed areas for selective growth in the Direction of Travel?
In summary, the identification of areas around transport nodes is in accordance with the
general principles of sustainable development, and will assist in supporting jobs and
economic growth in the right areas across the borough, as well as attracting more visitors to
the Town Centre.

Page 27, Bullet point
7

Kingston Town Centre is clearly the leading opportunity to set the growth agenda into
practice, and as such, should be prioritised for infrastructure funding and resource to unlock
sites and realise the vision. Specifically, this will be important for facilitating a growth in
visitor numbers, which is relevant to both public transport and car usage, which we
comment on in more detail below.
In addition, given the recent approval for Eden Walk and other emerging town centre
proposals, we would wish to see a policy approach which expresses the need for

Comments noted. The Council
recognise the key role that leisure
plays in attracting visitors to Kingston
Town Centre and will amend the text
of page 27 to reflect this.

B118

16

Tolworth Area
Comments on the Tolworth area
The current Tolworth Regeneration Strategy from 2010 aims to provide a Vision for the
noted.
regeneration of Tolworth and a framework to guide and promote social and economic
development and environmental enhancement over the next ten years. The Strategy covers
the wider Tolworth area, but focuses on the District Centre and the A240 corridor (Ewell
Road, Tolworth Broadway, Tolworth Roundabout to Kingston Road). It would be reasonable
to assume that the Meyer Homes site played an important part in the formulation of the
2010 Strategy and that it will continue to do so moving forward upon the basis that it
remains undeveloped. The fact that the consultation document recognises an increase in
homes within Tolworth as being significant accords with Meyer Homes objectives who, as
witnessed through the recent attempt to secure planning permission, endorse the longer
term aspirations for the area and who will continue to engage with the Council through the
emerging Tolworth Action Plan.

Original text: ‘An
expanded retail offer
and strengthening of
the Metropolitan
Town Centre’
Update: ‘An
expanded retail,
leisure and cultural
offer and
strengthening of the

37

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
Metropolitan Town
Centre’

connectivity and legibility between the various town centre sites and areas, as well as
joined-up approaches to the provision of infrastructure. The Town Centre’s existing retail
offer is well-established and therefore we consider that the priority should focus on
supporting other Town Centre land uses, including leisure and residential.
We support the growth vision to assist the Town Centre’s attractiveness to visitors,
specifically relation to leisure and food and beverage offer to offer a more comprehensive
range of services and develop a destination through Placemaking principles.
16

John Lewis
Received:
24/08/16

16

John Lewis
Received:
24/08/16

John Lewis
Received:
24/08/16

Comments noted. The Council will
be running a Call for Sites exercise
in conjunction with the Issues and
Options consultation for the new
Local Plan, which will give
landowners the opportunity to
engage with the Council on future
development.

Are there other areas in the borough that we should be seeking to protect and
Comments noted.
enhance?
There are no other locations in the borough that require the same comprehensive approach
to planning to enhance the area than the Town Centre, due to the significant opportunity it
offers and
the joined-up approach that is required.
What key infrastructure do you think the borough needs to support its growing
population?
1. Crossrail 2
The introduction of Crossrail 2 offers unparalleled opportunity for economic and housing
growth in the Town Centre, and to enhance the existing Metropolitan centre. The precise
proposals for this, relating to the relocation of the station, will require significant preplanning in terms of transport and accessibility to the wider town centre. Whilst proposals
are at an early stage, we consider that these elements will form a key part of the emerging
Local Plan strategy for the town centre.

No change.

No change.

B119

16

Are there other areas in the borough we should identify for selective growth?
There are no further areas in the borough that can offer such significant growth in strategic
locations. The next phase of Local Plan production should identify specific opportunities
and sites for the delivery of intensification and the delivery of infrastructure and associated
proposals for connectivity etc. This should be done in conversation with key landowners
and stakeholders to ensure that it is approached comprehensively.

1. Comment noted regarding
No change.
Crossrail 2. It is anticipated that
Crossrail 2 will have a
transformational impact on the
connectivity of this area. New
Crossrail 2 Services from 2033 will
be serving railway stations in the
area with four trains an hour in each
direction connecting central London.

2. Road Network
The document references the pedestrianisation of Wood Street and Clarence Street, and
making the rest of this network 2-way. We would wish to see emerging proposals and
evidence of how the traffic management will function in this area. Additionally, the strategy
in relation to bus access will need to be reconsidered.

2. All comments noted. Regarding
the road network, any proposals to
pedestrianise Wood Street and
Clarence Street will include evidence
of how the traffic management will
function in this area.

The proposed changes to the road network will need to be developed alongside other

3. Comments noted regarding bus

38

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
proposals for the Town Centre, in accordance with key landowners and stakeholders to
ensure that development phasing (and other elements which may impact on access, car
parking and servicing/delivery) is also considered.
3. Public Transport
Related to the road network, the bus services within the town centre using this network will
need to be carefully considered, to ensure that the traffic management strategy is
complementary to the public transport offer. This will be critical to delivering increased
visitor numbers and supporting the growth of the Town Centre as a ‘destination’.
4. Pedestrian Accessibility
Pedestrian connectivity will be key to unlocking the wider opportunities associated with the
infrastructure improvements. Improvements to riverside access has been a key priority for
the council as set out in the K+20 Plan, which should be focussed upon when considering
the wide transport network changes. This is a key opportunity for the JL store in particular
and should be considered a key potential benefit in any wider discussions on the future of
the store. The relocation of the station will require careful consideration to improve access
to the town centre.

John Lewis
Received:
24/08/16

Any other comments?
Early engagement with key stakeholders and landowners is welcomed, to develop a
strategy which is comprehensively considered and ties in the key infrastructure
opportunities.

4. Regarding pedestrian
accessibility, the relocation of the rail
station would enhance its integration
with the town centre and potentially
free up development sites in the
immediate vicinity. Such an
approach would benefit from and
integrate with the proposed revised
highway arrangements for the town
centre (including pedestrianisation of
Wood Street) and also the
construction of Crossrail 2. Station
relocation is in the early stages of
investigation and will require testing
and liaison with a number of key
partners.
Comments noted.

No change.

Comments and support noted.

No change.

B120

16

services. Improved bus services will
form part of ongoing discussions with
TfL to improve public transport
accessibility in the area.

Therefore, we wish to partake in continued dialogue with the Borough and the GLA, to
ensure that our aligned growth aspirations are able to be delivered, through joined-up
approaches to infrastructure, accessibility and masterplanning.
Please do not hesitate to contact us to discuss any of the issues raised in our
representations, and we look forward to engaging throughout the Local Plan process.
17

Berkeley Group
Received:
26/08/16

We welcome the publication of the Direction of Travel Document (DoT) of Kingston upon
Thames (Consultation Draft June 2016) and the opportunity to comment on behalf of the
Berkeley Group, who are supportive of the DoT and the identification of Kingston Town
Centre as an area of transformational change. Berkeley Group is currently delivering three
sites within the Borough; Latchmere House, Queenshurst and the Old Post Office. The
Group’s Queenshurst and Old Post Office developments in Kingston Town Centre are
referred to on page 20 of the DoT.
Berkeley Group are very supportive of the early engagement on the new Local Plan and

39

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
Kingston Town Centre Opportunity Area Planning Framework (OAPF) for which the DoT
will provide supplementary planning guidance.
Approach to Development Proposals:
Berkeley Group welcomes the confirmation that the DoT provides supplementary planning
advice to the London Plan, whilst also setting the broad context in which the growth agenda
needs to be planned and delivered to support the process of preparing the new Borough
Local Plan.
It is important, however, that any planning proposals which are consistent with the DoT are
determined without delay, consistent with paragraph 14 of the NPPF, and growth should
not be delayed pending the preparation of the new Local Plan for the Royal Borough of
Kingston upon Thames.
17

Berkeley Group
Received:
26/08/16

Growth:
Berkeley Group supports the Council’s proactive approach to growth and welcomes the
Council’s intention to provide clarity on the context in which the growth agenda needs to be
planned and delivered.

Comment on the Development
No change.
Delivery Document noted. We will
confirm with the GLA what details of
the document will be made publicly
available.

17

Berkeley Group
Received:
26/08/16

Infrastructure:
Berkeley Group supports the principle of infrastructure rich development and forward
planning for infrastructure requirements. We recognise that the development industry
should contribute towards the cost of these infrastructure requirements. This needs to be
achieved in a way that does not undermine development viability and delivery of much
needed homes, including affordable homes.

B121

Page vii of the DoT refers to a Development Delivery Protocol between the GLA and
Kingston upon Thames Council, to ensure a high quality development is delivered that
supports the shared aspirations of the borough. We request for this document to be
published; as a background document, to understand the principles that have been agreed
and further understand the direction of travel.
Comment on the proposed
No change.
Development Infrastructure Funding
Study noted. The Council will be
liaising with all key stakeholders such as yourselves - as soon as
work on this study starts.

Berkeley Group strongly supports the development of Crossrail 2 as a strategically
important project for London. We agree with the Council’s recognition that growth is not
wholly dependent on Crossrail. As recognised in Appendix A of the 2014/2015 AMR
published in April 2016, The Royal Borough of Kingston has an undersupply of 395 Homes
against its cumulative housing target. Homes are, therefore, needed ‘even without the
added opportunity of Crossrail’.
We request that further detail is provided on the scope and timing of the Development
Infrastructure Funding Study referred to on page 40 of the DOT.
17

Berkeley Group

Kingston Town Centre:

Comments noted. The identification

No change.

40

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

Received:
26/08/16

Berkeley Group fully supports the identification of Kingston Town Centre as an emerging
area of opportunity and transformational change.
Berkeley Group welcomes the Council’s support for significant delivery of new homes
including affordable homes and jobs as a key objective.

of housing targets for Kingston Town
Centre and the emerging
Opportunity Area will be considered
as part of the preparation of the new
London Plan and Borough-wide
Local Plan.

Given Kingston Town Centre is identified as an emerging Opportunity Area, it is considered
this section should reinforce the promotion of the area for growth and densification, and
provide an indication of minimum targets for the number of homes for the Town Centre,
recognising the need to plan for sufficient headroom to ensure housing requirements are
met in full in accordance with the Outer London Commission Delivery Report (March 2016).
17

Berkeley Group
Received:
26/08/16

18

Next Steps:
St George would very much welcome the opportunity to engage further with the GLA and
the Council, through the draft Local Plan Issues and Options consultation.

Comments noted.

On behalf of our client, Eden Walk Shopping Centre Limited Partnership (the “Partnership”), Support and comments noted.
I am pleased to provide our support for the City in the West - Direction of Travel
consultation document prepared jointly between the Royal Borough of Kingston upon
Thames (RBK) and the Greater London Authority (GLA).

Received:
26/08/16

By way of background, British Land and Universities Superannuation Scheme are joint
owners of Eden Walk Shopping Centre and have recently secured a positive resolution for
the comprehensive redevelopment of the Centre to create a retail-led mixed use scheme,
incorporating 380 residential units, offices, restaurants and a boutique cinema.

No change.

B122

Eden Walk
Shopping Centre
Limited
Partnership

No change.

The redevelopment will be transformational for Kingston Town Centre, creating the very
best retail units for existing retailers seeking better stores in Eden Walk, and new retailers
who are currently unable to locate in the Town Centre. The Partnership is a long-term
steward of Eden Walk and will make a substantial investment in Kingston Town Centre, a
catalyst for the regeneration of the Eden Quarter.
The Partnership recognises that Kingston is a great town, a Metropolitan Centre and an
aspiring Opportunity Area. It is also a retail powerhouse for its catchment. Nonetheless,
Kingston is facing a number of challenges including a changing retail landscape which has
been impacted by online sales and competing centres as well as a growing population.
This document seeks to formalise the aspirations for the Borough, which will help Kingston
meet its challenges and fulfil its opportunities.
18

Town Centre Growth
Eden Walk
Shopping Centre The Partnership support the promotion of Kingston Town Centre as an area identified for

Support and comments noted.

No change.

41

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
Limited
Partnership
Received:
26/08/16

growth.
The increased transport accessibility through Crossrail 2 and a potential new train station
will enhance both connectivity and the facilities for existing residents and will be a
differentiator for the Borough. The aspirations for a new mixed use and office quarter
around the station will create a sense of arrival.
The aspiration for an expanded retail offer and strengthening of the Metropolitan Town
Centre supports the Partnership’s ambitions for Eden Walk.
It is recognised that a significant delivery of new homes is required to meet population
growth. Kingston Town Centre is a sustainable location for this growth.
The continuing protection of Kingston’s historic environment is supported, however, it
should be noted that new and old can sit side by side creating a varied townscape.
The production of a new Local Plan incorporating these aspirations is therefore supported
as it seeks to take a proactive approach to delivering growth.

18

Eden Walk
Shopping Centre
Limited
Partnership

Opportunity Area
It is understood that the GLA and RBK are jointly preparing an Opportunity Area Planning
Framework in advance of a formal Opportunity Area being introduced for Kingston Town
Centre in the new London Plan.

Received:
26/08/16

The Partnership welcome this process and the opportunities that this allocation will bring,
including facilitating sustainable growth, increased access to funding opportunities and
improved infrastructure.

No change.

Eden Walk
Shopping Centre
Limited
Partnership

Infrastructure
Support and comments noted.
The Partnership support Crossrail 2 in the Borough, which will add capacity and cut journey
times for commuters. It will transform the connectivity of the Borough with London and
equalise the playing field on which other competing centres currently outperform.

No change.

Received:
26/08/16

This is key to help Kingston fulfil its ambitions for growth and the long term aspirations
which underpin the Opportunity Area. It is also key that plans for this infrastructure are fully
integrated in the long-term vision for Kingston.

B123

Support and comments noted.

It is important that a robust evidence base of supporting studies (including a Transport
Assessment and Development Infrastructure Study) is prepared to support the positive
work undertaken to date for the Opportunity Area.
18

Within the Town Centre, proposals to remove traffic from Clarence Street and to convert

42

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
the remainder of the gyratory system to a two way road will help to improve connectivity
between the Town Centre and Kingston station. Developing these connections and
encouraging the use of sustainable transport to the Town Centre are also supported by the
Partnership.
18

Eden Walk
Shopping Centre
Limited
Partnership

London Plan
Comments noted.
Following recent announcements regarding the forthcoming review of the London Plan, the
Partnership reiterate the importance of continued liaison between the GLA and RBK in
ensuring that these aspirations for
growth are incorporated in regional plans for London.

No change.

Conclusion
The Partnership welcome the current Direction of Travel set out by RBK and the GLA and
the proposed growth which an Opportunity Area could bring to Kingston. This proactive
approach to delivering new development and capitalising on the introduction of Crossrail 2
in the Borough will be key to the future growth of Kingston.

Support and comments noted.

No change.

All comments noted. Please note
that there will be an opportunity to
comment on specific plans,
proposals and sites as part of the
Local Plan process.

No change.

Received:
26/08/16
18

Eden Walk
Shopping Centre
Limited
Partnership
Received:
26/08/16

19

Received:
26/08/16

19

CgMs
(On behalf of
Kames Capital)l
Received:
26/08/16

I write on behalf of my client, KAMES CAPITAL, to submit representations to the Direction
of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston Upon Thames in relation to their interest in the
land at Clarendon House, 147 London Road, Kingston Upon Thames, KT2 6NH. KAMES
CAPITAL are currently seeking to redevelop the site to provide a residential led mixed use
scheme which would in turn, seek relaxation towards the adopted policy requirement for the
re-provision of employment floorspace so as to optimise the development potential of the
site and subsequently sustain the viability of any potential redevelopment scheme.

B124

CgMs
(On behalf of
Kames Capital)

We look forward to continuing to work closely with RBK and the opportunity to consult on
the “Issues and Options” consultation for the new Local Plan later in 2016.

Please also note that this includes a
Call for Sites exercise in conjunction
with the Issues and Options
consultation for the new Local Plan,
which will give landowners the
opportunity to engage with the
Council on future development.

Background - Planning Policy
Comments noted.
Employment Land
Policy DM17 – Existing Employment Land and Premises notes that the council will protect
all employment land and premises. More specifically it notes that together the SILs and
LSISs form the main supply of industrial / business land and will be protected for B1, B2
and B8 uses and other uses of an industrial and employment nature (excluding retail). This
policy further notes that alternative uses will not be acceptable within the employment areas
unless it has been demonstrated by sound evidence and rigorous marketing over a number

No change.

43

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
of years (up to two years) that there is no quantitative or qualitative need for a range of
employment uses.
Additionally, the policy states that mixed use development schemes should not result in a
net loss of employment capacity (floorspace and/or land) and should not compromise the
viability of the site and/or its surroundings for employment purposes. It further notes that
residential use within mixed use schemes will not be appropriate where it would be
incompatible with established employment uses, or prejudicial to the site's continued
operation for employment purposes.
19

CgMs
(On behalf of
Kames Capital)
Received:
26/08/16

Additionally, Policy CS11 – Economy and Employment states that the Council will:

Comments noted.

No change.

Housing
Comments noted.
The Further Alterations to the London Plan (FALP) notes that Kingston requires an annual
supply of 643 units in order to reach the ten year target of 6,434 dwellings. Local Policy CS
10 – Housing Delivery states that the Council will seek to meet and exceed the Borough's
annual housing target as set out in the London Plan for the period 2012/13 to 2026/27. The
current target is to achieve 375 new units a year. This is significantly lower than the above
FALP target however the FALP provides more recent and informed guidance which should
be reflected in emerging local development plan policy.

No change.

a. build on the economic strengths of the Borough by promoting the development of a
diverse and flourishing economy and ensuring that land and premises are available for both
traditional industrial and office based employment activities (B1, B2 and B8 uses);
b. promote the redevelopment, renewal and modernisation of existing office stock (which
may include integrating office space and residential uses into mixed use developments)

B125

c. promote other key employment sectors such as retail, financial and legal services,
leisure, culture, health, education, public administration and tourism and ensure that land
and premises and appropriate infrastructure are available for these activities also
The Core Strategy has accepted that vacant and inactive office buildings would be suitable
for ‘mixed use’ as policy DM17 notes that mixed use development schemes should not
result in a net loss of employment capacity (floorspace and/or land) and should not
compromise the viability of the site and/or its surroundings for employment purposes.
Additionally, this policy notes that residential use within mixed use schemes will not be
appropriate where it would be incompatible with established employment uses, or
prejudicial to the site's continued operation for employment purposes. Any potential
residential use at Clarendon House would be acceptable and would not impact upon the
sites operation in use as an office.
19

CgMs
(On behalf of
Kames Capital)
Received:
26/08/16

44

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
Within the reporting year 2014/15, only 363 net additional units were completed and only
122 affordable housing completions (total is 187 since 2012). This is lower than the local
policy and significantly lower than the FALP annual target. The Housing Trajectory
produced by Kingston Council notes that there has been a historic undersupply of housing
from 2010/11.
According to the SHLAA, whilst the individual estimates of capacity are provisional the
indicative figures suggest a combined capacity of around 2,320 new dwellings on identified
large sites. In addition to the capacity on large sites, the SHLAA/HCS also identified, based
on past trends, the amount of housing likely to come forward on small 'windfall' sites (i.e.
those unidentified in the plan). This equates to around 40% of overall capacity. The fiveyear Land Supply shows that in the first five years of the Core Strategy the housing target
can be met with minimal reliance on unidentified sites, however in later phases of the Core
Strategy period the reliance on windfall sites increases. FALP Policy increases the Core
Strategy Target of 375 annually to 643 per annum. Therefore a target of at least 6,434 new
homes to be delivered up to 2025.

19

CgMs
(On behalf of
Kames Capital)
Received:
26/08/16

Summary of Current Position
In summary, based on the above planning policy and the current position on both housing
land supply and availability of office floorspace, there is clear scope and capacity for
increased residential-led mixed use development within Kingston. This is detailed below:

B126

The latest AMR published in April 2016 notes that with current and expected overall
housing completions for the 15-year period are expected to fall short of the 11,145 unit
cumulative target by 1,635 units (below 15%). This is further exaggerated by the increased
identified target for housing as noted with the FALP. Housing delivery in the period 2010/11
to 2014/15 fell short of the cumulative target by 395 units, however the 363 net additional
homes delivered in 2014/15 is a significant increase (up 47%) from 2013/14. Despite this
increase however there remains a historic undersupply of housing present in the borough,
which the LPA are required to address.
Comments noted. The Council will
review all existing policies as part of
the preparation of the new Local
Plan.

No change.

Availability of office floorspace in Kingston
In terms of availability of office floorspace, based on publicly available information dated
25.08.16 from the Estate Gazette (EGi) website there is approximately 76,400sq.ft available
office floorspace within Kingston. This does not include information dated 19.08.16 from the
Martin Campbell (Commercial Property Agents) website which notes there is 26,670sqft of
available and vacant office floorspace within Kingston itself. In addition, the Article 4
Direction in place in certain parts of Kingston means any further reduction in office
floorspace will be halted. This emphasises the development management system of control
which seeks to introduce some flexibility within the emerging document. The draft Direction
of Travel Document which provides the opportunity to reduce the proportion of replacement
employment floorspace in any future scheme by noting London Road as an area of

45

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
opportunity where residential-led mixed use development would be appropriate.
19

CgMs
(On behalf of
Kames Capital)
Received:
26/08/16

Shortfall in Housing Supply
The shortfall in housing supply described in detail above, therefore, means that
redevelopment of any site to provide new housing in areas of identified need (i.e. where a
5-year supply of new homes to meet need cannot be identified) has material weight in
determining planning applications over hitherto restrictive land use policy – e.g. that which
seeks to retain B1 floorspace. Currently the Council’s housing supply position has not been
met since 2007/08.

Comments noted. The council
recognises that new growth and
density are required to meet the
Borough's housing need. The
Council will review all existing
policies as part of the preparation of
the new Local Plan.

No change.

Comments noted.

No change.

To conclude, the LPA preside over a historic undersupply of housing, with targets not being
met for a prolonged period of time, these targets are required to be increased by the
Strategic Development Plan, therefore, the proposed altered Direction of Travel for
employment-based land use is supported. The draft consultation document position notes a
more flexible approach to the hitherto restrictive policy regarding loss of employment land /
floorspace.
19

CgMs
(On behalf of
Kames Capital)

B127

Received:
26/08/16

Representations to Draft Direction of Travel for Kingston (June 2016)
Although Clarendon House is located within a Locally Significant Industrial Location and
planning policy DM17 and CS11 protect this use, there is a clear expectation, as noted in
the draft document, for seeking relaxation towards the adopted policy requirement
addressing the re-provision of employment floorspace on any employment land.
KAMES Capital support the consultation document referencing the ‘Norbiton, London Road
and Cambridge Estate’ Area of Opportunity where it is noted on page 29 that ‘Selective
redevelopment in this part of the borough could result in Residential-led mixed use
development on and around London Road’. Residential use along London Road would be
compatible with the existing employment uses, such mixed use development would
maintain employment floorspace and also provide much needed housing in the borough.
In addition, it is understood that the Direction of Travel Document will form part of the
preparation of the Kingston Local Plan. The next steps are to carry out an Issues and
Options Consultation in Autumn 2016 and also continue working on the Opportunity Area
Planning Framework. We would welcome the opportunity to comment on both documents
to support residential-led mixed use development along London Road and more the
specifically Clarendon House site.
I trust the above representations will be taken into consideration when assessing the
content of the Direction of Travel Consultation Document. If, in the interim, you have any
queries please do not hesitate to contact either Mairead Murphy or myself at this office. I
look forward to your formal acknowledgement of our representations and any information
moving forward in respect to the new Local Plan.

46

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
20

Deloitte LLP (On "In principle support" for growth aspirations, particularly Kingston Town Centre. Welcomes
behalf of Fenwick the recognition of the need for infrastructure improvements to remain competitive. Support
Limited)
for the preferred highway scheme, to remove traffic from Wood Street and Clarence Street
and convert the remainder of the gyratory to a two-way road, subject to relevant
assessments justifying the proposals and their impact.
Received:
05/09/16
There is a need to increase leisure and recreation alongside housing growth and supports
an expanded retail offer and strengthening the Town Centre. There is a need to improve
existing assets within and around Clarence Street and the River frontage and to identify
support for redevelopment in this part of the Town Centre to ensure it continues to thrive.
This should be identified within the emerging policy documents. Improved access to the
Riverside and better connectivity for pedestrian and cyclists in this location will help these
ambitions be realised.

Support noted. The Council
No change.
recognises the importance of
maintaining Kingston's role as a top
destination through diversification of
town centres and enhancing the
retail, leisure and cultural offer. Text
amendments have been made in the
Direction of Travel to support this
objective.

B128

47

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

Residential Associations and other groups
ID
21

Respondent
Chessington
District
Residents’
Association
Received:
29/08/16

Comment

RBK Response

Document
Update

Please note that we are a forty-year- old residents’ association. We work in the interest of Comment noted.
the communities in the South of the Borough (SOTB) Neighbourhood Committee area. As
such, with two exceptions, we will comment only on SOTB issues in this consultation. We
have discussed this consultation with our Executive Committee members. Our response is,
in the main, the result of that discussion.
Where committee members have wanted to make specific comments they have been
included and are prefixed with a bullet point. We have also circulated the consultations
existence to all of our membership, encouraging them to make their own response.
“Do you agree with the proposed areas for selective growth in the Direction of Travel?” is
the fundamental question that you are asking.

22

Chessington
District
Residents’
Association
Received:
29/08/16

22

Chessington
District
Residents’
Association
Received:
29/08/16

B129

No, we think that many assumptions and understandings in the document are incorrect. We
fundamentally disagree with many of the premises upon which your document is based.
Page 18, Growth paragraph 2, higher density mixed use renewal and development – We
Comments noted.
will not comment on this as we consider that residents have fully expressed their views to
the events concerning development in the town centre during the last two years, and have
been ignored. The sentiments concerning high rise buildings and over development,
expressed by town centre residents, are also held by residents in the towns outer suburbs.
Suffice to say that none of us would care to live in what is proposed for the town centre.

No change.

Page 18, paragraph 3, The OLC growth option scenario – This does not fully apply to the
SOTB. This area has been ‘under development’ since the 1930’s when the first modern
housing estates were built on farmland. Building continued after the war with major council
estates in the 1950’s and 1960’s, and Surbiton Borough Council built very high standard
council housing in this area. The Chessington Industrial estate was fully developed. A
major new housing estate, the Winey Estate, was built by Wimpey in the 1990’s. Two
smaller industrial estates were built in the south of the SOTB. Subsequently developers
such as Paragon have continued to build high density housing as the opportunities
presented themselves. The OLC statement is a broad brush comment that has no local

No change.

Comment noted.

48

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
significance in this part of
Kingston.
22

Chessington
District
Residents’
Association
Received:
29/08/16

Page 19, paragraph 1, “There will be many constraints on growth and the Local Plan will
Comments noted.
need to consider how best to ensure the boroughs distinctive character is maintained and
the distinctive supporting infrastructure is provided”- Surely this is a theoretical statement at
odds with reality. For many years the council have been active in destroying the boroughs
distinctive character.

No change.

It should also be noted that the Leader of the Council is on record as saying that
development comes before infrastructure, i.e. this is perhaps not the way the consultation
document has expressed it.
The only infrastructure improvement that the SOTB has experienced in recent years was
the re-building of the Malden Rushett crossroads. That took TfL over ten years from the
initial consultation to completion of the project. They wasted tens of thousands of pounds
on abandoned plans because they ignored the errors in their proposals to which residents
specifically drew their attention during the so called ‘consultation’. TfL created traffic
gridlock in the SOTB during the months it took to undertake the work.

B130

As the Council, TfL and the Mayor of London have inadequate financial resources we are
doubtful about the expression of such good intentions. We think the more relevant words
are contained in paragraph 4 of the Leader of the Council’s foreword when he writes that
growth can secure our future by “working collaboratively with the residents, the Mayor of
London, developers and investors”. This document can be read as preparation for a
developer’s charter.
All of our requirements need an injection of public money. The developers and investors
will not provide the amount of money needed.
We cannot accept that a general development plan is made before a constructive
infrastructure study has been completed. We would comment that two traffic studies were
conducted some years ago in the North of the Borough but the proposal to conduct one
such study in the South of the Borough was dropped from the last UDP. The Borough had
a major infrastructure development in the 1930’s when the by-pass, which became the A3,
was built. The only other major infrastructure development was the town centre roadway
arrangements in the 1990’s. All subsequent change has been tinkering. We are long
overdue for major infrastructure reform.
22

Chessington
District

Page 19, population growth – We are very sceptical about the various population growth
figures that have been bandied about in recent years. The SOTB has been a direct victim

Comments noted.

No change.

49

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
Residents’
Association
Received:
29/08/16

of this type of misinformation.
For example, the excellent Moor Lane primary school, a fine building with large playing
fields, and its own teaching swimming pool, was closed by RBK. This was because they
claimed the GLA said that there was a falling number of young children coming into the
education system. At the time local residents said that this was incorrect, but were ignored.
The demographic information was wholly wrong and RBK officers excused themselves by
saying that the GLA had provided them with false figures. This has resulted in a lot of
money being spent in re-building and enlarging local primary schools. Moor Lane school is
now used as council offices, the playground is a mini-bus park, the playing fields are
underused and the swimming pool is derelict due to lack of maintenance. Errors in misuse
of population growth figures can have significant and costly consequences.
We do not think that this is an appropriate time to spend public money on projects
dependent upon population growth in London. We do not yet understand the economic
consequences of the June the 23 rd referendum. Will the economy and the population
continue to grow? – possibly not. Does the Council have the financial resources to prepare
for population growth? – no. Could the NHS cope with a significant increase in the
population? – doubtful, as we are already in a near state of crisis with the current level of
population. Will the Department of Transport, the Mayor and TfL be able to fund and
provide the necessary infrastructure development? – No

B131

There are also purely social considerations which need to be addressed when considering
the need for housing a possible growing population. Is society currently giving our young
people a fair deal in housing? Should we be building houses for sale, or for rental, as they
do in Germany with rent control? (And are now doing so systematically in some north of
England local authority areas) Are we providing adequate housing for our elderly? When
we provide social or affordable housing should it be of an adequate size and standard?
Such housing should have adequate amenity space for children to play and develop in
safety. In the South of the Borough a councillor once said of one of the developers that we
were used to them proposing to build rabbit hutches but they were now proposing guinea
pig hutches.
This attitude was a feature of the developer’s revision of the recent planning application to
build 705 housing units at Tolworth. In the Times recently there was a report on research
into possible psychological damage experienced by people living in extremely small homes.
Your document ignores these realities.
- The Centre for Policy Studies has written that people with old age dependency now
constitutes a growing percentage of our population. However, suitable housing is not being
built fast enough to satisfy the need. This confirms the Council Leaders comments that old

50

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
people, often widows or widowers, in Kingston continue to live in their family homes
because they cannot downsize due to the unavailability of smaller homes. This has obvious
consequences in distorting the availability of housing. Is this being considered in The
Direction of Travel proposals?
-- In recent years’ various departments of the council and officers have raised the issue,
and published maps of, areas of social deprivation in the Borough.Such areas are shown to
exist in the SOTB. Yet we seem to ignore this in the planning process.
--There are other changes taking place in society that should be considered when making
long term plans for Kingston. One of our senior and very experienced councillors
commented that dementia is becoming more common as our ageing population grows. At
the moment a great deal of this burden is carried within the community. Perhaps now is the
time for the council and local NHS to escalate this issue within the planning framework.

22

Chessington
District
Residents’
Association
Received:
29/08/16

Page 20 and 21 – Story so Far

B132

Frankly, with all of the negative possibilities in the current political and social life of the
country we do not think this issue, as outlined in the The Direction of Travel document, will
be worth pursuing for some years. This work should be undertaken when we are more
confidant of our nation’s future. It should also be delayed until we have undertaken
extensive research to justify the proposals for development. If we stop working on it now,
we would save the council an enormous amount of tax payers money, both in the short
term and the long term. Surely, we must ask ourselves if we can spend our limited financial
resources more effectively.
Comments noted.

No change.

The seven photographs of new buildings all have a commonality. They are all boring,
unoriginal, off the peg architecture that is out of keeping with the Council Leader’s
statement that “we are rightly proud of our identity and heritage”. Those buildings have no
unique identity or acknowledgement of our heritage. They are developer’s financial dreams
that the council and Development Control Committee have allowed to be built. To quote
Councillor Davis again, “growth must happen”, but all of these buildings show an anonymity
and lack of sense of scale that is destroying Kingston.
The final photograph on page 21, a building in the South of the Borough, is a classic
example. The Premier Inn at Tolworth was originally a speculative proposal made by a
property developer. Eventually planning permission was given for a business hotel with 137
rooms, located on a roadway that is already jammed with traffic for most of the day, and
where all of the vehicles leaving the hotel will have to leave via the congested Tolworth
roundabout. It is being built alongside a slip road on which two major industrial plants and a
large bus garage are located. All of these businesses generate a large amount of HGV

51

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
traffic during the working day, from about 6am onwards. The hotel is also adjacent to a
noisy railway bridge. This is to be a ‘business hotel’, yet it will have only half the number of
parking spaces for the number of rooms in the hotel, in an area where there is no on street
parking! Truly, it is a typical example of the Kingston style ‘story so far’.
In the South of the Borough, Tolworth in particular, many residential tower blocks are being
proposed. We realise that such buildings are very attractive to ‘developers and investors’.
However, they are contrary to the environment, culture and social need of the SOTB. In our
opinion such buildings will become the slums and social problems of tomorrow.
22

Chessington
District
Residents’
Association
Received:
29/08/16

Comments noted.

No change.

Comment noted.

No change.

The recent planning hearings for the proposed redevelopment of what we have for many
years called the Tesco Tolworth site have shown that Transport for London have no idea of
how to cope with any sort of increased traffic flow in the Tolworth area, let alone current
traffic flow on the Tolworth roundabout. Their recent proposals were based on poor data
input into traffic modelling software. The computer generated proposals were absurd and
posed a threat to the main access road to the industrial estate, so jeopardising the viability
of the estate to function efficiently. The planning hearings were, in our opinion, particularly
bad because the officers did not attempt to make the DC Councillors aware of the industrial
estate issue, the traffic flow in that locality, that a 130 bed hotel is already under
construction one hundred yards away, that there are three major businesses located in the
service road next to the hotel that is being built, all of which have to leave the area via the
roundabout. These issues conflict with the consultation documents glib statement that their
resolution would “unlock development opportunities as well as bringing forward much
needed road improvements in particular enhancements to road safety”. People don’t get
knocked down when vehicles are stationary in a traffic jam.

Chessington
District
Residents’
Association

Page 23, paragraph 4
“The concept of a Hook/Chessington relief road is being explored with neighbouring
planning authorities and key partners”. This statement is risible. Our association owns
copies of the routes proposed for the relief road by W.H. Atkins in the 1990’s.

Received:
29/08/16

Nothing has changed in the intervening years, the countryside and woodland is as it was all
those years ago. What may kick start the process is not an initiative from Kingston council,
but rather the government finally making a decision on the third runway and giving it to
Gatwick.

B133

22

Page 23, paragraph 3 – Infrastructure Improvements
This paragraph mentions two projects relating to the A3 and the Tolworth roundabout.
Excavating the A3 and decking it over is widely thought to have been a cheap publicity
fantasy of the previous Mayor of London in his final pre-election year. The proposal is not
worth commenting on.

52

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
22

Chessington
District
Residents’
Association
Received:
29/08/16

Page 23, paragraphs 6,7 & 8
Comment noted.
The Crossrail 2 proposal was widely discussed in the SOTB at its inception in 2014 when
the pressure group ‘London First’ publicised the development potential of the scheme. They
said if the outer London ‘green belt’ areas were utilised for housing; the profits would help
to finance the railway. We were not convinced by their logic; in fact, we did not believe it at
all.

No change.

However, when we look at the disastrous progress of HS2, the enormous destruction of
housing and the built environment of North London, the terrible social disruption, and most
especially the cost of the project, then many of us have no faith in the benefits assumed to
be coming from Crossrail 2. When HS2 was first proposed it was to be a £30 billion project.
Now it is being discussed as a £50 – £60 billion project. Does anyone yet have realistic
figures for the cost of Crossrail 1, if so we have not seen them. Before the June 23 rd
referendum the Government was financially distressed and said that it was forced to
abandon its manifesto pledge to balance the budget by 2020. It is surely now very doubtful
that the country, let alone London, can afford Crossrail 2.
22

Chessington
District
Residents’
Association

22

Chessington
District
Residents’
Association
Received:
29/08/16

Comment noted. The Council also
No change.
recognise that key to facilitating and
managing new growth is to ensure
new investment and improvement in
supporting infrastructure, including
transport infrastructure such as
investments in Crossrail 2, bus
services and cycling infrastructure
(via the Go Kingston scheme),
providing residents with a much wider
choice of transport options whilst
reducing car reliance.

B134

Received:
29/08/16

Page 25 – Emerging Areas of Opportunity
This is not a sensible topic. Kingston currently has very major infrastructure problems. In
the South of the Borough we have traffic jams each morning and afternoon (from 3pm!) on
the A243 and adjacent roads. The smallest problems can cause gridlock. The traffic
congestion encourages ‘rat running’ in residential roads.
Even the Police response vehicles often use that option. The traffic problems we face are
directly linked to the traffic problems at Tolworth and the more general problem of a totally
inadequate road infrastructure in south west Kingston. As we noted above, what happens if
Gatwick gets the extra runway and quickly start the fast construction process, as they have
said that they will do? As we have already written, unless infrastructure problems can be
resolved, forget emerging areas of opportunity. We will have big enough problems
maintaining the viability of our current industrial estates as well as the health and sanity of
our residents.
Page 37 – Chessington
We have already commented extensively on Crossrail 2. New housing development is
extremely hypothetical.

All comments noted.
No change.
1. The new station is only a concept
at this stage as a potential way to
improve connections in this area and
relieve congestion. This will be
Enhancements to our two railway stations are the practical and financial responsibility of
subject to further exploration before
the railway companies, not the council. It amazes us that our council officers and
councillors accept the ugly, grotty state of Chessington North station. What is stopping the any decision is made. Note that the
arrival of Crossrail 2 would transform
council or the GLA from working with the railway companies at this moment in time to
pressure them to behave responsibly to the communities that they are meant to serve, and the connectivity of this area, providing
a more regular service (a minimum of
refurbish the stations. Disabled access would be a good kick off point.
four trains per hour on each line at all

53

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
times of operation) connecting
1. A new station serving CWA. Why? One of our members has measured the distance from through Central London; however,
detailed proposals from Crossrail 2
Chessington South station to the CWA public entrance. It is approximately 0.7 of a mile.
There is already a direct bus service to and from the station to CWA. It could be enhanced are yet to be decided.
to further support CWA requirements by running a shuttle bus, if CWA, which has the
vested interest, would pay the money. Alternatively, they could re-arrange the venue so
that the public entrance is at the station end of the site. We should not have to support
profitable international entertainment companies with public money.
Barwell Business Park is privately owned by an efficient and renowned property company
which specialises in trading estates. If anyone can think of ways of ‘intensification’ of the
business park, then tell them. There is nothing stopping them doing it now.
New District Centre. This idea came out of a recent consultation on the lamentable state of
the Hook Parade. It is pie in the sky.
Relief Road, already discussed.

B135

Improved Bus Service Provision. When there are no traffic jams the service provided on the
71 bus route is quite adequate at approximately ten minute intervals and offers a twentyminute journey to Kingston. However, due to the poor infrastructure and traffic congestion it
can often take an hour to get to or from Kingston. Such journeys are horrible for the
passengers.
For many years we have been campaigning to get the 478 bus service to Epsom enhanced
so that shoppers can go by bus to the Sainsbury Mega Store at Kiln Lane and to Epsom
hospital. These minimal alterations to the service would greatly help our aged residents and
families that do not own cars. We would welcome the council’s planning department
support on this issue.
Cycling Network. At the time of the consultation into cycling in Kingston we prepared a
paper proposing and detailing off road cycling routes to the town centre. This would have
supported safe cycling as all of our roads in the South of the Borough are too dangerous for
cyclists. It would also have encouraged residents to go to work in Kingston by bicycle,
provided safe cycle routes for children and facilitated leisure cycling. The project came to
nothing because the council decided that no money would be spent on supporting cycling
south of Surbiton station. There is already a network of footpaths in the South of the
Borough but they are in general badly maintained by the council.
22

Chessington

Page 39 – The Rest of the Borough

Comments noted.

No change.

54

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
District
Residents’
Association
Received:
29/08/16

For more than ten years we have opposed the various plans put forward by Tesco and
Meyer Bergman to build housing on the site adjacent to the Tolworth roundabout. The last
proposal was to build 705 housing units in ultra-high density on this small, heavily polluted
site. We have already said the road structure cannot take more traffic. The South of the
Borough has the highest level of Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease, which is
associated with air pollution, in the Borough. In our opinion the site is unsuitable for
housing. We think there are more suitable sites in Kingston upon which to build large
amounts of housing. We have been talking to people in those areas to explain our ideas.
As we said in our introduction we prefer not to comment on other parts of Kingston.

22

Chessington
District
Residents’
Association

Page 42 – Consultation Questions

Received:
29/08/16

2. Are there other areas in the Borough we should identify for selective growth?
Yes – answered in our text

Comments noted.

No change.

Comments noted.

No change.

1. Do you agree with the proposed areas for selective growth in the Direction of Travel ?
No – answered in our text.

B136

3. Are there other areas in the Borough that we should be seeking to protect and enhance?
What a question! Some years ago we proposed three SOTB residential roads or areas (one
per ward) for lower level conservation protection to prevent them from the intrusion of
unsuitable development. The council agreed on two of the proposals, but before we could
discuss the third we were told that the council planning department had no work space
available in its current schedule of work. The council officer dealing with these projects
subsequently left and no further action was taken in any of these streets or areas. Earlier
this year we asked for this project to be reinstated. We know that site visits have been
made by an officer, but the months have passed with no response
from the council.
4. What key infrastructure do you think the Borough needs to support its growing
population?
Comments made in the text.
5. Any other comments?
No
23

Liz Meerabeau
(New Malden
Residents’

I am responding to the New Malden section of the document on behalf of the committee of
New Malden Residents’ Association.
We agree with the proposals for New Malden, with the exception of the connectivity to

55

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
Association)
Received:
29/08/16

Kingston Hill (since there is no explanation of what is intended) and the improved
pedestrian and cycle networks (since there is again no information given). On these
aspects we therefore don’t have a view.
Our comments are as follows:
It isn’t clear for the document as a whole what framework is set by the Mayor’s office, and
what is within the remit of RBK. We would also like to know what the remit of the
Neighbourhood is, and what input our local councillors have had in the document.
We note that New Malden is not identified by the National Infrastructure Committee as a
site for development, although we recognise that more homes are needed, particularly
affordable housing. We request further clarity on where the Area of Opportunity in New
Malden would be sited, given that it has been depicted round the rail station but the station
is wrongly sited on the maps.
In general, RBK should set a more realistic percentage for affordable homes and then insist
on it. It is not sensible to have a target which is seemingly then ignored.

B137

Development should be less reliant on private developers. Is it really not feasible for RBK to
borrow sometimes, particularly when interest rates are so low? Also there should be clearer
co-ordination, e.g. with the Cocks Crescent development, and parameters for the number
of housing units which are not so wide. We would like to see clearer infrastructure planning,
such as in health and education. In relation to the latter, we are concerned if the increased
provision of primary education is through increasing school sizes, without considering the
effects on young children of learning in large institutions.
We recognise that parking provision is contentious, but there should be more use of
underground parking, and a greater recognition of the variability in public transport across
RBK (also the feasibility of using public transport with young children).
Since the High Street has the propensity to flood in heavy rain (most recently on
referendum day) we welcome the proposal to improve local drainage, which is essential.
Since NM station is to be a Crossrail 2 hub, we would like to see much of the CIL being
used for the benefit of NM.
New Malden’s proximity to the A3, and the traffic flows (or stasis) this generates, need
consideration.
24

South of the

1. We recognise the need for more housing but not at the expense of the Greenbelt.

1. Comment noted regarding Green

Page 10; Pink text

56

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
Borough Liberal
Democrats
Received:
26/08/16

Belt.
2. The assumption that we need to grow may be based on inaccurate information.
3. We are acutely aware of the need to preserve the character of the area.
4. We are concerned for the implications of Crossrail 2 but know we need to expand
transport.

2. Comment noted. Further
justification and reference of growth
estimates provided in revised
document.

3. Comments noted. The character
and heritage of the Borough
5. The current infrastructure in the South of the Borough can barely cope with what we
continues to be a key priority for the
have and there will only be further demands with the growth suggested in the
council. We recognise the need to
Direction of Travel.
positively balance new growth with
the consideration of heritage and
6. On page 18 the last sentence states the OLC ‘unlocking new development opportunities conservation assets in order to
and review of Green Belt land’. This is a huge concern and we object to
protect the distinctiveness of the
re-designation of green belt land to allow for growth, whether it is for housing, commercial borough. Further reference to the
or industry.
need to protect character has been
included in the revised document.
It would be preferable to promote new garden cities further out of the area.

Pages 27, 29, 31,
33, 35, 37; End of
Text
Sentence added
after bullet points:
‘We recognise that
new growth must
be balanced with
the unique
heritage and
character of the
Borough’.

B138

4. Crossrail 2 as proposed, would
offer a range of benefits for all users,
including a more regular service (a
minimum of four trains per hour on
each line at all times of operation)
connecting through Central London.
The Council will actively plan for the
arrival of Crossrail 2, although new
growth in Kingston is not dependant
on its delivery.

bottom-left
Update: Added
sentence providing
justification of
where the homes
and jobs figure has
come from for
Kingston.

5. Comment noted regarding
infrastructure. The Council recognise
that key to facilitating and managing
new growth is to ensure new
investment and improvement in
supporting infrastructure, including
community/leisure facilities and
transport infrastructure. We also
recognise that this investment must
be planned strategically through the
new local plan.

57

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

6. Regarding the Green Belt, the
Borough's strategic open spaces are
important and valued assets and in
accordance with the London Plan and
national policy, will be protected from
inappropriate development. However,
in line with recommendations by the
Outer London Commission, we also
recognise the need to undertake a
review of Green Belt land as part of
the Local Plan process in order to
assess the suitability of land going
forward. Although new settlements
can play a major role in contributing
towards the wider housing need, both
regionally and nationally, the Council
has a duty to address its housing
need.
24

Received:
26/08/16

Infrastructure Improvements
With regards to the Infrastructure Improvements we make the following comments:

1. Comment noted regarding A3
improvement proposals.

No change.

B139

South of the
Borough Liberal
Democrats

2. Comment noted regarding
Tolworth Park. This is only a concept
proposal at this stage regarding the
need for more accessible green
2. Tolworth Park redevelopment could increase traffic. Where will it be accessible from and
space access in this area. This
what is the purpose of it? It is agreed that something to attract more people to use the park
concept will be subject to further
would be welcome but anything that does happen, needs to harmonise with the existing
investigation and testing during the
environment.
local plan process.
1. A3 tunnelling over suggestion we feel is completely unpractical and costly. It is felt
unlikely to solve the issue with traffic and air pollution.

3. CWOA station – would need to be on the opposite side of the road. Would need to carry 3. Comments noted on a potential
on further to at least Malden Rushett otherwise what would really be the point?
Crossrail 2 station for CWOA. The
new station at CWOA is only a
4. Recognise the economic contribution of CWOA and what they bring to the area but any concept proposal at this stage,
future expansion would still need to be within the agreed development envelope and fully
considered to be a potential way of
respecting the green belt.
improving connections in this area
and relieving congestion. This will be
subject to further exploration before
5. Chessington/Hook relief road. We are not convinced that it would solve the problems
already presented by the current A243 and would result in desecration of the green belt. Air any decision is made.
quality. We are happy to explore the idea and fully consider all the implications.

58

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
4. Comments noted on the expansion
of CWOA.

24

South of the
Borough Liberal
Democrats
Received:
26/08/16

B140

5. Comments noted regarding the
Hook/Chessington relief road. To
address congestion and severance
around the Chessington, Tolworth
and Hook areas, the Council is
exploring the concept of a relief road
with neighbouring planning
authorities. The key benefits of the
scheme include:
a) Congestion Relief - diverting some
north and southbound traffic
(currently on the A243) via the relief
road and the A3, rather than passing
through Chessington.
b) Facilitating Growth - maximising
growth opportunities in Chessington,
with potential to attract further
investment, new jobs, housing,
commercial premises. New Crossrail
2 Services from 2033 will be serving
railway stations in the area with four
trains an hour in each direction
connecting central London.
Emerging Areas of Opportunity
With regards to the Emerging areas of Opportunity we make the following comments:

1. All comments noted. The identified No change.
'Areas of Opportunity' are considered
to be those areas most suited for new
1. We would like to have this explained along with the implications. Further comprehensive growth on account of their transport
accessibility, proximity to centres and
review of these assets? It is not clear what is meant by this.
regeneration opportunity. The
boundaries of these areas are only
2. Can we be sure that these development sites are brownfield and not green belt?
indicative at this stage and do not
indicate adverse impact the
3. With regards to the suggested sites on page 25, please could we have absolute clarity. Borough's valued assets. The detail
What sites, where and link with Chessington being identified?
of these development locations will
be worked through, and consulted
4. Upgrading of stations – fully accessible stations now please!
upon, in later stages of the Local Plan
process.
5. Chessington Industrial estate – train station Oakcroft road. Is this really needed and how

59

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
would it fit with the current area?
2. The Council follow a clear
'brownfield-first' approach to new
development. Although, as mentioned
above, we will be undertaking a
review of all land as part of the Local
Plan process in order to assess the
suitability of land going forward. This
reference has been further clarified in
the revised document.
3. Comments noted regarding sites.
The Direction of Travel is only a
Statement of Intent. Any strategic site
allocations will be considered as part
of the Local Plan process.
4. Comment noted regarding station
upgrades.

24

South of the
Borough Liberal
Democrats
Received:
26/08/16

Chessington
1. Looking specifically at Chessington, why is there a need for intensification of Barwell?
There are some excellent high quality brands currently operating from there but there are
also some units that have not been able to be marketed for industry so are now operating
as gyms/fitness studios. Further intensification will cause more traffic. What kind of
businesses and why?
2. Where is the new district centre to be?
3. How can the bus service be improved? Change and improve current service. There are
no buses in some more isolated areas of the Neighbourhood.

1. Comment noted regarding Barwell
Business Park. As part of the Local
Plan, the Council will be undertaking
a review of all existing industrial
estates and business parks.

B141

5. Comments regarding station at
Oakcroft Road. There are no current
plans to remove the Chessington
North station that currently exists in
this location as it serves local
residents and workers.
No change.

2. Comments noted regarding the
new district centre. It is anticipated
that expanded town centre uses and
facilities will be required to support
the area as a result of new growth.
The location of this will be subject to
further investigation through the Local
Plan process.

60

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

3. Improved bus services will also
form part of ongoing discussions with
TfL to improve public transport
accessibility in the area.
24

Summary
1. Comments noted.
1. If the data on which the idea of the growth is robust and the population is going to rise as
much as anticipated then there needs to be growth and it needs to be managed rather than 2. Comments noted.
selective.

Received:
26/08/16

3. Comments noted regarding
2. Other areas to consider for redevelopment: Berrylands, Old Malden and Worcester Park. supporting infrastructure. The Council
recognise that investment and
3. Infrastructure gaps and issues include drainage, water, air pollution control, schools,
improvement in supporting
GP’s, hospitals, employment and transport. There are significant drainage issues in South infrastructure is absolutely key to
of the Borough and the loss of green belt can further reduce the natural drainage in the
supporting new growth. This includes
area.
leisure and community facilities, as
well as transport infrastructure such
as Crossrail 2, bus services and cycle
infrastructure.

Surbiton Liberal
Democrats

Comments are made in page order of the document.
We recognise the need for more housing but question the assumptions made regarding
growth levels on pages 18 and 19. Future growth is based on estimates and further
evidence should be given - this should include stating the probability for different ranges of
growth and the assumptions made.

Received:
30/08/16

All comments noted. Regarding the
growth estimates on pages 18/19,
these figures have been checked
over and referenced accordingly.

No change.

Pages 18-19; Pink
text
Update: Population
estimates to reflect
latest GLA
projections
Pages 18-19;
Update: Footer
added sourcing all
referenced
population
estimates

25

Surbiton Liberal
Democrats
Received:
30/08/16

Story so far (pages 20 and 21):
The document states that the Tolworth Tower scheme has been consented. This is
inaccurate and therefore misleading - it was approved by DCC on 12th Jan 2016 but no
decision notice has been issued.

Comment noted regarding Tolworth
Tower. This text has been amended
accordingly.

Pages 20-21; Text
under images.
Update: Removed
the word
‘consented’. This
implies that all

61

B142

25

South of the
Borough Liberal
Democrats

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
schemes are
consented with legal
agreements signed.
25

Surbiton Liberal
Democrats
Received:
30/08/16

Infrastructure Improvements (pages 22 and 23):

1. Comments noted regarding the
No change.
proposed Tolworth A3 junction
improvements. The text "Unlock
1. The document mentions that the proposed Tolworth A3 junction improvements and
associated decking will provide a major opportunity to improve the environment and unlock development opportunities" refers
development opportunities, as well as bringing forward much needed road improvements in only to the opportunities that come
about as a result of improving
particular to road safety. Whilst we feel that this scheme has the potential to improve the
Tolworth as a place, enhancing
environment at Tolworth we have concerns as to its practicality and cost. We also have
connectivity, improving environmental
concerns regarding the words, "unlock development opportunities" and feel that further
quality and providing a high quality
clarity should be provided on this.
open space.
2. Whilst supporting Crossrail 2 we have concerns that too much emphasis is being placed
2. Comment noted regarding
on this which is a danger should the scheme not be proceeded with. Infrastructure
Crossrail 2. There is overwhelming
improvements should include improvements to stations (in particular access for the
support for Crossrail 2 and the
disabled) regardless of whether Crossrail 2 goes ahead or not.
Council will actively plan for its arrival.
However, new growth in Kingston is
not dependant on its delivery.

Surbiton Liberal
Democrats
Received:
30/08/16

Emerging Areas of Opportunity (pages 24 and 25):
See above re population forecasts.
1. We realise that the document says that the plan shows indicative hatching of the
potential Areas of Opportunity and where development sites may be identified which will be
further defined in the preparation of the Local Plan but we nevertheless have concerns
regarding Tolworth being identified as an Opportunity Area.
2. Given the number of new homes already approved (or at least approved at DCC even if
no decision notice has been issued) plus the likelihood of a substantial number of new
homes on the Tolworth ex MoD site, we feel that this document should at least give a broad
indication of where even more homes could be built in Tolworth if it is to be shown as an
Area of Opportunity.
Likewise with Berrylands and the Hogsmill Valley. The text refers to the Council's waste
facilities and Thames Water but more clarity should be given.

1. Comment noted regarding the
No change.
need indicate the location of sites.
The document is based on aims and
ambitions and the location of
development sites is not yet know.
This information will be considered at
a later stage in the Local Plan
process.

B143

25

2. Comments noted regarding
Tolworth. The proposed 'Areas of
Opportunity' as set out in the
Direction of Travel are considered to
be those areas most suited for new
growth on account of their transport
accessibility, proximity to centres and
regeneration opportunity. Tolworth is
identified as one of these areas. The
Tolworth Area Plan SPD is currently
being prepared which aims to
comprehensively plan new growth

62

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
opportunities in this area.
25

Surbiton Liberal
Democrats
Received:
30/08/16

25

Surbiton Liberal
Democrats

Berrylands and the Hogsmill Valley (pages 30 and 31):
The first bullet point refers to "Substantial delivery of new homes including family housing".
Whilst recognising that this is a high level document we feel that further clarification and
qualification should be given. In particular, what is meant by "substantial" plus an indication
of where this delivery of new homes could take place. Is the last bullet point regarding flood
attenuation related to the first bullet regarding delivery of new homes?
It should be explicitly stated that Metropolitan Open Land will retain its status and not be redesignated.

Comments noted. The document is
No change.
based on aims and ambitions and the
location of development sites is not
yet know. This information will be
considered at a later stage in the
local plan process.

Tolworth (pages 34 and 35):
As above - the fourth bullet point regarding an increase in new homes should give some
indication as to where they will be built.

Comment noted. As above, this
information will be considered at a
later stage in the local plan process.

No change.

Received:
30/08/16
26

Consultation questions (page 42):
Comment noted.
We feel that question 1 is simplistic and difficult to answer given the high level nature of the
document and further detail is required as explained above.

No change.

North Kingston
Liberal
Democrats
(Sarah Olney)

1. Do you agree with the proposed areas for selective growth in the Direction of
Travel?
No. We agree with Kingston Residents’ Alliance that we do not want the ‘Development
Areas of Opportunity” designation for Kingston Borough.

No change.

Received:
29/07/16

2. Are there other areas in the borough we should identify for selective growth?
No.

Surbiton Liberal
Democrats

26

3. Are there other areas in the borough that we should be seeking to protect and
enhance?
Yes – all of it. There is little evidence in the current administration's support for large scale,
high rise, intensive development at the Old Post Office site and Tolworth that they have any
intention to protect and enhance the borough. We should be seeking to enhance the
amount of affordable housing in any development – the mere 229 units of affordable
housing out of 4,316 new housing units approved since 2014 is a damning indictment of
this Conservative administration’s failure to help local people struggling to get a home of
their own.

All comments noted. The Council
recognise that key to facilitating and
managing new growth is to ensure
new investment and improvement in
supporting infrastructure, including
community/leisure facilities and
transport infrastructure. We also
recognise that this investment must
be planned strategically through the
new Local Plan.

B144

Received:
30/08/16

63

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
4. What key infrastructure do you think the borough needs to support its growing
population?
The Council should unequivocally back the retention of fast trains from Waterloo to
Surbiton if Crossrail 2 is built. In addition it should lobby the government to provide the
funds to allow SWT and the Mayor of London to rezone Kingston and Surbiton stations to
zone 5. And the council needs to get a much better deals from developers in terms of
community resources – school places, health facilities and preserve and improve local
shops, pubs and community halls and open spaces.
27

John Moran
HM Specialist
Inspector of
Health and
Safety (Risk
Assessment)
Received:
07/07/16

When consulted on land use planning matters, HSE where possible will make
representations to ensure that compatible development within the consultation zones of
major hazard establishments and major accident hazard pipelines (MAHPs) is achieved.
We have concluded that we have no representation to make at this stage of your local
planning process. This is because there is insufficient information in the consultation
document on the location and use class of sites that could be developed. In the absence of
this information, HSE is unable to give advice regarding the compatibility of future
developments within the consultation zones of major hazard establishments and MAHPs
located in the area of your local plan.

Comments noted. The Council
welcomes future engagement with
HSE during the preparation of the
new Local Plan.

No change.

B145

64

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

Local Residents
ID
28

Respondent
B Ekins
Received:
22/07/16

Comment

RBK Response

Document
Update

1. Strong opposition to the proposals. Kingston is an authentic Market Town which is full of
character and concerns that developers have and will continue to build the character out of
the town. There is an understanding that proposals are in the pipeline, but these will
negatively impact the local and settled population and their quality of life. At best the local
population will be thrown a few minor concessions. In recent years the lives of some local
people in this area badly affected, to the extent that they have either moved away or are on
the point of doing so. All of this so that a business and a Housing Association could get
their way. At the latest meeting it was made clear by the attending public that proposed
development and infrastructure is not wanted, despite the understanding that it will go
ahead.

B146

1. All comments noted. Regarding
No change.
density and population growth, the
population of Kingston is set to
increase by at least 10%. Therefore
there is a need to plan positively for it
through the local plan process. We
recognise the need to manage growth
in a way that is sensitive to the
environment, heritage and existing
local residents. It also includes
ensuring new investment and
improvement in supporting
2. The issue of overcrowded is not addressed with proposed new infrastructure, and
spending millions of pounds on cycling routes that are largely unused will worsen the issue. infrastructure, such as community
Unsure how removing road space for an ever increasing number of vehicles, necessary to facilities, as well as mitigating impact
move ever increasing numbers of people around, is beneficial. There is no recognition from on key environmental issues such as
traffic, air and noise pollution.
those in power that “maybe the public are right".
2. Comment noted regarding cycling.
In accordance with the London Plan,
the Council places significant
emphasis on the role of cycling in the
I have found the present leader of our council to be a man of his word and am willing to
future of movement in the Borough,
take him at his word on this issue, for now. I have a degree of sympathy with him because
but not to the detriment of other road
as a resident he appears to have some sympathy with the views expressed at the meeting
users. Key to achieving this vision is
and I would presume, meetings all over the country. Where I part company with the leader
the delivery of the Go Cycle
of our council and others, is when they side with the orders being handed from on high and
Programme whereby the Council
not with their local elector’s, residents and taxpayers.
received over £30m of funding from
the Mayor of London and TfL to
If council leaders do truly side with their local people, why do they not collectively approach deliver improvements to cycling
national politicians and say “our electors are saying, enough is enough, in fact they are
facilities and road safety. Please note
saying it has all gone too far”. There are only three conclusions to be drawn from their lack that the Go Kingston measures are in
of action, one, they possibly do not actually side with their local people, two, they would
the early stages of implementation
rather hang onto their positions than upset national politicians. The third is that they agree and need time for road users to
that the only way to grow the economy is to continually bring in more and more people. I
become familiar with the new
would suggest that eventually, that is the way to bedlam.
arrangements.
3. Significant concerns of traffic chaos at Tolworth - "building hundreds of new homes and
multiple businesses in this area, and a bit of road tinkering" will not sort the problem.

65

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

Surely, so soon after the recent EU referendum result, in which the numbers of people
coming here was a large factor, now is the time to convince national politicians of the folly
of plans. I have to sum up the feelings at the end of the meeting of the 19 th with the words
of another attendee. When ask for his thoughts he said “quite possibly that it had been an
exercise in futility”.

29

Dennis Doe
Received:
24/07/16

3. Comments regarding traffic in
Tolworth noted. It is recognised that
improvements to the Tolworth
A3/A240 intersection are unlikely to
bring any major road capacity
improvements. The primary focus will
be on the environment and safety,
with the majority of the new trips to
the area predicted to be by public
transport.

Factual Error
Comments noted regarding Royal
Page (v) - There are now 5 Royal Boroughs, following the creation of the Royal Borough of Boroughs noted. Text has been
Greenwich. I suggest it would be better to say As the Premier Royal Borough, we are........ amended in the revised document.
Note that RBK’s “Premiership” was acknowledged in the protocol guidance, “Civic
Ceremonial”, published June 2009.

Page v; Paragraph
3
Original text: ‘As
one of only four
Royal Boroughs’

29

Dennis Doe
Received:
24/07/16

29

Dennis Doe
Received:
24/07/16

Transportation linkages
Commended emphasis on linking rail, bus, cycling and pedestrian modes, (and river?).
Earlier recommendations by me and others to link the existing Kingston Station via a
footbridge to the bus station and a footway across to (say) Fife Road entry (or the cinema
complex, which they preferred!) were not accepted by the then Administration who (sic)
didn't want the brickwork of the refuge island disturbed.

Support noted. The council
No change.
recognises the need to significantly
upgrade the rail/bus integration in the
future, particularly with the arrival of
Crossrail 2 in the town centre and
predicted increased patronage etc.
Current public transport facilities (bus
and rail) are separated and
approaching capacity. Development
of comprehensive integrated
transport facilities are in the early
stages of development with key
partners such as Transport for
London and Network Rail.

Reviewing the existing Relief Road
This proposal is welcomed. Put it in context: when Clarence Street was two-way it was
dangerous to walk on the pavement and overtake; Kingston was frequently on the traffic
news as a place to avoid. The Relief Road has done the Town a lot of good.
But, I have long protested the closure of the right-hand turn from the Richmond Road at

Comments noted.

No change.

66

B147

Update: ‘As one of
three Royal London
Boroughs’.

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
Kingston Station. But the previous Administration would not hear of it.
Nor would they accept an emergency gate which the police could open if the Town Centre
was jammed. So traffic was / is still forced to go around the Town Centre even though it
just wants to cross Kingston Bridge.
29

Dennis Doe
Received:
24/07/16

29

Dennis Doe
Received:
24/07/16

Dennis Doe
Received:
24/07/16

Comments noted regarding
No change.
infrastructure requirements. The
Council recognise that key to
facilitating and managing new growth
in Kingston is to ensure new
investment and improvement in
supporting infrastructure, including
community facilities such as schools
and healthcare. The detail of these
requirement will be considered at a
later stage of the Local Plan process.

Crossrail 2
Will it definitely go ahead? - and on time? I suggest it will not be delivered on time. Such
huge projects run by bureaucracies do NOT run to time or budget. But will it go ahead
anyway? The Draft assumes it will. Yet the population growth will happen even if it doesn’t.
So do we have a Plan B?

Comment noted. There is
No change.
overwhelming support for Crossrail 2
and the Council will actively plan for
its arrival. However, new growth in
Kingston is not dependant on its
delivery.

Employment / business opportunities
Although occasionally referred to in the text, there is a need to make clearer what will be
the Borough’s Direction of Travel for employment and businesses. Are we to be simply a
commuter borough, reliant on Crossrail, or are we to be a mixed-economy borough? And if
so, what businesses will be encouraged? Just retail? Where do two of the largest
employers fit in with their “offering”, i.e., the Health Services, including Kingston Hospital
and the University / College offering?

Comments on employment noted.
The council recognises the
importance of providing more diverse
employment opportunities across all
sectors, including roles with higher
salaries and small and medium-sized
enterprizes. This need will be
considered alongside existing
employment designations in the
borough. Text has been amended in
the revised document to further
reference employment opportunities.

B148

29

Infrastructure Requirement
Understanding that articulating infrastructure requirement at this stage is difficult, but there
is a need to be more explicit, if only to highlight the “direction of travel” of the various
elements. For example, can we be more specific about the education facilities and leisure
opportunities?
A major omission is the Infrastructure of services, esp. water supply. Some while ago, in
Tudor Ward, we had a problem of the water pressure at times not being high enough to
service the upper floors of the blocks of flats in Albany Park Road. Senior people from
Thames Water visited Cllr Cunningham and me. The lack of pressure was owing to the
increased number of dwellings needing water supply. The map of the pipework showed the
difficulties Thames Water faced. The implications of the Direction of
Travel will be enormous on existing pipework. It needs acknowledging.

Pages 19;
Paragraph 1
Original text: A new
borough Local Plan
is required to show
how it will deliver
the growth needs of
a rapidly rising
population.
Update: A new
borough Local Plan
is required to show
how it will deliver
the growth needs of
a rapidly rising
population, including
new affordable

67

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
homes, a diverse
range of
employment
opportunities, and
expanded leisure
and community
facilities.
29

Dennis Doe
Received:
24/07/16

Mission Statement
The Draft reads as if all the activity and investment which will be required is a response to
the problems of population growth. At its worst, this is a somewhat negative, re-action
approach and something of this comes across in the way the Draft is written. It sounds too
much like “we have a problem which we wish we didn't have and we need to prepare for it
even if it means doing things we don't want to do” And the approach to a solution seems to
be simply planning forward from now, year by year, how we shall meet the housing
requirement and the ancillary problems. I.e., typical traditional Planning; extrapolating
forward year- by-year.

30

Simon Lambe
Received:
27/07/16

Overall population and student population increase
1. Concern over increase in student accommodation and university populations. Mistake in
permitting the construction of Student Accommodation without assurances that it was for
local students - as they do not pay Council Tax, and put large strain on Publicly Funded
resources, as well as existing resident's standard of living, but do balance the diversity
figures nicely.
2. Your comment at Tuesday's meeting that Kingston University have made a conscious
decision to reduce numbers as a fantastic piece of forward thinking, in line with public
opinion, rather than Government proposal, and hope that future local students will be able

B149

You might therefore consider a slightly different approach? This was what was behind the
interesting comments on 20 th July from Caroline Cheales. She is Programme Manager of
Project at TfL. We had similar ideas and, talking to her afterwards, we learnt that we got
them from the same source, i.e., Shell International, for whom I once worked. Shell
developed SCENARIO PLANNING. This involved describing what situations might come
about, at some time head, i.e., painting the scenarios of the situations in which we might
find ourselves. THEN, you extrapolate backwards to where we are now. In so doing we
identify what needs to be done to prepare for the likely scenarios. [I was involved too in
apply probability theory to the options in order to determine what programme of activity was
most sensible to plan and activate.] This approach might facilitate the scenario of no, or
much delayed, Crossrail 2. It would also make the message more encouraging and
exciting, e.g., the opportunities that growth and the consequential investment offer;
supporting a mixed economy Borough with new opportunities but maintaining the old and
valuable; removing the John Tilley decision to make Kingston into a Commuter Town.

Comments regarding response to
No change.
population growth noted. The
population of Kingston is set to
increase by at least 10%, therefore
there is a need to plan positively for it
through the local plan process. We
recognise the need to manage growth
in a way that is sensitive to the
environment and existing local
residents, and balanced with the
consideration of heritage assets and
the unique character of the local area.

1. Comments regarding student
accommodation and HMOs noted.

No change.

2. The Council acknowledges a need
for managed student accommodation
within the Borough, in particular with
nomination rights for Kingston
University. Where appropriate, the
Council will support the delivery of
additional managed student

68

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
to be placed in their purpose built accommodation, thus allowing often illegal HMOs to be
returned to Domestic stock. I find Kingston Council's refusal to deal with illegal HMOs
infuriating, It is a shame the Government cannot think along the same lines, sometimes
you need to stop and take stock of a situation.
3. You next went on to evade the question regarding "Kingston's Policy for Increasing
Population" stating that "there is none" before continuing to explain that there is GLC
Population Density Plan, of which we have our part to play. My understanding of this is that
Kingston has no written policy on this, but are under influence of a higher authority. I think
that agreeing a long term Policy Document, agreed by them, rather than swaying to their
requirements, would permit Kingston to look forward with better knowledge for decision
making.

30

Simon Lambe

30

Simon Lambe
Received:
27/07/16

3. Comments regarding Kingston's
policy for increasing population noted.
Regarding the vision and ambition,
the purpose of the Direction of Travel
is to provide the Council's 'Statement
of Intent' at the earliest stage in
preparing the new Borough Local
Plan. It aims to provide alignment of
local planning policy, the London
Plan, and Kingston's growth agenda,
as well as the broad context in which
the new Borough Local Plan needs to
be planned. The detail and
deliverability of new growth strategies
will be developed in later stages of
the local plan process.

Budget
At our meeting on the Budget you stated that Kingston got a minimal budget from the GLC
as it is "Historically a Wealthy Borough" if we are housing students at University in other
Boroughs, for no service contribution (Council Tax) I would suggest a revision of our
financial allocation from the GLC.

Comments on the Council budget
No change.
noted. This is a matter that should be
raised with your local ward councillors
or at relevant Council meetings.

Tolworth Junction
1. Considering growth planned by the borough, I find that with the prior identification of "a
problem" with the Tolworth Junction, and public transportation as well as parking in the
vicinity, that the approval of 200 new homes and 330 new jobs as ludicrous, particularly
when you highlight the potential of major works covering the A3 Junction, with the Ewell
Rd, unable to cope with current volumes and the other available station on the opposite
side of the works. With this in mind I would propose installing a one way system, heading
up the Ewell Rd towards Surbiton, but coming down King Charles Rd, (including
upgrading/opposing direction of travel of the road bridge over the cutting)

1. Comments regarding the Tolworth No change.
junction noted. It is recognised that
improvements to this intersection are
unlikely to bring any major road
capacity improvements. The primary
focus will be on the environment and
safety, with the majority of the new
trips to the area predicted to be by
public transport.

2. Additionally I would propose an upgrade/alteration of TFL's last stand, the Ace of
Spades (Hook) Junction, permitting access to the main A3 from this point, rather than
sending traffic up to and around the Tolworth Roundabout to gain access. This would
relieve both junctures, a relatively simple NPRC survey of the North and Southbound
carriageways would highlight the extent of this relief Northbound on the Tolworth Slip road,
Southbound from the Hook Underpass. Having relieved these points, I suggest that the

2. Comment regarding a one-way
system noted. Although one-way
systems can work, the Council is
keen to avoid such schemes as they
can increase traffic speeds, create a
severance between communities and

B150

Received:
27/07/16

accommodation. The Council will
investigate any potentially illegal
HMOs in the Borough.

69

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
vast proposed Malden Rushet Bypass would not be required, merely a Private Access road are not beneficial to the public realm.
from the A3 to Chessington World of Adventures carpark, over Winney Hill.approximately
This also follows Government policy.
10% of the proposal.(a far less obtrusive use of green belt)
I find the proposals for the covering of the Tolworth Junction "interesting" potentially viable
but the aforementioned proposals necessary prior to any approval. I would suggest that
tunnelling a replacement road from the Ex- MOD site behind the Charrington Bowl to the
Malden Road/Hogsmill open space prior would provide a larger area of development and
dramatically reduce disruption time. As well as permitting waste removal in bulk via the Day
Aggregate Rail Head, rather than by road. The change of direction of the road at the New
Maldon Junction should reduce the quantity of accidents at this point, currently greatly
caused by being partially blinded by sunlight when it is low in the sky as you exit the
Underpass, and traffic joining from the left.
30

Simon Lambe
Received:
27/07/16

30

Simon Lambe

30

Simon Lambe
Received:
27/07/16

No change.

Central Bus Garage
I do have concerns regarding TFL's proposal for a "central" Bus Garage, we have after all
been there before, which failed dramatically once Kingston Council implemented a one way
system without any relief roads. We also know of the chaos that was Shepard's Bush with
too many busses governing the roads, blocking the majority of lanes to let each other in/out
without a thought for other road users (similar to what we find at the current Cromwell Road
Bus Station.
The new Shepherd's Bush Bus Station, out of the main thoroughfare does work, but where
to locate it in Kingston? Maybe at the old Bingo hall/ The car park other side of the station/
triangular junction with Richmond Road?

Comments on the new bus station
No change.
noted. The Council recognises the
need to significantly upgrade the
rail/bus integration in the future,
particularly with the arrival of
Crossrail 2 in the town centre and
predicted increased patronage etc.
Current public transport facilities (bus
and rail) are separated and
approaching capacity. Development
of comprehensive integrated
transport facilities are in the early
stages of development with key
partners such as Transport for
London and Network Rail.

Portsmouth Road Cycle Lane
The new cycle lane on the Portsmouth Road, may work as it was intended, a leisure space
for a nice ride along the river, but this is currently a minority use, and urgent attention
needs to be taken to revising this facility. It's conception is a great idea, however I find it's
design poorly thought out.
I followed a cyclist the majority of the distance before the new path, without passing or
problem due to the speed of traffic in front. I was following a 7.5 Ton lorry, travelling slowly
(I am unsure if you have placed a weight restriction on this new section but can advise that

Comment on Portsmouth Road
No change.
noted. The scheme to is part of the
Mini-Hollands projects that the
Council's Go Cycle Team have been
running consultations on. Please note
that the scheme on Portsmouth Road
is not yet complete and it will take
time before all the intended

B151

Received:
27/07/16

Crossrail 2
Comments regarding Crossrail 2
I have no particular objections to the crossrail 2 proposals, and think that the extension to a noted.
new station at Chessington, a good idea with forward thinking, it might be possible to rotate
fields in the area, (which appear empty but I don't know) with those egg crate ground
reinforcements, as car parking, and a park and ride facility into town, further relieving the
roads, but keeping the green space.

70

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
the new lanes are very narrow.) This lorry turned off down Cadogan Road, giving oncoming improvements are realised.
traffic better passage, and revealing the reason for our pitiful speed, two cyclists riding two
abreast in the main carriageway. I wondered what they were doing there, with a huge new
path all to themselves, but they then turned right down Catherine Road, so were no longer
a question, but rapidly turned into a conclusion. At this point, the cyclist I had been
following without any objection, suddenly came invincible! Hopped the curb between us
without warning, and turned right into a no entry- Catherine Road.
Which lead's me to the problem with your cycle lane, absolutely no thought has been given
to the control of through traffic using it, requiring other routes than the entire length, At the
Surbiton end cyclists have to cross to the opposite side of the road, or use the footpath to
continue their journey SW, paying as usual little regard to traffic lights or dismount signs,
and a similar problem will occur with cyclists versus pedestrians at the Kingston end,
especially if you instal the proposed "Cantilever"(why would you when a stilted boardwalk
would be far cheaper).
I think you suggested a £30M budget so far on these works, and I would suggest that you
should approach the designer sooner rather than later for their Professional Indemnities
Insurance, and a view to revising plans without cost.
30

Simon Lambe
Received:
27/07/16

Development Potential
1. In relation to development potential, I think that the old Petrol Station, currently a Car
Wash on Coombe Road, would make good Sheltered Housing, with local shops and good
proximity to the Hospital.

No change.

B152

1. Comments regarding the former
petrol station on Coombe Road
noted. Planning permission has
recently been granted for serviced
apartments on this site.

2. Additionally, land next to Ace of Spades junction, possibly owned by Chessington
Equestrian Centre, would make a better location for a Business Park, possibly replacing
2. Comments regarding a potential
Barwell to housing, relieving traffic at Maldon Rushett, with better proximity to main arterial new business park noted. As part of
roads, particularly if this junction were to be remodelled.
the Local Plan process, the Council
will be undertaking a review of all
existing industrial estates and
business parks and identifying any
future needs employment needs.
30

Simon Lambe
Received:
27/07/16

31

Brian Gaff
Received:
24/07/16

Environmental Protection
Comments regarding environmental
As for Protection or Enhancement, there is a piece of Land, off the High Street, next to the protection noted.
Ram Public House, which was formerly in the Urban Development Plan, which had a
clause requiring an Archaeological Dig prior to consent, I believe this should be
investigated, with the potential of a cultural attraction (possible resiting of the King Stone in
a highlighted position) if they find anything, make an exhibition centre under apartments, if
they don't it is prime land.

No change.

I assume the phone number folk will do blind people's consultations over the phone
interacting with your web site. I'm merely writing this email to make sure that the
consultation this time does not include a mandatory email address for the person as many
older and blind people do not use the internet.

No change.

Comments noted. The Council is
committed to ensuring that hard to
reach groups are engaged in
consultations and are happy to

71

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

32

Brian Godding
Received:
27/07/16

32

Brian Godding
Received:
27/07/16

consider arrangements for those with
disabilities, such as producing audio
summaries of consultations. The
Council's draft Statement of
Community Involvement
acknowledges this and the Council
welcomes any suggestions to help
improve its consultation methods.

We are satisfied that the proposal for areas of further development to be associated with
existing and proposed transport nodes. However, we cannot understand why two similar
locations, Malden Manor and Surbiton are not included.

Comment noted. New growth
opportunity is not ruled out in areas
outside the identified 'Areas of
Opportunity', only considered to be
less significant and transformational.

No change.

1. Strongly object to the concept that these sites should be classified as 'Development
Areas Of Opportunity'.

1. Comment on Areas of Opportunity
noted. Kingston is identified as an
area of significant growth opportunity
in the London Plan. The purpose of
the Direction of Travel is to set out
the earliest stage of a new Borough
local plan that will ultimately frame
the strategy to appropriately manage
this growth in order to ensure that it
does not have a negative impact on
the quality of life of existing residents
and the environment. This includes
ensuring significant new investment
and improvement in supporting
infrastructure, such as community
facilities and transport infrastructure,
as well as mitigating impact on key
environmental issues such as traffic,
air and noise pollution.

Page vi; bottom of
page

2. Nowhere in this document is the meaning of 'intensification' for the benefit of lay people
to ensure transparency and to avoid misunderstanding if a meaningful response to the
consultation is desired. Instead it seems to be for the benefit of developers to put forward
schemes for which financial benefit is the driving force regardless of the needs of the
community.

Update: Footer
added to read:
Intensification
definition
“sustainability
increasing density
whilst optimising the
development
potential of plots”

2. Comment on intensification noted.
This has been amended in the
revised document.
32

Brian Godding
Received:
27/07/16

Objection to two recent 'overwhelming' developments in Kingston that are not only
Comment noted. The Council
No change.
prejudicial to the environment but excessively congested. The council must set reasonable recognise that new growth must be
criteria for an area before even discussing individual applications.
balanced with the need to protect the
environment, character of the
borough, as well as the quality of life

72

B153

One of the directions you need to go in is to remind your various departments that hard to
reach groups like blind or those with learning difficulties need a telephone number to
contact folk on. All too often it's go to here or twitface etc, which even I have no time for.
People are not mind readers and I'd hate for people to be disenfranchised as is beginning
to occur recently with this obsession with online everything. remember learning to use a
computer with speech is not trivial, It took me years to ven get it so I coule use it.

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
of existing residents.
32

Brian Godding
Received:
27/07/16

32

Brian Godding
Received:
27/07/16

Brian Godding

No mention in the document of 'affordable' or 'social' housing but this must surely be a
matter for inclusion in the plan. Flats in town centres are, by definition, expensive and
beyond the reach of lower paid people. So they will be occupied by highly paid outsiders
drawn to the town by its attractive features and little will be done to alleviate the plight of
existing residents. Evidence elsewhere has shown that they have often bought as
investments for overseas buyers and sometimes left unoccupied. A policy that does not
include some consideration of this problem is flawed.

We are asked to suggest other areas in the borough that we should be seeking to protect
and enhance. The document does not identify areas that have been protected, if any. As
the council has succeeded in approving schemes that have corrupted the environment of

Comments on affordable/social
housing noted. The document is
intended to be high-level at this early
stage of the local plan process,
providing the Council's 'Statement of
Intent'. It aims to provide alignment of
local strategic planning policy, the
London Plan, and Kingston's growth
agenda, as well as the broad context
in which the new Borough Local Plan
needs to be planned. The detail and
deliverability of new growth strategies
will be developed and consulted upon
in later stages of the local plan
process.

Pages 19;
Paragraph 1
Original text: A new
borough Local Plan
is required to show
how it will deliver
the growth needs of
a rapidly rising
population.
Update: A new
borough Local Plan
is required to show
how it will deliver
the growth needs of
a rapidly rising
population, including
new affordable
homes, a diverse
range of
employment
opportunities, and
expanded leisure
and community
facilities.

Comments noted. The character and No change.
heritage of the Borough continues to
be a key priority for the Council. We

73

B154

32

Strongly object to the statement on page vi that housing, especially higher density housing Comments on town centres noted.
No change.
should be located in town centres. The Royal Borough is on the outskirts of Greater
The identified 'Areas of Opportunity'
London and there must surely be more appropriate sites for residential developments.
are considered to be those areas
most suited for new growth on
account of their transport
accessibility, proximity to centres and
regeneration opportunity. The detail
of these development locations will
be worked through, and consulted
upon, in later stages of the local plan
process.

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

32

Received:
27/07/16

the centre of Kingston this question can only be regarded as cynical.

recognise the need to positively
balance new growth with the
consideration of heritage and
conservation assets in order to
protect the distinctiveness of the
Borough.

Brian Godding

The proposals seem reasonable, however any agreement to these aspirational
infrastructure improvements cannot be used to support or encourage unacceptable intense
development to make them achievable. If that link exists the document should have made
this tradeoff clear which is not the case.

Comment noted regarding the need No change.
for supporting infrastructure. The
council is committed to appropriately
managing new growth in order to
ensure that it does not have a
negative impact on the quality of life
of existing residents and the
environment. This includes ensuring
new investment and improvement in
supporting infrastructure, such as
community facilities and transport, as
well as mitigating impact on key
environmental issues such as traffic,
air and noise pollution.

Received:
27/07/16

Brian Godding
Received:
27/07/16

33

Conor Wilson
Received:
11/08/16

There is no mention of the planning required to make sure that the provision of school
Comments noted. The detail of these No change.
places and availability of health and dental care are available in step with, or in advance of requirements will be considered at a
the expected increase in population. Lessons should be learnt from the failure to do so in
later stage of the local plan process.
the massive increase in housing in Greater London in the 1930's.
My colleague Gary Young mentioned you were seeking information about aspirations for
the University’s sports ground at Tolworth Court. The sports ground currently provides very
good facilities for outdoor sports. There are outdoor pitches for a range of sports. You can
find further details on line at http://www.kingston.ac.uk/sport/tolworthcourtsportsground/
As you can see from the web link above these pitches are available for hire for clubs and
teams when they are not being used by the University’s student teams. It has a small club
house and associated bar.
I understand that at RBK’s Growth Committee meeting on 6th June it was resolved to
undertake a six weeks public consultation starting from Friday, 24 June until 29 August
2016 on the draft Direction of Travel statement, a non-statutory document prepared jointly
by the Greater London Authority, Transport for London and the Council’s Strategic
Planning Team. In establishing this strategic context for the development of a new Local
Plan and emerging Opportunity Area we would want there to be some reference to our
aspirations for a jointly procured and managed major indoor leisure facility at Tolworth, on
our land, to complement the existing outdoor sports facilities.

B155

32

Comments noted. The text has been Pages 35; Last
amended to reflect enhanced
bullet point
leisure/sports facilities in Tolworth on
page 35.
Original text:
Facilitating the
delivery of Tolworth
Park
Update: Facilitating
the delivery of
Tolworth Park and
enhanced
leisure/sports
facilities

74

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
34

Caroline Shah
Received:
20/08/16

34

Caroline Shah
Received:
20/08/16

Caroline Shah
Received:
20/08/16

34

Caroline Shah
Received:
20/08/16

34

Caroline Shah
Received:

Comment on strategy noted. The
No change.
purpose of the Direction of Travel is
to provide the Council's 'Statement of
Intent' at the earliest stage of the
process in preparing the new
Borough Local Plan. It aims to
provide alignment of local strategic
planning policy, the London Plan, and
Kingston's growth agenda, as well as
the broad context in which the new
Borough Local Plan needs to be
planned. Further detail and
deliverability of new growth strategies
will be developed and consulted upon
in later stages of the Local Plan
process.

Robust risk assessment is critical in a growth plan on this scale and is absent in this
strategy. The issues noted in the risk assessment are random and reflect a completely
inadequate assessment of the risks inherent in following the confused plans laid out in this
strategy and of mechanisms to manage them. No context is given for the risks identified,
nor are risks related to the objectives from which they arise. The risks inherent in growth of
this scale are huge and could have a huge impact on the well being of current and future
stakeholders in the Borough. The lack of adequate consideration of risk means this
Direction of Travel strategy should be REJECTED.

Comment on risk noted. The Council No change.
considers all forms of risk through the
preparation of any plans and
strategies it produces.

Contrary to assertions in the report, there is no evidence at all that the Council adopts a
“proactive yet proportionate approach to the identification of risks across its activities.”
Indeed, the Council’s failure to manage many of its existing activities properly or on a
financially viable basis indicates that the council’s risk analysis skills are severely lacking.
The risks inherent in the proposed growth strategy for the Borough are huge and threaten
the wellbeing of existing residents and stakeholders. These have not been considered. The
Direction of Travel strategy should therefore be REJECTED.

Comment on financial risk noted. The No change.
Council considers all forms of risk,
including financial risk, through the
preparation of any plans and
strategies it produces.

The Direction of Travel has already been approved by the Mayor without any previous
discussion with any stakeholders in the Borough. The Mayor’s approval should not take
precedence over the fact that the Council should need a mandate from residents and other
stakeholders for growth on this scale. The council does not have a mandate from the
Borough’s stakeholders to pursue the proposed growth strategy and the Direction of Travel
should be REJECTED.

Comment of approval noted. The
No change.
document is currently a consultation
draft and the Council will make a
decision on whether or not to adopt it
in due course.

The Direction of Travel has NO input from anyone in Kingston other than two Tory
councillors, Kevin Davis and David Cunningham, who ALONE have negotiated the details
of the plan with the Mayor’s office and TFl. This is autocratic not democratic. For this
reason, the strategy should be REJECTED and the plan should be redrafted after a

Comments noted. This consultation
No change.
offers local residents to have their say
on the document. Any decision taken
to adopt the document will be made

B156

34

The strategy will effectively be decided for good if approved in its current form. No one will
be able to stop the Direction of Travel after September 2016. Once approved by the
Council, ie in September 2016 after being public for only 3 months, document will provide
“supplementary planning advice to the London Plan by supporting the selective
redevelopment of areas within the Borough”. This major strategy is being rushed through
before anyone can stop it.

75

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

34

20/08/16

mandate has been obtained from residents and other stakeholders for growth on this scale in a public meeting.
and of this form in the Borough.

Caroline Shah

The strategy document refers to “areas of opportunity” that have arisen as part of the
potential future delivery of CrossRail 2. These have never been discussed and it is
completely unclear what and where these are. No consultation on these areas has
happened. On this basis, the Direction of Travel Strategy should be REJECTED.

Received:
20/08/16

34

Caroline Shah
Received:
20/08/16

34

Caroline Shah
Received:
20/08/16

Caroline Shah
Received:
20/08/16

34

Caroline Shah
Received:
20/08/16

34

Caroline Shah

It is written in the Direction of Travel document that the “Direction of Travel … reflects the
Comment on ideas noted.
CULMINATION of ideas on all these projects to date.” All “ideas” have been discussed only
between a handful of individuals at the GLA, TfL, and two Tory councillors. Ideas have not
even been sought on what growth should happen in Kingston, so they can not at all have
culminated. On this basis, the Direction of Travel Strategy should be REJECTED.
The Strategic Growth Board, which consists solely of Kevin Davis and David Cunningham,
was given authority by the Tory Council in March 2015 to negotiate behind closed doors
with the GLA to develop an Opportunity Area for Kingston Town. How has this come to be
extended to the whole Borough without even going to Committee? On this basis, the
Direction of Travel Strategy should be REJECTED.

No change.

Comments on Area of Opportunity
No change.
noted. The identified 'Areas of
Opportunity' are considered to be
those areas most suited for new
growth on account of their transport
accessibility, proximity to centres and
regeneration opportunity. The
boundaries of these areas are only
indicative at this stage and do not
indicate adverse impact the
Borough's valued assets. The detail
of these development locations will
be worked through, and consulted
upon, in later stages of the Local Plan
process.

It is written in the Direction of Travel that “Any potential for confusion on the part of the
Comment on consultation noted.
public and business communities that may have arisen by consulting on these projects
separately has been removed.” This point highlights the arrogance and autocratic approach
of Kevin Davis and his administration to the people that they are meant to represent, by
purposefully sidestepping consultation: The strategy should therefore be REJECTED.

No change.

Estimates for population growth in the Borough are unsubstantiated. There is also no
sensitivity analysis or explanation of the assumptions that underlie the assertions made.
The Direction of Travel strategy should therefore be REJECTED.

Comment on population growth
noted. The population statistics are
currently being verified.

No change.

The Direction of Travel’s author mentions “benefits for local communities” that will arise

Comment on benefits for local

No change.

B157

34

Consultation on Crossrail 2 noted. TfL No change.
have held consultations on Crossrail
2 and there is overwhelming support
for it. The Council will actively plan for
its arrival. However, new growth in
Kingston is not dependant on its
delivery.

76

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

Received:
20/08/16

34

Caroline Shah
Received:
20/08/16

Caroline Shah
Received:
20/08/16

34

Caroline Shah
Received:
20/08/16

It is written in the Direction of Travel that “The document presents potential areas of
opportunity for selective redevelopment”. The term “area of opportunity” is not however
defined. It is not clear whether such areas are actually Opportunity Areas as defined by the
GLA for mass development? The council has been negotiating behind closed doors for
Kingston Town to become an Opportunity Area, but the other “areas of opportunity” have
not been discussed or consulted upon: Norbiton, London Road and Cambridge Estate;
Berrylands and Hogsmill Valley; Tolworth; New Malden and Chessington. For this reason,
the Direction of Travel strategy should be REJECTED.

Comment on Areas of Opportunity
No change.
noted. The identified 'Areas of
Opportunity' are considered to be
those areas most suited for new
growth on account of their transport
accessibility, proximity to centres and
regeneration opportunity. The
boundaries of these areas are only
indicative at this stage and do not
indicate adverse impact the
Borough's valued heritage assets.
The detail of these development
locations will be worked through, and
consulted upon, in later stages of the
Local Plan process.

This document does not provide a firm basis for defining the scale and location of growth in Comment on scale of growth noted. No change.
the Local Plan, nor does it give any details of the “evidence based studies” that will be used The document is intended to be highto support it. The Direction of Travel strategy should therefore be REJECTED
level at this early stage of the local
plan process, providing the Council's
'Statement of Intent'. It aims to
provide alignment of local strategic
planning policy, the London Plan, and
Kingston's growth agenda, as well as
the broad context in which the new
Borough Local Plan needs to be
planned. The detail and deliverability
of new growth strategies will be
developed and consulted upon in
later stages of the local plan process.
Point 19 – The council’s advertising of the strategy has been completely inadequate. This
Direction of Travel strategy is of such importance that notice of Consultation should be
given to every household and business in the Borough so that everyone has the
opportunity to comment on it. For this reason, the Direction of Travel strategy should be
REJECTED.

B158

34

from the Direction of Travel strategy. However, no detail is given of the form that such
communities noted. The council
benefits will take. There is subsequently no evidence that residents agree with any benefits considers stakeholders to be every
proposed. The Direction of Travel strategy should therefore be REJECTED.
party with an interest in the direction
of the Borough, including local
residents.

Comment noted. As this is not a
No change.
statutory Development Plan
Document, the Council is not required
to notify every resident. However,
emails and letters have been sent to
everyone on the Council's
consultation database, and it has

77

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
been promoted at numerous
consultation events and is available
to view on the Council's website.
34

Caroline Shah

Comment on Statement of
Consultation noted. The draft SCI
was consulted on from 01 July 2016
to 29 August 2016.

The “Consultation report” will be drawn up solely by the GLA and the Council’s “Strategic
Planning Team”. This is unacceptable and undemocratic. The make-up, objectives and
authorities of this team are unknown. There appears that there will be no independent
validation that the Consultation Report will reflect accurately and fully feedback from the
public consultation. The Direction of Travel strategy should therefore be REJECTED.

Comment on the consultation report No change.
noted. The responsibilities of
producing the consultation statement
were agreed by the Growth
Committee on 9th June 2016.

The “emerging Kingston Opportunity Area” to which reference is made in the report is not
defined. The Direction of Travel strategy should therefore be REJECTED.

Comment on Areas of Opportunity
No change.
definition noted. The identified 'Areas
of Opportunity' are considered to be
those areas most suited for new
growth on account of their transport
accessibility, proximity to centres and
regeneration opportunity. The
boundaries of these areas are only
indicative at this stage. The detail of
these development locations will be
worked through, and consulted upon,
in later stages of the Local Plan
process.

The Direction of Travel mentions an “emerging Opportunity Area”. This is not defined or
explained and on this basis the strategy should be REJECTED.

Comment noted.

Received:
20/08/16

“Kingston Opportunity Area” is undefined. The only area that has been discussed at
Committee before now has been the “Kingston Town Opportunity Area.” The Council has
only disclosed to the residents of Kingston that it is pursing Opportunity Area status for
Kingston on 6 June 2016:

Comment on Kingston Opportunity
No change.
Area noted. As per page 24, these
are emerging areas of opportunity.
The notion of an Opportunity Area in
the Borough was first made public in
the Further Alterations to the London
Plan, therefore this has been in the
public domain since it was adopted in
March 2015.

Caroline Shah

The Direction of Travel document refers to an Opportunity Area Planning Framework

Comment on an OAPF noted. Any

Received:
20/08/16
34

Caroline Shah
Received:
20/08/16

34

Caroline Shah
Received:
20/08/16

34

Caroline Shah

No change.

B159

It is total unacceptable that public consultation is tailored to meet the requirements of an
“emerging” Statement of Community Involvement that people have not had a chance to
see. For this reason, this Direction of Travel document should be REJECTED.

No change.

Received:
20/08/16
34

34

Caroline Shah

No change.

78

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

Received:
20/08/16
34

Caroline Shah
Received:
20/08/16

34

Caroline Shah
Received:
20/08/16

34

Caroline Shah

(OAPF). Given this document is not publicly available, it can not be part of a strategy that
future OAPF will be subject to a
the Council has put forward for public consultation. The Direction of Travel strategy should public consultation.
therefore be REJECTED.
Who gave the Council a mandate to secure a “commitment (from the GLA and TfL) to work Comment on working with the GLA
with the council “on the basis that Kingston Town Centre will become an opportunity area
and TfL noted.
“in due course.” The people of Kingston have not been told of these discussions until it is
too late for them to influence their outcome. On this basis, the Direction of Travel strategy
should be REJECTED.

No change.

No details are provided of the Opportunity Area Planning Framework that is being
developed by the Council with the GLA. This is a key part of the Direction of Travel
strategy, which can not be consulted upon without full information supporting it. The
Direction of Travel should therefore be REJECTED.

Comment on production of an OAPF
noted.

No change.

No details are given of Tfl’s plans for Kingston station that “are likely to emerge later in
2016”. Without this information, the Direction of Travel should be REJECTED.

Comment on Kingston station noted.

No change.

“Affordable housing” is given little priority in this document, apart from to say that delivery
of it remains “challenging”. This is unacceptable. On this basis, the Direction of Travel
strategy should be REJECTED.

Comments on affordable/social
No change.
housing noted. The document is
intended to be high-level at this early
stage of the local plan process,
providing the Council's 'Statement of
Intent'. It aims to provide alignment of
local strategic planning policy, the
London Plan, and Kingston's growth
agenda, as well as the broad context
in which the new Borough Local Plan
needs to be planned. The detail and
deliverability of new growth strategies
will be developed and consulted upon
in later stages of the Local Plan
process.

Received:
20/08/16
34

Caroline Shah

34

34

Caroline Shah
Received:
20/08/16

The section headed Next Steps is a mishmash of things that are not presented as part of a Comment on Next Steps noted.
No change.
coherent strategy. No explanation is given for how the priorities listed have been arrived at.
Comment on Kingston station quarter
No definition is given of what is meant by the “station quarter” nor of which area it covers. It noted.
is not clear what is meant by “Crossrail 2” being a priority. On this basis, the Direction of
Travel strategy should be REJECTED.

Caroline Shah

The council wishes to engage with developers to secure investment “immediately” when
Comment on securing investment
this plan has only just been produced and is not adequate for the basis of any development noted.

B160

Received:
20/08/16

No change.

79

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

35

commitment. This is inappropriate. On this basis, the Direction of Travel strategy should be
REJECTED.

Dhru Patel

1. Do you agree with the proposed areas for selective growth in the Direction of
Travel?
I strongly disagree with the ‘Development Areas of Opportunity” designation for Kingston. I
am very concerned that the Council’s plans to develop certain areas for population growth
will have an adverse impact on the character and heritage of Kingston. I am also
concerned at recent development initiatives for high-rise blocks in the town centre which
have been approved by this Council despite objections from residents.

Comments on Areas of Opportunity
No change.
and tall buildings noted. The
proposed 'Areas of Opportunity' as
set out in the Direction of Travel are
considered to be those areas most
suited for new growth on account of
their transport accessibility, proximity
to centres and regeneration
opportunity. In accordance with the
London Plan, tall buildings may be
considered in appropriate town centre
locations, although they will need to
consider how they positively and
sensitively optimise development
plots whilst enhancing the unique
character of both the local area and
the wider protected key views.

2. Are there other areas in the borough we should identify for selective growth?
From a logical point of view, Surbiton and Malden Manor should be added to those areas
identified for selective growth. That way the impact of growth can be more fairly and evenly
spread across the borough.

Comments on other areas noted.
New growth is certainly not ruled out
in areas outside the identified 'Areas
of Opportunity', including Surbiton
and Malden Manor, it is only
considered to be less significant and
transformational.

No change.

3. Are there other areas in the borough that we should be seeking to protect and
enhance?
The Council is not doing enough to protect the existing character and heritage of Kingston.
In recent months the Council has granted planning permission for several new very high
rise & dense developments in Kingston town centre, which will neither enhance nor protect
the listed Buildings & Conservation Areas close to those developments. Any intensification
resulting from “Areas of Opportunity” need to be carefully considered by Planning Officers
& Councillors.

Comments regarding the need to
respect the character/heritage of
Kingston noted . The character and
heritage of the Borough continues to
be a key priority for the Council. We
recognise the need to positively
balance new growth with the
consideration of heritage and
conservation assets, particularly in
the most sensitive areas, in order to
protect the distinctiveness of the
Borough.

Pages 27, 29, 31,
33, 35, 37; End of
Text
Sentence added
after bullet points:
‘We recognise that
new growth must be
balanced with the
unique heritage and
character of the
Borough’.

Received:
26/08/16

35

Dhru Patel
Received:
26/08/16

35

Dhru Patel
Received:
26/08/16

B161

Received:
20/08/16

Page 18; Last
Further reference to the protection of paragraph.
heritage and character will be
Sentence added:

80

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
included in the revised document.

35

Dhru Patel
Received:
26/08/16

4. What key infrastructure do you think the borough needs to support its growing
population?

2. Something also needs to be done to improve the Tolworth divide on either side of the
A3. Other infrastructure improvements would be more school places, better health centres
& other community facilities.

1. Comments on infrastructure noted. No change.
Regarding the one-way system at
Kingston Station, the Kingston Town
Centre Movement Study looked at
ways of improving the highway
arrangements in the town centre. The
current gyratory has significant
problems including causing
severance (for example, it is a
significant barrier for pedestrians
moving between the railway station
and town centre). It also causes
barriers to redevelopment,
environmental improvements and
place shaping. The Study identified
ways of overcoming these key issues
as a longer term option for the town
centre, and could potentially be
implemented when Crossrail 2 comes
to the area.

B162

1. Helping to resolve problems with the one way system could be good for Kingston Town
Centre.

‘Note that the OLC
Report also states,
“there is no one size
fits all solution for
town centre
renewal?
Redevelopment, so
any intensification
would have to take
account of the
particular needs and
characteristics of
the individual town
centre such as
heritage and cultural
assets, as well as
local character”.

2. Decking the A3 at Tolworth would
dramatically improve Tolworth as a
place; the area suffers severance and
the decking would enhance

81

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
connectivity and could provide a high
quality open space. The proposal
would connect the high street to the
train station making it one place with
much easier navigation.
36

John Raistrick
Received:
28/08/16

Question 1: Do you agree with the proposed areas for selective growth in the
Direction of Travel?
1. Answer: Generally No.

1. Comment noted.

No change.

4. Answer: The current infrastructure appears inadequate to support the existing
population, let alone an increase. Drainage, utilities and in particular roads need some
serious expansion. The roads in Chessington are past a joke and I support the idea of a
new station serving Chessington World of Adventures. I am a very strong supporter of the
proposed Hook / Chessington relief road (Once known back in 1995 as the Malden Rushett
A3 to A243 Link).
Question 5: Any other comments?
5. Answer: No more granting planning permission for houses and industrial premises
without adequate off street parking. Two parking places per residence would be a good
start.

B163

2. Comment noted regarding the
need for supporting infrastructure.
Question 2: Are there others areas in the borough we should identify for selective
The council is committed to
growth?
appropriately managing new growth
2. Answer: Yes. However I will leave precise details to those who know the area better than in order to ensure that it does not
I.
have a negative impact on the quality
of life of existing residents and the
environment. This includes ensuring
Question 3: Are there other areas in the borough that we should be seeking to
new investment and improvement in
protect and enhance?
3. Answer: Yes. No building on Green Belt as currently exists, unless absolutely necessary supporting infrastructure, such as
community facilities and transport, as
to increase and support infrastructure.
well as mitigating impact on key
environmental issues such as traffic,
Question 4: What key infrastructure do you think the borough needs to support its
air and noise pollution.
growing population?
3. Comment noted regarding Green
Belt. The borough's strategic open
spaces are important and valued
assets, and in accordance with the
London Plan and national policy, will
be protected from inappropriate
development. However, we also
recognise the need to undertake a
review of land as part of the local plan
process in order to assess suitability
going forward.
4. Comment noted. The Council
recognise that key to facilitating and
managing new growth is to ensure
new investment and improvement
transport infrastructure, which must
be considered as a strategic and
integrated approach. Development of

82

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
comprehensive integrated transport
facilities are in the early stages of
development with key partners such
as Transport for London and Network
Rail.
5. Comment regarding off-street
parking noted. The London Plan sets
the overarching parking standards
that the Council needs to comply
with. An opportunity to submit
comments and suggestions on the
parking standards should arise during
the preparation of the next London
Plan.
37

Paul Rice
Received:
28/08/16

1. Do you agree with the proposed areas for selective growth in the Direction of
Travel?
I do not want the ‘Development Areas of Opportunity” designation for Kingston.
If - and that is a big “if” - there is a need redevelop with higher densities - it would make
sense to concentrate such development near to each transport link in the Borough.

3. Are there other areas in the borough that we should be seeking to protect and
enhance?
We are not doing enough to protect the existing character and heritage of not only Kingston
but Surbiton,new Malden & other parts of the Borough. It is highly ironic that the Council
has in the last few months granted planning permission for several new very high rise &
dense developments in Kingston town centre, which will neither enhance nor protect the
listed Buildings & Conservation Areas close to those developments. Of course we want
such protection & enhancement across the Borough, but any intensification resulting from
“Areas of Opportunity” must be very carefully considered by Planning Officers &
Councillors.
4. What key infrastructure do you think the borough needs to support its growing
population?

B164

1. All comments noted. Higher
No change.
density proposals, if well planned,
designed and located, are considered
to be an effective means of
accommodating the Borough's high
growth targets set by the Mayor of
London. Nevertheless, we also
2. Are there other areas in the borough we should identify for selective growth?
recognise that the density of
I do not want the “Development Areas of Opportunity” designation for Kingston.
The areas identified for selective growth are centered around rail links. But two obvious rail proposals must be balanced with the
consideration of heritage assets and
links have been overlooked: Surbiton; and Malden Manor. From a logical point of view,
Surbiton and Malden Manor should be added to those areas identified for selective growth. the unique character of the local area
in order to protect the distinctiveness
That way the impact of growth can be more fairly and evenly spread across the borough.
of the Borough.
2. The identified 'Areas of
Opportunity' are considered to be
those areas most suited for new
growth on account of their transport
accessibility, proximity to centres and
regeneration opportunity. The
boundaries of these areas are only
indicative at this stage and do not
indicate adverse impact the
Borough's valued heritage assets.
The detail of these development
locations will be worked through, and
consulted upon, in later stages of the

83

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
I think helping to resolve problems with the one way system could be very good for
Kingston Town Centre. I am yet to be convinced of the merits and practicality of the
Tolworth ‘deck’ idea, but we acknowledge that something needs to be done to improve the
divide between existing and future residents on either side of this part of the A3.A number
of other infrastructure improvements have to be provided eg more School places ,more &
better health centres, & other community facilities such as halls,resource centres,& better
areas of open space properly managed.

Local Plan process. Comment noted.
New growth opportunity is not ruled
out in areas outside the identified
'Areas of Opportunity', only
considered to be less significant and
transformational.

B165

3. Comment noted regarding tall
buildings. In accordance with the
London Plan, the council's approach
to tall buildings will be based on a
strategic basis in appropriate town
centre locations as a potential
measure to achieve higher densities
and growth targets. However, taller
buildings will need to consider how
they positively and sensitively
optimise development plots whilst
enhancing the unique character of
both the local area and the wider
protected key views. We recognise
that this must also be balanced with
the consideration of heritage assets
and the unique character of the local
area.
4. Comment noted regarding the
Tolworth Deck. The decking would
complement other planned
investment along the A3, as well as
the public realm/cycling initiatives in
adjoining areas. Locally the decking
would dramatically improve Tolworth
as a place; the area suffers
severance and the decking would
enhance connectivity and could
provide a high quality open space.
The proposal would connect the high
street to the train station making it
one place with much easier
navigation.
38

John Knowles

I find various things about this document puzzling, including its name. Given the

Comments on the City in the West

No change.

84

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

Received:
28/08/16
38

John Knowles
Received:
28/08/16

requirement for RBK to conform to the LP, and the LP to accord with Central Government noted.
guidance, I wonder if the exercise is not an empty one. The City in the West appears to be
the area north and south of Heathrow, Feltham north to the GW railway, and not relevant to
RBK planning at all.
1. Nothing is said about how the forecasts of people, homes and jobs were made. Are they
guesses? Projections of the recent past? Both are well known routes to mistakes. Those
given in the document show a 50% increase in homes, a 22% increase in (presumably
local?) jobs, and a 76% increase in people. That implies a 76% increase in people per
dwelling. That is completely unrealistic, given recent experience. The proportion of people
living and resident in the area will continue to fall. That must imply that even more residents
working in Central London.

1. Comments on growth noted.
Population and growth projections are
all based on estimates from GLA and
Office for National Statistics. For
further clarity, all estimates have
been fully checked, updated and
sourced.

2. Even if CR2 is built, that is wasteful. On the other hand, CR2, built at cost to the
2. Comments on Crossrail 2 noted.
taxpayer, will encourage such movement in jobs. It is said in DoT doc that CR2 will support There is overwhelming support for
a large number of additional homes. Surely the situation should be the other way round.
Crossrail 2 and the Council will
actively plan for its arrival. However,
new growth in Kingston is not
dependant on its delivery.

Page 10; Pink text
bottom-left
Update: Added
sentence providing
justification of where
the homes and jobs
figure has come
from for Kingston.
Pages 18-19; Pink
text
Update: Population
estimates to reflect
latest GLA
projections

85

B166

Pages 18-19;
Update: Footer
added sourcing all
referenced
population
estimates

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
38

John Knowles
Received:
28/08/16

1. I am not especially in favour of concentrating growth, making areas at on or near
stations especially dense towers.

B167

1. Comments on growth noted. The
No change.
Council acknowledges that growth
opportunities must be distributed
2. Kingston Heights and Riverside as illustrated are ugly. I would prefer suggestions below, across the borough in areas of high
transport accessibility and
townhouses and maisonettes in buildings up to four storeys all over the Borough, plus
regeneration opportunity.
expansion into the Green Belt, but away from noisy, polluting roads and railways. On the
other hand, The Groves in New Malden is not especially worthy of preservation - it is really
very ordinary but considerably varied housing, with sub-standard roads.
2. Comment on tall buildings noted. In
accordance with the London Plan, the
3. Nothing is said about the social infrastructure, the schools, water and sewage supplies, council's approach to tall buildings
surgeries and hospitals - Norbiton would be best used for expansion of Kingston Hospital. will be based on a strategic basis in
Parks and recreational facilities need expanding for an expanding population. On the other appropriate town centre locations as
a potential measure to achieve higher
hand, University expansion here could cease, along with growth in student
densities and growth targets.
accommodation, and University and technical education encouraged or forced to grow
However, taller buildings will need to
outside pressurized London.
consider how they positively and
sensitively optimise development
4. All expansion in housing should have parking up to 1.5 cars per household, in
plots whilst enhancing the unique
basements or part of the four storey building. Obviously cars cannot be used for travel to
character of both the local area and
work in Central London, even Central Kingston, but there is no reason why people cannot
the wider protected key views.
have cars for social and recreational purposes. Some people need cars/vans for their work.
There is currently insufficient kerbside parking for residents, without increasing numbers of
3. Comment regarding infrastructure
households. The best possible public transport does not go everywhere, or suit multiple
noted. The Council recognise that key
functions in a trip. That is certainly the case in RBK.
to facilitating and managing new
growth in Kingston is to ensure new
investment and improvement in
supporting infrastructure, including
community facilities such as schools
and healthcare. The detail of these
requirement will be considered at a
later stage of the local plan process.
4. Comment regarding off-street
parking noted. The London Plan sets
the overarching parking standards
that the Council needs to comply
with. An opportunity to submit
comments and suggestions on the
parking standards should arise during
the preparation of the next London
Plan.

86

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
38

John Knowles

The idea that a booming expanding RBK cannot have selected road expansion has to
accepted, and there must be busways (travel from Chessington to Kingston is very slow).

Comments noted.

The GL area can expand into the Green Belt, much of which near RBK is not at all
significant. RBK can expand at reasonable densities east, west and north-west of the
Chessington "peninsula", and the much underused Surbiton to Effingham Junction railway
be put to good use without building big residential towers in RBK. Similarly the line from
Epsom to Effingham Junction, with infill to Ashtead and on to Leatherhead. Beyond
Leatherhead the Green Belt includes country worthy of preservation from settlement.

Comment regarding the Green Belt
noted. The borough's strategic open
spaces are important and valued
assets and in accordance with the
London Plan and national policy, will
be protected from inappropriate
development. However, in line with
recommendations by the Outer
London Commission, we also
recognise the need to undertake a
review of Green Belt land as part of
the local plan process in order to
assess the suitability of land going
forward.

No change.

Affordable housing is not treated. Many people are paying extraordinary rents. Clearly
expansion in housing is urgent to improve the supply side. (Not an excuse for quickly built
tower blocks). While there are people in London who do not earn good wages, some
assistance is needed. Best to let them have decent wages, but as a cure that is a long way
away. So the cross subsidy from those who can afford to buy a house at cost plus a hefty
margin will have to keep subsidising the housing of the rest. This should be much more
rigorously scrutinised. If developments were not allowed at all without affordable housing at
a certain ratio, it would soon be found that affordable homes would emerge at the desired
ratio.

Comment noted regarding affordable
homes. Affordability of homes for
local people is a key priority due to
high house prices, an increasing
shortfall in provision, and the increase
in demand. One of our biggest issues
is to tackle this positively and
increase the number of houses to
meet needs, while seeking the right
balance between protecting the
environment, and supporting the local
economy. Affordable housing
requirement will be assessed as part
of the Borough-wide Local Plan
process.

Pages 19;
Paragraph 1

Received:
28/08/16
38

John Knowles
Received:
28/08/16

38

John Knowles

Original text: ‘A new
borough Local Plan
is required to show
how it will deliver
the growth needs of
a rapidly rising
population’.
Update: ‘A new
borough Local Plan
is required to show
how it will deliver
the growth needs of
a rapidly rising
population, including
new affordable
homes, a diverse
range of
employment
opportunities, and

87

B168

Received:
28/08/16

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
expanded leisure
and community
facilities’.
38

John Knowles
Received:
28/08/16

38

John Knowles
Received:
28/08/16

39

Keith Payne

39

Keith Payne
Received:
29/08/16

39

Keith Payne

Comments noted.

No change.

Last, what is being forced on other London Boroughs, especially Outer London Boroughs?
Admittedly CR2 is the main reason why so much growth in population is to forced on to
RBK, but whether those Boroughs have space (Bromley?) as well as good transport to
Central London (where most of the increased jobs are intended to be) is not told to us. We
could perhaps avoid becoming tower block opolis if other Boroughs take increased
population.

Comment on Crossrail 2 noted. There No change.
is overwhelming support for Crossrail
2 and the Council will actively plan for
its arrival. However, new growth in
Kingston is not dependant on its
delivery. The Council will engage with
neighbouring authorities as part of the
Duty to Cooperate to discuss
strategic cross boundary issues such
as housing.

1. Do you agree with the proposed areas for selective growth in the Direction of
Travel?
I do not want the 'Development Areas of Opportunity' designation for Kingston. If - and that
is a big 'if' - there is a need redevelop with higher densities - it would make sense to
concentrate such development near to each transport link in the Borough.
But we must not destroy the nature and character of these or any areas by allowing
uncharacteristically high or out of character buildings. 5 storeys should be a sensible and
sensitive limit that needs to be rigorously enforced.
Something must be done to prevent the 'buy to leave' syndrome in Kingston. The London
Plan assumes a demand for housing growth and is pushing this obligation onto Kingston,
meanwhile Berkey Homes are trying to generate demand by marketing their Kingston gas
works development off plan in Malaysia. This simply doesn't add up. The GLA needs to
rethink their growth agenda and we need to save Kingston from being forced to allow
further and unnecessary damage to its townscape.

All comments noted. Higher density
No change.
proposals, if well planned, designed
and located, are considered to be an
effective means of accommodating
the Borough's high growth targets set
by the Mayor of London.
Nevertheless, we also recognise that
the density of proposals must be
balanced with the consideration of
heritage assets and the unique
character of the local area in order to
protect the distinctiveness of the
Borough.

2. Are there other areas in the borough we should identify for selective growth?
I do not want the “Development Areas of Opportunity” designation for Kingston.
The areas identified for selective growth in the DoT document are centered around rail
links. But two obvious rail links have been overlooked: Surbiton; and Malden Manor. From
a logical point of view, Surbiton and Malden Manor should be added to those areas
identified for selective growth. That way the impact of any growth can be more fairly and
evenly spread across the borough, negating the need for excessive height in any one area.

Comment noted. New growth
opportunity is not ruled out in areas
outside the identified 'Areas of
Opportunity', only considered to be
less significant and transformational.

3. Are there other areas in the borough that we should be seeking to protect and
enhance?

Comments noted regarding the need No change.
to respect the character/heritage of

B169

Received:
29/08/16

Some demolition will be needed to build the necessary housing, for road and busway
development and to separate housing from the roads, railways and busways. this should
be planned for, made part of the cost of developments.

No change.

88

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

Received:
29/08/16

39

Keith Payne
Received:
29/08/16

We are not doing enough to protect the existing character and heritage of not only Kingston Kingston. The character and heritage
but Surbiton, New Malden & other parts of the Borough.
of the Borough continues to be a key
priority for the council. We recognise
the need to positively balance new
It is highly ironic that the Council has in the last few months granted planning permission
growth with the consideration of
for several new very high rise & dense developments in Kingston town centre, which will
heritage and conservation assets,
neither enhance nor protect the listed Buildings & Conservation Areas close to those
particularly in the most sensitive
developments. Of course we want such protection & enhancement across the Borough.
areas, in order to protect the
distinctiveness of the borough.
Visitors to Kingston may look at some dominant eye-sore buildings and conclude we don’t
care or that anything goes but that is not the case. We want to fix the mistakes, repair the
damage and stop the erosion of Kingston’s historic roots and medieval character.
Intensification resulting from “Development Areas of Opportunity” would only generate the
opposite of what we want for Kingston, therefore we must resist this designation.
4. What key infrastructure do you think the borough needs to support its growing
population?

B170

1. Comments on infrastructure noted. No change.
Regarding the one-way system at
Kingston Station, the Kingston Town
Centre Movement Study looked at
1. I think helping to resolve problems with the one way system could be very good for
ways of improving the highway
Kingston Town Centre.
arrangements in the town centre. The
current gyratory has significant
2. I am yet to be convinced of the merits and practicality of the Tolworth ‘deck’ idea, but I
problems including causing
acknowledge that something needs to be done to improve the divide between existing and
severance (for example, it is a
future residents on either side of this part of the A3. A number of other infrastructure
significant barrier for pedestrians
improvements have to be provided eg more School places ,more and better health centres,
moving between the railway station
and other community facilities such as halls, resource centres, and better areas of open
and town centre). It also causes
space properly managed.
barriers to redevelopment,
environmental improvements and
place shaping. The Study identified
ways of overcoming these key issues
as a longer term option for the town
centre, and could potentially be
implemented when Crossrail 2 comes
to the area.
2. Decking the A3 at Tolworth would
dramatically improve Tolworth as a
place; the area suffers severance and
the decking would enhance
connectivity and could provide a high
quality open space. The proposal
would connect the high street to the

89

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
train station making it one place with
much easier navigation.
40

Vicki
Wilberforceritchie

Received:
29/08/16

1.I do not agree with development, we need to keep the green belt land.
2 should be more changes/ development around the chessington world of adventures side
that will not affect local communities as there is a lot of woodland!
3. must protect the green belt land for future generations.
4. upgrade the existing stations chessington north and south , both looking terrible!! but
already there .... no new disruption.
No need to have a station to Chessington world of adventures.. it takes 5 minutes to walk
from the station

All comments noted. The borough's
No change.
strategic open spaces including
Green Belt are important and valued
assets, and in accordance with the
London Plan and national policy, will
be protected from inappropriate
development. However, we also
recognise the need to undertake a
review of land as part of the local plan
process in order to assess the its
suitability going forward.

The whole area needs to stay as rural and green belt please contact me if you need to for
more comments
41

George Coats

Comment noted. The proposed
No change.
'Areas of Opportunity' as set out in
the Direction of Travel are considered
to be those areas most suited for new
growth on account of their transport
accessibility, proximity to centres and
regeneration opportunity. However,
we also recognise the need to
I am a home-owner living in a conservation area but on its borders and it is clear that if the positively balance new growth with
current proposals go ahead they will have a drastic and deleterious impact on its character. the consideration of heritage and
conservation assets.

B171

Received:
29/08/16

1. Do you agree with the proposed areas for selective growth in the Direction of
Travel?
I am not in favour the ‘Development Areas of Opportunity” designation for Kingston.
I do not agree with the proposed areas of selective growth in the Direction of Travel.
It is evident that the most important question has not been asked: whether residents want
Kingston to become an Opportunity Area. I am not in favour of this, I do not want excessive
development.

If there is a need redevelop with higher densities it would make better sense to concentrate
such development near to each of the borough’s transport links.
41

George Coats
Received:
29/08/16

41

George Coats
Received:
29/08/16

2. Are there other areas in the borough we should identify for selective growth?
Comments noted
I do not want the “Development Areas of Opportunity” designation for Kingston.
The areas identified for selective growth are centred around rail links. But two obvious rail
links have been overlooked: Surbiton and Malden Manor. From a logical point of view,
Surbiton and Malden Manor should be added to those areas identified for selective growth.
That way the impact of growth can be more fairly and evenly spread across the borough.

No change.

3. Are there other areas in the borough that we should be seeking to protect and
enhance?
The council is not doing enough to protect the existing character and heritage of Kingston.
On the contrary, in the last few months it has granted planning permission for several new

Pages 27, 29, 31,
33, 35, 37; End of
Text
Sentence added

As mentioned above, we also
recognised the importance of heritage
in Kingston as key to creating a rich,
vibrant and distinctive environment.

90

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
high-rise and dense developments in Kingston town centre that will neither enhance nor
protect the listed Buildings & Conservation Areas close to those developments. All
intensification resulting from “Areas of Opportunity” must be very carefully considered by
Planning Officers & Councillors.

To target sustainable growth
positively, we recognise the need to
positively balance new growth with
the consideration of these assets.

Conservation areas should be rigorously protected against intrusive and overwhelming
developments. Any new building must reflect the scale of the surrounding areas to maintain
the fabric of the town and whenever any intrusive structure is liable to be developed, the
local scale should be restored. Poor design and excessive height of any existing building
must not be used as the excuse for a further monstrosity.

George Coats
Received:
29/08/16

41

George Coats
Received:
29/08/16

4. What key infrastructure do you think the borough needs to support its growing
population?
More school places, health centres and other community facilities.

Comment noted. We recognise that in No change.
order to accommodate new growth,
investment and improvement in
supporting infrastructure, including
community facilities, is fundamental.

5. Any other Comments?
Comments noted.
The Direction of Travel is vague and difficult to access, making a mockery of the claim that
there is a true consultation.

No change.

This is in line with previous practice. The Eden Quarter Development Brief SPD, put
forward by Allies and Morrison and adopted by the Council, was ignored by the
Development Control Department and the Planning Committee when the applications for

91

B172

Page 18; Last
paragraph.
Sentence added:
‘Note that the OLC
Report also states,
“there is no one size
fits all solution for
town centre
renewal?
Redevelopment, so
any intensification
would have to take
account of the
particular needs and
characteristics of
the individual town
centre such as
heritage and cultural
assets, as well as
local character”.

Very strict height levels should be enforced, at say five storeys, near any conservation
area.

41

after bullet points:
‘We recognise that
new growth must be
balanced with the
unique heritage and
character of the
Borough’.

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
the Old Post Office site and Eden Walk were granted:
Heights were far in excess of those specified in the Eden Quarter Development Brief SPD
The listed buildings will be totally overwhelmed by the new structures.
And indeed the developments will destroy the fabric of the old town centre.
It is to be hoped that the Council will act honourably and take seriously the views of the
people it represents.
42

Marianne
Hansen
Received:
29/08/16

1. Do you agree with the proposed areas for selective growth in the Direction of
Travel?
1. I am not in favour the ‘Development Areas of Opportunity” designation for Kingston.
I do not agree with the proposed areas of selective growth in the Direction of Travel.
It is evident that the most important question has not been asked: whether residents want
Kingston to become an Opportunity Area. I am not in favour of this, I do not want excessive
development.

1. Comment noted. The proposed
'Areas of Opportunity' as set out in
the Direction of Travel are considered
to be those areas most suited for new
growth on account of their transport
accessibility, proximity to centres and
regeneration opportunity.

2. I am a home-owner living in a conservation area but on its borders and it is clear that if
the current proposals go ahead they will have a drastic and deleterious impact on its
character.

2. We also recognise the need to
positively balance new growth with
the consideration of heritage and
conservation assets.

Pages 27, 29, 31,
33, 35, 37; End of
Text
Sentence added
after bullet points:
‘We recognise that
new growth must be
balanced with the
unique heritage and
character of the
Borough’.

42

Marianne
Hansen
Received:
29/08/16

42

Marianne
Hansen
Received:
29/08/16

B173

If there is a need redevelop with higher densities it would make better sense to concentrate
such development near to each of the borough’s transport links.
Further reference to protection of
heritage assets and character will be
included within the revised document.
2. Are there other areas in the borough we should identify for selective growth?
Comments noted
I do not want the “Development Areas of Opportunity” designation for Kingston.
The areas identified for selective growth are centred around rail links. But two obvious rail
links have been overlooked: Surbiton and Malden Manor. From a logical point of view,
Surbiton and Malden Manor should be added to those areas identified for selective growth.
That way the impact of growth can be more fairly and evenly spread across the borough.

No change.

3. Are there other areas in the borough that we should be seeking to protect and
enhance?
The council is not doing enough to protect the existing character and heritage of Kingston.
On the contrary, in the last few months it has granted planning permission for several new
high-rise and dense developments in Kingston town centre that will neither enhance nor
protect the listed Buildings & Conservation Areas close to those developments. All
intensification resulting from “Areas of Opportunity” must be very carefully considered by
Planning Officers & Councillors.

Pages 27, 29, 31,
33, 35, 37; End of
Text
Sentence added
after bullet points:
‘We recognise that
new growth must be
balanced with the
unique heritage and
character of the
Borough’.

As mentioned above, we also
recognised the importance of heritage
in Kingston as key to creating a rich,
vibrant and distinctive environment.
To target sustainable growth
positively, we recognise the need to
positively balance new growth with
the consideration of these assets.

Conservation areas should be rigorously protected against intrusive and overwhelming
Further reference to protection of
developments. Any new building must reflect the scale of the surrounding areas to maintain heritage assets and character will be

92

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
the fabric of the town and whenever any intrusive structure is liable to be developed, the
local scale should be restored. Poor design and excessive height of any existing building
must not be used as the excuse for a further monstrosity.

included within the revised document.

Very strict height levels should be enforced, at say five storeys, near any conservation
area.
42

Marianne
Hansen

4. What key infrastructure do you think the borough needs to support its growing
population?
More school places, health centres and other community facilities.

Received:
29/08/16

42

Marianne
Hansen
Received:
29/08/16

Comment noted. We recognise that in No change.
order to accommodate new growth,
investment and improvement in
supporting infrastructure, including
community facilities, is fundamental.
Detail of these requirements will be
worked on and assessed in later
stages of the local plan process.

B174

5. Any other Comments?
Comments noted. The document is
No change.
The Direction of Travel is vague and difficult to access, making a mockery of the claim that intended to be high-level at this early
there is a true consultation.
stage of the local plan process,
providing the Council's 'Statement of
Intent'. The detail and deliverability of
This is in line with previous practice. The Eden Quarter Development Brief SPD, put
new growth strategies will be
forward by Allies and Morrison and adopted by the Council, was ignored by the
developed and consulted upon in
Development Control Department and the Planning Committee when the applications for
later stages of the local plan process.
the Old Post Office site and Eden Walk were granted:
Heights were far in excess of those specified in the Eden Quarter Development Brief SPD
The listed buildings will be totally overwhelmed by the new structures.
And indeed the developments will destroy the fabric of the old town centre.
It is to be hoped that the Council will act honourably and take seriously the views of the
people it represents.

42

Marianne
Hansen
Received:
29/08/16

43

Chris Sanctuary
Received:
29/08/16

Selection of areas for selective redevelopment
Given the broad principle of developing an existing ‘centre’ mentioned somewhere in the
documentation, I suppose the 6 areas selected are the only ones which can be selected
given that North Kingston, Surbiton and Kingston Hill are ruled out. I assume the reasons
for their being not considered is that they are already totally covered with privately owned
residential accommodation (?).

Comments noted. It is anticipated that No change.
expanded town centre uses and
facilities will be required to support
the Chessington area as a result of
new growth, although the location of
this will be subject to further
investigated.

Meaning of Opportunity Area
I could not find a definition of an Opportunity Area in the Direction of Travel (DoT)
document, even though Areas of Opportunity are mentioned in this and other related
documents. My understanding was that an A of Opp was an area which had been given a
special status involving some degree of relaxation of regulations and maybe even tax/other

Comments on the Opportunity Area
noted. The proposed 'Areas of
Opportunity' as set out in the
Direction of Travel are considered to
be those areas most suited for new

No change.

93

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
financial advantages. Thus there would be some logic in equating an ‘area for selective
growth on account of their transport
development’ with an Area of Opportunity. But since in one part of the text it talks about the accessibility, proximity to centres and
area of opp in the singular I am left wondering what is the connection between ‘selective
regeneration opportunity.
dev’ and ‘opp area’. See also comment below on ‘Status of this document – GLA plans’
which mentions also ‘Intensification’.
43

Chris Sanctuary
Received:
29/08/16

Crossrail 2
It is not clear what is the status of Crossrail 2 (ie go ahead or not) even though at one point
it says that it will be completed by 2030. But the doc throughout seems to be saying that
transport infrastructure will invariably lead to more homes.
Why do you need Crossrail2 (and/or other transport infrastructure if jobs and homes are
collocated). There seems to be an implicit connection but certainly I would say it does not
follow that infrastructure improvement necessarily produces many jobs. Is there economic
research which supports the choice of the six areas in the DoT doc ?

Comments on Crossrail 2 noted. The No change.
benefits of Crossrail 2 are well
document and there is overwhelming
support for the project. The Council
will actively plan for its arrival,
although new growth in Kingston is
not dependant on its delivery.

Page 23: where are the 200,000 extra homes and 200,000 extra jobs ? Not all in Kingston
of course. But what does the econometric work which gave rise to those numbers say
about Kingston and what if Cross rail 2 does not go ahead ?
43

Chris Sanctuary

Comment on housing noted. The
Council considers the growth in new
housing and employment opportunity
to have equal importance. Text has
been amended in the revised
document to give more emphasis to
employment opportunities.

Pages 19;
Paragraph 1
Original text: A new
borough Local Plan
is required to show
how it will deliver
the growth needs of
a rapidly rising
population.
Update: A new
borough Local Plan
is required to show
how it will deliver
the growth needs of
a rapidly rising
population, including
new affordable
homes, a diverse
range of
employment
opportunities, and

94

B175

Received:
29/08/16

Homes versus Jobs
Why does the doc talk all the time about homes and not about jobs ?
Actually the map of the ‘City in the West’ does indeed talk about both homes and jobs
(although for Kingston only ‘6000 homes’ and I have to admit to not understanding the
interpretation of these numbers on the map.

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
expanded leisure
and community
facilities.
43

Chris Sanctuary
Received:
29/08/16

43

Chris Sanctuary
Received:
29/08/16

Comments on the contents of the document (by section)
Cllr Davis Foreword Col 2 - who are our ‘strategic partners’ ? Where can I find out ? Is it
NHS or Builders ?

Comment on strategic partners noted. No change.
The draft Duty to Cooperate Scoping
Statement sets out the Borough's key
strategic partners.

Status of this document – GLA plans
Please note what I say above about an Opportunity Area not being defined in this
document. But it says at page vi (col 1): “Kingston Town Centre is identified.......to identify,
assess and realise the potential for new Opportunity and Intensification areas. Not only has
Opp Area but also Intensification area not been defined in the DoT document. And given
that the push seems to come from the GLA/Mayor what is the value of local comments
from individuals like myself and others ?

Comment on intensification areas
No change.
noted. Please refer to the original text
in the London Plan (2015) as there
are no current Intensification Areas
planned for the Borough.

My impression, rightly or wrongly is that the current RBK Council leadership are keen to
use Opp and Intense Areas (and their GLA push for these) to drive building at high density.
What control does the population of Kingston have over this? Especially over the centre of
the town where it is not clear that there is much opportunity for significant numbers of
affordable homes - unless all planning controls are lifted.
Chris Sanctuary
Received:
29/08/16

B176

43

Approach to development Proposals
Comment on development briefs
No change.
Quite a lot of the text here is about aspirations of developers and how they can be steered. noted. No development brief is
intended to come forward as part of
the Direction of Travel. The document
Two points here:
will feed into the preparation of the
How much will ‘Opp and Intens’ (see above under GLA) status affect the freedom of
new Local Plan.
developers and their designs ?
Will the document referred to in this section (I suppose the DoT doc in the first instance?)
include material which could be described as a ‘development brief’? There is nothing of
that kind in the doc as it stands. And I do not know what the future holds for development
briefs. The Eden Quarter Dev Brief for example was probably rather weak. But what would
a brief look like for an Opp and Intens area ?

Comment on the Development
Delivery Document noted. We will
confirm with the GLA what details of
the document will be made publicly
available.

What is the Development Delivery Protocol (page vii col2) and can we see it ?
43

Chris Sanctuary
Received:
29/08/16

City in the West
I did not find this map (pps 10-11) very helpful. In partic I found the ‘jobs’ and ‘homes’ and
dates figures difficult to understand. The status for Vauxhall Nine Elms and Battersea
seemed to reflect the enormous amount of high rise building going on there but of course
the figure for Kingston – 2016: 6000 homes’ does not tell me much.

Comments on the City in the West
noted. This was produced by the
GLA. Any comments on this will be
relayed to them.

No change.

95

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
43

Chris Sanctuary
Received:
29/08/16

43

Chris Sanctuary
Received:
29/08/16

43

Chris Sanctuary

43

Chris Sanctuary
Received:
29/08/16

Comment on current planning
No change.
designations noted. The employment
land areas are designated in the
current Kingston Core Strategy as the
Borough's strategic employment
locations where employment uses are
protected under planning policy. A
review of the map appearance will be
considered.

Kingston Places (pps 16-17)
Why is Fairfield not highlighted? And is the Tolworth Tower included as an asset we are
proud of? Why?

Comment on Kingston Places noted. No change.
The purpose of this diagram is to
acknowledge the full range of
different assets within the Borough
and is not intended to be exhaustive.
Fairfield Recreation Ground is
considered an asset for the Council.
Tolworth Tower is a key site that will
help form part of the overall
regeneration of Tolworth.

Growth (p 19 middle )
Again, without definition it is stated that opportunity area status will make a key contribution
to the borough-wide local plan. I wonder how much autonomy the Borough has in
formulating the new local plan, given: the growth priority, the role of Opp Area status and
the drive from GLA (incl already identification of such areas).

Comment on the Local Plan noted.
The decision to prepare a new Local
Plan is the Council's. However, it is
required to be in general conformity
with the London Plan.

Emerging Areas of Opportunity (pps 24-25)
Para 2: what it says about strategic open spaces (undefined) sounds ominous: “further
potential opportunities for growth relate to a comprehensive review of these assets”. How
are we supposed to interpret this?

Comment on open spaces noted. The
Borough's strategic open spaces are
important and valued assets and in
accordance with the London Plan and
national policy, will be protected from
Last para: seems to be saying even if we are not sure about Crossrail 2, plan your building inappropriate development. However,
in line with recommendations by the
on the assumption that it will take place. That sounds like bad planning to me.
Outer London Commission, we also
recognise the need to undertake a
review of Green Belt land as part of
the local plan process in order to
assess the suitability of land going
forward

No change.

B177

Received:
29/08/16

Current Planning Designations (pps 14-15)
I found the colour difficult to understand, in particular I was not sure which are the
‘employment land’
(and what does it mean?)

Page 25, Paragraph
7
Update: Add
sentence to the end
of the paragraph ‘This will be
completed in Spring
2017’.

Comment on Crossrail 2 noted. There
is overwhelming support for Crossrail
2 and the Council will actively plan for

96

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
its arrival. However, new growth in
Kingston is not dependant on its
delivery and will be required to meet
the growing population.
43

Chris Sanctuary
Received:
29/08/16

43

Chris Sanctuary
Received:
29/08/16

Comment on family housing noted.
The document attempts to highlight
some of the key opportunities for
each area, but is not intended to be
exhaustive.

No change.

Kingston Town Centre
1. How do you reconcile: new homes and new office etc with the 6th bullet point about
heritage etc?
Does it help if I say I want lots of heritage and not many jobs ?

1. Comment noted. The character
and heritage of the Borough
continues to be a key priority for the
council. We recognise the need to
positively balance new growth with
the consideration of heritage and
conservation assets, particularly in
the most sensitive areas, in order to
protect the distinctiveness of the
borough. This will involve gaining a
comprehensive understanding of the
value of our heritage, identifying
mechanisms for their protection, and
establishing and integrating
management plans into the overall
planning framework.

No change.

2. Building over stations is suggested in several of the pages on the six areas. It is difficult
to say without more info whether this is a good thing or not. As a general point it is good to
use the space already taken up by the trains but it is important to be much more specific
about the height and the use of such space.
3. ‘Better connectivity’ and ‘improved access’ are things no one can object to. But they
need defining. Do they cost? And do they interfere with other priorities? This is one of the
reasons I have not filled in the online feedback form – I am not sure how valuable it is to
have me putting ‘agree’ with things it is impossible to disagree with.

B178

Particular Area pages (pps 26-37)
There is, I assume, location-specific reasoning behind bullet points such as Berrylands:
‘new homes including family housing’. But it is not clear why such a wording does not apply
to the other five as well.

2. Comment noted. The document is
intended to be high-level at this early
stage of the local plan process,
providing the Council's 'Statement of
Intent'. The detail and deliverability of
new growth strategies will be
developed and consulted upon in
later stages of the local plan process.
3. Comment on accessibility noted.
43

Chris Sanctuary
Received:
29/08/16

Norbiton (p29)
1. Comment on Norbiton noted.
1. Increased residential development (bullet 2). It is impossible to say ‘yes’ or ‘no’ to this. In
general and given the housing needs one would say yes (can’t object to more homes) but it 2. Comment on employment land
depends on what is proposed.
noted. The Council recognises that

Page 14, 15, 26, 27,
28, 29, 30, 31, 32,
33, 34, 35, 36, 37

97

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
the designated employment land is
not the only location where jobs are
located and this is reflected in current
planning policy.

Map update:
Colours used for
keys and maps
amended to provide
clarity and
consistency

Berrylands p31
Point 4: Better access to....riverside walk. Must be a good thing.

Support on better access noted.

No change.

New Malden
Sustaining and increasing the number of local jobs. Why is this phrase only used for New
Malden ?

Comment on New Malden. The
No change.
document attempts to highlight some
of the key opportunities for each area,
but is not intended to be exhaustive.

Chessington
What does supporting the ‘ambitions’ of Chess World of Adventures mean ?

Comment on Chessington World of
No change.
Adventures noted. The Council
recognises that the resort is a major
visitor attraction to the Borough and
will engage with Chessington World
of Adventures where it seeks to make
improvements and develop.

Rest of Borough (page 38)
1. Surely the phrase: ‘protecting the borough’s historic environment .... inappropriate
development’ should apply to the six areas as well ??
Maximising development: this reflects my lack of understanding of what is an Area of
Opportunity.

1. Comment regarding the historic
environment noted. The character
and heritage of the whole Borough
continues to be a key priority for the
Council.

2. As mentioned before, colours on the map are difficult to understand, in particular
‘employment land’. Does this mean the only place where there are significant jobs are the
light brown segments?

43

Chris Sanctuary
Received:
29/08/16

43

Chris Sanctuary
Received:
29/08/16

43

Chris Sanctuary
Received:
29/08/16

Chris Sanctuary
Received:
29/08/16

Pages 27, 29, 31,
33, 35, 37; End of
Text
Sentence added
after bullet points:
‘We recognise that
new growth must be
2. I thought there was some equality between Area of Opp and the 6 dev areas already
Further reference to protection of
mentioned. Or is it possible for an Area of Opportunity to lie in the non-six (rest of Borough) heritage assets and character will be balanced with the
area ?
included within the revised document. unique heritage and
character of the
Borough’.
2. Comment regarding the 'Areas of
Opportunity' noted. The six sub-areas
are intended to reflect to six ‘Areas of Page 18; Last
paragraph.
Opportunity’. Note that the
Sentence added:
boundaries of these areas are only
indicative at this stage. The detail of ‘Note that the OLC
Report also states,
these development locations will be
worked through, and consulted upon, “there is no one size
fits all solution for
in later stages of the Local Plan

98

B179

43

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
process.

43

Chris Sanctuary

Next Steps (Page 40)
What does ‘develop the wider evidence base’ mean ?

Received:
29/08/16
43

Chris Sanctuary

Comment on evidence noted. A wide No change.
range of evidence is required as part
of the preparation of the new Local
Plan.

The online feedback form - Although I have included above some comments and questions Comment on online feedback noted.
relating to the six selected areas I did not find it very useful to put ‘high’ ‘low’ ticks against
the bullet points for each area, partly because some were expressed in a way which made
them undeniable and others too vague to vote for or not

No change.

B180

Received:
29/08/16

town centre
renewal?
Redevelopment, so
any intensification
would have to take
account of the
particular needs and
characteristics of
the individual town
centre such as
heritage and cultural
assets, as well as
local character”.

As mentioned above, it is not clear (maybe because I do not live there) why certain bullet
points occur in one of the six areas and not in others. For example, one mentions health
facilities.
44

Julius Zadoray
Received:
30/08/16

1. Do you agree with the proposed areas for selective growth in the Direction of
Travel?
1. I do not want the ‘Development Areas of Opportunity” designation for Kingston.
If there is a need redevelop with higher densities - it would make sense to concentrate
such development near to each transport link in the Borough.

1 & 2. "All comments noted. The
proposed 'Areas of Opportunity' as
set out in the Direction of Travel are
considered to be those areas most
suited for new growth on account of
their transport accessibility, proximity
to centres and regeneration
2. Are there other areas in the borough we should identify for selective growth?
opportunity. Growth opportunity is
2. I do not want the “Development Areas of Opportunity” designation for Kingston.
The areas identified for selective growth are centered around rail links. But two obvious rail certainly not ruled out in areas
outside the identified 'Areas of
links have been overlooked: Surbiton; and Malden Manor. From a logical point of view,
Surbiton and Malden Manor should be added to those areas identified for selective growth. Opportunity', such as Surbiton and
Malden Manor, only considered to be
That way the impact of growth can be more fairly and evenly spread across the borough.
less significant and transformational
compared to neighbouring centres.
3. Are there other areas in the borough that we should be seeking to protect and
enhance?

Pages 27, 29, 31,
33, 35, 37; End of
Text
Sentence added
after bullet points:
‘We recognise that
new growth must be
balanced with the
unique heritage and
character of the
Borough’.
Page 18; Last
paragraph.
Sentence added:

99

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
‘Note that the OLC
Report also states,
“there is no one size
fits all solution for
town centre
renewal?
Redevelopment, so
any intensification
would have to take
account of the
4. What key infrastructure do you think the borough needs to support its growing
particular needs and
population?
characteristics of
I think helping to resolve problems with the one way system could be very good for
the individual town
Kingston Town Centre. I am yet to be convinced of the merits and practicality of the
centre such as
Tolworth ‘deck’ idea, but we acknowledge that something needs to be done to improve the Further reference to protection of
divide between existing and future residents on either side of this part of the A3. A number heritage assets and character will be heritage and cultural
of other infrastructure improvements have to be provided eg more School places , more & included within the revised document. assets, as well as
local character”.
better health centres, & other community facilities such as halls,resource centres,& better
areas of open space properly managed.
4. Comment noted regarding the
Tolworth Deck. The proposal includes
includes covering over a section of
the A3 immediately to the south of the
main A3/A240 intersection. The
decking would compliment other
planned investment along the A3, as
well as the public realm/cycling
initiatives in adjoining areas. Such
investment in Tolworth would support
the Government's growth agenda for
London and the South East and
would link to and support the
Crossrail 2 initiative. Locally the
decking would dramatically improve
Tolworth as a place; the area suffers
severance and the decking would
enhance connectivity and could
provide a high quality open space.
The proposal would connect the high
street to the train station making it
one place with much easier
navigation. Note that this is only a
concept proposal at this stage and
will be subject to further investigation
3. We are not doing enough to protect the existing character and heritage of not only
Kingston but Surbiton, New Malden & other parts of the Borough. It is highly ironic that the
Council has in the last few months granted planning permission for several new very high
rise & dense developments in Kingston town centre, which will neither enhance nor protect
the listed Buildings & Conservation Areas close to those developments. Of course we want
such protection & enhancement across the Borough, but any intensification resulting from
“Areas of Opportunity” must be very carefully considered by Planning Officers &
Councillors.

3. Comments noted regarding
heritage. The character and heritage
of the Borough continues to be a key
priority for the council. We recognise
the need to positively balance new
growth with the consideration of
heritage and conservation assets in
order to protect the distinctiveness of
the borough. Text has been amended
in the revised document to reflect the
importance of heritage across all the
sub-areas.

B181

100

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
through the local plan process. "
45

Ela Zadora
Chrzastowska
Received:
30/08/16

1. Do you agree with the proposed areas for selective growth in the Direction of
Travel?
1. I do not want the ‘Development Areas of Opportunity” designation for Kingston.
If there is a need redevelop with higher densities - it would make sense to concentrate
such development near to each transport link in the Borough.

Pages 27, 29, 31,
33, 35, 37; End of
Text
Sentence added
after bullet points:
‘We recognise that
new growth must be
balanced with the
unique heritage and
character of the
Borough’.
Page 18; Last
paragraph.
Sentence added:
‘Note that the OLC
Report also states,
“there is no one size
fits all solution for
town centre
renewal?
Redevelopment, so
any intensification
would have to take
account of the
particular needs and
characteristics of
the individual town
centre such as
heritage and cultural
assets, as well as
local character”.

101

B182

1 & 2. All comments noted. The
proposed 'Areas of Opportunity' as
set out in the Direction of Travel are
considered to be those areas most
suited for new growth on account of
their transport accessibility, proximity
to centres and regeneration
2. Are there other areas in the borough we should identify for selective growth?
opportunity. Growth opportunity is
2. I do not want the “Development Areas of Opportunity” designation for Kingston.
The areas identified for selective growth are centered around rail links. But two obvious rail certainly not ruled out in areas
outside the identified 'Areas of
links have been overlooked: Surbiton; and Malden Manor. From a logical point of view,
Surbiton and Malden Manor should be added to those areas identified for selective growth. Opportunity', such as Surbiton and
Malden Manor, only considered to be
That way the impact of growth can be more fairly and evenly spread across the borough.
less significant and transformational
compared to neighbouring centres.
3. Are there other areas in the borough that we should be seeking to protect and
enhance?
3. Comments noted regarding
3. We are not doing enough to protect the existing character and heritage of not only
Kingston but Surbiton, New Malden & other parts of the Borough. It is highly ironic that the heritage. The character and heritage
Council has in the last few months granted planning permission for several new very high of the Borough continues to be a key
rise & dense developments in Kingston town centre, which will neither enhance nor protect priority for the council. We recognise
the listed Buildings & Conservation Areas close to those developments. Of course we want the need to positively balance new
such protection & enhancement across the Borough, but any intensification resulting from growth with the consideration of
heritage and conservation assets in
“Areas of Opportunity” must be very carefully considered by Planning Officers &
order to protect the distinctiveness of
Councillors.
the borough. Text has been amended
in the revised document to reflect the
4. What key infrastructure do you think the borough needs to support its growing
importance of heritage across all the
population?
sub-areas.
4. I think helping to resolve problems with the one way system could be very good for
Kingston Town Centre. I am yet to be convinced of the merits and practicality of the
Tolworth ‘deck’ idea, but we acknowledge that something needs to be done to improve the Further reference to protection of
divide between existing and future residents on either side of this part of the A3. A number heritage assets and character will be
of other infrastructure improvements have to be provided eg more School places , more & included within the revised document.
better health centres, & other community facilities such as halls,resource centres,& better
areas of open space properly managed.
4. Comment noted regarding the
Tolworth Deck. The proposal includes
includes covering over a section of
the A3 immediately to the south of the
main A3/A240 intersection. The
decking would compliment other
planned investment along the A3, as
well as the public realm/cycling

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
initiatives in adjoining areas. Such
investment in Tolworth would support
the Government's growth agenda for
London and the South East and
would link to and support the
Crossrail 2 initiative. Locally the
decking would dramatically improve
Tolworth as a place; the area suffers
severance and the decking would
enhance connectivity and could
provide a high quality open space.
The proposal would connect the high
street to the train station making it
one place with much easier
navigation. Note that this is only a
concept proposal at this stage and
will be subject to further investigation
through the local plan process.
46

Kate Staddon

All comments noted. Please note that No change.
the document is intended to be highlevel at this early stage of the local
plan process, providing the Council's
'Statement of Intent'. It aims to
provide alignment of local strategic
planning policy, the London Plan, and
Kingston's growth agenda, as well as
the broad context in which the new
Borough Local Plan needs to be
planned.

B183

Received:
29/08/16

I have read through the planning document and don't feel it reads like a consultation
document. It feels like a mission statement for growth that has already been put into
process, which is worrying in itself. Quite a number of ideas for future development aren't
adequately explained either in what they will be, exactly where they will be built or why they
are necessary. The proposed plan is outlined in the sort of current, popular, vague,
corporate wording that prevents the necessity of being at all specific about what is actually
intended. You mention 'better connectivity' in reference to the river but it's really not clear
what that means, for example. My connectivity with the river is fine, thanks.

The detail and deliverability of new
growth strategies, as well as the
evidence studies to support that new
plan, will all be developed and
consulted upon in later stages of the
local plan process.
Please also note that the population
of Kingston is set to increase by at
least 10%, therefore there is a need
to plan positively for it through the
local plan process. We recognise the

102

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
need to manage growth in a way that
is sensitive to the environment,
heritage and existing local residents.
It also includes ensuring new
investment and improvement in
supporting infrastructure, such as
community facilities, as well as
mitigating impact on key
environmental issues such as traffic,
air and noise pollution.
46

Kate Staddon
Received:
29/08/16

Kate Staddon
Received:
29/08/16

46

Kate Staddon
Received:
29/08/16

Comment noted regarding the
No change.
document title. Kingston is identified
in the London Plan as a Metropolitan
Town Centre. The 'City in the West' is
a concept developed by the GLA to
cover the whole of West London.

I also request respectfully that you extend your 'consultation period' through the autumn as
it's not been long enough and has taken place in the most difficult time of year - the
summer holidays - when most people are trying to manage both ongoing work and
holidays. Neither has it been well enough publicised. For a new plan, as drastic as this,
there needs to be clear and wide-spread publicity available directly to every home in the
borough. Every resident/local/inhabitant needs to have the opportunity to be aware of this
project before you think of commencing it. Leaflets through doors would help but also stalls
in the market square with information on a regular basis for several months to capture the
maximum number of residents and visitors so they are aware.

Comment noted. The consultation
period was held for a period of eight
weeks, above that of the usual six
weeks.

No change.

'capture, build-upon and steer aspirations held by developers and investors both now and
long term' This statement seems to imply that the aspiration of developers and investors for the
Kingston area is the dominant influence here. Is that so?

Comment noted. The Council will be
working with stakeholders and
residents to achieve the best
outcomes for the borough.

No change.

B184

46

The plan is really badly named. You simply cannot re-designate Kingston as a 'city' unless
you build a new cathedral. Unless you wish to rewrite the English dictionary, let's be really
clear about what a city is. It can be small and very old like Wells in Somerset or it can be
large like the city of London, but this title brings to mind a rather large number of unsightly
tower blocks along the Thames. Misnomer aside, this designation mainly concerns me as it
indicates that you wish to make my urban but gentle home town into something so much
larger and more dense that I wonder if I'll recognise it. I'm not against careful, thoughtful
building particularly if it is to help ease the housing crisis for those that most need it but
evidence of approved development in Kingston so far has put affordable housing very far
down the list of priorities so I'm dubious about the spirit in which this is intended. It feels like
a dangerous premise for a number of bodies to draw up a list of priorities for what might be
built in an area of recognised high land value. I understand that building homes is important
but I'll need a great deal more information and reassurance in order to be happy to accept
the proposal. I really feel that it's your responsibility as my local council to find a proper way
to show me that you aren't just handing it over to the developers and investors but will
properly protect that town I love and look after the needs of our 8000 unhoused people. I'm
not currently secure in that knowledge.

103

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
46

Kate Staddon
Received:
29/08/16

1. to support the growth agenda, the royal Borough of Kingston has agreed a development
delivery Protocol with the Greater london authority to ensure high quality development is
delivered that supports the shared aspirations for the borough. Therefore it is essential that
all relevant organisations in the statutory planning process participate at the earliest
possible stage to maximise opportunities coming forward and realise development
potential. What are the 'shared aspirations of the borough'.

1. Comment noted. The shared
aspirations of the Borough are all
reflected within the ambitions set out
in the Direction of Travel document.

Not only will this intensification help to provide a valuable source of new housing but will
result in more people being in and around town centres, increasing footfall and supporting
a greater range of activities which will ultimately strengthen the vitality and viability of the
centre”.

Comment noted.

No change.

2. There are a number of statutory
bodies that the Council must consult
2. Please would you define for me what groups constitute the borough if not those who live on all strategic matters who are not
here? There seems to be some suggestion here that there are evidenced, shared
located within the borough.
aspirations which would automatically support the agenda of this document. I'd like to see Neighbouring authorities are always
some evidence too please.
consulted as well.
46

Kate Staddon
Received:
29/08/16

No change.

46

Kate Staddon
Received:
29/08/16

46

Kate Staddon

The OLC has made recommendations in respect of maximising density - it also
recommends a review of the Green Belt land.
You absolutely need to make a commitment to protect the green belt. Once that sacred
rule is breached we will never be able to turn back. This makes me feel very worried and
distrustful of your plans. I need to know that the Green Belt land will be protected without
question.

'there will be 13,000 new jobs in the borough by 2036'

B185

There is a major assumption here, unsupported by any evidence that is given in the
document, that increased footfall is desirable and beneficial. If Kingston weren't already
very viable, both as leisure and working environment, it wouldn't be such a draw for people
to live in and house prices, which have hardly been hit at all by recession in recent years,
would not be as high as they are. The only thing that 'intensification' will do is support the
livelihoods of developers and investors who you prioritised in your earlier sentence. We
need more clarity of thought here for intensification to appear, in any way, beneficial to the
town.
Comment noted regarding the Green No change.
Belt. The borough's strategic open
spaces are important and valued
assets and in accordance with the
London Plan and national policy, will
be protected from inappropriate
development. However, in line with
recommendations by the Outer
London Commission, we also
recognise the need to undertake a
review of Green Belt land as part of
the Local Plan process in order to
assess the suitability of land going
forward.
Comment noted. On top of new
people living in the Borough, the
creation of new employment

No change.

104

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

46

Received:
29/08/16

How will increasing population result in an increase of job opportunities? Where is your
evidence?

Kate Staddon

Kingston’s current infrastructure requires investment and significant improvements if it is to Comment noted.
continue to be a destination of choice. -

Received:
29/08/16

46

opportunities is also a key aim of the
Council.
No change.

This is quite simply untrue and disingenuous. People come to Kingston because it's
beautiful, quiet and has a lot of green open spaces and a good old fashioned market and
pretty old houses. Your plan is more of a threat to the real Kingston than a help to it. It's
already been made quite clear to you, although the planning committee have been
choosing to ignore, that a large number of local people aren't in favour of high rise building
or increased density of housing. If we need housing then make it properly affordable
housing, not an investment opportunity for financial gain.

Kate Staddon

Kingston heights and Kingston riverside

Received:
29/08/16

Consented: 137 room hotel

Comment noted.

No change.

1. Comment noted regarding the
reference to stakeholder and
partners. The council considers
stakeholders to be every party with
an interest in the direction of the
borough, including local residents.

Pages 27, 29, 31,
33, 35, 37; End of
Text
Sentence added
after bullet points:
‘We recognise that
new growth must be
balanced with the
unique heritage and
character of the
Borough’.

Consented: 347 new homes, 75 new jobs, new hotel with 146 bedrooms

46

Kate Staddon

Only at the very end of the document do you mention:

Received:
29/08/16

Protecting the borough’s distinctive historic environment and established suburban areas
from inappropriate development. Co-ordinating with key partners and stakeholders.
1. You make it sound like a corporate business environment not the home of thousands of
people. Who are the stakeholders and key partners? There really must be a commitment to
co-ordinate with the inhabitants of Kingston on this properly. We have already been shown
by the Post Office redevelopment and the Eden Walk Centre development that the history
of the town isn't your first priority. The concept of density of development doesn't promise
good design in keeping with the environment. That promise is important.
2. There really needs to be some understanding from the council that most residents care
more deeply about the historic environment than about redevelopment. You have also
already signally failed to support affordable housing the area in the centre of Kingston in
those developments so it's not easy to feel that this is going change with this new plan for

B186

Further, with regard to disingenuousness, there is a page of 'consented' developments
some of which, such as the Old Post Office and the 'Kingston Heights and Riverside' were
very definitely and vocally opposed by large numbers of inhabitants of Kingston. It's frankly
untrue to imply in your document that the majority of locals were in favour.

2. Comment noted regarding
reference to heritage and character.
This will be amended in the revised
version of the document and
reference to heritage will feature for
every sub-area. We recognise the
need to positively balance new
growth with the consideration of
heritage and conservation assets in
order to protect the distinctiveness of

105

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

46

Kate Staddon
Received:
29/08/16

the future.

the Borough.

Four consultation questions:
1. Do you agree with the proposed areas for selective growth in the Direction of
Travel?
Not at the moment. I haven't got enough evidence to understand which specific areas you
are talking about and how many new homes/buildings would be added to those areas and
who those homes are intended for. Will they be for those who need it or for those who are
richer and less in need but will bring in money just for investors?

1. Comments noted. The detail and
No change.
deliverability of new growth strategies
will be developed and consulted upon
in later stages of the local plan
process.

2. Are there other areas in the borough we should identify for selective growth?
Unless I can't understand exactly where the first areas are, I can't tell you.

4. What key infrastructure do you think the borough needs to support its growing
population?
Let's be clear that the population is growing because houses are being build, not the other
way around. Housing should not outstrip the number of schools or doctors' surgeries or
amenities such as access to local hospital outpatients. They are hard pressed already.
Parking is also a problem as even without population growth the number of cars owned by
each household is growing.
46

George Rome
Innes
Received:
30/08/16

1. Do you agree with the proposed areas for selective growth in the Direction of
Travel?
1. I do not agree with the proposed areas of selective growth in the Direction of Travel
The most important question has not been asked:
Do we want Kingston to become an Opportunity Area?
Do we want it to become another Vauxhall?
The answer is No.
We do not want excessive development.

3. Comment noted regarding Green
Belt, wild and ecological areas, and
heritage assets.
4. Comment noted. The Council
recognise that key to facilitating and
managing new growth is to ensure
new investment and improvement in
supporting infrastructure, including
community/leisure facilities and
transport infrastructure. We also
recognise that this investment must
be planned strategically through the
new local plan.

B187

3. Are there other areas in the borough that we should be seeking to protect and
enhance?
All green belt areas. Areas of wild, untamed land such as the railway fields in Berrylands,
along the Hogsmill river. Just because an area isn't designated as a park and doesn't have
a gate, doesn't mean it shouldn't be protected. There are a great number of good walking
places in the area which are very precious to the local communities and each one should
have it's own, very visible and extensive consultation if there's any question of adding
buildings. You should also be protecting the footprint of the medieval town of Kingston
properly.

2. Comment noted regarding ‘Areas
of Opportunity’.

1. Comments noted. The population No change.
of Kingston is set to increase by at
least 10%, therefore there is a need
to plan positively for it through the
local plan process. We recognise the
need to manage growth in a way that
is sensitive to the environment,
heritage and existing local residents.

106

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

46

George Rome
Innes

2. We do require more homes, but those homes, as the Mayor of London Sadiq Khan says,
they need to be genuinely affordable to all Londoners. Not the ‘affordable housing’ of the
developer speak.
Nor should they be built to become part of an investment portfolio of wealthy speculators.
Clauses should be entered into any planning approvals that ensure that developers do not
sell properties merely as investments to clients who leave them empty. This only
aggravates the problem of a lack of housing

2. Affordability of homes for local
people is a key priority due to high
house prices, an increasing shortfall
in provision, and the increase in
demand. One of our biggest issues is
to tackle this positively and increase
the number of houses to meet needs,
while seeking the right balance
between protecting the environment,
and supporting the local economy.

2. Are there any other areas in the borough we should identify for selective growth?
No.

Comment noted.

No change.

3. Are there other areas in the borough that we should be seeking to protect and
enhance?
1. The council should seek to protect and enhance the whole borough. With especial
reference to all conservation areas, which should be rigorously protected against intrusive
and overwhelming developments. It is essential that in future the Council protects ‘the
Historic Environment (Listed Buildings, Buildings of Townscape Merit and Conservation
Areas)’.
The Council is the only body able to do this, we rely on the council to so do.

1. Comments noted regarding
heritage. The character and heritage
of the Borough continues to be a key
priority for the council. We recognise
the need to positively balance new
growth, and tall buildings in some
cases, with the consideration of
heritage and conservation assets in
order to protect the distinctiveness of
the borough.

Pages 27, 29, 31,
33, 35, 37; End of
Text
Sentence added
after bullet points:
‘We recognise that
new growth must be
balanced with the
unique heritage and
character of the
Borough’.

Received:
30/08/16
46

George Rome
Innes

Any new building must reflect the scale of the surrounding buildings to maintain the fabric
of the town. And whenever any intrusive structure is liable to be developed, the local scale
should be restored, and the poor design and excessive height of the existing building must Further reference to protection of
not be used as the excuse for a further monstrosity.
heritage assets and character will be
included within the revised document.
2. Very strict height levels should be enforced, say 5 storeys in most areas and certainly
near any conservation area.
2. Comment noted regarding height
and scale. In accordance with the
London Plan, tall buildings may be
From the 1960s tall residential blocks were built, only to prove to be detrimental to family
life. The Cambridge Estate is a prime example where life expectancy is far lower than the considered in appropriate town centre
locations, although they will need to
rest of the borough. Many tower blocks have been demolished and housing built. We
consider how they positively and
should not make the same mistakes again.
sensitively optimise development
plots whilst enhancing the unique
character of both the local area and
the wider protected key views.

Page 18; Last
paragraph.
Sentence added:
‘Note that the OLC
Report also states,
“there is no one size
fits all solution for
town centre
renewal?
Redevelopment, so
any intensification
would have to take
account of the

107

B188

Received:
30/08/16

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
particular needs and
characteristics of
the individual town
centre such as
heritage and cultural
assets, as well as
local character”.
46

George Rome
Innes
Received:
30/08/16

George Rome
Innes
Received:
30/08/16

Comment noted regarding new
transport infrastructure. The Council
also recognise that key to facilitating
and managing new growth is to
ensure new investment and
improvement in supporting
infrastructure, including transport
infrastructure such as investments in
Crossrail 2, bus services and cycling
infrastructure (via the Go Kingston
scheme), providing residents with a
much wider choice of transport
options whilst reducing car reliance.
Development of comprehensive
integrated transport facilities are in
the early stages of development with
key partners such as Transport for
London and Network Rail.

5. Any other Comments?
Any lack of public response to The Direction of Travel is not due to public apathy about the
future of our town, it can be put down to the fact that the document is so vague and difficult
to access. Making the idea of a true consultation highly questionable.

Comment noted. The purpose of the No change.
Direction of Travel is to provide the
Council's 'Statement of Intent' at the
earliest stage of the process in
preparing the new Borough Local
Plan. It aims to provide alignment of
local strategic planning policy, the
London Plan, and Kingston's growth
agenda, as well as the broad context
in which the new Borough Local Plan
needs to be planned. Further detail
and deliverability of new growth
strategies will be developed and
consulted upon in later stages of the
local plan process.

The effectiveness of the ‘Consultation Process’ is deeply questionable.
This is evident from the fact that the Eden Quarter Development Brief SPD, put forward by
the experts Allies and Morrison, which went to ‘Consultation’, was adopted by the Council,
was then ignored by the Development Control Department and the Planning Committee
when the applications for the Old Post Office site and Eden Walk were granted.
The heights were far in excess of those specified in the Eden Quarter Development Brief
SPD
The listed buildings will be totally overwhelmed by the new structures.
And indeed the developments will destroy the fabric of the old town centre.
47

Caroline Scott

Support for previous comments from George Rome Innes.

Noted.

No change.

B189

46

4. What infrastructure do you think the borough needs to support its growing
population?
Kingston clearly needs its public transport, traffic flow and parking improved. If the traffic
along Wood Street were put in a tunnel, Kingston Station would be integrated into the
pattern of the town.
The Tolworth Roundabout should be lowered and decked over to link the old Tesco site
and the Station both visually and practically to Tolworth Broadway and Barnsbury Lane.

No change.

108

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

Received:
30/08/16
48

M. S Nursery

No proposals have been made yet,
No change.
however the Council are considering
a number of options to support
growth in the borough, which will look
to address infrastructure
requirements as well.

2. What improvements are envisaged for Tolworth Roundabout?

No proposals have been made yet,
No change.
however the Council are considering
a number of options to support
growth in the borough, which will look
to address infrastructure
requirements as well.

3. What connections are proposed to provide better access across the A3?

No proposals have been made yet,
No change.
however the Council are considering
a number of options to support
growth in the borough, which will look
to address infrastructure
requirements as well.

4. What is proposed for Tolworth Park?

No proposals have been made yet,
No change.
however the Council are considering
a number of options to support
growth in the borough, which will look
to address infrastructure
requirements as well.

Received:
30/08/16

48

M. S Nursery
Received:
30/08/16

48

M. S Nursery
Received:
30/08/16

48

M. S Nursery
Received:
30/08/16

B190

1. What is involved with the provision for overhead development of Tolworth Station?

109

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

Online questionnaire responses to the consultation
Question 1 - Do you agree with the proposed areas for selective growth in the Direction of Travel?
ID

Respondent

Question 1 - Do you agree with the proposed areas for selective
growth in the Direction of Travel?

RBK Response

in the main

Document Update

3

Peter Watson

4

Ken Thompson Yes

No change.

5

Nigel Randall

Yes

No change.

6

S. Guess

Yes

Support noted.

No change.

7

Kathrin Siguda

No as Surbiton pays again and has no added value

Comment noted.

No change.

8

Malcolm Wright 1. No - I think your plans for the roads around Surbiton are farcical at best.

1. Comment noted.

No change.

No change.

2. In accordance with the London Plan, the
Council places significant emphasis on the
role of cycling in the future of movement in
the Borough, but not to the detriment of
other road users. Key to achieving this
vision is the delivery of the Go Cycle
Programme whereby the Council received
over £30 million of funding from the Mayor
of London and TfL to deliver improvements
to cycling facilities and road safety. Please
note that the Go Kingston measures are in
the early stages of implementation and
need time for road users to become familiar
with the new arrangements.

B191

2. In these times of austerity we should be making much better use of the money
available rather than persecuting motorists with the introduction of idiotic cycle lanes. I
am a keen cyclist, in my 20s I used to commute over 150 miles by bike every week.
Over the years I have seen road users (other than cyclists) persecuted: - speed
bumps which reduce the fuel efficiency of cars, damage suspension, wheels and tyres
- cycle lanes which turn major transport routes into narrow, dangerous roads with
unnecessary congestion for vehicles leaving the road (Portsmouth Road as an
example) Please apply some common sense and logical thinking!

9

Douglas
Sampson

Yes

Support noted.

No change.

10

Eunhyun Song

Yes but you must increase density in a quality manner. so far in this document I can't
see any quality statement which is missing crucially.

Support noted. The aim of the Direction of No change.
Travel is to identify and assess
opportunities for new growth in the borough
and the clarify the strategic policy basis for
this work. Therefore, although the council

110

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
recognise the importance of development
quality, this issue will be addressed in more
detail at a later stage in local plan process
and ultimately assessed through the
planning application process.
Richard
Grosvenor

Yes, in general terms, but the overall 'Direction of Travel' proposals lack ambition and
creativity. Most of the DoT document merely restates localised plans and projects that
have been discussed for more than 20 years. In summary, it is alright - but
disappointing.

Support noted. The purpose of the Direction No change.
of Travel is to provide the Council's
'Statement of Intent' at the earliest stage of
the process in preparing the new Borough
Local Plan. It aims to provide alignment of
local strategic planning policy, the London
Plan, and Kingston's growth agenda, as
well as the broad context in which the new
Borough Local Plan needs to be planned.
The detail and deliverability of new growth
strategies will be developed in later stages
of the local plan process.

12

Jim Cardell

Yes.

Support noted.

No change.

13

Matthew Kyte

Yes

Support noted.

No change.

15

Shailesh Patel

Yes, on the whole.

Support noted.

No change.

16

Paul Cook

1. Yes. The areas detailed in the proposals are comprehensive and are appropriate
1. Support and comments noted.
No change.
for examination for development in conjunction with the possibilities opened up by the
advent of Crossrail 2.
2. Comment noted. The borough's strategic
open spaces are important and valued
2. The only reservation is that the open spaces ie. Metropolitan green space/ Green
assets, and in accordance with the London
belt areas should be protected. There is particular risk in the more rural parts of the
Plan and national policy, will be protected
Borough in Chessington and Berrylands.
from inappropriate development. However,
we also recognise the need to undertake a
review of land as part of the local plan
process in order to assess the suitability of
land going forward.

17

Lisa Ross

Difficult to say - very vague. Generally yes if it is about protecting the environment and
riverside and making investments in infrastructure, schools and amenities. I would like
to see more regeneration of dilapidated land and buildings and conservation of old
buildings, not demolishment.

Support noted. As noted in the Direction of
Travel, in order to accommodate new
growth, investment and improvement in
infrastructure (including community
facilities) is fundamental. New growth will
also be required to be balanced with the
need to protect the character and heritage
of the borough, as well as following a clear

B192

11

No change.

111

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
'brownfield-first' approach to new
development.
Patricia
McLauchlan

Yes

Support noted.

19

Maryka
Sennema

The document does not contain any useful information for me to answer this question.
The entire document is full of "maybes" with no real meaning whatsoever, not an
actual statement of what this supposed "Direction of Travel" is. Therefore I can't agree
with it if I can't know what it is!

Comment noted. The purpose of the DoT is No change.
to provide the Council's 'Statement of
Intent' at the earliest stage of the process in
preparing the new Borough Local Plan. It
aims to provide alignment of local strategic
planning policy, the London Plan, and
Kingston's growth agenda, as well as the
broad context in which the new Borough
Local Plan needs to be planned and
delivered.

20

Petrina Tatnall

Yes to some degree. Providing you will not be building on green belt land

Support noted. The borough's strategic
No change.
open spaces are important and valued
assets, and in accordance with the London
Plan and national policy, will be protected
from inappropriate development. However,
we also recognise the need to undertake a
review of land as part of the local plan
process in order to assess the suitability of
land going forward.

21

Lucy Symons

1. I do in principal agree that we need to address the inevitable growth of the local
population, however, we need to be mindful of the preservation of the nature of the
area - and be sensible about preserving the history here. For example, destroying the
Kingston cemetery is a little short sighted - it is a wonderful green space and a refuge
for wildlife, and not a sensible place to build housing, surely.

1. Comments and support noted. New
growth will be required to be balanced with
the need to protect and enhance the
Borough's heritage, environmental and
ecological assets.

2. I would also prefer more proactive cycling infrastructure and promotion of public
transport over the provision of parking and creating more roads or more traffic to the
centre of a busy pedestrian area.

No change.

B193

18

Pages 27, 29, 31, 33,
35, 37; End of Text
Sentence added after
bullet points: ‘We
recognise that new
growth must be
balanced with the
2. Comment noted. We recognise the
unique heritage and
importance of continued investment in
public transport and cycle infrastructure in character of the
order to ensure the reduction in car reliance Borough’.
and provide choice of transport options for
the local community.
Page 18; Last
paragraph.
Sentence added: ‘Note
that the OLC Report
also states, “there is
no one size fits all

112

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
solution for town
centre renewal?
Redevelopment, so
any intensification
would have to take
account of the
particular needs and
characteristics of the
individual town centre
such as heritage and
cultural assets, as well
as local character”.
Pages 31; End of Text
Added sentence after
the bullet points:
‘’Continued protection
of Hogsmill Valley and
its ecology’
Anthony Quinn I do not agree with any development which interferes with Green Belt, Metropolitan
Open Land or London's Blue Ribbon. Given the fact that we are going to exit the EU it
seems to me that proposals should be put on 'hold' until the economic outlook
becomes clearer.

Support noted. The borough's strategic
No change.
open spaces are important and valued
assets, and in accordance with the London
Plan and national policy, will be protected
from inappropriate development. However,
we also recognise the need to undertake a
review of land as part of the local plan
process in order to assess the suitability of
land going forward.

23

Anthony
Johannsen

yes, but the filter beds site along the Portsmouth Road needs to be clearly designated Comment and support noted.
as a site for protection against development of any kind. The Friends of Seething
Wells cic has represented this view for many years and public interest has shown its
support. The site is registered as Metropolitan Open Land and its development has
been refused by the Council several times and after appeals. The plan should include
in writing and on maps etc that this historical space is to be used exclusively as an
area for wildlife with access by the public/local residents.

No change.

24

Linda Seel

Yes

No change.

25

David Watkins

1. Yes, but what's happened to the plan to flatten the Eden Quarter and redevelop?
Produced with Hammerson, wasn't it, in an earlier panglossy vision for the future?

Support noted.

1. Comments noted. Regarding plans for
the redevelopment of Eden Walk, the
development has recently been approved.
2. I feel there's not a lot of new thinking, just a lot of hot air about the inevitable impact This scheme will be added to the revised

B194

22

Pages 20-21; Story So
Far’
Update: Eden Walk
scheme added to the

113

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
of Crossrail 2, little of it innovative especially outside Kingston Town Centre. It's barely
a policy statement for south of Chessie. I'm in favour of CR2 but this document merely
states the obvious that intensification has to take place (agreed) and that development
will occur around transport nodes (agreed). That's as plain as the nose on your face,
yet KuT has just insisted on lopping several floors off the new towers at the Gas
Works, reneged on the new piazza at Richmond Road Art School and amended
downwards the occupancy at the Old Post Office - get your act together! The rest of it
- like the statement covering the Rest of the Borough - is merely re-stating the
Planning Department's job description, it's what you're supposed to do for a living.
3. And the work for the future piece... well, if that's all you've got to do, I recommend
cutting a few jobs, there's barely a few months' work there! Again, none of it new, it's
what I'd expect the Planning Dept to be doing. Keeping transport assessment under
review, preserving historic elements - hell, are you saying that's NOT something you
do on an ongoing basis?

‘Story so Far’

2. Regarding the document ambition and
vision, the purpose of the DoT is to provide
the Council's 'Statement of Intent' at the
earliest stage of the process in preparing
the new Borough Local Plan. It aims to
provide alignment of local strategic planning
policy, the London Plan, and Kingston's
growth agenda, the broad context in which
the new Borough Local Plan needs to be
planned, as well as broad locations for new
development. The detail and deliverability
of new growth strategies will be developed
in later stages of the local plan process.
4. Comment noted. These issues are
addressed within the North Kingston
Development Brief.
5. Comment noted regarding growth of the
Surbiton area. As a District Centre with
excellent transport links, Surbiton is
considered to be an area with growth
potential, albeit not as significant as the
other identified 'Areas of Opportunity'.

B195

4. Add the lower Richmond Road. The 500m north of Kingston Station needs to be
sorted out. There was a plan for the surface level car park to be taken out and a mixed
use development and primary school to be built. Unfortunately the existing rubbish
retail and commercial properties on Richmond Road were excluded. That ought to be
rectified. Ditto, the planned new green lane replacing Water Street and running to the
rear of the Art School. Yes, you can't do that now since backing down to residents in
the Royal Quarter who tore a hole in the plan to move traffic north to Sury Basin. That
plan ought to be resurrected with a new and better-designed link road north from
Sopwith Way positioned a little bit further away from the RQ buildings. Can't you
people do joined up thinking?

document in the ‘Story so far’.

5. What about Surbiton Station and high street (Victoria Road)? This is a pretty major
station as far as the train operating companies are concerned and yet there's nothing
in your plan. What about the sleazy retail strip between the bottom end of Penrhyn
Road and Surbiton Girls High School? It's a traffic nightmare and visual hell.
26

Felicia Green

1. Yes, looks like a very sensible well thought out plan. I live in Chessington and I
think with Crossrail 2 and better transport links it and Tolworth have the potential for
growth. This is very dependent on improved transport links.

1. Support noted. The Council recognise
No change.
that key to facilitating and managing new
growth is to ensure new investment and
improvement transport infrastructure, which
2. Of course it would be a shame to loose the any of the green belt in the south of the must be considered as a strategic and
integrated approach.
borough, but I think there is plenty of space for housing excluding this area.
3. In terms of Kingston a new station closer to the river is a great idea. I would of
thought removing the one way road between old london road and the high street

2. The borough's Green Belt is an important
and valued asset, and in accordance with

114

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
would make more sense, but it wasn't completely clear what your suggestion of a new the London Plan and national policy, will be
one way system was from the documentation.
protected from inappropriate development.
However, we also recognise the need to
4. New housing is needed, but currently prices close to the centre are quite prohibitive undertake a review of Green Belt land as
part of the local plan process in order to
and schools need to catch up with the influx of growth.
assess the suitability of land going forward.
5. Improvements of cycle ways from Kingston to Surbiton are imperative. Additional
improvements in cycle paths from Kingston or Surbiton to outlaying commercial
centres (Tolworth, Norbiton, New Malden, Chessington) are also needed. Current
routes are generally also busy traffic routes making them potentially dangerous.
I think improvement of the Hogsmill path from Kingston to Berrylands to a
greener/easier and nicer route would be very much appreciated and well used.
Especially if it linked in to the cycle/walking routes between Hampton Court and
Richmond. The section from Berrylands to Tolworth is lovely and presently popular. If
a cycle route could be included without too much disruption of the green space this
would also be great. I am sure there would also be opportunities for cafes/restaurants.
6. New Malden centre could definitely be improved. With it's host of regularly critically
recommended restaurants it seems a shame that the rest of the high street does not
match.

B196

7. Of course money is limited and housing and transport links must be put first.
However, key infrastructure such as schools and hospitals must keep pace with the
growth.

3. Comment noted regarding the proposed
one-way system at Kingston Station. The
Kingston Town Centre Movement Study
looked at ways of improving the highway
arrangements in the town centre. The
current gyratory has significant problems
including causing severance (for example, it
is a significant barrier for pedestrians
moving between the railway station and
town centre). It also causes barriers to
redevelopment, environmental
improvements and place shaping. The
Study identified ways of overcoming these
key issues as a longer term option for the
town centre, and could potentially be
implemented when Crossrail 2 comes to the
area.
4. Comment noted regarding the need for
new and affordable homes. Affordability of
homes for local people is a key priority for
the council due to high house prices, an
increasing shortfall in provision, and the
increase in demand. One of our biggest
issues is to tackle this positively and
increase the number of houses to meet
needs, while seeking the right balance
between protecting the environment, and
supporting the local economy.
5. Comments noted regarding cycle paths.
In accordance with the London Plan, the
council places significant emphasis on the
role of cycling in the future of movement in
the Borough. Key to achieving this vision is

115

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
the delivery of the Go Cycle Programme.
6. Comment noted regarding the New
Malden Centre. The council is currently
working on an indoor facilities review and
strategy. It is expected that our present
facilities will require significant
enhancement to meet the needs of a
growing population. In this respect the
council is looking at options to improving
the offer at the Malden Centre as part of the
Cocks Crescent SPD (also out for public
consultation).
7. Comments noted. As noted in the
Direction of Travel, investment and
improvement in supporting infrastructure is
key to supporting new growth. This includes
leisure and community facilities, as well as
transport infrastructure.
Graham Tucker 1. I agree with some of the areas however I have grave concerns about the proposals 1. Support noted. Regarding the Green
in the south of the borough that encroach on Green Belt land. I understood that Sadiq Belt, the borough's strategic open spaces
Khan, and Kingston Council were against developing the Green Belt.
are important and valued assets and in
accordance with the London Plan and
2. I am unsure by what is meant by the Tolworth Deck so I am unable to comment and national policy, will be protected from
inappropriate development. However, we
would like clarification as the document does not seem to explain.
also recognise the need to undertake a
review of Green Belt land as part of the
3. I would also like further explanation/clarification as to the proposed new road to
local plan process in order to assess the
elevate traffic through Hook and Chessington which appears to be a ring road around
suitability of land going forward.
Malden Rushett.

No change.

B197

27

2. Comment noted regarding the Tolworth
Deck. The proposal includes includes
covering over a section of the A3
immediately to the south of the main
A3/A240 intersection. The decking would
complement other planned investment
along the A3, as well as the public
realm/cycling initiatives in adjoining areas.
Such investment in Tolworth would support
the Government's growth agenda for

116

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
London and the South East and would link
to and support the Crossrail 2 initiative.
Locally the decking would dramatically
improve Tolworth as a place; the area
suffers severance and the decking would
enhance connectivity and could provide a
high quality open space. The proposal
would connect the high street to the train
station making it one place with much
easier navigation.

28

Alison Fure

1. NO. I think that the proposals for the CRE and Hogsmill Valley particularly are very
worrying. this is a plan of pilage resources. Until the council addresses the poor air
quality, sewage entering the Hogsmill and Tolworth Brook and increased flood risk
there is no way it should be embarking on all this development.
2. The council has no idea of how to improve biodiversity and the proposals for
Tolworth Court Farm will ruin one of the best areas of open space in the borough.

B198

3. Comment noted regarding the Hook/
Chessington relief road. To address
congestion and severance around the
Chessington, Tolworth and Hook areas, the
Council is exploring the concept of a relief
road with neighbouring planning authorities.
The key benefits of the scheme include:
a) Congestion Relief - diverting some north
and southbound traffic (currently on the
A243) via the relief road and the A3, rather
than passing through Chessington.
b) Facilitating Growth - maximising growth
opportunities in Chessington, with potential
to attract further investment, new jobs,
housing, commercial premises. New
Crossrail 2 Services from 2033 will be
serving railway stations in the area with four
trains an hour in each direction connecting
central London.
1. Comments noted. The protection of both No change.
Hogsmill Valley and Tolworth Brook,
ecologically and recreationally, continues to
be a key priority for the Council. We will
seek to ensure that growth opportunities
would be assessed accordingly and
sensitive to existing ecology.

2. Comment noted regarding Tolworth
3. MOL has already been developed outside the democratic process, Kingston is up
for grabs is the message, Kevin Davis tells French Business fair that Kingston is open Court Farm.
for business, Sury Comet. Already planning permission was given for CWoA to

117

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
develop a SMI -an important area of ancient woodland. No account was even taken of
objections from the London Wildlife Trust and Merlin obtained their planning
permission straight away without any negotiation or proper mitigation. The planning
application suggested that local groups would be able to use the so -called
Environment Centre yet this is only for corporate use. The development already in the
pipe line does nothing to enhance the community estate or improve measures. Crime
is rising -there were three rapes in my ward within 6 weeks: Springfield Park,
Dickerage Road and Kingston Recreation Ground. None of them were connected
according to police. The connection is that Kingston is becoming run-down and there
is a lack of pride in the place.
29

3. Comment noted regarding the
development of Metropolitan Open Land
(MOL). Overall, the council's priority is to
protect these strategic and valued assets
from inappropriate development where
possible. However, we also recognise the
need to undertake a review of land as part
of the local plan process in order to assess
its suitability going forward.

Martin Russell- 1. Not really.Kingston upon Thames is very over crowded , traffic and parking gets
Jones
worse by the day.

1. Comments noted. The population of
No change.
Kingston is set to increase by at least 10%,
therefore there is a need to plan positively
for it through the local plan process. We
2. Increasing the population puts more pressure on local amenities.
recognise the need to manage growth in a
way that is sensitive to the environment and
3. The environment continues to degrade locally with destruction of trees, loss of open
existing local residents.
spaces given over to more development.

5. Quality of life and enjoyment of simple pleasures like a quiet and peaceful
environment with open spaces and a natural environment of trees and green areas
will continue to decline in the face of increasing population and non stop
development.Visit Cairo in Egypt for a glimpse of the future.

2. Comment noted. We also recognise the
importance of ensuring new investment
and improvement in supporting
infrastructure, such as community facilities.

B199

4. Higher levels of traffic blocking roads like, London rd.The quality of air in Kingston
continues to deteriorate.Noise pollution also is increasing and with the building of the
third runway new and busier flight paths will be put in place over Kingston .Like
Battersea, aircraft noise in Kingston will start at 5.30am in the morning when the night
flight ban is over.Encouraging migration to Kingston, will send the message to others,
that there is no need to face your problems where you live but to run away to other
foreign countries and have an easier life.

3. Comment noted regarding environmental
degradation and open space. Again, these
issues will be addressed through the local
plan process.
4. Comment noted. New growth must look
to mitigate impact to key environmental
issues such as traffic, air and noise
pollution.
5. Comments noted regarding the quality of
life of existing residents.

30

Mr Bal Badesha yes

Support noted.

No change.

31

Mr Aziz
Bawany

yes, kingston needs better transportation links to the centre of london and beyond

Support noted.

No change.

32

Andy Watters

Yes - as a general statement in principle. Any concerns I have relate to achieving the
best possible design. The London Plan and any local council adaptations of the

Support noted. The key aim of the Direction Page 17; Last
of Travel is to identify and assess
paragraph

118

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
London Plan, and in fact any minimum standards to be adhered to, DO NOT secure
good design as a result. Whilst we should adhere to minimum standards and try to
exceed those standards, we must also be aware that the relationships of spaces and
longevity of finishes must be as rigorously challenged. I am continually saddened by
new buildings that look 'acceptable' on day one, but after one or two years look like
they should be demolished, due to their poor finish and architectural detailing.
Buildings need to be designed to improve with age and not just be something that
looks good on a drawing and flashy computer generated image, and then fails as an
overall design, due to cutting corners and saving money. Having an overall strategy
and principle is wonderful, as long as it is not then 'watered down' to produce
something that fails in the execution.

opportunities for new growth in the borough
and the clarify the strategic policy basis for
this work. Therefore, although the council
recognise the importance of development
quality, this issue will be addressed in more
detail at a later stage in local plan process
and ultimately assessed through the
planning application process.

Update: Sentence
added at the end of
the text - ‘High quality
design is, and will
continue to be a key
priority for the
Council’.

A reference to design quality will be
included within the revised document.

33

Alistair Glen

Yes

Support noted.

No change.

34

Mel

No, I disagree strongly with both the proposed areas and the 'Direction of Travel'

Comment noted. Proposed 'Areas of
Opportunity' as set out in the Direction of
Travel are considered to be those areas
most suited for new growth on account of
their transport accessibility, proximity to
centres and regeneration opportunity.

No change.

35

Stephanie
Russell

Broadly speaking yes,

36

Gloria Bassoli

I think two things are imperative:

Support noted.

B200

The boundaries of these areas are only
indicative at this stage. The detail of these
development locations will be worked
through, and consulted upon, in later stages
of the local plan process.
No change.

1. Comment noted. Regarding the Green
No change.
Belt, the borough's strategic open spaces
are important and valued assets and overall
1. Green Belt land absolutely must be protected.
the Council's adopts a brownfield-first
approach to development. However, we
2. Kingston should not become filled with high-rise developments as this will
also recognise the need to undertake a
completely change the nature of the town and will make living here less pleasant,
review of Green Belt land as part of the
regardless of how much you say otherwise. there are developments on London Rd
local plan process in order to assess the
which do not appear inhabited and, as always, existing housing needs to be looked at
suitability of land going forward.
rather than new high-rises built.
3. Furthermore, in view of Brexit, I do not believe that we will be inundated with more
residents and therefore we will not need so much housing. Kingston is a small town
and not a business and that is why I and many of my fellow residents chose to live

2. Comment noted regarding tall buildings.
In accordance with the London Plan, the
council's approach to tall buildings will be

119

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
here. If you make it much bigger, the whole mood of the place will change.

based on a strategic basis in appropriate
town centre locations as a potential
measure to achieve higher densities and
growth targets. However, taller buildings will
need to consider how they positively and
sensitively optimise development plots
whilst enhancing the unique character of
both the local area and the wider protected
key views.
3. Comment noted.

Imran Benson

Yes

Support noted.

No change.

39

Saleh

Yes

Support noted.

No change.

40

Derek Moss

1. No. The Borough's council estates, such as the Cambridge Road Estate,
Kingsnympton and Sheephouse Way in North Kingston, Alpha Road Estate in
Berrylands and School Lane in Tolworth, all of which the Council is looking at
redeveloping currently provide truly affordable council housing, which has only
recently been refurbished to the Decent Homes standard at great cost, for those most
in need and replacing this with so-called "affordable housing", which will be
unaffordable to most people, including existing residents and those on the housing
waiting list, will do nothing to help those most in need, whilst causing immense
upheaval and distress to the existing residents.

1. Comments noted. Affordability of homes
for local people is a key priority for the
council due to high house prices, an
increasing shortfall in provision, and the
increase in demand. One of our biggest
issues is to tackle this positively and
increase the number of houses to meet
needs, while seeking the right balance
between protecting the environment, and
supporting the local economy.

No change.

2. Further, the Borough's council estates already provide high-density housing and
there is far more scope for increasing density by a) building on actual brownfield sites
which are currently providing no housing and b) purchasing semi-detached houses in
cheaper parts of the Borough such as Chessington, demolishing them and building
low-rise blocks of flats in their place, which will increase the number of flats (and in
doing so bring down prices) available to single people and couples with young
children who are completely unable to afford to buy houses in the Borough, will be no
more able to afford so-called "affordable housing" at 80% market prices (i.e. up to
£450,000 in London) and are facing having to rent for the foreseeable future. For
those few people who can afford to buy so-called "affordable housing", this should be
provided by the Council requiring private developers to incorporate it into their
developments in the Borough, such as Eden Walk and the Toby Jug site, in line with
its 50% affordable housing target for such developments.

B201

38

New evidence base and policy regarding
affordable housing will the developed
through the local plan process.

42

Paul Howlett

Yes

Support noted.

No change.

44

Steve

In general yes - relocation of the Kingston Rail Station and improving this area of the
town will make a great improvement However Kingston's history and heritage should
be respected and the number of high rise buildings needs to be carefully managed

Support noted. Taller buildings will need to No change.
consider how they positively and sensitively
optimise development plots whilst

120

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
enhancing the heritage and unique
character of both the local area and the
wider protected key views.
45

Sheena Evans

They look reasonable in general, but we have too few details as things stand. I am
especially worried about the Berrylands to Old Malden section of the 'Hogsmill Valley',
since as it stands this is a wonderful haven for wildlife. I would not wish to see access
'improved' to this area, as such a move would probably destroy its character.

Support noted. The purpose of the Direction
of Travel is to set the context and provide
the Council's 'Statement of Intent' at the
earliest stage of the process in preparing
the new Borough Local Plan.

Pages 31; End of Text
Added sentence after
the bullet points:
‘’Continued protection
of Hogsmill Valley and
its ecology’

Comment noted regarding Hogsmill Valley.
The Hogsmill Valley will continue to be an
important ecological and recreational asset
to the council and any new access
opportunities would be assessed
accordingly and sensitive to existing
ecology. Further reference to the protection
of this asset will be included in the revised
version of the document.
Dr Nazar Pola

all directions of travel are well organised and the only defect is limited number of
transport parking i don't agree for selective growth in the direction of travel this must
be general for all sectors of community

Support noted. Parking in Kingston is being No change.
investigated, particularly in relation to the
redevelopment and expansion of the town
centre over the next few years. As the town
centre changes, there is a need for revised
parking arrangements to support future
economic viability etc, particularly in areas
where current parking is fragmented and
does not meet modern standards.

47

Alvaro

Yes. Would be great if we had underground as well. If not possible, lower the zone we Support noted.
currently have and the fares as well. More cycling paths and green spots.

No change.

48

Jacqueline
Hardie

I am genuinely convinced that the planning department is corrupt and that it doesn't
Comment noted.
matter a fig what we think the council will go ahead and do it anyway. so thanks for
the pretty brochure but really was it worth printing it? How many people will read it and
even when we do it is such a fait accomli that it makes me weep. If I want depressed
before I am now.

No change.

50

Martyn

Yes, as long as you don't overdo it and try and crush too much in to any one area.

Support and comment noted.

No change.

52

B. Walker

1. NO The National Infrastructure Commission reported overwhelming support for
Crossrail 2 and specified Kingston and Tolworth town centres as major opportunities
for significant new housing development. Crossrail 2 will contribute a minimum of
200,000 additional homes over and above the 60,000 that would be developed in

1. Comments noted. New Crossrail 2
Services from 2033 will be serving railway
stations in the area with four trains an hour
in each direction connecting central

No change.

B202

46

121

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
areas linked to the line without the scheme. Crossrail 2 MAY never arrive now due to
coming out of the EU. Please stop calling Tolworth a Town Centre as it is a DISTRICT
centre although it is clear you want to make it into a TOWN. Whatever you do you can
never make the traffic go away and the Ewell Road will continue to get worse and
worse. Tolworth CANNOT take more housing and cars and pollution.
2. The proposed Tolworth A3 junction improvements and associated decking will
provide a major opportunity to improve the environment and unlock development
opportunities, as well as bringing forward much needed road improvements in
particular enhancements to road safety. What decking? What improvements, what
development, pie in the sky thinking not based on reality. If you build another 700
homes (Tesco site) plus the 400 (not 200 shown at Tolworth tower already approved
as 200 plus are conversions from office) they will have cars.
3. All attempts to make people use cycles will not stop the increase in cars and
pollution.

London. The Council will actively plan for
the arrival of Crossrail 2, although new
growth in Kingston is not dependant on its
delivery.
2. Comment noted regarding proposed
Tolworth A3 junction improvements and the
Tolworth decking. It is recognised that
these improvements are unlikely to bring
any major road capacity improvements. The
primary focus instead will be on the
environment (including air and noise
quality), and safety, with the majority of the
new trips to the area predicted to be by
public transport.

3. Comment noted.
4. Also you have the Premier Inn, Lidl and you want Chessington World of Adventures
to continue growing.
4. Comment noted.
Robert Wyeth

Support noted.

No change.

54

Joseph Asghar No

Yes.

Comment noted.

No change.

55

John McCarthy, no obs
Friends
Kingston
Museum &
Heritage
Service

Noted.

No change

56

Phil Edwards

All comments and support noted. To
No change.
address congestion and severance around
the Chessington, Tolworth and Hook areas,
the Council is exploring the concept of a
relief road with neighbouring planning
authorities. The key benefits of the scheme
include:
a) Congestion Relief - diverting some north
and southbound traffic (currently on the
A243) via the relief road and the A3, rather
than passing through Chessington.
b) Facilitating Growth - maximising growth
opportunities in Chessington, with potential

Broadly yes. However, no expansion in chessington or hook should be considered
without a road bypass. The current traffic in both the mornings and evening is
unacceptable and frequently adds 10-15 minutes to my commute to the Gatwick area.
In addition, the M25 /A3 junction is not fit for purpose In addition we need to stop
ridiculous wastes of money such as the greenway in tolworth and the cycle lanes on
the Portsmouth road. Some of us have to drive to work and I don't think the council
should be anti car

B203

53

122

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
to attract further investment, new jobs,
housing, commercial premises. New
Crossrail 2 Services from 2033 will be
serving railway stations in the area with four
trains an hour in each direction connecting
central London. Final: Relief Road

B204

Comment noted regarding
Greenway/Portsmouth Road cycle lanes. In
accordance with the London Plan, the
Council places significant emphasis on the
role of cycling in the future of movement in
the Borough, but not to the detriment of
other road users. Key to achieving this
vision is the delivery of the Go Cycle
Programme whereby the Council received
over £30million of funding from the Mayor
of London and TfL to deliver improvements
to cycling facilities and road safety. Note
that the Go Kingston measures are in the
early stages of implementation and need
time for road users to become familiar with
the new arrangements.
57

Fred Ashmore

They seem mostly reasonable. I'm not at all sure about the area round New Malden
station having much space for development.

Comment noted.

No change.

58

F. McDermott

1. Disagree with development of Berrylands and Hogsmill valley. The separation of
Berrylands and New Malden by green land along the Hogsmill is a significant factor in
the character of the area. It is misleading to offer 'better access to open space with a
new Hogsmill riverside walk". This space is already open and easily accessible. This
is simply a way to sell a scheme which will destroy the natural open green space that
is already there, and which offers so much to local residents in the way of free leisure
and access to nature.

1. Comments noted. The Hogsmill Valley
will continue to be an important ecological
and recreational asset to the council and
any new access opportunities would be
assessed accordingly to ensure sensitivity
to existing ecology. Further reference to the
protection of this asset will be included in
the revised version of the document.

Pages 31; End of Text
Added sentence after
the bullet points:
‘’Continued protection
of Hogsmill Valley and
its ecology’

2. Unsure about development at Tolworth because of the disruption to local life,
schools, traffic etc.

2. Comment noted regarding growth impact
at Tolworth. Tolworth is identified as an
Area of Opportunity and capable of
significant change. Therefore, the council
recognise the importance of sensitively
managing the growth impact to this area.
This includes various proposals to enhance

123

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
the environmental quality of the area, as
well as significant transport investment
(including Crossrail 2, bus services and
cycle networks) in order to significantly
reduce car reliance.
59

J. Stevens

Not agree with developing Kingston town centre so much and not agree with
developing the Hogsmill valley.

Comments noted. The Hogsmill Valley will
continue to be an important ecological and
recreational asset to the council and any
new access/growth opportunities would be
assessed accordingly and sensitive to
existing ecology. Further reference to the
protection of this asset will be included in
the revised version of the document.

Page 16, Kingston
Places
Map update: New
‘place’ added for
‘Hogsmill Valley’
Pages 31; End of Text
Added sentence after
the bullet points:
‘’Continued protection
of Hogsmill Valley and
its ecology’

Alex

No more cycle paths to detriment of all other road users and pedestrians

Comment noted. In accordance with the
No change.
London Plan, the Council places significant
emphasis on the role of cycling in the future
of movement in the Borough, but not to the
detriment of other road users. Key to
achieving this vision is the delivery of the
Go Cycle Programme whereby the Council
received over £30 million of funding from
the Mayor of London and TfL to deliver
improvements to cycling facilities and road
safety. Please note that the Go Kingston
measures are in the early stages of
implementation and need time for road
users to become familiar with the new
arrangements.

63

Peter Mason

Yes, broadly - town centres, brown field sites and around stations seem like
reasonable sites. But a lot seems to depend on Crossrail 2 improvements to local rail
services and Brexit and Government cuts could affect that negatively.

Support noted.The Council will actively plan No change.
for the arrival of Crossrail 2, although new
growth in Kingston is not dependant on its
delivery.

64

Joseph Asghar Nope.

Comment noted.

65

Rob Robb

1. Comments noted. The Council recognise No change.
that key to facilitating and managing new
growth is to ensure new investment and

I cannot agree at the moment regarding the South of the Borough as there are Major
issues to resolve first and if these major issues are not resolved then we are not in a
position to take any more development. These issues are :-

B205

60

No change.

124

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
improvement in supporting infrastructure,
1. Infrastructure,i.e,. Roads (existing traffic problems), schools, doctors surgeries etc... including community/leisure facilities and
transport infrastructure. We also recognise
that this investment must be planned
2. Wrong type of developments , we should look at migrating back to Surrey as the
strategically through the new local plan.
GLC has done nothing for us and they just want to use us as part of the solution to
resolve inner London problems. We are more conducive and congruous to our
surrounding Neighbours such as Claygate, Hinchley Wood, Esher, Epsom and Ewell. 2. Comment noted.
They have developments of quality the size and design is in keeping with existing
surroundings not Lego type tower blocks etc. We are NOT against development we
3. Comment noted. Agreed that the need
just want the right type of developments and not just be part of the London Mayor's
for joined up thinking is key. The new local
number game.
plan will ultimately frame a comprehensive
strategy for growth and development, and
how to to appropriately and positively
3. The council has still not got a joined up plan and when it does it will just be
manage this growth in order to ensure that
overshadowed any overridden by the Mayor and GLC plan so we do not control our
it does not have a negative impact on
future and it is dangerous to think that we do.
environment.
4. Comment noted.
5. Comments noted. There is overwhelming
support for Crossrail 2 and the Council will
actively plan for its arrival. However, new
growth in Kingston is not dependant on its
delivery.

B206

4. Our Planning Department under Viv Evans seems totally out of step design wise,
community wise and every other wise in being able to deal with and take into account
every day existing problems before allowing more dense development that will only
exacerbate matters. They cannot seem to be trusted to see good, quality, controlled
development for Kingston. You have only had to attended the Meyer Bergman
Development DCC Meeting to see that they recommend projects that are ill thought
out , bad conceived and yes not really understand what Residents want to see for
their area. They support the developers and TFL (again what TFL came up with at that
DCC Meeting was Hans Christian Anderson in content) We live with the existing
problems day in day out and our views and that of our Local Residents Associations
are just brushed aside as though we do not know what we are talking about. Surprise
surprise however as soon as a development is finished , the developers having taken
their profits; all the issues raised at the time by Residents and their Associations come
to fruition and we have to live with the consequences. I for one do not trust our
Planning Department to look after our interests as normal residents.

6. Comments noted.

5. This lemming type belief in Cross Rail 2 . Its coming at too higher price. we have
grown up with direct trains to Waterloo people getting jobs in the City and Canary
Wharf etc, with direct connections from Waterloo (the drain) and the Jubilee Line .
Money for Cross Rail 2 could be spent on updating the tunnels for the Waterloo and
City Line and possibly extending that. we are getting 10 car trains next year once the
work at Waterloo is complete and this is more use than crossrail 2. The new 30 trains
an hour fed from branch lines far and wide and being fed into two of the top four
busiest stations Victoria and Paddington, how does that make sense. Our new Prime
Minister is questioning HS2 let’s hope she has the sense to question Cross rail

125

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

6. Lets get back down to earth and think of todays problems such as disabled access
to our stations. It just appears to me the Council want to relinquish more and more to
third parties washing their hands of responsibility for nearly everything i.e. they will
probably end up and turning around one day and found they have disappeared and
done away with themselves under their own stream lining and cost cutting plans and
our Guild Hall will be on the embankment next to Tower Bridge. When you give away
the control of a service you also give away control of your own credibility.
66

Alan Bennett

B207

1. Some parts of scheme appear satisfactory. There is nothing to show how making
1. Comments noted. Regarding the
No change.
existing parts of Kingston one-way system will maintain let alone increase the capacity proposed one-way system, the Kingston
of the road network which is already unsatisfactory.
Town Centre Movement Study looked at
ways of improving the highway
2. We need a proper bus station or system. At present buses competing for spaces on arrangements in the town centre. The
current gyratory has significant problems
the front of Cromwell Rd bus station effectively close one lane to traffic much of the
including causing severance (for example, it
day and especially at peak times. The very narrow unloading bay outside Tesco's in
is a significant barrier for pedestrians
Cromwell Rd is inadequate for a normal lorry and thus the nearside lane is impeded
moving between the railway station and
all the time the bay is in use.
town centre). It also causes barriers to
redevelopment, environmental
3. Crossrail 2 plans currently show the new junction north-east of Wimbledon station
improvements and place shaping. The
but the 'up' platform there is virtually at capacity in terms of train occupation at peak
Study identified ways of overcoming these
times so no chance of more trains unless this is revised such that Crossrail 2 trains
key issues as a longer term option for the
turn off the current line south-west of the station
town centre, and could potentially be
implemented when Crossrail 2 comes to the
area.
2. Comment noted. The council also
recognise the need to significantly upgrade
the rail/bus integration in the future,
particularly with the arrival of Crossrail 2 in
the town centre and predicted increased
patronage etc. Current public transport
facilities (bus and rail) are separated and
approaching capacity. Development of
comprehensive integrated transport
facilities are in the early stages of
development with key partners such as
Transport for London and Network Rail.
3. Comment noted. There is still significant
testing, assessment and funding required

126

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
before the decision and detail regarding
Crossrail 2 is made. It is acknowledged that
there would be significant investment in the
existing infrastructure prior to the arrival of
Crossrail 2 services.
Natalie Crew

Regarding Norbiton area, I agree that there needs to be improved travel but DO NOT
AGREE that there should be even further building development around Norbiton
station.

Comment noted. Although Norbiton's
No change.
development potential is relatively smaller
in comparison to neighbouring areas, there
are still a number of development
opportunities particularly in the station area,
capable of accommodating new growth.

68

Alex GregorSmith

There is huge potential in all of these areas for many different types of development. I Support noted.
agree with all areas.

No change.

69

Kevin White

Yes

Support noted.

No change.

70

Howard
Robinson

Yes

Support noted.

No change.

71

Charmian
Bourne

Yes

Support noted.

No change.

72

Carl Jackson

Yes

Support noted.

No change

73

Deborah
Dunning

Yes, I am especially interested in the growth around Chessington - for an area that
sees hundreds of visitors each year the transport links are not good enough and are
unable to deal with the volume of traffic.

Support noted.

No change.

74

Stanley R.
Spires

Yes

Support noted.

No change.

75

Peter Topp

Yes

Support noted.

No change.

76

Howard
Sheppard

Generally yes, the growth targets for Kingston set by the London Plan are relatively
Support noted.
modest and if we are to enjoy the prosperity that London's growth will bring then we
must contribute. I agree as well that there is a place for "Opportunity Areas" in the
borough, particularly around railway stations and where development can be carefully
planned in consultation with local residents and residents' organisations.

No change.

77

Judith Symons

Kingston Town Centre has taken a battering against the wishes of the public. The
recent passing of permission for huge high rise developments is already too much for
a conservation area. Tolworth has vast potential for development on long term vacant
land.

B208

67

Comments noted. Higher density proposals, No change.
if well planned, designed and located, are in
some cases considered to be an effective
means of accommodating the Borough's
high growth targets set by the Mayor of
London. Nevertheless, we recognise that
this must be balanced with the

127

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
consideration of heritage assets and the
unique character of the local area.
78

Keith Keen

Selective growth - yes, but with due regard to the existing strength and prominent
features of existing town centres. Much more to be made of the existing public open
spaces without loss in area.

79

Frances Marsh As a resident living in New Malden and knowing Kingston Council's aims for putting
social housing - affordable housing anywhere but Kingston, I don't agree with this
question. The document is yet another attempt to put as much growth as possible in
areas such as New Malden, without any idea of what would happen to our area.

Support noted.

No change.

Comment noted. New Malden is identified No change.
as an 'Area of Opportunity' due to its
transport accessibility and regeneration
opportunity. Nevertheless, we recognise
that the new growth must be balanced with
the consideration of existing residents,
heritage assets and the unique character of
the local area.

80

Annie Kay

I have concerns about what is planned for the Cambridge road estate. There are
already a lot of people crammed into this small area. There is already a hodgepodge
of housing in that area. Some of the housing looks ok but unfortunately it doesn't
match with anything else around it. Is there going to be any planning in this area?
Other well to do areas wouldn't accept this sort of mess. What sort of housing is
planned? Are there going to be more high/middle rise houses than don't match
anything near them? If you are going to fit more people in then are you also going to
increase street cleaning in this area? It already looks much worse than other areas.
Street rubbish builds up quickly and needs more frequent cleaning. Dog mess is more
often than not between my home and the local shop. All I can see is this getting even
worse or do you have a plan to tackle this as well? I don't want the estate "sinking"
any further. This sort of environment is not uplifting for its tenants.

All comments noted. There are three
No change.
options which are being consulted on with
residents and other key stakeholders. All
options will more than double the density of
the estate. From approx 830 properties the
different options are looking to provide
between 1900-2000 properties in total.
The possible heights and design of the new
buildings and the overall estate will be
determined through the masterplanning and
planning processes which are scheduled to
start in Spring 2017. Residents will be
consulted throughout these stages and their
views will be considered as part of the
design process.

81

Mr Stephen
Heil

Yes

Support noted.

No change.

82

Lesley Steel

Yes, reluctantly

Support noted.

No change.

B209

Please note that the document is intended
to be high-level at this early stage of the
local plan process, providing the Council's
'Statement of Intent'. The detail and
deliverability of new growth strategies will
be developed and consulted upon in later
stages of the local plan process.

128

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
83

Andrew
Compton

not all of it. i strongly believe that green belt land should be left as it is. i would not like All comments noted. The borough's
to see a new relief road carving up what little green space there is at the southern end strategic open spaces are important and
of the borough.
valued assets, and in accordance with the
London Plan and national policy, will be
protected from inappropriate development.
However, we also recognise the need to
undertake a review of land as part of the
local plan process in order to assess
suitability going forward.

No change.

84

Maureen Ellis

Yes

Support noted.

No change.

85

Karen Carman

No, in particular Chessington development. The pressure on the roads that run from
the M25 junction through to Kingston will not be alleviated by the ring road or the
extension of the train station to World of Adventures. Any further development in the
area will only serve to bring these roads to gridlock for longer than they are already.
This in turn will increase pollution.

Comment noted. Chessington is identified No change.
as an 'Area of Opportunity' on account of its
existing and proposed transport
accessibility, particularly Crossrail 2. The
concept of a new relief road in this location
is being investigated as a means to address
congestion and severance around the
Chessington, Tolworth and Hook areas.

86

Leonora
Partridge

1. On the whole yes, but not all. Seems to be more high rise buildings are being
favoured.
2. Where will all the new jobs come from?

B210

The key benefits of the scheme include:
a) Congestion Relief - diverting some north
and southbound traffic (currently on the
A243) via the relief road and the A3, rather
than passing through Chessington.
b) Facilitating Growth - maximising growth
opportunities in Chessington, with potential
to attract further investment, new jobs,
housing, commercial premises.
1. Support noted. In accordance with the
No change.
London Plan, the council's approach to tall
buildings will be based on a strategic basis
in appropriate town centre locations as a
potential measure to achieve higher
densities and growth targets. However,
taller buildings will need to consider how
they positively and sensitively optimise
development plots whilst enhancing the
unique character of both the local area and
the wider protected key views.
2. Comment noted. The council recognises

129

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
the importance of providing more diverse
employment opportunities across all
sectors, including roles with higher salaries
and small and medium-sized enterprizes.
This need will be considered alongside
existing employment designations in the
borough.
87

Peter Herlinger My view is that growth should be concentrated in the existing urban centres. I do not
think Berrylands and Hogsmill Valley should have substantial housing allocated to it
as that could lead to the current open space being built on.

Comment noted. The protection of both
Hogsmill Valley, ecologically and
recreationally, continues to be a key priority
for the Council. We will seek to ensure that
growth opportunities would be assessed
accordingly and sensitive to existing
ecology.

Page 16, Kingston
Places
Map update: New
‘place’ added for
‘Hogsmill Valley’

Pages 31; End of Text
Added sentence after
Further reference to the protection of this
the bullet points:
asset will be included in the revised version ‘Continued protection
of Hogsmill Valley and
of the document.
its ecology’
Chris Stephens Yes

Support noted.

No change.

90

Andrew
Summersgill

Yes, wholeheartedly.

Support noted.

No change.

91

A Sadeghi

Somewhat

Support noted.

No change.

92

Marilyn Mason, More or less, though green spaces within these areas should be protected and
Chair, KEF
enhanced, not built on.

Support noted.

No change.

93

James

No - the borough can't cope with any development especially Chessington and
Tolworth.

Comment noted.

No change.

94

Sara Vincent

This question is extremely broad and assumes a knowledge of the entire borough that Support and comments noted.
most people are unlikely to have. In the main, it seems sensible, though I'm not
familiar with many areas it describes.

96

James Fennell
(Nathaniel
Lichfield &
Partners)

Please also refer to letter (dated 22nd August 2016) which was submitted via email.
Aviva supports the need to ensure growth is planned for and supported by the
necessary infrastructure and welcome the pro-active approach being adopted in this
regard. The anticipated growth in population and jobs will create pressures on existing
infrastructure and possibly on Green Belt land. Aviva supports the findings of the
Outer London Commission regarding the potential of town centres, like Kingston,
arising from intensification through housing led higher density mixed use renewal and
development. Aviva also welcomes the recognition that such an approach will result in

B211

88

No change.

Support and comments noted. The
No change.
aforementioned letter has been logged and
addressed separately as part of this
consultation process.

130

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
more activity and strengthen the viability and vitality of the town centre. Aviva can play
a significant part in this growth agenda. By expanding and improving the existing offer
in the Bentall Centre it can help provide for the needs of a growing population,
alongside other investment proposed in the town centre which is noted in the
document. Also, the Bentall Centre car park site is allocated in the existing Area
Action Plan for comprehensive development and this can play a part in the type of
intensification proposed by the Commission and, in doing so, potentially help ease
pressure for development of other, more sensitive, parts of the Borough.
97

Simon
Jakeman

No

98

Janine Bellew

1. Yes in principle, however detailed information is required in order to form a view.

Comment noted.

No change.

1. The document is intended to be highNo change.
level at this early stage of the local plan
process, providing the Council's 'Statement
2. I understand the desire to build more homes however this should not be at the
of Intent'. The detail and deliverability of
expense of green areas (Hogsmill etc) and leisure facilities (Malden Centre). These
need to increase to make Kingston a place where people want to live. If more houses new growth strategies will be developed
are built there needs to be more invested in infrastructure (doctors, schools, transport) and consulted upon in later stages of the
and leisure facilities. How about keeping the Malden Centre and building another one? local plan process.

4. The piece that I don't fully understand is the root cause. Does the council need
more revenue? Or do we need to meet housing targets? If it is the latter, can this be
achieved by doing something else? For example, building better / affordable
retirement villages that people want to move to which have facilities such as medical
centres, rehabilitation and activities.
5. What is the most detailed breakdown of where council tax is spent that I can look
at? Do you produce accounts?

2. Comments noted. As noted in the
Direction of Travel, investment and
improvement in infrastructure is key to
supporting new growth. This includes
leisure and community facilities, as well as
transport infrastructure such as Crossrail 2.

B212

3. The trains from Surbiton into London are already crowded. Trains from Berrylands
are only two an hour. The train from Berrylands into London (15 miles) is a similar
journey time as from Paddington to Reading (40 miles)!

3. As mentioned above, transport
investment is absolutely critical to
supporting new growth. Although Crossrail
is not yet committed, work on the project is
ongoing and TfL is in discussions with the
council. If permitted, this major project will
significantly improve the borough’s
connections to central London.
4. The primary reason for this work is
growth. The population of Kingston is set to
increase by at least 10% and growth targets
are set at a strategic level by the Mayor of
London. Therefore there is a need to plan
positively for it through the local plan

131

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
process.
5. Comments on the Council budget noted.
This is a matter that should be raised with
your local ward councillors or at relevant
Council meetings.
Zbig Blonski

Don't think New Malden is on the same scale as the other areas and a different
approach should be taken. It is also different in character more domestic and
suburban and especially sensitive to development because of this.

Comment noted. Agreed. The council
recognise the need to positively and
sensitively optimise development plots
whilst enhancing the heritage and unique
character of areas such as New Malden.

No change.

100

Barbara
Delamere

Broadly speaking yes

Support noted.

No change.

101

Mr M.
Gascoigne

Yes

Support noted.

No change

102

David English

1. The areas for selective growth are poorly defined in this document. This is both
spatially, due to the lack of clear boundaries on the maps, and because there is no
clear definition of what ‘selective growth’ means in the DoT.

1. Comments noted. The boundaries of
these areas are only indicative at this stage
and do not indicate adverse impact the
Borough's valued heritage assets. The
detail of these development locations will
be worked through, and consulted upon, in
later stages of the local plan process.

Pages 27, 29, 31, 33,
35, 37; End of Text
Sentence added after
bullet points: ‘We
recognise that new
growth must be
balanced with the
unique heritage and
character of the
Borough’.

2. Considering the Emerging Areas of Opportunity on p.24, it is clear that there are
potential contradictions between growth areas and the conservation of Kingston’s
most sensitive heritage assets. Where such conflicts are likely to be raise issues –
particularly in Kingston town centre and other conservation areas – it is important that
these are identified at the earliest stage and that a robust examination of the options
for growth is carried out. Once the necessary evidence regarding the sensitivity and
capacity of sites in different areas of the borough is available– including an
assessment of the impacts on the historic environment – this will assist the
assessment through the SA/SEA process of which areas should be focused on and
what quantum of growth would be appropriate. We are concerned to note that the DoT
seems to suggest that heritage protection may be optional: “selective redevelopment
in this part of the borough could result in … continuing protection of Kingston’s historic
environment”, notably for Kingston Town Centre, which has the highest concentration
of designated and undesignated heritage assets in the borough (p.27). Avoiding harm
to the historic environment and positively pursuing improvements that better reveal
heritage significance are key tenants of sustainable development (NPPF paras 9, 126
and 152).

2. Comments noted. The character and
heritage of the Borough continues to be a
key priority for the council. We recognise
the need to positively balance new growth
with the consideration of heritage and
conservation assets in order to protect the
distinctiveness of the borough.

Page 18; Last
paragraph.
Sentence added: ‘Note
that the OLC Report
also states, “there is
Further reference to protection of heritage no one size fits all
assets and character will be included in the solution for town
centre renewal?
revise document.
Redevelopment, so
any intensification
would have to take
account of the
particular needs and
characteristics of the

132

B213

99

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
individual town centre
such as heritage and
cultural assets, as well
as local character”.
103

Dan

No

Noted.

104

Martin Booth

If the overall impact of encouraging selective growth means an increase in number
and density of the population of Kingston, then no I absolutely do not. Kingston is
crowded. It's hard getting a seat on the train out of town in the mornings; the traffic
around the one-way system is all too often at a standstill from the sheer weight of cars
on the road; and the development of Eden Walk and the old Post Office site will
inevitably add greater strain on the borough's resources. If the proposals included
concrete plans for the provision of many, many more school places - at good-quality
schools, by the way - in the borough, and suggestions for ameliorating the pressure
on road use and other services in the borough, it might be easier to be optimistic.
That's all I want to say, really. The fact that the ridiculously over-dense development of
the old Post Office site was waved through by the council - in the face of determined,
vociferous, articulate and widespread opposition from local residents - suggests that
spending too long trying to get your voice heard and actually listened to is an exercise
in futility.

Comments noted. The population of
No change.
Kingston is set to increase by at least 10%,
therefore there is a need to plan positively
for it through the local plan process. We
recognise the need to manage growth in a
way that is sensitive to the environment,
heritage and existing local residents. It also
includes ensuring new investment and
improvement in supporting infrastructure,
such as community facilities, as well as
mitigating impact on key environmental
issues such as traffic, air and noise
pollution.

105

Tony Lancaster 1. First of all I want to say that this survey is based on a 'done deal' approach. Like a
car salesman you ask only closed questions.

No change.

B214

2. The question should be do we want Kingston to be an opportunity area. I do not
want the ‘Development Areas of Opportunity” designation for Kingston. If - and that is
a big “if” based on guesses - there is a need to redevelop with higher densities - it
would make sense to concentrate such development near to each transport link in the
Borough.

1. Comments noted regarding the survey
wording. This feedback will be applied to
any future consultations.

No change.

2. Comments noted. The identified 'Areas
of Opportunity' across the Borough are
considered to be those areas most suited
for new growth on account of their transport
accessibility, proximity to centres and
regeneration opportunity.

106

Gemma
Cusworth

I do not want the ‘Development Areas of Opportunity” designation for Kingston. If and that is a big “if” - there is a need redevelop with higher densities - it would make
sense to concentrate such development near to each transport link in the Borough.
Why are Malden Manor and Surbiton exempted? At risk of it looking like that's where
the councillors live and don't want it on their doorstep themselves - please justify why
this decision was made? Surely it should be fairly well spread, and consideration
given to areas which actually have the room for it. There is a lot more land available
for development around tolworth (ex. industrial etc.)

Comments noted. Agreed, the identified
'Areas of Opportunity' across the Borough
are considered to be those areas most
suited for new growth on account of their
transport accessibility, proximity to centres
and regeneration opportunity. Growth
opportunity is certainly not ruled out in
areas outside the identified 'Areas of
Opportunity', only considered to be less
significant and transformational.

No change.

107

John Edwards

Some but not all

Comment noted.

No change.

133

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
Daniel Wain

Broadly, although I would be very concerned if the historic environment of Kingston
Town Centre (listed buildings and conservation areas) was not given full protection
from any growth and development plans.

Comment and support noted. The
population of Kingston is set to increase by
at least 10%. We recognise the need to
positively balance new growth with the
consideration of heritage and conservation
assets in order to enhance the character
and distinctiveness of the borough.

Pages 27, 29, 31, 33,
35, 37; End of Text
Sentence added after
bullet points: ‘We
recognise that new
growth must be
balanced with the
unique heritage and
Further reference to protection of heritage character of the
assets and character will be included in the Borough’.
revised document.
Page 18; Last
paragraph.
Sentence added: ‘Note
that the OLC Report
also states, “there is
no one size fits all
solution for town
centre renewal?
Redevelopment, so
any intensification
would have to take
account of the
particular needs and
characteristics of the
individual town centre
such as heritage and
cultural assets, as well
as local character”.

109

Katherine
Jones

I largely disagree with the proposals. We do however need to look at the one way
system in Kingston. It doesn't flow properly the traffic is especially bad from Kingston
hill into the centre. I would like to see the conservation areas maintained and more
thought to the money put into schools that are already bursting, rather than more
homes in a over populated borough.

Comments noted. The Kingston Town
No change
Centre Movement Study looked at ways of
improving the highway arrangements in the
town centre. The current gyratory has
significant problems including causing
severance (for example, it is a significant
barrier for pedestrians moving between the
railway station and town centre). It also
causes barriers to redevelopment,
environmental improvements and place
shaping. The Study identified ways of
overcoming these key issues as a longer
term option for the town centre, and could

134

B215

108

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
potentially be implemented when Crossrail
2 comes to the area.
110

Carl Jackson

Yes

Support noted.

No change.

111

Peta
Schaverien

Not in its present form. There is no room for over development in Kingston. Areas
further afield need to be considered.

Comments noted.

No change.

112

Rebeca Alamo

No, so far the designation of Kingston town centre as a growth area has simply
resulted in approval of two developments that are grossly over intensive (topo & eden
walk). This appears as a result of forcing additional housing into a concentrated area ,
rather than spreading it across the borough and improving cross borough transport
links

Comments noted. The population of
No change.
Kingston is set to increase by at least 10%,
therefore there is a need to plan positively
for it through the local plan process. We
recognise the need to manage growth in a
way that is sensitive to the environment,
heritage and existing local residents. It also
includes ensuring new investment and
improvement in supporting infrastructure,
such as community facilities and transport
infrastructure, as well as mitigating impact
on key environmental issues such as traffic,
air and noise pollution.

113

Mr A. Greene

1. In large parts of it no. There is too much focus on CrossRail 2 and the way this
document links it to housing and new business opportunities makes it sound as if
nobody moving into these new properties or taking these new jobs will have a car, all
of them will be using the train. That is never going to be the case.

1. Comments noted.The Council will
actively plan for the arrival of Crossrail 2,
although new growth in Kingston is not
dependant on its delivery.

B216

The council also agree that growth
opportunity must be distributed across the
borough in areas of high transport
accessibility and regeneration opportunity.
No change.

2. Too many recent developments in the Kingston Borough area with the exception of 2. Comments noted regarding parking. The
the few top end detached properties make too little provision for parking, resulting in
London Plan sets the overarching parking
further pressure for parking in the areas these developments have sprung up.
standards that the Council needs to comply
with. An opportunity to submit comments
and suggestions on the parking standards
3. Also this plan smacks of trying to tie in with specific number targets concerning
should arise during the preparation of the
housing and affordable housing that central government, the Mayor's office and
next London Plan.
Kingston Council have set without due consideration of the areas being ear marked
for X number of houses. There are some areas around the borough that could and in
some cases should be developed.
3. Agreed. New growth is not ruled out in
areas outside the identified 'Areas of
4. How they are developed though is key. For example Tolworth. To allow the Tower Opportunity', only considered to be less
significant and transformational.
there to become a resident's block and then add a couple of more towers and then

135

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
have TFL say that there will be no increase in traffic is a total farce. Anybody that has
tried to drive through Tolworth during the rush hour or even at other times during the
day will confirm that it is a congestion hot spot.
5. Then there are the proposals for the "relief road" between the A3 and the
Leatherhead road. It will not be a relief, it will be a rat run that will cut through some
key bits of green belt at the very south of the borough.

4. Comments noted regarding the impact of
growth on traffic congestion in Tolworth. It
is agreed that this is a key challenge for the
council and we recognise the need for
significant investment in transport
infrastructure, including Crossrail 2, bus
services and cycling infrastructure (via the
Go Kingston scheme). The aim being that
this will provide residents with a choice of
transport alternative whilst reducing car
reliance.

B217

5. Comment noted regarding the Hook/
Chessington relief road. This is only a
concept proposal at this stage being
explored with neighbouring planning
authorities. The key benefits of the scheme
include:
a) Congestion Relief - diverting some north
and southbound traffic (currently on the
A243) via the relief road and the A3, rather
than passing through Chessington.
b) Facilitating Growth - maximising growth
opportunities in Chessington, with potential
to attract further investment, new jobs,
housing, commercial premises. New
Crossrail 2 Services from 2033 will be
serving railway stations in the area with four
trains an hour in each direction connecting
central London.
114

Marguerite
Bowers Clark

No. Why has Surbiton and Malden Manor not been included?

Comment noted. Growth opportunity is
certainly not ruled out in areas outside the
identified 'Areas of Opportunity', only
considered to be less significant and
transformational.

No change.

115

J. Wheeler

I agree the targeted areas are the most run down, however, as a commuter on already
massively overcrowded services and as a person unable to secure a GP appointment
I have significant concerns about the lack of adequate infrastructure to support
additional burden on our services.

Comments noted. We recognise that
investment and improvement in supporting
infrastructure is key to supporting new
growth. This includes leisure and
community facilities, as well as transport

No change.

136

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
infrastructure such as Crossrail 2, bus
services and cycle infrastructure.
116

Johanne Molloy Yes, the whole area needs a review of the infrastructure

Support noted.

117

Stuart Hartley

118

Lynne Finnerty 1. It is interesting that this document reveals on p.21 that New Malden town centre
1. Comment noted.
No change.
was not specified by the National Infrastructure Commission as a major opportunity for
significant new housing development.
2. Comment noted. As noted in the
Direction of Travel, investment and
2. Transport, health and education infrastructure is already under pressure.
improvement in supporting infrastructure is
key to supporting new growth. This includes
leisure and community facilities, as well as
3. Flooding and drainage are ongoing issues.
transport infrastructure such as Crossrail 2,
bus services and cycle infrastructure.
4. There is limited green space within reasonable walking distance in some parts of
New Malden for existing residents.
3. Comments noted regarding flooding. The
council recognises that the Local Plan must
4. Therefore the scale of development of 'selective growth' would need to be known
look at ways of managing and reducing
before agreement for New Malden.
flood risk, which will include a review of its
evidence base on flood issues.

No. The case for growth has not been made in this document or in any of the
Comments noted.
meetings with the councillors. The population growth figures cannot be justified in light
of recent political changes.

No change.
No change.

B218

4. Comment noted.
119

Iain Martin MSc There should also be an Opportunity Area covering the boundary between Kingston
CMILT
and Richmond in North Kingston which would enable joint discussions to be held
between the two Boroughs on development matters of common interest. Also, I
believe the Norbiton, London Road and Cambridge area is too large as it is not really
homogeneous.

Comments noted.

No change.

120

Mo Sehra

No

Comment noted.

No change.

122

H. Wollinger

1. Unfortunately not: The document is so high level and is only focussing on travel
enhancements without stipulating what they would be in detail.

1. Comment noted. The document is
No change.
intended to be high-level at this early stage
of the local plan process, providing the
2. For Chessington there seem to be plans to build significantly on the old golf course, Council's 'Statement of Intent'. It aims to
which given the currently already present traffic congestions in the area, would render provide alignment of local strategic planning
policy, the London Plan, and Kingston's
any enhancements obsolete. So no, I can not support any of this without having a
growth agenda, as well as the broad
comprehensive and holistic picture to form an informed opinion.
context in which the new Borough Local
Plan needs to be planned. The detail and

137

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
deliverability of new growth strategies will
be developed in later stages of the local
plan process.
2. Comment noted.
Pippa
Billingsley

1. Yes, i think the areas you have proposed for development are welcomed but i don't 1. Comment noted. Growth opportunity is
No change.
understand why Malden Manor has not been suggested too. I would welcome the re- certainly not ruled out in areas outside the
development of the Cambridge estate.
identified 'Areas of Opportunity', only
considered to be less significant and
transformational. Surbiton/MM
2. It is not clear what the proposed 'decking' of Tolworth is or would look like. I know
this has recently been a re-developed project, the success of which is still to be
decided.
2. Comment noted regarding the Tolworth
Deck. The proposal includes includes
covering over a section of the A3
immediately to the south of the main
A3/A240 intersection. The decking would
compliment other planned investment along
the A3, as well as the public realm/cycling
initiatives in adjoining areas. Such
investment in Tolworth would support the
Government's growth agenda for London
and the South East and would link to and
support the Crossrail 2 initiative. Locally the
decking would dramatically improve
Tolworth as a place; the area suffers
severance and the decking would enhance
connectivity and could provide a high
quality open space. The proposal would
connect the high street to the train station
making it one place with much easier
navigation.

125

Mark Blewett

I do not want the ‘Development Areas of Opportunity” designation for Kingston.

Comment noted.

No change.

126

Jim Leason

1. I mostly agree with the areas selected. It's not clear why Malden Manor has been
left off, particularly with regards opportunities to connect this area of New Malden split
by the A3. Surely there must also be opportunities to create better uses around
Shannon Corner, the two old car showrooms either side of the A3, and around
Coombe Boys school, again enhancing connections into New Malden across A3. This
whole area has potential for developments that are walkable to New Malden station
and Motspur Park station (both zone 4).

1. Comment noted. Growth opportunity is
certainly not ruled out in areas outside the
identified 'Areas of Opportunity', only
considered to be less significant and
transformational.

No change.

B219

124

2. Parking in Kingston is being investigated,
particularly in relation to the redevelopment

138

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
2. The plans for road enhancements in Kingston do not make sense to me without
looking at parking provision. I can't imagine what chaos Kingston would be in with
everyone trying to park in John Lewis, Bentalls and Seven Kings car parks. The Rose
Car Park is also far too small these days to accommodate cars of today.

and expansion of the town centre over the
next few years. As the town centre
changes, there is a need for revised parking
arrangements to support future economic
viability etc, particularly in areas where
current parking is fragmented and does not
meet modern standards.

Pat Cann

Some areas seem to have more opportunities than others. So not necessarily

Comment noted.

No change.

128

Tim Westlake

Yes

Support noted.

No change.

129

Tim Westlake

Yes

Support noted.

No change.

130

Deborah Da
Silva

Only in part

Comment noted.

No change.

131

Hilary Gander

1. The first question should be 'do you agree with the growth proposed?' I would need 1. Comments noted. The document is
No change.
to know the full rationale behind choosing the areas.
intended to be high-level at this early stage
of the local plan process, providing the
2. Infrastructure (schools etc, transport links) are inadequate at Tolworth, for example. Council's 'Statement of Intent'. It aims to
provide alignment of local strategic planning
policy, the London Plan, and Kingston's
3. Crossrail 2 is by no means guaranteed and in any case, many years hence. The
growth agenda, as well as the broad
document lacks detail about the nature of the 'intensification' (how high, how dense,
context in which the new Borough Local
will green belt be protected?) It's extremely high level and meaningless for
Plan needs to be planned. The detail and
consultation purposes.
deliverability of new growth strategies will
be developed in later stages of the local
plan process.

B220

127

2. Comment noted regarding infrastructure
at Tolworth. We recognise that investment
and improvement in supporting
infrastructure is key to supporting new
growth. This includes leisure and
community facilities, as well as transport
infrastructure such as Crossrail 2, bus
services and cycle infrastructure.
3. Comment noted regarding Crossrail 2.
Note that although the Council is actively
planning for the arrival of Crossrail 2, new
growth in Kingston is not dependant on its
delivery.

139

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
132

Fiona Meaney

No

Comment noted.

No change.

133

Yvonne Walsh

I do not think that New Malden needs more office growth around the station area as
lots of office space is already being taken away by having permission to convert to
residential - so why is this being allowed if more office space is being planned New
Malden is a residential area so I welcome more housing but not high rise flats as this
causes more need of local infrastructure ie schools and health centers and car parking
which is not included in the selective growth plans - also not in keeping with most of
area

Comments noted. The focus of new office
development is the quality of office stock,
which is not currently fit for purpose for
modern working requirements. Therefore,
new development is essential in some
cases to meet the current/future needs of
businesses across the borough and to
support our town and district centres.

No change.

B221

Higher density proposals, if well planned,
designed and located, are in some cases
considered to be an effective means of
accommodating the Borough's high growth
targets set by the Mayor of London.
Nevertheless, we recognise that this must
be balanced with the consideration of
heritage assets and the unique character of
the local area. Growth must also be
supported by the necessary infrastructure
investment such as community/leisure
facilities and transport infrastructure.
134

Lee Hendra

Yes

Support noted.

No change.

136

John Pearson

ok chessington in particular

Support noted.

No change.

137

Zoe Leeds

1. I do not want the ‘Development Areas of Opportunity” designation for Kingston. If and that is a big “if” - there is a need redevelop with higher densities - it would make
sense to concentrate such development near to each transport link in the Borough.
The areas identified for selective growth are centered around rail links. But two
obvious rail links have been overlooked: Surbiton; and Malden Manor. From a logical
point of view, Surbiton and Malden Manor should be added to those areas identified
for selective growth. That way the impact of growth can be more fairly and evenly
spread across the borough.

1. Comments noted. Agreed, the identified
'Areas of Opportunity' across the Borough
are considered to be those areas most
suited for new growth on account of their
transport accessibility, proximity to centres
and regeneration opportunity. Growth
opportunity is certainly not ruled out in
areas outside the identified 'Areas of
Opportunity', including Surbiton and Malden
Manor, it is only considered to be less
significant and transformational.

Pages 27, 29, 31, 33,
35, 37; End of Text
Sentence added after
bullet points: ‘We
recognise that new
growth must be
balanced with the
unique heritage and
character of the
Borough’.

2. I believe we are not doing enough to protect the existing character and heritage of
not only Kingston but Surbiton,new Malden & other parts of the Borough. It is highly
ironic that the Council has in the last few months granted planning permission for
several new very high rise & dense developments in Kingston town centre, which will
neither enhance nor protect the listed Buildings & Conservation Areas close to those
developments. Of course we want such protection & enhancement across the
Borough, but any intensification resulting from “Areas of Opportunity” must be very

2. Higher density proposals, if well planned,
designed and located, are in some cases
considered to be an effective means of
accommodating the Borough's high growth

Page 18; Last
paragraph.
Sentence added: ‘Note
that the OLC Report
also states, “there is

140

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
no one size fits all
solution for town
centre renewal?
Redevelopment, so
3. I am yet to be convinced of the merits and practicality of the Tolworth ‘deck’ idea,
any intensification
but we acknowledge that something needs to be done to improve the divide between
would have to take
existing and future residents on either side of this part of the A3.
Further reference to protection of heritage account of the
particular needs and
4. A number of other infrastructure improvements have to be provided eg more School assets and character will be included in the
characteristics of the
revised document.
places ,more & better health centres, & other community facilities such as
individual town centre
halls,resource centres,& better areas of open space properly managed.
such as heritage and
3. Comment noted regarding the Tolworth
cultural assets, as well
Deck. The proposal includes includes
as local character”.
covering over a section of the A3
immediately to the south of the main
A3/A240 intersection. The decking would
compliment other planned investment along
the A3, as well as the public realm/cycling
initiatives in adjoining areas. Such
investment in Tolworth would support the
Government's growth agenda for London
and the South East and would link to and
support the Crossrail 2 initiative. Locally the
decking would dramatically improve
Tolworth as a place; the area suffers
severance and the decking would enhance
connectivity and could provide a high
quality open space. The proposal would
connect the high street to the train station
making it one place with much easier
navigation.
carefully considered by Planning Officers & Councillors. I think helping to resolve
problems with the one way system could be very good for Kingston Town Centre.

targets set by the Mayor of London.
Nevertheless, we recognise that this must
be balanced with the consideration of
heritage assets and the unique character of
the local area.

138

Sharon

I believe that existing disused over land rail tracks that link most stations should be

Comments noted.

No change.

141

B222

4. Comment noted regarding the need for
supporting infrastructure. As noted in the
Direction of Travel, investment and
improvement in supporting infrastructure is
key to supporting new growth. This includes
leisure and community facilities, green and
open spaces, and new transport
infrastructure.
Final: Supporting Inf

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
Nelhams

reviewed and renewed. Not rebuilding tracks elsewhere.

Cashel Riordan No. Am concerned about the Fountain roundabout in New Malden and no turning right Comments noted. The proposed layout of
No change.
into Burlington road
the Fountain Roundabout is intended to
both optimise traffic management and
improve safety for pedestrians, cyclists and
motorists. Feedback from local residents to
the summer 2016 public consultation for
Fountain Roundabout will help shape our
decisions for the future of the fountain.

141

Michele Salter

No. There is already too much development in Kingston surbiton and tolworth.
Existing buildings should be protected. Too much pressure on schools and other
infrastructure. Too much emphasis on flats that nobody wants and not enough family
housing.

Comments noted. The population of
No change
Kingston is set to increase by at least 10%,
therefore there is a need to plan positively
for it through the local plan process. We
recognise the need to manage growth in a
way that is sensitive to the environment,
heritage and existing local residents. It also
includes ensuring new investment and
improvement in supporting infrastructure,
such as community facilities, as well as
mitigating impact on key environmental
issues such as traffic, air and noise
pollution.

142

Caroline
Cheales

1. In the aftermath of the referendum, I question whether the growth assumptions can
be valid in terms of absolute numbers and timing. The Mayor's Office is already
considering the impact of brexit on growth and the farebox. The government have
recently issued a high level impact assessment that links a downturn in the economy
with difficulties with financing big expensive infrastructure projects. This and a general
move towards rebalancing national investment away from London means that
CrossRail 2 is very likely to be substantially delayed, if not paused indefinitely. This
obviously post dates the development of the plan and this document but is a material
consideration. If Crossrail 2 is delayed/paused, then the whole premise for the the
opportunity areas is fatally flawed.

1. Comments noted. At this stage it is too
early to fully understanding the impact of
the referendum to growth projections. We
will continue to plan for the latest GLA
growth projections, although this will be
closely monitored. Please note that
although the Council is actively planning for
the arrival of Crossrail 2, new growth in
Kingston is not dependant on its delivery.

Page 14, 15, 26, 27,
28, 29, 30, 31, 32, 33,
34, 35, 36, 37
Map update: Colours
used for keys and
maps amended to
provide further clarity
and consistency.

2. Comment noted. We recognise that
investment and improvement in supporting
infrastructure is key to supporting new
growth. This includes leisure and
community facilities, as well as transport
infrastructure such as Crossrail 2, bus
3. It is difficult to comment in detail about the proposed areas because the illustrations services and cycle infrastructure.
are difficult to read and the colour coding in the key has not been carried through to
the maps. Where the colour coding has been applied, it is extremely difficult to
3. Comment noted. Colour coding and other
2. If Crossrail 2 continues as planned, I would generally support the concept of
concentrating growth in defined areas, provided it is supported by appropriate levels of
investment in social and service infrastructure - such as schools, health provision,
green space etc.

142

B223

139

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
interpret. For example, using two transparent shades of green on a green satellite
image does not provide sufficient clarity to be able to comment.

graphics will be updated for further clarity in
the revised document.

4. There is no explanation as to why some areas have not been considered, for
example Malden Manor.

4. Comment noted. New growth opportunity
is not ruled out in areas outside the
identified 'Areas of Opportunity', only
considered to be less significant and
transformational.

143

Stewart
Dickson

I think all train stations and major transport hubs in the borough should be considered Comments noted. Agreed, the identified
for inclusion in the plans. This should be in conjunction with neighbouring boroughs
'Areas of Opportunity' across the Borough
where such points lie close to the boundaries on both sides.
are considered to be those areas most
suited for new growth on account of their
transport accessibility, proximity to centres
and regeneration opportunity.

No change .

144

Linda Skilbeck

1. I do not agree with the proposed areas of selective growth in the Direction of Travel
The most important question has not been asked: Do we want Kingston to become an
Opportunity Area? Do we want it to become another Vauxhall? The answer is No. We
do not want excessive development.

Pages 19; Paragraph
1
Original text: ‘A new
borough Local Plan is
required to show how
it will deliver the
growth needs of a
rapidly rising
population’.

Update: ‘A new
borough Local Plan is
required to show how
2. Comment noted regarding affordable
it will deliver the
housing. Affordability of homes for local
growth needs of a
people is a key priority due to high house
rapidly rising
prices, an increasing shortfall in provision, population, including
and the increase in demand. One of our
new affordable homes,
biggest issues is to tackle this positively
a diverse range of
and increase the number of houses to meet employment
needs, while seeking the right balance
opportunities, and
between protecting the environment, and
expanded leisure and
supporting the local economy. New
community facilities’.
evidence base and policy regarding
affordable housing will the developed
through the local plan process.

143

B224

2. We do require more homes, but those homes, as the Mayor of London Sadiq Khan
says, they need to be genuinely affordable to all Londoners. Not the ‘affordable
housing’ of the developer speak. Nor should they be built to become part of an
investment portfolio of wealthy speculators. Clauses should be entered into any
planning approvals that ensure that developers do not sell properties merely as
investments to clients who leave them empty. This only aggravates the problem of a
lack of housing

1. Comments noted. The population of
Kingston is set to increase by at least 10%,
therefore there is a need to plan positively
for it through the local plan process. We
recognise the need to manage growth in a
way that is sensitive to the environment,
heritage and existing local residents. It also
includes ensuring new investment and
improvement in supporting infrastructure,
such as community facilities, as well as
mitigating impact on key environmental
issues such as traffic, air and noise
pollution.

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

Further reference to the need for affordable
homes included in the revised document.
145

Judith Royle

Generally but not enough detailed information for New Malden.

Support noted. Further detail will be
developed in later stages of the local plan
process.

No change.

146

Sue May

I am concerned about the increasing pressure placed on roads for the emerging area
of opportunity in Chessington. This may be helped however if the relief road from the
A3 is put in place before growth occurs. I would like to see hard evidence that the
relief road proposal will ease traffic congestion in this area.

Comment noted. The concept of a relief
road is being explored with neighbouring
planning authorities. It aims to address
congestion and severance around the
Chessington, Tolworth and Hook areas.

No change.

147

Dominic Bull

1. No, in general I do not see the aim of population growth in the borough as
necessary for our prosperity. The borough already has a density of population that is
too high. If growth is coveted and achieved then I would also like to see areas around
all the major infrastructure hubs being targeted, Malden Manor and Surbiton stations
do not appear to be selected.

1. Comments noted. The population of
Kingston is set to increase by at least 10%,
therefore there is a need to plan positively
for it through the local plan process. High
density proposals, if well planned, designed
and located, are considered in some cases
to be an effective means of accommodating
2. Green belt land should be excluded. (Chessington South especially)
the Borough's high growth targets set by
the Mayor of London. Nevertheless, we
3. Hogsmill valley especially should not be made available for development.
recognise that density must be balanced
with the consideration of heritage assets
4. Above all else, consideration for air quality should be paramount. We urgently need and the unique character of the local area.
to remove vehicles from streets where possible. I would strongly urge the council to
consider all measures to reduce air pollution and car usage, increase clean public
Growth opportunity is certainly not ruled out
transport, and encourage walking and cycling by continuing with the mini-hollands
in areas outside the identified 'Areas of
style developments. I would also encourage the council to look into the "Low Emission

B225

The key benefits of the scheme include:
a) Congestion Relief - diverting some north
and southbound traffic (currently on the
A243) via the relief road and the A3, rather
than passing through Chessington.
b) Facilitating Growth - maximising growth
opportunities in Chessington, with potential
to attract further investment, new jobs,
housing, commercial premises. New
Crossrail 2 Services from 2033 will be
serving railway stations in the area with four
trains an hour in each direction connecting
central London.
Page 16, Kingston
Places
Map update: New
‘place’ added for
‘Hogsmill Valley’
Pages 31; End of Text
Added sentence after
the bullet points:
‘’Continued protection
of Hogsmill Valley and
its ecology’

144

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
Neighbourhoods" scheme, or even designating the borough as a low emission zone,
especially for schools which are close to major roads. A3 and Kingston ring road for
example.

Opportunity', including Surbiton and Malden
Manor, it is only considered to be less
significant and transformational.
2. Comment noted regarding the Green
Belt. The borough's strategic open spaces
are important and valued assets, and in
accordance with the London Plan and
national policy, will be protected from
inappropriate development. However, we
also recognise the need to undertake a
review of land as part of the local plan
process in order to assess suitability going
forward.

B226

3. Comment noted regarding Hogsmill
Valley. The Hogsmill Valley will continue to
be an important ecological and recreational
asset to the council and any new access
opportunities would be assessed
accordingly and sensitive to existing
ecology. Further reference to the protection
of this asset will be included in the revised
version of the document.
4. Comments noted regarding the impact of
growth on traffic congestion and air quality.
It is agreed that this is a key challenge for
the council and we recognise the need for
significant investment in transport
infrastructure, including Crossrail 2, bus
services and cycling infrastructure (via the
Go Kingston scheme). The aim being that
this will provide residents with a greater
choice of transport alternative whilst
reducing car reliance and improve air
quality.
148

Helen Thrush

1. No, not at all. Kingston/Berrylands and Surbiton are already to overdeveloped. We
like the area the way it is and that is why we choose to live here. If we wanted to live
in a city we would go and live in London.

1. Comment noted. The population of the
No change.
Borough is set to increase by at least 10%.
We recognise the need to positively
balance new growth with the consideration

145

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
2. The infrastructure is this area already cannot cope with the development that has
already happened. There are not enough places at the doctors, the roads are
overcrowded, Surbiton station is Hell and it never used to be this way.

of heritage and conservation assets in order
to enhance the character and
distinctiveness of the borough.

3. The consultation process on this project has not been transparent or communicated
correctly with the residents. What other forms of communication have the council used
to advise people of this plan? Its outrageous that this council think they can just do
what they want, it's underhanded to have this consultation "conveniently' in the
summer when people are away. It's also not acceptable that they send councillors
overseas at the tax payers expense to look for investors when they haven't even
consulted the residents. The first time I was aware of this development was when I
saw it posted on the Surbiton Neighbourhood Facebook page by another resident.
The council behaviour just makes my blood boil. It's just not acceptable, I will be
writing to James Berry.

2. Comment noted. As noted in the
Direction of Travel, investment and
improvement in supporting infrastructure is
key to supporting new growth. This includes
leisure and community facilities, as well as
transport infrastructure such as Crossrail 2,
bus services and cycle infrastructure. Note
that although the Council is actively
planning for the arrival of Crossrail 2, new
growth in Kingston is not dependant on its
delivery.

149

Dave RyderMills

1. They largely speak for themselves as the only possibilities across wide areas of the
borough, and on that basis in general the answer has to be "yes". However the
vagueness of the proposed intensity of suggested developments make this
meaningless. Please do not take this global "yes" as carte blanche for a vote in favour
of grandiose area changing schemes. Additionally several of the areas have been
looked at over the years with the result that no developments of any strategic nature
were found to be possible (eg the Hogsmill Valley) due to restrictions imposed by
current ownerships, or developments which have taken or are taking place have been
uncoordinated with each other to the detriment of the infrastructure of the area, (eg
the Kingston Gas Holder and adjacent sites) where no single developer has proved
persuadable to incorporate essential infrastructure. It is all very well for a developer to
claim on its hoardings that "this development is giving £750,000 to Kingston's
education" without this or any other developer heeding the request in the development
brief for a new school to be developed as part of the development. This has resulted
in wholly inappropriate sites being proceeded with for such infrastructure.

Support noted. The need for joined up
No change.
thinking is key. Please note that the
document is intended to be high-level at
this early stage of the local plan process,
providing the Council's 'Statement of Intent'.
It aims to provide alignment of local
strategic planning policy, the London Plan,
and Kingston's growth agenda, as well as
the broad context in which the new Borough
Local Plan needs to be planned. The detail
and deliverability of new growth strategies
will be developed and consulted upon in
later stages of the local plan process.

150

Elaine RyderMills

No.

Noted

151

Neil Riley

No as there are significant areas of the borough not covered and too little detail about Comment noted. Further detail will be
the extent of development envisaged in the areas identified.
developed in later stages of the local plan

B227

3. Comment regarding the consultation
process noted. We will consider all
feedback received regarding the
consultation in order to improve our
approach and performance for future
engagement events.

No change.
No change.

146

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
process.
152

Janice Yeadon Could include Surbiton

Comment noted.

153

Adrian Wheeler 1. I do not agree with the proposed areas of selective growth in the Direction of Travel 1. Comment noted. The population of
The most important question has not been asked: Do we want Kingston to become an Kingston is set to increase by at least 10%.
Opportunity Area? Do we want it to become another Vauxhall? The answer is No.
We recognise the need to positively
balance new growth with the consideration
of heritage and conservation assets in order
2. We do not want excessive development. We do require more homes, but those
to enhance the character and
homes, as the Mayor of London Sadiq Khan says, they need to be genuinely
distinctiveness of the borough.
affordable to all Londoners. Not the ‘affordable housing’ of the developer speak. Nor
should they be built to become part of an investment portfolio of wealthy speculators.
Clauses should be entered into any planning approvals that ensure that developers do New evidence base and policy regarding
not sell properties merely as investments to clients who leave them empty. This only
affordable housing will the developed
aggravates the problem of a lack of housing
through the local plan process.

No change.
Pages 19; Paragraph
1
Original text: ‘A new
borough Local Plan is
required to show how
it will deliver the
growth needs of a
rapidly rising
population’.

154

L. Hebbourn

Broadly yes, but think there must be caution to avoid overdevelopment in a way that
detracts from suburban character, encourages loss of green space, and results in
substandard accommodation. I would hope that ecologists are involved from an early
stage to ensure that design and materials employed in new developments provide
nesting sites etc- so easy to provide during construction, much more difficult
afterwards, yet so often overlooked.

All comments noted. Agreed that the need
for joined up thinking is key. The new local
plan will ultimately frame a comprehensive
strategy for growth and development, and
how to to appropriately and positively
manage this growth in order to ensure that
it does not have a negative impact on
environment, which includes the unique
character and heritage of the local area.

No change.

155

Hazel Farrow

1. No I feel that Kingston town centre has a number of historic buildings that need to
be better appreciated. The town centre has already been overdeveloped especially
with the current one-way. the access to the riverside needs to be opened up for
greater access.

1. Comment noted. The population of
Kingston is set to increase by at least 10%.
We recognise the need to positively
balance new growth with the consideration

Pages 27, 29, 31, 33,
35, 37; End of Text
Sentence added after
bullet points: ‘We

147

B228

Update: ‘A new
Further reference to the need for affordable borough Local Plan is
required to show how
homes included in the revised document.
it will deliver the
growth needs of a
2. Comment noted regarding affordable
rapidly rising
housing. Affordability of homes for local
population, including
people is a key priority due to high house
prices, an increasing shortfall in provision, new affordable homes,
a diverse range of
and the increase in demand. One of our
employment
biggest issues is to tackle this positively
and increase the number of houses to meet opportunities, and
expanded leisure and
needs, while seeking the right balance
community facilities’.
between protecting the environment, and
supporting the local economy.

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

156

Alison Wheeler 1. I do not agree with the proposed areas of selective growth in the Direction of Travel 1. Comment noted. The population of
The most important question has not been asked: Do we want Kingston to become an Kingston is set to increase by at least 10%.
Opportunity Area? Do we want it to become another Vauxhall? The answer is No.
We recognise the need to positively
balance new growth with the consideration
of heritage and conservation assets in order
2. We do not want excessive development. We do require more homes, but those
to enhance the character and
homes, as the Mayor of London Sadiq Khan says, they need to be genuinely
distinctiveness of the borough.
affordable to all Londoners. Not the ‘affordable housing’ of the developer speak. Nor
should they be built to become part of an investment portfolio of wealthy speculators.
Clauses should be entered into any planning approvals that ensure that developers do New evidence base and policy regarding
not sell properties merely as investments to clients who leave them empty. This only
affordable housing will the developed
aggravates the problem of a lack of housing
through the local plan process.

Pages 19; Paragraph
1
Original text: ‘A new
borough Local Plan is
required to show how
it will deliver the
growth needs of a
rapidly rising
population’.

Update: ‘A new
Further reference to the need for affordable borough Local Plan is
required to show how
homes included in the revised document.
it will deliver the
growth needs of a
2. Comment noted regarding affordable

148

B229

of heritage and conservation assets in order recognise that new
growth must be
2. If the current state of Portsmouth road is indicative of the planning process Kingston to enhance the character and
balanced with the
distinctiveness of the borough.
town centre is not suitable.
unique heritage and
character of the
Further
reference
to
protection
of
heritage
3. Berrylands is another area with a distinctive character which would be ruined by
assets and character will be included within Borough’.
further development and if the development is on the other side of the railway line it
the revised document.
should all be family housing ..
Page 18; Last
paragraph.
2. Comment noted.
Sentence added: ‘Note
that the OLC Report
3. Comment noted.
also states, “there is
no one size fits all
solution for town
centre renewal?
Redevelopment, so
any intensification
would have to take
account of the
particular needs and
characteristics of the
individual town centre
such as heritage and
cultural assets, as well
as local character”.

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
housing. Affordability of homes for local
people is a key priority due to high house
prices, an increasing shortfall in provision,
and the increase in demand. One of our
biggest issues is to tackle this positively
and increase the number of houses to meet
needs, while seeking the right balance
between protecting the environment, and
supporting the local economy.

rapidly rising
population, including
new affordable homes,
a diverse range of
employment
opportunities, and
expanded leisure and
community facilities’.

Christopher
Thomas

I do not want Kingston Borough to be designated an Opportunity Area. Development
should be moderate, not excessive and inappropriate, to the detriment of the locality.
The Kingston Town Centre area, at least, should not be a proposed area for selective
growth. This is based on the evidence provided by the excessive and inappropriate
developments already built or approved in the area: Kingston Riverside, the Old Post
Office site and Eden Walk.

Comment noted. The population of
No change.
Kingston is set to increase by at least 10%.
We recognise the need to positively
balance new growth with the consideration
of heritage and conservation assets in order
to enhance the character and
distinctiveness of the borough.

158

Paul Sloan

1. I do not want the ‘Development Areas of Opportunity” designation for Kingston. If and that is a big “if” - there really is a need redevelop with higher densities, and at
rates greater than surrounding London boroughs, it would make sense to concentrate
such development near to public transport links, with those stations having the highest
frequencies and greatest spare passenger carrying capacity bearing the brunt of the
new development. Again, only if there really is a need for Kingston to redevelop at a
higher rate than other surrounding London boroughs, any advent of Crossrail 2 would
see New Malden having 16 trains per hour frequency, the highest in the borough. In
comparison, Chessington and Tolworth, the focus of your proposed opportunity areas,
would only have 4 trains per hour.

1. Comments noted. The identified 'Areas
No change.
of Opportunity' across the Borough are
considered to be those areas most suited
for new growth on account of their transport
accessibility, proximity to centres and
regeneration opportunity.

2. Moreover, with three council owned golf courses in the North of the borough, there
exists a considerable imbalance in the distribution of greenspace with Kingston
borough. North Kingston has a surplus, while south of the borough has a deficit. To
exacerbate this imbalance is unfair to residents south of Kingston town..

B230

157

2. Comment noted. The Council will be
undertaking a comprehensive review of all
Green Belt land, Metropolitan Open Land
and other open space as part of the local
plan process.
3. Comments noted.

3. Again, only if there really is a need for Kingston to redevelop, a mere 20 minutes
walk away from New Malden station lies a council owned golf course - it should be
redeveloped ahead of any greenbelt land, that would typically offer more
environmental benefits than managed golf courses.. Golf courses, particularly council
owned golf courses leased at sub-market rents to expensive private member clubs,

149

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
are unjustifiable in a Greater London context whilst simultaneously proposing
greenbelt development.
Jonathan Fray

Do you mean to say that "areas for selective growth" are the areas identified as
"emerging areas of opportunity"?. The document is not clear in identifying "areas for
selective growth". You should be consistent in your terminology if you want people to
understand.

Comment noted.

No change.

160

Anne Oram

no i do not

Comment noted.

No change.

161

Richard Ware

1. I must query the assumption for ever greater growth in the area. Who determines
these figures and on what basis are they arrived at? If this is necessitated by the
growth in numbers, over time, of the actual current resident population then that is one
thing. If its a free for all, "come on in" as a result of the borough becoming a property
and logistical hot spot then that is another. Kingston simple can't take it.

1. Comments noted. Growth targets are
objectively assessed and set strategically
by the Mayor of London. This will be further
clarified within the revised document.

163

Diane Watling

I am concerned that the proposed areas for selective growth are not fairly distributed
across the borough. Well managed growth and regeneration will be beneficial to the
borough as a whole, but it is essential that those benefits are experienced by all. By
having a more equitable distribution of that growth and development, especially near
transportation hubs, would maybe make more sense. I am a little lost to understand
why the Surbiton station area, with it's fantastic fast service into Waterloo, is not also
considered as an area with growth potential.

Comments noted. The council agree that
No change.
new growth opportunity must be managed
to benefit all communities across the
borough. The identified 'Areas of
Opportunity' across the Borough are
considered to be those areas most suited
for new growth on account of their transport
accessibility, proximity to centres and
regeneration opportunity. New growth is
certainly not ruled out in areas outside the

Page 10; Pink text
bottom-left
Update: Added
sentence providing
justification of where
the homes and jobs
2. Comment noted. The population of
2. Do we know by how much the actual local population is growing and how many are Kingston is set to increase by at least 10%, figure has come from
moving out the area to newcomers moving in in other words net migration. Are our
therefore there is a need to plan positively for Kingston.
youngsters being priced out of affording to buy or rent properties in an area that their for it through the local plan process. We
parents where able to do so a generation ago?
recognise the need to manage growth in a Pages 18-19;
way that is sensitive to the environment,
Update: Footer added
heritage and existing local residents. It also sourcing all referenced
3. So for me selective growth means a local priority and not gentrification where
population estimates
people who already own properties in inner London Boroughs sell take a profit move includes ensuring new investment and
improvement in supporting infrastructure,
out to the next hot spot and wait for prices to escalate. The "Homes under the
such as community facilities, as well as
Hammer" speculation mentality in housing by the haves is one of the worst things to
mitigating impact on key environmental
have occurred. Housing is too important to be speculated on. Its a family home, its
issues such as traffic, air and noise
security, its peace of mind. We don't need generally, in PR terms, "stunning"
apartments but family homes with their own dedicated and reasonably private amenity pollution.
space where families can react together on their own or with friends and neighbours.
A 2m x 2m balcony 40ft up in the air is not the same.
3. Comment noted. Through the local plan
process, the Council recognise that new
growth must benefit off sectors of the local
community.

150

B231

159

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
identified 'Areas of Opportunity', only
considered to be less significant and
transformational.
164

165

Marian Ellis

1. There are certain sites that would benefit from redevelopment. However, there are
some valuable areas which sustain wildlife around the Hogsmill Valley that should be
enhanced rather than built over. Green corridors and wildlife areas need to be
improved. The Hogsmill Valley should be kept as a valuable flood plain and wildlife
corridor. We have chosen to live in a green market town, not a city. You need to
create green links from river to the various parks. This will enhance the lives of
residents and workers. Canbury Gardens is crammed full in Summer and a rubbish tip
by the end of the day

Comment noted. The Hogsmill Valley will
continue to be an important ecological and
recreational asset to the council and any
new access/growth opportunities would be
assessed accordingly and sensitive to
existing ecology.

Page 16, Kingston
Places
Map update: New
‘place’ added for
‘Hogsmill Valley’

Pages 31; End of Text
Further reference to the protection of this
Added sentence after
asset will be included in the revised version the bullet points:
‘’Continued protection
of the document.
of Hogsmill Valley and
its ecology’
Page 16, Kingston
Places
Map update: New
‘place’ added for
‘Hogsmill Valley’

Pages 31; End of Text
Further reference to the protection of this
Added sentence after
asset will be included in the revised version the bullet points:
‘’Continued protection
of the document.
of Hogsmill Valley and
its ecology’
166

James Giles

No.

Comment noted.

No change

167

Kerry Giles

It's far too vague.

Comment noted.

No change

The following consultees submitted a response but did not comment specifically on Question 1 of the survey.
ID

Name

ID

Name

ID

Name

2

Denise Thompson

61

J. Langridge

140

Julian Oldfield

14

Sara Redmond

62

Pam Walsh

162

Simon Munk

151

B232

Claire Harrison No, I am deeply concerned about the proposal for development of the Hogsmill Valley. Comment noted. The Hogsmill Valley will
continue to be an important ecological and
recreational asset to the council and any
new access/growth opportunities would be
assessed accordingly and sensitive to
existing ecology.

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
37

E. John

89

Ross Anthony, Theatres Trust

168

David Giles

41

G. T. Knight

95

Gay Richardson

169

Marc Tracey

43

Carlos

121

Pat Marchant

170

Yvonne Tracey

49

A. Chandler

123

Chris Coleman

171

James Giles on behalf of MICO

51

Des McRow

135

Agnieszka

172

Carole & Michael Statham-Fletcher

Question 1(a) - Kingston Town Centre
ID

Respondent

Question 1(a) - Do you have any comments?

6

S Guess

Its a RAILWAY station

8

Malcolm Wright 1. All in favour of an improved station, this a required in both Kingston and
Surbiton. Access to and from platforms is severely inadequate and is 30 years
late in the planning to expand.

3. I think the rail and bus interchange is acceptable - it's only a 2/3 min walk
between the two
4. There is definitely no need to change access for pedestrians and cyclists there is plenty of pedestrianised areas and cycle lanes - adding any further cycle
lanes to the roads will make driving around Kingston's one-way system even
more unbearable than it is currently! Love what is happening with the Queen's
promenade - keep up the good work!!

Comment noted.

Document
Update
No change

1. Support and comments noted.

Pages 27, 29, 31, 33,
35, 37; End of Text
Sentence added after
2. Comment noted regarding density. The
bullet points: ‘We
population of Kingston is set to increase by at
recognise that new
least 10%. We recognise the need to positively
growth must be
balance new growth with the consideration of
balanced with the
heritage and conservation assets in order to
enhance the character and distinctiveness of the unique heritage and
character of the
borough.
Borough’.
3. Comment noted regarding the rail/bus
interchange. The council recognises the need to
significantly upgrade the rail/bus integration in the
future, particularly with the arrival of Crossrail 2 in
the town centre and predicted increased
patronage etc.
4. Comments noted regarding pedestrian and
cycle access. In accordance with the London
Plan, the Council places significant emphasis on
the role of both walking and cycling in Kingston,
and we recognise the need to ensure the safety
of both road users through appropriate
segregation.
Please note that recent improvement measures
are in the early stages of implementation and
need time for road users to become familiar with

Page 18; Last
paragraph.
Sentence added:
‘Note that the OLC
Report also states,
“there is no one size
fits all solution for
town centre renewal?
Redevelopment, so
any intensification
would have to take
account of the
particular needs and
characteristics of the
individual town centre
such as heritage and
cultural assets, as

152

B233

2. I don't think it's realistic to build many more flats, this area is too densely
populated already!! Very much agree that we should preserve and promote the
rich history that our beautiful town has - let's celebrate it :)

RBK Response

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

9

Douglas
Sampson

10

Eunhyun Song

1. The council should not rely on Crossrail 2 only to improve transportation.
2. The current bus system is suffocating and a medium mass transport system
such as trams or BRT should be investigated asap before the town centre is
clogged up. connection to Wimbelon or Richmond through those mean would
greatly strengthen the metropolitain centre.
3. Retail parkings should be coordinated with intelligent management systems.

the new arrangements.

well as local
character”.

Support noted.

No change.

1. Comment noted. Crossrail 2 as proposed,
No change.
would offer a range of benefits for all users,
including a more regular service (a minimum of
four trains per hour on each line at all times of
operation) connecting through Central London.
However, detailed proposals from Crossrail 2 are
yet to be decided. The Council will actively plan
for the arrival of Crossrail 2, although new growth
in Kingston is not dependant on its delivery.

4. Finally, a real park & ride study should be undertaken at the same time as any
2. Comment noted. In addition to other transport
integrated public trans port study.
investment projects such as Crossrail 2, we also
recognise that significant investment in bus
services is key to supporting growth and reducing
car reliance.

B234

3. Comment noted regarding retail parking.
Parking in Kingston is being investigated,
particularly in relation to the redevelopment and
expansion of the town centre over the next few
years. As the town centre changes, there is a
need for revised parking arrangements to support
future economic viability etc, particularly in areas
where current parking is fragmented and does
not meet modern standards.
4. Comment noted regarding Park and Ride. Park
and Ride is something the council has
considered. Although not completely dismissed,
this is probably not a realistic option in the
foreseeable future.
12

Jim Cardell

I would like to see the provision of small affordable retail spaces for independent
traders. Something like a covered market with lockup stalls. I see there is a
provision for creative and small-scale work-spaces - I'm unsure if these are just
to be studio / office or if retail is part of this.

Comment noted. The council recognises the
need for a diverse retail offer in order to ensure
continued vitality of the town centre. This
includes providing accommodation for small and
independent retailers in Kingston.

No change.

153

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
15

Shailesh Patel

1. I do not think the relocation of Kingston Station has been properly thought
through, except from the point of the release of development land. In my view,
the station should be integrated with the bus station site along Cromwell Road,
with potential development above the station. This is a much more accessible
and central site. There is already considerable congestion near the river with
access to the Bentalls and John Lewis car parks. Some of the Seven Kings car
park traffic also heads in this general direction. Therefore it does not make
sense to move the station towards the river. It needs to move the other way.
Consideration should be given to vehicular drop off and pick up points, which
would be difficult in the proposed new location but much easier in a central
location along Cromwell Road. The site could be enlarged somewhat by CPOs
along Canbury Park Road. This would encourage more people to use public
transport.

1. Comments noted. The relocation of the rail
No change.
station, as currently proposed, would enhance its
integration with the town centre and potentially
free up development sites in the immediate
vicinity. Such an approach would benefit from
and integrate with the proposed revised highway
arrangements for the town centre (including
pedestrianisation of Wood Street) and also the
construction of Crossrail 2. Station relocation is in
the early stages of investigation and will require
testing and liaison with a number of key partners.

B235

The council also recognises the need to
significantly upgrade the rail/bus integration in the
2. I also strongly feel that Crossrail 2 needs to extend right up to Heathrow. The future, particularly with the arrival of Crossrail 2 in
present arrangement of going into central London and then out again just puts
the town centre and predicted increased
unneccessary load on to the network. A direct rail connection to Heathrow would patronage etc. Current public transport facilities
ease congestion and also bring better work opportunities to our residents.
(bus and rail) are separated and approaching
capacity. Development of comprehensive
integrated transport facilities are in the early
stages of development with key partners such as
Transport for London and Network Rail.
2. Comment noted regarding Crossrail 2.
16

Paul Cook

Kingston is already a significant Regional Center for retail .commerce, education Support noted.
and leisure. This makes the town a special location in the South East. The
arrival of crossrail provides a springboard to develop all the attractions of
Kingston and make it a high profile Regional hub.

No change.

18

Patricia
McLauchlan

Cycle routes need to be more clear as cyclists cycle wherever they want
regardless of pedestrians.

Comment noted. In accordance with the London No change.
Plan, the council places significant emphasis on
the role of cycling in the future of movement in
the Borough. Key to achieving this vision is the
delivery of the Go Cycle Programme, whereby
the Council received over £30 million of funding
from the Mayor of London and TfL to deliver
improvements to cycling facilities and road
safety. The delivery of this programme, as well as
Council intervention, will facilitate a much clearer
and connected cycle network in Kingston.

21

Lucy Symons

1. Please prioritise cycle lanes and cycle parking in the redesign.

1. Support noted. In accordance with the London Page 27, Bullet point
Plan, the council places significant emphasis on 7

154

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

2. Please also ensure the arts are well provided for! If we lose Fusion Artist
Studios, where will they go? They are vibrant and important to the centre of
Kingston.

the role of cycling in the future of movement in
the Borough. Key to achieving this vision is the
delivery of the Go Cycle Programme, whereby
the Council received over £30 million of funding
from the Mayor of London and TfL to deliver
improvements to cycling facilities and road
safety.
2. We also recognised the importance of cultural
activity in Kingston in creating a rich and vibrant
environment. To target sustainable growth
positively it is important that this offer is protected
and enhanced in Kingston and across the
borough. Further reference to the need for new
cultural uses in Kingston will be included in the
revised document.

Original text: ‘An
expanded retail offer
and strengthening of
the Metropolitan
Town Centre’
Update: ‘An
expanded retail,
leisure and cultural
offer and
strengthening of the
Metropolitan Town
Centre’

Anthony Quinn

Would doubt if Kingston can cope with greater population densities (item 3, 4
and 5) but more jobs may be acceptable if Crossrail 2 is effective.

Comment noted.

No change.

25

David Watkins

1. How can anyone disagree with these fatuously low-grade aspirations? This is
your raison d'etre, is it not? The first half of them wouldn't be there - they're not
your initiatives - were it not by command of CR2 or the new London Mayor's
housing target increase. Where's the long-term vision of what you would like
Kingston to be? A new moniker, a Metropolitan Town Centre??? What does that
mean? You don't know because it came from the London Plan. Where's the
imaginative developments that mean people want to come to live in Kingston or
that companies seek to re-locate to? Are we seeing a dynamic future as an
internet-linked, 'always on' conurbation? Are we a light industrial area, a
commercial centre for new business, or just a less-busy-than-Oxford Street retail
centre? What are you doing to encourage new businesses here? Where's the
commercial link with the local university to incubate technology spin-offs? How
can you ignore such a resource? We're within 12 miles of the centre of the
greatest city in the world, why aren't there plans to take advantage of that? Have
you heard of 'clustering'? Where's the vision for a 24-hr Kingston? It's pretty
devoid of night-time entertainment unless you like drunken fighting and shouting.
No, seemingly Kingston is a dormitory town with a couple of historical
connections, a decent shopping area and a nice bridge across the river. Without
the infrastructure, nothing will change. Build it, they will come! Kingston, as a
Borough, is a distraught nightmare of jerrybuilt housing and architecture of little
merit and many of the buildings which have often been placed in protection offer
little to improve that particular lot, save in a few confined small areas.

1. All comments noted. The document is intended
to be high-level at this early stage of the local
plan process, providing the Council's 'Statement
of Intent'. It aims to provide alignment of local
strategic planning policy, the London Plan, and
Kingston's growth agenda, as well as the broad
context in which the new Borough Local Plan
needs to be planned. The detail and deliverability
of new growth strategies will be developed and
consulted upon in later stages of the local plan
process.

Pages 19; Paragraph
1

2. Comments and support noted regarding the
station relation. This proposal would enhance its
integration with the town centre and potentially
free up development sites in the immediate
vicinity. Such an approach would benefit from
and integrate with the proposed revised highway
arrangements for the town centre (including
pedestrianisation of Wood Street) and also the
construction of Crossrail 2. Station relocation is in
the early stages of investigation and will require
testing and liaison with a number of key partners.

Original text: ‘A new
borough Local Plan is
required to show how
it will deliver the
growth needs of a
rapidly rising
population’.
Update: ‘A new
borough Local Plan is
required to show how
it will deliver the
growth needs of a
rapidly rising
population, including
new affordable
homes, a diverse
range of employment
opportunities, and
expanded leisure and

155

B236

22

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
2. Vast swathes (eg the Eden Quarter) ought to be bulldozed and redeveloped
around a decent, efficient, multi-modal transport network - beginning with
Kingston Station. Ghastly structure, wrong shape, in the wrong place in its
immediate vicinity, inefficient - it is completely ignored in your recent cycling
plans (which I whole-heartedly welcomed, especially the proposals along Wood
Street) and spoils the east-west circulation by continuing to provide pinch-points
on the Richmond Road side and at the south west (Doddle) corner where
pedestrians and cyclists travelling in both directions are going to come to blows.
Flatten the existing station building, move the replacement west towards the
river (obviating the need for Hampton Wick station thus improving rail travel
times) and providing space for Wood St / Richmond Road / Fife Road
interchange to work. I've been banging on to the Planning Department for years
for over-site re-development of the station - at last, it may happen! However,
moving the station too far means the Wood St / Richmond Road / Fife Road
crossing is no longer such a problem, as much of the traffic would move west
with the station. Moving the station also means that to achieve the transport
interchange you describe AND the new multi-use quarter surrounding it - well,
where's the space to put it?

community facilities’.
3. Comments noted. The council recognises the
need to significantly upgrade the rail/bus
integration in the future, particularly with the
arrival of Crossrail 2 in the town centre and
predicted increased patronage etc. Current public
transport facilities (bus and rail) are separated
and approaching capacity. Development of
comprehensive integrated transport facilities are
in the early stages of development with key
partners such as Transport for London and
Network Rail.
4. Comments noted. Station relation plans are
only a concept proposal at this stage and a long
term ambition. Therefore, proposals will not have
any impact to recent Go Cycle improvements for
the foreseeable future. In the meantime, plans for
new cycle infrastructure will continue to be
developed in Kingston in order to facilitate a safe
and connected cycle network across the town
centre.

B237

3. Are you going to move the bus station too, that seems to be the implication?
You'd have to flatten Bentalls' car parking structure (not such a bad idea due to
the terrible Saturday afternoon congestion it causes due to it being in the wrong
place) or perhaps bulldoze Regents Court? Moving too far towards the river will
induce traffic congestion at this new interchange because of space limitations
5. Comments noted regarding employment. The
and reduced route access. I imagine Skerne Road would have to become busier
council recognises the importance of providing
as a traffic route to the new station (contrary to recent changes) and the railway
more diverse employment opportunities across
overbridge route there widened.
all sectors, including roles with higher salaries
and small and medium-sized enterprizes.
4. All this is going to demolish the nice Go Cycle changes on Wood Street and
Employment evidence base will be development
the new Hub would be in the wrong place. CR2 should also be petitioned to
as part of the local plan process.
widen the railway bridge span over Richmond Road - clean white sleek concrete
would do nicely. Because of the provision of cycle parking outside the Costa
6. Comment noted regarding affordable homes.
concession, many cyclists do not use the lower traffic-separated route alongside
Affordability of homes for local people is a key
the road. An already too-narrow pedestrian route is squeezed by the bridge span
priority due to high house prices, an increasing
constraint. On the Eastern side, the footway is simply inadequate for its purpose.
shortfall in provision, and the increase in
demand. One of our biggest issues is to tackle
6. This station area appears to be the only planned office development too,
this positively and increase the number of houses
where are the jobs going to be created? Maintenance, Reception and Security? to meet needs, while seeking the right balance
You need to provide to attract at least one decent-sized employer (a 'marquee
between protecting the environment, and
employer') in order to encourage new, small-scale, local support service
supporting the local economy. Again, this detail
businesses.
will be developed as part of the local plan
process.

156

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
7. None of these new homes would be houses, they're all going to be flats in
large high blocks. We, the public, now understand the euphemistic word
affordable when it comes to housing policy and politicians. Where's the intention
to provide homes for people on average local wages and a 3 - 4x mortgage
multiplier? Where's the plan for Social Housing and Shared Ownership? I don't
realistically expect to see much if any of either in Kingston town centre but there
seems to be a total lack throughout the plan for the entire borough. Kingston
might be unpretentiously middle class and Social Democrat, but the road
sweeper has to have somewhere to live. OK, there's been some of that in the
Skerne Road development but why aren't you stating your intentions with this
new Plan? It's a political omission. Kingston University Built Environment
Department has a good reputation, have you considered consulting them on
how to produce housing at a for sale cost of £100,000? Or how to economically
manufacture houses for rent in the current environment? But moving the station
IS a good idea. I'd like to see more detail on how and where. CR2 plans include
for increasing the length of the platforms and the more continuous use of
Platform 3, so of the space available much is ear-marked.
27

Graham Tucker 1. I have yet to see the benefits of Crossrail 2 for the south of the borough other
than extended trains with more carriages.
2. A new station in green belt is in my mind unacceptable.

4. New offices are not required in Kingston, there are so many empty at present,
why build more?

B238

3. New homes need to be built I agree however not in the green belt and not
without consideration for infrastructure to support this, GP surgeries, schools,
roads etc.

1. Comments noted. As proposed, Crossrail 2
No change.
extends as far as Chessington South, with a
potential further extension to Chessington World
of Adventures. The service would offer a range of
benefits for all users, including a more regular
service (a minimum of four trains per hour on
each line at all times of operation) connecting
through Central London. However, note that
detailed proposals from Crossrail 2 are yet to be
decided.
2. Comment noted regarding impact to Green
Belt.
3. Comment noted regarding the need for
supporting infrastructure. The council is
committed to appropriately managing new growth
in order to ensure that it does not have a
negative impact on the quality of life of existing
residents and the environment. This includes
ensuring new investment and improvement in
supporting infrastructure, such as community
facilities and transport, as well as mitigating
impact on key environmental issues such as
traffic, air and noise pollution.

157

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

4. Comment noted regarding new office
development. In many cases, the quality of
existing office stock is not fit for purpose for
modern working requirements, therefore new
development is essential in some cases.
Alison Fure

Why can't be have staus quo? Why has protection for listed buildings been
included?-is that because there are plans to get rid of them also (such as the
Registry office sell off! Isn't there are statutory duty to protect these buildings
This is a political agenda rather than one based on need

Comments noted. The character and heritage of
the Borough continues to be a key priority for the
council. We recognise the need to positively
balance new growth with the consideration of
heritage and conservation assets in order to
enhance the character and distinctiveness of the
Borough.

Pages 27, 29, 31, 33,
35, 37; End of Text
Sentence added after
bullet points: ‘We
recognise that new
growth must be
balanced with the
unique heritage and
Further reference to protection of heritage assets character of the
and character will be included within the revised Borough’.
document.
Page 18; Last
paragraph.
Sentence added:
‘Note that the OLC
Report also states,
“there is no one size
fits all solution for
town centre renewal?
Redevelopment, so
any intensification
would have to take
account of the
particular needs and
characteristics of the
individual town centre
such as heritage and
cultural assets, as
well as local
character”.

29

Martin RussellJones

Stop trying to redevelope Kingston..

Comment noted.

No change.

30

Mr Bal Badesha Kingston & Surbiton require better access to Heathrow Airport preferably by rail
or by fast shuttle buses.

Comment noted.

No change.

158

B239

28

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
31

Mr Aziz Bawany improve the one way system flow

Comment noted. The Kingston Town Centre
No change.
Movement Study looked at ways of improving the
highway arrangements in the town centre. The
current gyratory has significant problems
including causing severance (for example, it is a
significant barrier for pedestrians moving
between the railway station and town centre). It
also causes barriers to redevelopment,
environmental improvements and place shaping.
The Study identified ways of overcoming these
key issues as a longer term option for the town
centre, and could potentially be implemented
when Crossrail 2 comes to the area.

33

Alistair Glen

Comment noted. We recognise the need to
enhance and diversify the retail and leisure offer
in the Borough, reinforcing Kingston as a top
destination and achieving sustainable growth.
Please note that text on page 27 has been
updated in the revised document to reflect this.

Kingston town centre is already heavy retail, I would like the plans to focus on
developing a wider offering in leisure and commerce

Page 27, Bullet point
7
Original text: ‘An
expanded retail offer
and strengthening of
the Metropolitan
Town Centre’

34

Mel

1. This survey is either poorly designed or deliberately conflates separate
proposals in the same item - in order to try and get a less palatable item agreed.
For example, most people would support more jobs, but not 'affordable' housing,
which is not affordable and to be on council estates and enabled by forcing the
current residents from their homes. Certainly there has been hardly any
affordable housing from any of the latest developments and the only major
proposals for this by the council are on the borough's estates through
'regeneration'. This will break up communities: the council is not doing anything
better than any other London council and we all know what happens. People are
told they have a right to return but are unable to afford to as leaseholders, the
disruption and temporary housing for many years pretty much guarantees only
about 20% ever return.

1. Comments noted. Affordability of homes for
local people is a key priority due to high house
prices, an increasing shortfall in provision, and
the increase in demand. One of our biggest
issues is to tackle this positively and increase the
number of houses to meet needs, while seeking
the right balance between protecting the
environment, and supporting the local economy.
Further reference to the need for affordable
homes included in the revised document.

Pages 19; Paragraph
1
Original text: ‘A new
borough Local Plan is
required to show how
it will deliver the
growth needs of a
rapidly rising
population’.
Update: ‘A new

159

B240

Update: ‘An
expanded retail,
leisure and cultural
offer and
strengthening of the
Metropolitan Town
Centre’

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
2. Comment noted regarding Crossrail 2.
Crossrail 2, as proposed, would offer a range of
2. Crossrail doesn't really inspire me. There are not major benefits for Surbiton
benefits for all users across the Borough,
(direct fast train to Waterloo may be lost), the increased accessibility isn't
particularly along routes I would use much, the destruction of central Wimbledon including a more regular service (a minimum of
four trains per hour on each line at all times of
is unacceptable, there are real issues elsewhere such as Kings Road Chelsea
operation) connecting through Central London.
and Victoria Station etc.
However, detailed proposals from Crossrail 2 are
yet to be decided.
3. Improved access to the riverside sounds good but there is already good
access so I am concerned this is about more development in a fragile
3. Comment noted regarding growth along the
environment already under significant strain in retaining biodiversity and
permeability for drainage. More pathways, gazebos and buildings will only make river. Any new access opportunities would be
assessed accordingly and sensitive to existing
things worse. Accessibility is one thing, but until there are more specific
ecology. A new Riverside SPD will coordinate
proposals, I can't support it.
these projects.

borough Local Plan is
required to show how
it will deliver the
growth needs of a
rapidly rising
population, including
new affordable
homes, a diverse
range of employment
opportunities, and
expanded leisure and
community facilities’.

Stephanie
Russell

1. I am supportive of the a new train station although the location needs to be
carefully selected if it is to move The plans need to be joined up - new properties
are being built and plans submitted for the stretch of the Richmond Road
between Sopwith Way and Kingsgate - how does this all connect with the plans
laid out here?

1. Comments noted. Agreed that the need for
No change.
joined up thinking is key. The new local plan will
ultimately frame and comprehensive strategy for
growth and development, and how to to
appropriately and positively manage this growth
in order to ensure that it does not have a
2. The number of new homes needs to be balanced with increased capacity and negative impact on environment.
enhanced transport I'd like to see Kingston with a series of interrelated
developments that are cohesive - new post office development, eden walk,
2. The Council also recognise that key to
Kingsgate area, new station etc - they don't need to look the same but there
facilitating and managing new growth is to ensure
needs to be some sense of alignment - pathways, landscaping, usage.
new investment and improvement in supporting
infrastructure, including transport infrastructure
such as investments in Crossrail 2, bus services
and cycling infrastructure (via the Go Kingston
scheme), providing residents with a much wider
choice of transport options whilst reducing car
reliance.

36

Gloria Bassoli

I believe that making the area around the station a predominantly business area Comment noted. The regeneration of the station No change.
will make it less safe for out of hours travellers as there will be fewer people
area will focus on creating a 'mixed-use quarter'
around after office hours.
that will ensure activity and vitality of the area for
extended hours.

38

Imran Benson

Development in Kingston should not be at expense of other areas, in particular
Surbiton

Comment noted.

No change.

42

Paul Howlett

1. I'm not sure that a new interchange for bus and trains is needed. There is
already a large bus station a few minutes walk from the station.

1. Comments noted. The council recognises the
need to significantly upgrade the rail/bus
integration in the future, particularly with the

No change.

B241

35

160

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
2. Provision of new housing should only be planned if there is also similar
increase in provision for LOCAL schools and GP surgeries. Please do not repeat
the mistakes made when the flats were built around the old power station where
council officials pretended that most of the purchaser would not have school age
children and were consequently surprised when families with children moved
into that housing and then required schools

arrival of Crossrail 2 in the town centre and
predicted increased patronage etc. Current public
transport facilities (bus and rail) are separated
and approaching capacity. Development of
comprehensive integrated transport facilities are
in the early stages of development with key
partners such as Transport for London and
Network Rail.
2. The Council also recognise that key to
facilitating and managing new growth in Kingston
is to ensure new investment and improvement in
supporting infrastructure, including community
facilities such as schools and healthcare.

Sheena Evans

If the new rail station is to be 'closer to the river', it will contribute to the wreck of
the riverbank and its views. Why not redevelop in its current position? The
riverside tends already to be overcrowded with pedestrians, so why 'improve
access'?

Comment noted. Station relocation is in the early No change.
stages of investigation and will require testing
and liaison with a number of key partners.

46

Dr Nazar Pola

my comment is to consider the affect of air pollution from transport vehicles

Comment noted. The council strongly recognises No change.
the need to manage new growth in order to
mitigate impact on key environmental issues
such as traffic and air pollution.

48

Jacqueline
Hardie

Given that you have let developer Wahid Samady ride roughshod over Norbiton ' Comment noted.
fill your boots'

No change.

51

Des McRow

1. The desire to create new homes - with adequate provision for clean air and
acceptable noise levels - must not be to the disadvantage of existing homes.

Pages 19; Paragraph
1

2. The intention to introduce affordable housing is to be commended - but this
appears to be a wish rather than a firm aim.
3. Little or no mention has been made as to how education and health pressures
created by residential growth will be attended to. Indeed this aspect appears to
have been completely overlooked in all areas - suggestions seeming to be
based on "it would be nice to" philosophy rather than firm intention.
4. Recognition has to be taken of the problems currently being experienced by
the retail trade (competition from such as internet order followed by home
delivery/click and collect).

1. Comment noted. The council strongly
recognises the need to manage new growth in
order to mitigate impact on key environmental
issues such as air and noise pollution.
2. Comment noted regarding affordable homes.
Affordability of homes for local people is a key
priority due to high house prices, an increasing
shortfall in provision, and the increase in
demand. One of our biggest issues is to tackle
this positively and increase the number of houses
to meet needs, while seeking the right balance
between protecting the environment, and
supporting the local economy.
Further reference to the need for affordable
housing will be included in the revised document.

B242

45

Original text: ‘A new
borough Local Plan is
required to show how
it will deliver the
growth needs of a
rapidly rising
population’.
Update: ‘A new
borough Local Plan is
required to show how
it will deliver the
growth needs of a

161

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
rapidly rising
population, including
3. Comment noted. We recognise that key to
facilitating and managing new growth in Kingston new affordable
is to ensure new investment and improvement in homes, a diverse
range of employment
supporting infrastructure, including community
opportunities, and
facilities such as schools and healthcare. The
detail of these requirements will be considered at expanded leisure and
community facilities’.
a later stage of the local plan process.
4. Comments noted. As part of the local plan
process, we recognise the need to ensure that
Kingston remains a top retail and leisure
destination, and understanding the future trends
of the changing retail landscape, including
implications of online shopping, is a key part of
this challenge, as well as maintaining the
diversification of town centres into mixed use
locations to ensure continued vitality.
B. Walker

Kingston is a Market Town and you want to turn it into Croydon so NO don't do
it. Kingston does not have to have all the additions from outside the area

Comment noted.

No change.

54

Joseph Asghar

This self-serving administration is a corrupt bunch of liars who are using our
money in faux consultations against us and in the interests of their corporate
paymasters. They are inept and deceitful. This consultation will be twisted to
serve their interest.

Comments noted.

No change.

56

Phil Edwards

Connectivity for bikes and people not at the expense of drivers

Comment noted. In accordance with the London No change.
Plan, the Council places significant emphasis on
the role of cycling in the future of movement in
the Borough, but not to the detriment of other
road users. Key to achieving this vision is the
delivery of the Go Cycle Programme whereby the
Council received over £30million of funding from
the Mayor of London and TfL to deliver
improvements to cycling facilities and road
safety. Please note that the Go Kingston
measures are in the early stages of
implementation and need time for road users to
become familiar with the new arrangements.

57

Fred Ashmore

Would love to see the riverside between Kingston Bridge and the railway bridge
reworked. It's sad at present.

Comment noted. There are several new public
realm projects planned to improve the
accessibility and riverside experience of this

B243

52

No change.

162

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
area. A new Riverside SPD will coordinate these
projects.
J. Stevens

It would make the train station too busy to use with families.

Comment noted. The redevelopment of the
station would be designed to facilitate improved
mobility and safety of increasing passenger
numbers. Furthermore, any development would
enhance the station's integration with the town
centre therefore creating a much safer access.

60

Alex

Better connectivity for pedestrians. Keep cyclists off pavements

Comment noted. The council places significant
No change.
emphasis on the role of both walking and cycling
in Kingston, and we recognise the need to ensure
the safety of both road users through appropriate
segregation. Key to achieving this vision is the
delivery of the Go Cycle Programme, whereby
the Council received over £30 million of funding
from the Mayor of London and TfL to deliver
improvements to cycling facilities and road
safety.

63

Peter Mason

Crossrail 2 may never happen - what then? Developers may plead lower profits
In the current economic downturn to avoid making their anticipated contributions
to local infrastructure and affordable housing - what then? Does Kingston really
need any more shops?

Comment noted. There is overwhelming support No change.
for Crossrail 2 and the Council will actively plan
for its arrival. However, new growth in Kingston is
not dependant on its delivery.

65

Rob Robb

1. We have seen yet another poor handling of development in our Town centre.
Our Market place has become a dirty smelly place with badly marked paving and
too many fast food stalls. The type and design of stalls is not conducive to with
its history and normal concept of a true Market Town Environment. Awnings
possibly blue and white stripe (picking up the blue of the Borough Colour) and
definitely No plywood shed type units. With the advent of a fast food restaurant
in the Market Place Building it goes with the trend of development as a whole for
the Borough and its getting to the point of no return.

1, Comments noted regarding issues with
Kingston’s market place.

2. Thought should be given to amount of retail space is this right for the future
with more on line shopping.

2. Comment noted regarding Kingston’s future
retail landscape. We recognise the need to
ensure that Kingston remains a top retail and
leisure destination, and understanding the future
trends of a changing retail landscape, including
implications of online shopping, is a key part of
this challenge, as well as maintaining the
diversification of town centres into mixed use
locations to ensure continued vitality.

3. Over powering developments making the person on the street unwelcome
and creating vortices. St Stephens Church just as we see St Pauls in London its 3. Comments noted regarding density and the
presence is totally diminished by the concrete and glass characterless blocks
need to respect the character/heritage of
surrounding it.
Kingston. The character and heritage of the
Borough continues to be a key priority for the
council. We recognise the need to positively
4. No more development for Kingston Town centre until you have an overall

No change.

Pages 27, 29, 31, 33,
35, 37; End of Text
Sentence added after
bullet points: ‘We
recognise that new
growth must be
balanced with the
unique heritage and
character of the
Borough’.
Page 18; Last
paragraph.
Sentence added:
‘Note that the OLC
Report also states,
“there is no one size
fits all solution for

163

B244

59

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
concept for infrastructure pedestrian walk ways , rail, road transport, etc as usual balance new growth with the consideration of
the developers are in the driving seat and we have to fit the infrastructure around heritage and conservation assets in order to
them with them throwing us the odd crumb.
enhance the character and distinctiveness of the
borough.
5. Should not put pedestrians in same category as cyclist as the two things that
really do not mix is pedestrians and cyclists so could not answer question 9
4. Comments noted regarding the need for
correctly.
supporting infrastructure. We recognise that key
to facilitating and managing new growth in
Kingston is to ensure new investment and
6. No development goes ahead until a full public impact assessment
meeting\consultation goes ahead on the impact of the actual logistics of carrying improvement in supporting infrastructure,
including community facilities and transport. We
out these large scale developments in the centre of town.
also agree that this must be strategically
implemented.

town centre renewal?
Redevelopment, so
any intensification
would have to take
account of the
particular needs and
characteristics of the
individual town centre
such as heritage and
cultural assets, as
well as local
character”.

5. Comments noted. The council places
significant emphasis on the future role of both
walking and cycling in Kingston, and we
recognise the need to ensure the safety of both
road users through appropriate segregation.
6. Comments noted regarding consultation.
Alan Bennett

B245

66

1. Bus/train interchange options will be more difficult if station moved further
west as most bus routes don't get to that end of town.

1. Comments noted. The council recognises the No change.
need to significantly upgrade the rail/bus
integration in the future, particularly with the
arrival of Crossrail 2 in the town centre and
2. Current cycle work on Portsmouth Rd making matters more dangerous for
pedestrians, bus passengers and motorists as car lanes too narrow. Most major predicted increased patronage etc. Current public
transport facilities (bus and rail) are separated
chains already have stores in town.
and approaching capacity. Development of
comprehensive integrated transport facilities are
3. Eden Walk area stores often unoccupied.
in the early stages of development with key
partners such as Transport for London and
Network Rail.
2. Comment noted regarding Portsmouth Road
cycle improvements. In accordance with the
London Plan, the Council places significant
emphasis on the role of cycling in the future of
movement in the Borough, but not to the
detriment of other road users. Key to achieving
this vision is the delivery of the Go Cycle
Programme whereby the Council received over

164

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
£30 million of funding from the Mayor of London
and TfL to deliver improvements to cycling
facilities and road safety. Please note that the Go
Kingston measures are in the early stages of
implementation and need time for road users to
become familiar with the new arrangements.
3. Comment noted regarding vacant retail units
along Eden Walk. Some of these retail units have
become outdated and not currently fit for purpose
for modern retailing requirements. The
regeneration of Eden Quarter will provide the size
and specification of retail accommodation
suitable for modern retailing needs.
67

Natalie Crew

1. The delivery of new homes so far has hardly included any affordable or social
housing which is what is needed in the borough, kingston does not need lots
more expensive town centre flats that will be bought by investors rather than
local families who cannot afford them.

4. We need better connectivity for pedestrians, especially to the riverside and
from norbiton-town centre areas. The cycle lane on Portsmouth road is awful, it's
dangerous to drive on and not adequate to cycle on. Pedestrians and bikes
should have a separate category, as they are not the same and should not be
treated as such. Better pedestrian access and safety is required across all of
Kingston.

Pages 19; Paragraph
1
Original text: ‘A new
borough Local Plan is
required to show how
it will deliver the
growth needs of a
rapidly rising
population’.

2. Comment noted regarding retail parking.
Parking in Kingston is being investigated,
particularly in relation to the redevelopment and
expansion of the town centre over the next few
years. As the town centre changes, there is a
need for revised parking arrangements to support
future economic viability etc, particularly in areas
where current parking is fragmented and does
not meet modern standards.

Update: ‘A new
borough Local Plan is
required to show how
it will deliver the
growth needs of a
rapidly rising
population, including
new affordable
homes, a diverse
range of employment
Comment noted regarding the need for restricted opportunities, and
expanded leisure and
new retail space. The Council recognises the
community facilities’.
importance of building on the borough's retail
offer in order maintain its position as a top
destination. However, this must this must be
balanced with the need to diversify town centres

165

B246

1. Comments noted. Affordability of homes for
local people is a key priority due to high house
prices, an increasing shortfall in provision, and
the increase in demand. One of our biggest
issues is to tackle this positively and increase the
2.Businesses do not want to have town centre offices as there is no parking, we number of houses to meet needs, while seeking
the right balance between protecting the
certainly do not need even more shops in our already overcrowded retail area.
environment, and supporting the local economy.
Further reference to the need for affordable
3. We need a new train station but not with more flats on top of it.
housing will be included in the revised document.

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
with other leisure and community uses, thereby
ensuring continued health and vitality.
3. Comment noted.
4. The council places significant emphasis on the
future role of both walking and cycling in
Kingston, and we recognise the need to ensure
the safety of both road users through appropriate
segregation. Please note that the Go Kingston
measures are in the early stages of
implementation and need time for road users to
become familiar with the new arrangements.
68

Alex GregorSmith

1. Kingston is very under developed and quite tired, especially around Eden
street, Brook street and St James's road and Kingston station Bridge.

Pages 27, 29, 31, 33,
35, 37; End of Text
Sentence added after
bullet points: ‘We
recognise that new
growth must be
balanced with the
unique heritage and
character of the
Borough’.

Page 18; Last
paragraph.
Sentence added:
Further reference to protection of heritage assets ‘Note that the OLC
and character will be included within the revised Report also states,
“there is no one size
document.
fits all solution for
town centre renewal?
Redevelopment, so
any intensification
would have to take
account of the
particular needs and
characteristics of the
individual town centre
such as heritage and

166

B247

1. Comments noted. Kingston is earmarked to
several significant regeneration projects that will
transform the town centre over the coming years,
including the Eden Quarter which is is one of
2. Maintaining the key historic buildings and incorporating them into new
development will give Kingston a good edge and attract more city workers. More Kingston's most significant opportunities for
growth and change.
money should be pumped into cleaning and modernising these areas before
spending it all on cycle superhighways (which are also needed once the rest is
cleaned up).
2. Comment noted regarding protection of
heritage. The character and heritage of the
Borough continues to be a key priority for the
council. We recognise the need to positively
balance new growth with the consideration of
heritage and conservation assets in order to
enhance the distinctiveness of the borough.

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
cultural assets, as
well as local
character”.
70

Howard
Robinson

The fiasco of the new cycle superhighway has provided more than enough
connectivity for cyclists - no further development in this area is required.

Comment noted. In accordance with the London No change.
Plan, the Council places significant emphasis on
the role of cycling in the future of movement in
the Borough, but not to the detriment of other
road users. Key to achieving this vision is the
delivery of the Go Cycle Programme whereby the
Council received over £30 million of funding from
the Mayor of London and TfL to deliver
improvements to cycling facilities and road
safety. Please note that the Go Kingston
measures are in the early stages of
implementation and need time for road users to
become familiar with the new arrangements.

75

Peter Topp

Need to avoid over development and excessively high/massive developments

Comment noted.

76

Howard
Sheppard

For many years Kingston has looked backwards, for example 10 years ago
declining support for the possibility of Crossrail 1 when it was planned to serve
Kingston. The town centre is becoming tired and the regeneration of areas such
as the Cattle Market, Eden Walk and the old Post Office site is long overdue.
However plans to relocate Kingston station nearer to the river, further away from
the centre of the town would be counterproductive and should be opposed.
Surbiton and New Malden might also be considered for "densification".

Support noted. The relocation of the rail station
No change.
would enhance its integration with the town
centre and potentially free up development sites
in the immediate vicinity. Such an approach
would benefit from and integrate with the
proposed revised highway arrangements for the
town centre (including pedestrianisation of Wood
Street) and also the construction of Crossrail 2.
Station relocation is in the early stages of
investigation and will require testing and liaison
with a number of key partners.

79

Frances Marsh

Kingston Council is doing everything but "continuing protection of Kingston's
historic environment. The work done on the town square is appalling and to put
a pizza restaurant there smacks of hypocrisy. If the Council wanted to protect
Kingston's historic environment, they would not be allowing the developments
that have been passed so far. Kingston is becoming yet another overdeveloped
town with more and more tower blocks without any serious design or thought for
the locality.

Comments noted. The character and heritage of
the Borough continues to be a key priority for the
council. We recognise the need to positively
balance new growth with the consideration of
heritage and conservation assets in order to
protect the distinctiveness of the Borough.

No change.

B248

Pages 27, 29, 31, 33,
35, 37; End of Text
Sentence added after
bullet points: ‘We
recognise that new
growth must be
balanced with the
Further reference to protection of heritage assets unique heritage and
and character will be included within the revised character of the
Borough’.
document.

167

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

Page 18; Last
paragraph.
Sentence added:
‘Note that the OLC
Report also states,
“there is no one size
fits all solution for
town centre renewal?
Redevelopment, so
any intensification
would have to take
account of the
particular needs and
characteristics of the
individual town centre
such as heritage and
cultural assets, as
well as local
character”.
Lesley Steel

Why do we need new office provision when we are turning office blocks into
residential accommodation?

Comments noted. The focus of new office
No change.
development is the quality of office stock, which
is not currently fit for purpose for modern working
requirements. Therefore, new development is
essential in some cases to meet the
current/future needs of businesses across the
borough and to support our town and district
centres.

84

Maureen Ellis

I would prefer that development was not overwhelmingly high rise and that
provision is made for affordable family housing.

Comments noted.

86

Leonora
Partridge

Why are pedestrians and cyclists "lumped together"? More pedestrian access
Comment noted. The council places significant
No change.
required, not cyclists. As a pedestrian, I do not want to share a path with cyclists. emphasis on the future role of both walking and
cycling in Kingston, and we recognise the need to
ensure the safety of both road users through
appropriate segregation. Key to achieving this
vision is the delivery of the Go Cycle Programme,
whereby the Council received over £30 million of
funding from the Mayor of London and TfL to
deliver improvements to cycling facilities and
road safety.

B249

82

No change.

168

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
Chris Stephens The residents of Kingston do not want their town to be a second Croydon.
Croydon is a place where people go to work or shop, nobody actually wants to
live there. There is too much development going on in Kingston Town centre
which is destroying an historic Market town.

Comment noted. The population of Kingston is
set to increase by at least 10%, therefore there is
a need to plan positively for it through the local
plan process. We recognise the need to manage
growth in a way that is sensitive to the
environment and existing local residents, and
balanced with the consideration of heritage
assets and the unique character of the local area.

94

Sara Vincent

1. Comments noted. The character and heritage
of the Borough continues to be a key priority for
the council. We recognise the need to positively
balance new growth with the consideration of
heritage and conservation assets in order to
protect the distinctiveness of the borough.

1. Kingston prides itself on its historic past, yet there isn't much evidence of this
at first glance (especially around the station, where visitors first arrive). And
unless you know where to look for them, access points to the river aren't at all
obvious (in fact, you could visit Kingston and not be aware the you're next to the
river). The opportunity to develop a new transport interchange provides a great
opportunity to define the town's character and reference the elements that make
it unique and special.
2. If you also make space for creative and small scale workspaces, you also
ensure a lively, attractive mix of tenants and visitors of all ages and

Pages 27, 29, 31, 33,
35, 37; End of Text
Sentence added after
bullet points: ‘We
recognise that new
growth must be
balanced with the
unique heritage and
character of the
Further reference to protection of heritage assets Borough’.
and character will be included within the revised
document.
Page 18; Last
paragraph.
Sentence added:
‘Note that the OLC
Report also states,
“there is no one size
fits all solution for
town centre renewal?
Redevelopment, so
any intensification
would have to take
account of the
particular needs and
characteristics of the
individual town centre
such as heritage and
cultural assets, as
well as local
character”.
Pages 27, 29, 31, 33,
35, 37; End of Text
Sentence added after
bullet points: ‘We
recognise that new
growth must be
balanced with the
Further reference to protection of heritage assets unique heritage and
and character will be included within the revised character of the
Borough’.
document.

169

B250

88

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
backgrounds.
2. Comments and support noted. Regarding the
opportunity to provide a mix of creative and small
scale workspaces, the council recognises the
importance of Small and Medium sized
businesses (SMEs) to Kingston's economy, and
the need to support business start-ups, including
those graduating from university, as well as
understanding how we can expand our creative
industries sector.

James Fennell
(Nathaniel
Lichfield &
Partners)

Please also refer to letter (dated 22nd August 2016) which was submitted via
email. Aviva supports the identification of the areas of opportunity, in particular
the one which embraces Kingston town centre, and the rationale outlined for
doing so. We note what selective redevelopment in Kingston Town Centre might
comprise. In particular Aviva supports the proposals for an expanded retail offer
and strengthening of the Metropolitan Town Centre, although we would request
specific recognition is made of other uses, such as leisure and food and
beverage. We consider these are vitally important to the future of Kingston and
other centres in the borough. Aviva also strongly supports the significant delivery
of new homes and jobs and considers it has an important part to play in
assisting the delivery of these objectives.

98

Janine Bellew

1. New train station is not required as there are plenty of stations in the borough, 1. All comments noted. The relocation of the rail
the trains need to be faster and more frequent
station would enhance its integration with the
town centre and potentially free up development
sites in the immediate vicinity. Such an approach
2. New houses - needs to be supported by infrastructure and facilities. There
would benefit from and integrate with the
might be other options depending on what you are trying to achieve
proposed revised highway arrangements for the
town centre (including pedestrianisation of Wood
3. New offices - yes if it means more jobs in the borough
Street) and also the construction of Crossrail 2.

B251

96

Page 18; Last
paragraph.
Sentence added:
‘Note that the OLC
Report also states,
“there is no one size
fits all solution for
town centre renewal?
Redevelopment, so
any intensification
would have to take
account of the
particular needs and
characteristics of the
individual town centre
such as heritage and
cultural assets, as
well as local
character”.

Support and comments noted. The
No change.
aforementioned letter has been logged and
addressed separately as part of this consultation
process.

Pages 19; Paragraph
1
Original text: ‘A new
borough Local Plan is
required to show how
it will deliver the
growth needs of a

170

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
Station relocation is in the early stages of
4. Expanded retail - everything you need is in Kingston. When I lived in Clapham investigation and will require testing and liaison
with a number of key partners.
we used to shop in Kingston as it is a great place to shop. Kingston as a
destination is fantastic as it has the historic buildings and fantastic food market.
2. Comments noted regarding the need for
supporting infrastructure. The Council recognise
5. New transport interchange - where? Better connectivity - more information
that key to facilitating and managing new growth
required
in Kingston is to ensure new investment and
improvement in supporting infrastructure,
6. Riverside access - There is plenty of access to the riverside. Though I am
including community facilities such as schools
hoping that the Go Cycle Programme has not ruined the Queens promenade
and healthcare, as well as transport
infrastructure.
3. Comment noted regarding new office
development.

rapidly rising
population’.
Update: ‘A new
borough Local Plan is
required to show how
it will deliver the
growth needs of a
rapidly rising
population, including
new affordable
homes, a diverse
range of employment
opportunities, and
expanded leisure and
community facilities’.

4. Comment noted regarding new retail
development. We recognise the need to ensure
that Kingston remains a top retail and leisure
destination.

B252

5. Comment noted. The council recognises the
need to significantly upgrade the rail/bus
integration in the future, particularly with the
arrival of Crossrail 2 in the town centre and
predicted increased patronage etc. Current public
transport facilities (bus and rail) are separated
and approaching capacity. Development of
comprehensive integrated transport facilities are
in the early stages of development with key
partners such as Transport for London and
Network Rail.
6. Comment noted regarding the riverside. The
riverside area will be subject to several new
public realm projects planned to improve the
accessibility and riverside experience of this
area. A new Riverside SPD will coordinate these
projects.
99

Zbig Blonski

1. Some of these things conflict and though I might support them are they all
realistic?

1. Comment noted. The Direction of Travel sets
out the long term ambitions of the Council. The

Page 23; End of text.

171

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

2. Is Kingston really an office centre?
3. The train service to Kingston is very poor, worse than New Malden. This is
really unacceptable for a centre of this scale. Should consider and prioritise
orbital connectivity by train. However, the range of bus destinations serving
Kingston is brilliant. Any reorganisation of public transport needs to be done
sensitively with convenience of users at its heart.

detail and deliverability of new growth strategies
will be developed and consulted upon in later
stages of the local plan process.
2. Comment noted. As a Metropolitan Town
Centre and potential future Opportunity Area,
Kingston has the potential to become a
significant centre for new employment
opportunities across a range of sectors. These
opportunities will be further explored through the
local plan process.

Added sentence:
‘There is a need to
maximise
development and
other economic
benefits around
transport schemes to
make a successful
case for investment’.

B253

4. Don't see the benefit of having one big whopping interchange as opposed to
the distribution at the moment of bus stops and train station within reasonable
walking distance of different parts of the centre but this does not mean that there
3. Comments noted regarding Kingston's
isn't scope for improvement.
connectivity. Transport infrastructure investment,
such as increasing the reliability and frequency of
5. Do we really need more shopping floorspace in Kingston? Should focus on
rail services, is a top priority for the Council. A
quality and range and balance of uses. Too many dead areas after shops close,
key part of this ambition is the successful delivery
How does increase in shopping floorspace stack up against the declining role of
of Crossrail 2 to the Borough.
the High St, changes in lifestyle and continuing and never ending growth in
online shopping even in the areas that used to be strengths of High Streets,
4. Comment noted regarding the rail/bus
interchange. The council recognises the need to
significantly upgrade the rail/bus integration in the
future, particularly with the arrival of Crossrail 2 in
the town centre and predicted increased
patronage etc. Current public transport facilities
(bus and rail) are separated and approaching
capacity. Development of comprehensive
integrated transport facilities are in the early
stages of development with key partners such as
Transport for London and Network Rail.
5. Comment noted regarding retail development.
We recognise the need to ensure that Kingston
remains a top retail and leisure destination, and
understanding the future trends of the changing
retail landscape, including implications of online
shopping, is a key part of this challenge, as well
as maintaining the diversification of town centres
into mixed use locations to ensure continued
vitality.
100

Barbara

It is difficult to answer these questions when one has only a general idea not

Comment noted. The document is intended to be No change.

172

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

101

Delamere

specific plans to refer to.This is understandable but makes it is difficult as one is high-level at this early stage of the local plan
not able to see how existing business and residents will be affected.
process, providing the Council's 'Statement of
Intent'. It aims to provide alignment of local
strategic planning policy, the London Plan, and
Kingston's growth agenda, as well as the broad
context in which the new Borough Local Plan
needs to be planned. The detail and deliverability
of new growth strategies will be developed and
consulted upon in later stages of the local plan
process.

Mr M.
Gascoigne

1. Any development in Kingston Town Centre, especially around the station and
one-way system, must take into account the current levels of pollution which are
unacceptably high; measures should be devised to reduce traffic congestion on
the one-way system, around the station, bus interchange, and on the London
Road. The recent surveys of pollution have indicated very high levels in these
areas of Kingston, caused by traffic, and any plans should try to tackle this.

Original text: ‘A new
borough Local Plan is
required to show how
it will deliver the
growth needs of a
rapidly rising
population’.

Update: ‘A new
borough Local Plan is
required to show how
it will deliver the
growth needs of a
rapidly rising
2. Comment noted regarding affordable and key population, including
new affordable
worker housing. Affordability of homes for local
people is a key priority due to high house prices, homes, a diverse
range of employment
an increasing shortfall in provision, and the
increase in demand. One of our biggest issues is opportunities, and
to tackle this positively and increase the number expanded leisure and
of houses to meet needs, while seeking the right community facilities’.
balance between protecting the environment, and
supporting the local economy.
Further reference to the need for affordable
housing will be included in the revised document.

102

David English

The majority of Kingston is an Archaeological Potential and has a potential for
significant archaeology dating from the prehistoric through to the modern
periods. Archaeology should be a material consideration for any application with
Kingston and in most cases the application should be supported by an
Archaeological Desk Based Assessment and where the harm could be

Comments noted. To mitigate against negative
impacts on our historic urban environment,
including archaeology, will require improvements
to heritage management through the local plan
process.

Pages 27, 29, 31, 33,
35, 37; End of Text
Sentence added after
bullet points: ‘We
recognise that new

173

B254

1. Comments noted. The council strongly
recognises the need to manage new growth in
order to mitigate impact on key environmental
issues such as traffic and air pollution. Significant
investment in more sustainable transport
alternatives, including Crossrail 2, bus services
and cycle infrastructure, will help to reduce
2. Affordable housing and key worker housing is also a huge issue. All Heads in overall car reliance and air pollution.
Kingston would agree that housing costs are a massive concern when it coms to Furthermore, the proposed one-way system
recruitment and retention of staff, and without affordable housing it is becoming which is currently being investigated, will also
play a key role in achieving environmental
extremely difficult to maintain school staff.
improvements and place shaping in the town
centre.

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
substantial an archaeological field evaluation should also be carried out in
support of the planning application.

growth must be
Further reference to protection of heritage assets balanced with the
and character will be included within the revised unique heritage and
character of the
document.
Borough’.

105

Tony Lancaster In particular point six (Continuing protection of Kingston’s historic environment).
Do you really believe that the council has done anything other than ensure the
obliteration of the towns historic environment. It is highly ironic that the Council
has in the last few months granted planning permission for several new very
high rise & dense developments in Kingston town centre, which will neither
enhance nor protect the listed Buildings & Conservation Areas close to those
developments. That horse has well and truly bolted. Further 'An expanded retail
offer and strengthening of the Metropolitan Town Centre' - are you so bereft of
vision that all you can imagine a town being is a shopping destination? And what
does 'strengthening of the Metropolitan Town Centre' even mean? Weasel
words and obfuscation. I am deeply angry that these apparently positive
proposals have no context and no supporting narrative, nor do they say who are
the authors. It's a kind of mini Brexit isn't it? You just say things, anything, and
the rationale, logic and community approval is entirely absent.

Comment noted. The population of Kingston is
set to increase by at least 10%. We recognise the
need to positively balance new growth with the
consideration of heritage and conservation
assets in order to enhance the character and
distinctiveness of the borough.

Pages 27, 29, 31, 33,
35, 37; End of Text
Sentence added after
bullet points: ‘We
recognise that new
growth must be
balanced with the
Further reference to protection of heritage assets unique heritage and
and character will be included within the revised character of the
Borough’.
document.

Page 18; Last
paragraph.
Sentence added:

174

B255

Page 18; Last
paragraph.
Sentence added:
‘Note that the OLC
Report also states,
“there is no one size
fits all solution for
town centre renewal?
Redevelopment, so
any intensification
would have to take
account of the
particular needs and
characteristics of the
individual town centre
such as heritage and
cultural assets, as
well as local
character”.

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
‘Note that the OLC
Report also states,
“there is no one size
fits all solution for
town centre renewal?
Redevelopment, so
any intensification
would have to take
account of the
particular needs and
characteristics of the
individual town centre
such as heritage and
cultural assets, as
well as local
character”.
Gemma
Cusworth

Where are you going to put the new mixed use quarter around the station? Why All comments noted. The relocation of the rail
No change.
do we need a new train station/ unless it is tied into cross rail?
station would enhance its integration with the
town centre and potentially free up development
sites in the immediate vicinity. Such an approach
would benefit from and integrate with the
proposed revised highway arrangements for the
town centre (including pedestrianisation of Wood
Street) and also the construction of Crossrail 2.
Station relocation is in the early stages of
investigation and will require testing and liaison
with a number of key partners.

110

Carl Jackson

1. The existing buildings in the town centre e.g. Eden street are mostly in poor
condition and preventing new development would ensure these are refurbished.
All new builds should have roof top gardens to reduce heat island effects and
also to enhance the area.
2. Little purpose in new retail space, while so many retail businesses are
struggling (BHS, Austin Reed, Tesco) have too much retail space already - let it
go online! We need cycle routes that go into the town centre e.g. King Charles
Road - Cranes Park - Beaufort Rd - Springfield and the a cycle park in the centre
and at the station. The one way system should allow a right turn coming from
South Kingston into London Road - to take out the ridiculous loop under the
railway. Drop the floating boardwalk on the river - it's expensive nonsense.
Spend the money on cycle routes out to the borough from the centre.

B256

106

1. All comments noted. Regarding vacant retail
No change.
units along Eden Walk, some of these retail units
have become outdated and not currently fit for
purpose for modern retailing requirements. The
regeneration of Eden Quarter will provide the size
and specification of retail accommodation
suitable for modern retailing needs.
2. We also recognise the need to ensure that
Kingston remains a top retail and leisure
destination, and understanding the future trends
of the changing retail landscape, including
implications of online shopping, is a key part of
this challenge, as well as maintaining the

175

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
diversification of town centres into mixed use
locations to ensure continued vitality.
112

Rebeca Alamo

The benefits of such development need to be clearly weighed up against their
impact on the community

Comment noted.

No change.

113

Mr A. Greene

Kingston town centre certainly appears to command the lion's share of attention
and funds from the council. What makes it more frustrating is that it is one of the
most expensive town centres to park in (which if other towns can charge
cheaper rates then why can't Kingston?), it has an aggressive penalty system on
motorists that is a cash cow for the council without any real benefit to the
residents of the borough and the council seem hell bent on developing every last
inch to the maximum. With the council appearing to constantly chasing after
foreign development cash, there really feels that there is no consideration for the
residents of Kingston or the wider borough.

Comments noted. Agreed that new growth must No change.
be directed to benefit all areas of the community.
Parking in Kingston is being investigated,
particularly in relation to the redevelopment and
expansion of the town centre over the next few
years. As the town centre changes, there is a
need for revised parking arrangements to support
future economic viability etc, particularly in areas
where current parking is fragmented and does
not meet modern standards.

114

Marguerite
Bowers Clark

Kingston must not lose what little character it already has. The market place
house must remain a community based building offering tourist information, art
and small independent business opportunities. No big chains or large business
enterprises.

Comments noted. The character and heritage of
the Borough continues to be a key priority for the
council. We recognise the need to positively
balance new growth with the consideration of
heritage and conservation assets in order to
protect the distinctiveness of the Borough.

Page 18; Last
paragraph.
Sentence added:
‘Note that the OLC
Report also states,
“there is no one size
fits all solution for
town centre renewal?
Redevelopment, so
any intensification
would have to take
account of the
particular needs and
characteristics of the
individual town centre

176

B257

Pages 27, 29, 31, 33,
35, 37; End of Text
Sentence added after
bullet points: ‘We
recognise that new
growth must be
balanced with the
Further reference to protection of heritage assets unique heritage and
and character will be included within the revised character of the
Borough’.
document.

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
such as heritage and
cultural assets, as
well as local
character”.
115

J. Wheeler

The culture and heritage go Kingston feels to be being eroded already with
recent planning decisions. It is only our history which makes us different from a
multitude of other "clone zone" town centers which we are fast becoming. This
needs to be addressed.

Comment noted. We recognised the importance
of cultural activity and heritage in Kingston in
creating a rich, vibrant and distinctive
environment. To target sustainable growth
positively, new growth must be balanced with the
consideration of these assets.
Further reference to protection/enhancement of
heritage assets and cultural will be included
within the revised document.

Pages 27, 29, 31, 33,
35, 37; End of Text
Sentence added after
bullet points: ‘We
recognise that new
growth must be
balanced with the
unique heritage and
character of the
Borough’.

Page 27, Bullet point
7
Original text: ‘An
expanded retail offer
and strengthening of

177

B258

Page 18; Last
paragraph.
Sentence added:
‘Note that the OLC
Report also states,
“there is no one size
fits all solution for
town centre renewal?
Redevelopment, so
any intensification
would have to take
account of the
particular needs and
characteristics of the
individual town centre
such as heritage and
cultural assets, as
well as local
character”.

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
the Metropolitan
Town Centre’
Update: ‘An
expanded retail,
leisure and cultural
offer and
strengthening of the
Metropolitan Town
Centre’
117

Stuart Hartley

The building of high rise apartments in the town centre is wholly out of character. Comment noted. In accordance with the London No change.
The moving of the station is just a waste of money better spent elsewhere.
Plan, the council's approach to tall buildings will
be based on a strategic basis in appropriate town
centre locations as a potential measure to
achieve higher densities and growth targets.
However, taller buildings must consider how they
positively and sensitively optimise development
plots whilst enhancing the unique character of
both the local area and the wider protected key
views.

118

Lynne Finnerty

Not being a Kingston Town resident I do not feel in a position to comment other
than on the protection of the historic environment, especially as specific
proposals and impact are unavailable.

119

Iain Martin MSc 1. More emphasis should be placed on the need for affordable and social
CMILT
housing, which i consider should be a separate topic.

3. In addition, I believe there is a need for an Integrated Transport Policy for the
Borough in association with Transport for London.
4. I do not feel that existing plans are sufficient and I think there is too much
emphasis on cycling facilities at present rather than considering all road users
equally including public transport.

No change.

1. Comments noted. Affordability of homes for
local people is a key priority due to high house
prices, an increasing shortfall in provision, and
the increase in demand. One of our biggest
issues is to tackle this positively and increase the
number of houses to meet needs, while seeking
the right balance between protecting the
environment, and supporting the local economy.

Pages 19; Paragraph
1
Original text: ‘A new
borough Local Plan is
required to show how
it will deliver the
growth needs of a
rapidly rising
population’.
Update: ‘A new
Further reference to the need for affordable
housing will be included in the revised document. borough Local Plan is
required to show how
it will deliver the
2. Comment regarding heritage noted. We
growth needs of a
recognise the need to positively balance new
rapidly rising
growth with the consideration of heritage and
population, including
conservation assets in order to enhance the
new affordable
character and distinctiveness of the borough.
homes, a diverse
range of employment

178

B259

2. Also, not enough attention is being given to conservation and protecting
Kingston's unique history and heritage.

Comment noted.

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
opportunities, and
expanded leisure and
4. Comment noted regarding cycling plans for the community facilities’.
Borough. In accordance with the London Plan,
the Council places significant emphasis on the
Pages 27, 29, 31, 33,
role of cycling in the future of movement in the
35, 37; End of Text
Borough, but not to the detriment of other road
Sentence added after
users. Key to achieving this vision is the delivery bullet points: ‘We
of the Go Cycle Programme whereby the Council recognise that new
growth must be
received over £30 million of funding from the
balanced with the
Mayor of London and TfL to deliver
unique heritage and
improvements to cycling facilities and road
character of the
safety. Please note that the Go Kingston
Borough’.
measures are in the early stages of
implementation and need time for road users to
become familiar with the new arrangements.
3. Comment noted.

124

Pippa Billingsley I am looking forward to the continued development of the cycle lanes in Kingston
as part of the 30m funding but would still welcome better connectivity through
the town centre for cyclists, at present cycling from Norbiton to the river paths is
quite complex with changing from cycle lanes to negotiate your way through the
town centre and the one way system. With the restructuring of the one way

Support noted. In accordance with the London
No change.
Plan, the Council places significant emphasis on
the role of cycling in the future of movement in
the Borough. Key to achieving this vision is the
delivery of the Go Cycle Programme whereby the

179

B260

Page 18; Last
paragraph.
Sentence added:
‘Note that the OLC
Report also states,
“there is no one size
fits all solution for
town centre renewal?
Redevelopment, so
any intensification
would have to take
account of the
particular needs and
characteristics of the
individual town centre
such as heritage and
cultural assets, as
well as local
character”.

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
system i hope that pedestrian and cycle paths are considered as highly as the
flow of traffic.

Council received over £30 million of funding from
the Mayor of London and TfL to deliver
improvements to cycling facilities and road
safety.

Jim Leason

While I understand we need more homes, Kingston Hospital, GPs surgeries,
schools etc are all overstretched as it is. Your plans need to show where the
enhanced public services will be delivered. I'm fed up of seeing plans for more
flats with ground floor cafes (that may or may not prove to be successful)

Comments noted. The Council recognise that key No change.
to facilitating and managing new growth in
Kingston is to ensure new investment and
improvement in supporting infrastructure,
including community facilities such as schools
and healthcare. The detail of these requirement
will be considered at a later stage of the local
plan process.

128

Tim Westlake

The go cycle programme has caused and will continue to cause significant
issues for drivers who need to move around and through the borough. It needs
to be curtailed and only reconsidered when a holistic strategy can be found
which acknowledges the needs of locals and visitors that have to travel, through
the borough.

Comment noted. In accordance with the London No change.
Plan, the Council places significant emphasis on
the role of cycling in the future of movement in
the Borough, but not to the detriment of other
road users. Key to achieving this vision is the
delivery of the Go Cycle Programme whereby the
Council received over £30 million of funding from
the Mayor of London and TfL to deliver
improvements to cycling facilities and road
safety. Please note that the Go Kingston
measures are in the early stages of
implementation and need time for road users to
become familiar with the new arrangements.

129

Tim Westlake

The go cycle programme has caused and will continue to cause significant
issues for drivers who need to move around and through the borough. It needs
to be curtailed and only reconsidered when a holistic strategy can be found
which acknowledges the needs of locals and visitors that have to travel, through
the borough.

Comment noted. In accordance with the London No change.
Plan, the Council places significant emphasis on
the role of cycling in the future of movement in
the Borough, but not to the detriment of other
road users. Key to achieving this vision is the
delivery of the Go Cycle Programme whereby the
Council received over £30 million of funding from
the Mayor of London and TfL to deliver
improvements to cycling facilities and road
safety. Please note that the Go Kingston
measures are in the early stages of
implementation and need time for road users to
become familiar with the new arrangements.

131

Hilary Gander

Whilst many of these are no brainers 'e.g. better connectivity for pedestrians and Comments noted. The detail and delivery of the
cyclists') they one line for such as ' a new train station and over-site
proposed strategies will be further explored at a
development' are too vague to support. Affordable homes yes, but what does
later stage of the local plan process.

B261

126

No change.

180

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
significant delivery of new homes' look like (how many, how dense, where...?)
Fiona Meaney

Cycling areas poorly thought out and unnecessary restrictions on motorists who
pay more to use the roads. Closure of Surbiton Crescent outrageous to call this
a cut through. I have lived here for 25 years so this is not a cut through but a
thoroughfare. I suppose none of the councillors have to commute out or through
Kingston so why add 30 minutes a day to my commute? If you work at in
Hounslow/Heathrow area there are not good transport links and this penalises
us

Comment noted. In accordance with the London No change.
Plan, the Council places significant emphasis on
the role of cycling in the future of movement in
the Borough, but not to the detriment of other
road users. Key to achieving this vision is the
delivery of the Go Cycle Programme whereby the
Council received over £30 million of funding from
the Mayor of London and TfL to deliver
improvements to cycling facilities and road
safety. Please note that the Go Kingston
measures are in the early stages of
implementation and need time for road users to
become familiar with the new arrangements.

137

Zoe Leeds

I do not see things like student accommodation or key worker housing or 80% of
full market rates as 'affordable'. I believe social housing is what is most needed
(and this is the fairest and most inclusive form of affordable, as caters for all -if
there's an adequate supply of it)

Comments noted. Affordability of homes for local No change.
people is a key priority due to high house prices,
an increasing shortfall in provision, and the
increase in demand. One of our biggest issues is
to tackle this positively and increase the number
of houses to meet needs, while seeking the right
balance between protecting the environment, and
supporting the local economy.

138

Sharon
Nelhams

1. The borough have done a great job of making the borough area more cycle
friendly, I have seen it work first hand. I do not believe it needs any more
adjusting at this stage due the the age of the borough roads. It is important to
regeneration in buildings with old.

1. Comments and support noted.

2. We must maintain the heritage of Kingston. This will encourage tourism, due
to the history of Kingston.
2. Again, review old track lines first before trying to cram more transport in, plus
if is a type of recycling which our borough is supposed to be promoting.

Pages 27, 29, 31, 33,
35, 37; End of Text
2. Comment noted. The character and heritage of Sentence added after
the Borough continues to be a key priority for the bullet points: ‘We
recognise that new
council. We recognise the need to positively
growth must be
balance new growth with the consideration of
balanced with the
heritage and conservation assets in order to
unique heritage and
protect the distinctiveness of the borough.
character of the
Borough’.
Further reference to protection of heritage assets
and character will be included within the revised
Page 18; Last
document.
paragraph.
Sentence added:
3. Comment noted.
‘Note that the OLC
Report also states,
“there is no one size
fits all solution for
town centre renewal?

181

B262

132

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
Redevelopment, so
any intensification
would have to take
account of the
particular needs and
characteristics of the
individual town centre
such as heritage and
cultural assets, as
well as local
character”.
Michele Salter

We like the current shops. Don't change it. Don't make Kingston asugly and full
of skyscrapers as Croydon

Comment noted.

No change.

142

Caroline
Cheales

Need to show explicit protection of the green assets in the town centre,
particularly the Fairfield, the Memorial Gardens and the linear park along the
riverside (north and south of the bridge). there is no mention of the direction of
travel for the night-time economy. it is already undergoing a significant
adjustment. what is the expectation now? i would also expect there to be an
enhancement of the public open space, providing new spaces to increase the
liveability of a more dense town centre. for example, the provision of a riverside
beach / Kingston Plage would be an new attractor to the area that can be
enjoyed by residents and visitors alike. This could be a seasonal offer rather
than a permanent feature.

Comments noted.

No change.

147

Dominic Bull

Walking and cycling is the future for this borough, there is NO escaping this!
Kingston station and the area around it is not great, this probably has the
greatest potential for redevelopment. Investing in clean and sustainable
transportation infrastructure is a good thing, we should not need increasing
population to justify this however.

Support noted. In accordance with the London
Plan, the council places significant emphasis on
the future role of both walking and cycling in
Kingston.

No change.

148

Helen Thrush

It does not need expanding, on what basis are they proposing this. The areas
roads cannot cope, it's just not a feasible proposal.

Comments noted. This is one of the key
challenges for the borough. The long term
ambition includes the reduction in car reliance
through investment in transport infrastructure,
including Crossrail 2, bus services and cycle
infrastructure, providing choice of transport
options for the local community.

No change.

149

Dave RyderMills

These are very largely "motherhood and apple pie questions. They ignore vital
details such as the positive encouragement of independent retailers over the
needs of big retail chains in any development. Without the former, the attractive
character of the retail area is very largely lost and the town becomes "Anywhereupon-River" rather than Kingston-upon-Thames.

Comments noted. The detail of these strategies No change.
will be expanded upon at a later stage of the local
plan process. Regarding retail, the council
recognises the need for a diverse retail offer in
order to ensure continued vitality of the town

B263

141

182

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
centre. This includes providing accommodation
for small and independent retailers in Kingston.
Elaine RyderMills

In Kingston I would like to see small lanes with working artists and quirky shops.
Something different. I would like to see a myriad of shapes to the skyline not
blocks to enhance the town. I would include artisan trail and unexpected
curiosities. I would encourage Kingston as a destination. Current plans turn it
into dormitory blocky shopping town like any other found in UK. To encourage
entrepreneurs not big business.currently it looks like a 3rd rate spent town with
no cohesive vision. Why would anyone come to Kingston if it is the same as any
other town of similar size? We should be known for a weekly event that would
lead a visitor to explore all areas of the town. Secret ways to the river should be
enhanced. A reason to explore. Maybe a smart phone app. Local history should
mix with small business. The big shopping malls are spent ideas. People like to
shop, so the experience should be a pleasure not a chore. Big and showy
doesn't mean better.

All comments noted. We recognise the need to
No change.
ensure that Kingston remains a top destination
for all forms of activity. Key to achieving this
includes the diversification of town centres into
mixed use locations, including new retail, leisure
and community uses, to ensure continued health
and vitality.

151

Neil Riley

These questions are designed to provide support for whatever view the council
wishes to make of the responses. For example, in question 3 I want affordable
homes and new jobs would be beneficial. However, Kingston council has a
lamentable record of providing affordable homes and so support for this question
can be interpreted as a positive response for nay housing development.
Similarly, I would support the new train station if this is part of the interchange
referred to in question 9. What I don't support is yet another high-rise
development of the sort recently approved for the old post office development.

Comments and support noted. Higher density
No change.
proposals, if well planned, designed and located,
are in some cases considered to be an effective
means of accommodating the Borough's high
growth targets set by the Mayor of London.
Nevertheless, we recognise that this must be
balanced with the consideration of heritage
assets and the unique character of the local area.

152

Janice Yeadon

Improve dedicated cycle lanes.

Comment noted. In accordance with the London No change.
Plan, the Council places significant emphasis on
the role of cycling in the future of movement in
the Borough. Key to achieving this vision is the
delivery of the Go Cycle Programme whereby the
Council received over £30 million of funding from
the Mayor of London and TfL to deliver
improvements to cycling facilities and road
safety.

153

Adrian Wheeler 1. New 'affordable' homes need to be really affordable - not developer speak for
affordable. I fail to see how this can be achieved when there are NO 'affordable'
homes in the recently approved Eden Walk development, just a vague promise
from the developer.
2. Cycling connectivity needs to be improved and the current crossings shared
with pedestrians need to be segregated, That's what happens in Holland
unfortunately Mini Holland in Kingston seems to be exactly what it is with cycle

B264

150

1. Comments noted. Affordability of homes for
No change.
local people is a key priority due to high house
prices, an increasing shortfall in provision, and
the increase in demand. One of our biggest
issues is to tackle this positively and increase the
number of houses to meet needs, while seeking
the right balance between protecting the
environment, and supporting the local economy.

183

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
routes not joining up in a logical way
2. Comment noted regarding cycling. In
accordance with the London Plan, the Council
places significant emphasis on the role of cycling
in the future of movement in the Borough, and
will therefore continue to be promoted and
extended throughout the Borough in order to
facilitate a connected network of safe cycle
routes. Key to achieving this vision is the delivery
of the Go Cycle Programme whereby the Council
received over £30 million of funding from the
Mayor of London and TfL to deliver
improvements to cycling facilities and road
safety.
L. Hebbourn

I just hope that cycling provision is really well thought out and usable- having
previously lived in Raynes Park where cycle lanes are poorly joined up I was left
with the feeling that the council ambition there was focused on producing a
headline figure of increased lenghth without proper consideration of whether the
lanes joined up in a way that was practical.

Comment noted. In accordance with the London No change.
Plan, the Council places significant emphasis on
the role of cycling in the future of movement in
the Borough, and will therefore continue to be
promoted and extended throughout the Borough
in order to facilitate a connected network of safe
cycle routes. Key to achieving this vision is the
delivery of the Go Cycle Programme whereby the
Council received over £30 million of funding from
the Mayor of London and TfL to deliver
improvements to cycling facilities and road
safety.

155

Hazel Farrow

What is meant by significant? The provision of oversite development implies a
very tall building over the railway station I feel there is enough high rise in this
area already.

Comment noted. The population of Kingston is
No change.
set to increase by at least 10%, therefore there is
a need to plan positively for it through the local
plan process.

B265

154

In accordance with the London Plan, the council's
approach to tall buildings will be based on a
strategic basis in appropriate town centre
locations as a potential measure to achieve
higher densities and growth targets. However,
taller buildings will need to consider how they
positively and sensitively optimise development
plots whilst enhancing the unique character of
both the local area and the wider protected key
views.

184

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
156

Alison Wheeler

1. New 'affordable' homes need to be really affordable - not developer speak for
affordable. I fail to see how this can be achieved when there are NO 'affordable'
homes in the recently approved Eden Walk development, just a vague promise
from the developer.
2. Cycling connectivity needs to be improved and the current crossings shared
with pedestrians need to be segregated, That's what happens in Holland
unfortunately Mini Holland in Kingston seems to be exactly what it is with cycle
routes not joining up in a logical way

1. Comments noted. Affordability of homes for
No change.
local people is a key priority due to high house
prices, an increasing shortfall in provision, and
the increase in demand. One of our biggest
issues is to tackle this positively and increase the
number of houses to meet needs, while seeking
the right balance between protecting the
environment, and supporting the local economy.

158

Paul Sloan

1. The proposed transport improvements are woefully inadequate in the context
of the massive developments proposed. Already we have 50,000m2 of proposed
retail space with no concrete and meaningful public transport proposals to
handle the increased influx from Kingston's hinterland whihc extends well into
Sury. Public transport access from the South and South West is particularly
poor. These proposals are lightweight window dressing, pr and spin for the
masses. While developers reap the profits, residents will suffer dearly in
decades to come from the wholly inadequate transport infrastructure proposed.
The lack of other transport infrastructure apart from Crossrail 2 (CR2) is the
most worrying thing. Way more than Surbiton to Waterloo peak hour express
trains getting the chop. CR2 only shoves extra trains down existing track and
offers only the most marginal improvement in connectivity ( a new route from
Tooting to Kingston). Links to Kingston's southern and south-western hinterlands
are poor, and these need to be addressed BEFORE any significant development
is approved. North-South public transport infrastructure is woefully inadequate
as is, never mind the aftermath of significant development. The bus densities
support light rail on many routes already. CR2 on it’s own is not enough to meet
Kingston’s public transport needs. I seek assurances that hard analysis will be
performed to identify Kingston’s current and future public transport needs, taking
into account likely future residential and commercial developments. The London

B266

2. Comment noted regarding cycling. In
accordance with the London Plan, the Council
places significant emphasis on the role of cycling
in the future of movement in the Borough, and
will therefore continue to be promoted and
extended throughout the Borough in order to
facilitate a connected network of safe cycle
routes. Key to achieving this vision is the delivery
of the Go Cycle Programme whereby the Council
received over £30 million of funding from the
Mayor of London and TfL to deliver
improvements to cycling facilities and road
safety.
All comments noted. The Council recognise that No change.
key to facilitating and managing new growth is to
ensure new investment and improvement in
supporting infrastructure, including transport
infrastructure such as investments in Crossrail 2,
bus services and cycling infrastructure (via the
Go Kingston scheme), providing residents with a
much wider choice of transport options whilst
reducing car reliance. Development of
comprehensive integrated transport facilities are
in the early stages of development with key
partners such as Transport for London and
Network Rail.

185

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
Mayor’s London 2050 report emphasises that the projected population growth of
Outer London boroughs would generate transport needs that can not be met
using congested road networks. Accordingly, I seek proposals on how you would
seek to integrate CR2 investment with any future tram or express busway
schemes. Particularly on the overlooked and frankly pathetic North-South
transport links through Kingston borough. I understand that CR2 has been
planned on the basis of 2043 London population projections. These projections
have been revised sharply upwards in the subsequent 2050 London population
projections. I seek assurances that this once in a hundred years scheme for
Kingston has sufficient capacity to cater for the most recent and upper end
population projections. To predicate the building of 10,000's new homes in
Chessington/Tolworth on the basis of a mere 2 more trains an hour is
inadequate. See the suggestion in the National Infrastructure Commision
commissioned report of 4 North South trains per hour from Twickenham to
Chessington via Kingston for a proper solution to Kingston's yawning north-south
public transport deficiencies. Or alternatively, reroute Crossrail 2 to Claygate
beyond Surbiton, giving north south access to "nearly Kingston" via Surbiton,
using the redundant Hampton Court branch as a nascent tramsystem running to
Kingston via Surbiton.
Anne Oram

could the x26 be re-routed through surbiton once every half hour and through
new malden on the other half hour

Comment noted.

No change.

161

Richard Ware

Transport and shopping increases and expansion in the main as current agreed
planning applications and to cater for local increased demand. Not to generate
substantial additional outsider numbers and traffic. Good for business and
traders not so good for local residents With the current(very profitable) push for
residential lets not forget offices. We have this great big black hole called
London which seem to such all peripheral labour into it. This is timely,
expensive, stressful and not very eco friendly. Lets get as many locals in local
employment.

Comments noted. In many cases, the quality of
existing office stock is not fit for purpose for
modern working requirements, therefore new
development is essential in some cases in
appropriate town centre locations.

No change.

163

Diane Watling

1. I welcome a new train station but am concerned over the scale of any
proposed over site development.

1. Comments noted regarding the scale of
development.

No change.

2. I welcome new homes, but would like to see more affordable and council
accommodation built with controlled rents.

2. Comments noted regarding Affordable
Homes.. Affordability of homes for local people is
a key priority due to high house prices, an
increasing shortfall in provision, and the increase
in demand. One of our biggest issues is to tackle
this positively and increase the number of houses
to meet needs, while seeking the right balance
between protecting the environment, and
supporting the local economy.

3. I would like to see more independent retailers rather than chain stores. Is the
business model still sound to allow an enhanced retail offer, especially with 'on
line' shopping?

B267

160

186

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

3. Comment noted regarding independant
retailers. The council also recognises the need
for a diverse retail offer in order to ensure
continued vitality of the town centre. This
includes providing accommodation for small and
independent retailers in Kingston.
164

Marian Ellis

There will not be enough green space for the increased numbers of people

Comments noted. The council are committed to
ensuring that open space requirements are met
as a result of new growth.

172

Carole &
Michael
StathamFletcher

1. "Better connectivity for pedestrians and cyclists" sounds harmless but if
"improved access to the riverside" means channelling cyclists along the river
bank amongst the currently peaceful pedestrians we would strongly disagree.

1. Comments noted regarding cycle access to the No change. .
riverside.

2. "Significant delivery of new homes including affordable housing" and "An
expanded retail offer and strengthening of the Metropolitan town centre" sound
inoffensive but in the light of existing proposed and agreed development they
could be further moves towards a Kingston which Kingston's citizens would not
enjoy.

No change.

2. Comment noted regarding existing proposed
development in Kingston.

B268

The following consultees submitted a response but did not comment specifically on Question 1(a) of the survey.
ID

Name

ID

Name

ID

Name

2

Denise Thompson

62

Pam Walsh

120

Mo Sehra

3

Peter Watson

64

Joseph Asghar

121

Pat Marchant

4

Ken Thompson

69

Kevin White

122

H. Wollinger

5

Nigel Randall

71

Charmian Bourne

123

Chris Coleman

7

Kathrin Siguda

72

Carl Jackson

125

Mark Blewett

11

Richard Grosvenor

73

Deborah Dunning

127

Pat Cann

13

Matthew Kyte

74

Stanley R. Spires

130

Deborah Da Silva

14

Sara Redmond

77

Judith Symons

133

Yvonne Walsh

17

Lisa Ross

78

Keith Keen

134

Lee Hendra

187

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
Maryka Sennema

80

Annie Kay

135

Agnieszka

20

Petrina Tatnall

81

Mr Stephen Heil

136

John Pearson

23

Anthony Johannsen

83

Andrew Compton

139

Cashel Riordan

24

Linda Seel

85

Karen Carman

140

Julian Oldfield

26

Felicia Green

87

Peter Herlinger

143

Stewart Dickson

32

Andy Watters

89

Ross Anthony, Theatres Trust

144

Linda Skilbeck

37

E. John

90

Andrew Summersgill

145

Judith Royle

39

Saleh

91

A. Sadeghi

146

Sue May

40

Derek Moss

92

Marilyn Mason, Chair, KEF

157

Christopher Thomas

41

G. T. Knight

93

James

159

Jonathan Fray

43

Carlos

95

Gay Richardson

162

Simon Munk

44

Steve

97

Simon Jakeman

165

Claire Harrison

47

Alvaro

103

Dan

166

James Giles

49

A. Chandler

104

Martin Booth

167

Kerry Giles

50

Martyn

107

John Edwards

168

David Giles

53

Robert Wyeth

108

Daniel Wain

169

Marc Tracey

55

John Mccarthy, Friends Kingston Museum & Heritage
Service

109

Katherine jones

170

Yvonne Tracey

58

F. McDermott

111

Peta Schaverien

171

James Giles on behalf of MICO

61

J. Langridge

116

Johanne Molloy

B269

19

188

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

Question 1(b) - Norbiton, London Road & Cambridge Road Estate
ID

Respondent

Question 1(b) - Do you have any comments?

RBK Response

Document
Update

Ken Thompson How will Chelsea FC taking over Kingsmedow effect this proposal

Comment noted. This issue will not impact the
Direction of Travel.

No change.

6

S. Guess

Comment noted.

No change.

8

Malcolm Wright Cambridge Estate has been crying out for help for the last 20 odd years! Let's
hope this area can be improved for the local residents.

Comment noted.

No change.

10

Eunhyun Song

Good job crack on with it !

Comment noted.

No change.

16

Paul Cook

Priority should be given to the regeneration of the Cambridge estate. It is an
unliked area of the Borough

Comment noted.

No change.

18

Patricia
McLauchlan

It is important there are enough school places and doctors for all the new
residents planned. Taking into account people DO live in flats with children.

Comment noted. The council is committed to
No change.
appropriately managing new growth in order to
ensure that it does not have a negative impact
on the quality of life of existing residents and the
environment. This includes ensuring new
investment and improvement in supporting
infrastructure, such as community facilities.

20

Petrina Tatnall

The Cambridge Estate is one of the worse eye sore's of the Borough. Rather
than improve on it, would be better to pull it down and start again. Not have a
high rise, as they are a thing of the past, and causes social problems. There
have always been problems on the Cambridge estate. It is not a nice area to live
in.

Comments noted. After testing 14 options, three No change.
options have been shortlisted and are being
consulted on with residents and key
stakeholders.
Option A is for refurbishing the 4 tower blocks
and redeveloping everything else
Option B is refurbishing two of the tower blocks
(Madingley & Brinkley) and redeveloping
everything else
Option C is for complete redevelopment

22

Anthony Quinn

As regards the last item, I only disagree with improved access behind the
Cemetery and the stretch that borders the Sewage Works. This is an important
and undisturbed section for wildlife which could easily be ruined.

Comments noted.

No change.

24

Linda Seel

don't know that area

Comment noted.

No change.

25

David Watkins

1. You can't disagree with these intentions. Although implementation of each of
the stated aims is most likely to require wholesale demolition and replacement.

1. Comments noted.

Page 16, Kingston
Places

No

B270

4

189

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
Many of the buildings and much of the housing could be swept away with little
loss to mankind. I'm talking as much about the private as well as the public
sectors. It is central that the traffic intersection between London Road and
Cambridge Road is sorted out properly and comprehensively, it's been a mess
for years. Provide a smoother north-south route from the intersection to Surbiton
via Villiers Road to withdraw some of the traffic heading through Kingston.
Actually, much of the local road plan in this general area is in dire need of realignment.

2. Comments regarding London Road noted.

Map update: New
‘place’ added for
‘Hogsmill Valley’

3. Comments noted regarding jobs and
businesses.

Page 31; End of Text
Sentence added after
bullet points:
4. Comments noted regarding existing industrial
‘’Continued protection
uses in and around the Cambridge Road area.
of Hogsmill Valley
and its ecology’
2. London Road can't make its' mind up whether to be single-, double- or triple5. Comments noted regarding employment
laned. Bus lanes do not help! Nor do silly bumps in the (Hawks / Villiers) road!
opportunities. The council recognises the
Use some intelligence in traffic calming, as the new Go Cycle proposals ably
importance of providing more diverse
demonstrate can be done.
employment opportunities across all sectors,
including roles with higher salaries and small
3. 'Residential-led mixed-use development on and around London Road' - what
and medium-sized enterprizes. The detail of
about jobs and businesses? Not everyone wants to work in an office and I don't
these ambitions and evidence base will be
want to drive 5 miles to have my tyres changed.
developed as part of the local plan process.
4. This area (including Cambridge Road) has a number of industrial-type sites
which probably could be cleaned up and located in a sub-zone adjacent to or
part of the plan for Cambridge Road Estate area.

B271

5. But, I would not wish to see 'residential-led' becoming 'residential'. Is this
where the 'creative and small-scale workspaces' in the Town Centre Plan are
eventually going to find themselves? Perhaps only those oriented to manual
work, eh? Or is that what you mean by 'new and diversified employment
opportunities'?

6. Comments noted regarding cycle and
pedestrian networks. The council places
significant emphasis on the future role of both
walking and cycling in Kingston. Key to
achieving this vision is the delivery of the Go
Cycle Programme, whereby the Council
received over £30 million of funding from the
Mayor of London and TfL to deliver
improvements to cycling facilities and road
safety.

6. Most of this area is fairly flat and a comprehensive cycle route and pedestrian
network on green lanes would work well here. The environmental benefits would 7. Comments and support noted regarding
be huge for an area much trampled upon by decay and traffic.
Hogsmill Valley. Further reference to the
protection of this asset will be included in the
7. Hogsmill Valley is a completely under-used resource and any efforts to
revised version of the document.
improve access should be applauded.
27

Graham Tucker I know very little about the Norbiton area to comment.

Comment noted.

No change.

28

Alison Fure

All comments noted. The Hogsmill Valley will
continue to be an important ecological and
recreational asset to the council and any new
access opportunities would be assessed
accordingly to ensure sensitivity to existing

Page 16, Kingston
Places
Map update: New
‘place’ added for
‘Hogsmill Valley’

I am familiar with the Hogsmill Valley Masterplan. I don't believe the 'better
access to the Hogsmill Valley' will be implemented without massive sell off of
land, massive loss of public access, loss of covenanted land (Kingston Rec).
How can you let people access an area that is contaminated by regular sewage
spills anyway! The CRE is already mixed tenure as there are many people who

190

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
have bought their properties. Again this is politics this is maximising revenue at
the expense of quality of life-air quality, water quality etc.

ecology and safety of users.
Further reference to the protection of this asset
will be included in the revised version of the
document.

Page 31; End of Text
Sentence added after
bullet points:
‘’Continued protection
of Hogsmill Valley
and its ecology’

33

Alistair Glen

Please make good use of the Hogsmill as it is a beautiful and neglected local
resource

Comment noted.

No change.

34

Mel

1. I am worried that 'better access for pedestrians and cyclists' is part and parcel
of large development of the Hogsmill flood plain areas. I do not want a narrow
strip of green with a path alongside lots more buildings - this is a beautiful and
fragile green space much loved and valued.

1. Comments noted. The Hogsmill Valley will
continue to be an important ecological and
recreational asset to the council and any new
access opportunities would be assessed
accordingly to ensure sensitivity to existing
ecology.

Page 16, Kingston
Places
Map update: New
‘place’ added for
‘Hogsmill Valley’

2. I strongly object to the regeneration and housing focus of the Council on the
Cambridge road estate without the residents' consent. This has to be open and
transparent consultation with commitments that no demolition will take place if
the majority

2. Regarding the Cambridge Road Estate, we
have tested 14 different options and measured
them against the following criteria - viability,
quality of homes, quality of environment, impact
on the wider area and how many additional
homes they provide.
After testing all 14 options, three options have
been shortlisted and are being consulted on with
residents and key stakeholders.
Option A is for refurbishing the 4 tower blocks
and redeveloping everything else
Option B is refurbishing two of the tower blocks
(Madingley & Brinkley) and redeveloping
everything else
Option C is for complete redevelopment
40

Derek Moss

The Direction of Travel document doesn't actually give any detail about what any Comment noted. The document is intended to

No change.

191

B272

Page 31; End of Text
Further reference to the importance of this asset Sentence added after
will be included in the revised document.
bullet points:
‘’Continued protection
Further reference to the protection of this asset of Hogsmill Valley
and its ecology’
will be included in the revised version of the
document.

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
of the proposals for any of the areas would actually entail, so it is rather hard to
agree with them when I have no idea what I am being asked to agree to.

be high-level at this early stage of the local plan
process, providing the Council's 'Statement of
Intent'. It aims to provide alignment of local
strategic planning policy, the London Plan, and
Kingston's growth agenda, as well as the broad
context in which the new Borough Local Plan
needs to be planned. The detail and
deliverability of new growth strategies will be
developed and consulted upon in later stages of
the local plan process.

Paul Howlett

I do not agree with planning high density residential housing next to a main road Comment noted. Higher density proposals, if
No change.
due to the health concerns. Development needs to be near a main rod, but not
well planned, designed and located, are in some
on it
cases considered to be an effective means of
accommodating the Borough's high growth
targets set by the Mayor of London.
Nevertheless, we recognise that this must be
balanced with the consideration of key
environmental/health issues as well as the wellbeing of existing residents.

45

Sheena Evans

The Hogsmill Valley is accessible enough already. It would definitely be a
Comment noted. The Hogsmill Valley will
backward step to make it easier for cyclists to access it. Such character as it has continue to be an important ecological and
would soon be destroyed.
recreational asset to the council and any new
access opportunities would be assessed
accordingly to ensure sensitivity to existing
ecology.
Further reference to the protection of this asset
will be included in the revised version of the
document.

Page 16, Kingston
Places
Map update: New
‘place’ added for
‘Hogsmill Valley’
Page 31; End of Text
Sentence added after
bullet points:
‘’Continued protection
of Hogsmill Valley
and its ecology’

46

Dr Nazar Pola

no comment

Noted.

No change.

48

Jacqueline
Hardie

The proposed school at Norbiton is a fiasco and the planning permission was
issued illegally.

Comments noted.

No change.

51

Des McRow

1. No mention of health support for the increased population.

Comments noted. The local plan will consider
No change.
how to positively manage new growth in order to
ensure that it does not have a negative impact
on the quality of life of existing residents and the
environment. This includes ensuring new

2. Plans to tackle air quality and noise pollution issues?

192

B273

42

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
investment and improvement in supporting
infrastructure, such as health services, as well
as mitigating impact on key environmental
issues such as traffic, air and noise pollution.
The detail and deliverability of these strategies
will be developed and consulted upon in later
stages of the local plan process.
54

Joseph Asghar

You are engaged in the theft of social housing. Burn in hell.

Comment noted. Affordable housing for local
No change.
people is a key priority due to high house prices,
an increasing shortfall in provision, and the
increase in demand. One of our biggest issues is
to tackle this positively and increase the number
of houses to meet needs, while seeking the right
balance between protecting the environment,
and supporting the local economy.

55

John McCarthy, no obs
Friends
Kingston
Museum &
Heritage
Service

58

F.McDermott

Phrases such as 'supporting new infrastructure' are meaningless without details! Comment noted. For clarity, this comment refers No change.
to the council's commitment to ensure that new
growth is adequately supported by investment in
infrastructure, such as community facilities and
transport. Further detail will be determined at a
later stage of the local plan process.

63

Peter Mason

There is an obvious need in Kingston for much more truly affordable housing not sure that these proposals will deliver that. I would support more Council
housing. Where are workers in retail, hospitality, the NHS etc to live? If they
have to live further out of London, that will add to demands on transport - cars,
public transport etc- and impacts on air quality.

Noted

No change.

B274

Comments noted. Affordability of homes for local
people and key workers is a key priority due to
high house prices, an increasing shortfall in
provision, and the increase in demand. One of
our biggest issues is to tackle this positively and
increase the number of houses to meet needs,
while seeking the right balance between
protecting the environment, and supporting the
local economy.

Pages 19; Paragraph
1
Original text: ‘A new
borough Local Plan is
required to show how
it will deliver the
growth needs of a
rapidly rising
population’.

New evidence base and policy regarding

193

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

Rob Robb

This lemming type belief in Cross Rail 2 . Its coming at too higher price. we have
grown up with direct trains to Waterloo people getting jobs in the City and
Canary Wharf etc, with direct connections from Waterloo (the drain) and the
Jubilee Line . Money for Cross Rail 2 could be spent on updating the tunnels for
the Waterloo and City Line and possibly extending that. we are getting 10 car
trains next year once the work at Waterloo is complete and this is more use than
cross rail 2. The new 30 trains an hour fed from branch lines far and wide and
being fed into two of the top four busiest stations Victoria and Paddington, how
does that make sense. Our new Prime Minister is questioning HS2 lets hope she
has the sense to question Cross rail 2. Lets get back down to earth and think of
todays problems such as disabled access to our stations.

67

Natalie Crew

1. We do not need yet more flats around Norbiton station, the area is already
over crowded with no parking, over subscribed schools, dentists and GP
surgeries. Norbiton station is not a suitable location with its busy roads and lack
of infrastructure and services to build more homes.

Update: ‘A new
borough Local Plan is
required to show how
it will deliver the
growth needs of a
rapidly rising
population, including
new affordable
homes, a diverse
range of employment
opportunities, and
expanded leisure and
community facilities’.

Comments noted. Crossrail 2 as proposed,
would offer a range of benefits for all users,
including a more regular service (a minimum of
four trains per hour on each line at all times of
operation) connecting through Central London.
However, detailed proposals from Crossrail 2
are yet to be decided. The Council will actively
plan for the arrival of Crossrail 2, although new
growth in Kingston is not dependant on its
delivery.

No change.

B275

65

affordable housing will the developed through
the local plan process.

1. Comments noted. Although development
No change.
potential in Norbiton is smaller in comparison to
neighbouring centres, there is still opportunity for
growth in and around the station area. Any new
development in the area will be balanced with
the requirement for new investment and
2. The Cambridge road estate is desperately in need of renovation and
redevelopment, but these should remain social housing and not mixed tenure, or supporting infrastructure, including community
facilities and transport infrastructure.
all you are doing is creating further homelessness when new homes are so
unaffordable. There should be an increase in family style homes with outside
space rather than high rise blocks to avoid the ghettoisation that has occurred in 2. Regarding the regeneration of the Cambridge
the past. London road is not suitable for residential purposes, it is busy, polluted, Road Estate, we tested 14 different options and
dangerous and has no parking spaces at all.
measured them against the following criteria viability, quality of homes, quality of
3. More needs to be done to improve infrastructure to support children going to environment, impact on the wider area and how
many additional homes they provide. After
school, and provision of safe open spaces.
testing all 14 options, three options have been
shortlisted and are being consulted on with

194

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
residents and key stakeholders.
Option A is for refurbishing the 4 tower blocks
and redeveloping everything else
Option B is refurbishing two of the tower blocks
(Madingley & Brinkley) and redeveloping
everything else
Option C is for complete redevelopment
All three options re-provide the same number of
council homes and provide 100 new low cost
home ownership homes. All options will have a
mix of 1,2 and 3 bedroom properties.
3. Regarding community provision in the CRE,
discussions have taken place with Achieving for
Children and a new school is unlikely to be
required for the development. Furthermore, all
existing community facilities would be replaced
and the need to provide good quality open space
will be part of the masterplanning brief.
Howard
Sheppard

Manor Gate Road is the principal link to Norbiton station for many residents of
Comments noted.
North Kingston, however the "Home Zone" scheme implemented 10 years ago is
both inconvenient to pedestrians and motorists and is unsafe. Footpaths are too
narrow for pedestrians to pass and motorists have to encroach pedestrian areas
to pass each other. Furthermore the planting has not been maintained, rubbish
has accumulated, shrubs and trees have died and weeds have flourished. Only
in the last couple of days have one or two residents began to address the issue
of maintenance, but even now most of the planting is an eyesore, a disgrace. A
simpler, safer and more easily maintained scheme is called for.

No change.

79

Frances Marsh

Phis probably means more tower blocks. And as for it being residential lead - I
don't think so. I have attended meetings for planning applications where the
entire audience was against the plans for very good reasons, and the Council
just overrode their objections.

No change.

80

Annie Kay

1. I cannot find any specific plans for the Cambridge road estate so it's difficult to 1. Comments noted regarding the regeneration No change.
agree or disagree.
of the Cambridge Road Estate. We tested 14
different options and measured them against the
following criteria - viability, quality of homes,
2. Are you just going to add more housing to what is already there or are you
quality of environment, impact on the wider area
going to remove existing housing to make room?
and how many additional homes they provide.
After testing all 14 options, three options have
3. Surely there area less densely populated areas in Kingston? Are there going
been shortlisted and are being consulted on with

Comments noted.

B276

76

195

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
to be any green areas and/or areas where kids can get outdoors?

residents and key stakeholders.
Option A is for refurbishing the 4 tower blocks
and redeveloping everything else
Option B is refurbishing two of the tower blocks
(Madingley & Brinkley) and redeveloping
everything else
Option C is for complete redevelopment
2. Comments noted. All three options re-provide
the same number of council homes and provide
100 new low cost home ownership homes. All
options will have a mix of 1,2 and 3 bedroom
properties.

82

Lesley Steel

Where do tenants of Cambridge estate go during re-devekopment? Will they be
allowed/be able to afford to go back.

88

Chris Stephens Crossrail 2 coming to Kingston is welcome. But we want the extension of the
Croydon Tramlink to Kingston, via the Hogsmill valley, as outlined in the
previous Borough Unitary plan.

94

Sara Vincent

B277

3. Comments noted. Regarding community
provision in the CRE, discussions have taken
place with Achieving for Children and a new
school is unlikely to be required for the
development. Furthermore, all existing
community facilities would be replaced and the
need to provide good quality open space will be
part of the masterplanning brief.
Comment noted. The council has committed to No change.
keeping or re-providing the same number of
homes for council tenants with a social tenancy.
Regeneration proposals will be developed to
minimise the disruption to CRE tenants and to
restrict their home moves, if required, to only
one if at all possible. New council homes will be
on secure tenancies at social rents.
Comments noted. There are currently no plans
to extend the Tramlink to Kingston.

No change.

Access to Norbiton station could be improved, especially from the London Road Comments noted. As stated in the Direction of
No change.
side. As a station that serves a hospital (and therefore people with a variety of
Travel, improved access to Norbiton Station is a
health, mobility and access concerns), the accessibility could also be improved. council aspiration.
Right now, if you come from the Waterloo side, you either have to manage 2 (or
sometimes 3, if the ticket barriers are in use) sets of stairs or, if you can't do this,
you have to walk a considerable distance on a narrow strip of pavement next to
a busy road (very difficult with children, a buggy, wheelchair or walking frame).
The increase in people means there is often a 'traffic jam' at the ticket gates,

196

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
which more barriers would help with. This is true on both sides of the station and
can lead to considerable delays (and missed trains). The shops and environment
on London Road will also benefit from investment as the area feels neglected
and is often viewed as a cut-through to the Cambridge Road estate, rather than
an area in its own right.
Janine Bellew

I don't live in Norbiton so I can't comment though the last point makes sense

Comment noted.

No change.

100

Barbara
Delamere

Same comments as above

Noted.

No change.

102

David English

Norbiton Station is crossed by the Tudor Hampton Court Palace Water Works
Conduit which is also defined as an archaeological priority area. London Road
within the Kingston Town Archaeological Priority Area and has the potential for
archaeology dating from the prehistoric through to the modern periods, and as
such applications should be supported by an archaeological desk-based
assessment and in some cases an archaeological field evaluation.

Comments noted. Further reference to
protection of heritage assets will be included
within the revised document.

Pages 27, 29, 31, 33,
35, 37; End of Text
Sentence added after
bullet points: ‘We
recognise that new
growth must be
balanced with the
unique heritage and
character of the
Borough’.

104

Martin Booth

No, see above

Noted.

No change.

106

Gemma
Cusworth

I just don't know where you are going to get the land for some of these things?

Comment noted.

No change.

113

Mr a Greene

The Cambridge estate area does need redevelopment but it has to take into
consideration the current residents as well as the residents of the immediate
surrounding area to ensure that their needs are put ahead of those of
developers.

Comments noted.

No change.

115

J Wheeler

These are areas already densely populated and lacking in facility. Shoehorning
more people into an already crowded area is an utterly ridiculous proposal

Comment noted.

No change.

117

Stuart Hartley

The Cambridge estate is a community. The council has not provided sufficient
guarantees to the residents that they will be re housed back when the plans are
completed. There is a admission of the existence of a growth agenda. The
council was not voted in on this and was never mentioned in their manifesto.
Changes like this should be put to the electorate.

Comment noted. The council has committed to No change.
keeping or re-providing the same number of
homes for council tenants with a social tenancy.
Regeneration proposals will be developed to
minimise the disruption to existing tenants and to
restrict their home moves, if required, to only
one if at all possible. New council homes will be
on secure tenancies at social rents.

118

Lynne Finnerty

Not being a Norbiton resident I do not feel in a position to comment on some
questions without details. With reference to the Cambridge Rd Estate: There
must be a guaranteed net increase in new homes for social rent and no

Comments noted. All three development options No change.
for the Cambridge Road Estate re-provide the
same number of council homes and provide 100

B278

98

197

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
new low cost home ownership homes. All
options will have a mix of 1,2 and 3 bedroom
properties.
Furthermore, the council has committed to
keeping or re-providing the same number of
homes for council tenants with a social tenancy.

B279

possibility that 'commercial confidentiality' of viability assessments for property
developers allows a reduction in an initial promise of homes for social rent - as
occurred on the Heygate redevelopment in Southwark. Before feasibility studies
were undertaken, the Council leader publicly stated he favoured demolishing the
towers. Architects for Social Housing (ASH) believe refurbishment and infill are
more sustainable solutions for social housing, enabling continuing existence of
communities housed. ASH claims that through infill and build-over it is possible
to increase housing capacity on council estates by 40-50% without demolishing
homes. The right tenure mix, based on requirements from the Council's housing
waiting list, could help, relieve that waiting list and accommodate housing needs
for the future. Whatever the ultimate decision on estate regeneration, whether for
demolition or refurbishment/infill, the Council must ensure that new homes
provided can be afforded (for rent or to buy) by people that need them - with
priority to existing residents. In the event of demolition and decant, people
whose existing homes are demolished to make way for new homes must not
face financial pressures of increased rents and service charges when, or if, they
return. Profit margins of developers must not be put before the health and
wellbeing of residents who may have to be decanted to temporary
accommodation, live next to a building site or endure the environmental effects
of demolition which would release carbon from the concrete buildings into the
neighbourhood. Existing residents must not find themselves in a position where
they must claim housing benefit in order to pay rent increases/take out another
mortgage to replace on a previously owned property/enter into shared ownership
to replace a previously owned property/bid for homes at cheaper rents
elsewhere in the borough or out of borough. There must be no reduction in
tenancy rights and there should be no prospect of residents being tied into
electricity and gas contracts with power companies free to increase rates at any
time. Long-term maintenance funding of the estate must be guaranteed.
119

Iain Martin MSc There is a need for more consultation leading up to revising the adopted Local
CMILT
Plan.

124

Pippa Billingsley I would like to know how you propose to improve the access to Norton Station,
All comments noted. Access to Norbiton Station No change.
which is already easy and simple. Not sure which site you propose to develop for refers to both train and platform access.
residential use around Norton station, apart from the already consented
developments opposite Chatham road. I would welcome the development of the
Cambridge estate, especially turning it into a more inspiring and well managed
greener living quarter.

126

Jim Leason

Why do your plans not identify where new public services infrastructure is going
to be provided.

Comments noted.

No change.

Comments noted. The Council recognise that
No change.
key to facilitating and managing new growth in
Kingston is to ensure new investment and
improvement in supporting infrastructure,
including community facilities, local services and

198

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
transport infrastructure. The detail of these
requirements will be considered at a later stage
of the local plan process.
131

Hilary Gander

Again support 'creation of new and diversified employment' but what does
Comment noted. This refers to delivery of new
No change.
'Helping meet the Council’s growth agenda and housing focus for the Cambridge quality homes through the regeneration of the
Road Housing Zone' mean, for example?
Cambridge Road Estate in order to contribute
towards the Borough's significant housing need.

132

Fiona Meaney

Why is there only one way in and one way out of Berrylsnds by car? About to be Comments noted.
heavily affected by a poorly thought out road closure in Surbiton Crescent.
Improve Berrylsnds transport interchange

138

Sharon
Nelhams

Due to the age of the area and traffic on London road, it is unwise to more
pressure on this already traffic dense area. To add more to this area wold cause
a bottle neck effect on the area. There is some green land in Cambridge estates
but should be built on sensibly.

All comments noted. It is agreed that traffic is a No change.
key challenge for the council and we recognise
the need for significant investment in transport
infrastructure, including Crossrail 2, bus services
and cycling infrastructure (via the Go Kingston
scheme). The aim being that this will provide
residents with a choice of transport alternative
whilst reducing car reliance.

142

Caroline
Cheales

1. I have mixed views about this area, chiefly because of concerns over the
plans for the regeneration of the social housing stock, a lack of safeguards to
retain and encourage community cohesion and a weak commitment to the
reprovision and futher provision of social rent. this feels like an attempt to
eliminate or at least reduce the amount of social rent in the area. this area
includes a significant proportion of the remaining green space in the borough in
the form of metropolitan open land. that it has been allowed to degrade and has
not been invested in should not be grounds for considering it as brown field and
so as a target for development.

1. Comments noted. For further clarity regarding No change.
the Cambridge Road Estate regeneration, all
three development options re-provide the same
number of council homes and provide 100 new
low cost home ownership homes. All options will
have a mix of 1,2 and 3 bedroom properties.
Furthermore, the council has committed to
keeping or re-providing the same number of
homes for council tenants with a social tenancy.
Regeneration proposals will be developed to
minimise the disruption to CRE tenants and to
restrict their home moves, if required, to only
one if at all possible. New council homes will be
on secure tenancies at social rents.

146

Sue May

The Cambridge Estate was built in a way that marks it out as housing for low
income households. If it is replaced it should not be distinguishable in this way.
However any development of this community needs to be agreed by the

B280

2. I would also expect that any plans in this area would address the access to
the existing industrial sites and take the opportunity to remove heavy vehicles
from the residential roads, in particular Hawks Road and Villiers Road. Over the
last two decades the size of the vehicles has grown significantly, as has the
number of vehicles. there is an opportunity to reroute this traffic via a direct link
from cambridge road or kingston road, shortening the routes from the A3 and
increasing the liveability in the two roads that have borne the brunt of this traffic
for too long. Rerouting via Lamberts Road / villiers avenue would increase the
incursion risk onto the railway line and is not a viable alternative route.

No change.

2. Comments noted regarding access to existing
industrial estates.

Comments noted.

No change.

199

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
community in a way which does not erase but builds on the existing community
and allows the community full involvement and partnership in the development.
Please refer to the Waltham Forest Housing Action Trust TED (Tenants
Expectation Document) for example. A community owned organisation for
example a Community Land Trust would be good to ensure assets are kept in
the community for future generations.
Helen Thrush

As above comments it over development of the area.

Noted.

149

Dave RyderMills

1. I do not see how many of these are achievable in these constricted areas
without either detriment to the area and its current residents or the overloading
of infrastructure. Examples: The roads leading to Norbiton Station are largely
residential and space limited in terms of both traffic congestion and parking
potential. There is little or no space for any reasonable co-ordinated
development. Better would be a rezoning of other stations such as Kingston to
take the pressure off Norbiton.

1. Comments noted. Although development
No change.
potential in Norbiton is smaller in comparison to
neighbouring centres, there is still opportunity for
growth particularly around the station area. Any
new development in the area will be balanced
with the requirement for new investment and
supporting infrastructure.

2. Any redevelopment of the Cambridge Road Estate must cater fully for current
residents by giving them all a truly affordable means of staying in suitably sized
accommodation in the immediate area. The second priority then has to be
inadequately housed people on the Council's housing waiting lists. Only when
these 2 priorities are satisfied should increased numbers of new residents be
contemplated. How does this square with funding arrangements? Attempts to
create residential accommodation and retail offer in the London Road area have
in the past not been successful due to the congested nature of the roads and the
very local area. I would not welcome more of the same and cannot see how any
new development would be other than this.

2. Regarding the Cambridge Road Estate
proposals, the council has committed to keeping
or re-providing the same number of homes for
council tenants with a social tenancy.
Regeneration proposals will be developed to
minimise the disruption to CRE tenants and to
restrict their home moves, if required, to only
one if at all possible. New council homes will be
on secure tenancies at social rents.

3. New infrastructure should be thoughtfully given enough priority and space to
be of high quality and built as an integral part of ALL developments.
4. There should be huge opportunity in the Hogsmill Valley for access of this
type, leisure facilities and natural areas.

No change.

B281

148

3. Comment noted regarding the need for
infrastructure and open space. Discussions have
taken place with Achieving for Children and a
new school is unlikely to be required for the
development. The requirement for school places
and how this will be met will continue to be
reviewed as the programme is developed.
Through the three shortlisted options all existing
community facilities would be replaced.
The need to provide good quality open space
will be part of the masterplanning brief.
4. Comment noted regarding Hogsmill Valley.

200

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
150

Elaine RyderMills

153

Refreshment of CREST s is necessary. But not at the peril of residents who
have a community and wish to return. All efforts should be made to avoid mixed
housing and industrial. New school would be needed if housing density
increased. Transport is reasonable but needs improvement if population
increases. Sewage vitally needs improvement.

No change.

Adrian Wheeler I can't agree with the policy of decanting residents from the Cambridge estate,
Yes it may need\updating, but all those who are currently residents and\wish to
stay should wish to live there be able to at the same rent

Comments noted.

No change.

156

Alison Wheeler

I can't agree with the policy of decanting residents from the Cambridge estate,
Yes it may need\updating, but all those who are currently residents and\wish to
stay should wish to live there be able to at the same rent

Comments noted. The council has committed to No change.
keeping or re-providing the same number of
homes for council tenants with a social tenancy.
Regeneration proposals will be developed to
minimise the disruption to CRE tenants and to
restrict their home moves, if required, to only
one if at all possible. New council homes will be
on secure tenancies at social rents.

158

Paul Sloan

The proposed transport improvements are woefully inadequate in the context of
the massive developments proposed. Already we have 50,000m2 of proposed
retail space with no concrete and meaningful public transport proposals to
handle the increased influx from Kingston's hinterland whihc extends well into
Sury. Public transport access from the South and South West is particularly
poor. These proposals are lightweight window dressing, pr and spin for the
masses. While developers reap the profits, residents will suffer dearly in
decades to come from the wholly inadequate transport infrastructure proposed.
The lack of other transport infrastructure apart from Crossrail 2 (CR2) is the most
worrying thing. Way more than Surbiton to Waterloo peak hour express trains
getting the chop. CR2 only shoves extra trains down existing track and offers
only the most marginal improvement in connectivity ( a new route from Tooting
to Kingston). Links to Kingston's southern and south-western hinterlands are
poor, and these need to be addressed BEFORE any significant development is
approved. North-South public transport infrastructure is woefully inadequate as
is, never mind the aftermath of significant development. The bus densities
support light rail on many routes already. CR2 on it’s own is not enough to meet
Kingston’s public transport needs. I seek assurances that hard analysis will be
performed to identify Kingston’s current and future public transport needs, taking
into account likely future residential and commercial developments. The London
Mayor’s London 2050 report emphasises that the projected population growth of
Outer London boroughs would generate transport needs that can not be met
using congested road networks. Accordingly, I seek proposals on how you would

All comments noted. The Council recognise that No change.
key to facilitating and managing new growth is to
ensure new investment and improvement in
supporting infrastructure, including transport
infrastructure such as investments in Crossrail 2,
bus services and cycling infrastructure (via the
Go Kingston scheme), providing residents with a
much wider choice of transport options whilst
reducing car reliance. Development of
comprehensive integrated transport facilities are
in the early stages of development with key
partners such as Transport for London and
Network Rail.

B282

All comments noted. Discussions have taken
place with Achieving for Children and a new
school is unlikely to be required for the
development at the Cambridge Road Estate.
The requirement for school places and how this
will be met will continue to be reviewed as the
programme is developed.

201

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
seek to integrate CR2 investment with any future tram or express busway
schemes. Particularly on the overlooked and frankly pathetic North-South
transport links through Kingston borough. I understand that CR2 has been
planned on the basis of 2043 London population projections. These projections
have been revised sharply upwards in the subsequent 2050 London population
projections. Iseek assurances that this once in a hundred years scheme for
Kingston has sufficient capacity to cater for the most recent and upper end
population projections. To predicate the building of 10,000's new homes in
Chessington/Tolworth on the basis of a mere 2 more trains an hour is
inadequate. If trams are good enough for Sutton and Croydon, they should be
good enough for Kingston. Failing that, segregated express bus lanes, as seen
in Belfast or Dublin should be built.
Richard Ware

Do not know the area that well but comments as previous section 1a apply. Don't Comments noted.
forget upgraded infrastructure necessitated by all the proposals mentioned
above.

No change.

163

Diane Watling

I would like to see all proposals in more detail, discussed and debated at the
Kingston Town Neighbourhood meetings. Employment opportunities for local
residents ensuring it truly is a local economy.

Comments noted.

No change.

164

Marian Ellis

The Hogsmill Valley should not become a cycle track or end up a drinking,
picnic, football pitch for people to the detriment of wildlife. Turn it into a nature
reserve

Comment noted regarding Hogsmill Valley. The
Hogsmill Valley will continue to be an important
ecological and recreational asset to the council
and any new access opportunities would be
assessed accordingly and sensitive to existing
ecology.

Page 16, Kingston
Places
Map update: New
‘place’ added for
‘Hogsmill Valley’

Further reference to the protection of this asset
will be included in the revised version of the
document.

Page 31; End of Text
Sentence added after
bullet points:
‘’Continued protection
of Hogsmill Valley
and its ecology’

The following consultees submitted a response but did not comment specifically on Question 1(b) of the survey.

202

B283

161

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
Name

ID

Name

ID

Name

2

Denise Thompson

64

Joseph Asghar

120

Mo Sehra

3

Peter Watson

66

Alan Bennett

121

Pat Marchant

5

Nigel Randall

68

Alex Gregor-Smith

122

H. Wollinger

7

Kathrin Siguda

69

Kevin White

123

Chris Coleman

9

Douglas Sampson

70

Howard Robinson

125

Mark Blewett

11

Richard Grosvenor

71

Charmian Bourne

127

Pat cann

12

Jim Cardell

72

Carl Jackson

128

Tim Westlake

13

Matthew Kyte

73

Deborah Dunning

129

Tim Westlake

14

Sara Redmond

74

Stanley R. Spires

130

Deborah Da Silva

15

Shailesh Patel

75

Peter Topp

133

Yvonne Walsh

17

Lisa Ross

77

Judith Symons

134

Lee Hendra

19

Maryka Sennema

78

Keith Keen

135

Agnieszka

21

Lucy Symons

81

Mr Stephen Heil

136

John Pearson

23

Anthony Johannsen

83

Andrew Compton

137

Zoe Leeds

26

Felicia Green

84

Maureen Ellis

139

Cashel Riordan

29

Martin Russell-Jones

85

Karen Carman

140

Julian Oldfield

30

Mr Bal Badesha

86

Leonora Partridge

141

Michele Salter

31

Mr Aziz Bawany

87

Peter Herlinger

143

Stewart Dickson

32

Andy Watters

89

Ross Anthony, Theatres Trust

144

Linda Skilbeck

35

Stephanie Russell

90

Andrew Summersgill

145

Judith Royle

36

Gloria Bassoli

91

A. Sadeghi

147

Dominic Bull

37

E. John

92

Marilyn Mason, Chair, KEF

151

Neil Riley

38

Imran Benson

93

James

152

Janice Yeadon

39

Saleh

95

Gay Richardson

154

L. Hebbourn

41

G. T. Knight

96

James Fennell (Nathaniel Lichfield &
Partners)

155

Hazel Farrow

B284

ID

203

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
43

Carlos

97

Simon Jakeman

157

Christopher Thomas

44

Steve

99

Zbig Blonski

159

Jonathan Fray

47

Alvaro

101

Mr M. Gascoigne

160

Anne Oram

49

A chandler

103

Dan

162

Simon Munk

50

Martyn

105

Tony Lancaster

165

Claire Harrison

52

B. Walker

107

John Edwards

166

James Giles

53

Robert Wyeth

108

Daniel Wain

167

Kerry Giles

56

Phil Edwards

109

Katherine jones

168

David Giles

57

Fred Ashmore

110

Carl Jackson

169

Marc Tracey

59

J. Stevens

111

Peta Schaverien

170

Yvonne Tracey

60

Alex

112

Rebeca Alamo

171

James Giles on behalf of MICO

61

J. Langridge

114

Marguerite Bowers Clark

172

Carole & Michael Statham-Fletcher

62

Pam Walsh

116

Johanne Molloy

B285

204

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

Question 1(c) - Berrylands and Hogsmill Valley
ID

Respondent

6

S. Guess

8

Question 1(c) - Do you have any comments?
Somebody has "Cut & Pasted" from the previous page as some of
these questions relate to Norbiton !!

RBK Response

Document
Update
No change.

Malcolm Wright Answered all "Don't know" as the questions have been changed from
the previous page...

Comments noted.

No change.

11

Richard
Grosvenor

You have erroneously repeated all of the questions from 1b in 2b
(above). See my answers to 1b.

Comments noted.

No change.

12

Jim Cardell

You've messed this part of the survey up. 1c refers to Berrylands and
Hogsmill, the questions refer to Norbiton, Cambridge road, London
Road etc.

Comments noted.

No change.

18

Patricia
McLauchlan

Infrastructure is very important.

Comment noted.

No change.

20

Petrina Tatnall

Same as previous page when it come to the Cambridge estate You
can't improve on it

Comment noted.

No change.

22

Anthony Quinn As regards the last item, I only disagree with improved access behind
the Cemetery and the stretch that borders the Sewage Works. This is
an important and undisturbed section for wildlife which could easily be
ruined.

Comment noted.

No change.

24

Linda Seel

These questions relate to Norbiton, not Berrylands

Comments noted.

No change.

25

David Watkins

1. These are exactly the same aims as for the previous section, again
against which nobody could object. I don't really understand why there's
a station at Berrylands. It seems that it exists without access to those
from the north of the line which is an under-use of the facility. Develop
the land and more people would use it.

1. Comments noted.

Page 16, Kingston
Places
Map update: New
‘place’ added for
‘Hogsmill Valley’

2. The sprawl of the sewage works has got out of hand and deters any
user of the open space. But the modernisation of the treatment process
including its enclosure is a sign that things can change. There are many
old and disused filter beds on the Surbiton side of the site which should
be recovered for housing if Thames Water could be persuaded to give
them up. If not housing then industrial workspace use should be the
intention. There seems to be a huge area adjacent which has no

3. All comments noted. Regarding the Hogsmill Valley,
this area will continue to be an important ecological and
recreational asset to the council and any new access
opportunities would be assessed accordingly and
sensitive to existing ecology.

2. Comments noted. As part of the local plan process,
we are looking into all options and ongoing future need
of the Sewage Treatment Works.

Further reference to the importance of this asset will be

B286

Comments noted.

Page 31; End of
Text
Sentence added
after bullet points:
‘’Continued
protection of
Hogsmill Valley and

205

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
specific use other than unclassified open space. It seems only sensible included in the revised document.
that intelligent, efficient use should be made of it.
4. Comments noted.
3. As there's a nice little river running through it, yes there should be
anti-flooding measures undertaken but plans should also include for a
river walk, perhaps a lake or two, cycle ways, wetlands and bird
watching areas. However, this land should be developed in an holistic
manner to house, school and provide workplaces for people. Get your
civil engineers to work out a scheme using SuDS -ask them, they might
have heard of it - for all development. I reckon there's sufficient flow to
operate a low-head water turbine so you could generate some
electricity. Persuade Thames to share some of the biogas they must be
collecting from their enclosed treatment process to generate electricity
for the homes, or just sell it 'over the fence'. This could be an
environmental haven, self-sufficient in energy - if it weren't for the
visuals of the treatment works.

its ecology’

4. Perhaps some of the land adjacent could be used to extend the
Kingsmeadow facility with more playing fields - definitely NOT a golf
course! There aren't enough fields for sports clubs and some decent
facilities would be beneficial to the community.
Martin Russell- What's the point of creating more jobs and housing for people who
Jones
immigrate to this country, millions want to come there will never be
appoint when you can provide for everyone.

Comment noted.

34

Mel

1. Comments noted.

1. I strongly disagree with the Council's almost sole focus on council
estates as the vehicle to deliver affordable housing and object to any
demolition without the majority of residents being in favour. So far
consultation has not been good, they had no say in whether they were
part of a housing zone, they have been told that refurbishment is not an
option. This does not bode well for the residents who are likely to suffer
if new mixed tenure homes are to replace their own homes (already
mixed tenure). This usually means far fewer genuinely affordable
council homes and much more near market and private. London Road
has great character, which is in danger of completely inappropriate
development. This is a great street and should not be the focus of
development if we are to retain architectural heritage and diversity and
keep creative small businesses.

B287

29

No change.

Page 16, Kingston
Places
Map update: New
2. Comments noted. Regarding the Hogsmill Valley,
this area will continue to be an important ecological and ‘place’ added for
‘Hogsmill Valley’
recreational asset to the council and any new access
opportunities would be assessed accordingly and
sensitive to existing ecology.
Page 31; End of
Text
Further reference to the importance of this asset will be Sentence added
after bullet points:
included in the revised document.
‘’Continued
protection of
Hogsmill Valley and
its ecology’

2. I am deeply concerned that 'better access for pedestrians and
cyclists to the Hogsmill Valley' will be major development and a strip of
green alongside the river. There is good access to the river already.

206

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
This is a beautiful and fragile habitat and important for natural drainage
from the floodplain.
36

Gloria Bassoli

I work on a site that borders the Hogsmill and several times have
witnessed the level of water rise enormously after rains, with disastrous
effects on the wildlife and the nesting areas on the hogsmill. I have
been told this is due to the excess water being released into the
Hogsmill from the treatment plant. This loss of habitat and wildlife is not
acceptable and a suitable alternative needs to be found.

Comment noted. The Hogsmill Valley will continue to be
an important ecological asset to the council which will
be protected accordingly. We also recognise that the
Local Plan must look at ways of managing and reducing
flood risk, which will include a review of its evidence
base on flood issues.

Page 16, Kingston
Places
Map update: New
‘place’ added for
‘Hogsmill Valley’

Page 31; End of
Further reference to the importance of this asset will be Text
included in the revised document.
Sentence added
after bullet points:
‘’Continued
protection of
Hogsmill Valley and
its ecology’
Derek Moss

The questions above are repeated from 1b and relate to Norbiton and
Cambridge Road, not Berrylands.

42

Paul Howlett

1. If development of the flood plain doesn't proceed, then expensive
flood attenuation works will not be needed either. Plan to build
somewhere that is not prone to natural events such as floods....it's not
rocket science.

Comment noted.

1. Comments noted. The council recognises that the
Local Plan must look at ways of managing and reducing
flood risk, which will include a review of its evidence
base on flood issues. The potential for flood alleviation
schemes is one of these options available, which
2. Reducing the effects of the odours from the sewage works will make through close working with the Environment Agency,
can help to protect homes, people and property whilst
this a much more attractive area to live. Not sure how people put up
increasing development opportunities within Kingston.
with it at present.
2. Comment noted regarding issues of odour from the
sewage works. Work will be undertaken to address
odour issues in the area.

No change.
Page 16, Kingston
Places
Map update: New
‘place’ added for
‘Hogsmill Valley’
Page 31; End of
Text
Sentence added
after bullet points:
‘’Continued
protection of
Hogsmill Valley and
its ecology’

45

Sheena Evans

Would need more detail about what is intended regarding new housing Comment noted.
and flood attenuation.

No change.

46

Dr Nazar Pola

No comment.

Comment noted.

No change.

48

Jacqueline
Hardie

NO.

Comment noted.

54

Joseph Asghar I've not looked at this and I judge you on past performance.

No change.
Comment noted.

No change.

207

B288

40

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
55

John McCarthy, no obs
Friends
Kingston
Museum &
Heritage
Service

Response notoed.

No change.

58

F. McDermott

Comment noted regarding flooding issues. The council
recognises that the Local Plan must look at ways of
managing and reducing flood risk, which will include a
review of its evidence base on flood issues. The
potential for flood alleviation schemes is one of these
options available, which through close working with the
Environment Agency, can help to protect homes,
people and property whilst increasing development
opportunities within Kingston.

Page 16, Kingston
Places
Map update: New
‘place’ added for
‘Hogsmill Valley’

Homes and businesses hardly ever flood because of the Hogsmill, even
during the last few years' increase in extreme weather conditions. The
Hogsmill valley is a flood plain - further building on this area would
simply exacerbate any existing problems.

Further reference to the importance of the Hogsmill
Valley will be included in the revised document.

J.Stevens

You don't need to change the green park along the Hogsmill. It is
already good access for families and children to play. Houses on the
green land would spoil the atmosphere of the area and put stress on
school places. There is already too many built up areas round Kingston.

Comment noted regarding Hogsmill Valley. The
Hogsmill Valley will continue to be an important
ecological and recreational asset to the council. Any
new access opportunities will be assessed accordingly
and sensitive to existing ecology.

Page 16, Kingston
Places
Map update: New
‘place’ added for
‘Hogsmill Valley’

Further reference to the importance of this asset will be Page 31; End of
included in the revised document.
Text
Sentence added
after bullet points:
‘’Continued
protection of
Hogsmill Valley and
its ecology’
65

Rob Robb

This lemming type belief in Cross Rail 2 . Its coming at too higher price.
we have grown up with direct trains to Waterloo people getting jobs in
the City and Canary Wharf etc, with direct connections from Waterloo
(the drain) and the Jubilee Line . Money for Cross Rail 2 could be spent
on updating the tunnels for the Waterloo and City Line and possibly
extending that. we are getting 10 car trains next year once the work at
Waterloo is complete and this is more use than cross rail 2. The new 30

Comments noted. Crossrail 2 as proposed, would offer No change.
a range of benefits for all users, including a more
regular service (a minimum of four trains per hour on
each line at all times of operation) connecting through
Central London. However, detailed proposals from
Crossrail 2 are yet to be decided. The Council will
actively plan for the arrival of Crossrail 2, although new

208

B289

59

Page 31; End of
Text
Sentence added
after bullet points:
‘’Continued
protection of
Hogsmill Valley and
its ecology’

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
trains an hour fed from branch lines far and wide and being fed into two growth in Kingston is not dependant on its delivery.
of the top four busiest stations Victoria and Paddington, how does that
make sense. Problems with doing away with level crossings. Our new
Prime Minister is questioning HS2 lets hope she has the sense to
question Cross rail 2. Lets get back down to earth and think of today’s
problems such as disabled access to our stations.
Alan Bennett

Berrylands will only ever be a minor station so unlikely to be much
demand for access along the hogsmill

Comment noted.

No change.

67

Natalie Crew

The Hogsmill treatment works odour desperately needs improving.

Comments noted. Work will be undertaken to address
odour issues in the area.

No change.

68

Alex GregorSmith

The odour from the sewage works sometimes goes way beyond the
Comments noted. Work will be undertaken to address
Hogsmill Valley, all the way into central Kingston. There is much newer odour issues in the area.
technology to combat this and investment is needed to replace it.

No change.

79

Frances Marsh I don't know this area well so won't comment - but I imagine "family
housing" will mean blocks of flats, badly designed and badly placed

Comments noted.

No change.

86

Leonora
Partridge

Comments noted. Work will be undertaken to address
odour issues in the area.

No change.

87

Peter Herlinger I do not feel that substantial new housing is sensible in an area that has Comments noted.
a lot of current open space.

No change.

88

Chris Stephens The Hogsmill sewage works "summer niffs" are the stuff of legends,
Thames water only pay lip service to this problem.

Comments noted. Work will be undertaken to address
odour issues in the area.

No change.

92

Marilyn Mason, Development on areas prone to flooding or intended for holding water
Chair, KEF
back, e g water meadows, should be avoided, and care should be
taken that flood mitigation/prevention schemes do not simply move
flooding elsewhere.

Comment noted. The council recognises that the Local
Plan must look at ways of managing and reducing flood
risk, which will include a review of its evidence base on
flood issues. The potential for flood alleviation schemes
is one of these options available, which through close
working with the Environment Agency, can help to
protect homes, people and property whilst increasing
development opportunities within Kingston.
Furthermore, proposed schemes will focus on
mitigating and reduce flooding as opposed to moving
the issue elsewhere.

Page 16, Kingston
Places
Map update: New
‘place’ added for
‘Hogsmill Valley’

1. All comments noted. The Council recognise that key
to facilitating and managing new growth in Kingston is
to ensure new investment and improvement in

Page 16, Kingston
Places
Map update: New

98

Janine Bellew

The odour from the sewage works at the moment is unacceptable. So
any improvements are urgent.

1. New homes - infrastructure needs to improve like the transport links
and leisure facilities.
Transport - frequent and faster links into London.

B290

66

Page 31; End of
Text
Sentence added
after bullet points:
‘’Continued
protection of
Hogsmill Valley and
its ecology’

209

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
New connections - more information required on how this will be
achieved.
2. Consolidation of Hogsmill Sewage Treatment Works - not sure what
this entails.
3. Reducing odour - Depending on cost.
4. When we moved to Berrylands we knew the treatment plant was
there so we can't complain Flooding - more detail required.

supporting infrastructure, including community/leisure
facilities and transport infrastructure. Crossrail 2 as
proposed, would play a major role in increasing the
connectivity of the Borough.

‘place’ added for
‘Hogsmill Valley’

Page 31; End of
Text
2. Comment noted regarding the Hogsmill Sewage
Sentence added
Treatment Works. As part of the local plan process, we after bullet points:
are looking into all options and ongoing future need of ‘’Continued
protection of
the Sewage Treatment Works.
Hogsmill Valley and
its ecology’
3. Comment noted regarding issues of odour from the
sewage works. Work will be undertaken to address
odour issues in the area.

99

Zbig Blonski

Who could disagree with any of this?!

Comment noted.

No change.

100

Barbara
Delamere

I do not know this area well so find it difficult to comment.

Comment noted.

No change.

102

David English

The Hogsmill Valley is a current APA and has the potential for
prehistoric, palaeoenvironmental and historic industrial archaeology.
Any developments along the Hogsmill should have archaeology as a
material consideration and be supported by an archaeological desk
based assessment and in some cases an archaeological field
evaluation.

Comments noted.

No change.

104

Martin Booth

No, see above

Response noted.

No change.

117

Stuart Hartley

Where is this substantial development going to occur. The lions share
of the photograph shows either housing or metropolitan open land. Is
the proposal to build on MOL?

Comment noted. The borough's strategic open spaces No change.
are important and valued assets, and in accordance
with the London Plan and national policy, will be
protected from inappropriate development. However,
we also recognise the need to undertake a review of
land as part of the local plan process in order to assess

B291

4. Comments noted regarding flooding. The council
recognises that the Local Plan must look at ways of
managing and reducing flood risk, which will include a
review of its evidence base on flood issues. The
potential for flood alleviation schemes is one of these
options available, which through close working with the
Environment Agency, can help to protect homes,
people and property whilst increasing development
opportunities within Kingston.

210

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
suitability going forward.
118

Lynne Finnerty Not being a Berrylands resident I do not feel in a position to comment
on some questions.

Response noted.

No change.

121

Pat Marchant

Density and quality of build are essential considerations for increased
housing.

Comment noted.

No change.

126

Jim Leason

Is this an area where a new school and other public services could be
provided. Can the Council enhance sporting/leisure facilities,
particularly linking to Kingsmeadow to create centres of excellence for
particular sports?

Comments noted. The Council recognise that key to
facilitating and managing new growth is to ensure new
investment and improvement in supporting
infrastructure, including community facilities such as
schools, healthcare and leisure facilities. The detail of
these requirements will be considered at a later stage
of the Local Plan process.

No change.

131

Hilary Gander

What does 'Consolidation of the Hogsmill Sewage Treatment Works'
mean??? 'New connections through the Hogsmill Valley to Berrylands
Station' should stay as pedestrian / cycle only. Green space must be
preserved. New homes and family housing, yes, but can't support carte
blanche without knowing some detail of what is proposed / where.

Comments noted. Regarding the Hogsmill Sewage
Treatment Works, as part of the local plan process, we
are looking into all options and ongoing future need of
the Sewage Treatment Works.

Page 16, Kingston
Places
Map update: New
‘place’ added for
‘Hogsmill Valley’

132

Fiona Meaney

Road connections to be improved and included

Comments noted.

No change.

138

Sharon
Nelhams

As before, elderly, disabled and vulnerable individuals to be homed
Comments noted.
first. Especially for elderly, who may require care. (look at your existing
borough policy and promote those who require help) The hogsmill
requires better access for nordic walkers (attending there over last six
years) better maintenance of wildlife areas. Again review and yes
existing disused over land rail tracks, recycle!! In this area there is room
to build homes.

No change.

141

Michele Salter

What flooding is that then?

Page 16, Kingston
Places
Map update: New
‘place’ added for

Comment noted. The area has previously experience
flooding issues. The council recognises that the Local
Plan must look at ways of managing and reducing flood
risk, which will include a review of its evidence base on

211

B292

Page 31; End of
Text
Sentence added
after bullet points:
‘’Continued
protection of
Hogsmill Valley and
its ecology’

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
flood issues.

‘Hogsmill Valley’
Page 31; End of
Text
Sentence added
after bullet points:
‘’Continued
protection of
Hogsmill Valley and
its ecology’

142

Caroline
Cheales

1. Again this is predicated on the assumption that crossrail 2
progresses as planned and is not paused or significantly delayed. I
support new homes in the area but would want some quantification of
substantial. this suggests that the open land will be at risk from new
developments and once lost it can never be reprovided. there should be
no net loss of MOL space.

2. The council agrees that growth must be balanced
with the need to enhance the natural environment and
protection of biodiversity.
3. Comment noted regarding Hogsmill Valley. The
Hogsmill Valley will continue to be an important
ecological and recreational asset to the Council. Any
new access opportunities would be assessed
accordingly and sensitive to existing ecology.

Page 16, Kingston
Places
Map update: New
‘place’ added for
‘Hogsmill Valley’
Page 31; End of
Text
Sentence added
after bullet points:
‘’Continued
protection of
Hogsmill Valley and
its ecology’

3. I disagree with the new connections through the hogsmill valley to
berrylands station, without some further information about what routes
are planned. I would support a new link from Cambridge / Kingston
Further reference to the importance of this asset will be
Roads to the industrial areas and to the station but these would need to included in the revised document.
avoid an unreasonable encroachment on the little parcels of open land
that remain in Kingston. I cannot support the consolidation of the
sewage treatment works without evidence that this is possible and
sustainable in the long term. The amount of this sort of infrastructure
has reduced considerably in recent decades and this whole plan is
based on substantial growth with the inevitable pressure on
water/sewage infrastructure. how can we both shrink the footprint to
make space for development and cater for it? I cannot support flood
attenuation without a commitment that this engineering works does not
decimate the natural environment.
149

Dave Ryder-

The last point is the most vital and I suspect the most difficult to achieve Comments noted. The council recognises that the Local No change.

212

B293

2. There should be a policy commitment to enhance the natural
environment and to balance development and access with biodiversity.
this is may appear to be a scruffy area, but it supports significant
populations of at risk species. any development should not drive this
out but accommodate it. therefore any development should be
sustainable in the widest sense of the word. there is also a requirement,
not stated here, to improve the water quality of the hogsmill and natural
riverside habitats.

1. All comments noted. The Borough's strategic open
spaces are important and valued assets, and in
accordance with the London Plan and national policy,
will be protected from inappropriate development.
However, we also recognise the need to undertake a
review of land as part of the local plan process in order
to assess suitability going forward.

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
Mills

to a high enough quality. The current situation is increasingly untenable
in the future for at least 2 reasons. The current capacity for the total
amount of water passing through the works is too close to capacity
without even considering either increased pressure from additional
infrastructure and housing in the catchment or the intensity of extreme
weather events due to the effects of climate change. The level of
"misconnections" to the current sewerage system is dangerously
unacceptable. Attempts to eliminate odour have been and only ever will
be partially achievable.

Plan must look at ways of managing and reducing flood
risk, which will include a review of its evidence base on
flood issues. The potential for flood alleviation schemes
is one of these options available, which through close
working with the Environment Agency, can help to
protect homes, people and property whilst increasing
development opportunities within Kingston.

150

Elaine RyderMills

Any new homes need to be built remembering this is a flood zone and
that is why it isn't built on.

Comment noted.

No change.

151

Neil Riley

The proposal lacks any detail about the extent of the new homes to be
developed and it appears to remove any green space remaining in this
area.

Comment noted. This detail will be worked through at a
later stage of the Local Plan process. Regarding green
space, a review will be undertaken into the suitability of
land across the Borough's strategic open spaces, but
overall the council is committed to protecting and
enhancing green space from inappropriate
development.

Page 16, Kingston
Places
Map update: New
‘place’ added for
‘Hogsmill Valley’

L. Hebbourn

Important to maximise ecological potential of Hogsmill area.

Comment noted. Further reference to the importance of Page 16, Kingston
this asset will be included in the revised document.
Places
Map update: New
‘place’ added for
‘Hogsmill Valley’
Page 31; End of
Text
Sentence added
after bullet points:
‘’Continued
protection of
Hogsmill Valley and
its ecology’

155

Hazel Farrow

Priority should be affordable family housing in keeping with traditional

Comment noted.

No change.

213

B294

154

Page 31; End of
Text
Sentence added
after bullet points:
‘’Continued
protection of
Hogsmill Valley and
its ecology’

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
Merrylands architecture.
158

Paul Sloan

1. The proposed transport improvements are woefully inadequate in the
context of the massive developments proposed. Already we have
50,000m2 of proposed retail space with no concrete and meaningful
public transport proposals to handle the increased influx from
Kingston's hinterland which extends well into Sury. Public transport
access from the South and South West is particularly poor. These
proposals are lightweight window dressing, pr and spin for the masses.
While developers reap the profits, residents will suffer dearly in
decades to come from the wholly inadequate transport infrastructure
proposed.

1. All comments noted. The Council recognises that key No change.
to facilitating and managing new growth is to ensure
new investment and improvement in supporting
infrastructure, including transport infrastructure such as
investments in Crossrail 2, bus services and cycling
infrastructure (via the Go Cycle scheme), providing
residents with a much wider choice of transport options
whilst reducing car reliance. Development of
comprehensive integrated transport facilities are in the
early stages of development with key partners such as
Transport for London and Network Rail.

B295

The lack of other transport infrastructure apart from Crossrail 2 (CR2) is
the most worrying thing. Way more than Surbiton to Waterloo peak
2. Comment noted regarding issues of odour from the
hour express trains getting the chop. CR2 only shoves extra trains
sewage works. Work will be undertaken to address
down existing track and offers only the most marginal improvement in
odour issues in the area.
connectivity ( a new route from Tooting to Kingston). Links to Kingston's
southern and south-western hinterlands are poor, and these need to be
addressed BEFORE any significant development is approved. NorthSouth public transport infrastructure is woefully inadequate as is, never
mind the aftermath of significant development. The bus densities
support light rail on many routes already. CR2 on it’s own is not enough
to meet Kingston’s public transport needs.
I seek assurances that hard analysis will be performed to identify
Kingston’s current and future public transport needs, taking into
account likely future residential and commercial developments. The
London Mayor’s London 2050 report emphasises that the projected
population growth of Outer London boroughs would generate transport
needs that can not be met using congested road networks. Accordingly,
I seek proposals on how you would seek to integrate CR2 investment
with any future tram or express busway schemes. Particularly on the
overlooked and frankly pathetic North-South transport links through
Kingston borough. I understand that CR2 has been planned on the
basis of 2043 London population projections. These projections have
been revised sharply upwards in the subsequent 2050 London
population projections. I seek assurances that this once in a hundred
years scheme for Kingston has sufficient capacity to cater for the most
recent and upper end population projections. To predicate the building
of 10,000's new homes in Chessington/Tolworth on the basis of a mere
2 more trains an hour is inadequate

214

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

2. Berrylands and New Malden residents have suffered for decades
from these sewage works. THE HEAD OF THAMES WATER, PRIVY
TO THE LATEST SEWAGE TECHNOLOGY, HAS PREVIOUSLY
OBJECTED TO HOUSING CLOSE TO THE SEWAGE WORKS,
SAYING THAT THE TWO ARE NOT COMPATIBLE. I AGREE. There
should either be nothing but housing on the current sewage works site,
or retention of the sewage works at no greater size or capacity than
exists at the minute.
Richard Ware

All as comments 1a and 1b

Comments noted.

No change.

163

Diane Watling

A full appraisal with the EA should be sought before any decisions on
new homes in the Hogsmill Valley which is part of a natural flood plain.
Effects on the Hogsmill river need to be considered. 80% of the river
flow at Middle Mill comes via the sewerage works, and therefore a full
appraisal of future expansion of the sewerage processing capability of
the works in dealing with growing borough need will need to be sought.
The discharge into the river is intermittently polluted and the river can
be in a bad way for days after. I am part of the KU biodiversity team
who monitors aquatic species at Middle Mill. Sometimes the level of
sewerage pollution is bad. Wading through the river to check the eel
trap during these times is worrying!

Comment noted regarding development on the
floodplain. The Council recognises that the Local Plan
must look at ways of managing and reducing flood risk,
which will include a review of its evidence base on flood
issues. The potential for flood alleviation schemes is
one of these options available, which through close
working with the Environment Agency, can help to
protect homes, people and property whilst increasing
development opportunities within Kingston.

Page 16, Kingston
Places
Map update: New
‘place’ added for
‘Hogsmill Valley’

Don't build on it. Leave it as a natural flood plain and make the entire
area into a nature reserve.

Comment noted. Further reference to the importance of Page 16, Kingston
the Hogsmill Valley will be included in the revised
Places
document.
Map update: New
‘place’ added for
‘Hogsmill Valley’

164

Marian Ellis

Further reference to the importance of the Hogsmill
Valley will be included in the revised document.

Page 31; End of
Text
Sentence added
after bullet points:
‘’Continued
protection of
Hogsmill Valley and
its ecology’

Page 31; End of
Text
Sentence added
after bullet points:
‘’Continued
protection of
Hogsmill Valley and
its ecology’
165

Claire Harrison I live overlooking the Hogsmill Valley - from my window I can see
Addison Gardens allotments, and the water treatment works. By day

Comment noted. The protection of the Hogsmill Valley, Page 16, Kingston
ecologically and recreationally, continues to be a key
Places

215

B296

161

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

166

James Giles

many species of birds have been reported in this untouched wildlife
corridor - green sandpiper, teal, shoveler, little egret, gadwall and
kestrel, many of which are RSPB amber or red status, living alongside
the cormorants, swans, Canada geese, moorhens and coots. At night,
without the street lights of developed roads, there are several species
of bats. I have been told that the Lower Marsh Lane hedgerows are the
oldest and longest in the borough, adding to one of the most biodiverse
areas in London. The space should be protected, not managed and
offered up to the public as yet another drab, unaffordable housing
development (see Queenshurst or the Kingston Riverside Complex)
and a riverside walk with sanitised paths and managed wetland areas
with crowds of people and pets and a litter problem (see the Charter
Quay Artificial Wetland Areas).

priority for the Council. We will seek to ensure that
growth opportunities would be assessed accordingly
and sensitive to existing ecology.

Social housing?!?

Comment noted.

Map update: New
‘place’ added for
‘Hogsmill Valley’

Further reference to the importance of this asset will be Page 31; End of
included in the revised document.
Text
Sentence added
after bullet points:
‘’Continued
protection of
Hogsmill Valley and
its ecology’
No change.

The following consultees submitted a response but did not comment specifically on Question 1(c) of the survey.
Name

ID

Name

ID

Name

2

Denise Thompson

62

Pam Walsh

115

J. Wheeler

3

Peter Watson

63

Peter Mason

116

Johanne Molloy

4

Ken Thompson

64

Joseph Asghar

119

Iain Martin MSc CMILT

5

Nigel Randall

69

Kevin White

120

Mo Sehra

7

Kathrin Siguda

70

Howard Robinson

122

H. Wollinger

9

Douglas Sampson

71

Charmian Bourne

123

Chris Coleman

10

Eunhyun Song

72

Carl Jackson

124

Pippa Billingsley

13

Matthew Kyte

73

Deborah Dunning

125

Mark Blewett

14

Sara Redmond

74

Stanley R. Spires

127

Pat Cann

15

Shailesh Patel

75

Peter Topp

128

Tim Westlake

16

Paul Cook

76

Howard Sheppard

129

Tim Westlake

17

Lisa Ross

77

Judith Symons

130

Deborah Da Silva

21

Lucy Symons

78

Keith Keen

133

Yvonne Walsh

19

Maryka Sennema

80

Annie Kay

134

Lee Hendra

B297

ID

216

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
Anthony Johannsen

81

Mr Stephen Heil

135

Agnieszka

26

Felicia Green

82

Lesley Steel

136

John Pearson

27

Graham Tucker

83

Andrew Compton

137

Zoe Leeds

28

Alison Fure

84

Maureen Ellis

139

Cashel Riordan

30

Mr Bal Badesha

85

Karen Carman

140

Julian Oldfield

31

Mr Aziz Bawany

89

Ross Anthony, Theatres Trust

143

Stewart Dickson

32

Andy Watters

90

Andrew Summersgill

144

Linda Skilbeck

33

Alistair Glen

91

A. Sadeghi

145

Judith Royle

35

Stephanie Russell

93

James

146

Sue May

37

E. John

94

Sara Vincent

147

Dominic Bull

38

Imran Benson

95

Gay Richardson

148

Helen Thrush

39

Saleh

96

James Fennell (Nathaniel Lichfield & Partners) 152

Janice Yeadon

41

G. T. Knight

97

Simon Jakeman

153

Adrian Wheeler

43

Carlos

101

Mr M.Gascoigne

152

Janice Yeadon

44

Steve

103

Dan

153

Adrian Wheeler

47

Alvaro

105

Tony Lancaster

159

Jonathan Fray

49

A. Chandler

106

Gemma Cusworth

160

Anne Oram

50

Martyn

107

John Edwards

162

Simon Munk

51

Des McRow

108

Daniel Wain

167

Kerry Giles

52

B. Walker

109

Katherine Jones

168

David Giles

53

Robert Wyeth

110

Carl Jackson

169

Marc Tracey

56

Phil Edwards

111

Peta Schaverien

170

Yvonne Tracey

57

Fred Ashmore

112

Rebeca Alamo

171

James Giles on behalf of MICO

60

Alex

113

Mr A. Greene

172

Carole & Michael Statham-Fletcher

61

J. Langridge

114

Marguerite Bowers Clark

B298

23

Question 1(d) - New Malden
ID

Respondent

Question 1(d) - Do you have any comments?

RBK Response

Document
Update

217

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
6

S. Guess

Empty office tower blocks near NM station already?

10

Eunhyun Song To what extend you could make the recent Korean contribution to
the local development and economy more prominent in your
proposals and giving us a voice? we are concerns that conservators
views and NIMBY are preventing further development and
regeneration. We need strong political lead.

Comments noted. The Council recognises the significant
No change.
contribution that the Korean community make to the Borough.
We currently engaged with various Korean community
organisations and will aim to widen this communication in the
future.

15

Shailesh Patel

1. Comments noted regarding the Malden Centre. The
No change.
Council is currently working on an indoor facilities review and
strategy setting out need over the short and medium term. It
is expected that the current facility will require significant
enhancement to meet the needs of a growing population. In
this respect the council is looking at options to improving the
offer at the Malden Centre as a new leisure and community
hub, which is coming to the end of its life as a fit for purpose
leisure centre. Detailed work will be required after the
adoption of the SPD to ensure the deliverability of any new
facility.

1. New Malden Leisure centre needs to remain and expand the
facilities perhaps by extending upwards. It is the only decent pool in
the Borough and I strongly believe it needs improvement. If space
can be found in the Borough for a 50m pool, then that would be
great and serve the residents well in improving general health.
2. New Malden High Street - the lights along the centre of the high
st. need to come out as they have caused no amount of misery
since they were installed and has worsened air quality as traffic
struggles to get through. Right turn from Blagdon Road on to the
Hight St. needs to be reinstated and similarly from Cocks Crescent
to Blagdon Road, to avoid traffic doubling up on itself. It will also
ease general traffic congestion and help improve air quality.

David Watkins

1. You can't disagree with these vague intentions.
2. Sort out the Fountain roundabout (hopefully the Go Cycle will do
so).
3. Cocks Crescent sounds like it's been on the agenda for years, will
this ever come to fruition? By the fact that the wording includes 'with
enabling residential and commercial development' sounds to me like
this won't happen until some private company comes along to fund
the entire thing out of profits from his 'residential and commercial
development'.
The rest is just a vague ambition that something will happen
alongside CR2. This is NOT a plan!
What are you doing about encouraging tenants for the vacant space
in the two office towers at the station? If you can't keep those
occupied, how do you intend to gain beneficial use out of future 'over
station development'?

No change.

2. Comments noted regarding New Malden High Street. Any
future development in New Malden will be expected to
reinforce and strengthen the High Street's vitality and
attractiveness. Similarly, movement of traffic will also be
investigated in the area as part of any future regeneration.
1. Comment noted. Please note that the document is
intended to be high-level at this early stage of the local plan
process, providing the Council's 'Statement of Intent'. The
detail and deliverability of new growth strategies will be
developed and consulted upon in later stages of the local
plan process.

B299

25

Comment noted.

No change.

2. Comment noted. The proposed layout of the Fountain
Roundabout is intended to both optimise traffic management
and improve safety for pedestrians, cyclists and motorists.
Feedback from local residents to the summer 2016 public
consultation for Fountain Roundabout will help shape our
decisions for the future of the fountain.
3. Comment noted. An SPD for Cocks Crescent is has also
recently been consulted on. Once adopted it will be a material
consideration for any planning application received for the

218

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
site.
4. What is your intention for the future of this area? What new
commerce are you seeking to attract and what are you doing about
making that happen? Would I be right in guessing 'nothing'?
What exactly does 'improved connectivity from the station to
Kingston Hill Campus' mean? Add another bus route? If there were
sufficient demand the University would provide such out of its' own
bus fleet. So you must mean easier walking or cycling routes. Why
not state that simply and clearly? It doesn't improve clarity by using
obscure planning techno-speke in a document seeking public
comment! None of this section means a hill of beans.

27

Graham Tucker I do not know enough about New Malden to comment.

28

4. Comment noted. Please note that the document is
intended to be high-level at this early stage of the local plan
process, providing the Council's 'Statement of Intent'. It aims
to provide alignment of local strategic planning policy, the
London Plan, and Kingston's growth agenda, as well as the
broad context in which the new Borough Local Plan needs to
be planned.
The detail and deliverability of new growth strategies, as well
as the Local Plan evidence base, will be developed and
consulted upon in later stages of the local plan process.
Comment noted.

No change.

Alison Fure

The projects carried out in New Malden haven't been that successful Comment noted.
have they. Now we are faced with losing the Fountain!!!

No change.

34

Mel

Concerned about any further loss of green space at Blagdon Road

No change.

42

Paul Howlett

1. Redevelopment of Cocks Crescent area can't proceed unless
there is more than one way to exit the area. At the moment it feeds
only into the High Street, which at rush hour only allows 1-2 cars
through the traffic lights at a time.

Comment noted. There will be no net loss of open space at
Blagdon Road.

B300

1, 2, 3 and 4. Comments noted regarding issues of traffic and No change.
parking in the New Malden area. Parking is being
investigated in the area - there is a need for revised parking
arrangements to support future economic viability etc. These
issues will be subject to assessment in relation to new
2. Traffic problems on the road to Worcester Park and the Fountains development in New Malden going forward.
roundabout need to be solved. New Malden Station is very high
already, so a development over it won't give much volume compared 4. Comment noted regarding connectivity between New
to the intrusion on surrounding buildings
Malden and Kingston Hill Campus.
3. The High Street would be more attractive if you didn't have to
shop only in Waitrose to get free parking there - how about 1 hour
free parking, plus the same deal at the Blagdon Road car park?
4. The Blagdon road car park must be retained or replaced by
another car park.
5. There isn't an easy way to give improved connectivity from New
Malden to the Kingston Hill Campus as there is no direct route there
by road. This would be achieved much more easily from Norbiton
(and is already by one of the K buses: so maybe make that K bus

219

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
more frequent or extend some of the other K buses to terminate at
the campus rather than the hospital)
Sheena Evans

New Malden would certainly benefit from better arrangements for
pedestrians and cyclists. Would need more detail on Cocks
Crescent and improved connectivity proposals.

Comment noted. The council places significant emphasis on
the future role of both walking and cycling in Kingston, and
we recognise the need to ensure the safety of both road
users through appropriate segregation.

No change.

46

Dr Nazar Pola

no comment

Response noted.

No change.

55

John McCarthy, no obs
Friends
Kingston
Museum &
Heritage
Service

Response noted.

No change.

58

F. McDermott

Further meaningless generalized aspirational statements, designed Comment noted.
to sell a scheme! If the scheme is a good one, it should not need this
kind of marketing.

No change.

65

Rob Robb

This lemming type belief in Cross Rail 2 . Its coming at too higher
price. we have grown up with direct trains to Waterloo people getting
jobs in the City and Canary Wharf etc, with direct connections from
Waterloo (the drain) and the Jubilee Line . Money for Cross Rail 2
could be spent on updating the tunnels for the Waterloo and City
Line and possibly extending that. we are getting 10 car trains next
year once the work at Waterloo is complete and this is more use
than cross rail 2. The new 30 trains an hour fed from branch lines far
and wide and being fed into two of the top four busiest stations
Victoria and Paddington, how does that make sense. Our new Prime
Minister is questioning HS2 lets hope she has the sense to question
Cross rail 2. Lets get back down to earth and think of todays
problems such as disabled access to our stations.

No change.

66

Alan Bennett

No obvious way of connecting Kingston Hill Campus to New Malden Comment noted.
station. Link to Raynes Park could make more sense.

67

Natalie Crew

Cocks Crescent should development should have at its heart a new
community leisure centre and better and larger swimming pool to
reflect the borough's competitive swimming teams, and this should
be a condition of any development. The existing pool must stay open
during any building works or more than 300 children will have no
access to swimming lessons or training. Other boroughs in London
have far better swimming pool provision than Kingston, despite us
having a large swimming population. Over the years the council has

Comment noted. Crossrail 2 as proposed, would offer a
range of benefits for all users, including a more regular
service (a minimum of four trains per hour on each line at all
times of operation) connecting through Central London.
However, detailed proposals from Crossrail 2 are yet to be
decided. The Council will actively plan for the arrival of
Crossrail 2, although new growth in Kingston is not
dependant on its delivery.

B301

45

No change.

Comments noted. The council is currently working on an
No change.
indoor facilities review and strategy setting out need over the
short and medium term. It is expected that the current facility
will require significant enhancement to meet the needs of a
growing population. In this respect the council is looking at
options to improving the offer at the Malden Centre as a new
leisure and community hub, which is coming to the end of its
life as a fit for purpose leisure centre. Detailed work will be

220

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
historically closed several borough pools to redevelop as housing,
and has yet to deliver on its promise to bring us in line with other
london boroughs in our pool provision.
78

Keith Keen

1. Improvements to the High Street and links to the Cock's Crescent 1. Comment noted regarding the High Street Post Office
No change.
developments should not necessitate the removal of the iconic High building. There are currently no plans to remove this building.
Street Post Office building.
Furthermore, Any future development in New Malden will be
expected to reinforce and strengthen the High Street's vitality
2. Train Station improvements should be limited to those necessary and attractiveness.
to deliver the Crossrail 2 service.
2. Comment noted regarding station improvements.
3. Development in New Malden should anticipate and consider the
implications of a possible closure of the Elm Road level crossing at
all stages.

79

3. We now have 700 student places along Kingston Road and this is
going to mean a huge increase in the amount of traffic, more buses
from the Campus to the accommodation and if the New Malden
Roundabout disappears, where do the buses turn or does it mean
that we have even more of a blockage on the road.
4. Your last question is absolutely meaningless. What are the key
neighbourhood services you are talking about, because there
doesn't seem to be any mention of these services in all the new
developments that have been taking place.
Lesley Steel

Why do we need a new town square? St Georges Square is only
ever used as a community venue during Malden Fortnight

3. Comment noted regarding the Elm Road level crossing.

1. Comments noted. This is an issue recognised by the
No change.
Council. Any future development in New Malden will be
expected to reinforce and strengthen the High Street's vitality
and attractiveness.
2. Comments noted. The focus of new office development is
the quality of office stock, which is not currently fit for purpose
for modern working requirements. Therefore, new
development is essential in some cases to meet the
current/future needs of businesses across the borough and to
support our town and district centres.

B302

Frances Marsh 1. Has anyone who had a hand in writing this document, ever visited
New Malden. And I am sick and tired of Kingston Council, in all
seriousness, telling us that we have a "thriving and attractive New
Malden High Street". It is failing and instead of helping the High
Street, the Council can't and won't do anything. I am helping run the
New Malden Farmers' Market - first Saturday every month - and if
we do not get "bums on seats" so to speak, we go up and down the
High Street handing out notices or with some sort of advertising. In
many instances, the High Street is dead.
2. Kingston Council have been allowing the conversion of office
space into residential space for the past number of years. How is
this helping increase the number of local jobs.

82

required after the adoption of the SPD to ensure the
deliverability of any new facility.

3. Comments noted regarding traffic issues.
4. Comments noted regarding community facilities. The
Council recognise that key to facilitating and managing new
growth in Kingston is to ensure new investment and
improvement in supporting infrastructure, including
community facilities such as schools and healthcare. The
detail of these requirements will be considered at a later
stage of the local plan process.

Comment noted. The town square was identified as an
aspiration though the Cocks Crescent SPD consultation

No change.

221

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
process. The appropriateness of this square and whether it
works in this location must be demonstrated through any
future design and planning application process.
86

Leonora
Partridge

I would stress again that as a pedestrian, I do not want to be on a
path/ road shared with cyclists. I am a public transport user and
would welcome more bus routes and buses.

88

Chris Stephens 1. Over the last decades New Malden High Street has been totally
ruined. Horrible black lamp standards that should have been painted
white or green, and many years of shoddy roadworks patching up
initial bad workmanship on the cheap. Ask the traders how much
money they've lost over the years. You have a strong wind tunnel
between the two tower blocks by the station, any more development
there will make that worse.

3. The town also has the largest South Korean ex pat community in
Europe, but they refuse to integrate into the local community.

No change.

1. Comments noted regarding New Malden High Street. Any
future development in New Malden will be expected to
reinforce and strengthen the High Street's vitality and
attractiveness.

No change.

2. The current Fountain Roundabout, funded by Rotary, dates
from the early 1980s and is made from fibreglass. The
original stone Fountain was destroyed in early 1930s in a
traffic accident. The Council currently investigating the
relocation of the Fountain to a location more sympathetic to
the original design.

B303

2.This latest nonsense of scrapping the Fountain roundabout is
plainly ridiculous with a no right turn into Burlington road. The
fountain in the middle of the roundabout was designed and built by
the local Rotary Club in 1931, and there are no plans to re-locate it.
It's a scandal and should be stopped immediately. Every year the
high street has to go begging cap in hand to Kingston for money to
put Christmas lights up.

Comment noted. The council places significant emphasis on
the future role of both walking and cycling in Kingston, and
we recognise the need to ensure the safety of both road
users through appropriate segregation. Key to achieving this
vision is the delivery of the Go Cycle Programme, whereby
the Council received over £30 million of funding from the
Mayor of London and TfL to deliver improvements to cycling
facilities and road safety.

3. Comment noted. The Council recognises the significant
contribution that the Korean community make to the Borough.
We currently engage with various Korean community
organisations and will aim to widen this communication in the
future.

4. Comment noted. New Malden is identified as an 'Area of
4. What is being done to prevent this town within a town situation? It Opportunity' capable of new growth on account of its
is high time that New Malden was given a higher status.
transport accessibility, proximity to centres and regeneration
opportunity.
90

Andrew
Summersgill

1. The area around New Malden Station is in serious need of
renovation.
2. The high street could also benefit from improvements in
pedestrian access and road crossings.

1. Comment noted regarding the New Malden station area.

No change.

2. Comment noted. Any future development in New Malden
will be expected to reinforce and strengthen the High Street's
vitality and attractiveness.

222

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
91

A. Sadeghi

New Malden could do with far less betting shops, estate agents and
Charity Shops but could benefit from small scale high street shops

Comment noted. Any future development in New Malden will
be expected to reinforce and strengthen the High Street's
vitality and attractiveness.

95

Gay
Richardson

1. With regards to Cocks Crescent. If this means the closure of the
Leisure Centre which is vital to New Malden Residents then this
should not be used for new housing unless a new Leisure Centre is
also built. Why shut a very busy Leisure Centre. With the
Government promoting health and fitness why should we lose our
leisure centre.

1. Comments noted. The council is currently working on an
No change.
indoor facilities review and strategy setting out need over the
short and medium term. It is expected that the current facility
will require significant enhancement to meet the needs of a
growing population. In this respect the council is looking at
options to improving the offer at the Malden Centre as a new
leisure and community hub, which is coming to the end of its
life as a fit for purpose leisure centre. Detailed work will be
required after the adoption of the SPD to ensure the
deliverability of any new facility.

2. If new homes are being built then parking for the residents needs
to be factor in. New flats were developed from the offices over
McDonalds with not a thought for where the residents would park
their cars

No change.

98

Janine Bellew

I don't live in New Malden so I cannot comment however I use the
Comments noted. The council is currently working on an
No change.
Malden Centre which is a great leisure facility and I would like to see indoor facilities review and strategy setting out need over the
it stay where it is.
short and medium term. It is expected that the current facility
will require significant enhancement to meet the needs of a
growing population. In this respect the council is looking at
options to improving the offer at the Malden Centre as a new
leisure and community hub, which is coming to the end of its
life as a fit for purpose leisure centre. Detailed work will be
required after the adoption of the SPD to ensure the
deliverability of any new facility.

99

Zbig Blonski

1. Redevelopment of Cocks Crescent to support a new community
hub with enabling residential and commercial development, agree
very strongly with this but this is not what the draft SPD says and it
should!

B304

2. Comments noted regarding parking in the New Malden
area. Parking is being investigated in the area - there is a
need for revised parking arrangements to support future
economic viability etc. These issues will be subject to
thorough assessment in relation to new development in New
Malden going forward.

1. Comments noted. The council is currently working on an
No change.
indoor facilities review and strategy setting out need over the
short and medium term. It is expected that the current facility
will require significant enhancement to meet the needs of a
growing population. In this respect the council is looking at
options to improving the offer at the Malden Centre as a new
2. Flooding and drainage is still a major issue and the works by
Thames Water along the Cut through to Raynes Park may deal with leisure and community hub.
water supply leakage issues but not sure about drainage. This will
be very important if all of this development is to take place. There
2. Comments noted regarding flooding. The council

223

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
are apparently a lot of drains that have been disconnected in the
area and this leads to flooding.

recognises that the Local Plan must look at ways of
managing and reducing flood risk, which will include a review
of its evidence base on flood issues. The potential for flood
3. Presumably an update Infrastructure Study is being carried out in alleviation schemes is one of these options available, which
tandem with the preparation of the new local plan and this should be through close working with the Environment Agency, can help
a major priority for New Malden. Surprisingly there is no mention of to protect homes, people and property whilst increasing
development opportunities within Kingston.
connectivity and traffic problems, Go Cycling proposals and
Fountain roundabout proposals.
3. Comments noted. The SPD has been prepared to enable
any scheme to have the flexibility to ensure that there is
sufficient scope for a new facility to be constructed before the
old Malden Centre closes. Detailed work will be required after
the adoption of the SPD to ensure the deliverability of any
new facility.
100

Barbara
Delamere

1. I welcome any revitalisation of New Malden but do not support the
scale of development which has been proposed in various areas.
I strongly oppose high rise developments which do not add to the
character of the area but actively detract from it.

No change.

B305

2. Careful attention needs to be paid to the type of developments in
this family orientated area. I also deplore the current trend to forget
about green space with flats to squeeze in more units. There it is
ridiculous to build 3 bed ' family apartments ' with nowhere even to
park a pram or hang a bit of washing. We are a suburb, with the
pluses and minuses that go with it not an inner metropolitan area

1. Comments noted regarding the scale of development and
building heights. In accordance with the London Plan, the
council's approach to tall buildings will be based on a
strategic basis in appropriate town centre locations as a
potential measure to achieve higher densities and growth
targets. However, taller buildings will need to consider how
they positively and sensitively optimise development plots
whilst enhancing the unique character of both the local area
and the wider protected key views.
2. Comment noted regarding the need to carefully consider
the typology and size of new housing.

102

David English

Generally low archaeological risk as currently outside any
archaeological priority areas.

Comment noted

No change.

104

Martin Booth

No, see above.

Response noted.

No change.

118

Lynne Finnerty 1. It is extremely disappointing that such an important document
such as this - which is a statement of intent and will be adopted by
the GLA to provide supplementary planning to London Plan policies
- should contain maps showing the incorrect location of New Malden
railway station.

1. Comments noted. Thank you for raising this issue. The
station location will be amended in the revised document.

Page 14, 16, 22,
24
Map update:
Station locations
2. Comments noted. The Council recognise that key to
facilitating and managing new growth in Kingston is to ensure amended
new investment and improvement in supporting
2. No question is asked regarding 'supporting new infrastructure
infrastructure, including community facilities such as schools Pages 27, 29, 31,
including school places, open space and transport improvements'. In and healthcare.
33, 35, 37; End
particular there is no mention of school place planning which would
of Text
be required with intensification, especially as New Malden has been Please note that the document is intended to be high-level at Sentence added
identified as an 'immediate' opportunity for growth.
after bullet
this early stage of the local plan process, providing the

224

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

10. Comments noted regarding green infrastructure and air
13. Any development should ensure accommodation caters for the pollution.
increasing ageing population, e.g.assisted living and extra care, plus

225

B306

Council's 'Statement of Intent'. The detail and deliverability of points: ‘We
new growth strategies will be developed and consulted upon recognise that
3. There is no mention of the LSIS - St.John's industrial estate.
new growth must
in later stages of the local plan process.
be balanced with
4. This survey does not make it clear that improved frequency of rail
the unique
3.
Comment
noted
regarding
the
LSIS.
service will be to London generally and the existing Waterloo service
heritage and
reduced.
character of the
4. Comment noted regarding rail services to London.
Borough’.
5. What share of the Mayoral CIL derived from Crossrail 2 will
benefit New Malden?
5. Comment noted regarding Mayoral CIL. At present time,
the entire Mayoral CIL funding is focused on Crossrail.
Page 18; Last
6. Redevelopment of Cocks Crescent to support a new community
paragraph.
hub with enabling residential and commercial development should
6. Comment noted. The council is currently working on an
Sentence added:
be specified in the Cocks Crescent SPD.
indoor facilities review and strategy setting out need over the
‘Note that the
short and medium term. It is expected that the current facility
OLC Report also
7. It has been established that New Malden residents value its sense will require significant enhancement to meet the needs of a
states, “there is
growing
population.
In
this
respect
the
council
is
looking
at
of place. The town centre is still referred by many as 'the village'.
no one size fits
options to improving the offer at the Malden Centre as a new
all solution for
leisure and community hub, which is coming to the end of its
8. Landmarks already exist in the form of the Memorial located
town centre
life as a fit for purpose leisure centre. Detailed work will be
adjacent to the red brick former town hall building and the fountain
renewal?
required after the adoption of the SPD to ensure the
located adjacent to the red brick former police station. New Malden
Redevelopment,
deliverability of any new facility.
does not require any 'wayfinding' landmarks in the form of high
so any
storied buildings. Therefore a height limit should be specified in the
intensification
7. Comment noted.
Cocks Crescent SPD.
would have to
take account of
8. Comments noted regarding building heights, In accordance the particular
9. Subject to assessments for flooding, drainage and subsidence,
with the London Plan, the proposal for tall buildings may be
needs and
basement parking should be required or at least strongly
considered in appropriate town centre locations, although
characteristics of
encouraged for any major development.
they will need to consider how they positively and sensitively the individual
optimise development plots whilst enhancing the unique
town centre such
10. Contributions for green infrastructure to mitigate the effects of air
character of both the local area and the wider protected key as heritage and
pollution should be required from developers.
views.
cultural assets,
as well as local
11. Regular flooding and drainage around New Malden railway
character”.
9. Comments noted regarding parking. Parking is being
station needs to be addressed before increased residential
investigated in the area - there is a need for revised parking
development in this area is considered.
arrangements to support future economic viability etc. These
issues will be subject to thorough assessment in relation to
12. Intensification could impact adversely on the adjacent
new development in New Malden going forward.
conservation area.

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
high quality, accessible, affordable residences maximised for people 11. Comments noted regarding flooding and drainage.
with disabilities who wish to live independently.
12. Comments noted regarding impact to conservation areas.
14. Any development in New Malden must be sensibly phased to
Further reference to protection of heritage assets and
ensure New Malden High Street businesses are not disrupted.
character will be included within the revised document.
15. Considering this document states the Council is working with
TfL, it is disappointing there is no specific mention of improving the
main road link through New Malden town centre, i.e. the High Street.
Its appalling and deteriorating surface must be replaced as soon as
possible as it has become unsafe for cyclists and is constantly being
repaired making it uneven for vehicles. It makes no sense to allocate
funding for adjacent schemes whilst ignoring this vital link.
16. No comment on access concerning improved pedestrian and
cycle networks without details. No comment on improved
connectivity from the railway station to Kingston Hill Campus without
details.
H. Wollinger

New Malden is already restricted by traffic calming, bringing more
people in only makes it worse.

123

Chris Coleman 1. I think that the cocks crescent development should as a top
priority have a leisure centre at least as good but preferably
improved in facilities from the present site.

126

Jim Leason

14. Comment noted regarding existing businesses on New
Malden High Street.
15. Comment noted regarding New Malden High Street. Any
future development in New Malden will be expected to
reinforce and strengthen the High Street's vitality and
attractiveness.
16. Comment noted.
Comment noted.

No change.

B307

122

13. Comment noted regarding accommodation of elderly
people.

1. Comments noted. The Council is currently working on an
No change.
indoor facilities review and strategy setting out need over the
short and medium term. It is expected that the current facility
will require significant enhancement to meet the needs of a
2. I also feel that improved pedestrian access would be a good thing growing population. In this respect the council is looking at
but have serious reservations about the priority that cyclists seem to options to improving the offer at the Malden Centre as a new
leisure and community hub.
be given in the current planning. At present cyclists use the
pavements at speed showing no consideration whatsoever to any
other road user. This can be observed on any day by cyclists using The SPD has been prepared to enable any scheme to have
the pavements,going through red lights with impunity and
the flexibility to ensure that there is sufficient scope for a new
proceeding the wrong way on one way streets. If pedestrians are to facility to be constructed before the old Malden Centre
share the space with cyclists, stringent controls need to be imposed closes. Detailed work will be required after the adoption of the
on cyclists to force them into less anti social behaviour which
SPD to ensure the deliverability of any new facility.
currently puts pedestrians at risk.
2. Comments noted. The Council places significant emphasis
on the future role of both walking and cycling in Kingston, and
we recognise the need to ensure the safety of both road
users through appropriate segregation.
1. The big open question that remains around The Cocks Crescent
proposal is retention of the Malden Centre facilities. The Council

1. Comments noted. The Council is currently working on an
No change.
indoor facilities review and strategy setting out need over the

226

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
needs to take steps to guarantee this as a condition of any proposed short and medium term. It is expected that the current facility
scheme.
will require significant enhancement to meet the needs of a
growing population. In this respect the council is looking at
2. Rather than look to congest the area around the station with new options to improving the offer at the Malden Centre as a new
housing, why are we not looking to improve housing between Cocks leisure and community hub.
Crescent and the A3/Shannon Corner. This area is still walkable to
both New Malden Station and Motspur Park, particularly if
The SPD has been prepared to enable any scheme to have
improvements could be made to connecting the two sides of the A3 the flexibility to ensure that there is sufficient scope for a new
where Coombe Boys school is and where the two old car
facility to be constructed before the old Malden Centre
showrooms vacated by Mercedes are.
closes. Detailed work will be required after the adoption of the
SPD to ensure the deliverability of any new facility.
3. I'd like to see where the plans are to enhance school and other
public service provision in New Malden to accommodate any
2. Comments noted.
increased residential usage.
3. Comment noted. The Council recognise that key to
facilitating and managing new growth in Kingston is to ensure
new investment and improvement in supporting
infrastructure, including community facilities such as schools
and healthcare. The detail of these requirements will be
considered at a later stage of the local plan process.
Hilary Gander

1. What will the developments looks like (how dense, how high)?
Can' support what I don't know anything about.

1. The detail and evidence of this issue is yet to be decided
No change.
or worked through. The document is intended to be high-level
at this early stage of the local plan process, providing the
2. Improved connectivity should explicitly mention pedestrian, cycle, Council's 'Statement of Intent'. The detail and deliverability of
new growth strategies will be developed and consulted upon
public transport.
in later stages of the local plan process.
3. Need to preserve / enhance the public swimming pool provision.

B308

131

Note that in accordance with the London Plan, the proposal
for tall buildings may be considered in appropriate town
centre locations, although they will need to consider how they
positively and sensitively optimise development plots whilst
enhancing the unique character of both the local area and the
wider protected key views.
2. The Council recognise that key to facilitating and managing
new growth is to ensure new investment and improvement
transport infrastructure, which must be considered as a
strategic and integrated approach.
3. Comments noted. The Council is currently working on an
indoor facilities review and strategy setting out need over the

227

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
short and medium term. It is expected that the current facility
will require significant enhancement to meet the needs of a
growing population. In this respect the council is looking at
options to improving the offer at the Malden Centre as a new
leisure and community hub.
The SPD has been prepared to enable any scheme to have
the flexibility to ensure that there is sufficient scope for a new
facility to be constructed before the old Malden Centre
closes. Detailed work will be required after the adoption of the
SPD to ensure the deliverability of any new facility.
133

Yvonne Walsh

1. Redevelopment of Cocks Crescent needs to be housing rather
than 10 storey blocks of flats - needs open space to be kept and
local leisure centre to be upgraded Roads surrounding development
need to be made one way as the area is already blocked with traffic
parking for station and shops
2. Local car park needs to be upgraded and to have reasonable car
parking fees to encourage parking in the car park instead of local
roads and made secure

2. Comments noted regarding parking. Parking is being
investigated in the area - there is a need for revised parking
arrangements to support future economic viability etc. These
issues will be subject to thorough assessment in relation to
new development in New Malden going forward.

B309

3. More cycle routes are welcomed but must be safe routes on the
existing roads protected from cars - and not just lines on the
pavement - as the money is coming from the TFL cycling fund this
should be spent on the New Malden roads

1. All comments noted. The Council is currently working on
No change.
an indoor facilities review and strategy setting out need over
the short and medium term. It is expected that the current
facility will require significant enhancement to meet the needs
of a growing population. In this respect the council is looking
at options to improving the offer at the Malden Centre as a
new leisure and community hub.

3. In accordance with the London Plan, the council places
significant emphasis on the role of cycling in the future of
movement in the Borough. Key to achieving this vision is the
delivery of the Go Cycle Programme, whereby the Council
received over £30 million of funding from the Mayor of
London and TfL to deliver improvements to cycling facilities
and road safety.
136

John Pearson

We need to speed up traffic in Kingston road and in Malden Road
leading to A3 and Worcester Park. Keep The Fountain Roundabout

Comments noted.

No change.

137

Zoe Leeds

I am opposed to the proposed dual carriageway and junction at the
Fountain. I don't think this improves anything for anyone. An
underpass, like there is at Tolworth, would probably be a better
option to provide for cyclists and pedestrians. You can then take
away the 2 green man crossings which hold up traffic around the
Fountain

Comments noted.

No change.

228

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
138

Sharon
Nelhams

Focus presents is used by a vast amount of residents as far as
Chessington. If the site keeps it's pool for locals, Kingston
synchronised swim team (Olympic valued), team swimming and for
local schools It also still has the same economic values for all. Not
sold onto a private organisation, then I agree to regeneration.

Comments noted. The council is currently working on an
No change.
indoor facilities review and strategy setting out need over the
short and medium term. It is expected that the current facility
will require significant enhancement to meet the needs of a
growing population. In this respect the council is looking at
options to improving the offer at the Malden Centre as a new
leisure and community hub.
The SPD has been prepared to enable any scheme to have
the flexibility to ensure that there is sufficient scope for a new
facility to be constructed before the old Malden Centre
closes. Detailed work will be required after the adoption of the
SPD to ensure the deliverability of any new facility.

142

Caroline
Cheales

B310

1. I would like to see some recognition of the diversity in new malden 1. Comments noted. The Council recognises the significant
No change.
and perhaps enhancing this with (if the community supports it) a
contribution that the Korean community make to the Borough.
korean town initiative.
We currently engage with various Korean community
organisations and will aim to widen this communication in the
2. I would also like to see a commitment to sporting facilities - which future.
may be expected to be included in the cocks crescent proposal but
are not explicitly mentioned in this document and which should be.
2. Comments noted. The council is currently working on an
indoor facilities review and strategy setting out need over the
2. There is no mention of the green space and need to preserve this short and medium term. It is expected that the current facility
will require significant enhancement to meet the needs of a
growing population. In this respect the council is looking at
options to improving the offer at the Malden Centre as a new
leisure and community hub.
The SPD has been prepared to enable any scheme to have
the flexibility to ensure that there is sufficient scope for a new
facility to be constructed before the old Malden Centre
closes. Detailed work will be required after the adoption of the
SPD to ensure the deliverability of any new facility.
2. Comment noted. There will be no net loss of open space at
Blagdon Road.

146

Sue May

Development should be led by the community and not allowed to be Comment noted.
maximised and over developed even in order to maximise
community benefit but the two need to be balanced.

149

Dave RyderMills

1. The Cocks Crescent community hub MUST include leisure
facilities including a swimming pool.

No change.

1. Comment noted. The council is currently working on an
No change.
indoor facilities review and strategy setting out need over the

229

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
short and medium term. It is expected that the current facility
2. A thriving and attractive High Street will only exist with the positive will require significant enhancement to meet the needs of a
growing population. In this respect the council is looking at
encouragement of independent retailers.
options to improving the offer at the Malden Centre as a new
leisure and community hub.
The SPD has been prepared to enable any scheme to have
the flexibility to ensure that there is sufficient scope for a new
facility to be constructed before the old Malden Centre
closes. Detailed work will be required after the adoption of the
SPD to ensure the deliverability of any new facility.
2. Comment noted. The council recognises the need for a
diverse retail offer in order to ensure continued vitality of the
town centre. This includes providing accommodation for small
and independent retailers in Kingston.
150

Elaine RyderMills

Comments noted. The council is currently working on an
No change.
indoor facilities review and strategy setting out need over the
short and medium term. It is expected that the current facility
will require significant enhancement to meet the needs of a
growing population. In this respect the council is looking at
options to improving the offer at the Malden Centre as a new
leisure and community hub.
The SPD has been prepared to enable any scheme to have
the flexibility to ensure that there is sufficient scope for a new
facility to be constructed before the old Malden Centre
closes. Detailed work will be required after the adoption of the
SPD to ensure the deliverability of any new facility.

153

Adrian Wheeler See my earlier comment on cycle routes, These need to be planned Comments noted. Comment noted. In accordance with the
No change.
with logical connectivity, not 'from nowhere to nowhere' Cyclists
London Plan, the Council places significant emphasis on the
need\their own crossings, not mixed\up with pedestrians
role of cycling in the future of movement in the Borough, and
will therefore continue to be promoted and extended
throughout the Borough in order to facilitate a connected
network of safe cycle routes. Key to achieving this vision is
the delivery of the Go Cycle Programme whereby the Council
received over £30 million of funding from the Mayor of
London and TfL to deliver improvements to cycling facilities
and road safety.

154

L. Hebbourn

1. Development needs to be proportionate and in scale to the

B311

New Malden is in depression like Kingston. A new swimming pool is
vital for this part of the borough. Many children learn to swim there.
This is important especially as they grow up and visit Kingston
alone. They are safe around the river. Swimming lessons could
include water safety. If Cocks crescent rebuilt it must include a
decent pool. In NM I can eat, drink, buy food, beds, furniture,
gamble, visit hairdresser, buy jewellery, bank,visit countless charity
shops. But parking is an issue. There is a car park where the upper
floors are unused. It isn't a centre. Cocks crescent is in the middle.
That part of town could be imaginatively engineered to provide a
focus for the town. New housing there would increase pressure on
overcrowded schools.

1. Comments noted. We recognise the need to positively

Pages 27, 29, 31,

230

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
existing suburban setting.
2. Garden development should be resisted.
3. The recent application in respect of the shell garage highlighted
the problem of physical over development and the spread of
commercial activity beyond the core commercial area in a way that
might be attractive to individual developers but unhelpful in
consolidation of the High Street.
4. Developments need to provide realistic levels of parking so as to
avoid overspill parking in residential streets .
5. The derelict area behind the station will be providing secluded
sites for wildlife and proposed developments should include
provision for nesting sites etc in terms of design and choice of
materials.
6. Over development resulting in too much hard surfacing will have
flooding implications.

8. New Malden High Street has been repaired so many times since
the new layout was put in and I am still unclear who is responsible,
who is paying for the repeat work, despite having asked various
people who might be expected to know !
156

Alison Wheeler See earlier comment on cycle routes, These need to be planned
with logical connectivity, not 'from nowhere to nowhere' Cyclists
need\their own crossings, not mixed\up with pedestrians

158

Paul Sloan

2. Comment noted regarding garden development.
3. Comment noted.
3. Comments noted regarding parking. Parking is being
investigated in the area - there is a need for revised parking
arrangements to support future economic viability etc. These
issues will be subject to thorough assessment in relation to
new development in New Malden going forward.

33, 35, 37; End
of Text
Sentence added
after bullet
points: ‘We
recognise that
new growth must
be balanced with
the unique
heritage and
character of the
Borough’.

5. Comment noted regarding existing ecology.
6. The council recognises that the Local Plan must look at
ways of managing and reducing flood risk, which will include
a review of its evidence base on flood issues.

B312

7. Contractual management of any development needs to be
extremely tight.

balance new growth with the consideration of heritage and
conservation assets in order to enhance the character and
distinctiveness of the borough. Further reference to protection
of heritage assets and character will be included within the
revised document.

7. Comment noted regarding contractual management.
8. Comment noted regarding New Malden High Street.

Comment noted. Comment noted. In accordance with the
No change.
London Plan, the Council places significant emphasis on the
role of cycling in the future of movement in the Borough, and
will therefore continue to be promoted and extended
throughout the Borough in order to facilitate a connected
network of safe cycle routes. Key to achieving this vision is
the delivery of the Go Cycle Programme whereby the Council
received over £30 million of funding from the Mayor of
London and TfL to deliver improvements to cycling facilities
and road safety.

1. I do not want the ‘Development Areas of Opportunity” designation 1. Comments noted. Agreed, the identified 'Areas of
for Kingston. If - and that is a big “if” - there really is a need
Opportunity' across the Borough are considered to be those

Page 10; Pink
text bottom-left

231

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
redevelop with higher densities, and at rates greater than
surrounding London boroughs, it would make sense to concentrate
such development near to public transport links, with those stations
having the highest frequencies and greatest spare passenger
carrying capacity bearing the brunt of the new development.
2. Again, only if there really is a need for Kingston to redevelop at a
higher rate than other surrounding London boroughs, any advent of
Crossrail 2 would see New Malden having 16 trains per hour
frequency, the highest in the borough. In comparison, Chessington
and Tolworth, the focus of your proposed opportunity areas, would
only have 4 trains per hour. Moreover, with three council owned golf
courses in the North of the borough, there exists a considerable
imbalance in the distribution of greenspace with Kingston borough.
North Kingston has a surplus, while south of the borough has a
deficit. To exacerbate this imbalance is unfair to residents south of
Kingston town.

areas most suited for new growth on account of their
transport accessibility, proximity to centres and regeneration
opportunity.

Update:
Sentence
providing
2. Comments noted. It is anticipated that Crossrail 2 will have justification of
a transformational impact on the connectivity of this area.
where the homes
New Crossrail 2 Services from 2033 will be serving railway
and jobs figure
stations in the area with four trains an hour in each direction has come from
connecting central London. The Council will actively plan for for Kingston.
the arrival of Crossrail 2, although new growth in Kingston is
not dependant on its delivery.

4. The proposed transport improvements are woefully inadequate in
the context of the massive developments proposed. Already we
have 50,000m2 of proposed retail space with no concrete and
meaningful public transport proposals to handle the increased influx
from Kingston's hinterland which extends well into Sury. Public
transport access from the South and South West is particularly poor.
These proposals are lightweight window dressing, pr and spin for the
masses. While developers reap the profits, residents will suffer
dearly in decades to come from the wholly inadequate transport
infrastructure proposed. The lack of other transport infrastructure
apart from Crossrail 2 (CR2) is the most worrying thing. Way more
than Surbiton to Waterloo peak hour express trains getting the chop.
CR2 only shoves extra trains down existing track and offers only the
most marginal improvement in connectivity ( a new route from
Tooting to Kingston).

B313

3. Comment noted regarding development opportunities.
Please note that the document is intended to be high-level at
this early stage of the local plan process, providing the
Council's 'Statement of Intent'. It aims to provide alignment of
local strategic planning policy, the London Plan, and
Kingston's growth agenda, as well as the broad context in
3. Again, only if there really is a need for Kingston to redevelop, a
which the new Borough Local Plan needs to be planned. The
mere 20 minutes walk away from New Malden station lies a council detail and deliverability of potential development sites
owned golf course - it should be redeveloped ahead of any greenbelt developed and consulted upon in later stages of the Local
land, that would typically offer more environmental benefits than
Plan process.
managed golf courses. Golf courses, particularly council owned golf
courses leased at sub-market rents to expensive private member
4. Comments on transport infrastructure noted.
clubs, are unjustifiable in a Greater London context whilst
simultaneously proposing greenbelt development.
5. Comments on north-south links transport noted.
6. Comments on population noted. Changes being made to
the document to clarify source.
7. Comment noted. The Council is currently working on an
indoor facilities review and strategy setting out need over the
short and medium term. It is expected that the current facility
will require significant enhancement to meet the needs of a
growing population. In this respect the council is looking at
options to improving the offer at the Malden Centre as a new
leisure and community hub.
The SPD has been prepared to enable any scheme to have
the flexibility to ensure that there is sufficient scope for a new
facility to be constructed before the old Malden Centre
closes. Detailed work will be required after the adoption of the
SPD to ensure the deliverability of any new facility.

232

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
5. Links to Kingston's southern and south-western hinterlands are
poor, and these need to be addressed BEFORE any significant
development is approved. North-South public transport infrastructure
is woefully inadequate as is, never mind the aftermath of significant
development. The bus densities support light rail on many routes
already. CR2 on it’s own is not enough to meet Kingston’s public
transport needs. I seek assurances that hard analysis will be
performed to identify Kingston’s current and future public transport
needs, taking into account likely future residential and commercial
developments. The London Mayor’s London 2050 report
emphasises that the projected population growth of Outer London
boroughs would generate transport needs that can not be met using
congested road networks. Accordingly, I seek proposals on how you
would seek to integrate CR2 investment with any future tram or
express busway schemes. Particularly on the overlooked and frankly
pathetic North-South transport links through Kingston borough.

B314

6. I understand that CR2 has been planned on the basis of 2043
London population projections. These projections have been revised
sharply upwards in the subsequent 2050 London population
projections. I seek assurances that this once in a hundred years
scheme for Kingston has sufficient capacity to cater for the most
recent and upper end population projections.
7. Any Cocks Crescent development must retain a council owned
public leisure centre and public swimming pool.
161

Richard Ware

All as comments 1a and 1b

Response noted.

No change.

163

Diane Watling

It is all about community, especially Cocks Crescent

Comment noted.

No change.

166

James Giles

New Malden cannot cope with overdevelopment. SUSTAINABLE
development is needed.

Comment noted.

No change.

167

Kerry Giles

No overdevelopment in my town - no 10-storey tower block - no 520 Comment noted, In accordance with the London Plan, the
extra flats - thank you.
proposal for tall buildings may be considered in appropriate
town centre locations, although they will need to consider
how they positively and sensitively optimise development
plots whilst enhancing the unique character of both the local
area and the wider protected key views.

No change.

168

David Giles

I think the changes to new malden with the flats would be a bad
thing as they would be very tall and dense - it must be sensible.

No change.

Comment noted, In accordance with the London Plan, the
proposal for tall buildings may be considered in appropriate
town centre locations, although they will need to consider
how they positively and sensitively optimise development

233

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
plots whilst enhancing the unique character of both the local
area and the wider protected key views.
170

Yvonne Tracey Growth is happening far too fast in our town.

Comment noted

No change.

171

James Giles on 1. I am responding on behalf of the committee of the Malden
behalf of MICO Independent Community Organisation with the views of MICO. Enhancement of community areas, such as the train station, are
welcome, although we do have concerns about the disruption this
could cause and the length of time enhancement will take.
Particularly the potential loss of Elm Road level crossing is a real
concern as this will add traffic on to our already busy High Street. We would like to see a good amount of the CIL for Kingston
allocated to New Malden as we are a Crossrail2 Hub.

1. Comments noted.

No change.

2. Comments noted. The majority of these comments are
related specifically to the Cocks Crescent area and will be
addressed through the SPD formal consultation process.
3. Comments on housing noted.

B315

4. Comments noted. Regarding the New Malden Centre, The
council is currently working on an indoor facilities review and
2. We are very concerned with the Cocks Crescent SPD as it
strategy setting out need over the short and medium term. It
currently stands (see below.)
is expected that the current facility will require significant
enhancement to meet the needs of a growing population. In
3. COCKS CRESCENT Generally, the consultation is far too vague. this respect the council is looking at options to improving the
An example would be between ‘140 and 520’ homes - a variation of offer at the Malden Centre as a new leisure and community
hub.
380 units is extremely large, and this makes it exceedingly difficult
for residents to be able to comment on whether or not this number of
units is appropriate. It is the opinion of MICO that 520 homes is far
The SPD has been prepared to enable any scheme to have
too great a number.
the flexibility to ensure that there is sufficient scope for a new
facility to be constructed before the old Malden Centre
closes. Detailed work will be required after the adoption of the
4. The current SPD does not guarantee a swimming pool. One of
SPD to ensure the deliverability of any new facility.
MICO’s key demands on the Cocks Crescent SPD is that the
Council maintains a council-owned leisure centre on site. The terms
‘could be’ are far from a condition of development. A new leisure
5. Comments on building heights noted. Again, this issue will
centre must be guaranteed in any SPD.
be addressed through the SPD formal consultation process.
On a strategic level, In accordance with the London Plan, the
proposal for tall buildings may be considered in appropriate
5. Height is another key issue with the current brief. In 2014, the
town centre locations, although they will need to consider
draft SPD was thrown out as ‘not fit for purpose’, and yet it had a
maximum height of ‘6-8 storeys’. Why then is 10 storeys considered how they positively and sensitively optimise development
plots whilst enhancing the unique character of both the local
appropriate? This level of housing would completely change the
area and the wider protected key views.
character of our town.
6. We are concerned that the Fountain Roundabout consultation and 6. Comments on Fountain Roundabout consultation noted.
the Cocks Crescent SPD consultation have not run in parallel with
one another. These two proposals are inextricably linked, and to
7. Comments on opens space noted.
have one consultation finish six weeks before the other is, quite
frankly, madness.
8. Comments on infrastructure noted. The Council recognise

234

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

7. MICO is pleased to read that there will be no net loss of open
space, however urge that this remains in one piece as Blagdon
Road park. A ‘piecemeal’ open space approach is simply not
appropriate and does not constitute the same perception of 'open
space’ as the current park does.
8. There is concern over infrastructure within the SPD. Where are
the school places, GP surgeries etc. for the new residents?
Community facilities must be guaranteed at Cocks Crescent. Open
space must be retained. Any residential development must be in
keeping with the local area, and sustainable.

that key to facilitating and managing new growth in Kingston
is to ensure new investment and improvement in supporting
infrastructure, including community facilities such as schools
and healthcare. The detail of these requirements will be
considered at a later stage of the local plan process.
9. Comments on New Malden Station and High Street noted.
Any future development in New Malden will be expected to
reinforce and strengthen the High Street's vitality and
attractiveness.
10 Comments on Fountain Roundabout noted.

9. The proposal for residential development around New Malden
station is very vague at this stage - it would need to be seen on what
scale as to whether or not it could be deemed as sustainable for
New Malden by MICO - what is certain is that this must be within
keeping of the local area. - MICO would certainly support aims to
sustain the number of local jobs and support our High Street.

172

Carole &
Michael
StathamFletcher

These proposals mix the anodyne, e.g. "Supporting a thriving and
attractive New Malden High Street" with the worryingly vague e.g.
"Potential over station development."They seem to have been
designed to produce statistics in line with the council's intentions.

B316

10. Better access to key services is welcomed, although we do have
concerns over the current Fountain Roundabout scheme, therefore
we cannot agree to this as it currently stands for fear that this would
be endorsement of the fountain roundabout proposals.
Comment noted.

No change.

The following consultees submitted a response but did not comment specifically on Question 1(d) of the survey.
ID

Name

ID

Name

ID

Name

2

Denise Thompson

52

B. Walker

109

Katherine Jones

235

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
Peter Watson

53

Robert Wyeth

110

Carl Jackson

4

Ken Thompson

54

Joseph Asghar

111

Peta Schaverien

5

Nigel Randall

56

Phil Edwards

112

Rebeca Alamo

7

Kathrin Siguda

57

Fred Ashmore

113

Mr A. Greene

8

Malcolm Wright

59

J.Stevens

114

Marguerite Bowers Clark

9

Douglas Sampson

60

Alex

115

J. Wheeler

11

Richard Grosvenor

61

J. Langridge

116

Johanne Molloy

12

Jim Cardell

62

Pam Walsh

117

Stuart Hartley

13

Matthew Kyte

63

Peter Mason

119

Iain Martin MSc CMILT

14

Sara Redmond

64

Joseph Asghar

120

Mo Sehra

16

Paul Cook

68

Alex Gregor-Smith

121

Pat Marchant

17

Lisa Ross

69

Kevin White

124

Pippa Billingsley

18

Patricia McLauchlan

70

Howard Robinson

125

Mark Blewett

19

Maryka Sennema

71

Charmian Bourne

127

Pat Cann

20

Petrina Tatnall

72

Carl Jackson

128

Tim Westlake

21

Lucy Symons

73

Deborah Dunning

129

Tim Westlake

22

Anthony Quinn

74

Stanley R. Spires

130

Deborah Da Silva

23

Anthony Johannsen

75

Peter Topp

132

Fiona Meaney

24

Linda Seel

76

Howard Sheppard

134

Lee Hendra

26

Felicia Green

77

Judith Symons

135

Agnieszka

29

Martin Russell-Jones

80

Annie Kay

139

Cashel Riordan

30

Mr Bal Badesha

81

Mr Stephen Heil

140

Julian Oldfield

31

Mr Aziz Bawany

83

Andrew Compton

141

Michele Salter

32

Andy Watters

84

Maureen Ellis

143

Stewart Dickson

33

Alistair Glen

85

Karen Carman

144

Linda Skilbeck

35

Stephanie Russell

87

Peter Herlinger

145

Judith Royle

36

Gloria Bassoli

89

Ross Anthony, Theatres Trust

147

Dominic Bull

37

E. John

92

Marilyn Mason, Chair, KEF

148

Helen Thrush

38

Imran Benson

93

James

151

Neil Riley

B317

3

236

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
39

Saleh

94

Sara Vincent

152

Janice Yeadon

40

Derek Moss

96

James Fennell (Nathaniel Lichfield & Partners)

155

Hazel Farrow

41

G T Knight

97

Simon Jakeman

157

Christopher Thomas

43

Carlos

101

Mr M.Gascoigne

159

Jonathan Fray

44

Steve

103

Dan

160

Anne Oram

47

Alvaro

105

Tony Lancaster

162

Simon Munk

48

Jacqueline Hardie

106

Gemma Cusworth

164

Marian Ellis

49

A. Chandler

107

John Edwards

165

Claire Harrison

50

Martyn

108

Daniel Wain

169

Marc Tracey

51

Des McRow

B318

237

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

Question 1(e) - Tolworth
ID

Respondent

Question 1(e) - Do you have any comments?

6

S. Guess

No

8

Malcolm Wright 1. You cannot encourage further houses/flats to be built in this area - it is too
congested already!

RBK Response
Noted.

Document
Update
No change.

1. Comments noted. Tolworth is identified as an
No change.
Area of Opportunity and capable of significant
growth. The council are aware of congestion
issues in this area and recognise the importance
2. Please, please, please DO NOT change the A3 roundabout - you will only
make it worse - whatever simulations you have run, whatever scenarios work of sensitively managing new growth in order to
in "theory" won't work - you will only make the current situation worse - like you ensure that it does not have a negative impact on
environment.
have with the cycle lane on Portsmouth Road!

10

Eunhyun Song

Needs better cycle routes

Comment noted. In accordance with the London
No change.
Plan, the Council recognises the importance of the
role of cycling in the future of movement in the
Borough, but not to the detriment of other road
users. Key to achieving this vision is the delivery
of the Go Cycle Programme whereby the Council
received over £30 million of funding from the
Mayor of London and TfL to deliver improvements
to cycling facilities and road safety.

16

Paul Cook

Air quality is known to be poor in the Tolworth area: particular black spots are
the A3 and Tolworth roundabout Remedial action MUST be taken to remedy
this problem.

Comments noted. The issue of air quality in this
area is a key priority for the council. It is
recognised that improvements to the A3 are
unlikely to bring any major road capacity
improvements. The primary focus will be on the
environment and safety, with the majority of the
new trips to the area predicted to be by public
transport.

B319

2. Comment noted regarding the A3 roundabout. It
is recognised that improvements to this
intersection are unlikely to bring any major road
capacity improvements. The primary focus will be
on the environment and safety, with the majority of
the new trips to the area predicted to be by public
transport.

No change.

238

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
17

Lisa Ross

The junction to the A3 needs considerable development to easy peak
congestion.

Comment noted regarding the A3 roundabout. It is No change.
recognised that improvements to this intersection
are unlikely to bring any major road capacity
improvements. The primary focus will be on the
environment and safety, with the majority of the
new trips to the area predicted to be by public
transport.

20

Petrina Tatnall

If you are talking about new homes on the proposed Tesco site at the Toby
Jug then no I disagree because of the pollution and the amount of traffic this
will cause I don't understand Question 5, which is why I disagree. if it means
more shops on the proposed Tesco site then no. As again it will cause too
much traffic and an increase in the pollution

Comments noted.

22

Anthony Quinn

Have doubts about the vision for Tolworth Court Farm. This will benefit Epsom Comments noted. We recognise that new growth
residents more than Kingston and I would require assurances regarding
must be balanced with the consideration of the
wildlife.
borough's key assets, including greens spaces
and ecological areas. Further detail and evidence
base on this issue will be developed through the
local plan process.

25

David Watkins

1. I can't disagree with these intentions. OK so let's discount the CR2-led
initiatives and the trunk road plans (presumably set up by the Department of
Transport through the agency agreement with TfL) and we have small and
paltry ambitions of an unimaginative Planning Authority.

No change.

No change.

3. How many people in the Cambridge Road Estate will understand what
you're talking about when you make a statement like, 'Reducing the severance
of A3 as a barrier to movement by providing connections across the A3'? I
don't know why you bother with the expense of public consultation. Oh, you
have to by law but you aren't required to make it comprehensible, are you?
The final two objectives of providing appropriate workspaces and public leisure
space are fundamental expectations of council taxpayers for their local
authority. It's your dayjob, get on with it and why wasn't this done previously?

B320

1. Comments noted. The document is intended to No change.
be high-level at this early stage of the local plan
process, providing the Council's 'Statement of
Intent'. It aims to provide alignment of local
strategic planning policy, the London Plan, and
2. 'Sustaining an enhanced retail centre and retention of a significant retailer' - Kingston's growth agenda, as well as the broad
what does that mean? You're intending to look after (properly) a newly spruced context in which the new Borough Local Plan
up series of shops that you've failed to look after properly to date such that, a) needs to be planned. The detail and deliverability
of new growth strategies will be developed and
they need sprucing up and, b) a significant retailer is sufficiently disgruntled
with your support as to be considering quitting??? Meaningless and worthless. consulted upon in later stages of the local plan
process.
2. Regarding the enhanced retail centre and
retention of a significant retailer, the Council
envisages significant improvements to Tolworth
District Centre in order to better serve the local
community. Again, the detail of this ambition will
be further developed through the local plan
process.

3. Comment noted. We will consider all feedback
4. What local transport improvements do you foresee as a result of the
Tolworth Deck being paid for you by national funding? Bus routes could surely received regarding the consultation in order to
improve our approach and performance for future

239

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
be more efficient.

engagement events.

5. What pedestrian and cycle route enhancements do you intend? Is the freed
up space going to be used for additional housing, retail, commercial or
industrial development? Perhaps you intend to improve the open environment
to give shoppers the feeling of freedom and peace and quiet? Maybe the open
space could be used for funfairs or music concerts? No? No ideas? Or just
keeping your plans firmly against your chest? Devoid of imagination, aren't
you?

4. Comment noted regarding the Tolworth Deck.
The proposal includes includes covering over a
section of the A3 immediately to the south of the
main A3/A240 intersection. The decking would
complement other planned investment along the
A3, as well as the public realm/cycling initiatives in
adjoining areas. Such investment in Tolworth
would support the Government's growth agenda
for London and the South East and would link to
and support the Crossrail 2 initiative. Locally the
decking would dramatically improve Tolworth as a
place; the area suffers severance and the decking
would enhance connectivity and could provide a
high quality open space. The proposal would
connect the high street to the train station making
it one place with much easier navigation.

Hands off Tolworth Court Farm. The Farm is ancient field system and receives Comment noted.
Higher Level Stewardship payments. Some of these payments should not have
been taken as the sensitive management required was not carried out. The
Moated Manor site has been severely damaged by inappropriate cutting and
destruction of the ant mounds.

B321

5. Comment noted. In accordance with the
London Plan, the Council places significant
emphasis on the role of walking and cycling in the
future of movement in the Borough, and will
therefore continue to be promoted and extended
throughout the Borough in order to facilitate a
connected network of safe routes.
28

alison fure

30

mr bal badesha attracting more residents / workers to Tolworth will only increase the huge
amount of traffic problems around Tolworth roundabout and increase noise
and pollution levels.

Comment noted. The issue of air quality in this
area is a key priority for the Council. It is
recognised that improvements to the A3 are
unlikely to bring any major road capacity
improvements. The primary focus will be on the
environment and safety, with the majority of the
new trips to the area predicted to be by public
transport.

No change.

34

Mel

1. Comment noted regarding Tolworth Station.

Page 16, Kingston
Places

1. Tolworth Station is neglected but beautiful - it needs an upgrade but should
retain the classic 1930s features. Over station development will provide a

No change.

240

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
depressing transport experience. There are some great views of Tolworth field
from the platform, we don't want another disaster like Birmingham New Street. 2. Comments noted. Tolworth Park is only a
concept proposal at this stage regarding the need
2. I do not support 'Tolworth Park' - this is a fantastic nature reserve already
for better green space access in this area. This
with ancient field systems and river. I do not think a country park appropriate or concept will be subject to further investigation
sensitive to the habitat. http://alisonfure.blogspot.co.uk/p/bonesgateduring the local plan process.
stream.html
3. The Hogsmill Valley will continue to be an
3. I am horrified to read that the Hogsmill Valley is to be massively developed. important ecological and recreational asset to the
This is a really important river for Kingston in terms of cultural references and a council and any new access opportunities would
sense of identity; it is also a fantastic part of our shrinking biodiversity heritage. be assessed accordingly to ensure sensitivity to
existing ecology.

Map update: New
‘place’ added for
‘Hogsmill Valley’
Page 31; End of Text
Sentence added after
bullet points:
‘’Continued protection
of Hogsmill Valley and
its ecology’

Further reference to the protection of this asset
will be included in the revised version of the
document.
Paul Howlett

The best way to improve the A3 junction at Tolworth is to provide a flyover for
the traffic on the Ewell Road. It could touch down south of the traffic lights for
Goals to the south and to the north of the Tesco petrol station to the north

Comment noted.

No change.

45

Sheena Evans

Don't know what is meant by Tolworth Park. Hope it doesn't mean any loss of
open space.

Comment noted. Tolworth Park is only a concept
proposal at this stage regarding the need for
better green space access in this area. This
concept will be subject to further investigation
during the local plan process.

No change.

46

dr nazar pola

no comment

Noted.

No change.

52

b walker

Now that you have given permission for CNM to knock down the current viable Comments noted.
retailers on a 2 storey complex to be replaced by 4 Tower blocks one 21
storeys and WAY OVER the density for an URBAN setting you gave the green
light to other developers to RUIN TOLWORTH in the future. Not only that you
have the cheek to put the question " sustaining an enhanced retail centre and
retention of a significant retailer"Well CNM does not own the car parking and
their plans mean M&S shoppers would have to park on the first floor. Now hear
this, M&S do not have a lift that can carry shoppers and trollies up to the first
floor, so they might just leave and Tolworth would lose its ONLY significant
retailer.

No change.

54

Joseph Asghar

Kevin Davis and Ian George are hated in Tolworth.

Noted

No change.

55

John McCarthy, no obs
Friends

Noted

No change.

B322

42

241

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
Kingston
Muesum &
Heritage
Service
58

F.McDermott

How will any scheme address air quality and noise, in a realistically achievable Comment noted. The Tolworth Deck proposal
No change.
manner. These are the significant details that residents need to know.
includes includes covering over a section of the
A3 immediately to the south of the main A3/A240
intersection. The decking would compliment other
planned investment along the A3, as well as the
public realm/cycling initiatives in adjoining areas.
Such investment in Tolworth would support the
Government's growth agenda for London and the
South East and would link to and support the
Crossrail 2 initiative. Locally the decking would
dramatically improve Tolworth as a place; the area
suffers severance and the decking would enhance
connectivity and could provide a high quality open
space. The proposal would connect the high street
to the train station making it one place with much
easier navigation.

B323

There are a variety of measures that could be
incorporated to this scheme to help improve air
quality, including landscape screens etc.
However. these details are not yet know and the
scheme is still in very early stages of investigation.
59

J.Stevens

It will make Tolworth more noisy with the development and traffic won't get
improved because there will be too many new homes with people traveling.

Comment noted.

No change.

63

Peter Mason

Retail doesn't produce well paid jobs, could just raise demand for low cost
housing and also increase traffic. Industrial units - are they attractive to
workers? Would they produce skilled high value jobs?

Comment noted. The council recognises the
importance of providing space for a diverse range
of employment types, including in Tolworth.
Further detail and evidence base regarding
employment space requirement will be developed
and assessed during the local plan process.

Pages 19; Paragraph
1

Further reference to the need for a diverse range
of employment opportunities will be included
within the revised document.

Original text: ‘A new
borough Local Plan is
required to show how
it will deliver the
growth needs of a
rapidly rising
population’.

242

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
Update: ‘A new
borough Local Plan is
required to show how
it will deliver the
growth needs of a
rapidly rising
population, including
new affordable
homes, a diverse
range of employment
opportunities, and
expanded leisure and
community facilities’.
65

Rob Robb

2. Need overall plan before you go any further.
3. No more pedestrian lights along greenway total waste of money and more
traffic disruption than necessary just make raised areas into zebra crossing as
you have done on the Portsmouth Road Cycle Way. Less money more
effective, less traffic disruptive , an easy fix. If I am proved wrong haven't
wasted great deal of money interconnecting traffic lights (SCOOT etc)
Enhancing retail sector not thought through it will attract more vehicle
movements, take away Customers from Kingston Main Town where you are
over providing retail outlets. Improve the existing surroundings getting rid of
those silly conifers and so called seats (replace seats with flower beds or
increase parking bays). Moving the trees in the middle island to the middle of
the island so they will not encroach on the road. Increase the number of trees.

1. Comments noted. Crossrail 2 as proposed,
would offer a range of benefits for all users,
including a more regular service (a minimum of
four trains per hour on each line at all times of
operation) connecting through Central London.
However, detailed proposals from Crossrail 2 are
yet to be decided. The Council will actively plan
for the arrival of Crossrail 2, although new growth
in Kingston is not dependant on its delivery.

No change.

B324

1. This lemming type belief in Cross Rail 2 . Its coming at too higher price. we
have grown up with direct trains to Waterloo people getting jobs in the City and
Canary Wharf etc, with direct connections from Waterloo (the drain) and the
Jubilee Line . Money for Cross Rail 2 could be spent on updating the tunnels
for the Waterloo and City Line and possibly extending that. we are getting 10
car trains next year once the work at Waterloo is complete and this is more use
than cross rail 2. The new 30 trains an hour fed from branch lines far and wide
and being fed into two of the top four busiest stations Victoria and Paddington,
how does that make sense. Our new Prime Minister is questioning HS2 lets
hope she has the sense to question Cross rail 2. Lets get back down to earth
and think of todays problems such as disabled access to our stations. Wrong
type of development being allowed CNM .and Mayer Bergmen examples of
what not to do.

2. Comment noted. The purpose of the Direction
of Travel is the earliest stage of the process in
preparing the new Borough Local Plan - a
comprehensive strategy for growth and
development.
Further detail and deliverability of new growth
strategies will be developed and consulted upon in
later stages of the local plan process.
3. Comments noted regarding traffic and vehicle
movement. It is agreed that this is a key challenge
for the council and we recognise the need for
significant investment in transport infrastructure,
including Crossrail 2, bus services and cycling
infrastructure (via the Go Kingston scheme). The
aim being that this will provide residents with a

243

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
Stop to and from right turn of traffic from Ewell Road into Tolworth Broadway
protect people , more importantly young children crossing outside church .
Lights only have to deal with straight on traffic and not accelerating traffic
turning right out of Ewell Road.
4. Want to see proper plan of this so called tunnel and how your going to deal
with slip road traffic and ingress and egress off and on the A3 from all sides.

choice of transport alternative whilst reducing car
reliance.
4. Comment noted regarding the Tolworth Deck.
The proposal includes includes covering over a
section of the A3 immediately to the south of the
main A3/A240 intersection. The decking would
complement other planned investment along the
A3, as well as the public realm/cycling initiatives in
adjoining areas. Such investment in Tolworth
would support the Government's growth agenda
for London and the South East and would link to
and support the Crossrail 2 initiative. Locally the
decking would dramatically improve Tolworth as a
place; the area suffers severance and the decking
would enhance connectivity and could provide a
high quality open space. The proposal would
connect the high street to the train station making
it one place with much easier navigation.

Howard
Sheppard

Tolworth provides an ideal opportunity to accommodate new housing and jobs, Comments noted.
especially around the railway station.

No change.

78

Keith Keen

The structures of the rail station buildings on the Chessington South branch
line are unique - at least one of these should be preserved and even given
Listed Building status. Tolworth Station should be considered in the list for
Listed Building status.

Comment noted.

No change.

79

Frances Marsh

Can't comment on Tolworth - but if their destiny is anything like that of New
Malden, heaven help them.

Comment noted.

No change.

82

Lesley Steel

Increase of new homes - is this in addition to those already approved in the
Tolworth Tower redevelopment? How will Tolworth Broadway cope with even
further traffic\/

Comments noted. It is agreed that this is a key
challenge for the council and we recognise the
need for significant investment in transport
infrastructure, including Crossrail 2, bus services
and cycling infrastructure. The aim being that this
will provide residents with a choice of transport
alternative whilst reducing car reliance.

No change.

88

Chris Stephens Why are there so many accidents at the Tolworth underpass? Will any of this
stop them?

B325

76

Comment noted. The proposals for the A3, such
No change.
as the decking, are only at concept stages at the
currently time and an ambition of the Council. This
will be subject to further investigation as the local
plan progresses.

244

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
98

Janine Bellew

Definitely focus on better air quality and noise quality as we can hear the A3 on Comment noted. Issues of air and noise quality at No change.
Kings Drive in Berrylands. The Alexandra Millennium Green is a great barrier! Tolworth are a key priority for the council.

99

Zbig Blonski

Everyone I know who lives in Tolworth says it needs improvement but they
don't think any of the things that have been done do so!

Comment noted.

No change.

100

Barbara
Delamere

I do not know Tolworth at all well so cannot comment

Noted.

No change.

102

David English

Small archaeological priority area by any development within the APA should
have archaeology as a material consideration and should be supported by an
archaeological desk based assessment and in some cases an archaeological
field evaluation.

Comments noted. Further reference to protection
of heritage assets will be included within the
revised document.

Pages 27, 29, 31, 33,
35, 37; End of Text
Sentence added after
bullet points: ‘We
recognise that new
growth must be
balanced with the
unique heritage and
character of the
Borough’.

104

Martin Booth

No, see above

Noted.

No change.

110

Carl Jackson

Tolworth Park ? hmm - actually the existing Fish Ponds parks etc. in
Berrylands/ Tolworth are under utilised. Better to provide a mixed park and
local food growing projects and allotments which also create local jobs.

Comment noted. Tolworth Park is only a concept
proposal at this stage regarding the need for
better green space access in this area. This

No change.

245

B326

Page 18; Last
paragraph.
Sentence added:
‘Note that the OLC
Report also states,
“there is no one size
fits all solution for
town centre renewal?
Redevelopment, so
any intensification
would have to take
account of the
particular needs and
characteristics of the
individual town centre
such as heritage and
cultural assets, as
well as local
character”.

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
concept will be subject to further investigation
during the local plan process.
Mr a Greene

1. Tolworth towers development should be scaled back. TFL's assessment that
it would not cause any more congestion is quite frankly a joke unless a
condition of purchasing one of the units is that you do not own a car. Housing
ins needed in the area and the old ministry site is a prime spot, BUT it would
have to have a school, medical centre as part of the development instead of
just having as many units packed into the site causing traffic congestion as
well as further overcrowding at local schools and surgeries.

1. Comments noted. The council is committed to No change.
appropriately managing new growth in order to
ensure that it does not have a negative impact on
the quality of life of existing residents and the
environment. This includes ensuring new
investment and improvement in supporting
infrastructure, such as community facilities and
transport, as well as mitigating impact on key
environmental issues such as traffic, air and noise
2. I do really hope that the idea of "capping" the A3 in order to build over the
top of it is dead and buried. It would over-populate the area and congest it to a pollution.
standstill.
2. Comment noted regarding the Tolworth Deck.
The proposal includes includes covering over a
section of the A3 immediately to the south of the
main A3/A240 intersection. The decking would
complement other planned investment along the
A3, as well as the public realm/cycling initiatives in
adjoining areas. Such investment in Tolworth
would support the Government's growth agenda
for London and the South East and would link to
and support the Crossrail 2 initiative. Locally the
decking would dramatically improve Tolworth as a
place; the area suffers severance and the decking
would enhance connectivity and could provide a
high quality open space. The proposal would
connect the high street to the train station making
it one place with much easier navigation.

116

Johanne Molloy There is not much details in the pack as to what would be involved in these
plans

Comments noted. The document is intended to be No change.
high-level at this early stage of the local plan
process, providing the Council's 'Statement of
Intent'. It aims to provide alignment of local
strategic planning policy, the London Plan, and
Kingston's growth agenda, as well as the broad
context in which the new Borough Local Plan
needs to be planned. The detail and deliverability
of new growth strategies will be developed and
consulted upon in later stages of the local plan
process.

117

Stuart Hartley

Comments noted. Tolworth Park is only a concept No change.

There already is a park in Tolworth, Tolworth Court Park. The new

B327

113

246

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
development is of poor quality and was not given sufficient thought by those
who voted it through. As for the proposed land bridge across the A3, this is
another piece of idealistic thinking when real world solutions are required.

proposal at this stage regarding the need for
better green space access in this area. This
concept will be subject to further investigation
during the local plan process.

118

Lynne Finnerty

Not being a Tolworth resident I do not feel in a position to comment on some
questions without details.

Noted.

126

Jim Leason

Please provide plans to increase school and public service provision.

Comment noted. The Council recognise that key No change.
to facilitating and managing new growth in
Kingston is to ensure new investment and
improvement in supporting infrastructure,
including community facilities such as schools and
healthcare. The detail of these requirements will
be considered at a later stage of the local plan
process.

127

Pat cann

1. Better gp and local schools go hand in hand with more homes. And
improved travel too. But we cannot sustain more homes in the area without
sunstantial improved road links. We need to improve the area but not by
putting a HUGE retail store and more flats. The 'divide' between both sides of
Tolwoth isnt necessarily a big issue - unless you dont live in the area! The
potential changes to tolworth tower and other sites will change the whole
aspect of tolworth and surrounding homes will loose their outlook and will
change the style of the area for the detriment.

1. Comments noted. Agreed, the council is
committed to appropriately managing new growth
in order to ensure that it does not have a negative
impact on the quality of life of existing residents
and the environment. This includes ensuring new
investment and improvement in supporting
infrastructure, such as community facilities and
transport, as well as mitigating impact on key
environmental issues such as traffic, air and noise
pollution.

Page 27, Bullet point
7
Original text: ‘An
expanded retail offer
and strengthening of
the Metropolitan Town
Centre’

2. We agree with the importance of maintaining
the diversification of town centres into mixed use
locations to ensure continued vitality. Further
detail and evidence base regarding this issue will
be developed during the local plan process.

Update: ‘An
expanded retail,
leisure and cultural
offer and
strengthening of the
Metropolitan Town
Centre’

128

Tim Westlake

The A3 is the major artery through the borough yet is extremely difficult to get
to. Access at Tolworth and at Hook should be improved significantly

Comment noted.

No change.

129

Tim Westlake

The A3 is the major artery through the borough yet is extremely difficult to get
to. Access at Tolworth and at Hook should be improved significantly

Comment noted.

No change.

130

Deborah Da
Silva

1. I strongly object to any encroachment on Tolworth Court Farm open land.
This is the only local Nature Conservation area of any substantial space and is
home to a wide variety of flora and fauna. Whilst the details of "Tolworth Park"
are not known they are likely to be a manicured and barren type of area.
Playing fields are valuable as would a Hogsmill walk be but there is need to

1. Comment noted. The borough's strategic open
spaces are important and valued assets, and in
accordance with the London Plan and national
policy, will be protected from inappropriate
development. However, we also recognise the

No change.

247

B328

2. There is insufficient diversity of shops in area to draw a thousand potential
new home owners...barbers, fast food and cafes, a few tired restaurants and
lots of charity shops!!

No change.

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
preserve wilder areas . This too is the site of the old drove road and as such
has significant historical value too.

need to undertake a review of land as part of the
local plan process in order to assess suitability
going forward.

2. The idea of decking part of the A3 is farcical and ridiculous. What kind of
living/ working environment would this enable us to offer? I am concerned that 2. Comment noted regarding the Tolworth Deck.
the noise and pollution would increase and be funnelled into any new
The proposal includes includes covering over a
development .
section of the A3 immediately to the south of the
main A3/A240 intersection. The decking would
complement other planned investment along the
A3, as well as the public realm/cycling initiatives in
adjoining areas. Such investment in Tolworth
would support the Government's growth agenda
for London and the South East and would link to
and support the Crossrail 2 initiative. Locally the
decking would dramatically improve Tolworth as a
place; the area suffers severance and the decking
would enhance connectivity and could provide a
high quality open space. The proposal would
connect the high street to the train station making
it one place with much easier navigation.
131

Hilary Gander

1. Comment noted. Tolworth Park is only a
No change.
concept proposal at this stage regarding the need
for better green space access in this area. This
2. It's not possible to support vague statements like 'an increase in new homes' concept will be subject to further investigation
during the local plan process.
without knowing what / where / impact on green belt and metropolitan open
land!
2. Comment noted. The document is intended to
3. An intention to encourage more sustainable travel (public transport, cycling, be high-level at this early stage of the local plan
process, providing the Council's 'Statement of
walking) needs to be explicit to ensure that the road network is not further
Intent'. The detail and deliverability of new growth
impacted.
strategies will be developed and consulted upon in
later stages of the local plan process.
4. What about other infrastructure - schools, GP surgeries etc.?

B329

1. What is 'facilitating the delivery of Tolworth Park'?! The biodiversity / wild
nature of this area must be retained.

3. Comment noted regarding sustainable travel.
4. We also recognise that investment and
improvement in supporting infrastructure is
absolutely key to supporting new growth. This
includes leisure and community facilities, as well
as transport infrastructure such as Crossrail 2, bus
services and cycle infrastructure.

248

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
132

Fiona Meaney

Q7 is jargon.

Noted.

No change.

137

Zoe Leeds

Who would be the significant retailer? I'm worried about over density on the
former Toby Jug/MOD site and the lack of social housing. Tolworth already has
a high of residents, with very little local provision really. I suspect overdevelopment would just make everyone all the more miserable

Comment noted. The Council envisages
significant improvements to Tolworth District
Centre in order to better serve the local
community.

No change.

Note that the document is intended to be highlevel at this early stage of the local plan process,
providing the Council's 'Statement of Intent'. The
detail of these statements will be developed and
consulted upon in later stages of the local plan
process.
138

Sharon
Nelhams

Again priority for vulnerable disabled and elderly for homes. So far the road
Comments noted.
speed reductions are working, to slow traffic down, causing delays on a regular
basis. So much so everyone avoids it like the plague by car and uses the back
roads in their cars.Is it possible to include a recreational facility in the park to
entice locals and outside the area residents. (Ice rink?)

146

Sue May

I am unsure about the proposal to cover over the A3 and how beneficial this
will be in reducing traffic congestion and what quality of spaces will be created
in what is already a poor visual environment. I am also concerned that the
ancient countryside of Tolworth Court can be preserved and balanced with the
proposed development of the area as a leisure destination.

No change.

B330

All comments noted. Regarding the A3 decking,
No change.
the proposal includes includes covering over a
section of the A3 immediately to the south of the
main A3/A240 intersection. The decking would
complement other planned investment along the
A3, as well as the public realm/cycling initiatives in
adjoining areas. Such investment in Tolworth
would support the Government's growth agenda
for London and the South East and would link to
and support the Crossrail 2 initiative. Locally the
decking would dramatically improve Tolworth as a
place; the area suffers severance and the decking
would enhance connectivity and could provide a
high quality open space. The proposal would
connect the high street to the train station making
it one place with much easier navigation.
Please note that the decking is only a concept
proposal at this stage and will require further
investigation moving forward.

147

Dominic Bull

The pollution and poor air quality from the A3 must be dealt with especially due Comment noted.
to proximity of homes and schools.

148

Helen Thrush

How can the council improve air and noise quality by changing a junction,

No change.

Comment noted. There are a variety of measures No change.

249

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
which facilitates a higher volume of traffic this is a contradiction and is a
misleading question.

that could be incorporated to this scheme to help
improve air/noise quality, including landscape
screens etc. However. these details are not yet
know and the scheme is still in very early stages
of investigation.

149

Dave RyderMills

The items relating to the A3 would seem to fly in the face of increasing
numbers of homes in the area unless a complete tunnel network of roads is
envisaged.

Comment noted.

No change.

150

Elaine RyderMills

The A3 corridor could be used for higher intensity housing with its back to the
road.

Comment noted.

No change.

154

L Hebbourn

It is so depressing seeing the dying conifers that were put in as part of the
Comment noted.
Greenway. Planting and landscaping is obviously a big part of any new
development but it is frustrating to see planting at the wrong times of year and
failure to maintain. (a bit of a tangent, but when new trees are planted in
residential roads do you ask specifically ask neighbours to water the trees
outside their houses? I have noticed the number of dead trees in Clarence Ave
with gloom, and although it shouldn't be necessary to ask people to water a
tree perhaps you need to)

No change.

158

Paul Sloan

1. I do not want the ‘Development Areas of Opportunity” designation for
Kingston. If - and that is a big “if” - there really is a need redevelop with higher
densities, and at rates greater than surrounding London boroughs, it would
make sense to concentrate such development near to public transport links,
with those stations having the highest frequencies and greatest spare
passenger carrying capacity bearing the brunt of the new development. Again,
only if there really is a need for Kingston to redevelop at a higher rate than
other surrounding London boroughs, any advent of Crossrail 2 would see New
Malden having 16 trains per hour frequency, the highest in the borough. In
comparison, Chessington and Tolworth, the focus of your proposed opportunity
areas, would only have 4 trains per hour. Moreover, with three council owned
golf courses in the North of the borough, there exists a considerable imbalance
in the distribution of greenspace with Kingston borough. North Kingston has a
surplus, while south of the borough has a deficit. To exacerbate this imbalance
is unfair to residents south of Kingston town..

B331

1. Comments noted. Agreed, the identified 'Areas No change.
of Opportunity' across the Borough are considered
to be those areas most suited for new growth on
account of their transport accessibility, proximity to
centres and regeneration opportunity.
2. Comment noted regarding potential
development opportunities.

3. The Council also recognise that key to
facilitating and managing new growth is to ensure
new investment and improvement in supporting
infrastructure, including transport infrastructure
such as investments in Crossrail 2, bus services
and cycling infrastructure (via the Go Kingston
scheme), providing residents with a much wider
2. Again, only if there really is a need for Kingston to redevelop, a mere 20
choice of transport options whilst reducing car
minutes walk away from New Malden station lies a council owned golf course - reliance. Development of comprehensive
it should be redeveloped ahead of any greenbelt land, that would typically offer integrated transport facilities are in the early
more environmental benefits than managed golf courses.. Golf courses,
stages of development with key partners such as
particularly council owned golf courses leased at sub-market rents to
Transport for London and Network Rail.
expensive private member clubs, are unjustifiable in a Greater London context

250

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
whilst simultaneously proposing greenbelt development.

4. IT IS UNJUSTIFIED TO DEVELOP METROPOLITAN OPEN LAND IN THE
SOUTH OF THE BOROUGH WHEN THERE IS LESS URBAN GREEN
SPACE SOUTH OF KINGSTON TOWN THAN ELSEWHERE IN THE
BOROUGH.
5. THE PROPOSED RAFT OVER THE A3 ONLY FACILITATES
DEVELOPMENT AND OFFERS NO MEANINGFUL TRAFFIC

B332

It is anticipated that Crossrail 2 will have a
transformational impact on the connectivity of this
area. New Crossrail 2 Services from 2033 will be
3. The proposed transport improvements are woefully inadequate in the
context of the massive developments proposed. Already we have 50,000m2 of serving railway stations in the area with four trains
an hour in each direction connecting central
proposed retail space with no concrete and meaningful public transport
London. The Council will actively plan for the
proposals to handle the increased influx from Kingston's hinterland whihc
extends well into Sury. Public transport access from the South and South West arrival of Crossrail 2, although new growth in
Kingston is not dependant on its delivery.
is particularly poor. These proposals are lightweight window dressing, pr and
spin for the masses. While developers reap the profits, residents will suffer
dearly in decades to come from the wholly inadequate transport infrastructure 4. The borough's strategic open spaces are
proposed. The lack of other transport infrastructure apart from Crossrail 2
important and valued assets, and in accordance
(CR2) is the most worrying thing. Way more than Surbiton to Waterloo peak
with the London Plan and national policy, will be
hour express trains getting the chop. CR2 only shoves extra trains down
protected from inappropriate development.
existing track and offers only the most marginal improvement in connectivity ( a However, we also recognise the need to
new route from Tooting to Kingston). Links to Kingston's southern and south- undertake a review of land as part of the local plan
western hinterlands are poor, and these need to be addressed BEFORE any
process in order to assess suitability going
significant development is approved. North-South public transport
forward.
infrastructure is woefully inadequate as is, never mind the aftermath of
significant development. The bus densities support light rail on many routes
5. Comment noted regarding the Tolworth Deck.
already. CR2 on it’s own is not enough to meet Kingston’s public transport
The proposal includes includes covering over a
needs. I seek assurances that hard analysis will be performed to identify
section of the A3 immediately to the south of the
Kingston’s current and future public transport needs, taking into account likely main A3/A240 intersection. The decking would
future residential and commercial developments. The London Mayor’s London complement other planned investment along the
2050 report emphasises that the projected population growth of Outer London A3, as well as the public realm/cycling initiatives in
boroughs would generate transport needs that can not be met using congested adjoining areas. Such investment in Tolworth
road networks. Accordingly, I seek proposals on how you would seek to
would support the Government's growth agenda
integrate CR2 investment with any future tram or express busway schemes.
for London and the South East and would link to
Particularly on the overlooked and frankly pathetic North-South transport links and support the Crossrail 2 initiative. Locally the
through Kingston borough. I understand that CR2 has been planned on the
decking would dramatically improve Tolworth as a
basis of 2043 London population projections. These projections have been
place; the area suffers severance and the decking
revised sharply upwards in the subsequent 2050 London population
would enhance connectivity and could provide a
projections. I seek assurances that this once in a hundred years scheme for
high quality open space. The proposal would
Kingston has sufficient capacity to cater for the most recent and upper end
connect the high street to the train station making
population projections.
it one place with much easier navigation.
Note that the document is intended to be highlevel at this early stage of the local plan process,
providing the Council's 'Statement of Intent'. It
aims to provide alignment of local strategic
planning policy, the London Plan, and Kingston's
growth agenda, as well as the broad context in
which the new Borough Local Plan needs to be

251

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
IMPROVEMENT. ANY PROPOSED RETAIL DEVELOPMENT WOULD ONLY planned. The detail and deliverability of new
ATTRACT MORE CARS AND MORE AIR POLLUTION AND MORE TRAFFIC growth strategies will be developed and consulted
CONGESTION, WHICH BRINGS MORE PREMATURE DEATHS FROM
upon in later stages of the local plan process.
RESULTANT AIR POLLUTION. IT MUST NOT BE ALLOWED. A3
SEVERANCE SHOULD BE REDUCED BY BUILDING NORTH SOUTH TRAM
LINKS, NORTH SOUTH CYCLE BRIDGES, NORTH SOUTH PEDESTRIAN
LINKS. AN ADDITIONAL ROAD ON A CONCRETE RAFT OVER THE A3
WOULD ONLY INCREASE CONGESTION, AS ANY TRAFFIC ENGINEER
BORN SINCE 1970 WILL TELL YOU THAT BUILDING MORE ROADS
INDUCES MORE TRAFFIC, WHICH LEADS TO MORE CONGESTION AND
POLLUTION. And more premature death from resultant air pollution.
161

Richard Ware

1. Development over the station will no doubt provide funds for a station
upgrade but with Lidl, Premier Inn and the development at the old Government
office site enough is enough. The A240 won't be able to cope at rush hour
times.
"Increase in new homes" - That earmarked for Tolworth and
Chessington(either side of railway line)right over my house. Not sure where
apart from small infilling.

3. "An improved A3 junction" - Fine words but how is it to be provided.
Stopping all traffic between 7.30 & 9.30 and 16.00 & 18.30 is all I can think
of."Connectivity" - Will make Hook Rise South a rat-run both east and west.
This is a narrow road with on street parking on a large arching curve which
limits the viewing time for oncoming cars and is thus dangerous. Double yellow
line all along Hook Rise South would ease problem somewhat but cant see
residents of the road going along with that"Modern Industrial units on CIE"4. Be a benefit to reduce on street parking on the estate(providing planners
ensure adequate off street parking which the did not with New England
Seafood. The greater the provision for off street parking for some of the units
could severely restrict the size and capacity any new units and thus inhibit
business and employment. The estate was built in the main when public
transport the and bicycle were the main form of transport to work. Care needed
this area has been abused by visitation from certain adjacent residents of
Epsom and Ewell for bike scrambling and horse grazing.

2. Comment noted.

B333

2. All other land recreation, playing fields or Tolworth Court Farm. I trust the
two fields sandwiched between the back of the Chantry Park Estate and
Jubilee Way are not under consideration? Further heavy traffic access and
egress onto Jubilee way would not be a good idea.

1. Comments noted regarding the impact of
No change.
growth on traffic congestion in this area. It is
agreed that this is a key challenge for the council
and we recognise the need for significant
investment in transport infrastructure, including
Crossrail 2, bus services and cycling infrastructure
(via the Go Kingston scheme). The aim being that
this will provide residents with a choice of
transport alternative whilst reducing car reliance.

3. Comment noted.
4. Comments noted. It is recognised that
improvements to the A3 are unlikely to bring any
major road capacity improvements. The primary
focus will be on the environment and safety, with
the majority of the new trips to the area predicted
to be by public transport.
The Tolworth Deck proposal includes includes
covering over a section of the A3 immediately to
the south of the main A3/A240 intersection. The
decking would compliment other planned
investment along the A3, as well as the public
realm/cycling initiatives in adjoining areas. Such
investment in Tolworth would support the
Government's growth agenda for London and the
South East and would link to and support the

252

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
Crossrail 2 initiative. Locally the decking would
dramatically improve Tolworth as a place; the area
suffers severance and the decking would enhance
connectivity and could provide a high quality open
space. The proposal would connect the high street
to the train station making it one place with much
easier navigation.
4. Comment noted regarding parking.
164

Marian Ellis

Keep the farm at Tolworth but maybe a working farm and visitor attraction. We Comment noted.
do not need another deer park. We need to farm for wildlife, birds, wild flowers

No change.

The following consultees submitted a response but did not comment specifically on Question 1(e) of the survey.
Name

ID

Name

ID

Name

2

Denise Thompson

60

Alex

112

Rebeca alamo

3

Peter Watson

61

j langridge

114

Marguerite Bowers Clark

4

Ken Thompson

62

Pam Walsh

115

J Wheeler

5

Nigel Randall

64

Joseph Asghar

119

Iain Martin MSc CMILT

7

Kathrin Siguda

66

Alan Bennett

120

Mo Sehra

9

Douglas Sampson

67

Natalie Crew

121

Pat Marchant

11

Richard Grosvenor

68

Alex Gregor-Smith

122

H Wollinger

12

Jim Cardell

69

Kevin White

123

Chris Coleman

13

Matthew Kyte

70

Howard Robinson

124

Pippa Billingsley

14

sara redmond

71

Charmian Bourne

125

Mark Blewett

15

Shailesh Patel

72

Carl Jackson

133

Yvonne Walsh

18

Patricia McLauchlan

73

Deborah Dunning

134

lee hendra

19

Maryka Sennema

74

Stanley R. Spires

135

Agnieszka

21

Lucy Symons

75

Peter Topp

136

john pearson

23

anthony johannsen

77

Judith Symons

139

Cashel Riordan

24

Linda Seel

80

Annie Kay

140

Julian Oldfield

B334

ID

253

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
Felicia Green

81

Mr Stephen Heil

141

Michele salter

27

Graham Tucker

83

andrew compton

142

caroline cheales

29

martin russell-jones

84

Maureen Ellis

143

Stewart Dickson

31

Mr Aziz Bawany

85

karen carman

144

Linda Skilbeck

32

andy watters

86

Leonora Partridge

145

Judith Royle

33

Alistair Glen

87

Peter Herlinger

151

Neil Riley

35

Stephanie Russell

89

Ross Anthony, Theatres Trust

152

Janice Yeadon

36

Gloria Bassoli

90

Andrew Summersgill

153

Adrian Wheeler

37

E John

91

A Sadeghi

155

Hazel Farrow

38

Imran Benson

92

Marilyn Mason, Chair, KEF

156

Alison Wheeler

39

Saleh

93

James

157

Christopher Thomas

40

Derek Moss

94

Sara Vincent

159

Jonathan Fray

41

G T Knight

95

Gay Richardson

160

Anne Oram

43

carlos

96

James Fennell (Nathaniel Lichfield & Partners)

162

Simon Munk

44

Steve

97

Simon Jakeman

163

Diane Watling

47

Alvaro

101

Mr M.Gascoigne

165

Claire Harrison

48

Jacqueline Hardie

103

Dan

166

James Giles

49

A chandler

105

Tony Lancaster

167

Kerry Giles

50

Martyn

106

Gemma Cusworth

168

David Giles

51

Des McRow

107

John Edwards

169

Marc Tracey

53

Robert Wyeth

108

Daniel Wain

170

Yvonne Tracey

56

Phil Edwards

109

Katherine jones

171

James Giles on behalf of MICO

57

Fred Ashmore

111

Peta Schaverien

172

Carole & Michael Statham-Fletcher

B335

26

254

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

Question 1(f) - Chessington
ID
4

Respondent

Question 1(f) - Do you have any comments?

RBK Response

Ken Thompson 1. It is very important that the traffic along the Leatherhead Road is
relieved. A separate exit on the A3 to CWoA is paramount. Upgrading the
stations especially Chessington South is vital.

Pages 19; Paragraph
1
Original text: ‘A new
borough Local Plan is
required to show how
it will deliver the
growth needs of a
rapidly rising
population’.

Update: ‘A new
borough Local Plan is
required to show how
it will deliver the
growth needs of a
rapidly rising
2. Comment noted regarding affordable homes.
population, including
Affordability of homes for local people is a key priority new affordable
due to high house prices, an increasing shortfall in
homes, a diverse
provision, and the increase in demand. One of our
range of employment
biggest issues is to tackle this positively and increase opportunities, and
the number of houses to meet needs, while seeking
expanded leisure and
the right balance between protecting the environment, community facilities’.
and supporting the local economy.
Further reference to the need for affordable housing
will be included in the revised document.

6

S Guess

No

8

Malcolm Wright 1. There's a theme here - don't build more houses!! And this is from
someone that rents and would like to buy! The whole borough is too
crowded - the infrastructure, from lack of public transport capacity,
overcrowded roads, schools and hospitals full to the brim. Exceptionally
high density housing may work in some countries (e.g Japan) but they

Comment noted.

No change.

1. Comments noted. The population of Kingston is set
to increase by at least 10%, therefore there is a need
to plan positively for it through the local plan process.
We recognise the need to manage growth in a way
that is sensitive to the environment, heritage and

No change.

255

B336

1. All comments noted. The council support the need
to address congestion and severance around the
Chessington, Tolworth and Hook areas. We are
currently exploring the concept of a relief road with
neighbouring planning authorities. The key benefits of
2. Increasing affordable / rental housing / flats it needed to encourage a
range of different people including young single workers to the area to give the scheme include:
a) Congestion Relief - diverting some north and
Chessington a wider range of resident.
southbound traffic (currently on the A243) via the relief
road and the A3, rather than passing through
Chessington.
b) Facilitating Growth - maximising growth
opportunities in Chessington, with potential to attract
further investment, new jobs, housing, commercial
premises. New Crossrail 2 Services from 2033 will be
serving railway stations in the area with four trains an
hour in each direction connecting central London.

Document
Update

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
won't work here! Chessington South and North stations are a poor
neighbour to Surbiton station with a pitiful 2 trains an hour!
2. As a former employee of CWoA owner I cannot fathom why another
train station is required when there's one 5 min walk away! Rather than the
huge task of building another station - why not encourage Merlin to run
shuttle buses between the resort and train station?! I would suspect that
CWoA contribute a significant amount to the economy around Chessington
so think it's a good idea to support them.

existing local residents. It also includes ensuring new
investment and improvement in supporting
infrastructure, such as community facilities and
transport.

2. Comments noted. The new station at CWOA is only
a concept proposal at this stage, considered to be a
potential way of improving connections in the area and
relieving congestion. This will be subject to further
exploration before any decision is made. Note that the
arrival of Crossrail 2 would transform the connectivity
3. I don't think trying to improve local shops is a realistic and proposition
with consumers shopping habits moving ever more online, this would be a of this area, providing a more regular service (a
poor use of limited resources - as would any further "improvements" to the minimum of four trains per hour on each line at all
times of operation) connecting through Central
road running through the Hook parade!
London. However, detailed proposals from Crossrail 2
are yet to be decided.

16

Paul Cook

1. Chessington is an outstanding "GREEN" area in the borough. Priority
should be given to preserving the green open spaces in Chessington.
Given the investment required to deliver Crossrail 2, there will be strong
pressure to build housing to justify the investment. The response to this
must be to find imaginative ways to get housing on to existing built up
areas rather than to consume green open space.
2. The A 243 is operating up to capacity, so traffic management should be
a high priority.
3. A rail link to Epsom should be considered alongside the possibility of a
new station for Chessington World of Adventure.
4. Green areas to the west of the A243 should be protected.
5. A bus service to Epsom Hospital should be provided

B337

3. Comments noted. We agree that the new Boroughwide Local Plan must understanding the future trends
of the changing retail landscape, including implications
of online shopping,, as well as maintaining the
diversification of town centres into mixed use locations
to ensure continued vitality.
1. Comments noted. New growth will be required to be No change.
balanced with the need to protect the character of the
borough, including green spaces, as well as following
a clear 'brownfield-first' approach to new development.
2. Comments noted regarding traffic congestion in the
area. This is one of the key challenges for the Council.
The long term ambition includes the reduction in car
reliance through investment in transport infrastructure,
including Crossrail 2, bus services and walking/cycle
infrastructure, providing choice of transport options for
the local community. In particular, it is anticipated that
Crossrail 2 will have a transformational impact on the
connectivity of this area. New Crossrail 2 Services
from 2033 will be serving railway stations in the area
with four trains an hour in each direction connecting
central London.

256

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
Furthermore, the proposed relief road (a concept
currently being investigated) will have a number of key
benefits including diverting some north and
southbound traffic (currently on the A243) via the relief
road and the A3, rather than passing through
Chessington.
3. Comment noted regarding a rail link to Epsom.
4. Comment noted regarding green areas west of the
A243.
5. Comment note regarding bus services to Epsom
Hospital. Improved bus services will also form part of
ongoing discussions with TfL to improve public
transport accessibility in the area.
20

Petrina Tatnall

2. We already have to put up with the traffic to and from CWA.

1. Comment noted regarding potential development
opportunities,

No change.

2. Comments noted regarding traffic congestion in the
area. This is one of the key challenges for the Council.
The long term ambition includes the reduction in car
reliance through investment in transport infrastructure,
including Crossrail 2, bus services and walking/cycle
infrastructure, providing choice of transport options for
the local community.

B338

1. Regarding question 1, I don't mind a few affordable homes being built on
what is now Chessington Golf club, providing the plans for a swimming
pool, sports centre and football pitch go hand in glove with it as well. But
not massive amounts of homes springing up all over Chessington and
Malden Rushett, as we can't cope with the amount of traffic now in our
village.

3. I am not sure about having another station implemented just for CWA
We already have Chessington south, which is walking distance to CWA.
Why do we need another? It would all depend on where the station would 3. Comments noted. The new station at CWOA is only
be placed, would it be on the premises of CWA, or are you thinking Malden a concept proposal at this stage, considered to be a
Rushett? If in Malden Rushett, then definitely no.
potential way of improving connections in this area and
relieving congestion. This will be subject to further
exploration before any decision is made.
4. I don't understand the implications of why we are having a crossrail 2
here at Chessington, as you can't get directly into London from it as you
have to change. If I want to go direct to London, then I would go either to
Surbiton or Leatherhead. Plus where are all these people going to park
4. Comments noted regarding Crossrail 2. it is
should they be using the train from Chessington if they have driven from
anticipated that Crossrail 2 will have a transformational
another area? Will there be car parks at all of these crossrail 2 stations?
impact on the connectivity of this area. New Crossrail 2
Have you even thought about that? We already have many parking
Services from 2033 will be serving railway stations in
problems in our village so we don't want commuters travelling up to
the area with four trains an hour in each direction
London who might not even be from our area leaving their cars parked
connecting central London.
everywhere for the day in our village. Regarding the Barwell estate what

257

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
do you mean by intensification, does this mean it will become larger? It is
fine as it is. We don't need even more traffic to our area
22

Anthony Quinn

Many. In respect of Chessington World of Adventures, Councillors have
already shown their willingness to ignore the democratically derived Core
Strategy, London Plan, Government Guidance on Green Belt and their
own governments statement that it has no desire to see Green Belt
developed. I would suggest they need to consider carefully further
breaches. Many mistakes have been made by previous councils in this
area. I am very much against nearly all of these proposals.

25

David Watkins

1. You can't disagree with these proposals. These are not KuT-initiated
proposals. These are largely CR2 and TfL / DoT plans. 'Supporting longterm ambitions of Chessington World of Adventures' - you may as well just
stand there and wave a flag. What on earth does this mean you're
ACTUALLY going to DO?

26

Felicia Green

1. I am slightly worried about Chessington World of Adventures
encroaching on the green belt in the south. This has already been seen
with 'Go Ape' being developed on the only woodland in the borough (60
acre wood). There are other areas for expansion surely on more built up
areas such as to the south? Housing directly benefits the community,
whereas this only indirectly benefits the community and should not be
prioritised. In particularly Winney Hill is one of the few places in the
Borough with a view over London.

Comments noted.

No change.

1. Comments noted. Regarding future plans for
Chessington World of Adventures, their long term
ambitions are outside the scope of the Direction of
Travel.

B339

1. Comments noted. The document is intended to be
No change.
high-level at this early stage of the local plan process,
providing the Council's 'Statement of Intent'. It aims to
provide alignment of local strategic planning policy, the
London Plan, and Kingston's growth agenda, as well
as the broad context in which the new Borough Local
2. 'Supporting a new district centre and sustaining improved local shopping Plan needs to be planned. The detail and deliverability
of new growth strategies will be developed and
facilities' - what's that all about then?
consulted upon in later stages of the local plan
process.
3. Are you going to add infrastructure, spruce up the existing stuff, improve
road access and parking, reduce parking charges, build electric car
charging points, improve pedestrian facilities??? ...what then??? Does this 2. Comment noted regarding the new district centre. It
include repairing the potholes in the road? Or taking the initiative and trying is anticipated that expanded town centre uses and
to co-ordinate the work of the statutory undertakers so that a trench is only facilities will be required to support the area as a result
dug once, they all use it, then the repaired road can be left undamaged for of new growth. The location of this will be subject to
a longer period before interruption. You seem to spend money re-surfacing further investigation through the local plan process.
only for the undertakers to come along the week after and dig it up! They
wait for you to do it! So, no thoughts about how this long-prevalent
3. The need for supporting infrastructure, including
situation and total waste of public money could be resolved? No? Nobody community facilities and transport investment, is
even suggests you think about it collectively at the 485-member LGA
absolutely key to supporting new growth in the area.
meetings, no?? It's only public money after all. What do you people do all Again, the details of these requirements will be further
day? Vague, ambition-less, unacceptable. At least if you never define your development throughout the local plan process.
targets, you could never be accused of not achieving them, isn' that right?
No change.

2. Comments noted regarding transport links. The
Council recognise that key to facilitating and managing
new growth is to ensure new investment and

258

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

2. Establishing better transport links to this part of the borough and the
surrounding countryside would be great. Perhaps some buses with bike
racks could travel from Kingston/Surbiton to the large number of
countryside cycle routes south of the Borough? Also cycle links (perhaps
along the Hogsmill) to this area would be great. These would encourage
and improve recreational cycle and walking options.
27

Graham Tucker 1. I would like more information on the relief road so that I can comment.
2. I am not sure what is meant by a new district centre, please clarify.
3. Barwell Business Park has not been fully occupied for years so why
intensify?

improvement in supporting infrastructure, including
transport infrastructure such as investments in
Crossrail 2, bus services and cycling infrastructure (via
the Go Kingston scheme), providing residents with a
much wider choice of transport options whilst reducing
car reliance.

B340

1. Comments noted. To address congestion and
No change.
severance around the Chessington, Tolworth and
Hook areas, the Council is exploring the concept of a
relief road with neighbouring planning authorities. The
key benefits of the scheme include:
a) Congestion Relief - diverting some north and
southbound traffic (currently on the A243) via the relief
road and the A3, rather than passing through
Chessington.
b) Facilitating Growth - maximising growth
opportunities in Chessington, with potential to attract
further investment, new jobs, housing, commercial
premises. New Crossrail 2 Services from 2033 will be
serving railway stations in the area with four trains an
hour in each direction connecting central London.
2. Comment noted regarding the new district centre. It
is anticipated that expanded town centre uses and
facilities will be required to support the area as a result
of new growth. The location of this will be subject to
further investigation through the local plan process.
3. Comment noted regarding Barwell Business Park.
As part of the local plan process, the Council will be
undertaking a review of all existing industrial estates
and business parks.

34

Mel

I am deeply concerned that there ail lbw further erosion of the green belt in
Chessington - it seems to be the frontline for this in the borough.
Chessington World of Adventures is not worth the candle, sad zoo
animals, rusting tracks and heavy traffic. It is antiquated and desperate e.g. Go Ape.

Comments noted. The borough's strategic open
spaces are important and valued assets and in
accordance with the London Plan and national policy,
will be protected from inappropriate development.
However, we also recognise the need to undertake a
review of Green Belt land as part of the local plan
process in order to assess the suitability of land going
forward.

No change.

259

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
40

Derek Moss

Instead of extending the line and building a new station just to serve
Chessington World of Adventures, a footbridge should be built across the
road to avoid people walking from Chessington South having to cross the
busy road, metal fencing put up between the pavement and the road to
keep pedestrians, especially young children, safe and Chessington South
could be upgraded if necessary, at far less cost and disruption.

Comments noted.

No change.

41

G T Knight

The consultation document is too thin on detail. It seems unfair to harvest
'agrees' when the public has nothing of substance to decide upon.
Example 'Chessington has been identified as a potential long term area of
opportunity linked to the arrival of Crossrail2' - this is all the detail I can find
in the document. What kind of long-term opportunity? For who? Of what
nature and standard? How dense? However I am in total agreement with
what I as an individual regard as 'improvement'.

All comments and support noted. The document is
No change.
intended to be high-level at this early stage of the local
plan process, providing the Council's 'Statement of
Intent'. It aims to provide alignment of local strategic
planning policy, the London Plan, and Kingston's
growth agenda, as well as the broad context in which
the new Borough Local Plan needs to be planned.
The detail and deliverability of new growth strategies
and evidence base will be developed and consulted
upon in later stages of the local plan process.

Sheena Evans

Sceptical about building too much on expectations of Chessington World of Comments noted.
Adventures, especially if it means (as it surely must) encroaching further
on Green Belt. Fashions change, and more prudent in my view to
concentrate on Barwell Business Park. 'Enhanced' access to countryside
tends to mean urbanisation, which would be a retrograde step.

No change.

46

Dr Nazar Pola

no comment

Noted.

No change.

52

B. Walker

Even if you build a new station you will still get more cars if Chessington
continues to grow putting more pressure on the congested A3 and
surrounding network

Comments noted. It is agreed that this is a key
challenge for the council and we recognise the need
for significant investment in transport infrastructure,
including Crossrail 2, bus services and cycling
infrastructure (via the Go Kingston scheme). The aim
being that this will provide residents with a choice of
transport alternative whilst reducing car reliance.

No change.

53

Robert Wyeth

The Hook/Chessington relief road idea is an excellent one. Leatherhead
Support noted.
Road is the only single-carriageway artery out of the Borough south of the
river and it is hopelessly inadequate. The Malden Rushett junction has
been greatly improved but the fundamental problem of traffic volume on
Leatherhead Road has not been addressed. The proposed link to the A3
from the area of the Chessington roundabout on Leatherhead Road (or
better, at Chessington World of Adventures - which would contribute to the
cost) could lighten traffic coming through Hook. To debottleneck
Leatherhead Road south of the proposed Hook/Chessington relief road
across the Green Belt (and Mole Valley District) to the Leatherhead/M25

B341

45

260

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
roundabout, it would need to be a dual carriageway.
54

Joseph Asghar

55

See Private Eye.

No change.

John McCarthy, no obs
Friends
Kingston
Museum &
Heritage
Service

Comment noted.

No change.

56

Phil Edwards

Relief road is required NOW not in the future

Comment noted.

No change.

63

Peter Mason

Impacts on Green Belt?

Comment noted. The borough's strategic open spaces No change.
are important and valued assets and in accordance
with the London Plan and national policy, will be
protected from inappropriate development. However,
we also recognise the need to undertake a review of
Green Belt land as part of the local plan process in
order to assess the suitability of land going forward.

65

Rob Robb

1. This lemming type belief in Cross Rail 2 . Its coming at too higher price.
we have grown up with direct trains to Waterloo people getting jobs in the
City and Canary Wharf etc, with direct connections from Waterloo (the
drain) and the Jubilee Line . Money for Cross Rail 2 could be spent on
updating the tunnels for the Waterloo and City Line and possibly extending
that. we are getting 10 car trains next year once the work at Waterloo is
complete and this is more use than cross rail 2. The new 30 trains an hour
fed from branch lines far and wide and being fed into two of the top four
busiest stations Victoria and Paddington, how does that make sense. Our
new Prime Minister is questioning HS2 lets hope she has the sense to
question Cross rail 2. Lets get back down to earth and think of todays
problems such as disabled access to our stations.

1. Comments noted. Crossrail 2 as proposed, would
No change.
offer a range of benefits for all users, including a more
regular service (a minimum of four trains per hour on
each line at all times of operation) connecting through
Central London. However, detailed proposals from
Crossrail 2 are yet to be decided. The Council will
actively plan for the arrival of Crossrail 2, although new
growth in Kingston is not dependant on its delivery.

B342

Comment noted.

2. Comment noted regarding Barwell Business Park.
As part of the local plan process, the Council will be
undertaking a review of all existing industrial estates
and business parks.

2. Do not know what you mean about Intensification of Barwell Business
Park. Kingston Business Manager needs to get together a Business Forum 3. Comment noted.
as they have at Cox' Lane to see what the inhabitants want from their
Estate. Cox Lane Industrial Estate :4. Comment noted.
3. Change name to Jubilee way Business Partk (Industrial Park gives
wrong impression especially with Companies such as Digital realty)

5. Comments noted.

4. Rename Cox Lane to Jubilee Way up to Bus gate. Leave road other
residential side of Bus Gate as Cox Lane. Help with sat nave and large

261

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
vehilces.
5. Have a shuttle bus from Tolworth station serving the Business Park
giving better access for visitors and workers have had a quote from Epsom
Buses of £250,00 a year full time Monday to Friday. Get TFL to get their
finger out and install new improved signage to stop vehicles trying to get to
the Estate via the Chessington side (yet another one of those TFL flying
pigs) . Look at migrating Red Lion Road Industrial Units (Fullers Way
North)over to Cox Lane, Barwell and Silverglade so that land can be used
more condusively for housing. Stop large vehicles trying to turn off A3 at
dangerous point.
Kevin White

Consider more links to Epsom maybe a better bus service to aepsom
hospital. Linking Chessington South to Ashtead/Epsom station line.

Comment noted.

No change.

73

Deborah
Dunning

This area is in particular need of improvement - Chessington World of
Adventures and the connection to the M25 from the A3 causes a heavy
volume of traffic which causes long traffic jams and frustrated drivers and
residents.

Comments noted regarding traffic congestion in the
area.

No change.

76

Howard
Sheppard

I have no idea what The World of Adventures plan however its continued
success is important, also important is the retention of employment in the
Chessington area. The Council might also review the status of the Green
Belt, the amenity of much in the Chessington area has become degraded
to such a point that reclassification for development might be more
appropriate.

Comments noted. The council values the employment
opportunities provided by Chessington World of
Adventures, which will continue to be supported.

No change.

78

Keith Keen

The structures of the rail station buildings on the Chessington South
Comments noted.
branch line are unique - at least one of these should be preserved and
even given Listed Building status. The two Chessington stations should be
considered in the list for Listed Building status. Chessington has the
greatest potential for expansion and provision for growth in the borough.
Attention should be given to safeguarding the environment around the old
church in Chessington.

No change.

79

Frances Marsh

I am also not able to comment on Chessington fully.

No change.

81

Mr Stephen Heil No extension of accodation further south than the new development at the Comments noted.
old golf course. . The land further south is a buffer greenbelt area .

85

Karen Carman

1. What exactly does a 'new district centre' entail - it sounds very much like
'build more shops'. We already have the main shopping area on the Hook
Road (although the fact that you cannot cross by car from one side to the
other means that you have to loop up to the Ace of Spades roundabout or
back to the Bridge Road roundabout which makes for unnecessary car
journeys or people not bothering to stop if they cannot park on the side of

B343

69

Comment noted.

No change.

1. Comments noted. Regarding the new district centre, No change.
it is anticipated that expanded town centre uses and
facilities will be required to support the area as a result
of new growth. The location of this will be subject to
further investigation through the local plan process.

262

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
the road in which they are travelling). There is also a thriving parade of
shops at Chessington North, although the lack of parking spaces and the
building of flats with no thought to where residents will park doesn't help
this area. The Lidl supermarket has only served to take custom AWAY
from these shopping areas and has greatly added to the traffic in that area.
Lidls has also already needed to request expansion of its parking area
which is exactly what the Residents' Association predicted would happen.

B344

2. Comments noted regarding the potential impact to
traffic congestion. The council recognise that the local
centres in this area must be the focus of increased
investment in transport infrastructure, including
Crossrail 2, extension of bus services and cycle
infrastructure, providing residents with a much wider
choice of transport options whilst reducing car reliance.
The Council are also exploring the concept of a relief
road with neighbouring planning authorities with the
2. I strongly suspect that a 'new district centre' would increase traffic and
would take away custom from the existing shops a people would drive to it. aim of addressing congestion and severance around
the Chessington, Tolworth and Hook areas.
The traffic situation in Chessington is already at breaking point. I would
suggest that rather than building houses / retail in anticipation of improved
transport links and new roads it would perhaps be wise to sort out the
3. Comments noted. Key to facilitating and managing
existing problems and get the links in first, then see what building is
new growth is to ensure new investment and
needed.
improvement in supporting infrastructure, including
schools and healthcare.
3. As a long-term resident of Chessington I have failed to see how any of
the so-called improvements that have been made over the past 25 years
4. Comments noted.
have actually improved the lives of residents. Schools have had bulge
classes then have had to expand, and have been filled again. Dentist and 5. Comments noted. The new station at CWOA is only
Doctor practices are full. Houses with large gardens have been bought up, a concept proposal at this stage, considered to be a
knocked down and over-developed leaving many families with little outdoor potential way of improving connections in this area and
space for parking or recreation, which then knocks on to other residents
relieving congestion. This will be subject to further
around them. Perfectly good family houses have been bought up and left exploration before any decision is made.
empty whilst planners submit, resubmit, resubmit, resubmit their schemes
until they get what they want.
4. Businesses start up under certain conditions then once up and running
start submitting alterations that would never have been approved in the
first place (Lidls with its delivery times and parking is a prime example). As
a resident it always feels like the council is making decisions based on
having a quick monetary pay-off rather than looking at the long-term
impact on the residents.
5. Also - if Chessington World of Adventures wants a closer station then it
should pay for it. In the meantime perhaps it could run shuttle buses to and
from the station for its clients if it is so concerned about the walk. Or is the
CWOA station just a ruse to then build housing all around that area once it
has been built? it would be a good idea to get the present train system
working properly (several times the first and second train is cancelled)
before adding to the number of passengers.

263

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
92

Marilyn Mason,
Chair, KEF

Green spaces and biodiversity in this area should be protected.

Comment noted.

No change.

98

Janine Bellew

I don't live in Chessington so cannot comment

Comment noted.

No change.

99

Zbig Blonski

1. The Green Belt boundary should be reviewed to allow for needed
development.

1. Comments noted. Green Belt land will be be subject No change.
to a comprehensive review as part of the local plan
process.

2. There are considerable traffic issues associated with Chessington World
of Adventures and the string of other traffic generating activities nearby. It
is surprising that Chessington does not contribute to the provision of local
facilities such as a new leisure centre with a swimming pool. Any future
proposals by them should take a wider view on how their development
could benefit the wider area.

2. The Council also recognise that key to facilitating
and managing new growth is to ensure new
investment and improvement in supporting
infrastructure, including community/leisure facilities
and transport infrastructure. Transport investments will
include Crossrail 2, bus services and cycling
infrastructure (via the Go Kingston scheme), providing
residents with a much wider choice of transport options
whilst reducing car reliance.

Barbara
Delamere

Do not know Chessington at all

Comment noted.

No change.

102

David English

Small archaeological Priority Area within Chessington. This is for the
historic settlement of Chessington and any developments within the
archaeological priority area should in many cases be supported by an
archaeological desk based assessment and in some cases an
archaeological evaluation.

Comments noted. Further reference to protection of
heritage assets and character will be included within
the revised document.

Pages 27, 29, 31, 33,
35, 37; End of Text
Sentence added after
bullet points: ‘We
recognise that new
growth must be
balanced with the
unique heritage and
character of the
Borough’.
Page 18; Last
paragraph.
Sentence added:
‘Note that the OLC
Report also states,
“there is no one size
fits all solution for
town centre renewal?
Redevelopment, so
any intensification
would have to take
account of the

264

B345

100

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
particular needs and
characteristics of the
individual town centre
such as heritage and
cultural assets, as
well as local
character”.
104

Martin Booth

No, see above

Noted.

No change.

110

Carl Jackson

Need to include cycle and bus routes which link Chessington - Tolworth or
make the rail fare equivalent to the bus so that people don't need to travel
into and out of Surbiton. Need rail extension from Chessington to
Leatherhead.

Comments noted. As noted in the Direction of Travel,
investment and improvement in supporting
infrastructure, particularly transport infrastructure, is
key to supporting new growth. This includes Crossrail
2, bus services and cycle infrastructure.

No change.

113

Mr A. Greene

1. Chessington needs to preserve it's green areas. The golf course near
1. Comments noted. The council agree that new
No change.
Chessington South should have a very limited number of houses built on it growth must be balanced with the consideration of the
that are affordable but the rest kept as green belt.
borough's key assets, including greens spaces and
ecological areas.
2. No to a football stadium, the congestion from it as well as the number of
homes that development is proposing is not sustainable in the area.
2. Comment noted.
3. Comment noted. New leisure opportunities will be a
requirement of new growth in the area. The exact
details of this requirement will be further developed
through the local plan process.

4. The relief road is a bit of a joke. It will actually attract more traffic
blighting the people of Malden Rushett as well as the residents along the
Leatherhead Road through Hook and along the routes to Epsom. It will
become an even more significant rat run.

4. Regarding the Hook/ Chessington relief road, the
Council are currently exploring the concept of a relief
road with neighbouring planning authorities with the
aim of addressing congestion and severance around
the Chessington, Tolworth and Hook areas. The key
benefits of the scheme include:
a) Congestion Relief - diverting some north and
southbound traffic (currently on the A243) via the relief
road and the A3, rather than passing through
Chessington.
b) Facilitating Growth - maximising growth
opportunities in Chessington, with potential to attract
further investment, new jobs, housing, commercial
premises. New Crossrail 2 Services from 2033 will be
serving railway stations in the area with four trains an

5. Chessington World of Adventures is good for the local economy BUT it
needs to be a considerate neighbour to the residents in the area.
6. We put up with a lot of congestion in return for 4 off-peak tickets per
household (a package that has declined quite a bit in the last 10 years or
so).
7. A station specifically for CWOA could work however it will not cut down
on the number of people that drive to the place, it will simply mean less
pedestrians walking from Chessington South towards the park.

B346

3. A "scaled" leisure facility of some sort being that close to a train station
as well as major bus routes could be something that works so long as
green open spaces are kept along side it and it is not too big that it attracts
too much traffic.

265

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
hour in each direction connecting central London.
8. Barwell Business Park could be developed further but again it needs to
be to a scale that does not congest the area further.
9. Corssrail 2 housing = NO. These extra houses will still bring in more
traffic since the people buying these properties will not be car-free. Also
there is no mention of these being affordable. These properties wold
probably be snapped up by developers to then rent out. Any extra housing
in the area has to be rather limited. as it stands, the schools and doctors
surgeries are stretched. To significantly increase the housing in the area
without allowing for existing population growth and without any extra
school and health services provision is foolish to the extreme.

5. Comments noted regarding Chessington World of
Adventures.
6.All comments noted. Regarding traffic issues, the
council is working to determine how potential
infrastructure investment opportunities can help to
relieve traffic congestion.
7. Comments noted regarding a new station at CWOA.
The new station at CWOA is only a concept proposal
at this stage, considered to be a potential way of
improving connections in this area and relieving
congestion. This will be subject to further exploration
before any decision is made.
8. Comment noted regarding Barwell Business Park.

B347

9. Comment noted. The Council recognise that key to
facilitating and managing new growth in Kingston is to
ensure new investment and improvement in supporting
infrastructure, including community facilities such as
schools and healthcare. The detail of these
requirements will be considered at a later stage of the
local plan process.
116

Johanne Molloy The roads through Chessington are already running at capacity, and a
relief road does need developing. Crossrail 2 through Chessington needs
to go further and connect the line to the Leatherhead line.

Comments noted. The Council are currently exploring No change.
the concept of a relief road with neighbouring planning
authorities with the aim of addressing congestion and
severance around the Chessington, Tolworth and
Hook areas.

118

Lynne Finnerty

Not being a Chessington resident I do not feel in a position to comment on Comment noted.
some questions without details. Chessington residents have long been
concerned about poor air quality associated with vehicles. Any proposals
that address this issue should be welcomed.

No change.

122

H. Wollinger

See my earlier comments. There is not enough detail in the description
documentation.

Comment noted.

No change.

127

Pat Cann

More homes = better infrastructure!!

Support noted.

No change.

266

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
131

Hilary Gander

1. Protect the green belt.

1. Comment noted regarding Green Belt.

No change.

2. Can't comment on some items until know the detail - e.g. where will the 2. Comment noted. The document is intended to be
relief road go? / what are CWOA's long term plans / where will the housing high-level at this early stage of the local plan process,
go and what will be the nature - density / mix of housing?
providing the Council's 'Statement of Intent'. The detail
and deliverability of new growth strategies will be
developed and consulted upon in later stages of the
local plan process.
The relief road is only a concept at this stage being
explored with neighbouring planning authorities with
the aim of addressing congestion and severance
around the Chessington, Tolworth and Hook areas.
Regarding future plans for Chessington World of
Adventures, their long term ambitions are outside the
scope of the Direction of Travel, but will be considered
through the local plan process.
Zoe Leeds

There is a lot of land around Chessington, some of wildlife sanctuaries. I
worry that all of the above means destroying Chessington like Epsom and
Ewell destroyed Horton lane. While there are opportunities to enhance and
improve the area, there should be a balance with green space/nature
protected

Comments noted. We recognise that new growth must No change.
be balanced with the consideration of the borough's
key assets, which includes greens spaces and
ecological areas.

138

Sharon
Nelhams

This area has the scope to build and not take away from the rural feel of
the area. Traffic can be horrendous in this area, si it would need to be
looked at carefully. Again review existing unused over land rail tracks first.
Chessington world of adventures should be encouraged to grow, as long
as it does not infringe in existing laws and the environment is always a
priority.

All comments noted. We recognise that new growth
must be balanced with the consideration of the
Borough's key assets, which includes its greens
spaces. We also recognise that traffic congestion is a
key challenge in the area and we are working to
determine how potential infrastructure investment
opportunities had help to relieve this issue.

141

Michele salter

If there is a new station for cwoa presumably they would pay for it

Comment noted. The new station at CWOA is only a
No change.
concept proposal at this stage, considered to be a
potential way of improving connections in this area and
relieving congestion. This will be subject to further
exploration before any decision is made.

142

Caroline
Cheales

1. i am not sure that a new station for the COA is justified and it will
actually increase the business case for the redevelopment of this site as
housing.

B348

137

No change.

1. Comments noted. The new station at CWOA is only No change.
a concept proposal at this stage, considered to be a
potential way of improving connections in this area and
relieving congestion. This will be subject to further
2. I do not support the relief road as it will eat into the green belt/MOL and exploration before any decision is made.

267

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
also put further development pressure on the area. it is probably time to
consider alternatives to road building to manage the externalities
experienced from through traffic, such as a self financing local road user
charging scheme, with appropriate residents discounts and charging hours
that do not adversely affect shopping and COA peak hours traffic (ie at
weekends). the issue with road traffic is mainly commuting peaks. the
intensification of hte business park should also include small units and new
jobs.

2. Similarly, the relief road is another concept proposal
being explored with neighbouring planning authorities
with the aim of addressing congestion and severance
around the Chessington, Tolworth and Hook areas.

Sue May

1. I am unsure about significant additional housing due to concerns about 1. All comments noted. The Council recognise that key No change.
the additional pressure on traffic, and feel that this can only be delivered in to facilitating and managing new growth is to ensure
conjunction with the relief road if it is proven to reduce congestion.
new investment and improvement transport
infrastructure, which must be considered as a strategic
2. Any development needs to be lower rise no more than 3 storeys as this and integrated approach.
is a very rural location on the edge of the green belt and high buildings will
not be in keeping with the local character of the area.
2. Comment noted regarding building heights and rural
character.
3. Again I am unsure about the development of the station for Chessington
World of Adventures or the expansion of the facility where there is not also 3. Regarding the new station at CWOA, this is only a
additional action to relieve the associated congestion which is currently
concept proposal at this stage, considered to be a
intolerable.
potential way of improving connections in this area and
relieving congestion. This will be subject to further
exploration before any decision is made.

147

Dominic Bull

We do not need to build new roads all this will do is encourage more
people to drive. We must encourage people out of their vehicles and onto
cleaner healthier transport options. We need better cycling, walking and
mass transit infrastructure

Comments noted.

No change.

148

Helen Thrush

You cannot pump more people into an area without upgrading the entire
road network which is not possible in the chess ingrown, Tolworth and
Surbiton areas, this area is already grid locked most of the time and these
proposals are just not practical, thought out or achievable.

Comments noted.

No change.

149

Dave RyderMills

1. What are the long term ambitions of CWoA?

1. The long term ambitions Chessington World of
Adventures are outside the scope of the Direction of
Travel, although this issue will be an important
consideration during the local plan process.

No change.

2. The concept of a relief road is extremely problematical. The well known
principle of increasing road capacity does no more than increase traffic
levels may well apply.

B349

146

2. Comments noted. The relief road is only a concept
at this stage being explored with neighbouring
planning authorities with the aim of addressing
congestion and severance around the Chessington,
Tolworth and Hook areas.

268

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

The key benefits of the scheme include:
a) Congestion Relief - diverting some north and
southbound traffic (currently on the A243) via the relief
road and the A3, rather than passing through
Chessington.
b) Facilitating Growth - maximising growth
opportunities in Chessington, with potential to attract
further investment, new jobs, housing, commercial
premises. New Crossrail 2 Services from 2033 will be
serving railway stations in the area with four trains an
hour in each direction connecting central London.
Adrian Wheeler See my earlier comments on cycle paths

Comments noted.

158

Paul Sloan

1. All comments noted. The Council agree that key to No change.
facilitating and managing new growth is to ensure new
investment and improvement in transport
infrastructure. Transport investments will include
Crossrail 2, bus services and cycling infrastructure (via
the Go Kingston scheme), providing residents with a
much wider choice of transport options whilst reducing
car reliance. Development of comprehensive
integrated transport facilities are in the early stages of
development with key partners such as Transport for
London and Network Rail.

1. The proposed transport improvements are woefully inadequate in the
context of the massive developments proposed. Already we have
50,000m2 of proposed retail space with no concrete and meaningful public
transport proposals to handle the increased influx from Kingston's
hinterland whihc extends well into Sury. Public transport access from the
South and South West is particularly poor. These proposals are lightweight
window dressing, pr and spin for the masses. While developers reap the
profits, residents will suffer dearly in decades to come from the wholly
inadequate transport infrastructure proposed. The lack of other transport
infrastructure apart from Crossrail 2 (CR2) is the most worrying thing. Way
more than Surbiton to Waterloo peak hour express trains getting the chop.
CR2 only shoves extra trains down existing track and offers only the most
marginal improvement in connectivity ( a new route from Tooting to
Kingston). Links to Kingston's southern and south-western hinterlands are
poor, and these need to be addressed BEFORE any significant
development is approved. North-South public transport infrastructure is
woefully inadequate as is, never mind the aftermath of significant
development. The bus densities support light rail on many routes already.
CR2 on it’s own is not enough to meet Kingston’s public transport needs. I
seek assurances that hard analysis will be performed to identify Kingston’s
current and future public transport needs, taking into account likely future
residential and commercial developments. The London Mayor’s London
2050 report emphasises that the projected population growth of Outer
London boroughs would generate transport needs that can not be met
using congested road networks. Accordingly, I seek proposals on how you
would seek to integrate CR2 investment with any future tram or express
busway schemes. Particularly on the overlooked and frankly pathetic
North-South transport links through Kingston borough. I understand that

No change.

B350

153

Crossrail 2 as proposed, would offer a range of
benefits for all users, including a more regular service
(a minimum of four trains per hour on each line at all
times of operation) connecting through Central
London. The Council will actively plan for the arrival of
Crossrail 2, although new growth in Kingston is not
dependant on its delivery.
2. Comment noted regarding Metropolitan Open Land.
The borough's strategic open spaces are important
and valued assets, and in accordance with the London
Plan and national policy, will be protected from
inappropriate development. However, we also
recognise the need to undertake a review of land as
part of the local plan process in order to assess
suitability going forward.

269

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
CR2 has been planned on the basis of 2043 London population
projections. These projections have been revised sharply upwards in the
subsequent 2050 London population projections. Iseek assurances that
this once in a hundred years scheme for Kingston has sufficient capacity to
cater for the most recent and upper end population projections.

161

Richard Ware

How does train get into CWoA? Level crossing or is it to be sighted on
Barwell TE? Time to tell CWoA that death by a thousand cuts has got to
stop. That is planning application after planning application always pushing
the boundaries. Time to stop for now it has reached its limits and certainly
the A243 has. No more until relief road is a definite and its effects on the
A243 can be evaluated. I does provide employment but mainly low skilled
and low pay.

B351

3. Comment noted regarding the Tolworth Deck. The
proposal includes includes covering over a section of
the A3 immediately to the south of the main A3/A240
intersection. The decking would complement other
planned investment along the A3, as well as the public
2. IT IS UNJUSTIFIED TO DEVELOP METROPOLITAN OPEN LAND IN
realm/cycling initiatives in adjoining areas. Such
THE SOUTH OF THE BOROUGH WHEN THERE IS LESS URBAN
investment in Tolworth would support the
GREEN SPACE SOUTH OF KINGSTON TOWN THAN ELSEWHERE IN Government's growth agenda for London and the
THE BOROUGH.
South East and would link to and support the Crossrail
2 initiative. Locally the decking would dramatically
improve Tolworth as a place; the area suffers
3. THE PROPOSED RAFT OVER THE A3 ONLY FACILITATES
severance and the decking would enhance
DEVELOPMENT AND OFFERS NO MEANINGFUL TRAFFIC
connectivity and could provide a high quality open
IMPROVEMENT. ANY PROPOSED RETAIL DEVELOPMENT WOULD
ONLY ATTRACT MORE CARS AND MORE AIR POLLUTION AND MORE space. The proposal would connect the high street to
the train station making it one place with much easier
TRAFFIC CONGESTION, WHICH BRINGS MORE PREMATURE
navigation.
DEATHS FROM RESULTANT AIR POLLUTION. IT MUST NOT BE
ALLOWED. A3 SEVERANCE SHOULD BE REDUCED BY BUILDING
NORTH SOUTH TRAM LINKS, NORTH SOUTH CYCLE BRIDGES,
NORTH SOUTH PEDESTRIAN LINKS. AN ADDITIONAL ROAD ON A
CONCRETE RAFT OVER THE A3 WOULD ONLY INCREASE
CONGESTION, AS ANY TRAFFIC ENGINEER BORN SINCE 1970 WILL
TELL YOU THAT BUILDING MORE ROADS INDUCES MORE TRAFFIC,
WHICH LEADS TO MORE CONGESTION AND POLLUTION. And more
premature death from resultant air pollution. Chessington needs better
north south transport links to/from Kingston, either 1. trams, or express
segregated bus ways, or the 4 trains per hour that would be delivered by
creating a chord at Raynes PArk and sending trains from Chessington to
Twickenham via Kingston. See the report commissioned by the national
infrastructure commission for details. See
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/
file/506632/Review_of_the_case_for_large_scale_transport_infrastructure
_in_London_-_100316.pdf for details.
Comments noted. A new station at CWOA is only a
No change.
concept proposal at this stage, considered to be a
potential way of improving connections in this area and
relieving congestion. This will be subject to further
exploration before any decision is made.
Similarly, the relief road is another concept proposal
being explored with neighbouring planning authorities

270

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
with the aim of addressing congestion and severance
around the Chessington, Tolworth and Hook areas.
164

Marian Ellis

Green space must include enhanced areas for wildlife, not just green travel Comment noted.
routes and picnic areas devoid of nature

No change.

The following consultees submitted a response but did not comment specifically on Question 1(f) of the survey.
Name

ID

Name

ID

Name

2

Denise Thompson

61

j langridge

119

Iain Martin MSc CMILT

3

Peter Watson

62

Pam Walsh

120

Mo Sehra

5

Nigel Randall

64

Joseph Asghar

121

Pat Marchant

7

Kathrin Siguda

66

Alan Bennett

123

Chris Coleman

9

Douglas Sampson

67

Natalie Crew

124

Pippa Billingsley

10

Eunhyun Song

68

Alex Gregor-Smith

125

Mark Blewett

11

Richard Grosvenor

70

Howard Robinson

126

Jim Leason

12

Jim Cardell

71

Charmian Bourne

128

Tim Westlake

13

Matthew Kyte

72

Carl Jackson

129

Tim Westlake

14

sara redmond

74

Stanley R. Spires

130

Deborah Da Silva

15

Shailesh Patel

75

Peter Topp

132

Fiona Meaney

17

Lisa Ross

77

Judith Symons

133

Yvonne Walsh

18

Patricia McLauchlan

80

Annie Kay

134

Lee Hendra

19

Maryka Sennema

82

Lesley Steel

135

Agnieszka

21

Lucy Symons

83

Andrew Compton

136

john pearson

23

anthony johannsen

84

Maureen Ellis

139

Cashel Riordan

24

Linda Seel

86

Leonora Partridge

140

Julian Oldfield

28

alison fure

87

Peter Herlinger

143

Stewart Dickson

29

martin russell-jones

88

Chris Stephens

144

Linda Skilbeck

B352

ID

271

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
mr bal badesha

89

Ross Anthony, Theatres Trust

145

Judith Royle

31

Mr Aziz Bawany

90

Andrew Summersgill

150

Elaine Ryder-Mills

32

andy watters

91

A Sadeghi

151

Neil Riley

33

Alistair Glen

93

James

152

Janice Yeadon

35

Stephanie Russell

94

Sara Vincent

154

L. Hebbourn

36

Gloria Bassoli

95

Gay Richardson

155

Hazel Farrow

37

E. John

96

James Fennell (Nathaniel Lichfield & Partners)

156

Alison Wheeler

38

Imran Benson

97

Simon Jakeman

157

Christopher Thomas

39

Saleh

101

Mr M.Gascoigne

159

Jonathan Fray

42

Paul Howlett

103

Dan

160

Anne Oram

43

Carlos

105

Tony Lancaster

162

Simon Munk

44

Steve

106

Gemma Cusworth

163

Diane Watling

47

Alvaro

107

John Edwards

165

Claire Harrison

48

Jacqueline Hardie

108

Daniel Wain

166

James Giles

49

A chandler

109

Katherine jones

167

Kerry Giles

50

Martyn

111

Peta Schaverien

168

David Giles

51

Des McRow

112

Rebeca alamo

169

Marc Tracey

57

Fred Ashmore

114

Marguerite Bowers Clark

170

Yvonne Tracey

58

F.McDermott

115

J Wheeler

171

James Giles on behalf of MICO

59

J.Stevens

117

Stuart Hartley

172

Carole & Michael Statham-Fletcher

60

Alex

B353

30

272

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

Question 1(g) - Rest of the borough
ID

Respondent

Question 1(g) - Do you have any comments?

RBK Response

Document
Update

S Guess

Too much over station development can leave the stations fealing like black
holes. Birmingham New Street has recently been opened up correcting the
mistakes of 50-60 years ago for example.

Comment noted.

No change.

10

Eunhyun Song

Make sure we can compete with Croydon new retail development in few
years.

Comment noted.

No change.

16

Paul Cook

All these proposals are sensible

Support noted.

No change.

25

David Watkins

1. You can't disagree with the proposals. 'Timely delivery of social
infrastructure (GPs, schools and community facilities)' - how's that going
then? Most recently the EU debate has raised the issues of lack of school
places, denial of first choice, queues in GP waiting rooms, and the general
incapacity of our public services and facilities. "Oh, it's all down to those
immigrants" is the frequent excuse. What, you mean those generally hardworking (not scrounging) east europeans, etc who work long hours in jobs
Brits won't fill and who pay their taxes and council tax bills. What funds your
plans to deliver social infrastructure in a timely manner? Oh yeah, council
taxes. Our eastern europeans pay their way and because many are young
and single, they don't use those services for which they pay anyway. So
you're not underfunded because of this new demand, you're just too slow in
its' provision (that's you and central government). So you can't sustain that
proposal in any shape or form. You HAVE to do number three, it's the law.
Clearly, you're not very successful at number four because there's a whole
host of stuff waiting to be undertaken 'if only we had the money'!

1. All comments noted. The council recognise that
investment and improvement in supporting
infrastructure is absolutely key to supporting new
growth. This includes leisure and community
facilities, as well as transport infrastructure such as
Crossrail 2, bus services and cycle infrastructure.

No change.

B354

6

Please note that the document is intended to be
high-level at this early stage of the local plan
process, providing the Council's 'Statement of
Intent'. The detail and deliverability of new growth
strategies will be developed and consulted upon in
later stages of the local plan process.
2. Comments noted regarding Crossrail 2 and
potential development opportunities.

2. The last two are a direct take out of the CR2 plans, the first arises out of
the rollout of the infrastructure plan; the second, whilst you may be the local
Planning Body, they have nothing to do with you because stations are the
property of National Rail and the plans are their's or CR2's - you will
eventually be required to approve them. You have responsibility for stuff in
the realm beyond the station property boundary. If NR / TfL chooses not to
build over, it could lease or sell the air rights and a private developer or even
a Local Authority could develop over the station, in which case you'd be the
Planning Body. But again you' re reacting to others' initiatives, they're not
invented in sunny Kingston upon Thames.

273

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
27

Graham Tucker I can't comment without greater information/knowledge.

Comment noted. The detail and deliverability of new No change.
growth strategies will be developed and consulted
upon in later stages of the local plan process.

30

Mr Bal Badesha you must be careful not to increase already large amounts of traffic around
Kingston borough.

Comment noted.

34

Mel

Who are key partners and stakeholders? It doesn't seem to be the residents? Comments noted. The council considers
No change.
For example council estate regeneration was discussed with all sorts of
stakeholders to be every party with an interest in the
different groups but residents were blissfully unaware because many of them direction of the borough, including local residents.
are not represented by the groups the council are talking to. Indeed
freeholders cannot be represented by the consultive bodies the council has
set up.

38

Imran Benson

Surbiton is an important local area and businesses and residents depend on
the rail access to London. This should not be overlooked or ignored.
Services from Surbiton station should be substantially improved by Crossrail
and capacity at the station increased. It is disappointing that this document
has no reference to Surbiton at all.

Comments noted regarding Surbiton. New growth
opportunity is not ruled out in areas outside the
identified 'Areas of Opportunity', only considered to
be less significant and transformation.

45

Sheena Evans

Need to know detail of what is proposed by way of development before can
comment.

Comment noted. The detail and deliverability of new No change.
growth strategies will be developed and consulted
upon in later stages of the local plan process.

46

Dr Nazar Pola

no comment

Noted.

No change.

48

Jacqueline
Hardie

REscind the permission for the school at Norbiton. It will kill kids.

Comment noted.

No change.

52

B. Walker

You are working too close with developers and they are getting away with
Comment noted.
developments' outside of current agreed density levels. ALL profit driven and
not to the advantage of Kingston residents and they have not provided 50%
affordable housing in most large scale schemes. You have removed lots of
consultation regarding planning items from Neighbourhood committees so
local people do not have a proper say anymore.

No change.

54

Joseph Asghar

Timely delivery of infrastructure? Don't make me laugh. This council is a
joke. A clown car full of clowns. With no taste and no class and who are on
the pockets of the developers.

Comment noted.

No change.

58

F. McDermott

It is worrying that this survey uses so much marketing jargon. Of course all
residents would hope that any development prioritizes co ordination with key
partners and stakeholders, delivers new schools and GP surgeries and
protects the borough's heritage! This question simply distracts from the
reality of the schemes. If the innovative and wider funding streams
compromise local interests, these aspirations will be unachievable.

Comment noted. We will consider all feedback
received regarding the consultation in order to
improve our approach and performance for future
engagement events.

No change.

No change.

No change.

B355

274

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
59

J. Stevens

Don't really know what the middle two are about.

Comments noted. Key partners and stakeholders
No change. .
refers to every party with an interest in the direction
of the borough, including local residents.
Regarding funding streams, the infrastructure needs
of the Borough are significantly greater than the
funding likely to be realised through CIL or planning
obligations or any one source of funding. The
Council will endeavour to seek funding from all
available funding streams and will seek to use funds
within its control to match funds as appropriate.

63

Peter Mason

Protecting historic streets and buildings is one thing and to be supported.
Protecting suburban sprawl and inefficient housing styles e g Victorian and
Edwardian semis and mock Tudor architecture seems less important. It
would be useful to encourage some good, well-designed, high density,
energy efficient, 21st century architecture in Kingston.

Page 18; Last
paragraph.
Sentence added:
‘Note that the OLC
Report also states,
“there is no one size
fits all solution for
town centre renewal?
Redevelopment, so
any intensification
would have to take
account of the
particular needs and
characteristics of the
individual town centre
such as heritage and
cultural assets, as
well as local
character”.

275

B356

Comment noted. Further reference to protection of Pages 27, 29, 31, 33,
heritage assets and character will be included within 35, 37; End of Text
the revised document.
Sentence added after
bullet points: ‘We
recognise that new
growth must be
balanced with the
unique heritage and
character of the
Borough’.

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
64

Joseph Asghar

1. You have failed to deliver on services, hiked the cost and reduced the
supply. School places and GP provision is a farce.
2. You have no interest in preserving the historic environment other than to
provide a view from new flats which are, contrary to the sales blurb, not
luxurious. The developers are chancers, and so are you.

Natalie Crew

Pages 27, 29, 31, 33,
35, 37; End of Text
Sentence added after
bullet points: ‘We
recognise that new
growth must be
balanced with the
2. We also recognise the need to positively balance unique heritage and
character of the
new growth with the consideration of heritage and
Borough’.
conservation assets in order to enhance the
character and distinctiveness of the borough. Text in
the document will be amended accordingly.
Page 18; Last
paragraph.
Sentence added:
Further reference to protection of heritage assets
‘Note that the OLC
and character will be included within the revised
Report also states,
document.
“there is no one size
fits all solution for
town centre renewal?
Redevelopment, so
any intensification
would have to take
account of the
particular needs and
characteristics of the
individual town centre
such as heritage and
cultural assets, as
well as local
character”.

Kingston is fast becoming an ugly over developed part of London instead of Comment noted. Further reference to protection of
an historic Royal Borough, developers must be made to supply social
heritage assets and character will be included within
housing and build using more sympathetic designs and materials to preserve the revised document.
the town's heritage and integrity.

Pages 27, 29, 31, 33,
35, 37; End of Text
Sentence added after
bullet points: ‘We
recognise that new
growth must be
balanced with the
unique heritage and
character of the
Borough’.
Page 18; Last

276

B357

67

1. Comments noted. The council recognise that
investment and improvement in supporting
infrastructure is absolutely key to supporting new
growth. This includes leisure and community
facilities, as well as transport infrastructure such as
Crossrail 2, bus services and cycle infrastructure.

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
paragraph.
Sentence added:
‘Note that the OLC
Report also states,
“there is no one size
fits all solution for
town centre renewal?
Redevelopment, so
any intensification
would have to take
account of the
particular needs and
characteristics of the
individual town centre
such as heritage and
cultural assets, as
well as local
character”.
Alex GregorSmith

We are allowing the borough to be overrun with Pound shops and Charity
shops. There should be a strict limit or even ban in some areas. Small
business initiatives would go a long way to help replace them with new ideas.
There aren't many local neighbourhood shops left.

Comments noted.The detail of strategies will be
expanded upon at a later stage of the local plan
process. The council recognises the need for a
diverse retail offer in order to ensure continued
vitality of the town centre. This includes providing
accommodation for small and independent retailers
in Kingston.

No change.

76

Howard
Sheppard

Provision of the necessary social and transport infrastructure to support the
growth of the borough is crucial. The Council must ensure that existing local
residents also benefit from new development with enhanced amenities and
services.

Comments noted. The council recognise that
investment and improvement in supporting
infrastructure is absolutely key to supporting new
growth. This includes leisure and community
facilities, as well as transport infrastructure such as
Crossrail 2, bus services and cycle infrastructure.

No change.

78

Keith Keen

Over-station development should not be favoured over development
(redevelopment) of adjacent land.

Comment noted.

No change.

79

Frances Marsh

1. None of the developments we have had in New Malden have been free
from inappropriate development. Good design and good workmanship are
completely lacking here. If you don't believe me, come down and see the
development just going up on the corner of Montem and Raby Roads. Right
on the railway line (about five feet away) a block of six flats and three houses
in an area where it will be impossible for children to play or to swing the
proverbial cat. What is going up in 2016 is appalling - badly designed and
badly placed. The development in Kingston Road where the Texaco Gas

Comments noted. The council recognise the
importance of development and design quality. This
issue will be addressed in more detail at a later
stage in local plan process and ultimately assessed
through the planning application process.

Page 17; Last
paragraph
Sentence added at
the end of the text:
‘High quality design is,
and will continue to be
a key priority for the
Council’.

A reference to the importance of design quality will

B358

68

277

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
Station used to be,means that many of the residents have to put their
washing on the balcony on the main road. They have had fires in the car
park, drug dealing and cars parked out on the road because residents
probably cannot be bothered to park their vehicle in the underground car
park. With respect to your last question - what developers are you talking
about? If there are such, they certainly don't come and build in New Malden

be included in the revised document.

85

Karen Carman

What 'innovative and wider funding streams' are you referring to? Crowd
funding? Taxpayer funded? Or taking money form large businesses in order
for them to get their own way?

Comment noted. The infrastructure needs of the
No change.
Borough are significantly greater than the funding
likely to be realised through CIL or planning
obligations or any one source of funding. The
Council will endeavour to seek funding from all
available funding streams and will seek to use funds
within its control to match funds as appropriate.

92

Marilyn Mason,
Chair, KEF

1. It depends what is meant by "Inappropriate development" - though not
typical of the area, flats, terraces and townhouses are much more energyefficient than detached houses or bungalows, and can use land more
efficiently to increase housing density where needed.

1. Comment noted. As defined in national policy,
‘inappropriate development’ refers to any
development that is harmful to Green Belt, unless
‘very special circumstances’ can be demonstrated.

2. There is an obvious need in the borough for affordable housing, which
might mean smaller homes, with smaller or shared gardens/green spaces.

Pages 19; Paragraph
1

2. Comment noted regarding affordable homes.
Affordability of homes for local people is a key
priority due to high house prices, an increasing
3. Developments should have good public transport connections and cycling shortfall in provision, and the increase in demand.
and walking routes to minimise traffic and contribute towards improving local One of our biggest issues is to tackle this positively
and increase the number of houses to meet needs,
air quality.
while seeking the right balance between protecting Update: ‘A new
the environment, and supporting the local economy. borough Local Plan is
required to show how
New evidence base and policy regarding affordable it will deliver the
growth needs of a
housing will the developed through the local plan
rapidly rising
process.
population, including
Further reference to the need for affordable housing new affordable
homes, a diverse
will be included in the revised document.
range of employment
opportunities, and
expanded leisure and
3. Comments noted. As noted in the Direction of
community facilities’.
Travel, investment and improvement in
infrastructure is key to supporting new growth. This
includes leisure and community facilities, as well as
transport infrastructure such as Crossrail 2.

278

B359

Original text: ‘A new
borough Local Plan is
required to show how
it will deliver the
growth needs of a
rapidly rising
population’.

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
96

James Fennell
(Nathaniel
Lichfield &
Partners)

Please also refer to letter (dated 22nd August 2016) which was submitted via Support and comments noted. The aforementioned No change.
email.
letter has been logged and addressed separately as
part of this consultation process.

98

Janine Bellew

Don't know - more information is required in order to form an opinion

Comment noted. Further detail will be developed in
later stages of the local plan process.

99

Zbig Blonski

1. The council needs to be more proactive in regeneration, leading rather
than reacting. There should be a clear joined up regeneration strategy as in
other boroughs and the local plan should be a key part of this. Though there
has not been a question about affordable housing I would like to make some
comments about this.

1. Comments noted. The council agree for the need Pages 19; Paragraph
to positively and comprehensively plan for new
1
growth in Kingston.
Original text: ‘A new
2. Comment noted regarding the need for new and borough Local Plan is
required to show how
affordable homes. Affordability of homes for local
it will deliver the
people is a key priority for the council due to high
growth needs of a
house prices, an increasing shortfall in provision,
rapidly rising
and the increase in demand. One of our biggest
population’.
issues is to tackle this positively and increase the
number of houses to meet needs, while seeking the
right balance between protecting the environment, Update: ‘A new
and supporting the local economy.
borough Local Plan is
required to show how
Further reference to the need for affordable housing it will deliver the
growth needs of a
will be included in the revised document.
rapidly rising
population, including
new affordable
homes, a diverse
range of employment
opportunities, and
expanded leisure and
community facilities’.

100

Barbara
Delamere

I have filled this in but really feel that the questions are too vague to mean
anything.Composing questionnaires is becoming an art form

Comment noted.

No change.

104

Martin Booth

No, see above

Comment noted.

No change.

105

Tony Lancaster It would be very worthwhile to protect the borough’s distinctive historic
environment and established suburban areas from inappropriate
development. But wait, you are already and doing a fine job. Indeed by
allowing the developers to do exactly what they want, wherever they want
with no real concern for the historic town because you don't believe that a
historic town idea is sustainable. You want an opportunity area. You want
high rise and maximum retail. You want a city in the west. You think one

Comment noted. Kingston is earmarked for
significant growth in new homes and jobs over the
coming years. However, we recognise that the Local
Plan must balance the need for growth with the
conservation of character in our built environment
and heritage assets. Therefore, to mitigate against
negative impacts on our historic urban environment

Pages 27, 29, 31, 33,
35, 37; End of Text
Sentence added after
bullet points: ‘We
recognise that new
growth must be
balanced with the

279

B360

2. Kingston's performance in securing what has now become the rather
emaciated concept of affordable housing has been very poor. It is absolutely
unbelievable how developments in Kingston town centre involving housing
are not sufficiently viable to support meaningful levels of affordable housing.
This also applies to Tolworth and in particular the former Shell petrol filling
site in New Malden. This has to be addressed by a meaningful review of
viability appraisals which hopefully the new Mayor of London will carry
through and hopefully Kingston will support this. The council's 50% policy is
totally unworkable and unachievable so serves no practical purpose. I feel
that the council should consider a policy of mandatory 25% affordable
housing in all developments and where this cannot be provided then the
planning application would not be approved. I think that magically a lot of
developments would suddenly be able to support that level of provision. 25%
is higher than the council has ben achieving and is much better than nothing.

No change.

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
quaint little market square with its horrible paving and market house serving
pizzas is enough history for this thriving and developing town.

will require improvements to heritage management.
This will involve gaining a comprehensive
understanding of the value of our heritage,
identifying mechanisms for their protection, and
establishing and integrating management plans into
the overall planning framework.
Further reference to protection of heritage assets
and character will be included within the revised
document.

Carl Jackson

116

Need to join cycle paths to neighbouring boroughs

Page 18; Last
paragraph.
Sentence added:
‘Note that the OLC
Report also states,
“there is no one size
fits all solution for
town centre renewal?
Redevelopment, so
any intensification
would have to take
account of the
particular needs and
characteristics of the
individual town centre
such as heritage and
cultural assets, as
well as local
character”.

Comment noted.

No change.

Johanne Molloy I would want to see more detail on what the statements in this whole survey
would involve.

Comment noted. Further detail will be developed in
later stages of the local plan process.

No change.

118

Lynne Finnerty

What steps are being taken to identity new school sites?

Comment noted. The council recognise that
No change.
investment and improvement in social infrastructure,
including schools, is absolutely key to supporting
new growth. Detail, such as new sites, will be
developed at a later stage of the local plan process.

122

H. Wollinger

who are the key partners and stakeholders? including residents?

Comment noted. The council considers
No change.
stakeholders to be every party with an interest in the
direction of the borough, including local residents.

124

Pippa Billingsley For all of this to be a success the development and support of Kingston
Hospital, local schools, GP's and community facilities including well
maintained and inspiring public spaces must take precedence. With the
development of flats and dense housing, parks and green spaces will
become even more valuable to the well being of the towns residents.

Support noted. The council recognise that
investment and improvement in supporting
infrastructure, including community facilities and
green spaces, is absolutely key to supporting new
growth. This detail will be developed at later stages
of the local plan process.

No change.

280

B361

110

unique heritage and
character of the
Borough’.

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
126

Jim Leason

If Kingston Council are going to providing commercial opportunities for
developers to exploit, they should ensure early stage plans make clear what
the communities' red line requirements are so that developers understand
what needs to be accommodated from the outset.

Comment noted.

No change.

127

Pat Cann

Of course. But PRIOR to building new homes! And by engaging with local
residents before spending money!!

Comment noted.

No change.

131

Hilary Gander

Can't comment without knowing what 'in-station infrastructure and overstation development' and 'maximising development opportunities for
selective growth' will look like - it looks like you want me to sign a blank
cheque! Other than that of course we want 'timely delivery of social
infrastructure etc. Who's going to disagree with most of those so why ask?

Comment noted. These terms refer to various
potential options for new intensification in the
Borough.

No change.

Please note that the document is intended to be
high-level at this early stage of the local plan
process, providing the Council's 'Statement of
Intent'. It aims to provide alignment of local strategic
planning policy, the London Plan, and Kingston's
growth agenda, as well as the broad context in
which the new Borough Local Plan needs to be
planned. The detail and deliverability of new growth
strategies will be developed and consulted upon in
later stages of the local plan process.

Fiona Meaney

Funding streams that enhance agreed plan i.e. Not spending funding
streams for the sake of spending. Cycle routes from Surbiton station to
Portsmouth road unnecessary waste of money

Comments noted.

No change.

138

Sharon
Nelhams

I have pointed out priority for certain individuals, this is further thinking. The
borough closes services but needs to react proactively to future issues. As
with the need fir more school places, comes the need for vulnerable people
hones. Transport is important, it is an issue in areas that are compactly built
due to the age of the area. It is important to use the best and mist cist
effective companies to help regenerate our borough.

Comments noted. We recognise that key to
facilitating and managing new growth in Kingston is
to ensure new investment and improvement in
supporting infrastructure, including community
facilities and transport.

No change.

142

Caroline
Cheales

I would not want to have a carte blanche statement about areas of
opportunity without some safeguards, otherwise the whole premise of
opportunity areas being justified because they protect the wider area from
inappropriate intensification is lost. any additional areas need to be identified
properly and consulted on before being progressed. it is not a two way
dialogue between the council and developers -it must involve the
communities as well.

Comments noted. Please note that the document is No change.
intended to be high-level at this early stage of the
local plan process, providing the Council's
'Statement of Intent'.

B362

132

The detail and deliverability of new growth
strategies and evidence base will be developed and
consulted upon in later stages of the local plan
process.

281

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
146

Sue May

I strongly feel that opportunities for sympathetic development at the small
scale could be taken, for example I have seen a very good example of a
replacement of a bungalow on the Hook Road opposite St Pauls School
Hook (near St Paul's Church) with some flats which were designed to look
like a single home. This kind of small scale but sympathetic development can
improve the scale of roads like the Hook Road where previously
undeveloped, provide opportunities for smaller builders to develop, and slot
in further homes without overdeveloping. Please can we see more of this but
I must stress that this must be sympathetic to the suburban setting, not the
blocky flats style seen in urban areas.

Comment noted. We recognise that the Local Plan Pages 27, 29, 31, 33,
must balance the need for growth with the character 35, 37; End of Text
and distinctiveness of the Borough.
Sentence added after
bullet points: ‘We
recognise that new
Further reference to protection of heritage assets
growth must be
and character will be included within the revised
balanced with the
document.
unique heritage and
character of the
Borough’.

147

Dominic Bull

Not sure what is meant by "coordination with key partners and stakeholders". Comment noted. The council considers
No change.
Residents are a huge stakeholder in the area, developers much less so.
stakeholders to be every party with an interest in the
direction of the borough, including local residents.

148

Helen Thrush

These questions are very broad and I am not entirely sure what they relate
to.

149

Dave RyderMills

RBK and the Mayor for London assisted by the GLA must have the "whip
Comment noted.
hand" over developers. For too long have the latter been able to play the "we
need to have an adequate profit margin" card. They should work for the good
of the community not the other way around.

No change.

151

Neil Riley

Protecting the borough's historic environment has not been evident in recent Comment noted. We recognise that the Local Plan

Pages 27, 29, 31, 33,

Comment noted. Further detail will be developed in
later stages of the local plan process.

No change.

282

B363

Page 18; Last
paragraph.
Sentence added:
‘Note that the OLC
Report also states,
“there is no one size
fits all solution for
town centre renewal?
Redevelopment, so
any intensification
would have to take
account of the
particular needs and
characteristics of the
individual town centre
such as heritage and
cultural assets, as
well as local
character”.

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
planned consents which makes the proposals in this document a serious
concern. Were this factor to be used as an overriding criterion residents
would have greater confidence in the proposals.

must balance the need for growth with the
conservation of character in our built environment
and heritage assets. Therefore, to mitigate against
negative impacts on our historic urban environment
will require improvements to heritage management.
This will involve gaining a comprehensive
understanding of the value of our heritage,
identifying mechanisms for their protection, and
establishing and integrating management plans into
the overall planning framework.
Further reference to protection of heritage assets
and character will be included within the revised
document.

35, 37; End of Text
Sentence added after
bullet points: ‘We
recognise that new
growth must be
balanced with the
unique heritage and
character of the
Borough’.

155

Hazel Farrow

Who are the developers and stakeholders?

Comment noted. The council considers
No change.
stakeholders to be every party with an interest in the
direction of the borough, including local residents.

158

Paul Sloan

We are not doing enough to protect the existing character and heritage of not
only Kingston but Surbiton,new Malden & other parts of the Borough. It is
highly ironic that the Council has in the last few months granted planning
permission for several new very high rise & dense developments in Kingston
town centre, which will neither enhance nor protect the listed Buildings &
Conservation Areas close to those developments. Of course we want such
protection & enhancement across the Borough, but any intensification
resulting from “Areas of Opportunity” must be very carefully considered by
Planning Officers & Councillors.

Comment noted. We recognise that the Local Plan
must balance the need for growth with the
conservation of character in our built environment
and heritage assets. Therefore, to mitigate against
negative impacts on our historic urban environment
will require improvements to heritage management.
This will involve gaining a comprehensive
understanding of the value of our heritage,
identifying mechanisms for their protection, and

Pages 27, 29, 31, 33,
35, 37; End of Text
Sentence added after
bullet points: ‘We
recognise that new
growth must be
balanced with the
unique heritage and
character of the

283

B364

Page 18; Last
paragraph.
Sentence added:
‘Note that the OLC
Report also states,
“there is no one size
fits all solution for
town centre renewal?
Redevelopment, so
any intensification
would have to take
account of the
particular needs and
characteristics of the
individual town centre
such as heritage and
cultural assets, as
well as local
character”.

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
establishing and integrating management plans into Borough’.
the overall planning framework.
Page 18; Last
Further reference to protection of heritage assets
paragraph.
and character will be included within the revised
Sentence added:
‘Note that the OLC
document.
Report also states,
“there is no one size
fits all solution for
town centre renewal?
Redevelopment, so
any intensification
would have to take
account of the
particular needs and
characteristics of the
individual town centre
such as heritage and
cultural assets, as
well as local
character”.
Richard Ware

All the future expansion development need to be proportional and in keeping
with what currently exists. Consideration has to be given to existing residents
who moved to the area probable because they like it. Whilst nothing stays
the same there are limits to acceptable change and these should not be
crossed. Developers should not be allowed to push the boundaries too far.
Regarding the last three items there MUST be open transparency with all
deals done with funders and developers to ensure that the public are not
being sold short in order to get outside funding for particular projects and that
inappropriately dense and high projects of little architectural which maximise
profit but do little for wellbeing are allowed. Its call integrity.

Comments noted. The council agree that new
growth must be positively managed in order to
ensure that it does not have a negative impact on
environment, which includes the unique character
and heritage of the local area. This is key to
protecting the character and distinctiveness of the
borough.

No change.

163

Diane Watling

Consultation with local residents is essential at the earliest stage and during
the whole process.

Comment noted.

No change.

164

Marian Ellis

We need to agree what suburban means to all of us as I think this is how I
would describe most of the borough

Comment noted.

No change.

172

Carole &
Michael
StathamFletcher

1. There is no indication of who the key partners and stakeholders would be
and where on the list the local population would come.

1. Comments noted. The council considers
No change.
stakeholders to be every party with an interest in the
direction of the borough, including local residents.

2. Innovative and wider funding streams sound like money with lots of
developers' or government strings attached

B365

161

2. Regarding 'wider funding streams', the

284

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
infrastructure needs of the Borough are significantly
greater than the funding likely to be realised through
3. Maximising development opportunities for selective growth in areas of
CIL or planning obligations or any one source of
opportunity would need definition of "development opportunities" "selective
growth" and "areas of opportunity". It is hard to feel confident that the council funding. The Council will endeavour to seek funding
would have much influence if developers were let loose on the stations even from all available funding streams and will seek to
use funds within its control to match funds as
though there is clearly room for improvement.
appropriate.
4. We might have different views if there were better information.

3. Comments noted regarding the terminology used.
4. Comment noted. The document is intended to be
high-level at this early stage of the local plan
process, providing the Council's 'Statement of
Intent'. It aims to provide alignment of local strategic
planning policy, the London Plan, and Kingston's
growth agenda, as well as the broad context in
which the new Borough Local Plan needs to be
planned. The detail and deliverability of new growth
strategies will be developed and consulted upon in
later stages of the local plan process.

B366

The following consultees submitted a response but did not comment specifically on Question 1(g) of the survey.
ID

Name

ID

Name

ID

Name

2

Denise Thompson

53

Robert Wyeth

108

Daniel Wain

3

Peter Watson

55

John McCarthy, Friends Kingston
Museum & Heritage Service

113

Mr A. Greene

4

Ken Thompson

56

Phil Edwards

114

Marguerite Bowers Clark

5

Nigel Randall

57

Fred Ashmore

115

J. Wheeler

7

Kathrin Siguda

60

Alex

117

Stuart Hartley

8

Malcolm Wright

61

J. Langridge

119

Iain Martin MSc CMILT

9

Douglas Sampson

62

Pam Walsh

120

Mo Sehra

11

Richard Grosvenor

65

Rob Robb

121

Pat Marchant

12

Jim Cardell

66

Alan Bennett

123

Chris Coleman

285

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
Matthew Kyte

69

Kevin White

125

Mark Blewett

14

Sara Redmond

70

Howard Robinson

128

Tim Westlake

15

Shailesh Patel

71

Charmian Bourne

129

Tim Westlake

17

Lisa Ross

72

Carl Jackson

130

Deborah Da Silva

18

Patricia McLauchlan

73

Deborah Dunning

133

Yvonne Walsh

19

Maryka Sennema

74

Stanley R. Spires

134

Lee Hendra

20

Petrina Tatnall

75

Peter Topp

135

Agnieszka

21

Lucy Symons

77

Judith Symons

136

John Pearson

22

Anthony Quinn

80

Annie Kay

137

Zoe Leeds

23

Anthony Johannsen

81

Mr Stephen Heil

139

Cashel Riordan

24

Linda Seel

82

Lesley Steel

140

Julian Oldfield

26

Felicia Green

83

Andrew Compton

141

Michele Salter

28

Alison Fure

84

Maureen Ellis

143

Stewart Dickson

29

Martin Russell-Jones

86

Leonora Partridge

144

Linda Skilbeck

31

Mr Aziz Bawany

87

Peter Herlinger

145

Judith Royle

32

Andy Watters

88

Chris Stephens

150

Elaine Ryder-Mills

33

Alistair Glen

89

Ross Anthony, Theatres Trust

152

Janice Yeadon

35

Stephanie Russell

90

Andrew Summersgill

153

Adrian Wheeler

36

Gloria Bassoli

91

A Sadeghi

154

L. Hebbourn

37

E. John

93

James

156

Alison Wheeler

39

Saleh

94

Sara Vincent

157

Christopher Thomas

40

Derek Moss

95

Gay Richardson

159

Jonathan Fray

41

G. T. Knight

97

Simon Jakeman

160

Anne Oram

42

Paul Howlett

101

Mr M.Gascoigne

162

Simon Munk

43

Carlos

102

David English

165

Claire Harrison

B367

13

286

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
44

Steve

103

Dan

166

James Giles

47

Alvaro

106

Gemma Cusworth

167

Kerry Giles

48

Jacqueline Hardie

107

John Edwards

168

David Giles

49

A. Chandler

109

Katherine Jones

169

Marc Tracey

50

Martyn

111

Peta Schaverien

170

Yvonne Tracey

51

Des McRow

112

Rebeca Alamo

171

James Giles on behalf of MICO

B368

287

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

Question 2 - Are there other areas in the borough we should identify for selective growth?
ID

Respondent

3

Peter Watson

4
6
8
11

Question 2 - Are there other areas in the borough we should
identify for selective growth?
Malden Manor

RBK Response

Document
Update

Comment noted.

No change.

Ken Thompson No

Comment noted.

No change.

S. Guess

Comment noted.

No change.

Malcolm Wright No - we shouldn't encourage further housebuilding

Comment noted.

No change.

Richard
Grosvenor

1. Comment noted.

No change.

Under used sports grounds along the A3 corridor jointly with LB Merton
1. Open land south of Chessington World of Adventures (i.e. towards Malden
Rushett).

2. Comment noted.
2. The Cambridge Road/Kingston Road corridor from Norbiton to New Malden.
Land and property to both sides of this main road need to be included in a
cohesive new local plan, with separate, well defined residential and
retail/industrial development. Existing development along this corridor is too
mixed creating user conflicts and it is environmentally ugly.
Jim Cardell

Do something with the filter beds in Seething wells Surbiton - something parky Comments noted.
- something watery - something that acts as a gateway to the Hampton Court
palace.

No change.

16

Paul Cook

no

Comment noted.

No change.

17

Lisa Ross

It is not exactly clear what is being proposed so difficult to respond fully..

Comment noted. The document is intended to be
high-level at this early stage of the local plan
process, providing the Council's 'Statement of
Intent'. It aims to provide alignment of local
strategic planning policy, the London Plan, and
Kingston's growth agenda, as well as the broad
context in which the new Borough Local Plan
needs to be planned. The detail and deliverability
of new growth strategies will be developed and
consulted upon in later stages of the local plan
process.

No change.

20

Petrina Tatnall

1. Other than doing something about the Cambridge estate and the general
area which looks like a ghetto, this is the poor side of Kingston on the borders
of New Malden.

1. Comment noted.

No change.

B369

12

2. Comment noted.

288

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
2. There is a lot of New Malden which looks gross as well, especially around
the industrial estate side of it. I suppose it has to be somewhere, but it doesn't
enhance the town.
Lucy Symons

Any brownfield sites should be considered.

Comment noted. The Council follow a clear
'brownfield-first' approach to new development.

24

Linda Seel

This questionnaire seemed to be missing a page for Berrylands, by repeating Comment noted.
the page for Norbiton. There are areas near the sewage works that seem to be
wasteland and could be used for building and recreation.

No change.

25

David Watkins

See comments on the first page.

Comments noted.

No change.

28

alison fure

Stop development its crazy. All I can see outside my house are blocks of
student hostels being built

Comments noted. The population of Kingston is
No change.
set to increase by at least 10%, therefore there is
a need to plan positively for it through the local
plan process. We recognise the need to manage
growth in a way that is sensitive to the
environment and existing local residents, and
balanced with the consideration of heritage assets
and the unique character of the local area.

29

martin russelljones

give growth a rest.

Comment noted.

No change.

33

Alistair Glen

No

Comment noted.

No change.

34

Mel

No.

Comment noted.

No change.

38

Imran Benson

Surbiton

Comment noted.

No change.

40

Derek Moss

Areas with large detached houses and gardens, which only house a few
Comments noted.
people and which could be purchased, demolished and built on at higher
density to provide flats for many more people. Each of these large sites could
be purchased for about the cost of purchasing 15 1-bed flats from leaseholders
on Kingston's council estates but would provide 0.6+ acres to build on, which is
many times the amount of land occupied by 15 1-bed flats on the council
estates.

No change.

41

G T Knight

1. Kingston town centre needs modernising and enlarging.

Page 27, Bullet point
7
Original text: ‘An
expanded retail offer
and strengthening of
the Metropolitan Town
Centre’
Update: ‘An
expanded retail,

1. Comment noted regarding Kingston Town
Centre. The Town Centre is earmarked to several
significant regeneration projects that will transform
2. Access to all areas needs improving.
the town centre over the coming years. This
includes the Eden Quarter which has recently
3. The road system needs re-designing to open up the centre more. It is not a
been subject to planning approval and is one of
good idea to have pedestrians forced to cross roads designed like race-tracks.
Kingston's most significant opportunities for town
centre growth.
4. Kingston needs a decent sports centre and swimming pool.

No change.

B370

21

289

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

5. Kingston needs a new library with easy access to the town centre and with
better facilities.

2. Comment noted regarding improved access.
This is a key aspiration of the Council.

6. Many attractive older buildings with interesting architecture have been
3. Comments noted. The council recognises that
abandoned. This should be renovated and utilised to enhance the character of the current gyratory has significant problems
the town.
including causing severance (for example, it is a
significant barrier for pedestrians moving between
the railway station and town centre) and that there
is a need to improve the highway arrangements in
the town centre. We also recognise that
investment in supporting infrastructure, such as
new community facilities, will be key to supporting
this growth.

Pages 27, 29, 31, 33,
35, 37; End of Text
Sentence added after
bullet points: ‘We
recognise that new
growth must be
balanced with the
unique heritage and
character of the
Borough’.

Page 18; Last
paragraph.
Sentence added:
‘Note that the OLC
Report also states,
“there is no one size
fits all solution for
6. Comment noted. Further reference to protection
town centre renewal?
of heritage assets and character will be included
Redevelopment, so
within the revised document.
any intensification
would have to take
account of the
particular needs and
characteristics of the
individual town centre
such as heritage and
cultural assets, as
well as local
character”.
45

Sheena Evans

Anywhere where brownfield land is available.

Comment noted. The council follow a clear
'brownfield-first' approach to new development.

No change.

46

dr nazar pola

no other area need selective growth

Comment noted.

No change.

49

A chandler

Riverside,

Comment noted.

No change.

290

B371

4 & 5. Comments noted. We recognise that key to
facilitating and managing new growth in Kingston
is to ensure new investment and improvement in
supporting infrastructure, including community and
leisure facilities. The detail of these requirements
will be considered at a later stage of the local plan
process.

leisure and cultural
offer and
strengthening of the
Metropolitan Town
Centre’

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
b walker

no

Comment noted.

No change.

54

Joseph Asghar

No.

Comment noted.

No change.

55

John McCarthy, no obs
Friends
Kingston
Museum &
Heritage
Service

Comment noted.

No change.

63

Peter Mason

Areas where density could be increased by replacing low rise buildings or
widely spaced buildings, e g bungalows, shopping parades with flats above,
with ones with an extra storey or two, or replacing detached buildings with
town-houses or terraces or low-rise flats.

Comment noted.

No change.

64

Joseph Asghar

Kevin Davis and David Cunningham's back gardens.

Comment noted.

No change.

67

Natalie Crew

Birkenhead avenue where the old BT exchange is, would have been a perfect
site for the much needed secondary school.

Comment noted.

No change.

69

Kevin White

Malden Manor area

Comment noted.

No change.

71

Charmian
Bourne

Thameside in Kingston should be pedestrianised

Comment noted.

No change.

74

Stanley R.
Spires

Seizing Wells filter beds

Comment noted.

No change.

75

Peter Topp

Derelict waterworks site by river in Surbiton.

Comment noted.

No change.

76

Howard
Sheppard

there are wind-fall sites across the whole of the borough where new
development will be appropriate. Also there will be lots of opportunities for
"densification" much of which on publicly owned land where the council would
be well placed impose special requirements such as giving priority to local
residents to purchase new housing.

Comment noted.

No change.

77

Judith Symons

It seems realistic to have development in the areas with good public transport
so why are Surbiton and Maldon Manor excluded from the plan. Would it not
seem reasonable to spread these developments fairly over the borough?

Comment noted. New growth opportunity is not
No change.
ruled out in areas outside the identified 'Areas of
Opportunity', only considered to be less significant
and transformational.

78

Keith Keen

No

Comment noted.

No change.

79

Frances Marsh

|Yes - what about Kingston?

Comment noted.

No change.

82

Lesley Steel

Do not know

Comment noted.

No change.

87

Peter Herlinger

No

Comment noted.

No change.

88

Chris Stephens No

Comment noted.

No change.

B372

52

291

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
92

Marilyn Mason,
Chair, KEF

Around other Crossrail 2 stations if/when they happen. Areas of very low
density, e g where there are a lot of bungalows, or widely spaced residences.

Comment noted.

No change.

93

James

North Kingston

Comment noted.

No change.

96

James Fennell
(Nathaniel
Lichfield &
Partners)

Please refer to letter (dated 22nd August 2016) which was submitted via email. Support and comments noted. The
aforementioned letter has been logged and
addressed separately as part of this consultation
process.

No change.

102

David English

Kingston carried out a Borough Characterisation study in 2011, which
assesses in great detail the character and quality of different parts of the
borough. This should help guide both where new development is concentrated,
and the forms and scale of development that is likely to complement and
enhance existing local, positive characteristics. Such an approach would be
entirely in accordance with London Plan Policy 7.4. The recommended
evaluation of sensitivity referred to above should help inform whether there is a
need to accommodate growth in a less concentrated manner.

Pages 27, 29, 31, 33,
35, 37; End of Text
Sentence added after
bullet points: ‘We
recognise that new
growth must be
balanced with the
unique heritage and
character of the
Borough’.

Comments noted regarding the need to respect
the character/heritage of Kingston. The character
and heritage of the Borough continues to be a key
priority for the council. We recognise the need to
positively balance new growth with the
consideration of heritage and conservation assets,
particularly in the most sensitive areas, in order to
protect the distinctiveness of the borough.
Further reference to protection of heritage assets
and character will be included within the revised
document.

Martin Booth

No

Comment noted.

105

Tony Lancaster I do not want the “Development Areas of Opportunity” designation for Kingston. Comments noted. The council agree that the
The areas identified for selective growth are centered around rail links. But two benefits of growth must be distributed across the

No change.
No change.

292

B373

104

Page 18; Last
paragraph.
Sentence added:
‘Note that the OLC
Report also states,
“there is no one size
fits all solution for
town centre renewal?
Redevelopment, so
any intensification
would have to take
account of the
particular needs and
characteristics of the
individual town centre
such as heritage and
cultural assets, as
well as local
character”.

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
obvious rail links have been overlooked: Surbiton; and Malden Manor. From a
logical point of view, Surbiton and Malden Manor should be added to those
areas identified for selective growth. That way the impact of growth can be
more fairly and evenly spread across the borough.

borough and all communities. Comment noted.
New growth opportunity is not ruled out in areas
outside the identified 'Areas of Opportunity', only
considered to be less significant and
transformational.
Comments noted. The council agree that the
benefits of growth must be distributed across the
borough and all communities. New growth
opportunity is not ruled out in areas outside the
identified 'Areas of Opportunity', only considered
to be less significant and transformational.

106

Gemma
Cusworth

Why not consider talking to Richmond council and putting better transport and
housing infrastructure in Ham? Why miss out Surbiton and Malden Manor?
Spread the development widely

108

Daniel Wain

I do wonder why Surbiton is not included as an area of opportunity for selective Comment noted. New growth opportunity is not
No change.
growth. I believe it ought to be.
ruled out in areas outside the identified 'Areas of
Opportunity', only considered to be less significant
and transformational.

110

Carl Jackson

1. Should not aim for selective growth - a euphemism for high rise blocks
presumably. All development should be limited to 4 stories.
2. Spread these across the whole borough so as not to further over load
existing infrastructure.

1. Comment noted regarding tall buildings. In
No change.
accordance with the London Plan, the council's
approach to tall buildings will be based on a
strategic basis in appropriate town centre
locations as a potential measure to achieve higher
densities and growth targets. However, taller
buildings will need to consider how they positively
and sensitively optimise development plots whilst
enhancing the unique character of both the local
area and the wider protected key views.

B374

3. Areas such as Kingston Hill should not be immune from bearing their share
of additional accommodation.

No change.

4. Council should establish the number of buildings not fully utilised or
unoccupied in order to consider alternatives and nudge owners of them to use,
2. Comments noted. The council agree that the
refurbish or pass them on.
benefits of growth must be distributed across the
borough and all communities. The identified 'areas
of opportunity' only refer to areas considered to
have transformational opportunity. Infrastructure
investment in these areas will be key to supporting
new growth.
3. Comment noted regarding Kingston Hill.
4. Comment noted regarding unoccupied
buildings.
111

Peta
Schaverien

Areas round Surbiton

Comment noted.

No change.

293

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
Rebeca alamo

Surbiton, rest of Kingston excluding conservation areas

Comment noted.

No change.

113

Mr a Greene

I do not know.

Comment noted.

No change.

116

Johanne Molloy No

Comment noted.

No change.

117

Stuart Hartley

Comment noted.

No change.

118

Lynne Finnerty

No change.

119

Iain Martin MSc As previously mentioned, I believe there is a need to consider the overlap area Comment noted.
CMILT
between Kingston and Richmond in North Kingston.

No change.

121

Pat Marchant

No change.

124

Pippa Billingsley What about Malden Manor?

Comment noted. New growth opportunity is not
No change.
ruled out in areas outside the identified 'Areas of
Opportunity', only considered to be less significant
and transformational.

130

Deborah Da
Silva

Why has Surbiton been left out? There are opportunities within Surbiton for
further development

Comment noted. New growth opportunity is not
No change.
ruled out in areas outside the identified 'Areas of
Opportunity', only considered to be less significant
and transformational.

131

Hilary Gander

Brown field sites. Adding a floor or two to some buildings.

Comment noted.

137

Zoe Leeds

1. Areas that are already concrete jungles (but tired and/or abandoned) should 1. Comment noted.
be where the focus lies.
2. Support noted.
2. I support the building around Penryhn road/university and I am very glad
something is finally being done with Elm GHouse on the Ewell Road.
3. Comment noted regarding the Toby Jug/MOD
site.
3. The Toby Jug/MOD site has been vacant too long and should be developed
but not with too high density and without local amenities/provsions and
4. Comment noted regarding Chessington
thoughts on air quality for everyone.
industrial estate.

No

growth' in an appropriate way and not for its own sake. Better to improve and
update instead of cramming in more and more buildings.

4. Chessington industrial estate probably does have scope still.
5. Nature reserves and untouched sanctuaries (parts of the Hogsmill) should
not be too much tampered with.
6. ASny abandoned office blocks in any of teh town centres maybe should be
utilised/redeveloped

Comment noted.

5. Comment noted regarding Hogsmill Valley and
other nature areas. The council agree that new
growth must be balanced with the consideration of
the borough's key assets, including greens spaces
and ecological areas.
Regarding Hogsmill specifically, further references
to this important asset have been included in the
revised document.

No change.
Page 16, Kingston
Places
Map update: New
‘place’ added for
‘Hogsmill Valley’
Page 31; End of Text
Sentence added after
bullet points:
‘’Continued protection
of Hogsmill Valley and
its ecology’

294

B375

112

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

6. Comments noted regarding unoccupied office
buildings.
138

sharon nelhams Millennium green, only used by dog walkers. The surrounding and linked parks Comment noted.
are used non stop.

142

caroline cheales I would prefer to see a whole borough plan with clear analysis about
appropriateness for growth. Why isn't Malden Manor included?

No change.

All comments noted. The document is intended to No change.
be high-level at this early stage of the local plan
process, providing the Council's 'Statement of
Intent'. It aims to provide alignment of local
strategic planning policy, the London Plan, and
Kingston's growth agenda, as well as the broad
context in which the new Borough Local Plan
needs to be planned. The detail and deliverability
of new growth strategies will be developed and
consulted upon in later stages of the local plan
process.

143

Stewart Dickson All train stations and transportation hubs should be considered (i.e. Surbiton
and Maldonado Manor).

Comment noted. New growth opportunity is not
No change.
ruled out in areas outside the identified 'Areas of
Opportunity', only considered to be less significant
and transformational.

144

Linda Skilbeck

No

Comment noted.

No change.

146

Sue May

No

Comment noted.

No change.

147

Dominic Bull

I fundamentally disagree with the growth agenda, so no.

Comment noted.

No change.

150

Elaine RyderMills

A3 corridor

Comment noted.

No change.

151

Neil Riley

The other rail stations should also be considered.

Comment noted.

No change.

152

Janice Yeadon

Surbiton

Comment noted.

No change.

153

Adrian Wheeler NO, it already seems too much for our historic town

Comment noted.

No change.

155

Hazel Farrow

No You have already identified too many

Comment noted.

No change.

156

Alison Wheeler

NO, it already seems too much for our historic town

Comment noted.

No change.

157

Christopher

Surbiton and Malden Manor should be considered.

Comment noted. New growth opportunity is not

No change.

B376

Regarding Malden Manor, new growth opportunity
is not ruled out in areas outside the identified
'Areas of Opportunity', only considered to be less
significant and transformational.

295

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
Thomas

158

Paul Sloan

ruled out in areas outside the identified 'Areas of
Opportunity', only considered to be less significant
and transformational.
1. I do not want the ‘Development Areas of Opportunity” designation for
Kingston. If - and that is a big “if” - there really is a need redevelop with higher
densities, and at rates greater than surrounding London boroughs, it would
make sense to concentrate such development near to public transport links,
with those stations having the highest frequencies and greatest spare
passenger carrying capacity bearing the brunt of the new development. Again,
only if there really is a need for Kingston to redevelop at a higher rate than
other surrounding London boroughs, any advent of Crossrail 2 would see New
Malden having 16 trains per hour frequency, the highest in the borough. In
comparison, Chessington and Tolworth, the focus of your proposed opportunity
areas, would only have 4 trains per hour.

1. Comments noted. Agreed, the identified 'Areas No change.
of Opportunity' across the Borough are considered
to be those areas most suited for new growth on
account of their transport accessibility, proximity to
centres and regeneration opportunity.
2&3. Comment noted regarding potential
development opportunities and distribution of
green space across the Borough.

2. Moreover, with three council owned golf courses in the North of the borough,
there exists a considerable imbalance in the distribution of greenspace with
Kingston borough. North Kingston has a surplus, while south of the borough
has a deficit. To exacerbate this imbalance is unfair to residents south of
Kingston town..

B377

3. Again, only if there really is a need for Kingston to redevelop, a mere 20
minutes walk away from New Malden station lies a council owned golf course it should be redeveloped ahead of any greenbelt land, that would typically offer
more environmental benefits than managed golf courses.. Golf courses,
particularly council owned golf courses leased at sub-market rents to
expensive private member clubs, are unjustifiable in a Greater London context
whilst simultaneously proposing greenbelt development.
159

Jonathan Fray

No comment.

Noted.

No change.

160

Anne Oram

malden rushett

Comment noted.

No change.

163

Diane Watling

Borough transport hubs/stations not already included.

Comment noted.

No change.

164

Marian Ellis

No

Comment noted.

No change.

165

Claire Harrison

no

Comment noted.

No change.

The following consultees submitted a response but did not comment specifically on Question 2 of the survey.

296

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

Name

ID

Name

ID

Name

2

Denise Thompson

66

Alan Bennett

123

Chris Coleman

5

Nigel Randall

68

Alex Gregor-Smith

125

Mark Blewett

7

Kathrin Siguda

70

Howard Robinson

126

Jim Leason

9

Douglas Sampson

72

Carl Jackson

127

Pat Cann

10

Eunhyun Song

73

Deborah Dunning

128

Tim Westlake

13

Matthew Kyte

80

Annie Kay

129

Tim Westlake

14

Sara Redmond

81

Mr Stephen Heil

132

Fiona Meaney

15

Shailesh Patel

83

Andrew Compton

133

Yvonne Walsh

22

Anthony Quinn

84

Maureen Ellis

134

Lee Hendra

23

Anthony Johannsen

85

Karen Carman

135

Agnieszka

26

Felicia Green

86

Leonora Partridge

136

John Pearson

27

Graham Tucker

89

Ross Anthony, Theatres Trust

139

Cashel Riordan

30

Mr Bal Badesha

90

Andrew Summersgill

140

Julian Oldfield

31

Mr Aziz Bawany

91

A. Sadeghi

141

Michele salter

32

Andy Watters

94

Sara Vincent

145

Judith Royle

35

Stephanie Russell

95

Gay Richardson

148

Helen Thrush

36

Gloria Bassoli

97

Simon Jakeman

149

Dave Ryder-Mills

37

E. John

98

Janine Bellew

154

L. Hebbourn

39

Saleh

99

Zbig Blonski

161

Richard Ware

42

Paul Howlett

100

Barbara Delamere

162

Simon Munk

43

Carlos

101

Mr M.Gascoigne

166

James Giles

44

Steve

103

Dan

167

Kerry Giles

47

Alvaro

107

John Edwards

168

David Giles

48

Jacqueline Hardie

109

Katherine jones

169

Marc Tracey

50

Martyn

114

Marguerite Bowers Clark

170

Yvonne Tracey

51

Des McRow

115

J. Wheeler

171

James Giles on behalf of MICO

53

Robert Wyeth

120

Mo Sehra

172

Carole & Michael Statham-Fletcher

B378

ID

297

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
65

Rob Robb

122

H Wollinger

B379

298

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

Question 3 - Are there other areas in the borough we should be seeking to protect and enhance?
ID

Respondent

Question 3 - Are there other areas in the borough we should
be seeking to protect and enhance?

RBK Response

Document Update

Ken Thompson None that come to mind

Comment noted.

No change.

5

Nigel Randall

Grren Belt land

Comment noted.

No change.

6

S Guess

Extending the Queens Promenade into Thames Ditton with Elmbridge BC Comment noted.

No change.

7

Kathrin Siguda

Historic areas, parks

Comment noted.

No change.

8

Malcolm Wright Stop building houses/flats Stop building cycle lanes on major highways

Comments noted.

No change.

11

Richard
Grosvenor

Encourage the further redevelopment of the small retail parade at the
Comment noted.
start of Coombe Road, Norbiton, to enhance its existing 'artisan' flavour of
specialist local retail businesses.

No change.

12

Jim Cardell

Seething wells filter beds.

Comment noted.

No change.

13

Matthew Kyte

Prevent backland development and riverside development from over
developing the backland and greenland spaces.

Comment noted.

No change.

16

Paul Cook

Just note the need to protect the green open spaces in Chessington
please

Comment noted. The council agree that new
No change.
growth must be balanced with the consideration of
the borough's key assets, which includes green
spaces and ecological areas.

17

Lisa Ross

Review of Kingston One Way system and traffic pollution.

Comments noted. The council recognise these as No change.
two key issues. Regarding the proposed one-way
system at Kingston Station. The Kingston Town
Centre Movement Study looked at ways of
improving the highway arrangements in the town
centre. The current gyratory has significant
problems including causing severance (for
example, it is a significant barrier for pedestrians
moving between the railway station and town
centre). It also causes barriers to redevelopment,
environmental improvements and place shaping.
The Study identified ways of overcoming these key
issues as a longer term option for the town centre,
and could potentially be implemented when
Crossrail 2 comes to the area.

18

Patricia

All the green areas, play parks and sports grounds.

Comment noted.

B380

4

No change.

299

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
McLauchlan
19

Maryka
Sennema

Town centre, too many high rise buildings. Low density neighbourhoods
getting too many builds full of flats.

Comments noted.

No change.

20

Petrina Tatnall

1. Kingston seems to be having the most revamp, but I can't help in
thinking that by having all of these big department stores you will be
putting the smaller shops out of business.

1. Comment noted. The detail of strategies will be
expanded upon at a later stage of the local plan
process. The council recognises the need for a
diverse retail offer in order to ensure continued
vitality of the town centre. This includes providing
accommodation for small and independent
retailers in Kingston.

Pages 27, 29, 31, 33, 35,
37; End of Text
Sentence added after
bullet points: ‘We
recognise that new growth
must be balanced with the
unique heritage and
character of the Borough’.

2. All of the towns that have any historic features should be protected.

Page 18; Last paragraph.
Sentence added: ‘Note
that the OLC Report also
states, “there is no one
size fits all solution for
town centre renewal?
Redevelopment, so any
intensification would have
to take account of the
particular needs and
characteristics of the
individual town centre
such as heritage and
cultural assets, as well as
local character”.

4. Comment noted regarding the Hook/
Chessington relief road. To address congestion
and severance around the Chessington, Tolworth
and Hook areas, the Council is exploring the
concept of a relief road with neighbouring planning
authorities. The key benefits of the scheme
include:
a) Congestion Relief - diverting some north and
southbound traffic (currently on the A243) via the
relief road and the A3, rather than passing through
Chessington.
b) Facilitating Growth - maximising growth
opportunities in Chessington, with potential to
attract further investment, new jobs, housing,

300

B381

3. Don't ever build on green belt land, keep parks and recreation centres.
We all need a bit of greenery, whereas parts of London are just a
2. Comment noted. The character and heritage of
concrete jungle. Greenery soothes the soul and it is good to have trees.
the Borough continues to be a key priority for the
People have mental health problems otherwise.
council. We recognise the need to positively
balance new growth with the consideration of
4. What concerns me is the question that keeps cropping up about the
heritage and conservation assets in order to
Malden Rushett fly-over, is that something seriously being considered or
protect the distinctiveness of the borough.
is the question a joke? Exactly where would it be situated in the village,
providing that this is being considered? We do need to alleviate the traffic
Further reference to protection of heritage assets
in our village, but not if we are going to have some ugly fly-over in the
and character will be included within the revised
village which will de-value our houses. Also thinking about the noise we
will hear from the traffic going over the fly-over in general, and even more document.
pollution. We came to Malden Rushett because of the countryside and
the fact that it is not a town.
3. Comments noted. The council agree that new
growth must be balanced with the consideration of
the borough's key assets, including greens spaces
5. We want to keep it green belt and not have it built on with more
and ecological areas.
developments.

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
commercial premises. New Crossrail 2 Services
from 2033 will be serving railway stations in the
area with four trains an hour in each direction
connecting central London.
5. Comment noted regarding Green Belt. Green
Belt is an important and valued assets, and in
accordance with the London Plan and national
policy, will be protected from inappropriate
development. However, we also recognise the
need to undertake a review of Green Belt and
Metropolitan Open Land as part of the local plan
process in order to assess the suitability of land
going forward.
21

Lucy Symons

Page 18; Last paragraph.
Sentence added: ‘Note
that the OLC Report also
states, “there is no one
size fits all solution for
town centre renewal?
Redevelopment, so any
intensification would have
to take account of the
particular needs and
characteristics of the
individual town centre
such as heritage and
cultural assets, as well as
local character”.
22

Anthony Quinn

All green belt and metropolitan open land.

Comment noted.

No change.

301

B382

Please protect and enhance the cemeteries and park areas, the riverfront Comment noted. Further reference to protection of Pages 27, 29, 31, 33, 35,
and the historical places.
heritage assets and character will be included
37; End of Text
within the revised document.
Sentence added after
bullet points: ‘We
recognise that new growth
must be balanced with the
unique heritage and
character of the Borough’.

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
23

Anthony
Johannsen

see comments made under "Kingston" on the Seething Wells Filter Bed
Site along Portsmouth Road in Surbiton

Comment noted.

No change.

24

Linda Seel

Protect the riverside

Comment noted.

No change.

27

Graham Tucker Green Belt areas should be protected at all costs for recreation and to
prevent urban sprawl.

Comment noted.

No change.

28

Alison Fure

All of it -leave it alone,

Comment noted.

No change.

29

Martin RussellJones

safeguard and register every tree in the borough.No more green field
developments.

Comment noted.

No change.

31

Mr Aziz Bawany Coombe area and the area around the hospital and richmond park.

Comment noted.

No change.

32

Andy Watters

Conservation Areas should be further protected and actively protected.
Comment noted. The character and heritage of the
For instance - inappropriate windows to housing, satellite dishes on faces Borough continues to be a key priority for the
of houses, inappropriate extensions.
council. We recognise the need to positively
balance new growth with the consideration of
heritage and conservation assets, particularly in
the most sensitive areas, in order to enhance the
character and distinctiveness of the borough.

Page 18; Last paragraph.
Sentence added: ‘Note
that the OLC Report also
states, “there is no one
size fits all solution for
town centre renewal?
Redevelopment, so any
intensification would have
to take account of the
particular needs and
characteristics of the
individual town centre
such as heritage and
cultural assets, as well as
local character”.

33

Alistair Glen

No

Comment noted.

No change.

34

Mel

Yes, Hogsmill Valley, Tolworth farm (protect not 'enhance' through a
country park),

Comment noted.

No change.

36

Gloria Bassoli

All of the green spaces. Protect the community feel of the borough, which Comment noted.
will be adversely impacted with high-rise buildings. I live on a small, in a

No change.

302

B383

Further reference to protection of heritage assets
and character will be included within the revised
document.

Pages 27, 29, 31, 33, 35,
37; End of Text
Sentence added after
bullet points: ‘We
recognise that new growth
must be balanced with the
unique heritage and
character of the Borough’.

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
small terraced cottage facing a block of flats, and there is very much an
us and them feeling with little integration and community feeling.
37

E John

Protect Canbury Gardens, Band Stand and Tow Path to Teddington Lock Comment noted.

No change.

38

Imran Benson

Surbiton

Comment noted.

No change.

42

Paul Howlett

Hogsmill Valley as a park, leisure and sport area with facilities that can
deal with occasional flooding

Comment noted. Further reference to the
protection of this asset will be included in the
revised version of the document.

Page 16, Kingston Places
Map update: New ‘place’
added for ‘Hogsmill Valley’
Page 31; End of Text
Sentence added after
bullet points: ‘’Continued
protection of Hogsmill
Valley and its ecology’

dr nazar pola

no there are not other area

Comment noted.

No change.

48

Jacqueline
Hardie

Station Road Norbiton. Make the developer fix the road he bollocksd up.
Make him tidy up the houses he cant knock down.

Comment noted.

No change.

52

b walker

Houses from being turned into flats against your own policy. Kingston has Comment noted.
a shortage of family housing and it does not need hundreds of 1 bed flats

No change.

54

Joseph Asghar

All of it.

Comment noted.

No change.

55

John McCarthy, Richmond Park that lies within the Borough
Friends
Kingston
Museum &
Heritage
Service

Comment noted.

No change.

58

F.McDermott

Comment noted. Further reference to the
protection of this asset will be included in the
revised version of the document.

Page 16, Kingston Places
Map update: New ‘place’
added for ‘Hogsmill Valley’

The Hogsmill valley!

B384

46

Page 31; End of Text
Sentence added after
bullet points: ‘’Continued
protection of Hogsmill
Valley and its ecology’
61

j langridge

The riverside along north Kingston especially Canbury Gdns and access
to the river in Kingston town centre (particularly improvement of alleys one beside Clas Ohsen and the next other towards the bridge, toy shop

Comment noted.

No change.

303

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
on the corner, pub on the river end.
63

Peter Mason

Parks and open spaces

Comment noted.

No change.

66

Alan Bennett

North Kingston area to be protected from over-development

Comment noted.

No change.

67

Natalie Crew

Norbiton "village", is increasingly being surrounded by more flats and high Comment noted.
rise buildings, completely changing the character of the neighbourhood
and cutting us off from everywhere else. Just look at the (mostly empty)
student flats on London road and station road, the period cottage next to
the flats has been left abandoned by developers and the road has been
left with great big holes after the developer has taken their money.

No change.

69

Kevin White

Malden Rushett

Comment noted.

No change.

73

Deborah
Dunning

As much green belt as possible, adding a Hook/Chessington relief road
should not cause much environmental disruption. The commons are
wonderful areas to visit.

Comment noted.

No change.

76

Howard
Sheppard

The Green Belt, but only after a thorough review of the quality of marginal Comment noted.
green belt land with reclassification for development where appropriate

Page 25, Paragraph 7

77

Judith Symons

Kingston Town should be treasured as the historic and fascinating place
that it is. Both New Malden and Surbiton are characterful and successful
shopping centres and should be protected.

Comment noted. The character and heritage of the
Borough continues to be a key priority for the
council. We recognise the need to positively
balance new growth with the consideration of
heritage and conservation assets in order to
enhance the character and distinctiveness of the
borough.
Further reference to protection of heritage assets
and character will be included within the revised
document.

Pages 27, 29, 31, 33, 35,
37; End of Text
Sentence added after
bullet points: ‘We
recognise that new growth
must be balanced with the
unique heritage and
character of the Borough’.
Page 18; Last paragraph.
Sentence added: ‘Note
that the OLC Report also
states, “there is no one
size fits all solution for
town centre renewal?
Redevelopment, so any
intensification would have
to take account of the
particular needs and
characteristics of the

304

B385

Added sentence at the end
of the paragraph - ‘This
will be completed in Spring
2017’.

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
individual town centre
such as heritage and
cultural assets, as well as
local character”.
Keith Keen

Ensure that protection and enhancement are in connection with adjacent
boroughs across boundaries.

Comment noted.

No change.

79

Frances Marsh

Yes - all the areas you consider it OK to dump inappropriate
developments on.

Comment noted.

No change.

81

Mr Stephen Heil The Green-belt is important , the maintenance of Green-belt is important
and must be protected . Building on it will lead to unhealthy attitudes and
illness as there will be noware to get health breaks in our lives.

Comment noted. The Borough's Green Belt land is No change.
important and valued asset, and in accordance
with the London Plan and national policy, will be
protected from inappropriate development.
However, we also recognise the need to undertake
a review of Green Belt land as part of the local
plan process in order to assess the suitability of
land going forward.

82

Lesley Steel

Kingston town centre should be protected from high rise buildings. We
have more than enough shops and any increase will involve an increase
in traffic.

Comments noted.

No change.

85

karen carman

green belt in Chessington. It's there for a reason.

Comment noted.

No change.

86

Leonora
Partridge

Restrictions to build high rise buildings along the river in Kingston.

Comment noted.

No change.

87

Peter Herlinger

The existing conservation area should continue to be protected and
enhanced

Comment noted. The character and heritage of the
Borough continues to be a key priority for the
council. We recognise the need to positively
balance new growth with the consideration of
heritage and conservation assets in order to
enhance the character and distinctiveness of the
borough.

Pages 27, 29, 31, 33, 35,
37; End of Text
Sentence added after
bullet points: ‘We
recognise that new growth
must be balanced with the
unique heritage and
character of the Borough’.

Further reference to protection of heritage assets
and character will be included within the revised
document.

B386

78

Page 18; Last paragraph.
Sentence added: ‘Note
that the OLC Report also
states, “there is no one
size fits all solution for
town centre renewal?
Redevelopment, so any
intensification would have

305

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
to take account of the
particular needs and
characteristics of the
individual town centre
such as heritage and
cultural assets, as well as
local character”.
Chris Stephens Yes, Kingston Road recreation ground should not be partly built upon, but Comment noted.
left as it is.

No change.

92

Marilyn Mason,
Chair, KEF

Parks, public open spaces, tree-lined streets, because they all contribute
to improving air quality

No change.

93

James

Green belt land around Chessington and no further development in these Comment noted. The Borough's Green Belt land is No change.
areas.
important and valued asset, and in accordance
with the London Plan and national policy, will be
protected from inappropriate development.
However, we also recognise the need to undertake
a review of Green Belt land as part of the local
plan process in order to assess the suitability of
land going forward.

95

Gay Richardson Kingston and its history

Comments noted. Improving air quality is a key
priority for the Council.

Comment noted. Further reference to protection of Pages 27, 29, 31, 33, 35,
heritage assets and character will be included
37; End of Text
within the revised document.
Sentence added after
bullet points: ‘We
recognise that new growth
must be balanced with the
unique heritage and
character of the Borough’.
Page 18; Last paragraph.
Sentence added: ‘Note
that the OLC Report also
states, “there is no one
size fits all solution for
town centre renewal?
Redevelopment, so any
intensification would have
to take account of the
particular needs and
characteristics of the
individual town centre

306

B387

88

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
such as heritage and
cultural assets, as well as
local character”.
96

James Fennell
(Nathaniel
Lichfield &
Partners)

Please refer to letter (dated 22nd August 2016) which was submitted via
email.

Support and comments noted. The aforementioned No change.
letter has been logged and addressed separately
as part of this consultation process.

102

David English

As well as the historic town centre in Kingston, we would encourage you
to consider how you could enhance the value of later built heritage, such
as the Victorian phases of growth associated with the development of the
railway and the suburbs. For example, Surbiton has some fine examples
of early suburban development, but appears to be largely avoided by the
proposals in this document. New Malden also has some attractive early
twentieth century buildings and could be made into a really special high
street with a distinctive identity if these are identified and enhanced, and
the diverse local community is celebrated. Many parts of Kingston are
open and green, an important characteristic of outer London. It is
important to understand the suburban nature, and the importance of large
green spaces within that, before these are designated for housing
development. Nevertheless, we note there appear to be large amounts of
MOL currently containing industrial or semi-industrial uses (such as
sewage works), which could potentially be enhanced by new
development, if higher quality public open spaces are created as a result.

All comments noted. As mentioned previously, the
character and heritage of the Borough continues to
be a key priority for the council. We recognise the
need to positively balance new growth with the
consideration of heritage and conservation assets,
as well as green spaces, in order to enhance the
character and distinctiveness of the borough.

Yes, but you won't listen

Comment noted.

No change.

All comments noted. The character and heritage of
the Borough continues to be a key priority for the
council. We recognise the need to positively
balance new growth with the consideration of
heritage and conservation assets in order to
protect the distinctiveness of the borough.

Pages 27, 29, 31, 33, 35,
37; End of Text
Sentence added after
bullet points: ‘We
recognise that new growth
must be balanced with the
unique heritage and
character of the Borough’.

Martin Booth

105

Tony Lancaster Are there any areas you are currently protecting? We are not doing
enough to protect the existing character and heritage of not only Kingston
but Surbiton,new Malden & other parts of the Borough. It is highly ironic
that the Council has in the last few months granted planning permission
for several new very high rise & dense developments in Kingston town
centre, which will neither enhance nor protect the listed Buildings &
Conservation Areas close to those developments. Of course we want
such protection & enhancement across the Borough, but any

Further reference to protection of heritage assets

Page 18; Last paragraph.
Sentence added: ‘Note
that the OLC Report also
states, “there is no one
size fits all solution for
town centre renewal?
Redevelopment, so any
intensification would have
to take account of the
particular needs and
characteristics of the
individual town centre
such as heritage and
cultural assets, as well as
local character”.

307

B388

104

Further reference to protection of heritage assets
and character will be included within the revised
document.

Pages 27, 29, 31, 33, 35,
37; End of Text
Sentence added after
bullet points: ‘We
recognise that new growth
must be balanced with the
unique heritage and
character of the Borough’.

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
intensification resulting from “Areas of Opportunity” must be very carefully and character will be included within the revised
considered by Planning Officers & Councillors.
document.

106

Gemma
Cusworth

All the historic buildings. No more skyscrapers. No more boring/dull/
visually displeasing looking developments.

Comments noted. Further reference to protection
of heritage assets and character will be included
within the revised document.

Page 18; Last paragraph.
Sentence added: ‘Note
that the OLC Report also
states, “there is no one
size fits all solution for
town centre renewal?
Redevelopment, so any
intensification would have
to take account of the
particular needs and
characteristics of the
individual town centre
such as heritage and
cultural assets, as well as
local character”.

Page 18; Last paragraph.
Sentence added: ‘Note
that the OLC Report also
states, “there is no one
size fits all solution for
town centre renewal?
Redevelopment, so any
intensification would have
to take account of the
particular needs and
characteristics of the
individual town centre
such as heritage and
cultural assets, as well as
local character”.
107

John Edwards

No change.

308

B389

Pages 27, 29, 31, 33, 35,
37; End of Text
Sentence added after
bullet points: ‘We
recognise that new growth
must be balanced with the
unique heritage and
character of the Borough’.

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
Daniel Wain

I would be very concerned if public spaces such as the Fairfield Green
Comment noted.
were not fully protected from future development. These are essential for
community wellbeing, as well as being owned by the community.

No change.

110

Carl Jackson

Enhance Cambridge Rd - it's a blot on Kingston and unfair on the
residents. A huge increase in tree planting along roads with the help of
local residents

Comment noted.

No change.

111

Peta
Schaverien

The parks. The centre of Kingston

Comment noted.

No change.

112

Rebeca alamo

The river access and views, the skyline in general with a cap of 8 floors,
the parks and green spaces

Comments noted.

No change.

113

Mr a Greene

All the existing green areas. All of them are features that improve the
living environment of the residents of the borough.

Comment noted. The council recognise that new
No change.
growth must be balanced with the consideration of
the borough's key assets, including greens spaces
and ecological areas.

114

Marguerite
Bowers Clark

The riverside, around Kingston parish church , Queens Road, Park Raod, Comments noted.
Kingsyon Hill

No change.

115

J Wheeler

We need to protect and enhance our culture and heritage. Recent
decisions indicate that planners have no interest in these aspects. Stop
allowing family homes to be turned into apartments and single occupancy
dwellings stop allowing the destruction of decent roads with ridiculous
schemes eg Portsmouth road which is now congested, ugly and
increasingly dangerous to cyclists who do not use the insanely large cycle
lane when traveling away from Kingston.

Pages 27, 29, 31, 33, 35,
37; End of Text
Sentence added after
bullet points: ‘We
recognise that new growth
must be balanced with the
unique heritage and
character of the Borough’.

Comment noted. The character and heritage of the
Borough continues to be a key priority for the
council. We recognise the need to positively
balance new growth with the consideration of
heritage and conservation assets in order to
protect the distinctiveness of the borough.
Further reference to protection of heritage assets
and character will be included within the revised
document.

Page 18; Last paragraph.
Sentence added: ‘Note
that the OLC Report also
states, “there is no one
size fits all solution for
town centre renewal?
Redevelopment, so any
intensification would have
to take account of the
particular needs and
characteristics of the
individual town centre
such as heritage and
cultural assets, as well as

309

B390

108

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
local character”.
Iain Martin MSc As above, but also Kingston town centre and the surrounding green
CMILT
areas.

Comments noted.

No change.

124

Pippa Billingsley The riverside, i am disappointed that the current residential developments Comments noted.
near to the river on the Canbury site are so tall.

No change.

127

Pat cann

Green spaces at Tolworth and Chessington

Comment noted. The council recognise that new
No change.
growth must be balanced with the consideration of
the borough's key assets, including greens spaces
and ecological areas.

128

Tim Westlake

The major traffic routes through the borough need to be kept open.
People and goods still need to move around and through the borough and
constricting those roads (such as seen on Portsmouth road with the new
cycle path) causes increased congestion and pollution and makes
working residents lives more difficult.

Comment noted. In accordance with the London
No change.
Plan, the Council places significant emphasis on
the role of cycling in the future of movement in the
Borough, but not to the detriment of other road
users. Key to achieving this vision is the delivery of
the Go Cycle Programme whereby the Council
received over £30million of funding from the Mayor
of London and TfL to deliver improvements to
cycling facilities and road safety. Please note that
the Go Kingston measures are in the early stages
of implementation and need time for road users to
become familiar with the new arrangements.

129

Tim Westlake

The major traffic routes through the borough need to be kept open.
People and goods still need to move around and through the borough and
constricting those roads (such as seen on Portsmouth road with the new
cycle path) causes increased congestion and pollution and makes
working residents lives more difficult.

Comment noted. In accordance with the London
No change.
Plan, the Council places significant emphasis on
the role of cycling in the future of movement in the
Borough, but not to the detriment of other road
users. Key to achieving this vision is the delivery of
the Go Cycle Programme whereby the Council
received over £30 million of funding from the
Mayor of London and TfL to deliver improvements
to cycling facilities and road safety. Please note
that the Go Kingston measures are in the early
stages of implementation and need time for road
users to become familiar with the new
arrangements.

130

Deborah Da
Silva

Hogsmill corridor, Tolworth Court Farm, Winnie hill .

Comments noted. Regarding the Hogsmill Valley, Page 16, Kingston Places
further reference to the protection of this asset will Map update: New ‘place’
be included in the revised version of the document. added for ‘Hogsmill Valley’

B391

119

Page 31; End of Text

310

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
Sentence added after
bullet points: ‘’Continued
protection of Hogsmill
Valley and its ecology’
131

Hilary Gander

Green belt and MOL.

Comments noted.

No change.

136

john pearson

New Malden High street and Fountain area

Comments noted.

No change.

137

Zoe Leeds

Green space. Tolworth court farm and the land opposite it, along Jubilee
way. teh nature reserves arou nd Chessington world of adventures too

Comments noted. The council recognise that new No change.
growth must be balanced with the consideration of
the borough's key assets, including greens spaces
and ecological areas.

138

sharon nelhams Fishponds, old Surbiton lagoon.

Comments noted.

142

caroline cheales All of the existing green space. it has been chipped away at for years and
this looks like a plan to scythe off even more. the historic heart of kingston
needs to be protected otherwise it loses what makes it special. the
riverside and market places need special care. Surbiton is a thriving high
street with vibrant smaller local centres - these should be protected and
enhanced. I'm sure other areas within the borough will need similar
assurances. Cemetries...this is going to be contentious, but I would like to
see a long term plan to move from burials and cremations to freeze drying
and a long term plan to remodel the cemeteries as permanent woodland.
this could take 20-30 years to deliver but it would be a positive outcome
for future generations and provide habitats for wildlife and green lungs for
the borough. so the plan should specifically exclude the provision of
further space for burials. digital enhancements - support the digitisation of
our archive information and make it publicly available so we can see our
history in the future. require developers to provide before and after
images that can be added to the local history layer. require the
submission of BIM models!

Comments noted. As noted in the Direction of
No change.
Travel, investment and improvement in
infrastructure is key to supporting new growth. This
includes leisure and community facilities, as well
as transport infrastructure such as Crossrail 2.
New growth will also be required to be balanced
with the need to protect the character and heritage
of the borough, as well as valued environmental
assets.

143

Stewart Dickson Protect historic views and infrastructure and ensure they're not diminished
by obtrusive and inappropriate developments.
Comments noted. The character and heritage of
the Borough continues to be a key priority for the
council. We recognise the need to positively
balance new growth with the consideration of
heritage and conservation assets in order to
protect the distinctiveness of the borough.

B392

Further reference to protection of heritage assets
and character will be included within the revised
document.

No change.

Pages 27, 29, 31, 33, 35,
37; End of Text
Sentence added after
bullet points: ‘We
recognise that new growth
must be balanced with the
unique heritage and
character of the Borough’.
Page 18; Last paragraph.
Sentence added: ‘Note

311

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
that the OLC Report also
states, “there is no one
size fits all solution for
town centre renewal?
Redevelopment, so any
intensification would have
to take account of the
particular needs and
characteristics of the
individual town centre
such as heritage and
cultural assets, as well as
local character”.
144

Linda Skilbeck

All comments noted. The population of Kingston is
set to increase by at least 10%. We recognise the
need to positively balance new growth with the
consideration of heritage and conservation assets
in order to enhance the character and
distinctiveness of the borough.
Comment noted regarding the height of buildings.
In accordance with the London Plan, the council's
approach to tall buildings will be based on a
strategic basis in appropriate town centre locations
as a potential measure to achieve higher densities
and growth targets. However, taller buildings will
need to consider how they positively and
sensitively optimise development plots whilst
enhancing the unique character of both the local
area and the wider protected key views.
Further reference to protection of heritage assets
and character will be included within the revised
document.

146

Sue May

Please consider a strategy for the formal protection of areas of
Metropolitan open land, to identify and preserve it's attributes. While not
conservation areas, please consider developing a design code for
development which acknowleges the character of surrounding areas eg

Comment noted. The borough's strategic open
spaces are important and valued assets, and in
accordance with the London Plan and national
policy, will be protected from inappropriate

Pages 27, 29, 31, 33, 35,
37; End of Text
Sentence added after
bullet points: ‘We
recognise that new growth
must be balanced with the
unique heritage and
character of the Borough’.
Page 18; Last paragraph.
Sentence added: ‘Note
that the OLC Report also
states, “there is no one
size fits all solution for
town centre renewal?
Redevelopment, so any
intensification would have
to take account of the
particular needs and
characteristics of the
individual town centre
such as heritage and
cultural assets, as well as
local character”.
No change.

312

B393

The council should seek to protect and enhance the whole borough. With
especial reference to all conservation areas, which should be rigorously
protected against intrusive and overwhelming developments. It is
essential that in future the Council protects ‘the Historic Environment
(Listed Buildings, Buildings of Townscape Merit and Conservation
Areas)’. The Council is the only body able to do this, we rely on the
council to so do. Any new building must reflect the scale of the
surrounding buildings to maintain the fabric of the town. And whenever
any intrusive structure is liable to be edeveloped, the local scale should
be restored, and the poor design and excessive height of the existing
building must not be used as the excuse for a further monstrosity. Very
strict height levels should be enforced, say 5 storeys in most areas and
certainly near any conservation area. From the 1960s tall residential
blocks were built, only to prove to be detrimental to family life. The
Cambridge Estate is a prime example where life expectancy is far lower
than the rest of the borough. Many tower blocks have been demolished
and housing built. We should not make the same mistakes again.

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
suburban, small town centre, large town centre etc and the use of
materials to create more developments which blend in and enhance the
character of the borough. Could we identify which design characteristics
make Kingston special and seek to promote these, not simply copying
them but interpreting them as appropriate?

development. However, we also recognise the
need to undertake a review of this land as part of
the local plan process in order to assess the
suitability of land going forward.

Dominic Bull

The riverside Coopers garage on Ewell road
Comment noted.
http://www.yourlocalguardian.co.uk/news/13217712.VIDEO__Campaign_
to_save_home_of_Cooper_Car_Company_in_Surbiton_moves_up_a_ge
ar/

No change.

148

Helen Thrush

ALL OF IT. STOP THE OVER DEVELOPMENT. LISTEN TO THE
RESIDENTS AND STOP SPENDING TAX PAYERS MONEY
UNNECESSARILY.

No change.

149

Dave RyderMills

All our water courses. Far better protection of Kingston Town Centre than Comments noted.
has hitherto been achieved

No change.

150

Elaine RyderMills

Green spaces. Need protection to allow some breathing space between
any man built.

Comments noted.

No change.

151

Neil Riley

The historic elements of each town centre should be protected.

Comments noted. Further reference to protection
of heritage assets and character will be included
within the revised document.

Pages 27, 29, 31, 33, 35,
37; End of Text
Sentence added after
bullet points: ‘We
recognise that new growth
must be balanced with the
unique heritage and
character of the Borough’.

Comment noted.

Page 18; Last paragraph.
Sentence added: ‘Note
that the OLC Report also
states, “there is no one
size fits all solution for
town centre renewal?
Redevelopment, so any
intensification would have
to take account of the
particular needs and
characteristics of the
individual town centre
such as heritage and
cultural assets, as well as
local character”.

313

B394

147

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
153

All comments noted. The character and heritage of
the Borough continues to be a key priority for the
council. We recognise the need to positively
balance new growth with the consideration of
heritage and conservation assets in order to
protect the distinctiveness of the borough.

Alison Wheeler

Comment noted. The character and heritage of the
Borough continues to be a key priority for the
council. We recognise the need to positively
balance new growth with the consideration of
heritage and conservation assets in order to
protect the distinctiveness of the borough.

The council should seek to protect and enhance the whole borough. With
especial reference to all conservation areas, which should be rigorously
protected against intrusive and overwhelming developments. It is
essential that in future the Council protects ‘the Historic Environment
(Listed Buildings, Buildings of Townscape Merit and Conservation
Areas)’. The Council is the only body able to do this, we rely on the
council to so do. Any new building must reflect the scale of the
surrounding buildings to maintain the fabric of the town. And whenever
any intrusive structure is liable to be edeveloped, the local scale should
be restored, and the poor design and excessive height of the existing
building must not be used as the excuse for a further monstrosity. Very
strict height levels should be enforced, say 5 storeys in most areas and
certainly near any conservation area. From the 1960s tall residential
blocks were built, only to prove to be detrimental to family life. The
Cambridge Estate is a prime example where life expectancy is far lower
than the rest of the borough. Many tower blocks have been demolished
and housing built. We should not make the same mistakes again.

Further reference to protection of heritage assets
and character will be included within the revised
document.

Further reference to protection of heritage assets
and character will be included within the revised
document.

Pages 27, 29, 31, 33, 35,
37; End of Text
Sentence added after
bullet points: ‘We
recognise that new growth
must be balanced with the
unique heritage and
character of the Borough’.
Page 18; Last paragraph.
Sentence added: ‘Note
that the OLC Report also
states, “there is no one
size fits all solution for
town centre renewal?
Redevelopment, so any
intensification would have
to take account of the
particular needs and
characteristics of the
individual town centre
such as heritage and
cultural assets, as well as
local character”.
Pages 27, 29, 31, 33, 35,
37; End of Text
Sentence added after
bullet points: ‘We
recognise that new growth
must be balanced with the
unique heritage and
character of the Borough’.
Page 18; Last paragraph.
Sentence added: ‘Note
that the OLC Report also
states, “there is no one
size fits all solution for
town centre renewal?
Redevelopment, so any
intensification would have
to take account of the

314

B395

156

Adrian Wheeler The council should seek to protect and enhance the whole borough. With
especial reference to all conservation areas, which should be rigorously
protected against intrusive and overwhelming developments. It is
essential that in future the Council protects ‘the Historic Environment
(Listed Buildings, Buildings of Townscape Merit and Conservation
Areas)’. The Council is the only body able to do this, we rely on the
council to so do. Any new building must reflect the scale of the
surrounding buildings to maintain the fabric of the town. And whenever
any intrusive structure is liable to be developed, the local scale should be
restored, and the poor design and excessive height of the existing
building must not be used as the excuse for a further monstrosity. Very
strict height levels should be enforced, say 5 storeys in most areas and
certainly near any conservation area. From the 1960s tall residential
blocks were built, only to prove to be detrimental to family life. The
Cambridge Estate is a prime example where life expectancy is far lower
than the rest of the borough. Many tower blocks have been demolished
and housing built. We should not make the same mistakes again.

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
particular needs and
characteristics of the
individual town centre
such as heritage and
cultural assets, as well as
local character”.
157

Christopher
Thomas

The Council should seek to protect and enhance the whole borough.

Comment noted.

No change.

158

Paul Sloan

We are not doing enough to protect the existing character and heritage of
not only Kingston but Surbiton,new Malden & other parts of the Borough.
It is highly ironic that the Council has in the last few months granted
planning permission for several new very high rise & dense developments
in Kingston town centre, which will neither enhance nor protect the listed
Buildings & Conservation Areas close to those developments. Of course
we want such protection & enhancement across the Borough, but any
intensification resulting from “Areas of Opportunity” must be very carefully
considered by Planning Officers & Councillors.

Comment noted. The character and heritage of the
Borough continues to be a key priority for the
council. We recognise the need to positively
balance new growth with the consideration of
heritage and conservation assets in order to
protect the distinctiveness of the borough.

Pages 27, 29, 31, 33, 35,
37; End of Text
Sentence added after
bullet points: ‘We
recognise that new growth
must be balanced with the
unique heritage and
character of the Borough’.

Further reference to protection of heritage assets
and character will be included within the revised
document.

159

Jonathan Fray

No comment

Noted.

No change.

160

Anne Oram

surbiton and berrylands

Comment noted.

No change.

163

Diane Watling

key views. Tranquility of the river system and to support and enhance
Comment noted.
biodiversity . The health of our rivers and green spaces is a monitor of the
general health of the borough.

No change.

164

Marian Ellis

Yes, North Keep ngston

Comment noted.

No change.

171

James Giles on The Fountain must be preserved.

Comment noted.

No change.

315

B396

Page 18; Last paragraph.
Sentence added: ‘Note
that the OLC Report also
states, “there is no one
size fits all solution for
town centre renewal?
Redevelopment, so any
intensification would have
to take account of the
particular needs and
characteristics of the
individual town centre
such as heritage and
cultural assets, as well as
local character”.

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
behalf of MICO
172

Carole &
Michael
StathamFletcher

On Page 13 one point mentions the value of the borough's strategic open
spaces. The next point is "Further potential opportunities for growth relate
to a comprehensive review of these assets". We would like to be assured
that the borough's open spaces will be cherished and not treated as
commercial assets. Kingston needs improvement, just like most of the
planet, but if it is "improved" to the point where it's existing virtues are
diminished and it ceases to be a good place to live, however efficient its
machinery, we will all be the losers.

Comment noted. The borough's strategic open
No change.
spaces are important and valued assets, and in
accordance with the London Plan and national
policy, will be protected from inappropriate
development. However, we also recognise the
need to undertake a review of this land as part of
the local plan process in order to assess suitability
forward.

The following consultees submitted a response but did not comment specifically on Question 3 of the survey.
Name

ID

Name

ID

Name

2

Denise Thompson

64

Joseph Asghar

120

Mo Sehra

3

Peter Watson

65

Rob Robb

121

Pat Marchant

9

Douglas Sampson

68

Alex Gregor-Smith

122

H. Wollinger

10

Eunhyun Song

70

Howard Robinson

123

Chris Coleman

14

Sara Redmond

71

Charmian Bourne

125

Mark Blewett

15

Shailesh Patel

72

Carl Jackson

126

Jim Leason

25

David Watkins

74

Stanley R. Spires

132

Fiona Meaney

26

Felicia Green

75

Peter Topp

133

Yvonne Walsh

35

Stephanie Russell

80

Annie Kay

134

lee hendra

39

Saleh

83

andrew compton

135

Agnieszka

40

Derek Moss

84

Maureen Ellis

139

Cashel Riordan

41

G. T. Knight

89

Ross Anthony, Theatres Trust

140

Julian Oldfield

43

Carlos

90

Andrew Summersgill

141

Michele salter

44

Steve

91

A. Sadeghi

145

Judith Royle

45

Sheena Evans

94

Sara Vincent

152

Janice Yeadon

47

Alvaro

97

Simon Jakeman

154

L. Hebbourn

49

A. Chandler

98

Janine Bellew

155

Hazel Farrow

B397

ID

316

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
50

Martyn

99

Zbig Blonski

161

Richard Ware

51

Des McRow

100

Barbara Delamere

162

Simon Munk

53

Robert Wyeth

101

Mr M.Gascoigne

165

Claire Harrison

56

Phil Edwards

103

Dan

166

James Giles

57

Fred Ashmore

109

Katherine jones

167

Kerry Giles

59

J.Stevens

116

Johanne Molloy

168

David Giles

60

Alex

117

Stuart Hartley

169

Marc Tracey

62

Pam Walsh

118

Lynne Finnerty

170

Yvonne Tracey

B398

317

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

Question 4 - What key infrastructure do you think the borough needs to support its growing population?
ID

Respondent

Question 4 - What key infrastructure do you think the borough
needs to support its growing population?

RBK Response

Document Update

N/A

GP surgeries Schools Hospital facilities

Comments noted. We recognise that
No change.
investment and improvement in supporting
infrastructure is key to supporting new growth.
This includes community facilities such as
schools and healthcare.

2

Denise
Thompson

schools roads

Comments noted. We recognise that
No change.
investment and improvement in supporting
infrastructure is key to supporting new growth.
This includes community facilities such as
schools and healthcare, as well as transport
infrastructure.

4

Ken Thompson

Schools, GP's, Shops, Roads, public transport and local amenities

We recognise that investment and
No change.
improvement in supporting infrastructure is
key to supporting new growth. This includes
community facilities such as schools and
healthcare, as well as transport infrastructure.

6

S Guess

Complete the Chessington railway line into Leatherhead. Park & Ride site on the Comments noted.
A3 probably involving Sury & Elmbridge Councils. Enhancement of "In Town
Bus Stations" i.e. the removal of other traffic from Eden Street and the
construction of an light overall roof to protect passengers and to give more room
be removing existing bus shelters.

No change.

7

Kathrin Siguda

better trains (longer)

Comments noted. As proposed, Crossrail 2
would include new, longer trains.

No change.

8

Malcolm Wright

1. Roads need to be improved - stop reducing and hindering their already overstretched capacity by building cycle lanes!

1. Regarding cycling, in accordance with the
No change.
London Plan the Council places significant
emphasis on the role of cycling in the future of
movement in the Borough, but not to the
detriment of other road users. Key to
achieving this vision is the delivery of the Go
Cycle Programme whereby the Council
received over £30 million of funding from the

2. Railway stations need to be improved - access in and out of Surbiton and
Kingston stations is appalling - it sometimes takes 10 minutes from getting off
the train to get out of the station.
3. There is a dire need for more schools.

B399

1

318

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
Mayor of London and TfL to deliver
improvements to cycling facilities and road
safety. Please note that the Go Kingston
measures are in the early stages of
implementation and need time for road users
to become familiar with the new
arrangements.
2. Comments noted. We recognise that
investment and improvement in supporting
infrastructure is key to supporting new growth.
3. We also ecognise that investment and
improvement in supporting infrastructure is
key to supporting new growth. This includes
community facilities such as schools and
healthcare.
Eunhyun Song

Clean transports like tramways Mixed housings

Comments noted.

No change.

11

Richard
Grosvenor

1. Kingston town centre's current traffic management policies are a highways
planning shambles, with poor configuration and utilisation of the prevailing road
layout leading to excessive and unnecessary traffic congestion around
Wheatfield Way, Wood Street and the one way system. Obvious improvements
should include: a) reconfiguration of the two major bus terminals (at Cromwell
Road and London Road) with the main bus interchange located either at The
Cattle Market or on Wheatfield Way (utilising land currently used for surface
level car parking). b) proper segregation of public transport and private vehicles,
with buses removed from Eden Street, allowing it to become a pedestrian area.
c) Re-instatement of the right-hand turn onto Wood Street, adjacent to Kingston
railway station, for traffic arriving from Richmond Road. This would hugely
relieve congestion and reduce air pollution all around the present one-way
system, by enabling through north-south traffic to flow past the town centre and
overe Kingston Bridge without being diverted around the one-way system.

1. Comments noted. The Kingston Town
Centre Movement Study looked at ways of
improving the highway arrangements in the
town centre. The current gyratory has
significant problems including causing
severance, for example it is a significant
barrier for pedestrians moving between the
railway station and town centre. It also causes
barriers to redevelopment, environmental
improvements and place shaping. The
Movement Study identified a preferred
highway option which pedestrianises Wood
Street and Clarence Street and converts the
remainder of the gyratory to two way working.
This is a longer term option for the town centre
which could help address many of the
identified problems, and could potentially be
implemented when Crossrail 2 comes to the
area.

Page 27, Bullet point 7
Original text: ‘An
expanded retail offer
and strengthening of the
Metropolitan Town
Centre’
Update: ‘An expanded
retail, leisure and
cultural offer and
strengthening of the
Metropolitan Town
Centre’

2. For all its history and status as a royal borough, Kingston lacks a single large
events/performance venue capable of staging major music, artistic or sporting
events. Given the dearth of such facilities anywhere in SW London, surely the
DoT proposals should make provision for such a multi-purpose venue in the
borough (similar perhaps to the Fairfield Halls complex in Croydon)? Sorry, but
the Rose Theatre is both too small and inflexible to accommodate major events. 2. Comment noted regarding a space for
performance/events. We recognised the
importance of cultural activity in Kingston in

319

B400

10

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
creating a rich and vibrant environment. To
target sustainable growth positively it is
important that this offer is protected and
enhanced in Kingston and across the
borough.
Further reference to the need for an extended
leisure/cultural offer will be included in the
revised document.
12

Jim Cardell

Social housing, transport and the services needed to support the resulting
growth in population.

Comments noted.

No change.

13

Matthew Kyte

Better, faster, rail links and cycle facilities.

Comments noted.

No change.

15

Shailesh Patel

Rail link to Heathrow

Comment noted.

No change.

16

Paul Cook

housing adequate provision of medical facilities school places employment good Comments noted. We recognise that
No change.
public transport an adequate road system [there are problems with the A243
investment and improvement in supporting
/Tolworth roundabout]
infrastructure is key to supporting new growth.
This includes community facilities such as
schools and healthcare, as well as transport
infrastructure.

17

Lisa Ross

Improved rail network across the capital, not only in and out of London.

Comment noted.

18

Patricia
McLauchlan

Schools and health provision.

Comments noted. We recognise that
No change.
investment and improvement in supporting
infrastructure is key to supporting new growth.
This includes community facilities such as
schools and healthcare.

19

Maryka
Sennema

Better pedestrian and cycling infrastructure. Moving cars away from the core.

Comment noted. In accordance with the
London Plan, the Council places significant
emphasis on the role of walking cycling in the
future of movement in the Borough.

No change.

20

Petrina Tatnall

1. There should be affordable housing.

1. Comments noted regarding affordable
homes. Affordability of homes for local people
is a key priority due to high house prices, an
increasing shortfall in provision, and the
increase in demand. One of our biggest issues
is to tackle this positively and increase the
number of houses to meet needs, while
seeking the right balance between protecting
the environment, and supporting the local

Pages 19; Paragraph 1

3. Don't build homes that are rabbit hutches, with only a space for a garden.
Some of the starter homes are too small to even swing a cat. The new homes
near Lidl in Hook are an example of that as the homes are too near each other
and cramped. Plus the 13 flats that are being built in North Chessington, not

B401

2. Don't build high rise flats as they don't look good, and are a blot on the
landscape.

No change.

Original text: ‘A new
borough Local Plan is
required to show how it
will deliver the growth
needs of a rapidly rising
population’.

320

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
Update: ‘A new borough
Local Plan is required to
show how it will deliver
the growth needs of a
rapidly rising population,
including new affordable
homes, a diverse range
2. In accordance with the London Plan, tall
of employment
buildings may be considered in appropriate
opportunities, and
town centre locations, although they will need
expanded leisure and
to consider how they positively and sensitively
community facilities’.
optimise development plots whilst enhancing
the unique character of both the local area
and the wider protected key views.

enough car park spaces to go with the flats due to lack of space This will cause economy.
problems which are foreseeable before it has even happened. No one seems to
foresee issues before the planning has been agreed to, and even then if they
Further reference to the need for affordable
do, the planning application is often passed regardless of the consequences.
housing will be included in the revised
document.

3. Comment noted regarding space and
quality of new homes.
Lucy Symons

Cycle lanes and cycle parking, please.

Comment noted. In accordance with the
No change.
London Plan, the Council places significant
emphasis on the role of cycling in the future of
movement in the Borough, and will therefore
continue to be promoted and extended
throughout the Borough in order to facilitate a
connected network of safe cycle routes.

22

Anthony Quinn

There is a need to reconsider with our exit from the EU.

Comment noted.

No change.

24

Linda Seel

Schools, Care Homes

Comment noted.

No change.

25

David Watkins

An extension to the District Line. Less traffic congestion, better traffic planning
and infrastructure.

Comment noted. The Council recognise that
No change.
key to facilitating and managing new growth is
to ensure new investment and improvement
transport infrastructure, which must be
considered as a strategic and integrated
approach.

26

Felicia Green

Crossrail 2 will be particularly important, especially to areas with presently
poorer transport links. Improvements in cycle lanes from/to these stations and
better integration of cycling/walking as these form a part of lots of peoples
commute. Appropriate expansion of schools, health and community care is
essential.

Comments noted. We recognise that
No change.
investment and improvement in supporting
infrastructure is key to supporting new growth.
This includes community facilities such as
schools and healthcare, as well as transport
infrastructure.

27

Graham Tucker 1. Schools. GP surgeries.

1. Comment noted. We recognise that
investment and improvement in supporting

B402

21

No change.

321

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
2. Better bus links to the south of the borough.

infrastructure is key to supporting new growth.
This includes community facilities such as
3. The relief road may be a good idea from the A3 behind Chessington World of schools and healthcare.
Adventures down to the M25 junction 9 however I would need to see a plan as
the one in the document is not clear and as I said earlier, it looks like a ring road 2. Improved bus services will also form part of
around Malden Rushett and over swathes of green belt land.
ongoing discussions with TfL to improve public
transport accessibility in the area.

B403

3. Comment noted regarding the Hook/
Chessington relief road. To address
congestion and severance around the
Chessington, Tolworth and Hook areas, the
Council is exploring the concept of a relief
road with neighbouring planning authorities.
The key benefits of the scheme include:
a) Congestion Relief - diverting some north
and southbound traffic (currently on the A243)
via the relief road and the A3, rather than
passing through Chessington.
b) Facilitating Growth - maximising growth
opportunities in Chessington, with potential to
attract further investment, new jobs, housing,
commercial premises. New Crossrail 2
Services from 2033 will be serving railway
stations in the area with four trains an hour in
each direction connecting central London.
29

martin russelljones

None a population that will never stop growing will destroy the borough .

Comments noted.

No change.

30

mr bal badesha

rail/ fast shuttle bus link from Surbiton & Kingston to Heathrow and Gatwick
airports.

Comments noted.

No change.

31

Mr Aziz Bawany schools, roads, public transport and GP services. Use of public libraries and
waste disposal services such as villers road.

Comments noted. We recognise that
No change.
investment and improvement in supporting
infrastructure is key to supporting new growth.
This includes community facilities such as
schools and healthcare, as well as transport
infrastructure.

32

andy watters

1. Comment noted regarding refuse.

1. How to deal with refuse - a modern blight is the large wheelie bins on
pavements and front gardens - when this is combined with one and two cars
often parked in a concreted off former front garden, it needs to have some 'out
of the box' thinking attached to the problem(s) Kingston should have 10mph

No change.

2. Comments noted regarding traffic
congestion.

322

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
'school zones' or 'Home zones' - streets where vehicles are tolerated but NOT
prioritised. There is a growing trend for this to happen. Kingston should help
lead the way.
2. Transport MUST NOT turn Kingston borough into one big traffic jam.
33

Alistair Glen

Improved transport for everyone except drivers!

Comment noted.

34

Mel

1. A clean environment.

1. Comment noted regarding the environment. Page 17; Last
paragraph
2. Comment noted. The long term ambition for Sentence added at the
end of the text: ‘High
the borough includes a reduction in car
quality design is, and
reliance through investment in transport
will continue to be a key
infrastructure, including Crossrail 2, bus
priority for the Council’.
services and cycle infrastructure, providing
choice of transport options for the local
community.

2. People need to be less reliant on cars and walk and cycle more.
3. More greenspace not less, less chopping down of mature trees would help.
4. Delivery vans and buses need to be made far less polluting.
5. Sewage and flooding are are real problem and yet the remaining floodplains
are being built on and new buildings rarely allow any ground level green space
due to the loss in profit.

7. More schools and care homes for the elderly - most people are frightened to
go into the private care homes, they have such bad press now. We need 'not for profit' care homes - on a co-operative or trust basis - with the help of the
councils in setting them up.

3. The council agree that new growth must be
balanced with the consideration of the
borough's key assets, including greens
spaces and ecological areas.

B404

6. Better buildings: Buildings should be refurbished rather than knocked down it is a major source of our land waste, carbon footprint and unsustainable. New
buildings are often poor quality even according to those in the trade, let alone
those who have to live in them. Many are made with cheap materials, are
cramped and only guaranteed for 10 years. Buildings need to be much greener
and should be forced to be much more sustainable - with solar panels, green
roofs and sewage systems. Better NHS facilities, - it is getting very difficult to
maintain confidence in getting appropriate care.

No change.

4. Comment noted regarding the sustainability
of delivery vans and buses.
5. Comments noted regarding flooding. The
council recognises that the Local Plan must
look at ways of managing and reducing flood
risk, which will include a review of its evidence
base on flood issues. The potential for flood
alleviation schemes is one of these options
available, which through close working with
the Environment Agency, can help to protect
homes, people and property whilst increasing
development opportunities within Kingston.
6. Comment noted regarding design. Further
reference to the need for high quality design
will be included in the revised document.
7. As noted in the Direction of Travel, in order

323

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
to accommodate new growth, investment and
improvement in infrastructure (including
community facilities) is fundamental.
Stephanie
Russell

Improved transport links and hubs Improved parking or park and ride, moving
car parks away from the town centre

Comment noted. The Council recognise that
No change.
key to facilitating and managing new growth is
to ensure new investment and improvement
transport infrastructure, which must be
considered strategically in an integrated way.

37

E John

High rise flats in Tolworth

Comments noted.

No change.

38

Imran Benson

Surbiton station better able to deal with rush hour crowds.

Comments noted.

No change.

41

G T Knight

A first class library, perhaps with meeting rooms and concert hall. Education is
Comments noted. We recognise that
No change.
important. The present arrangement shows very little civic pride and sets a poor investment and improvement in supporting
example to the young.
infrastructure is key to supporting new growth,
including community facilities such as schools
and healthcare. We also recognised the
importance of cultural activity in Kingston in
creating a rich and vibrant environment. To
target sustainable growth positively it is
important that this offer is protected and
enhanced in Kingston and across the
borough.

42

Paul Howlett

More frequent trains to London. More frequent buses, especially to schools on a
single bus route. Dealing with traffic pinch points: (1) New Malden Fountains
roundabout, (2) road between A3 and Worcester Park, (3) Tolworth roundabout
and (4) A3 where it reduces to 2 lanes and merges with road from Hinchley
Wood near the Hook roundabout

Comment noted. The Council recognise that
No change.
key to facilitating and managing new growth is
to ensure new investment and improvement in
transport infrastructure.

44

Steve

Crossrail 2 is essential Better / safer cycling routes into central London

Comments noted.

No change.

45

Sheena Evans

Schools, nurseries, public transport on adequate networks, medical provision,
green spaces and recreation provision.

Comments noted.

No change.

46

Dr Nazar Pola

To support the growing of population is to prevent risk factors of pollution in all
aspect by health education of all sectors of community

Comments noted. We recognise that
No change.
investment and improvement in supporting
infrastructure is key to supporting new growth.
This includes community facilities such as
schools and healthcare, as well as transport
infrastructure and green infrastructure.

47

Alvaro

Underground. Bus. Cycling. Train

Comments noted.

No change.

48

Jacqueline
Hardie

More spaces for the young for recreation

Comments noted.

No change.

B405

35

324

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
50

Martyn

More train services serving Berrylands and Tolworth.

Comments noted.

52

B. Walker

Schools, doctors, police, roads, sewerage, water, electricity, gas You cannot
keep adding more flats without the Victorian sewers breaking down. The drains
cannot cope with the volumes of water anymore. Too many houses have
concrete front gardens, too many trees have been cut down, the water just runs
off into the roads causing surface flooding.

All comments noted. We recognise that
No change.
investment and improvement in supporting
infrastructure is key to supporting new growth.
This includes community facilities such as
schools and healthcare, as well as transport
infrastructure and other local services.

54

Joseph Asghar

The population only grows if you make provision for it to grow. There are many
other parts of the country that are impoverished and in need of infrastructure
investment. As you know.

Comments noted.

No change.

55

John McCarthy, no obs
Friends
Kingston
Museum &
Heritage Service

Noted.

No change.

56

Phil Edwards

A mix of transport options and not taking up road lanes and replacing with cycle Comment noted. We recognise that key to
No change.
lanes that no one uses. Tolworth and Portsmouth Road schemes are madness sustaining new growth is to ensure investment
in transport infrastructure to provide choice of
transport options for the local community.

57

Fred Ashmore

Improved public transport links to both Heathrow and Gatwick

Comments noted.

58

F.McDermott

New schools and health centres.

Comments noted. We recognise that
No change.
investment and improvement in supporting
infrastructure is key to supporting new growth.
This includes community facilities such as
schools and healthcare.

61

j langridge

Reduction in cars entering the area, maybe car parks on the main arterial roads Comments noted. The long term ambition
with good bus service between.
includes the reduction in car reliance through
investment in transport infrastructure,
including Crossrail 2, bus services and cycle
infrastructure, providing choice of transport
options for the local community.

No change.

62

Pam Walsh

Schools at all levels in appropriate ares.

No change.

No change.

B406

Comments noted. Investment and
improvement in supporting infrastructure is
key to supporting new growth. This includes
community facilities such as schools and
healthcare. Further detail on this requirement
will be developed at a later stage in the local
plan process.

No change.

325

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
63

Peter Mason

Schools; doctors' surgeries; joined-up cycle-paths, leisure facilities e g
swimming pools, community halls, parks, sports facilities, cultural spaces such
as galleries, theatres, cinemas; improved public transport...

Comments noted. We recognise that
investment and improvement in supporting
infrastructure is key to supporting new growth,
including community facilities such as schools
and healthcare, and transport infrastructure.

Page 27, Bullet point 7

Original text: ‘An
expanded retail offer
and strengthening of the
Metropolitan Town
We also recognised the importance of cultural Centre’
activity in Kingston in creating a rich and
vibrant environment. To target sustainable
Update: ‘An expanded
growth positively it is important that this offer retail, leisure and
is protected and enhanced in Kingston and
cultural offer and
across the borough.
strengthening of the
Metropolitan Town
Centre’
A further reference to the need for an
extended cultural offer in Kingston will be
included in the revised document.

Alan Bennett

Provision of schools of appropriate sizes across borough but giving thought to
effect of and providing for demand from new housing area.

Comments noted. Investment and
improvement in supporting infrastructure is
key to supporting new growth. This includes
community facilities such as schools and
healthcare. Further detail on this requirement
will be developed at a later stage in the local
plan process.

No change.

67

Natalie Crew

SCHOOLS SCHOOLS SCHOOLS Pedestrian safety, widening of pavements
and improved crossings Green and play space for children

All comments noted. Investment and
improvement in supporting infrastructure is
key to supporting new growth. This includes
community facilities such as schools and
healthcare. Further detail on this requirement
will be developed at a later stage in the local
plan process.

No change.

68

Alex GregorSmith

I pay a lot to commute to the city and I stand on the bus and train every day.

Comment noted.

No change.

69

Kevin White

Relief road for Chessington Hook, we are slowly going under

Comment noted. The Council is currently
exploring the concept of a relief road with
neighbouring planning authorities to address
congestion and severance around the
Chessington, Tolworth and Hook areas.

No change.

70

Howard
Robinson

Improve car parking facilities and keep parking costs down.

Comment noted. Parking in Kingston is
currently being investigated, particularly in
relation to the redevelopment and expansion

No change.

B407

66

326

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
of the town centre over the next few years.
Charmian
Bourne

Improve sewage system and flood controls for Kingston town and riverside

Comments noted. The council recognises that No change.
the Local Plan must look at ways of managing
and reducing flood risk, which will include a
review of its evidence base on flood issues.
The potential for flood alleviation schemes is
one of these options available, which through
close working with the Environment Agency,
can help to protect homes, people and
property whilst increasing development
opportunities within Kingston.

74

Stanley R.
Spires

Due to its close proximity to the University, Guild Hall 2 should be converted to Comments noted.
student accommodation. and the displaced civil servants can be rehoused in the
tower blocks in New Malden

No change.

76

Howard
Sheppard

Crossrail 2 plus improved radial links to Heathrow.

Comments noted.

No change.

77

Judith Symons

In September every year there is a cry for more school places and the council is Comments noted.
always playing catch up!

No change.

78

Keith Keen

Dedicated Industrial and Commercial Parks

Comments noted.

No change.

79

Frances Marsh

If Kingston Council doesn't know the answer to this question,they shouldn't be
producing a document of this nature.

Comment noted.

No change.

80

Annie Kay

Cycling. Street cleaning.

Comments noted.

No change.

82

Lesley Steel

More social housing

Comment noted.

No change.

85

karen carman

More local school rather than increasing the size of the ones we have as this
only leads to greater distances travelled by parents. TFL need to sort out the link
roads to the M25 before any more traffic is put into this area. The A3 should be
accessed from the Ace of Spades at Chessington as cars have to travel out of
their way to link to it.

Comments noted. We recognise that
No change.
investment and improvement in supporting
infrastructure is key to supporting new growth.
This includes community facilities such as
schools and healthcare, as well as transport
infrastructure.

87

Peter Herlinger

The fast services from Surbiton Rail Station to Waterloo should be maintained
and improved.

Comment noted.

88

Chris Stephens

Because of Kingston university not having sufficient campus accommodation for Comments noted.
the students, they are forced to rent locally. When owner occupiers upgrade or
downsize, the buy-to-let brigade storm in, quick lick of paint and you have a
house full of students. Kingston and the surrounding areas have become bedsit
land. Reverse that and more properties will be available to buy and rent for a
growing population.

B408

71

No change.
No change

327

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
89

Ross Anthony,
Theatres Trust

The Theatres Trust recommends the plan recognise the importance of
safeguarding existing, and promoting new cultural and community facilities. The
provision of a variety of community infrastructure and cultural facilities are
important for their contribution to residents and visitors life satisfaction and this
should be promoted in this plan. The importance of planning for culture and
community facilities is emphasised in the National Planning Policy Framework
by being included as a core planning principle (para. 17). This is supported by
guidance in para. 70 of the NPPF which states that to deliver the social,
recreational and cultural facilities and services that the community needs,
planning policies and decisions should guard against unnecessary loss of
valued facilities. Also to ensure that established facilities and services are
retained and able to develop for the benefit of the community. Para. 156 also
requires strategic policies to deliver community and cultural infrastructure and
other local facilities It is vital the local plan safeguard and protect existing
cultural & community facilities which benefit and support sustainable
communities which might otherwise be traded in for more commercially lucrative
developments. To support this, we recommend a policy along the lines of:
Community Facilities Development of new community facilities will be supported
and should support the well-being of the local community, and the vitality and
viability of centres. The loss or change of use of existing community facilities will
be resisted unless • replacement facilities are provided on site or within the
vicinity which meet the need of the local population, or necessary services can
be delivered from other facilities without leading to, or increasing, any shortfall in
provision; or • it has been demonstrated that there is no longer a community
need for the facility or demand for another community use on site. For clarity,
and so that guidelines are clear and consistent, the accompanying text and the
Glossary should contain an explanation for the term ‘community facilities’. We
recommend this succinct all inclusive description which would obviate the need
to provide examples: community facilities provide for the health and wellbeing,
social, educational, spiritual, recreational, leisure and cultural needs of the
community.

All comments noted. We recognised the
importance of cultural and community activity
in Kingston in creating a rich and vibrant
environment. To target sustainable growth
positively it is important that this offer is
protected and enhanced in Kingston and
across the borough.

Page 27, Bullet point 7
Original text: ‘An
expanded retail offer
and strengthening of the
Metropolitan Town
Centre’

Further reference to the need for an extended Update: ‘An expanded
leisure/cultural offer in Kingston will be
retail, leisure and
included in the revised document.
cultural offer and
strengthening of the
Metropolitan Town
Centre’

B409

90

Andrew
Summersgill

Crossrail 2 is the most important improvement that could be introduced.
Residential parking controls are also very long overdue in New Malden.

Comment noted. There is overwhelming
support for Crossrail 2 and the Council will
actively plan for its arrival.

No change.

92

Marilyn Mason,
Chair, KEF

Low emission buses, perhaps smaller, more frequent buses covering more
routes. Joined-up, safe, attractive cycling and walking routes. Schools that
children can walk to. Affordable/council housing for low-paid workers in retail,
service and care sectors.

Comments noted. We recognise that
No change.
investment and improvement in public
transport, walking and cycling, and community
facilities is key to supporting new growth.
Similarly, affordable housing is also key
priority due to high house prices, an
increasing shortfall in provision, and the
increase in demand.

328

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
James

Schools! GP surgeries Kingston Clinical Commissioning group isn't hell bent on
closing down. Crossrail 2. No further housing development, especially not on
Green belt land and around Chessington and Tolworth.

Comments noted. As noted in the Direction of No change.
Travel, investment and improvement in
supporting infrastructure is key to supporting
new growth. This includes leisure and
community facilities, as well as transport
infrastructure such as Crossrail 2 and bus
services.

94

Sara Vincent

Schools, cycle paths, neighbourhood/community 'hubs' (not just bland high
streets), green spaces, social spaces for teens and older people

Comments noted.

No change.

96

James Fennell
(Nathaniel
Lichfield &
Partners)

Please refer to letter (dated 22nd August 2016) which was submitted via email.
Aviva is generally supportive of the proposed infrastructure improvements as
they have the potential to enhance the connectivity of the town centre with the
remainder of the borough and London as a whole and facilitate the growth which
is anticipated. Crossrail 2 provides a one-off opportunity to provide a stepchange in public transport accessibility in the town centre (and other places in
the borough) with consequent opportunities for significant new housing
development. With respect to the infrastructure proposed in the town centre
Aviva requests early dialogue with the Council regarding the ‘preferred highway
scheme’ relating to Wood Street and Clarence Street and the relocation of the
rail station closer to the river, in order that any potential issues relating to
accessing and egressing the Bentall Centre and its car parks can be carefully
considered. These car parks are important to the viability and vitality of the town
centre as a whole. We have previously submitted representations on behalf of
Aviva to the Go Cycle - Kingston Station Area consultation. Aviva is supportive
of the Go Cycle scheme as a whole on the basis that it will help to improve the
pedestrian and cycle environment in Kingston town centre. Aviva would like to
engage with the Council at the detailed design stage to ensure that the
proposals integrate successfully with their existing assets and look forward to
working with the Council in due course in this regard.

Support and comments noted. The
aforementioned letter has been logged and
addressed separately as part of this
consultation process.

No change.

98

Janine Bellew

Mentioned in comments

Noted.

No change.

99

Zbig Blonski

Drainage and other improvements to deal with flooding.

Comments noted.

No change.

100

Barbara
Delamere

Water and pipework needs looking at certainly in New Malden. Schools,GPs and
the Hospital need to be fit for the growing number of people who are being
anticipated.Transport too but that is being addressed.It is also important to be
aware that people have cars and will use them no matter how good public
transport.

Comments noted. We recognise that
No change.
investment and improvement in supporting
infrastructure is key to supporting new growth.
This includes community facilities such as
schools and healthcare, as well as transport
infrastructure and other local services.

101

Mr M.
Gascoigne

Affordable housing.

Comment noted.

B410

93

No change.

329

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
102

David English

Heritage should be seen as part of the environmental infrastructure that gives a
place character and identity. This is because it enables and encourages people
to live and enjoy an area, as well as visit and spend money in it. Kingston has
some very clearly defined heritage assets, notably in Kingston town centre
which the Council has acknowledged (in the case of the Eden Walk
redevelopment) are likely to be harmed if approved development takes place.
New local plan policies or SPDs should include a positive strategy for Kingston’s
historic environment. More detail on this is contained in paragraph 126 of the
NPPF. In addition to Kingston Town Centre there are other elements of the
borough’s heritage that could be better recognised and celebrated. By fostering
a strong sense of local identity, which relates to the existing communities and
environment, the Council can facilitate the introduction of new homes and work
places. This is because residents will consider change in their areas more
positively if they are confident that the important buildings and distinctive areas
will be retained, and that schemes will enhance their environment and amenities
further.

All comment noted. The character and
heritage of the Borough continues to be a key
priority for the council. We recognise the need
to positively balance new growth with the
consideration of heritage and conservation
assets, particularly in the most sensitive
areas, in order to protect the distinctiveness of
the borough.
Therefore, to mitigate against negative
impacts on our historic urban environment will
require improvements to heritage
management. This will involve gaining a
comprehensive understanding of the value of
our heritage, identifying mechanisms for their
protection, and establishing and integrating
management plans into the overall planning
framework.

Page 18; Last
paragraph.
Sentence added: ‘Note
that the OLC Report
also states, “there is no
one size fits all solution
for town centre
renewal?
Redevelopment, so any
intensification would
have to take account of
the particular needs and
characteristics of the
individual town centre
such as heritage and
cultural assets, as well
as local character”.

104

Martin Booth

Roads, schools, transport links, leisure facilities.

Comments noted.

No change

105

Tony Lancaster

1. Schools, doctors, a mix of housing with the possibility of truly supporting low
paid key workers housing needs, (this last not driven by the derisory and tiny
CIL payments by the mendacious and scheming developers that you allow to
run rings around you) Improved transport links.

1. Comments noted. The Council recognise
that key to facilitating and managing new
growth in Kingston is to ensure new
investment and improvement in supporting
infrastructure, including community facilities
such as schools and healthcare.

Page 27, Bullet point 7

2. Community assets, we know you want the world to come and shop here but
wouldn't it nice for residents to feel that culture might be at the forefront of our
aspirations rather than the vain and superficial needs of consumerism.

2. We also recognised the importance of
cultural activity in Kingston in creating a rich
and vibrant environment. To target sustainable
growth positively it is important that this offer
is protected and enhanced in Kingston and

Original text: ‘An
expanded retail offer
and strengthening of the
Metropolitan Town
Centre’
Update: ‘An expanded
retail, leisure and
cultural offer and
strengthening of the

330

B411

Further reference to protection of heritage
assets and character will be included within
the revised document.

Pages 27, 29, 31, 33,
35, 37; End of Text
Sentence added after
bullet points: ‘We
recognise that new
growth must be
balanced with the
unique heritage and
character of the
Borough’.

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
across the borough.

Metropolitan Town
Centre’

A further reference to the need for an
extended cultural offer in Kingston will be
included in the revised document.
106

Gemma
Cusworth

More frequent trains. More late night trains More schools, better schools More
doctors More outside space and parks

Comments noted. As noted in the Direction of No change.
Travel, investment and improvement in
supporting infrastructure is key to supporting
new growth. This includes leisure and
community facilities, such as schools and
healthcare, as well as transport infrastructure
and green infrastructure.

107

John Edwards

"Affordable" housing. Kingston has done little to provide housing for its less well
off residents. It seems its priority is to provide student accommodation as
evidenced by the huge number of student housing projects currently under way.
Trying to develop Kingston into something it is not i.e. a major shopping centre
to compete with the likes of Croydon and the Westfield developments. It does
not lend itself to being a huge retail centre and it is silly to pretend otherwise.
The town looks a mess and throwing huge amounts of money at it does not
guarantee its success and creating more commercial developments simply adds
to the pressure on its housing stock - something the council to its shame has
badly got wrong over the years.

All comments noted. Affordability of homes for
local people is a key priority due to high house
prices, an increasing shortfall in provision, and
the increase in demand. One of our biggest
issues is to tackle this positively and increase
the number of houses to meet needs, while
seeking the right balance between protecting
the environment, and supporting the local
economy.

Pages 19; Paragraph 1
Original text: ‘A new
borough Local Plan is
required to show how it
will deliver the growth
needs of a rapidly rising
population’.

108

Daniel Wain

When are Kingston and Surbiton going to be reclassified as Zone 5? This move Comments noted. There are currently no
is long overdue.
plans for this proposal.

No change.

110

Carl Jackson

Local jobs, noise reduction, air quality improvement and a resilience plan.
London orbital railway also linking airports. Move public sector jobs out of
London e.g. Parliament in Yorkshire.

Comments noted.

No change.

111

Peta Schaverien Schools doctors surgeries hospital places

Comments noted. We recognise that
investment and improvement in supporting

No change.

331

B412

Update: ‘A new borough
New evidence base and policy regarding
Local Plan is required to
affordable housing will the developed through show how it will deliver
the local plan process.
the growth needs of a
rapidly rising population,
including new affordable
Further reference to the need for affordable
homes, a diverse range
housing will be included in the revised
of employment
document.
opportunities, and
expanded leisure and
community facilities’.

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
infrastructure is key to supporting new growth.
This includes community facilities such as
schools and healthcare.
112

Rebeca alamo

Faster rail service between kingston and london which doesnt rely on cross rail. Comments noted. Park and Ride is something No change.
Park and ride for kingston.
the council has considered. Although not
completely dismissed, this is probably not a
realistic option in the foreseeable future.

113

Mr A. Greene

1. Need to look at what businesses can be attracted into the borough so that
more of the borough residents can work locally. That can help reduce
congestion.

1. Comments noted. The council recognises
the importance of providing more diverse
employment opportunities across all sectors,
including roles with higher salaries and small
2. Schools and GP practices are needed. More community spaces such as halls and medium-sized enterprizes. This need will
be considered alongside existing employment
that are affordable. These are vital for fitness groups, support groups and the
designations in the borough.
general well-being of the residents.
This will be recognised in the text of the
revised document.

Original text: ‘A new
borough Local Plan is
required to show how it
will deliver the growth
needs of a rapidly rising
population’.
Update: ‘A new borough
Local Plan is required to
show how it will deliver
the growth needs of a
rapidly rising population,
including new affordable
homes, a diverse range
of employment
opportunities, and
expanded leisure and
community facilities’.

114

Marguerite
Bowers Clark

Better public transport

Comment noted.

No change.

115

J. Wheeler

Transport, schools, Doctor and hospital facility

Comments noted. We recognise that
No change.
investment and improvement in supporting
infrastructure is key to supporting new growth.
This includes community facilities such as
schools and healthcare.

116

Johanne Molloy Schools Road improvements Parks, playgrounds and open spaces need
improving GPs and a walk in clinic Shops

Comments noted. We recognise that
No change.
investment and improvement in supporting
infrastructure is key to supporting new growth.
This includes community facilities such as
schools, healthcare and parks.

332

B413

2. Investment and improvement in supporting
infrastructure is also a top priority. key to
supporting new growth. This includes
community facilities such as schools and
healthcare.

Pages 19; Paragraph 1

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
117

Stuart Hartley

The growing population is not a fact. With migratin likely to fall in coming years
we must avoid over supply and building white elephant schemes to pander to
developers.

Comment noted.

No change.

118

Lynne Finnerty

1. Improvements to deal with flooding, drainage, sewage disposal, water
demand.

1. Comments noted regarding flooding,
drainage, sewage disposal, water demand.
The council recognises that the Local Plan
must look at ways of managing and reducing
flood risk, which will include a review of its
evidence base on flood issues.

No change.

2. Provision of adequate school places for children resident within the borough.
3. Convenient access to health facilities.
4. Improved road surfaces.
5. Suitable accommodation for people with disabilities.
6. Assisted living and extra care accommodation. Specialist dementia care
accommodation.

2 and 3. Investment and improvement in
supporting infrastructure, such as schools and
healthcare, will be key to supporting new
growth. The detail of these requirements will
be considered at a later stage of the local plan
process.

4. Comment noted regarding improved road
7. Additional and accessible electric charging points, other than in car parks and surfaces.
private developments.
5. Comment noted regarding accommodation
for people with disabilities.

B414

8. Basement parking on major developments to relieve residential roads and to
retain the character of neighbourhoods.

6. Comment noted regarding assisted living
and extra care accommodation.
6. Comment noted regarding electric charging
points.
7. Comment noted regarding basement
parking.
119

Iain Martin MSc 1. A better more integrated transport system including the key road links into
CMILT
and out of the Borough.

1. Comments noted. The Council recognise
that key to facilitating and managing new
growth is to ensure new investment and
2. There should also be a more innovative approach taken to the town's gyratory improvement transport infrastructure, which
must be considered in a strategic and
system including consideration of a bypass link from Kingston Bridge to
integrated way.
Richmond Road.

No change.

2. Comment noted regarding Kingston's
gyratory system. The Kingston Town Centre

333

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
Movement Study looked at ways of improving
the highway arrangements in the town centre.
The current gyratory has significant problems
including causing severance (for example, it is
a significant barrier for pedestrians moving
between the railway station and town centre).
It also causes barriers to redevelopment,
environmental improvements and place
shaping. The Study identified ways of
overcoming these key issues as a longer term
option for the town centre, and could
potentially be implemented when Crossrail 2
comes to the area.
121

Pat Marchant

124

schools and gp surgeries will be needed with an increased population.

No change.

Pippa Billingsley Schools, GP's, Kingston hospital

Comment noted. As noted in the Direction of
Travel, to accommodate new growth,
investment and improvement in infrastructure
(including schools and healthcare) will be
fundamental.

No change.

127

Pat Cann

Better schools in areas that are lacking. GP's very important..

Comment noted. As noted in the Direction of
Travel, to accommodate new growth,
investment and improvement in infrastructure
(including schools and healthcare) will be
fundamental.

No change.

128

Tim Westlake

More off street parking. An end to the council policies which prevent the
adequate building of off road parking for new builds. More council houses.

Comments noted.

No change.

129

Tim Westlake

More off street parking. An end to the council policies which prevent the
adequate building of off road parking for new builds. More council houses.

Comments noted.

No change.

130

Deborah Da
Silva

Better health facilities, more schools, better and more youth centres, community Comments noted. As noted in the Direction of No change.
centres in each area
Travel, to accommodate new growth,
investment and improvement in infrastructure
(including community facilities, schools and
healthcare) will be fundamental.

131

Hilary Gander

Cycling lanes. Safe / pleasant walking routes. Schools, GPs. Extra buses and
bus routes, joined up buses and trains. Community halls, sports facilities, youth

Comments noted. We recognise that
investment and improvement in supporting

B415

Comment noted. As noted in the Direction of
Travel, to accommodate new growth,
investment and improvement in infrastructure
(including schools and healthcare) will be
fundamental.

No change.

334

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
activities.

infrastructure is key to supporting new growth.
This includes community facilities such as
schools and healthcare. Furthermore, the
Council places significant emphasis on the
role of walking, cycling and public transport in
the future of movement in the Borough which
will continue to be promoted.
Comments noted. As noted in the Direction of No change.
Travel, investment and improvement in
supporting infrastructure is key to supporting
new growth. This includes leisure and
community facilities, as well as transport
infrastructure such as bus services and cycle
infrastructure.

Yvonne Walsh

Where there are residential development then there must be schools medical
centres and green spaces plus good public transport and cycle parking

136

John Pearson

speed up traffic leading to Kingston Town centre to relieve the road to Richmond Comments noted.
consider a tunnel under part of Richmond Park Also another river crossing

No change.

137

Zoe Leeds

Community centres and supports, be they medical or social. Council leisure
centres (either improving the existing one or creating new and equal ones).
Charrington bowl is essential for Tolworth/Hook (Rotunda is far too expensive
for many). Bored teens/kids/families become nightmare neighbours and antisocial in the community. School places. More buses. Car parking. GP surgeries.
Maybe another (or a bigger) library too

Page 27, Bullet point 7

Comments noted. As noted in the Direction of
Travel, investment and improvement in
supporting infrastructure is key to supporting
new growth. This includes leisure and
community facilities, as well as transport
infrastructure such as bus services and cycle
infrastructure.

Original text: ‘An
expanded retail offer
and strengthening of the
Metropolitan Town
Centre’
Update: ‘An expanded
retail, leisure and
cultural offer and
strengthening of the
Metropolitan Town
Centre’

142

Caroline
Cheales

1. better digital connectivity - every year the broadband struggles to keep up. i
am sure that services and businesses suffer in a similar way.

1 & 2. Comments noted. We recognise that to No change.
target sustainable growth positively, the
council must embrace the use of new
technologies.

2. better assistive technologies for an aging population, to enable people to live
at home for longer. And more modern elder communities, of a quality that makes
the shift from owned home to supported living less of a negative step. kingston 3. Comments noted regarding communal
is stuck in the 1980's for this provision. more imaginative types of housing for
living units.
the younger population - who struggle to settle in the community because they
are at the whim of casual landlords who turf them out regularly to up the rent.
4. Comments noted regarding a sharing
economy.

335

B416

133

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
3. I would like to see communal living units, similar to student halls, that are
designed for working young adults and which provide a security of tenure that
enable them to engage with local life and feel welcome.
4. more sharing economy facilities to support sustainable and cohesive living some incentives to encourage people who are overhoused to consider renting
out a spare room and information about using sites like spareroom or airbnb or
the provision of a local version that is non profitmaking but self financing.

5 & 6. Comments noted regarding electric car
infrastructure. A move towards more
sustainable travel is a key priority for the
Council.
7. Comment noted regarding self storage and
space measurements of homes.

5. electric, autonomous vehicle and freight infrastructure - rapid charging points, 8. Comments noted regarding recycling.
supporting local street mapping, freight consolidation - we need to get the size of
vehicles down in the local area by encouraging final miles in smaller vehicles.
9. Comments noted regarding green
initiatives.
6. road user charging - we are at peak car use. building new roads is not the
answer but using behavioural nudges to encourage fewer car trips or rerouting
is. the technology is getting cheaper and the ability to manage discounts and
other flexibilities is also getting easier. a charge for through traffic that
contributes nothing positive to the area would go a long way to releasing space
for public transport, local trips and walking and cycling space. this should be
actively considered.

B417

7. more self storage - homes are getting smaller and i can foresee that the
existing space is not going to be enough.
8. better recycling - too much is dumped rather than reused. i would like to see a
facility at the refuse station to take reusable items and for them to be reused, not
just recycled. time poor but affluent people end up trashing a lot that could be
reused, either raising funds or providing goods to those on lower incomes. this
just needs some space, a business model and some support to get it off the
ground.
9. Green initiatives - i'd like to see a suite of greening initiatives like an
expectation of green walls and roofs. Kingston has become a place where
nature is marginalised. we should be looking to make space for nature
throughout the borough and to be a beacon for others to follow.
143

Stewart Dickson Schools for local population. Reclaiming of Tiffin schools for the Borough.

144

Linda Skilbeck

Comments noted.

No change.

1. Kingston clearly needs its public transport, traffic and parking improved. If the 1. This is one of the key challenges for the
Page 27, Bullet point 7
traffic along Wood Street were put in a tunnel, Kingston Station would be
Council. The long term ambition includes the
integrated into the pattern of the town.
reduction in car reliance through investment in Original text: ‘An
transport infrastructure, including Crossrail 2, expanded retail offer

336

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
2. The Tolworth Roundabout should be lowered and decked over to link the old
Tesco site and the Station both visually and practically to Tolworth Broadway
and Barnsbury Lane.

bus services and walking/cycle infrastructure,
providing choice of transport options for the
local community.

3. We need more than just housing and retail. Schools and chilcare provision
are required and Gp practices are required and green open spaces as well.

Update: ‘An expanded
retail, leisure and
cultural offer and
strengthening of the
Metropolitan Town
Centre’

B418

2. Comment noted regarding the Tolworth
Roundabout. The proposal includes includes
covering over a section of the A3 immediately
4. We have just 1 theatre 1 museum and 1 cinema in the town centre - Kingston to the south of the main A3/A240 intersection.
The decking would complement other planned
lacks cultural opportunities.
investment along the A3, as well as the public
realm/cycling initiatives in adjoining areas.
Such investment in Tolworth would support
the Government's growth agenda for London
and the South East and would link to and
support the Crossrail 2 initiative. Locally the
decking would dramatically improve Tolworth
as a place; the area suffers severance and the
decking would enhance connectivity and could
provide a high quality open space. The
proposal would connect the high street to the
train station making it one place with much
easier navigation.

and strengthening of the
Metropolitan Town
Centre’

3. Comment noted. The Council recognise
that key to facilitating and managing new
growth in Kingston is to ensure new
investment and improvement in supporting
infrastructure, including community facilities
such as schools and healthcare. The detail of
these requirements will be considered at a
later stage of the local plan process.
4. We also recognised the importance of
cultural activity in Kingston in creating a rich
and vibrant environment. To target sustainable
growth positively it is important that this offer
is protected and enhanced in Kingston and
across the borough.
Further reference to the need for an extended
cultural offer will be inlvuded in the revised
document.

337

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
146

Sue May

All relevant infrastructure will be required, schools, healthcare facilities, business Comments noted. As noted in the Direction of No change.
premises, transport, bus services etc. These need to be planned for as well.
Travel, investment and improvement in
supporting infrastructure is key to supporting
new growth. This includes leisure and
community facilities, as well as transport
infrastructure such as Crossrail 2, bus
services and cycle infrastructure.

147

Dominic Bull

Schools GP surgery's Clean transport infrastructure, for cycling and walking.

148

Helen Thrush

NONE - DONT DO ANY MORE DEVELOPMENT. IF WE WANTED TO LIVE IN Comments noted.
A CITY WE LOTS OF PEOPLE AND OVERCROWDING WE WOULD LIVE IN
CENTRAL LONDON!!

No change.

149

Dave RyderMills

Maintenance of space Sustainable transport and energy supply School provision Comments noted.
to be an essential component of each development, not just money being
supplied in lieu of provision. Root and branch investigation of our water
management, both surface and sewerage with a comprehensive commitment by
all stakeholders to put in place sustainable improvements into the future.

No change.

150

Elaine RyderMills

Schools. Social service. Sewage. New energy initiatives. Church and community Comments noted. The Council recognise that No change.
hubs. Homeless shelters.
key to facilitating and managing new growth in
Kingston is to ensure new investment and
improvement in supporting infrastructure,
including community facilities such as schools
and healthcare. The detail of these
requirements will be considered at a later
stage of the local plan process.

151

Neil Riley

Improved rail services, better bus services and new cycle routes as the road
infrastructure cannot cope with the current traffic volumes and will become even
less serviceable with increased population density. Similarly, the current water
infrastructure cannot provide sufficient water pressure and will not cope with
increased demands.

The Council recognise that key to facilitating
No change.
and managing new growth is to ensure new
investment and improvement transport
infrastructure, which must be considered as a
strategic and integrated approach.

152

Janice Yeadon

Another grammar school.

Comment noted.

153

Adrian Wheeler

Better integrated cycling facilities with separated lanes for cyclists an
\pedestrians at crossings

Comment noted. In accordance with the
No change.
London Plan, the Council places significant
emphasis on the role of cycling in the future of

Comments noted. As noted in the Direction of No change.
Travel, investment and improvement in
supporting infrastructure is key to supporting
new growth. This includes leisure and
community facilities, as well as transport
infrastructure such as Crossrail 2, bus
services and cycle infrastructure.

B419

No change.

338

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
movement in the Borough.
Hazel Farrow

Schools . Health facilities.

Comment noted. The Council recognise that
No change.
key to facilitating and managing new growth in
Kingston is to ensure new investment and
improvement in supporting infrastructure,
including community facilities such as schools
and healthcare. The detail of these
requirements will be considered at a later
stage of the local plan process.

156

Alison Wheeler

There is not just one key infrastructure: the Borough will need more doctor
surgeries; larger hospital facilities; more schools; more nurseries; better
transport links including cycling facilities and all the necessary water
mains/sewerage pipes etc

Comments noted. The Council recognise that No change.
key to facilitating and managing new growth in
Kingston is to ensure new investment and
improvement in supporting infrastructure,
including community facilities such as schools
and healthcare. The detail of these
requirements will be considered at a later
stage of the local plan process.

157

Christopher
Thomas

The infrastructure projects mentioned in the Direction of Travel document all
seem desirable. Better cycling and pedestrian networks and connectivity.

Comments noted. In accordance with the
No change.
London Plan, the Council places significant
emphasis on the role of walking and cycling in
the future of movement in the Borough.

158

Paul Sloan

1. Completely new North South public transport links running through the
borough - they're woeful at the minute. We need at least one, if not more of teh
following 4 options: Either A1 north south trams, A2 north -south express
segregated bus ways, A3 the 4 trains per hour that would be delivered by
creating a chord at Raynes PArk and sending trains from Chessington to
Twickenham via Kingston. See the report commissioned by the national
infrastructure commission for details. See
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/50
6632/Review_of_the_case_for_large_scale_transport_infrastructure_in_London
_-_100316.pdf for details. A4. reroute Crossrail 2 to
Claygate/Leatherhead/Dorking beyond Surbiton, giving north south access to
"nearly Kingston" via Surbiton, using the redundant Hampton Court branch as a
nascent tram system running to Kingston via Surbiton. Additionally,
Dorking/Leatherhead get NOrth-South connecivity to "almost kingston" for first
time, and would be able to catch onward tram.

1 & 2. Comments noted. The Council
No change.
recognise that key to facilitating and managing
new growth is to ensure new investment and
improvement in supporting infrastructure,
including transport infrastructure such as
investments in Crossrail 2, bus services and
cycling infrastructure (via the Go Kingston
scheme), providing residents with a much
wider choice of transport options whilst
reducing car reliance. Development of
comprehensive integrated transport facilities
are in the early stages of development with
key partners such as Transport for London
and Network Rail.

2. Public transport links from Kingston's Sury hinterland into Kingston town
centre. Proposal A4 addresses this: A4. reroute Crossrail 2 to
Claygate/Leatherhead/Dorking beyond Surbiton, giving north south access to

B420

155

3. The Council also recognise that key to
facilitating and managing new growth in
Kingston is to ensure new investment and
improvement in supporting infrastructure,

339

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
"nearly Kingston" via Surbiton, using the redundant Hampton Court branch as a
nascent tram system running to Kingston via Surbiton. Additionally,
Dorking/Leatherhead get NOrth-South connecivity to "almost kingston" for first
time, and would be able to catch onward tram.

including community facilities such as schools
and healthcare. The detail of these
requirements will be considered at a later
stage of the local plan process.

3. Schools. All schools must expand to cater for increased rolls - church schools
shouldn't be allowed to refuse to expand if they have large sites. We need to
make effective use of the current school sites. Similarly, removing the right of
religious primary schools to select by perceived religion of a 4 year old would
result in much shorter school commuters, as distance would be the primary
determinant.
159

Jonathan Fray

1. All new developments (residential, commercial, industrial) must be designed
to promote cycling and walking by residents, employees and customers. Car
usage should be discouraged and restricted as far as is possible - particularly
non-essential car use. For areas of intensifying land use and higher residential
densities this is vital.

B421

2. Transport links to these developments and areas of opportunity should be
specifically designed to ensure comfortable, safe and easy cycling and walking
access from outlying areas. The Dutch suggest a 6km radius around their town
centres for cycling - within which cycling is strongly encouraged and driving is
discouraged. The same approach is used for a 2km walking radius.

All comments noted. The council places
No change.
significant emphasis on the future role of both
walking and cycling in Kingston. We will
therefore continue to be promoted and
extended throughout the Borough in order to
facilitate a connected network of safe cycle
routes. Key to achieving this vision is the
delivery of the Go Cycle Programme whereby
the Council received over £30 million of
funding from the Mayor of London and TfL to
deliver improvements to cycling facilities and
road safety.

3. To enable comfortable, safe and easy cycling, all international evidence
shows it is vital to provide routes that separate those cycling from motor vehicle
traffic on busy roads; and/or traffic-free routes and/or low and slow-traffic routes
(often increasingly achieved using "modal filter cells" in residential areas that
remove through traffic. For these routes to be successful, they also must form a
contiguous, high-quality network from all key residential areas to all key
destinations. Even outside the 6km radius around high-density areas and key
amenities, safe space for cycling (separate from traffic) needs to be provided, in
order that levels of sustainable travel (walking, cycling, public transport) are
increased in preference to private car travel.
4. High-quality, secure and on-street cycle parking must be provided at new
developments where it is convenient and easily accessed by users - and in
numbers to match not just current demand, but future demand, i.e. above the
London Plan.
5. Schemes proposed under the Go Cycle/ mini-Holland programme must take
account of development proposals in the Local Plan. We do not want to see

340

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
schemes built in the Go Cycle programme being undone by future developments
(e.g. the development of a 'Station Plaza' at Kingston station if the station
entrance then moves westwards).
160

Anne Oram

that a secondary school should be built on alexandra park and millenuim green
make king charles road bridge across the railway two way, with lights and a
separate pedestrian and cycle bridge make the 20mph zones to be in certain
hours only make builders pay a local tax to go towards local amenities

161

Richard Ware

Road capacity and new roads if necessary Housing units with adequate off
Comments noted.
street parking to prevent our crowded roads becoming impassable Schools - all
types Health service provision including mental health Rigorous pollution
monitoring Parking offence enforcement Housing officer enforcement - H of M O
and habitable housing

162

Simon Munk

1. All new developments (residential, commercial, industrial) must be designed
to promote cycling and walking by residents, employees and customers. Car
usage should be discouraged and restricted as far as is possible - particularly
non-essential car use. For areas of intensifying land use and higher residential
densities this is vital.

No change.

No change.

All comments noted. The council places
No change.
significant emphasis on the future role of both
walking and cycling in Kingston. We will
therefore continue to be promoted and
extended throughout the Borough in order to
facilitate a connected network of safe cycle
routes. Key to achieving this vision is the
delivery of the Go Cycle Programme whereby
the Council received over £30 million of
funding from the Mayor of London and TfL to
deliver improvements to cycling facilities and
road safety.

B422

2. Transport links to these developments and areas of opportunity should be
specifically designed to ensure comfortable, safe and easy cycling and walking
access from outlying areas. The Dutch suggest a 6km radius around their town
centres for cycling - within which cycling is strongly encouraged and driving is
discouraged. The same approach is used for a 2km walking radius.

Comment noted.

3. To enable comfortable, safe and easy cycling, all international evidence
shows it is vital to provide routes that separate those cycling from motor vehicle
traffic on busy roads; and/or traffic-free routes and/or low and slow-traffic routes
(often increasingly achieved using "modal filter cells" in residential areas that
remove through traffic. For these routes to be successful, they also must form a
contiguous, high-quality network from all key residential areas to all key
destinations. Even outside the 6km radius around high-density areas and key
amenities, safe space for cycling (separate from traffic) needs to be provided, in
order that levels of sustainable travel (walking, cycling, public transport) are
increased in preference to private car travel.
4. High-quality, secure and on-street cycle parking must be provided at new
developments where it is convenient and easily accessed by users - and in
numbers to match not just current demand, but future demand, i.e. above the
London Plan.

341

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
5. Schemes proposed under the Go Cycle/ mini-Holland programme must take
account of development proposals in the Local Plan. We do not want to see
schemes built in the Go Cycle programme being undone by future developments
(e.g. the development of a 'Station Plaza' at Kingston station if the station
entrance then moves westwards).
163

Diane Watling

1. It is very difficult to prioritise infrastructure when the definition is: Infrastructure
can be defined as "the physical components of interrelated systems providing
commodities and services essential to enable, sustain, or enhance societal living
conditions. Everything is important as it is interrelated. Infrastructure needs to be
considered and planned before any new major changes take place.

1. Comment noted. Agreed, the council is
No change.
committed to appropriately managing new
growth in order to ensure that it does not have
a negative impact on the quality of life of
existing residents and the environment. This
includes ensuring new investment and
2. Air quality will become an ever increasing problem with an expanding growth improvement in supporting infrastructure, such
agenda. We need to act now, difficult choices will need to be made, especially in as community facilities and transport.
Kingston Town Centre. The health of the borough will be very dependent on
reducing the number of pollution emitting vehicles. Over 9000 people die from
2. Comments on air quality noted. Addressing
pollution related conditions each year in London It is therefore critical that a
this issue continues to be a key priority for the
system is put in place to encourage people to use public transport, walk or cycle. Council.

4. We have to be mindful of the fact that we are encouraging more pedestrians
and cyclists however, we should be avoiding walking and cycling along major
roads. Therefore, we need to consider strategic walking and cycling routes away
from major roads. There should be posters outside schools illustrating that
inside the car, pollution levels can be 3 times higher than outside. Parents
should be encouraged to walk their kids to school.
http://road.cc/content/news/129814-testing-mps-reveals-worst-air-pollutioninside-cars

3. Comment noted regarding electric charging
points. A move towards more sustainable
travel is a key priority for the Council.

B423

3. An increase in the number of public electric charging points for EVs,
especially in supermarket car parks etc will be required. EV numbers will be
increasing rapidly over the next 10 years. Will we need to upgrade the domestic
supply underground cables? Or, will smart charging be all that is necessary for
the foreseeable future? Should the town centre become an ultra low emission
zone?

4. Comments noted regarding walking and
cycling. The council places significant
emphasis on the future role of both walking
and cycling in Kingston, and we recognise the
need to ensure the safety of both road users.

164

Marian Ellis

My view is that Kingston is sandwiched between parks and river. It is badly
suited to more development. Pollution is too high. There is not enough green
space where it is needed. So we need more green space.

Comments noted.

No change.

172

Carole &
Michael
StathamFletcher

Surely we need more certainty about population growth before we make big
changes. Patience, imagination, wisdom and sympathy would make for a good
foundation for future plans.

Comments noted.

No change.

342

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

The following consultees submitted a response but did not comment specifically on Question 4 of the survey.
Name

ID

Name

ID

Name

3

Peter Watson

126

Jim Leason

125

Mark Blewett

5

Nigel Randall

132

Fiona Meaney

134

lee hendra

9

Douglas Sampson

72

Carl Jackson

135

Agnieszka

14

sara redmond

73

Deborah Dunning

138

sharon nelhams

23

anthony johannsen

75

Peter Topp

139

Cashel Riordan

28

alison fure

81

Mr Stephen Heil

140

Julian Oldfield

36

Gloria Bassoli

83

andrew compton

141

Michele salter

39

Saleh

84

Maureen Ellis

145

Judith Royle

40

Derek Moss

86

Leonora Partridge

154

L Hebbourn

43

carlos

91

A Sadeghi

165

Claire Harrison

49

A chandler

95

Gay Richardson

166

James Giles

51

Des McRow

97

Simon Jakeman

167

Kerry Giles

53

Robert Wyeth

103

Dan

168

David Giles

59

J.Stevens

109

Katherine jones

169

Marc Tracey

60

Alex

120

Mo Sehra

170

Yvonne Tracey

64

Joseph Asghar

122

H Wollinger

171

James Giles on behalf of MICO

65

Rob Robb

123

Chris Coleman

B424

ID

343

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

Question 5 - Any other comments?
ID

Respondent

Question 5 - Any other comments?
Cheaper fairs Surbiton being zone 6 is not fair

RBK Response

Kathrin Siguda

No change.

8

Malcolm Wright I have tried to keep my thoughts as balanced as possible, but it must be
clear that I have a problem with the introduction of cycle lanes on major
roads. This is because it is a ludicrous idea! I am a keen cyclist, I commute
to work by train and only drive a small amount at the weekend. I used to
drive to work and all I can say is that if things continue as they have done
in the last 6 months, it won't be long until motorists and bus commuters are
unable to get to work - that is unless roads are replaced with cycle and bus
lanes. Please employ some common sense and use joined up thinking
when making critical decisions that take up your time, all of our money and
cause major distress to those you affect.

Comments noted. Comment noted. In accordance with No change.
the London Plan, the Council places significant
emphasis on the role of cycling in the future of
movement in the Borough, but not to the detriment of
other road users. Key to achieving this vision is the
delivery of the Go Cycle Programme whereby the
Council received over £30 million of funding from the
Mayor of London and TfL to deliver improvements to
cycling facilities and road safety. Please note that the
Go Kingston measures are in the early stages of
implementation and need time for road users to
become familiar with the new arrangements.

12

Jim Cardell

You screwed up 1c - please correct the survey.

Comment noted.

No change.

16

Paul Cook

Congratulations to the Council for seeking the views of residents

Support noted.

No change.

18

Patricia
McLauchlan

1. Cycling needs to be well thought out and controlled as some cyclist
have very little regard for the rules of the road and pedestrians. street
parking is an issue in my road due to its central location.

1. Comments noted. Regarding cycling, the Council is No change.
committed to continued investment improving cycling
facilities and road safety. Key to achieving this vision
is the delivery of the Go Cycle Programme whereby
the Council received over £30 million of funding from
the Mayor of London and TfL to deliver improvements.
Please note that the Go Kingston measures are in the
early stages of implementation and need time for road
users to become familiar with the new arrangements.

B425

7

2. Business permits need to have clearly designated areas to park and
enforced.

Comment noted.

Document
Update

3. Also parking and traffic around the east road mosque is a big issue for
us living there as some of the visitors have little regard for residents. There
is often no enforcement and cars are parked in a way that makes being a
2. Comment noted regarding business permits.
pedestrian dangerous; this is also an issue as it is opposite a school.

3. Comment noted regarding parking. Parking in
Kingston is being investigated, particularly in relation
to the redevelopment and expansion of the town
centre over the next few years. As the town centre
changes, there is a need for revised parking
arrangements to support future economic viability etc,

344

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
particularly in areas where current parking is
fragmented and does not meet modern standards.
20

Petrina Tatnall

I wonder how much this is costing the Borough and the local tax payers for
all of this development? I agree you have to keep things fresh and you
have to have some kind of change, to allow for the population growth. But
we can't have too many new homes built, think of the water situation. We
will be just one big sprawling mass of people with the roads gridlocked. No
one will be going anywhere.

Comments noted. The population of Kingston is set to No change.
increase by at least 10%, therefore there is a need to
plan positively for it through the local plan process. We
recognise the need to manage growth in a way that is
sensitive to the environment, heritage and existing
local residents. It also includes ensuring new
investment and improvement in supporting
infrastructure, such as community facilities, as well as
mitigating impact on key environmental issues such as
traffic, air and noise pollution.

21

Lucy Symons

Do try to limit the traffic in to the town, maybe have external parking
garages and buses to discourage drivers.

Comments noted.

25

David Watkins

I expected more and whilst this may be a Direction of Travel document, it's
completely vague to the extent of being largely pointless. I would've
expected more ambition, more local original thought and more detail rather
than just a bunch of bland statements which could've been written about
any authority in any area of the country by anyone with no specific local
knowledge. So you're going to tell me that once this is approved we go to
the next stage of developing policy which goes through the same rigmarol
before we get to develop any detailed proposals that say housing unit, ten
floors high, with 40% affordable - that's about as detailed as you ever get from which any developer can produce a Planning Application. And it takes
YEARS. No wonder nothing ever gets built! We're in a housing crisis of
national proportions. If this is a policy document at the highest level,
where's the ambition to speed up the process? Where's the ideas on how
that could be done? Nowhere. It ain't my job.

Comments noted. The document is intended to be
No change.
high-level at this early stage of the local plan process,
providing the Council's 'Statement of Intent'. It aims to
provide alignment of local strategic planning policy,
the London Plan, and Kingston's growth agenda, as
well as the broad context in which the new Borough
Local Plan needs to be planned. The detail and
deliverability of new growth strategies will be
developed and consulted upon in later stages of the
local plan process.

28

alison fure

This council is development crazy. Maybe another recession is whats
required to stop this borough losing its identity

Comment noted.

34

Mel

1. Please don't spoil Kingston with ugly and inappropriate developmentsRiverside Heights/Kingston Riverside is the worst so far, but TOPO, Eden
Walk, Tolworth developments proposed are over-massed, unpopular, and
fail to deliver affordable housing. We don't need luxury developments
where no resident can afford to live. We are in danger of destroying what
we value in living in Kingston.

1. Comments noted regarding scale of development
and affordability.

No change.

B426

No change.

Page 16, Kingston
Places
Map update: New
‘place’ added for
2. Comments noted. The council agree that new
growth must be balanced with the consideration of the ‘Hogsmill Valley’
borough's key assets, including greens spaces and
ecological areas.
Page 31; End of Text
2. In 40 years we have lost half our wildlife in the UK so leave the Hogsmill
Sentence added after
Valley and Tolworth Farm for future generations.
bullet points:
Regarding Hogsmill Valley, further reference to the
protection of this asset will be included in the revised ‘’Continued protection

345

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
version of the document.

40

Derek Moss

1. As a result of the decision to leave the EU, the UK's economy has been
weakened and there will be far fewer immigrants coming into the UK,
which must affect any predictions for growth in Kingston, London and the
UK as a whole. As such, it is foolish and reckless to proceed as if nothing
has changed and this whole strategy should be re-evaluated.

of Hogsmill Valley
and its ecology’

1. Comment noted. At this stage it is too early to fully No change.
understanding the impact of the referendum to growth
projections. We will continue to plan for the latest GLA
growth projections, although this will be closely
monitored.

2. This consultation is also fatally flawed, as no detail as to what the
proposals would entail is contained in the Direction of Travel document
and residents cannot say whether they agree or disagree with a proposal
when no detailed information is provided so that they can make give an
informed view.

B427

2. Comments noted. The document is intended to be
high-level at this early stage of the local plan process,
providing the Council's 'Statement of Intent'. It aims to
provide alignment of local strategic planning policy,
the London Plan, and Kingston's growth agenda, as
well as the broad context in which the new Borough
Local Plan needs to be planned. The detail and
3. Taking just some examples from question 1g: Coordination with key
partners and stakeholders - Without knowing who the Council considers to deliverability of new growth strategies will be
be the "key partners and stakeholders", I could be agreeing to the Council developed and consulted upon in later stages of the
coordinating with developers and other private interests, whilst ignoring the local plan process.
wishes of residents.
3. Comment noted. The council considers
3. Utilising innovative and wider funding streams to facilitate development - stakeholders to be every party with an interest in the
No details of what these "funding streams" might be or what "development" direction of the borough, including local residents.
they might be used to facilitate has been provided. I could be agreeing to
the Council privatising council housing or other public assets/areas by
4. Comment noted. The infrastructure needs of the
handing the sites to a developer to redevelop. Working with developers to Borough are significantly greater than the funding
safeguard and build in station infrastructure and where appropriate provide likely to be realised through CIL or planning
over station development - No explanation has been provided about what obligations or any one source of funding. The Council
"in station infrastructure" means, why developers rather than Network Rail will endeavour to seek funding from all available
would be involved in providing it, what "over station development" means funding streams and will seek to use funds within its
or in what circumstances the Council would consider it appropriate.
control to match funds as appropriate.
42

Paul Howlett

Liaise with Tfl/Network Rail to attempt to extend Crossrail 2 from Kingston
so that it goes via Feltham to Heathrow Terminal 4, Heathrow Central and
Heathrow Terminal 5

Comments noted.

No change.

46

dr nazar pola

the only comment is one defct inqustioner that is HEALTH SERVICES IN
THE AREA qulifactions

Comment noted.

No change.

52

b walker

Please make sure any new planning policies affecting an area goes to that Comments noted.
Neighbourhood committee for proper consultation. You rely too much with

No change.

346

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
on line surveys. We should be notified on these important matters by post.
Too much is being decided by a small committee.
53

Robert Wyeth

Local government needs to be much firmer about the amount of
"affordable" housing developers build into their projects. The developers
are too good at convincing local councilors that their profit margins are too
slim to do more. They are not..

Comment noted. Affordability of homes for local
No change.
people is a key priority due to high house prices, an
increasing shortfall in provision, and the increase in
demand. One of our biggest issues is to tackle this
positively and increase the number of houses to meet
needs, while seeking the right balance between
protecting the environment, and supporting the local
economy.

55

John McCarthy, Why is Kingston Museum not included in the map of Kingston Places.
Friends
Kingston
Museum &
Heritage
Service

Comment noted. We recognise the important role the
Kingston Museum plays in the Town Centre.
Unfortunately there is limited space to add more
assets.

58

F.McDermott

Many individuals will not be able to understand the jargon used in this
survey, particularly those with cognitive difference or any compromise to
literacy. This is not an accessible, open or transparent survey, which
presumably reflects RBK's need to claim that the scheme has been
supported by local residents and businesses, without actually engaging
with their concerns. It would be good to see RBK produce an easy-read
version of the scheme - this is a good way of reducing proposals to their
bare essentials and focusing on the practical realities that are being
suggested.

Comments noted. We will take this feedback regarding No change.
the Council's engagement and use it to inform any
future consultations.

63

Peter Mason

1. Concerns about growth in road traffic and impacts on air quality and
congestion brought about by more housing, more retail, more residents
and more visitors. Not much space in Kingston and surrounding area for
new roads, so road traffic has to decrease if anything.

No change.

B428

1. Comments noted regarding impact to traffic and air No change.
quality. It is agreed that this is a key challenge for the
council and we recognise the need for significant
investment in transport infrastructure, including
Crossrail 2, bus services and cycling infrastructure (via
2. More housing without the necessary infrastructure would make quality of the Go Kingston scheme). The aim being that this will
provide residents with a choice of transport alternative
life worse for everyone.
whilst reducing car reliance.
3. Will Brexit reduce the reasons for growth and Government support for
infrastructure?

2. The council also recognise that investment and
improvement in supporting infrastructure is absolutely
key to supporting new growth. This community
facilities such as schools and healthcare.
3. Comments noted. At this stage it is too early to fully

347

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
understanding the impact of the referendum to growth
projections. We will continue to plan for the latest GLA
growth projections, although this will be closely
monitored.
65

Rob Robb

Have a referendum on whether we should go back to Sury county Council
we are and never have felt part of GLC

Comments noted.

No change.

66

Alan Bennett

Provision of adequate toilet facilities at all leisure sites

Comments noted.

No change.

68

Alex GregorSmith

I think that true resident permit parking for the first car should be free.
Paying to park outside your own house is just a stealth tax.

Comments noted.

No change.

70

Howard
Robinson

Abandon the cycle superhighway or move it to a safer location where
emergency service vehicles are not hindered.

Comments noted.

No change.

76

Howard
Sheppard

1. Design Quality, so much of the town's development over the last 50
years has been poorly designed, the design panel employed by the
Council rarely seem to add value.

1. Comment noted. The council recognise the
importance of development and design quality. This
issue will be addressed in more detail at a later stage
in local plan process and ultimately assessed through
the planning application process. A reference to
design quality will be included in the revised
document.

Page 17; Last
paragraph
Sentence added at
the end of the text:
‘High quality design
is, and will continue to
be a key priority for
the Council’.

2. Also much of the public realm is badly maintained, weeds grow and
planting including trees are allowed to die and are not replaced, and there
are too many different types of paving across the borough, especially in
the town centre which makes maintenance even more difficult.

77

Judith Symons

We have a beautiful riverfront which is often made unsightly by huge piles
of litter. This may have nothing to so with your Direction of Travel but it
would behove the council to attend to basic 'house cleaning' to benefit the
image of the town and give pleasure to residents and tourists alike!

Comments noted.There are several new public realm
projects planned to improve the accessibility and
riverside experience of this area. A new Riverside
SPD will coordinate these projects.

B429

2. Comment noted regarding public realm.
3. Also the conflict between pedestrians and cyclists needs to be resolved. Improvement of the public realm is an important issue
for the Council. There are several new public realm
The development of the so-called Mini-Holland scheme through the
projects planned to improve the accessibility and
borough and the Council’s “Go Cycle” programme should be welcomed.
However these initiatives need to address the conflict between cyclists and experience of Kingston’s town centres.
pedestrians, especially at the weekend and during Public Holidays. While
most cyclists are careful and respect other road users, particularly
3. Comment noted. The council places significant
pedestrians, there is a significant minority that do not. On routes shared by emphasis on the future role of both walking and
both cyclists and pedestrians elsewhere in London, such as in Victoria
cycling in Kingston, and we recognise the need to
Park, Tower Hamlets, local authorities have posted notices giving priority
ensure the safety of both road users through
to pedestrians, this priority needs to be introduced in congested areas
appropriate segregation. Key to achieving this vision is
such as the Market Place in Kingston.
the delivery of the Go Cycle Programme, whereby the
Council received over £30million of funding from the
Mayor of London and TfL to deliver improvements to
cycling facilities and road safety.
No change.

348

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
Frances Marsh

Yes - I think this consultation like most other consultations and
conversations will not bring any positive results.

Comment noted.

No change.

85

karen carman

Houses should not be allowed to stand empty for years while developers
push for their plans to be approved, allowing the housing to become a
wreck in the meantime so that pulling them down is the only option.

Comment noted.

No change.

86

Leonora
Partridge

Too much emphasis on cycling. Can more attention be given to walking?
Shared cycle and pededtrian routes don't work. More buses on the road
would be very useful. I have no confidence in the consultation process and
feel that what is proposed will be implemented no matter what.

Comment noted. The Council places significant
emphasis on the future role of both walking and
cycling in Kingston, and we recognise the need to
ensure the safety of both road users through
appropriate segregation.

No change.

88

Chris Stephens This £30 million worth of funding from the Mini-Holland Programme is a
Comment noted.
total embarrassment to Kingston!!! The Council had to be seen to be
applying for it, else they might have forfeited further funding offers in the
future, But the truth is they never expected to get it, and now that they
have, are being forced to do something with it. The general public don't
want all this cycling going on across the borough, cyclists generally are
seen as a nuisance and many people think that the money could be better
spent elsewhere. If you put out a census document asking how many
people actually want it, and think it's a waste of money, you'll have your
answer. Unfortunately it would be politically embarrassing to not spend it
now.

No change.

96

James Fennell
(Nathaniel
Lichfield &
Partners)

Please refer to letter (dated 22nd August 2016) which was submitted via
email.

No change.

99

Zbig Blonski

1. Car parking standards in areas of considerable on street parking stress
should be applied with the flexibility allowed for by the London Plan in
suburban areas such as New Malden and this should range between 1 and
1.5 spaces per dwelling.

Support and comments noted. The aforementioned
letter has been logged and addressed separately as
part of this consultation process.

B430

79

1. Comments noted. Parking is being investigated
No change.
across the Borough. As the centres change, there is a
need for revised parking arrangements to support
future economic viability etc, particularly in areas
where current parking is fragmented and does not
2. Underground car parking should be encouraged/expected so as to make meet modern standards.
more effective use of land. It is only prohibitively expensive when
developers choose to make it so judged by the examples of developments 2. Comment noted regarding underground parking. It
in other boroughs including Wandsworth.
is agreed that this form of parking is an efficient use of
land if viable.
3. Also because of the incredible increases in house prices and rental
charges for accommodation over the years accommodation previously not 3. Comment noted regarding family housing. There is
considered as family sized is having to be occupied by families as a
a need for high quality family housing in the Borough
necessity. Similarly larger accommodation previously occupied by families which will be focused in the appropriate locations.
is being occupied by separate households renting together.

349

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
There is a need to consider this as an issue and ensure that there is
flexibility to meet and address these changes through flexible
accommodation and amenity space of the right type.
5. Overall the borough compares poorly with others in terms of leisure
facilities particularly swimming and ways to address this should be
pursued.

4. Comment noted regarding leisure facilities. We
recognised that new community and leisure facilities
will be key to support new growth. Regarding the New
Malden Centre, The council is currently working on an
indoor facilities review and strategy setting out need
over the short and medium term. It is expected that
the current facility will require significant enhancement
to meet the needs of a growing population. In this
respect the council is looking at options to improving
the offer at the Malden Centre as a new leisure and
community hub.
The SPD has been prepared to enable any scheme to
have the flexibility to ensure that there is sufficient
scope for a new facility to be constructed before the
old Malden Centre closes. Detailed work will be
required after the adoption of the SPD to ensure the
deliverability of any new facility.

102

David English

Kingston is not currently designated an Opportunity Area, despite the City in the
West document suggesting otherwise. At the examination of the Further Alterations
to the London Plan (FALP) the Planning Inspector (paras 86 and 87) noted that the

All comments noted and addressed in response to the
letter by Historic England (Received: 25/08/16). This is
located in Part 1 of this document under ‘Statutory
Consultees’.
The character and heritage of the Borough continues
to be a key priority for the council. We recognise the
need to positively balance new growth with the
consideration of heritage and conservation assets,
particularly in the most sensitive areas, in order to
protect the distinctiveness of the borough.

Pages 27, 29, 31, 33,
35, 37; End of Text
Sentence added after
bullet points: ‘We
recognise that new
growth must be
balanced with the
unique heritage and
character of the
Borough’.

Therefore, to mitigate against negative impacts on our
historic urban environment will require improvements
to heritage management. This will involve gaining a
comprehensive understanding of the value of our
heritage, identifying mechanisms for their protection,
and establishing and integrating management plans
into the overall planning framework.

Page 18; Last
paragraph.
Sentence added:
‘Note that the OLC
Report also states,
“there is no one size
fits all solution for
town centre renewal?
Further reference to protection of heritage assets and Redevelopment, so
character will be included within the revised document. any intensification

350

B431

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the Direction of Travel (DoT)
document for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames and Greater London
Authority. Historic England is the Government’s advisor on all matters relating to the
historic environment and a statutory consultee on development plan policy
documents as well as on a broad range of applications affecting the historic
environment. Accordingly, we have reviewed this consultation in the context of the
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and its requirement that for
development to be sustainable it must seek economic, social and environmental
gains jointly and simultaneously (para 8). This includes the protection and
enhancement of the historic environment, in order that it can be enjoyed for its
contribution to the quality of life of this and future generations. We welcome the
Mayor of London’s aspiration to ‘protect the best of what we have’ through this
document, as well as the Leader of Council’s acknowledgment of Kingston’s
heritage and its local character. As the NPPF states, heritage assets are an
irreplaceable resource and, as such, local planning authorities should conserve
them in a manner appropriate to their significance (para 126). We hope the following
comments and responses to the questions in the consultation will help you develop
your positive strategy for the conservation and enjoyment of the historic
environment, as part of the growth agenda for the borough. In addition to answering
the consultation questions we identify the following issues which should, in our view,
be addressed: -

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
would have to take
account of the
particular needs and
characteristics of the
individual town centre
such as heritage and
cultural assets, as
well as local
character”.

B432

scale of change that Opportunity Area status usually envisages, merited
consultation and that this will provide communities an opportunity to influence how
the area will be developed. How will consultation on Opportunity Area status be
conducted, and will this question be addressed as a separate exercise? - Numbers:
The housing figures in the DoT (p.10) for Kingston are not consistent with the figures
contained in the City in the West document published (without consultation) on the
GLA’s website. Furthermore the figure is 20% greater than the figure for the borough
contained in the FALP, and four times that contained in the Core Strategy and K+20
Area Action plan when student housing is included as homes. How has this figure
been derived, are the time horizons for the figures comparable and how have they
been tested? - Status of the document: We are unclear what weight the two
planning authorities are giving to this document. Is this a precursor to an SPG – akin
to an OAPF – or is it an issues and options paper for the Kingston Local Plan? In
either case, in our view a full SA/SEA will need to be undertaken as the DoT
appears to address spatial options and potentially establish new local plan policy. As
a statutory consultee on SA/SEA we look forward to engaging with you in this
process. - Testing of development capacity: At this juncture there is a lack of
information on how the development capacity of different locations will be tested.
This is necessary to inform the allocation of numbers for housing and jobs to ensure
that development is truly sustainable, and damage to the historic environment
avoided (NPPF paras 8 and 152). It is essential that there is detailed background
evidence testing the impacts on the historic environment. This will help ensure that
the delivery of significant growth – potentially through an Opportunity Area
designation – achieves net gains in terms of economic, social and environmental
considerations (para 152 NPPF).The Eden Quarter Masterplan would have
benefitted from such analysis and has, in our view, led to potentially unnecessary
harm to heritage assets within Kingston town centre. Additional comments on the
consultation document. P.17 Kingston Places – It is surprising that there is no
reference to the Borough Character Study 2011 while the choice of places seems to
include both good examples and those in need of redevelopment, without
qualification. We are pleased that reference is made to Richmond Gate. However,
we would also encourage you to recognise the Arcadian Landscape that is
strategically important to the character of south-west London on your maps. This is
evident at Hampton Court Home Park, Bushy Park as well as Richmond Park and is
an important feature which should help shape future growth. The references to
Tolworth Tower and the Cambridge Road estate are confusing in terms of the
purpose of the diagram. P.18 Growth – We would encourage you to also note noted
that the Outer London Commission (7th report) said (para 4.21): “There is no one
size fits all solution for town centre renewal/redevelopment so any intensification
would have to take account of the particular needs and characteristics of the
individual town centre such as heritage and cultural assets, as well as local
character.” This is key to ensuring that you achieve good growth that optimises
opportunities and respects Kingston’s sense of place. P.25 There is a reference to
key views, which we note have yet to be properly identified. Historic England is
happy to support this work to ensure that there is a robust framework for managing
development impacts on views, notably where they are part of the setting of historic
landmarks. Pp. 24-5 As noted above the Emerging Areas of Opportunity include the
most historically sensitive areas of the borough. While this is not a reason not to

351

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

104

Martin Booth

Nope, I'm done.

105

Tony Lancaster It has not gone unnoticed that this key 'consultation' staged for a short
period over the summer and barely publicised has no balance and no
narrative. If you think that the pretty but empty (not to say absurdly and
misleadingly entitled) Direction of Travel adds up to a well considered plan
you are mistaken. Your arrogance and tick-box consultation process
enacting policies that do not share community support, do not reflect the
declared manifestos, and aim in reality to silence what you describe as the
'vocal minority' are democratic crimes. (Not to mention that if you are not
the minority here I can't think who else that might be)

Comment noted.

B433

promote growth within them, it requires additional care and attention. Historic
England has compiled a report on those parts of Kingston Town Centre not covered
by the Old Town Conservation Area which should help with your background
evidence base. We note that the introduction of more than 5,000 jobs and/or 2,500
homes, i.e. sufficient to merit an opportunity area designation may not be achievable
in Kingston Town Centre – depending on where the boundaries are drawn – without
causing major harm to the historic environment. Therefore we recommend that the
reference to ‘transformational change’ should be qualified, especially in relation to
Kingston Town Centre which should be enhanced rather than transformed.
Archaeology - The document should make reference to archaeology within the
current planning designations section. Kingston has a rich archaeological and
architectural heritage. The borough’s Archaeological Priority Areas (APA) have not
been reviewed for many years and need to be updated. Since 2011 GLAAS has,
with the Mayor’s support, prepared new guidelines on the definition and description
of APAs to ensure that they comply with the NPPF, support delivery of the
Borough’s Local Plan and are up to date and consistent across London. Importantly
the new APAs will include statements of significance and are assigned to tiers to
indicate different levels of sensitivity – this makes them much more useful in the
early assessment of development risk, including those areas designated as
“Identified Growth Areas”. A prioritised borough-by borough programme of updating
is underway. Kingston upon Thames is due for its full review in 2017. Archaeology is
a material consideration for future development within an APA and any planning
applications should be supported by an Archaeological Desk Based Assessment.
Where major harm is possible an archaeological field evaluation should be carried
out in support of the application. Further details of the archaeological implications of
the Emerging Areas of Opportunity are included in appendix 1.

No change.

Comments noted. The consultation period lasted an
No change.
extended period of eight weeks (above that of the
normal 6-week statutory period). The consultation was
widely publicised and eight formal events were held
across the Borough. We will consider all feedback
received regarding the consultation in order to improve
our approach and performance for future engagement
events.
Please also note that the document is intended to be
high-level at this early stage of the local plan process,
providing the Council's 'Statement of Intent'. The detail
and deliverability of new growth strategies will be
developed and consulted upon in later stages of the
local plan process.

111

Peta
Schaverien

I strongly disagree with the over development of Kingston town centre

Comment noted.

No change.

352

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
Mr a Greene

Why has this report and the associated survey been so poorly advertised
to the residents of the borough? It should be extended and more widely
publicised.

116

Johanne Molloy More detail is required on what these plans would involve. Housing needs
to provide enough car parking spaces for the whole estate. High rise is not
necessarily the answer and he housing units should have enough open
space and internal space for families.

All comments noted. The document is intended to be No change.
high-level at this early stage of the local plan process,
providing the Council's 'Statement of Intent'. It aims to
provide alignment of local strategic planning policy,
the London Plan, and Kingston's growth agenda, as
well as the broad context in which the new Borough
Local Plan needs to be planned. The detail and
deliverability of new growth strategies will be
developed and consulted upon in later stages of the
local plan process.

117

Stuart Hartley

This document is out of date. Britain leaving the EU will reduce the amount
of migration into the borough and the likely reduction in growth will make a
lot of these plans invalid. And whilst viability assessments are kept secret,
how can we the residents judge whether the council is making decisions in
our interest ? The growth agenda has never been set out and even this
document was presented in council as a work in progress. The amount of
money that has been spent on this whilst support for the vulnerable in our
borough is cut is quite objectionable.

Comment noted. At this stage it is too early to fully
No change.
understanding the impact of the referendum to growth
projections. We will continue to plan for the latest GLA
growth projections, although this will be closely
monitored.

118

Lynne Finnerty

1. The Council's 50% policy for affordable housing has proved to be
unworkable and unachievable. The Council should follow the example of
the Royal Borough of Greenwich which approved a new planning policy
requiring developers to include at least 35% affordable housing in new
residential developments in the borough of more than 10 new homes.
Developers who put in residential planning applications not meeting the
borough's affordable housing target would then be required to supply fully
public, unredacted viability assessments. Studies would then be assessed
by an independent expert on the Council's behalf and recommendations
would be made to the decision making Development Control Committee as
part of overall reports considered in relation to applications.

1. Comments noted. Affordability of homes for local
people is a key priority due to high house prices, an
increasing shortfall in provision, and the increase in
demand. One of our biggest issues is to tackle this
positively and increase the number of houses to meet
needs, while seeking the right balance between
protecting the environment, and supporting the local
economy.

2. The document sets out areas of opportunity to help realise 'emerging
possibilities associated with Crossrail 2 to provide new homes, jobs and
investment in the borough' and 'it is anticipated Crossrail 2 will be

Comments noted. The consultation period lasted an
No change.
extended period of eight weeks (above that of the
normal 6-week statutory period). The consultation was
widely publicised and eight formal events were held
across the Borough. We will consider all feedback
received regarding the consultation in order to improve
our approach and performance for future engagement
events.

B434

113

No change.

New evidence base and policy regarding affordable
housing will the developed through the local plan
process.
Further reference to the need for affordable housing
will be included in the revised document.

353

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
operational by 2030'. However it has been reported that, due to the EU
referendum result, there is uncertainty regarding foreign investment in UK
infrastructure projects including Crossrail 2. Balfour Beatty has stated that
the UK will have to give up its position as joint largest shareholder in the
European Investment Bank which would result in losing billions of pounds
of funding for projects including Crossrail 2. It was stated it was unlikely the
Treasury would be able to make up the funding. The Centre for London
reported that a slump in the property market could affect Crossrail 2 as
'planned schemes are premised on developer contributions'. Consequently
there needs to be absolute certainty on investment/funding and a better
idea of timescale before plans are put into place for Kingston borough's
growth based on Crossrail 2.
3. The introduction of a Green Infrastructure SPD would support health
and wellbeing
4. The introduction of a Tall Buildings SPD would give clear guidance to
developers and offer protection to our historic borough's character.

6. The Council leader has claimed a vast majority of residents strongly
support the Council embracing an ambitious growth agenda. This was
based on a survey completed by less than 10,000 residents of which not
all were in strong support. Based on statistics for Kingston's adult
population from the 2011 census and the Borough Profile statistics, it can
be estimated that 97.5% either did not complete the survey or did not
strongly support pursuing an ambitious growth agenda. The political party
in control of the Council made no mention of an ambitious growth agenda
in its manifesto. Therefore it could be argued that it has no mandate for
such.
119

Iain Martin MSc There should also be full consultation on any plans to amend the existing
CMILT
adopted Local Plan.

121

Pat Marchant

3. Comment noted regarding green infrastructure.
4. Comment noted regarding tall buildings. There are
currently no plans for a separate Tall Building SPD,
although the production of an updated Borough-wide
Views Study will help to inform new planning policy for
tall buildings within the new Local Plan.
5. As the consultation document for the Direction of
Travel, members were invited to comment in the same
way that local residents , community groups and
business have. Any consultation comments have been
incorporated within the revised document where
appropriate.

B435

5. What input did ALL Kingston Council's elected representatives have into
this Direction of Travel document and at what stage and in which forum?
Where can their recommendations, comments, observations etc. be
publicly accessed?

2. Comment noted regarding uncertainty of Crossrail 2
as a result of the referendum. At this stage it is too
early to fully understanding the impact of the
referendum to growth projections. We will continue to
plan for the latest GLA growth projections, although
this will be closely monitored. Please also note that
the Council will actively plan for the arrival of Crossrail
2, although new growth in Kingston is not dependant
on its delivery.

6. Comment noted.

Comment noted. The Direction of Travel begins the
formal engagement process on a new Local Plan for
Kingston. Each stage of the local plan process will be
formally consulted on.

Maybe we don't need so much growth. Housing is needed for those on the Comment noted.
council's housing list. This should be dealt with first.

No change.

No change.

354

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
127

Pat cann

Dont think you know what we without asking us on a regular basis

Comment noted.

No change.

131

Hilary Gander

Is this really a consultation? There's not enough detail to comment on
All comments noted. The document is intended to be No change.
many of the questions - no-one can judge the impact of 'additional housing' high-level at this early stage of the local plan process,
without knowing where / what / how many.
providing the Council's 'Statement of Intent'. It aims to
provide alignment of local strategic planning policy,
the London Plan, and Kingston's growth agenda, as
well as the broad context in which the new Borough
Local Plan needs to be planned. The detail and
deliverability of new growth strategies will be
developed and consulted upon in later stages of the
local plan process.

142

caroline cheales 1. the plan has missed out the scenario stage, presenting only one vision
of the future. what if the predicted growth doesn't happen, or crossrail is
late or paused indefinitely, if the city loses it's status and London loses its
position as a world financial centre?

B436

1. Comments noted. The document is intended to be No change.
high-level at this early stage of the local plan process,
providing the Council's 'Statement of Intent'. It aims
only to provide alignment of local strategic planning
policy, the London Plan, and Kingston's growth
agenda, as well as the broad context in which the new
2. what is the vision for kingston in terms of its ability to retain existing
residents and where new residents will come from? the premise seems to Borough Local Plan needs to be planned. The detail
be that they will be working in London and commuting. what happens if we and deliverability of new growth strategies, including
evidence base study, will be developed in later stages
are not a location of choice?
of the local plan process.
Regarding Crossrail 2, the Council will actively plan for
the arrival of Crossrail 2, although new growth in
Kingston is not dependant on its delivery.
2. Comment noted regarding existing and potential
future residents of Kingston. The overall aim is to
accommodate new growth whilst protecting the quality
of life of existing residents and the unique character of
the Borough. Further detail and evidence base
regarding this issue will be development during the
local plan process.

144

Linda Skilbeck

The Direction of Travel document is vague and difficult to access, making
the idea of this being a real consultation highly questionable. The
effectiveness of the ‘Consultation Process’ is questionable based on the
Eden Quarter Development Brief SPD, put forward by Allies and Morrison,
which went to ‘Consultation’, and was adopted by the Council, but then
ignored by the Development Control Department and the Planning
Committee when the applications for the Old Post Office site and Eden
Walk were granted. The heights were far in excess of those specified in

Comments noted. The document is intended to be
No change
high-level at this early stage of the local plan process,
providing the Council's 'Statement of Intent'. It aims
only to provide alignment of local strategic planning
policy, the London Plan, and Kingston's growth
agenda, as well as the broad context in which the new
Borough Local Plan needs to be planned. The detail
and deliverability of new growth strategies, including

355

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
the Eden Quarter Development Brief SPD The listed buildings will be
totally overwhelmed by the new structures. And indeed the developments
will destroy the fabric of the old town centre. I hope that the Council of the
Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames will act honourably, and take the
views of the people they represent seriously.

evidence base study, will be developed in later stages
of the local plan process.

Comment noted. The Council has undertaken an
extensive consultation and communication process
during Summer 2016, the details of which will be
published in the Consultation Statement for the
Direction of Travel in October 2016.

Comment regarding the consultation process noted.
We will consider all feedback received regarding the
consultation in order to improve our approach and
performance for future engagement events.

Helen Thrush

Yes - as I said before I would like to see how the council have
communicated this consultation to the local residents? And who has
authorised this project which I believe has already cost us £4 million to
date?

149

Dave RyderMills

Far too much of the consultation document is too vague to give meaningful All comments noted. The document is intended to be No change.
comment.
high-level at this early stage of the local plan process,
providing the Council's 'Statement of Intent'. It aims to
provide alignment of local strategic planning policy,
the London Plan, and Kingston's growth agenda, as
well as the broad context in which the new Borough
Local Plan needs to be planned. The detail and
deliverability of new growth strategies will be
developed and consulted upon in later stages of the
local plan process.

150

Elaine RyderMills

This survey is too long and involved. It is therefore only completed by a
Comments noted.
self selected portion of the community. It is not comprehensive. It does not
include all community members. It is not representative of all residents.

151

Neil Riley

1. This is not a proper consultation process. The decisions about the
development areas have been taken with no prior consultation and the
question structure has been designed to limit disapproval by linking topics
within single questions.
2. The direction of travel set out has token comments about sustainability
but no concrete proposals. All of the positive elements of the proposals
appear to have originated from TfL, with the RBK direction of travel being
one of continuing to ignore the quality of life of existing residents while
maximising opportunities for property developers.

No change.

B437

148

No change.

1. Comments noted.The document is intended to be
No change.
high-level at this early stage of the local plan process,
providing the Council's 'Statement of Intent'. It aims to
provide alignment of local strategic planning policy,
the London Plan, and Kingston's growth agenda, as
well as the broad context in which the new Borough
Local Plan needs to be planned. The detail and
deliverability of new growth strategies will be
developed and consulted upon in later stages of the
local plan process.
2. Comment regarding the consultation process noted.
We will consider all feedback received regarding the
consultation in order to improve our approach and
performance for future engagement events.

356

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
152

Janice Yeadon

There needs to be a Plan B

Comment noted. The next stage of the local plan
No change.
process (Issues and Options) will set out and assess a
variety of growth options for the Borough prior to the
selection of a preferred option.

153

Adrian Wheeler 1. Any lack of public response to The Direction of Travel is not due to
public apathy about the future of our town, it can be put down to the fact
that the document is so vague and difficult to access. Making the idea of a
true consultation highly questionable. also that it has been carried out over
the summer when a lot of people are away The effectiveness of the
‘Consultation Process’ is deeply questionable. This is evident from the fact
that the Eden Quarter Development Brief SPD, put forward by the experts
Allies and Morrison, which went to ‘Consultation’, was adopted by the
Council, was then ignored by the Development Control Department and
the Planning Committee when the applications for the Old Post Office site
and Eden Walk were granted. The heights were far in excess of those
specified in the Eden Quarter Development Brief SPD The listed buildings
will be totally overwhelmed by the new structures. And indeed the
developments will destroy the fabric of the old town centre. One can only
hope that from now on the Council of the Royal Borough of Kingston upon
Thames will act honourably, and take the views of the people they
represent seriously.

Comments noted. The document is intended to be
No change.
high-level at this early stage of the local plan process,
providing the Council's 'Statement of Intent'. It aims
only to provide alignment of local strategic planning
policy, the London Plan, and Kingston's growth
agenda, as well as the broad context in which the new
Borough Local Plan needs to be planned. The detail
and deliverability of new growth strategies, including
evidence base study, will be developed in later stages
of the local plan process.

155

Hazel Farrow

What is the position of Kingston Hospital? It is already very busy so how
can it support the increased population you envisage

Comments noted. The Council recognise that key to
No change.
facilitating and managing new growth in Kingston is to
ensure new investment and improvement in
supporting infrastructure, including community
facilities such as schools and healthcare. The detail of
this requirement will be considered at a later stage of
the local plan process.

156

Alison Wheeler

Any lack of public response to The Direction of Travel is not due to public
apathy about the future of our town, it can be put down to the fact that the
document is so vague and difficult to access. Making the idea of a true
consultation highly questionable. also that it has been carried out over the
summer when a lot of people are away The effectiveness of the
‘Consultation Process’ is deeply questionable. This is evident from the fact
that the Eden Quarter Development Brief SPD, put forward by the experts
Allies and Morrison, which went to ‘Consultation’, was adopted by the
Council, was then ignored by the Development Control Department and
the Planning Committee when the applications for the Old Post Office site
and Eden Walk were granted. The heights were far in excess of those
specified in the Eden Quarter Development Brief SPD The listed buildings
will be totally overwhelmed by the new structures. And indeed the

Comments noted. The document is intended to be
No change.
high-level at this early stage of the local plan process,
providing the Council's 'Statement of Intent'. It aims
only to provide alignment of local strategic planning
policy, the London Plan, and Kingston's growth
agenda, as well as the broad context in which the new
Borough Local Plan needs to be planned. The detail
and deliverability of new growth strategies, including
evidence base study, will be developed in later stages
of the local plan process.

Comment regarding the consultation process noted.
We will consider all feedback received regarding the
consultation in order to improve our approach and
performance for future engagement events.

B438

Comment regarding the consultation process noted.
We will consider all feedback received regarding the

357

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

157

Christopher
Thomas

developments will destroy the fabric of the old town centre. One can only
hope that from now on the Council of the Royal Borough of Kingston upon
Thames will act honourably, and take the views of the people they
represent seriously.

consultation in order to improve our approach and
performance for future engagement events.

1. The Direction of Travel document is too vague, discouraging
constructive, meaningful public feedback. The effectiveness of the
Consultation Process is doubtful. The Eden Quarter Development Brief
document adopted by the Council was subsequently ignored by the
Planning Committee when the applications for the Old Post Office site and
Eden Walk were granted. The building heights were far greater than those
specified in the Brief. As a result, the local listed buildings will be
overwhelmed and the town centre degraded. The excessive and damaging
use of private road transport should have been addressed in the
document.

1. Comments noted. The document is intended to be No change.
high-level at this early stage of the local plan process,
providing the Council's 'Statement of Intent'. It aims
only to provide alignment of local strategic planning
policy, the London Plan, and Kingston's growth
agenda, as well as the broad context in which the new
Borough Local Plan needs to be planned. The detail
and deliverability of new growth strategies, including
evidence base study, will be developed in later stages
of the local plan process.

2. To ease the housing supply, clauses should be introduced into planning 2. Comments noted.
approvals that developers do not sell properties to clients who leave them
empty as investments.
3. Comments noted.

158

Paul Sloan

B439

3. Many of the area of opportunity questions above link station
improvements with the provision of Crossrail 2, but these are two separate
issues. The improvements are desirable, but Crossrail 2 may not be so.
1. Yes to increased housing, particularly genuinely affordable (not the Tory
"unaffordable affordable" housing that costs 400k+) and social housing, but
only if other parts of London are playing their part too, and we get the
public transport and social infrastructure to underpin it.

1. Comments noted. Affordability of homes for local
No change.
people is a key priority due to high house prices, an
increasing shortfall in provision, and the increase in
demand. One of our biggest issues is to tackle this
positively and increase the number of houses to meet
2. CRossrail 2 on its own is wholly inadequate, we need proper north-south needs, while seeking the right balance between
protecting the environment, and supporting the local
public transport infrastructure.
economy.
New evidence base and policy regarding affordable
3. No to any A3 M25 motorway link road as this will only draw more traffic
housing will the developed through the local plan
from inner London - this route would become the main route to the
process.
Southern Coast - like the Purley Way at the minute, ultimately generating
more congestion and more pollution.
Further reference to the need for affordable housing
will be included in the revised document.
4. KINGSTON COUNCIL LEADERSHIP NEED TO READ AND
UNDERSTAND WHAT IS MEANT BY INDUCED TRAFFIC DEMAND.
2. Comment noted regarding transport infrastructure
The Council recognise that key to facilitating and
managing new growth is to ensure new investment
and improvement transport infrastructure, which must

358

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
be considered as a strategic and integrated approach.
Crossrail 2 is a key part of this, but it also includes
extension to bus services and cycle infrastructure.
Development of comprehensive integrated transport
facilities are in the early stages of development with
key partners such as Transport for London and
Network Rail.
3. Comment noted regarding the relief road. This is
only a concept proposal at the stage being explored
with neighbouring local authorities, as a potential way
of relieving traffic congestion in the area.
4. Comment noted regarding traffic congestion.
Simon Munk

This response is made on behalf of the London Cycling Campaign (LCC),
the capital’s leading cycling organisation with more than 12,000 members
and 40,000 supporters. LCC welcomes the opportunity to comment on
these plans and its response was developed with input from its
Infrastructure Review Group and local borough group Kingston Cycling
Campaign. LCC wants, as a condition of funding, all highway development
designed to London Cycling Design Standards (LCDS), with all “Critical
Fails” eliminated from the scheme’s Cycling Level of Service assessment
(CLoS). It is also strongly suggests that all schemes including cycling
provision should be of comparable quality to similar schemes at cities with
a high modal share of cycling, i.e. with a CLoS rating of 70 or above. LCC
notes a more efficient use of road space is to allocate it to cycling and
walking in preference to private motor vehicles, particularly for journeys of
5km or less. LCC expects schemes to be designed to allocate road space
for growth in cycling, to accommodate such journeys.

All comments noted. In accordance with the London
Plan, the Council places significant emphasis on the
role of cycling in the future of movement in the
Borough, and will therefore continue to be promoted
and extended throughout the Borough in order to
facilitate a connected network of safe cycle routes.
Key to achieving this vision is the delivery of the Go
Cycle Programme whereby the Council received over
£30million of funding from the Mayor of London and
TfL to deliver improvements to cycling facilities and
road safety.

No change.

163

Diane Watling

Consult. Consult. Consult.

Comment noted.

No change.

164

Marian Ellis

North Kingston has already been ruined by high rise flats by Canbury
Gardens. These developments line the pockets of the developers,
investors and buy to let investors. It is totally untrue that any development
will provide quality housing for local people to actually buy

Comment noted.

No change.

172

Carole &
Michael
StathamFletcher

The tone of this document is a mixture of the bland and the worrying with
big gaps in information and plenty of assumptions. We would be
concerned if this survey were to be used to justify particular decisions in
the future. Real consultation would be need to be when there are detailed
proposals that the public can actually understand and evaluate but

All comments noted. The document is intended to be No change.
high-level at this early stage of the local plan process,
providing the Council's 'Statement of Intent'. It aims to
provide alignment of local strategic planning policy,
the London Plan, and Kingston's growth agenda, as

B440

162

359

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
BEFORE resources have been committed.

well as the broad context in which the new Borough
Local Plan needs to be planned. The detail and
deliverability of new growth strategies will be
developed and consulted upon in later stages of the
local plan process.

The following consultees submitted a response but did not comment specifically on Question 5 of the survey.
Name

ID

Name

ID

Name

2

Denise Thompson

56

Phil Edwards

112

Rebeca alamo

3

Peter Watson

57

Fred Ashmore

114

Marguerite Bowers Clark

4

Ken Thompson

59

J.Stevens

115

J Wheeler

5

Nigel Randall

60

Alex

120

Mo Sehra

6

S Guess

61

j langridge

122

H Wollinger

9

Douglas Sampson

62

Pam Walsh

123

Chris Coleman

10

Eunhyun Song

64

Joseph Asghar

124

Pippa Billingsley

11

Richard Grosvenor

67

Natalie Crew

125

Mark Blewett

13

Matthew Kyte

69

Kevin White

126

Jim Leason

14

sara redmond

71

Charmian Bourne

128

Tim Westlake

15

Shailesh Patel

72

Carl Jackson

129

Tim Westlake

17

Lisa Ross

73

Deborah Dunning

130

Deborah Da Silva

19

Maryka Sennema

74

Stanley R. Spires

132

Fiona Meaney

22

Anthony Quinn

75

Peter Topp

133

Yvonne Walsh

23

anthony johannsen

78

Keith Keen

134

lee hendra

24

Linda Seel

80

Annie Kay

135

Agnieszka

26

Felicia Green

81

Mr Stephen Heil

136

john pearson

27

Graham Tucker

82

Lesley Steel

137

Zoe Leeds

29

martin russell-jones

83

andrew compton

138

sharon nelhams

B441

ID

360

Responses to the Direction of Travel for the Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames
mr bal badesha

84

Maureen Ellis

139

Cashel Riordan

31

Mr Aziz Bawany

87

Peter Herlinger

140

Julian Oldfield

32

andy watters

89

Ross Anthony, Theatres Trust

141

Michele salter

33

Alistair Glen

90

Andrew Summersgill

143

Stewart Dickson

35

Stephanie Russell

91

A Sadeghi

145

Judith Royle

36

Gloria Bassoli

92

Marilyn Mason, Chair, KEF

146

Sue May

37

E John

93

James

147

Dominic Bull

38

Imran Benson

94

Sara Vincent

154

L Hebbourn

39

Saleh

95

Gay Richardson

159

Jonathan Fray

41

G T Knight

97

Simon Jakeman

160

Anne Oram

43

carlos

98

Janine Bellew

161

Richard Ware

44

Steve

100

Barbara Delamere

165

Claire Harrison

45

Sheena Evans

101

Mr M.Gascoigne

166

James Giles

47

Alvaro

103

Dan

167

Kerry Giles

48

Jacqueline Hardie

106

Gemma Cusworth

168

David Giles

49

A chandler

107

John Edwards

169

Marc Tracey

50

Martyn

108

Daniel Wain

170

Yvonne Tracey

51

Des McRow

109

Katherine jones

171

James Giles on behalf of MICO

54

Joseph Asghar

110

Carl Jackson

B442

30

361

B443

B444

B445

B446

B447

B448

B449

B450

B451

B452

B453

B454

B455

B456

B457

B458

B459

B460

B461

B462

B463

B464

B465

B466

B467

B468

B469

B470

B471

B472

B473

B474

B475

B476

B477

B478

B479

B480

B481

B482

B483

B484

B485

B486

C1

Appendix C

Growth Committee
North Kingston Development Brief
13 October 2016
Report by Director of Place
Purpose
To adopt the North Kingston Development Brief, which sets out a planning framework to guide
redevelopment in North Kingston. To note the Brief responds to the consultation process and
provides a clear set of principles and land uses, in order to help shape future development
proposals.
Recommendations of the Portfolio Holder Regeneration
To resolve:
1.
that the Committee notes the consultation responses and the consequential
modifications made.
2.
that prior to adoption, the Head of Planning and Regeneration, in consultation with the
Portfolio Holder for Regeneration be given delegated authority to make factual
amendments to the North Kingston Development Brief.
3.
the Committee agrees to formally adopt the North Kingston Development Brief, as set
out in Annex 1 (as circulated separately).
Key Points
A.
This report seeks the formal adoption of the North Kingston Development Brief (Annex 1)
as a guidance document which will become a material consideration as part of decision
making in Development Management.
B.
The current draft North Kingston Development Brief supersedes the previous North
Kingston Development Brief (Stage Two: Consultation DRAFT, 2014), and once adopted
will supersede the adopted North Kingston Development Brief (Stage One: Land Use and
Spatial Parameters).
C.
The current draft North Kingston Development Brief was published for consultation on
Friday 8 July 2016 for a period of eight weeks; consultation closed Monday 5 September
2016.
D.
Minor amendments have been made to the current Brief in response to the consultation. A
Consultation Statement fully analysing the responses received is attached in Annex 2. A
highlighted version of amendments to the Brief can be viewed in Annex 5.
E.
By adoption of this Brief, the committee will be accepting in principle, the stopping up of
Kingsgate Road.
Context
1.
The North Kingston Development Brief (Stage One: Land Use and Spatial Parameters) was
adopted at the Place and Sustainability Committee on the 28 November 2013. The North
Kingston Development Brief (Stage Two: Consultation DRAFT) was published for
consultation for a period of 6 weeks from 15 September to 27 October 2014 but was not
adopted due to awaiting the completion of the Kingston Town Centre Movement Study
(2015) and liaison with third parties.
2.

The North Kingston Development Brief (NKDB) has been prepared with the aim to promote
development. It is in-line with the London Plan (2015), alongside the Council’s existing
Development Plan which consists of the Core Strategy (2012) and the Kingston Town
Centre Area Action Plan (2008), and will support the Council’s regeneration programme,
Kingston Futures.

C2

3.

The area defined in the Brief as North Kingston is located to the north of the town centre
and Kingston Station. It is bound by Sury Basin to the North, Richmond Road to the East,
Seven Kings to the West and Sopwith Way to the South as shown in Annex 4.

4.

The Brief, once adopted will hold material weight in the determination of planning
applications. The Brief will provide an important framework to coordinate and guide
development and infrastructure investment within North Kingston.

Consultations
5.
The North Kingston Development Brief Consultation Draft was published for consultation
from 8th July 2016 to 5th September 2016 for a period of eight weeks; consultation closed on
Monday 5 September 2016 with a total of 77 responses received.
6.

The Council consulted the ‘specific’ consultation bodies identified in the planning
regulations as well as other ‘general consultees’. Approximately 2000 stakeholders
registered on the Strategic Planning consultation database were also consulted by letter
and email.

7.

Over 4,300 letters were sent to all residents and businesses within a 500 metre radius of
the site.

8.

A press release publicising the consultation was sent to the local press and published on
the Council’s website. The document was made available on the Council’s website, at the
Council’s Information and Advice Centre and at the seven libraries across the borough.
Audio summaries of the document were prepared and uploaded to the Council’s website for
the benefit of the visually-impaired.

9.

The Council undertook three drop in events throughout Summer 2016, all of which were
advertised through the Council’s website, social media and the distribution of consultation
posters and leaflets across the borough. Presentations and meetings were also held with
local groups.

10.

As an overview, the Council received 77 responses, the majority of which were from local
residents. A total number of 377 comments were received. Key themes and concerns which
were raised by those who responded to the consultation were around:
A.

B.

C.
D.
E.
F.

11.

Traffic: concerns over increased volumes of traffic and congestion as a result of
new development and the closure of Kingsgate Road alongside the negative
effects on road safety, air pollution and noise in the local area.
Height, scale and massing: concerns of overdevelopment in the area and that the
proposed height of the buildings were too high and did not fit in with the local
area and subsequent impact on levels of light on neighbouring properties.
Infrastructure: concern new development would exacerbate existing services,
particularly schools.
Public space: received good support but concern raised over the quality of open
spaces, including biodiversity, as well as maintenance and ownership.
Housing: concern over housing impacts on infrastructure and level of affordable
units.
Sustainable transport and connections : very strong support for enhancing
pedestrian and cycle connections in and around the site.

The Council’s Strategic Business team prepared a quantitative analysis of the 54 online
responses received for the document. This is appended to the Consultation Statement
(Annex 2).

C3
12.

The quantitative analysis showed general support for the vision (from the on-line
consultation feedback 65% strongly or somewhat favour the vision for North Kingston, with
71% strongly or somewhat favouring the overarching objectives of the Brief) and the
objectives of the Brief. There were concerns over scale, size and density of development in
the area (from the on-line consultation feedback 65% were either strongly or somewhat
opposed to the development form and massing). Many want to see development kept lowrise or below nine storeys, in keeping with the local environment. There was strong support
for improvements to public open spaces (from the on-line consultation feedback 81%
strongly or somewhat favour the proposed public realm public open space strategy) ,
alongside pedestrian and cycling infrastructure. Concerns were raised in relation to aspects
of traffic management and road layout including the use of Seven Kings Way, alongside the
pressures brought about by the development on infrastructure such as schools and health
services.

13.

Details of all the consultation methods used are set out in the Consultation Statement
(Annex 2). This also sets out a summary of the responses received. Responses received
through consultation have been considered in detail (Annex 3) and, where appropriate,
have been taken forward and are highlighted within the Development Brief in Annex 5.

Summary of Changes to the Document
14.
A number of changes have been made to the Brief (Annex 1) that recognise both
consultation responses and some general updates that were required. All changes have
now been incorporated and key ones are set out below:
● General formatting and updates including updating plans and keys, checking the
positioning of community infrastructure.
● Text amendments to ensure supporting text aligns with identified Principles, K+20
land uses, and reflect latest guidance from Historic England.
● The supporting text and principles of the Development Form and Massing section
(pages 18-19) has been amended and strengthened.
● Clarified the Council's position on affordable housing on the North Kingston site.
Timescales
15.
All work will commence once the recommendations within the report have been agreed by
the Committee, the decision published and the call in period successfully completed.
Following approval at this Committee, final proof reading and any minor amendments
raised by this Committee; the Brief will be taken forward for publication and formal
adoption. At this time an adoption statement, consultation statement and a copy of the final
Brief will be made available on the Council’s website. It is anticipated that this will be
completed by the 1st November 2016 and publicised via the Council website once
available.
Resource Implications
16.
The production of the Development Brief has been funded by the Strategic Planning team.
It is proposed that there will be a print run of the final Brief. Copies will be available to
purchase by the public and third parties with a reasonable charge applied to cover printing
costs. Digital copies will be available for download from the Council Website for free.
17.

Whilst the preparation of a Development Brief does not have any significant resource
impact; the Council will formally consider implications for their property assets post the
adoption of the Development Brief.

Legal Implications
18.
The Brief will become part of the approved planning policy suite for Kingston and will
function as a material consideration when the Council is considering applications and
development proposals.

C4
19.

As agreed at the Place and Sustainability Committee in July 2013, the Council will also
consider the use of its legal powers for the acquisition of land to bring forward and guide
future development within the area of the Development Brief.

Risk Assessment
20.
The absence of a Development Brief for North Kingston will make it harder for the Council
to guide and control future development proposals being promoted within North Kingston.
Equalities Impact Assessment
21.
When adopted as a Brief the document will adhere to policies contained in the Core
Strategy and K+20 Area Action Plan, which have been the subject to equality impact
assessment.
Network Implications
22.
The Development Brief suggests changes to the highway network, including the principle of
stopping up Kingsgate Road. By adoption of this Brief, the committee will be accepting, in
principle, the stopping up of Kingsgate Road between Sopwith Way and Richmond Road, in
line with the Highways Act subject to Highways and Transport conducting a full consultation
and taking it to the relevant Committee.
Environmental Implications
23.
None
Held by author/other - Chloë Clay
Author of report - Chloë Clay, Development and Urban Design Lead Officer
chloe.clay@kingston.gov.uk ext. 5418
List of reports and supporting information
● Annex 1 – North Kingston Development Brief
● Annex 2 – Consultation Statement
● Annex 3 – Consultation Responses
● Annex 4 – North Kingston Development Brief: Location Plan
List of Background reports/document
●
●
●
●
●

K+20 Kingston Town Centre Area Action Plan, 2008
Core Strategy, 2012
North Kingston Development Brief (Stage One: Land Use and Spatial Parameters), 2013
North Kingston Development Brief (Stage Two: Consultation DRAFT), 2014
Growth Committee Report : North Kingston Development Brief Consultation Draft, 2016

North Kingston
C5

Development Brief
October 2016

2016 © Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

ANNEX 1

C6

Plans within this document are produced using
Ordnance Survey mapping © Crown Copyright and
database right 2014. Ordnance Survey 100019285

2

October 2016

CONTENTS

C7

Introduction
Purpose of the Document				
p4
Drivers for Change					p5
The Vision						p6
Objectives
p6
Delivery Principles					p7

Development Strategy
Introduction
p8
Movement and Access				p10
Activity and Edges
p12
Land Use						p14
Public Realm + Public Open Space			
p16
Development Form and Massing			
p18

Delivery
Introduction
p21
Development Parcels				p21
Safeguarding					p22
Programme and Developer Contributions
p23

Design Framework
Introduction
p24
Richmond Road					p26
North South linear park				
p28
East West linear park				
p30
High quality learning environment			
p32
High quality living environment			
p33
Off site infrastructure
p34
Humanise surrounding streets			
p36

Appendix 1: Planning Context
Physical						p38
Policy						p46
Land Use						p50
Energy and Sustainability				p53
Movement and Access				p54

3

INTRODUCTION

C8

Purpose of the Document

d
Roa

Kin

am
es

ond

en
Sev

d

reet

Kin

r St

a
Ro
te
ga
s
g

lte
Wa

ay
gs W

Riv
er T
h

in

Bas

hm
Ric

Sury

Sopwith Way

Bus Station
Railway Station

The North Kingston Development Brief area
The Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames (the Council) has produced this document
to provide landowners, developers and the wider community, with clear guidance for all
new developments in the North Kingston area, as part of the Council’s ‘Kingston Futures’
programme.
The North Kingston Development Brief illustrates a comprehensive vision for transformational
change for this inefficiently used and under performing part of Kingston Town Centre. It
proposes the creation of a new residential and education led mixed use quarter that will bring
about benefits to both Kingston Town Centre and the wider North Kingston area.
Parts of the development brief area have already commenced with the construction of the
former gas holder site and completion of the Kingston College extension (Creative Industries
Centre).
This Brief sets out the principles and framework to unlock the rest of the development area
in a responsive, comprehensive and integrated way. The intensification of land use is also
essential to ensure that sustainable development will occur on the identified sites, and in
order support the positive growth of the Town Centre.
The Brief has been prepared to promote development. It has been prepared in accordance
with the National Planning Policy Framework which sets out a presumption in favour of
sustainable development. The Brief is also in line with the Council’s existing Development
Plan, which consists the Core Strategy (2012) and the Kingston Town Centre Area Action Plan
(K+20) (2008).

4

October 2016

C9

The Core Strategy sets out strategic policies to manage future growth, change and
development within the Borough. The K+20 provides the framework for future development
and improvement in Kingston Town Centre by identifying key areas suitable to accommodate
development; key areas for conservation and enhancement; and environment and transport
improvements to protect the town centre from inappropriate development, whilst preserving
its character, the historic environment and the riverside.
North Kingston falls within Character Area 10 of the K+20. This Brief will help fulfill the
objectives for this character area through promoting a high quality mixed use development on
proposal sites P17-20.
Once adopted, this Brief will hold material weight in the determination of planning
applications. The Brief will provide an important framework to coordinate and guide
development and infrastructure investment within North Kingston.

Drivers for Change
The need to improve the physical and social fabric of Kingston is the key driver behind the
Council’s objective to transform priority areas within the Borough. The Council has identified a
number of major regeneration sites in the areas in the Borough.
The wider North Kingston area has been the subject of significant change in the recent past.
This will continue through Borough wide and regional initiatives. The development of the
brief area is being planned to respond to these opportunities, including:
•

The changing development context - Kingston Station has been identified as a
beneficiary of the Crossrail 2 programme. This will increase the connectivity of the
area.

•

The closure and remediation of the Gas Holders see the removal of a use which has
blighted the area.

•

The reorganisation of road network has identified the opportunity to close Kingsgate
Road.

•

Changing planning context - Kingston has been identified as an emerging Opportunity
Area.

•

Delivery of new homes - the Borough has an increasing demand for new homes. The
Council is working to ensure the capacity of well located sites such as North Kingston
are used most efficiently.

Figure Ground Plan 2015: the large voids in the urban fabric display the sites underutilisation
5

C10

The Vision
The Council want to transform this previously largely derelict part of Kingston Town Centre
into a new residential and learning mixed use quarter. We intend to initiate a development
that achieves a combination of sustainable land use change, design excellence and
commercial viability.
North Kingston will be a great place to live, benefiting from new open space for residents,
with easy access to the station. New links and connections will be created, supporting
easy, direct and more pleasant routes drawing the adjoining neighbourhoods together. Car
dominance will be reduced. The area will be supported by a rejuvenated high street. North
Kingston will also be a great place to learn, as new college buildings or associated education
facilities help attract and retain students. A striking new park at the heart of the scheme
means the new development will not only benefit the site but also existing neighbourhood.
North Kingston will be a distinctive place. Create an inclusive place of exemplary architecture
and design that responds to the area’s opportunities.

Objectives
The redevelopment of North Kingston will achieve the following objectives:
•

The delivery of new homes in a central location; support a balanced mix of market and
affordable housing that utilises the close proximity to Kingston rail and bus station;

•

Reinforce the identity of Richmond Road as a local high street, with public open space
diverse community facilities and improvements to the retail;

•

Provide modern and flexible employment space that benefits from the close proximity
to public transport, and the highly accessible highway network;

•

Deliver a new high quality public realm that promotes active movement through
well used pedestrian and cycle routes and builds on linkages to the riverside and to
Richmond Park, linking with the ‘Cycling Borough’ initiative and ‘Go Cycle’ programme
to promote sustainable transport;

•

Support the existing education uses within the Brief area;

•

Delivers environmental improvements including addressing issues of noise and air
quality.

6

October 2016

C11

Delivery Principles
The following development principles will guide the delivery within the Development Brief
area, coordinating its transformation and promoting a strategy that will unlock the site’s
potential. The aim of these principles is to bring together the fragmented land ownership
pattern into one sustainable development plan.
The Development Principles clearly set out how the Council will assess a development
proposal’s ability to secure the objectives of the brief, and will prove the basis for guiding the
Council’s intervention.
All development proposals for the North Kingston development sites will be required to
demonstrate how they meet the overarching Development Principles set out below.

Delivery Principles
•

Comprehensive - rationalisation of land ownership into appropriate sized development
parcels to ensure the area can be subject to comprehensive development. This
approach will prevent the negative effects of piecemeal development and enable the
equalisation of infrastructure and enabling costs.

•

Integrated - improving connectivity, permeability and synergy of uses between the
development parcels and developing strong visual, physical and notional linkages to
the wider area. Any development will need to help address the off-site issues which
have contributed to the current lack of integration, and

•

Intensive - the efficient use of land and sharing of uses and activities across the
development parcels, in order to optimise the development opportunity for the North
Kingston area. As a result of redevelopment the North Kingston area will be intensive
by way of amount of development, the types of development and the character of the
area.

SURY

BAS

IN

SOPWIT

H WAY

NTS

Plan showing current land ownership boundaries
7

DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY
C12

Introduction

Park
Park
Park
North
North Kingston
KingstonDevelopment
DevelopmentSite
Site
North
Kingston
Richmond
Road
Public
Richmond
RoadDevelopment
PublicSpace
Space Site
Richmond
Road Public Space
Local
Local Route
Route
Local RouteRoad High Street Widening and Dedicated Cycle Lane
Richmond
Richmond Road High Street Widening and Dedicated Cycle Lane
NTS

Concept plan
Key
Park
Park
Park Space Connection
Open
North Kingston Development Site
North Kingston Development Site
North Kingston
Development
Site
North
Kingston
Development
Site
Richmond Road Public Space
Richmond Road Public Space
RichmondLine
Road Public Space
Railway
Local Route
Local Route
Local Route Richmond Road Widening and Dedicated
Improved
Richmond Road High Street Widening and Dedicated Cycle Lane
Richmond
Cycle
LaneRoad High Street Widening and Dedicated Cycle Lane
Richmond Road High Street Widening and Dedicated Cycle Lane
Existing Pedestrian Desire Lines
Existing Pedestrian
Desire
Lines Lines
Existing
Pedestrian
Desire
Existing Pedestrian Desire Lines
Thames Path
Thames Path
Thames
Path
Thames Path
Improve Pedestrian Desire Lines to the River Thames
Improve Pedestrian Desire Lines to the River Thames
Improve Pedestrian Desire Lines to the River Thames
New Junction and Turning from Sopwith Way to Richmond Road
New Junction and Turning from Sopwith Way to Richmond Road
New Junction and Turning from Sopwith Way to Richmond Road
Realignment of Seven Kings Way
Realignment of Seven Kings Way
Realignment of Seven Kings Way
New/ Remodelled Road
New/ Remodelled Road
New/ Remodelled Road
Existing Road Network
Existing Road Network
Existing Road Network
Proposed Mini Holland Quiet Route
Proposed Mini Holland Quiet Route
Proposed Mini Holland Quiet Route
Public Transport Node (Arrival/ Interchange)
Public Transport Node (Arrival/ Interchange)
Public Transport Node (Arrival/ Interchange)
8
Gateway/ Arrival Nodal Point
Gateway/ Arrival Nodal Point
Gateway/ Arrival Nodal Point
Local Landmark Building
Local Landmark Building

Richmond
Road High Street
Widening and Dedicated Cycle Lane
Existing
Existing Pedestrian
PedestrianDesire
DesireLines
Lines
Existing Pedestrian
Desire Lines
Thames
Thames Path
Path
Thames Path
Improve
Improve Pedestrian
PedestrianDesire
DesireLines
Linestotothe
theRiver
RiverThames
Thames
Improve Pedestrian Desire Lines to the River Thames

New
Turning
from
totoRichmond
New Junction
Junctionand
andand
Turning
fromSopwith
Sopwith
Way
Richmond
Road
New
Junction
Turning
fromWay
Sopwith
WayRoad
to
New
Junction
and
Turning
from
Sopwith
Way
to
Richmond
Road
Richmond
Road
Realignment of Seven Kings Way

Realignment of Seven Kings Way

Realignment
of Seven
Kings Way
Realignment
ofRoad
Seven
Kings Way
New/
Remodelled

New/ Remodelled Road

New/ Remodelled
Road
Existing
Road
Network
Existing
Road
Network

Existing Road Network

Existing Road
Network
Proposed
Cycle
Route
Proposed
Mini
Holland
Quiet Route

Proposed Mini Holland Quiet Route

Proposed
Mini Holland
Quiet Route
Public
Transport
(Arrival/
Interchange)
Public
Transport
NodeNode
(Arrival/
Interchange)

Public Transport Node (Arrival/ Interchange)

Public
Transport
Node
Key
Area
of Interface
Gateway/
Arrival
Nodal(Arrival/
Point Interchange)

Gateway/ Arrival Nodal Point

Gateway/
ArrivalBuilding
Nodal
Point
Local
Landmark
Building
Local
Landmark

Local Landmark Building
Local Landmark Building

October 2016

C13

The Development Strategy establishes a set of urban design strategies for the site. Each
strategy covers the whole site and indicates how the sites within the development area and
the adjoining area will work together to complement the vision for North Kingston.

Development Strategy Principles
•

The new development should knit into rather than compete with the surrounding
environment;

•

The development will establish a distinct character of particular relevance to Kingston
based on an understanding of the history of the area; and

•

If brought forward separately each new building and space must relate to the emerging
character of the North Kingston area.

9

C14

Movement and Access

N
ASI
B
Y
SUR

SOPWIT

H WAY

New/ Improved Crossing
New or Remodelled Vehicular Route
NTS

Movement and Access Plan

Vehicular Route

Key
New/
Improved Crossing
New/
Improved
Crossing

Shared Space Carpark Access

New
Remodelled Vehicular
Route Route
New
ororRemodelled
Vehicular

Proposed Cycle
new ‘Quietway’
Indicative
Route Route

Existing Vehicular Movement

PedestrianPedestrian
and Cycle Onlyand
RouteCycle Only Route
Indicative

Vehicular Route
Route
Vehicular

Existing Pedestrian Movement

Proposed new ‘Quietway’ Route
Pedestrian and Cycle Only Route

10

October 2016

C15

The North Kingston area plays an important role in the local and town wide movement
network. The legacy of this means that the site is now cut off from the adjoining
neighbourhoods as a result of busy and inhospitable roads. The Movement and Access
Strategy is set out to rationalise movement around the site. The Kingston Town Centre
Movement Study (2014) tested the closure of Kingsgate Road. The existing vehicular
movement network that surrounds the site will be controlled and realigned at salient
points to ensure that the balance is redressed between vehicles, pedestrians and cyclists.
Redevelopment will ensure that pedestrians and cycles are the dominant form of movement
within the Brief area.
Public transport nodes are located at Richmond Road and Sury Basin. Routes will be designed
to link up to the surrounding movement network and public transport routes at convenient
and appropriate locations. Safe and direct crossing points will be provided at each point
where pedestrian and cycle desire lines cross principal roads.

Movement and Access Principles
•

Pedestrian movement will be prioritised along all routes within the site. Cycles will be
permitted in the linear parks.

•

The north-south route through the site will connect as directly as possible with onward
connections to the station.

•

Onwards connections off-site will be facilitated and delivered. Their design will allow
for easy and direct movement for all users.

•

Streets at the edge of the site will be humanised with the introduction of generous
footways and appropriate landscaping.

•

Richmond Road will allow two way movements whilst ensuring conflict is minimised.

•

Vehicles within the site will be kept to a minimum and will be subservient to other
movements. Vehicular access to buildings within the Brief area will be designed to
minimise impact on public space and will not be allowed to connect through the site.

•

Seven Kings Way will be widened and realigned to take up its role in better dealing
with traffic flows.

•

Two vehicular routes to travel north joining Richmond Road to be retained at all times.

11

C16

Activity and Edges

IN
BAS
Y
R
SU

SOPWIT

H WAY

NTS

Activity and Edges Plan
Key
Primary AcƟvity
Primary
Frontage
Secondary AcƟvity
Secondary
Frontage
AcƟvity Node

12

October 2016

C17

The Activity and Edges Strategy acknowledges that Richmond Road is of primary importance
in the North Kingston area as an existing designated neighbourhood centre. Any proposal
must respond to this corridor by creating new complementary uses that will enhance the offer
of Richmond Road.
Residential access will be located in appropriate and attractive points within the site. New
public space to be well-defined and addressed by uses, such as shops, cafes or residential
front doors, which act to animate space.

Activity and Edges Principles
•

The Richmond Road frontage will be fully active respecting its role as a high street.

•

All public environments will be addressed and overlooked by active uses. Blank or car
parking frontages on to streets and public spaces must be avoided.

•

Service accesses, bin stores, car park entrances and other similar poor quality
frontages must be minimised and located to reduce their impact on key primary or
secondary frontages

•

Ground floor units should be designed to ensure their future flexibility allowing them
to adapt to new users to ensure they can continued to function as active uses.

13

C18

Land Use

IN
BAS
Y
R
SU

SOPWIT

H WAY

NTS

Land Use Plan
Key
Education Use
Retail (including A2/A3) and/ or Education and Residential Use
Education and/ or Community, Residential, Retail and Open Space
Office, Commercial and Student Accommodation
Retail (including A2/A3) and/ or Community, Commercial, Residential, Car Parking and
Education Use

14

October 2016

C19

The Land Use Strategy in the North Kingston area aligns with the Kingston Town Centre Area
Action Plan (K+20) and reflect site circumstances. The land uses proposed are shown across
land ownership boundaries to enable the comprehensive redevelopment of the area, which
could not happen on a site by site basis.
Uses such as cafes or community space which encourages interaction with public spaces will
be placed at the ground and lower floors frontages in salient locations with retail uses located
to front onto Richmond Road to reinforce the activity in this important corridor. Education
uses will be located in close proximity to the already successfully established Kingston College.
The upper floor levels are identified for residential uses. This approach will create a mixed use
environment that will be active at the appropriate time during the day and evening.
The combination of these uses will reinforce the character of the Brief area as an education
led mixed use quarter on the northern edge of the Town Centre.

Land Use Principles
•

Land uses to be fully compliant with K+20.

•

Intensify mixed use throughout the site to ensure appropriate densities on in this location.

•

The Richmond Road ground floor uses must be retail, college or similar.

15

C20

Public Realm & Public Open Space

N
ASI
B
Y
SUR

SOPWIT

H WAY

NTS

Public Realm & Public Open Space Plan
Key
Public
Open
Space
Public Open
Space
(Linear/ Pocket Park)
Private
Open
Space
Private Open
Space
Semi-Private
Public Square Space
Pedestrian Access
Shared Surface Vehicular Access
Street and Crossing Improvements
Dedicated Cycle Lane
Semi-Private Space

16

October 2016

C21

New public spaces will be created in key locations throughout the development area. It will be
designed to transform the environments from car dominated thoroughfares, to spaces where
people can spend time in a safe and attractive setting. The public realm will be attractive to
use for people of all ages and ability. The public open space will provide a respite from the
busier more active areas.
The design of public space will be responsive to its intended use and role in the site. New
public space in proximity to Richmond Road and the station will be robust to cater for a range
activities. In contrast the public park will encourage biodiversity catering for more recreational
and amenity activities. New public spaces will need to accommodate an appropriate means of
dealing with water drainage to support biodiversity and address climatic issues.
All new spaces will have a clear purpose and design concept responsive to the emerging
character of the area. The quality of the spaces will encourage people to use them and to
overlook them, creating valuable amenity for the North Kingston area, addressing the deficit
of quality, well used public space in the area. New spaces and streets should be located at the
confluence of these networks, in order to capture footfall and provide space in areas where it
will be most easy to access.

Public Realm & Public Open Space Principles
•

New open space will address the deficit in the locality. New space must serve the
needs of the community in and around the site.

•

With the removal of Kingsgate Road, the new public spaces will be vehicle free,
allowing safe and easy pedestrian and cycle movement.

•

All new public space must be guided by a clear design concept related to its function(s)
within the sites wider open space strategy.

•

All new public space must be accessible and inclusive for all users.

•

New public realm and open space must be designed with due regard to microclimate.

•

New public realm must help deal with excess water and must incorporate on-site
mitigation.

•

New public spaces will be planned and maintained to encourage biodiversity

17

C22

Development Form and Massing

IN
BAS
Y
R
SU

SOPWIT

H WAY

NTS

Heights Plan
Key
Up to maximum 12 Storeys
8+ Storeys
Up
to 9 Storeys
4-7 Storeys
Storeys
4-7

1-3
1-3 Storeys
Storeys

Please note: All ‘storey’ heights are inclusive of ground floor

18

October 2016

C23

The North Kingston area is located between areas of differing massing and urban form. Any
development on this site must respond to its context, while acknowledging the scope for
appropriate innovation. It is anticipated that the North Kingston area will establish its own
character, drawing on the site’s history and context. Given the relatively small scale of the site
it is envisaged that development on any part of the site will respond to a singular emerging
character of the whole.
Development form and building heights will need to take into account the impact on
surrounding areas and existing townscape notably the scale difference between recent
developments and Richmond Road.
Development form and massing of buildings will need to be considered closely alongside
the spaces they frame. A key objective with regard to height and form is to ensure that the
shading of central areas and the public park is minimised. Any development will need to
justify the height from many perspectives, including but not limited to architectural merit and
the overall visual impact from within and outside the development area, including protected
key views.
The frontage along Richmond Road will be enhanced to create a high quality northern
approach to the Town Centre successfully incorporating the existing buildings of townscape
merit at Kingston College and the listed Former Gala Bingo building. Development should
acknowledge the confluence of Richmond Road and Sopwith Way, demarcating this corner
with the Former Gala Bingo listed building and the Station Gateway.
Development Form and Massing Principles
•

The proposed development form must understand and respond to the prevailing development
form in the area.

•

Proposed development form will derive from a comprehensive masterplan approach.

•

Building heights must respond to the surrounding area and must not negatively impact on
neighbouring properties or spaces. This is especially the case with regard to locally and statutory
listed buildings.

•

The location and design of any taller buildings, ‘landmarks’ or ‘gateways’ must be explained and
fully justified by a thorough townscape appraisal.

•

Any tall buildings must respond to their role and must be of high architectural quality to justify
their increased prominence. Any prominent building must be of exceptional design quality, in line
with national best practice*. Outline applications for tall buildings will not be acceptable.

•

Development form must not negatively affect the microclimate of proposed or existing public
realm (including impact on sunlight/daylight and wind).

•

Building heights must respect key strategic and local views. Proposed buildings must positively
contribute to the panorama and key views as noted in the K+20 and Core Strategy, and provide
accurate visual representations alongside a robust assessment of the impact on these views.

•

Any new building must be fit for purpose in accordance with the Council’s design guidance.

•

The design of buildings and public realm (including the alignment of streets) must help with
wayfinding for those who are familiar with or new to the area

•

All new development must celebrate existing local buildings of special quality, including Kingston
College’s main building and the listed Gala Bingo building, including in views along Richmond Road.
* Including Historic England Advice Note 4 (2015)
19

DELIVERY

C24

Introduction
The purpose of the Development Brief is to coordinate development proposals across the site
area. Any development coming forward must adhere to the Development Parcels identified.
The Council expects applicants to wholly control the sites – either through ownership, option
agreement or joint venture partnerships. Development coming forward outside of these
parcels will be deemed as piecemeal and/or premature.
If areas identified within the Development Brief prove difficult to unlock, the Council is
prepared to utilise its available planning powers in order to effect change. The Council
also proposes using its land ownership interests to contribute towards the comprehensive
transformation of the area, either through land amalgamation, land exchange, joint venture or
redevelopment of its own land individually or combined with neighbouring land parcels.
Phasing will be determined to ensure that development is coordinated and comprehensive
and delivers key land uses. The Council welcomes discussions with landowners and investors
based upon the principles set out in this Development Strategy.

Development Parcels Principles
•

The proposed development should accord with the parcels identified

•

Must identify how each phase of development will allow North Kingston to operate
at a successful place

•

Must not frustrate the long term delivery of wider development objectives

20

October 2016

C25

Development Parcels
The nature and scale of the Development Parcels created form a fundamental aspect of
the Development Brief. They outline the rationalisation of land ownership boundaries into
clearly defined areas that can be brought forward in different or complementary phases,
contributing to the overall regeneration of the North Kingston area. Parcels can be combined
in delivery terms and the Council will encourage this approach. However, development cannot
be delivered in smaller or piecemeal sizes than the areas defined within this plan, as this will
contravene the comprehensive approach to regeneration for the North Kingston area.

N
ASI
B
Y
SUR

SOPWIT

H WAY

NTS

Development Parcels Plan
Key
Parcel Boundary
Potential Phasing

21

C26

Safeguarding
Areas of the site will need to be safeguarded for public realm and movement and access that
are required to support the redevelopment proposals for the Brief area. Most importantly
this safeguarding is required for the realignment and widening of the surrounding movement
network at salient points. Without this the ability to deliver long term change in the area will
be frustrated. Key to unlocking this are the junctions at Sopwith Way with Seven Kings Way
and Sopwith Way with Richmond Road. Seven Kings Way will be widened and realigned at
northern and southern points to enable better flow through for traffic and safer environment
for pedestrians and cyclists. Richmond Road will also see the introduction of an additional
lane and dedicated cycle lane to improved access to/ from Sopwith Way. Space will be
safeguarded along Sopwith Way to ensure future two-way working can be accommodated,
ensuring the Council can deliver its preferred transport option as identified by the Town
Centre Movement Study (2014).
North Kingston falls within an identified area of Archaeological Significance. Robust
exploratory investigations to determine if significant remains are present on site must be
undertaken and should define their character, extent, quality and preservation.

N
ASI
B
Y
SUR

SOPWIT

H WAY

NTS

Safeguarding Plan

Key

Area safeguarded for highway
Area safeguarded for access, public open space or public realm

22

October 2016

C27

Developer Contributions
The Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) was
formally introduced on 1 November 2015. Accordingly from that date, the principal means by
which developments contribute towards infrastructure provision in the Borough of Kingston is
via CIL. The Kingston CIL will be charged on all applicable development.
Under Regulation 123 of the CIL Regulations, the Council is required to publish a list of
the projects that it intends to finance, in whole or in part, using CIL receipts. The purpose
of the list is to ensure that developers do not end up paying twice for the same piece of
infrastructure.
Planning Obligations under S106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, and highways
agreements under S278 of the Highways Act 1980 and in accordance with the Community
Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 will continue to  secure affordable housing, mitigate the
local impact of development and address non-infrastructure requirements.
The Mayoral CIL will continue to be charged on all applicable developments.

23

DESIGN FRAMEWORK
C28

Introduction

IN
BAS
Y
R
SU

New/ Improved Crossing

SOPWITNew or Remodelled Vehicular Route
H WAY
Existing Vehicular Movement
New/ Improved
Vehicular
Route Crossing
New or Remodelled
Vehicular Route
Potential
Cycle Only Route
Existing Vehicular
Movement
Potential
Shared Space
Route
VehicularQuiet
RouteWay
Proposed
Potential Cycle
Only Only
RouteRoute
Pedestrian
and Cycle
Potential
Shared Space
Route
Existing
Pedestrian
Movement

NTS

Proposed
Quiet
WayBuildings
Key
Views to
Marker

Design Framework Plan
KEY

Pedestrian
Cycle
Only Route
Key
Views toand
Open
Space

New/ Improved Crossing
New/
Improved
Crossing
New/
Improved
Crossing
New or
Remodelled
Vehicular Route

Existing
Pedestrian
Movement
Existing
Pedestrian
Movement
Local
Landmark
Buildings

New
or
Remodelled
Vehicular
Route Route
New/
Remodelled
Vehicular
Existing
Vehicular Movement

Key Views
to Marker Buildings
Primary
Activity
Primary
Activity

Existing
Vehicular
Existing
Vehicular
Movement
Vehicular
Route Movement

Key ViewsActivity
to Activity
Open Space
Secondary
Secondary
Local Landmark
Activity
Node Buildings

Vehicular
Route
Vehicular
Route
Potential Cycle
Only Route
Potential
Cycle
Only
Route
Potential
Shared
Space
RouteAccess
Shared
Space
Car
Park

Primary Activity

Potential
Space
Route
ProposedShared
Quiet
Way
Indicative
Cycle
Route

Secondary Activity

Proposed
Way Only Route
PedestrianQuiet
and Cycle
Indicative
Pedestrian
and Cycle Route Only

Activity Node

Pedestrian
and CycleMovement
Only Route
Existing Pedestrian
Existing
Pedestrian
Movement
Key Views
to Marker
Buildings
Key
Buildings
Key Views
Views to
to Marker
Open Space
Key
to Open
Space
LocalViews
Landmark
Buildings
Local
Landmark
Primary
ActivityBuildings

24

October 2016

C29

The Design Framework sets out how the future development of the site can help achieve the
Council’s vision and fulfil the objectives set out earlier in this document. This should be read in
conjunction with Delivery Principles and Development Strategy section of this Brief.
Framework plan:
•

Richmond Road

•

North South linear park

•

East West linear park

•

High quality learning environment

•

High quality living environment

•

Surrounding infrastructure

•

Humanise surrounding streets

25

C30

Richmond Road

New/ Improved Crossing
New or Remodelled Vehicular Route

KEY

New/ Improved
Existing
VehicularCrossing
Movement
New/ Improved Crossing

New
Remodelled
Vehicular Route
New/
Improved
Crossing
Vehicular
Route Crossing
New/or
Improved
New or Remodelled Vehicular Route

Existing
Vehicular
Potential
Cycle OnlyMovement
Route
New/
Remodelled
Vehicular
New or
Remodelled
Vehicular
Route Route
Existing Vehicular Movement

Vehicular
Route Space
Potential
Shared
Route
Existing
Vehicular
Movement
Existing Vehicular
Movement
Vehicular Route

Potential
Cycle
Only Route
Proposed
Way
VehicularQuiet
Route
Vehicular
Route
Potential Cycle Only Route

Potential
Shared
Space
Route
Pedestrian
and Cycle
Only
Route
Potential
Cycle
Only
Route
Shared
Space
Car
Park
Access
Potential Shared Space Route

IN
BAS
SURY

Proposed
Quiet
Way
Existing
Pedestrian
Movement
Potential
Shared
Space
Route
Indicative
Cycle
Route
Proposed Quiet Way

Pedestrian
and
Cycle
Only Route
Key
Views to
Marker
Proposed
Quiet
WayBuildings
Indicative
Pedestrian
and Cycle
Pedestrian
and
Cycle
Only Route
Route
Only
Existing
Movement
Key
ViewsPedestrian
toand
Open
Space
Pedestrian
Cycle
Only Route
Existing Pedestrian Movement
Existing
Pedestrian
Movement
Key
Views
to Marker
Buildings
Local
Landmark
Buildings
Existing
Pedestrian
Movement
Key Views to Marker Buildings
Primary
Activity
Key
to
Space
Primary
Activity
Key Views
Views
to Open
Marker
Buildings
Key Views to Open Space
Secondary
Local
Landmark
Buildings
Secondary
Activity
Key Views
toActivity
Open
Space
Local Landmark Buildings
Primary
Activity Buildings
Activity
Node
Local
Landmark
Primary Activity
Secondary
Activity
Primary Activity
Secondary Activity
Activity
Node
Secondary
Activity
Activity Node
Activity Node

SOPWIT

H WAY

NTS

Design Framework Plan : Richmond Road
Existing
Richmond Road today functions as a High Street, with local and national retail outlets,
restaurants cafes and bars at ground floor mixed with residential and office at first floor level.
Behind the street on the east side are also commercial yards. It is a true mixed use area.
Richmond Road also functions as a busy movement route for cyclists and pedestrians due
to its direct connection to the station and town centre. The current condition of pavements
(width) and cycle lanes (quality and on-ward connection) is poor, and must be improved as
part of the wider changes to the North Kingston area.
Richmond Road forms part of the Kingston inner ring road. This places challenges on the
development in terms of gaining greater connectivity across the street, and allowing both
sides of Richmond Road to function together as a (High) Street.
Richmond Road is the address for Kingston College. It attracts students by bus and on foot.
Richmond Road has its own character. The character of the area, despite diverse building
forms and heights, is as a unified environment. It is currently blighted by the amount and
nature of the traffic, the lower quality buildings along certain stretches as well as the poor
quality public realm, especially the footpaths.

26

October 2016

C31

Future
The future for Richmond Road is to act as an ‘improved’ High Street, continuing to support
the local area with its mix of retail, leisure and commercial uses. Any new development must
support this. New development must understand and respond to the character of Richmond
Road, particularly further north where the scale, rhythm, use and detail refelct the historic
importance and character of this route.
The Council welcome the extension and consolidation of education uses. Active uses at
ground floor, with primary frontage onto Richmond Road, is essential. A mixed use model with
homes located above commercial, retail, cafe/resturant or leisure use is the preferred option.
The future of the North Kingston area should make space for students to congregate, relax
and spend time (see 4. High quality learning environment).
With changes to the function of Richmond Road, and its place in the wider road network
there will be opportunities to limit the negative impact of traffic. The future of Richmond
Road is to act as a movement corridor for bikes and pedestrians. The width of public realm
(both pavements and cycle ways) must be increased to improve flow and ease of movement.
The width of the street (building line to building line) will be a minimum of 17m, allowing
generous space for movement, shopping and ground floor uses to occupy elements of the
street (without conflicting each other).
The determining factor of height in this environment will be its role in supporting the street.
Delivery
With the closure of Kingsgate Road the operation of Richmond Road will change. Any planning
of new development on the western edge of Richmond Road must allow for the widening and
realignment of the highway to allow left turn access from Sopwith Way into Richmond Road,
the widening of footpaths and cycleways and the inclusion of new vehicle lane to Richmond
Road.
Any new development must:
•

Provide active frontages onto Richmond Road at 100%;

•

Must fall in line with land uses plan: Ground Floor (predominantly A1 retail uses) above
First Floor (residential);

•

Create attractive and safe walking and cycling routes, in addition to space for
circulation, shopping and lingering;

•

The scale of development should respond to the site’s wider role in the transition from
the character areas to the east and west; and

•

The plot width of development (at ground floor) should support the rhythm of the
High Street and historic character of this route.

27

C32

North South Linear Park

New/ Improved Crossing
New or Remodelled Vehicular Route
New/ Improved
Existing
VehicularCrossing
Movement
New/ Improved Crossing

New
Remodelled
Vehicular Route
New/
Improved
Crossing
Vehicular
Route Crossing
New/or
Improved
New or Remodelled Vehicular Route

Existing
Vehicular
Potential
Cycle OnlyMovement
Route
New/
Remodelled
Vehicular
New or
Remodelled
Vehicular
Route Route
Existing Vehicular Movement

Vehicular
Route Space
Potential
Shared
Route
Existing
Vehicular
Movement
Existing Vehicular
Movement
Vehicular Route

Potential
Cycle
Only Route
Proposed
Way
VehicularQuiet
Route
Vehicular
Route
Potential Cycle Only Route

Potential
Shared
Space
Route
Pedestrian
and Cycle
Only
Route
Potential
Cycle
Only
Route
Shared
Space
Car
Park
Access
Potential Shared Space Route

IN
BAS
SURY

Proposed
Quiet
Way
Existing
Pedestrian
Movement
Potential
Shared
Space
Route
Indicative
Cycle
Route
Proposed Quiet Way

Pedestrian
and
Cycle
Only Route
Key
Views to
Marker
Proposed
Quiet
WayBuildings
Indicative
Pedestrian
and Cycle
Pedestrian
and
Cycle
Only Route
Route
Only
Existing
Movement
Key
ViewsPedestrian
toand
Open
Space
Pedestrian
Cycle
Only Route
Existing Pedestrian Movement
Existing
Pedestrian
Movement
Key
Views
to Marker
Buildings
Local
Landmark
Buildings
Existing
Pedestrian
Movement
Key Views to Marker Buildings
Primary
Activity
Key
to
Space
Primary
Activity
Key Views
Views
to Open
Marker
Buildings
Key Views to Open Space
Secondary
Local
Landmark
Buildings
Secondary
Activity
Key Views
toActivity
Open
Space
Local Landmark Buildings
Primary
Activity Buildings
Activity
Node
Local
Landmark
Primary Activity
Secondary
Activity
Primary Activity
Secondary Activity
Activity
Node
Secondary
Activity
Activity Node
Activity Node

SOPWIT

H WAY

NTS

Design Framework Plan : North South Linear Park
Existing
The North Kingston area is deficient in public open space.
North south movement through the area for pedestrians and cyclists is pushed to the edges
of the site, limited to the busy and constricted Richmond Road, or the Seven Kings Way and
connects with the equally busy and challenging Sopwith Way.
Walter Street is uninviting with back of house infrastructure and access to surface car park.     
Future
The primary role of the linear park is to provide much needed high quality public open space
thereby mitigating the impact of the development on existing deficit. This park will also act
as a pleasant and attractive North-South connection for local residents and others moving
through the area. The route should be efficient in delivering people where they want to go.
At the southern end this must align (as best as practicable) with new and improved crossing
points towards the station.
The park has an additional role as a setting for the residential buildings, and should provide
space for future residents (old and young) to congregate and enjoy. This is especially the case
at the northern end where the footfall through the area will likely be less.
28

October 2016

C33

The park will be a public space and should feel so, with clear and visible onward links. It
should also be physically and theoretically accessible to all. The North South park should not
be seen as the foreground for private buildings or private spaces.
The park will be addressed by residential frontages and accesses to provide a pleasant
setting for homeowners and activity within the space. Ground floor units will be provided
with private amenity space, and will have front-doors onto the park. Bin stores and other
similar uses will not be considered as active frontage and should be located to minimise their
negative impact on public space.
The whole park will operate as a pedestrian and cycle friendly area; the intrusion of cars into
the linear park will be kept to an absolute minimum. Care must be taken in locating car park
and other accesses to limit vehicle movement through the space, and limit access ramps
negatively impacting on the visual and functional aspects of the park. Access ramps will be
located predominantly within the private realm.
The southern end of the park will be more heavily trafficked by pedestrians and cyclists. This
increased activity will be borne out in its design.
Issues of scale a mass of adjoining properties will be considered with relation to their impact
on the quality of the environment by means of appropriate enclosure (without feeling
oppressive) and the effect on microclimate (including wind, sunlight and daylight).
Delivery
With the commencement of development on the Gas Holder site the developer will be
designing and delivering the first phase of the linear park (north of Kingsgate Road). The linear
park can only be completed with the closure of Kingsgate Road, and the subsequent delivery
of sites to the south.
The north-south park should be planned and delivered as a holistic environment and should
look and feel like a single consistent environment regardless of how it is delivered or by
whom.
The success of the park will be intimately linked to the successful delivery of off-site
infrastructure and improvement to crossing points and junctions.
Any new development must:
•

Be available to all members of the public

•

Provide safe access and movement for pedestrians and cyclist

•

Provide connection to onward links

•

Be predominantly green in character

•

Address issues of microclimate to ensure all public realm is attractive and fit for purpose
(including the impact of scale of buildings on wind movement and shadowing)

•

Be predominantly addressed by active frontages including front doors to residential or other units
at ground floor

•

Take the opportunity to: deal positively with water; encourage biodiversity

29

C34

East West Linear Park

New/ Improved Crossing
New or Remodelled Vehicular Route

KEY

New/ Improved
Existing
VehicularCrossing
Movement
New/ Improved Crossing

New
Remodelled
Vehicular Route
New/
Improved
Crossing
Vehicular
Route Crossing
New/or
Improved
New or Remodelled Vehicular Route

Existing
Vehicular
Potential
Cycle OnlyMovement
Route
New/
Remodelled
Vehicular
New or
Remodelled
Vehicular
Route Route
Existing Vehicular Movement

Vehicular
Route Space
Potential
Shared
Route
Existing
Vehicular
Movement
Existing Vehicular
Movement
Vehicular Route

Potential
Cycle
Only Route
Proposed
Way
VehicularQuiet
Route
Vehicular
Route
Potential Cycle Only Route

Potential
Shared
Space
Route
Pedestrian
and Cycle
Only
Route
Potential
Cycle
Only
Route
Shared
Space
Car
Park
Access
Potential Shared Space Route

IN
BAS
SURY

Proposed
Quiet
Way
Existing
Pedestrian
Movement
Potential
Shared
Space
Route
Indicative
Cycle
Route
Proposed Quiet Way

Pedestrian
and
Cycle
Only Route
Key
Views to
Marker
Proposed
Quiet
WayBuildings
Indicative
Pedestrian
and Cycle
Pedestrian
and
Cycle
Only Route
Route
Only
Existing
Movement
Key
ViewsPedestrian
toand
Open
Space
Pedestrian
Cycle
Only Route
Existing Pedestrian Movement
Existing
Pedestrian
Movement
Key
Views
to Marker
Buildings
Local
Landmark
Buildings
Existing
Pedestrian
Movement
Key Views to Marker Buildings
Primary
Activity
Key
to
Space
Primary
Activity
Key Views
Views
to Open
Marker
Buildings
Key Views to Open Space
Secondary
Local
Landmark
Buildings
Secondary
Activity
Key Views
toActivity
Open
Space
Local Landmark Buildings
Primary
Activity Buildings
Activity
Node
Local
Landmark
Primary Activity
Secondary
Activity
Primary Activity
Secondary Activity
Activity
Node
Secondary
Activity
Activity Node
Activity Node

SOPWIT

H WAY

NTS

Design Framework Plan : East West Linear Park
Existing
Partly as a result of the history of the area and the legacy of roads and infrastructure, the
North Kingston area is particularly hard to traverse east-west (these routes are limited and of
generally poor quality). This has not been improved by the recent developments to the west
of Seven Kings Way. There are however clear desire lines, from existing residential areas to
the east of Richmond Road, and Canbury Gardens and the River Thames to the west.
Future
The park has a role as a setting for the residential, commercial and educational buildings, and
should provide space for future residents and users to congregate and enjoy.
The park will be a public space and should feel so, with clear and visible onward links. It
should also be physically and theoretically accessible to everyone. Residential frontages
must address the park with direct access to provide a pleasant setting for homeowners
and enhance activity and natural surveillance within the space. Ground floor units will be
provided with private amenity space, and will have front-doors onto the park. Bin stores and
other similar uses will not be considered as active frontage and should be located to minimise
their negative impact on public space.

30

October 2016

C35

The whole park will operate as a pedestrian and cycle friendly area; the intrusion of cars into
the linear park will be kept to an absolute minimum.
The Eastern end of the park will be more heavily trafficked by pedestrians and cyclists. This
increased activity will be borne out in its design. This space will also have a clear functional
relationship with Kingston College and Richmond Road.
Issues of scale a mass of adjoining properties will be considered with relation to their impact
on the quality of the environment by means of appropriate enclosure (without feeling
oppressive) and the effect on microclimate (including wind, sunlight and daylight).
Delivery
With the commencement of development on the Gas Holder site the developer will be
designing and delivering the first buildings which will address the park. The linear park
can only be completed with the closure of Kingsgate Road, but can come forward prior
to the commencement of sites to the South of Kingsgate Road. Following the consent
of development on the Gas Holder site, and the location of the parking ramp to this
development in the public realm, any new development to the south will have to work even
harder to ensure the quality of the space at this point, not least the generosity afforded to
pedestrian and cycle spaces.
The east-west park should be planned and delivered as a holistic environment and should
look and feel like a single consistent environment regardless of how it is delivered or by
whom.
This area will have to address questions of access to underground statutory services which
may exist in the area of Kingsgate Road.
The success of the park will be intimately linked to the successful delivery of off-site
infrastructure and improvement to crossing points and junctions. A critical element of this
will be the expanded junction between Seven Kings Way and Sopwith Way. Here it will be
essential to ensure that crossing points for cycles and pedestrians function as safe and fluidly
as possible to provide good levels of accessibility and ensure the desirability of this route.
The closure of Kingsgate Road will be brought forward by the Council to ensure its
deliverability.
Any new development must:
•

Be available to all members of the public

•

Provide safe access and movement for pedestrians and cyclist

•

Provide connection to onward links

•

Be predominantly addressed by active frontages including front doors to residential or
other units at ground floor

•

Respond to the uses which adjoin it including accommodating the college, its students
and visitors.

•

Address issues of microclimate to ensure all public realm is attractive and fit for purpose
(including the impact of scale of buildings on wind movement and shadowing)

31

C36

High Quality Learning Environment
Existing
North Kingston has for a long time been home to learning institutions. Today the Kingston
College is jointly housed in its historic building as well as the recently completed Creative
Industries Centre. This, coupled with the provision of a catering college restaurant on the
Gasholder site, creates a growing learning hub. The redevelopment of adjoining sites provides
the opportunity for growth of related uses, capitalising on the success of the college.
Future
There is scope for North Kingston to build on the success of its education institutions. Any
new education buildings will need to be of the highest quality as learning environments for
their students, as well as playing a successful role in the townscape of North Kingston, be it
framing new public routes or ensuring it does not have a negative impact on its neighbours.
Colleges and other places of learning need to be complemented with appropriate public realm
to support their operation. Given the intensive use of certain buildings at key points in the day
the public realm will need to be appropriately robust. Consideration should be given to how
education buildings can be of use to the wider community, through their design, management
or operation. The compatibility of these users with the demands of other users, especially
residents, should be explored and tested through the design of new public spaces.
Access and delivery requirements need to be balanced with the effect these uses can have
on the public domain. Such spaces should be designed as public space first, with a secondary
function to allow intermittent access for vehicles.
Delivery
The land uses identified in K+20 and reiterated in this brief support the delivery of education
uses.
To ensure education uses on site are not compromised by negative environmental impacts,
including noise and air quality, applicants will need to work with the Council to develop means
to satisfactorily address these issues.

Kingston College, Richmond Road

Burntwood School, Wandsworth, AHMM Architects
32

October 2016

C37

High Quality Living Environment
Existing
North Kingston’s history as an area of industrial uses (especially gas storage) and the
domination of main road has meant that it has not been sympathetic to residential
development. The site is however neighboured to the east and west residential
neighbourhoods.
Future
Amongst the Objectives noted in this document is the delivery of new homes in a central
location. Given the proximity of the North Kingston site to the town centre, Kingston Station
and other sustainable methods of transport, and easy access to existing and proposed  areas
of recreation and leisure, it is well located to accommodate new homes. The future of North
Kingston is already changing. With the commencement of development of the Gas Holder site
the area is becoming a residential environment for the first time.
With the intensive redevelopment of the site there is a need to pay particular attention to the
density on development and its impact on the livability and neighbourliness of homes which
will be delivered in proximity to each other. Good levels of sunlight and daylight into homes
and public spaces are crucial.
Design and layout of proposed development will emerge from a careful analysis of the
existing character of the locality and minimised environmental impact. New residential
buildings should be supported with appropriate open space and private amenity space. This
is envisaged to be provided by the two linear parks. As such these spaces must be designed
to support residential use, and their occupation by the future residents. Access to buildings
should be appropriately located to ensure good levels of activity and overlooking. Any new
homes must be of high quality for occupiers, reduce negative impacts on the surrounding
environment while also supporting the development principles.
The site will provide new homes for families, and must comply with the requirement of
larger units within new developments in line with the Core Strategy. This will add a further
dimension to the design and use of spaces between buildings, ensuring that space is made
available for younger as well as older residents. The provision of affordable homes on site
must comply with policies set out in the London Plan and the Local Plan.
Delivery
The delivery of a high quality living environment is critical to ensuring attractive, functional
and sustainable homes. Developers will need to fully demonstrate proposals are well designed
and meet best practice guidelines.
To ensure new homes on site are not compromised by negative environmental impacts,
including noise and air quality, applicants will need to work with the Council to develop means
to satisfactorily address these issues.

33

C38

Surrounding Infrastructure

New/ Improved Crossing
New or Remodelled Vehicular Route

KEY

New/ Improved
Existing
VehicularCrossing
Movement
New/ Improved Crossing

New
Remodelled
Vehicular Route
New/
Improved
Crossing
Vehicular
Route Crossing
New/or
Improved
New or Remodelled Vehicular Route

Existing
Vehicular
Potential
Cycle OnlyMovement
Route
New/
Remodelled
Vehicular
New or
Remodelled
Vehicular
Route Route
Existing Vehicular Movement

Vehicular
Route Space
Potential
Shared
Route
Existing
Vehicular
Movement
Existing Vehicular
Movement
Vehicular Route

Potential
Cycle
Only Route
Proposed
Way
VehicularQuiet
Route
Vehicular
Route
Potential Cycle Only Route

Potential
Shared
Space
Route
Pedestrian
and Cycle
Only
Route
Potential
Cycle
Only
Route
Shared
Space
Car
Park
Access
Potential Shared Space Route

IN
BAS
SURY

Proposed
Quiet
Way
Existing
Pedestrian
Movement
Potential
Shared
Space
Route
Indicative
Cycle
Route
Proposed Quiet Way

Pedestrian
and
Cycle
Only Route
Key
Views to
Marker
Proposed
Quiet
WayBuildings
Indicative
Pedestrian
and Cycle
Pedestrian
and
Cycle
Only Route
Route
Only
Existing
Movement
Key
ViewsPedestrian
toand
Open
Space
Pedestrian
Cycle
Only Route
Existing Pedestrian Movement
Existing
Pedestrian
Movement
Key
Views
to Marker
Buildings
Local
Landmark
Buildings
Existing
Pedestrian
Movement
Key Views to Marker Buildings
Primary
Activity
Key
to
Space
Primary
Activity
Key Views
Views
to Open
Marker
Buildings
Key Views to Open Space
Secondary
Local
Landmark
Buildings
Secondary
Activity
Key Views
toActivity
Open
Space
Local Landmark Buildings
Primary
Activity Buildings
Activity
Node
Local
Landmark
Primary Activity
Secondary
Activity
Primary Activity
Secondary Activity
Activity
Node
Secondary
Activity
Activity Node
Activity Node

SOPWIT

H WAY

NTS

Design Framework Plan : Surrounding Infrastructure
Existing
Due to poor connections alongside the dominance of roads and traffic as well as the historic
use of the site, the North Kingston area has effectively operated as an island. This has
required those pedestrians and cyclists who wish to visit the site or move through the area to
tackle crossing roads and other barriers which are not designed for them.
Future
The desire to knit the North Kingston area into its surrounding neighbourhoods is critical to
the success of the renewed area. One of the guiding development principles of the site is
to ensure its integration including improving connectivity, permeability and synergy of uses
between the development parcels, with strong links to the wider area.

34

October 2016

C39

While the internal site planning of the area can ensure movement routes for pedestrians
through the site, the real success of this ambition will only be borne out if these new
environments link seamlessly and efficiently with their surroundings to ensure ease of
movement to key destinations. There are key places where these connections need to be
made. These must be the focus of concerted effort to humanise them, ensuring priority is
given to pedestrians and cyclists as opposed to making them attractive spaces in their own
right.
Safety of all users will be a primary consideration, this principle must be practically and
rationally applied to ensure that the design of spaces are not over engineered (with barriers
or other additional infrastructure and clutter) at the expense of creating both safe and
pleasant spaces.
These environments will still form a critical part of the movement of private and public
vehicles around the town, and must carefully balance the competing demands of all users.
Critical points of conflict to be addressed include both ends of the east-west linear park
(Richmond Road and Seven Kings Way), and the link between north-south across (Sopwith
way and Sury Basin).
Delivery
The delivery of off-site infrastructure is critical to the success of the wider aspirations of
the development brief. Developers and other partners will need work together to facilitate
appropriate and deliverable solutions.
The Council will help bring about these changes.
The redesign and realignment of Seven Kings Way/Sopwith Way and Sopwith Way/Richmond
Road offers opportunity for necessary and meaning improvements to the pedestrian and cycle
experience.
To ensure new homes on site are not compromised by negative environmental impacts,
including noise and air quality, applicants will need to work with the Council to develop means
to satisfactorily address these issues.

Any new development must:
•

Respond to desire lines through providing direct links

•

Be safe and attractive to use

•

Respond to other infrastructure initiatives which seek to improve the area (including cycle
and other improvements)

•

Respond to the character of the area (or where justified develop their own particular
character).

35

C40

Humanise Surrounding Streets

New/ Improved Crossing
New or Remodelled Vehicular Route

KEY

New/ Improved
Existing
VehicularCrossing
Movement
New/ Improved Crossing

New
Remodelled
Vehicular Route
New/
Improved
Crossing
Vehicular
Route Crossing
New/or
Improved
New or Remodelled Vehicular Route

Existing
Vehicular
Potential
Cycle OnlyMovement
Route
New/
Remodelled
Vehicular
New or
Remodelled
Vehicular
Route Route
Existing Vehicular Movement

Vehicular
Route Space
Potential
Shared
Route
Existing
Vehicular
Movement
Existing Vehicular
Movement
Vehicular Route

Potential
Cycle
Only Route
Proposed
Way
VehicularQuiet
Route
Vehicular
Route
Potential Cycle Only Route

Potential
Shared
Space
Route
Pedestrian
and Cycle
Only
Route
Potential
Cycle
Only
Route
Shared
Space
Car
Park
Access
Potential Shared Space Route

IN
BAS
SURY

Proposed
Quiet
Way
Existing
Pedestrian
Movement
Potential
Shared
Space
Route
Indicative
Cycle
Route
Proposed Quiet Way

Pedestrian
and
Cycle
Only Route
Key
Views to
Marker
Proposed
Quiet
WayBuildings
Indicative
Pedestrian
and Cycle
Pedestrian
and
Cycle
Only Route
Route
Only
Existing
Movement
Key
ViewsPedestrian
toand
Open
Space
Pedestrian
Cycle
Only Route
Existing Pedestrian Movement
Existing
Pedestrian
Movement
Key
Views
to Marker
Buildings
Local
Landmark
Buildings
Existing
Pedestrian
Movement
Key Views to Marker Buildings
Primary
Activity
Key
to
Space
Primary
Activity
Key Views
Views
to Open
Marker
Buildings
Key Views to Open Space
Secondary
Local
Landmark
Buildings
Secondary
Activity
Key Views
toActivity
Open
Space
Local Landmark Buildings
Primary
Activity Buildings
Activity
Node
Local
Landmark
Primary Activity
Secondary
Activity
Primary Activity
Secondary Activity
Activity
Node
Secondary
Activity
Activity Node
Activity Node

SOPWIT

H WAY

NTS

Design Framework Plan : Humanise Surrounding Streets
Existing
North Kingston has long been blighted by the scale and nature of the roads that surround
it. Sopwith Way is currently a car dominated environment. Development in the area has
historically not engaged with Sopwith Way as a street. This is exacerbated by the current
isolation that the sites on the north-side suffer from due to Kingsgate Road. The development
brief seeks to address this by closing Kingsgate Road in order to create a safer and more
desirable pedestrian environment.
The particular function of Richmond Road has been referred to earlier (pg. 38-39), this place
focuses on the other surrounding streets including Sopwith Way, Seven Kings Way and Sury
Basin.

36

October 2016

C41

Future
The future for this area needs to help change the surrounding environments from car
dominated roads to streets which feel more comfortable and attractive to walk along.
Sopwith Way is a busy route which means it is also highly visible to the many motorists who
use it. Development on the north side needs to play a role in enclosing and addressing this
street to help humanise this environment. This can best be done by presenting an active
frontage onto this route. The road will continue to be a main route. The future for Sopwith
Way is as a High Road, in that it will need to carry a lot of traffic, but still has a high ‘place
function’.
It is equally vital that the surrounding streets do not become secondary or leftover
environments, or viewed as being appropriate for ‘back of house’ facilitates such as bin
stores and service access. The role of front doors on the ground floor street edge, gardens,
street trees and vegetation must all be considered and employed were necessary in helping
humanise streets.
Delivery
The first stage in humanising the environment will be in the removal of Kingsgate Road which
severs the site. In addition the realignment of Seven Kings Way must be done in such a way to
ensure there is ample space for pedestrians and street trees, as demanded by the particular
design approach.
The development of sites which face onto Sopwith Way, Seven Kings Road and Sury Basin
will be carried out in such a way as to ensure that it can provide an engaging frontages on to
these key routes. A masterplan approach will allow issues of access, servicing, parking and bin
storage to be dealt with in a holistic way. Land adjoining Sopwith Way must be safeguarded to
facilitate the future operation of this street in line with the Town Centre Movement Study.
To ensure new or improved streets are not compromised by negative environmental impacts,
including noise and air quality, applicants will need to work with council to develop means to
satisfactorily address these issues.

Any new development must:
•

Be addressed by active frontages (and not negatively effected by back of house functions)

•

Maximise the opportunity to incorporate trees and other landscape

•

Help improve environmental quality (addressing noise and air pollution)

•

Provide appropriately scaled and direct footways

•

Address issues of microclimate to ensure all public realm is attractive and fit for purpose
(including the impact of scale of buildings on wind movement and shadowing)

37

C42

APPENDIX 1: PLANNING CONTEXT : Physical - The Site

N

ASI
YB
SUR

OAD
OND R
RICHM

N KIN

SEVE
AY
GS W
SOPWIT

H WAY

NTS

Plan showing the boundary for the North Kingston development area
This Development Brief covers an area of approximately 3ha. The site is located in a highly
accessible area, 400m from the River Thames, 300m north of the main shopping core of
Kingston Town Centre and just 60m from Kingston train station, which boasts a Public
Transport Accessibility Level (PTAL) rating of 6a (‘excellent’).
It is bound by Richmond Road, Seven Kings Way, Sury Basin and Sopwith Way with the railway
line further to the south. The surrounding road network alongside Kingsgate Road which
bisects the site, has created an ‘island’ effect which this Development Brief seeks to resolve.  
The site is part of a larger active development area north of the railway line, referred to as the
North Kingston Character Area in the K+20, which has been the subject of major regeneration
over the last 15 years, with the redevelopment of the former Power Station site, station
yard and factory sites. This has resulted in the delivery of over 1,000 new residential units, a
700-space multi-storey car park, a 4,650m² supermarket, and a 3,100m² health and fitness
centre, with a 142-bed hotel  currently under construction on the former Power Station site.

38

October 2016

C43

PLANNING CONTEXT : Physical - Open Space

Public Open Space
Private Amenity Space

NTS

Open Space Plan

Public Open Space

Poor Quality Open Space

KEY

Private Amenity Space

Approved Open Space

Public
OpenSpace
Space
Public
Open

QualityOpen
Open Space
PoorPoor
Quality
Space

Private
Amenity Space
Private
Amenity
Space

Approved
Open Space
Space
Approved
Open

Poor Quality Open Space

Thames
RiverRiver
Thames

River Thames

Approved Open Space
The immediate
area has poor access to public open space. Connections to Canbury Gardens
River Thames
and the Riverside
are of poor quality and are in need of improvements.

The Gas Holder site (parcel 3)is bringing about the northern section of the north-south linear
park. The Council seeks to ensure that new development contributes to the continual of the
linear parks provision and general improvement of the quality, quantity and accessibility to
public open space.
Redevelopment of the site, as proposed, provides an opportunity to improve the connections
to the existing public green open spaces at the Riverside and Canbury gardens, and to provide
a new public park for the existing and proposed residents and visitors to the North Kingston
Area.

39

C44

PLANNING CONTEXT : Physical - Existing Land Use

NTS

Land Use Plan
KEY
Retail

Car Parking

Transport

Office/ Light Industrial

Public House/ Bar

Park

Education

Vacant Site

Utility

Residential

Mixed Use

40

October 2016

C45

PLANNING CONTEXT : Physical - Existing Land Use
Current on site Land Uses
The north western part of the site was previously occupied by three large decommissioned
gas holders, associated buildings and infrastructure. These are now demolished to make way
for the consented scheme, which gained planning permission in July 2014. To the south of
the former Gas Holders site is the former Kingsgate Business Centre, now demolished and 52
Kingsgate Road, a two storey 1950s building with office and light industrial use facing onto
Kingsgate Road.
The Kingston College site is located on the eastern side of the area. The main College
building fronting Richmond Road is a Building of Townscape Merit. Immediately to the north
of Kingston College are two small shops and a car hire company fronting Richmond Road.
Immediately to the south, sits the recently completed Creative Industries Centre, with its own
vehicular access. The Council’s Canbury surface car park is located in the southern extent of
the development site. The site’s south-east edge is occupied by a mixed use block of retail and
commercial units fronting Richmond Road, with some residential above and some activity to
the rear.
Land Uses adjacent to the Development Brief Area
Beyond the site to the north of Sury Basin, is a large supermarket (Sainsbury’s) with leisure
use (Virgin Active) on the upper floors with surface car parking between the store and the
development site. Continuing north beyond the supermarket are residential areas.
To the west of the development site, beyond Seven Kings Road, are residential apartments
(Royal Quarter) and the Seven Kings Way public multi-storey car park. Continuing east,
beyond the Royal Quarter is the former Kingston Power Station site where a large mixed-use
residential and hotel complex is predominantly complete.
To the south of the site, beyond Sopwith Way, are residential apartments (Regents Court)
and Kingston railway station. Beyond the railway station is the town centre main commercial
shopping area.

41

C46

PLANNING CONTEXT : Physical - Land Ownership Pattern

IN
BAS
SURY

SOPWIT

H WAY

NTS

Land Ownership Plan
KEY
Land Ownership Boundaries

Kingsgate Road bisects the site on a south west/north east axis significantly polarising
land parcels within the site. Integrating land ownership interests into comprehensive land
parcels will ensure efficient use of land, and establish a deliverable and sustainable form of
development. A piecemeal approach to redeveloping the site area, based on the current land
ownership pattern, will not be supported by the Council, as it will frustrate the objectives and
development principles identified in this Brief.

42

October 2016

C47

PLANNING CONTEXT : Physical - Community Infrastructure

AADDAD
RROORO
PPEEPE
OORROR
TTHHTH

EL EL
M M
RO RO
AD AD

SHSSHH

CACCAA
NBNNBB
URUURR
Y AYYAA
VEVVEE
NUNNUU
E EE

SHS
OHRORT
TLALA
NDNDS
S R RO
O A AD
D

ELEELL
M MM
RORROO
ADAADD

RRTTRT
OOUUOU
SS CC
SC
HHTTHT
IIGGIG
AADDAD
W
WAAWA
RROORO
ZZEEZE
EEAAEA
W
WLLWL
CCOOCO

CA CA
NB NB
UR UR
Y AY A
VE VE
NU NU
E E

SHO
SHO
RTLRTL
AN AN
DS DS
RO RO
AD AD

AD AD
RORO
ONON
RT RT
BUBU

CO

UE

AADDAD
RROORO
OONNON
RRTTRT
BBUUBU

D
AD
OA
O
R
D
Royal
R
Royal Borough
Borough of
of Ki
Ki
K
K RO A
R
R
A
Royal
Borough
of Ki
A K
P
P
D
Kingston Museum
Museum
N
Kingston
ND PAR
O
O
M
D
D
M
Kingston
H
D
N
A
Libraries Museum
IIC
Libraries
O
CHM O
O AD
R
R
R
R
H
S OA
Libraries
GS
Leisure
RIC
R
NG
Leisure Centres
Centres
IIN
S
K
K NG
Leisure
Centresother than leisur
I
Sports facilities
facilities
K
Sports
other than leisur
Sports
facilities
other than leisur
Primary
Primary schools
schools
Primary
schools
Secondary
Schools
Secondary
Schools
AD
O
R
Royal
Borough
of
Kingston
D
Secondary
Schools
K
A
Railway
Railway Stations
Stations
AR RO
Royal
Borough
of
Kingston
P
K
Railway Stations
Kingston Museum
Bus
ND PAR
Bus Stations
Stations
O
M ND
H
Bus
Stations
Kingston
Museum
Libraries
Bus stops
stops
Bus
RIC HMO
LibrariesCentres
Bus
stops
Police
stations
Leisure
Police
stations
RIC
D
Police
D
A
Leisure
Centres
Medical
Centres
Medicalstations
Centres
O
OA DSports facilities other than leisure centres
R
R
A
N
Medical
Centres
N
O
O
Sports facilities
Hospitals
Primary
schoolsother than leisure centres
B
Hospitals
BO N R
B
I
B
I
NTS
G BO
D
Hospitals Worship
G
Primary schools
Places
Secondary
Schools
Places of
of Worship
OA
IB of Kingston
R
G
Royal
Borough
Community
D Infrastructure Plan
K
Places
of Worship
A
Secondary
Schools
R
Post Offices
Offices
Railway Stations
Post
PA K RO
Royal
Borough
of
Kingston
D
KEY Kingston Museum
Post Offices
Railway
Stations
Pub;
Bus
Stations
ON PAR
Pub; Bars
Bars &
& Nightclubs
Nightclubs
Kingston
Museum
Bus
Stations
Pub;
Bars
&
Nightclubs
D
Libraries
Kingston
Museum
Pub;
Bars
&
Nightclubs
N
Bus
Stations
Supermarket
Bus
stops
O
Supermarket
Libraries Centres
Bus stops
Supermarket
Libraries
Supermarket
Leisure
Bus
stops
Police
stations
Playgrounds
Playgrounds
DLeisure
Leisure /facilities
Sport
Centres
Police stations
Playgrounds
Playgrounds
Police
stations
Centres
other than leisure centres
Medical
Centres
Playgrounds
OA Sports
Playgrounds
R
D
N
A Primary
Primary facilities
schools
Medical Centres
Parks and
Recreation
Grounds
Medical
Centres
Playgrounds
Parks
and
Recreation
Grounds
schoolsother than leisure centres
Hospitals
BO RO Sports
Parks
and
Recreation
Grounds
B
I
G BO N
Parks
and Recreation Grounds
Secondaryschools
Schools
Places ofof
Worship
Car
Parks
Car Parks
Hospitals
Primary
Car
Parks
Places
Worship
Secondary
Schools
GIB
Car
Parks
Water
Railway Stations
Places
of Worship
Post Offices
Water
Water
Secondary
Schools
Post
Offices
Railway
Stations
E
E
Water
S
S
Produced
Post
Offices
Railway
Pub;
& Nightclubs
E
Produced by
by the
the GIS
GIS Team,
Team, ICT
ICT
Bus A
Stations
OSBars
LLO
D Stations
Guildhall
1,
upon
Thames,
KT1
AD
O
C
Guildhall
1, Kingston
Kingston
upon
Thames,
KT1 1
1
Produced
by
the
GIS
Team, ICT
O
O
C
R
R
Pub;
Bars
&
Nightclubs
T
D
Supermarket
L
Bus
stops
Stations
G
T
S
A
Guildhall 1, Kingston upon Thames, KT1 1
G
S
A
O
C
A
E
G
E ST R
IIG Supermarket
Operator:
TL
Operator:
TL
stations
Bus stops
WIGGPlaygrounds
EA Police
TTW
Operator:
TL
The Brief
area stations
is Centres
in a town centre location
there is good access to key facilitiesPublication
all
Playgrounds
Playgrounds
ID
Publication
date: 04/09/2013
04/09/2013
Medical
D TWwhere
Police
I
date:
V
VID
within Hospitals
400 metres
(approximatelyD5A
minute
walk)
from
theRecreation
developmentGrounds
site. These Publication
key
date: 04/09/2013
Parks
and
Playgrounds
1:3,3
Medical
Centres
O
R
1:3,3
V
DA
OR
S120F
FMetres
E
S
A
R
E
E
0 parks,
20
40
60
80
100
R
facilities include employment centres,
shopping
centres,
educational
institutions,
car
BE
R
0
20
40
60
80
100
120 Metres
1:3,3
D
Car
Parks
B
O
Parks
and
Recreation
Grounds
Hospitals
ES120FMetres
Worship
E
0
20
40
60
80
100R
B
leisurePlaces
centres,of
schools,
supermarkets, medicalWater
centres,
libraries,
community
facilities,
Post
0
50
100
150
200
250
300
350
400
450
0
50
100
150
200
250
300
350
400
450
Car Parks
Places
of
Worship
Post
Offices
E
D
0
50
100
150
200
250
300
350
400
450
Offices,
parks
and
recreation
grounds
alongside
transport
hubs.  
D
A
S
A
Water Produced by the GIS Team, ICT
O
O
O
R
D
EBars & Nightclubs
Post
Pub;
Guildhall 1, Kingston upon Thames, KT1 1EU
E R OA
RE
CLOS Offices
C
Produced by the GIS Team, ICT
CRE R
G
L
Pub;
Bars & Nightclubs
Guildhall 1, Kingston upon Thames, KT1 1EU
C
IG Supermarket
CR
Operator:
TL
Playgrounds
TWIGGSupermarket
Operator:
TL
EL
ID W
Publication date: 04/09/2013
E
V
L
T
Playgrounds
M
AD
D
R O AD
ELM C
D
RO
OA
R
43
1:3,300
DAVID
Publication
date:
04/09/2013
R
N
O
O
F
C
N
S
C
O
M
D
R
E
Parks
and
Recreation
Grounds
A
C
A
A
Playgrounds
R
E
R
A
O
O
E
0
20
40
60
80
100
120
Metres
DE
R
R D
B
D
D
CR E
N
ES
R
O
1:3,300
DA
O
C
F
Car Parks
ES120
Parks
and Recreation
DEA
CEGrounds 00 50 20 100 40150 200
ESC
25080 300
350
400 Metres
450
500 Feet
60
100R
BE

D
AD
OA
O
R
D
R
D
A
D RO
D

C48

PLANNING CONTEXT : Physical - Flooding

Plan 13

FLOOD RISK

Flooding Plan taken from K+20 : Plan based on Figure 1 of the Strategic Flood Risk
Functional
floodtown
plaincentre
Zone 3b
Assessment
for Kingston
5% AEP (20 year) flood
KEY Functional flood plainZone 3b
5%
AEP (20flood
year)plain
floodZone
Functional
plain
Zone 3b
3b - 5% AEP (20 year) flood
Functional
High
probability Zone
3a

5% AEP
AEP (100
(20 year)
flood
1%
year)
flood
High probability
probability
Zone
3a - 1% AEP (100 year) flood
High
Zone
1%
AEP
(100
year)
flood
High
probability
Zone
3a 2 - 0.1% AEP (1000 year) flood
Medium
probability
Zone
Medium
probability
Zone
1%
AEP
(100
year)
flood
0.1% AEP (1000 year) flood
Medium probability Zone 2
AEPprobability
(1000 Flood
year)
flood
The site 0.1%
lies mainly
within
Zone
Medium
Zone
22. Any proposed development within this Zone 2 will require a site

Plan based on Figure 1 of the Strategic Flood
0.1%
AEPAssessment
(1000 year)
specific Flood
Risk
be undertaken
part of any planning application.
Risk
fortoflood
Kingston
townas
centre
Plan Assessment
based on Figure
1 of the Strategic
Flood
The Kingston
Town
Centre
Strategic
Flood
Risk
Assessment
(SFRA) states that the future regeneration of this
Risk
Assessment
for
Kingston
town
centre
Plan based on Figure 1 of the Strategic Flood
site mustRisk
ensure
that all floorfor
levels
are situated
maximum flood level plus freeboard (600mm) and
Assessment
Kingston
townabove
centre
‘Dry’ access to/from the site must be ensured during times of flooding. The SFRA and London Plan policies
also state that sustainable urban drainage systems (SuDS) must be implemented to reduce surface water
run-off rates from the area.

Future redevelopment must not increase surface water flood risk to or from the site up to and including 1
in 100 year (plus climate change) return period rainfall events. With due consideration to the existing land
use and general character of the area, appropriate SuDS may include permeable paving, landscaped areas
encompassing planted infiltration zones, rainwater harvesting tanks and/or green roofs. This approach will
reduce the reliance on the existing infrastructure, as the site could contain its own solutions with a landscape
that is designed in a highly multifunctional way, also providing for amenity and biodiversity uses.

44

October 2016

C49

PLANNING CONTEXT : Physical - Orientation + Topography

Noise and Aie Quality

Orientation Plan
KEY

Mid-day Sun

Topography Plan showing areas above datum

Sun Path (East-West)
Noise
and Air
Aie Quality
Noise
and
Quality

Railway Track
Railway
Track

+8m above datum level

Mid-daySun
Sun
Mid-day

+6m above datum level

+9m above datum level

Path(East-West)
(East-West)
SunSun
Path

+7m above datum level

+10m above datum level

Railway Track

The location and layout of new development will be expected to maximise opportunities for
passive solar gain to public realm, open spaces and private and semi-private amenity space. New
housing development will be expected to avoid single aspect north facing units and maximise the
potential of east and west facing aspects. This will also have to coincide with mitigating the noise
and air quality issues. Proposals will have to adopt design solutions that manage the noise impact
on internal and external spaces while maximising the benefits of a south facing aspect. New
housing will be expected to achieve best practice design standards that conform to the British
Standards.
The absence of any distinct topographical features will place a greater emphasis on creating
character and distinctiveness through the use of sound townscape and landscape principles. The
drainage of site surface water will need to be addressed through the creation of landforms and
drainage channels.

45

C50

PLANNING CONTEXT : Policy
The relevant planning policy documents and policies, against which any future planning
applications will be assessed, are listed below.
The National Planning Policy Framework (adopted March 2012)
At the heart of the NPPF is a presumption in favour of sustainable development. It also
attaches great importance to the design of the built environment, where good, high quality,
inclusive design is seen as a key aspect of sustainable development, indivisible from good
planning, and should contribute positively to making places better for people. The policies in
the Council’s adopted Core Strategy and Kingston Town Centre Area Action Plan (K+20), set
out below, align with the core land-use planning principles of the NPPF.
The London Plan (Further Alterations adopted 2015)
The London Plan provides the Spatial Development Strategy for London and has similar
ambitions to create good quality, safe and inclusive environments for local communities which
reinforces local character in terms of design, scale, height etc and protects and enhances
neighbouring amenities, with the best possible access to local services, infrastructure and
public transport in London.
The London Plan is clear that if Outer London is to achieve its full potential, the issues of
economic development, transport and other infrastructure and quality of life must be looked
at together. Mixed use development, enhancement of the quality of the area, provision
of social infrastructure and sustainability will have to be considered together in order to
achieve successful place making and address pockets of deprivation. In order to support
and enhance competitiveness, the design of town centre schemes must also achieve a
number of objectives, including: sustaining and enhancing the vitality and viability of the
town centre; promoting access by public transport, walking and cycling; promoting lifetime
neighbourhoods; urban greening and an enhanced public realm; and reducing delivery,
servicing and road user conflict. Retail and other town centre development must be in scale
with the centre (Policy 2.15). Air quality (Policy 7.14) is also of optimum importance and
should be considered through all developments on site. Proposals should minimise increased
exposure to existing poor air quality and make provision to address local problems of air
quality.
The Greater London Authority (GLA) adopted Further Alterations to the London Plan in
March 2015. The Further Alterations were prepared primarily to address key housing and
employment issues emerging from an analysis of census data released since the publication
of the London Plan in July 2011, and which indicate a substantial increase in the capital’s
population. Therefore, a key issue for the Borough is the increased annual housing target. The
North Kingston Development Area will be a significant location for housing to meet the needs
of the London Plan, and the objectives of this Brief.
Local Policies
The Borough-wide and Town Centre policy context for Kingston is clearly established by the
Kingston Core Strategy, adopted in April 2012, and Kingston Town Centre Area Action Plan
(K+20), adopted in July 2008.
The Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames Core Strategy (adopted April 2012) sets
out the vision, objectives and strategic policies for managing future growth, change and

46

October 2016

C51

PLANNING CONTEXT : Policy
development within the Borough. The document does not only consider land use, but also
a comprehensive range of environmental, economic and social issues.
Relevant Core Strategy Policies

Core Strategy

Policy DM1 : Sustainable Design and Construction Standards - requires all new residential
development to achieve Code Level 5 from 2013 up to 2016 and all other development
over 500m2 to meet BREEAM Outstanding. However, in March 2015, a Ministerial
Statement from the Department for Communities and Local Government announced a
number of changes to technical housing standards, which involved the discontinuation
of the Code for Sustainable Homes. This affects planning requirements for new build
homes under Policy DM1, meaning a full Code assessment cannot be required by the
Local Planning Authority; only energy and water efficiency standards in line with existing
policy can be a requirement of planning permission. New technical standards are expected
to be announced during 2015 and 2016 which will replace previous requirements under
Policy DM1 for new build homes. Non-residential new development requiring BREEAM
assessment under DM1 is currently expected to remain unaffected.
Policy CS3 : The Natural and Green Environment - incorporating appropriate elements
of public open space into new developments and/or making a financial contribution to
improving existing open spaces.
Policy CS6 : Sustainable Travel - To support and encourage the use of public transport,
cycling and walking the Council will:
•

���������������������������

Planning for the future

Promote and enhance the strategic cycling and walking networks enhance and
promote the Borough’s network of quiet residential roads, traffic free routes and
open spaces as attractive, safe and convenient walking and cycle routes.

Policy CS8 : Character Design and Heritage - The Council will use the Borough Character
Study and Residential Design SPD to require good design and guide the assessment of
development proposals and will seek to ensure that new development:
•

Recognises distinct local feature and character;

•

Has regards to the historic and natural environment;

•

Helps enhance locally distinctive places of high architectural and urban design
quality; and

•

Relates well and connects to its surroundings.

Policy DM10 : Design Requirements for New Development (including House Extensions)
- Development proposals will be required to incorporate principles of good design. The
most essential elements of character and local distinctiveness need to be identified and
development should respect, maintain and enhance these elements. Additional key design
requirement criteria includes:
•

Providing adequate amenity space; safeguard strategic/ local view

•

Ensuring public access through development areas

•

Enhancing public realm

Policy DM11 : Design approach - The Council may adopt a more flexible approach to new

47

���������������������������
�������������������������������������

Adopted - ����������

C52

PLANNING CONTEXT : Policy
development where the existing development lacks any identifiable or cohesive character
and/or is located in a lower quality environment; in these circumstances it will seek a high
quality development that creates its own distinctive character.
Policy DM15 : Affordable Housing - identifies the delivery of affordable housing as a key
priority of the Council and the need to explore all opportunities to deliver new affordable
housing units as part of new residential developments and encourage applications for
100% affordable schemes. Developments capable of delivering five or more units are
expected to provide the maximum reasonable amount of affordable housing, subject to
viability considerations. There should be 70:30 tenure split between Social/Affordable Rent
and Intermediate provision and the affordable housing should be provided on-site, unless
exceptional circumstances can be justified.
Policy CS15 : Future Needs of Kingston University, Kingston College and Schools -The
Council will continue to work in partnership with Kingston University and Kingston College,
recognising their importance in the local economy to identify appropriate opportunities,
including on their existing sites, to meet their needs for new and upgraded facilities.
Other Relevant Policies include:
• KT1 Kingston Town Neighbourhood

•

DM13 Housing Quality and Mix

•

DM 17 Protecting Existing Employment
Land and Premises

•

CS10 Housing Delivery

•

CS 11 Economy and Employment

•

CS 12 Retail and Town Centres

•

DM 18 New Employment Uses

•

CS 16 Community Facilities

•

DM 20 New Retail Development

•

DM8 Sustainable Transport for new
Development

•

DM 21 Health Impacts

•

DM 22 Design for Safety

DM9 Managing Vehicle Use for new
Development

•

DM 23 Schools

•

IMP3 Securing Infrastructure

•

Local relevant evidence base documents include:
•

Affordable Housing SPD (2013)

•

Royal Borough of Kingston Community Infrastructure Levy (2015)

•

Residential Design Guide (2013)

•

Kingston Town Centre Car Parking Study (2004)

•

Secure Cycle Parking Strategy Study (2004)

•

Sustainable Transport SPD (2013)

•

Town Centre Retail Study (2013)

Kingston Town Centre Area Action Plan ‘K+20’ (Adopted July 2008)
The K+20 provides the framework for future development and improvement in Kingston
Town Centre. It states that “over the period to 2020 there will be planned change and
development to provide: new and enhanced shopping, leisure, cultural, education and
community facilities, new housing and jobs, new and enhanced public spaces, transport
and environmental improvements”
The K+20 identifies key areas suitable for change to accommodate new development and
facilities and key areas for conservation and enhancement, plus a range of environment
and transport improvements, to protect the town centre from inappropriate development
and to preserve its attractive character, distinctive historic environment and the riverside.
48

October 2016

C53

UB-STATION 17b;
CONTEXT
: Policy 17d,
UB-STATION
17b;
WATERPLANNING
(TW) PUMPING
STATION
WATER
(TW) PUMPING STATION 17d,
D

D

The proposed development site falls within Character Area 10: North Kingston, which

POLICY
P17: Road and from the
e development
andthe
upgrading
ofCanbury
this Gardens across
extends from
riverside and
to Richmond
FORMER
POWER STATION 17a; EDF SUB-STATION 1
or
landowner
and
Water,
which
development
andThames
upgrading
of this
railway northwards
to Lower
Kings
Road. In order to meet its vision the K+20 proposes the
THE BARGE DOCK 17c AND THAMES WATER (TW) P
followingand
objectives
for Character
Area
10:
or landowner
Thames
Water,
which
SKERNE ROAD AND DOWN HALL ROAD
ng (Policy •K7)Complete the regeneration of the area with high quality mixed use development,
Thefacility,
Counciloffices,
will pursue
theand
high quality, comprehe
nsive development and
residential,
a hotel
gueting
(Policy
K7)including
facilities
on 17a
or 17beducation,
(Policy GP
K6)healthcare
site and its adjoining public realm with theprivate sector landowner and T
community uses on Proposal Sites P17 – 20;

ueting facilities
on 17a or 17b (Policy K6) should include:
• Linked public realm, riverside, gateway, pedestrian and cycle route improvements,

• Housi ng on 17a and 17b, i ncl udi ng affordable housing (Policy K7)
7b
including Skerne Road;
• A quality full service hotel with conferenceand banqueting facilities on
• via
Retention
and enhancement
of the Richmond Road mixed use frontages;
caulay
SuryBasin,
some limited
7b Avenue
• A community use such as a nursery
wn Hall Road
• Retention and enhancement of the listed Gala
Bingo hall foramenity
leisure/and
entertainment
•
Landscaped
play space on 17a and 17b
aulay
Avenue via
Sury
Basin,
some
limited
use
and
the
Grey
Horse
PH;
Macaulay
Avenue to improve permeability
• Main vehicle access to 17aand 17b from Henry Macaulay
Avenue via Su
wn Hall Road

•

Public Art (K10); and

•

K7 Housing

access may be allowed from Skerne Road and Down Hall Road
Macaulay Avenue
improve
permeability
• A pedestrian
route from Down Hall Road to Henry Macaulay Avenue t
• Review to
of traffic
movements
to see if circulation
should be modified.
otel
and pedestrian access across 17a
Relevant K+20 Policies
• Basement car parking on 7a
1 for the housing and hotel
otel
cycleQuality
parkingin the Town Centre
• K1 New and Enhanced Shopping
•• Secure
K9 Design
•
Active
frontages
to 17b
Facilities
• K10 Town Centre
Public Realm
•
On
site
recycling
• K4 Employment Development within
• K15 Town Centre Road Network
oorings and storage
facilities, visual
• Improvements to the Barge Dock 17c, including moorings and storage
the Town Centre
• appearance
K17 Pedestrian
Environment
and boundary
treatment
• K6 Provision of Facilities for Arts,
•
K18
Cycling
• Improvements to the appearance of the TW Pumping Station 17d
oorings
and17d
storage
facilities,
visual
ng Station
Culture, Tourism,
Entertainment,
•
K20 Town
Centreart
Parking
• Provision
of public
(Policy K10)
Leisure, Recreation, the Community,
The
site
is
within
Flood
Risk
Zones 3a and 3b (the functional
ﬂ oodplain) an
•
K22
Town
Centre
Infrastructure
Faith and Voluntary Sectors and Hotel
ng Station
17d
nctional
ﬂ oodplain)
and
development
proposals
should
accord
with
Policy
K24
and
the
SFRA.
accommodation
• K23 S106 Planning Obligations and

•

PR32

P17c

PR15

PR14

Site 18

Site 09
Road,

and Pr
WAL
K

Enviro

SKE
RNE

Relief
33

PR

P19e

P19a

Signif

Impro

Impro

Impro

AD

ROAD

49

149

Barge

O
OND R

D
HMON

redevelopment sites
Site 17: Former Power Station and Electricity Sub Station,
Site 17:
Former
Power
Station
andStation and the
Skerne
Road,
Thames
Water
Pumping
Electricity
Station,
Skerne Road,
Barge
Dock, Sub
Down
Hall Road
Proposal
sites/potential
redevelopment
sites
Thames
Water
Pumping
&
Site
18: Lok
‘n’
Store
Site, 12 Station
Skerne
Road
Site
17:Kingston
Former
Power
and Electricity
Sub Station,
the09:
Barge
Dock,College
DownStation
Halladjoining
Road.
Site
Site
and
sites, Richmond
G6
Skerne
Thames
Water
Pumping Buiness
Station and
the
18: Redeveloped.
Site
19:
Road,
theRoad,
Gas Holder
Site
andKingston
Kingsgate
Centre
Barge
Dock,
DownKingsgate
Hall
Road
College
& adjoining
sites,
Richmond
and
Printing
Works,
Road
Site
18:the
LokGas
‘n’ Store
Site,
12&Skerne
Road
Road,
Holder
Site
Kingsgate
Environmental
improvements
Site
09:road/crossing
Kingston
andWorks,
adjoining sites, Richmond
Business
Centre College
& Printing
Relief
improvements
Kingsgate
Road.
Site Site
P20:and
Canbury
Road,
the Gas
Holder
Kingsgate Buiness Centre
Significant view to protect
carpark
& Richmond
Road. Road
and
Printing
Works, Kingsgate
P17a
Improved pedestrian route
Environmental improvements
Environmental
improvements
Improved pedestrian access/crossing
P17b
Relief road/crossing
Relief
road/crossingimprovements
improvements
PA8
Improved or proposed river activity
P17d
Significant view
Significant
viewtotoprotect
protect
Enhanced river gateway
Improved pedestrian
route
Improved
Public
art pedestrian route
Improved pedestrian
Improved
pedestrianaccess/crossing
access/crossing
149
Improved or
Improved
orproposed
proposedriver
riveractivity
activity
Enhanced river
Enhanced
rivergateway
gateway
Extract from K+20
Public
art
Public art

Skerne

RICHM

AD

O
OND R

RICHM

P19b

Site 17

SKERNE ROA
D

Proposal sites/potential
sites/potentialredevelopment sites
Proposal

Propo

Enhan

P19d

Public

P19b
P18

R6

9c

P1

P20

PR34

KEY

P19b

K24 Flood Risk Management

Character Area 10:
Proposals Plan

character areas and proposal sites

nctional
ﬂ oodplain)
and and
development
• K8 Higher
Further Education
A.

Developer Contributions
character areas and proposal sites

RA.

P10

P11

KINGSTON T

C54

PLANNING CONTEXT : Land Use
Kingston Town Centre Area Action Plan Policies P19 and P20 set out the strategic vision for
the site brief which identify a range of acceptable uses.
Housing
The recently adopted Further Alterations to the London Plan has significantly increased the
Council’s target for housing delivery – a minimum of 6,434 net additional homes between
2015-2025. Housing delivery has been well below target in recent years, partly as a result
of the relatively small number of large development sites available across the Borough. The
Council wishes to maximise the opportunity presented by large brownfield sites for housing to
meet its pressing need for housing, and affordable housing in particular.
Given the site’s edge-of-town centre location and neighbouring uses, the Council seeks a
mixed use residential-led development, including both conventional and nonconventional
(i.e. student accommodation) housing. New development will be expected to provide an
appropriate quantum of market and affordable housing.  A mix of housing types and tenures
will be expected, that will create a balanced community, including where possible, provision
for family housing.
The site has been identified as ‘Central’ in character as described in the Sustainable
Residential Quality matrix in the London Plan. New development will need to respond to
the height, scale and massing principles set out in the Design Framework, with appropriate
densities that correlate the site’s location and PTAL rating set out in the London Plan.
Retail
Whilst the economic climate has been challenging for retailers and town centres, Kingston
Town Centre remains competitive and retailers’ demand for representation remains relatively
high. An up-to-date Town Centre Retail Study for the Borough was published in November
2013 which identifies a significant need for new comparison and convenience floor space and
leisure uses in Kingston Town Centre.
The site provides some opportunity for new or enhanced retail and leisure uses on the
Richmond Road frontage and potential a portion of the Kingsgate car park, which are the
land parcels that offer the prospect of the best connections with the rest of the town centre,
and where the highest footfall is likely to be generated. We anticipate retail and leisure will
come forward as a range of small retail units, to provide opportunities for convenience retail,
specialist retail activity and eating and drinking establishments.
Whilst not designated as an employment area, employment uses are currently located within
the site. The Borough has a relatively limited supply of industrial/business land and studies
have demonstrated the need to retain such land in business and industrial use. The Council
therefore seeks to ensure the employment uses are re-provided as part of a mixed-use
proposal.

50

October 2016

C55

PLANNING CONTEXT : Land Use
Employment
Employment uses are currently located within the site. The Kingston Economic Analysis Study
(published in May 2014) found that the Borough has recorded reasonable job growth over
the last 16 years (14%), with declining industrial employment over this period has been offset
by office job growth. The Borough has seen minimal amounts of new development over the
last 11 years, with notable losses of office space and the recent introduction of Permitted
Development (PD) rights accelerating this trend over recent months. The Council has since
introduced an ‘Article 4 Direction’ that  removes these PD rights in key office locations of the
Borough - including in Kingston town centre.
The Borough has insufficient employment floor space in quantitative terms to meet future
needs for office and industrial uses up to 2031 under the majority of future growth scenarios
considered. The requirement for office space in future will also be for better quality, modern
space and to cater for small and start-up businesses. The key challenge the Council must
therefore seek to manage is the shift from older, outdated space to providing new space
which meets modern business needs, and supports other Core Strategy objectives such as the
role of Kingston town centre as a Metropolitan Centre.
The Kingston Economic Analysis Study concluded that the Council should consider being
more selective about which office sites and broad locations to safeguard against future losses,
prioritising those with the greatest appeal to businesses and potential to accommodate
redevelopment in future.
The Council therefore seeks to ensure the employment uses are re-provided as part of a
mixed-use proposal for the site.
Community Facilities
There are currently no community facilities on the site. Community facilities are essential for
local residents and contribute towards health and well-being. The provision of community
facilities in local areas will ensure accessibility, reducing the need for residents to travel, while
the co-location of some facilities and services will help ensure the effective use of resources,
encourage joined-up service delivery and shared maintenance and management costs.
Community facilities will be expected to be mainly located in areas of maximum accessibility
which includes the town, district and local centres. Where possible, the Council will seek
to promote the co-location of community facilities, including new schools and healthcare
facilities, be it on new or existing sites and/or buildings in these uses, in the interests of
efficiency and effectiveness.
The inclusion of community facilities on the site is therefore considered an appropriate use.

51

C56

PLANNING CONTEXT : Land Use
Education
Kingston University and Kingston College play an important sub regional role in the local
economy providing education and training, employment, social and cultural activities and
significant spend. Both have expanded to meet educational needs and targets (set by central
Government) and require additional space, new and upgraded facilities, including on their
existing sites so that they can continue to offer high quality education and skills training. In
addition there is a recognised need for managed student accommodation for the University.
Until 2008, there was sufficient capacity in Borough primary schools and there is still capacity
in secondary schools. The significant increase in demand for school places is not a temporary
increase but part of a long term upward trend due to a rising birth rate; new housing
provision resulting in population growth and additional children and more people moving
into the Borough. A similar trend has been reported across more than two-thirds of London
boroughs. The consequence is that the number of primary and secondary school places needs
to be  increased on a permanent basis through the expansion of existing schools and the
development of several new schools. Planned housing growth over the next 15 years as part
of this Core Strategy may have further implications for longer term school provision. The aim
is to identify the best pattern of additional school places for the future.
The Council’s School Place Planning Strategy 2013-2020 sets out the strategy for the
refurbishment, re-organisation and expansion of the school estate. This aims to transform
primary, special and secondary education and respond to the Every Child Matters agenda and
the need to:
•

re-model and improve the school estate, including rebuilding, amalgamating and colocating some schools

•

expand school provision to meet increased demand for school places

•

develop the diversity of Kingston schools and their organisation

•

improve outcomes for all and narrow differences in attainment

•

create flexible, accessible accommodation for use throughout the year, in the evenings
and at weekends by schools, young people and the wider community

•

enhance the range of services and activities on offer at school sites

•

integrate some provision for those with learning difficulties and disabilities into
mainstream provision (specialist facilities will continue to be provided at the
community hub for disabled children in Moor Lane and at Warren Park)

In terms of Further Education, there is potential to expand or consolidate Kingston College’s
teaching space on an expanded Richmond Road campus. The College gained planning
approval for a new Arts and Media building in July 2013, and construction is now well
underway.
The provision of further teaching facilities within the Development Brief area would be an
acceptable use of the site.

52

October 2016

C57

PLANNING CONTEXT : Energy and Sustainability
Development will be required to comply with sustainability policies set out in both the
London Plan and the Council’s Core Strategy. Such policies that should be considered are
those in chapter five of the London Plan, with notable importance being on:
•

Policies 5.1 Climate Change Mitigation

•

Policy 5.2 Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions

•

Policy 5.3 Sustainable Design and Construction.

Core Strategy policies of relevance include:
•

CS 1 Climate Change Mitigation

•

CS 2 Climate Change Adaptation

•

DM 1 Sustainable Design and Construction Standards

•

DM 2 Low Carbon Development

•

DM 3 Designing for Changing Climate

The North Kingston Development Brief area has been identified as one of the Town Centre’s
Decentralised Energy Network zones. All new development should conform to the principles
set out in the Energy Masterplan for this area, which includes the use of an approved energy
source, and the sites being made available and ready to plug into and contribute towards the
Decentralised Energy Masterplan.

53

C58

PLANNING CONTEXT : Movement & Access - Accessibility

IN
BAS
SURY

SOPWIT

H WAY

Accessibility Plan
KEY

Impermeable Blocks
Railway Grass Verge
Road Access

Impermeable Blocks
Blocks
Impermeable

VehicularAccess
Access Point
Vehicular
Point

Railway
Grass Verge
Verge
Railway
Grass

Route
NonPedestrian
vehicle Only
Route

Road
Access
Road
Access
Vehicular Access Point

Railway Track
Bus Route

One of the most
challenging
in this area is the major one-way
Pedestrian
Only Route issues for anyPdevelopment
Public Parking
road systemRailway
which
severs
Kingston
Station
and
the
North
Kingston area from the retail and
Track
Bus Stop
commercial uses within the Town Centre. Locally this gyratory network severs land parcels
Bus Route
Bus Station
from each other
and creates a noisy, unattractive, unresolved
public realm dominated by
P
Station
Public
Parking
motor-traffic
which
is intimidating for both cyclistsRailway
and pedestrians
alike.  Development
should takeBus
the
opportunity
to
provide
ease
of
movement
and
ensure
that traffic speeds can
Stop
be managed by the arrangement of buildings and spaces.
Bus Station

Physically the
land parcels are largely impermeable either through built form or edge
Railway Station
treatments. This adds to the negative image of the place, as the land parcels need to be
broken down into navigable sized plots that are integrated and connected, creating a positive
urban realm that invites pedestrian and cyclist movements, with breakout spaces for activities
and events that animate the public realm.

54

October 2016

C59

PLANNING CONTEXT : Movement & Access - Transport Infrastructure

P

P

P

Impermeable Blocks
Railway Grass Verge
Road Access

P

Impermeable Blocks

Vehicular Access Point

Railway Grass Verge

Pedestrian Only Route

Road Access

Railway Track

Transport Infrastructure
Plan
Vehicular Access Point
KEY

P

Pedestrian Only Route

Bus Route
P

Public Parking

Railway
Track
Railway
Track

Bus Stop
Bus Stop

Route
BusBus
Route

Bus Station
Bus Station

Public
Parking
Public
Parking

Station
TrainRailway
Station

Bus Stop

The site is in
area of high transport accessibility i.e. with a PTAL rating of 6a which is the
Busan
Station
highest categorisation
- ‘excellent’.  Kingston railway station is approximately 200 metres
Railway Station
to the south of the site. The North Kingston site is well served by bus services and stops as
highlighted on the analysis map. The site has access to ten bus services with a total of 65
buses in both the morning and evening peak hour weekday periods.
The site’s proximity to surrounding transport infrastructure (bus and rail) provides significant
development opportunities for an inclusive, pedestrian and cyclist friendly environment, and
reduced car parking development . However, impacts such as severance, poor visual links,
poor noise and air quality caused by the existing transport infrastructure will require a careful
response to the siting, layout and design of new development and its successful integration
with its surroundings.
High public transport accessibility, which will be further improved by Crossrail 2, reduces the
need for development to provide car parking, which will support more intensive development
at higher density. Access for servicing, disabled access and emergency vehicles will be
required across the site.

55

C60

PLANNING CONTEXT : Movement & Access - Movement Study
Steer Davies Gleave were commissioned to undertake a movement study of Kingston Town
Centre on behalf of the Council. The strategy provides an overarching vision for movement in
Kingston Town Centre with improvements to accommodate future transport demand. In this
respect the Council is taking a proactive approach to growth and development in the town
centre since it is envisaged a number of significant development sites will be realised by the
year 2031 (North Kingston being a primary area). The study seeks to understand the demand
generated by this development and propose transport measures to respond to this.
The study considers all modes of transport and explores strategic options for change,
providing an evidence base to support decision-making and investment. The study will
directly inform updates to borough planning documents and involved close liaison with key
partners such as TfL and London Buses to agree an approach to work areas such as traffic
modelling and bus operations within the centre. Although the study is  complete, further
option development work is ongoing through the Kingston Opportunity Area Transport Study
which has been commissioned by Transport for London.
Vision and Objectives
The strategy is based around a high level vision for movement setting overarching design
principles. The vision is:
A balanced transport network that supports the Kingston experience by maintaining the
town centre as a high-quality and attractive place, facilitating town centre development
opportunities, and supporting a local economy that is diverse, vital and competitive. It
delivers improved opportunities for walking, cycling and public transport to encourage
movement by these modes whilst also facilitating access by private vehicles.
Summary of Baseline Analysis
The following summarises the key issues and opportunities identified in the Baseline Analysis
for North Kingston and the remainder of the Kingston Town Centre.
Highways
The gyratory operates effectively in distributing traffic around Kingston, however the oneway system (including Sopwith Way in North Kingston) exacerbates traffic dominance and
speed, and is not resilient to disturbances. Traffic levels have declined over the last 10 years
by around 9% while Kingston Bridge is the busiest approach road with remaining traffic spread
relatively evenly across the other approaches.
Cycling and Walking
Some pedestrian links, most notably around the relief road, offer a poor quality environment
and need upgrading. This will include measures to reduce the barrier effect of this road,
encouraging people to walk from surrounding areas into Kingston Town Centre. Legibility is
hindered at key gateway locations (such as the Station) due to limited views of landmarks and
lack of wayfinding information.
Cycling has increased substantially in the last ten years, however, the relief road presents a
barrier to cycle access, and some cycle routes are not as direct as is desirable; these issues
are addressed in RBK’s ‘Mini-Holland’ bid. There is also a general shortage of cycle parking in
Kingston’s Town Centre.

56

October 2016

C61

PLANNING CONTEXT : Movement & Access - Movement Study
Public Transport
There was a 65% increase in bus passenger demand across the Borough between 1999/00
and 2012/13, and a 44% increase in bus mileage. Bus capacity is an issue with many at or
near full loading on arrival in KTC in the AM peak period.  The option for Crossrail 2 stopping
in Kingston is currently being investigated by TfL as part of the ‘regional option’. This would
enhance the frequency and capacity of the train line to Waterloo, free up capacity on existing
rail lines to enhance service frequency from Kingston and connect Kingston directly to the
West End.
Parking
Most of the parking spaces available in KTC are in off-street car parks while parking charges
vary a little between car parks. Car parks are predominantly used for shorter stays of up to
two or three hours, particularly at weekends. The existing level of parking is sufficient to cater
for demand in an average week while demand is at its highest on Saturdays. Spare capacity is
noted in some of the North Kingston car parks (i.e. Seven Kings and Canbury Place) while the
John Lewis and Bentall Centre car parks are often at capacity.
Highway Improvements and Future Transport Studies
A number of highway improvement options have been investigated for the town centre,
including the North Kingston area, in support of the overall vision. These are being further
investigated as part of the Kingston Opportunity Area Transport Study which is looking at
the transport requirements of the town centre in relation to predicted future growth in the
area.  Additional transport studies are also being undertaken to provide strategies for bus and
parking improvements in the centre.
Proposals include changes to the highway alignment in North Kingston and modifications to
the existing gyratory system. Some options will be more challenging to implement than others
suggesting that a phased approach may be adopted. In summary, for each option, the revised
North Kingston highway layout generally operates satisfactorily. However, all options have an
impact on the capacity of the wider road system within the town centre in order to achieve
the overall vision for Kingston.
For the North Kingston area, the primary change incorporated into all highway options
includes the closure of Kingsgate Road in order to prevent vehicular access into Richmond
Road and also create a new public space and park. To deal with this change, Seven Kings Way
will be upgraded to accommodate displaced and new traffic. A new left turn from Sopwith
Way into Richmond Road will provide an alternative route for traffic heading north out of
Kingston, with Richmond Road being widened at its southern end to facilitate this new left
turn and enable improvements to facilities for pedestrians and cyclists in this area.
The upgrade of Seven Kings Way includes an enhanced alignment and improvement to its
junction with Sopwith Way to accommodate the increased northbound traffic. A strip of land
along the eastern side of Seven Kings Way has been safeguarded while land at the western
end of Kingsgate (former Parcel D) will be reconfigured to facilitate the required highway
improvements. If necessary, modifications to Sopwith Way to create a new two way urban
boulevard would be achieved at a later date by reconfiguring land along the southern fringe
of Brief area onto Sopwith Way (former Parcels A, B, C and D).

57

C62

PLANNING CONTEXT : Movement & Access - Movement Study
While highway improvements have been identified to accommodate the inevitable traffic
increases in North Kingston resulting from new development, it is also important to ensure
that an attractive environment is created where traffic does not dominate, residential amenity
is safeguarded and people can move about safely using sustainable modes of travel. This is
particularly important in an area where surrounding roads have an important traffic carrying
function within. In this respect the following approach is being applied:
1. Vehicular access to the Brief area will be provided from entrance points on the north,
south and possibly the western sides. There will be no vehicular access from the east side
(Richmond Road) except for emergency access, and no through routes are provided for
vehicles. Development proposals should facilitate ease of movement while ensuring that
traffic speeds can be managed through appropriate site planning.
2. Pedestrian and cycle movement is the dominant form of transport within the site with
the main movements being in an east/west direction through the new public park.
They will link up to the surrounding transport network and public transport systems at
appropriate locations in a north/south direction. Sustainable access will be facilitated in a
number of locations supported by new pedestrian and cycle crossing facilities provided in
Richmond Road and at the southern end of Seven Kings Way. Full advantage will be taken
of the current ‘Go Cycle’ initiative to provide comprehensive facilities across the area for
pedestrians and cyclists.
3. The site benefits from a high level of public transport accessibility including close
proximity to the railway station, two bus stations and around ten bus services. Plans
for the introduction of a Crossrail 2 stop in Kingston will further enhance this situation.
Discussions will take place with TfL and London Buses regarding matters such as the
location of new bus stops and bus priority measures in the area.
4. The site’s excellent accessibility will encourage sustainable travel and reduce the need
for on-site parking, which will help facilitate higher density development. However,
comprehensive facilities for servicing, emergency vehicles and disabled access will be
required across the site.
5. The proposed improvements to Seven Kings Way will be achieved by realignment of
the road at salient points and ensuring that the road widening is kept to a minimum
requirement. The modelling has demonstrated that two lane northbound operation in
this road should be adequate to accommodate potential new development in the area
and the closure of Kingsgate Road. The remaining safeguarded land can be used for
screening purposes to protect residential amenity, while the potential for any further
improvements would be safeguarded for future development planning.
All of the above elements have been considered and where appropriate, incorporated into
the proposals detailed in the Development Strategy section of the Development Brief.

58

October 2016

C63

59

C64

If you would like to discuss any aspect
of this document or Strategic Planning
and Regeneration generally, then
please ring the Strategic Planning
Team on 020 8547 5002 or email us at
localplan@kingston.gov.uk
60

Place Directorate
Royal Borough of Kingston
Guildhall 2
Kingston upon Thames
KT1 1EU
Printed on recycled paper
RBK published October 2016
October 2016

C65

Annex 2
North Kingston Development Brief
Consultation Statement

October 2016

C66

Introduction
This report sets out the results of consultation undertaken by the Royal Borough of Kingston
on the draft North Kingston Development Brief.
The Brief has been prepared with the aim to promote development opportunities for growth
and change to the north of the town centre which will help support the Council’s regeneration
programme, Kingston Futures. There are a number of major land ownerships and several
significant opportunities for wider strategic benefits.
This Brief has been prepared to promote a coordinated approach to development and to
secure the best long-term future for the site. The North Kingston Development Brief will be a
material consideration for future planning applications.
This report summarises and sets out the responses received during the consultation
process. These comments helped to shape the amendments made to the final draft of the
Brief.

Consultation Process
The North Kingston Development Brief Consultation Draft was published for consultation
from 8th
 July 2016 to 5th September 2016 f or a period of eight weeks.
During this time the document was available to download from the Council's website. A
 ll
those on the Council’s Local Plan database, which includes more than 2,000 consultees,
were informed of the consultation by letter or email advising on details of the online survey
and upcoming events.
The following categories of consultee were consulted
● Statutory consultees
● Business community
● Community support groups
● Disability groups
● Education organisations
● Environment groups
● Ethnic groups
● Health organisations
● Heritage protection groups
● Local residents and interested parties
● Infrastructure providers
● Leisure groups
● Older people groups
● Planning Interest groups, e.g. planning consultants
● Local Political groups
● Local Religious groups
● Residents Associations
● Transport organisations operating in the area
● Utilities organisations
1

C67

● Voluntary groups
●

Young people

A complete list of consultees can be found in Annex 2, Appendix 1 of this report:
Under the Localism Act 2012 “Duty to Cooperate” (DtC) partners are identified who are to
be engaged on matters of strategic and/or cross boundary planning concern. These include
neighbouring Local Authorities (as covered by catagory 1 - Statutory Consultees above).
Annex 3 includes responses received under the DtC and the measures for further
engagement which are recommended to address the issues of concern.
Letters were delivered to 4,300 households within a 500 metre radius of the North Kingston
Area to inform them about the opportunity to comment during the consultation and to invite
them to the consultation drop in sessions (details listed on page 3).
The Council also undertook several other methods of communication in order to ensure that
notification of the consultation reached as many people in the borough as possible. Details
of these methods are set out below:
●

Printed copies were made available for public viewing in all seven public libraries, as
well as the Council’s Information and Advice Centre and at all the drop-in
consultation events.

●

Leaflets and posters were distributed across the borough detailing the consultation
timings and how to respond.

●

A press release was worked up with colleagues in the Comms team and sent to the
press as well as being published on the Council’s website.

●

The council undertook a comprehensive online communications strategy via several
social media outlets.

●

Working closely with the ‘Visual Impaired Parliament’ Group, the council prepared
audio summaries of the document uploaded to CD’s in order to maximise
consultation accessibility for the visually-impaired.

This is summarised in the table below:
Method of Consultation

North Kingston
Development Brief

Consultation Letters

4,322 (08 July)

Consultation Emails

Approx. 900 (07 July)

Press Release

Yes (08 July)

Copies sent to Libraries

8 (08 July)

Audio Summary CDs

Yes (10 copies)

Leaflets/Posters

Yes

Consultation was carried out in accordance with the Council’s Statement of Community
Involvement.
2

C68

Formal public consultation events
The council undertook three events throughout Summer 2016 - all of which were advertised
through distribution of consultation posters across the borough. These events include:
Date

Event

Council
Attendees

Estimated number
of attendees

Thursday July
21st

Fife Road
(4pm-8pm)

3 officers

20-30

Thursday 11
August

Kingston Market
(12pm-4pm)

4 officers

10

Thursday 25
August

Kingston Night Market
(4pm-9pm)

3 officers

20-30

Online Survey
Through the above methods of consultation, all stakeholders invited to respond to the
Direction of Travel via an online survey. Survey questions were developed with Comms
Team before being uploaded onto ‘Objective’ - the online portal. The full list of survey
questions are set out in Appendix 2 of this report.
In total, the council received 76 responses to the consultation. 54 online respondents were
received, the majority of which were from local residents. Note that a further 22 emailed
responses were received from both local residents and statutory consultees.
The Council’s Strategic Business Team have compiled a comprehensive data analysis and
report for all online responses. The key findings of this analysis are set out in Appendix 4 of
this report.

Key Messages and Issues
All of the written responses from both stages of public consultations have been read and
analysed. Below is a summary of the key messages and issues which were raised by those
who responded.
Full comments and officer responses are set out in a table as set out in Annex 3 Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief.
A quantitative analysis of the online survey results is available in the table in Appendix 4.

3

C69

Vision and Objectives
The quantitative analysis showed support for the vision (from the on-line consultation
feedback) 65% strongly or somewhat favour the vision for North Kingston, with 71% strongly
or somewhat favouring the overarching objectives of the Brief) and the objectives of the brief
Traffic
There was concern over increased volumes of traffic and congestion as a result of new
development and the closure of Kingsgate Road. Respondents felt that closure of Kingsgate
Road and re-route traffic would result in a very busy and congested Seven Kings Way,
having negative effects on road safety, air pollution and noise in the local area. It was felt
that this would particularly impact negatively on local residents living in the Royal Quarter
who would also find it difficult to access the car park in Seven Kings Way.
Height, scale and massing
Respondents felt that the height, scale and massing would result in overdevelopment in the
area and that the proposed height of the buildings were too high, not fitting in with the local
area. There was also some concern about the negative effects that taller buildings could
have, particularly low levels of light on neighbouring properties such as The Royal Quarter,
and impact on views. Certain respondents suggested that 12 storey buildings are too high,
and that 8 to 9 storeys would be more appropriate.
Infrastructure
There was some concern that new development would exacerbate pressure on existing
services such as doctors, dentists, schools and transport infrastructure in the local area.
Pressure on school places was a particularly significant concern.
Public Realm
Support was very high for the public realm and public open space strategy and principles,
with 81% strongly or somewhat in favour. Respondents were concerned over the quality of
open spaces, including biodiversity, as well as maintenance and ownership.
Housing
Housing was a particular issue and views on this were varied between those that feel more
affordable housing is needed in the area versus those that see increasing housing as
bringing with it increased pressure on local services, schools in particular, traffic congestion
and pollution.
Sustainable transport and connections
There was very strong support for enhancing pedestrian and cycle connections in and
around the site.

4

C70

Conclusions
The Brief has been updated and amended to address the outcomes of the consultation.
Once adopted, the Brief will become a document that will hold material weight in the
determination of planning applications. It will provide an important framework to coordinate
and guide development and infrastructure investment within North Kingston.
The consultation responses received have led to amendments being required. Changes
include making sections more clear by amending and updating plans, simplifying and
amending text, and ensuring the Brief is in line with the Council’s existing planning policy. It
was also important to ensure that the vision, aims and objectives in the Brief support the
Council’s regeneration programme, Kingston Futures. A full schedule of the changes made
to the development brief as a result of consultation is set out in Appendix 3 of this report.

5

C71

Appendix 1 - Consultees
Statutory Consultees
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

British Gas
Coal Authority
Elmbridge Borough Council
Environment Agency
Epsom and Ewell Borough Council
Historic England
Highways England
Homes and Communities Agency
Kingston Clinical Commissioning Group
London Borough of Merton
London Borough of Richmond
London Borough of Sutton
London Borough of Wandsworth

●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Mayor of London / Greater London
Authority
Mobile Operators Association
Mole Valley District Council
National Grid
Natural England
Network Rail
Powergen
Scotia Gas Networks
Surrey County Council
Thames Water
The Planning Inspectorate
Transco
Transport for London

Businesses
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Adams and Adams Ltd
Adrienne Hill Ltd
AK II Property Investments Limited
Alderwick James and Co
Allen Pyke Associates
Aquilon Global Invest Ltd
Arrow Plastics Ltd
Aviva
Barton Willmore
Barwell Court Farm Management Co. Ltd
Bell Cornwell Partnership
Bentall Centre Management
Bentalls
BMR
Boots
British Home Stores
British Land
Canadian Portland
Carluccios
Carter & Carter
Carter Bells LLP
CBI (London Region)
Chelsea Building Society
Cherwell (3-5 Penrhyn Road) Ltd
Chris Thomas Ltd.
Diocesan Board of Finance
DTA Computer Systems
Ease & Co
Edward Jones Ltd
Egmont UK
Enstar Capital
Federation of Small Businesses
Four Communications Group PLC
Fusion Arts

●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Kingston Innovation Centre
Kingston Jobcentre
Kingston Market Traders Association
Kingston Plaza LLP
Kingston Tour Guides
Kingstonfirst
Lakeside Estates Ltd
LIDL UK
Lloyds TSB
London and Provincial Accommodation
Limited
Longford Securities and Equities Limited
Malden Golf Club
Marks & Spencer
McDonalds
Music Services
Nova Distribution
O'Neils (Mitchell and Butlers)
Oceana
Old London Road Traders Association
Osiers Court Properties Ltd
Palmers Solicitors
Parrs Boat Hire
Pearson Maddin Solicitors
Prim Vintage Fashion
Radio Jackie
Riverside Vegetaria Ltd
Roofwise Ltd
Royal Mail
Sainsbury's Supermarkets
Simone Kay Stained Glass
SNP Associates
Spires Sports Ltd
Spiritbond Kingston Road Ltd

6

C72

●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Gerald Cullfiord Ltd
Goldcrest Land
Hammersons
Hermes Hotel
Howdens Joinery Co.
Insight Services
Jackson-Scott Associates LTD
John Lewis
John Sharkey and Co.
Jones Lang LaSalle
Kidd Adam Ltd
Kingston Informer

●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Spiritbond Student Housing Ltd
Spuds
SRIL Penrhyn Road Limited
The Hippodrome Nightclub
The Rose Theatre
Tony Miller Systems Ltd
TP Bennett Architects
Turk Launches Ltd
University Superannuation Scheme
(USS)
Watkins Jones and Son Ltd
West & Partners
Wilkinson Stores

Community Support Groups
●
●
●
●

Kingston Citizens Advice
London Forum of Amenity and Civic
Societies
Royal British Legion Institute
Kingston Advocacy Group

●
●
●
●

Kaleidoscope
Kingston Citizens Advice Bureau
Freepost Equality Advisory Support
Service
Kingston Carers Network

Disability Groups
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Anchor Trust
Crescent Resource Centre
Disability Equality Group
HFT
Home Farm Trust
Kingston Association for the Blind
Parkinson's UK

●
●
●
●
●
●
●

People with Learning Disabilities
Partnership Board
Positive Action for Multiple Sclerosis
R.O.Y.A.D
Scope (N E Surrey) Geneva Road
Talking Newspaper
Team for Disabled Children
The Fircroft Trust

Education
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Alexandra Infant School
Bedelsford School
Buckland Infant and Nursery
Burlington Junior School
Chessington Community College
Christ Church Infants' School
Christ Church Junior School
Christ Church New Malden C of E
Primary
Christ Church Primary School
Coombe Boys School
Coombe Girls School
Coombe Hill Infant and Junior School
Corpus Christi Primary School
Dysart School
Ellingham Primary School
Euphrates Education Foundation (Arabic
School)
Fern Hill Primary School
Green Lane School
Hindi Bal Bhawan
Holy Cross Preparatory School

●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Malden Parochial Primary School
Maple Infants School
Nathaniel Lichfield & Partners
Our Lady Immaculate Primary School
Princes Trust- Merton College
Richard Challoner School
Robin Hood Primary School
Roehampton University
Shrewsbury House School
Southborough School
St Agatha's Catholic Primary School
St Andrews and St Marks C of E Junior
School
St Joseph's RC Primary School
St Luke’s Primary School
St Philip's School
St. Andrews & St. Marks C of E Junior
School
St. Johns C of E Primary School
St. Mary’s Primary School
St. Matthew’s Primary School
St. Paul's C of E Junior School

7

C73

●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

King Athelstan Primary School
Kingston College
Kingston Grammar School
Kingston Gurjarati School
Kingston Tamil School
Kingston University
Knollmead Primary School
Latchmere Junior School
Learn English at home
Lovelace Primary School
Malden Manor Primary

●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

St. Paul's C of E Primary School
The Hollyfield School and Centre for
Continuing Education
The Holy Cross School
The Mount Primary School
Tiffin Boys School
Tiffin Girls School
Tiffin School
Tolworth Girls School
Tolworth Infants and Nursery School
Tolworth School

Environment
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

BRE Group
British Geological Survey
CPRE
CPRE (London)
CPRE (Surrey)
Department for Environment, Food and
Rural Affairs
Environment Agency
Greater London Playing Fields
Association
Hurley Palmer Flatt
LA21 Forum
London Parks and Gardens Trust
Protect Our Green Spaces

●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

RenewableUK
River Thames Society
RSPB
Rural Pride Limited
Save the World Club
Surbiton & District Bird Watching Society
Surbiton and District Bird Watching
Society
Surrey Wildlife trust
Thames Landscape Strategy
The Royal Parks
The Woodland Trust
Viridor Waste Management Ltd

Ethnic Groups
●
●
●
●
●
●

Irish Traveller Movement in Britain
Kingston Asian Arts Forum
Kingston Chinese Association
Kingston Muslim Women’s Association
Kingston Racial Equality Council
Kingston Ulster Society

●

ACSA (Addiction Support and Care)
Canbury Medical Centre
Health and Safety Executive
HUDU
Kingston & District Welcare Association
Kingston Hospital Trust

●
●
●
●

●
●
●
●
●

Kingston, Richmond and Surrey African
Positive Outlook
London Gypsy and Traveller Unit
Milaap Centre
Refugee action Kingston
Sarvoday Hindu Association
The Gypsy Council

Health
●
●
●
●
●
●

●

Magic Roundabout
Mental Health Partnership Board
NHS Kingston
NHS London Healthy Urban
Development Unit
Public Health Directorate

Heritage
●
●
●
●
●
●

Conservation Area Advisory Committee
Coombe Wood Conservation Area
Friends of Kingston Museum & Heritage
Service
Garden History Society
Historic England
Historic Royal Palaces

●
●
●
●
●

Kingston Town Neighbourhood CAAC
Kingston upon Thames Archaeological
Society
Malden & Coombe CAAC
MLA London
Museum of London Archaeology
Department

8

C74

●

Kingston Society

●
●

Surbiton CAAC
Surbiton Conservation Area Advisory
Committee

●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Moat Housing Society
Molior London
New Era Housing Association
North British Housing Association
Paragon Community Housing Group
PML Building Services Limited
Raglan Housing Assoc
Rosemary Simmonds Memorial Housing
Assoc.
Shepherds Bush Housing Association
SPH Housing
St George West London
Teachers Housing Association
Terry Hill Design and build
Thames Valley Housing Association
Threshold Housing and Support
Town and Country Housing Group
Wandle Housing Association
YMCA

EE
EMF Enquires
Environment Agency
London Fire and Emergency Planning
Authority
London Fire Brigade

●
●
●
●
●

Metropolitan Police
Metropolitan Police Authority
Thames Water
Three
UK Power Networks

AFC Wimbledon
Campaign for Real Ale
CAMRA - Kingston & Leatherhead
Branch
Chessington Young Mums Group
Kingston Arts Council
Kingston Centre for Independent Living
Kingston Debating Society
Kingston Museum
Kingston Theatre
Kingston Tour Guides
Leatherhead Golf Club Ltd
Lexum Leisure (McCluskeys)
Malden Camera Club

●
●
●

Minima Yacht Club
Natural History Museum
New Malden Tennis, Squash and
Badminton Club
Places for People
PRO-ACTIVE South London
River Thames Boat Project
Rotunda
Saheli (Asian Womens Group)
Scout Association
Surbiton Croquet Club
Thames Sailing Club
The Lawn Tennis Association
The Theatres Trust

Housing
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

A2 Housing Group
Ability Housing Association
Affinity Sutton
Appley Properties Limited
Bridger Bell
Broomleigh Housing Association
Fairview New Homes Ltd
Family Housing Association
Gleeson
Hanover Housing Assoc.
Hestia Housing (Kingston Womens
Centre)
Home Group
Horizon Housing Group
Inquilab Housing Association
Clerical Medical
Kingston Churches Housing Association
Kingston upon Thames United Charities
Millat Asian Housing Association

Individuals
●

Approximately 1,350 local residents
previously noted on the Council’s
Planning Consultation Database

Infrastructure Providers
●
●
●
●
●

Leisure
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

9

C75

●

Malden Wanderers Cricket Club

Older People
●
●

Age UK Richmond upon Thames
Kingston Pensioners Forum

●
●

Older Peoples Partnership Board
Staywell

●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Indigo Planning Ltd
Jones Lang LaSalle
Kennet Properties Ltd.
King Sturge LLP
Kingston University Students Union
Knight Frank LLP
Lancashire Digital Technology Centre
Levvel Ltd
Lidl - Tolworth
Linden Homes South East
London Assembly
Longmoore Regeneration Limited
Malcolm Scott Consultants Ltd
Marcus Beale Architects
Metropolis Planning and Design
Mineral Products Association
Montagu Evans LLP
Morley Fund Management
Nathaniel Lichfield & Partners
NHP Leisure Development Ltd
Paul Dickinson and Associates
PB
Peacock and Smith Ltd
PlanInfo
Planning Mineral Products Association
Ltd.
Planning Potential
Planware Ltd
PPML Consulting Ltd
Premier Inn Tolworth
Quadrant Town Planning Ltd
Quod Planning
Rapleys LLP
Reside Developments Ltd
Robin Bretherick Associates
RPS Planning
Savills Commercial Ltd
SLR
Smith Jenkins
Spiritbond
SSA Planning Limited
St George West London Ltd
St James Group Ltd
Tetlow King Planning
TfL Planning
The Crown Estate
The JTS Partnership Ltd
The Planning Bureau Limited

Planning Interest
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Arnold Gilpin Associates ltd
Assent Environmental Planning
Austin Mackie Associates Ltd
Barton Willmore
Bell Fischer Landscape Architects
Bonsor Penningtons
Boyer Planning
Boyer Planning London
Broadway Malyan
Canadian and Portland Estates Ltd.
Capitalise Assets LLP
Cattaneo Commercial
CBRE
CgMs Consulting
Chase & Partners
Chessington Nurseries
Cluttons LLP
Coal Pension Properties
Colliers CRE
Crest Nicholson
Cunnane Town Planning LLP
Cushman and Wakefield
Dalton Warner Davis LLP
David Lock Associates Ltd
Davis Planning
DE Headquarters
Defence Estates Property Team
Deloitte Real Estate
Deloittes
Denton Wilde Sapte
Design Council
Designature
Development Planning Partnership
DevPlan
dp9
DPDS Consulting Group
Drivas Jonas Deloitte
DTZ
Eden Walk Shopping Centre General
Partner Limited
Elborough
Entec, Environmental and Engineering
Consultancy
ESA Planning Ltd.
Evans Roden Myzen
Farrer & Co
Firstplan
Fusion Online

●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

10

C76

●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Fusion Online Ltd
GL Hearn
Hammerson plc
Harper Planning
Heaton Planning Ltd
Hemingford Properties
Her Majesty's Court Service
HTA Design LLP
Iceni Projects Ltd

●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

The Theatres Trust
Thomas Eggar LLP
TPAC Ltd.
Turley Associates
Universities Superannuation Scheme
Ltd.
Waind Gohil Architects
Walker Morris
Warner Estates
White and Sons Planning Consultants

●

Kingston Borough Liberal Democrats

●
●
●
●
●
●

Kingston Baha’is
Kingston Chinese Association
Kingston Liberal Synagogue
Kingston Muslim Association
Kingston Quakers
Kingston, Surbiton and District
Synagogue
New Malden Methodist Church
St Catherine of Siena RC Church
Surbiton Community Church
The Korean Church
United Reformed Church

Political
●
●

Kingston and Surbiton Conservatives
Kingston and Surbiton Constituency
Labour Party

Religious Groups
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

African Families Support Services
Ahmadiya Muslim Association Surbiton
All Saints Church
Anglican Diocese of Southwark
Church Commissioners
Churches Together in Malden
Everyday Church Kingston
First Church of Scientist
Institute of Tamil Culture
Islamic Resource Centre
Kingston and Surbiton District
Synagogue

●
●
●
●
●

Residents Associations
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

1-14 Marlborough Gardens Residents
Association
Agar House Residents Association
Alexandra Neighbours Association
Alpha Road Estate Residents
Association
Alpha Road Residents' Association
Ancaster Crescent Residents'
Association
Ash Tree Close Residents Association
Avenue Road Residents Association
Avenue Road Residents Association
(ARRA)
Barnsbury Crescent Residents
Association
Beauclere House Surbiton Management
Ltd
Blenheim Gardens Residents
Association
Blenheim Gardens Residents
Association (BGRA)
BRaG Residents Association

●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Kingsnympton Park Estate Residents
Association
Kingston Society
Kingston Vale Residents Association
Knights Park Residents Association
Korean Residents' Society
Lancaster Close Residents Association
Lower Kings Road Residents
Maeldune Residents Association
Malden & Coombe Residents
Association
Malden Manor Residents Association
Malden Rushett Residents Association
Maple Road Residents Association
Marlowe House Residents Association
McDonald House Residents Association
Melbourne Court (Surbiton) Residents
Association
Melford Close Residents Association
Mill Street Residents Association
Motspur Park Residents Association
New Malden (Beverley Ward) Resident's
Association

11

C77

●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Brockley Court (Surbiton) Residents
Association Ltd
Brook Road Residents Association
Cambridge Gardens Residents
Association (TA)
Cambridge Road Community
Association
Cambridge Road Estate Residents
Association
Cambridge Road Estates Community
Group
Canbury Court Residents Association
CARA
Chantry Area RA
Charter Quay Residents Association
Chessington Court Residents
Association
Chessington District Residents
Association
Chessington Hall Residents Association.
Chessington R.A
Claremont House
Clarence Street/ London House ltd
Residents Association
Coombe House Estates Residents
Association
Coombe Park Residents Association
Coombe Ridings Residents Association
Coombe Roads Association
Coombe Wood Conservation Area
Crofts Residents Association
Cumberland House Residents
Association
Dengrove Residents Association
Dysart Avenue Residents Association
Eaton Drive Householders Association
Elgar Avenue Residents Association
Ellerton and Bond Road Residents'
Association
Fairfield South (Kingston) Management
Company Limited
Fassett Road Residents Association
Federation of Kingston Residents
Federation of RBK Residents
Associations
Gateways Residents Association
Glenbuck Studios Residents Association
Gloucester Court Residents Association
Groves Association
Hatfield House Residents Association
Ltd
Hawks Road Residents Association
Herne Road Residents Association
Hightrees Residents Association
Hillside Court Residents Association
Hogsmill Valley Residents Association
Homington Court Residents Association

●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Newborough Green Residents'
Association
Norbiton Village Residents' Association
North Kingston Forum
OADRA
Old Kingston Road Residents
Association
One Norbiton
Palmerston Court (Surbiton) No 2
Residents Association Limited
Penners Gardens Residents Association
Pennington Lodge Residents Association
Queens Road Residents Association
Ravensview Court Residents Association
River Court Residents Association
Rivermead (Surbiton) Residents
Association Ltd
Riverside Residents Association
Royal Quarter Residents Association
SCARA
Scarriff Court Residents Association
School Lane Residents Association
Shane Court Resident Association
South Hogsmill Valley Residents
Association
Southborough Residents Association
Southwood Drive Residents' Association
Spring Grove Residents Association
St Mathews Residents Association
Sunray and Egmont Residents
Association (SERA)
Surbiton Central Area Residents
Association
Surbiton Court Residents Association
Limited (Flats 1-69)
Surbiton Road Residents Association
The Alexandra Neighbours Association
The Grange Residents Association
Tithe Barn Close Residents Association
Tolworth South Residents Association
Tudor Residents (Kingston) Ltd
Victoria Avenue Residents Association
Victoria, Albert & Church Road
Residents Association
Wessex Close Home Owners
Association
Westergate House Residents
Association
Windsor Court Residents Association
Wolverton Ave Residents Association

12

C78

●
●

Hook Rise South Residents Association
Horsley Square Residents Co Ltd

Transport Providers
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Civil Aviation Authority
Department of Transport Rail Group
Freight Transport Association- London
and South East Region
Greater London Motorcycle Action
Group
H R Richmond Ltd
Kingston Area Travellers Association
Kingston Cycling Campaign
Living Streets
London Buses

●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

London Cyclists
London General Transport Services Ltd
London United Busway Ltd
Richmond and Kingston Accessible
Transport
Road Haulage Association
South London Partnership
South West Trains
Sustrans
Transport for London - London Buses

●
●

London Fire Brigade
Police and Community Working Group

●

The London Community Foundation

●

Youth Advisory Council

Utilities Groups
●
●

Health and Safety Executive
London Ambulance Service

Voluntary Groups
●

Kingston Voluntary Action

Young People
●

Parents Forum

13

C79

Submitted representations
The list below represents the consultees who submitted representations in response to the
formal consultation for the North Kingston Development Brief.
Statutory Consultees
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.

Natural England
Historic England
Thames Water
Kingston University
Transport for London
Highways England
Environmental Agency
London Borough of Richmond upon Thames

Businesses and Landowners
1.
2.
3.
4.

Russell-Cooke LLP
John Lewis
Berkley Homes
Kingston Gate Properties Limited

Residential Associations and other groups
1. North Kingston Forum
Local Residents - Emailed representations
In addition to the 54 consultees who responded to the online survey, a further 10 local
residents emailed their representations to the local plan inbox.

14

C80

Appendix 2 – Online Survey
Question 1a - Do you support this vision for North Kingston?
Question 1b - Do you have any comments?
Question 2a - Do you support the overarching objectives for North Kingston?
Question 2b - Do you have any comments?
Question 3a - Enhancing existing pedestrian connections
Question 3a - Closure of Kingsgate Road
Question 3a - Site pedestrian and cycle connections to local amenities including Kingston
Station
Question 3a - Widening and realignment of Seven Kings Way
Question 3a - Sopwith Way and Seven Kings Way junction improvements
Question 3a - Richmond Road remodelling to become two-way
Question 3a - Left turn from Sopwith Way onto Richmond Road
Question 3b - Do you have any comments?
Question 4a - To what extent do you agree with the proposed ‘Public Realm &amp; Public
Open Space Strategy and Principles’?
Question 4b - Do you have any comments?
Question 5a - To what extent do you agree with the proposed ‘Development Form and
Massing Strategy and Principles’?
Question 5b - Do you have any comments?
Question 6a - To what extent do you agree with the ‘Design Frameworks’ and their
Principles?
Question 6b - Do you have any comments in general or on specific frameworks?
Question 7 - Do you have any comments?

15

C81

Appendix 3 – Amendments to the North Kingston
Development Brief in response to consultation
The table below sets out all amendments/updates to the development brief in response to
comments from officers and consultation.
Page
No.

Paragraph Original text
/Location

General Plan
5

Plan

-

5

Plan Text

8

Key

Figure Ground
Plan showing
large voids in
the urban fabric
highlighting the
sites
underutilisation
Proposed Quiet
Route

8

Plan

10

Key

10

Plan

11

Principles
8

14

Key

14

Key

17

2

17

2

18

Key

19

Principles
5

Updated text/ Plan

Reason

Road/street names
added to plans
Plan updated

To ensure clarity of
Consultation
understanding
Plan updated to increase
Officers
accuracy, and reference date.
To simplify use of language
Officers

Figure Ground Plan
2015: the large voids in
the urban fabric display
the sites underutilisation

Proposed Cycle Route

-

Quality of plan
improved
Indicative Quiet Potential Dedicated
Route
Cycle Route

Identified by

To avoid confusion with
Officers
official TfL Quiet Way
programme
Ensure legibility of text in plan Consultation

To avoid confusion with
Officers
official TfL Quiet Way
programme
Alignment of cycle route To align with plans elsewhere Officers
in the DB and make the plan
more diagrammatic
Officers
Two vehicular routes To ensure there are always
to travel north joining two access routes to travel
Richmond Road to be north on Richmond Road.

retained at all times.
Retail and/ or
Education and
Residential Use
Retail and/ or
Community,
Commercial,
Residential, Car
Parking and
Education Use
New. New
public space...
...dealing with
water drainage.
*Please note:
All ‘storey’
heights are
inclusive of
ground floor

Retail (including A2/A3)
and/ or Education and
Residential Use
Retail (including A2/A3)
and/ or Community,
Commercial,
Residential, Car
Parking and Education
Use
New public space...

To ensure alignment with land Consultation
uses as identified in K+20
(page 151)
To ensure alignment with land Consultation
uses as identified in K+20
(page 152)

Remove duplicate word.

Officers

...dealing with water
drainage to support
biodiversity and help
address climatic issues.
Please note: All ‘storey’
heights are inclusive of
ground floor

Ensure supporting text aligns
with identified Principles

Consultation

Minor changes to clarify key
with regard to storey heights.

Officer

Outline applications for
tall buildings will not be
acceptable.

Strengthening supporting text
to provide robust assessment
criteria for future planning
applications

Consultation

16

C82

19

Principles
7

19

Footnote

22

1

22

1

22

2

24/26/2 Keys
8/30/34/
36
24/26/2 Keys
8/30/34/
36
25
1

Building heights
must respect
key strategic
and local views.
Proposed
buildings must
seek to
safeguard the
panorama and
strategic views
as noted in the
K+20.
Including
CABE/English
Heritage joint
guidance.

...Sopwith Way
and Seven
Kings Way and
Sopwith Way
and Richmond
Road.

Development
Principles

Proposed buildings
must positively
contribute to the
panorama and key
views as noted in the
K+20 and Core
Strategy, and provide
accurate visual
representations
alongside a robust
assessment of the
impact on these views.
Including Historic
England Advice Note 4
(2015)

To strengthen the awareness
of and protection for key
views within the Principles.

Officers and
Consultation

Update to reflect latest
guidance

Consultation

Add: "Space will be
safeguarded along
Sopwith Way to ensure
future two-way working
can be accommodated,
ensuring the Council
can deliver its preferred
transport option as
identified by the Town
Centre Movement
Study (2014).
."
...Sopwith Way with
Seven Kings Way and
Sopwith Way with
Richmond Road.

To ensure the Council can
deliver its preferred transport
option as identified by the
Town Centre Movement
Study, and that this desire is
explicit in the DB.

Officers

To improve clarity of text

Officers

Add: North Kingston
falls within an identified
area of Archaeological
Significance. Robust
exploratory
investigations to
determine if
significant remains are
present on site should
be undertaken and
should define their
character, extent,
quality and
preservation.
Simplify key with regard
to shared space car
park access
Simplify key with regard
to proposed cycle
movement
Delivery Principles

To ensure alignment with
Core Strategy

Consultation

25

Bullet
points

Off site
infrastructure

Surrounding
infrastructure

27

1

...character of
Richmond
Road.

...character of
Richmond Road,
particularly further north
where the scale,
rhythm, use and detail

To improve clarity of plan and Officers
key
To improve clarity of plan and Officers
key
Ensure alignment with
previous changes to the
document
Ensure alignment with
previous changes to the
document
Support the definition of the
future character of this area.

Officers
Officers
Consultation

17

C83

reflect the historic
importance and
character of this route.
...commercial,
...commercial, retail,
retail or leisure cafe/restaurant or
use...
leisure use...
The plot width
The plot width of
of development development (at ground
(at ground floor) floor) should support
should support the rhythm of the High
the rhythm of
Street and historic
the High Street. character of this route.
complimented
complemented

27

2

27

Bullet
points

32

3

32

2

33

5

34

Plan

36

2

37

5

37

5

41

1

42

Plan

44

2

50

4

54

Plan

Update plan

55

3

Add: , which will be
further improved by
Crossrail 2,

...their students,
as well as
playing a
successful
wrole in the
townscape of
North Kingston,
be it...

To ensure alignment with land Consultation
uses as identified in K+20
(pages 151 and 152)
Support the definition of the
Consultation
future character of this area.

spelling

Officer

...their students, as well spelling
as playing a successful
role in the townscape of
North Kingston, be it...

Officer

add: The provision of
affordable homes on
site must comply with
policies set out in the
London Plan and Local
Plan.
...Surrounding
infrastructure
Seven Kings Way

...Off site
infrastructure
Seven Kings
Road
...frontage on to ...frontages on to these
this key route.
key routes.
Add: Land adjoining
Sopwith way must be
safeguarded to facilitate
the future operation of
this street in line with
the town centre
movement study.
...demolished
...demolished and 52
and Kingston
Kingsgate Road, a two
Printers, a two storey 1950s building
storey 1950's
with office and
building with
light-industrial use
office use
Updated land
ownership plan to
reflect ownership along
Richmond Road
... sustainable
...sustainable urban
drainage
drainage systems
systems
(SuDS) ...
(SuDS) ...
identified as
identified as 'Central' in
'Urban' in
character...
character...

To clarify the Council's
Consultation
position on affordable housing
on the NK site.

Title of plan updated to reflect Officer
wider Framework plan
spelling
Officer
Grammar

Officer

To ensure the Council can
deliver its preferred transport
option as identified by the
Town Centre Movement
Study, and that this desire is
explicit in the DB.

Officer

Grammar, update name and
use of property.

Consultation

To ensure the Plan reflects
Officer
the Council’s best knowledge
of land ownership at this time.
Correct terminology for
acronym.

Officer

Update to reflect guidance
from London Plan and the
previously agreed
identification of Gas Holder
site at Central.
Update plan to reflect recent
changes in highway access.
Updated to reflect current
proposals to improve public
transport in the area.

Consultation

Officer
Consultation

18

C84

58

59

3

Full advantage
will be taken of
the current ‘Go
Cycle’ initiative
to provide
comprehensive
facilities across
the area for
pedestrians and
cyclists, in
particular
linking with the
proposed
‘Quietway’
cycle route
which will
traverse the site
in an East/West
direction.

Full advantage will be
taken of the current ‘Go
Cycle’ initiative to
provide comprehensive
facilities across the area
for pedestrians and
cyclists.

Removal of reference to
‘Quietway’. To avoid
confusion with official TfL
Quiet Way programme.

Officer

remove content of this
page

Superseded by content
elsewhere in the DB

Officer

19

C85

Appendix 4 – Quantitative Analysis of Survey
Results
The Council’s Strategic Business Team carried out a comprehensive data analysis for all
responses received via the online portal. The key findings of this analysis are set out below.

Vision for North Kingston
Respondents were firstly asked whether they agreed with the vision for North Kingston.
Just under two-thirds (65%) of respondents are in favour of the vision, most of whom are
‘somewhat in favour’. A fifth (21%) oppose the vision. Caution needs to be taken with this
interpretation due to the small sample size.

20

C86

Objectives for North Kingston
Nearly three-quarters of respondents support the objectives for North Kingston.
Twenty-two respondents provided comments regarding the objectives for North Kingston. In
many respects the comments are similar to those provided for the preceding question.
There is agreement that the area is rundown and needs improving and many of the
comments point out things that need improving or evaluate some of the proposals.
Housing in particular is an issue and views on this are mixed between those that feel more
affordable housing is needed in the area versus those that see increasing housing as a bad
thing bringing with it more pressure on local services, schools in particular, traffic congestion
and pollution.

21

C87

Access and movement strategy and principles
A breakdown of the level of support and opposition to the seven statements relating to the
access and movement strategy is shown below, arranged in descending order of agreement.
Support for enhancing pedestrian connections and to site pedestrian and cycle connections
to local amenities is especially strong. The remaining statements, which all relate to
alterations to road layouts, receive a much more mixed response, with significant proportions
of respondents disagreeing with proposals or that are neutral. In the case of the final
statement concerning closure of Kingsgate Road, opposition (32%) is greater than support
(26%), with 40% neutral.
Again, a larger sample size would allow greater confidence in the representativeness of the
results.
Thirty-three respondents provided comments in relation to this question. The majority relate
to the road layout proposals, are critical of existing routes or of the Council’s proposals.

22

C88

(N.B. Total number of respondents are listed down the right hand side)
Public realm and public open space strategy and principles
Support is very high for the public realm and public open space strategy and principles, with
81% in favour. Some of these show support for the strategy and to support wildlife in the
area, others suggest improved lighting to increase public safety in the area at night.

23

C89

Development form and massing strategy and principles
For this strategy, opposition (52% are strongly or somewhat opposed) outweighs support
(31% strongly or somewhat favour).
Thirty-four respondents provided comments. The dominant theme concerns the controls on
height, with 12 storeys cited by many as too high. As a maximum, 8 to 9 storeys seems to
be preferred. Other concerns relate to the density of development and impact on
infrastructure.

24

C90

Design frameworks and their principles
Sixty percent of respondents are in favour of the design frameworks.

25

Annex 3
Responses to
North Kingston Development Brief Consultation

C91

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation

Contents
Emailed and posted responses to the consultation
Statutory Consultees

2
2

Business and Landowner

18

Resident Associations and Local Residents

26

Online questionnaire responses to the consultation

39
39

Question 2a & 2b - Do you support the overarching objectives for North Kingston?

62

Question 3a

73

Question 3b - Do you have any comments?

74

Question 4a & 4b - To what extent do you agree with the proposed ‘Public Realm & Public Open Space Strategy
and Principles’?

93

Question 5a & 5b - To what extent do you agree with the proposed ‘Development Form and Massing Strategy and
Principles’?

104

Question 6a & 6b - To what extent do you agree with the ‘Design Frameworks and their Principles’?

120

Question 7 - Do you have any comments?

134

C92

Question 1a & 1b - Do you support the vision for North Kingston?

1

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation

Emailed and posted responses to the consultation
The Council received 23 detailed responses via email/post from varying interest groups and local residents which have been set out below. Comments (as received)
made have been numbered so corresponding responses are easily identifiable. The last column identifies the changes the Council have made to the document as a
result of the consultation responses.

Statutory Consultees
Respondent

Date
Received

Comment

2

Natural
England

14/07/16

1. Natural England does not consider that this Draft North Kingston
Development Brief poses any likely risk or opportunity in relation to our
statutory purpose, and so does not wish to comment on this consultation.

1. Comment noted.

No change.

10

Historic
England

23/08/16

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on this draft development brief.
Historic England is the Government’s advisor on all matters relating to the
historic environment and a statutory consultee on a broad range of applications
affecting the historic environment including the Environmental Impact
Assessment of projects.

1. The London Plan states
that "The Mayor is working
with boroughs and other
partners to identify, assess
and realise the potential for
new Opportunity and
Intensification Areas in
terms of Policy 2.13
including in the London
boroughs of Haringey
(Haringey Heartlands),
Sutton (Sutton Hospital),
and Hounslow (Great West
Corridor including the
‘Golden Mile’) and in the
Royal Borough of Kingston
upon Thames (Kingston
town centre)."

Change. Page 27, para 1.
Text added: New
development must
understand and respond to
the character of Richmond
Road, particularly further
north where the scale,
rhythm, use and detail
reflect the historic
importance and character
of this route’.

Accordingly, we have reviewed this consultation in the context of the National
Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and its core principle that for development
to be sustainable it must seek economic, social and environmental gains jointly
and simultaneously (para 8). This includes the protection and enhancement of
the historic environment, in order that it can be enjoyed for its contribution to
the quality of life of this and future generations.
Historic England welcomes the production of this development brief, but
consider that it needs additional work to ensure that it will lead to good design
that avoids harm to the historic environment. To help resolve these issues we
are pleased to offer the following comments regarding:
● the planning status of the area
● good design in this context
● listed building and buildings of townscape merit
● the proposed

building heights - setting and views
● archaeology
Planning status
1. We note that p.5 makes reference to an ‘emerging opportunity area’.
However this document does not appear to be a consultation on this

RBK Response

2. Individual applications
that come forward must be
compliant with adopted
Core Strategy policies
which provide an
overarching policy context.
These include DM10,

Document Update

C93

ID

Change. Page 29, 5th
bullet point in delivery
principles.
Text added: ‘The plot width
of development (at ground
floor) should support the
rhythm of the High Street
and historic character of
this route’.
Change. Page 19, 5th
bullet point in Development
Form and Massing
Principles.

2

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
designation, nor to our knowledge, has there been such a consultation to date.
As such we do not consider that this materially changes the planning context,
which is largely set out in the Kingston Town Centre Area Action Plan (K+20)
that is referenced throughout. Nevertheless we appreciate the pressures for
growth are increasing, as well as the need for major change on this site, and
note that this part of the borough was identified over eight years ago for
significant mixed-use growth.
Good Design
We are pleased to see that the development strategy principles seek to
establish a distinct character for this site based on an understanding of the
history of the area. This is in line with paragraph 58 of the NPPF which
encourages development that “correspond(s) to local character and history, and
reflect(s) the identity of local surroundings and materials, while not preventing
or discouraging appropriate innovation”. 2. However, despite the Council having
previously assessed the architectural character of the borough, we note that no
further details are provided within the text of what the Council consider to be
the important history of the area, or which distinctive local characteristics you
are looking to build upon. Some additional commentary, using the available
evidence base would help resolve this.

4. Paragraph 7.4 of K+20 seeks to “Protect and enhance the historic routes into
the centre and other areas of quality Victorian and 20th century development
that retain their original fabric and character.” As such, we would recommend
that you provide more detail on how the Council consider the plots on the
Richmond Road could be best developed, retaining its sense of being an
historic route into the town centre.
5. While the buildings 13-43 Richmond Road vary in their quality and age, the
pattern of development appears to date to the late eighteenth or early
nineteenth century. The small scale and tight grain of this group of buildings is
characteristic of this period, and contributes to the context of the ancient town
centre. You may wish to provide architects and designers with some good
examples in the brief that show the scale and density you are seeking to
achieve while expressing the tight grain that is a distinctive characteristic of this
part of the site. Schemes such as the Bear Lane development in Southwark
may illustrate this well.

3. Regarding design quality,
individual development
proposals will be assessed
against adopted Core
Strategy policies, including
DM10, DM11 and CS8
which are concerned with
design standards.
4. Regarding historic
routes, the AAP seeks to
protect and enhance the
historic routes into the
centre of Kingston.
Richmond Road is one
such route, and in certain
areas has a distinctive and
high quality character (as
identified by the Borough
Character Study). The
Design Framework for
Richmond Road suggests
how the qualities of this
environment must be
understood and responded
to.
5. Comment noted.

Text added: ‘Outline
applications for tall
buildings will not be
acceptable’’.
Change. Page 19, 7th
bullet point in Development
Form and Massing
Principles.
Text deleted: ‘Proposed
buildings must seek to
safeguard the panorama
and strategic views as
noted in the K+20’.
Replaced with: ‘Proposed
buildings must positively
contribute to the panorama
and key views as noted in
the K+20 and Core
Strategy, and provide
accurate visual
representations alongside a
robust assessment of the
impact of these views’.
Change. Page 19, 7th
bullet point in Development
Form and Massing
Principles:
1) Text added: ‘Outline
applications for tall
buildings will not be
acceptable’.
2) ‘*Including CABE/English
Heritage joint guidance’
deleted and replaced with
‘Including Historic England
Advice Note 4 (2015)’
Change. Page 22, para1/2.
Text added: ‘Space will be
safeguarded along Sopwith
Way to ensure future
two-way working can be

3

C94



3. Ensuring the quality of new buildings on the site is important given the poor
standard of many of the buildings that make up its immediate context. This is
particularly

noticeable with many of the late 20th and early 21st century
developments to the south and west of the site which are of little or no
architectural merit and relate poorly to the historic core of Kingston.

DM11, DM12 and CS8
(Character Design and
Heritage) which all seek to
ensure the quality of new
development. In addition
the Council will use other
supportive and guidance
material (including the
Borough Character
Appraisal) to support
discussions and
negotiations with
developers and in the
determination of planning
applications.

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
6. We also note that you are looking to amend the street pattern. While
Kingsgate Road currently offers a very poor environment, it replaced a through
road called Chapel Place which was designed to link to Acre Road. If you wish
to successfully integrate this area with other adjacent residential areas, you
may wish to consider how traditional city blocks, which are often more flexible
and better appreciated by residents and visitors, could be set out on the site.
This appears to be one of the major shortfalls of the other modern
developments in this part of Kingston, reinforcing the disjointed nature of the
townscape caused by poorly designed highways schemes.
Listed building and Buildings of Townscape Merit
7. We welcome the Council clearly setting out in the development brief that
proposals should incorporate the existing buildings of townscape merit at
Kingston College and the Grade II listed Former Gala Bingo building. These are
important heritage assets which should act as a guide to the development
around them. As such we would question whether the impact on their setting
has been tested adequately to justify the scale of buildings proposed beside
them.

Building Heights
8. K+20 highlights the view from Thatched House Lodge Richmond Park
towards Kingston town centre and the Grade II listed Guildhall as being
significant, and illustrates it crossing over part of the North Kingston Site. The
development form and massing principles also helpfully highlight the need to
respect views and the setting of listed buildings. It is therefore surprising that
this important consideration appears to have been overlooked in the suggested
heights plan (p.18) showing where the Council consider taller elements could
be located. Unless there has been visual testing that is not referenced in the
text, it is unclear why a building up to 12 storeys should be located in the
position that you are proposing. If testing has not taken place yet we would
strongly encourage you to do so before adopting this document. If, as it
appears they might, the 9 and 12 storey elements proposed would obscure the
view of the town centre or Guildhall from Richmond Park, we would recommend
reconsidering where their mass might be located, or reducing the heights that

7. Individual development
proposals will need to be
tested against existing Core
Strategy policies, including
CS8, DM10, DM11, and
DM12, as appropriate.
8. The building heights
contained in the
Development Brief are
indicative, and will need to
be tested at a more detailed
level following the receipt of
a planning application. The
supporting commentary and
Development Form and
Massing Principles set out
how the Council will assess
any proposed development
to ensure that the proposed
heights are appropriate.
The Town Centre Area
Action Plan identified a key
view for protection from
Thatched House Lodge
towards Guildhall, this view
is also identified in the Core
Strategy as a key view. The
Council has worked to
assure itself that the
heights indicated in
‘Development form and
massing’ plan are
appropriate.

accommodated, ensuring
the Council can deliver its
preferred transport option
as identified by the Town
Centre Movement Study.
North Kingston falls within
an identified area of
Archaeological
Significance. Robust
exploratory investigations to
determine if significant
remains are present on site
must be undertaken and
should define their
character, extent, quality
and preservation’.

C95

This is particularly evident for the College site, where a building of up to 7
storeys is proposed to wrap around the former Board School, which could
appear almost double the height of the BTM, and is likely to visually dominate
it. This would run contrary to the sympathetic approach that the College
recently adopted when developing part of the site, which bette revealed the
attractive Victorian facades. We would therefore suggest that you provide
clearer guidance in the text and the principles about how new development
might celebrate these local buildings of special quality.

6. Comment noted.

9. Microclimatic aspects will
be dealt with with regard to
specific development
proposals, as and when
they come forward.

4

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
will be permitted.

10. Comments noted.

9. Similarly, if the justification for having 9 and 12 storey buildings in the
proposed locations is to ensure they have acceptable microclimatic impacts on
new public spaces at the heart of the development, we would encourage you to
test this thoroughly too before adopting this brief. This is because the current
location of these taller elements to the south and west of the main public space
seems likely to maximise the amount of shading to the proposed public space,
rather than minimising it.

11. Comments noted.

10. On an editorial note the 2007 CABE/EH Guidance on Tall Buildings was
superseded in 2015 by Historic England’s Advice Note 4: Tall Buildings
(https://historicengland.org.uk/imagesbooks/publications/tall-buildings-advice-n
ote-4/).

11

Thames Water

23/08/16

1. Water Supply and Sewerage/Wastewater Infrastructure
A key sustainability objective for the preparation of Local Plans and
Neighbourhood Plans should be for new development to be co-ordinated with
the infrastructure it demands and to take into account the capacity of existing
infrastructure. New development should be co-ordinated with the infrastructure
it demands and to take into account the capacity of existing infrastructure.
Paragraph 156 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), March
2012, states: “Local planning authorities should set out strategic policies for the
area in the Local Plan. This should include strategic policies to deliver:……the
provision of infrastructure for water supply and wastewater….”
Paragraph 162 of the NPPF relates to infrastructure and states: “Local planning
authorities should work with other authorities to: assess the quality and capacity
of infrastructure for water supply and wastewater and its treatment…..take
account of the need for strategic infrastructure including nationally significant
infrastructure within their areas.”

C96

Archaeology
11. As the site lies within an archaeological priority area associated with Roman
burials discovered in the 19th century, we recommend that the brief should
advise applicants that an archaeological predetermination evaluation should be
undertaken to inform any planning applications and decisions. This may
involve some exploratory investigations to determine if significant remains are
present on site and if so to define their character, extent, quality and
preservation. For further advice on the archaeological implications of
developing this site, please contact Laura O’Gorman in the Greater London
Archaeological Advisory Service.
Comments 1-4 noted.

No change.

Issues of design will be
dealt with with regard to
specific development
proposals, as and when
they come forward.
A review of the
Infrastructure Delivery Plan
will be made as part of the
production of the Council’s
new Local Plan which will
take into account the need
of infrastructure and
services in the Borough.

The web based National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) published in

5

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
March 2014 includes a section on ‘water supply, wastewater and water quality’
and sets out that Local Plans should be the focus for ensuring that investment
plans of water and sewerage/wastewater companies align with development
needs. The introduction to this section also sets out that “Adequate water and
wastewater infrastructure is needed to support sustainable development”
(Paragraph: 001, Reference ID: 34-001-20140306).
It is important to consider the net increase in water supply and wastewater
demand to serve the development and also any impact that developments may
have off site, further down the network.

C97

It is unclear at this stage what the net increase in demand on Thames Water’s
infrastructure will be as a result of the Development Brief proposals. It is
therefore essential that developers demonstrate that adequate water supply
and wastewater infrastructure capacity exists both on and off the site to serve
the development and that it would not lead to problems for existing users. In
some circumstances this may make it necessary for developers to carry out
appropriate reports and appraisals to ascertain whether the proposed
development will lead to overloading of existing water and sewerage
infrastructure. Where there is a capacity problem and no improvements are
programmed by the water company, then the developer needs to contact the
water company to agree what improvements are required and how they will be
delivered prior to any occupation of the development.
2. SuDS
With regard to surface water drainage it is the responsibility of the developer to
make proper provision for drainage to ground, watercourses or surface water
sewer. It is important to reduce the quantity of surface water entering the
wastewater system in order to maximise the capacity for foul sewage to reduce
the risk of sewer flooding.
Thames Water recognises the environmental and economic benefits of surface
water source control, and encourages its appropriate application, where it is to
the overall benefit of their customers. However, it should also be recognised
that SUDS are not appropriate for use in all areas, for example areas with high
groundwater levels or clay soils which do not allow free drainage. SUDS also
require regular maintenance to ensure their effectiveness.
Limiting the opportunity for surface water entering the foul and combined sewer
networks is of critical importance to Thames Water. Thames Water have
advocated an approach to SuDS that limits as far as possible the volume of and
rate at which surface water enters the public sewer system. By doing this,
SuDS have the potential to play an important role in helping to ensure the
sewerage network has the capacity to cater for population growth and the

6

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
effects of climate change.
SUDS not only help to mitigate flooding, they can also help to:
● improve water quality
● provide opportunities for water efficiency
● provide enhanced landscape and visual features
● support wildlife
● and provide amenity and recreational benefits.
3. Water Conservation
Water conservation and climate change is a vitally important issue to the water
industry. Not only is it expected to have an impact on the availability of raw
water for treatment but also the demand from customers for potable (drinking)
water.

C98

The Environment Agency has designated the Thames Water region to be
“seriously water stressed” which reflects the extent to which available water
resources are used. Future pressures on water resources will continue to
increase and key factors are population growth and climate change. Therefore,
Thames Water supports water conservation and the efficient use of water.
Thames Water support the mains water consumption target of 110 litres per
head per day as set out in the NPPG (Paragraph: 015 Reference ID:
56-015-20150327) and consider that this should be covered in the
Development Brief.
4. Proposed Change to Development Brief
Thames Water recommends that developers engage with them at the earliest
opportunity to establish the following:
● The developments demand for water supply and network
infrastructure both on and off site and can it be met;
● The developments demand for Sewage/Wastewater Treatment and
network infrastructure both on and off site and can it be met; and
● The surface water drainage requirements and flood risk of the
development both on and off site and can it be met
Thames Water consider that text along the lines of the following should be
added to the Development Brief:
“Water Supply, Wastewater & Sewerage Infrastructure
Developers will be required to demonstrate that there is adequate water supply,
waste water capacity and surface water drainage both on and off the site to
serve the development and that it would not lead to problems for existing or

7

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
new users. In some circumstances it may be necessary for developers to fund
studies to ascertain whether the proposed development will lead to overloading
of existing water and/or wastewater infrastructure.
Drainage on the site must maintain separation of foul and surface flows.
Where there is an infrastructure capacity constraint the Council will require the
developer to set out what appropriate improvements are required and how they
will be delivered.
Further information for Developers on water supply and sewerage infrastructure
can be found on Thames Water’s website at:
http://www.thameswater.co.uk/home/11425.htm
Or contact can be made with Thames Water Developer Services
By post at: Thames Water Developer Services, Clearwater Court, Vastern
Road, Reading RG1 8DB;
By telephone on: 0800 009 3921;
Or by email: developer.services@thameswater.co.uk”
Kingston
University

05/09/2016

Kingston University supports the Council's promotion of the delivery of
additional education uses within the North Kingston area and the additional
student accommodation. We would note that the University Vision which has
been communicated with the Borough, is to provide where practicable,
managed student accommodation on its own land as this reduced rental costs,
and allows the University to promote communal living and improved interaction
between students. This leads to a significantly improved student experience.
Whilst it is noted that there are a number of student accommodation
developments within Kingston Town Centre, these are often double the cost of
the University's owned and managed accommodation. 1. We consider that the
need for affordable student accommodation should be specifically identified
within the development brief and supported in principle.

Comment 1 noted however
the demand for student
accommodation is outside
the scope of this brief but
will be a matter for
consideration under the
London Plan policies and
will be further considered in
the emerging Local Plan in
due course

No change.

15

Transport for
London

02/09/2016

TfL supports the overall transport objectives of the document to provide a
balanced transport network, that helps to facilitate town centre development
opportunities, whilst delivering improved walking, cycling and public transport
facilities to encourage movement.

1.The Council is keen to
explore these ideas and is
investigating such matters
as part of separate studies
in the Kingston area. This is
involving discussion with
key partners such as
Transport for London,
Network Rail, developers
and other bodies.

Change. Page 55, para 3.
Wording added: ‘High
public transport
accessibility, which will be
further improved by
Crossrail 2, reduces the
need for development to
provide car parking, which
will support more intensive
development at higher
density.

1. Integrating transport, regeneration and development, and Crossrail 2
The area covered by the development brief is in close proximity to Kingston
Station. As stated on page 5, Kingston Station has been identified as a
beneficiary of the Crossrail programme, which will increase connectivity and
provide substantial regenerative benefits to the area. 1. Although this is
acknowledged in the ‘Drivers for Change’ section the rest of the document

C99

14

8

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
could recognise future growth opportunities. In particular whether a new station
development zone could be created, which includes land within the masterplan
or expands the masterplan to include the station and a new interchange with
potential for over-station development.
2. The ‘Planning Context: Land Use’ section (page 50) discusses the London
Plan housing targets for the borough. This section should also be looking to
maximise opportunities from future transport investment, strengthening the
relationship between transport and development. TfL understands why it is
important to refer to the current character and PTAL of the site, however
considering the area’s central urban location close to a major railway station.
3. Although Crossrail is not yet committed, work on the project is ongoing and
TfL is in discussions with the council. If permitted, this major project will
significantly improve the borough’s connections to central London. It is
essential this policy acknowledges this and it is recognised in the documents
aspirations. Therefore, a paragraph on Crossrail 2 should be included within the
‘Planning Context: Movement & Access – Transport Infrastructure’ section of
the document.

5. TfL is unable to support the proposals for the junction of Sopwith and
Richmond Road which requires route 65 to be diverted off Seven Kings Road
until further work has been undertaken and funding identified to mitigate any
impact to the service. TfL would like further work to be undertaken on the
options including retaining the existing links, and ensuring the college along
with all new developments retain direct bus access.
6. Any options that would result in addition cost to route 65 or any other
services would need to be covered by developers. In this case the cost could
be £1,100,000 and this will need to be covered over 5 years. Any infrastructure
related costs for replacing the shelters and/or advertising contracts would also
have to be taken into account.
Cycling

3. Comments noted.
4 & 5. The Council is
working with key partners
such as TfL on an ongoing
basis to bring about
improvements to bus
services in the area.
Detailed investigations are
carried out in respect of all
major new development
and other significant
proposals to assess the
impact on the transport
network and identify the
need for improvements.
6. The Council collects
contributions from
developers in relation to the
upkeep and upgrade of key
infrastructure.

C100

Buses
4. TfL previously held several discussions and worked closely with Kingston on
the proposals for road layouts, vehicle access and rerouting buses in the area.
Whilst the highway changes were something TfL was previously willing to work
with, considering the new developments, Go Cycle schemes, town centre
aspirations and potential Crossrail 2, further work needs to be carried out to
fully understand the impacts it would have on the bus network. In particular the
possible delays it would clause to route 65, and traffic congestion on Wood
Street.

2. Comments noted.

7. The Council’s transport
policies give a high priority
to cycle movement.
Dedicated and segregated
cycling facilities are being
implemented across the
borough, in particular
including measures funded
through the Go Kingston
Cycling initiative. In the
case of the North Kingston
area, to ensure good
connections by cycle, key
cycling facilities are being
introduced adjacent to the
major new development
sites. The aim is to
encourage the greatest
possible use of this mode

9

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
In general, TfL supports the aspirations to improve cycling facilities throughout
the brief with references to shared use, cycling in parks and pedestrian and
cycling routes. 7. However, given the current progress in cycling provision in
London, and especially Kingston as a mini Holland borough, TfL would expect
there to be more aspiration for dedicated and segregated cycling infrastructure.
Cycling should be recognised as mode in its own right rather than being
combined with walking. It is understood that this approach may be hard to
always follow due to space constraints in some areas and that this level of
design will be refined in the future, but perhaps some reference could be made
specific facilities. It is also suggested that TfL’s London Cycle Design
Standards are referenced to show some commitment towards delivering a high
level of service for cycling.
Parking
8. Car parking should be kept to a minimum and overall there is a need to
rationalise car parking in the town centre.
9. Cycle parking should also be provided in accordance with TfL minimum
standards and the addition of more publicly accessible cycle parking should be
sought.

Comment 8 noted.
9. The Council uses TfL’s
London Cycle Design
Standards in the
progression of new cycle
infrastructure. Additionally,
further publicly available
cycle parking is being
provided across the
borough, particularly in the
main centres and other key
attractors. All possible
steps are being taken to
ensure a safe environment
for cycling in the vicinity of
the new development. The
Council utilises TfL’s
minimum cycle parking
standards in guiding new
development on cycle
parking levels.

C101

Developer Contributions
TfL requests that the council secure financial contributions towards transport
infrastructure and capacity through CIL and s106. In particular s106 will be
sought for bus network improvements, as these cannot be secured through
CIL. Contributions towards station improvements as well as cycling should also
be sought. TfL will comment separately on the council's SPD on Planning
Obligations.

by making new
development fully
accessible.

Conclusion
Generally TfL supports the aspirations of the document to improve access and
transport links throughout the brief area. However, more work needs to be
undertaken on the options available, including both short and long term
measures. The policy also needs to address potential growth and the possibility
of Crossrail 2 more positively to help support the case.
12

Highways
England

24/08/2016

Thank you for your letter dated July 7 2016 inviting Highways England to
comment on the Consultation on the Draft North Kingston Development Brief
and the Consultation of the Duty to Cooperate Scoping Statement.

Comments 1 and 2 noted.

No change.

Highways England has been appointed by the Secretary of State for Transport
as strategic highway company under the provisions of the Infrastructure Act
2015 and is the highway authority, traffic authority and street authority for the
strategic road network (SRN). The SRN is a critical national asset and as such

10

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
Highways England works to ensure that it operates and is managed in the
public interest, both in respect of current activities and needs as well as in
providing effective stewardship of its long-term operation and integrity.
1. Highways England will be concerned with proposals that have the potential
to impact on the safe and efficient operation of the SRN, in this case this relates
to the M25 junctions 9-10 and the A3 between the M25 J10 and the A309.
Although not within the Borough, it should be noted that these sections of the
SRN are currently operating at a high level of stress and any additional traffic
would add to the existing congestion.
Consultation on the Draft North Kingston Development Brief
2. We have reviewed the consultation and have no particular comments at the
present time. We look forward to being consulted on the Development Brief as
it develops.
18

Environmental
Agency

05/09/2016

1. All the proposed site allocations offer opportunities to improve surface water
drainage by incorporating Sustainable Drainage Systems. Development at
these sites should be informed by the latest environmental good practice and
deliver high standards of sustainable design and construction. All sites over 1
hectare should demonstrate how surface water will be managed in a Flood Risk
Assessment in discussion with your drainage engineer.
2. We encourage early pre application discussions to ensure development
proposals do not increase flood risk and the site design and layout is informed
by the latest flood risk data and climate change allowances and supported with
quality Flood Risk Assessments. Before consulting us on applications in flood
zone 2 and 3 please check our updated Flood Risk Standing Advice to see if
you can apply comments without the need to consult us directly. For local
planning authorities:
https://www.gov.uk/flood-risk-assessment-local-planning-authorities and for
developers:
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/flood-risk-assessment-for-planning-applications.

Comments 1-7 noted.

No change.

The impact of specific
development proposals on
flood risk and surface water
flooding will be addressed
as and when proposals are
brought forward, where
pre-application discussions
will be encouraged to
maximise quality design for
this area.

C102

Thank you for consulting the Environment Agency on the above. This is an
opportunity for the wider North Kingston area to work with developers and other
stakeholders to push the boundaries in best practice sustainable development
and co-ordinated infrastructure planning and delivery. As noted in our previous
representation, we support the overall aims of the development brief and in
particular improving the pedestrian and cycling links to surrounding areas,
including to the town centre and the riverside and providing a more public open
space and landscaping for North Kingston.

Development proposals
should be compliant with
Core Strategy policies CS1,
CS2, and DM3 which are
concerned with sustainable
design for climate change
mitigation/adaptation.
5. Considerations of flood
risk within the borough are
to be reviewed in the
Infrastructure Delivery Plan
review as part of the
production of a new Local

11

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
We have attached more comments below for your consideration. Please do not
hesitate to contact me should you wish to discuss this further.

Plan.

3. Land contamination and remediation
We are pleased to know that parts of the development brief area have already
commenced with the construction of the former gas holder site and the
subsequent removal of a use which has blighted the area. Given the scale of
regeneration planned on brownfield land, we consider that the council would
want to address the impacts of past and future land uses, ensuring that these
do not affect the health of people and the environment. Land contamination and
remediation is the subject of planning and other regulatory regimes. The key to
the successful development of brownfield land is early and continual
engagement between landowner, developers, the council and the regulators.
Regulatory advice and guidance is available. The Environment Agency
documents ‘Model Procedures’ and ‘The Guiding Principles’ are particularly
useful as they highlight the main stages in the process, best practice and refer
to further guidance.
4. Sustainable Drainage System

C103

The regeneration of the wider North Kingston offers an excellent opportunity to
improve local drainage and introduce and retrofit Sustainable Drainage
Systems (SuDs) for example through street renewal and introduction of green
roofs and walls. For more information visit http://www.greenroofcode.co.uk/
All Development should utilise sustainable drainage systems unless there are
practical reasons for not doing so, and should aim to achieve greenfield run-off
rates and ensure that surface water run-off is managed as close to its source
as possible in line with the following drainage hierarchy:
1.
2.
3.
4.

store rainwater for later use
use infiltration techniques, such as porous surfaces in non-clay areas
attenuate rainwater in ponds or open water features for gradual
release
attenuate rainwater by storing in tanks or sealed water features for
gradual release.

Much of the proposed areas of potential growth or improvements are situated
on geological strata which may constrain sustainable drainage design due to
shallow groundwater tables or clay geology. Therefore careful consideration
needs to be given to proposed sewer infrastructure for new development areas.
The required water resources infrastructure also needs careful planning as well

12

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
as making new development water efficient to as high a standard as possible.
SUDs design must take appropriate account of historic contamination burdens
in this area and mitigate risks accordingly. Groundwater quality must be
protected as new development and infrastructure is brought forward.
We have produced joint guidance on how new development can improve the
environment which is available at:
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/planning-a-guide-for-developers
5. Surface Water Flooding
The Council is the Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) responsible for local flood
risk such as surface runoff, groundwater and from ordinary watercourses. We
strongly recommend the planning team to consult the council drainage engineer
to provide comments in terms of local flood risk given the proximity of the site to
Critical Drainage Area -CDA8 Acre Road Flood Alleviation Scheme. There may
be scope for additional investigations into compensatory flood storage that
could benefit the wider community.

C104

Proposals for surface water management associated with new developments
must aim to not increase, and where practicable reduce the rate of runoff from
the site as a result of the development in accordance with sustainable drainage
principles, SFRA and any guidance provided by the LLFA. Developments
should utilise SUDS and ensure that surface water run-off is managed as close
to its source as possible.
6. Open Space
We are pleased to know that a new park will be provided as part of new
development. Landscaping of the park should consider creating biodiverse
habitats that are low maintenance but attractive, delivering benefits for people
and pollinators. This can also deliver a net gain for biodiversity through the use
of Sustainable drainage systems including green roofs and ponds.
For the latest environmental maps and data click below:
http://environment.data.gov.uk/ds/partners/index.jsp#/partners/login
We have produced joint guidance on how development can improve the
environment:
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/planning-a-guide-for-developers
7. Climate Change Allowances

13

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
Recent updates to climate change allowances may have an impact upon the
development sites in terms of flood risk. The National Planning Practice
Guidance refers planners,developers and advisors to the Environment Agency
guidance on considering climate change in Flood Risk Assessments (FRAs).
This guidance was updated in February 2016 and is available on Gov.uk
The guidance can be used for planning applications, local plans,
neighbourhood plans and other projects. It provides climate change allowances
for peak river flow, peak rainfall, sea level rise, wind speed and wave height.
The guidance provides a range of allowances to assess fluvial flooding, rather
than a single national allowance. It advises on what allowances to use for
assessment based on vulnerability classification, flood zone and development
lifetime.
National planning policy and guidance states that site-specific flood risk
assessment should be carried out by (or on behalf of) a developer to assess
the flood risk to and from a development site. The assessment should
demonstrate to the decision-maker how flood risk will be managed now and
over the development’s lifetime, taking climate change into account, and with
regard to the vulnerability of its users.
River flows

C105

The guidance on Gov.uk provides central, higher central and upper end
allowances for peak river flow over three different timeframes up to the year
2115. Use the Environment Agency River Basin District maps to determine the
applicable river basin. The range of allowances is based on the following
percentiles:
Central –50th percentile
Higher central –70th percentile
Upper end –90th percentile.
See Appendix 1 for an explanation of the percentiles.
Peak rainfall
The guidance on Gov.uk shows anticipated changes in extreme rainfall
intensity in small catchments (<5 sq. km) and urban catchments. Central and
upper end estimates are provided. The new allowances and supporting advice
in ‘Flood risk assessments: climate change allowances’ are relevant when
preparing strategic flood risk assessments for development plan documents

14

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
and flood risk assessments for planning applications falling within the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended).
To find out when and how to use climate change allowances in flood risk
assessments and strategic flood risk assessments please visit: Flood risk
assessment: Climate change allowances
22

London
Borough of
Richmond
upon Thames

09/09/16

Introduction
The Development Brief covers an area of approximately 3ha. The site is
located in a highly accessible area, 400m from the River Thames, 300m north
of the main shopping core of Kingston Town Centre and just 60m from Kingston
train station to the south, which has a Public Transport Accessibility Level
(PTAL) rating of 6a (‘excellent’). It is bound by Richmond Road, Seven Kings
Way, Sury Basin and Sopwith Way. Kingsgate Road bisects the site. The
surrounding road network has created an ‘island’ effect which this Development
Brief seeks to resolve.

The Development Brief sets out a series of six objectives for the redevelopment
of the site. Proposals for the whole or partial redevelopment of the site must
demonstrate they are consistent with the following:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

deliver mixed tenure (including affordable) new homes in a central
location
reinforce the identity of Richmond Road as a local high street, with
public open space, diverse community facilities and retail
improvements
provide modern and flexible employment spaces
deliver new high quality public realm
support existing surrounding education use
deliver environmental improvements, addressing issues of noise and
air quality

Richmond Council supports these objectives.

Change. Page 19, 5th
bullet point in Development
Form and Massing
Principles.
Text added: ‘Outline
applications for tall
buildings will not be
acceptable’’.
Change. Page 19, 7th
bullet point in Development
Form and Massing
Principles.
Text deleted: ‘Proposed
buildings must seek to
safeguard the panorama
and strategic views as
noted in the K+20’.
Replaced with: ‘Proposed
buildings must positively
contribute to the panorama
and key views as noted in
the K+20 and Core
Strategy, and provide
accurate visual
representations alongside a
robust assessment of the
impact of these views’.
Change. Page 19, 7th
bullet point in Development
Form and Massing
Principles:
1) Text added: ‘Outline
applications for tall
buildings will not be
acceptable’.

15

C106

The site is part of a larger active development area north of the railway line,
referred to as the North Kingston Character Area in the K+20, which has been
the subject of major regeneration over the last 15 years, with the
redevelopment of the former Power Station site, station yard and factory sites.
This has resulted in the delivery of over 1,000 new residential units, a
700-space multi-storey car park, a 4,650m² supermarket, and a 3,100m² health
and fitness centre, with a 142-bed hotel currently under construction on the
former Power Station site.

1. The building heights
contained in the
Development Brief are
indicative, and will need to
be tested at a more detailed
level following the receipt of
a planning application. The
supporting commentary and
Development Form and
Massing Principles set out
how the Council will assess
any proposed development
to ensure that the proposed
heights are appropriate.
The Town Centre Area
Action Plan identified a key
view for protection from
Thatched House Lodge
towards Guildhall, this view
is also identified in the Core
Strategy as a key view. The
Council has worked to
assure itself that the
heights indicated in
‘Development form and
massing’ plan are
appropriate. However,
understandably the impact
of tall buildings can be
understood as a
cross-boundary issues and
RBK would be more than
happy to continue working
with LBRuT throughout the
production of both our Local
Plans to address this issue.

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
See pages 18-19
The ‘Development Form and Massing’ plan has been amended since the last
consultation to show a maximum height of 12 stories (G+11)*. The strategy and
principles provide guidance regarding building heights and the impact on the
local area. Some of the key considerations regarding this strategy include:
●
●
●
●
●
●

frontages along Richmond Road to be enhanced
building form to derive from comprehensive masterplan approach
heights, form and massing to not negatively impact public realm use
height and form to respect key strategic and local views
buildings to be of high quality
buildings should help navigation

*height and location will be tested through the consultation process and through
the application of a 3D model.
Richmond Council generally supports these considerations. However,

2. It may be of interest to note that there is a revised policy on building heights
in our draft Local Plan. In our past discussions we understood that Kingston
and Tolworth are key areas of growth and tall buildings are welcomed in these
areas. RBK is producing evidence (possibly a SPD) on ‘views and heritage’ but
do not anticipate specifying heights.
3. In addition, the SPD should ask for full planning applications to be required
for any building that is considered to be a tall building.
Regarding the Bullet points on P.19, Development Form and Massing
Principles
4. Building heights must respond to the surrounding area and must not
negatively impact on neighbouring properties or spaces. This is especially the
case with regard to locally and statutory listed buildings. LBRuT Comment: we
would wish to amend the bullet point to ensure that tall buildings respect the
local context, and that they should make a positive contribution to the local

2) *Including CABE/English
Heritage joint guidance’
deleted and replaced with
‘Including Historic England
Advice Note 4 (2015)’

The development of the
Riverside Public Realm
SPD is independent of the
North Kingston
Development Brief, and will
be subject to separate
consultation and
engagement with
stakeholders.
2 The London Borough of
Richmond upon Thames’
revised policy on building
heights in their draft Local
plan is noted.

C107

1. We have previously discussed that tall buildings in Kingston borough,
especially Kingston Town Centre and alongside the riverside, are likely to be of
concern for LBRuT and that this is a cross-boundary issue. It was previously
noted that RBK is producing a Riverside and Public Realm SPD, which will
consider tall buildings and identify key views that should be protected, e.g.
Kingston Bridge to Richmond Hill. We said we would like to be involved /
consulted on this work and we would be grateful for an update in this regard.

The Royal Borough of
Kingston look forward to
working with The London
Borough of Richmond in
their approach to tall
buildings and the protection
of strategic views which we
agree can be considered as
a cross-boundary issue.

3 The requirement for
proposals for any tall
building to be considered
as full application, rather
than in outline is
acknowledged as best
practice, and will be
reiterated in the brief in the
supporting text.
Comment 4-8 noted
regarding the wording of
the bullet points on page
19.

16

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
character and skyline, where possible enhancing the character of an area. In
relation to listed buildings, they need to preserve and enhance designated
heritage assets.
5. The location and design of any taller buildings, ‘landmarks’ or ‘gateways’
must be explained and fully justified by a thorough townscape appraisal. LBRuT
Comment: There is also an opportunity to create ‘landmarks’ without recourse
to tall buildings.
6. Any tall buildings must respond to their role and must be of high architectural
quality to justify their increased prominence. Any prominent building must be of
exceptional design quality, in line with national best practice*. LBRuT
Comment: It is unclear what “respond to their role” would mean.
7. Building heights must respect key strategic and local views. Proposed
buildings must seek to safeguard the panorama and strategic views as noted in
the K+20. LBRuT Comment: It would also be worth mentioning, at least in
brackets, what the key strategic views are.

C108

8. All new development must celebrate existing local buildings of special
quality, including Kingston College’s main building and the listed Gala Bingo
building, including in views along Richmond Road. * Including CABE/English
Heritage joint guidance. LBRuT Comment: There is an updated advice note
from HE on Taller Buildings, which supersedes the 2011 advice
https://historicengland.org.uk/advice/planning/setting-and- views/

17

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation

Business and Landowners
ID

Respondent

Date
Received

4

Russell-Coo
ke LLP

05/08/16

Comment
1. Access Principles
Richmond Road is a key focus throughout the Brief with the aim of creating a new mixed use
model of land uses and a pedestrian corridor. 1. The Brief supports extensive movement and
access principles, but fails to address the specifications on delivery.
2. The Brief is very prescriptive in relation to Richmond Road with the provision of a minimum
width of 17m to allow use by bikes, vehicles and pedestrians. Whilst the principle of a
multi-surface is supported and understood the 17m figure seems somewhat arbitrary in terms
of the existing layout of Richmond Road. Richmond Road to the south of Cowleaze Road
currently enables a road width of 17m however North of Cowleaze Road the figures are closer
to 14m within the existing built form.
Within other area of the borough for example Portsmouth Road (a section of the A307) major
cycle improvements works are being undertaken by reallocating carriageway space from
vehicles to cycles which takes up a maximum space of 13m to 14m whilst still including all
three forms of transport (cars, bikes and people).

The Brief even appears to slightly contradict this 17m provision when considered in light of the
Safeguarding zones (page 22). The safeguarding plan sets out an area safeguarded for
highway which matches the current built form and does not suggest that the existing road
layout will be extended beyond the current building edge.
It is therefore considered that further land use modelling is required to accurately assess the
road capacity of Richmond Road and determine the exact widths for the whole section of the
road rather than one overarching figure. Appropriate modelling then needs to be carried out to
demonstrate that pedestrian and cycle improvements can be combined within the physical
constraints that exist within the streetscape of Richmond Road and for this to be made clear
within the Brief. As currently the reference to new development considering widening of the
footpaths is not overly clear as to whether land is to be sacrificed for this use.
It must also be considered in relation to Richmond Road that the Brief references this road as
not only providing access but also space with shopping and ground floor uses to occupy
elements of the street. By increasing the width of the road into useable space will conflict with

1. The means for
delivering change to
Richmond Road is outlined
on page 27 of the Design
Framework.
The means for dealing with
and controlling deliveries
to shops and other uses
will be undertaken at the
detailed level when
planning applications are
made.

Amendment
No change.

2. With regard to access
principles on Richmond
Road, the plans for the
area include the widening
of Richmond Road to
accommodate two way
traffic at its southern end
and the left turn from
Sopwith Way into
Richmond Road. The road
will also be upgraded to
accommodate the
requirements of both
pedestrians and cyclists in
a safe manner, and ensure
access to shops and other
ground floor uses. The
revised arrangements
have been modelled to
ensure their adequate
operation.

C109

Therefore all the same principles of a multi-surface are being achieved elsewhere at a more
realistic figure. However in the case of the Brief no supporting assessments are referenced
within the Brief to describe how this figure was reached, how this width will work in reality or
whether this figure is required. As the NPPF paragraph 154 states plans should be realistic.

RBK Response

2. In regard to land
ownership individual
applications, the Council
are looking at the site in a

18

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
the size of the units that can locate here which in turn is contrary to the proposed objective of
encouraging active uses on ground floor level. On the basis of other schemes within the area
it would appear that the Brief should seek to minimise the proposed width to around 13m
which is more achievable north of Cowleaze Road to ensure there is not a conflict with the
units that can locate here and deter development occurring. Alternatively the figure of 17m
should be removed and the safeguarding plan utilised instead in its current form.

comprehensive manner in
order to achieve the best
outcome for the site.
Comments 3-5 noted.

2. Land Ownership Concerns and Individual Applications
The Brief lacks flexibility for individual applications to come forward. The Delivery Principles
refers to: “the aim of these principles is to bring together the fragmented land ownership
pattern into one sustainable development plan”
The Brief aims to achieve this aim through a one ownership approach by utilising options
agreements or joint venture partnerships. Whilst a one landownership approach would
achieve the aim of ‘one development’ how this would work in reality needs to be considered in
more detail within the Brief.
It is highly unlikely that all parties with existing land ownership would all agree to coordinate
together and to submit joint applications especially given the different priorities that
landowners will have. Therefore if the Brief intends to reduce land ownership to just one or
two developers then it is highly probable that compulsory purchase powers will be required.

C110

If the Council needed to use compulsory purchase powers consideration needs to be given to
the timeframe in which this can be achieved. Firstly, a developer would need to be found, who
perceives a development opportunity in the scheme but also who is willing to adhere to the
prescriptive nature of the Brief. If the Council are then successful in achieving this, a
Compulsory Purchase Order will need to be made which will be subject to consultation and
most likely will have to go through a public inquiry. This whole process could take over two
years to achieve which will lead to delays in any actual development being carried out.
If a Compulsory Purchase Order was successful then the Council needs to give consideration
to compensation. For each property/parcel of land to be acquired the test will be whether
there is an overriding public interest case for compulsory acquisition of each parcel. If this
threshold is reached then compensation will be payable to the landowners if land is taken
under any compulsory purchase powers, therefore this will add to the expense of the
redevelopment of the Site. As the NPPF states at paragraph 173 that plans must ensure
viability and deliverability, therefore this cost needs to be considered.
Whereas if the Council were willing to allow individual applications to come forward on the
basis of their existing land ownership provided they adhered to the Brief design principles and
objectives no harm will be caused to the Brief. Individual applications would provide an
impetus to development and aid the speed at which regeneration can be achieved. Individual
development applications would not need to consider property matters and rather only the

19

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
planning process would need to be adhered to.
Individual proposals could even further the Brief by providing ‘exemplary architecture and
design’ (page 6 of the Brief) due a range of ideas being used. By pursuing such an approach
would further support the Kingston Core Strategy Policy CS8 which seeks to promote new
development with ‘recognised distinct local feature and character’. Individual applications
could even in turn aid the regeneration offering especially along Richmond Road where
individual units could add flare and uniqueness to the Site. Especially as Richmond Road is
described as a unified environment despite “diverse building forms and heights” (page 26 of
the Brief).
It is therefore proposed that individual applications should be encouraged and explicitly
referred to within the Brief. Whilst it is appreciated many people may not want to
redevelopment their land in which case the alternative powers should be used. However the
Brief should not discourage people from making planning applications if they want to provided
they are in accordance with the design principles of the Brief.

C111

3. NPPF
The considerations of core planning principles contained within the NPPF must be considered
in light of all above recommendations and amends. The NPPF includes the 12 core planning
principles in order to aid plan making and decision making. Two of the most pertinent
principles are empowering local people to shape their surroundings and ensuring creativity.
This Brief can be more aligned to the NPPF through a less rigid approach and permitting
individual applications regardless of land ownership.
4. Conclusion
The Brief should seek to encourage development within its overall objective rather than deter
development which accords with the majority of proposals but is an individual application and
not within the prescribed land ownership zones. Small or piecemeal sites will not contravene
the comprehensive approach to regeneration for the North Kingston Area provided they abide
with the overall ethos of the Brief; after all development has begun on standalone schemes
already.
By promoting individuality in the Brief will ensure appropriate development is achieved. Once
the Brief is adopted it will become a material consideration so the Council retain the right to
refuse planning permissions if they do not accord with the overall aims of the Brief.
5. Amendments to the Brief
The principle of redevelopment of the Site is supported, however amends need to be made to
the Brief to ensure the following points are adequately addressed to sure that the Brief can
successfully be made a reality:
●

Further research and assessments are to be carried out in relation to Richmond
Road to assess how multi surfaces for pedestrians, cars and cycles within the

20

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
parameters of the existing layout and relevant safeguard areas can be achieved
without land being lost from the existing streetscape.
●

Greater emphasis is to be placed on individual applications provided they are in
accordance with the ethos of the Brief. Any applications would be the subject of the
planning process therefore appropriate conditions can be placed on any permission
to ensure coherence whilst bringing originality and flare which will be particularly
important for those units within the Richmond Road frontages.
○
○

13

John Lewis

01/09/201
6

A less rigid approach is to be taken in relation to land ownership if
proposals are being actively put forward by existing landowners.
Greater consideration should be given to existing applications before the
final Brief is published provided the development proposals are within the
ethos of the Brief.

On behalf of John Lewis, a key stakeholder in Kingston Town Centre, we submit
representations to the ‘North Kingston Development Brief’ Document.

3. Continuing on from this, in order to support the Retail Core of the Town Centre, we would
expect guidance on the scale, nature and type of retail to be provided within the Development
Brief Area, to ensure that there is no trade diversion or conflict, which could seek to fragment
the Town Centre offer and detract from the Placemaking opportunity which exists through the
emerging Opportunity Area Planning Framework.
4. The wider transport and movement strategy should be considered throughout the
emergence of this Development Brief. Early engagement with key stakeholders and
landowners is welcomed, to develop a strategy which is comprehensively considered and ties
in the key infrastructure opportunities. We would welcome the opportunity to remain involved
in continued dialogue with the Borough to ensure that our priorities and aspirations are able to

No change.

C112

In summary, we are supportive of the growth agenda set by the Borough and GLA for
Kingston and the Town Centre, and have made separate representations to the ‘Direction of
Travel’ Document in this regard. We support the pro-active approach taken in the
Development Brief to supporting investment and improving infrastructure, access and legibility
in the Town Centre. 1. With an emerging Local Plan and Opportunity Area Planning
Framework, the reliance on the K+20 Area Action Plan will not necessarily continue to form
part of the Development Plan, and therefore, we would wish to see the principles for the site
to be set out explicitly. Specifically, we would expect this document to be compliant with the
emerging Local Plan and Opportunity Area Planning Framework, and the timing of its
preparation and adoption will therefore be critical. 2. We also consider that in order to form a
robust material consideration, in accordance with the emerging Development Plan, that
maximum quanta of development should be used, to ensure that there is no unacceptable
impact on other sites within the Town Centre, and that the infrastructure planning (including
road network and public transport strategy) is sufficient to deliver this.

1. The brief is prepared l in
line with the adopted
Development Plan. This
constitutes the Core
Strategy and K+20.
Neither the emerging Local
Plan of the Opportunity
Area Planning Framework
have been adopted or yet
reached sufficient certainty
to provide a statutory h
basis for the purposes of
writing this brief.
2-3. The purpose of this
brief is to set out the
general principles that the
Council would wish to see
delivered on the site rather
than to set out the precise
form and scale of
development on the site.
The Council will be able to
consider the impacts on
other uses and
infrastructure through any
planning application.
4. Movement and access

21

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
be considered.
Please do not hesitate to contact us to discuss any of the issues raised in our representations,
and we look forward to engaging throughout this process.

19

Berkley
Homes

05/09/201
6

Support and comments 1-3
noted.

No change.

Comments 1-2 noted.

Change. Page 50,
para 4.
Text removed:
‘The site has been
identified as Urban’
in character as
described in the
Sustainable

C113

1. BHWL supports the preparation of the North Kingston Development Brief as framework for
helping to deliver the Council’s vision for transformational change in this part of Kingston
Town Centre. BHWL is currently building out the Gas Works redevelopment that will form a
core part of the transformational change. This development includes the delivery of a linear
park between Sury Basin and Kingsgate Road that will form the northern part of the North
South Linear Park proposed in the Development Brief. BHWL is currently discussing the
detailed design and delivery with the Council and adjacent landowners.

is an identified issue in this
brief and principles relating
to this topic have been
identified. Given the scope
of this DB, it is not
considered that this
document should seek to
influence wider transport
and movement issues in
the town centre. John
Lewis will be able to
comment on other
planning documents and
thus contribute to the
development of planning
policy in the borough

2. BHWL supports the vision of a high quality public realm and considers this an essential part
of linking the development sites together and creating a new place. BHWL supports the
closure of Kingsgate Road and the proposed delivery of the southern part of the North South
Linear Park, which will link the new public realm to the station and other parts of the town
centre. The design and quality of the northern part of the linear park that BHWL is delivering
should set the standard and character for the areas to be delivered by other parties.
3. The Development Brief should specifically encourage the early delivery of the public realm
as part of any development, and the Council should use its planning powers to control this (for
example, through a ‘prior to occupation’ obligation in a s106 agreement).
20

Kingston
Gate
Properties
Limited.

Not stated

Purpose of the Document
1. We recommend that the status and role of the document is made much clearer, as follows.
3rd paragraph, page 2: The Development Brief will not form part of the formal development
plan, which is the starting point for the determination of planning applications. However, once
adopted, this Brief will be a material consideration in this process. The Brief will provide an
important framework to coordinate and guide development and infrastructure investment
within North Kingston.

3-9. In regard to land use,
the North Kingston
Development Brief will fall
in line with and be fully
compliant with K+20, the
Town Centre Area Action

22

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation

2. We consider it important that the Development Brief references the recently published
Direction of Travel document and the Council’s growth agenda, as follows.
4th bullet under 5th para (p.2): Changing planning context – Kingston has been identified as
an emerging Opportunity Area, within which the London Plan seeks to optimise residential
and non-residential densities.
Additional bullet point under fifth para (p.2): The Council has recently published a Direction of
Travel document in partnership with the Mayor of London, which provides supplementary
planning advice to support the development and intensification of areas within the borough,
including Kingston Town Centre, to provide new homes, jobs and investment.
Land Use
3. We are concerned that the Land Use Plan on p14 too rigidly repeats the allocations in the
Area Action Plan, with the Kingsgate Business Centre site shown as ‘office, commercial and
student accommodation’. We are also concerned that the Land Use Principles state ‘land
uses to be fully compliant with K+20’.

5. With this in mind, we are concerned that the Brief states that land uses should be ‘fully
compliant with K+20’ and we recommend that this reference is deleted as this only repeats
the primacy of development plan documents in section 38(6) of the Act. This reference
suggests that any variance from the specified uses would be considered in conflict with the
Brief. The effect of these references is that the residential-led scheme that the Council is
seeking to encourage could be interpreted as not being fully compliant with this part of the
Brief.
6. We propose that residential use is added to the list of permissible uses for the orange area
on the Land Use Plan.
7. Alternatively, the shading for the Kingsgate Business Centre and Printworks on the Land
Use Plan could be amended to show that, for this site, in addition to the land uses set out in
P19c in the Area Action Plan, the land uses proposed for the adjacent P20 would also be
considered acceptable.
8. We understand that the Council is keen to avoid any direct conflict between the adopted

9-16. In regard to heights,
the heights indicated on
the Heights Plan have
been considered with
regard to the different
impacts that the height of
buildings have. This is very
much more than solely
visual impact. Increased
height has impact on
sunlight, daylight,
microclimate, relationship
to neighbouring properties,
quality of proposed internal
and external living
environment and
character. The views
shared only test the block
massing of development in
local views at fixed points.

Residential Quality
matrix in the
London Plan’.
Replaced with ‘The
site has been
identified as
‘Central’ in
character as
described in the
Sustainable
Residential Quality
matrix in the
London Plan

C114

4. The allocation in the K+20 AAP for Kingsgate Business Centre and Printworks is either for
the retention of the existing uses, or redevelopment for employment uses and student
accommodation. However, the purpose of this Brief is to encourage the delivery of a
residential-led development on a wider site incorporating Kingsgate Business Centre,
Printworks, Canbury car park and the Richmond Road frontage. In this respect, the Council’s
aspirations have moved on since the K+20 and these need to be reflected in the Brief.

Plan, including the
identified land uses. The
Council does not see any
conflict with this and
delivering a new residential
and learning mixed use
quarter.

The Council will ensure
that each of these aspects
are appropriate in
considering the most
appropriate height. The
supporting commentary
and Development Form
and Massing Principles set
out how the Council will
assess any proposed
development to ensure this
is achieved.
Comment 17-18 noted.

23

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
policy in the AAP and the guidance with this Development Brief. However, our suggested
amendments would not remove any uses that are currently allocated in the AAP. Instead, they
would simply indicate that the Council may take a more flexible approach to land uses in light
of the aspirations in the Brief for a comprehensive development across the development
parcel shown on page 21.
Key to Land Use Plan (p.14): Office, Commercial, Student Accommodation and Residential
Land Use Principles, first bullet (p.15): Land uses to be fully compliant with K+20
Heights
9. Our client is happy to support a maximum height of 12 storeys (although previously
proposed 18 storeys), provided that heights are not pushed down too much around the edges
of the site.
10. We consider there to be strong urban design grounds for a moderate increase in height
from that shown on the current heights plan, particularly in the western part of the site.

C115

11. We suggest that the western half of the site can accommodate greater heights than the
four to seven storeys indicated on the Heights Plan. This part of the site is further removed
from the lower density residential streets to the east, further away from the line of the
protected view of the Guildhall, and further away from the listed Gala Bingo building.
12. The relationship between the Berkeley Gas Works scheme (seven to nine storeys) and
the student scheme (seven to nine storeys) has been endorsed by both the Appeal Inspector
and the Council.
13. We consider that, by virtue of a greater separation distance between the buildings as now
proposed, a small increase in height would not have any adverse impact on views or the
experience of moving through this route. An increase in height to around 9 storeys would not
affect the function or quality of the east-west route through the site. The images below
illustrate the subtle difference between the heights proposed in the current Heights Plan, and
those identified on our Amended Heights Plan.
14. The south-west corner of the development will function as an important entrance to the
development and will act as a wayfinder to draw people along the new route through the site
and into the new public spaces within it. This corner was identified as a local landmark in the
previous iteration of the Development Brief.
15. There will be a key view of the building revealed as you pass under the railway bridge and
turn into Sopwith Way. The existing and permitted context around the south-west corner
(Royal Quarter, building south of Sopwith Way, Gas Works scheme, and student scheme)
ranges from seven to nine storeys. In this context, we consider that there is potential to

24

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
increase the upper end of the suggested height range from seven storeys to nine storeys.
16. As shown in the adjacent image, we consider that a height of 11 storeys would sit
comfortably in this view.
Delivery
17. The text on Development Parcels on page 21 states that development within the identified
parcels can be brought forward in different or complementary phases.
The Development Parcels Plan identifies that the Richmond Road frontage could be distinct
phase from the rest of the development parcel. Given the current ownership status, the
Printworks site should also be identified as a potentially distinct phase. This is shown on the
plan below.
Density
It is stated on p50 of the Brief that the site has been identified as ‘Urban’ in character as
described in the Sustainable Residential Quality matrix in the London Plan.

C116

18. We disagree and consider this to be a ‘Central’ location, by virtue of its location within a
Metropolitan centre, containing a mix of different uses and buildings of (an in excess of) the
four to six storeys identified in the definition of Central.
We note that the Council has classified this location as ‘Central’ in the committee reports for
other major schemes in Kingston town centre, notably, the Post Office scheme, Eden Walk,
and the Gas Works which is adjacent to this site.
Housing, 3rd para (p.50): The site has been identified as ‘Central’ in character as described in
the Sustainable Residential Quality matrix in the London Plan. New development will need to
respond to the height, scale and massing principles set out in the Design Framework, with
appropriate densities that correlate to the site’s location and PTAL rating, and to the guidance
in the Mayor of London’s supplementary planning guidance on Housing.

25

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation

Resident Associations and Local Residents
ID

Respondent

17

North
Kingston
Forum

Date
Received
04/09/2016

Comment
Re-routing northbound traffic along a widened Seven Kings Way
(SKW) - originally planned as a link road between Kingsgate Rd
and Sury Basin.
1. How would Northbound traffic travelling from Wood Street be
encouraged to move along Sopwith Way towards the Richmond Road
at the new proposed left turn junction? Further traffic modeling of
options is necessary, including for the phased introduction of traffic
management measures following the closure of Kingsgate Road, is
necessary to ensure balanced movement along both Seven Kings
Way and Sopwith Way northbound towards the Richmond Road.
2. Pedestrians and cyclists must be able to move safely across Seven
Kings Way, and at the junction of Seven Kings Way with Sury Basin.
Traffic management measures will be required to ensure safe passage
both across Seven Kings Way and at the Sury Basin junction when
entering the Supermarket site from Seven Kings Way.

The overall density proposed and particularly a 12 storey
building:
4. We understand that the expected density of the whole site as
indicated by the GLA density Matrix for a Central location with a PTAL
level of 6, would be 215-405 dwellings per Ha. As the whole site is
approximately 3 Ha, the area would therefore be expected to support
between 645-1215 dwellings. How will sufficient social infrastructure
and services be financed? Developer CIL contributions alone will not
be able to meet the level of financial support needed for such
densification and rapid change.
5. Is a 12 storey building necessary? And how was this height
determined? It is very much appreciated that the NKDB states that the
height should be a ‘maximum’ of 12 storeys, but residents are certainly

1. The main option for northbound traffic from
Wood Street would be to travel along Seven
Kings Way before taking a right onto Sury
Basin and left onto Richmond Road. It is the
long-term ambition of the Council to implement
a left turn on from Sopwith Way onto Richmond
Road, in which case this would provide an
alternative route for northbound traffic. Page 22
of the brief identifies the Council's intention to
safeguard land for this purpose.

Amendment
No change.

A traffic study of the North Kingston
Development Area has found that the proposed
changes to the road network in the North
Kingston Development area will improve the
movement of traffic and associated safety. The
proposal to realign and widen Seven Kings
Way will allow for additional vehicle capacity
with associated safety improvements, and
make it easier for residents to turn left into the
Royal Quarter parking. A new left turn from
Sopwith Way into Richmond Road will provide
a resilience route for traffic moving northwards
out of Kingston; it is also intended that buses
and heavy goods vehicles will use this route to
minimize disruption to local residents.
Richmond Road will be widened at its southern
end to facilitate the proposed left turn. These
proposals will mitigate the closure of Kingsgate
Road onto Richmond Road and address wider
movement and network capacity issues in the
North Kingston area.

C117

3. A direct route for resident’s cars to access the Queenshurst and
Royal Quarter developments via Sury Basin when approaching from
the North would make a lot of sense. Currently, cars can only access
Seven Kings Way from the South via the Kingston one-way system,
adding to the pollution currently experienced in the town centre.

RBK Response

2. The remodelling and upgrading of the road
network in the North Kingston Development
Brief include new/improved crossings for
cyclists and pedestrians at key locations to
allow the safe passage of these road users.

26

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
worried that this will set an even greater precedent for future increases
in height. Other options could be considered that will still allow a
similar number of units. Without the certainty of a specific design to
assess, or indeed a comprehensive urban design strategy, we do not
believe that a building of such height can be justified, and would
therefore request the council reduce the proposed height to 9 storeys.
The Council’s development brief should make it absolutely clear that
“NO BUILDINGS OVER 9 STOREYS WILL BE PERMITTED”, and in
any event only a building of clear architectural merit will be considered.
6. No doubt Berkeley Homes and CNM estates will be made aware
that a 12 storey tower is being considered. This might well affect the
sale of their penthouse dwellings by giving concern for privacy and key
views.
The mixture of pedestrian and cycle routes
7. On routes shared by pedestrian and cyclists, measures, including
signage, clearly giving priority to pedestrians are essential.
Reinstating and creating new affordable business opportunities
needed to bolster the local economy.

8. It is essential that new employment space be created for this need,
and be available at an affordable rate. A scheme should be
investigated whereby reduced business rates could be offered for the
first year to help and encourage entrepreneurship, if not already
considered.
9. It is also essential that the Council encourages developers to
support independent traders rather than relying solely on chain stores.
Independents are a key component of our high streets, and bring
diversity and vibrancy along with their direct connection to local
economies.
Sainburys supermarket site and other key local services

4. The infrastructure needs of the Borough are
significantly greater than the funding likely to be
realised through CIL or planning obligations or
a combination of both. The Council will seek to
prioritise CIL use as a match or gap funding
source, linked to other infrastructure funding.
As part of the production of the Council’s new
Local Plan for the Borough, the Infrastructure
Delivery Plan will be reviewed. It is important to
note that growth in the Borough is set to
continue and the production of a new Local
Plan and supporting evidence studies is
intended to strengthen the Council’s position to
maximise opportunities for planned growth,
including the provision of adequate
infrastructure. Without this, the predicted
growth will result in piecemeal development
that is unable to secure maximum public
benefits.
5. The building heights contained in the
Development Brief are indicative, and will need
to be tested at a more detailed level following
the receipt of a planning application. The
supporting commentary and Development
Form and Massing Principles set out how the
Council will assess any proposed development
to ensure that the proposed heights are
appropriate.

C118

An objective of the NKDB is to, Provide modern and flexible
employment space that benefits from the close proximity to public
transport and the highly accessible highway network. There are SMEs
in North Kingston desperate to expand in Kingston who cannot find
affordable units for this purpose. It seems only logical for the council to
encourage and support local SMEs, with the effect of reducing the
requirement for road and rail transportation.

3. Comment noted.

Comment 6 noted.
7. In accordance with the London Plan and
Council policies, the Council places significant
emphasis on the role of walking and cycling in
the future of movement in the Borough, and will
therefore continue to promote and extend these
uses in the North Kingston area and throughout
the Borough in order to facilitate a connected
network of safe walking and cycle routes.
Transport for London’s new Cycling Design
Standards (Dec 2014) advises that cyclists and

27

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation

10. We appreciate the supermarket/gym site is just outside the NKDB
area, however, we feel that this amenity and others such as the petrol
service station on the Richmond Road are so important to our local
community, that we wanted to remind the council of this fact, and that
we should try to protect them as far as is possible.
Air Quality
An objective of the NKDB is to: Deliver environmental improvements
including addressing issues of noise and air quality.
11. In order to minimize pollution a comprehensive traffic survey is
necessary and traffic management options tested before any plans are
agreed. This may involve some very difficult choices (such as limiting
the amount of car parking)
12. We would also like the council to consider implementing the
following within the NKDB area (and more widely if applicable):
●

●
●
●
●
●

8 & 9. This suggestion is noted; the
development brief does not deal with issues of
commercial operation of landlords. However
the brief will be fully compliant with the London
Plan which supports Small and Medium
Enterprises (SME).
10. The supermarket (Sainsbury’s)and petrol
station are outside of the development brief
and is not being considered for
relocation/redevelopment at this time.Any

future plans for this site will be explored
through the Local Plan process, or through
a planning application at which time a
formal consultation would be undertaken.

C119

●

All new developments and houses to be Electric Vehicle
‘charging ready’ if not already planned.
Schemes to retrofit existing residential development car parks
with EV charging points (including mobility scooters)
All employer car parks to install EV charging points and to
allow employees to charge during the working day at a
reasonable/reduced cost
All supermarket car parks to have EV charging points
(Sainsbury’s)
Schemes to retrofit polluting vehicles with exhaust filters
Green Roof/wall initiatives
Smart parking – a mobile phone app that helps visitors to
Kingston know where available parking spaces are. This will
help prevent cars driving around looking for available spaces.

pedestrians should not be forced together
where there is space to keep them apart,
creating unnecessary conflict which can only
increase as the number of cyclists rises. Where
possible and appropriate the Council will
introduce segregated cycle lanes.

11. The Council’s policies seek to protect the
residential and other sensitive areas of the
borough from unwarranted traffic intrusion and
associated noise and environmental impacts.
Typical measures include traffic calming,
banned movements and restricted access to
key areas. Alterations to the main road network
in the North Kingston area will be tested
against the need for this type of protection to
surrounding areas. The overall traffic
arrangements are being configured to allow for
local access while minimising potential for
longer distance traffic diverting into residential
streets.
12. Issues relating to how new developments
will contribute to air quality will be dealt with
with regard to specific development proposals,
as and when they come forward.

1

Des McRow

01/08/16

As resident of the Royal Quarter Development, I have considerable

1. The introduction to the brief on the Council’s

No change.

28

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
concern over what is proposed for my “front garden”, namely Seven
Kings Way (SKW).

website explains that previous versions of this
brief - Brief (1) and Brief (2) have provided an
important basis for this brief.
Brief Stage 1: Land Use and Spatial
Parameters was adopted by the Place and
Sustainability Committee on 28th November
2013. This marked the start of Stage 2:
Consultation Draft which was concerned with
more detailed studies including traffic volumes
and flows. The website introduction does not
state that this Stage 2 brief was adopted and
this can be confirmed here.

Draft Brief (2) dated 15 September 2014 went out for consultation but
no conclusion was reached, presumably due to the intervention of
overlapping planning issues. However there is again the suggestion in
the introduction that the content of this Brief was approved – but this
certainly was not the case.

The current North Kingston Development Brief
supersedes the previous North Kingston
Development Brief (Stage 2: Consultation
DRAFT, 2014), and once adopted will
supercede the adopted North Kingston
Development Brief (Stage One: Land Use and
Spatial Parameters).

In the 2014 Brief (2), reference was made to the Traffic Management
Study that had been undertaken, suggesting that SKW “should be able
to cope with the proposed increase in traffic flow”. No reference was
made to the fact that this Study had not been finalised as it's brief had
been extended to cover other matters. Given the lack of publication
none of us was able to test the assumptions that were made to lead
such a conclusion, nor indeed to establish if such a conclusion was
actually reached.

This draft brief is based on the 2014 Movement
Study that has been made available for public
viewing on the Council’s website. The report
provides a number of highway options and puts
forward a recommended set of highway
improvements for Kingston Town Centre.

Following on from Draft Brief (2), the Study was completed in 2014 –
but with the Draft Brief (3) claiming on Page 11 that the Study had
“tested the closure of Kingsgate Road.
What was not said was that the Executive Summary of the Study
recommended :
Closure of Kingsgate Road to traffic, and creation of a new cycling and
walking link along this alignment
New left-hand turn from Sopwith Way to Richmond Road
New left-hand turn from Sury Basin to SKW for access to the
gas-holder development site (access only)
I find it hard to link the Study’s conclusions to any of the Council
Officials’ proposals for SKW and I am struggling to avoid the
conclusion that their presentation of the facts is bordering on being

C120

1. Concern over the introduction to this Consultation – this made via
the Council’s website. It makes references to the Place and
Sustainability Committee’s adoption on 28 November 2013 of Draft
Brief (1), the implication being that full agreement had been given to
what had been recommended in the Brief. No mention is made of the
fact that this agreement was contingent upon the undertaking of “a
stage 2 Brief containing detailed studies including traffic volumes and
flows, route capacities”. Here the Committee paid all due attention to
the level of concern raised over the proposals for SKW and I find it
surprising that this was not deemed to be worthy of mention in the
introduction's reference to the “adoption”.

A traffic study of the North Kingston
Development Area has found that the proposed
changes to the road network in the North
Kingston Development area will improve the
movement of traffic and associated safety. The
proposal to realign and widen Seven Kings
Way will allow for additional vehicle capacity
with associated safety improvements, and
make it easier for residents to turn left into the
Royal Quarter parking. A new left turn from
Sopwith Way into Richmond Road will provide
a resilience route for traffic moving northwards
out of Kingston; it is also intended that buses
and heavy goods vehicles will use this route to
minimize disruption to local residents.

29

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
disingenuous.
2. Page 33 of Draft Brief (3) stipulates that new homes must not be
compromised by “negative environmental impacts, including noise and
air quality”.
Agree with the statement, however the question must be raised as to
how converting an already existing residential road (SKW) into a major
route for traffic from Kingston to Richmond does not cause noise and
air quality problems for the residents along both sides of this road.
Surely our planners are not just concerned about new homes?
The fact is that SKW is a small road with:
- on its west side, the Royal Quarter Development (6/8 storeys, 447
units), the rear of 12 Skerne Road (6/8 storeys, 124 units) and the side
of the 5 storey Seven Kings public car park
- on its east side, the Berkeley Homes Development (Queenshurst) in
course of construction (6/9 storeys, 315 units)

This apparent lack of regard for the well-being of such residents
conflicts dramatically with the care taken over those living in Down Hall
Road (on one side of which there is a railway line). The effective
conversion of this road into what is to become a cul-de-sac is (per
TMO-P230) “intended to create a street scene appropriate to what has
become a mainly residential area”.

The Council is continuing with its traffic and
transport studies of Kingston town centre
accounting for ongoing discussions with the
Greater London Authority and Transport for
London on matters such as growth targets for
the area.
2. The Council’s policies seek to protect the
residential and other sensitive areas of the
borough from unwarranted traffic intrusion and
associated noise and environmental impacts.
Typical measures include traffic calming,
banned movements and restricted access to
key areas. Alterations to the main road network
in the North Kingston area will be tested
against the need for this type of protection to
surrounding areas. The overall traffic
arrangements are being configured to allow for
local access while minimising potential for
longer distance traffic diverting into residential
streets.

C121

The residents, including those yet to arrive in Queenshurst, would be
subjected to a substantial increase in traffic, this including the
movement of heavy goods vehicles, emergency services, and buses
(these running for 24 hours per day!).

Richmond Road will be widened at its southern
end to facilitate the proposed left turn. These
proposals will mitigate the closure of Kingsgate
Road onto Richmond Road and address wider
movement and network capacity issues in the
North Kingston area.

I am in full support of this objective but fail to understand why SKW is
not also regarded as having become or is in course of becoming a
mainly residential area.
The obvious way to facilitate the closure of Kingsgate Road is to
adhere to the recommendations contained in the Kingston Town
Centre Movement Study (these set out by me at the top of Page 2). No
doubt Council Tax payers have stumped up a significant sum for the
production of this Study and it does seem strange for Council Officers
to be completely ignoring the points contained in the Study's Executive
Summary.
I do appreciate that Draft Brief (3) does allow for a small link road

30

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
between Sopwith Way and Richmond Road but this will do little to
alleviate the problems caused to residents of SKW. Nor will the
Planners' suggestion that all will be well if SKW " is widened and
realigned to take up its role in better dealing with traffic flows" (page
11).
I am sorry to burden you with such a long missive – it could even have
been somewhat longer had I responded to many other points made in
the Brief with which I query or disagree.
I should perhaps mention that I have not yet responded to the
Consultation but, when I do so I shall be very supportive of much of
what is proposed. It is just such a pity that the architects of the Brief
have failed to consider the well-being of those residing in SKW,
seemingly intent upon pursuing their long-standing aim of converting
this small road into a major traffic thoroughfare.
Brian Gaff

08/07/16

1. Incidentally, might I suggest that for those with reading issues and
the blind you regularly commission a short snappy audio version
explaining things in words, no graphic would be possible of course.
keep it short and snappy with a telephone contact point.

1. Working closely with the ‘Visual Impaired
Parliament’ Group, the council prepared audio
summaries uploaded to CD’s for this
consultation in order to maximise consultation
accessibility for the visually-impaired. On the
back cover page of our consultation documents
we include information regarding how to access
alternative versions of the documents. CD’s
can be produced at request.

No change.

5

Alan George

21/08/16

I write to lodge my very strong objection to the traffic elements in your
North Kingston Development Brief (NKDB).

All comments noted.

No change.

I should explain that my flat (where I have lived since 2004) directly
overlooks Seven Kings Way and I would be very directly affected by
the planned conversion of this relatively quiet road into a quite major
thoroughfare carrying heavy trucks and 24-hour bus services.
1. Opposite me right now the new Queenshurst development is under
construction. When completed, this will have 9 storeys. My building in
Royal Quarter has 7 storeys. Seven Kings Way is a narrow road.
Under the NKDB, even if widened (and the scope for widening is in
fact very limited), the road would be like a deep canyon and would
function as a 'trap' for vehicle pollution and noise.
2. I fear that it will be impossible for me to continue living here. Already
because of Queenshurst I have lost the fine views I once enjoyed.

C122

3

1 & 2. The Council’s policies seek to protect
the residential and other sensitive areas of the
borough from unwarranted traffic intrusion and
associated noise and environmental impacts.
Typical measures include traffic calming,
banned movements and restricted access to
key areas. Alterations to the main road network
in the North Kingston area will be tested
against the need for this type of protection to
surrounding areas. The overall traffic
arrangements are being configured to allow for
local access while minimising potential for
longer distance traffic diverting into residential
streets.

31

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
Now it appears that I face a future afflicted with 24-hour noise and
pollution.
3. Despite all this, the NKDB pays frequent lip service to respect for
the environment and quality of life for residents!
4. I must point out that plans to transform this residential road into a
major thoroughfare were first made public in 2013. There was a storm
of objections from residents, as a result of which independent
consultants were commissioned to produce a Kingston Town
Movement Study. This was published last year and recommended
that, following closure of Kingsgate Road, traffic should be channelled
into Richmond Road via a left turn from Sopwith Way. There was no
proposal whatsoever in this Study that Seven Kings Way should be
transformed in the way now suggested in the NKDB.
I understand and support the broad shape of the NKDB; but I cannot
accept the Seven Kings Way element, and especially not when the
Council's own independent consultants recommended an alternative
that appears to me to remain entirely viable.

6

John and
Jenny
Greenwood

21/08/16

1. I read with disbelief that you plan to disregard our objections for the
re-routing of traffic virtually through our development. This is in spite of
the many objections from other nearby residents and even contrary to
the result of the independent consultation recommendations.

4. The current road network plans for the North
kingston Development Area are based on the
2014 Kingston Town Centre Movement
Strategy which identifies the upgrading of
Seven Kings Way as a option in a number of
scenarios.
The traffic study of the North Kingston
Development Area has found that the proposed
changes to the road network in the North
Kingston Development area will improve the
movement of traffic and associated safety. The
proposal to realign and widen Seven Kings
Way will allow for additional vehicle capacity
with associated safety improvements, and
make it easier for residents to turn left into the
Royal Quarter parking. A new left turn from
Sopwith Way into Richmond Road will provide
a resilience route for traffic moving northwards
out of Kingston; it is also intended that buses
and heavy goods vehicles will use this route to
minimize disruption to local residents.
Richmond Road will be widened at its southern
end to facilitate the proposed left turn. These
proposals will mitigate the closure of Kingsgate
Road onto Richmond Road and address wider
movement and network capacity issues in the
North Kingston area.
Comments noted.

C123

Please respect my right, and the right of my many neighbours, to live
free of traffic noise and vehicle pollution.

3. The brief acknowledges the North Kingston
Area is deficient in green space and the new
public realm and public park are intended to go
some way to address this. The addition of high
quality green open space and the upgrading of
surrounding public realm, retail, commercial,
educational and transport facilities are
designed to improve liveability within the
context of an increasing density.

No change.

1. The traffic study of the North Kingston
Development Area has found that the proposed
changes to the road network in the North

32

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
It beggars belief In that you so totally ignore ratepayers concerns.
We implore you to re-think this plan.

Kingston Development area will improve the
movement of traffic and associated safety. The
proposal to realign and widen Seven Kings
Way will allow for additional vehicle capacity
with associated safety improvements, and
make it easier for residents to turn left into the
Royal Quarter parking. A new left turn from
Sopwith Way into Richmond Road will provide
a resilience route for traffic moving northwards
out of Kingston; it is also intended that buses
and heavy goods vehicles will use this route to
minimize disruption to local residents.
Richmond Road will be widened at its southern
end to facilitate the proposed left turn. These
proposals will mitigate the closure of Kingsgate
Road onto Richmond Road and address wider
movement and network capacity issues in the
North Kingston area.

7

John Grove

21/08/16

1. I am extremely concerned about the proposal to increase the use of
Seven Kings Way. I live overlooking this minor road which is already
congested and often dangerous. It is already over used in many
occasions. Being a local resident I know the road very well and I fear
that it will be used more if your current plans go ahead.
2. Please do reconsider the idea to use seven kings way as a more
major road. Please do ensure it is not used by other vehicles. Please
respect the health and safety of the people of kingston by minimising
the use of this road. Please ensure there are alternative routes for

Comments noted.

C124

The Council’s policies seek to protect the
residential and other sensitive areas of the
borough from unwarranted traffic intrusion and
associated noise and environmental impacts.
Typical measures include traffic calming,
banned movements and restricted access to
key areas. Alterations to the main road network
in the North Kingston area will be tested
against the need for this type of protection to
surrounding areas. The overall traffic
arrangements are being configured to allow for
local access while minimising potential for
longer distance traffic diverting into residential
streets.
No change.

1. The traffic study of the North Kingston
Development Area has found that the proposed
changes to the road network in the North
Kingston Development area will improve the
movement of traffic and associated safety. The
proposal to realign and widen Seven Kings
Way will allow for additional vehicle capacity
with associated safety improvements, and

33

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
vehicles to access the Richmond Road from the one way system.

make it easier for residents to turn left into the
Royal Quarter parking. A new left turn from
Sopwith Way into Richmond Road will provide
a resilience route for traffic moving northwards
out of Kingston; it is also intended that buses
and heavy goods vehicles will use this route to
minimize disruption to local residents.
Richmond Road will be widened at its southern
end to facilitate the proposed left turn. These
proposals will mitigate the closure of Kingsgate
Road onto Richmond Road and address wider
movement and network capacity issues in the
North Kingston area.

8

Tony Ashton

21/08/16

1. I am dismayed to see that the proposal to convert Seven Kings Way
into a major highway rather than improve the connection of Sopwith
Way with Richmond Way still appears to form part of the Development
Plan.
2. This cannot be right when one side of Seven Kings Way is a large
residential development and the other side with shortly be similarly
residential. The noise, pollution and change of character to this area
will be most detrimental to a very large number of residents.
3. A much better solution would be to improve the Sopwith Way Richmond Road junction which has been proposed over a number of
years by many parties.

Comments noted.

C125

2. The Council’s policies seek to protect the
residential and other sensitive areas of the
borough from unwarranted traffic intrusion and
associated noise and environmental impacts.
Typical measures include traffic calming,
banned movements and restricted access to
key areas. Alterations to the main road network
in the North Kingston area will be tested
against the need for this type of protection to
surrounding areas. The overall traffic
arrangements are being configured to allow for
local access while minimising potential for
longer distance traffic diverting into residential
streets.
No change.

1. The traffic study of the North Kingston
Development Area has found that the proposed
changes to the road network in the North
Kingston Development area will improve the
movement of traffic and associated safety. The
proposal to realign and widen Seven Kings
Way will allow for additional vehicle capacity
with associated safety improvements, and
make it easier for residents to turn left into the
Royal Quarter parking. A new left turn from
Sopwith Way into Richmond Road will provide
a resilience route for traffic moving northwards
out of Kingston; it is also intended that buses

34

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
and heavy goods vehicles will use this route to
minimize disruption to local residents.
Richmond Road will be widened at its southern
end to facilitate the proposed left turn. These
proposals will mitigate the closure of Kingsgate
Road onto Richmond Road and address wider
movement and network capacity issues in the
North Kingston area.

C126

2. The Council’s policies seek to protect the
residential and other sensitive areas of the
borough from unwarranted traffic intrusion and
associated noise and environmental impacts.
Typical measures include traffic calming,
banned movements and restricted access to
key areas. Alterations to the main road network
in the North Kingston area will be tested
against the need for this type of protection to
surrounding areas. The overall traffic
arrangements are being configured to allow for
local access while minimising potential for
longer distance traffic diverting into residential
streets.
3. It is the long-term ambition of the Council to
implement a left turn from Sopwith Way onto
Richmond Road to ease traffic in this area. This
is subject to land ownership issues. Page 22 of
the brief identifies safeguarding methods the
Council will employ to help deliver this in the
future.
9

Gemma
James

21/08/16

1. As a resident of Royal Quarter, I would like to register my objection
and continued dismay at the proposals to make Seven Kings Way a
major thoroughfare as part of the redevelopment of the traffic system,
please. 2. The increased volume of traffic will, so far as I can imagine,
lead to a most unpleasant level of noise and pollution as well as
access difficulties to the home of myself and all other residents of
Royal Quarter. The new Queenshurst development will be even higher
than our buildings, which will surely magnify this effect as the roadway
becomes darker, increasing the reverberation of vehicle noise and
emissions. I remain concerned at the likely danger of crossing the road
on foot and of it becoming harder to drive in and out of the steep slope
leading to our underground car park

1. The A traffic study of the North Kingston
Development Area has found that the proposed
changes to the road network in the North
Kingston Development area will improve the
movement of traffic and associated safety. The
proposal to realign and widen Seven Kings
Way will allow for additional vehicle capacity
with associated safety improvements, and
make it easier for residents to turn left into the
Royal Quarter parking. A new left turn from
Sopwith Way into Richmond Road will provide
a resilience route for traffic moving northwards

No change.

35

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
out of Kingston; it is also intended that buses
and heavy goods vehicles will use this route to
minimize disruption to local residents.
Richmond Road will be widened at its southern
end to facilitate the proposed left turn. These
proposals will mitigate the closure of Kingsgate
Road onto Richmond Road and address wider
movement and network capacity issues in the
North Kingston area.

16

D Halladay

05/09/2016

1. I object in the strongest way possible to the proposed use of Seven
Kings Way as a main through road. I cannot understand the thought
process that believes it acceptable to move the volume of traffic from a
relatively open area to what shortly will be a canyon seven stories high
and in some areas only 23 Meters wide with several hundred people
living on both sides. 2. The effect on both buildings and occupants of
the buses alone , over 800 double deck per week 24/7 . Pollution of
dirt , noise and worst of all the diesel fumes in such a confined area is
an unnecessary risk to the health of all occupants. I urge you to reject
this plan.

1. The traffic study of the North Kingston
Development Area has found that the proposed
changes to the road network in the North
Kingston Development area will improve the
movement of traffic and associated safety. The
proposal to realign and widen Seven Kings
Way will allow for additional vehicle capacity
with associated safety improvements, and
make it easier for residents to turn left into the
Royal Quarter parking. A new left turn from
Sopwith Way into Richmond Road will provide
a resilience route for traffic moving northwards
out of Kingston; it is also intended that buses
and heavy goods vehicles will use this route to
minimize disruption to local residents.
Richmond Road will be widened at its southern
end to facilitate the proposed left turn. These
proposals will mitigate the closure of Kingsgate
Road onto Richmond Road and address wider

C127

2. The Council’s policies seek to protect the
residential and other sensitive areas of the
borough from unwarranted traffic intrusion and
associated noise and environmental impacts.
Typical measures include traffic calming,
banned movements and restricted access to
key areas. Alterations to the main road network
in the North Kingston area will be tested
against the need for this type of protection to
surrounding areas. The overall traffic
arrangements are being configured to allow for
local access while minimising potential for
longer distance traffic diverting into residential
streets.
No change.

36

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
movement and network capacity issues in the
North Kingston area.
2. The Council’s policies seek to protect the
residential and other sensitive areas of the
borough from unwarranted traffic intrusion and
associated noise and environmental impacts.
Typical measures include traffic calming,
banned movements and restricted access to
key areas. Alterations to the main road network
in the North Kingston area will be tested
against the need for this type of protection to
surrounding areas. The overall traffic
arrangements are being configured to allow for
local access while minimising potential for
longer distance traffic diverting into residential
streets.
21

V Mackay

05/09/2016

1. The traffic study of the North Kingston
Development Area has found that the proposed
changes to the road network in the North
Kingston Development area will improve the
movement of traffic and associated safety. The
proposal to realign and widen Seven Kings
Way will allow for additional vehicle capacity
with associated safety improvements, and
make it easier for residents to turn left into the
Royal Quarter parking. A new left turn from
Sopwith Way into Richmond Road will provide
a resilience route for traffic moving northwards
out of Kingston; it is also intended that buses
and heavy goods vehicles will use this route to
minimize disruption to local residents.
Richmond Road will be widened at its southern
end to facilitate the proposed left turn. These
proposals will mitigate the closure of Kingsgate
Road onto Richmond Road and address wider
movement and network capacity issues in the
North Kingston area.

No change.

C128

1. Seven Kings Way is becoming increasingly busy and polluted. The
new hotel on Skerne Road and new housing development will
increase traffic significantly already along Seven Kings Way therefore
additional diversion of other traffic will make it a 'rat run' and potentially
more dangerous for residents (and the increasing number of children
in the area) accessing both Royal Quarter and the new development
(as this is already quite dangerous). 2. For residents facing Seven
Kings Way at the Royal Quarter increased noise will add to the future
reduction of quality of life. I find this proposal totally unacceptable in
what is already becoming a very busy road, increasingly dangerous to
cross, with existing proven high levels of pollution. The quality of life
will be reduced severely in a residential area that is already supposed
to be of high density.

2. The Council’s policies seek to protect the
residential and other sensitive areas of the
borough from unwarranted traffic intrusion and
associated noise and environmental impacts.

37

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
Typical measures include traffic calming,
banned movements and restricted access to
key areas. Alterations to the main road network
in the North Kingston area will be tested
against the need for this type of protection to
surrounding areas. The overall traffic
arrangements are being configured to allow for
local access while minimising potential for
longer distance traffic diverting into residential
streets.
23

Chris
Watkins

09/09/16

1. I am afraid I may have missed the official date for comments on the
North Kingston Development Brief but I would like to offer my support
and congratulations particularly on the imaginative idea of closing
Kingsgate Road,which does open up much more possibilities for the
area.

1. Support and comments noted.

No change.

Two thoughts.
1 I would hope the central square will be more people friendly and less
harsh than the 'Modern Movement' architectural
image proposed. See contrasting images attached below.

C129

2 Could the two major traffic intersections be made more pedestrian
friendly/ pizza like, rather than traffic engineering dominated i.e.outside
Sainsbury's and the new Entertainments Centre(old Bingo
Hall).Something like the Poynton Scheme ?

38

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation

Online questionnaire responses to the consultation
The Council received 54 responses to the development brief via the online questionnaire on the Council’s website. Comments made (as received) have been numbered
in bold so corresponding responses are easily identifiable. The last column identifies the changes the Council have made to the document as a result of the consultation
responses.

Question 1a & 1b - Do you support the vision for North Kingston?
ID
Number

Question
1a: Do
you
support
this vision
for North
Kingston?

1

Yvette
(Local
resident)

Strongly
oppose

2

Anthony
Quinn (Local
resident)

Neutral

3

John De'Ath
(Local
resident)

Strongly
oppose

Question 1b: Do you have any
comments?

RBK Response

Document Update

Noted.

No change.

1. I do not really understand the statement that
this whole area is largely derelict! There are a
few areas such as the old gasworks that are
but much of the rest is existing residential, open
space or commercial. 2. I would be against any
loss of open space and anything that impacts
on London's Blue Ribbon

1. The brief suggests that this part of Kingston Town
Centre was ‘previously largely derelict’. This statement
is based on the former vacant land uses covering
many of the key sites in the area, including the
decommissioned gas holders.

No change.

1. It appears to be badly thought out, why do
we need a public realm so close to Canbury
Gardens. 2. Why have a cycle path that links
middle of Sury basin with A one way system.
There are cycle routes each end of Sury basin
and this connects with neither. Is it April 1st ?

1. Despite being in close proximity to Canbury
Gardens, the North Kingston area is deficient in green
open space which is important for the creation of
healthy environments that provide residents space for
recreation, leisure and enjoyment. Adequate green
spaces also enhance liveability of urban areas by
improving air quality, managing water flows and air
temperatures as well as providing space for
biodiversity. This understanding and approach is
consistent throughout national policy as well as the
London Plan and Kingston’s Core Strategy.

C130

Responden
t

2. The brief intends to increase access to green space
in the North Kingston area.
No change.

39

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
2. Part of the brief’s objectives is to create an
integrated cycle network throughout the North
Kingston area that will connect to the borough-wide
cycle network. The new cycle routes proposed will
create a new/improved crossing on Sury Basin to allow
cyclists and pedestrians safely and conveniently
access the local amenities. Sury Basin allows two-way
traffic and this is not to be changed as part of the brief,
allowing cyclists to connect to a cycle route on
Richmond Road in the east or to quieter roads to the
west that are more suitable for cyclists, such as
Skerne Road and Skerne Walk.
4

Russell
Pedley (Local
resident)

Strongly
favour

5

K. Mayer
(Local
resident)

Strongly
oppose

No change.

1. The appropriate density for new developments is set
through the London Plan prepared on behalf of the
Mayor of London. The North Kingston site is defined
as being Central, by nature of its proximity to Kingston
station and town centre (a metropolitan centre). The
North Kingston site also benefits from PTAL (Public
Transport Accessibility Level) ranging from 6-4, with by
far the majority of the site being 6. Using the GLA
density matrix the expected density of development on
the site would be 215-405 dwellings per hectare.

No change.

C131

I am opposed to yet more development in this
area because: 1. Kingston has become VERY
noticeably over-crowded already in the last
couple of years, and it is becoming an
unpleasant place to live as a consequence. I
certainly do not wish to see over-population
spread further into North Kingston. 2. I am also
concerned that if there is yet more increase in
the population, the infrastructure will
breakdown (e.g. Kingston Hospital). 3. I don't
see any need for any 'faith' facilities in any
development such as this. 'Faith' should be
kept out of such developments, and should be
private. 4. I am concerned that once again, the
council will propose more tall buildings, above
four floors in height, further marring the area.
The council should leave North Kingston alone,
and redevelop other parts of Kingston (there
are many areas south of Kingston that could
really do with development). Leave North
Kingston alone, please. 5. There is an
additional potential problem in concreting over
yet more land so close to the river, with the
potential that this brings of flooding to other
areas of North Kingston (the water not being
able to sink through concrete surfaces). I trust
yet another development will not go ahead.

Noted.

The addition of high quality green open space and the
upgrading of surrounding public realm, retail,
commercial, educational and transport facilities are
designed to improve liveability within the context of an
increasing density.
2. A review of the Infrastructure Delivery Plan will be
made as part of the production of the Council’s new
Local Plan which will take into account the need of
infrastructure and services in the Borough.
3. Comment 3 noted.
4. The building heights contained in the Development
Brief are indicative, and will need to be tested at a
more detailed level following the receipt of a planning

40

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
application. The supporting commentary and
Development Form and Massing Principles set out
how the Council will assess any proposed
development to ensure that the proposed heights are
appropriate.
5. Issues of design that affect flood risk will be dealt
with with regard to specific development proposals, as
and when they come forward. Additionally, the issue of
flood risk is to be reviewed as part of the preparation
and review of the Local Plan and Infrastructure
Delivery Plan.
Maurice
Bentley (Local
resident)

Somewhat
favour

7

E John (Local
resident)

Neutral

8

Chris Kent
(Local
resident)

9

10

11

Support noted.

No change.

1. The brief suggests that this part of Kingston Town
Centre was ‘previously largely derelict’. This statement
is based on the former vacant land uses covering
many of the key sites in the area, including the
decommissioned gas holders.

No change.

Somewhat
favour

Support noted.

No change.

G T KNIGHT
(Local
resident)

Strongly
favour

Support noted.

No change.

Carl Clarke
(Local
resident)

Somewhat
favour

1. The delivery of affordable housing will be achieved
by the requirements of current policy applied to
individual planning applications on a case by case
basis to take account of factors such as viability. The
Council will seek to ensure any proposed
developments accord with the Core Strategy (including
DM15, and the Affordable Housing SPD) as well as
current Government and Mayoral policy.

Change.

Steve

Somewhat

1. The Council is working with key partners such as

No change.

1. there is no 'derelict' part of Kingston town
centre

1. Affordable living needs to take a higher
priority

1. To reduce use of cars, public transport

C132

6

Page 33, para 5.
Text added: ‘The provision
of affordable homes on site
must accord with policies
set out in the London Plan,
Government policy and the
other elements of the
development plan.’.

41

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
Hollands
(Local
resident)

favour

12

S Watson
(Local
resident)

Somewhat
favour

13

Andrew
Payne (Local
resident)

Somewhat
oppose

needs to be lower cost and more efficient.
Richmond road is only served by one service,
65, which can be inconsistent. Although the
route goes from Kingston to Ealing, when I
have used the service, most of the passengers
get off in Richmond, so we need a service,
which just runs between Kingston and
Richmond, which would allow a more reliable
service to be run. If there are issues up in
Ealing, KIngston loses a bus service to
RIchmond.

Noted.

No change.

1. The appropriate density for new developments is set
by the London Plan prepared on behalf of the Mayor of
London. The North Kingston site is defined as being
Central, by nature of its proximity to Kingston station
and town centre (a metropolitan centre). The North
Kingston site also benefits from PTAL (Public
Transport Accessibility Level) ranging from 6-4, with by
far the majority of the site being 6. Using the GLA
density matrix the expected density of development on
the site would be 215-405 dwellings per hectare.

No change.

C133

1. This area was once a great place to live but I
feel the density of new build housing, retail and
other, needs to be carefully managed as I feel
the area has lost a lot of its character and now
seems very urban. 2. Obviously any scheme
would have to be looked at in detail and judged
on its own merits, but generally I wonder if the
surrounding infrastructure can support or cope
as it exists now. Perhaps the focus should be
on planning and improving the infrastructure
carefully before any large residential
developments are allowed.

Transport for London on an ongoing basis to bring
about improvements to bus services in the area.
Detailed investigations are carried out in respect of all
major new development and other significant
proposals to assess the impact on the transport
network and identify the need for improvements.

The addition of high quality green open space and the
upgrading of surrounding public realm, retail,
commercial, educational and transport facilities are
designed to improve liveability within the context of an
increasing density.
2. As part of the planning process, developers will be
expected to contribute towards upgrading
infrastructure that is necessary to support the
development. The Council will be conducting a review
of its Infrastructure Delivery Plan as part of the
preparation for the Local Plan.

14

Matt Williams
(Local
resident)

Strongly
favour

Support noted.

No change.

42

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
15

Rachel
Hapoienu
(Local
resident)

Somewhat
favour

Support noted.

No change.

16

Jessamy
Oldfield (Local
resident)

Somewhat
oppose

Noted.

No change.

17

Jonathan
rollason
(Local
resident)

Strongly
favour

1. The appropriate density for new developments is set
by the Greater London Authority (GLA) through the
London Plan. The North Kingston site is defined as
being Central, by nature of its proximity to Kingston
station and town centre (a metropolitan centre). The
North Kingston site also benefits from PTAL (Public
Transport Accessibility Level) ranging from 6-4, with by
far the majority of the site being 6. Using the GLA
density matrix the expected density of development on
the site would be 215-405 dwellings per hectare.

No change.

Have concerns about 1. density, 2. height and
3. traffic assumptions.Traffic set to increase by
50% in next ten years. Will the plan
accommodate this?

C134

The addition of high quality green open space and the
upgrading of surrounding public realm, retail,
commercial, educational and transport facilities are
designed to improve liveability within the context of an
increasing density.
2. The building heights contained in the Development
Brief are indicative, and will need to be tested at a
more detailed level following the receipt of a planning
application. The supporting commentary and
Development Form and Massing Principles set out
how the Council will assess any proposed
development to ensure that the proposed heights are
appropriate.
3. There is no evidence to suggest that traffic will
increase by 50% in the next 10 years. Surveys have
shown that traffic has actually decreased gradually
over the last 10-15 years across London, including
outer London. While anticipated growth and new
development may change the trend to some extent
over the next 10 years, the Transport for London
predictions for the future are for relatively stable traffic
conditions with no major increases in traffic levels. The

43

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
plan’s evidence base accounts for all transport matters
over the period of the plan.
18

John Roscoe
(Local
resident)

Somewhat
favour

1. It's a good idea to have homes close to the
centre and to public transport, in conjunction
with provision of open spaces for people to live
in a high quality environment. 2. Over the past
ten years, I believe north Kingston has been
excessively developed with too much housing
and insufficient open spaces - the area has
become too crowded. Opening up disused
space for a variety of uses is a good idea.
Please keep the density of housing lower than
it has been - too many people in one place
creates a feeling of tension.

1. Support noted.

No change.

2. The appropriate density for new developments is set
by the Greater London Authority (GLA) through the
London Plan. The North Kingston site is defined as
being Central, by nature of its proximity to Kingston
station and town centre (a metropolitan centre). The
North Kingston site also benefits from PTAL (Public
Transport Accessibility Level) ranging from 6-4, with by
far the majority of the site being 6. Using the GLA
density matrix the expected density of development on
the site would be 215-405 dwellings per hectare.
The addition of high quality green open space and the
upgrading of surrounding public realm, retail,
commercial, educational and transport facilities are
designed to improve liveability within the context of an
increasing density. The brief intends to increase
access to green space in the North Kingston area.

Rupert Moor
(Local
resident)

Somewhat
favour

1. More detail needed before further comment
can be made.

1. This brief is intended to provide guidance and a
long-term vision for the area. The specific detail of the
future developments on the site will come forward in
individual planning applications which will be assessed
on their own merit in the context of the this overall
vision for the area set out by the Council and will be
subject to individual consultation.

No change.

20

Neil Fulk
(Local
resident)

Strongly
favour

1. There should be a car link between North
Kingston and Kingston Bridge without having to
go around the one way system

Comment 1 noted.

No change.

21

Richard
Williams
(Local
resident)

Somewhat
favour

1. I am surprised that the geographical area
covered by the consultation is quite limited, as
the plans appear to have implications for
surrounding roads and parks

1. While there may be some implications for
surrounding roads and parks, the majority of the
impact will be immediate and unfortunately there is a
limit to how wide the Council is able to consult on
proposals.

No change.

22

John Pitts
(Local
resident)

Somewhat
favour

Support noted.

No change.

C135

19

44

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
23

Samantha
Murphy (Local
resident)

Neutral

Comment 1 noted.
2. The need for social & physical infrastructure needed
to support development is to be addressed in the
preparation for the future Local Plan and Infrastructure
Delivery Plan. CIL payments and S106 Agreements
are sought by the Councils from developers for the
upgrading/provision of infrastructure that is deemed
necessary as a result of the proposed development.
3.The Council’s policies seek to protect the residential
and other sensitive areas of the borough from
unwarranted traffic intrusion and associated noise and
environmental impacts. Typical measures include
traffic calming, banned movements and restricted
access to key areas. Alterations to the main road
network in the North Kingston area will be tested
against the need for this type of protection to
surrounding areas. The overall traffic arrangements
are being configured to allow for local access while
minimising potential for longer distance traffic diverting
into residential streets.
4. As part of the remodelling of the road network in the
development brief area, the roads will benefit from
improved junctions and new/improved crossing for
pedestrians/cyclists as well as appropriate road
signage.
5. The ‘Pedestrian and Cycle Only Route’ (coloured
pink) exits onto Sury Basin where a new/improved
crossing will allow cyclists to turn right to join the cycle
lanes on Richmond Road or left to access quieter road
that are more appropriate for cyclists such as Skerne
Road.
6. The plans for the area include the widening of
Richmond Road to accommodate two way traffic at its
southern end and the left turn from Sopwith Way into
Richmond Road. The road will also be upgraded to
accommodate the requirements of both pedestrians
and cyclists in a safe manner, and ensure access to
shops and other ground floor uses. The revised
arrangements have been modelled to ensure their

Change. Page 5, plan title
change from ‘Figure Ground
Plan showing large voids in
the urban fabric highlighting
the sites underutilisation’ to
‘Figure Ground Plan 2015:
the large voids in the urban
fabric display the sites
underutilisation’. Slight
amendment to Ground Plan.
Change. Page 7, Plan
showing current land
ownership boundaries;
Page 10, Movement and
Access Plan; Page 12,
Activity and Edges Plan;
Page 14, Land Use Plan;
Page 16, Public Realm &
Public Open Space Plan;
Page 18, Heights Plan;
Page 21, Development
Parcels; Page 22,
Safeguarding Plan; Page
24, Design Framework
Plan; Page 42, Lan
Ownership Plan.
Road names ‘Sury Basin’
and ‘Sopwith Way’ have
been added to plan.
Change. Page 8, Concept
Plan: Wording of ‘Proposed
Quiet Route’ changed to
‘Proposed Cycle Route’.
Change. Page 10,
Movement and Access
Plan:
‘Potential Dedicated Cycle
Route’ has been removed
from map.
Wording of ‘indicative
Shared Space Route’ has

45

C136

1. I found many of the drawings/ plans in the
document difficult to read. There were no clear
road names on the plans so orientating them
was hard. 2. I wish to comment that any
proposals for new housing in this area, there
should be consideration into the support
services required for this including health
facilities/ rail capacity and education. There
should be clear CIL benefits from any housing
proposals and this money must be used in
these services. 3. I am concerned that in
closing Kingsgate Road and funnelling all the
traffic down Seven Kings Way would lead to air
quality issues for the housing there and traffic
congestion. 4. Will the junction of Seven Kings
Way & Sury Basin be modified to cope with the
increased volume of traffic going through
there? Will the road markings be improved so it
is clear which lane you should be in to turn right
but needing to be in the left lane to go up
Richmond Road. 5. It was unclear in the Design
Framework Plan how pedestrians & cyclists
(coloured pink) would get across the road
network to get on to that pink line safely. Will
this mean more pelican crossings and therefore
more driver delay on the roads? 6. If the
Richmond Road is to be narrowed to 17m (I am
guessing this is between Acre Road and
Cowleaze Road), will sufficient width still be
provided to ensure there is a bus lane for buses
travelling southwards towards Kingston & a
lane for other traffic. 7. Is there sufficient
turning circle space for buses to go around
Seven Kings Road & then up Sury Basin? 8.
What will happen to traffic if a bus were to
break down on Seven Kings Road blocking the
road? what contingency space or plan would
there be other than to cause a backlog on to
the Loop. At least at present if a bus breaks
down on Kingsgate vehicles can go up Seven
Kings Road. 9. Who will own or have
responsibility for the new public space in this
area? given the Government's recent
consultation on the role of public parks &

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
spaces alongside their funding, is their funding
to maintain this public space or will it be a
privately owned space with caveats? 10. How
will you ensure any new housing in this area
the waste collection services have been
adequately provided for? i.e. where bins would
be stored and if it is a vehicle free area, how
service vehicles collecting the bins/ rubbish will
get to them? 11. If it is a vehicle free zone how
will you enforce residents to not have a car?
where will they park as you cannot control
residents owning a car so this provision needs
to be thought out now at the strategic level as it
will have an impact on the widen existing
residential neighbourhoods.

adequate operation.
7. There will be sufficient space for buses to turn from
Seven Kings Way onto Sury Basin.
8. The revised highway arrangements in North
Kingston build in an element of resilience to allow for
incidents such as a broken down vehicle blocking the
road. All new development will be required to meet the
Council’s standards in terms of providing adequate
servicing and parking facilities to avoid any problems
of overspill parking and unwarranted intrusion of larger
vehicles.
9. Regarding the ownership and maintenance of open
space, this is critical to its long term success. This
aspect of the scheme will be subject to agreement
between the Council and landowners.

11. All new development will be required to meet the
Council’s/London Plan standards in terms of providing
appropriate levels of parking and servicing to ensure a
safe environment and avoid unwarranted intrusion of
larger vehicles.

Change. Page 14, Land
Use Plan
Addition of wording
‘(including A2/A3)’ after
‘retail’ on the 2nd and 5th
points of the key.
Change. Page 18, Heights
Plan:
Asterix removed from ‘Up to
maximum 12 storeys*’
Note at bottom of page
amended from ‘*Please
note: ‘Storey’ heights are
inclusive of ground floor’ to
‘Please note: All ‘storey’
heights are inclusive of
ground floor’
Change. Page 24, Design
Framework Plan:
Indicative Cycle Route has
been aligned.
Change. Page 24, Design
Framework Plan; Page 26,
Design Framework:
Richmond Road; Page 28,
Framework Plan: North
South Linear Park; Page 30,
Framework Plan: East West
Linear Park; Page 34,
Surrounding Infrastructure;
Page 36, Humanise
Surrounding Streets
1) ‘Potential Cycle Only

46

C137

10. Site specific design issues for individual sites such
as bin storage will be addressed as and when
individual planning applications come forward. These
issues will take into account rubbish collection and
feasibility of vital services.

been changed to ‘Shared
Space Car Park Access’.
Wording of ‘Indicative Quiet
Route’ has been changed to
‘Indicative Cycle Route’.
Indicative Cycle Route has
been aligned.

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
Route’ removed from key
2) ‘Potential Shared Space
Car park Access’ changed
to ‘Shared Space Car Park
Access’ on key.
3) ‘Proposed Quiet Way’
changed to ‘Indicative Cycle
Route’ on key.
4) ‘Pedestrian and Cycle
Only Route’ changed to
‘Indicative Pedestrian and
Cycle Route Only’ on key.
24

J Langridge
(Local
resident)

Somewhat
favour

25

Frances Noel
(Local
resident)

Somewhat
favour

No change.

1. The responsibility for providing new schools now
falls to the Education Funding Agency (EFA). The EFA
have successfully gained planning consent for a new
primary school in Norbiton, which will help address
need locally.

No change.

C138

1. One of the objectives is education, yet no
new primary school planned, despite the vast
increase in population density the extra housing
will create. 2. This needs to be addressed as
well as increase in GP provision etc. 3. The
new road network proposed is vague on the
plans but routing a lot more cars around Seven
Kings/Sury Basin is not going to work. Overall
the vision seems good but a great deal of
attention needs to be paid to ensure North
Kingston does not get more congested with
people and cars and I'll thought through road
system.

Noted.

2. The need for increased GP provision is to be
addressed by preparation for future Local Plan and
Infrastructure Delivery Plan. There is currently no
envisaged need for a new primary school on the site.
3. A traffic study of the North Kingston Development
Area has found that the proposed changes to the road
network in the North Kingston Development area will
improve the movement of traffic and associated safety.
The proposal to realign and widen Seven Kings Way
will allow for additional vehicle capacity with
associated safety improvements, and make it easier
for residents to turn left into the Royal Quarter parking.
A new left turn from Sopwith Way into Richmond Road
will provide a resilience route for traffic moving
northwards out of Kingston; it is also intended that
buses and heavy goods vehicles will use this route to
minimize disruption to Local residents. Richmond
Road will be widened at its southern end to facilitate
the proposed left turn. These proposals will mitigate
the closure of Kingsgate Road onto Richmond Road

47

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
and address wider movement and network capacity
issues in the North Kingston area.
26

M Ellis (Local
resident)

Neutral

1. The appropriate density for new developments is set
by the Greater London Authority (GLA) through the
London Plan. The North Kingston site is defined as
being Central, by nature of its proximity to Kingston
station and town centre (a metropolitan centre). The
North Kingston site also benefits from PTAL (Public
Transport Accessibility Level) ranging from 6-4, with by
far the majority of the site being 6. Using the GLA
density matrix the expected density of development on
the site would be 215-405 dwellings per hectare.

Change. Wording added to
page 17, para 2: ‘New
public spaces will need to
accommodate an
appropriate means of
dealing with water drainage
to support biodiversity and
address climatic issues’

The building heights contained in the Development
Brief are indicative, and will need to be tested at a
more detailed level following the receipt of a planning
application. The supporting commentary and
Development Form and Massing Principles set out
how the Council will assess any proposed
development to ensure that the proposed heights are
appropriate.

C139

1. It is not clear whether the North Kingston
Plan has taken into consideration the recent
high-rise buildings that have been built in the
immediate vicinity, or those being built in the
old gas site. Whilst it sounds good in isolation,
there will actually be a huge increase in the
built environment with many residents
crammed into a small space. As a long-term
resident of North Kingston (and several
generations of my family have lived in North
Kingston), I disagree that this is an extension of
Kingston town centre. It is not. The character
and feel of North Kingston is a quiet residential
suburb with houses and gardens, not blocks of
flats. 2. The proposed public parks seem to be
more for cycle traffic. 3. I would like to see
priority given to improving wildlife corridors and
linking quality planting (that is usable by
wildlife, not just a box-ticking exercise). This
should link existing green space to the river and
Canbury Gardens.

2. While the proposed public park will provide cycle
routes throughout, it is intended for the enjoyment of
everybody and not specifically aimed at cyclists.
Comment 3 noted.

27

Chris Parry
(Local
resident)

Somewhat
favour

1. It is a neglected part of Kingston and has
always disappointed us as we drive through to
our home in North Kingston. An improved
public realm and a better quality of buildings
would improve the area.

1. Support noted

No change.

28

C
Parkins-Godw
in (Local
resident)

Strongly
favour

1. Increased retail and housing will not only
challenge the demands of this area of north
Kingston but surrounding areas. What plans do
the council have to address the rat runs from
Kingston Hill down Crescent Rd, down Kings
Rd to Richmond Rd. These roads will have
increased traffic, creating the opposite of
promoting smooth movement through ' Go
cycle' from Kingston Hill to Richmond Park, and

1. The Council’s policies seek to protect the residential
and other sensitive areas of the borough from
unwarranted traffic intrusion and associated noise and
environmental impacts. Typical measures include
traffic calming, banned movements and restricted
access to key areas. Alterations to the main road
network in the North Kingston area will be tested
against the need for this type of protection to
surrounding areas. The overall traffic arrangements

No change.

48

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
not providing " environmental improvements" or
"addressing issues of noise and air quality" for
Local residents to Richmond Park.

are being configured to allow for local access while
minimising potential for longer distance traffic diverting
into residential streets.
In accordance with the London Plan and Council
policies, the Council places significant emphasis on
the role of walking and cycling in the future of
movement in the Borough, and will therefore continue
to promote and extend these uses in the North
Kingston area and throughout the Borough in order to
facilitate a connected network of safe walking and
cycle routes. Transport for London’s new Cycling
Design Standards (Dec 2014) advises that cyclists and
pedestrians should not be forced together where there
is space to keep them apart, creating unnecessary
conflict which can only increase as the number of
cyclists rises. Where possible and appropriate the
Council will introduce segregated cycle lanes.

29

Pat Lally
(Local
resident)

Somewhat
favour

1. The design of individual sites will be judged on their
own merit as and when these come forward and must
be compliant with the design frameworks outlined in
the brief.

No change.

C140

1. Architecture should be Victorian in style, not
lots of glass and balconies. 2. Also the height of
residential buildings should be limited in height
to less than five storeys.

2. The building heights contained in the Development
Brief are indicative, and will need to be tested at a
more detailed level following the receipt of a planning
application. The supporting commentary and
Development Form and Massing Principles set out
how the Council will assess any proposed
development to ensure that the proposed heights are
appropriate.
30

Anne (Local
resident)

Somewhat
favour

31

Simon Pain
(Local
resident)

Neutral

32

Marilyn
Mason (Local
resident)

Somewhat
favour

Support noted.

No change.

1. I would like to see a commitment to
architectural excellence and highest quality,
innovative design. Currently it sounds a bit
bland and inoffensive.

1. Issues of specific design will be dealt with as and
when applications come forward.

No change.

1. Developing current "high street" outlets on
Richmond Road should help to improve local
air quality and traffic, provided that it goes hand

1. The Council’s transport policies give priority to
pedestrian and cycle movement. There is a consistent
approach across all areas of the borough including

No change.

49

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
in hand with improving cycling and walking
facilities (not in expanding parking and thereby
encouraging yet more traffic). 2. The proposed
linear park should contribute to this by going all
the way into the town centre/station area. 3.
"Exemplary architecture" sounds good, but
what does it mean? 4. Educational provision
should also be for primary age pupils - more
residents will surely mean more children and
primary schools should be smallish and within
cycling or walking distance from homes.

North Kingston. The aim is to encourage the greatest
possible use of these modes by making new
development fully accessible to these users.
2. The ambition to extend Linear Park to the town
centre is supported by the Design Framework with
particular reference to North South Linear Park, and
Supporting Infrastructure.
3. Individual development proposals will need to be
tested against existing Core Strategy policies,
including DM10, DM11 and CS8.
4. There is currently no envisaged need for a new
primary school on the site. The responsibility for
providing new schools now falls to the Education
Funding Agency (EFA). The EFA have successfully
gained planning consent for a new primary school in
Norbiton, which will help address need locally.

33

Somewhat
favour

1. I strongly welcome the regeneration of the
site. As a North Kingston resident the area
would benefit from a face lift. My main concern
is the rejuvenation of the high street. Has the
council consulted with retailers currently
present, or those that might consider the area?
My main concern is whether the intended retail
spaces at street level will attract retailers. There
are many empty retail spaces beneath recent
developments that have remained empty for
years and are more of a blight on the area than
the Richmond Road high street currently is. For
example, the retail space next door but one to
Tesco Express by Kingston Station has been
up for let for at least 5 years, and the unlet
retail spaces along London Road by the railway
bridge look particularly downtrodden. In many
shop parades in the area there has been much
campaigning from retailers on allowing free
parking and my concern with the Richmond
Road and the lack of nearby side road or
frontage parking is that much of the retail space
will be unlet. There cannot be a "build it and
they will come" attitude to the regeneration. As

1. A2/A3 uses are identified in the Town Centre Area
Action Plan as appropriate uses for site 19e (directly
north of the College building on Richmond Road) and
20 (Kingsgate Car park and Richmond Road
Frontage). The Development Brief will be in
compliance with the land uses as identified in the AAP.

Change. Page 14, Land
Use Plan: addition of
wording in key ‘(including
A2/A3)’ after ‘retail’ on the
2nd and 5th points of the
key.
.

50

C141

Alison Pope
(Local
resident)

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
a Local resident I do not want a high street of
empty bare concrete shells or boarded up
shops. Unfortunately, although not very green,
some consideration to customers popping to
the shops and pulling up in a car should be
considered. The A1 status should also be
expanded to include A3.
J Sellars
(Local
resident)

Somewhat
favour

1. Would like clear demarcation between
pedestrian and cycle routes. Also to keep
present arrangements for traffic along Gibbon
Road

1. Comment noted. In accordance with the London
Plan and Council policies, the Council places
significant emphasis on the role of walking and cycling
in the future of movement in the Borough, and will
therefore continue to promote and extend these uses
in the North Kingston area and throughout the
Borough in order to facilitate a connected network of
safe walking and cycle routes. Transport for London’s
new Cycling Design Standards (Dec 2014) advises
that cyclists and pedestrians should not be forced
together where there is space to keep them apart,
creating unnecessary conflict which can only increase
as the number of cyclists rises. Where possible and
appropriate the Council will introduce segregated cycle
lanes.

No change.

35

Denise Fraser
(Local
resident)

Somewhat
favour

1. I do not agree that Seven Kings Way should
be the main thoroughfare for traffic onto Sury
Basin and Richmond Road, or that it should be
made 2 way. The volume of traffic, together
with the increased noise and pollution for the
residents of Royal Quarter and the new
Queenshurst development would have a
detrimental impact.

1. The traffic study of the North Kingston Development
Area has found that the proposed changes to the road
network in the North Kingston Development area will
improve the movement of traffic and associated safety.
The proposal to realign and widen Seven Kings Way
will allow for additional vehicle capacity with
associated safety improvements, and make it easier
for residents to turn left into the Royal Quarter parking.
A new left turn from Sopwith Way into Richmond Road
will provide a resilience route for traffic moving
northwards out of Kingston; it is also intended that
buses and heavy goods vehicles will use this route to
minimize disruption to Local residents. Richmond
Road will be widened at its southern end to facilitate
the proposed left turn. These proposals will mitigate
the closure of Kingsgate Road onto Richmond Road
and address wider movement and network capacity
issues in the North Kingston area.

No change.

C142

34

The Council’s policies seek to protect the residential

51

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
and other sensitive areas of the borough from
unwarranted traffic intrusion and associated noise and
environmental impacts. Typical measures include
traffic calming, banned movements and restricted
access to key areas. Alterations to the main road
network in the North Kingston area will be tested
against the need for this type of protection to
surrounding areas. The overall traffic arrangements
are being configured to allow for local access while
minimising potential for longer distance traffic diverting
into residential streets.
36

Michael
McGrail
(Local
resident)

Strongly
favour

1. The traffic study of the North Kingston Development
Area has found that the proposed changes to the road
network in the North Kingston Development area will
improve the movement of traffic and associated safety.
The proposal to realign and widen Seven Kings Way
will allow for additional vehicle capacity with
associated safety improvements, and make it easier
for residents to turn left into the Royal Quarter parking.
A new left turn from Sopwith Way into Richmond Road
will provide a resilience route for traffic moving
northwards out of Kingston; it is also intended that
buses and heavy goods vehicles will use this route to
minimize disruption to Local residents. Richmond
Road will be widened at its southern end to facilitate
the proposed left turn. These proposals will mitigate
the closure of Kingsgate Road onto Richmond Road
and address wider movement and network capacity
issues in the North Kingston area.

No change.

C143

1. Yes, the proposal to route the Kingston
one-way ring road system along Seven Kings
Way is verging on the ridiculous and
contradicts the intent of this scheme.. The
proper route should be along Sopwith Way and
then along the Richmond Road for traffic
wanting to go in that direction. This routing plan
contradicts the intent of this Development Brief.
2. Far from bringing communities together it will
physically divide them with a noisy, polluting
highway. How does this help towards reducing
noise levels and pollution for the people living
in the adjacent flats to Seven Kings Way?
Seven Kings Road cuts through what will soon
be a high density residential area which runs
from the Thames to the Richmond Road.
Michael McGrail

It is the long-term ambition of the Council to implement
a left turn from Sopwith Way onto Richmond Road to
further ease traffic in this area. This is subject to land
ownership issues. Page 22 of the brief identifies
safeguarding methods the Council will employ to help
deliver this in the future.
2. The Council’s policies seek to protect the residential
and other sensitive areas of the borough from
unwarranted traffic intrusion and associated noise and
environmental impacts. Typical measures include
traffic calming, banned movements and restricted
access to key areas. Alterations to the main road

52

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
network in the North Kingston area will be tested
against the need for this type of protection to
surrounding areas. The overall traffic arrangements
are being configured to allow for local access while
minimising potential for longer distance traffic diverting
into residential streets.
Robert
Marshall
(Local
resident)

Somewhat
favour

1. Want to ensure that traffic flow to and from
Richmond Road is as smooth as possible and
that there are cycle lanes on Richmond Road in
both directions from the kings road traffic lights
to the railway station.

1. The plans for the area include the widening of
Richmond Road to accommodate two way traffic at its
southern end and the left turn from Sopwith Way into
Richmond Road. The road will also be upgraded to
accommodate the requirements of both pedestrians
and cyclists in a safe manner, and ensure access to
shops and other ground floor uses. The revised
arrangements have been modelled to ensure their
adequate operation.

No change.

38

Duncan
Combe (Local
resident)

Neutral

1. Priority needs to be given to pedestrian
movement and impact on existing residents of
any proposed changes. Cycling needs to be
considered as a second priority below
pedestrian movement.

1. The Council’s transport policies give priority to
pedestrian and cycle movement. There is a consistent
approach across all areas of the borough including
North Kingston. The aim is to encourage the greatest
possible use of these modes by making new
development fully accessible to these users.

No change.

39

Mary Graham
(Local
resident)

Neutral

Noted.

No Change.

40

Joanne
Melbourne
(Local
resident)

Strongly
oppose

All comment noted.

No change.

1. What are you doing? Having lived here for
21 years have sadly witnessed how you have
massacred an 'area of opportunity'. Fields and
open spaces have been hideously concreted
over to provide boxes for people to live in - I
have never in my born days seen anything so
disgraceful and you have the cheek to write to
us about the objectives you have for the
area...its a concrete jungle! What happened to
the lessons learned from the 60's when it was
realised people do not function and prosper
emotionally or physically in built up concrete
jungles. But its obvious it doesn't affect you so
you don't care. I have taken an interest in my
area for many years - I campaigned to stop the
Sainsbury's and car park being built. I

C144

37

1. The appropriate density for new developments is set
by the Greater London Authority (GLA) through the
London Plan. The North Kingston site is defined as
being Central, by nature of its proximity to Kingston
station and town centre (a metropolitan centre). The
North Kingston site also benefits from PTAL (Public
Transport Accessibility Level) ranging from 6-4, with by
far the majority of the site being 6. Using the GLA
density matrix the expected density of development on
the site would be 215-405 dwellings per hectare.
The Council recognises that the North Kingston area is
deficient in green space and the addition of high
quality green open space including a new public park

53

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
is intended to go some way to improve this. This is
intended as part of a wider strategy to improve green
space connections to Canbury Gardens and the
Riverside. This, along with the upgrading of
surrounding public realm, retail, commercial,
educational and transport facilities are designed to
improve livability and quality of life for residents within
the context of an increasing density.
2. In regard to travel & movement in the area, a traffic
study of the North Kingston Development Area has
found that the proposed changes to the road network
in the North Kingston Development area will improve
the movement of traffic and associated safety. The
proposal to realign and widen Seven Kings Way will
allow for additional vehicle capacity with associated
safety improvements, and make it easier for residents
to turn left into the Royal Quarter parking. A new left
turn from Sopwith Way into Richmond Road will
provide a resilience route for traffic moving northwards
out of Kingston; it is also intended that buses and
heavy goods vehicles will use this route to minimize
disruption to Local residents. Richmond Road will be
widened at its southern end to facilitate the proposed
left turn. These proposals will mitigate the closure of
Kingsgate Road onto Richmond Road and address
wider movement and network capacity issues in the
North Kingston area.

C145

requested a school to be built there 15 years
ago plus some larger houses as the extension
restrictions prevented any loft extensions at the
time. I was told this was 'contaminated land and
no houses could ever be built on the site'. I
campaigned myself to have zebra crossing on
King's Road outside of St Agatha's Church for
all the schoolchildren for 2 years and to have
tree planting on behalf of BRAG residents
committee as all trees were removed and we
were experiencing increased pollution from
Richmond Road. 2. There is too much traffic in
this area which is in a 'vale' and thus traps all
toxins and air pollutants. The road layout you
propose will only add to traffic jams and
congestion in an area which probably already
exceeds any safety limits for permitted air
pollution. You have not listened to anyone so
far..apart from the greedy consulting firm Indigo
whose only operating principles are to con the
public with promises of 'employment' and
improving area by sticking in a piece of grass
and pavement. You treat residents like
numpty's as if they can be conned and bought
off with mention of 'cycle route or personal
walkway'. We all know the park will be a hang
out for students who litter the area with
Sainburys rubbish, gum and cigarette butts! I
have no respect for Kingston Council - you do
not listen to residents - I have been to meetings
and see the words of residents are met with
defensive responses and no regards - playing
into the hands of scheming
developers...BRAVO!! I think what you are
planning for this Royal Borough is a travesty - I
hope you hang your heads in shame....all of
you. What about Chessington, Tolworth and
beyond - plenty of space and opportunity there.
I remember the "Tree People' who tried to save
the Beeches and stop the awful development
overlooking the river - how the residents
provided food for them, talked to them for years
and understood what they were trying to do before they were forcibly removed. No matter

The Council’s policies seek to protect the residential
and other sensitive areas of the borough from
unwarranted traffic intrusion and associated noise and
environmental impacts. Typical measures include
traffic calming, banned movements and restricted
access to key areas. Alterations to the main road
network in the North Kingston area will be tested
against the need for this type of protection to
surrounding areas. The overall traffic arrangements
are being configured to allow for local access while
minimising potential for longer distance traffic diverting
into residential streets.

54

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
what anyone says or does Kingston Council will
plough on with their 'scheme' because Central
Government told us to. Common sense,
privilege and a thought for the future of this
great borough certainly does not prevail - only
targets, greed and money for the council. R.I.P
Royal Borough of Kingston. Yes we know the
site was a derelict gas work - what you have
done to this area is vile and a disgrace!!
41

Jonathan
Rollason
(Local
resident)

Somewhat
favour

1. The appropriate density for new developments is set
by the Greater London Authority (GLA) through the
London Plan. The North Kingston site is defined as
being Central, by nature of its proximity to Kingston
station and town centre (a metropolitan centre). The
North Kingston site also benefits from PTAL (Public
Transport Accessibility Level) ranging from 6-4, with by
far the majority of the site being 6. Using the GLA
density matrix the expected density of development on
the site would be 215-405 dwellings per hectare.

No change.

The infrastructure needs of the Borough are
significantly greater than the funding likely to be
realised through CIL or planning obligations or a
combination of both. The Council will seek to prioritise
CIL use as a match or gap funding source, linked to
other infrastructure funding. As part of the production
of the Council’s new Local Plan for the Borough, the
Infrastructure Delivery Plan will be reviewed. It is
important to note that growth in the Borough is set to
continue and the production of a new Local Plan and
supporting evidence studies is intended to strengthen
the Council’s position to maximise opportunities for
planned growth, including the provision of adequate
infrastructure. Without this, the predicted growth will
result in piecemeal development that is unable to
secure maximum public benefits.

C146

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on
the north Kingston development plan. I am
supportive but have two issues. 1. The first is
the density and the effect this will have on the
quality of life in the neighbourhood. The money
developers provide never covers the whole cost
of improvements needed and we have seen a
serious erosion of services. As an example it
now takes two weeks to see a Doctor for a
routine appointment. It used to take 3 days. I
would request the council adopts a target
density of 215 units per hectare to protect the
borough. 2. The second is connected and is the
height of the tower on the council land. I
understand the council wants to maximise the
income from the site but surely not at any cost.
The site is surrounded by much smaller
buildings on all sides. A 12 storey building is
simply too large and we know developers will
suggest 15 storey's. This will be followed by a
huge fight and they will eventually accept 12
storey's if that's is what the plan says. The
maximum height should not exceed 9 storey's
which would fit in with adjacent buildings.
Please amend the plan.

2. The building heights contained in the Development
Brief are indicative, and will need to be tested at a
more detailed level following the receipt of a planning
application. The supporting commentary and
Development Form and Massing Principles set out
how the Council will assess any proposed

55

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
development to ensure that the proposed heights are
appropriate.
The issues of developer contributions is addressed by
the Developer Contributions section of the
Development Brief. A review of the Infrastructure
Delivery Plan will be made as part of the production of
the Council’s new Local Plan which will take into
account the need of infrastructure and services in the
Borough.
Richard
Robinson
(Local
resident)

Neutral

Noted.

No change.

43

Kingston
Cycling
Campaign
(local
organisation)

Somewhat
favour

1. Richmond Road has a very degraded
environment because of the level of traffic. It
would appear that active frontage is important
in the other parts of the proposed development
where people will want to walk and cycle away
from adjacent high traffic flows.

1. The plans for the area include the widening of
Richmond Road to accommodate two way traffic at its
southern end and the left turn from Sopwith Way into
Richmond Road. The road will also be upgraded to
accommodate the requirements of both pedestrians
and cyclists in a safe manner, and ensure access to
shops and other ground floor uses. The revised
arrangements have been modelled to ensure their
adequate operation.

No change.

44

Xxx xxx
(unknown)

Somewhat
favour

1. In favour of redevelopment, but not chosen
use of space, in particular, high rise buildings.

1..The building heights contained in the Development
Brief are indicative, and will need to be tested at a
more detailed level following the receipt of a planning
application. The supporting commentary and
Development Form and Massing Principles set out
how the Council will assess any proposed
development to ensure that the proposed heights are
appropriate.

No change.

45

Robert James
(Local
resident)

Strongly
favour

1. Hope that "rejuvenated high street" does not
price the variety of individual shops out of the
area but allows it to retain a character different
from the main Kingston centre with its
dominance by national chains.

1. This suggestion is noted; the development brief
does not deal with issues of commercial operation of
landlords. However the brief will be fully compliant with
the London Plan which supports Small and Medium
Enterprises (SME).

No change.

46

Des McRow
(Local
resident)

Strongly
oppose

1. The aim to make “North Kingston a great
place to live” cannot be faulted. However no
consideration appears to be given to include

1. The Council’s policies seek to protect the residential
and other sensitive areas of the borough from
unwarranted traffic intrusion and associated noise and

No change.

C147

42

56

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
those living, and to live, on either side of Seven
Kings Way within this happy band. This is a
narrow road with apartment blocks of up to 8
storeys on one side and (when fully completed
in 2017/2018) up to 9 storeys on the other. With
the intention for it to undertake the Kingsgate
Road traffic following the closure of that road,
Seven Kings Way will face the arrival of the
majority of traffic heading to Richmond Road –
this including large commercial vehicles,
emergency service vehicles (with sirens
blaring) and a bus route that operates for 24
hours per day. This narrow road will in effect
form a high-sided form of tunnel with the
adverse implications of noise and air quality
appearing to be totally disregarded or not fully
appreciated in the thinking behind the
Development Brief .

environmental impacts. Typical measures include
traffic calming, banned movements and restricted
access to key areas. Alterations to the main road
network in the North Kingston area will be tested
against the need for this type of protection to
surrounding areas. The overall traffic arrangements
are being configured to allow for local access while
minimising potential for longer distance traffic diverting
into residential streets.

Sumit Thakur,
Chairman
(Royal
Quarter
Residents
Association)

Strongly
oppose

1. The aim to make “North Kingston a great
place to live” cannot be faulted. However no
consideration appears to be given to include
those living, and to live, on either side of Seven
Kings Way within this happy band. This is a
narrow road with apartment blocks of up to 8
storeys on one side and (when fully completed
in 2017/2018) up to 9 storeys on the other. With
the intention for it to undertake the Kingsgate
Road traffic following the closure of that road,
Seven Kings Way will face the arrival of the
majority of traffic heading to Richmond Road –
this including large commercial vehicles,
emergency service vehicles (with sirens
blaring) and a bus route that operates for 24
hours per day. This narrow road will in effect
form a high-sided form of tunnel with the
adverse implications of noise and air quality
appearing to be totally disregarded or not fully
appreciated in the thinking behind the
Development Brief.

1. The Council’s policies seek to protect the residential
and other sensitive areas of the borough from
unwarranted traffic intrusion and associated noise and
environmental impacts. Typical measures include
traffic calming, banned movements and restricted
access to key areas. Alterations to the main road
network in the North Kingston area will be tested
against the need for this type of protection to
surrounding areas. The overall traffic arrangements
are being configured to allow for local access while
minimising potential for longer distance traffic diverting
into residential streets.

No change.

48

Sumit Thakur
(Local
resident)

Strongly
oppose

1. I fully support the vision to make “North
Kingston" a great place to live. However, it
seems that not a proper attention has been

1. The Council’s policies seek to protect the residential
and other sensitive areas of the borough from
unwarranted traffic intrusion and associated noise and

No change.

C148

47

57

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation

Shinjini
Thakur (Local
resident)

Strongly
oppose

environmental impacts. Typical measures include
traffic calming, banned movements and restricted
access to key areas. Alterations to the main road
network in the North Kingston area will be tested
against the need for this type of protection to
surrounding areas. The overall traffic arrangements
are being configured to allow for local access while
minimising potential for longer distance traffic diverting
into residential streets.

1. I fully support the vision to make “North
Kingston" a great place to live. However, it
seems that not a proper attention has been
given to the impact on the residents on either
side of the Seven Kings Way. This is a narrow
one way road which will have 8 storey buildings
on either side and a right turn on the Sury
Basin on the other end of the road. If all the
traffic is diverted through this road, I am afraid
and deeply concerned that this will lead to a
major inconvenience to the residents of the
Seven Kings Way. 2. The right turn at the end
to Sury Basin will also act as a bottleneck and
therefore create further traffic jams on this road.
This is in addition to the noise and pollution that

1.  The Council’s policies seek to protect the
residential and other sensitive areas of the borough
from unwarranted traffic intrusion and associated noise
and environmental impacts. Typical measures include
traffic calming, banned movements and restricted
access to key areas. Alterations to the main road
network in the North Kingston area will be tested
against the need for this type of protection to
surrounding areas. The overall traffic arrangements
are being configured to allow for local access while
minimising potential for longer distance traffic diverting
into residential streets.

2. a traffic study of the North Kingston Development
Area has found that the proposed changes to the road
network in the North Kingston Development area will
improve the movement of traffic and associated safety.
The proposal to realign and widen Seven Kings Way
will allow for additional vehicle capacity with
associated safety improvements, and make it easier
for residents to turn left into the Royal Quarter parking.
A new left turn from Sopwith Way into Richmond Road
will provide a resilience route for traffic moving
northwards out of Kingston; it is also intended that
buses and heavy goods vehicles will use this route to
minimize disruption to Local residents. Richmond
Road will be widened at its southern end to facilitate
the proposed left turn. These proposals will mitigate
the closure of Kingsgate Road onto Richmond Road
and address wider movement and network capacity
issues in the North Kingston area.

C149

49

given to the impact on the residents on either
side of the Seven Kings Way. This is a narrow
one way road which will have 8 storey buildings
on either side and a right turn on the Sury
Basin on the other end of the road. If all the
traffic is diverted through this road, I am afraid
and deeply concerned that this will lead to a
major inconvenience to the residents of the
Seven Kings Way. 2. The right turn at the end
to Sury Basin will also act as a bottleneck and
therefore create further traffic jams on this road.
This is in addition to the noise and pollution that
this traffic would create. I strongly oppose the
development brief and believe that the full
implications of the development on the
residents of Seven Kings Way has not been
considered.

2. a traffic study of the North Kingston Development
Area has found that the proposed changes to the road

58

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
this traffic would create. I strongly oppose the
development brief and believe that the full
implications of the development on the
residents of Seven Kings Way has not been
considered.

network in the North Kingston Development area will
improve the movement of traffic and associated safety.
The proposal to realign and widen Seven Kings Way
will allow for additional vehicle capacity with
associated safety improvements, and make it easier
for residents to turn left into the Royal Quarter parking.
A new left turn from Sopwith Way into Richmond Road
will provide a resilience route for traffic moving
northwards out of Kingston; it is also intended that
buses and heavy goods vehicles will use this route to
minimize disruption to Local residents. Richmond
Road will be widened at its southern end to facilitate
the proposed left turn. These proposals will mitigate
the closure of Kingsgate Road onto Richmond Road
and address wider movement and network capacity
issues in the North Kingston area.

1. Further consultation is needed on the
specific proposals as there are too many
general aspirations with insufficient detail or
explanations.

1. Comment noted. This brief is intended to provide
guidance and a long-term vision for the area.
Individual planning applications for specific developers
will be made available on our website for public
consultation as and when these come forward.

No change.

Iain Martin
MSc CMILT

Somewhat
favour

51

Beverley
Tourle

Somewhat
favour

Noted

No change.

52

Diane Watling
(Local
resident)

Strongly
favour

Noted

No change.

53

Sarah Olney
(North
Kingston
Liberal
Democrats)

Strongly
oppose

Comments 1-3 noted.

Change. Page 33, para 5.
Text added: ‘The provision
of affordable homes on site
must comply with policies
set out in the London Plan
and the Local Plan’.

Please find below the response on behalf of
North Kingston Liberal Democrats. A 12 week
minimum period for consultation is accepted as
good practice by the Consultation Institute and
this should have been the case here –
particularly over the main holiday period. We
are concerned that not enough Local residents
will have had an opportunity to respond. We
object to the development brief for three
reasons: 1. Height and massing - proposing
nine and 12 storey buildings (which are likely to
be tested by developers seeking to maximise
profit) is unacceptable in this location - opposite
the listed former Gala bingo hall and in a site

1. The building heights contained in the Development
Brief are indicative, and will need to be tested at a
more detailed level following the receipt of a planning
application. The supporting commentary and
Development Form and Massing Principles set out
how the Council will assess any proposed
development to ensure that the proposed heights are
appropriate.

C150

50

2. The delivery of affordable housing will be controlled
on individual planning applications. The Council will
ensure any proposed development’s accordance with

59

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation

Yasmene
Davies (Local
resident)

Strongly
favour

the Core Strategy (including DM15, and the Affordable
Housing SPD).

1. This area is no doubt in need of huge
improvement for all - residential, educational,
commercial, public space. It must not however

1. Comment noted.

3. There is currently no envisaged need for a new
primary school on the site. The responsibility for
providing new schools now falls to the Education
Funding Agency (EFA). The EFA have successfully
gained planning consent for a new primary school in
Norbiton, which will help address need locally.

C151

54

that acts as a gateway to mainly two and three
storey residential neighbourhoods. 2. Lack of
affordable housing. We would like to see a very
clear commitment to a high proportion of
affordable housing on this site. The delivery of
affordable housing by this Conservative
administration to date has been woeful - only
229 out of 4,316 new housing units. This brief
offers an excellent opportunity to redress the
balance for local people struggling to get a
home of their own, and we would like to see
this commitment set out very clearly in the brief.
3. A new primary school? The local schools are
already completely full and catchment areas
continue to shrink. With yet more housing
proposed, the council urgently needs to
address school place provision in this part of
the borough. The Liberal Democrats had
originally proposed to convert the gas holders
site into a new school, but this plan was
cancelled by the Conservatives. With the lack
of any other feasible proposal for additional
places, it is time for the Conservatives to revisit
the original proposal, and the development brief
provides an excellent opportunity to take this
plan forward. To sum up, the development brief
needs to ensure that it is meeting the real
needs of North Kingston residents - both
present and future - and the two most pressing
needs currently are more affordable housing
and more school places. It would be a huge
wasted opportunity if the brief failed to address
these needs and instead delivered yet another
large scale private development - out of
keeping with the surrounding, cut off from the
community and providing nothing of any value
to residents. Sarah Olney Chair, North Kingston
Liberal Democrats Lib Dem Prospective
Parliamentary Candidate, Richmond Park and
North Kingston

No change.

60

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
become simply a local hang out for students,
with a high street aimed at cheap retail/food
shops. No one will want to live or spend time
there besides students if that becomes the
case. The target population for the flats, high
street and park should be aimed predominantly
at local families and professionals, as well as
students.

C152
61

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation

Question 2a & 2b - Do you support the overarching objectives for North Kingston?
ID Number

Respondent

Question
2a: Do you
support the
overarching
objectives
for North
Kingston?

1

Yvette
(Local resident)

2

Anthony Quinn
(Local resident)

3

John De'Ath
(Local resident)

Somewhat
oppose

4

Russell Pedley
(Local resident)

Strongly
favour

5

K. Mayer (Local
resident)

Strongly
oppose

6

Maurice Bentley
(Local resident)

7
8

Question 2b: Do you have any
comments?

Strongly
oppose

RBK Response

Document Update

No change.

Noted.

No change.

1. Comment noted.

No change.

Support noted.

No change.

1. Comment noted.

No change.

Strongly
favour

Support noted.

No change.

E John (Local
resident)

Somewhat
favour

Support noted.

No change.

Chris Kent
(Local resident)

Somewhat
favour

Support noted.

No change.

1. The Richmond Road shops are scruffy, as the
area is only few hundred metres from main
Kingston shops, it just attracts the tatty residue.
There is a supermarket one end of site so accept
that the shops aren't needed. Make it residential
or provide a decent car park for town centre
workers so you don't have to keep creeping the
residents zone boundaries as all it does is move
the all day Parkersburg, not encourage them to
take public transport

1. See section 1 for all my objections to the plan.

C153

Noted.

62

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
9

G T KNIGHT
(Local resident)

Strongly
favour

Support noted.

No change.

10

Carl Clarke
(Local resident)

Somewhat
favour

Support noted.

No change.

11

Steve Hollands
(Local resident)

Somewhat
favour

Support noted.

No change.

12

S Watson (Local
resident)

1. The Council’s policies seek to protect the
residential and other sensitive areas of the
borough from unwarranted traffic intrusion and
associated noise and environmental impacts.
Typical measures include traffic calming, banned
movements and restricted access to key areas.
Alterations to the main road network in the North
Kingston area will be tested against the need for
this type of protection to surrounding areas. The
overall traffic arrangements are being configured
to allow for local access while minimising potential
for longer distance traffic diverting into residential
streets.

No change.

1. In favour of development of area to improve
environment and public space- not in favour of
yet more residential spaces. Bringing more
residents in to this area will snarl up the roads
even more- these residents will have cars!! 2.
Biggest concern is the impact on schools in the
area- local primary schools at maximum- you
need to build the infrastructure to support the
increase in residential spaces- invest in more
(proper) primary schools.

C154

2. There is currently no envisaged need for a new
primary school on the site. The responsibility for
providing new schools now falls to the Education
Funding Agency (EFA). The EFA have
successfully gained planning consent for a new
primary school in Norbiton, which will help
address need locally.
13

Andrew Payne
(Local resident)

Somewhat
oppose

1. I really feel that improvements cannot be
made in the borough's air quality, when the
residential density keeps increasing, this is also
so as regards to noise.

1. The Council’s policies seek to protect the
residential and other sensitive areas of the
borough from unwarranted traffic intrusion and
associated noise and environmental impacts.
Typical measures include traffic calming, banned
movements and restricted access to key areas.
Alterations to the main road network in the North
Kingston area will be tested against the need for
this type of protection to surrounding areas. The
overall traffic arrangements are being configured
to allow for local access while minimising potential
for longer distance traffic diverting into residential
streets.

No change.

63

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
Matt Williams
(Local resident)

Strongly
favour

Support noted.

No change.

15

Rachel
Hapoienu (Local
resident)

Strongly
favour

Support noted.

No change.

16

Jessamy
Oldfield (Local
resident)

Somewhat
oppose

Noted.

No change.

17

Jonathan
rollason (Local
resident)

Strongly
favour

Support noted.

No change.

18

John Roscoe
(Local resident)

Strongly
favour

Support noted.

No change.

19

Rupert Moor
(Local resident)

Somewhat
favour

1. Comment noted. This brief is intended to
provide guidance and a long-term vision for the
area. Individual planning applications for specific
developers will be made available on our website
for public consultation as and when these come
forward.

No change.

20

Neil Fulk (Local
resident)

Strongly
favour

Support noted.

No change.

21

Richard
Williams (Local
resident)

Neutral

1. The Council’s policies seek to protect the
residential and other sensitive areas of the
borough from unwarranted traffic intrusion and
associated noise and environmental impacts.
Typical measures include traffic calming, banned
movements and restricted access to key areas.
Alterations to the main road network in the North
Kingston area will be tested against the need for
this type of protection to surrounding areas. The
overall traffic arrangements are being configured
to allow for local access while minimising potential
for longer distance traffic diverting into residential
streets.

No change.

1. More detail needed before further comment
can be made.

1. My main concern with the plan is the impact
on the area just outside the boundary: in
particular, Richmond Road between Sury Basin
and King's Road. This is already a busy and
dangerous stretch of road - particularly so during
the rush hour when children living in Canbury
ward cross Richmond Road to catch the
northbound number 65 bus. There is also
considerable pedestrian traffic associated with
the Sainsbury's supermarket. The alterations to
the road layout appear likely to funnel more
traffic down Sury Basin towards Richmond Road,
creating a busier left turn at the junction of Sury
Basin and Richmond Road. This will have a
direct impact on the pedestrian crossing used by
schoolchildren and shoppers. This stretch of

C155

14

64

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
Richmond Road is already very busy. Cars are
driven at high speed on the two-lane northbound
section of the road, before the traffic is funnelled
into a single lane after the King's Road junction.
Traffic calming measures are needed here, and I
believe this need will be increased if the North
Kingston plan is implemented. Measures could
include one or more of the following: (1)
narrowing the northbound section of the road by
introducing a bus and cycle lane; (2) speed
bumps and speed cameras; (3) an additional set
of traffic lights at the junction of Richmond Park
Road, breaking up the flow of traffic (under this
proposal, Richmond Park Road would become
one-way west to east, and King's Road one-way
east to west, between Richmond Road and
Burton Road).
John Pitts (Local
resident)

Somewhat
favour

Support noted.

No change.

23

Samantha
Murphy (Local
resident)

Neutral

Noted.

No change.

24

J Langridge
(Local resident)

Somewhat
favour

Noted.

No change.

25

Frances Noel
(Local resident)

Somewhat
favour

Support noted.

No change.

26

M Ellis (Local
resident)

Somewhat
favour

Support noted.

No change.

27

Chris Parry
(Local resident)

Somewhat
favour

Support noted.

No change.

28

C
Parkins-Godwin
(Local resident)

Strongly
favour

Support noted.

No change.

29

Pat Lally (Local
resident)

Somewhat
favour

1. Comment noted.

No change.

See above.

1. Need a wide variety of retail shops along
Richmond Road

C156

22

65

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
30

Anne (Local
resident)

Somewhat
favour

31

Simon Pain
(Local resident)

Neutral

32

Marilyn Mason
(Local resident)

Somewhat
favour

Alison Pope
(Local resident)

Somewhat
favour

34

J Sellars (Local
resident)

Somewhat
favour

35

Denise Fraser
(Local resident)

Somewhat
favour

No change.

1. why is it written so small?? didn't I just read
this document?

1. Comment noted. Admittedly the presentation of
this information on the online questionnaire was
small and illegible. This was intended for display
purposes only and links were provided to give full
access to the document. The Council has noted
this to avoid this issue in the future.

Quality of image has
been improved.

1. Affordable housing is vital as there is not
enough of this in Kingston, 2. and affordable
retail/business units designated to independent
traders and start-ups would help to give the area
its own character rather than allowing it to be
dominated by chain store and chain food outlet
branches, and supermarkets . Active movement
through the area and environmental
improvements sound promising - hope they are
enforced.

1. The delivery of affordable housing will be
controlled on individual planning applications. The
Council will ensure any proposed development’s
accordance with the Core Strategy (including
DM15, and the Affordable Housing SPD).

Change. Page 33,
para 5.
Text added: ‘The
provision of
affordable homes on
site must comply with
policies set out in the
London Plan and the
Local Plan’.

2. The development brief does not deal with
issues of commercial operation of landlords.
However, the brief will be fully compliant with the
London Plan which supports small and
medium-sized enterprises (SMEs).
Support noted.

No change.

1. Favour provided cycle routes are clearly
demarcated from pedestrian routes. Also that
present traffic flow arrangements along Gibbon
Road are maintained.

1. In accordance with the London Plan and
Council policies, the Council places significant
emphasis on the role of walking and cycling in the
future of movement in the Borough, and will
therefore continue to promote and extend these
uses in the North Kingston area and throughout
the Borough in order to facilitate a connected
network of safe walking and cycle routes.
Transport for London’s new Cycling Design
Standards (Dec 2014) advises that cyclists and
pedestrians should not be forced together where
there is space to keep them apart, creating
unnecessary conflict which can only increase as
the number of cyclists rises. Where possible and
appropriate the Council will introduce segregated
cycle lanes.

No change.

1. I do not believe that the proposals adequately
addresses the issues of noise and air quality as

1. The Council’s policies seek to protect the
residential and other sensitive areas of the

No change.

C157

33

Support noted.

66

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
per objective 6. If Seven Kings Way is opened to
two way traffic or becomes a main thoroughfare
then the noise would increase and the air quality
would decrease for the residents of Royal
Quarter.

borough from unwarranted traffic intrusion and
associated noise and environmental impacts.
Typical measures include traffic calming, banned
movements and restricted access to key areas.
Alterations to the main road network in the North
Kingston area will be tested against the need for
this type of protection to surrounding areas. The
overall traffic arrangements are being configured
to allow for local access while minimising potential
for longer distance traffic diverting into residential
streets.

Michael McGrail
(Local resident)

Strongly
favour

Support noted.

No change.

37

Robert Marshall
(Local resident)

Somewhat
favour

Noted.

No change.

38

Duncan Combe
(Local resident)

Neutral

Noted.

No change.

39

Mary Graham
(Local resident)

Neutral

1. The most important issue is truly affordable
housing for rent - it is becoming impossible for
people on the national minimum wage to find
housing in the borough and this needs to be
addressed

1. Comment noted. The delivery of affordable
housing will be controlled on individual planning
applications. The Council will ensure any
proposed development’s accordance with the
Core Strategy (including DM15, and the
Affordable Housing SPD).

Change. Page 33,
para 5.
Text added: ‘The
provision of
affordable homes on
site must comply with
policies set out in the
London Plan and the
Local Plan’.

40

Joanne
Melbourne
(Local resident)

Strongly
oppose

1. No - they are a load of flowery rubbish with no
substance or significance on what people require
or what this town needs - and it is not more high
rise and more traffic. What does "support
existing surrounding education use" mean -it's
subjective nonsense! More retail outlets
.....shops already closing down in rapid
succession in Kingston so why do we need
more? They will remain boarded up - there are
already many empty shops on Richmond Road NO MORE SHOPS GREED< DISREGARD AND
MORE GREED - that is what I see - sad day for
Kingston upon Thames

1. Comments noted. One of the development brief
objectives is to 'reinforce the identity of Richmond
Road as a local high street, with public open
space, diverse community facilities and
improvements to the retail'.

No change.

The brief seeks to support educational facilities in
the area such as Kingston College and the
Creative Industries Centre with the intention to
create a new mixed-used education quarter that
will contribute to Kingston's reputation for the
delivery of quality education.

67

C158

36

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
41

Jonathan
Rollason (Local
resident)

Neutral

1. The appropriate density for new developments
is set by the Greater London Authority (GLA)
through the London Plan. The North Kingston site
is defined as being Central, by nature of its
proximity to Kingston station and town centre (a
metropolitan centre). The North Kingston site also
benefits from PTAL (Public Transport Accessibility
Level) ranging from 6-4, with by far the majority of
the site being 6. Using the GLA density matrix the
expected density of development on the site
would be 215-405 dwellings per hectare.

No change.

The infrastructure needs of the Borough are
significantly greater than the funding likely to be
realised through CIL or planning obligations or a
combination of both. The Council will seek to
prioritise CIL use as a match or gap funding
source, linked to other infrastructure funding. As
part of the production of the Council’s new Local
Plan for the Borough, the Infrastructure Delivery
Plan will be reviewed. It is important to note that
growth in the Borough is set to continue and the
production of a new Local Plan and supporting
evidence studies is intended to strengthen the
Council’s position to maximise opportunities for
planned growth, including the provision of
adequate infrastructure. Without this, the
predicted growth will result in piecemeal
development that is unable to secure maximum
public benefits.

C159

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the
north Kingston development plan. I am
supportive but have two issues. 1. The first is the
density and the effect this will have on the quality
of life in the neighbourhood. The money
developers provide never covers the whole cost
of improvements needed and we have seen a
serious erosion of services. As an example it
now takes two weeks to see a Doctor for a
routine appointment. It used to take 3 days. I
would request the council adopts a target density
of 215 units per hectare to protect the borough.
2. The second is connected and is the height of
the tower on the council land. I understand the
council wants to maximise the income from the
site but surely not at any cost. The site is
surrounded by much smaller buildings on all
sides. A 12 storey building is simply too large
and we know developers will suggest 15
storey's. This will be followed by a huge fight and
they will eventually accept 12 storey's if that's is
what the plan says. The maximum height should
not exceed 9 storey's which would fit in with
adjacent buildings. Please amend the plan.

2. The building heights contained in the
Development Brief are indicative, and will need to
be tested at a more detailed level following the
receipt of a planning application. The supporting
commentary and Development Form and Massing
Principles set out how the Council will assess any
proposed development to ensure that the
proposed heights are appropriate.
42

Richard
Robinson (Local
resident)

Neutral

Noted.

No change.

68

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
43

Kingston
Cycling
Campaign (local
organisation)

Somewhat
favour

Noted.

No change.

44

Xxx xxx
(unknown)

Somewhat
favour

Noted.

No change.

45

Robert James
(Local resident)

Strongly
favour

1. The brief aims to establish an ‘improved’ High
Street by locating commercial, retail,
cafe/restaurant or leisure uses on the ground floor
on Richmond Road developments to strengthen
the draw of Richmond Road.

Change. Page 33,
para 5.
Text added: ‘The
provision of
affordable homes on
site must comply with
policies set out in the
London Plan and the
Local Plan’.

1. Hope that the identity of Richmond Road as a
shopping centre will remain different from the
town centre 2. Hope that the proportion of
affordable housing will be high and mix rented,
bought and shared equity properties. 3. A variety
of employment would be welcome, especially if it
aims to include a good proportion of high skill,
high income work for residents in Kingston's
expensive property. 4. Welcome the inclusion of
the improvement of air quality as an objective in
this heavily trafficked area.

2. The delivery of affordable housing will be
controlled on individual planning applications. The
Council will ensure any proposed development’s
accordance with the Core Strategy (including
DM15, and the Affordable Housing SPD).
Comment 3 noted.

46

Des McRow
(Local resident)

Strongly
favour

47

Sumit Thakur,
Chairman
(Royal Quarter
Residents
Association)

Strongly
favour

None

Noted.

No change.

Noted.

No change.

69

C160

4. The Council’s policies seek to protect the
residential and other sensitive areas of the
borough from unwarranted traffic intrusion and
associated noise and environmental impacts.
Typical measures include traffic calming, banned
movements and restricted access to key areas.
Alterations to the main road network in the North
Kingston area will be tested against the need for
this type of protection to surrounding areas. The
overall traffic arrangements are being configured
to allow for local access while minimising potential
for longer distance traffic diverting into residential
streets.

Change. Page 27,
para 2: wording
change from ‘A mixed
use model with
homes located above
commercial, retail or
leisure use is the
preferred option’ to ‘A
mixed use model with
homes located above
commercial, retail,
cafe/restaurant or
leisure use is the
preferred option’.

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
Sumit Thakur
(Local resident)

Strongly
favour

1. I fully accept and support the objectives but
just not the conversion of the Seven Kings Way
into a major road to feed traffic onto the
Richmond Road.

1. Support noted. The traffic study of the North
Kingston Development Area has found that the
proposed changes to the road network in the
North Kingston Development area will improve the
movement of traffic and associated safety. The
proposal to realign and widen Seven Kings Way
will allow for additional vehicle capacity with
associated safety improvements, and make it
easier for residents to turn left into the Royal
Quarter parking. A new left turn from Sopwith Way
into Richmond Road will provide a resilience route
for traffic moving northwards out of Kingston; it is
also intended that buses and heavy goods
vehicles will use this route to minimize disruption
to Local residents. Richmond Road will be
widened at its southern end to facilitate the
proposed left turn. These proposals will mitigate
the closure of Kingsgate Road onto Richmond
Road and address wider movement and network
capacity issues in the North Kingston area.

No change.

49

Shinjini Thakur
(Local resident)

Strongly
favour

1. I fully accept and support the objectives but
just not the conversion of the Seven Kings Way
into a major road to feed traffic onto the
Richmond Road.

1. Support noted. A traffic study of the North
Kingston Development Area has found that the
proposed changes to the road network in the
North Kingston Development area will improve the
movement of traffic and associated safety. The
proposal to realign and widen Seven Kings Way
will allow for additional vehicle capacity with
associated safety improvements, and make it
easier for residents to turn left into the Royal
Quarter parking. A new left turn from Sopwith Way
into Richmond Road will provide a resilience route
for traffic moving northwards out of Kingston; it is
also intended that buses and heavy goods
vehicles will use this route to minimize disruption
to Local residents. Richmond Road will be
widened at its southern end to facilitate the
proposed left turn. These proposals will mitigate
the closure of Kingsgate Road onto Richmond
Road and address wider movement and network
capacity issues in the North Kingston area

No change.

50

Iain Martin MSc
CMILT

Somewhat
favour

1. Objectives are too vague.

1. Comment noted

No change.

C161

48

70

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
51

Beverley Tourle

Somewhat
favour

52

Diane Watling
(Local resident)

Strongly
favour

53

Sarah Olney
(North Kingston
Liberal
Democrats)

Strongly
oppose

54

Yasmene
Davies (Local
resident)

Somewhat
favour

1. The council should consider affordable private
rental accommodation such as: The collective
Essential Living Y:Cube BedZed Zed factory - Z
Pod (good use of car parks) More Pocket
developments

No change.

1. Comment noted.

No change.

Noted.

No change.

Comments 1-3 noted.

Change. Page 27,
para 2: wording
change from ‘A mixed
use model with
homes located above
commercial, retail or
leisure use is the
preferred option’ to ‘A
mixed use model with
homes located above
commercial, retail,
cafe/restaurant or
leisure use is the
preferred option’.

2. There is currently no envisaged need for a new
primary school on the site. The responsibility for
providing new schools now falls to the Education
Funding Agency (EFA). The EFA have
successfully gained planning consent for a new
primary school in Norbiton, which will help
address need locally.
3. Regarding small/medium sized local business,
the development brief does not deal with issues of
commercial operation of landlords. However, the
brief will be fully compliant with the London Plan
which supports small and medium-sized
enterprises (SMEs). An Article 4 Direction was
introduced in October 2015 to mitigate against the
conversion of commercial land to residential use.

71

C162

1. For sure the area, including the Richmond
road retail units that will be the high street, needs
smartening up - 100%. Both structurally and in
the diversity of shops and services on offer.
'Improvements' to retail are definitely needed. At
the moment it is a rather grubby area that no one
wants to spend any time on. It is he kid of place
that people just pass by as quickly as possible.
Having said that it could easily be made into a
high street aimed at students - of course it would
be good to be inclusive of students needs but not
if it ends up being aimed at cheap food/retail
units and becomes a student hang out. it should
include and inspire all. 2. The development is
strongly in favour of intense residential
development but there is no cap on this and little
comment in the brief to state for sure how
increased demand for primary school places
locally will be met by this new influx of residents.
Does the Councils' School place planning
strategy 2013 - 2020 take into account the
number of residents who might increase from
this, and/or does this development take into
account the maximum number of school places
that will be available? The surrounding Royal
Quarters is dedicated to high rise flats which are
an eye sore and it would be a shame to carry on
this intensity of souless and imposing residential
development. 3. The vision points towards a
modern and flexible employment space but there

Noted.

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation

C163

is no clarification of what kind of space, or how
or where this is being done. Until the large land
parcel at 54 Kingsgate Road (now owned by
Investra) was demolished in January, there was
formerly a huge office facility on this land - this
was a much used service for local independent
businesses. Since the planning laws changed so
that commercial units could be developed into
residential units without permission, a huge
proportion of offices and commercial units have
been developed into residential units. This is a
massive constraint and challenge on local
business growth. It is becoming stifling for small
businesses to find work places in town centres,
where they need to be to do business with
clientele. I strongly agree that modern and
flexible employment space is needed, but this
does not seem to get much emphasis in the
brief. If this is supposed to be a mixed use area,
it is an opportunity to not only address residential
needs, but also redress the balance of
commercial needs. Do we really need so many
more flats in an area that has already been built
up so intensely with flats? Could we not look at
making it a really bustling and diverse area
which is more in balance for commercial / office
as well as residential and education?

72

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation

Question 3a

C164
73

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation

Question 3b - Do you have any comments?
ID Number

Respondent

Question 3b: Do you have any
comments?

RBK Response

Document Update

3

John De'Ath
(Local
resident)

1. Why not close Sopwith Way and make it
one big gyratory, you could get rid of those
signalised crossings from the area to the
station

1. Comment noted.

No change.

7

E John (Local
resident)

1. Street names should have been put on
the above map

1. Comment noted.

Change. Page 5, plan title
change from ‘Figure Ground
Plan showing large voids in the
urban fabric highlighting the
sites underutilisation’ to ‘Figure
Ground Plan 2015: the large
voids in the urban fabric display
the sites underutilisation’. Slight
amendment to Ground Plan.

Change. Page 8, Concept Plan:
Wording of ‘Proposed Quiet
Route’ changed to ‘Proposed
Cycle Route’.
Change. Page 10, Movement
and Access Plan:

74

C165

Change. Page 7, Plan showing
current land ownership
boundaries; Page 10, Movement
and Access Plan; Page 12,
Activity and Edges Plan; Page
14, Land Use Plan; Page 16,
Public Realm & Public Open
Space Plan; Page 18, Heights
Plan; Page 21, Development
Parcels; Page 22, Safeguarding
Plan; Page 24, Design
Framework Plan; Page 42, Lan
Ownership Plan.
Road names ‘Sury Basin’ and
‘Sopwith Way’ have been added
to plan.

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
‘Potential Dedicated Cycle
Route’ has been removed from
map.
Wording of ‘indicative Shared
Space Route’ has been
changed to ‘Shared Space Car
Park Access’.
Wording of ‘Indicative Quiet
Route’ has been changed to
‘Indicative Cycle Route’.
Indicative Cycle Route has been
aligned.
Change. Page 14, Land Use
Plan
Addition of wording ‘(including
A2/A3)’ after ‘retail’ on the 2nd
and 5th points of the key.

Change. Page 24, Design
Framework Plan:
Indicative Cycle Route has been
aligned.
Change. Page 24, Design
Framework Plan; Page 26,
Design Framework: Richmond
Road; Page 28, Framework
Plan: North South Linear Park;
Page 30, Framework Plan: East
West Linear Park; Page 34,
Surrounding Infrastructure;
Page 36, Humanise
Surrounding Streets
1) ‘Potential Cycle Only Route’

75

C166

Change. Page 18, Heights Plan:
Asterix removed from ‘Up to
maximum 12 storeys*’
Note at bottom of page
amended from ‘*Please note:
‘Storey’ heights are inclusive of
ground floor’ to ‘Please note: All
‘storey’ heights are inclusive of
ground floor’

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
removed from key
2) ‘Potential Shared Space Car
park Access’ changed to
‘Shared Space Car Park
Access’ on key.
3) ‘Proposed Quiet Way’
changed to ‘Indicative Cycle
Route’ on key.
4) ‘Pedestrian and Cycle Only
Route’ changed to ‘Indicative
Pedestrian and Cycle Route
Only’ on key.
S Watson
(Local
resident)

1. These road closures will not improve
1. The traffic study of the North Kingston Development Area has found No change.
traffic flow-envisage a future of traffic misery that the proposed changes to the road network in the North Kingston
Development area will improve the movement of traffic and associated
safety. The proposal to realign and widen Seven Kings Way will allow
for additional vehicle capacity with associated safety improvements,
and make it easier for residents to turn left into the Royal Quarter
parking. A new left turn from Sopwith Way into Richmond Road will
provide a resilience route for traffic moving northwards out of Kingston;
it is also intended that buses and heavy goods vehicles will use this
route to minimize disruption to Local residents. Richmond Road will be
widened at its southern end to facilitate the proposed left turn. These
proposals will mitigate the closure of Kingsgate Road onto Richmond
Road and address wider movement and network capacity issues in the
North Kingston area.

13

Andrew Payne
(Local
resident)

1. Air quality and noise will increase,also
feel that traffic problems could become far
worse in an area which has existing
congestion, and particularly the air quality of
the nearby existing residential area would be
adversely effected.

1. The Council’s policies seek to protect the residential and other
sensitive areas of the borough from unwarranted traffic intrusion and
associated noise and environmental impacts. Typical measures
include traffic calming, banned movements and restricted access to
key areas. Alterations to the main road network in the North Kingston
area will be tested against the need for this type of protection to
surrounding areas. The overall traffic arrangements are being
configured to allow for local access while minimising potential for
longer distance traffic diverting into residential streets.

No change.

15

Rachel
Hapoienu
(Local
resident)

1. How would such reconstruction work,
logistically? You would have to close at least
some of the lanes for weeks if not months,
exacerbating an already horrendous traffic
situation. 2. It sounds like these changes
would only make the traffic situation worse,
not better - for instance, though it is mildly
inconvenient that Richmond Road is only

1. Understandably there are concerns about the disruption caused
during construction phases, particularly of the road network in the
North Kingston area. The necessary mitigation measures will be in
place in order to minimise the impact to existing residents.

No change.

C167

12

2. The traffic study of the North Kingston Development Area has found
that the proposed changes to the road network in the North Kingston
Development area will improve the movement of traffic and associated

76

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation

17

Jonathan
rollason (Local
resident)

safety. The proposal to realign and widen Seven Kings Way will allow
for additional vehicle capacity with associated safety improvements,
and make it easier for residents to turn left into the Royal Quarter
parking. A new left turn from Sopwith Way into Richmond Road will
provide a resilience route for traffic moving northwards out of Kingston;
it is also intended that buses and heavy goods vehicles will use this
route to minimize disruption to Local residents. Richmond Road will be
widened at its southern end to facilitate the proposed left turn. These
proposals will mitigate the closure of Kingsgate Road onto Richmond
Road and address wider movement and network capacity issues in the
North Kingston area.

1. Concerned about traffic flows and where
traffic will back up during rush hours. Could
a tunnel be build rather than just closing
Kingsgate Road that would allow site
development? 2. Also concerned about road
safety with circle route crossing major road.

1. The traffic study of the North Kingston Development Area has found No change.
that the proposed changes to the road network in the North Kingston
Development area will improve the movement of traffic and associated
safety. The proposal to realign and widen Seven Kings Way will allow
for additional vehicle capacity with associated safety improvements,
and make it easier for residents to turn left into the Royal Quarter
parking. A new left turn from Sopwith Way into Richmond Road will
provide a resilience route for traffic moving northwards out of Kingston;
it is also intended that buses and heavy goods vehicles will use this
route to minimize disruption to Local residents. Richmond Road will be
widened at its southern end to facilitate the proposed left turn. These
proposals will mitigate the closure of Kingsgate Road onto Richmond
Road and address wider movement and network capacity issues in the
North Kingston area.

C168

way, it goes a long way toward helping ease
the traffic congestion in this area. To make it
two-way would attract more cars and more
traffic.

2. The Council’s policies seek to protect the residential and other
sensitive areas of the borough from unwarranted traffic intrusion and
associated noise and environmental impacts. Typical measures
include traffic calming, banned movements and restricted access to
key areas. Alterations to the main road network in the North Kingston
area will be tested against the need for this type of protection to
surrounding areas. The overall traffic arrangements are being
configured to allow for local access while minimising potential for
longer distance traffic diverting into residential streets.
18

John Roscoe
(Local
resident)

1. With the river to one side, there are
limited ways to get from north Kingston
south to the M3, etc. Already richmond road
jams, so I'm not sure how the changes will
help this. I don't believe much of the traffic
could change to cycle or pedestrians, since
surely people already walk if they can given
the traffic and parking difficulties.

1. The traffic study of the North Kingston Development Area has found No change.
that the proposed changes to the road network in the North Kingston
Development area will improve the movement of traffic and associated
safety. The proposal to realign and widen Seven Kings Way will allow
for additional vehicle capacity with associated safety improvements,
and make it easier for residents to turn left into the Royal Quarter
parking. A new left turn from Sopwith Way into Richmond Road will
provide a resilience route for traffic moving northwards out of Kingston;
it is also intended that buses and heavy goods vehicles will use this

77

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
route to minimize disruption to Local residents. Richmond Road will be
widened at its southern end to facilitate the proposed left turn. These
proposals will mitigate the closure of Kingsgate Road onto Richmond
Road and address wider movement and network capacity issues in the
North Kingston area.
The Council’s transport policies give priority to pedestrian and cycle
movement. There is a consistent approach across all areas of the
borough including North Kingston. The aim is to encourage the
greatest possible use of these modes by making new development
fully accessible to these users.
Rupert Moor
(Local
resident)

1. The road layout is fine, but consider
1. Comment noted.
adding (and maintaining) more trees and
shrubs, closing Seven Kings Way at junction
with A307, and making it access only from
Sury Basin.

No change.

21

Richard
Williams
(Local
resident)

1. My main concern with the plan is the
impact on the area just outside the
boundary: in particular, Richmond Road
between Sury Basin and King's Road. This
is already a busy and dangerous stretch of
road - particularly so during the rush hour
when children living in Canbury ward cross
Richmond Road to catch the northbound
number 65 bus. There is also considerable
pedestrian traffic associated with the
Sainsbury's supermarket. The alterations to
the road layout appear likely to funnel more
traffic down Sury Basin towards Richmond
Road, creating a busier left turn at the
junction of Sury Basin and Richmond Road.
This will have a direct impact on the
pedestrian crossing used by schoolchildren
and shoppers. This stretch of Richmond
Road is already very busy. Cars are driven
at high speed on the two-lane northbound
section of the road, before the traffic is
funnelled into a single lane after the King's
Road junction. Traffic calming measures are
needed here, and I believe this need will be
increased if the North Kingston plan is
implemented. Measures could include one
or more of the following: (1) narrowing the
northbound section of the road by

No change.

1. The Council’s policies seek to protect the residential and other
sensitive areas of the borough from unwarranted traffic intrusion and
associated noise and environmental impacts. Typical measures
include traffic calming, banned movements and restricted access to
key areas. Alterations to the main road network in the North Kingston
area will be tested against the need for this type of protection to
surrounding areas. The overall traffic arrangements are being
configured to allow for local access while minimising potential for
longer distance traffic diverting into residential streets.

C169

19

2. It is the long-term ambition of the Council to implement a left turn
from Sopwith Way onto Richmond Road to further ease traffic in this
area. This is subject to land ownership issues. Page 22 of the brief
identifies safeguarding methods the Council will employ to help deliver
this in the future.

78

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
introducing a bus and cycle lane; (2) speed
bumps and speed cameras; (3) an additional
set of traffic lights at the junction of
Richmond Park Road, breaking up the flow
of traffic (under this proposal, Richmond
Park Road would become one-way west to
east, and King's Road one-way east to west,
between Richmond Road and Burton Road).
2. I also believe it will be very difficult to
introduce a left turn into Richmond Road
from Sopwith Way and to make the stretch
of Richmond Road between Sopwith Way
and Richmond College two-way without
disrupting pedestrian and cycle traffic.
23

Samantha
Murphy (Local
resident)

Comments 1-3 noted.

No change.

1.The Council’s policies seek to protect the residential and other
sensitive areas of the borough from unwarranted traffic intrusion and
associated noise and environmental impacts. Typical measures
include traffic calming, banned movements and restricted access to
key areas. Alterations to the main road network in the North Kingston
area will be tested against the need for this type of protection to
surrounding areas. The overall traffic arrangements are being
configured to allow for local access while minimising potential for
longer distance traffic diverting into residential streets.

C170

1. As my comments earlier, I am concerned
about the air quality impacts of having all
vehicles going past properties on Seven
Kings Way. 2. I am concerned about if a
vehicle breaks down on Seven Kings Way
there is no contingency for vehicles getting
through & this causing back up on to the
Loop I am concerned there is inadequate
turning space for buses/ HGVs using Seven
Kings Way I am concerned about signage
on the road on Seven Kings Way & request
this be carefully thought about. 3. I am
concerned about the increased level of
traffic on Seven Kings Way & Sury Basin
given the new housing and hotel
development. I do not understand how
cyclists will get to the centre pink coloured
route from the Loop and Sury Basin and
whether this would mean that there would
be a need for more pelican crossings
causing more driver delay. I am concerned
that narrowing the Richmond Road to 17m
should still include a dedicated bus lane & a
lane for other traffic.

2. The revised highway arrangements in North Kingston build in an
element of resilience to allow for incidents such as a broken down
vehicle blocking the road.
3. A traffic study of the North Kingston Development Area has found
that the proposed changes to the road network in the North Kingston
Development area will improve the movement of traffic and associated
safety. The proposal to realign and widen Seven Kings Way will allow
for additional vehicle capacity with associated safety improvements,
and make it easier for residents to turn left into the Royal Quarter
parking. A new left turn from Sopwith Way into Richmond Road will
provide a resilience route for traffic moving northwards out of Kingston;
it is also intended that buses and heavy goods vehicles will use this
route to minimize disruption to local residents. Richmond Road will be
widened at its southern end to facilitate the proposed left turn. These
proposals will mitigate the closure of Kingsgate Road onto Richmond
Road and address wider movement and network capacity issues in the
North Kingston area.

79

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
24

J Langridge
(Local
resident)

1. I would be concerned with traffic
congestion on Richmond Road especially
heading toward the town centre, currently
Richmond Rd suffers badly from jams at
rush hour and when the schools are
finishing (often backing up to the schools
themselves) this is likely to get even worse
now that there is an extra school sited there.
Although it is only a small section that is
currently one way before Sopwith Way it
does help to free up traffic flow a little, if the
proposal is to make this section 2 way
without widening the road to 3 lanes, I think
this will be a bad idea. I do very much
approve of the proposed 2 way cycle lane
along Richmond Rd from the station to Sury
Basin, something that is much needed.

1. The plans for the area include the widening of Richmond Road to
accommodate two way traffic at its southern end and the left turn from
Sopwith Way into Richmond Road. The road will also be upgraded to
accommodate the requirements of both pedestrians and cyclists in a
safe manner, and ensure access to shops and other ground floor
uses. The revised arrangements have been modelled to ensure their
adequate operation.

No change.

The traffic study of the North Kingston Development Area has found
that the proposed changes to the road network in the North Kingston
Development area will improve the movement of traffic and associated
safety. The proposal to realign and widen Seven Kings Way will allow
for additional vehicle capacity with associated safety improvements,
and make it easier for residents to turn left into the Royal Quarter
parking. A new left turn from Sopwith Way into Richmond Road will
provide a resilience route for traffic moving northwards out of Kingston;
it is also intended that buses and heavy goods vehicles will use this
route to minimize disruption to local residents. Richmond Road will be
widened at its southern end to facilitate the proposed left turn. These
proposals will mitigate the closure of Kingsgate Road onto Richmond
Road and address wider movement and network capacity issues in the
North Kingston area.

Frances Noel
(Local
resident)

1. This area needs detailed consideration
and modelling. I do not agree with bringing
high volume of traffic round Seven Kings car
park with more congestion encroaching
further into North Kingston.

1. The traffic study of the North Kingston Development Area has found No change.
that the proposed changes to the road network in the North Kingston
Development area will improve the movement of traffic and associated
safety. The proposal to realign and widen Seven Kings Way will allow
for additional vehicle capacity with associated safety improvements,
and make it easier for residents to turn left into the Royal Quarter
parking. A new left turn from Sopwith Way into Richmond Road will
provide a resilience route for traffic moving northwards out of Kingston;
it is also intended that buses and heavy goods vehicles will use this
route to minimize disruption to Local residents. Richmond Road will be
widened at its southern end to facilitate the proposed left turn. These
proposals will mitigate the closure of Kingsgate Road onto Richmond
Road and address wider movement and network capacity issues in the
North Kingston area.

26

M Ellis (Local
resident)

1. From a personal perspective, it would be
helpful if vehicle travel times from North
Kingston through central Kingston and out
again were not increased due to these
changes.

1. Comment noted.

27

Chris Parry
(Local

1. Closure of roads causes the re-routing of
traffic. this is all very well if the balance and

1. The traffic study of the North Kingston Development Area has found No change.
that the proposed changes to the road network in the North Kingston

C171

25

No change.

80

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
resident)

Anne (Local
resident)

Development area will improve the movement of traffic and associated
safety. The proposal to realign and widen Seven Kings Way will allow
for additional vehicle capacity with associated safety improvements,
and make it easier for residents to turn left into the Royal Quarter
parking. A new left turn from Sopwith Way into Richmond Road will
provide a resilience route for traffic moving northwards out of Kingston;
it is also intended that buses and heavy goods vehicles will use this
route to minimize disruption to Local residents. Richmond Road will be
widened at its southern end to facilitate the proposed left turn. These
proposals will mitigate the closure of Kingsgate Road onto Richmond
Road and address wider movement and network capacity issues in the
North Kingston area.

1. Not the clearest of maps. Word have
helped with a few main roads marked.

1. Comment noted.

The remodelling and upgrading of the road network in the North
Kingston Development Brief include new/improved crossings for
cyclists and pedestrians at key locations to allow the safe passage of
these road users.
In accordance with the London Plan and Council policies, the Council
places significant emphasis on the role of walking and cycling in the
future of movement in the Borough, and will therefore continue to
promote and extend these uses in the North Kingston area and
throughout the Borough in order to facilitate a connected network of
safe walking and cycle routes.

C172

30

ease of passage through the area is
maintained for all road users. There's
opportunity to ensure that the new junctions
are sufficiently large to accommodate
with-flow pedestrian and cycle facilities.
What we don't want is another all red
pedestrian crossing phase at the junction of
Seven Kings Way and Sury Basin, or again
the junction of Sury Basin and Richmond
Rd, if it is being remodelled. Again if
Richmond Rd is being made two way ( I
would imagine mainly for local access and
buses) it is essential that three full lanes fed
by two standard lane of 3.5metre are offered
southbound. No per all red at the junction
either. This will ensure North Kingston
residents retain their ability to get south and
west through Kingston by road. The
southbound bus lane is effectively obsolete
in normal peak period conditions, because
the flow southbound is constrained by the
poor layout (lack of two good queuing lanes
) at the junction of Richmond Rd and Kings
road. Providing the bus lane is removed
between Sury Basin and Sopwith Way then
the planned changes should in the
development brief should work.

Change. Page 5, plan title
change from ‘Figure Ground
Plan showing large voids in the
urban fabric highlighting the
sites underutilisation’ to ‘Figure
Ground Plan 2015: the large
voids in the urban fabric display
the sites underutilisation’. Slight
amendment to Ground Plan.
Change. Page 7, Plan showing
current land ownership
boundaries; Page 10, Movement
and Access Plan; Page 12,
Activity and Edges Plan; Page
14, Land Use Plan; Page 16,
Public Realm & Public Open

81

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
Space Plan; Page 18, Heights
Plan; Page 21, Development
Parcels; Page 22, Safeguarding
Plan; Page 24, Design
Framework Plan; Page 42, Lan
Ownership Plan.
Road names ‘Sury Basin’ and
‘Sopwith Way’ have been added
to plan.
Change. Page 8, Concept Plan:
Wording of ‘Proposed Quiet
Route’ changed to ‘Proposed
Cycle Route’.

Change. Page 14, Land Use
Plan
Addition of wording ‘(including
A2/A3)’ after ‘retail’ on the 2nd
and 5th points of the key.
Change. Page 18, Heights Plan:
Asterix removed from ‘Up to
maximum 12 storeys*’
Note at bottom of page
amended from ‘*Please note:
‘Storey’ heights are inclusive of
ground floor’ to ‘Please note: All
‘storey’ heights are inclusive of
ground floor’

82

C173

Change. Page 10, Movement
and Access Plan:
‘Potential Dedicated Cycle
Route’ has been removed from
map.
Wording of ‘indicative Shared
Space Route’ has been
changed to ‘Shared Space Car
Park Access’.
Wording of ‘Indicative Quiet
Route’ has been changed to
‘Indicative Cycle Route’.
Indicative Cycle Route has been
aligned.

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
Change. Page 24, Design
Framework Plan:
Indicative Cycle Route has been
aligned.

31

Simon Pain
(Local
resident)

1. how am I supposed to form a view based
on this map? I can't even tell where it is. It
could be anywhere.

1. Comment noted.

Change. Page 5, plan title
change from ‘Figure Ground
Plan showing large voids in the
urban fabric highlighting the
sites underutilisation’ to ‘Figure
Ground Plan 2015: the large
voids in the urban fabric display
the sites underutilisation’. Slight
amendment to Ground Plan.
Change. Page 7, Plan showing
current land ownership
boundaries; Page 10, Movement
and Access Plan; Page 12,
Activity and Edges Plan; Page

83

C174

Change. Page 24, Design
Framework Plan; Page 26,
Design Framework: Richmond
Road; Page 28, Framework
Plan: North South Linear Park;
Page 30, Framework Plan: East
West Linear Park; Page 34,
Surrounding Infrastructure;
Page 36, Humanise
Surrounding Streets
1) ‘Potential Cycle Only Route’
removed from key
2) ‘Potential Shared Space Car
park Access’ changed to
‘Shared Space Car Park
Access’ on key.
3) ‘Proposed Quiet Way’
changed to ‘Indicative Cycle
Route’ on key.
4) ‘Pedestrian and Cycle Only
Route’ changed to ‘Indicative
Pedestrian and Cycle Route
Only’ on key.

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
14, Land Use Plan; Page 16,
Public Realm & Public Open
Space Plan; Page 18, Heights
Plan; Page 21, Development
Parcels; Page 22, Safeguarding
Plan; Page 24, Design
Framework Plan; Page 42, Lan
Ownership Plan.
Road names ‘Sury Basin’ and
‘Sopwith Way’ have been added
to plan.
Change. Page 8, Concept Plan:
Wording of ‘Proposed Quiet
Route’ changed to ‘Proposed
Cycle Route’.

Change. Page 14, Land Use
Plan
Addition of wording ‘(including
A2/A3)’ after ‘retail’ on the 2nd
and 5th points of the key.
Change. Page 18, Heights Plan:
Asterix removed from ‘Up to
maximum 12 storeys*’
Note at bottom of page
amended from ‘*Please note:
‘Storey’ heights are inclusive of
ground floor’ to ‘Please note: All

84

C175

Change. Page 10, Movement
and Access Plan:
‘Potential Dedicated Cycle
Route’ has been removed from
map.
Wording of ‘indicative Shared
Space Route’ has been
changed to ‘Shared Space Car
Park Access’.
Wording of ‘Indicative Quiet
Route’ has been changed to
‘Indicative Cycle Route’.
Indicative Cycle Route has been
aligned.

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
‘storey’ heights are inclusive of
ground floor’
Change. Page 24, Design
Framework Plan:
Indicative Cycle Route has been
aligned.

32

Marilyn Mason
(Local
resident)

1. Enhancing and increasing pedestrian and 1. Support noted.
cycling connections N-S and E-W is a good
idea, and should include bridges over busy
roads.

No change.

34

J Sellars
(Local
resident)

1. As previous

1. See Response to Question 2.

No change.

35

Denise Fraser
(Local
resident)

1. The detrimental effect that the widening
and realignment of Seven Kings Way would
have on the residents of Royal Quarter has
not been given enough consideration and
needs to be re-considered.

1. The Council’s policies seek to protect the residential and other
sensitive areas of the borough from unwarranted traffic intrusion and
associated noise and environmental impacts. Typical measures
include traffic calming, banned movements and restricted access to
key areas. Alterations to the main road network in the North Kingston

No change.

85

C176

Change. Page 24, Design
Framework Plan; Page 26,
Design Framework: Richmond
Road; Page 28, Framework
Plan: North South Linear Park;
Page 30, Framework Plan: East
West Linear Park; Page 34,
Surrounding Infrastructure;
Page 36, Humanise
Surrounding Streets
1) ‘Potential Cycle Only Route’
removed from key
2) ‘Potential Shared Space Car
park Access’ changed to
‘Shared Space Car Park
Access’ on key.
3) ‘Proposed Quiet Way’
changed to ‘Indicative Cycle
Route’ on key.
4) ‘Pedestrian and Cycle Only
Route’ changed to ‘Indicative
Pedestrian and Cycle Route
Only’ on key.

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
area will be tested against the need for this type of protection to
surrounding areas. The overall traffic arrangements are being
configured to allow for local access while minimising potential for
longer distance traffic diverting into residential streets.
38

Duncan
Combe (Local
resident)

1. Severn Kings Way is already a race track
and busy thoroughfare. Any works will have
to dramatically slow traffic speeds in this
area and prioritise pedestrian
movement/crossing. I am not in favour of
closing Kingsgate Road as this is a more
logical exit route to Richmond. If this road
were to be closed, it Is essential to have a
left turn from Sopwith Way onto Richmond
Road to avoid future gridlock. As an
example, during the Nov/Dec Christmas
shopping period, traffic is already backed up
on to the one way system from Seven Kings
Road and this must be able to disperse
more easily to supper better vehicle flows.

1.TheA traffic study of the North Kingston Development Area has
found that the proposed changes to the road network in the North
Kingston Development area will improve the movement of traffic and
associated safety. The proposal to realign and widen Seven Kings
Way will allow for additional vehicle capacity with associated safety
improvements, and make it easier for residents to turn left into the
Royal Quarter parking. A new left turn from Sopwith Way into
Richmond Road will provide a resilience route for traffic moving
northwards out of Kingston; it is also intended that buses and heavy
goods vehicles will use this route to minimize disruption to Local
residents. Richmond Road will be widened at its southern end to
facilitate the proposed left turn. These proposals will mitigate the
closure of Kingsgate Road onto Richmond Road and address wider
movement and network capacity issues in the North Kingston area.

39

Mary Graham
(Local
resident)

1. I can’t understand how making Richmond
Road two way is going to improve traffic flow
- the worst pollution comes from idling cars.
2. Also you have just completely closed
Thameside to through traffic and the only
sensible way to access our homes at the
end of Downhall Road is by way of Seven
Kings Way and then turn left and left again we did not receive written notification of
these changes and now have to explain to
delivery drivers how to gain access - how
will we access Downhall Road (where a new
4 star hotel is just about to open) whilst this
is taking place?

1. The plans for the area include the widening of Richmond Road to
No change.
accommodate two way traffic at its southern end and the left turn from
Sopwith Way into Richmond Road. The road will also be upgraded to
accommodate the requirements of both pedestrians and cyclists in a
safe manner, and ensure access to shops and other ground floor
uses. The revised arrangements have been modelled to ensure their
adequate operation. A traffic study of the North Kingston Development
Area has found that the proposed changes to the road network in the
North Kingston Development area will improve the movement of traffic
and associated safety.

1. YOU HAVE NOT THOUGHT THIS
THROUGH - YOUR APPROACH SEEMS
TO BE 'LET'S JUST CLOSE OUR EYES
AND HOPE IT GOES AWAY'.....BUILDING
ALL THESE FLATS WILL INCREASE
VEHICLES AND CONGESTION IN THE
AREA. THIS IS NOT GOING TO WORK
YOU ARE GOING TO CAUSE CHAOS! T
There is no room in this area for more roads

1. Comments noted. A traffic study of the North Kingston Development No change.
Area has found that the proposed changes to the road network in the
North Kingston Development area will improve the movement of traffic
and associated safety. The proposal to realign and widen Seven Kings
Way will allow for additional vehicle capacity with associated safety
improvements, and make it easier for residents to turn left into the
Royal Quarter parking. A new left turn from Sopwith Way into
Richmond Road will provide a resilience route for traffic moving
northwards out of Kingston; it is also intended that buses and heavy

Joanne
Melbourne
(Local
resident)

C177

40

No change.

2. While the Council appreciates that construction phases of projects
of this nature can be frustrating, especially for Local residents, the
Council will work with developers and partners to do all they can to
minimise disruption.

86

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
- plus Richmond Road passes through
Petersham where there is terrible road
congestion already and traffic jams
constantly along Richmond Road from Ham
to Kingston. NO! NO! NO!
41

Jonathan
Rollason
(Local
resident)

1. The appropriate density for new developments is set by the
Greater London Authority (GLA) through the London Plan. The North
Kingston site is defined as being Central, by nature of its proximity to
Kingston station and town centre (a metropolitan centre). The North
Kingston site also benefits from PTAL (Public Transport Accessibility
Level) ranging from 6-4, with by far the majority of the site being 6.
Using the GLA density matrix the expected density of development
on the site would be 215-405 dwellings per hectare.

No change.

The infrastructure needs of the Borough are significantly greater than
the funding likely to be realised through CIL or planning obligations
or a combination of both. The Council will seek to prioritise CIL use
as a match or gap funding source, linked to other infrastructure
funding. As part of the production of the Council’s new Local Plan for
the Borough, the Infrastructure Delivery Plan will be reviewed. It is
important to note that growth in the Borough is set to continue and
the production of a new Local Plan and supporting evidence studies
is intended to strengthen the Council’s position to maximise
opportunities for planned growth, including the provision of adequate
infrastructure. Without this, the predicted growth will result in
piecemeal development that is unable to secure maximum public
benefits.

C178

Thank you for the opportunity to comment
on the north Kingston development plan. I
am supportive but have two issues. 1. The
first is the density and the effect this will
have on the quality of life in the
neighbourhood. The money developers
provide never covers the whole cost of
improvements needed and we have seen a
serious erosion of services. As an example
it now takes two weeks to see a Doctor for
a routine appointment. It used to take 3
days. I would request the council adopts a
target density of 215 units per hectare to
protect the borough. 2. The second is
connected and is the height of the tower on
the council land. I understand the council
wants to maximise the income from the
site but surely not at any cost. The site is
surrounded by much smaller buildings on
all sides. A 12 storey building is simply too
large and we know developers will suggest
15 storey's. This will be followed by a huge
fight and they will eventually accept 12
storey's if that's is what the plan says. The
maximum height should not exceed 9
storey's which would fit in with adjacent
buildings. Please amend the plan.

goods vehicles will use this route to minimize disruption to Local
residents. Richmond Road will be widened at its southern end to
facilitate the proposed left turn. These proposals will mitigate the
closure of Kingsgate Road onto Richmond Road and address wider
movement and network capacity issues in the North Kingston area.

2. The building heights contained in the Development Brief are
indicative, and will need to be tested at a more detailed level
following the receipt of a planning application. The supporting
commentary and Development Form and Massing Principles set out
how the Council will assess any proposed development to ensure
that the proposed heights are appropriate.

43

Kingston
Cycling
Campaign
(local
organisation)

1. A separated cycle facility is needed on
Sury Basin where people can cycle
separately from traffic. Access to
Sainsbury's and the gym are needed. A
Toucan crossing facility is needed between
Gibbon Road and Sury Basin.

1. Comment noted. In accordance with the London Plan and Council
No change.
policies, the Council places significant emphasis on the role of walking
and cycling in the future of movement in the Borough, and will
therefore continue to promote and extend these uses in the North
Kingston area and throughout the Borough in order to facilitate a
connected network of safe walking and cycle routes.

44

Xxx xxx
(unknown)

1. The one way system is so awful to
navigate and traffic is a reason that many
people site for actively avoiding visiting

1. The traffic study of the North Kingston Development Area has found No change.
that the proposed changes to the road network in the North Kingston
Development area will improve the movement of traffic and associated

87

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
Kingston. It seems closing a road will force
people travelling towards Richmond Rd to
spend longer on the one way system. I
would suggest routing traffic away from the
one way system would be a better idea. 2.
Great to create separate cycle lanes,
however it's no use of cycles don't use them.
On the current cycle lanes there are always
cyclists who opt not to use them as they find
the roads quicker. It adds to traffic
congestion and increases risk for cyclists.
Suggest some policing of cycle lanes.

safety. The proposal to realign and widen Seven Kings Way will allow
for additional vehicle capacity with associated safety improvements,
and make it easier for residents to turn left into the Royal Quarter
parking. A new left turn from Sopwith Way into Richmond Road will
provide a resilience route for traffic moving northwards out of Kingston;
it is also intended that buses and heavy goods vehicles will use this
route to minimize disruption to Local residents. Richmond Road will be
widened at its southern end to facilitate the proposed left turn. These
proposals will mitigate the closure of Kingsgate Road onto Richmond
Road and address wider movement and network capacity issues in the
North Kingston area.

45

Robert James
(Local
resident)

1. Welcome emphasising and prioritising
pedestrian and cycling connections and
routes. Hope that attention will be paid to
connections with routes to and from the
development area: ~ Crossing Richmond
Road-Acre Road ~ Provision for 2-way
cycling in Acre Road ~ Crossing Richmond
Road to existing cycle route on Canbury
Park Road both from development area and
from cycle route from station and Go Cycling
station plaza. ~ Making Canbury Passage
cyclable as part of the proposed quiet route.

46

Des McRow
(Local
resident)

1. The proposals for Seven Kings Way and 1. See response to Question 7
its relationship with Sopwith Way makes
very little sense . This matter is covered in
greater depth in my response to Question 7.

No change.

47

Sumit Thakur,
Chairman
(Royal Quarter
Residents

1. The proposals for Seven Kings Way and
its relationship with Sopwith Way makes
very little sense . This matter is covered in
greater depth in our response to Question 7

No change.

C179

2. In accordance with the London Plan and Council policies, the
Council places significant emphasis on the role of walking and cycling
in the future of movement in the Borough, and will therefore continue
to promote and extend these uses in the North Kingston area and
throughout the Borough in order to facilitate a connected network of
safe walking and cycle routes. Transport for London’s new Cycling
Design Standards (Dec 2014) advises that cyclists and pedestrians
should not be forced together where there is space to keep them
apart, creating unnecessary conflict which can only increase as the
number of cyclists rises. Where possible and appropriate the Council
will introduce segregated cycle lanes.
1. Support noted. In accordance with the London Plan and Council
No change.
policies, the Council places significant emphasis on the role of walking
and cycling in the future of movement in the Borough, and will
therefore continue to promote and extend these uses in the North
Kingston area and throughout the Borough in order to facilitate a
connected network of safe walking and cycle routes. Transport for
London’s new Cycling Design Standards (Dec 2014) advises that
cyclists and pedestrians should not be forced together where there is
space to keep them apart, creating unnecessary conflict which can
only increase as the number of cyclists rises. Where possible and
appropriate the Council will introduce segregated cycle lanes.

1. See response to Question 7

88

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
Association)
48

Sumit Thakur
(Local
resident)

1. The proposals for Seven Kings Way and
its relationship with Sopwith Way makes
very little sense. I strongly oppose widening
and realignment of the Seven Kings Way.

1. The traffic study of the North Kingston Development Area has found No change.
that the proposed changes to the road network in the North Kingston
Development area will improve the movement of traffic and associated
safety. The proposal to realign and widen Seven Kings Way will allow
for additional vehicle capacity with associated safety improvements,
and make it easier for residents to turn left into the Royal Quarter
parking. In addition to the changes being made to Sury Basin,
Richmond Road, and Sopwith Way, these proposals will mitigate the
closure of Kingsgate Road onto Richmond Road and address wider
movement and network capacity issues in the North Kingston area.
The Council’s policies seek to protect the residential and other
sensitive areas of the borough from unwarranted traffic intrusion and
associated noise and environmental impacts. Typical measures
include traffic calming, banned movements and restricted access to
key areas. Alterations to the main road network in the North Kingston
area will be tested against the need for this type of protection to
surrounding areas. The overall traffic arrangements are being
configured to allow for local access while minimising potential for
longer distance traffic diverting into residential streets.

Shinjini Thakur 1. The proposals for Seven Kings Way and
its relationship with Sopwith Way makes
(Local
very little sense. I strongly oppose widening
resident)
and realignment of the Seven Kings Way.

1. The traffic study of the North Kingston Development Area has found No change.
that the proposed changes to the road network in the North Kingston
Development area will improve the movement of traffic and associated
safety. The proposal to realign and widen Seven Kings Way will allow
for additional vehicle capacity with associated safety improvements,
and make it easier for residents to turn left into the Royal Quarter
parking. In addition to the changes being amde to Sury Basin,
Richmond Road, and Sopwith Way, these proposals will mitigate the
closure of Kingsgate Road onto Richmond Road and address wider
movement and network capacity issues in the North Kingston area.

C180

49

The Council’s policies seek to protect the residential and other
sensitive areas of the borough from unwarranted traffic intrusion and
associated noise and environmental impacts. Typical measures
include traffic calming, banned movements and restricted access to
key areas. Alterations to the main road network in the North Kingston
area will be tested against the need for this type of protection to
surrounding areas. The overall traffic arrangements are being
configured to allow for local access while minimising potential for
longer distance traffic diverting into residential streets.
50

Iain Martin

1. The proposals are too dependent on the
introduction of Crossrail 2 which is not yet

Comments 1-8 noted.

No change.

89

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
MSc CMILT

52

Diane Watling
(Local
resident)

fully committed. 2. The 20mph speed limit
on the Inner Ring Road gyratory system is
unrealistic. 3. There is insufficient provision
for road traffic including buses on the radial
routes. 4. The design of road junctions will
be critical to the smooth flow of traffic. 5.
More consultation is needed on the specific
proposals as it is too dependent on so-called
public transport hubs. 6. The new Seven
Kings Way route needs to be better defined.
7. Kingston is in danger of ceasing to be an
attractive location in South West London if
traffic congestion and accessibility are
compromised by new development.

1. The Council will actively plan for the arrival of Crossrail 2, although
new growth in Kingston is not dependant on its delivery.

1. I fully appreciate how the closure of
Kingsgate Road can be of benefit to the site,
but further modelling of traffic options needs
to be carefully considered both in terms of
overall traffic movement benefit and
pollution mitigation. I am concerned that the
proposed widening of Seven Kings Way will
make pedestrian and cyclist movement from
East<>West difficult and dangerous across
Seven Kings Way at a time when the council
should be encouraging the use of this Quiet
Route. A balance of traffic flow Northbound
down both Seven Kings Way and Sopwith
Way is essential. It is essential that
pedestrian and cyclist movement across
Seven Kings Way is safely prioritised. The
Left turn from Sopwith Way into Richmond
Road is a good idea, but I understand that
an interim measure along Walter Street will
be necessary prior to the redevelopment of
the Richmond Road frontage. A direct route
for resident’s cars to access the
Queenshurst and Royal Quarter
developments via Sury Basin when
approaching from the North would make a
lot of sense. Currently, cars can only access
Seven Kings Way from the South via the
Kingston one-way system, adding to the
pollution currently experienced in the town
centre. 2. Pedestrians and cyclists must be

1. The traffic study of the North Kingston Development Area has
found that the proposed changes to the road network in the North
Kingston Development area will improve the movement of traffic and
associated safety. The proposal to realign and widen Seven Kings
Way will allow for additional vehicle capacity with associated safety
improvements, and make it easier for residents to turn left into the
Royal Quarter parking. A new left turn from Sopwith Way into
Richmond Road will provide a resilience route for traffic moving
northwards out of Kingston; it is also intended that buses and heavy
goods vehicles will use this route to minimize disruption to Local
residents. Richmond Road will be widened at its southern end to
facilitate the proposed left turn. These proposals will mitigate the
closure of Kingsgate Road onto Richmond Road and address wider
movement and network capacity issues in the North Kingston area.

2, 3 & 4: The traffic study of the North Kingston Development Area
has found that the proposed changes to the road network in the North
Kingston Development area will improve the movement of traffic and
associated safety.
7. The Council works to increase the quality of the built environment
as well as the quality of life within the borough. This includes ensuring
the borough remains competitive and actively manages the impact of
traffic and congestion through its long term development plans.

No change.

C181

2. The Council’s policies seek to protect the residential and other
sensitive areas of the borough from unwarranted traffic intrusion and
associated noise and environmental impacts. Typical measures
include traffic calming, banned movements and restricted access to
key areas. Alterations to the main road network in the North Kingston
area will be tested against the need for this type of protection to
surrounding areas. The overall traffic arrangements are being
configured to allow for local access while minimising potential for
longer distance traffic diverting into residential streets.

90

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
able to move safely across Seven Kings
Way, and at the junction of Seven Kings
Way with Sury Basin. Traffic management
measures will be required to ensure safe
passage both across Seven Kings Way and
at the Sury Basin junction when entering the
Supermarket site from Seven Kings Way.
54

Yasmene
Davies (Local
resident)

1. It is difficult for me to know whether this
new plan will cope well with traffic. 2.
However there seems to be no plans for
both residents and customers to the new
high street to find convenient parking.

1. The proposed changes to the road network as part of the North
No change..
Kingston Development have been tested as part of the Kingston Town
Centre Movement Study undertaken by Steer David Gleave on behalf
of the council. The study demonstrates the proposed amended North
Kingston highway layout operates satisfactorily. Proposed
improvements to the highway network to accommodate development
traffic have been designed to ensure the revised highway layout is not
overly dominated by vehicular traffic and accessibility for non-car
modes of transport is enhanced.

C182

2. The North Kingston development site benefits from excellent
accessibility for non-car modes of transport due to its close vicinity of
Kingston train station, numerous local bus services and enhanced
pedestrian and cycle links implemented as part of the development,
which will encourage sustainable travel and reduce the need for
on-site parking. Nevertheless, the development will ensure there is
sufficient on-site facilities for servicing, emergency and disabled
access. There will be existing public parking facilities across Kingston
town centre which can be used by future users of the site.

The following consultees submitted a response but did not comment specifically on Question 3 of the survey.
ID

Name

ID

Name

1

Yvette (Local resident)

20

Neil Fulk (Local resident)

2

Anthony Quinn (Local resident)

22

John Pitts (Local resident)

4

Russell Pedley (Local resident)

28

C Parkins-Godwin (Local resident)

5

K. Mayer (Local resident)

29

Pat Lally (Local resident)

91

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
6

Maurice Bentley (Local resident)

33

Alison Pope (Local resident)

8

Chris Kent (Local resident)

36

Michael McGrail (Local resident)

9

G T KNIGHT (Local resident)

37

Robert Marshall (Local resident)

10

Carl Clarke (Local resident)

42

Richard Robinson (Local resident)

11

Steve Hollands (Local resident)

51

Beverley Tourle

14

Matt Williams (Local Resident)

53

Sarah Olney (North Kingston Liberal Democrats)

16

Jessamy Oldfield (Local resident)

C183

Question 4a & 4b - To what extent do you agree with the proposed ‘Public Realm & Public Open Space Strategy and Principles’?
ID Number

Respondent

Question 4a: To
what extent do
you agree with the
proposed ‘Public
Realm & Public
Open Space
Strategy and
Principles’?

Question 4b: Do you have any
comments?

RBK Response

Document Update

92

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
Yvette (Local
resident)

Strongly favour

Support noted.

No change.

2

Anthony Quinn (Local
resident)

Somewhat favour

1. This Council and biodiversity!! That is a first! I
do not envision anything meaningful being
achieved in the area indicated and feel more
attention should be given to our more rural areas.

1. Comment noted.

Change. Wording added to
page 17, para 2: ‘New public
spaces will need to
accommodate an
appropriate means of
dealing with water drainage
to support biodiversity and
address climate issues’.

3

John De'Ath (Local
resident)

Strongly oppose

1. Keep the cross shape, but move the ends to
the corners, so it is X Shaped. As orientated all
the bits lead nowhere, so have to then walk half
way along surrounding roads before continuing
journey. May as well not bother if you need to
continue journey along one of the roads.

1. Comment noted.

No change.

4

Russell Pedley (Local
resident)

Strongly favour

Support noted.

No change.

5

K. Mayer (Local
resident)

Strongly oppose

1. See response to question 1.

No change.

6

Maurice Bentley
(Local resident)

Strongly favour

Support noted.

No change.

7

E John (Local
resident)

Somewhat favour

Support noted.

No change.

8

Chris Kent (Local
resident)

Noted

No change.

9

G T KNIGHT (Local
resident)

Strongly favour

Support noted.

No change.

10

Carl Clarke (Local
resident)

Strongly favour

Support noted.

No change.

11

Steve Hollands (Local
resident)

Somewhat favour

Support noted.

No change.

12

S Watson (Local
resident)

Neutral

Noted.

No change.

1. See general objections under Question 1

C184

1

93

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
13

Andrew Payne (Local
resident)

Strongly favour

Support noted.

No change.

14

Matt Williams (Local
resident)

Somewhat favour

Support noted.

No change.

15

Rachel Hapoienu
(Local resident)

Neutral

16

Jessamy Oldfield
(Local resident)

Somewhat favour

17

Jonathan rollason
(Local resident)

Somewhat favour

18

John Roscoe (Local
resident)

Strongly favour

1. I don't understand what these public spaces are 1. The public spaces referred to in
No change.
or how they would be used or accessed.
the brief (see page 16-17) refer to a
new public park and green access
routes (north-south and east-west)
through the development site for
pedestrians and cyclists (identified as
public open space on the plan, p.16).
These are for the enjoyment of
everybody, accessible via numerous
entrances surrounding the site.
Additionally, residents of the
developments will have access to the
green open spaces identified as
private on the plan, p.16.
No change.

1. The Council’s policies seek to
protect the residential and other
sensitive areas of the borough from
unwarranted traffic intrusion and
associated noise and environmental
impacts. Typical measures include
traffic calming, banned movements
and restricted access to key areas.
Alterations to the main road network
in the North Kingston area will be
tested against the need for this type
of protection to surrounding areas.
The overall traffic arrangements are
being configured to allow for local
access while minimising potential for
longer distance traffic diverting into
residential streets.

No change.

Support noted.

No change.

C185

1. Concern about road safety with mixed users

Support noted.

94

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
19

Rupert Moor (Local
resident)

Somewhat favour

1. More detail needed before further comment can 1. This brief is intended to provide
No change.
be made.
guidance and a long-term vision for
the area. The specific detail of the
future developments on the site will
come forward in individual planning
applications which will be assessed
on their own merit in the context of
the this overall vision for the area set
out by the Council and will be subject
to individual consultation.

20

Neil Fulk (Local
resident)

Strongly favour

1. Canbury Gardens should be looked at.
1. Comment noted. Canbury
Improvement required to cycle path and clearance Gardens is outside the scope of this
of self sprouting trees on the river bank
development brief.

21

Richard Williams
(Local resident)

Strongly favour

Support noted.

No change.

22

John Pitts (Local
resident)

Strongly favour

Support noted.

No change.

23

Samantha Murphy
(Local resident)

Somewhat favour

1. The ownership and maintenance
of open space is critical to its long
term success. This aspect of the
scheme will be subject to agreement
between the Council and
landowners.

No change.

24

J Langridge (Local
resident)

Strongly favour

Noted.

No change.

25

Frances Noel (Local
resident)

Somewhat favour

Support noted.

No change.

26

M Ellis (Local
resident)

Somewhat favour

1. Comment noted. The Council is
committed to protecting and
enhancing the borough’s natural and
green environment. This new public
park will go some way to reduce
green space deficiency in the area
and is intended to contribute to
improving green space connections
to Canbury Gardens and the
Riverside.

Change. Wording added to
page 17, para 2: ‘New public
spaces will need to
accommodate an
appropriate means of
dealing with water drainage
to support biodiversity and
address climatic issues’.

1. Anything is better than nothing but this looks
like 2 cycle tracks with a bit of planting at the side.
You only need to look at Skerne Walk to see how
these schemes can end up looking boring and dull
with limited variety of planting, most of it
evergreen and low level, and not a flower, bird or
butterfly to be seen. Any green space must be
usable by wildlife, particularly as a desperately
needed wildlife corridor. How about planting
meadows? Proper hedging that encourages
nesting birds? Trees that support wildlife?

C186

1. I agree with the provision of public realm
spaces and increasing openness. However it
should be clear how the public space will be
funded given the Government’s recent
consultation on the funding issues surrounding
public parks.

No change.

95

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
27

Chris Parry (Local
resident)

Somewhat favour

28

C Parkins-Godwin
(Local resident)

Strongly favour

29

Pat Lally (Local
resident)

Strongly favour

30

Anne (Local resident)

Somewhat favour

1. Maximising green spaces is always a preferred
option for residents,. And enhances the public
realm.

1. Comment noted.

No change.

Support noted

No change.

1. Provide plenty of lighting and surveillance to
make public areas safe at night

1. Comment noted.

No change.

1. Again a few landmarks named would make it
much more clear.

1. Comment noted.

Change. Page 5, plan title
change from ‘Figure
Ground Plan showing large
voids in the urban fabric
highlighting the sites
underutilisation’ to ‘Figure
Ground Plan 2015: the
large voids in the urban
fabric display the sites
underutilisation’. Slight
amendment to Ground
Plan.

Change. Page 8, Concept
Plan: Wording of ‘Proposed

96

C187

Change. Page 7, Plan
showing current land
ownership boundaries;
Page 10, Movement and
Access Plan; Page 12,
Activity and Edges Plan;
Page 14, Land Use Plan;
Page 16, Public Realm &
Public Open Space Plan;
Page 18, Heights Plan;
Page 21, Development
Parcels; Page 22,
Safeguarding Plan; Page
24, Design Framework
Plan; Page 42, Lan
Ownership Plan.
Road names ‘Sury Basin’
and ‘Sopwith Way’ have
been added to plan.

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
Quiet Route’ changed to
‘Proposed Cycle Route’.
Change. Page 10,
Movement and Access
Plan:
‘Potential Dedicated Cycle
Route’ has been removed
from map.
Wording of ‘indicative
Shared Space Route’ has
been changed to ‘Shared
Space Car Park Access’.
Wording of ‘Indicative Quiet
Route’ has been changed
to ‘Indicative Cycle Route’.
Indicative Cycle Route has
been aligned.

Change. Page 18, Heights
Plan:
Asterix removed from ‘Up
to maximum 12 storeys*’
Note at bottom of page
amended from ‘*Please
note: ‘Storey’ heights are
inclusive of ground floor’ to
‘Please note: All ‘storey’
heights are inclusive of
ground floor’
Change. Page 24, Design
Framework Plan:
Indicative Cycle Route has
been aligned.
Change. Page 24, Design

97

C188

Change. Page 14, Land
Use Plan
Addition of wording
‘(including A2/A3)’ after
‘retail’ on the 2nd and 5th
points of the key.

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation

31

Simon Pain (Local
resident)

Don’t know

1. see previous comments. What is this a map of? 1. Comment noted.

Change. Page 5, plan title
change from ‘Figure
Ground Plan showing large
voids in the urban fabric
highlighting the sites
underutilisation’ to ‘Figure
Ground Plan 2015: the
large voids in the urban
fabric display the sites
underutilisation’. Slight
amendment to Ground
Plan.
Change. Page 7, Plan
showing current land
ownership boundaries;
Page 10, Movement and
Access Plan; Page 12,
Activity and Edges Plan;
Page 14, Land Use Plan;

98

C189

Framework Plan; Page 26,
Design Framework:
Richmond Road; Page 28,
Framework Plan: North
South Linear Park; Page
30, Framework Plan: East
West Linear Park; Page 34,
Surrounding Infrastructure;
Page 36, Humanise
Surrounding Streets
1) ‘Potential Cycle Only
Route’ removed from key
2) ‘Potential Shared Space
Car park Access’ changed
to ‘Shared Space Car Park
Access’ on key.
3) ‘Proposed Quiet Way’
changed to ‘Indicative
Cycle Route’ on key.
4) ‘Pedestrian and Cycle
Only Route’ changed to
‘Indicative Pedestrian and
Cycle Route Only’ on key.

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
Page 16, Public Realm &
Public Open Space Plan;
Page 18, Heights Plan;
Page 21, Development
Parcels; Page 22,
Safeguarding Plan; Page
24, Design Framework
Plan; Page 42, Lan
Ownership Plan.
Road names ‘Sury Basin’
and ‘Sopwith Way’ have
been added to plan.
Change. Page 8, Concept
Plan: Wording of ‘Proposed
Quiet Route’ changed to
‘Proposed Cycle Route’.

Change. Page 14, Land
Use Plan
Addition of wording
‘(including A2/A3)’ after
‘retail’ on the 2nd and 5th
points of the key.
Change. Page 18, Heights
Plan:
Asterix removed from ‘Up

99

C190

Change. Page 10,
Movement and Access
Plan:
‘Potential Dedicated Cycle
Route’ has been removed
from map.
Wording of ‘indicative
Shared Space Route’ has
been changed to ‘Shared
Space Car Park Access’.
Wording of ‘Indicative Quiet
Route’ has been changed
to ‘Indicative Cycle Route’.
Indicative Cycle Route has
been aligned.

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
to maximum 12 storeys*’
Note at bottom of page
amended from ‘*Please
note: ‘Storey’ heights are
inclusive of ground floor’ to
‘Please note: All ‘storey’
heights are inclusive of
ground floor’
Change. Page 24, Design
Framework Plan:
Indicative Cycle Route has
been aligned.

32

Marilyn Mason (Local
resident)

Strongly favour

Support noted.

No change.

33

Alison Pope (Local
resident)

Strongly favour

Support noted.

No change.

100

C191

Change. Page 24, Design
Framework Plan; Page 26,
Design Framework:
Richmond Road; Page 28,
Framework Plan: North
South Linear Park; Page
30, Framework Plan: East
West Linear Park; Page 34,
Surrounding Infrastructure;
Page 36, Humanise
Surrounding Streets
1) ‘Potential Cycle Only
Route’ removed from key
2) ‘Potential Shared Space
Car park Access’ changed
to ‘Shared Space Car Park
Access’ on key.
3) ‘Proposed Quiet Way’
changed to ‘Indicative
Cycle Route’ on key.
4) ‘Pedestrian and Cycle
Only Route’ changed to
‘Indicative Pedestrian and
Cycle Route Only’ on key.

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
J Sellars (Local
resident)

Somewhat favour

Noted

No change.

35

Denise Fraser (Local
resident)

Somewhat favour

Noted

No change.

36

Michael McGrail
(Local resident)

Strongly favour

Noted

No change.

37

Robert Marshall
(Local resident)

Somewhat favour

Noted

No change.

38

Duncan Combe
(Local resident)

Neutral

Noted

No change.

39

Mary Graham (Local
resident)

Neutral

Noted

No change.

40

Joanne Melbourne
(Local resident)

Strongly favour

1. Support noted. The development
brief is intended to facilitate public
realm and road networks upgrades
throughout the brief area.

No change.

41

Jonathan Rollason
(Local resident)

Somewhat favour

Noted

No change.

42

Richard Robinson
(Local resident)

Neutral

Noted.

No change.

43

Kingston Cycling
Campaign (local
organisation)

Neutral

Noted.

No change.

44

Xxx xxx (unknown)

Somewhat favour

Noted.

No change.

45

Robert James (Local
resident)

Strongly favour

Noted.

No change.

46

Des McRow (Local
resident)

Strongly favour

Noted.

No change.

1. With the introduction of Sainsbury's plus car
parks - the area is descending into a dirty and
polluted environment. Needs cleaning up and the
pavements and walkways along Richmond Road
from Sury Basin are lethal to both pedestrians and
cyclists - there are so many potholes and cracked
pavements

None

C192

34

101

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
47

Sumit Thakur,
Chairman (Royal
Quarter Residents
Association)

Strongly favour

Noted.

No change.

48

Sumit Thakur (Local
resident)

Strongly favour

Noted.

No change.

49

Shinjini Thakur (Local
resident)

Strongly favour

Noted.

No change.

50

Iain Martin MSc
CMILT

Somewhat favour

Comment noted.

No change.

51

Beverley Tourle

Somewhat favour

Noted.

No change.

52

Diane Watling (Local
resident)

Somewhat favour

Comments 1-3 noted.

No change.

More green spaces and safeguarding of existing
ones is required.

1. The building heights contained in
the Development Brief are indicative,
and will need to be tested at a more
detailed level following the receipt of
a planning application. The
supporting commentary and
Development Form and Massing
Principles set out how the Council
will assess any proposed
development to ensure that the
proposed heights are appropriate.

C193

1. I think it important to ensure the wonderful open
spaces are kept open to sunlight as much as
possible. The height of the developments to the
south of the area must allow sufficient sunlight to
flood the rest of the area. 2. Pedestrian vs cyclist
routes must be carefully planned to give
pedestrians priority along routes. It might be worth
considering special surfaces in cycling lanes to
prevent speed cycling. 3. Green roofs/walls
should be encouraged to mitigate pollution effects.
Planting of native species to ensure biodiversity is
maximised. Developers to incorporate watering
systems into their design for overnight automatic
irrigation. So many street based planting areas
are not watered regularly and die. Grassy areas
will naturally turn brown during the summer, then
weeds take over.

2 & 3. Specific design aspects such
as quality of green spaces, green
wall/roofs and management systems
will be dealt with with regard to
specific development proposals, as
and when they come forward.

53

Sarah Olney (North
Kingston Liberal
Democrats)

Neutral

Noted.

No change.

54

Yasmene Davies
(Local resident)

Strongly favour

Noted.

No change.

102

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation

ID
Number

Responden
t

Question 5a: To
what extent do
you agree with
the proposed
‘Development
Form and
Massing Strategy
and Principles’?

1

Yvette (Local
resident)

Strongly favour

2

Anthony
Quinn (Local
resident)

Neutral

Question 5b: Do you have any
comments?

1. A previous council allowed a development
which obliterated an important London view
from Richmond Park!

RBK Response

C194

Question 5a & 5b - To what extent do you agree with the proposed ‘Development Form and Massing Strategy and Principles’?
Document Update

Support noted.

No change.

1. Comment noted. The Town Centre Area Action
Plan identified a key view for protection from
Thatched House Lodge towards Guildhall; this view is
also identified in the Core Strategy as a key view.
The Council has worked to assure itself that the
heights indicated in ‘Development form and massing’

Change. Page 19, 7th bullet
point in Development Form
and Massing Principles.
Text deleted: ‘Proposed
buildings must seek to
safeguard the panorama and

103

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
are appropriate. Wording of the Principles of page 19 strategic views as noted in
has been amended to strengthen the awareness of
the K+20’. Replaced with:
and protection for key views.
‘Proposed buildings must
positively contribute to the
panorama and key views as
noted in the K+20 and Core
Strategy, and provide
accurate visual
representations alongside a
robust assessment of the
impact of these views’.
Strongly oppose

John De'Ath
(Local
resident)

4

Strongly oppose
Russell
Pedley (Local
resident)

5

K. Mayer
(Local
resident)

Strongly oppose

6

Maurice
Bentley

Strongly favour

1. When many buildings around site are 6
storey, why limit some parts to 1-3, then stick
a 12 Storey part in. Would be much better if it
was uniform so it looks designed as a whole,
not like a scaled up 2 year olds Lego set in
height

1. Comment noted. The building heights contained in No change.
the Development Brief are indicative, and will need to
be tested at a more detailed level following the
receipt of a planning application. The supporting
commentary and Development Form and Massing
Principles set out how the Council will assess any
proposed development to ensure that the proposed
heights are appropriate.

1. I would like to see taller more eloquent
1. Comment noted. Individual development proposals
buildings clad with more expensive materials will need to be tested against existing Core Strategy
around the Station rather than short fat ones policies, including DM10, DM11 and CS8.
with poor quality materials that have been
approved and built in this area

1. No buildings in Kingston should be above
FOUR storeys. Any more ruin the area.

Change. Page 19, 7th bullet
point in Development Form
and Massing Principles:
1) Text added: ‘Outline
applications for tall buildings
will not be acceptable’.
2) ‘*Including CABE/English
Heritage joint guidance’
deleted and replaced with
‘Including Historic England
Advice Note 4 (2015)’

1. Comment noted. The building heights contained in No change.
the Development Brief are indicative, and will need to
be tested at a more detailed level following the
receipt of a planning application. The supporting
commentary and Development Form and Massing
Principles set out how the Council will assess any
proposed development to ensure that the proposed
heights are appropriate.
Support noted.

No change.

104

C195

3

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
(Local
resident)
Somewhat oppose

Noted

No change.

7

E John
(Local
resident)

8

Chris Kent
(Local
resident)

9

G T KNIGHT
(Local
resident)

Strongly favour

Support noted.

No change.

10

Carl Clarke
(Local
resident)

Strongly favour

Support noted.

No change.

11

Steve
Hollands
(Local
resident)

Somewhat favour

12

S Watson
(Local
resident)

Neutral

13

Andrew
Payne (Local
resident)

Strongly oppose

1. Can the infrastructure that exists in the
1. To be addressed by preparation of the future Local No change.
area cope with this size of development. With Plan and Infrastructure Delivery Plan.
the density of new build in this corner of
Kingston, some on going(Sury Basin) I
seriously doubt whether it can.

14

Matt Williams
(Local
resident)

Strongly oppose

1. These heights of buildings will give any
public amenity. It,s not a park in any sense
when such high buildings are looming over
you and blocking the light. This provides for
the house builders to make a good profit, but
please don't pretend that it will be apkeasure
to pass through there. All the nicest town

No change.

Noted

Change. Page 33, para 5.
Text added: ‘The provision of
affordable homes on site
must comply with policies set
out in the London Plan and
the Local Plan’.

No change.

1. The building heights contained in the Development No change.
Brief are indicative, and will need to be tested at a
more detailed level following the receipt of a planning
application. The supporting commentary and
Development Form and Massing Principles set out
how the Council will assess any proposed
development to ensure that the proposed heights are

105

C196

1. Need to ensure that new property
1. Comment noted.
developments are not purchased to be left
empty. Queenshurst is not a development
with affordable units. Lowest cost £420K for
a small studio. Developers claim to be putting
money into local education, but they are just
recouping this from the purchasers, not from
their profits.

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
centres in London and beyond are low rise,
but Kingston has historically given
permission to tall and often very ugly
buildings (line the student accommodation
with lurid yellow window frames opposite the
station). Please don't continue your past
mistakes.

appropriate.
Individual development proposals will need to be
tested against existing Core Strategy policies,
including DM10, DM11 and CS8.

Rachel
Hapoienu
(Local
resident)

Strongly favour

Support noted.

No change.

16

Jessamy
Oldfield
(Local
resident)

Strongly oppose

1. The proposed levels are too high. 12
storeys is significantly higher than would fit
appropriately - there are already too many
over-high new builds in the area. These
buildings already draw repeated comment for
being out of place and unattractive. We
should not be looking to add more. Overall,
there is a preponderance of buildings of 4
storeys or above - this would create just one
more built-up area, however modern and well
planned.

1. The building heights contained in the Development No change.
Brief are indicative, and will need to be tested at a
more detailed level following the receipt of a planning
application. The supporting commentary and
Development Form and Massing Principles set out
how the Council will assess any proposed
development to ensure that the proposed heights are
appropriate.

17

Jonathan
rollason
(Local
resident)

Strongly oppose

1. Twelve stories are simply too high.

1. The building heights contained in the Development No change.
Brief are indicative, and will need to be tested at a
more detailed level following the receipt of a planning
application. The supporting commentary and
Development Form and Massing Principles set out
how the Council will assess any proposed
development to ensure that the proposed heights are
appropriate.

18

John Roscoe
(Local
resident)

Strongly oppose

1. Too dense population, too high, too much
housing, too many people.

1. The appropriate density for new developments is
No change.
set by the Greater London Authority (GLA) through
the London Plan. The North Kingston site is defined
as being Central, by nature of its proximity to
Kingston station and town centre (a metropolitan
centre). The North Kingston site also benefits from
PTAL (Public Transport Accessibility Level) ranging
from 6-4, with by far the majority of the site being 6.
Using the GLA density matrix the expected density of
development on the site would be 215-405 dwellings
per hectare.

C197

15

106

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
Rupert Moor
(Local
resident)

Strongly oppose

20

Neil Fulk
(Local
resident)

Somewhat favour

21

Richard
Williams
(Local
resident)

Neutral

22

John Pitts
(Local
resident)

Somewhat oppose

23

Samantha
Murphy
(Local
resident)

Neutral

24

J Langridge
(Local
resident)

Somewhat oppose

25

Frances Noel
(Local
resident)

Somewhat oppose

26

M Ellis (Local
resident)

Neutral

1. All this will do is create more unaffordable
housing in an already expensive area.

1. The delivery of affordable housing will be
controlled on individual planning applications. The
Council will ensure any proposed development’s
accordance with the Core Strategy (including DM15,
and the Affordable Housing SPD).

Change. Page 33, para 5.
Text added: ‘The provision of
affordable homes on site
must comply with policies set
out in the London Plan and
the Local Plan’.

Noted.

No change.

1. I would oppose any element of the plan
which involved large-scale demolition and
rebuilding of the existing properties along
Richmond Road.

1. Comment noted.

No change.

1. 9 or 12 storeys is too much. There are too
many tall buildings in Kingston, spoiling the
character of the town.

1. The building heights contained in the Development No change.
Brief are indicative, and will need to be tested at a
more detailed level following the receipt of a planning
application. The supporting commentary and
Development Form and Massing Principles set out
how the Council will assess any proposed
development to ensure that the proposed heights are
appropriate.
Noted.

1. I do have concerns on building height - 12
storeys is too tall and 9 storeys (where sited
along Sury Basin) too high too. 4-7 storeys is
hugely different, 4 storeys fine, 7 too much in
some areas

No change.

1. The building heights contained in the Development No change.
Brief are indicative, and will need to be tested at a
more detailed level following the receipt of a planning
application. The supporting commentary and
Development Form and Massing Principles set out
how the Council will assess any proposed
development to ensure that the proposed heights are
appropriate.
Noted.

1. Perhaps someone could view the
proposed high buildings from further away.
Will this be visible from across the river,

C198

19

No change.

1. The building heights contained in the Development Change. Page 19, 7th bullet
Brief are indicative, and will need to be tested at a
point in Development Form
more detailed level following the receipt of a planning and Massing Principles.

107

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation

27

Chris Parry
(Local
resident)

Somewhat oppose

application. The supporting commentary and
Development Form and Massing Principles set out
how the Council will assess any proposed
development to ensure that the proposed heights are
appropriate.

Text deleted: ‘Proposed
buildings must seek to
safeguard the panorama and
strategic views as noted in
the K+20’. Replaced with:
‘Proposed buildings must
The Town Centre Area Action Plan identified a key
positively contribute to the
view for protection from Thatched House Lodge
panorama and key views as
towards Guildhall; this view is also identified in the
noted in the K+20 and Core
Core Strategy as a key view. The Council has worked Strategy, and provide
to assure itself that the heights indicated in
accurate visual
‘Development form and massing’ plan are
representations alongside a
appropriate. The wording of the Principles on page 19 robust assessment of the
has been amended to strengthen the awareness of
impact of these views’.
and protection for key views.

1. High rise is not appropriate for Norht
Kingston. Sadly the new apartments
overlooking the river on the old power station
site can be seen from far afield, for example
from Home Park a triple SI site, and from the
Canbury conservation area. Developers are
always pushing planning authorities. Be firm
and reject ugly and inappropriate
development.

1. The building heights contained in the Development
Brief are indicative, and will need to be tested at a
more detailed level following the receipt of a planning
application. The supporting commentary and
Development Form and Massing Principles set out
how the Council will assess any proposed
development to ensure that the proposed heights are
appropriate. The wording of the Principles on page 19
has been amended to strengthen the awareness of
and protection for key views.
Individual development proposals will need to be
tested against existing Core Strategy policies,
including DM10, DM11 and CS8 which cover design
approach and requirements for new developments.

28

C
Parkins-God
win (Local
resident)

Strongly favour

29

Pat Lally
(Local
resident)

Somewhat oppose

Support noted.

1. Twelve storeys too high

Change. Page 19, 7th bullet
point in Development Form
and Massing Principles.
Text deleted: ‘Proposed
buildings must seek to
safeguard the panorama and
strategic views as noted in
the K+20’. Replaced with:
‘Proposed buildings must
positively contribute to the
panorama and key views as
noted in the K+20 and Core
Strategy, and provide
accurate visual
representations alongside a
robust assessment of the
impact of these views’.
No change.

1. Comment noted. The building heights contained in No change.
the Development Brief are indicative, and will need to
be tested at a more detailed level following the
receipt of a planning application. The supporting
commentary and Development Form and Massing
Principles set out how the Council will assess any
proposed development to ensure that the proposed

108

C199

Home Park, Richmond Park or just generally
at the end of every road you turn down when
walking through North Kingston? The new
riverside development behind Canbury
Gardens is visible from just about
everywhere I walk and is therefore far too
intrusive. The new development should not
compete with this - it should be in keeping
with the Victorian nature of this part of
Kingston.

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
heights are appropriate.
30

Anne (Local
resident)

Somewhat favour

31

Simon Pain
(Local
resident)

Somewhat favour

1. 12 storeys are too many, 9 are ample.

1. Comment noted. The building heights contained in
the Development Brief are indicative, and will need to
be tested at a more detailed level following the
receipt of a planning application. The supporting
commentary and Development Form and Massing
Principles set out how the Council will assess any
proposed development to ensure that the proposed
heights are appropriate.

1. this map is meaningless - could be
anywhere. 2. strongly support "buildings to
be of high quality"

Comment 1 noted.
2. Individual development proposals will need to be
tested against existing Core Strategy policies,
including DM10, DM11 and CS8 which cover design
approach and requirements for new developments. .

Change. Page 5, plan title
change from ‘Figure Ground
Plan showing large voids in
the urban fabric highlighting
the sites underutilisation’ to
‘Figure Ground Plan 2015:
the large voids in the urban
fabric display the sites
underutilisation’. Slight
amendment to Ground Plan.

Change. Page 8, Concept
Plan: Wording of ‘Proposed
Quiet Route’ changed to
‘Proposed Cycle Route’.

109

C200

Change. Page 7, Plan
showing current land
ownership boundaries; Page
10, Movement and Access
Plan; Page 12, Activity and
Edges Plan; Page 14, Land
Use Plan; Page 16, Public
Realm & Public Open Space
Plan; Page 18, Heights Plan;
Page 21, Development
Parcels; Page 22,
Safeguarding Plan; Page 24,
Design Framework Plan;
Page 42, Lan Ownership
Plan.
Road names ‘Sury Basin’
and ‘Sopwith Way’ have
been added to plan.

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
Change. Page 10,
Movement and Access Plan:
‘Potential Dedicated Cycle
Route’ has been removed
from map.
Wording of ‘indicative Shared
Space Route’ has been
changed to ‘Shared Space
Car Park Access’.
Wording of ‘Indicative Quiet
Route’ has been changed to
‘Indicative Cycle Route’.
Indicative Cycle Route has
been aligned.
Change. Page 14, Land Use
Plan
Addition of wording
‘(including A2/A3)’ after
‘retail’ on the 2nd and 5th
points of the key.

Change. Page 24, Design
Framework Plan:
Indicative Cycle Route has
been aligned.
Change. Page 24, Design
Framework Plan; Page 26,
Design Framework:
Richmond Road; Page 28,
Framework Plan: North
South Linear Park; Page 30,
Framework Plan: East West

110

C201

Change. Page 18, Heights
Plan:
Asterix removed from ‘Up to
maximum 12 storeys*’
Note at bottom of page
amended from ‘*Please note:
‘Storey’ heights are inclusive
of ground floor’ to ‘Please
note: All ‘storey’ heights are
inclusive of ground floor’

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
Linear Park; Page 34,
Surrounding Infrastructure;
Page 36, Humanise
Surrounding Streets
1) ‘Potential Cycle Only
Route’ removed from key
2) ‘Potential Shared Space
Car park Access’ changed to
‘Shared Space Car Park
Access’ on key.
3) ‘Proposed Quiet Way’
changed to ‘Indicative Cycle
Route’ on key.
4) ‘Pedestrian and Cycle
Only Route’ changed to
‘Indicative Pedestrian and
Cycle Route Only’ on key.
32

Somewhat favour
Marilyn
Mason (Local
resident)

Noted.

No change.

33

Alison Pope
(Local
resident)

Neutral

1. Kingston has may high profile high -rise
developments. I would not support a building
of more than 4 storeys high as I believe that
would be out of context of the wider
residential area

34

J Sellars
(Local
resident)

Somewhat favour

1. More than four storeys would be
1. The building heights contained in the Development No change.
oppressively high on the corner of Richmond Comment noted. Brief are indicative, and will need to
Road and Sury basin.
be tested at a more detailed level following the
receipt of a planning application. The supporting
commentary and Development Form and Massing
Principles set out how the Council will assess any
proposed development to ensure that the proposed
heights are appropriate.

35

Denise
Fraser (Local
resident)

Neutral

Noted

No change.

36

Michael
McGrail

Somewhat favour

Noted

No change.

C202

1. The building heights contained in the Development No change.
Brief are indicative, and will need to be tested at a
more detailed level following the receipt of a planning
application. The supporting commentary and
Development Form and Massing Principles set out
how the Council will assess any proposed
development to ensure that the proposed heights are
appropriate.

111

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
(Local
resident)
1. Not keen on 12 storey tower, too high for
what is essentially two three or four storey
housing and shops.

1. The building heights contained in the Development No change.
Brief are indicative, and will need to be tested at a
more detailed level following the receipt of a planning
application. The supporting commentary and
Development Form and Massing Principles set out
how the Council will assess any proposed
development to ensure that the proposed heights are
appropriate.

37

Robert
Marshall
(Local
resident)

Somewhat oppose

38

Duncan
Combe
(Local
resident)

Neutral

Noted

No change.

39

Mary
Graham
(Local
resident)

Somewhat favour

Noted

No change.

40

Joanne
Melbourne
(Local
resident)

Strongly oppose

Jonathan
Rollason
(Local
resident)

Strongly oppose

Thank you for the opportunity to comment
on the north Kingston development plan. I
am supportive but have two issues. 1. The
first is the density and the effect this will
have on the quality of life in the
neighbourhood. The money developers
provide never covers the whole cost of
improvements needed and we have seen a

1. The building heights contained in the Development No change.
Brief are indicative, and will need to be tested at a
more detailed level following the receipt of a planning
application. The supporting commentary and
Development Form and Massing Principles set out
how the Council will assess any proposed
development to ensure that the proposed heights are
appropriate.

C203

41

1. This is a hideous plan - what are you
thinking - "Welcome to the Jungle.....enjoy
your existence in a concrete tower....if you
don't like it you could always jump off
one!"This is not in keeping with a dignified
and worthwhile existence for any human
being. Seeing too much of this in London and
it will backfire - this is not a healthy living
condition for anyone. Short term gain for long
term PAIN!!!!!! You'll just ignore this and do it
anyway.......

The addition of high quality green open space and
the upgrading of surrounding public realm, retail,
commercial, educational and transport facilities are
designed to improve liveability within the context of
an increasing density.
1. The appropriate density for new developments is
set by the Greater London Authority (GLA) through
the London Plan. The North Kingston site is defined
as being Central, by nature of its proximity to
Kingston station and town centre (a metropolitan
centre). The North Kingston site also benefits from
PTAL (Public Transport Accessibility Level) ranging
from 6-4, with by far the majority of the site being 6.

No change.

112

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
serious erosion of services. As an example
it now takes two weeks to see a Doctor for
a routine appointment. It used to take 3
days. I would request the council adopts a
target density of 215 units per hectare to
protect the borough. 2. The second is
connected and is the height of the tower on
the council land. I understand the council
wants to maximise the income from the site
but surely not at any cost. The site is
surrounded by much smaller buildings on
all sides. A 12 storey building is simply too
large and we know developers will suggest
15 storey's. This will be followed by a huge
fight and they will eventually accept 12
storey's if that's is what the plan says. The
maximum height should not exceed 9
storey's which would fit in with adjacent
buildings. Please amend the plan.

Using the GLA density matrix the expected density
of development on the site would be 215-405
dwellings per hectare.
The infrastructure needs of the Borough are
significantly greater than the funding likely to be
realised through CIL or planning obligations or a
combination of both. The Council will seek to
prioritise CIL use as a match or gap funding source,
linked to other infrastructure funding. As part of the
production of the Council’s new Local Plan for the
Borough, the Infrastructure Delivery Plan will be
reviewed. It is important to note that growth in the
Borough is set to continue and the production of a
new Local Plan and supporting evidence studies is
intended to strengthen the Council’s position to
maximise opportunities for planned growth,
including the provision of adequate infrastructure.
Without this, the predicted growth will result in
piecemeal development that is unable to secure
maximum public benefits.

42

Richard
Robinson
(Local
resident)

Neutral

43

Kingston
Cycling
Campaign
(local
organisation)

Somewhat oppose

44

Xxx xxx
(unknown)

Strongly oppose

C204

2. The building heights contained in the
Development Brief are indicative, and will need to
be tested at a more detailed level following the
receipt of a planning application. The supporting
commentary and Development Form and Massing
Principles set out how the Council will assess any
proposed development to ensure that the proposed
heights are appropriate.
No change.

Noted

1. High rise buildings are unpopular. They
block much needed sunlight and based on
recent new high rise builds in Kingston, they

No change.

1. The building heights contained in the Development Change. Page 19, 7th bullet
Brief are indicative, and will need to be tested at a
point in Development Form
more detailed level following the receipt of a planning and Massing Principles.

113

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
are anyways an eye sore. I am strongly
opposed to any buildings over 4 stores high
and have concerns about the styles of
architecture you will allow. For example, the
high rise buildings around the station cause
people to avoid those areas unless
necessary. They are not places people want
to spend time.

application. The supporting commentary and
Development Form and Massing Principles set out
how the Council will assess any proposed
development to ensure that the proposed heights are
appropriate.

Text deleted: ‘Proposed
buildings must seek to
safeguard the panorama and
strategic views as noted in
the K+20’. Replaced with:
‘Proposed buildings must
positively contribute to the
panorama and key views as
noted in the K+20 and Core
Strategy, and provide
accurate visual
representations alongside a
robust assessment of the
impact of these views’.

45

Robert
James (Local
resident)

46

Des McRow
(Local
resident)

No change.

Somewhat oppose

1. Although in favour of the majority of the
objectives, I have some concern over the
proposal to have in the Development Form
and Massing Plan a maximum height of 12
storeys. This restriction presumably applies
to the sites of the former Kingston Business
Centre and the Canbury Car Park - thereby
overshadowing the height of the
Development at the southern end of the
former Gas Holder site (Queenshurt). A
limitation on height of up to 9 storeys would
be more appropriate as it would then be in
line with the height of that Development.

1. The building heights contained in the Development No change.
Brief are indicative, and will need to be tested at a
more detailed level following the receipt of a planning
application. The supporting commentary and
Development Form and Massing Principles set out
how the Council will assess any proposed
development to ensure that the proposed heights are
appropriate.

114

C205

Change. Page 19, 7th bullet
point in Development Form
and Massing Principles:
1) Text added: ‘Outline
applications for tall buildings
will not be acceptable’.
2) ‘*Including CABE/English
Heritage joint guidance’
deleted and replaced with
‘Including Historic England
Advice Note 4 (2015)’

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
Sumit
Thakur,
Chairman
(Royal
Quarter
Residents
Association)

Somewhat oppose

1. Although in favour of the majority of the
objectives, we have some concern over the
proposal to have in the Development Form
and Massing Plan a maximum height of 12
storeys. This restriction presumably applies
to the sites of the former Kingston Business
Centre and the Canbury Car Park - thereby
overshadowing the height of the
Development at the southern end of the
former Gas Holder site (Queenshurt). A
limitation on height of up to 9 storeys would
be more appropriate as it would then be in
line with the height of that Development.

1. The building heights contained in the Development No change.
Brief are indicative, and will need to be tested at a
more detailed level following the receipt of a planning
application. The supporting commentary and
Development Form and Massing Principles set out
how the Council will assess any proposed
development to ensure that the proposed heights are
appropriate.

48

Sumit Thakur
(Local
resident)

Somewhat oppose

1. I am in favour of the majority of the
objectives, except for the height of the 12
storeys. I believe that all the tall structures in
this area should not be more than 8-9 storeys
and should be kept consistent. This will only
provide a better view to the area but also
ensure that no resident buildings are
needlessly deprived of the sunshine or views.

1. The building heights contained in the Development
Brief are indicative, and will need to be tested at a
more detailed level following the receipt of a planning
application. The supporting commentary and
Development Form and Massing Principles set out
how the Council will assess any proposed
development to ensure that the proposed heights are
appropriate.

Change. Page 19, 7th bullet
point in Development Form
and Massing Principles.
Text deleted: ‘Proposed
buildings must seek to
safeguard the panorama and
strategic views as noted in
the K+20’. Replaced with:
‘Proposed buildings must
positively contribute to the
panorama and key views as
noted in the K+20 and Core
Strategy, and provide
accurate visual
representations alongside a
robust assessment of the
impact of these views’.

49

Shinjini
Thakur
(Local
resident)

Somewhat oppose

1. I am in favour of the majority of the
objectives, except for the height of the 12
storeys. I believe that all the tall structures in
this area should not be more than 8-9 storeys
and should be kept consistent. This will only
provide a better view to the area but also
ensure that no resident buildings are
needlessly deprived of the sunshine or views.

1. The building heights contained in the Development
Brief are indicative, and will need to be tested at a
more detailed level following the receipt of a planning
application. The supporting commentary and
Development Form and Massing Principles set out
how the Council will assess any proposed
development to ensure that the proposed heights are
appropriate.

Change. Page 19, 7th bullet
point in Development Form
and Massing Principles.
Text deleted: ‘Proposed
buildings must seek to
safeguard the panorama and
strategic views as noted in
the K+20’. Replaced with:
‘Proposed buildings must
positively contribute to the
panorama and key views as
noted in the K+20 and Core
Strategy, and provide
accurate visual

115

C206

47

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
representations alongside a
robust assessment of the
impact of these views’.
50

Iain Martin
MSc CMILT

Strongly oppose

1. Too high!

1. The building heights contained in the Development No change.
Brief are indicative, and will need to be tested at a
more detailed level following the receipt of a planning
application. The supporting commentary and
Development Form and Massing Principles set out
how the Council will assess any proposed
development to ensure that the proposed heights are
appropriate.

51

Beverley
Tourle

Somewhat oppose

1. Development Massing An objection is
raised to the Height Plan (pg.18). The north
eastern parcel shows a P shaped area, at the
junction of Sury Basin and Richmond Road,
which has a height range of between 4-7
storeys. As set out previously the Council
and land owners of this parcel of land have
had extensive pre-application discussions.
During these a building height of between 4
and 8 storeys was agreed. It is therefore
requested that the height range be increased
to 4-8 storeys as it would still ensure that
future proposals respect their existing and
future context and the buildings that are of
townscape merit or listed. It is noted that the
height range of the building that is next to a
BTM (the College Building) is limited to
between 4- 7 storeys but the building height
range proposed closest to the statutory listed
buildings (the Former Gala Bingo listed
building and the Station Gateway) and
modest two storey buildings is up to 9
storeys. The south eastern corner of the
Development Brief area is far more sensitive
than the north eastern corner and yet the
height range, on this Council owned land, is
up to 9 storeys. It is requested that the height
range be increased from 4-8 storeys.

1. The building heights contained in the Development No change.
Brief are indicative, and will need to be tested at a
more detailed level following the receipt of a planning
application. The supporting commentary and
Development Form and Massing Principles set out
how the Council will assess any proposed
development to ensure that the proposed heights are
appropriate.

1. I am not at all in favour of a 12 story
building. Is a 12 storey building necessary?
And how was this height determined? It is
very much appreciated that the NKDB states

1. The building heights contained in the Development Change. Page 19, 7th bullet
Brief are indicative, and will need to be tested at a
point in Development Form
more detailed level following the receipt of a planning and Massing Principles:
application. The supporting commentary and

Diane
Watling
(Local
resident)

Somewhat favour

C207

52

The Council are looking at the site in a
comprehensive manner in order to achieve the best
outcome for the site.

116

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation

Sarah Olney
(North
Kingston
Liberal
Democrats)

Strongly oppose

Development Form and Massing Principles set out
1) Text added: ‘Outline
how the Council will assess any proposed
applications for tall buildings
development to ensure that the proposed heights are will not be acceptable’.
appropriate.
2) ‘*Including CABE/English
Heritage joint guidance’
2. Individual development proposals will need to be
tested against existing Core Strategy policies,
deleted and replaced with
including DM10, DM11 and CS8 which cover design ‘Including Historic England
approach and requirements for new developments.
Advice Note 4 (2015)’
.
3. Community infrastructure is funded by a mix of CIl
payments, S106 Agreements, and other revenue
stream of the Council. The issues of developer
contributions is addressed by the Developer
Contributions section of the Development Brief. A
review of the Infrastructure Delivery Plan will be
made as part of the production of the Council’s new
Local Plan which will take into account the need of
infrastructure and services in the Borough.

1. As per my opening comments, the
proposed building heights are excessive and
2. there is insufficient commitment within this
brief to provide affordable housing for the
local community.

1. The building heights contained in the Development
Brief are indicative, and will need to be tested at a
more detailed level following the receipt of a planning
application. The supporting commentary and
Development Form and Massing Principles set out
how the Council will assess any proposed
development to ensure that the proposed heights are
appropriate.

C208

53

that the height should be a ‘maximum’ of 12
storeys, but I am certainly worried that this
will set an even greater precedent for future
increases in height. Other options could be
considered that will still allow a similar
number of units. 2. Without the certainty of a
specific design to assess, or indeed a
comprehensive urban design strategy, I do
not believe that a building of such height can
be justified, and would therefore request the
council reduce the proposed height to 9
storeys. The Council’s development brief
should make it absolutely clear that “NO
BUILDINGS OVER 9 STOREYS WILL BE
PERMITTED”, and in any event only a
building of clear architectural merit will be
considered. Enhanced frontages along the
Richmond Road would be a real benefit.
Most of the current shops look tired and drab.
A new approach is required, but with
consistency of form and respect for the
surroundings. I understand that the expected
density of the whole site as indicated by the
GLA density Matrix for a Central location with
a PTAL level of 6, would be 215-405
dwellings per Ha. As the whole site is
approximately 3 Ha, the area would therefore
be expected to support between 645-1215
dwellings. Densification can be seen
positively if it brings with it vibrancy and
diversity to the local area, and helping to
support the local economy by increased
footfall supporting the local centres. 3.
However, how will sufficient services and
infrastructure be financed? Developer CIL
alone will not be sufficient.

Change. Page 33, para 5.
Text added: ‘The provision of
affordable homes on site
must comply with policies set
out in the London Plan and
the Local Plan’.

117

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
2. The delivery of affordable housing will be
controlled on individual planning applications. The
Council will ensure any proposed development’s
accordance with the Core Strategy (including DM15,
and the Affordable Housing SPD).
54

Somewhat favour
Yasmene
Davies (Local
resident)

1. Individual development proposals will need to be
tested against existing Core Strategy policies,
including DM10, DM11 and CS8 which cover design
approach and requirements for new developments.

No change.

2. The building heights contained in the Development
Brief are indicative, and will need to be tested at a
more detailed level following the receipt of a planning
application. The supporting commentary and
Development Form and Massing Principles set out
how the Council will assess any proposed
development to ensure that the proposed heights are
appropriate.

C209

1. This really needs to be a good looking,
open area to encourage people to head north
from the rail station rather than go south to
kingston town centre. It needs to look a lot
better and more inviting than it currently
does, the Bingo hall is hardly an attractive
property. you have stated that you will use
'exemplary architecture' and do this in a
comprehensive way architecturally - it is
paramount that this is designed to be
somehere that people want to spend time.
The Royal quarter residential flats are far too
tall, and too imposing. The buildings are ugly,
an eye sore, this should not be mimicked. 2.
9 stories is too tall for this plan. The open
green space in the middle would feel totally
enclosed and imposed on, it would be hardly
'open' surrounded by 9 story high buildings.

118

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation

Question 6a & 6b - To what extent do you agree with the ‘Design Frameworks and their Principles’?
ID
Numbe
r

Respondent

Question 6a: To
what extent do
you agree with
the ‘Design
Frameworks and
their
Principles’?

Question 6b: Do you have any
comments in general or on specific
frameworks?

RBK Response

Document Update

1

Yvette (Local
resident)

Somewhat favour

Support noted.

No change.

2

Anthony Quinn Somewhat favour
(Local
resident)

Support noted.

No change.

3

John De'Ath
(Local
resident)

4

Russell Pedley Strongly favour
(Local
resident)

5

K. Mayer
(Local
resident)

Strongly oppose

1. General objections under Question 1.

6

Maurice
Bentley (Local
resident)

Strongly favour

1. although not part of this framework, I do live 1. Comments noted. The issue of flood risk is due to be No change.
in North Kingston, and we have a regular
reviewed as part of the production of our new Local
problem of flooding on the road at New Malden Plan.
Station which causes the road to be closed and
so far this has not been solved. I do hope the
new framework will not be affected in this way
as this would cause chaos in the area.

7

E John (Local

Neutral

Somewhat oppose

No change.

C210

1. Why is everything full of zig zags, the quiet
1. Comment noted.
way is more like a slalom course. All those
redesigned crossings don't seem like a design,
just a bodge as the scheme creates pedestrians
and traffic conflicts around its edges, it's like
you have tried to build in middle of a
roundabout and as an afterthought wondered
how anyone will access it
Support noted.

No change.

1. See response to question 1.

No change.

Noted

No change.

119

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
resident)
No change.

Strongly favour

Support noted.

No change.

Carl Clarke
(Local
resident)

Somewhat favour

Support noted.

No change.

11

Steve
Hollands
(Local
resident)

Somewhat favour

Support noted.

No change.

12

S Watson
(Local
resident)

Neutral

Noted

No change.

13

Andrew Payne
(Local
resident)

Strongly oppose

1. The development brief has taken a number of years
preparation and is intended as a framework to guide
development only. If adopted, the brief will become a
material consideration in the decision-making process
of planning applications brought forward by individual
developers. The Council will work with developers to
ensure proposals contribute to the overall vision of the
site is delivered.

No change.

Chris Kent
(Local
resident)

9

G T KNIGHT
(Local
resident)

10

1. I feel that the framework is leading as it
seems there has been a great deal of planning
taken place already, it seems very detailed
much more than just a framework. 2. The
potential size and height of the development go
totally against the air quality and noise
principles and as a vision of the future to myself
as a long time resident of Kingston, not at all
appealing in the least.

C211

Noted

8

2. The building heights contained in the Development
Brief are indicative, and will need to be tested at a more
detailed level following the receipt of a planning
application. The supporting commentary and
Development Form and Massing Principles set out how
the Council will assess any proposed development to
ensure that the proposed heights are appropriate.
14

Matt Williams
(Local
resident)

Somewhat favour

Support noted.

No change.

120

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
1. I don't understand the map/legends, as to
what 'activity' refers to.

1. The National Planning Policy Framework defines
No change.
primary and secondary frontages as follows: “Primary
frontages are likely to include a high proportion of retail
uses which may include food, drinks, clothing and
household goods. Secondary frontages provide greater
opportunities for a diversity of uses such as restaurants,
cinemas and businesses.”

15

Rachel
Hapoienu
(Local
resident)

Somewhat favour

16

Jessamy
Oldfield (Local
resident)

Somewhat favour

17

Jonathan
rollason (Local
resident)

Somewhat oppose

18

John Roscoe
(Local
resident)

Somewhat favour

Noted

No change.

19

Rupert Moor
(Local
resident)

Strongly oppose

Noted.

No change.

20

Neil Fulk
(Local
resident)

Somewhat favour

Noted

No change.

21

Richard
Williams

Neutral

1. The plans for the area include the widening of
Richmond Road to accommodate two way traffic at its
southern end and the left turn from Sopwith Way into

No change.

Noted

1. Real concerns about traffic volumes

1. The traffic study of the North Kingston Development No change.
Area has found that the proposed changes to the road
network in the North Kingston Development area will
improve the movement of traffic and associated safety.
The proposal to realign and widen Seven Kings Way
will allow for additional vehicle capacity with associated
safety improvements, and make it easier for residents
to turn left into the Royal Quarter parking. A new left
turn from Sopwith Way into Richmond Road will provide
a resilience route for traffic moving northwards out of
Kingston; it is also intended that buses and heavy
goods vehicles will use this route to minimize disruption
to Local residents. Richmond Road will be widened at
its southern end to facilitate the proposed left turn.
These proposals will mitigate the closure of Kingsgate
Road onto Richmond Road and address wider
movement and network capacity issues in the North
Kingston area.

C212

1. As before, my main concerns about this are
the potential impact on pedestrian and vehicle
traffic along the whole length of Richmond

No change.

121

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
Road between Sopwith Way and the King's
Road.

(Local
resident)

Richmond Road. The road will also be upgraded to
accommodate the requirements of both pedestrians
and cyclists in a safe manner, and ensure access to
shops and other ground floor uses. The revised
arrangements have been modelled to ensure their
adequate operation.
In accordance with the London Plan and Council
policies, the Council places significant emphasis on the
role of walking and cycling in the future of movement in
the Borough, and will therefore continue to promote and
extend these uses in the North Kingston area and
throughout the Borough in order to facilitate a
connected network of safe walking and cycle routes.
Transport for London’s new Cycling Design Standards
(Dec 2014) advises that cyclists and pedestrians should
not be forced together where there is space to keep
them apart, creating unnecessary conflict which can
only increase as the number of cyclists rises. Where
possible and appropriate the Council will introduce
segregated cycle lanes.

John Pitts
(Local
resident)

Neutral

Noted

No change.

23

Samantha
Murphy (Local
resident)

Neutral

1. I am concerned about cyclists will get on to
the 'pink' route shown on this plan and whether
this will mean there is a need for more pelican
crossings and therefore driver delay.

1. Comments noted. In accordance with the London
No change.
Plan and Council policies, the Council places significant
emphasis on the role of walking and cycling in the
future of movement in the Borough, and will therefore
continue to promote and extend these uses in the North
Kingston area and throughout the Borough in order to
facilitate a connected network of safe walking and cycle
routes. The ‘Pedestrian and Cycle Only Route’
(coloured pink) exits onto Sury Basin where a
new/improved crossing will allow cyclists to turn right to
join the cycle lanes on Richmond Road or left to access
quieter road that are more appropriate for cyclists such
as Skerne Road.

24

J Langridge
(Local
resident)

Strongly favour

1. I think more consideration needs to be given
for bikes arriving at Sury Basin from the new
pedestrian and cycle only route (coloured pink),
and especially being able to cross into it from
the current Sainsburys car exit. Perhaps
Sainsburys could construct a new

1. Comments noted. In accordance with the London
Plan and Council policies, the Council places significant
emphasis on the role of walking and cycling in the
future of movement in the Borough, and will therefore
continue to promote and extend these uses in the North
Kingston area and throughout the Borough in order to

C213

22

Wording has been
amended to make clearer
the intentions of the
Council’s movement
strategy in this area and
avoid confusion with

122

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
cycle/pedestrian entrance/exit opposite this new facilitate a connected network of safe walking and cycle
(pink) path. I do also hope the new "quietway"
routes. The ‘Pedestrian and Cycle Only Route’
will be for bikes as well as pedestrians.
(coloured pink) exits onto Sury Basin where a
new/improved crossing will allow cyclists to turn right to
join the cycle lanes on Richmond Road or left to access
quieter road that are more appropriate for cyclists such
as Skerne Road.

Transport for London’s
official Quiet Way
programme.
Change. Page 8, Concept
Plan: Wording of
‘Proposed Quiet Route’
changed to ‘Proposed
Cycle Route’.

Change. Page 24, Design
Framework Plan:
Indicative Cycle Route
has been aligned.
Change. Page 24, Design
Framework Plan; Page
26, Design Framework:
Richmond Road; Page 28,
Framework Plan: North
South Linear Park; Page
30, Framework Plan: East
West Linear Park; Page
34, Surrounding
Infrastructure; Page 36,
Humanise Surrounding
Streets
1) ‘Potential Cycle Only

123

C214

Change. Page 10,
Movement and Access
Plan:
‘Potential Dedicated Cycle
Route’ has been removed
from map.
Wording of ‘indicative
Shared Space Route’ has
been changed to ‘Shared
Space Car Park Access’.
Wording of ‘Indicative
Quiet Route’ has been
changed to ‘Indicative
Cycle Route’.
Indicative Cycle Route
has been aligned.

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
Route’ removed from key
2) ‘Potential Shared
Space Car park Access’
changed to ‘Shared
Space Car Park Access’
on key.
3) ‘Proposed Quiet Way’
changed to ‘Indicative
Cycle Route’ on key.
4) ‘Pedestrian and Cycle
Only Route’ changed to
‘Indicative Pedestrian and
Cycle Route Only’ on key.
Frances Noel
(Local
resident)

Somewhat favour

Noted

No change.

26

M Ellis (Local
resident)

Neutral

Noted

No change.

27

Chris Parry
(Local
resident)

Somewhat favour

1. Pedestrian and cycle routes are shown in the 1. Support noted.
plan and are to be supported.

Wording has been
amended to make clearer
the intentions of the
Council’s movement
strategy in this area and
avoid confusion with
Transport for London’s
official Quiet Way
programme.
Change. Page 8, Concept
Plan: Wording of
‘Proposed Quiet Route’
changed to ‘Proposed
Cycle Route’.
Change. Page 10,
Movement and Access
Plan:
‘Potential Dedicated Cycle
Route’ has been removed
from map.
Wording of ‘indicative
Shared Space Route’ has

124

C215

25

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
been changed to ‘Shared
Space Car Park Access’.
Wording of ‘Indicative
Quiet Route’ has been
changed to ‘Indicative
Cycle Route’.
Indicative Cycle Route
has been aligned.
Change. Page 24, Design
Framework Plan:
Indicative Cycle Route
has been aligned.

28

C
Parkins-Godwi
n (Local
resident)

Somewhat favour

Noted.

No change.

125

C216

Change. Page 24, Design
Framework Plan; Page
26, Design Framework:
Richmond Road; Page 28,
Framework Plan: North
South Linear Park; Page
30, Framework Plan: East
West Linear Park; Page
34, Surrounding
Infrastructure; Page 36,
Humanise Surrounding
Streets
1) ‘Potential Cycle Only
Route’ removed from key
2) ‘Potential Shared
Space Car park Access’
changed to ‘Shared
Space Car Park Access’
on key.
3) ‘Proposed Quiet Way’
changed to ‘Indicative
Cycle Route’ on key.
4) ‘Pedestrian and Cycle
Only Route’ changed to
‘Indicative Pedestrian and
Cycle Route Only’ on key.

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
1. If Richmond Road has to be widened to take 1. The space to be used to facilitate the widening of the No change.
two way traffic and cycle route what will happen road will not come from the demolition of the Richmond
to the shops currently fronting Richmond Road? Road shops.

Pat Lally
(Local
resident)

Somewhat oppose

30

Anne (Local
resident)

Somewhat favour

Noted

No change.

31

Simon Pain
(Local
resident)

Don’t know

Noted

No change.

32

Marilyn Mason
(Local
resident)

Somewhat favour

1. The ownership and maintenance of open space is
critical to its long term success. This aspect of the
scheme will be subject to agreement between the
Council and landowners.

No change.

33

Alison Pope
(Local
resident)

Somewhat favour

Noted.

No change.

34

J Sellars
(Local
resident)

Strongly favour

Support noted.

No change.

35

Denise Fraser
(Local
resident)

Strongly oppose

1. Public access to linear parks and routes
through otherwise private developments must
be ensured.

1. Kingsway Road should be the main traffic
thoroughfare NOT Seven Kings Way, which
passes through a high density housing area. It
will bring 24hr noise and air pollution and will
have a detrimental effect on the residents.

C217

29

1. The traffic study of the North Kingston Development No change.
Area has found that the proposed changes to the road
network in the North Kingston Development area will
improve the movement of traffic and associated safety.
The proposal to realign and widen Seven Kings Way
will allow for additional vehicle capacity with associated
safety improvements, and make it easier for residents
to turn left into the Royal Quarter parking. A new left
turn from Sopwith Way into Richmond Road will provide
a resilience route for traffic moving northwards out of
Kingston; it is also intended that buses and heavy
goods vehicles will use this route to minimize disruption
to Local residents. Richmond Road will be widened at
its southern end to facilitate the proposed left turn.
These proposals will mitigate the closure of Kingsgate
Road onto Richmond Road and address wider
movement and network capacity issues in the North
Kingston area.
The Council’s policies seek to protect the residential
and other sensitive areas of the borough from

126

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
unwarranted traffic intrusion and associated noise and
environmental impacts. Typical measures include traffic
calming, banned movements and restricted access to
key areas. Alterations to the main road network in the
North Kingston area will be tested against the need for
this type of protection to surrounding areas. The overall
traffic arrangements are being configured to allow for
local access while minimising potential for longer
distance traffic diverting into residential streets.
Michael
McGrail (Local
resident)

Somewhat favour

37

Robert
Marshall
(Local
resident)

Neutral

Noted

No change.

38

Duncan
Combe (Local
resident)

Somewhat oppose

Noted

No change.

39

Mary Graham
(Local
resident)

Neutral

Noted

No change.

40

Joanne
Melbourne
(Local

Strongly oppose

1. Comments noted.

No change.

1. Disagree with the design and your principles
- it is all wrong. Scrap the plans and build more
flats in Chessington - Kingsgate plan must not
go ahead - more 15 storey buildings ....NO!

C218

1. Seven Kings Road should not be widened or 1. The traffic study of the North Kingston Development No change.
used as as part of the Kingston ring road.
Area has found that the proposed changes to the road
network in the North Kingston Development area will
improve the movement of traffic and associated safety.
The proposal to realign and widen Seven Kings Way
will allow for additional vehicle capacity with associated
safety improvements, and make it easier for residents
to turn left into the Royal Quarter parking. A new left
turn from Sopwith Way into Richmond Road will provide
a resilience route for traffic moving northwards out of
Kingston; it is also intended that buses and heavy
goods vehicles will use this route to minimize disruption
to Local residents. Richmond Road will be widened at
its southern end to facilitate the proposed left turn.
These proposals will mitigate the closure of Kingsgate
Road onto Richmond Road and address wider
movement and network capacity issues in the North
Kingston area.

36

127

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
This is morally wrong and you know it

resident)
41

Jonathan
Rollason
(Local
resident)

Somewhat favour

Noted

No change.

42

Richard
Robinson
(Local
resident)

Neutral

Noted

No change.

43

Kingston
Cycling
Campaign
(local
organisation)

Somewhat favour

44

Xxx xxx
(unknown)

Don’t know

45

Robert James
(Local
resident)

46

Des McRow
(Local
resident)

1. When responding to Questions 1a and 3a, I
set out my objections to the proposed increase
in traffic volumes as proposed for Seven Kings
Way. I do acknowledge that there are
circumstances where local issues might have to
take second place to any overall benefit for the
community: however in this particular case I do
consider that the price to be paid by the
residents of that road in terms of noise and air
pollution is far too high to be in any way
acceptable. It appears that little or no regard
has been paid to the completion of the
development on the former Gas Holder site
(Queenshurst) - this meaning that Seven Kings
Way is to become even more of a residential
road with it having very high-rising apartment
blocks on both of its sides. In November 2013
the first North Kingston Development Brief was
put to the (then) Place and Sustainability

No change.

Noted.

No change.

Noted.

No change.

1. The Kingston Town Centre Movement Study looked
at the remodelling of the North Kingston road network,
including Seven Kings Way, with the intention of
alleviating congestion and improving safety and
efficiency of the network for all modes of transport.

No change.

C219

Somewhat oppose

1. Access to Sainsbury's by bicycle should be a 1. Comment noted.
priority and included in the Design Framework

The traffic study has concluded and recommended that
the proposed changes to the road network in the North
Kingston Development area be taken forward to
improve the movement of traffic and associated safety.
The proposal to realign and widen Seven Kings Way
will allow for additional vehicle capacity with associated
safety improvements, and make it easier for residents
to turn left into the Royal Quarter parking. A new left
turn from Sopwith Way into Richmond Road is being
pursued which will provide a resilience route for traffic
moving northwards out of Kingston; it is also intended
that buses and heavy goods vehicles will use this route
to minimize disruption to Local residents. Richmond

128

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation

Sumit Thakur,
Chairman
(Royal Quarter
Residents
Association)

Strongly oppose

Road will be widened at its southern end to facilitate the
proposed left turn. These proposals will mitigate the
closure of Kingsgate Road onto Richmond Road and
address wider movement and network capacity issues
in the North Kingston area.

1. When responding to Questions 1a and 3a,
we set out our objections to the proposed
increase in traffic volumes as proposed for
Seven Kings Way. We do acknowledge that
there are circumstances where local issues
might have to take second place to any overall
benefit for the community: however in this
particular case we do consider that the price to
be paid by the residents of that road in terms of
noise and air pollution is far too high to be in
any way acceptable. It appears that little or no
regard has been paid to the completion of the
development on the former Gas Holder site
(Queenshurst) - this meaning that Seven Kings
Way is to become even more of a residential
road with it having very high-rising apartment
blocks on both of its sides. In November 2013
the first North Kingston Development Brief was
put to the (then) Place and Sustainability
Committee - this approved but subject to, inter

1. The Kingston Town Centre Movement Study looked
at the remodelling of the North Kingston road network,
including Seven Kings Way, with the intention of
alleviating congestion and improving safety and
efficiency of the network for all modes of transport.

The Council’s policies seek to protect the residential
and other sensitive areas of the borough from
unwarranted traffic intrusion and associated noise and
environmental impacts. Typical measures include traffic
calming, banned movements and restricted access to
key areas. Alterations to the main road network in the
North Kingston area will be tested against the need for
this type of protection to surrounding areas. The overall
traffic arrangements are being configured to allow for
local access while minimising potential for longer
distance traffic diverting into residential streets.

C220

47

Committee - this approved but subject to, inter
alia, "a Stage 2 Brief containing detailed studies
including traffic volumes and flows". Following
this the Kingston Town Centre Movement Study
was completed in 2014 and the Executive
Summary of this Study recommended:"Closure
of Kingsgate Road to traffic, and creation of a
new cycling and walking link along this
alignment New left-hand turn from Sopwith Way
to Richmond Road New left-hand turn from
Sury Basin to Seven Kings Way for access to
the gas-holder development site (access only)"I
have no major desire to see the recommended
left-hand turn from Sury Basin into Seven Kings
Way pursued (although it would be nice), but It
is beyond understanding why the Sopwith
Way/Richmond Road proposal is not being
followed. This is particularly so when
considering that a new lane (plus cycle lane)
going north on Richmond Road is contained
within the Draft Development Brief. The
structure behind the Study's major
recommendation is thereby to be put in place:
so why the reluctance to use it?

No change.

The traffic study has concluded and recommended that
the proposed changes to the road network in the North
Kingston Development area be taken forward to
improve the movement of traffic and associated safety.
The proposal to realign and widen Seven Kings Way
will allow for additional vehicle capacity with associated
safety improvements, and make it easier for residents
to turn left into the Royal Quarter parking. A new left
turn from Sopwith Way into Richmond Road is being
pursued which will provide a resilience route for traffic
moving northwards out of Kingston; it is also intended
that buses and heavy goods vehicles will use this route
to minimize disruption to Local residents. Richmond
Road will be widened at its southern end to facilitate the

129

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
alia, "a Stage 2 Brief containing detailed studies
including traffic volumes and flows". Following
this the Kingston Town Centre Movement Study
was completed in 2014 and the Executive
Summary of this Study recommended: ¥
Closure of Kingsgate Road to traffic, and
creation of a new cycling and walking link along
this alignment ¥ New left-hand turn from
Sopwith Way to Richmond Road ¥ New
left-hand turn from Sury Basin to Seven Kings
Way for access to the gas-holder development
site (access only) We have no major desire to
see the recommended left-hand turn from Sury
Basin into Seven Kings Way pursued (although
it would be nice), but It is beyond understanding
why the Sopwith Way/Richmond Road proposal
is not being followed. This is particularly so
when considering that a new lane (plus cycle
lane) going north on Richmond Road is
contained within the Draft Development Brief.
The structure behind the Study's major
recommendation is thereby to be put in place:
so why the reluctance to use it?

proposed left turn. These proposals will mitigate the
closure of Kingsgate Road onto Richmond Road and
address wider movement and network capacity issues
in the North Kingston area.
The Council’s policies seek to protect the residential
and other sensitive areas of the borough from
unwarranted traffic intrusion and associated noise and
environmental impacts. Typical measures include traffic
calming, banned movements and restricted access to
key areas. Alterations to the main road network in the
North Kingston area will be tested against the need for
this type of protection to surrounding areas. The overall
traffic arrangements are being configured to allow for
local access while minimising potential for longer
distance traffic diverting into residential streets.

Sumit Thakur
(Local
resident)

Strongly oppose

1. The price to be paid by the residents of
Seven Kings Way in terms of noise and air
pollution is far too high to be in any way
acceptable.

1. The Council’s policies seek to protect the residential No change.
and other sensitive areas of the borough from
unwarranted traffic intrusion and associated noise and
environmental impacts. Typical measures include traffic
calming, banned movements and restricted access to
key areas. Alterations to the main road network in the
North Kingston area will be tested against the need for
this type of protection to surrounding areas. The overall
traffic arrangements are being configured to allow for
local access while minimising potential for longer
distance traffic diverting into residential streets.

49

Shinjini Thakur Strongly oppose
(Local
resident)

1. The price to be paid by the residents of
Seven Kings Way in terms of noise and air
pollution is far too high to be in any way
acceptable.

1. The Council’s policies seek to protect the residential No change.
and other sensitive areas of the borough from
unwarranted traffic intrusion and associated noise and
environmental impacts. Typical measures include traffic
calming, banned movements and restricted access to
key areas. Alterations to the main road network in the
North Kingston area will be tested against the need for
this type of protection to surrounding areas. The overall
traffic arrangements are being configured to allow for
local access while minimising potential for longer

C221

48

130

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
distance traffic diverting into residential streets.
1. Not fully thought out.

Iain Martin
MSc CMILT

Comment noted

No change.

51

Beverley
Tourle

Somewhat favour

Noted.

No change.

52

Diane Watling
(Local
resident)

Somewhat favour

1. Signage will be essential to direct and give
1. Comments noted.
clear priority to pedestrians. This could be in the
form of heritage design signposts for the area
with maybe the Canbury/Sopwith Camel
Propeller emblem incorporated in the design.

No change.

53

Sarah Olney
(North
Kingston
Liberal
Democrats)

Strongly oppose

1. While greater provision of public green space
is to be welcomed, it will not be well-used if it is
located within a development of high rise
buildings. It will feel intimidating and intrusive to
walk through a space overlooked by people's
homes.

1. It is envisaged that the new public park and spaces
within the site will not only be used by residents of the
site, but also by users of the additional
retail/commercial/educational buildings at ground level
as well as those who will use the space as a new
pedestrian/cycle thoroughfare. It is the intention that
this mix of uses will make the public spaces and park
welcoming to residents of the whole North Kingston
area. The quality of the open space and the
microclimate are critical elements if the space is to be
well used. These issues will need to be tested in detail
as part of the development management process as
part of the planning process when a planning
application(s) are made.

No change.

54

Yasmene
Davies (Local
resident)

Somewhat favour

1. Richmond Road - This is predominantly retail
(A1) and residential. please see my other
comments in the next section about re-housing
current businesses. A priority is to make an
attractive high street frontage on Richmond
road, with no parking/bins etc on view. 2. Apart
from pedestrian footfall, there does need to be
some parking facilities for this high street. The
car park on this land will be demolished, but
customers need to be able to park up and pop
in to these shops in order to make full use of
their potential and make it a bustling area. It is
also not clear where residents will be able to
park either?

Comment 1 noted.

C222

50

Somewhat oppose

Change. Page 14, Land
Use Plan:
2. All new development will be required to meet the
Addition of wording
Council’s standards in terms of providing adequate
‘(including A2/A3)’ after
servicing and parking facilities. The aim is to avoid any ‘retail’ on the 2nd and 5th
problems of overspill parking and unwarranted intrusion points of the key.
of larger vehicles and create a more pleasant
environment and enhance business potential.

131

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation

C223
132

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation

Question 7 - Do you have any comments?
ID
Numbe
r

Responden
t

Question 7: Do you have any comments?

RBK Response

Document Update

Anthony
Quinn (Local
resident)

1. The areas presented do not appear to impact
existing important open space or the Blue Ribbon
and so I have no objections

1. Support noted. The brief will increase access to green space in the No change.
area, addressing local deficiency and encouraging biodiversity to
provide a high quality open space. The Council will seek to maximise
opportunities to improve connections to Canbury Gardens and River
Thames through incremental development proposals.

3

John De'Ath
(Local
resident)

1. Would anyone on planning committee choose to
move there instead of where they now live, this
should tell you what they think of the scheme

1. Comment noted.

No change.

4

Russell
Pedley (Local
resident)

1. Get on with it!

1. Comment noted.

No change.

5

K. Mayer
(Local
resident)

1. See comments under Question 1.

1. See response to Question 1

No change.

8

Chris Kent
(Local
resident)

1. Page 43 of the briefing document shows a Post
Office being virtually opposite the site. This post
office has been closed for about a year and the
nearest one is to the north of the junction of
Richmond Road and Kings Road.

1. Comment noted.

Change. Page 43,
Community Infrastructure
Plan:
Post Office removed from
Richmond Road and added
to the corner of Richmond
Road and Barfield Road.

11

Steve
Hollands
(Local
resident)

1. Stop providing disabled parking that no one uses.
Ground floor of Seven Kings is virtually empty each
day as the majority are disabled bays, which
disabled people do not use as it's too far away from
the town centre.

1. Comment noted..

No change.

14

Matt Williams
(Local
resident)

1. If you are going to provide homes, please don't
continue with flats. This largely attracts younger
adults and Kingston already has enough young
people living here. Houses (not flats) for families
would fit in better with the residential provision in
North Kingston and be lower rise. Thank you for
consulting.

1. Any development in Kingston must be compliant with the Council's No change.
Core Strategy, including Policy DM13 which requires residential
developments to include a mix of unit sizes and types. The Council
will work with individual developers to ensure a mix of housing
tenures for the site.

133

C224

2

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
15

Rachel
Hapoienu
(Local
resident)

1. I'm in favour of improving the area but only if it can
be achieved with minimum impact on the
neighborhood during the construction phase. I don't
want to live in a construction site for 10 years.

1. While the Council appreciates that construction phases of projects No change.
of this nature can be frustrating, especially for Local residents, the
Council will work with developers and partners to do all they can to
minimise disruption while we pursue delivering long-term benefit to
this area.

17

Jonathan
rollason
(Local
resident)

1. Yes. Traffic will be a problem. That problem will
increase should the supermarket close and residents
have to drive into town for food shopping. I would
like to see the plan say the current supermarket
should remain in the same shape and size. If it was
to be redeveloped it would be a huge loss of amenity
to North Kingston residents.

1. The supermarket (Sainsbury's) is outside of the development brief No change.
and is not being considered for relocation/redevelopment at this time.
Any future plans for this site will be explored through the Local Plan
process, or through a planning application at which time a formal
consultation would be undertaken.

18

John Roscoe
(Local
resident)

1. Please do not make our lovely area more
crowded. There's an opportunity here to release
more space and have acceptable, not oppressive,
population density. Please don't ruin the area further
by having thousands more people with very little
extra space. Canbury Gardens and the river bank
area are already dramatically changed for the worse
due to having too many people in the area due to the
excessive flat developments.

1. The density for new developments is set in n the London Plan
prepared on behalf of the Mayor of London.. The North Kingston site
is defined as being Central, by nature of its proximity to Kingston
station and town centre (a metropolitan centre). The North Kingston
site also benefits from PTAL (Public Transport Accessibility Level)
ranging from 6-4, with by far the majority of the site being 6. Using
the GLA density matrix the expected density of development on the
site would be 215-405 dwellings per hectare.

No change.

C225

The addition of high quality green open space and the upgrading of
surrounding public realm, retail, commercial, educational and
transport facilities are designed to improve liveability within the
context of an increasing density.
19

Rupert Moor
(Local
resident)

1. If you are going to create a new model of socially
affordable housing (i.e. council run, and tenants can
only stay five 5 years during which time they pay low
rent but must save money for a deposit on a
separate property elsewhere), then fine, otherwise
it's just going to become another rich housing estate.

1.  The delivery of affordable housing will be controlled on individual
planning applications. The Council will ensure any proposed
development’s accordance with the Core Strategy (including DM15,
and the Affordable Housing SPD).

Change. Page 33, para 5.
Text added: ‘The provision of
affordable homes on site
must comply with policies set
out in the London Plan and
the Local Plan’.

21

Richard
Williams
(Local
resident)

1. Whilst I strongly support some elements of this
plan, I believe that much more work is needed on the
impact of the road realignment and changes to traffic
flow affecting Richmond Road. This could make an
already very busy and quite dangerous stretch of
road worse, and increase the conflict between
vehicle, cycle, and pedestrian traffic. The impact on
pedestrians crossing Richmond Road is of particular
concern. My reading of the plan suggests that this
element of the proposals has not been properly
thought through.

1. The traffic study of the North Kingston Development Area has
found that the proposed changes to the road network in the North
Kingston Development area will improve the movement of traffic and
associated safety. The proposal to realign and widen Seven Kings
Way will allow for additional vehicle capacity with associated safety
improvements, and make it easier for residents to turn left into the
Royal Quarter parking. A new left turn from Sopwith Way into
Richmond Road will provide a resilience route for traffic moving
northwards out of Kingston; it is also intended that buses and heavy
goods vehicles will use this route to minimize disruption to Local
residents. Richmond Road will be widened at its southern end to
facilitate the proposed left turn. These proposals will mitigate the

No change.

134

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
closure of Kingsgate Road onto Richmond Road and address wider
movement and network capacity issues in the North Kingston area.
In accordance with the London Plan and Council policies, the Council
places significant emphasis on the role of walking and cycling in the
future of movement in the Borough, and will therefore continue to
promote and extend these uses in the North Kingston area and
throughout the Borough in order to facilitate a connected network of
safe walking and cycle routes. Transport for London’s new Cycling
Design Standards (Dec 2014) advises that cyclists and pedestrians
should not be forced together where there is space to keep them
apart, creating unnecessary conflict which can only increase as the
number of cyclists rises. Where possible and appropriate the Council
will introduce segregated cycle lanes.
25

Frances Noel
(Local
resident)

No change.

C226

1. Road plans are the main area I disagree on. Need 1. The traffic study of the North Kingston Development Area has
more schools, GPs and public facilities and parking found that the proposed changes to the road network in the North
to cope with increased population.
Kingston Development area will improve the movement of traffic and
associated safety. The proposal to realign and widen Seven Kings
Way will allow for additional vehicle capacity with associated safety
improvements, and make it easier for residents to turn left into the
Royal Quarter parking. A new left turn from Sopwith Way into
Richmond Road will provide a resilience route for traffic moving
northwards out of Kingston; it is also intended that buses and heavy
goods vehicles will use this route to minimize disruption to Local
residents. Richmond Road will be widened at its southern end to
facilitate the proposed left turn. These proposals will mitigate the
closure of Kingsgate Road onto Richmond Road and address wider
movement and network capacity issues in the North Kingston area.
There is currently no envisaged need for a new primary school on
the site. The responsibility for providing new schools now falls to the
Education Funding Agency (EFA). The EFA have successfully
gained planning consent for a new primary school in Norbiton, which
will help address need locally.
Other infrastructure requirements of the area are to be addressed by
the preparation of the future Local Plan and Infrastructure Delivery
Plan.

26

M Ellis (Local
resident)

1. There will be an increase in vehicle traffic, which
has not been addressed adequately. Even if
residents do not have their own cars, they will, no
doubt be serviced by on line delivery vans,
supermarket deliveries, pizza deliveries etc. Has this
been considered? If they do own vehicles but do not

1. The traffic study of the North Kingston Development Area has
found that the proposed changes to the road network in the North
Kingston Development area will improve the movement of traffic and
associated safety. The proposal to realign and widen Seven Kings
Way will allow for additional vehicle capacity with associated safety
improvements, and make it easier for residents to turn left into the

No change.

135

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
have their own parking spaces, where will they park?
North Kingston residential streets that don't have
controlled parking? Sainsburys Car Park? Where
else?

Royal Quarter parking. A new left turn from Sopwith Way into
Richmond Road will provide a resilience route for traffic moving
northwards out of Kingston; it is also intended that buses and heavy
goods vehicles will use this route to minimize disruption to Local
residents. Richmond Road will be widened at its southern end to
facilitate the proposed left turn. These proposals will mitigate the
closure of Kingsgate Road onto Richmond Road and address wider
movement and network capacity issues in the North Kingston area.
The Council’s policies seek to protect the residential and other
sensitive areas of the borough from unwarranted traffic intrusion and
associated noise and environmental impacts. Typical measures
include traffic calming, banned movements and restricted access to
key areas. Alterations to the main road network in the North Kingston
area will be tested against the need for this type of protection to
surrounding areas. The overall traffic arrangements are being
configured to allow for local access while minimising potential for
longer distance traffic diverting into residential streets.

29

Pat Lally
(Local
resident)

1. What happened to the plans for the proposed
primary school? If more housing is planned there
should also be plans for another doctor's surgery.

1. There is currently no envisaged need for a new primary school on
the site. The responsibility for providing new schools now falls to the
Education Funding Agency (EFA). The EFA have successfully
gained planning consent for a new primary school in Norbiton, which
will help address need locally.

No change.

30

Anne (Local
resident)

1. When is the school for the older children going up
in North Kingston ?

1.The responsibility for providing new schools now falls to the
Education Funding Agency (EFA).

No change.

31

Simon Pain
(Local
resident)

1. most of this was meaningless - the maps could be Comments 1-3 noted.
anywhere. I can't tell where in Kingston they were
talking about. 2. New buildings should be of the
highest standard and we can lose this sentimental
attachment to that old building in the marketplace
and those ridiculous phone boxes. They are an
embarrassment.

C227

All new development will be required to meet the Council’s standards
in terms of providing adequate servicing and parking facilities to
avoid any problems of overspill parking and unwarranted intrusion of
larger vehicles.

Change. Page 5, plan title
change from ‘Figure
Ground Plan showing large
voids in the urban fabric
highlighting the sites
underutilisation’ to ‘Figure
Ground Plan 2015: the
large voids in the urban
fabric display the sites
underutilisation’. Slight
amendment to Ground
Plan.

136

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation

Change. Page 7, Plan
showing current land
ownership boundaries;
Page 10, Movement and
Access Plan; Page 12,
Activity and Edges Plan;
Page 14, Land Use Plan;
Page 16, Public Realm &
Public Open Space Plan;
Page 18, Heights Plan;
Page 21, Development
Parcels; Page 22,
Safeguarding Plan; Page
24, Design Framework
Plan; Page 42, Lan
Ownership Plan.
Road names ‘Sury Basin’
and ‘Sopwith Way’ have
been added to plan.

Change. Page 10,
Movement and Access
Plan:
‘Potential Dedicated Cycle
Route’ has been removed
from map.
Wording of ‘indicative
Shared Space Route’ has
been changed to ‘Shared
Space Car Park Access’.
Wording of ‘Indicative Quiet
Route’ has been changed
to ‘Indicative Cycle Route’.
Indicative Cycle Route has
been aligned.
Change. Page 14, Land
Use Plan

137

C228

Change. Page 8, Concept
Plan: Wording of ‘Proposed
Quiet Route’ changed to
‘Proposed Cycle Route’.

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
Addition of wording
‘(including A2/A3)’ after
‘retail’ on the 2nd and 5th
points of the key.
Change. Page 18, Heights
Plan:
Asterix removed from ‘Up
to maximum 12 storeys*’
Note at bottom of page
amended from ‘*Please
note: ‘Storey’ heights are
inclusive of ground floor’ to
‘Please note: All ‘storey’
heights are inclusive of
ground floor’
Change. Page 24, Design
Framework Plan:
Indicative Cycle Route has
been aligned.

138

C229

Change. Page 24, Design
Framework Plan; Page 26,
Design Framework:
Richmond Road; Page 28,
Framework Plan: North
South Linear Park; Page
30, Framework Plan: East
West Linear Park; Page 34,
Surrounding Infrastructure;
Page 36, Humanise
Surrounding Streets
1) ‘Potential Cycle Only
Route’ removed from key
2) ‘Potential Shared Space
Car park Access’ changed
to ‘Shared Space Car Park
Access’ on key.
3) ‘Proposed Quiet Way’
changed to ‘Indicative
Cycle Route’ on key.
4) ‘Pedestrian and Cycle
Only Route’ changed to

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
‘Indicative Pedestrian and
Cycle Route Only’ on key.
1. See question 1 comments on attracting retailers to 1. See response to Question 1
the area

33

Alison Pope
(Local
resident)

35

1. Comment noted.
Denise Fraser 1. I can only reiterate that the residents of Royal
Quarter
should
not
have
to
bear
the
brunt
of
the
24hr
(Local
traffic, noise and air pollution. This is a narrow
resident)
access road to the current housing development and
the new Queenshurst development and should not
be considered suitable as a main thoroughfare for
buses, lorries and all manner of other traffic.

37

Robert
Marshall
(Local
resident)

1. Smooth flow of traffic in both directions for traffic
to/from town centre from Richmond Road. Better
provision for cycling between Sury Basin and the
station.

No change.

No change.

1. The plans for the area include the widening of Richmond Road to No change.
accommodate two way traffic at its southern end and the left turn
from Sopwith Way into Richmond Road. The road will also be
upgraded to accommodate the requirements of both pedestrians and
cyclists in a safe manner, and ensure access to shops and other
ground floor uses. The revised arrangements have been modelled to
ensure their adequate operation.

C230

In accordance with the London Plan and Council policies, the Council
places significant emphasis on the role of walking and cycling in the
future of movement in the Borough, and will therefore continue to
promote and extend these uses in the North Kingston area and
throughout the Borough in order to facilitate a connected network of
safe walking and cycle routes.
39

Mary Graham
(Local
resident)

1. Please take into consideration the disruption and
inconvenience that these plans will cause to an area
which has already had major building work and is
expecting further inconvenience due to the proposed
development at the Fenwick site.

1. While the Council appreciates that construction phases of projects No change.
of this nature can be frustrating, especially for Local residents, the
Council will work with developers and partners to do all they can to
minimise disruption while we pursue delivering long-term benefit to
this area.

40

Joanne
Melbourne
(Local
resident)

1. I am appalled and saddened at what you are
doing to Kingston upon Thames......

1. Comment noted.

41

Jonathan
Rollason
(Local
resident)

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the
north Kingston development plan. I am supportive
but have two issues. 1. The first is the density and
the effect this will have on the quality of life in the
neighbourhood. The money developers provide

1. The appropriate density for new developments is set by the the
London Plan prepared on behalf of the Mayor of London. The North
Kingston site is defined as being Central, by nature of its proximity
to Kingston station and town centre (a metropolitan centre). The
North Kingston site also benefits from PTAL (Public Transport

No change.

No change.

139

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
never covers the whole cost of improvements
needed and we have seen a serious erosion of
services. As an example it now takes two weeks to
see a Doctor for a routine appointment. It used to
take 3 days. I would request the council adopts a
target density of 215 units per hectare to protect
the borough. 2. The second is connected and is the
height of the tower on the council land. I
understand the council wants to maximise the
income from the site but surely not at any cost. The
site is surrounded by much smaller buildings on all
sides. A 12 storey building is simply too large and
we know developers will suggest 15 storey's. This
will be followed by a huge fight and they will
eventually accept 12 storey's if that's is what the
plan says. The maximum height should not exceed
9 storey's which would fit in with adjacent buildings.
Please amend the plan.

Accessibility Level) ranging from 6-4, with by far the majority of the
site being 6. Using the GLA density matrix the expected density of
development on the site would be 215-405 dwellings per hectare.
The infrastructure needs of the Borough are significantly greater
than the funding likely to be realised through CIL or planning
obligations or a combination of both. The Council will seek to
prioritise CIL use as a match or gap funding source, linked to other
infrastructure funding. As part of the production of the Council’s
new Local Plan for the Borough, the Infrastructure Delivery Plan will
be reviewed. It is important to note that growth in the Borough is set
to continue and the production of a new Local Plan and supporting
evidence studies is intended to strengthen the Council’s position to
maximise opportunities for planned growth, including the provision
of adequate infrastructure. Without this, the predicted growth will
result in piecemeal development that is unable to secure maximum
public benefits.

43

Kingston
Cycling
Campaign
(local
organisation)

1. Developments here must provide convenient and
actively managed bicycle parking so that residents,
visitors and customers find it easy and convenient to
park their bicycles at the development. There should
be active management to discourage bicycle theft
and to remove any abandoned bicycles.

1. Any development in the borough must be compliant with the
No change.
Council's Core Strategy including Policy DM8 which requires new
development to provide facilities on-site for cyclists as appropriate,
including showers, lockers and secure, convenient cycle parking, to
be negotiated as part of the planning process. The Council's Go
Cycle programme will more generally improve access to cycle routes
and secure bicycle parking in this area and across the borough.

46

Des McRow
(Local
resident)

1. As can be seen from my responses to Questions
1a, 3a and 6a, I am totally opposed to the intention
of increasing the volume of traffic to use Seven
Kings Way – which is in all respects a residential
road and is to become more so once the
development on the former Gas Holder site is
completed. Here building work of the first two phases
- these along Seven Kings Way - is to be completed
in 2017 and occupied in mid-2018. It cannot be right
that the quality of life for residents of this road, in so
far as it relates to noise and quality of air

1. The Council is appreciative of your overall support for its intentions No change.
and vision for North Kingston, and understand your concerns
regarding Seven Kings Way. The widening and realignment of Seven
Kings Way is part of a larger traffic remodelling plan for the area to
create an overall improvement in traffic flow for the entire area.

C231

2. The building heights contained in the Development Brief are
indicative, and will need to be tested at a more detailed level
following the receipt of a planning application. The supporting
commentary and Development Form and Massing Principles set
out how the Council will assess any proposed development to
ensure that the proposed heights are appropriate.

The traffic study of the North Kingston Development Area has found
that the proposed changes to the road network in the North Kingston
Development area will improve the movement of traffic and
associated safety. The proposal to realign and widen Seven Kings
Way will allow for additional vehicle capacity with associated safety

140

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation

Sumit Thakur,
Chairman
(Royal
Quarter
Residents
Association)

improvements, and make it easier for residents to turn left into the
Royal Quarter parking. A new left turn from Sopwith Way into
Richmond Road will provide a resilience route for traffic moving
northwards out of Kingston; it is also intended that buses and heavy
goods vehicles will use this route to minimize disruption to Local
residents. Richmond Road will be widened at its southern end to
facilitate the proposed left turn. These proposals will mitigate the
closure of Kingsgate Road onto Richmond Road and address wider
movement and network capacity issues in the North Kingston area.

1. As can be seen from my responses to Questions
1a, 3a and 6a, we are totally opposed to the
intention of increasing the volume of traffic to use
Seven Kings Way – which is in all respects a
residential road and is to become more so once the
development on the former Gas Holder site is
completed. Here building work of the first two phases

1. The Council is appreciative of your overall support for its intentions No change.
and vision for North Kingston, and understand your concerns
regarding Seven Kings Way. The widening and realignment of Seven
Kings Way is part of a larger traffic remodelling plan for the area to
create an overall improvement in traffic flow.

As covered in Question 1, the Council’s policies seek to protect the
residential and other sensitive areas of the borough from
unwarranted traffic intrusion and associated noise and environmental
impacts through the use of traffic calming, banned movements and
restricted access to key areas. New road layouts and crossing for
pedestrians and cyclists are not only intended to increase efficiency
of traffic flow but also improve safety in this increasingly residential
area.

C232

47

considerations, should not be as an important
requirement as for residents elsewhere. Potential
developers will have to consider these aspects when
putting forward any plans that they may have, and it
is absolutely unacceptable that existing residents
should have a deterioration in their situations to
achieve this. The road is already among the leading
problem areas for consideration under the Air Quality
Action Plan and it does seem perverse to increase
the problems now facing it before looking at ways
and means of reducing them! The Council is of
course serious in its desire to improve the quality of
life in its residential areas – this as illustrated by the
improvements to the nearby Down Hall Road. Here
the road has been downgraded to little more than a
cul-de-sac, even though it has housing running along
one side only (the other hosting a railway line). I
cannot disagree with the Council’s decision making
here, namely that this is “intended to create a street
scene appropriate to what has become a mainly
residential area”. Having said this I must ask why
Seven Kings Way is not also regarded as mainly
residential area – with this to become more so once
Queenshurst has been delivered. If only what I
regard as the unfair and unhealthy treatment of
those living in Seven Kings Way could be
disregarded, then I would be a real supporter of what
is proposed for North Kingston. Although I do have
some reservations about the 12 storey limitation on
the possible developments on and around Canbury
Car Park, I do appreciate that, here we are looking at
Council owned land and that there is, within reason,
a duty for the Council to maximize value of such
property. So, please reconsider the impact of your
plans for Seven Kings Way upon those who live
there – and then I shall be a full supporter of your
plans for North Kingston.

The traffic study of the North Kingston Development Area has found

141

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation

Iain Martin
MSc CMILT

that the proposed changes to the road network in the North Kingston
Development area will improve the movement of traffic and
associated safety. The proposal to realign and widen Seven Kings
Way will allow for additional vehicle capacity with associated safety
improvements, and make it easier for residents to turn left into the
Royal Quarter parking. A new left turn from Sopwith Way into
Richmond Road will provide a resilience route for traffic moving
northwards out of Kingston; it is also intended that buses and heavy
goods vehicles will use this route to minimize disruption to Local
residents. Richmond Road will be widened at its southern end to
facilitate the proposed left turn. These proposals will mitigate the
closure of Kingsgate Road onto Richmond Road and address wider
movement and network capacity issues in the North Kingston area.

1. I believe some of these proposals may impact
unreasonably on Kingston's unique history and
heritage. Not enough emphasis is being placed on
preserving and enhancing these existing assets
which are already under threat. It should be
recognised that these are some of the main reasons

1. Comments noted.

As covered in Question 1, the Council’s policies seek to protect the
residential and other sensitive areas of the borough from
unwarranted traffic intrusion and associated noise and environmental
impacts through the use of traffic calming, banned movements and
restricted access to key areas. New road layouts and crossing for
pedestrians and cyclists are in not only intended to increase
efficiency of traffic flow but also improve safety in this increasingly
residential area.

C233

50

- these along Seven Kings Way - is to be completed
in 2017 and occupied in mid-2018. It cannot be right
that the quality of life for residents of this road, in so
far as it relates to noise and quality of air
considerations, should not be as an important
requirement as for residents elsewhere. Potential
developers will have to consider these aspects when
putting forward any plans that they may have, and it
is absolutely unacceptable that existing residents
should have a deterioration in their situations to
achieve this. The road is already amount the leading
problem areas for consideration under the Air Quality
Action Plan and it does seem perverse to increase
the problems now facing it before looking at ways
and means of reducing them! The Council is of
course serious in its desire to improve the quality of
life in its residential areas – this as illustrated by the
improvements to the nearby Down Hall Road. Here
the road has been downgraded to little more than a
cul-de-sac, even though it has housing running along
one side only (the other hosting a railway line). We
cannot disagree with the Council’s decision making
here, namely that this is “intended to create a street
scene appropriate to what has become a mainly
residential area”. Having said this we must ask why
Seven Kings Way is not also regarded as mainly
residential area – with this to become more so once
Queenshurst has been delivered. If only what we
regard as the unfair and unhealthy treatment of
those living in Seven Kings Way could be
disregarded, then we would be real supporters of
what is proposed for North Kingston. Although we do
have some reservations about the 12 storey
limitation on the possible developments on and
around Canbury Car Park, we do appreciate that,
here we are looking at Council owned land and that
there is, within reason, a duty for the Council to
maximize value of such property.

No change.

142

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
that make Kingston a desirable place to live, work
and visit..
51

Beverley
Tourle

1. Development Parcels We support the proposal
to create 3 development parcels, with phased
development where appropriate.

No change.

2. The Land Use Plan reflects the Town Centre Area Action Plan,
K+20.
The north-eastern parcel is split between education use as identified
in allocation 19a of K+20 (shown in brown) and the retail and/or
education and residential use for site identified as 19e of K+20
(shown in blue). The site identified as 19e in K+20 is shown as
education use as the education use on this site is already
established with the construction of the Creative Industries Centre.

C234

2. Land Uses The combined land uses for the north
eastern parcel are listed as retail and/or education
and residential and education uses. Whilst the
combination of land uses listed are acceptable the
land use drawing appears to rigidly show the
different land uses in certain parts of the parcel of
land. This is not entirely consistent with the
supporting text (pg.15) which states: ‘Uses such as
cafes or community space which encourages
interaction with public spaces will be placed at the
ground and lower floors frontages in salient locations
with retail uses located to front onto Richmond Road
to reinforce the activity in this important corridor.
Education uses will be located in close proximity to
the already successfully established Kingston
College. The upper floor levels are identified for
residential uses. This approach will create a mixed
use environment that will be active at the appropriate
time during the day and evening.’ The Land Use
Plan should reflect the fact that the land uses in the
parcels do not rigidly need to be delivered as per the
plan for that particular parcel. This is only
problematic with the north eastern parcel which
shows the education block separate to that of retail
and/ education and residential uses. The entire
parcel could be shown as the mix of uses listed for
the corner part as this includes education but allows
for combination of land uses within the parcel. The
Land Use Plan fails to acknowledge the lengthy
pre-application dialogue with the Council Planners
which resulted in an agreed scheme that to provides
education land uses in the corner part of the parcel
and an element of residential along the rear part of
the ‘education’ land use block. The ‘land swap’ was
agreed with the Council during pre-application
discussions and it is therefore felt that the Land Use
Map should reflect this ability for the land use
combinations to be delivered in the north eastern

Comments 1-4 noted.

143

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
parcel as a whole as is the case in the other two
parcels.
3. Development Parcels The proposed creation of 3
larger parcels, from the many previously proposed is
supported, as is the acknowledgement that the
delivery of two of the parcels could be phased.
Richmond Road Plan (pg. 26) The aims of the plan
and text on page 26 is supported, especially where it
states that ‘A mixed use model with homes located
above commercial, retail or leisure use is the
preferred option.’

52

Diane Watling
(Local
resident)

1. An objective of the NKDB is to, Provide modern
and flexible employment space that benefits from the
close proximity to public transport and the highly
accessible highway network. There are SMEs in
North Kingston desperate to expand in Kingston who
cannot find affordable units for this purpose. It
seems only logical for the council to encourage and
support local SMEs, with the effect of reducing the
requirement for road and rail transportation. • It is
essential that new employment space be created for
this need, and be available at an affordable rate. A
scheme should be investigated whereby reduced
business rates could be offered for the first year to
help and encourage entrepreneurialship, if not
already considered. • It is also essential that the
Council encourages developers to support
independent traders rather than relying solely on
chain stores. Independents are a key component of
our high streets, and bring diversity and vibrancy
along with their direct connection to local economies.
2. Air quality in the area is a major issue for the

1. The development brief does not deal with issues of commercial
operation of landlords. However, the brief will be fully compliant with
the London Plan which supports SMEs.

C235

4. North South Linear Park The aims of the plan
and text on page 28 is supported, especially where it
states that ‘The park will be addressed by residential
frontages and accesses to provide a pleasant setting
for homeowners and activity within the space.
Ground floor units will be provided with private
amenity space, and will have front-doors onto the
park. Bin stores and other similar uses will not be
considered as active frontage and should be located
to minimise their negative impact on public space.’
No change.

2. The installation of EV charging points, green wall/roof initiatives
and smart parking will be dealt with in regard to specific development
proposals, as and when they come forward.

144

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
health of everyone. Traffic surveys to establish
routes of least pollution potential need to be
assesses. Implementation of pollution reducing
measures need to be considered: Low emissions
zones EV charging points installed in all new
developments retrofitting developments with EV
charging points schemes to encourage employers to
install EV charge points and allow employees to
charge during the day Green roof/walls initiatives
Smart parking retrofit vehicles with exhaust filters
20mph speed limit EV car club
54

Yasmene
Davies (Local
resident)

Comments 1 and 2 noted.

Change: Page 41, para 1:
Text deleted: ‘To the south
1. An Article 4 Direction was introduced in October 2015 to mitigate
of the former Gas Holders
against the conversion of commercial land to residential use. It is the site is the former Kingsgate
intention of the brief to house a mix of uses including education,
Business Centre, now
retail, office, commercial, student accommodation and residential.
demolished and Kingston
Printers, a two storey 1950’s
2. The Council will work with it’s partners to ensure disruption is
building with office use
minimised as much as feasibly possible. However the long-term
facing onto kingsgate Road’.
vision to benefit the North kingston area must be kept in mind.
Replaced with: ‘To the south
of the former Gas Holders
site is the former Kingsgate
Business Centre, now
demolished and 52
Kingsgate Road, a
two-storey 1950s building
with office and light industrial
use facing onto Kingsgate
Road’.

The following consultees submitted a response but did not comment specifically on Question 7 of the survey.
145

C236

1. Yes. Your information on page 41 about the
current site land uses is inaccurate and out of date.
You refer to Kingston printers being there as a 2
storey office facing Kingsgate road, on the corner of
Seven Kings Way. This is not the case. Kingston
Printers has not occupied that building for at least 3
years. The building is a workshop (light
industrial/warehouse) with studio offices used by a
thriving, family run kitchen and furniture
design/manufacturer, as well as an events company.
The kitchen/furniture company are employers of
Local residents and serve the local community in
North Kingston. These companies will be directly
affected by the development, however it is
impossible to find nowadays similar mixed use
buildings (commercial/industrial/office) in Kingston
as so many have been developed into flats and
houses. The kitchen/furniture workshop and studio is
a creative business used directly by Local residents
in home improvements. A combination of
warehouse/light industrial/office spaces should be
incorporated into the development plans to replace
the ones being demolished and rehouse the current
businesses on the site. 2. Also, the closure of
Kingsgate road early on and the ongoing
development works, must be done carefully and not
cause too much disruption to these businesses.

Responses to the North Kingston Development Brief Consultation
Name

ID

Name

1

Yvette (Local resident)

27

Chris Parry (Local resident)

6

Maurice Bentley (Local resident)

28

C Parkins-Godwin (Local resident)

7

E John (Local resident)

32

Marilyn Mason (Local resident)

9

G T KNIGHT (Local resident)

34

J Sellars (Local resident)

10

Carl Clarke (Local resident)

36

Michael McGrail (Local resident)

12

S Watson (Local resident)

38

Duncan Combe (Local resident)

13

Andrew Payne (Local resident)

42

Richard Robinson (Local resident)

16

Jessamy Oldfield (Local resident)

44

Xxx xxx (unknown)

20

Neil Fulk (Local resident)

45

Robert James (Local resident)

22

John Pitts (Local resident)

48

Sumit Thakur (Local resident)

23

Samantha Murphy (Local resident)

49

Shinjini Thakur (Local resident)

24

J Langridge (Local resident)

53

Sarah Olney (North Kingston Liberal Democrats)

C237

ID

146

N

ASI
YB
SUR

OND
RICHM
ROAD

AY
GS W

N KIN

SEVE
SOPWIT

H WAY

C238

North Kingston Development Area of Study
26/2/2016

NTS

North Kingston
C239

Development Brief
October 2016

2016 © Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames

ANNEX 5

C240

Plans within this document are produced using
Ordnance Survey mapping © Crown Copyright and
database right 2014. Ordnance Survey 100019285

2

October 2016

CONTENTS

C241

Introduction
Purpose of the Document				
Drivers for Change					
The Vision						
Objectives
Delivery Principles					

p4
p5
p6
p6
p7

Development Strategy
Introduction
Movement and Access				
Activity and Edges
Land Use						
Public Realm + Public Open Space			
Development Form and Massing			

p8
p10
p12
p14
p16
p18

Delivery
Introduction
Development Parcels				
Safeguarding					
Programme and Developer Contributions

p21
p21
p22
p23

Design Framework
Introduction
Richmond Road					
North South linear park				
East West linear park				
High quality learning environment			
High quality living environment			
Off site infrastructure
Humanise surrounding streets			

p24
p26
p28
p30
p32
p33
p34
p36

Appendix 1: Planning Context
Physical						
Policy						
Land Use						
Energy and Sustainability				
Movement and Access				

p38
p46
p50
p53
p54

3

INTRODUCTION

C242

Purpose of the Document

d
Roa

Kin

am
es

ond

en
Sev

d

reet

Kin

r St

a
Ro
te
ga
s
g

lte
Wa

ay
gs W

Riv
er T
h

in

Bas

hm
Ric

Sury

Sopwith Way

Bus Station
Railway Station

The North Kingston Development Brief area
The Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames (the Council) has produced this document
to provide landowners, developers and the wider community, with clear guidance for all
new developments in the North Kingston area, as part of the Council’s ‘Kingston Futures’
programme.
The North Kingston Development Brief illustrates a comprehensive vision for transformational
change for this inefficiently used and under performing part of Kingston Town Centre. It
proposes the creation of a new residential and education led mixed use quarter that will bring
about benefits to both Kingston Town Centre and the wider North Kingston area.
Parts of the development brief area have already commenced with the construction of the
former gas holder site and completion of the Kingston College extension (Creative Industries
Centre).
This Brief sets out the principles and framework to unlock the rest of the development area
in a responsive, comprehensive and integrated way. The intensification of land use is also
essential to ensure that sustainable development will occur on the identified sites, and in
order support the positive growth of the Town Centre.
The Brief has been prepared to promote development. It has been prepared in accordance
with the National Planning Policy Framework which sets out a presumption in favour of
sustainable development. The Brief is also in line with the Council’s existing Development
Plan, which consists the Core Strategy (2012) and the Kingston Town Centre Area Action Plan
(K+20) (2008).

4

October 2016

C243

The Core Strategy sets out strategic policies to manage future growth, change and
development within the Borough. The K+20 provides the framework for future development
and improvement in Kingston Town Centre by identifying key areas suitable to accommodate
development; key areas for conservation and enhancement; and environment and transport
improvements to protect the town centre from inappropriate development, whilst preserving
its character, the historic environment and the riverside.
North Kingston falls within Character Area 10 of the K+20. This Brief will help fulfill the
objectives for this character area through promoting a high quality mixed use development on
proposal sites P17-20.
Once adopted, this Brief will hold material weight in the determination of planning
applications. The Brief will provide an important framework to coordinate and guide
development and infrastructure investment within North Kingston.

Drivers for Change
The need to improve the physical and social fabric of Kingston is the key driver behind the
Council’s objective to transform priority areas within the Borough. The Council has identified a
number of major regeneration sites in the areas in the Borough.
The wider North Kingston area has been the subject of significant change in the recent past.
This will continue through Borough wide and regional initiatives. The development of the
brief area is being planned to respond to these opportunities, including:
•

The changing development context - Kingston Station has been identified as a
beneficiary of the Crossrail 2 programme. This will increase the connectivity of the
area.

•

The closure and remediation of the Gas Holders see the removal of a use which has
blighted the area.

•

The reorganisation of road network has identified the opportunity to close Kingsgate
Road.

•

Changing planning context - Kingston has been identified as an emerging Opportunity
Area.

•

Delivery of new homes - the Borough has an increasing demand for new homes. The
Council is working to ensure the capacity of well located sites such as North Kingston
are used most efficiently.
Updated
Plan
minor
amendments

Figure Ground Plan 2015: the large voids in the urban fabric display the sites underutilisation
5

C244

The Vision
The Council want to transform this previously largely derelict part of Kingston Town Centre
into a new residential and learning mixed use quarter. We intend to initiate a development
that achieves a combination of sustainable land use change, design excellence and
commercial viability.
North Kingston will be a great place to live, benefiting from new open space for residents,
with easy access to the station. New links and connections will be created, supporting
easy, direct and more pleasant routes drawing the adjoining neighbourhoods together. Car
dominance will be reduced. The area will be supported by a rejuvenated high street. North
Kingston will also be a great place to learn, as new college buildings or associated education
facilities help attract and retain students. A striking new park at the heart of the scheme
means the new development will not only benefit the site but also existing neighbourhood.
North Kingston will be a distinctive place. Create an inclusive place of exemplary architecture
and design that responds to the area’s opportunities.

Objectives
The redevelopment of North Kingston will achieve the following objectives:
•

The delivery of new homes in a central location; support a balanced mix of market and
affordable housing that utilises the close proximity to Kingston rail and bus station;

•

Reinforce the identity of Richmond Road as a local high street, with public open space
diverse community facilities and improvements to the retail;

•

Provide modern and flexible employment space that benefits from the close proximity
to public transport, and the highly accessible highway network;

•

Deliver a new high quality public realm that promotes active movement through
well used pedestrian and cycle routes and builds on linkages to the riverside and to
Richmond Park, linking with the ‘Cycling Borough’ initiative and ‘Go Cycle’ programme
to promote sustainable transport;

•

Support the existing education uses within the Brief area;

•

Delivers environmental improvements including addressing issues of noise and air
quality.

6

October 2016

C245

Delivery Principles
The following development principles will guide the delivery within the Development Brief
area, coordinating its transformation and promoting a strategy that will unlock the site’s
potential. The aim of these principles is to bring together the fragmented land ownership
pattern into one sustainable development plan.
The Development Principles clearly set out how the Council will assess a development
proposal’s ability to secure the objectives of the brief, and will prove the basis for guiding the
Council’s intervention.
All development proposals for the North Kingston development sites will be required to
demonstrate how they meet the overarching Development Principles set out below.

Delivery Principles
•

Comprehensive - rationalisation of land ownership into appropriate sized development
parcels to ensure the area can be subject to comprehensive development. This
approach will prevent the negative effects of piecemeal development and enable the
equalisation of infrastructure and enabling costs.

•

Integrated - improving connectivity, permeability and synergy of uses between the
development parcels and developing strong visual, physical and notional linkages to
the wider area. Any development will need to help address the off-site issues which
have contributed to the current lack of integration, and

•

Intensive - the efficient use of land and sharing of uses and activities across the
development parcels, in order to optimise the development opportunity for the North
Kingston area. As a result of redevelopment the North Kingston area will be intensive
by way of amount of development, the types of development and the character of the
area.

Updated
Plan
minor
amendments

SURY

BAS

IN

SOPWIT

H WAY

NTS

Plan showing current land ownership boundaries
7

DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY
C246

Introduction

Park
Park
Park
North
North Kingston
KingstonDevelopment
DevelopmentSite
Site
North
Kingston
Richmond
Road
Public
Richmond
RoadDevelopment
PublicSpace
Space Site
Richmond
Road Public Space
Local
Local Route
Route
Local RouteRoad High Street Widening and Dedicated Cycle Lane
Richmond
Richmond Road High Street Widening and Dedicated Cycle Lane
NTS

Concept plan
Key
Park
Park
Park Space Connection
Open
North Kingston Development Site
North Kingston Development Site
North Kingston
Development
Site
North
Kingston
Development
Site
Richmond Road Public Space
Richmond Road Public Space
RichmondLine
Road Public Space
Railway
Local Route
Local Route
Local Route Richmond Road Widening and Dedicated
Improved
Richmond Road High Street Widening and Dedicated Cycle Lane
Richmond
Cycle
LaneRoad High Street Widening and Dedicated Cycle Lane
Richmond Road High Street Widening and Dedicated Cycle Lane
Existing Pedestrian Desire Lines
Existing Pedestrian
Desire
Lines Lines
Existing
Pedestrian
Desire
Existing Pedestrian Desire Lines
Thames Path
Thames Path
Thames
Path
Thames Path
Improve Pedestrian Desire Lines to the River Thames
Improve Pedestrian Desire Lines to the River Thames
Improve Pedestrian Desire Lines to the River Thames
New Junction and Turning from Sopwith Way to Richmond Road
New Junction and Turning from Sopwith Way to Richmond Road
New Junction and Turning from Sopwith Way to Richmond Road
Realignment of Seven Kings Way
Realignment of Seven Kings Way
Realignment of Seven Kings Way
New/ Remodelled Road
New/ Remodelled Road
New/ Remodelled Road
Existing Road Network
Existing Road Network
Existing Road Network
Proposed Mini Holland Quiet Route
Proposed Mini Holland Quiet Route
Proposed Mini Holland Quiet Route
Public Transport Node (Arrival/ Interchange)
Public Transport Node (Arrival/ Interchange)
Public Transport Node (Arrival/ Interchange)
8
Gateway/ Arrival Nodal Point
Gateway/ Arrival Nodal Point
Gateway/ Arrival Nodal Point
Local Landmark Building
Local Landmark Building

Richmond
Road High Street
Widening and Dedicated Cycle Lane
Existing
Existing Pedestrian
PedestrianDesire
DesireLines
Lines
Existing Pedestrian
Desire Lines
Thames
Thames Path
Path
Thames Path
Improve
Improve Pedestrian
PedestrianDesire
DesireLines
Linestotothe
theRiver
RiverThames
Thames
Improve Pedestrian Desire Lines to the River Thames

New
Turning
from
totoRichmond
New Junction
Junctionand
andand
Turning
fromSopwith
Sopwith
Way
Richmond
Road
New
Junction
Turning
fromWay
Sopwith
WayRoad
to
New
Junction
and
Turning
from
Sopwith
Way
to
Richmond
Road
Richmond
Road
Realignment of Seven Kings Way

Realignment of Seven Kings Way

Realignment
of Seven
Kings Way
Realignment
ofRoad
Seven
Kings Way
New/
Remodelled

New/ Remodelled Road

New/ Remodelled
Road
Existing
Road
Network
Existing
Road
Network

Existing Road Network

Existing Road
Network
Proposed
Cycle
Route
Proposed
Mini
Holland
Quiet Route

Proposed Mini Holland Quiet Route

Proposed
Mini Holland
Quiet Route
Public
Transport
(Arrival/
Interchange)
Public
Transport
NodeNode
(Arrival/
Interchange)

Public Transport Node (Arrival/ Interchange)

Public
Transport
Node
Key
Area
of Interface
Gateway/
Arrival
Nodal(Arrival/
Point Interchange)

Gateway/ Arrival Nodal Point

Gateway/
ArrivalBuilding
Nodal
Point
Local
Landmark
Building
Local
Landmark

Local Landmark Building
Local Landmark Building

October 2016

C247

The Development Strategy establishes a set of urban design strategies for the site. Each
strategy covers the whole site and indicates how the sites within the development area and
the adjoining area will work together to complement the vision for North Kingston.

Development Strategy Principles
•

The new development should knit into rather than compete with the surrounding
environment;

•

The development will establish a distinct character of particular relevance to Kingston
based on an understanding of the history of the area; and

•

If brought forward separately each new building and space must relate to the emerging
character of the North Kingston area.

9

C248

Movement and Access
Updated
Plan
minor
amendments

N
ASI
B
Y
SUR

SOPWIT

H WAY

New/ Improved Crossing
New or Remodelled Vehicular Route
NTS

Movement and Access Plan

Vehicular Route

Key
New/
Improved Crossing
New/
Improved
Crossing

Shared Space Carpark Access

New
Remodelled Vehicular
Route Route
New
ororRemodelled
Vehicular

Proposed Cycle
new ‘Quietway’
Indicative
Route Route

Existing Vehicular Movement

PedestrianPedestrian
and Cycle Onlyand
RouteCycle Only Route
Indicative

Vehicular Route
Route
Vehicular

Existing Pedestrian Movement

Proposed new ‘Quietway’ Route
Pedestrian and Cycle Only Route

10

October 2016

C249

The North Kingston area plays an important role in the local and town wide movement
network. The legacy of this means that the site is now cut off from the adjoining
neighbourhoods as a result of busy and inhospitable roads. The Movement and Access
Strategy is set out to rationalise movement around the site. The Kingston Town Centre
Movement Study (2014) tested the closure of Kingsgate Road. The existing vehicular
movement network that surrounds the site will be controlled and realigned at salient
points to ensure that the balance is redressed between vehicles, pedestrians and cyclists.
Redevelopment will ensure that pedestrians and cycles are the dominant form of movement
within the Brief area.
Public transport nodes are located at Richmond Road and Sury Basin. Routes will be designed
to link up to the surrounding movement network and public transport routes at convenient
and appropriate locations. Safe and direct crossing points will be provided at each point
where pedestrian and cycle desire lines cross principal roads.

Movement and Access Principles
•

Pedestrian movement will be prioritised along all routes within the site. Cycles will be
permitted in the linear parks.

•

The north-south route through the site will connect as directly as possible with onward
connections to the station.

•

Onwards connections off-site will be facilitated and delivered. Their design will allow
for easy and direct movement for all users.

•

Streets at the edge of the site will be humanised with the introduction of generous
footways and appropriate landscaping.

•

Richmond Road will allow two way movements whilst ensuring conflict is minimised.

•

Vehicles within the site will be kept to a minimum and will be subservient to other
movements. Vehicular access to buildings within the Brief area will be designed to
minimise impact on public space and will not be allowed to connect through the site.

•

Seven Kings Way will be widened and realigned to take up its role in better dealing
with traffic flows.

•

Two vehicular routes to travel north joining Richmond Road to be retained at all times.

11

C250

Activity and Edges
Updated
Plan
minor
amendments

IN
BAS
Y
R
SU

SOPWIT

H WAY

NTS

Activity and Edges Plan
Key
Primary AcƟvity
Primary
Frontage
Secondary AcƟvity
Secondary
Frontage
AcƟvity Node

12

October 2016

C251

The Activity and Edges Strategy acknowledges that Richmond Road is of primary importance
in the North Kingston area as an existing designated neighbourhood centre. Any proposal
must respond to this corridor by creating new complementary uses that will enhance the offer
of Richmond Road.
Residential access will be located in appropriate and attractive points within the site. New
public space to be well-defined and addressed by uses, such as shops, cafes or residential
front doors, which act to animate space.

Activity and Edges Principles
•

The Richmond Road frontage will be fully active respecting its role as a high street.

•

All public environments will be addressed and overlooked by active uses. Blank or car
parking frontages on to streets and public spaces must be avoided.

•

Service accesses, bin stores, car park entrances and other similar poor quality
frontages must be minimised and located to reduce their impact on key primary or
secondary frontages

•

Ground floor units should be designed to ensure their future flexibility allowing them
to adapt to new users to ensure they can continued to function as active uses.

13

C252

Land Use
Updated
Plan
minor
amendments

IN
BAS
Y
R
SU

SOPWIT

H WAY

NTS

Land Use Plan
Key
Education Use
Retail (including A2/A3) and/ or Education and Residential Use
Education and/ or Community, Residential, Retail and Open Space
Office, Commercial and Student Accommodation
Retail (including A2/A3) and/ or Community, Commercial, Residential, Car Parking and
Education Use

14

October 2016

C253

The Land Use Strategy in the North Kingston area aligns with the Kingston Town Centre Area
Action Plan (K+20) and reflect site circumstances. The land uses proposed are shown across
land ownership boundaries to enable the comprehensive redevelopment of the area, which
could not happen on a site by site basis.
Uses such as cafes or community space which encourages interaction with public spaces will
be placed at the ground and lower floors frontages in salient locations with retail uses located
to front onto Richmond Road to reinforce the activity in this important corridor. Education
uses will be located in close proximity to the already successfully established Kingston College.
The upper floor levels are identified for residential uses. This approach will create a mixed use
environment that will be active at the appropriate time during the day and evening.
The combination of these uses will reinforce the character of the Brief area as an education
led mixed use quarter on the northern edge of the Town Centre.

Land Use Principles
•

Land uses to be fully compliant with K+20.

•

Intensify mixed use throughout the site to ensure appropriate densities on in this location.

•

The Richmond Road ground floor uses must be retail, college or similar.

15

C254

Public Realm & Public Open Space
Updated
Plan
minor
amendments

N
ASI
B
Y
SUR

SOPWIT

H WAY

NTS

Public Realm & Public Open Space Plan
Key
Public
Open
Space
Public Open
Space
(Linear/ Pocket Park)
Private
Open
Space
Private Open
Space
Semi-Private
Public Square Space
Pedestrian Access
Shared Surface Vehicular Access
Street and Crossing Improvements
Dedicated Cycle Lane
Semi-Private Space

16

October 2016

C255

New public spaces will be created in key locations throughout the development area. It will be
designed to transform the environments from car dominated thoroughfares, to spaces where
people can spend time in a safe and attractive setting. The public realm will be attractive to
use for people of all ages and ability. The public open space will provide a respite from the
busier more active areas.
The design of public space will be responsive to its intended use and role in the site. New
public space in proximity to Richmond Road and the station will be robust to cater for a range
activities. In contrast the public park will encourage biodiversity catering for more recreational
and amenity activities. New public spaces will need to accommodate an appropriate means of
dealing with water drainage to support biodiversity and address climatic issues.
All new spaces will have a clear purpose and design concept responsive to the emerging
character of the area. The quality of the spaces will encourage people to use them and to
overlook them, creating valuable amenity for the North Kingston area, addressing the deficit
of quality, well used public space in the area. New spaces and streets should be located at the
confluence of these networks, in order to capture footfall and provide space in areas where it
will be most easy to access.

Public Realm & Public Open Space Principles
•

New open space will address the deficit in the locality. New space must serve the
needs of the community in and around the site.

•

With the removal of Kingsgate Road, the new public spaces will be vehicle free,
allowing safe and easy pedestrian and cycle movement.

•

All new public space must be guided by a clear design concept related to its function(s)
within the sites wider open space strategy.

•

All new public space must be accessible and inclusive for all users.

•

New public realm and open space must be designed with due regard to microclimate.

•

New public realm must help deal with excess water and must incorporate on-site
mitigation.

•

New public spaces will be planned and maintained to encourage biodiversity

17

C256

Development Form and Massing
Updated
Plan
minor
amendments

IN
BAS
Y
R
SU

SOPWIT

H WAY

NTS

Heights Plan
Key
Up to maximum 12 Storeys
8+ Storeys
Up
to 9 Storeys
4-7 Storeys
Storeys
4-7

1-3
1-3 Storeys
Storeys

Please note: All ‘storey’ heights are inclusive of ground floor

18

October 2016

C257

The North Kingston area is located between areas of differing massing and urban form. Any
development on this site must respond to its context, while acknowledging the scope for
appropriate innovation. It is anticipated that the North Kingston area will establish its own
character, drawing on the site’s history and context. Given the relatively small scale of the site
it is envisaged that development on any part of the site will respond to a singular emerging
character of the whole.
Development form and building heights will need to take into account the impact on
surrounding areas and existing townscape notably the scale difference between recent
developments and Richmond Road.
Development form and massing of buildings will need to be considered closely alongside
the spaces they frame. A key objective with regard to height and form is to ensure that the
shading of central areas and the public park is minimised. Any development will need to
justify the height from many perspectives, including but not limited to architectural merit and
the overall visual impact from within and outside the development area, including protected
key views.
The frontage along Richmond Road will be enhanced to create a high quality northern
approach to the Town Centre successfully incorporating the existing buildings of townscape
merit at Kingston College and the listed Former Gala Bingo building. Development should
acknowledge the confluence of Richmond Road and Sopwith Way, demarcating this corner
with the Former Gala Bingo listed building and the Station Gateway.
Development Form and Massing Principles
•

The proposed development form must understand and respond to the prevailing development
form in the area.

•

Proposed development form will derive from a comprehensive masterplan approach.

•

Building heights must respond to the surrounding area and must not negatively impact on
neighbouring properties or spaces. This is especially the case with regard to locally and statutory
listed buildings.

•

The location and design of any taller buildings, ‘landmarks’ or ‘gateways’ must be explained and
fully justified by a thorough townscape appraisal.

•

Any tall buildings must respond to their role and must be of high architectural quality to justify
their increased prominence. Any prominent building must be of exceptional design quality, in line
with national best practice*. Outline applications for tall buildings will not be acceptable.

•

Development form must not negatively affect the microclimate of proposed or existing public
realm (including impact on sunlight/daylight and wind).

•

Building heights must respect key strategic and local views. Proposed buildings must positively
contribute to the panorama and key views as noted in the K+20 and Core Strategy, and provide
accurate visual representations alongside a robust assessment of the impact on these views.

•

Any new building must be fit for purpose in accordance with the Council’s design guidance.

•

The design of buildings and public realm (including the alignment of streets) must help with
wayfinding for those who are familiar with or new to the area

•

All new development must celebrate existing local buildings of special quality, including Kingston
College’s main building and the listed Gala Bingo building, including in views along Richmond Road.
* Including Historic England Advice Note 4 (2015)
19

DELIVERY

C258

Introduction
The purpose of the Development Brief is to coordinate development proposals across the site
area. Any development coming forward must adhere to the Development Parcels identified.
The Council expects applicants to wholly control the sites – either through ownership, option
agreement or joint venture partnerships. Development coming forward outside of these
parcels will be deemed as piecemeal and/or premature.
If areas identified within the Development Brief prove difficult to unlock, the Council is
prepared to utilise its available planning powers in order to effect change. The Council
also proposes using its land ownership interests to contribute towards the comprehensive
transformation of the area, either through land amalgamation, land exchange, joint venture or
redevelopment of its own land individually or combined with neighbouring land parcels.
Phasing will be determined to ensure that development is coordinated and comprehensive
and delivers key land uses. The Council welcomes discussions with landowners and investors
based upon the principles set out in this Development Strategy.

Development Parcels Principles
•

The proposed development should accord with the parcels identified

•

Must identify how each phase of development will allow North Kingston to operate
at a successful place

•

Must not frustrate the long term delivery of wider development objectives

20

October 2016

C259

Development Parcels
The nature and scale of the Development Parcels created form a fundamental aspect of
the Development Brief. They outline the rationalisation of land ownership boundaries into
clearly defined areas that can be brought forward in different or complementary phases,
contributing to the overall regeneration of the North Kingston area. Parcels can be combined
in delivery terms and the Council will encourage this approach. However, development cannot
be delivered in smaller or piecemeal sizes than the areas defined within this plan, as this will
contravene the comprehensive approach to regeneration for the North Kingston area.
Updated
Plan
minor
amendments

N
ASI
B
Y
SUR

SOPWIT

H WAY

NTS

Development Parcels Plan
Key
Parcel Boundary
Potential Phasing

21

C260

Safeguarding
Areas of the site will need to be safeguarded for public realm and movement and access that
are required to support the redevelopment proposals for the Brief area. Most importantly
this safeguarding is required for the realignment and widening of the surrounding movement
network at salient points. Without this the ability to deliver long term change in the area will
be frustrated. Key to unlocking this are the junctions at Sopwith Way with Seven Kings Way
and Sopwith Way with Richmond Road. Seven Kings Way will be widened and realigned at
northern and southern points to enable better flow through for traffic and safer environment
for pedestrians and cyclists. Richmond Road will also see the introduction of an additional
lane and dedicated cycle lane to improved access to/ from Sopwith Way. Space will be
safeguarded along Sopwith Way to ensure future two-way working can be accommodated,
ensuring the Council can deliver its preferred transport option as identified by the Town
Centre Movement Study (2014).
North Kingston falls within an identified area of Archaeological Significance. Robust
exploratory investigations to determine if significant remains are present on site must be
undertaken and should define their character, extent, quality and preservation.
Updated
Plan
minor
amendments

N
ASI
B
Y
SUR

SOPWIT

H WAY

NTS

Safeguarding Plan

Key

Area safeguarded for highway
Area safeguarded for access, public open space or public realm

22

October 2016

C261

Developer Contributions
The Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) was
formally introduced on 1 November 2015. Accordingly from that date, the principal means by
which developments contribute towards infrastructure provision in the Borough of Kingston is
via CIL. The Kingston CIL will be charged on all applicable development.
Under Regulation 123 of the CIL Regulations, the Council is required to publish a list of
the projects that it intends to finance, in whole or in part, using CIL receipts. The purpose
of the list is to ensure that developers do not end up paying twice for the same piece of
infrastructure.
Planning Obligations under S106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, and highways
agreements under S278 of the Highways Act 1980 and in accordance with the Community
Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 will continue to  secure affordable housing, mitigate the
local impact of development and address non-infrastructure requirements.
The Mayoral CIL will continue to be charged on all applicable developments.

23

DESIGN FRAMEWORK
C262

Introduction
Updated
Plan
minor
amendments

IN
BAS
Y
R
SU

New/ Improved Crossing

SOPWITNew or Remodelled Vehicular Route
H WAY
Existing Vehicular Movement
New/ Improved
Vehicular
Route Crossing
New or Remodelled
Vehicular Route
Potential
Cycle Only Route
Existing Vehicular
Movement
Potential
Shared Space
Route
VehicularQuiet
RouteWay
Proposed
Potential Cycle
Only Only
RouteRoute
Pedestrian
and Cycle
Potential
Shared Space
Route
Existing
Pedestrian
Movement

NTS

Proposed
Quiet
WayBuildings
Key
Views to
Marker

Design Framework Plan
KEY

Pedestrian
Cycle
Only Route
Key
Views toand
Open
Space

New/ Improved Crossing
New/
Improved
Crossing
New/
Improved
Crossing
New or
Remodelled
Vehicular Route

Existing
Pedestrian
Movement
Existing
Pedestrian
Movement
Local
Landmark
Buildings

New
or
Remodelled
Vehicular
Route Route
New/
Remodelled
Vehicular
Existing
Vehicular Movement

Key Views
to Marker Buildings
Primary
Activity
Primary
Activity

Existing
Vehicular
Existing
Vehicular
Movement
Vehicular
Route Movement

Key ViewsActivity
to Activity
Open Space
Secondary
Secondary
Local Landmark
Activity
Node Buildings

Vehicular
Route
Vehicular
Route
Potential Cycle
Only Route
Potential
Cycle
Only
Route
Potential
Shared
Space
RouteAccess
Shared
Space
Car
Park

Primary Activity

Potential
Space
Route
ProposedShared
Quiet
Way
Indicative
Cycle
Route

Secondary Activity

Proposed
Way Only Route
PedestrianQuiet
and Cycle
Indicative
Pedestrian
and Cycle Route Only

Activity Node

Pedestrian
and CycleMovement
Only Route
Existing Pedestrian
Existing
Pedestrian
Movement
Key Views
to Marker
Buildings
Key
Buildings
Key Views
Views to
to Marker
Open Space
Key
to Open
Space
LocalViews
Landmark
Buildings
Local
Landmark
Primary
ActivityBuildings

24

October 2016

C263

The Design Framework sets out how the future development of the site can help achieve the
Council’s vision and fulfil the objectives set out earlier in this document. This should be read in
conjunction with Delivery Principles and Development Strategy section of this Brief.
Framework plan:
•

Richmond Road

•

North South linear park

•

East West linear park

•

High quality learning environment

•

High quality living environment

•

Surrounding infrastructure

•

Humanise surrounding streets

25

C264

Richmond Road

New/ Improved Crossing
New or Remodelled Vehicular Route

KEY

Updated
Plan

New/ Improved
Existing
VehicularCrossing
Movement
New/ Improved Crossing

New
Remodelled
Vehicular Route
New/
Improved
Crossing
Vehicular
Route Crossing
New/or
Improved
New or Remodelled Vehicular Route

Existing
Vehicular
Potential
Cycle OnlyMovement
Route
New/
Remodelled
Vehicular
New or
Remodelled
Vehicular
Route Route

minor
amendments

Existing Vehicular Movement

Vehicular
Route Space
Potential
Shared
Route
Existing
Vehicular
Movement
Existing Vehicular
Movement
Vehicular Route

Potential
Cycle
Only Route
Proposed
Way
VehicularQuiet
Route
Vehicular
Route
Potential Cycle Only Route

Potential
Shared
Space
Route
Pedestrian
and Cycle
Only
Route
Potential
Cycle
Only
Route
Shared
Space
Car
Park
Access
Potential Shared Space Route

IN
BAS
SURY

Proposed
Quiet
Way
Existing
Pedestrian
Movement
Potential
Shared
Space
Route
Indicative
Cycle
Route
Proposed Quiet Way

Pedestrian
and
Cycle
Only Route
Key
Views to
Marker
Proposed
Quiet
WayBuildings
Indicative
Pedestrian
and Cycle
Pedestrian
and
Cycle
Only Route
Route
Only
Existing
Movement
Key
ViewsPedestrian
toand
Open
Space
Pedestrian
Cycle
Only Route
Existing Pedestrian Movement
Existing
Pedestrian
Movement
Key
Views
to Marker
Buildings
Local
Landmark
Buildings
Existing
Pedestrian
Movement
Key Views to Marker Buildings
Primary
Activity
Key
to
Space
Primary
Activity
Key Views
Views
to Open
Marker
Buildings
Key Views to Open Space
Secondary
Local
Landmark
Buildings
Secondary
Activity
Key Views
toActivity
Open
Space
Local Landmark Buildings
Primary
Activity Buildings
Activity
Node
Local
Landmark
Primary Activity
Secondary
Activity
Primary Activity
Secondary Activity
Activity
Node
Secondary
Activity
Activity Node
Activity Node

SOPWIT

H WAY

NTS

Design Framework Plan : Richmond Road
Existing
Richmond Road today functions as a High Street, with local and national retail outlets,
restaurants cafes and bars at ground floor mixed with residential and office at first floor level.
Behind the street on the east side are also commercial yards. It is a true mixed use area.
Richmond Road also functions as a busy movement route for cyclists and pedestrians due
to its direct connection to the station and town centre. The current condition of pavements
(width) and cycle lanes (quality and on-ward connection) is poor, and must be improved as
part of the wider changes to the North Kingston area.
Richmond Road forms part of the Kingston inner ring road. This places challenges on the
development in terms of gaining greater connectivity across the street, and allowing both
sides of Richmond Road to function together as a (High) Street.
Richmond Road is the address for Kingston College. It attracts students by bus and on foot.
Richmond Road has its own character. The character of the area, despite diverse building
forms and heights, is as a unified environment. It is currently blighted by the amount and
nature of the traffic, the lower quality buildings along certain stretches as well as the poor
quality public realm, especially the footpaths.

26

October 2016

C265

Future
The future for Richmond Road is to act as an ‘improved’ High Street, continuing to support
the local area with its mix of retail, leisure and commercial uses. Any new development must
support this. New development must understand and respond to the character of Richmond
Road, particularly further north where the scale, rhythm, use and detail refelct the historic
importance and character of this route.
The Council welcome the extension and consolidation of education uses. Active uses at
ground floor, with primary frontage onto Richmond Road, is essential. A mixed use model with
homes located above commercial, retail, cafe/resturant or leisure use is the preferred option.
The future of the North Kingston area should make space for students to congregate, relax
and spend time (see 4. High quality learning environment).
With changes to the function of Richmond Road, and its place in the wider road network
there will be opportunities to limit the negative impact of traffic. The future of Richmond
Road is to act as a movement corridor for bikes and pedestrians. The width of public realm
(both pavements and cycle ways) must be increased to improve flow and ease of movement.
The width of the street (building line to building line) will be a minimum of 17m, allowing
generous space for movement, shopping and ground floor uses to occupy elements of the
street (without conflicting each other).
The determining factor of height in this environment will be its role in supporting the street.
Delivery
With the closure of Kingsgate Road the operation of Richmond Road will change. Any planning
of new development on the western edge of Richmond Road must allow for the widening and
realignment of the highway to allow left turn access from Sopwith Way into Richmond Road,
the widening of footpaths and cycleways and the inclusion of new vehicle lane to Richmond
Road.
Any new development must:
•

Provide active frontages onto Richmond Road at 100%;

•

Must fall in line with land uses plan: Ground Floor (predominantly A1 retail uses) above
First Floor (residential);

•

Create attractive and safe walking and cycling routes, in addition to space for
circulation, shopping and lingering;

•

The scale of development should respond to the site’s wider role in the transition from
the character areas to the east and west; and

•

The plot width of development (at ground floor) should support the rhythm of the
High Street and historic character of this route.

27

C266

North South Linear Park

New/ Improved Crossing
New or Remodelled Vehicular Route
New/ Improved
Existing
VehicularCrossing
Movement

Updated
Plan

New/ Improved Crossing

New
Remodelled
Vehicular Route
New/
Improved
Crossing
Vehicular
Route Crossing
New/or
Improved
New or Remodelled Vehicular Route

Existing
Vehicular
Potential
Cycle OnlyMovement
Route
New/
Remodelled
Vehicular
New or
Remodelled
Vehicular
Route Route

minor
amendments

Existing Vehicular Movement

Vehicular
Route Space
Potential
Shared
Route
Existing
Vehicular
Movement
Existing Vehicular
Movement
Vehicular Route

Potential
Cycle
Only Route
Proposed
Way
VehicularQuiet
Route
Vehicular
Route
Potential Cycle Only Route

Potential
Shared
Space
Route
Pedestrian
and Cycle
Only
Route
Potential
Cycle
Only
Route
Shared
Space
Car
Park
Access
Potential Shared Space Route

IN
BAS
SURY

Proposed
Quiet
Way
Existing
Pedestrian
Movement
Potential
Shared
Space
Route
Indicative
Cycle
Route
Proposed Quiet Way

Pedestrian
and
Cycle
Only Route
Key
Views to
Marker
Proposed
Quiet
WayBuildings
Indicative
Pedestrian
and Cycle
Pedestrian
and
Cycle
Only Route
Route
Only
Existing
Movement
Key
ViewsPedestrian
toand
Open
Space
Pedestrian
Cycle
Only Route
Existing Pedestrian Movement
Existing
Pedestrian
Movement
Key
Views
to Marker
Buildings
Local
Landmark
Buildings
Existing
Pedestrian
Movement
Key Views to Marker Buildings
Primary
Activity
Key
to
Space
Primary
Activity
Key Views
Views
to Open
Marker
Buildings
Key Views to Open Space
Secondary
Local
Landmark
Buildings
Secondary
Activity
Key Views
toActivity
Open
Space
Local Landmark Buildings
Primary
Activity Buildings
Activity
Node
Local
Landmark
Primary Activity
Secondary
Activity
Primary Activity
Secondary Activity
Activity
Node
Secondary
Activity
Activity Node
Activity Node

SOPWIT

H WAY

NTS

Design Framework Plan : North South Linear Park
Existing
The North Kingston area is deficient in public open space.
North south movement through the area for pedestrians and cyclists is pushed to the edges
of the site, limited to the busy and constricted Richmond Road, or the Seven Kings Way and
connects with the equally busy and challenging Sopwith Way.
Walter Street is uninviting with back of house infrastructure and access to surface car park.     
Future
The primary role of the linear park is to provide much needed high quality public open space
thereby mitigating the impact of the development on existing deficit. This park will also act
as a pleasant and attractive North-South connection for local residents and others moving
through the area. The route should be efficient in delivering people where they want to go.
At the southern end this must align (as best as practicable) with new and improved crossing
points towards the station.
The park has an additional role as a setting for the residential buildings, and should provide
space for future residents (old and young) to congregate and enjoy. This is especially the case
at the northern end where the footfall through the area will likely be less.
28

October 2016

C267

The park will be a public space and should feel so, with clear and visible onward links. It
should also be physically and theoretically accessible to all. The North South park should not
be seen as the foreground for private buildings or private spaces.
The park will be addressed by residential frontages and accesses to provide a pleasant
setting for homeowners and activity within the space. Ground floor units will be provided
with private amenity space, and will have front-doors onto the park. Bin stores and other
similar uses will not be considered as active frontage and should be located to minimise their
negative impact on public space.
The whole park will operate as a pedestrian and cycle friendly area; the intrusion of cars into
the linear park will be kept to an absolute minimum. Care must be taken in locating car park
and other accesses to limit vehicle movement through the space, and limit access ramps
negatively impacting on the visual and functional aspects of the park. Access ramps will be
located predominantly within the private realm.
The southern end of the park will be more heavily trafficked by pedestrians and cyclists. This
increased activity will be borne out in its design.
Issues of scale a mass of adjoining properties will be considered with relation to their impact
on the quality of the environment by means of appropriate enclosure (without feeling
oppressive) and the effect on microclimate (including wind, sunlight and daylight).
Delivery
With the commencement of development on the Gas Holder site the developer will be
designing and delivering the first phase of the linear park (north of Kingsgate Road). The linear
park can only be completed with the closure of Kingsgate Road, and the subsequent delivery
of sites to the south.
The north-south park should be planned and delivered as a holistic environment and should
look and feel like a single consistent environment regardless of how it is delivered or by
whom.
The success of the park will be intimately linked to the successful delivery of off-site
infrastructure and improvement to crossing points and junctions.
Any new development must:
•

Be available to all members of the public

•

Provide safe access and movement for pedestrians and cyclist

•

Provide connection to onward links

•

Be predominantly green in character

•

Address issues of microclimate to ensure all public realm is attractive and fit for purpose
(including the impact of scale of buildings on wind movement and shadowing)

•

Be predominantly addressed by active frontages including front doors to residential or other units
at ground floor

•

Take the opportunity to: deal positively with water; encourage biodiversity

29

C268

East West Linear Park

New/ Improved Crossing
New or Remodelled Vehicular Route

KEY

Updated
Plan

New/ Improved
Existing
VehicularCrossing
Movement
New/ Improved Crossing

New
Remodelled
Vehicular Route
New/
Improved
Crossing
Vehicular
Route Crossing
New/or
Improved
New or Remodelled Vehicular Route

Existing
Vehicular
Potential
Cycle OnlyMovement
Route
New/
Remodelled
Vehicular
New or
Remodelled
Vehicular
Route Route

minor
amendments

Existing Vehicular Movement

Vehicular
Route Space
Potential
Shared
Route
Existing
Vehicular
Movement
Existing Vehicular
Movement
Vehicular Route

Potential
Cycle
Only Route
Proposed
Way
VehicularQuiet
Route
Vehicular
Route
Potential Cycle Only Route

Potential
Shared
Space
Route
Pedestrian
and Cycle
Only
Route
Potential
Cycle
Only
Route
Shared
Space
Car
Park
Access
Potential Shared Space Route

IN
BAS
SURY

Proposed
Quiet
Way
Existing
Pedestrian
Movement
Potential
Shared
Space
Route
Indicative
Cycle
Route
Proposed Quiet Way

Pedestrian
and
Cycle
Only Route
Key
Views to
Marker
Proposed
Quiet
WayBuildings
Indicative
Pedestrian
and Cycle
Pedestrian
and
Cycle
Only Route
Route
Only
Existing
Movement
Key
ViewsPedestrian
toand
Open
Space
Pedestrian
Cycle
Only Route
Existing Pedestrian Movement
Existing
Pedestrian
Movement
Key
Views
to Marker
Buildings
Local
Landmark
Buildings
Existing
Pedestrian
Movement
Key Views to Marker Buildings
Primary
Activity
Key
to
Space
Primary
Activity
Key Views
Views
to Open
Marker
Buildings
Key Views to Open Space
Secondary
Local
Landmark
Buildings
Secondary
Activity
Key Views
toActivity
Open
Space
Local Landmark Buildings
Primary
Activity Buildings
Activity
Node
Local
Landmark
Primary Activity
Secondary
Activity
Primary Activity
Secondary Activity
Activity
Node
Secondary
Activity
Activity Node
Activity Node

SOPWIT

H WAY

NTS

Design Framework Plan : East West Linear Park
Existing
Partly as a result of the history of the area and the legacy of roads and infrastructure, the
North Kingston area is particularly hard to traverse east-west (these routes are limited and of
generally poor quality). This has not been improved by the recent developments to the west
of Seven Kings Way. There are however clear desire lines, from existing residential areas to
the east of Richmond Road, and Canbury Gardens and the River Thames to the west.
Future
The park has a role as a setting for the residential, commercial and educational buildings, and
should provide space for future residents and users to congregate and enjoy.
The park will be a public space and should feel so, with clear and visible onward links. It
should also be physically and theoretically accessible to everyone. Residential frontages
must address the park with direct access to provide a pleasant setting for homeowners
and enhance activity and natural surveillance within the space. Ground floor units will be
provided with private amenity space, and will have front-doors onto the park. Bin stores and
other similar uses will not be considered as active frontage and should be located to minimise
their negative impact on public space.

30

October 2016

C269

The whole park will operate as a pedestrian and cycle friendly area; the intrusion of cars into
the linear park will be kept to an absolute minimum.
The Eastern end of the park will be more heavily trafficked by pedestrians and cyclists. This
increased activity will be borne out in its design. This space will also have a clear functional
relationship with Kingston College and Richmond Road.
Issues of scale a mass of adjoining properties will be considered with relation to their impact
on the quality of the environment by means of appropriate enclosure (without feeling
oppressive) and the effect on microclimate (including wind, sunlight and daylight).
Delivery
With the commencement of development on the Gas Holder site the developer will be
designing and delivering the first buildings which will address the park. The linear park
can only be completed with the closure of Kingsgate Road, but can come forward prior
to the commencement of sites to the South of Kingsgate Road. Following the consent
of development on the Gas Holder site, and the location of the parking ramp to this
development in the public realm, any new development to the south will have to work even
harder to ensure the quality of the space at this point, not least the generosity afforded to
pedestrian and cycle spaces.
The east-west park should be planned and delivered as a holistic environment and should
look and feel like a single consistent environment regardless of how it is delivered or by
whom.
This area will have to address questions of access to underground statutory services which
may exist in the area of Kingsgate Road.
The success of the park will be intimately linked to the successful delivery of off-site
infrastructure and improvement to crossing points and junctions. A critical element of this
will be the expanded junction between Seven Kings Way and Sopwith Way. Here it will be
essential to ensure that crossing points for cycles and pedestrians function as safe and fluidly
as possible to provide good levels of accessibility and ensure the desirability of this route.
The closure of Kingsgate Road will be brought forward by the Council to ensure its
deliverability.
Any new development must:
•

Be available to all members of the public

•

Provide safe access and movement for pedestrians and cyclist

•

Provide connection to onward links

•

Be predominantly addressed by active frontages including front doors to residential or
other units at ground floor

•

Respond to the uses which adjoin it including accommodating the college, its students
and visitors.

•

Address issues of microclimate to ensure all public realm is attractive and fit for purpose
(including the impact of scale of buildings on wind movement and shadowing)

31

C270

High Quality Learning Environment
Existing
North Kingston has for a long time been home to learning institutions. Today the Kingston
College is jointly housed in its historic building as well as the recently completed Creative
Industries Centre. This, coupled with the provision of a catering college restaurant on the
Gasholder site, creates a growing learning hub. The redevelopment of adjoining sites provides
the opportunity for growth of related uses, capitalising on the success of the college.
Future
There is scope for North Kingston to build on the success of its education institutions. Any
new education buildings will need to be of the highest quality as learning environments for
their students, as well as playing a successful role in the townscape of North Kingston, be it
framing new public routes or ensuring it does not have a negative impact on its neighbours.
Colleges and other places of learning need to be complemented with appropriate public realm
to support their operation. Given the intensive use of certain buildings at key points in the day
the public realm will need to be appropriately robust. Consideration should be given to how
education buildings can be of use to the wider community, through their design, management
or operation. The compatibility of these users with the demands of other users, especially
residents, should be explored and tested through the design of new public spaces.
Access and delivery requirements need to be balanced with the effect these uses can have
on the public domain. Such spaces should be designed as public space first, with a secondary
function to allow intermittent access for vehicles.
Delivery
The land uses identified in K+20 and reiterated in this brief support the delivery of education
uses.
To ensure education uses on site are not compromised by negative environmental impacts,
including noise and air quality, applicants will need to work with the Council to develop means
to satisfactorily address these issues.

Kingston College, Richmond Road

Burntwood School, Wandsworth, AHMM Architects
32

October 2016

C271

High Quality Living Environment
Existing
North Kingston’s history as an area of industrial uses (especially gas storage) and the
domination of main road has meant that it has not been sympathetic to residential
development. The site is however neighboured to the east and west residential
neighbourhoods.
Future
Amongst the Objectives noted in this document is the delivery of new homes in a central
location. Given the proximity of the North Kingston site to the town centre, Kingston Station
and other sustainable methods of transport, and easy access to existing and proposed  areas
of recreation and leisure, it is well located to accommodate new homes. The future of North
Kingston is already changing. With the commencement of development of the Gas Holder site
the area is becoming a residential environment for the first time.
With the intensive redevelopment of the site there is a need to pay particular attention to the
density on development and its impact on the livability and neighbourliness of homes which
will be delivered in proximity to each other. Good levels of sunlight and daylight into homes
and public spaces are crucial.
Design and layout of proposed development will emerge from a careful analysis of the
existing character of the locality and minimised environmental impact. New residential
buildings should be supported with appropriate open space and private amenity space. This
is envisaged to be provided by the two linear parks. As such these spaces must be designed
to support residential use, and their occupation by the future residents. Access to buildings
should be appropriately located to ensure good levels of activity and overlooking. Any new
homes must be of high quality for occupiers, reduce negative impacts on the surrounding
environment while also supporting the development principles.
The site will provide new homes for families, and must comply with the requirement of
larger units within new developments in line with the Core Strategy. This will add a further
dimension to the design and use of spaces between buildings, ensuring that space is made
available for younger as well as older residents. The provision of affordable homes on site
must comply with policies set out in the London Plan and the Local Plan.
Delivery
The delivery of a high quality living environment is critical to ensuring attractive, functional
and sustainable homes. Developers will need to fully demonstrate proposals are well designed
and meet best practice guidelines.
To ensure new homes on site are not compromised by negative environmental impacts,
including noise and air quality, applicants will need to work with the Council to develop means
to satisfactorily address these issues.

33

C272

Surrounding Infrastructure

New/ Improved Crossing
New or Remodelled Vehicular Route

KEY

Updated
Plan

New/ Improved
Existing
VehicularCrossing
Movement
New/ Improved Crossing

New
Remodelled
Vehicular Route
New/
Improved
Crossing
Vehicular
Route Crossing
New/or
Improved
New or Remodelled Vehicular Route

Existing
Vehicular
Potential
Cycle OnlyMovement
Route
New/
Remodelled
Vehicular
New or
Remodelled
Vehicular
Route Route

minor
amendments

Existing Vehicular Movement

Vehicular
Route Space
Potential
Shared
Route
Existing
Vehicular
Movement
Existing Vehicular
Movement
Vehicular Route

Potential
Cycle
Only Route
Proposed
Way
VehicularQuiet
Route
Vehicular
Route
Potential Cycle Only Route

Potential
Shared
Space
Route
Pedestrian
and Cycle
Only
Route
Potential
Cycle
Only
Route
Shared
Space
Car
Park
Access
Potential Shared Space Route

IN
BAS
SURY

Proposed
Quiet
Way
Existing
Pedestrian
Movement
Potential
Shared
Space
Route
Indicative
Cycle
Route
Proposed Quiet Way

Pedestrian
and
Cycle
Only Route
Key
Views to
Marker
Proposed
Quiet
WayBuildings
Indicative
Pedestrian
and Cycle
Pedestrian
and
Cycle
Only Route
Route
Only
Existing
Movement
Key
ViewsPedestrian
toand
Open
Space
Pedestrian
Cycle
Only Route
Existing Pedestrian Movement
Existing
Pedestrian
Movement
Key
Views
to Marker
Buildings
Local
Landmark
Buildings
Existing
Pedestrian
Movement
Key Views to Marker Buildings
Primary
Activity
Key
to
Space
Primary
Activity
Key Views
Views
to Open
Marker
Buildings
Key Views to Open Space
Secondary
Local
Landmark
Buildings
Secondary
Activity
Key Views
toActivity
Open
Space
Local Landmark Buildings
Primary
Activity Buildings
Activity
Node
Local
Landmark
Primary Activity
Secondary
Activity
Primary Activity
Secondary Activity
Activity
Node
Secondary
Activity
Activity Node
Activity Node

SOPWIT

H WAY

NTS

Design Framework Plan : Surrounding Infrastructure
Existing
Due to poor connections alongside the dominance of roads and traffic as well as the historic
use of the site, the North Kingston area has effectively operated as an island. This has
required those pedestrians and cyclists who wish to visit the site or move through the area to
tackle crossing roads and other barriers which are not designed for them.
Future
The desire to knit the North Kingston area into its surrounding neighbourhoods is critical to
the success of the renewed area. One of the guiding development principles of the site is
to ensure its integration including improving connectivity, permeability and synergy of uses
between the development parcels, with strong links to the wider area.

34

October 2016

C273

While the internal site planning of the area can ensure movement routes for pedestrians
through the site, the real success of this ambition will only be borne out if these new
environments link seamlessly and efficiently with their surroundings to ensure ease of
movement to key destinations. There are key places where these connections need to be
made. These must be the focus of concerted effort to humanise them, ensuring priority is
given to pedestrians and cyclists as opposed to making them attractive spaces in their own
right.
Safety of all users will be a primary consideration, this principle must be practically and
rationally applied to ensure that the design of spaces are not over engineered (with barriers
or other additional infrastructure and clutter) at the expense of creating both safe and
pleasant spaces.
These environments will still form a critical part of the movement of private and public
vehicles around the town, and must carefully balance the competing demands of all users.
Critical points of conflict to be addressed include both ends of the east-west linear park
(Richmond Road and Seven Kings Way), and the link between north-south across (Sopwith
way and Sury Basin).
Delivery
The delivery of off-site infrastructure is critical to the success of the wider aspirations of
the development brief. Developers and other partners will need work together to facilitate
appropriate and deliverable solutions.
The Council will help bring about these changes.
The redesign and realignment of Seven Kings Way/Sopwith Way and Sopwith Way/Richmond
Road offers opportunity for necessary and meaning improvements to the pedestrian and cycle
experience.
To ensure new homes on site are not compromised by negative environmental impacts,
including noise and air quality, applicants will need to work with the Council to develop means
to satisfactorily address these issues.

Any new development must:
•

Respond to desire lines through providing direct links

•

Be safe and attractive to use

•

Respond to other infrastructure initiatives which seek to improve the area (including cycle
and other improvements)

•

Respond to the character of the area (or where justified develop their own particular
character).

35

C274

Humanise Surrounding Streets

New/ Improved Crossing
New or Remodelled Vehicular Route

KEY

Updated
Plan

New/ Improved
Existing
VehicularCrossing
Movement
New/ Improved Crossing

New
Remodelled
Vehicular Route
New/
Improved
Crossing
Vehicular
Route Crossing
New/or
Improved
New or Remodelled Vehicular Route

Existing
Vehicular
Potential
Cycle OnlyMovement
Route
New/
Remodelled
Vehicular
New or
Remodelled
Vehicular
Route Route

minor
amendments

Existing Vehicular Movement

Vehicular
Route Space
Potential
Shared
Route
Existing
Vehicular
Movement
Existing Vehicular
Movement
Vehicular Route

Potential
Cycle
Only Route
Proposed
Way
VehicularQuiet
Route
Vehicular
Route
Potential Cycle Only Route

Potential
Shared
Space
Route
Pedestrian
and Cycle
Only
Route
Potential
Cycle
Only
Route
Shared
Space
Car
Park
Access
Potential Shared Space Route

IN
BAS
SURY

Proposed
Quiet
Way
Existing
Pedestrian
Movement
Potential
Shared
Space
Route
Indicative
Cycle
Route
Proposed Quiet Way

Pedestrian
and
Cycle
Only Route
Key
Views to
Marker
Proposed
Quiet
WayBuildings
Indicative
Pedestrian
and Cycle
Pedestrian
and
Cycle
Only Route
Route
Only
Existing
Movement
Key
ViewsPedestrian
toand
Open
Space
Pedestrian
Cycle
Only Route
Existing Pedestrian Movement
Existing
Pedestrian
Movement
Key
Views
to Marker
Buildings
Local
Landmark
Buildings
Existing
Pedestrian
Movement
Key Views to Marker Buildings
Primary
Activity
Key
to
Space
Primary
Activity
Key Views
Views
to Open
Marker
Buildings
Key Views to Open Space
Secondary
Local
Landmark
Buildings
Secondary
Activity
Key Views
toActivity
Open
Space
Local Landmark Buildings
Primary
Activity Buildings
Activity
Node
Local
Landmark
Primary Activity
Secondary
Activity
Primary Activity
Secondary Activity
Activity
Node
Secondary
Activity
Activity Node
Activity Node

SOPWIT

H WAY

NTS

Design Framework Plan : Humanise Surrounding Streets
Existing
North Kingston has long been blighted by the scale and nature of the roads that surround
it. Sopwith Way is currently a car dominated environment. Development in the area has
historically not engaged with Sopwith Way as a street. This is exacerbated by the current
isolation that the sites on the north-side suffer from due to Kingsgate Road. The development
brief seeks to address this by closing Kingsgate Road in order to create a safer and more
desirable pedestrian environment.
The particular function of Richmond Road has been referred to earlier (pg. 38-39), this place
focuses on the other surrounding streets including Sopwith Way, Seven Kings Way and Sury
Basin.

36

October 2016

C275

Future
The future for this area needs to help change the surrounding environments from car
dominated roads to streets which feel more comfortable and attractive to walk along.
Sopwith Way is a busy route which means it is also highly visible to the many motorists who
use it. Development on the north side needs to play a role in enclosing and addressing this
street to help humanise this environment. This can best be done by presenting an active
frontage onto this route. The road will continue to be a main route. The future for Sopwith
Way is as a High Road, in that it will need to carry a lot of traffic, but still has a high ‘place
function’.
It is equally vital that the surrounding streets do not become secondary or leftover
environments, or viewed as being appropriate for ‘back of house’ facilitates such as bin
stores and service access. The role of front doors on the ground floor street edge, gardens,
street trees and vegetation must all be considered and employed were necessary in helping
humanise streets.
Delivery
The first stage in humanising the environment will be in the removal of Kingsgate Road which
severs the site. In addition the realignment of Seven Kings Way must be done in such a way to
ensure there is ample space for pedestrians and street trees, as demanded by the particular
design approach.
The development of sites which face onto Sopwith Way, Seven Kings Road and Sury Basin
will be carried out in such a way as to ensure that it can provide an engaging frontages on to
these key routes. A masterplan approach will allow issues of access, servicing, parking and bin
storage to be dealt with in a holistic way. Land adjoining Sopwith Way must be safeguarded to
facilitate the future operation of this street in line with the Town Centre Movement Study.
To ensure new or improved streets are not compromised by negative environmental impacts,
including noise and air quality, applicants will need to work with council to develop means to
satisfactorily address these issues.

Any new development must:
•

Be addressed by active frontages (and not negatively effected by back of house functions)

•

Maximise the opportunity to incorporate trees and other landscape

•

Help improve environmental quality (addressing noise and air pollution)

•

Provide appropriately scaled and direct footways

•

Address issues of microclimate to ensure all public realm is attractive and fit for purpose
(including the impact of scale of buildings on wind movement and shadowing)

37

C276

APPENDIX 1: PLANNING CONTEXT : Physical - The Site

N

ASI
YB
SUR

OAD
OND R
RICHM

N KIN

SEVE
AY
GS W
SOPWIT

H WAY

NTS

Plan showing the boundary for the North Kingston development area
This Development Brief covers an area of approximately 3ha. The site is located in a highly
accessible area, 400m from the River Thames, 300m north of the main shopping core of
Kingston Town Centre and just 60m from Kingston train station, which boasts a Public
Transport Accessibility Level (PTAL) rating of 6a (‘excellent’).
It is bound by Richmond Road, Seven Kings Way, Sury Basin and Sopwith Way with the railway
line further to the south. The surrounding road network alongside Kingsgate Road which
bisects the site, has created an ‘island’ effect which this Development Brief seeks to resolve.  
The site is part of a larger active development area north of the railway line, referred to as the
North Kingston Character Area in the K+20, which has been the subject of major regeneration
over the last 15 years, with the redevelopment of the former Power Station site, station
yard and factory sites. This has resulted in the delivery of over 1,000 new residential units, a
700-space multi-storey car park, a 4,650m² supermarket, and a 3,100m² health and fitness
centre, with a 142-bed hotel  currently under construction on the former Power Station site.

38

October 2016

C277

PLANNING CONTEXT : Physical - Open Space

Public Open Space
Private Amenity Space

NTS

Open Space Plan

Public Open Space

Poor Quality Open Space

KEY

Private Amenity Space

Approved Open Space

Public
OpenSpace
Space
Public
Open

QualityOpen
Open Space
PoorPoor
Quality
Space

Private
Amenity Space
Private
Amenity
Space

Approved
Open Space
Space
Approved
Open

Poor Quality Open Space

Thames
RiverRiver
Thames

River Thames

Approved Open Space
The immediate
area has poor access to public open space. Connections to Canbury Gardens
River Thames
and the Riverside
are of poor quality and are in need of improvements.

The Gas Holder site (parcel 3)is bringing about the northern section of the north-south linear
park. The Council seeks to ensure that new development contributes to the continual of the
linear parks provision and general improvement of the quality, quantity and accessibility to
public open space.
Redevelopment of the site, as proposed, provides an opportunity to improve the connections
to the existing public green open spaces at the Riverside and Canbury gardens, and to provide
a new public park for the existing and proposed residents and visitors to the North Kingston
Area.

39

C278

PLANNING CONTEXT : Physical - Existing Land Use

NTS

Land Use Plan
KEY
Retail

Car Parking

Transport

Office/ Light Industrial

Public House/ Bar

Park

Education

Vacant Site

Utility

Residential

Mixed Use

40

October 2016

C279

PLANNING CONTEXT : Physical - Existing Land Use
Current on site Land Uses
The north western part of the site was previously occupied by three large decommissioned
gas holders, associated buildings and infrastructure. These are now demolished to make way
for the consented scheme, which gained planning permission in July 2014. To the south of
the former Gas Holders site is the former Kingsgate Business Centre, now demolished and 52
Kingsgate Road, a two storey 1950s building with office and light industrial use facing onto
Kingsgate Road.
The Kingston College site is located on the eastern side of the area. The main College
building fronting Richmond Road is a Building of Townscape Merit. Immediately to the north
of Kingston College are two small shops and a car hire company fronting Richmond Road.
Immediately to the south, sits the recently completed Creative Industries Centre, with its own
vehicular access. The Council’s Canbury surface car park is located in the southern extent of
the development site. The site’s south-east edge is occupied by a mixed use block of retail and
commercial units fronting Richmond Road, with some residential above and some activity to
the rear.
Land Uses adjacent to the Development Brief Area
Beyond the site to the north of Sury Basin, is a large supermarket (Sainsbury’s) with leisure
use (Virgin Active) on the upper floors with surface car parking between the store and the
development site. Continuing north beyond the supermarket are residential areas.
To the west of the development site, beyond Seven Kings Road, are residential apartments
(Royal Quarter) and the Seven Kings Way public multi-storey car park. Continuing east,
beyond the Royal Quarter is the former Kingston Power Station site where a large mixed-use
residential and hotel complex is predominantly complete.
To the south of the site, beyond Sopwith Way, are residential apartments (Regents Court)
and Kingston railway station. Beyond the railway station is the town centre main commercial
shopping area.

41

C280

PLANNING CONTEXT : Physical - Land Ownership Pattern
Updated
Plan
minor
amendments
IN
BAS
SURY

SOPWIT

H WAY

NTS

Land Ownership Plan
KEY
Land Ownership Boundaries

Kingsgate Road bisects the site on a south west/north east axis significantly polarising
land parcels within the site. Integrating land ownership interests into comprehensive land
parcels will ensure efficient use of land, and establish a deliverable and sustainable form of
development. A piecemeal approach to redeveloping the site area, based on the current land
ownership pattern, will not be supported by the Council, as it will frustrate the objectives and
development principles identified in this Brief.

42

October 2016

C281

PLANNING CONTEXT : Physical - Community Infrastructure
Updated
Plan
minor
amendments

AADDAD
RROORO
PPEEPE
OORROR
TTHHTH

EL EL
M M
RO RO
AD AD

SHSSHH

CACCAA
NBNNBB
URUURR
Y AYYAA
VEVVEE
NUNNUU
E EE

SHS
OHRORT
TLALA
NDNDS
S R RO
O A AD
D

ELEELL
M MM
RORROO
ADAADD

RRTTRT
OOUUOU
SS CC
SC
HHTTHT
IIGGIG
AADDAD
W
WAAWA
RROORO
ZZEEZE
EEAAEA
W
WLLWL
CCOOCO

CA CA
NB NB
UR UR
Y AY A
VE VE
NU NU
E E

SHO
SHO
RTLRTL
AN AN
DS DS
RO RO
AD AD

AD AD
RORO
ONON
RT RT
BUBU

CO

UE

AADDAD
RROORO
OONNON
RRTTRT
BBUUBU

D
AD
OA
O
R
D
Royal
R
Royal Borough
Borough of
of Ki
Ki
K
K RO A
R
R
A
Royal
Borough
of Ki
A K
P
P
D
Kingston Museum
Museum
N
Kingston
ND PAR
O
O
M
D
D
M
Kingston
H
D
N
A
Libraries Museum
IIC
Libraries
O
CHM O
O AD
R
R
R
R
H
S OA
Libraries
GS
Leisure
RIC
R
NG
Leisure Centres
Centres
IIN
S
K
K NG
Leisure
Centresother than leisur
I
Sports facilities
facilities
K
Sports
other than leisur
Sports
facilities
other than leisur
Primary
Primary schools
schools
Primary
schools
Secondary
Schools
Secondary
Schools
AD
O
R
Royal
Borough
of
Kingston
D
Secondary
Schools
K
A
Railway
Railway Stations
Stations
AR RO
Royal
Borough
of
Kingston
P
K
Railway Stations
Kingston Museum
Bus
ND PAR
Bus Stations
Stations
O
M ND
H
Bus
Stations
Kingston
Museum
Libraries
Bus stops
stops
Bus
RIC HMO
LibrariesCentres
Bus
stops
Police
stations
Leisure
Police
stations
RIC
D
Police
D
A
Leisure
Centres
Medical
Centres
Medicalstations
Centres
O
OA DSports facilities other than leisure centres
R
R
A
N
Medical
Centres
N
O
O
Sports facilities
Hospitals
Primary
schoolsother than leisure centres
B
Hospitals
BO N R
B
I
B
I
NTS
G BO
D
Hospitals Worship
G
Primary schools
Places
Secondary
Schools
Places of
of Worship
OA
IB of Kingston
R
G
Royal
Borough
Community
D Infrastructure Plan
K
Places
of Worship
A
Secondary
Schools
R
Post Offices
Offices
Railway Stations
Post
PA K RO
Royal
Borough
of
Kingston
D
KEY Kingston Museum
Post Offices
Railway
Stations
Pub;
Bus
Stations
ON PAR
Pub; Bars
Bars &
& Nightclubs
Nightclubs
Kingston
Museum
Bus
Stations
Pub;
Bars
&
Nightclubs
D
Libraries
Kingston
Museum
Pub;
Bars
&
Nightclubs
N
Bus
Stations
Supermarket
Bus
stops
O
Supermarket
Libraries Centres
Bus stops
Supermarket
Libraries
Supermarket
Leisure
Bus
stops
Police
stations
Playgrounds
Playgrounds
DLeisure
Leisure /facilities
Sport
Centres
Police stations
Playgrounds
Playgrounds
Police
stations
Centres
other than leisure centres
Medical
Centres
Playgrounds
OA Sports
Playgrounds
R
D
N
A Primary
Primary facilities
schools
Medical Centres
Parks and
Recreation
Grounds
Medical
Centres
Playgrounds
Parks
and
Recreation
Grounds
schoolsother than leisure centres
Hospitals
BO RO Sports
Parks
and
Recreation
Grounds
B
I
G BO N
Parks
and Recreation Grounds
Secondaryschools
Schools
Places ofof
Worship
Car
Parks
Car Parks
Hospitals
Primary
Car
Parks
Places
Worship
Secondary
Schools
GIB
Car
Parks
Water
Railway Stations
Places
of Worship
Post Offices
Water
Water
Secondary
Schools
Post
Offices
Railway
Stations
E
E
Water
S
S
Produced
Post
Offices
Railway
Pub;
& Nightclubs
E
Produced by
by the
the GIS
GIS Team,
Team, ICT
ICT
Bus A
Stations
OSBars
LLO
D Stations
Guildhall
1,
upon
Thames,
KT1
AD
O
C
Guildhall
1, Kingston
Kingston
upon
Thames,
KT1 1
1
Produced
by
the
GIS
Team, ICT
O
O
C
R
R
Pub;
Bars
&
Nightclubs
T
D
Supermarket
L
Bus
stops
Stations
G
T
S
A
Guildhall 1, Kingston upon Thames, KT1 1
G
S
A
O
C
A
E
G
E ST R
IIG Supermarket
Operator:
TL
Operator:
TL
stations
Bus stops
WIGGPlaygrounds
EA Police
TTW
Operator:
TL
The Brief
area stations
is Centres
in a town centre location
there is good access to key facilitiesPublication
all
Playgrounds
Playgrounds
ID
Publication
date: 04/09/2013
04/09/2013
Medical
D TWwhere
Police
I
date:
V
VID
within Hospitals
400 metres
(approximatelyD5A
minute
walk)
from
theRecreation
developmentGrounds
site. These Publication
key
date: 04/09/2013
Parks
and
Playgrounds
1:3,3
Medical
Centres
O
R
1:3,3
V
DA
OR
S120F
FMetres
E
S
A
R
E
E
0 parks,
20
40
60
80
100
R
facilities include employment centres,
shopping
centres,
educational
institutions,
car
BE
R
0
20
40
60
80
100
120 Metres
1:3,3
D
Car
Parks
B
O
Parks
and
Recreation
Grounds
Hospitals
ES120FMetres
Worship
E
0
20
40
60
80
100R
B
leisurePlaces
centres,of
schools,
supermarkets, medicalWater
centres,
libraries,
community
facilities,
Post
0
50
100
150
200
250
300
350
400
450
0
50
100
150
200
250
300
350
400
450
Car Parks
Places
of
Worship
Post
Offices
E
D
0
50
100
150
200
250
300
350
400
450
Offices,
parks
and
recreation
grounds
alongside
transport
hubs.  
D
A
S
A
Water Produced by the GIS Team, ICT
O
O
O
R
D
EBars & Nightclubs
Post
Pub;
Guildhall 1, Kingston upon Thames, KT1 1EU
E R OA
RE
CLOS Offices
C
Produced by the GIS Team, ICT
CRE R
G
L
Pub;
Bars & Nightclubs
Guildhall 1, Kingston upon Thames, KT1 1EU
C
IG Supermarket
CR
Operator:
TL
Playgrounds
TWIGGSupermarket
Operator:
TL
EL
ID W
Publication date: 04/09/2013
E
V
L
T
Playgrounds
M
AD
D
R O AD
ELM C
D
RO
OA
R
43
1:3,300
DAVID
Publication
date:
04/09/2013
R
N
O
O
F
C
N
S
C
O
M
D
R
E
Parks
and
Recreation
Grounds
A
C
A
A
Playgrounds
R
E
R
A
O
O
E
0
20
40
60
80
100
120
Metres
DE
R
R D
B
D
D
CR E
N
ES
R
O
1:3,300
DA
O
C
F
Car Parks
ES120
Parks
and Recreation
DEA
CEGrounds 00 50 20 100 40150 200
ESC
25080 300
350
400 Metres
450
500 Feet
60
100R
BE

D
AD
OA
O
R
D
R
D
A
D RO
D

C282

PLANNING CONTEXT : Physical - Flooding

Plan 13

FLOOD RISK

Flooding Plan taken from K+20 : Plan based on Figure 1 of the Strategic Flood Risk
Functional
floodtown
plaincentre
Zone 3b
Assessment
for Kingston
5% AEP (20 year) flood
KEY Functional flood plainZone 3b
5%
AEP (20flood
year)plain
floodZone
Functional
plain
Zone 3b
3b - 5% AEP (20 year) flood
Functional
High
probability Zone
3a

5% AEP
AEP (100
(20 year)
flood
1%
year)
flood
High probability
probability
Zone
3a - 1% AEP (100 year) flood
High
Zone
1%
AEP
(100
year)
flood
High
probability
Zone
3a 2 - 0.1% AEP (1000 year) flood
Medium
probability
Zone
Medium
probability
Zone
1%
AEP
(100
year)
flood
0.1% AEP (1000 year) flood
Medium probability Zone 2
AEPprobability
(1000 Flood
year)
flood
The site 0.1%
lies mainly
within
Zone
Medium
Zone
22. Any proposed development within this Zone 2 will require a site

Plan based on Figure 1 of the Strategic Flood
0.1%
AEPAssessment
(1000 year)
specific Flood
Risk
be undertaken
part of any planning application.
Risk
fortoflood
Kingston
townas
centre
Plan Assessment
based on Figure
1 of the Strategic
Flood
The Kingston
Town
Centre
Strategic
Flood
Risk
Assessment
(SFRA) states that the future regeneration of this
Risk
Assessment
for
Kingston
town
centre
Plan based on Figure 1 of the Strategic Flood
site mustRisk
ensure
that all floorfor
levels
are situated
maximum flood level plus freeboard (600mm) and
Assessment
Kingston
townabove
centre
‘Dry’ access to/from the site must be ensured during times of flooding. The SFRA and London Plan policies
also state that sustainable urban drainage systems (SuDS) must be implemented to reduce surface water
run-off rates from the area.

Future redevelopment must not increase surface water flood risk to or from the site up to and including 1
in 100 year (plus climate change) return period rainfall events. With due consideration to the existing land
use and general character of the area, appropriate SuDS may include permeable paving, landscaped areas
encompassing planted infiltration zones, rainwater harvesting tanks and/or green roofs. This approach will
reduce the reliance on the existing infrastructure, as the site could contain its own solutions with a landscape
that is designed in a highly multifunctional way, also providing for amenity and biodiversity uses.

44

October 2016

C283

PLANNING CONTEXT : Physical - Orientation + Topography

Noise and Aie Quality

Orientation Plan
KEY

Mid-day Sun

Topography Plan showing areas above datum

Sun Path (East-West)
Noise
and Air
Aie Quality
Noise
and
Quality

Railway Track
Railway
Track

+8m above datum level

Mid-daySun
Sun
Mid-day

+6m above datum level

+9m above datum level

Path(East-West)
(East-West)
SunSun
Path

+7m above datum level

+10m above datum level

Railway Track

The location and layout of new development will be expected to maximise opportunities for
passive solar gain to public realm, open spaces and private and semi-private amenity space. New
housing development will be expected to avoid single aspect north facing units and maximise the
potential of east and west facing aspects. This will also have to coincide with mitigating the noise
and air quality issues. Proposals will have to adopt design solutions that manage the noise impact
on internal and external spaces while maximising the benefits of a south facing aspect. New
housing will be expected to achieve best practice design standards that conform to the British
Standards.
The absence of any distinct topographical features will place a greater emphasis on creating
character and distinctiveness through the use of sound townscape and landscape principles. The
drainage of site surface water will need to be addressed through the creation of landforms and
drainage channels.

45

C284

PLANNING CONTEXT : Policy
The relevant planning policy documents and policies, against which any future planning
applications will be assessed, are listed below.
The National Planning Policy Framework (adopted March 2012)
At the heart of the NPPF is a presumption in favour of sustainable development. It also
attaches great importance to the design of the built environment, where good, high quality,
inclusive design is seen as a key aspect of sustainable development, indivisible from good
planning, and should contribute positively to making places better for people. The policies in
the Council’s adopted Core Strategy and Kingston Town Centre Area Action Plan (K+20), set
out below, align with the core land-use planning principles of the NPPF.
The London Plan (Further Alterations adopted 2015)
The London Plan provides the Spatial Development Strategy for London and has similar
ambitions to create good quality, safe and inclusive environments for local communities which
reinforces local character in terms of design, scale, height etc and protects and enhances
neighbouring amenities, with the best possible access to local services, infrastructure and
public transport in London.
The London Plan is clear that if Outer London is to achieve its full potential, the issues of
economic development, transport and other infrastructure and quality of life must be looked
at together. Mixed use development, enhancement of the quality of the area, provision
of social infrastructure and sustainability will have to be considered together in order to
achieve successful place making and address pockets of deprivation. In order to support
and enhance competitiveness, the design of town centre schemes must also achieve a
number of objectives, including: sustaining and enhancing the vitality and viability of the
town centre; promoting access by public transport, walking and cycling; promoting lifetime
neighbourhoods; urban greening and an enhanced public realm; and reducing delivery,
servicing and road user conflict. Retail and other town centre development must be in scale
with the centre (Policy 2.15). Air quality (Policy 7.14) is also of optimum importance and
should be considered through all developments on site. Proposals should minimise increased
exposure to existing poor air quality and make provision to address local problems of air
quality.
The Greater London Authority (GLA) adopted Further Alterations to the London Plan in
March 2015. The Further Alterations were prepared primarily to address key housing and
employment issues emerging from an analysis of census data released since the publication
of the London Plan in July 2011, and which indicate a substantial increase in the capital’s
population. Therefore, a key issue for the Borough is the increased annual housing target. The
North Kingston Development Area will be a significant location for housing to meet the needs
of the London Plan, and the objectives of this Brief.
Local Policies
The Borough-wide and Town Centre policy context for Kingston is clearly established by the
Kingston Core Strategy, adopted in April 2012, and Kingston Town Centre Area Action Plan
(K+20), adopted in July 2008.
The Royal Borough of Kingston upon Thames Core Strategy (adopted April 2012) sets
out the vision, objectives and strategic policies for managing future growth, change and

46

October 2016

C285

PLANNING CONTEXT : Policy
development within the Borough. The document does not only consider land use, but also
a comprehensive range of environmental, economic and social issues.
Relevant Core Strategy Policies

Core Strategy

Policy DM1 : Sustainable Design and Construction Standards - requires all new residential
development to achieve Code Level 5 from 2013 up to 2016 and all other development
over 500m2 to meet BREEAM Outstanding. However, in March 2015, a Ministerial
Statement from the Department for Communities and Local Government announced a
number of changes to technical housing standards, which involved the discontinuation
of the Code for Sustainable Homes. This affects planning requirements for new build
homes under Policy DM1, meaning a full Code assessment cannot be required by the
Local Planning Authority; only energy and water efficiency standards in line with existing
policy can be a requirement of planning permission. New technical standards are expected
to be announced during 2015 and 2016 which will replace previous requirements under
Policy DM1 for new build homes. Non-residential new development requiring BREEAM
assessment under DM1 is currently expected to remain unaffected.
Policy CS3 : The Natural and Green Environment - incorporating appropriate elements
of public open space into new developments and/or making a financial contribution to
improving existing open spaces.
Policy CS6 : Sustainable Travel - To support and encourage the use of public transport,
cycling and walking the Council will:
•

���������������������������

Planning for the future

Promote and enhance the strategic cycling and walking networks enhance and
promote the Borough’s network of quiet residential roads, traffic free routes and
open spaces as attractive, safe and convenient walking and cycle routes.

Policy CS8 : Character Design and Heritage - The Council will use the Borough Character
Study and Residential Design SPD to require good design and guide the assessment of
development proposals and will seek to ensure that new development:
•

Recognises distinct local feature and character;

•

Has regards to the historic and natural environment;

•

Helps enhance locally distinctive places of high architectural and urban design
quality; and

•

Relates well and connects to its surroundings.

Policy DM10 : Design Requirements for New Development (including House Extensions)
- Development proposals will be required to incorporate principles of good design. The
most essential elements of character and local distinctiveness need to be identified and
development should respect, maintain and enhance these elements. Additional key design
requirement criteria includes:
•

Providing adequate amenity space; safeguard strategic/ local view

•

Ensuring public access through development areas

•

Enhancing public realm

Policy DM11 : Design approach - The Council may adopt a more flexible approach to new

47

���������������������������
�������������������������������������

Adopted - ����������

C286

PLANNING CONTEXT : Policy
development where the existing development lacks any identifiable or cohesive character
and/or is located in a lower quality environment; in these circumstances it will seek a high
quality development that creates its own distinctive character.
Policy DM15 : Affordable Housing - identifies the delivery of affordable housing as a key
priority of the Council and the need to explore all opportunities to deliver new affordable
housing units as part of new residential developments and encourage applications for
100% affordable schemes. Developments capable of delivering five or more units are
expected to provide the maximum reasonable amount of affordable housing, subject to
viability considerations. There should be 70:30 tenure split between Social/Affordable Rent
and Intermediate provision and the affordable housing should be provided on-site, unless
exceptional circumstances can be justified.
Policy CS15 : Future Needs of Kingston University, Kingston College and Schools -The
Council will continue to work in partnership with Kingston University and Kingston College,
recognising their importance in the local economy to identify appropriate opportunities,
including on their existing sites, to meet their needs for new and upgraded facilities.
Other Relevant Policies include:
• KT1 Kingston Town Neighbourhood

•

DM13 Housing Quality and Mix

•

DM 17 Protecting Existing Employment
Land and Premises

•

CS10 Housing Delivery

•

CS 11 Economy and Employment

•

CS 12 Retail and Town Centres

•

DM 18 New Employment Uses

•

CS 16 Community Facilities

•

DM 20 New Retail Development

•

DM8 Sustainable Transport for new
Development

•

DM 21 Health Impacts

•

DM 22 Design for Safety

DM9 Managing Vehicle Use for new
Development

•

DM 23 Schools

•

IMP3 Securing Infrastructure

•

Local relevant evidence base documents include:
•

Affordable Housing SPD (2013)

•

Royal Borough of Kingston Community Infrastructure Levy (2015)

•

Residential Design Guide (2013)

•

Kingston Town Centre Car Parking Study (2004)

•

Secure Cycle Parking Strategy Study (2004)

•

Sustainable Transport SPD (2013)

•

Town Centre Retail Study (2013)

Kingston Town Centre Area Action Plan ‘K+20’ (Adopted July 2008)
The K+20 provides the framework for future development and improvement in Kingston
Town Centre. It states that “over the period to 2020 there will be planned change and
development to provide: new and enhanced shopping, leisure, cultural, education and
community facilities, new housing and jobs, new and enhanced public spaces, transport
and environmental improvements”
The K+20 identifies key areas suitable for change to accommodate new development and
facilities and key areas for conservation and enhancement, plus a range of environment
and transport improvements, to protect the town centre from inappropriate development
and to preserve its attractive character, distinctive historic environment and the riverside.
48

October 2016

C287

UB-STATION 17b;
CONTEXT
: Policy 17d,
UB-STATION
17b;
WATERPLANNING
(TW) PUMPING
STATION
WATER
(TW) PUMPING STATION 17d,
D

D

The proposed development site falls within Character Area 10: North Kingston, which

POLICY
P17: Road and from the
e development
andthe
upgrading
ofCanbury
this Gardens across
extends from
riverside and
to Richmond
FORMER
POWER STATION 17a; EDF SUB-STATION 1
or
landowner
and
Water,
which
development
andThames
upgrading
of this
railway northwards
to Lower
Kings
Road. In order to meet its vision the K+20 proposes the
THE BARGE DOCK 17c AND THAMES WATER (TW) P
followingand
objectives
for Character
Area
10:
or landowner
Thames
Water,
which
SKERNE ROAD AND DOWN HALL ROAD
ng (Policy •K7)Complete the regeneration of the area with high quality mixed use development,
Thefacility,
Counciloffices,
will pursue
theand
high quality, comprehe
nsive development and
residential,
a hotel
gueting
(Policy
K7)including
facilities
on 17a
or 17beducation,
(Policy GP
K6)healthcare
site and its adjoining public realm with theprivate sector landowner and T
community uses on Proposal Sites P17 – 20;

ueting facilities
on 17a or 17b (Policy K6) should include:
• Linked public realm, riverside, gateway, pedestrian and cycle route improvements,

• Housi ng on 17a and 17b, i ncl udi ng affordable housing (Policy K7)
7b
including Skerne Road;
• A quality full service hotel with conferenceand banqueting facilities on
• via
Retention
and enhancement
of the Richmond Road mixed use frontages;
caulay
SuryBasin,
some limited
7b Avenue
• A community use such as a nursery
wn Hall Road
• Retention and enhancement of the listed Gala
Bingo hall foramenity
leisure/and
entertainment
•
Landscaped
play space on 17a and 17b
aulay
Avenue via
Sury
Basin,
some
limited
use
and
the
Grey
Horse
PH;
Macaulay
Avenue to improve permeability
• Main vehicle access to 17aand 17b from Henry Macaulay
Avenue via Su
wn Hall Road

•

Public Art (K10); and

•

K7 Housing

access may be allowed from Skerne Road and Down Hall Road
Macaulay Avenue
improve
permeability
• A pedestrian
route from Down Hall Road to Henry Macaulay Avenue t
• Review to
of traffic
movements
to see if circulation
should be modified.
otel
and pedestrian access across 17a
Relevant K+20 Policies
• Basement car parking on 7a
1 for the housing and hotel
otel
cycleQuality
parkingin the Town Centre
• K1 New and Enhanced Shopping
•• Secure
K9 Design
•
Active
frontages
to 17b
Facilities
• K10 Town Centre
Public Realm
•
On
site
recycling
• K4 Employment Development within
• K15 Town Centre Road Network
oorings and storage
facilities, visual
• Improvements to the Barge Dock 17c, including moorings and storage
the Town Centre
• appearance
K17 Pedestrian
Environment
and boundary
treatment
• K6 Provision of Facilities for Arts,
•
K18
Cycling
• Improvements to the appearance of the TW Pumping Station 17d
oorings
and17d
storage
facilities,
visual
ng Station
Culture, Tourism,
Entertainment,
•
K20 Town
Centreart
Parking
• Provision
of public
(Policy K10)
Leisure, Recreation, the Community,
The
site
is
within
Flood
Risk
Zones 3a and 3b (the functional
ﬂ oodplain) an
•
K22
Town
Centre
Infrastructure
Faith and Voluntary Sectors and Hotel
ng Station
17d
nctional
ﬂ oodplain)
and
development
proposals
should
accord
with
Policy
K24
and
the
SFRA.
accommodation
• K23 S106 Planning Obligations and

•

PR32

P17c

PR15

PR14

Site 18

Site 09
Road,

and Pr
WAL
K

Enviro

SKE
RNE

Relief
33

PR

P19e

P19a

Signif

Impro

Impro

Impro

AD

ROAD

49

149

Barge

O
OND R

D
HMON

redevelopment sites
Site 17: Former Power Station and Electricity Sub Station,
Site 17:
Former
Power
Station
andStation and the
Skerne
Road,
Thames
Water
Pumping
Electricity
Station,
Skerne Road,
Barge
Dock, Sub
Down
Hall Road
Proposal
sites/potential
redevelopment
sites
Thames
Water
Pumping
&
Site
18: Lok
‘n’
Store
Site, 12 Station
Skerne
Road
Site
17:Kingston
Former
Power
and Electricity
Sub Station,
the09:
Barge
Dock,College
DownStation
Halladjoining
Road.
Site
Site
and
sites, Richmond
G6
Skerne
Thames
Water
Pumping Buiness
Station and
the
18: Redeveloped.
Site
19:
Road,
theRoad,
Gas Holder
Site
andKingston
Kingsgate
Centre
Barge
Dock,
DownKingsgate
Hall
Road
College
& adjoining
sites,
Richmond
and
Printing
Works,
Road
Site
18:the
LokGas
‘n’ Store
Site,
12&Skerne
Road
Road,
Holder
Site
Kingsgate
Environmental
improvements
Site
09:road/crossing
Kingston
andWorks,
adjoining sites, Richmond
Business
Centre College
& Printing
Relief
improvements
Kingsgate
Road.
Site Site
P20:and
Canbury
Road,
the Gas
Holder
Kingsgate Buiness Centre
Significant view to protect
carpark
& Richmond
Road. Road
and
Printing
Works, Kingsgate
P17a
Improved pedestrian route
Environmental improvements
Environmental
improvements
Improved pedestrian access/crossing
P17b
Relief road/crossing
Relief
road/crossingimprovements
improvements
PA8
Improved or proposed river activity
P17d
Significant view
Significant
viewtotoprotect
protect
Enhanced river gateway
Improved pedestrian
route
Improved
Public
art pedestrian route
Improved pedestrian
Improved
pedestrianaccess/crossing
access/crossing
149
Improved or
Improved
orproposed
proposedriver
riveractivity
activity
Enhanced river
Enhanced
rivergateway
gateway
Extract from K+20
Public
art
Public art

Skerne

RICHM

AD

O
OND R

RICHM

P19b

Site 17

SKERNE ROA
D

Proposal sites/potential
sites/potentialredevelopment sites
Proposal

Propo

Enhan

P19d

Public

P19b
P18

R6

9c

P1

P20

PR34

KEY

P19b

K24 Flood Risk Management

Character Area 10:
Proposals Plan

character areas and proposal sites

nctional
ﬂ oodplain)
and and
development
• K8 Higher
Further Education
A.

Developer Contributions
character areas and proposal sites

RA.

P10

P11

KINGSTON T

C288

PLANNING CONTEXT : Land Use
Kingston Town Centre Area Action Plan Policies P19 and P20 set out the strategic vision for
the site brief which identify a range of acceptable uses.
Housing
The recently adopted Further Alterations to the London Plan has significantly increased the
Council’s target for housing delivery – a minimum of 6,434 net additional homes between
2015-2025. Housing delivery has been well below target in recent years, partly as a result
of the relatively small number of large development sites available across the Borough. The
Council wishes to maximise the opportunity presented by large brownfield sites for housing to
meet its pressing need for housing, and affordable housing in particular.
Given the site’s edge-of-town centre location and neighbouring uses, the Council seeks a
mixed use residential-led development, including both conventional and nonconventional
(i.e. student accommodation) housing. New development will be expected to provide an
appropriate quantum of market and affordable housing.  A mix of housing types and tenures
will be expected, that will create a balanced community, including where possible, provision
for family housing.
The site has been identified as ‘Central’ in character as described in the Sustainable
Residential Quality matrix in the London Plan. New development will need to respond to
the height, scale and massing principles set out in the Design Framework, with appropriate
densities that correlate the site’s location and PTAL rating set out in the London Plan.
Retail
Whilst the economic climate has been challenging for retailers and town centres, Kingston
Town Centre remains competitive and retailers’ demand for representation remains relatively
high. An up-to-date Town Centre Retail Study for the Borough was published in November
2013 which identifies a significant need for new comparison and convenience floor space and
leisure uses in Kingston Town Centre.
The site provides some opportunity for new or enhanced retail and leisure uses on the
Richmond Road frontage and potential a portion of the Kingsgate car park, which are the
land parcels that offer the prospect of the best connections with the rest of the town centre,
and where the highest footfall is likely to be generated. We anticipate retail and leisure will
come forward as a range of small retail units, to provide opportunities for convenience retail,
specialist retail activity and eating and drinking establishments.
Whilst not designated as an employment area, employment uses are currently located within
the site. The Borough has a relatively limited supply of industrial/business land and studies
have demonstrated the need to retain such land in business and industrial use. The Council
therefore seeks to ensure the employment uses are re-provided as part of a mixed-use
proposal.

50

October 2016

C289

PLANNING CONTEXT : Land Use
Employment
Employment uses are currently located within the site. The Kingston Economic Analysis Study
(published in May 2014) found that the Borough has recorded reasonable job growth over
the last 16 years (14%), with declining industrial employment over this period has been offset
by office job growth. The Borough has seen minimal amounts of new development over the
last 11 years, with notable losses of office space and the recent introduction of Permitted
Development (PD) rights accelerating this trend over recent months. The Council has since
introduced an ‘Article 4 Direction’ that  removes these PD rights in key office locations of the
Borough - including in Kingston town centre.
The Borough has insufficient employment floor space in quantitative terms to meet future
needs for office and industrial uses up to 2031 under the majority of future growth scenarios
considered. The requirement for office space in future will also be for better quality, modern
space and to cater for small and start-up businesses. The key challenge the Council must
therefore seek to manage is the shift from older, outdated space to providing new space
which meets modern business needs, and supports other Core Strategy objectives such as the
role of Kingston town centre as a Metropolitan Centre.
The Kingston Economic Analysis Study concluded that the Council should consider being
more selective about which office sites and broad locations to safeguard against future losses,
prioritising those with the greatest appeal to businesses and potential to accommodate
redevelopment in future.
The Council therefore seeks to ensure the employment uses are re-provided as part of a
mixed-use proposal for the site.
Community Facilities
There are currently no community facilities on the site. Community facilities are essential for
local residents and contribute towards health and well-being. The provision of community
facilities in local areas will ensure accessibility, reducing the need for residents to travel, while
the co-location of some facilities and services will help ensure the effective use of resources,
encourage joined-up service delivery and shared maintenance and management costs.
Community facilities will be expected to be mainly located in areas of maximum accessibility
which includes the town, district and local centres. Where possible, the Council will seek
to promote the co-location of community facilities, including new schools and healthcare
facilities, be it on new or existing sites and/or buildings in these uses, in the interests of
efficiency and effectiveness.
The inclusion of community facilities on the site is therefore considered an appropriate use.

51

C290

PLANNING CONTEXT : Land Use
Education
Kingston University and Kingston College play an important sub regional role in the local
economy providing education and training, employment, social and cultural activities and
significant spend. Both have expanded to meet educational needs and targets (set by central
Government) and require additional space, new and upgraded facilities, including on their
existing sites so that they can continue to offer high quality education and skills training. In
addition there is a recognised need for managed student accommodation for the University.
Until 2008, there was sufficient capacity in Borough primary schools and there is still capacity
in secondary schools. The significant increase in demand for school places is not a temporary
increase but part of a long term upward trend due to a rising birth rate; new housing
provision resulting in population growth and additional children and more people moving
into the Borough. A similar trend has been reported across more than two-thirds of London
boroughs. The consequence is that the number of primary and secondary school places needs
to be  increased on a permanent basis through the expansion of existing schools and the
development of several new schools. Planned housing growth over the next 15 years as part
of this Core Strategy may have further implications for longer term school provision. The aim
is to identify the best pattern of additional school places for the future.
The Council’s School Place Planning Strategy 2013-2020 sets out the strategy for the
refurbishment, re-organisation and expansion of the school estate. This aims to transform
primary, special and secondary education and respond to the Every Child Matters agenda and
the need to:
•

re-model and improve the school estate, including rebuilding, amalgamating and colocating some schools

•

expand school provision to meet increased demand for school places

•

develop the diversity of Kingston schools and their organisation

•

improve outcomes for all and narrow differences in attainment

•

create flexible, accessible accommodation for use throughout the year, in the evenings
and at weekends by schools, young people and the wider community

•

enhance the range of services and activities on offer at school sites

•

integrate some provision for those with learning difficulties and disabilities into
mainstream provision (specialist facilities will continue to be provided at the
community hub for disabled children in Moor Lane and at Warren Park)

In terms of Further Education, there is potential to expand or consolidate Kingston College’s
teaching space on an expanded Richmond Road campus. The College gained planning
approval for a new Arts and Media building in July 2013, and construction is now well
underway.
The provision of further teaching facilities within the Development Brief area would be an
acceptable use of the site.

52

October 2016

C291

PLANNING CONTEXT : Energy and Sustainability
Development will be required to comply with sustainability policies set out in both the
London Plan and the Council’s Core Strategy. Such policies that should be considered are
those in chapter five of the London Plan, with notable importance being on:
•

Policies 5.1 Climate Change Mitigation

•

Policy 5.2 Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions

•

Policy 5.3 Sustainable Design and Construction.

Core Strategy policies of relevance include:
•

CS 1 Climate Change Mitigation

•

CS 2 Climate Change Adaptation

•

DM 1 Sustainable Design and Construction Standards

•

DM 2 Low Carbon Development

•

DM 3 Designing for Changing Climate

The North Kingston Development Brief area has been identified as one of the Town Centre’s
Decentralised Energy Network zones. All new development should conform to the principles
set out in the Energy Masterplan for this area, which includes the use of an approved energy
source, and the sites being made available and ready to plug into and contribute towards the
Decentralised Energy Masterplan.

53

C292

PLANNING CONTEXT : Movement & Access - Accessibility

IN
BAS
SURY

Updated
Plan
amendments to
road access

SOPWIT

H WAY

Accessibility Plan
KEY

Impermeable Blocks
Railway Grass Verge
Road Access

Impermeable Blocks
Blocks
Impermeable

VehicularAccess
Access Point
Vehicular
Point

Railway
Grass Verge
Verge
Railway
Grass

Route
NonPedestrian
vehicle Only
Route

Road
Access
Road
Access
Vehicular Access Point

Railway Track
Bus Route

One of the most
challenging
in this area is the major one-way
Pedestrian
Only Route issues for anyPdevelopment
Public Parking
road systemRailway
which
severs
Kingston
Station
and
the
North
Kingston area from the retail and
Track
Bus Stop
commercial uses within the Town Centre. Locally this gyratory network severs land parcels
Bus Route
Bus Station
from each other
and creates a noisy, unattractive, unresolved
public realm dominated by
P
Station
Public
Parking
motor-traffic
which
is intimidating for both cyclistsRailway
and pedestrians
alike.  Development
should takeBus
the
opportunity
to
provide
ease
of
movement
and
ensure
that traffic speeds can
Stop
be managed by the arrangement of buildings and spaces.
Bus Station

Physically the
land parcels are largely impermeable either through built form or edge
Railway Station
treatments. This adds to the negative image of the place, as the land parcels need to be
broken down into navigable sized plots that are integrated and connected, creating a positive
urban realm that invites pedestrian and cyclist movements, with breakout spaces for activities
and events that animate the public realm.

54

October 2016

C293

PLANNING CONTEXT : Movement & Access - Transport Infrastructure

P

P

P

Impermeable Blocks
Railway Grass Verge
Road Access

P

Impermeable Blocks

Vehicular Access Point

Railway Grass Verge

Pedestrian Only Route

Road Access

Railway Track

Transport Infrastructure
Plan
Vehicular Access Point
KEY

P

Pedestrian Only Route

Bus Route
P

Public Parking

Railway
Track
Railway
Track

Bus Stop
Bus Stop

Route
BusBus
Route

Bus Station
Bus Station

Public
Parking
Public
Parking

Station
TrainRailway
Station

Bus Stop

The site is in
area of high transport accessibility i.e. with a PTAL rating of 6a which is the
Busan
Station
highest categorisation
- ‘excellent’.  Kingston railway station is approximately 200 metres
Railway Station
to the south of the site. The North Kingston site is well served by bus services and stops as
highlighted on the analysis map. The site has access to ten bus services with a total of 65
buses in both the morning and evening peak hour weekday periods.
The site’s proximity to surrounding transport infrastructure (bus and rail) provides significant
development opportunities for an inclusive, pedestrian and cyclist friendly environment, and
reduced car parking development . However, impacts such as severance, poor visual links,
poor noise and air quality caused by the existing transport infrastructure will require a careful
response to the siting, layout and design of new development and its successful integration
with its surroundings.
High public transport accessibility, which will be further improved by Crossrail 2, reduces the
need for development to provide car parking, which will support more intensive development
at higher density. Access for servicing, disabled access and emergency vehicles will be
required across the site.

55

C294

PLANNING CONTEXT : Movement & Access - Movement Study
Steer Davies Gleave were commissioned to undertake a movement study of Kingston Town
Centre on behalf of the Council. The strategy provides an overarching vision for movement in
Kingston Town Centre with improvements to accommodate future transport demand. In this
respect the Council is taking a proactive approach to growth and development in the town
centre since it is envisaged a number of significant development sites will be realised by the
year 2031 (North Kingston being a primary area). The study seeks to understand the demand
generated by this development and propose transport measures to respond to this.
The study considers all modes of transport and explores strategic options for change,
providing an evidence base to support decision-making and investment. The study will
directly inform updates to borough planning documents and involved close liaison with key
partners such as TfL and London Buses to agree an approach to work areas such as traffic
modelling and bus operations within the centre. Although the study is  complete, further
option development work is ongoing through the Kingston Opportunity Area Transport Study
which has been commissioned by Transport for London.
Vision and Objectives
The strategy is based around a high level vision for movement setting overarching design
principles. The vision is:
A balanced transport network that supports the Kingston experience by maintaining the
town centre as a high-quality and attractive place, facilitating town centre development
opportunities, and supporting a local economy that is diverse, vital and competitive. It
delivers improved opportunities for walking, cycling and public transport to encourage
movement by these modes whilst also facilitating access by private vehicles.
Summary of Baseline Analysis
The following summarises the key issues and opportunities identified in the Baseline Analysis
for North Kingston and the remainder of the Kingston Town Centre.
Highways
The gyratory operates effectively in distributing traffic around Kingston, however the oneway system (including Sopwith Way in North Kingston) exacerbates traffic dominance and
speed, and is not resilient to disturbances. Traffic levels have declined over the last 10 years
by around 9% while Kingston Bridge is the busiest approach road with remaining traffic spread
relatively evenly across the other approaches.
Cycling and Walking
Some pedestrian links, most notably around the relief road, offer a poor quality environment
and need upgrading. This will include measures to reduce the barrier effect of this road,
encouraging people to walk from surrounding areas into Kingston Town Centre. Legibility is
hindered at key gateway locations (such as the Station) due to limited views of landmarks and
lack of wayfinding information.
Cycling has increased substantially in the last ten years, however, the relief road presents a
barrier to cycle access, and some cycle routes are not as direct as is desirable; these issues
are addressed in RBK’s ‘Mini-Holland’ bid. There is also a general shortage of cycle parking in
Kingston’s Town Centre.

56

October 2016

C295

PLANNING CONTEXT : Movement & Access - Movement Study
Public Transport
There was a 65% increase in bus passenger demand across the Borough between 1999/00
and 2012/13, and a 44% increase in bus mileage. Bus capacity is an issue with many at or
near full loading on arrival in KTC in the AM peak period.  The option for Crossrail 2 stopping
in Kingston is currently being investigated by TfL as part of the ‘regional option’. This would
enhance the frequency and capacity of the train line to Waterloo, free up capacity on existing
rail lines to enhance service frequency from Kingston and connect Kingston directly to the
West End.
Parking
Most of the parking spaces available in KTC are in off-street car parks while parking charges
vary a little between car parks. Car parks are predominantly used for shorter stays of up to
two or three hours, particularly at weekends. The existing level of parking is sufficient to cater
for demand in an average week while demand is at its highest on Saturdays. Spare capacity is
noted in some of the North Kingston car parks (i.e. Seven Kings and Canbury Place) while the
John Lewis and Bentall Centre car parks are often at capacity.
Highway Improvements and Future Transport Studies
A number of highway improvement options have been investigated for the town centre,
including the North Kingston area, in support of the overall vision. These are being further
investigated as part of the Kingston Opportunity Area Transport Study which is looking at
the transport requirements of the town centre in relation to predicted future growth in the
area.  Additional transport studies are also being undertaken to provide strategies for bus and
parking improvements in the centre.
Proposals include changes to the highway alignment in North Kingston and modifications to
the existing gyratory system. Some options will be more challenging to implement than others
suggesting that a phased approach may be adopted. In summary, for each option, the revised
North Kingston highway layout generally operates satisfactorily. However, all options have an
impact on the capacity of the wider road system within the town centre in order to achieve
the overall vision for Kingston.
For the North Kingston area, the primary change incorporated into all highway options
includes the closure of Kingsgate Road in order to prevent vehicular access into Richmond
Road and also create a new public space and park. To deal with this change, Seven Kings Way
will be upgraded to accommodate displaced and new traffic. A new left turn from Sopwith
Way into Richmond Road will provide an alternative route for traffic heading north out of
Kingston, with Richmond Road being widened at its southern end to facilitate this new left
turn and enable improvements to facilities for pedestrians and cyclists in this area.
The upgrade of Seven Kings Way includes an enhanced alignment and improvement to its
junction with Sopwith Way to accommodate the increased northbound traffic. A strip of land
along the eastern side of Seven Kings Way has been safeguarded while land at the western
end of Kingsgate (former Parcel D) will be reconfigured to facilitate the required highway
improvements. If necessary, modifications to Sopwith Way to create a new two way urban
boulevard would be achieved at a later date by reconfiguring land along the southern fringe
of Brief area onto Sopwith Way (former Parcels A, B, C and D).

57

C296

PLANNING CONTEXT : Movement & Access - Movement Study
While highway improvements have been identified to accommodate the inevitable traffic
increases in North Kingston resulting from new development, it is also important to ensure
that an attractive environment is created where traffic does not dominate, residential amenity
is safeguarded and people can move about safely using sustainable modes of travel. This is
particularly important in an area where surrounding roads have an important traffic carrying
function within. In this respect the following approach is being applied:
1. Vehicular access to the Brief area will be provided from entrance points on the north,
south and possibly the western sides. There will be no vehicular access from the east side
(Richmond Road) except for emergency access, and no through routes are provided for
vehicles. Development proposals should facilitate ease of movement while ensuring that
traffic speeds can be managed through appropriate site planning.
2. Pedestrian and cycle movement is the dominant form of transport within the site with
the main movements being in an east/west direction through the new public park.
They will link up to the surrounding transport network and public transport systems at
appropriate locations in a north/south direction. Sustainable access will be facilitated in a
number of locations supported by new pedestrian and cycle crossing facilities provided in
Richmond Road and at the southern end of Seven Kings Way. Full advantage will be taken
of the current ‘Go Cycle’ initiative to provide comprehensive facilities across the area for
pedestrians and cyclists.
3. The site benefits from a high level of public transport accessibility including close
proximity to the railway station, two bus stations and around ten bus services. Plans
for the introduction of a Crossrail 2 stop in Kingston will further enhance this situation.
Discussions will take place with TfL and London Buses regarding matters such as the
location of new bus stops and bus priority measures in the area.
4. The site’s excellent accessibility will encourage sustainable travel and reduce the need
for on-site parking, which will help facilitate higher density development. However,
comprehensive facilities for servicing, emergency vehicles and disabled access will be
required across the site.
5. The proposed improvements to Seven Kings Way will be achieved by realignment of
the road at salient points and ensuring that the road widening is kept to a minimum
requirement. The modelling has demonstrated that two lane northbound operation in
this road should be adequate to accommodate potential new development in the area
and the closure of Kingsgate Road. The remaining safeguarded land can be used for
screening purposes to protect residential amenity, while the potential for any further
improvements would be safeguarded for future development planning.
All of the above elements have been considered and where appropriate, incorporated into
the proposals detailed in the Development Strategy section of the Development Brief.

58

October 2016

C297

59

C298

If you would like to discuss any aspect
of this document or Strategic Planning
and Regeneration generally, then
please ring the Strategic Planning
Team on 020 8547 5002 or email us at
localplan@kingston.gov.uk
60

Place Directorate
Royal Borough of Kingston
Guildhall 2
Kingston upon Thames
KT1 1EU
Printed on recycled paper
RBK published October 2016
October 2016

Growth Committee

D1

Appendix D

13 October 2016
Creative Kingston Group - CIC Proposal
Director of Place

Purpose
To consider the establishment of Creative Kingston as a cultural Community Interest
Company (CIC) with a view to enabling its ambition to develop Kingston’s profile as a
creative place to do business. Great Place strand of the Our Kingston programme.
Recommendations of the Portfolio Holder For Growth and Identity
To resolve that :
1. Support for establishing the CIC be approved and to affirm the scope of its
objectives as set out in paragraph 7.
2. The Head of Culture in, consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Growth and
Identity, be authorised to further develop proposals for this initiative.
Key Points
A.

Creative Kingston comprises stakeholders from the University, College, Rose
Theatre, Community Brain , BalletBoyz, Creative Youth and Kingstonfirst. Its aim is
to harness collective capabilities and to drive innovation and regeneration to ensure
the borough develops a good infrastructure that supports its creative industries.

B.

Creative Kingston’s mission is to support and advocate for a strong creative
economy through talent development, business incubation and a programme of
creative and cultural activities that enhance Kingston’s reputation as a centre of
innovation and heritage.

C.

The intention is for the CIC to focus on place shaping, feeding into the Local Plan
as a critical friend, ensuring current and future cultural assets support growth and
are developed to retain and attract creative talent - accentuating culture’s role in
regeneration and growth

D.

At this point in Creative Kingston’s development, it is envisaged that the CIC will
strengthen and widen the borough’s cultural programme rather than deliver services
and activities already commissioned by RBK and its partners.

E.

As the CIC establishes and alternative service delivery models are explored
through the Our Kingston programme, then the role of the CIC will also be
reviewed.

F.

Subject to Creative Kingston developing sustainability plans, a bid will be submitted
later in 2016 to Arts Council England to support a two year programme of cultural
activity that will support the development and regeneration programme across the
Borough. The programme of cultural activity will align with the regeneration
themes focusing on a Royal Borough, river & trade and innovation.

D2
Context
1.

Creative Kingston was established in 2013. The partnership represents a group
of key organisations who wish to capitalise on collaborative working following
Kingston’s successful Cultural Olympiad.

2.

At this time the Mayor of London’s Plan acknowledged that Outer London's
Economic “performance had given rise to concerns that it may have been
relegated to a dormitory role and that its economy and infrastructure have been
neglected.”

3.

The Outer London Fund, Arts Council England, the new London Plan and
Destination Kingston (Outcomes 5 and 8) expressed the potential value and role
culture and heritage can play in regeneration and place shaping.

4.

Creative Kingston formed as a partnership to respond to the above
developments .To date the group has worked to unlock Kingston’s potential by
using their profile and lobbying power to establish Kingston’s profile as a
creative place to do business. It has brought together key stakeholders who are
able to identify themes, priorities and activities in order to engage with the growth
and regeneration agenda and with a track record and of securing external
funding.

5.

Current membership of Creative Kingston includes the Dean of faculty for Art,
Design and Architecture, Chief Executive of the Rose theatre, Chief Executive of
Kingston First , Principal of Kingston College, Head of Cultural Services RBK . It
is proposed that this current membership including the portfolio holder for Growth
and Identity , will form the board of Creative Kingston CIC going forward.

6.

So far each membership organisation has secured agreement in principle for
establishing Creative Kingston as a CIC .

Proposal and Alternative Options
7.

The proposal to form a CiC has grown as Creative Kingston developed and
wanted to strengthen and formalise their position as a strategic advisory group.
It is proposed that forming a CiC will provide Creative Kingston with a stronger
platform for lobbying and crucially formalising the partnership will enable the
group to come together as a consortia of equal parts - working to secure external
funding and support Kingston’s growth agenda via the following programme:
● develop a creative industries network
● provide a critical forum to develop and test out new ideas, including utilising
Creative Kingston’s extensive networks for engagement and consultations
● ensure the Local Plan harnesses the potential of Kingston’s heritage , culture
and the creative industries to drive innovation and place-shaping
● develop an evidence-based case for support, brokering funding, applying for
grants and consortia bidding
● deliver a programme of activities that build Kingston’S reputation as a centre
for innovation and creativity

8.

D3
An alternative option considered that Creative Kingston continue to operate
within its existing partnership arrangements which the Council has supported
since 2013 .

9.

This option was rejected by Creative Kingston as it was felt the partnership had
developed overtime and its potential to harness cultural capital across the
borough would be better realised by key stakeholders coming together under a
more formal, equitable arrangement.

10.

In addition alternative service delivery arrangements were explored with
stakeholders , including Creative Kingston delivering elements of Council
services .This proposal was felt to be premature at this stage in Creative
Kingston's development.

11.

As the Our Kingston programme and the CIC develops alternative delivery
models will be re visited and explored across RBK partnerships including
Creative Kingston.

Consultations
12.

All key stakeholders have been consulted as well as the wider creative networks
that sit within each partner body .

13.

Arts Council England have also been consulted and their advice has helped to
frame the approach and recommendations.

14.

The portfolio holder for Growth and Identity has been consulted and played a key
role in leading and brokering agreements across the partnership .

Timescale
15.

The CIC would be established by October/November 2016 with the Grants for
Arts bid submitted to Arts Council England later in 2016.

Resource Implications
16.

Creative Kingston wish to secure RBKs support for this initiative via a one off
financial investment of £20K . This would be drawn from within the Arts Service
commissioning budget to provide match funding for a two-year funding bid to Arts
Council England of £160K. In addition this investment from the Council would
release match funding of £40K from the other stakeholders.

17.

Staff time (Head of Culture/Arts Commissioner) and leadership from portfolio
holder for Growth and and Identity will be required to support the development of
the CIC and ensure activity is aligned with the regeneration and growth agenda
within Destination Kingston and Kingston Futures .

18.

Since its partnership inception, staff time has been committed to working with this
partnership. Kingston Council would on behalf of the CIC , submit the ACE bid as
the lead organisation for the consortia. As the lead applicant the Council would
have overall responsibility for managing the budget and ensuring the terms of the
grant are met in consultation with the CIC.

19.

A contract between Kingston Council and the CIC would need to be drawn up to
agree the roles and responsibilities for administering the grant to ensure the CIC

D4
meets its obligations and to mitigate any risks for RBK. A similar model has been
used to progress the consortia project for ‘The Streets’ programme with each
stakeholder assigned key responsibilities
20.

No assets, ICT or HR resources are required to set up the CIC. Once established
it will operate as an independent entity. All stakeholders will be required to
develop the CIC’s operational and organisational plans.

Legal Implications and Governance
21.

Kingston College Legal Services has drawn up draft governance for the CIC
which will be further developed with RBK.RBK’s Legal Team will be required to
sign off the operating model and legal framework, along with other CIC members.
The CIC will be responsible for its own tax and insurance arrangements and for
implementing safeguarding and equalities policies.

22.

Representation from RBK , the Portfolio Holder for Growth and Identity would
need to be nominated by the Council to sit on the Board of the CIC.

23.

There are no personal or organisational penalties should the CIC fail or Board
members wish to withdraw. Member institutions nominate a person to represent
their institution as a director on an annual basis . In the case of RBK this would
be the portfolio holder for Identity and Growth . A separate steering group will be
responsible for advising the directors on the allocation of funding.

24.

All members subscribe to a guarantee of one pound which is the extent of the
member’s liability in the event of insolvency of the company. The CIC will appoint
a Company Secretary and Financial Director to oversee governance
arrangements.

25.

The CIC is required to submit on a yearly basis a report detailing the activities it
has undertaken which will be reported back to Growth Committee.

Risk Assessment
26.

The stakeholders involved have developed a strong partnership over time and
are committed to the development of Creative Kingston. Key stakeholders have
stated they will commit to the CIC if Kingston Council approves its vision,
programme of activities and is represented on the Board. Failure to secure
support from the Council at this stage could impact on the long term relationships
and there is potential reputational risk to the authority.

27.

The CIC will need to evidence plans for ongoing sustainability and commit to
developing both human and financial capacity in order to secure ACE funding.
ACE funding is highly competitive with a 35% chance of success. Even though
funding is competitive it is important that Kingston continues to lobby for
investment. The CIC needs to develop a long term fundraising strategy, this
aspect of Creative Kingston will be scrutinised by prospective funders.

28.

Failure to comply with the ACE Terms and Conditions could result in the grant
needing to be repaid. For grants of over £50K a qualified accountant must certify

D5
a statement of Income and Expenditure. The project budget will be managed by
the independently appointed project manager, reporting on a weekly basis to the
CIC Board. Risk – such as project overspend - would be shared by the
respective CIC Members.
Quality (Social Value and Return on Investment)
29.

Supporting Creative Kingston to establish a CIC sits at the core of the realising
the Council’s ambition of an enabling Council. The proposal has been developed
through wide consultations as part of the outcome based budgeting processes
and is now embedded in the Great Place strand of Our Kingston transformation
programme .

30.

Return on investment would also be realised by supporting Kingston Futures
outcomes through enabling the CIC and utilising the knowledge and skills of
Creative Kingston’s Board Members to improve access and opportunities within
the creative industry sector. This would be enhanced through progression
pathways, work experience, talent retention, apprenticeships and the
development of creative spaces and programmes.

31.

The above approach would be predicated on an evidence-based H.E. evaluation
methodology working with Kingston University, and Kingston College.

Equalities Impact Assessment
32.

Following discussions with ACE, the CIC will need to work with its wider
creative network to ensure a diverse representation of creative practitioners,
gender, age and ethnicity with a view to giving its membership a
representative voice and to ensure smaller organisations can play an equally
significant role in its development. This will need to be embedded in its
Constitution.

Road Network Implications
33.

None

Environmental Implications
34.

None

Background papers- None other than those referred to in this report
Author of report - Colette Kelly, Interim Head of Culture, Tel: 020 8547 5267

Growth Committee

E1

Appendix E

13 October 2016
Use of Right to Buy Receipts - Reference from 29 September Adults and Children’s
Committee
Report by the Head of Housing
Purpose
To delegate authority to the Head of Housing to acquire properties on the open market
to be included in the HRA Stock, as recommended by the Adults and Children’s
Committee and Housing Sub-Committee.
Recommendations of the Adults and Children’s Committee
To resolve that –
1.

the Head of Housing in consultation with the Head of Property and the Portfolio
Holder for Adults Social Care and Health is authorised to purchase dwellings that
are considered to be suitable for use as affordable housing within and outside of
the borough; and

2.

the South London Legal Partnership (SLLP) is authorised to negotiate and
complete such documents as are deemed necessary to conclude the
transactions negotiated by the Head of Housing.

Key Points
A.

The Housing Sub-Committee received a report at its meeting on 13 September on
the requirement to repay to the Government Right to Buy (RTB) receipts unless
appropriate acquisitions are completed and that the first payment will equate to
£0.4m to be repaid to the Government by 31 March 2017.

B.

The proposal set out in that report is for the Council to use those Right to Buy
Receipts which might otherwise have to be repaid to the Government to purchase
£1.2m of additional homes from the open market. The Sub-Committee noted the
need for such homes as there are currently 9226 households on the RBK housing
register.

C.

As there is an urgency in progressing this project, the Adults and Children’s
Committee is recommending the Growth Committee to delegate authority for the
required property acquisition as set out in the recommendations above.

D.

A recommendation has also had to be referred from the Adults and Children’s
Committee to the Treasury Committee (on 6 October) for an addition to the HRA
Capital Programme of £1.2m to be approved for the purpose of acquiring
properties on the open market for inclusion in HRA stock. The outcome of the
Treasury Committee deliberations will be reported verbally at the meeting.

E.

In considering the report, the Housing Sub-Committee noted that, because the
Growth Committee alone has ‘Asset Management’ under the current Committee
terms of reference, decisions on even minor Housing site / property acquisitions
have to be referred to Growth Committee for approval,. The Sub-Committee
therefore recommended that the Adults and Children’s Committee request Council
(on 18 October) for a change in the terms of reference of the Adults and Children’s

E2
Committee and the Growth Committee to allow the former to make decisions on
minor Housing site/ property acquisitions.
Context
1.

The intention of the Government’s Right to Buy policy is to enable more tenants to
achieve home ownership and to ensure that the receipts from sales deliver
replacement stock on a one for one basis. The Government set out this intention
to revise the previous Right to Buy (RTB) scheme within its Housing Strategy,
‘Laying the Foundations, A Housing Strategy for England’. The key drivers are
two-fold, firstly, to incentivise local authority and non-charitable housing
association tenants to purchase their homes and, secondly, to provide local
authorities with the opportunity to use the proceeds from sales to support the
provision of additional social housing on a ‘one-for-one replacement‘ basis .

2.

The new scheme is fundamentally based on the previous RTB scheme, and gives
tenants a 35 per cent discount reduction on the total property value, plus an
additional 1 per cent discount for every year above the qualifying period. For flats,
the discount is higher at 50 per cent, with a rise of 2 per cent each year. In March
2013, in an attempt to increase RTB take up, the Government announced a
reduction in the qualifying period from the current five years to three years. In
addition, the maximum discount sum was increased by £25,000, from £75,000 to
£100,000 in London, in recognition of London’s higher housing costs.

3.

Therefore Right to buy receipts must be spent within 3 years of the receipts
becoming available. If the Council fails to spend the receipts by then, it is required
to repay the receipts to the government with interest at 4% above the base rate.

4.

Right to Buy receipts can only be retained if they are used to fund the delivery of
new affordable housing in the ratio 100/30 - which means, when using Right to
Buy receipts, that 70% of the eligible spend must be funded from alternative
capital sources to meet the remaining costs. This means that receipts must be
applied proportionately through the build period.

5.

The Council has retained a total of £7.7m of 141 (one for one) receipts to the end
of 2015/16 of which £5.2m remains unspent. These receipts are time limited with
£0.4m falling due for repayment on 31/3/17 if no further expenditure is incurred.

6.

RBK entered into a Retention Agreement with Secretary of State for Communities
and Local Government in 2012. This enables RBK to retain a proportion of the
receipt from each Right to Buy sale, subject to:
● using the receipt to fund no more than 30% of the cost of the provision of
new social housing;
● doing so within 3 years of the quarter in which the receipt was received.

7.

This means that RBK has to find at least 70% match funding to be able to use the
receipt. Receipts retained but not appropriately used within 3 years must be
repaid to Government with interest at base rate + 4%. Receipts can be returned at
quarter received without incurring interest.

8.

The requirement to spend or repay retained receipts falls due quarterly:

E3
Table 1: Receipts retained and expenditure requirement

Deadline

Receipts
Retained &
Unspent
(£m Per Quarter)

Receipts Retained &
Unspent
(£m Cumulative)

Required 70%
Contribution
(£m Cumulative)

Total Spend
Required
(£m Cumulative)

Q4 2013/14

31-Mar-17

0.4

0.4

1.0

1.4

Q1 2014/15

30-Jun-17

0.6

1.0

2.4

3.4

Q2 2014/15

30-Sep-17

0.4

1.4

3.4

4.8

Q3 2014/15

31-Dec-17

0.3

1.7

4.0

5.7

Q4 2014/15

31-Mar-18

0.9

2.6

6.1

8.7

Q1 2015/16

30-Jun-18

0.8

3.4

8.0

11.4

Q2 2015/16

30-Sep-18

0.4

3.9

9.0

12.9

Q3 2015/16

31-Dec-18

0.6

4.5

10.5

15.0

Q4 2015/16

31-Mar-19

0.7

5.2

12.1

17.3

Period
Received

9.

Cumulative expenditure of £9.7m is required by 31 March 2017, towards which
RBK has enabled £8.3m to date. Projects in progress are expected to contribute
£0.2m towards this target, however if no further expenditure is achieved RBK will
be required to repay £0.3m of retained receipts with an interest charge of £49,000.

10. The HRA has very limited scope to fund the required 70% contribution to develop
new social housing internally. This is primarily due to the Limit of Indebtedness
(Debt Cap) imposed under Self Financing and significant recent investment in the
Better Homes Project which has utilised much of the available capital resource.
11. Right to Buy Receipts can be used to increase the provision of affordable housing
by:
● building new affordable housing on council-owned land
● acquiring new build from a developer or existing private stock for conversion
to social/affordable rent
● funding a Registered Provider to build new affordable housing where the
Local Authority has nomination rights.
12. New housing acquired or developed need not lie geographically within the borough
provided the council owns or has nomination rights on the units.
13. To the end of 2015/16 RBK has retained a total of £7.7m receipts, requiring a total
qualifying expenditure of £25.6m. Expenditure of £8.3m has been achieved to
date. In order to spend the remaining £5.2m retained receipts, delivery of new
social housing costing a total £17.3m is required, since the retained receipts can
fund a maximum 30%.
Alternative Provision and Use of Receipts
-

Grants to Third Parties:

14. While the HRA is unlikely to have means to generate the required capital to
provide new social housing itself, RBK may make contributions or grants from the
retained receipts to enable third parties to develop new social housing for the
benefit of the authority.
15. New social housing is defined as additional rented units made available below
market rent, and the authority is deemed to benefit if the new social housing is

E4
within its area or by having nominations rights on the units. In this latter case new
units need not be geographically within Kingston.
-

Existing Housing Stock:

16. While Minister's intentions are to encourage an increase in the overall supply of
new housing, the regulations do not currently require that this be done solely
through new build.
17. The use of retained receipts towards purchase of existing housing stock, provided
not already social housing, would meet the requirements of the retention
agreement and would have a shorter lead time to delivering units than new build.
18. The team have met several times with Registered Providers as a well as inviting
them to bid for allocation of available Right to Buy receipts as grant funding.
Unfortunately, RP’s advised that they were not interested in pursuing this option.
-

Local Authority Development Companies:

19. In a written ministerial statement on 20 March 2015, Brandon Lewis MP set out
Government policy in respect of housing development, requiring that any social or
affordable housing developed by a local authority be accounted for within its HRA.
This avoids a perceived mechanism to circumvent the Debt Cap and to hold stock
that would not be subject to Right to Buy.
20. This would not prevent a Local Authority Development Company from developing
stock for private sale, or from holding stock as temporary accommodation for
homelessness purposes.
-

Regeneration

21. Where Right to Buy Receipts are used on a site with previous social housing, the
receipts can only be used to fund the cost of additional dwellings over and above
the previous number of social/affordable homes on the site.
Proposal and Options
Acquiring new homes from the Open Market
22. In view of the above challenges and limitations over how Right to Buy receipts can
be used, it is estimated that up to £5.1m plus interest of £0.7m may have to be
repaid to the Government by 31st March 2019 unless we can find an alternative
approach for increasing the provision of affordable housing using the Right to Buy
receipts. The above estimate recognises that no projects are formally underway
beyond 2016/17, but in any event the pressures to spend are set to increase,
unless alternative options for spending the receipts are made available.
23. Whilst continuing to deliver the projects in place for 2016/17, it is proposed that the
Council implement a further project to purchase £1.2m of additional homes from
the open market to use those Right to Buy Receipts which might otherwise have to
be repaid back to the government These homes will be converted to affordable
housing to retain the benefit of the receipts in Kingston, and the rents received will
provide revenue for the HRA.
24. A range of operational criteria will be met to ensure that the property purchased is
fit for purpose as social/affordable housing.

E5
25. Former social housing properties cannot be purchased with Right to Buy Receipts
(unless under a Compulsory Purchase Order) and therefore have been
discounted.
Alternative Options considered
26. New build of Affordable Housing units by the Council is deemed the best option in
the medium to longer term, it generally takes at least 24 months for a development
of approx. 10-20 units to complete the build programme. Smaller developments
would would take less time but are unlikely to be completed in less than 18
months. While 141 receipts can be applied against costs incurred during the build
process and not just on completion, there are no projects currently in development
and as a result this option would not be expected to deliver significant qualifying
expenditure until late 2017/18 at the earliest.
27. Funding a Registered Provider (RP) to build new affordable housing in the area.
Partner RP’s continue to have difficulty with the procurement of land in the
borough. Providing grants to partner RP’s to aid the funding of non HRA land
procurement will both spend 141 receipts and deliver affordable housing units.
However as above, RP’s would require approx. 24 months to complete the build
programme of new developments. It would be unlikely that affordable housing
completions would be achieved before periods 10, 11, 12. The funding would be
conditional on completions in these periods.
28. Award a Grant to Partner Registered Providers to acquire properties on the open
market. The RP’s would provide the 70% funding and let the properties as
Affordable Rent. The Council would then maintain nomination rights to these
properties. As detailed in 10 above, several discussions and an invitation to bid
with RP’s have taken place without success.
Consultations
29. The proposed use of Right to Buy Receipts has been discussed with and has the
support of senior officers from the Council. The process for consideration of the
report is: Housing Sub-Committee (13 September) , Adults and Children’s
Committee (29 September), Treasury Committee (6 October) and Growth
Committee (13 October)
Timescale
30. Immediate – acquisitions should be completed by March 2017.
Resource Implications
31. A project to acquire £1.2m of properties on the open market would qualify for
application of 30% Right to Buy receipts, with the remaining £0.84m to be funded
from internal resources including borrowing.
32. The 2016/17 HRA Capital programme is forecast to utilise available resource, and
therefore it is likely that borrowing would be required to fund this project. This
would result in increased revenue cost through debt charges in the region of £40k
per annum, while potentially generating £12k rental income.
33. Further, the available headroom to the Limit on Indebtedness would be reduced to
£18.3m. Headroom is not expected to be improved until HRA begins to make
repayments on Self-Financing loans commencing 2028/29.

E6
34. Alternatively, were £1.2m of Right to Buy receipts to be repaid to Government on
expiry, interest charged would be approximately £170k. If paid through capital
resource, then borrowing would be expected to be required in the programme,
resulting in an increase in debt charges in the region of £8k per annum.
Legal Implications
35. The Council has power under Section 9 of the Housing Act 1985 to acquire
houses for the purpose of providing housing accommodation. The houses so
acquired must then be dealt with in accordance with the provisions of the Act, and
any relevant subsequent legislation and may become subject to Right to Buy.
36. Section 17 of the Housing Act 1985 allows Councils to acquire land for housing
purposes and to dispose of land used for housing purposes to a person or
organisation which intends to provide housing accommodation on the land or
provide facilities which serve a beneficial purpose in connection with the
requirements of persons for whom housing accommodation is provided.
37. The Council has powers under section 24(1) of the Local Government Act 1988 to
provide any person with financial assistance for the purposes of, or in connection
with, the acquisition, construction, conversion, rehabilitation, improvement,
maintenance or management (whether by that person or by another) of any
property which is or is intended to be privately let as housing accommodation.
38. Right to buy receipts must be applied in accordance with relevant legislation and
guidance and particularly the Local Authorities (Capital Finance and
Accounting)(England) Regulations 2003 (as amended) and the terms of any
agreement reached under section 11(6) of the Local Government Act 2003
modifying the applicability of the regulations.
39. The 2003 Regulations state “provision of affordable housing means the provision
of dwellings to meet the housing needs, as identified by the local authority, of
persons on low incomes, whether provided by the authority or a social landlord
registered under section 1 of the Housing Act 1996 (the register of social
landlords)”.
Risk Assessment
40. Failure to spend the monies on time will require payment to DCLG with interest.
41. A timely decision is needed to enable the team to acquire properties
Equalities Impact Assessment
42. An assessment is not required at this time.
Road Network and Environmental Implications -  None
Background documents held by the author of report – Fidelis Linehan, Interim Group
Manager Strategic Housing, email: fidelis.linehan@kingston.gov.uk tel 020 8547 6892
.
o None other than those referred to in this report

Growth Committee

F1

Appendix F

13 October 2016
HRA Sites Affordable Housing Development Feasibility Study
Reference from Housing Sub-Committee - 13 September 2016

Purpose
To report the recommendation of the Housing Sub-Committee in relation to the
findings of the HRA Sites Affordable Housing Development Feasibility Study and to
seek approval to enter into discussions with Registered Providers and private
developers to dispose of the sites in the study and, if successful, to dispose of the
sites to enable the development of homes on the sites.
Recommendations of the Housing Sub-Committee
The Housing Sub-Committee recommends the Growth Committee to resolve that:
1.

the seven of the sites appraised in the feasibility and viability study are disposed
of to Registered Providers (RP) or private developers using a mix of approaches
as set out in Option 1 (ref para 14 of the report) and Option 2 (ref para 15 of the
report) to enable RBK to develop homes on the sites:
●

Option 1 - to sell sites to Registered Providers (Housing Associations) on
the condition that they provide 100% affordable housing.
Option 2 - to dispose of the sites to Registered Providers or private
developers to develop out the sites for a mix of affordable and private use
with the private homes cross-subsidising the affordable ones.

●

2.

the Committee agrees that all disposals of sites to a Registered Provider should
be:
a. for housing - with affordable housing use in perpetuity, where provided,
and the Head of Property, in consultation with the Head of Housing, to be
authorised to agree the terms of the disposal; and
b. through a competitive tendering process.

Key Points
A.

The Housing Sub-Committee considered a report at its meeting on 13 September
from which it agreed to refer recommendations to the Growth Committee which has
the remit for ‘Asset Management’.

B.

With housing development land being finite in supply, increasingly innovative
solutions are being sought in order to create new affordable housing development
projects. The Affordable Housing Strategy for 2015-2017 has identified new
opportunities to create affordable housing sites, typically by exploring prospects for
infill development or for redeveloping existing buildings and land more intensively.
The strategy was agreed by the Residents, Health and Care Services Committee
(RH&CS) in September 2014.

C.

The report identified HRA sites with potential for redevelopment where affordable
homes can be created and recommended that each site is assessed in more detail
with the most appropriate method of development taken forward. The report
included a proposal to dispose of a number of garage blocks no longer considered

F2
to be fit for purpose and the receipt of these sales contributing towards capital
funding to develop the sites.
D.

The RBK Housing Development Team (HDT) appointed Tibbalds Planning & Urban
Design on 21 October 2015 to assess the sites in more detail. The detailed
assessment was through feasibility and viability appraisals on the sites. The overall
objective of the appraisals was to inform RBK how many homes can be
accommodated on the sites and how much it will cost to build. The final report was
completed on May 2016. In summary, the report concluded that seven RBK HRA
sites could generate approximately 75 homes at an estimated overall cost of £11M.

E.

The main source of capital funding which RBK has for housing development
projects are one-for-one (1-4-1) Right To Buy (RTB) receipts. To date, RBK has
retained £5.1m of one-for-one receipts. These receipts can be used to fund a
maximum of 30% of the development cost of new social housing units.

F.

Retained receipts are time limited, and fall due for repayment to DCLG if not used
within 3 years of the end of the quarter in which the receipt was received. Interest
must be paid on returned receipts at a rate of 4% above base rate. As 1-4-1
receipts can be used to fund only 30% of development costs, an additional 70% of
capital must be sourced. GLA funding cannot be used on any development scheme
if 1-4-1 receipts are used.

G.

In order to progress development of these sites, RBK will need to identify 70% of
the capital funding (approx. £7.7M) and, assuming all units built will be affordable/
social rent, this could utilise approx. £3.3M of 1-4-1 RTB receipts. If sites are
disposed of, RBK can grant 1-4-1 receipts to RPs or private developers towards
their development of units to be let at affordable/social rent.

H.

Three capital funding options to progress the development of the sites are set out in
paragraphs 14 - 16 of the report of which the two recommended options are:
-

Option 1 - Sell sites to Registered Providers (Housing Associations)
on the condition that they provide 100% affordable housing
(ref para. 14 of the report)

-

Option 2 - Disposal of the sites to Registered Providers or private
developers to develop out the sites for a mix of affordable and private use
with the private homes cross-subsidising the affordable ones.
(ref para. 15 of the report)

I.

Feasibility studies are the key stage in the housing development process. The
overall finding of the HRA sites affordable housing development feasibility and
viability study is contained in Annex 1 of the report and summarised in the table in
para. 9 of the report below. On 15 July 2016, a Registered Provider formally
expressed its interest in all of the sites identified in the study. More expressions of
interest are expected and will be reported to the Sub-Committee as late material.

J.

The process for disposing of sites can take up to eighteen months, depending on
the conditions of sale. The housing development process, once ownership of the
site is confirmed and funding is in place, can take at least two years.

K.

The recommendations are being referred to the Growth Committee which holds the
remit for Asset Management.

Context

F3

1.

The Council’s Core Strategy has a target of 2000 new affordable homes to be
created between 2012/13 and 2026/27. By the end of financial year, the Council
achieved delivery of about 280 new homes towards this target.

2.

The Council’s Housing Strategy 2015 - 2020 seeks to deliver a minimum of 133
new affordable housing units every year up to 2027. Kingston has struggled to
deliver its required affordable housing completions each year and is currently well
below the levels that we actually need.

3.

At present, our only significant sources of affordable housing have been through
Registered Provider Partners and off the back of successful S106 negotiations.

4.

Currently only 11% of total housing in the borough is social or affordable housing.
The London average is 24%. Housing is considered to be ‘affordable’ if it costs for
rent / mortgage and other service charges / council tax no more than 35% of net
income (although in the current climate, for London, this figure can creep up to just
over 40%). The average income of 60% of residents in Kingston is less than
£36,000. On this basis only a one or two bedroom unit shared by 2 working adults is
truly affordable in the borough although this is variable dependant on location within
the borough.

5.

The Council is on average losing 1% of its own stock to Right to Buy every year
which equates to approximately 40 homes.

6.

The development of new affordable rented housing in the borough would generate
a financial benefit for the General Fund as the Council’s nomination rights will
enable homeless households to be moved out of costly temporary accommodation
and into permanent housing. As at the end of September, temporary
accommodation costs are currently in the region of around £10k per annum per
household.

7.

RBK does not have a specific capital budget for new build developments,
conversions or extensions and this rules out Option 3 (below) as a viable method
for securing capital funds to develop the sites. The main source of capital funding
which RBK has for housing development projects are one-for-one (1-4-1) Right To
Buy (RTB) receipts. To date, RBK has retained £5.1m of one-for-one receipts.
These receipts can be used to fund a maximum of 30% of the development cost of
new social housing units.

HRA Sites Affordable Housing Development Feasibility Study
8.

RBK Housing Development Team (HDT) appointed Tibbalds Planning & Urban
Design on 21 October 2015 to assess in more detail the HRA sites with potential for
redevelopment where affordable homes can be created. The detailed assessment
was through feasibility and viability appraisals on the sites. The overall objective of
the appraisals was to inform RBK how many homes can be accommodated on the
sites and how much it will cost to build. The final report was completed on May
2016.

9.

In summary, the report concluded that seven RBK HRA sites could generate
approximately 75 homes at an estimated overall cost of £11M.The overall finding of
the HRA sites affordable housing development feasibility & viability study is
contained in Annex 1 and summarised in the table below:

F4

Project & Site
Name

Current Description
of Site

Potential
Potential
Development Number
Option
of
Homes

Total
Estimated
Cost (Exc
Interest &
Profit)

Ward

Garages at York
Way, Chessington,
KT9 2JU

Surrounded by open space
on a medium sized estate

20 x 2B4P Flats

20

£2,887,693

Chessington
South

Garages 9 - 30
Cumberland House,
Kingston, KT2 7LH

Located on estate adjacent
to sub-station and children's
play area.

10 x 1B2P & 10
x 2B4P

20

£2,689,093

Coombe Hill

Garages 58-64
Marshall House off
Rodney Road, KT3
5AD

Adjoining hard surface
areas

3 x 1B2P & 6 x
2B4P

9

£1,313,784

St James

Garages 16-21
Downfield House,
Sheephouse Way
Estate, KT3 5PR

Adjacent to disused drying
area

8 x 2B4P

8

£1,282,574

Old Malden

Garages at Selby
Close, Chessington,
KT9 2LH

Located near private
residential homes

3 x 1B2P Flats
& 6 x 2B4P
Flats

9

£1,270,224

Chessington
South

Garages at Wessex
Close, Kingston,
KT1 3RQ

Located on medium sized
estate.

1 x 2B3P, 1 X
3B4P Flats, 1 X
2B3P, 2 x
2B4P
Maisonettes

5

£746,740

Coombe Hill

Garages 25-29 &
30-35 Kent Way,
KT6 7SU

In two locations on estate

2 x 2B4P & 2 x
3B5P

4

£638,643

Tolworth and
Hook Rise

75

£10,828,751

TOTAL

10.

The overall objective of the feasibility and appraisals was to inform RBK how many
homes can be accommodated on the sites and how much it will cost to build while
meeting the relevant planning standards and guidelines wherever possible.

11.

The methodology for the production of the final development options for each site
encompassed the following tasks:
(a)

Planning Review: A comprehensive review of both local and regional planning
policy was carried out. This review established requirements for affordable
housing provision, housing density, types and tenure mixes, parking, and the
public realm, along with other site-specific implications (such as ecological
designations and conservation areas, etc.). This planning review also
addressed any relevant planning history issues of each site.

(b)

Design Review: A design review of each site was carried out, which includes
both a review of local and regional design guidelines and information gathered
from individual site visits. The design guideline review allowed an
understanding of local and regional requirements for residential design (e.g.
residential unit size, privacy issues, detailing, etc.). The individual site visits

F5
afforded a greater understanding of each specific site, including relationship to
neighbouring properties, prevailing streetscape, prevailing building heights,
etc.

12.

(c)

Production of Constraints and Opportunities Plans: Tibbalds produced detailed
constraints and opportunities plans for each of the sites. These plans set out
the physical constraints (e.g. electrical substations, tree protection orders,
etc.), policy constraints (e.g. neighbourhood policy areas), and opportunities
for the development to respond to the prevailing streetscape (e.g. frontages,
residential design, etc.)

(d)

Development of Initial Options: Having undertaken the above, up to three
development options for each of the sites were formulated. These options
were devised in line with the constraints and opportunities plans and looked to
suitably utilise opportunities to deliver high quality residential units within each
site. These options were then presented to the RBK Housing Development
Team.

(e)

Further Development of Preferred Options: The designated preferred options
were further developed including producing 3D modelling of each of the
preferred options to provide a greater level of detail. These preferred options
were then presented to RBK Planning, Design, and Highways Officers for
comments.

(f)

Final Developed Options: In response to the feedback from the meeting with
RBK Planning, Design, and Highways Officers the options were then further
consolidated and developed in the production of the final feasibility study
report. The final report included a bespoke investment model which examined
each scheme as if built out by the Council and held as an investment. The
income was estimated and then from this Gross Income, the costs of
construction were deducted. The net revenue constitutes an effective return to
the Council. The key components of the model were revenue, development
costs, revenue costs, capital costs, and financial costs. The model provided a
Net Present Value of each scheme; indicating whether a positive or negative
return would be achieved over the proposed cash-flow period and identifying
when the cash-flow would turn positive.

The study concludes that, should RBK decide to proceed with the options detailed
below (ref paras 14- 16 and Annex 1), further analysis and due diligence will be
required with regard to the following issues:
●
●
●
●
●

13.

Residential Occupants: The proposed development at Elm Road
encompasses six bungalows, three of which are currently tenanted;
Sites within Controlled Parking Zones;
Parking Usage; Disabled Parking; Garage tenants;
Unit Mix: Site Red-Lines;
Restrictive Covenants.

The Registered Providers (RPs) have been kept informed of the progress of the
feasibility study through the Housing Development Team Registered Providers
Forum since June 2015. The RPs have regularly expressed an interest in
developing affordable housing on HRA land. The feasibility study final report was
made available to the partner RPs on 22 June 2016 and they will feedback their
initial expressions of interest per site in relation to the information contained in the

F6
report by 30 July 2016. Three RPs have formally expressed an interest in the sites
identified in the study.
Proposal and Options
14.

Option 1 - Sell sites to Registered Providers (Housing Associations) on the
condition that they provide 100% affordable housing.
Method - Develop in partnership with a Registered Provider.
Pros
i Can utilise RTB 141 receipts on new homes at affordable/social rent.
ii Sites would provide 100% affordable housing
iii. Lower capital outlay.
iv. Borough would gain affordable rented housing with nomination rights.
v. The RP would take on the majority of the risk associated with any construction
project.
vi. Council will receive a capital receipt to support HRA capital priorities
vii. More flexibility in disposing of sites in smaller batches to RPs.
Cons
i. No further revenue to HRA.
ii. Council would not immediately gain experience of the housing development
process and the management of a new build programme.
iii. Council would lose a capital asset.
iv. Site may be less financially viable and/or attractive to RP.
v. Restricting sites to RPs may not represent best value.
vi. Rented affordable housing could be charged at up to 80% of market rent.

15.

Option 2 - Disposal of the sites to Registered Providers or private developers
to develop out the sites for a mix of affordable and private use with the private
homes cross-subsidising the affordable ones.
Method - Extend a tender to any housing developer partner to develop out all the
sites for a mix of affordable and private use with the private homes cross-subsidising
the affordable ones.
Pros
i. New affordable homes remain under council ownership.
ii. Further revenue to the HRA.
iii. No capital outlay
iv.The housing development partner would take on all the risk associated with the
construction project.
v. Can utilise RTB 1 - 4 - 1 receipts on the new affordable homes are at
affordable/social rent.
vi. Packaging all the sites together may make them more attractive to the market.
vii. RBK can set minimum amount of affordable housing required.
Cons
i. Less chance of utilising 141 receipts as RPs may build other tenures of affordable
housing to make project more financially viable.
ii. Sites would not provide 100% affordable housing.
iii. Council would not immediately gain experience of the housing development
process and the management of a new build programme.

iv. Council capital assets will reduce.
16.

F7

Option 3 - RBK taking responsibility for 70% of the funding and creating an
internal self-funded New Build Programme and assuming all units will be
affordable/social rent, can therefore utilise 141 RTB receipts.
Method - Develop sites in-house by commissioning design and cost consultants as
required while directing the skills and expertise of Council officers to new council
home building.
Pros
i.Will utilise RTB 1-4-1 receipts assuming all homes are at affordable/social rent.
ii.New affordable homes remain under council ownership.
iii.Further revenue to the HRA.
iv.Potentially rebalance stock lost through RTB.
v.Council would gain experience of the housing development process and the
management of a new build programme.
Cons
i. High capital outlay which Council cannot presently afford to fund.
ii. Council will have to identify at least 70% of build cost.
iii. Council would be responsible for all the risk associated with any construction
project.

Consultations
17.

A consultation was carried out on all the residents renting in the identified sites. The
results of these were reported to the RH&CS in September 2014.

Timescale
18.

There recommendation for Growth Committee (which has the remit for Asset
Management) will be referred that Committee’s meeting on 13 October 2016.

19.

The process for disposing of sites can take up to eighteen months, depending on
the conditions of sale.

20.

The housing development process, once ownership of the site is confirmed and
funding is in place, can take at least two years. The housing development process
involves:
●
●

●
●
●
●

the preparation of a project programme and risk assessment.
undertaking a feasibility and viability appraisal. This assesses how many homes can
fit on the site, and how much it will cost to build. The process involves assessing
total development costs and undertaking financial viability appraisals to assess unit
and tenure mix, cost breakdowns and funding sources.
If homes can be build homes on the site, an architect will prepare plans,
reports and everything else needed for a planning application.
Once the plans are finalised, a planning application to the local planning
authority is submitted.
Residents and businesses around the site are then consulted and are invited
to comment on the planning application.
If planning permission is granted, a building contractor is appointed to build the
homes.

Resource Implications

21.

F8
The RBK Housing Development Team (HDT) sold 11 of the 26 surplus garage sites
at auction between October 2015 and April 2016 generating £1,826,000 in capital
receipts. RBK Finance informed HDT that the capital receipt cannot be ringfenced
for the development of the identified sites as originally agreed. This was due in part
to revised HRA capital forecasts following the announcement in the July 2015
budgets that social landlords will be required to reduce rents by 1% a year for four
years.

22.

As a result RBK does not have a specific capital budget for new build
developments, conversions or extensions and this rules out Option 3 as a viable
method for securing capital funds to develop the sites.

23.

The redevelopment of the garage sites will result of in a loss of rental income. The
overall revenue impact would be approximately £72,000 per annum, although in
practice this is much lower, as only 26 of the 101 garages are currently let.

Legal Implications
24.

All garage tenants signed leases with a one week notice period to terminate the
contract. RBK will where possible ensure all garage tenants will be offered a
suitable alternative to their current garage, however, we will be enforcing the one
week notice period if necessary as a last resort.

25.

Statutory requirements as to the keeping of an HRA are contained in the Local
Government and Housing Act 1989. The provisions include a duty, under section 76
of the Act, to budget to prevent a debit balance on the HRA and to implement and
review the budget.

Risk Assessment
26.

If the sites should be retained rather redeveloped, the Council would retain
responsibility for rates, management costs, general repair and maintenance
costs,and restoration costs where the sites are in a state of some disrepair.

27.

Paragraph 12 above sets out issues for further analysis and due diligence.

Equalities Impact Assessment
28.

There are no specific equalities implications arising from these proposals. The
proposal will help provide affordable housing to meet the local needs of the
community and, in particular, priority housing need, including homeless households
amongst whom disadvantaged groups are disproportionately represented. Capital
receipts from disposals will assist in this provision as a potential funding source.

Road Network Implications
29.

The road network implications of disposal and /or re -developing sites will be taken
into consideration in determining any planning application.

Environmental Implications
30.

The environmental implications of disposal and/or re-developing sites will be taken
into consideration in determining any planning application.

Background papers – held by the author of the report - Andrew Ochia, HRA Housing
Development Senior Professional, 0208 547 5647 email: andrew.ochia@kingston.gov.uk

F9
● Kingston HRA Sites Feasibility Study - Revised Final Report May 2016
● HRA Affordable Housing Strategic Development Plan 2015-17
● Report to the Residents, Health and Care Services Committee - September 2014

Annex 1
Summary of outcomes - Royal Borough of Kingston HRA Sites Feasibility Study
Total
Estimated
No
Project &
Development
Cost
of
Option - Pros
Site Name
Option
(excl.
Homes
Interest &
profit)
Garages at
20 x 2B4P
20
£2,887,693 1.Maximises site potential for
York Way,
Flats
residential units. Reflects
Chessington,
prevailing building heights 2.
KT9 2JU (20
Provides sufficient space for bin
Garages)
store and cycle storage 3.
Sufficient amenity space 4.
Provides 70% of required parking
spaces.

20

£2,689,093 1. Maximises residential potential
of site 2. Provides 85% of
required parking spaces 3.
Potential for public realm and
play space improvements in
adjacent communal space 4.
Potential to split tenure through
provision of two cores.

Conclusions

Ward

1. Does not comply
with 7.5m minimum
from habitable room
windows to
boundaries of
neighbouring
properties at the rear.
2. Could increase
pressure on existing
parking infrastructure.
3. Legal issues
regarding covenant
will need to be
addressed.

1. Maximises site potential for
residential units 2. Provides
sufficient private amenity space
for each individual unit 3.
Provides sufficient communal
amenity space through shared
patio 3. Delivers 70% of
required parking spaces 4.
Potential for increased pressure
on local parking infrastructure.
5. Discussion with Network
Rail/TfL required due to sites
proximity to station which will
form part of Crossrail 2. 6.
Noise/vibrations from adjacent
railway line will need to be
addressed. 7. Opportunity for
communal amenity space via
roof - terrace.
1. Maximises residential
potential of site by delivering
twenty units. 2. Required
amount of private amenity
space provided through
gardens and balconies. 3.
Communal amenity space
provided through adjacent

Chessington
South

1. Does not comply
with 7.5m minimum
from habitable room
windows to
boundaries of
neighbouring
properties 2. Part of
building located

F10

Garages 9 - 10 x 1B2P &
30
10 x 2B4P
Cumberland
House,
Kingston,
KT2 7LH (21
Garages)

Option - Cons

Coombe Hill

3 x 1B2P & 6
x 2B4P

9

£1,313,784 1. Maximises residential potential
of site by delivering 9 affordable
units 2. Creates courtyard style
setting 3. Provides required
amenity space 4 .Provides 100%
required car parking spaces 5.
Respects access requirements
for substation.

parkland. 4. Potential to
significantly improve usage,
facilities and overlooking of
existing communal green
amenity space. 5. Provides
85% of required parking space.
Additional parking could be
delivered in adjacent green
space provided green space is
improved. 6. Extends outside
original red-line onto communal
play space. 7. Potential legal
issues regarding covenant to be
assessed.

1. Potential for
increased pressure
on existing car
parking provision. 2.
Potential for
overshadowing of
neighbouring
properties.

1. Maximises residential
potential of site by delivering 9
units. 2. Respects existing
access to the adjacent
substation, although this will
need to be confirmed as
sufficient by the operator. 3.
Respects mapped route of HV
Cable, although the actual
location of cable's route will
require further exploration due
to potential for discrepancies.
4.Creates courtyard setting with
improved communal amenity
space. 5. Respects the TPO
tree to the north - west of the
site red-line. 6. Provides 100%
of required parking spaces for
new development. 7. Requires
removal of adjacent buildings
bin store to improve access to
the site. 8. Could pressure

St James

F11

Garages
58-64
Marshall
House off
Rodney
Road, KT3
5AD (8
Garages)

outside of original site
red-line 3. Proposal
extends onto
communal play space
4.Potential legal
issues regarding
covenants affecting
land outside red-line.

existing parking provision in the
courtyard area.
8 x 2B4P

8

£1,282,574 1. Provides 100% of required
parking spaces 2. Provides
sufficient private/communal
amenity space 3. Opportunity to
improve existing public realm of
the estate

1. Does not take
advantage of wider
estate - regeneration
possibilities. 2. Does
not complement
orientation of existing
buildings. 3.
Scheme's proximity to
railway line will
require discussion
with Network Rail due
to Crossrail 2.

1. Fails to take advantage of
wider estate - regeneration
opportunities for the
Sheephouse Way Estate. 2.
Does not maximise residential
potential for the site, providing
just 8 units. 3. Discussion with
Network Rail/Tfl required due to
site's proximity to station/railway
line which will form part of
Crossrail2. 4. Provides 100%
required parking spaces for new
development. 5. Provides 100%
required private space through
balconies and gardens. 6.
Potential noise/vibration issues
due to site's proximity to railway
line will need to be addressed.

Old Malden

Garages at
Selby Close,
Chessington,
KT9 2LH (15
Garages)

3 x 1B2P
Flats & 6 x
2B4P Flats

9

£1,270,224 1. Reflects existing street-scene
if third storey were built within
roof pitch of building 2.
Maximises residential potential of
site 3. Provides 100% required
parking spaces for development.

1. Does not comply
with 7.5m minimum
from habitable room
windows to
boundaries of
neighbouring
properties 2. Does
not provide additional
parking spaces for
existing properties.

1. Maximises residential
potential for site by delivering 9
units. 2. Private amenity space
via south-facing balconies and
gardens. 3. Provides 100%
required parking spaces for
development. 4.Potential to
lessen impact of three storey
development on surroundings
by providing third storey within
the roof space. 5. Does not
provide additional parking for
existing houses. 6.Does not
provide any communal amenity
space. 7. Potential to mitigate

Chessington
South

F12

Former
Garages
16-21
Downfield
House,
Sheephouse
Way Estate,
KT3 5PR (0
Garages)

Garages at
Wessex
Close,
Kingston,
KT1 3RQ (25
Garages)

5

£746,740

Garages
2 x 2B4P & 2
25-29 & 30-35
x 3B5P
Kent Way,
KT6 7SU (11
Garages)

4

£638,643

1. Maximises residential potential
for site by delivering 4 units 2.
Provides mix of family units and
smaller units 3. Respects existing
street-scene and heights 4.
Delivers required amenity space
5. Delivers 100% required car
parking spaces.

1. Extends beyond
original site red-line
into adjacent
Council-owned
amenity space 2.
Provides car parking
on opposite side of
road 3. Does not
comply with 7.5m
minimum from
habitable room
windows to
boundaries of
neighbouring
properties.

Coombe Hill

F13

1 x 2B3P, 1
X 3B4P
Flats, 1 X
2B3P, 2 x
2B4P
Maisonettes

proximity to property boundary
through landscape screening.
1. Delivers 5 affordable units,
1. Does not comply
1.Maximises residential
maximising residential potential
with 7.5m minimum
potential of site by delivering 5
for the site 2. Provides a mix of
from habitable room units despite very constrained
family units and smaller units 3.
windows to
nature of the site. 2. Provides
Delivers 100% of the required
boundaries of
mix of family units and smaller
parking spaces 4. Delivers 100% neighbouring
units. 3. Delivers 100% of
of required private amenity
properties. 2. Does
required parking spaces. 4.
space.
not provide any
Provides sufficient amount of
additional communal private amenity space, but no
space; uses existing additional communal space
space within estate.
aside from the existing space
3. Potential to create within the estate. 5. Respects
pressure on existing more sensitive frontages in
parking infrastructure. surrounding area. 6. Does not
comply with distance standards
from habitable room windows to
boundaries of neighbouring
properties. 7.Could create
pressure on existing traffic/
parking infrastructure.

1. Maximises residential
Tolworth and
potential for site by delivering 4
Hook Rise
units on a very constrained site.
2. Extends beyond site red-line
into adjacent public amenity
space, providing opportunity to
improve existing green qualities
of space 3. Provides 100%
required parking spaces on
opposite side of Kent Way
4.Provides sufficient private and
communal amenity space 5.
Potential for overlooking on
adjacent properties

75

£10,828,751

F14

Growth Committee

G1

Appendix G

13 October 2016
Investigating a leasing model for Housing property development (for vacant high
value local authority housing): Housing and Planning Act 2016
Reference from the Housing Sub-Committee meeting of 13 September 2016
Purpose
To recommend the Committee requests a report investigating the viability of a leasing model
for Housing property development arising from the requirements of the Housing and Planning
Act 2016.
Recommendations from the Housing Sub-Committee meeting
To resolve that 1.

a report is submitted to a future meeting of the Growth Committee investigating the
viability of a leasing model as a way of responding to the housing property development
requirements of the Housing and Planning Act 2016 in relation to high value vacant
properties (ref paras 5-7 of this report); and

2.

decisions on individual disposals are delegated to the Head of Housing in consultation
with the Portfolio Holder for Adults Social Care and Health and the Portfolio Holder for
Regeneration in accordance with the criteria as set out in paras 8-15 of this report.

Key Points
A.

At its meeting on 13 September 2016 the Housing Sub-Committee received a report
on the likely impact of the requirements of the Housing and Planning Act 2016 in
relation to disposal of high value void properties and considered possible
approaches to enable the Council to meet the requirements of this legislation.

B.

The Housing and Planning Act 2016 (Part 4, Chapter 2) sets out that local
authorities will be required to make a payment to central Government equal to the
value of all high value properties likely to become vacant over the following year.

C.

Although the specifics of the scheme are not yet known, the report estimated the
financial impact on the Council at between £10.6M and £14.8M in the first year.

D.

As well as selling properties according to a calculated approach, the Council may
consider other measures such as development land sales, property development
and sale, and the sale and leasing back of properties (ref paras 5-7).

E.

Given that decisions on individual disposals will need to be taken within timescales
which do not fit with the schedule of the five Housing Sub-Committee meetings per
year, the Housing Sub-Committee agreed a process of delegating decisions on
individual disposals to the Head of Housing in consultation with the Portfolio Holder
for Adults Social Care and Health and the Portfolio Holder for Regeneration in
accordance with criteria set out in paragraphs 8-15 of this report.

Context
1.

The Housing and Planning Act 2016 (Part 4, Chapter 2) sets out that local authorities
will be required to make a payment to central Government equal to the value of all
high value properties likely to become vacant over the following year. The payment
will be described according to a determination from the Secretary of State.

2.

3.

G2
The Regulations, which are expected shortly, will: define high value properties;
describe the method of calculation of the determination value; and indicate the
implementation date.
Until regulations are issued, the following specifics of the scheme are uncertain:
●
●
●
●

4.

the definition of a high value void property
any excepted property types (e.g. sheltered accommodation)
the method of calculation of the determination value
the implementation date of the scheme

For the purposes of this report, the following assumptions are being made to allow
the broadest range of possible approaches:
●

the Council will be limited to only selling certain properties to raise the
amount described by the determination – proposed exclusions will be:
-

sheltered/vulnerable accommodation
specially adapted properties
properties with shared facilities
properties on estates subject to planned redevelopment

●

the determination value will probably fall within the range predicted in the
above introduction section

●

the scheme will be implemented shortly after issue of the regulations and no
later than the end of the current (2016/17) financial year

Proposal and Options
(1) Leasing model for Sale of Newly Developed Affordable Properties
5.

Once a new property has been built, and forms part of the Council’s housing stock,
it will be considered no different from any other RBK property. While the Council
may wish to categorise any such properties as a low priority for sale, as they
represent modern high quality housing, these properties are conversely also likely
to be high value for their size and this will be reflected in a high sale priority on the
Property Assessment Index set out in Table 1 paragraph 13 below.

6.

Given the limitations the Council faces in developing new affordable/ social rented
properties, the Council may want to consider the viability of creating a new model
whereby they set up a separate holding company to develop properties for sale on
the open market specifically to make the most of existing Council owned land, and
on new sites purchased by the holding company. As well as creating a sustainable
model, this would also serve to increase the level of private and affordable housing
in the borough.

7.

Some London boroughs are currently considering models which sell higher value
assets on into either an independent company (contracted with the Council but
not Council owned) or a council subsidiary company with the assets bought by an
institutional investor and leased back.
(2) Process and criteria for delegated decision-making on individual disposals

8.

As properties become vacant an assessment should be made of the eligibility and
relative value of the property to the Council based on the following criteria:

G3
property type - certain types of specialised property may be exempted
property size - and therefore whether it is a property in high or low demand –
please see the supply and demand analysis (Table 1, para 13 below)
location
condition - whether the building containing the property is in need of any
future work.
tenure - percentage of other privately owned properties in the building.

●
●
●
●
●
9.

The Property Assessment Index (ref Table 1 para 13 below) compares the demand
of each property type against the average value to create an overall point value for
any specific property. The point value is intended to prioritise properties for sale, the
higher the point value the more beneficial the sale.

10.

For instance if we were to use only demand as an indicator we would probably
chose to sell mostly one bedroom properties as we have a high supply relative to
the demand. If we were to use only the value as an indicator, we would sell mostly
four plus bedroom properties.

11.

By combining the two approaches, we are optimising the receipts, while still
factoring in the demand. According to this approach, the sale of properties with 4+
bedrooms represents the best balance of demand against value, and the sale of 2
bedroom properties represents the worst balance.

12.

The overall point value can also be biased up or down for individual properties
according to factors that may vary the benefit to the Council or appeal to a buyer,
such as:
●
●
●

13.

location – an adjustment to the valuation according to postcode
condition – the need for substantial expenditure in the next 5 years
tenure – to reflect a high number of privately owned neighbouring properties

In Table 1 the demand has been determined based on the number of homeless
households qualifying for temporary accommodation. Alternatively where the
demand is determined as the total number of households on the Housing List
(9,226 as at 01 August 2016) priority for selling different sizes of property
corresponds exactly to the average value, or in other words the larger the property
the higher the priority to sell it. Table 2 provides a full analysis of all households on
the housing list.

Table 1. Property Assessment Index
Size
(beds)

Supply

Demand

%
met

Av.
Value
(£k)

Location
(bias)

Condition
(bias)

Tenure
(bias)

Points
(Overall)

Sale
Priority

1

84

118

71

170

100%

100%

100%

121

2nd

2

65

330

20

280

100%

100%

100%

55

4th

3

41

114

36

305

100%

100%

100%

110

3rd

4+

12

36

33

430

100%

100%

100%

143

1st

Totals /Av.

202

598

34

-

-

Table 2. Households on housing register by band and property size (as at 01.08.16)

Band A

Studio

1

2

3

4

5+

Total

5

163

89

27

7

1

292

G4
Band B

0

178

185

96

48

11

518

Band C

0

3074

1219

682

177

30

5182

Band D

0

1584

1182

402

60

6

3234

Total

5

4999

2675

1207

292

48

9226

14.

In addition to the above sliding-scale approach, we may consider straightforward
thresholds for property value or estimated maintenance costs. For instance, the
immediate sale of any property valued over £400k, or any property with £10k of
maintenance work estimated over the next 5 years.

Land/Garage Sales
15.

The sale of Council owned land could provide an additional source of income to
meet the determination payment. Where land has been earmarked for
development and planning permission has been secured this would maximise its
market value. As this is something the Council is already doing, the consideration
is whether these funds can be used toward the determination, or be deducted from
the determination amount. Receipts of the above land sales for October 2015 to
date amount to £1.8M.

Consultations
16.

Detailed information on consultations with officers in other boroughs on the
approaches which they are taking is set out in the report to the Housing
Sub-Committee.

Timescale
17.

The relevant regulations are anticipated to be published in Autumn this year.

18.

Individual disposals cannot be authorised by the Housing Sub-Committee as
decisions will need to be taken within timescales which do not fit with the five
Housing Sub-Committee meetings per year.

Resource Implications
19.

The report to the Housing Sub-Committee estimates an overall cost to the Council
of between £10.6M and £14.8M (for which detailed calculations are set out in the
report), which is made up of:
●
●
●
●

20.

the value of property which Kingston will be expected to sell between 42 (25%)
and 58 (35%) of properties that become vacant estimated value of between
£10.134M and £14.187M
conveyancing, estate agent and administration costs of the requirements
the increase to the Council’s Nightly Paid Accommodation Costs
lost rental income of between £248k and £347k (arising from reduction in the
housing stock of between 42 and 58 properties).

In view of the significant financial implications outlined above, a review of the
Housing Revenue Account Business Plan will be undertaken once detailed
regulations are available in the Autumn and reported to the Housing
Sub-Committee.

Legal Implications

G5
21.

Further legal advice will be sought once the regulations are published in the Autumn
and that advice will be included within the report (if the Committee requests this) to
be submitted on the investigation of a leasing model.

Risk Assessment
22.

The risks to the Council are:
● the financial impact as set out above
● the reduction of capital assets in the form of housing stock

Equalities Impact Assessment
23.

In implementing these proposals we will ensure that any detrimental impact for any
particular communities will be monitored and appropriate remedial actions are
undertaken to eliminate discrimination and advance equality of opportunity, and
foster good relations within the protected characteristics. When the regulations
come into force, a full equalities impact assessment will be undertaken prior to
implementation.

Road Network and Environmental Implications
24.

There are no road network or environmental implications arising from the report
recommendations.

Background papers held by the author of the report, Robert Richmond Lead Officer
Leasehold Services email: robert.richmond@kingston.gov.uk tel 020 8547 5566

Growth Committee

1

Appendix

13 October 2016

Disposal of the long lease of St Mary’s Centre, Chessington
Report by the Director of Place
Purpose
To approve the disposal of the site known as the St Mary's Centre, Chessington, to the
YMCA by way of a long lease, subject to the YMCA obtaining any necessary planning
consents and resolving any relevant land issues.
Recommendations of the Portfolio Holder for Regeneration, Assets and Planning
Policy
The Committee is recommended to approve the proposed disposal of the leasehold of
the site known as the St Mary’s Centre, Chessington, to the YMCA, subject to the YMCA
obtaining any necessary planning consents and resolving any relevant land issues.
To resolve that the Head of Property is granted delegated authority to finalise the
commercial terms for the leasehold disposal of the site known as St Mary’s, Chessington
to the YMCA.
Key Points
A.

The Council owns the freehold of the site known as St Mary’s Chessington. The site
has been leased to St Mary’s Church since 2008;

B.

The YMCA has made a proposal to acquire the leasehold of the site for a period of
150 years in order to facilitate a mixed use development consisting of a community
hall facility and 31 one bedroom residential units;

C.

The Council understands that the YMCA has an outline agreement in place with St
Mary’s Church to surrender its existing rights under the Landlord and Tenant Act
1954, in return for the use of the new community facility that the YMCA intends to
develop on site;

D.

The YMCA has proposed to pay an annual rental for the use of the site, to grant the
Council nomination rights for 50% of the residential units it intends to develop on
the site, and to enter into a profit sharing arrangement with the Council for any
additional revenue it is able to generate from the community facility;

E.

The Committee is asked to grant the YMCA a leasehold interest of 150 years,
restricted to use classes C3, D1 and D2 under the Town and Country Planning (Use
Classes) Order 1987, subject to the YMCA obtaining any necessary planning
consents under the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, and subject to the YMCA
resolving any relevant land issues on site.

F.

The key commercial terms for the proposed leasehold disposal are set out in the
Exempt section of this report.

Context
1.

The Council has leased the premises to the St Mary’s Centre since 2008. This
lease expired in May 2015 and the Council has agreed that the tenant can ‘hold

2
over’ on it’s lease in the premises until November 2017. This holding over period
has facilitated a dialogue between the tenant and the developer about the
proposed development on site.
Proposal
2.

The YMCA has been discussing with St Mary’s Church the possibility of taking on
the existing St Mary’s Centre site, for the purposes of re-providing the community
centre and constructing 31 residential units.

3.

The Council received an offer from the YMCA for a 150 year lease of the site,
which includes payment of a ground rent, the provision of nomination rights for
15 of the residential units, and an agreement with St Mary’s for them to use the
proposed community hall facility. The key elements of the bid are set out in the
exempt sections of the report.

Consultations
4.

Any proposals for development on site will be subject to the full consultation
requirements of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and will be for the
developer to take forward.

Timescale
5.

The proposed disposal is subject to the purchaser achieving any necessary
planning consents, and resolving any relevant land issues on site. It is proposed
that Contract for Sale grants the purchaser a period of 18 months, from
December 2016, to achieve this.

Resource Implications
6.

The proposed disposal will produce a financial benefit to the Council through
increased rental income from the site. The proposed development will also
facilitate a non-cashable financial benefit to the Council by virtue of the
nomination rights to 15 residential units. The precise details of the proposed offer
are set out in the Exempt section of this report.

7.

The Head of Housing has been consulted on this proposal and regards the offer
of nomination rights on 15 of the residential units as being advantageous to the
Council.

Legal Implications
8.

Local Authorities are given powers under the Local Government Act 1972 to
dispose of land in any manner they wish, including sale of the freehold interest,
granting a lease, and the granting of easements. Local Authorities are generally
expected to obtain the best consideration reasonably obtainable for the disposal
of their land. However, it is also recognised, in the General Consent Order 2003,
that there may be circumstances where an authority considers it appropriate to

3
dispose of land at an undervalue. Specifically, in circumstances where the
undervalue of the land is valued at less than £2,000,000 of the unrestricted value
of the land, the authority has the power to dispose of the land in question in line
with its powers to promote economic, social and environmental well being in the
area.
9.

An assessment of the financial value of the cashable and non-cashable elements
of the proposed disposal are presented in the Exempt part of this report. The
assessment demonstrates that the proposed offer produces an overall net
financial benefit to the Council.

Environmental Implications
10.

The disposal is subject to the developer obtaining any necessary planning
consents, and resolving any relevant land issues, and it is expected that any
applicable environmental issues will be identified and managed during this
process.

Background papers: None other than those referred to in this report
Author of the report - Karl Limbert, Head of Property, 020 8547 5155,
karl.limbert@kingston.gov.uk

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

4

Document is Restricted

